

State of Iowa

**JOURNAL
OF THE HOUSE**

**2020
REGULAR SESSION
EIGHTY-EIGHTH
GENERAL ASSEMBLY**

**Convened – January 13, 2020
Adjourned – June 14, 2020**

**KIM REYNOLDS, Governor
PAT GRASSLEY, Speaker of the House
CHARLES SCHNEIDER, President of the Senate**

*Published by the
STATE OF IOWA
Des Moines*

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OFFICERS OF THE HOUSE.....	i
JOINT EMPLOYEES OF THE HOUSE AND SENATE	iii
ELECTED STATE OFFICIALS, SUPREME COURT JUSTICES AND COURT OF APPEALS JUDGES	iv
MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE	v
HOUSE DAILY JOURNALS.....	1
SUPPLEMENT TO HOUSE JOURNAL	784
AMENDMENTS FILED	800
CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORTS.....	1515
RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED.....	1516
JOURNAL INDEX.....	1521

OFFICERS OF THE HOUSE

EIGHTY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY
2020 Regular Session

- GRASSLEY, PAT *Speaker of the House*
- WILLS, JOHN H..... *Speaker Pro Tempore*
- WINDSCHITL, MATT W..... *Majority Leader*
- SEXTON, MIKE..... *Majority Whip*
- BRINK, HOLLY *Assistant Majority Leader*
- HUSEMAN, DANIEL ADAIR *Assistant Majority Leader*
- THORUP, JON..... *Assistant Majority Leader*
- ZUMBACH, LOUIS J *Assistant Majority Leader*
- PRICHARD, TODD..... *Minority Leader*
- OLDSON, JO..... *Minority Whip*
- KONFRST, JENNIFER *Assistant Minority Leader*
- McCONKEY, CHARLIE *Assistant Minority Leader*
- MEYER, BRIAN..... *Assistant Minority Leader*
- STECKMAN, SHARON S..... *Assistant Minority Leader*

- BALDERSON, STEVE..... *Sergeant-at-Arms I*
- BEALL, ASHLEY *Republican Caucus Staff – Senior Secretary*
- BENNETT, ROBIN..... *Journal - Administrative Services Officer III*
- BRONSINK, KELLY *Senior Finance Officer III*
- BROWN, CLYDE *Doorkeeper*
- CHAPMAN, JASON *Senior Assistant Chief Clerk*
- DOLAN, MOLLY *Administrative Services Officer III*
- EPLEY, DAVE *Democratic Caucus Staff - Senior Research Analyst*
- FIIHR, DEAN *Senior Administrative Assistant to Minority Leader II*
- FLANNERY, JESSICA..... *Democratic Caucus Staff – Senior Secretary*
- FREELAND, BILL..... *Democratic Caucus Staff - Senior Research Analyst*

FREEMAN, DOREEN RENO.....	<i>Assist. Legal Counsel - Senior Admin. Services Officer</i>
FRIEDRICHSEN, JAKE	<i>Senior Administrative Assistant to Minority Leader II</i>
GENTZ, BENJAMIN	<i>Republican Caucus Staff - Research Analyst I</i>
GIESELMAN, WAYNE	<i>Assistant Sergeant-At-Arms</i>
GILDE, JOE.....	<i>Democratic Caucus Staff - Research Analyst III</i>
GINTY, NATALIE	<i>Republican Caucus Staff - Research Analyst II</i>
GUILLAUME, BRIAN.....	<i>Democratic Caucus Staff - Research Analyst II</i>
HAUPTS, MICHELLE.....	<i>Administrative Services Officer</i>
HOOK, HALEY.....	<i>Administrative Assistant to Majority Leader</i>
JENNINGS, SUE.....	<i>Journal - Senior Administrative Services Officer</i>
KINMAN, LINDA	<i>Doorkeeper</i>
KIOUS, KRISTI	<i>Republican Caucus Staff – Senior Research Analyst</i>
MAURO, FRANK.....	<i>Doorkeeper</i>
MEIER, JOSIAH.....	<i>Switchboard Operator</i>
MITCHELL, JEFFREY	<i>Republican Caucus Staff - Senior Director</i>
MONAGHAN, DON.....	<i>Doorkeeper</i>
MURRAY, LOGAN	<i>Republican Caucus Staff - Research Analyst I</i>
NADING, MACKENZIE.....	<i>Senior Administrative Assistant to Majority Leader I</i>
NELSON, MEGHAN	<i>Chief Clerk</i>
OLSON, LEWIS.....	<i>Republican Caucus Staff - Senior Research Analyst</i>
PIERCE, PHYLLIS.....	<i>Finance Officer II</i>
PRESCOTT, SAVANNAH G.....	<i>Administrative Services Officer I</i>
ROMANO, JOE.....	<i>Democratic Caucus Staff - Senior Director</i>
ROSS, RANDY	<i>Postmaster</i>
ROZENBOOM, KRISTIN	<i>Legislative Research Analyst</i>
SKEFFINGTON, JOAN.....	<i>Bill Clerk</i>
SMUCK, LINDA	<i>Doorkeeper</i>
STEVEN, LAURA.....	<i>Senior Administrative Assistant to Speaker I</i>
TADLOCK, COLIN.....	<i>Admin. Assistant III to Speaker/Communications Director</i>
THIEN, KELSEY.....	<i>Democratic Caucus Staff - Research Analyst I</i>

THOMAS, RACHELLE	<i>Democratic Caucus Staff - Senior Research Analyst</i>
THRASHER, ALVIN.....	<i>Chief Doorkeeper</i>
TROW, BRADLEY	<i>Republican Caucus Staff - Senior Deputy Director</i>
VER SCHUER, ALISON.....	<i>Democratic Caucus Staff - Legislative Research Analyst I</i>
WALSH, DENNIS.....	<i>Doorkeeper</i>
WENTZ, KRIS.....	<i>Indexing - Senior Administrative Services Officer</i>
WILLE, AMANDA	<i>Republican Caucus Staff - Research Analyst III</i>

JOINT EMPLOYEES OF THE HOUSE AND SENATE

BACUS, KATHLEEN	<i>Security Officer I</i>
BUNKERS, ZACHARY L.....	<i>Facilities Manager I</i>
ELLIOTT, JODY.....	<i>Security Officer I</i>
EYBERG, JAMES.....	<i>Security Officer I</i>
FERGUSON, SHAWNA S	<i>Security Coordinator II</i>
GARDINER, BRANDIE.....	<i>Copy Center Operator</i>
GARRISON, DAVID	<i>Security Officer II</i>
HENDERSON, CURTIS.....	<i>Security Officer I</i>
KNAPP, TIMOTHY	<i>Security Officer I</i>
MARCHANT, RANDY	<i>Security Officer I</i>
McBRIDE, MAC.....	<i>Conservation/Restoration Specialist II</i>
MURPHY, KATE	<i>Human Resources Director</i>
QUIGLE, JEFF.....	<i>Security Officer I</i>
SCHNELL, KERT	<i>Security Officer I</i>
TAYLOR, RICHARD.....	<i>Security Officer I</i>
WILLEMSSEN, MARK L.....	<i>Senior Facilities Manager</i>
WINTER, MARLAND.....	<i>Security Officer I</i>
WINTER, MICHAEL H	<i>Security Officer I</i>

ELECTED STATE OFFICIALS

Official Address: Des Moines, Iowa

- KIM REYNOLDS *Governor*
- ADAM GREGG *Lieutenant Governor*
- PAUL D. PATE *Secretary of State*
- ROB SAND *Auditor of State*
- MICHAEL L. FITZGERALD *Treasurer of State*
- MICHAEL NAIG *Secretary of Agriculture*
- THOMAS J. MILLER *Attorney General*

JUSTICES OF THE IOWA SUPREME COURT

- SUSAN K. CHRISTENSEN *Chief Justice*
- BRENT R. APPEL *Justice*
- EDWARD M. MANSFIELD *Justice*
- MATTHEW McDERMOTT *Justice*
- CHRISTOPHER L. McDONALD *Justice*
- DANA OXLEY *Justice*
- THOMAS D. WATERMAN *Justice*

JUDGES OF THE IOWA COURT OF APPEALS

- THOMAS N. BOWER *Chief Judge*
- PAUL B. AHLERS *Judge*
- RICHARD H. DOYLE *Judge*
- DAVID MAY *Judge*
- MICHAEL R. MULLINS *Judge*
- JULIE SCHUMACHER *Judge*
- SHARON SOORHOLTZ-GREER *Judge*
- MARY E. TABOR *Judge*
- ANURADHA VAITHESWARAN *Judge*

MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE

EIGHTY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY 2020 Regular Session

(Italicized county indicates the county of residence.)

ABDUL-SAMAD, AKO (D)

Residence.....Des Moines
Occupation CEO-Creative Visions
Legislative Service.....2007-2020
Representative District 35-*Polk*

ANDERSON, MARTI (D)

Residence.....Des Moines
Occupation Social Worker
Legislative Service.....2013-2020
Representative District 36-*Polk*

BACON, ROBERT P. (R)

Residence.....Slater
Occupation Funeral Director
Legislative Service..... Senate 2011-2012; House 2013-2020
Representative District 48-Boone, Hamilton, *Story*, Webster

BAXTER, TERRY C. (R)

Residence.....Garner
Occupation World Missions GoServ Global
Legislative Service.....2015-2020
Representative District 8-*Hancock*, Kossuth, Wright

BEARINGER, BRUCE (D)

Residence.....Oelwein
Occupation
Legislative Service.....2013-2020
Representative District 64-Buchanan, *Fayette*

BENNETT, LIZ (D)

Residence.....Cedar Rapids
Occupation Internet Sales/Support Consultant-GoDaddy.com
Legislative Service.....2015-2020
Representative District 65-*Linn*

BERGAN, MICHAEL R. (R)

Residence.....Dorchester
Occupation Accountant
Legislative Service.....2017-2020
Representative District 55-Clayton, *Fayette*, *Winneshiek*

BEST, BRIAN (R)

Residence.....Glidden
Occupation President-Western Iowa Sleep
Legislative Service.....2015-2020
Representative District 12-Audubon, *Carroll*, Crawford

BLOOMINGDALE, JANE (R)

Residence.....Northwood
Occupation
Legislative Service.....2017-2020
Representative District 51-Howard, Mitchell, *Winneshiek*, *Worth*

BOSSMAN, JACOB (R)

Residence.....Sioux City
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....*2018-2020
 Representative District6-Woodbury
 *Elected in Special Election January 16, 2018

BRECKENRIDGE, WES (D)

Residence.....Newton
 OccupationAdjunct Instructor-DMACC
 Legislative Service.....2017-2020
 Representative District29-Jasper

BRINK, HOLLY (R)

Residence.....Oskaloosa
 OccupationBenefits Consultant
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District80-Appanoose, Mahaska, Monroe, Wapello

BROWN-POWERS, TIMI (D)

Residence.....Waterloo
 OccupationTherapist-MercyOne
 Legislative Service.....2015-2020
 Representative District61-Black Hawk

CARLSON, GARY L. (R)

Residence.....Muscatine
 OccupationRetired-HNI Corporation
 Legislative Service.....2015-2020
 Representative District91-Muscatine

COHOON, DENNIS M. (D)

Residence.....Burlington
 OccupationRetired Teacher
 Legislative Service.....1987-2020
 Representative District87-Des Moines

DERRY, KARIN (D)

Residence.....Johnston
 OccupationAttorney
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District39-Polk

DEYOE, DAVE (R)

Residence.....Nevada
 OccupationFarmer
 Legislative Service.....2007-2020
 Representative District49-Hardin, Story

DOLECHECK, CECIL (R)

Residence.....Mount Ayr
 OccupationRetired Farmer
 Legislative Service.....1997-2020
 Representative District24-Montgomery, Page, Ringgold, Taylor

DONAHUE, MOLLY (D)

Residence.....Cedar Rapids
 OccupationTeacher
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District68-Linn

EHLERT, TRACY (D)

Residence.....Cedar Rapids
 OccupationEarly Childhood Educator/Small Business Owner
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District70-Linn

FISHER, DEAN (R)

Residence..... Montour
 Occupation Engineering/Farming
 Legislative Service..... 2013-2020
 Representative District 72-Black Hawk, Marshall, *Tama*

FORBES, JOHN (D)

Residence..... Urbandale
 Occupation Pharmacist
 Legislative Service..... 2013-2020
 Representative District 40-*Polk*

FRY, JOEL (R)

Residence..... Osceola
 Occupation Therapist
 Legislative Service..... 2011-2020
 Representative District 27-*Clarke*, Decatur, Lucas, Wayne

GAINES, RUTH ANN (D)

Residence..... Des Moines
 Occupation Professor
 Legislative Service..... 2011-2020
 Representative District 32-*Polk*

GASKILL, MARY A. (D)

Residence..... Ottumwa
 Occupation Retired County Auditor
 Legislative Service..... 2003-2020
 Representative District 81-*Wapello*

GASSMAN, TEDD (R)

Residence..... Scarville
 Occupation Farmer/Legislator
 Legislative Service..... 2013-2020
 Representative District 7-*Emmet*, Kossuth, *Winnebago*

GERHOLD, THOMAS D. (R)

Residence..... Atkins
 Occupation Research Associate
 Legislative Service..... 2019-2020
 Representative District 75-*Benton*, Iowa

GRASSLEY, PAT (R)

Residence..... New Hartford
 Occupation Farmer
 Legislative Service..... 2007-2020
 Representative District 50-*Butler*, Grundy, Hardin

GUSTAFSON, STAN (R)

Residence..... Cumming
 Occupation Retired Marine/Retired Attorney
 Legislative Service..... *2014-2020
 Representative District 25-*Madison*, Warren
 *Elected in Special Election January 7, 2014

HAGENOW, CHRIS (R)

Residence..... Urbandale
 Occupation Attorney
 Legislative Service..... 2009-2020
 Representative District 19-*Dallas*, *Polk*

HALL, CHRIS (D)

Residence..... Sioux City
 Occupation
 Legislative Service..... 2011-2020
 Representative District 13-*Woodbury*

HANUSA, MARY ANN (R)

Residence..... Council Bluffs
Occupation Special Projects & Programs Director-Children’s Square USA
Legislative Service..... 2011-2020
Representative District16-Pottawattamie

HEIN, LEE (R)

Residence.....Monticello
Occupation Farmer
Legislative Service..... 2011-2020
Representative District96-Delaware, Jones

HINSON, ASHLEY (R)

Residence..... Marion
Occupation Consultant
Legislative Service..... 2017-2020
Representative District67-Linn

HITE, DUSTIN D. (R)

Residence..... New Sharon
Occupation Attorney
Legislative Service..... 2019-2020
Representative District 79-Mahaska, Marion

HOLT, STEVEN (R)

Residence..... Denison
Occupation Business Owner/Retired U.S. Marine
Legislative Service..... 2015-2020
Representative District18-Crawford, Harrison, Shelby

HUNTER, BRUCE (D)

Residence.....Des Moines
OccupationRetired
Legislative Service..... *2003-2020
Representative District 34-Polk
**Elected in Special Election February 11, 2003*

HUSEMAN, DANIEL ADAIR (R)

Residence..... Aurelia
Occupation Farmer
Legislative Service..... 1995-2020
Representative District3-Cherokee, O'Brien, Plymouth, Sioux

ISENHART, CHARLES (D)

Residence.....Dubuque
Occupation President-Common Good Services/Sports Official
Legislative Service..... 2009-2020
Representative District100-Dubuque

JACOBSEN, JON (R)

Residence..... Council Bluffs
Occupation Senior Trust Officer/VP/Attorney
Legislative Service..... *2017-2020
Representative District22-Pottawattamie
**Elected in Special Election June 27, 2017*

JACOBY, DAVE (D)

Residence.....Coralville
Occupation STEM Coordinator
Legislative Service..... *2003-2020
Representative District74-Johnson
**Elected in Special Election August 26, 2003*

JAMES, LINDSAY (D)

Residence.....Dubuque
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District99-Dubuque

JENEARY, TOM (R)

Residence.....Le Mars
 OccupationRetired Dentist
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District5-Plymouth, Woodbury

JONES, MEGAN (R)

Residence.....Sioux Rapids
 OccupationNon-practicing Attorney/Farm Wife
 Legislative Service.....2013-2020
 Representative District2-Clay, Dickinson, Palo Alto

JUDGE, KENAN (D)

Residence.....Waukee
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District44-Dallas

KACENA, TIMOTHY (D)

Residence.....Sioux City
 OccupationRetired Firefighter
 Legislative Service.....2017-2020
 Representative District14-Woodbury

KAUFMANN, BOBBY (R)

Residence.....Wilton
 OccupationGrain and Livestock Farmer/Small Business Owner
 Legislative Service.....2013-2020
 Representative District73-Cedar, Johnson, Muscatine

KERR, DAVID (R)

Residence.....Morning Sun
 OccupationFarming/Retired-Kinder Morgan Inc.
 Legislative Service.....2017-2020
 Representative District88-Des Moines, Louisa, Muscatine

KLEIN, JARAD (R)

Residence.....Keota
 OccupationFamily Farmer
 Legislative Service.....2011-2020
 Representative District78-Keokuk, Washington

KONFRST, JENNIFER (D)

Residence.....Windsor Heights
 OccupationProfessor
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District43-Polk

KRESSIG, BOB (D)

Residence.....Cedar Falls
 OccupationRetired-John Deere
 Legislative Service.....2005-2020
 Representative District59-Black Hawk

KURTH, MONICA (D)

Residence.....Davenport
 OccupationRetired Teacher
 Legislative Service.....*2017-2020
 Representative District89-Scott

**Elected in Special Election January 31, 2017*

MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE

KURTZ, JEFF (D)

Residence.....Fort Madison
OccupationRetired Locomotive Engineer
Legislative Service.....2019-2020
Representative District83-*Lee*

LANDON, JOHN (R)

Residence.....Ankeny
OccupationRetired Ag Business
Legislative Service.....2013-2020
Representative District37-*Polk*

LENSING, VICKI (D)

Residence.....Iowa City
OccupationFuneral Home Owner
Legislative Service.....2001-2020
Representative District85-*Johnson*

LOHSE, BRIAN K. (R)

Residence.....Bondurant
OccupationAttorney
Legislative Service.....2019-2020
Representative District30-*Polk*

LUNDGREN, SHANNON (R)

Residence.....Poosta
OccupationSmall Business Owner
Legislative Service.....2017-2020
Representative District57-*Dubuque*

MASCHER, MARY (D)

Residence.....Iowa City
OccupationLegislator/Retired Teacher
Legislative Service.....1995-2020
Representative District86-*Johnson*

MATSON, HEATHER (D)

Residence.....Ankeny
Occupation
Legislative Service.....2019-2020
Representative District38-*Polk*

MAXWELL, DAVID E. (R)

Residence.....Gibson
OccupationDrainage Contractor/Farmer
Legislative Service.....2013-2020
Representative District76-Iowa, *Poweshiek*

McCONKEY, CHARLIE (D)

Residence.....Council Bluffs
OccupationRetired Steelworker
Legislative Service.....2015-2020
Representative District15-*Pottawattamie*

McKEAN, ANDY (D)

Residence.....Anamosa
OccupationRetired Attorney
Legislative Service.....Senate 1993-2002; House 1979-1992, 2017-2020
Representative District58-Dubuque, Jackson, *Jones*

MEYER, ANN (R)

Residence.....Fort Dodge
OccupationRegistered Nurse
Legislative Service.....2019-2020
Representative District9-*Webster*

MEYER, BRIAN (D)

Residence.....Des Moines
 OccupationAttorney
 Legislative Service.....*2013-2020
 Representative District33-Polk
**Elected in Special Election October 22, 2013*

MITCHELL, JOE (R)

Residence.....Mount Pleasant
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District84-Henry, Jefferson, Lee, Washington

MOHR, GARY M. (R)

Residence.....Bettendorf
 OccupationRetired Community College Administrator
 Legislative Service.....2017-2020
 Representative District94-Scott

MOMMSEN, NORLIN G. (R)

Residence.....DeWitt
 OccupationFarmer
 Legislative Service.....2015-2020
 Representative District97-Clinton, Scott

MOORE, TOM (R)

Residence.....Griswold
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....*2015-2020
 Representative District21-Adams, Cass, Pottawattamie, Union
**Elected in Special Election December 8, 2015*

NIELSEN, AMY (D)

Residence.....North Liberty
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2017-2020
 Representative District77-Johnson

OLDSON, JO (D)

Residence.....Des Moines
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2003-2020
 Representative District41-Polk

OLSON, RICK L. (D)

Residence.....Des Moines
 OccupationAttorney
 Legislative Service.....2005-2020
 Representative District31-Polk

OSMUNDSON, ANNE (R)

Residence.....Volga
 OccupationSmall Business Owner
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District56-Allamakee, Clayton

OURTH, SCOTT D. (D)

Residence.....Ackworth
 OccupationLegislator/Operating Engineer
 Legislative Service.....2013-2020
 Representative District26-Warren

PAUSTIAN, ROSS C. (R)

Residence.....Walcott
 OccupationFarmer
 Legislative Service.....2011-2012, 2015-2020
 Representative District92-Scott

PRICHARD, TODD (D)

Residence..... Charles City
 Occupation Attorney
 Legislative Service..... *2013-2020
 Representative District 52-Cerro Gordo, Chickasaw, *Floyd*
 *Elected in Special Election January 22, 2013

RUNNING-MARQUARDT, KIRSTEN (D)

Residence..... Cedar Rapids
 Occupation
 Legislative Service..... *2009-2020
 Representative District 69-Linn
 *Elected in Special Election November 24, 2009

SALMON, SANDY (R)

Residence..... Janesville
 Occupation Retired Home Educator
 Legislative Service..... 2013-2020
 Representative District 63-Black Hawk, Bremer

SEXTON, MIKE (R)

Residence..... Rockwell City
 Occupation Farmer/Entrepreneur
 Legislative Service..... 2015-2020
 Representative District 10-Calhoun, Humboldt, Pocahontas, Webster

SHIPLEY, JEFF (R)

Residence..... Birmingham
 Occupation Sauerkraut Salesman
 Legislative Service..... 2019-2020
 Representative District 82-Davis, Jefferson, *Van Buren*

SIECK, DAVID (R)

Residence..... Glenwood
 Occupation Farmer/Real Estate
 Legislative Service..... *2015-2020
 Representative District 23-Fremont, *Mills*, Montgomery
 *Elected in Special Election February 10, 2015

SMITH, MARK (D)

Residence..... Marshalltown
 Occupation Licensed Independent Social Worker
 Legislative Service..... 2001-2020
 Representative District 71-Marshall

SMITH, RASTAFARI I. (D)

Residence..... Waterloo
 Occupation Owner-Rise Advocacy Services/Consultant-Communities in Schools of Mid-America
 Legislative Service..... 2017-2020
 Representative District 62-Black Hawk

SORENSEN, RAY (R)

Residence..... Greenfield
 Occupation Mural Artist/Business Owner
 Legislative Service..... 2019-2020
 Representative District 20-Adair, Cass, Dallas, Guthrie

STAED, ART (D)

Residence..... Cedar Rapids
 Occupation Retired Educator
 Legislative Service..... 2007-2008, 2013-2020
 Representative District 66-Linn

STECKMAN, SHARON S. (D)

Residence.....Mason City
 OccupationRetired Educator
 Legislative Service.....2009-2020
 Representative District53-*Cerro Gordo*

SUNDE, KRISTIN (D)

Residence.....West Des Moines
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District42-*Polk, Warren*

THEDE, PHYLLIS (D)

Residence.....Bettendorf
 OccupationLegislator
 Legislative Service.....2009-2020
 Representative District93-*Scott*

THOMPSON, PHIL (R)

Residence.....Jefferson
 OccupationContractor
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District47-*Boone, Greene*

THORUP, JON (R)

Residence.....Knoxville
 OccupationIowa State Trooper
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District28-*Jasper, Lucas, Marion*

UPMEYER, LINDA L. (R)

Residence.....Clear Lake
 OccupationNurse Practitioner
 Legislative Service.....2003-2020
 Representative District54-*Butler, Cerro Gordo, Franklin*

WESSEL-KROESCHELL, BETH (D)

Residence.....Ames
 OccupationLegislator
 Legislative Service.....2005-2020
 Representative District45-*Story*

WHEELER, SKYLER (R)

Residence.....Orange City
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2017-2020
 Representative District4-*Sioux*

WILBURN, ROSS (D)

Residence.....Ames
 OccupationIowa State University
 Legislative Service.....*2019-2020
 Representative District46-*Story*
 *Elected in Special Election August 6, 2019

WILLIAMS, DAVE (D)

Residence.....Cedar Falls
 OccupationBusiness Consultant
 Legislative Service.....2019-2020
 Representative District60-*Black Hawk*

WILLS, JOHN H. (R)

Residence.....Spirit Lake
 Occupation
 Legislative Service.....2015-2020
 Representative District1-*Dickinson, Lyon, Osceola*

WINCKLER, CINDY (D)

Residence..... Davenport
 Occupation Retired Educator
 Legislative Service..... 2001-2020
 Representative District 90-*Scott*

WINDSCHITL, MATT W. (R)

Residence..... Missouri Valley
 Occupation Doll Distributing
 Legislative Service..... 2007-2020
 Representative District 17-*Harrison, Ida, Monona, Woodbury*

WOLFE, MARY LYNN (D)

Residence..... Clinton
 Occupation Attorney
 Legislative Service..... 2011-2020
 Representative District 98-*Clinton*

WORTHAN, GARY (R)

Residence..... Storm Lake
 Occupation Farmer
 Legislative Service..... *2007-2020
 Representative District 11-*Buena Vista, Sac*
 *Elected in Special Election December 12, 2006

ZUMBACH, LOUIS J. (R)

Residence..... Coggon
 Occupation
 Legislative Service..... 2017-2020
 Representative District 95-*Buchanan, Linn*

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

First Calendar Day - First Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, January 13, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 10:04 a.m., Speaker Upmeyer in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Ben Epley, First Baptist Church, New Hartford. He was the guest of Grassley of Butler.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Indee and Reagan Grassley. They are the children of Grassley of Butler.

The Journal of Saturday, April 27, 2019, was approved.

MEMBER RESIGNATION

June 17, 2019

The Honorable Kim Reynolds
Iowa State Capitol
Des Moines, IA 50319

Governor Reynolds,

On Tuesday, June 18, I will be sworn-in to serve on the Story County Board of Supervisors. In accordance with Iowa Code 39.11, I am hereby resigning from my service as State Representative for Iowa House District 46, effective Monday, June 17, 2019.

It has been a great honor to represent the people of Story County in the Iowa House of Representatives. I look forward to working with you and the members of the Iowa Legislature in my new role as a County Supervisor.

Sincerely,

Lisa Heddens
House District 46

LEADERSHIP REVISIONS

The Speaker announced the following changes to leadership effective October 7, 2019:

Majority Leader — Windschitl replaced Hagenow

The Speaker announced the following changes to leadership effective November 8, 2019:

Assistant Minority Leader — Konfrst replaced Forbes

ELECTION OF CHIEF CLERK

On motion by Jones of Clay, Meghan Nelson of Jasper County was elected Chief Clerk. Meghan Nelson presented herself and Speaker Upmeyer administered the following oath:

“I do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Iowa and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of my office to the best of my ability, so help me God.”

RESIGNATION OF SPEAKER

Monday, January 13, 2020

Chief Clerk Meghan Nelson
Iowa House of Representatives
Des Moines, IA 50309

Dear Chief Clerk Nelson and Members of the Iowa House of Representatives,

Serving as Speaker of the Iowa House of Representatives has been a tremendous honor and I am incredibly proud of the work we accomplished together during my tenure. We have seen great progress and achieved many positive things for the people of Iowa. I am grateful for the contributions each of you have made to this chamber and thank you for your service to the people you represent and the State of Iowa.

As the first woman to serve as Speaker of the Iowa House, I hope that my time here has inspired girls and young women. When you dream big and work hard, know that nothing is unattainable.

With deep respect for this body, I hereby tender my resignation as Speaker of the Iowa House at the conclusion of an election for a new Speaker.

I will serve out the remainder of my term as State Representative for the people of House District 54.

Respectfully,

Linda Upmeyer
State Representative

ELECTION OF SPEAKER

Kaufmann of Cedar presented the name of the Honorable Pat Grassley of Butler County as candidate for Speaker of the House of Representatives of the second year of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly.

Klein of Washington seconded the nomination of Pat Grassley for Speaker of the House of Representatives.

Prichard of Floyd seconded the nomination of Pat Grassley for Speaker of the House of Representatives and moved that the Chief Clerk be authorized to cast the votes of all the members of the House of Representatives of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly.

In accordance with the foregoing motion, the Chief Clerk cast the votes of all the members of the House of Representatives for the Honorable Pat Grassley of Butler as Speaker of the House of Representatives of the second year of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly, and was declared duly elected to that office.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that a committee of two be appointed to escort the Speaker to the Speaker's chair.

The motion prevailed and the following committee was appointed: Kaufmann of Cedar and Prichard of Floyd, along with the Honorable United States Senator Charles Grassley.

PRESENTATION OF SPEAKER

The Honorable Pat Grassley was escorted to the Speaker's station and Upmeyer of Cerro Gordo administered the oath of office. Upmeyer of Cerro Gordo presented Speaker Grassley with the gavel and congratulated him on his unanimous election.

Speaker Grassley thanked the House for the honor bestowed upon him and offered the following remarks:

REMARKS BY SPEAKER GRASSLEY

Ladies and gentlemen of the House, thank you all for being here today. It is such an incredible honor and privilege to be up here today and I am truly humbled to serve as your Speaker in this historic chamber.

Before I go any further, there are some special people that I need to express my appreciation for. Amanda, Indee, Reagan, and Chancellor... It means a lot to have you all here today.

I want to thank each of you for the sacrifices that you make that allow me to serve the people of Iowa and House District 50. I also want to thank the House Republican majority for putting your faith in me to lead the caucus and tackle the issues that Iowans expect us to.

Majority Leader Windschitl, I am excited to serve alongside you and look forward to what we will accomplish this session.

Minority Leader Prichard, I am sure that Republicans and Democrats will have disagreements this session. But I want you to know that our door is open to bipartisan cooperation and we value input from your members.

This session, I want to show Iowans that we are not like our counterparts in Washington DC ... that when there are opportunities to work together, we actually do work together. Much of the work we do here is bipartisan, but unfortunately, it's the very few controversial issues that grab headlines. I want this body to demonstrate that when we come to Des Moines, we are here to address the issues that Iowans have brought to us.

Since we were last in session, I have had the opportunity to travel around the state and hear from Iowans of all backgrounds.

From New Hartford to Fort Dodge ... Bettendorf to Malvern ... Iowans are upbeat and pleased about the direction of our state. And who can blame them? As Iowans, we have a lot to be proud of.

Funding for our K-12 schools has never been higher, Iowa's graduation rate tops the nation, and student achievement ranks among the best in the country. Our unemployment has held at record lows for months, consistently among the best in the nation, and wages for middle class Iowans are rising.

While so many of these things are positive, we can't ignore the challenges that lie ahead.

Iowa's economy is growing but employers are desperately in need of skilled workers. To ensure that growth continues, our job is twofold... First, we must help Iowans enter the workforce and make it easier for them to climb the ladder towards a rewarding and fulfilling career. Second, ensuring that Iowa's businesses, regardless of size or geographic location, have a pipeline of skilled, talented workers to fill open jobs.

Future Ready Iowa is already making a difference ... attacking the skills gap with the help of the Last Dollar Scholarship program. But that isn't enough and we must continue our efforts, not only by building a skilled workforce, but by attracting and retaining top talent to the state. Workforce should be our number one priority this session.

One of the major issues that contributes to Iowa's workforce shortage is child care, an area where I believe we can find bipartisan agreement. Oftentimes, a parent is forced out of the workforce ... not by choice, but out of necessity ... because childcare is either unavailable or unaffordable. Unfortunately, at times, some Iowans are hesitant to accept a raise or promotion at work for fear of losing their childcare assistance ... this is what most of us know as the cliff effect.

House Republicans want parents and families to grow and thrive without the need for government support.

Additionally, our Community Colleges can play a major role in ensuring a quality workforce by training the next generation of childcare providers.

This session, this chamber should actively work to decrease childcare costs for families, improve access to providers, and create an off-ramp for Iowans who want to advance in their careers and phase out their need for government assistance. This is an issue that impacts each of our districts where both parties in this chamber can work together to find solutions.

Another issue that often restricts our workforce is the lack of high-speed internet in some parts of the state. A reliable internet connection isn't just to play video games or stream television. It's critical for both employers and workers. Small businesses are increasingly dependent on quality broadband to receive orders, process transactions, and innovate. Additionally, the internet has made it possible for more Iowans to work from home when their employer is halfway across the state. In a tight labor market, increasing these opportunities may be a way to ease some of the pressure.

We need to be creative and purposeful to find new solutions. This session, we should work with stakeholders to spur growth and expand reliable, high-speed broadband service to underserved parts of our state.

Lastly, I'm not going to end this speech without talking about the state budget. Our reserve accounts are full ... we have a healthy ending balance ... we've made smart investments in priorities like K-12 schools, workforce training, and public safety ... all while lessening the tax burden on hard-working Iowa families and small businesses.

Over the last nine years, House Republicans have changed the culture of budgeting in Des Moines. Crafting a budget and spending taxpayer money is hard work. But I have got to say, House Republicans often make it look easy, and I'm not just saying that as the former Appropriations Chair. I am incredibly proud of the discipline and restraint that this caucus has shown over the years.

As we move forward this session, we will once again pass a conservative budget that funds our priorities in a responsible way. House Republicans will continue to exemplify the strong leadership on the state budget that Iowans expect.

Over the next 100 days, maybe less if Representative Hein has his way, let's make sure that we show Iowans that we are not like Washington DC. Less partisan games ... Less political theater ... More results for Iowans. Let's strengthen Iowa's workforce and improve our education system. Let's make health care more affordable and pass a responsible budget that puts taxpayers first.

Representative Windschitl, Representative Prichard, members of the Iowa House ... Let's work together and move Iowa forward.

Thank you.

RESIGNATION OF SPEAKER PRO TEMPORE

January 13, 2020

Mr. Speaker,

It has been an honor to serve as Speaker Pro Tempore of the Iowa House since 2014. With my new responsibility to the body as the majority Leader of the House, I must resign my current position. Therefore, I resign as Speaker Pro Tempore, effective upon the body electing a new Speaker Pro Tempore.

Sincerely,

Matt W. Windschitl
Majority Leader Iowa House

ELECTION OF SPEAKER PRO TEMPORE

Lundgren of Dubuque placed in nomination the Honorable John Wills of Dickinson County as candidate for Speaker Pro Tempore of the House of Representatives of the second year of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly.

Holt of Crawford seconded the nomination of John Wills as Speaker Pro Tempore of the House of Representatives.

Oldson of Polk seconded the nomination of John Wills as Speaker Pro Tempore of the House of Representatives and moved that the Chief Clerk be authorized to cast the votes of all the members of the House of Representatives of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly.

In accordance with the foregoing motion, the Chief Clerk cast the votes of all the members of the House of Representatives for the Honorable John Wills of Dickinson as Speaker Pro Tempore of the House

of Representatives of the second year of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly, was declared duly elected to that office.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved that a committee of two be appointed to escort the Speaker Pro Tempore to the chair.

The motion prevailed and the following committee was appointed: Lundgren of Dubuque and Oldson of Polk.

The Honorable John Wills was escorted to the Speaker's station and Speaker Grassley administered the oath of office.

Wills of Dickinson offered the following remarks:

REMARKS BY SPEAKER PRO TEMPORE WILLS

Mr. Speaker, ladies and gentlemen of the House... First, I want to thank you for your willingness to serve your fellow Iowans. You have each made sacrifices to be here and it is an honor to serve with you in this Chamber. It is an even greater honor to serve you, my colleagues, as the Speaker Pro Tem. I want to also thank my constituents back home who have provided me with the opportunity to represent them these past 5 years.

Before I go much further, there are some very special people that I must thank because they make tremendous sacrifices so that I can serve here in Des Moines. They are my wife, Cami, and our three children, Seth, Wes, and Mariah. I have missed events, been gone when something broke down, and forgotten more than I should because of the commitment to being a legislator. They deserve a huge thank you from me.

Each of us in this chamber have different priorities and desires that our constituents have sent us here for. I look forward to working with each one of you to accomplish these priorities in a bipartisan fashion. There will be times that we don't agree with one another, but we all understand that our shared goal is to make the lives of our fellow Iowans better. My hope is that we are able serve the people of Iowa with a government that is smaller and smarter.

Regardless where you stand on many of the issues that we will address this session, we have a solemn responsibility to work through those issues and bring a just conclusion to our citizens. My goal as a legislator, as is many of you, is to wisely spend the taxpayer's dollar, provide efficiency of government services, advance our freedoms and liberties, and ensure our government works for the people, not the other way around.

May God bless each of you and the Great State of Iowa! Thank you for your attention and let's get to business.

COMMITTEE FROM THE SENATE

Senator R. Smith of Scott appeared and notified the House that the Senate was duly organized and ready to receive any communication that the House might desire to transmit.

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT OF COMMITTEE ON CREDENTIALS

MR. SPEAKER: We, your committee on credentials, respectfully report that we find the following person duly elected to and entitled to a seat in the House of Representatives of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly as show by this duplicate copy of the certificate of election on file in the office of the Secretary of State:

Ross Wilburn, House District 46

In accordance with Iowa Code Section 2.5, the Committee on Credentials has reviewed the certification of the August 6, 2019 Special Election from Iowa Secretary of State Paul D. Pate, which is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference.

John H. Wills, Chair
Norlin G. Mommsen
Tedd Gassman
Sharon S. Steckman
Amy Nielsen

Office of the Secretary of State CERTIFICATION

To the Honorable Chief Clerk of the House:

I, PAUL D. PATE, Secretary of State of the State of Iowa, custodian of the files and records pertaining to elections in the State, do hereby certify that the State Canvassing Board has declared that at the Special Election held on August 6, 2019, the following named person was duly elected to the office of State Representative for the residue of the term ending January 1, 2021:

46th District Ross Wilburn

(Seal)

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Secretary of State at the Statehouse in Des Moines this nineteenth day of August, 2019.

PAUL D. PATE, Secretary of State

I hereby acknowledge receipt of the original copy of this document on this nineteenth day of August, 2019.

MEGHAN NELSON, Chief Clerk of the House

Wills of Dickinson moved that the supplemental report of the committee on credentials be adopted.

The motion prevailed and the report was adopted.

MEMBER OATH OF OFFICE

The following oath of office was administered to Representative-elect Ross Wilburn of Story County by Representative Beth Wessel-Kroeschell on September 6, 2019:

"I do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States, and the Constitution of the State of Iowa, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of Representative, according to the best of my ability, so help me God."

ROSS WILBURN

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

- Wilburn, Ross
 - Environmental Protection
 - Human Resources
 - Judiciary
 - Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee

SEAT ASSIGNMENTS/REVISIONS

Name	Seat Assignment
Jacob Bossman.....	83 to 17
Holly Brink.....	17 to 22
Pat Grassley.....	60 to 14
Chris Hagenow.....	100 to 68
Jon Jacobsen	68 to 70
Gary Mohr.....	22 to 60
Ray Sorensen	70 to 72
Phil Thompson	72 to 74
Jon Thorup.....	74 to 83
Linda Upmeyer	14 to 66
Ross Wilburn.....	91
John Wills	66 to 84
Matt Windschitl	84 to 100

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT OF
COMMITTEE ON MILEAGE

MR. SPEAKER: Your committee appointed to determine the mileage for the members of the House submits the following supplemental:

Name	Round Trip Miles
Jeffrey J. Shipley	114
Arthur R. Wilburn.....	70

Respectfully submitted,
Robert P. Bacon, Chair
Brian L. Best
Wesley C. Breckenridge

Bacon of Story moved that the supplemental report of the committee on mileage be accepted.

The motion prevailed and the supplemental report was accepted.

COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNOR

Mohr of Scott moved that a committee of three be appointed to notify the Governor that the House was duly organized and ready to receive any communication that she may desire to transmit.

The motion prevailed and the following committee was appointed: Mohr of Scott, Chair; Jones of Clay and Ehlert of Linn.

COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

Bossman of Woodbury moved that a committee of three be appointed to notify the Senate that the House was duly organized and ready to receive any communication that the Senate may desire to transmit.

The motion prevailed and the following committee was appointed: Bossman of Woodbury, Chair; Best of Carroll and Sunde of Polk.

ADOPTION OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 101

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of **House Concurrent Resolution 101**, as follows, and moved its adoption.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 101

BY GRASSLEY and PRICHARD

1 A Concurrent Resolution providing for a joint
2 convention for the Condition of the State Address.
3 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, THE
4 SENATE CONCURRING, That a joint convention of the two
5 houses of the 2020 session of the Eighty-eighth General
6 Assembly be held on Tuesday, January 14, 2020, at 10:00
7 a.m.; and
8 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Governor Kim Reynolds
9 be invited to deliver her condition of the state
10 message at this joint convention of the two houses of
11 the General Assembly, and that the Speaker of the House
12 of Representatives and the President of the Senate be
13 designated to extend the invitation to her.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

ADOPTION OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 102

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of **House Concurrent Resolution 102**, as follows, and moved its adoption.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 102

BY GRASSLEY and PRICHARD

1 A Concurrent Resolution providing for a joint
2 convention for the Condition of the Judiciary
3 Address.
4 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, THE
5 SENATE CONCURRING, That a joint convention of the two
6 houses of the 2020 session of the Eighty-eighth General
7 Assembly be held on Wednesday, January 15, 2020, at
8 10:00 a.m.; and
9 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Acting Chief Justice
10 David Wiggins be invited to present his message of the
11 condition of the judicial branch at this convention,
12 and recommend such matters as the Acting Chief Justice
13 deems appropriate, pursuant to section 602.1207 of the
14 Code of Iowa.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

ADOPTION OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 103

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of **House Concurrent Resolution 103**, as follows, and moved its adoption.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 103

BY GRASSLEY and PRICHARD

- 1 A Concurrent Resolution to provide for a joint
- 2 convention for the Condition of the Iowa National
- 3 Guard Address.
- 4 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, THE
- 5 SENATE CONCURRING, That a joint convention of the two
- 6 houses of the 2020 session of the Eighty-eighth General
- 7 Assembly be held on Thursday, January 16, 2020, at
- 8 10:00 a.m.; and
- 9 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Major General Benjamin
- 10 J. Corell be invited to present his message of the Iowa
- 11 National Guard at this convention.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Concurrent Resolutions 101, 102 and 103.**

REMARKS BY MINORITY LEADER PRICHARD

Good morning, Mr. Speaker, and congratulations on your new position. My colleagues and I look forward to working with you this year in your new role.

Good morning ladies and gentleman of the Iowa House, and greetings to any special visitors who are with us today. It is always nice to see so many friends and family as we start the New Year and session.

We stand here today in this building and its House chamber at the beginning of a journey. This journey will take us into a new session, a new year and a new decade. Where this journey takes us, what we do, and where we will end up, is entirely up to those elected to lead this state forward.

I think at this point it is important for us to ask ourselves: What do we want the journey look like? What do we want the future of our state to look like?

Do we tell ourselves that all is well, and that no changes are needed? Or do we challenge ourselves to do better for the citizens of Iowa? The answer is obvious. We have an obligation to make our state a better place to live and work.

Democrats have been listening and working over the interim to develop a plan to improve the lives of everyday Iowans. We have a vision of what the future should be for the people of Iowa and we want to help build that better future. It all starts with keeping this chamber focused on the people of Iowa, not the special interests and those at the top.

Since a good job is the key to success for hard-working Iowans, our plan will make sure

all Iowans have access to a good job with high wages. We will also introduce legislation to help families with the high cost of child care and create more affordable housing.

Democrats understand that to build a better future and grow our workforce, we must educate the children and students of today to work and lead tomorrow. That is why we will introduce legislation to put education first again and build on our once proud history of leading the nation in education. We will also work to expand preschool and invest in job training and quality professional training programs.

Democrats know that our healthcare system is more unaffordable and less accessible than ever before for too many Iowans. We can no longer ignore this issue. That is why we will introduce legislation to make sure health care is accessible and affordable for all Iowans across all parts of the state, urban and rural.

We are all here to move the state forward. Make no mistake the task at hand is enormous.

As you listen to my words, too many Iowans are struggling to get by.

Students are trying to focus on schoolwork with empty stomachs.

Families are struggling to pay medical bills.

Farmers wonder if their crops will be worth the input costs.

Workers are taking second jobs to pay their mortgages.

Our vision, our focus, must be on Iowans like these. We can and should work together to improve their lives. If we can put egos aside, I know that we are up for the task at hand this session.

I will close with this final thought. Over the summer I traveled to South Korea with the Army to participate in a readiness exercise. Soldiers and leaders from across the globe worked together, and I was fortunate to get to know one particular Korean officer. Despite our different pasts and some language barriers, we shared common interests and became friends quickly.

As is common in the military, our team had a motto that we ended each meeting with. It was this: "We go forward together." This simple phrase speaks volumes about the situation in Korea between our allies. It affirmed our commitment to each other as brothers and sisters in arms.

The same is true of us. Those of us elected to this body are united in a common purpose. We have different pasts, and differences in opinions. But it is our shared goals and values, combined with our diversity, which makes us a strong institution. We will work, we will engage with each other, to make a path forward.

Despite our differences, we are all Iowans, and we will all go forward together.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

Bossman of Woodbury, Chair of the committee to notify the Senate that the House was duly organized and ready to receive any communication that the Senate might desire to transmit, reported that the committee had performed its duty.

The report was accepted and the committee discharged.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNOR

Mohr of Scott, Chair of the committee to notify the Governor that the House was duly organized and ready to receive any communication she might desire to transmit, reported that the committee had performed its duty.

The report was accepted and the committee discharged.

REMARKS BY MAJORITY LEADER WINDSCHITL

Thank you, Mr. Speaker, good morning Mr. Speaker and good morning ladies and gentlemen of the Iowa House.

First and foremost, I must express my deepest gratitude to my wife, Ivelisse, and our daughters, Anna and Addy, for the support they give me and the sacrifices they must endure for me to serve in public office.

I would also like to thank your loved ones who are here today as well as back home, who make similar sacrifices that allow each of you to serve. For we all know, that without the support systems we have back home and the constituents who elect us, none of us would be able to do this job, nor endure the burden it places on each and every one of us. So, to all of our families and our constituents, I say a heartfelt thank you!

I also need to thank my Republican colleagues for choosing me to serve as the Majority Leader of the Iowa House. It is truly humbling and a great honor!

If you had asked the doe-eyed young freshman who walked into this chamber 14 years ago if I ever thought I would be serving in this role, the answer would have been a "hard no".

I stand here now, all these years later, ready to serve the Iowa House Republican caucus and the great state of Iowa in my role as House Majority Leader.

To Speaker Upmeyer and Majority Leader Hagenow I want you both to know how grateful I am for your years of leadership and service. You have both taught me many things and helped me grow as a legislator and a leader, thank you! It is without question

that Speaker Grassley and I have some big shoes to fill and I welcome your continued advice and counsel this session.

As the Majority Leader my intentions are to listen to the caucus, hear the concerns of the people of Iowa, and translate their ideas into the best public policy possible during this session.

My sincere hope is that we can all work together to accomplish this goal. While I know that not every measure brought before this body is going to pass with unanimous support, I would encourage each and every one of us to look for the opportunity to cross the political divide and find common ground.

From the Iowans I've spoken with over the last several months, they are constantly disappointed in the dysfunction they see coming from their Federal government in Washington DC.

Fortunately for Iowans, they don't have to worry about that here at the state level. They have come to expect positive action and results from this body and their state government.

As we move ahead this session, House Republicans will continue to build on the track record of successes that has kept us in the majority here in the Iowa House.

While I could stand here and deliver a message about specific policy pieces that should be accomplished or go over our budgeting principles, again, or give an extensive review of chapter 724, the weapons chapter for those who are wondering, I will instead simplify my message down to one guiding principle that should be at the forefront of every vote we take here this year, Freedom!

Let us strive to find new and ingenuitive ways to make Iowans freer. Free from burdensome government regulations. Free from an overly complex tax system. Free to raise their families and live their lives without the fear of government intrusion. Free to exercise their individual fundamental rights without government sanction or approval. Free to worship the Lord throughout their daily lives as they see fit. Free to provide the best education possible for their children. Free from the many hands of government reaching into their pocket for yet one more dollar of their hard-earned money.

Yes, Iowa is in a great place financially, economically, educationally, and by many other metrics, but our work is not done. I guarantee you there is more freedom to be found for our constituents if we only apply ourselves and look.

Iowans deserve a government that works **for** them, not against them. If we as the Iowa House of Representatives hold the principles of freedom and liberty high and use them as the balance and the scales by which we judge the proposals before us, then Iowans will have the state government they need and deserve.

We have work to do, now let us get to it.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Thank you, ladies and gentlemen of the Iowa House.

RULE 57 SUSPENDED

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to suspend Rule 57, relating to committee notice and agenda, for the committee on Administration and Rules to meet at 1:00 p.m.

LEADERSHIP REVISIONS

The Speaker announced the following changes to leadership effective immediately:

Majority Whip — Sexton replaced Wills
Assistant Majority Leader — Brink replaced Bossman
Assistant Majority Leader — Thorup replaced Sexton

COMMITTEE REVISIONS

The Speaker announced the following changes to committee assignments effective October 7, 2019:

Administration and Rules
Hagenow removed

The Speaker announced the following changes to committee assignments effective November 15, 2019:

Appropriations
Bossman and Dolecheck replaced Grassley and Hinson
Mohr named Chair
Brink named Vice Chair

Commerce
Lohse replaced Grassley

Economic Growth
Hinson replaced Lundgren

Environmental Protection
Baxter added

Ethics

Jacobsen named Chair
Osmundson named Vice Chair
Upmeyer added

Judiciary

Hagenow replaced Hinson
Jacobsen added

Labor

Carlson and Upmeyer replaced Grassley and Jacobsen

Local Government

Hinson replaced Windschitl
Jeneary added

Public Safety

Holt replaced Windschitl

State Government

Thompson named Vice Chair
Bloomingdale replaced Hinson
Lundgren added

Transportation

Best named Chair

Veterans Affairs

Hagenow replaced Lundgren

Ways and Means

Michell and Hagenow replaced Bossman and Windschitl
Mitchell named Vice Chair

Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Brink replaced Fisher

Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

Fisher replaced Jacobsen

Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

Sorensen replaced Best

Sorensen named Chair

Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee

Jacobsen replaced Bossman

Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee

Bossman replaced Mohr

Bossman named Chair

The Speaker announced the following changes to committee assignments effective November 27, 2019:

Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Forbes added

Forbes named Ranking Member

The Speaker announced the following changes to committee assignments effective December 18, 2019:

Administration and Rules

Konfrst replaced Forbes

Agriculture

Judge replaced Cohoon

Appropriations

Forbes replaced Breckenridge

McKean added

Environmental Protection

McKean and Wilburn replaced Sunde and Wolfe

Human Resources

Ehlert replaced Konfrst

Wilburn added

Judiciary

Wilburn replaced Sunde

Local Government

Konfrst and McKean replaced Nielsen and Ehlert

Natural Resources

McKean replaced Smith, M.

Public Safety

Breckenridge named Ranking Member

Transportation

Konfrst replaced Forbes

Sunde added

Ways and Means

Hunter replaced Forbes

Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Derry named Ranking Member

Kacena replaced Brown-Powers

Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

McKean replaced Ehlert

Education Appropriations Subcommittee

Ehlert replaced Konfrst

Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Brown-Powers replaced Judge

Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee

Wilburn replaced Kacena

The Speaker announced the following changes to committee assignments effective immediately:

Administration and Rules

Brink replaced Bossman

Brink named Vice Chair

Grassley replaced Upmeyer

Thorup added

STANDING COMMITTEES APPOINTED

The Speaker announced the following appointments to the standing committees of the House:

*Vice Chair
**Ranking Member

ADMINISTRATION AND RULES – 15 Members

Zumbach, Chair	Brink*	Thede**
Breckenridge	Grassley	Huseman
Konfrst	Meyer, B.	Oldson
Prichard	Sexton	Steckman
Thorup	Wills	Windschitl

AGRICULTURE – 23 Members

Paustian, Chair	Sieck*	Bearinger**
Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Breckenridge
Gerhold	Hein	Isenhart
Judge	Kerr	Klein
Maxwell	Mommsen	Olson
Ourth	Sexton	Smith, R.
Williams	Wills	Winckler
Wolfe	Zumbach	

APPROPRIATIONS – 25 Members

Mohr, Chair	Brink*	Hall**
Bearinger	Bennett	Best
Bossman	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Forbes	Fry	Kerr
Landon	Mascher	McKean
Mommsen	Oldson	Running-Marquardt
Sexton	Sorensen	Thede
Williams	Wills	Winckler
Worthan		

COMMERCE – 23 Members

Carlson, Chair	Jacobsen*	Nielsen**
Best	Bloomingtondale	Deyoe
Fisher	Forbes	Hall
Jacoby	Judge	Kressig
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
McConkey	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Oldson	Sorensen
Williams	Wills	

ECONOMIC GROWTH – 21 Members

Wheeler, Chair	Brink*	Bennett**
Baxter	Carlson	Ehlert

Gaskill	Gassman	Gustafson
Hall	Hinson	Huseman
Jacoby	Judge	Lohse
Matson	McConkey	Meyer, A.
Ourth	Running-Marquardt	Zumbach

EDUCATION – 23 Members

Dolecheck, Chair	Gassman*	Smith, R.**
Brink	Donahue	Ehlert
Fry	Gaines	Hanusa
James	Kerr	Kurth
Mascher	Matson	Meyer, A.
Mommsen	Moore	Salmon
Shipley	Staed	Steckman
Wheeler	Winckler	

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION – 21 Members

Fisher, Chair	Shipley*	Lensing**
Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon
Baxter	Donahue	Gassman
Gerhold	Hein	Klein
Matson	McKean	Moore
Paustian	Sexton	Staed
Steckman	Wilburn	Winckler

ETHICS – 6 Members

Jacobsen, Chair	Osmundson*	Gaskill**
Cphoon	Smith, M.	Upmeyer

GOVERNMENT OVERSIGHT – 9 Members

Hanusa, Chair	Baxter*	Gaines**
Kaufmann	Klein	Lensing
Smith, M.	Thorup	Wolfe

HUMAN RESOURCES – 21 Members

Lundgren, Chair	Meyer, A.*	Wessel-Kroeschell**
Anderson	Bacon	Bergan
Best	Brink	Brown-Powers
Derry	Dolecheck	Ehlert
Forbes	Fry	James
Matson	Moore	Osmundson
Salmon	Sunde	Wilburn

JUDICIARY – 21 Members

Holt, Chair	Hite*	Wolfe**
Bennett	Bergan	Derry
Gustafson	Hagenow	Jacobsen
Jones	Kaufmann	Klein

Konfrst	Lohse	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Oldson	Olson
Paustian	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn

LABOR – 17 Members

Deyoe, Chair	Huseman*	Hunter**
Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Dolecheck	Ehlert	Hanusa
Kacena	Kurth	Kurtz
McConkey	Running-Marquardt	Thompson
Upmeyer	Worthan	

LOCAL GOVERNMENT – 21 Members

Bloomingtondale, Chair	Lohse*	Staed**
Bossman	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Hanusa	Hinson
Hite	Hunter	Jeneary
Jones	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Lensing	McKean
Shipley	Thede	Thompson

NATURAL RESOURCES – 21 Members

Bacon, Chair	Jeneary*	Ourth**
Baxter	Bearinger	Breckenridge
Fisher	Hall	Isehart
Jacoby	Maxwell	McKean
Mommsen	Osmundson	Shipley
Sieck	Staed	Steckman
Thede	Thorup	Zumbach

PUBLIC SAFETY – 21 Members

Klein, Chair	Thorup*	Breckenridge**
Abdul-Samad	Fisher	Fry
Holt	Jeneary	Kacena
Kerr	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Mohr	Olson
Paustian	Salmon	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Worthan

STATE GOVERNMENT – 23 Members

Kaufmann, Chair	Thompson*	Mascher**
Anderson	Bacon	Bergan
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Cohon
Derry	Deyoe	Donahue
Hunter	Jacobsen	Konfrst
Lensing	Lundgren	Mitchell
Moore	Nielsen	Sexton
Sorensen	Steckman	

TRANSPORTATION – 21 Members

Best, Chair	Maxwell*	Kressig**
Carlson	Cohoon	Hinson
Huseman	Isenhart	Judge
Konfrst	Kurtz	Landon
Lohse	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Sieck	Smith, R.	Sunde
Thorup	Williams	Worthan

VETERANS AFFAIRS – 17 Members

Salmon, Chair	Gustafson*	Kurth**
Bennett	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Gaines	Hagenow	Hite
Jeneary	Kacena	Ourth
Smith, M.	Sorensen	Thompson
Wheeler	Wills	

WAYS AND MEANS – 25 Members

Hein, Chair	Mitchell*	Jacoby**
Bloomingtondale	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Gaskill	Hagenow	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Isenhart
James	Jones	Kaufmann
Kurth	Kurtz	Maxwell
McConkey	Nielsen	Osmundson
Sieck	Wheeler	Wolfe
Zumbach		

HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEES**ADMINISTRATION AND REGULATION – 9 Members**

Landon, Chair	Zumbach*	Derry**
Abdul-Samad	Bloomingtondale	Brink
Gustafson	Hunter	Kacena

AGRICULTURE AND NATURAL RESOURCES – 9 Members

Mommsen, Chair	Osmundson*	Isenhart**
Bacon	Bearinger	Fisher
Ourth	Paustian	Smith, R.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – 9 Members

Sorensen, Chair	Gerhold*	Running-Marquardt**
Gaskill	Hanusa	Matson
McKean	Shipley	Wheeler

EDUCATION – 9 Members

Kerr, Chair	Moore*	Winckler**
Dolecheck	Ehlert	Gassman
McConkey	Mitchell	Williams

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES – 9 Members

Fry, Chair	Bergan*	Forbes**
Brown-Powers	Donahue	Jeneary
Lundgren	Meyer, A.	Wessel-Kroeschell

JUSTICE SYSTEM – 9 Members

Worthan, Chair	Sexton*	Anderson**
Hite	Holt	Jacobsen
James	Sunde	Wilburn

TRANSPORTATION, INFRASTRUCTURE, AND CAPITALS – 9 Members

Bossman, Chair	Thompson*	Cphoon**
Bennett	Hinson	Huseman
Kurtz	Mascher	Thorup

HOUSE COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Abdul-Samad, Ako
 Agriculture
 Environmental Protection
 Public Safety
 Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Anderson, Marti
 Environmental Protection
 Human Resources
 State Government
 Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee, Ranking Member

Bacon, Robert P.
 Environmental Protection
 Human Resources
 Natural Resources, Chair
 State Government
 Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

Baxter, Terry C.
 Agriculture
 Economic Growth
 Environmental Protection
 Government Oversight, Vice Chair
 Natural Resources

Bearinger, Bruce

Agriculture, Ranking Member
Appropriations
Natural Resources
Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

Bennett, Liz

Appropriations
Economic Growth, Ranking Member
Judiciary
Veteran Affairs
Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee

Bergan, Michael R.

Human Resources
Judiciary
State Government
Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee, Vice Chair

Best, Brian

Appropriations
Commerce
Human Resources
Transportation, Chair

Bloomingdale, Jane

Commerce
Local Government, Chair
State Government
Ways and Means
Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Bossman, Jacob

Appropriations
Local Government
State Government
Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee, Chair

Breckenridge, Wes

Administration and Rules
Agriculture
Natural Resources
Public Safety, Ranking Member
Veteran Affairs

Brink, Holly

Administration and Rules, Vice Chair
Appropriations, Vice Chair
Economic Growth, Vice Chair
Education
Human Resources
Labor
Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Brown-Powers, Timi
Human Resources
Labor
Veteran Affairs
Ways and Means
Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Carlson, Gary L.
Commerce, Chair
Economic Growth
Labor
Transportation
Ways and Means

Cohoon, Dennis M.
Ethics
State Government
Transportation
Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee, Ranking Member

Derry, Karin
Human Resources
Judiciary
State Government
Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee, Ranking Member

Deyoe, Dave
Appropriations
Commerce
Labor, Chair
State Government

Dolecheck, Cecil
Appropriations
Education, Chair
Human Resources
Labor
Education Appropriations Subcommittee

Donahue, Molly
Education
Environmental Protection
State Government
Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Ehlert, Tracy
Economic Growth
Education
Human Resources
Labor
Education Appropriations Subcommittee

Fisher, Dean

Commerce

Environmental Protection, Chair

Natural Resources

Public Safety

Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

Forbes, John

Appropriations

Commerce

Human Resources

Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee, Ranking Member

Fry, Joel

Appropriations

Education

Human Resources

Public Safety

Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee, Chair

Gaines, Ruth Ann

Education

Government Oversight, Ranking Member

Local Government

Veterans Affairs

Gaskill, Mary A.

Economic Growth

Ethics, Ranking Member

Local Government

Ways and Means

Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

Gassman, Tedd

Economic Growth

Education, Vice Chair

Environmental Protection

Local Government

Education Appropriations Subcommittee

Gerhold, Thomas D.

Agriculture

Environmental Protection

Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee, Vice Chair

Grassley, Pat

Administration and Rules

Gustafson, Stan

Economic Growth

Judiciary

Veterans Affairs, Vice Chair

Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Hagenow, Chris

Judiciary
Veterans Affairs
Ways and Means

Hall, Chris

Appropriations, Ranking Member
Commerce
Economic Growth
Natural Resources

Hanusa, Mary Ann

Education
Government Oversight, Chair
Labor
Local Government
Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

Hein, Lee

Agriculture
Environmental Protection
Ways and Means, Chair

Hinson, Ashley

Economic Growth
Local Government
Transportation
Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee

Hite, Dustin D.

Judiciary, Vice Chair
Local Government
Veterans Affairs
Ways and Means
Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee

Holt, Steven

Judiciary, Chair
Public Safety
Ways and Means
Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee

Hunter, Bruce

Labor, Ranking Member
Local Government
State Government
Ways and Means
Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Huseman, Daniel Adair

Administration and Rules

Economic Growth

Labor, Vice Chair

Transportation

Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee

Isenhardt, Charles

Agriculture

Natural Resources

Transportation

Ways and Means

Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee, Ranking Member

Jacobsen, Jon

Commerce, Vice Chair

Ethics, Chair

Judiciary

State Government

Justice Systems Appropriations Subcommittee

Jacoby, Dave

Commerce

Economic Growth

Natural Resources

Ways and Means, Ranking Member

James, Lindsay

Education

Human Resources

Ways and Means

Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee

Jeneary, Tom

Local Government

Natural Resources, Vice Chair

Public Safety

Veterans Affairs

Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Jones, Megan

Judiciary

Local Government

Ways and Means

Judge, Kenan

Agriculture

Commerce

Economic Growth

Transportation

Kacena, Timothy

Labor
Local Government
Public Safety
Veterans Affairs
Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee

Kaufmann, Bobby

Government Oversight
Judiciary
State Government, Chair
Ways and Means

Kerr, David

Agriculture
Appropriations
Education
Public Safety
Education Appropriations Subcommittee, Chair

Klein, Jarad

Agriculture
Environmental Protection
Government Oversight
Judiciary
Public Safety, Chair

Konfrst, Jennifer

Administration and Rules
Judiciary
Local Government
State Government
Transportation

Kressig, Bob

Commerce
Local Government
Public Safety
Transportation, Ranking Member

Kurth, Monica

Education
Labor
Public Safety
Veterans Affairs, Ranking Member
Ways and Means

Kurtz, Jeff

Labor
Public Safety
Transportation
Ways and Means
Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee

Landon, John

Appropriations

Commerce

Transportation

Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee, Chair

Lensing, Vicki

Environmental Protection, Ranking Member

Government Oversight

Local Government

State Government

Lohse, Brian K.

Commerce

Economic Growth

Judiciary

Local Government, Vice Chair

Transportation

Lundgren, Shannon

Commerce

Human Resources, Chair

State Government

Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Mascher, Mary

Appropriations

Education

State Government, Ranking Member

Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee

Matson, Heather

Economic Growth

Education

Environmental Protection

Human Resources

Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

Maxwell, David E.

Agriculture

Natural Resources

Transportation, Vice Chair

Ways and Means

McConkey, Charlie

Commerce

Economic Growth

Labor

Ways and Means

Education Appropriations Subcommittee

McKean, Andy

Appropriations
Environmental Protection
Local Government
Natural Resources
Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

Meyer, Ann

Economic Growth
Education
Human Resources, Vice Chair
Transportation
Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Meyer, Brian

Administration and Rules
Commerce
Judiciary
Transportation

Mitchell, Joe

Commerce
Judiciary
State Government
Ways and Means, Vice Chair
Education Appropriations Subcommittee

Mohr, Gary M.

Appropriations, Chair
Commerce
Public Safety

Mommsen, Norlin G.

Agriculture
Appropriations
Education
Natural Resources
Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee, Chair

Moore, Tom

Education
Environmental Protection
Human Resources
State Government
Education Appropriations Subcommittee, Vice Chair

Nielsen, Amy

Commerce, Ranking Member
State Government
Ways and Means

Oldson, Jo

Administration and Rules
Appropriations
Commerce
Judiciary

Olson, Rick L.

Agriculture
Judiciary
Public Safety

Osmundson, Anne

Ethics, Vice Chair
Human Resources
Natural Resources
Ways and Means
Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee, Vice Chair

Ourth, Scott D.

Agriculture
Economic Growth
Natural Resource, Ranking Member
Veterans Affairs
Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

Paustian, Ross C.

Agriculture, Chair
Environmental Protection
Judiciary
Public Safety
Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

Prichard, Todd

Administration and Rules

Running-Marquardt, Kirsten

Appropriations
Economic Growth
Labor
Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee, Ranking Member

Salmon, Sandy

Education
Human Resources
Public Safety
Veterans Affairs Chair

Sexton, Mike

Administration and Rules
Agriculture
Appropriations
Environmental Protection
State Government
Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee, Vice Chair

Shiple, Jeff

Education
Environmental Protection, Vice Chair
Local Government
Natural Resources
Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

Sieck, David

Agriculture, Vice Chair
Natural Resources
Transportation
Ways and Means

Smith, Mark

Ethics
Government Oversight
Veterans Affairs

Smith, Rastafari I.

Agriculture
Education, Ranking Member
Transportation
Agriculture and Natural Resources Appropriations Subcommittee

Sorensen, Ray

Appropriations, Vice Chair
Commerce
State Government
Veterans Affairs
Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee, Chair

Staed, Art

Education
Environmental Protection
Local Government, Ranking Member
Natural Resources

Steckman, Sharon S.

Administration and Rules
Education
Environmental Protection
Natural Resources
State Government

Sunde, Kristin

Human Resources
Public Safety
Transportation
Justice Systems Appropriations Subcommittee

Thede, Phyllis

- Administration and Rules, Ranking Member
- Appropriations
- Local Government
- Natural Resources
- Public Safety

Thompson, Phil

- Labor
- Local Government
- State Government, Vice Chair
- Veterans Affairs
- Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee, Vice Chair

Thorup, Jon

- Administration and Rules
- Government Oversight
- Natural Resources
- Public Safety, Vice Chair
- Transportation
- Transportation, Infrastructure, and Capitals Appropriations Subcommittee

Upmeyer, Linda L.

- Ethics
- Labor

Wessel-Kroeschell, Beth

- Human Resources, Ranking Member
- Judiciary
- Public Safety
- Health and Human Services Appropriations Subcommittee

Wheeler, Skyler

- Economic Growth, Chair
- Education
- Veterans Affairs
- Ways and Means
- Economic Development Appropriations Subcommittee

Wilburn, Ross

- Environmental Protection
- Human Resources
- Judiciary
- Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee

Williams, Dave

- Agriculture
- Appropriations
- Commerce
- Transportation
- Education Appropriations Subcommittee

Wills, John H.

Administration and Rules
 Agriculture
 Appropriations
 Commerce
 Veterans Affairs

Winckler, Cindy

Agriculture
 Appropriations
 Education
 Environmental Protection
 Education Appropriations Subcommittee, Ranking Member

Windschitl, Matt W.

Administration and Rules

Wolfe, Mary Lynn

Agriculture
 Government Oversight
 Judiciary, Ranking Member
 Ways and Means

Worthan, Gary

Appropriations
 Labor
 Public Safety
 Transportation
 Justice System Appropriations Subcommittee, Chair

Zumbach, Louis J.

Administration and Rules, Chair
 Agriculture
 Economic Growth
 Natural Resources
 Ways and Means
 Administration and Regulation Appropriations Subcommittee, Vice Chair

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that Senate File 621, previously referred to committee on **Judiciary** was rereferred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

BOARD OF EDUCATIONAL EXAMINERS

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Licensing Fees Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272.10.

Administrative Rules Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272.29.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Interstate Medical Licensure Compact Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 147B.1.

BOARD OF PAROLE

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

BOARD OF REGENTS

Beginner Farmer Center Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 266.39E.

Activities, Projects, and Programs Funded with Innovation Fund Report, pursuant to Chapter 154.17, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Technology Commercialization, Entrepreneurship, Regional Development, and Market Research Report, pursuant to Chapter 169.17, 2017 Iowa Acts.

Patents and Licenses Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262B.3.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Educational Credits Awarded to Veterans Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.9.

Cooperative Purchasing Plan Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.9B.

Research and Development School Advisory Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256G.4.

Postsecondary Enrollment Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.9.

Iran Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12H.5.

Sudan Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12F.5.

Israel Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12J.5.

Local Food and Farm Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 267A.7.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Institute for Physical Research and Technology Report, pursuant to Senate File 608, 2019.

UIHC Audited Financial Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 263A.13.

Capitol Projects Report, pursuant to Chapter 89.40, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Transfer of Funds – Regional Study Center Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.28.

Articulation Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.9.

Biennial Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.26.

State Geologist Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 456.7.

Use of Medical Cannabidiol — UI Carver College of Medicine and UI College of Pharmacy, pursuant to Chapter 1125.10, 2014 Iowa Acts.

IMAGES Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.93.

Center for Health Effects of Environmental Contamination Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 263.17.

Grow Iowa Values Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Chapter 141.54, 2013 Iowa Acts.

CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8B.6.

Status of Technology Upgrades or Enhancements for State Agencies Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8B.9.

Internal Service Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8B.13.

Information Technology Services Financial Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8B.21.

lowAccess Revolving Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8B.33.

CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216.5.

COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION

Skilled Workforce Shortage Tuition Grant Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.130.

Teacher Shortage Loan Forgiveness Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.112.

Health Care Loan Repayment Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.116.

Scholarship and Tuition Grant Reserve Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.20.

Educational Credits Awarded to Veterans Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.9.

Tuition Grant Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.15.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Minority Academic Grants for Economic Success Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.104.

COMMUNICATION NETWORK

Iowa Telecommunications and Technology Commission Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8D.3.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

COMPREHENSIVE PETROLEUM UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK FUND BOARD

Progress and Activities Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455G.4.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

DENTAL BOARD

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

DEPARTMENT FOR THE BLIND

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Recycling Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216B.3.

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Annual Financial Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8A.502.

State Owned Real Property Database Study Report, pursuant to Chapter 136.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

State Owned Real Property by County Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8A.111.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Internal Service Fund Expenditure Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8A.123.

Condition of Affirmative Action, Diversity, and Multicultural Programs Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 19B.5.

Experimental Research Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8A.414.

Solicitations for Capitol Complex Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8A.108.

Contracts Awarded to Targeted Small Businesses Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8A.311.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP

Control of Pathogenic Viruses in Poultry Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 165B.2.

Outdoor Recreation Trust Fund, pursuant to Iowa Code section 461.22.

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Watershed Planning Advisory Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 466B.31.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Pseudorabies Advisory Committee Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 166D.3.

Expenditures Report, pursuant to Chapter 131.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Water Quality Agriculture Infrastructure Programs Itemized Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 466B.43.

Water Quality Urban Infrastructure Program Itemized Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 466B.44.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE Alcoholic Beverages Division

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Banking Division

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Bank Required Collateral Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12C.20.

Superintendent of Banking Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 524.216.

Qualified Student Loan Bond Issuer Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7C.13.

Credit Union Division

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 533.114.

Insurance Division

Consumer Advocate Bureau Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 505.8.

Health Spending Costs Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 505.18.

Medical Malpractice Insurance Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 505.27.

Health Spending Costs Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 505.18.

Cemetery Act Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 523I.201.

Cemetery and Funeral Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 523A.801.

Utilities Division

Customer Contribution Utility Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 476.66.

Small Wind Innovation Zone Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 476.48.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 904.115.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Interstate Compact for Adult Offender Supervision Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 907B.2.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Electronic Monitoring System Report, pursuant to Chapter 163.8, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Gap Tuition Assistance Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260I.

Statewide Work Based Intermediary Network Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.40.

Iowa Autism Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.35A.

Workforce Training and Economic Development Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260C.18A.

Child Development Coordinating Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256A.3.

Commission on Educator Leadership and Compensation Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 284.15.

Home Base Iowa Postsecondary Education Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260C.14.

Charter School and Innovation Zone School Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256F.10.

Dyslexia Response Task Force Report, pursuant to Chapter 1122.1, 2018 Iowa Acts.

Antibullying Program Report, pursuant to Chapter 1163.4, 2018 Iowa Acts.

Iowa Association of School Boards Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 279.38.

Iowa Reading Research Center Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.9.

Adult Education and Literacy Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260C.50.

Supplemental Assistance for High-Need Schools Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 284.11.

Job Placement of Individuals with Disabilities, pursuant to Chapter 135.5, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Pathways for Academic Career and Employment Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260H.

Commission on Educator Leadership and Compensation Report pursuant to Iowa Code section 284.15.

SAVE/SILO Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.9.

Job Placement of Individuals with Disabilities Report, pursuant to Chapter 135.5, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

911 Status Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 34A.7A.

Flood Mitigation Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 418.8.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS

Family Development and Self-Sufficiency Grant Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216A.107.

Twenty-year and Five-year Criminal and Juvenile Justice Plan Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216A.135.

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216A.2.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Criminal and Juvenile Justice Planning Advisory Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 476.66.

Graduated Sanction, Court Ordered, and Group Foster Care Services and Funding Work Group Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.40, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Correctional Policy Project Plans and Findings Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216A.137.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Mental Health and Disability Services Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 225C.6.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Child Abuse Registry Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 235A.23.

Medicaid Managed Care Oversight Report, pursuant to Chapter 1139.93, 2016 Iowa Acts.

Medical Assistance Act Reports, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249A.4.

Dependent Adult Abuse Registry Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 235B.13.

Preferred Drug List Program Reports, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249A.20A.

Family Support Subsidy and Children at Home Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 225C.42.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Drug Utilization Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249A.24.

Non-State Government Owned Nursing Facility Upper Payment Limit Supplemental Payment Program Report, pursuant to Chapter 1139.82, 2016 Iowa Acts.

Recommendations for the Enhanced Delivery of Co-Occurring Conditions Services Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.41, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Medicaid Home and Community-Based Services Brain Injury Waiver Report, pursuant to Chapter 82.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Outcomes of Programs and Activities Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.32, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Mental Health Services Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249N.8.

Children's Behavioral Health System State Board Activities Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 225C.52.

Disaster Case Management Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 29C.20B.

Autism Support Program Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 225D.2.

Individual Assistance Grant Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 29C.20A.

Direct Care Worker in Nursing Facilities Turnover Report, pursuant to Chapter 1188.71, 2008 Iowa Acts.

Independent Living Services Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 234.35.

DEPARTMENT OF INSPECTION AND APPEALS

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Fraud in Public Assistance Programs Report, pursuant to Chapter 136.12, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Citizen Foster Care Evaluation Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 237.18.

Child Advocacy Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 237.18.

Court Appointed Special Advocate Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 237.18.

State Public Defender

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Indigent Defense System Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 13B.2A.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Attorney General

Iowa Consumer Credit Code Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 537.6104.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT

Grants Enterprise Management Compliance Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.9.

State Tort Claims Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 669.12.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Standing Appropriations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.6.

Utility Replacement Task Force Report, pursuant to Chapter 152.64, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Block Grants Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.22.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Grants Enterprise Management Compliance Report, pursuant tot Iowa Code section 8.9.

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Lake Restoration Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 456A.33B.

Fees and Occupancy Rates for State Camping and Rental Facilities Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455A.14.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455B.104.

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Proceeds Deposited to the State Fish and Game Protection Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 483A.33.5.

Evaluation of License Fees Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 483A.1.

Household Hazardous Waste Account Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455E.11.

Removal, Collection, and Recovery of Vehicle Mercury-Added Switches Recommendations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455B.803.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Compliance with Federal Air Quality Standards Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455B.134.

Expenditure Report, pursuant to Chapter 131.14, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Hazardous Waste/Substance Disposal Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455B.427.

Hazardous Substance Remedial Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455B.425.

Resources Enhancement and Protection Recommendations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455A.17.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC DEFENSE

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Projects Funded by the Department of Public Defense Report, pursuant to Chapter 137.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Plumbing and Mechanical Systems Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 105.9.

Child Vision Screening Report, pursuant to Chapter 174.42, 2017 Iowa Acts.

Child Death Review Team Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 135.43.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Anatomical Gift Public Awareness Donation and Compliance Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 142C.17.

Tobacco Use Prevention and Control Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 142A.4.

Activities of the Medical Cannabidiol Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 124E.4A.

Behavior Analyst and Assistant Behavior Analyst Grants Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 135.181.

Outcomes of Programs and Activities Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.4, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Distribution of Federal Public Health Services Act Funds for Family Planning Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.98, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Recommendations for the Enhanced Delivery of Co-Occurring Conditions Services Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.41, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Board of Medicine and Board of Physician Assistants Joint Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 148C.12.

Distribution of Funds Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.3, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Human Trafficking Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 80.45.

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

DCI Report of Activities at Racetrack Enclosures, pursuant to Iowa Code section 99D.14.

Statewide Interoperable Communications System Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 80.29.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Central Collections Unit Debt Collection Reports, pursuant to Iowa Code section 421.17.

Financial Assistance Report, pursuant to Chapter 154.5, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Tax Gap Compliance Project Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 421.17.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Capital Investment Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15E.63.

Solar Energy System Tax Credits Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 422.11L.

Collection Enterprise Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 421.17.

Nonfilers of Returns, Nonpayers of Taxes, and Refund Fraud Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 421.17.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Streamline Sales Tax Advisory Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 423.9A.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Use of Reversions Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 307.46.

Integrated Roadside Vegetation Management Committee Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 314.22.

Living Roadway Trust Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 314.21.

Rail/Highway Grade Crossing Warning Devices, Signals, and Signs Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 307.26.

Highway Improvement Program and Sufficiency Rating Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 307A.2.

Nature and Scope of Enforcement Activities by Peace Officers Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 321.477.

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7A.9.

Road Use Tax Fund Efficiency Measures Report, pursuant to Chapter 1123.21, 2014 Iowa Acts.

Commercial Driver's License Driving Skills Test Study Report, pursuant to Chapter 41.5, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

County Allocation Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 35A.5.

Injured Veterans Grant Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 35A.14.

DEPARTMENT ON AGING

Public Guardian's Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 231E.4.

Long-Term Care Options Counseling Pilot Initiative Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Innovation Corporation Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15.107.

Commission on Volunteer Services Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15H.2.

RefugeeRISE AmeriCorps Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15H.8.

Reading Corps Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15H.7.

Nuisance Property Remediation Assistance Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15.338.

Building Energy Management Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 473.19.

ETHICS AND CAMPAIGN DISCLOSURE BOARD

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

FIRE AND POLICE RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Public Fund Sudan Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12F.5.

Public Fund Iran Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12H.5.

Public Fund Israel Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12J.5.

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 411.5.

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

Drug Control Strategy Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 80E.1.

HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN AUTHORITY

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261A.21.

HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Medical Aid Provided to Prisoners of County Jails Report, pursuant to Chapter 157.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

JUDICIAL BRANCH

Court Debt Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 602.8107.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

Court Technology and Modernization Fund Report, pursuant to Chapter 1171.1, 2018 Iowa Acts.

Enhanced Court Collections Fund Report, pursuant to Chapter 155.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

LEGISLATIVE SERVICES AGENCY

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

LOTTERY AUTHORITY

Quarterly Reports, pursuant to Iowa Code section 99G.7.

Government Oversight Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 99G.7.

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 99G.7.

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR AND LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

OMBUDSMAN

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 2C.18.

POLK COUNTY

Mental Health and Disability Services Transfer of Funds Report, pursuant to Chapter 1165.109, 2018 Iowa Acts.

PROFESSIONAL LICENSING AND REGULATION BUREAU

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

PROPANE EDUCATION AND RESEARCH COUNCIL

Audit Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 101C.3.

Programs and Projects Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 101C.11.

PUBLIC AGENCY INVESTMENT TRUST

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public Fund Israel Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12J.5.

Public Fund Sudan Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12F.5.

Public Fund Iran Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12H.5.

Annual Financial Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 97B.4.

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

PUBLIC INFORMATION BOARD

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

PUBLIC TELEVISION

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

SECRETARY OF STATE

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

STATE FAIR BOARD

State Historical Building Task Force Interim Report, pursuant to Chapter 137.13, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

STATE LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 231.42.

TREASURER OF STATE

Public Fund Sudan Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12F.5.

Public Fund Iran Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12H.5.

Public Fund Israel Divestment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12J.5.

Educational Savings Plan Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12D.8.

ABLE Savings Trust Financial Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12I.7.

Tobacco Settlement Authority Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12E.15.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

Nursing Workforce Data Clearinghouse Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 84A.11.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

Goals and Objectives Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

New Career Vocational Training and Education Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 85.70.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 10:55 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Tuesday, January 14, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Second Calendar Day - Second Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, January 14, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:34 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Denise Kuiper, First Presbyterian Church, Sibley. She is the cousin and guest of Wills of Dickinson.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Ellie Smith, Speaker's Page from Danville.

The Journal of Monday, January 13, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on January 13, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House Concurrent Resolution 101, a concurrent resolution providing for a joint convention for the Condition of the State Address.

Also: That the Senate has on January 13, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House Concurrent Resolution 102, a concurrent resolution providing for a joint convention for the Condition of the Judiciary Address.

Also: That the Senate has on January 13, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House Concurrent Resolution 103, a concurrent resolution to provide for a joint convention for the Condition of the Iowa National Guard Address.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

Paustian of Scott moved that a committee of three be appointed to notify the Senate that the House was ready to receive it in Joint Convention.

The motion prevailed and the Speaker appointed as such committee Paustian of Scott, Chair; Deyoe of Story and Konfrst of Polk.

The House stood at ease at 8:38 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 9:54 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

Paustian of Scott, Chair of the committee appointed to notify the Senate that the House was ready to receive it in Joint Convention reported that the committee had performed its duty.

The report was accepted and the committee discharged.

The Sergeant-at-Arms announced the arrival of the President of the Senate, the Secretary of the Senate and the Honorable members of the Senate.

The President was escorted to the Speaker's station, the Secretary to the Chief Clerk's desk and the members of the Senate were seated in the House chamber.

JOINT CONVENTION

In accordance with law and House Concurrent Resolution 101, duly adopted, the Joint Convention was called to order at 9:56 a.m., President Schneider presiding.

Senator Whitver of Polk moved that the roll call be dispensed with and that the President of the Joint Convention be authorized to declare a quorum present, which motion prevailed.

President Schneider announced a quorum present and the Joint Convention duly organized.

Senator Whitver of Polk moved that a committee of six, consisting of three members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives, be appointed to notify Governor Kim Reynolds that the Joint Convention was ready to receive her.

The motion prevailed and the President appointed as such committee Senators Behn of Boone, Lofgren of Muscatine and Giddens of Black Hawk on the part of the Senate, and Representatives Klein of Washington, Hein of Lee and Matson of Polk on the part of the House.

Secretary of Agriculture, Mike Naig; State Auditor, Rob Sand; Secretary of State, Paul D. Pate, State Treasurer, Michael L. Fitzgerald and Attorney General, Tom Miller were escorted into the House chamber.

The Acting Supreme Court Justice, the Justices of the Supreme Court, the Chief Judge and Judges of the Appellate Court were escorted into the House chamber.

Lieutenant Governor Adam Gregg and his family were escorted into the House chamber.

First Gentleman Kevin Reynolds and Governor Kim Reynolds' family were escorted into the House chamber.

The committee waited upon Governor Kim Reynolds and escorted her to the Speaker's station.

President Whitver presented Governor Kim Reynolds, who delivered the following condition of the state message:

GOVERNOR'S CONDITION OF THE STATE MESSAGE

Mr. President, Mr. Speaker, Lieutenant Governor, legislative leaders, Senators and Representatives, justices and judges, elected officials, distinguished guests, family, friends, and my fellow Iowans.

Each time I enter this spectacular building, I am reminded of the generations of Iowans who have come before us. And each time I walk into this historic chamber, I am humbled by the responsibility of following in the footsteps of some amazing leaders and outstanding public servants.

We lost a number of those leaders last year.

Most notable for us today is Chief Justice Mark Cady, whose absence is felt right there in the front row. He loved his state. And he loved the law. To his family and colleagues in the Iowa Judicial Branch, our entire state shares your loss.

We also bid farewell to former Lt. Governor Joann Zimmerman, the first woman elected Lt. Governor of this great State. She brought the heart of a nurse and the passion of a mother to a distinguished career in public service.

And with shared sadness we mourn the loss of Congressman Berkley Bedell, and former Iowa Supreme Court justices Daryl Hecht, and Bruce Snell, as well as the longest-serving Chief Justice in state history, Art McGivern.

We honor those leaders—and so many more—who committed their lives to making tomorrow a little better than today.

So often public service comes with sacrifice. A sacrifice that our men and women in uniform make each day. Our military, police, and first responders risk their lives to protect ours, and so today—and every day—we should thank those who serve and honor those we've lost.

In 2019 we saw the resilience of Iowans tested once again as historic floods ravaged both sides of our state and parts in between. Entire communities were wiped out as the waters rose and didn't seem to recede. But that devastation was met with purpose and resolve to rebuild and recover.

To those whose lives have been impacted, your state stands with you as we work to return life to normal and get your homes, businesses, and communities back on track. To do that, the budget I'm submitting today includes an additional \$20 million for flood relief.

This is the third time I've stood before you to report on the Condition of the State. As always, it's a time to reflect on what we've done over the last year and to lay out a vision for the year to come.

But this year marks the beginning of a new decade, so it seems appropriate that we take stock in what we've accomplished the last 10 years. And more important, to talk about what we want for the next 10—and beyond.

When this body met in January 2010, our unemployment rate was 6.4 percent. Our state faced a near billion-dollar deficit. School funding was drastically cut and Iowans were worried about their future.

A decade later, the condition of our state is truly strong. Because of the vision and tenacity of Iowans, our unemployment rate has gone from a near-record high to a record low. Instead of cutting school budgets, we're cutting taxes. Our cash reserves are full, wages are going up, and Iowans once again believe we're headed in the right direction.

Because we have such a great story to tell, this year we launched the "This is Iowa" campaign. The goal is to show the country what we have to offer. To show that Iowa is the best place to live, work, and raise a family.

As part of this new initiative, we created a candid-camera style video where an actor, playing a real-estate agent, shows Iowa house listings to New Yorkers. When the couples

hear how big the homes are, how short the commute is, and what they can buy the properties for, they're baffled. "That's not possible," is their general reaction.

When the actor tells them that these homes are in Iowa, not New York, they're shocked and amazed. That's not how they envisioned Iowa. That's not what they've been told.

We made that video to dispel some of the misconceptions and to showcase what we have. But I think the video serves another purpose: It reminds us what we have.

Because it can be easy to forget—forget what it means to grow up in a safe neighborhood with a good school and a nice backyard. To spend more time with our families than we do in traffic. And to watch the sun set in our big skies and the stars shine over our beautiful fields.

That's what Iowa has to offer—and so much more. Those New Yorkers saw what I see: That opportunity lives here.

But we cannot take it for granted. If we do, if we become complacent, then the condition of the state will not be strong when this body gathers 10 years from now.

That's why this year, 2020, we need to plan for 2030. For 2040. We need to seize the opportunities that exist so that years from now, the next generation of Iowans will inherit an Iowa whose greatness comes as no surprise to anyone, including New Yorkers.

That kind of planning takes work. It doesn't happen all at once, and no single policy will do. But that kind of planning also takes a bold vision. A vision that preserves our heritage while seizing our opportunities.

My request to this General Assembly is that you join me in taking the first bold step. Right now. This session.

In the coming weeks, I will introduce the Invest in Iowa Act, a bill that will:
significantly cut income taxes,
create a sustainable funding source for our mental health system,
reduce the burden of property taxpayers, and
fund the Natural Resources and Outdoor Recreation Trust,

These changes will make our vision a reality. It's an investment in our future. And it's an investment in those who are our future.

Ten years ago, Iowans voted to establish the Natural Resources and Outdoor Recreation Trust. Funding that trust is no small investment, but I believe it's one we need to make. We were given this beautiful land to work but also to keep. And preserving what we've been given must be a responsibility of all Iowans.

In 2010, the legislature established a formula for distributing the Trust Fund. I voted for that formula, as did every one of my colleagues. But the challenges we face today and will face tomorrow are different than what we understood them to be 10 years ago, so it's time to amend the formula.

Specifically, we need to increase the amount of money that will be allocated for water quality and conservation. Under my bill, almost 58% of the Trust Fund, an estimated

\$100 million, will go toward water-quality efforts every year, representing an almost 31% increase in current funding.

We will also commit \$52 million for other conservation and outdoor recreation efforts, representing an increase of 14.6% of current funding.

These investments will not only aid our conservation efforts, they will improve our quality of life and help us retain and recruit a new generation of Iowans.

I have no interest in raising taxes, so any increase in revenue from a sales tax must be more than offset by additional tax cuts. That starts with continuing to reduce our uncompetitive income-tax rates. Two years ago, thanks to many of you in this room, we passed the largest income-tax cut in Iowa history. I said then, and I've said ever since: that wasn't a one-and-done.

I intend to make good on that promise, which is why I'm proposing to cut income taxes by an additional 10 percent for almost every Iowan, with lower-income Iowans receiving as much as a 25 percent cut next year.

Let me put that into perspective. Just one year ago, our top tax bracket was at almost 9 percent, one of the worst in the country. Now, with this new round of tax cuts, our top rate will be down to 5.5 percent by 2023—significant progress that will make Iowa competitive with our peers.

Mental health is becoming one of the biggest challenges of our time. Two years ago, we reformed our adult mental health system, and last year we created Iowa's first children's mental health system—important steps to putting Iowans on a path to wellness.

We must now provide predictable funding. To date, property taxpayers have supplied most of that support, through their county to the local mental-health regions. I'm proposing, through the Invest in Iowa Act, that we reduce property tax levies and provide the needed funding through the State general fund.

No parent, family member, or friend should be told that treatment isn't available for their loved one. By establishing a dedicated and stable fund for mental health, we will give hope to so many who are suffering in silence. It's a promise we've made, and it's a promise I intend to keep.

The Invest in Iowa Act will bring meaningful change to Iowans in the very first year. But most important, it looks to the future. To our children and theirs.

If we take this bold step, right now, then whoever is standing at this podium in 10, 20, or 30 years—Republican or Democrat—can proudly say what I can say today: The condition of our State is strong.

When I look to the next decade, I'm reminded of what Will Rogers once said, "the farmer has to be an optimist, or he wouldn't still be a farmer." From weather at home to markets overseas, to bureaucratic decisions made in Washington DC, so much of our farmers' success hinges on factors seemingly out of their control.

But that doesn't mean we simply sit back and hope someone else fights for our interests. It's up to us to shape the challenges of uncertainty into opportunities for growth. I will always be a relentless advocate for our farmers, producers, and our way of life.

Which is why today I'm calling for an additional \$2 million for the Renewable Fuels Infrastructure Program, as well as modernizing and expanding the E-15 Plus Promotion Tax Credit. This will support the sale of E-15 year round and drive domestic demand for our homegrown renewable fuels.

As we begin 2020, I'm focused on the overall wellness of all Iowans, in every part of the State, in all stages of life.

And when I say all stages of life, I mean to include the unborn. We must protect life by making clear, through an amendment, that our constitution does not grant a right to abortion. It's time, and unfortunately it's necessary.

We must also do more to promote and support maternal health. Fewer doctors and fewer hospitals are delivering babies and providing care for mothers, especially outside our urban areas.

That's why I'm taking steps to increase the number of doctors who are willing and able to provide OB services in all four corners of our state.

First, I am proposing a fellowship for new family-practice physicians who want to train and specialize in OB care. Each year, four new residents will complete the fellowship program and head back to their local communities, taking with them connections to OB specialists and an expertise to better treat mothers and their babies.

Second, we're launching a tele-mentoring system where OBs at our best institutions can consult with physicians across the State. With this program, a doctor in Corydon can talk with a specialist in Iowa City about treatment for a mother with a high-risk pregnancy.

Using technology to bring cutting edge health care into every community is no longer a dream. Telehealth is reality today but we've only just begun to scratch the surface. This year, my budget includes additional funding to expand the use of these services to underserved Iowans.

I've also directed the Department of Human Services to remove barriers that are restricting schools from partnering with telehealth providers, especially for behavioral health. What used to be a 70-mile drive in the middle of the school day can now be a walk down the hall. That means more children will receive the care they need, with less disruption to their education.

These advances are not possible without high-speed broadband. After unanimous support from this legislature, last year the Empower Rural Iowa Act provided \$5 million that is now helping to fund 17 broadband projects in rural Iowa.

Broadband is not a luxury; it's critical infrastructure. From the farmer checking crop conditions to the Main Street business participating in the 24/7 marketplace, connectivity should be the expectation no matter where you live.

Let's make that expectation a reality. Today, I'm requesting that we appropriate an additional \$15 million and adjust our state match so we can continue to leverage private and federal funding to build out broadband to every part of Iowa, making us the most connected state in the nation.

Broadband also supports our world-class education system. And if there's something Iowans have always understood, it's that there is no better path to opportunity than a quality education.

We have strong local control, rooted in communities and parents who care deeply about educating their children. We have the highest high-school graduation rate in the country and more highschoolers taking college courses than any other state.

We've made remarkable progress in recent years on putting a new focus on STEM—and opening doors in elementary, middle, and high schools for students to explore fields that will best equip them to be the innovators who build tomorrow's economy.

Computer science has quickly moved from a narrow elective to a basic skill that every student needs.

That's something the people at Osage Community Schools understand and have embraced with a passion.

In addition to requiring computer science for students to graduate, they have dramatically increased learning opportunities for K-12 students to explore coding and design apps or find their passion in the world of technology. And, through an innovative partnership with NewBoCo in Cedar Rapids, Osage is training teachers to better integrate computer science in subjects like math, English and art.

I want to recognize Osage and NewBoCo for their vision and congratulate the students for their success. You are a model for our state and the nation. Please stand.

What Osage is doing is amazing, and we need more of it.

Currently, almost two-thirds of school districts teach computer science in middle and high school. And about half teach it in elementary school. We need that to be 100 percent—which is why I'm calling on the Legislature to take computer science statewide and ensure every student, at every level, has access to this new basic skill.

One of the best ways for students to learn is through hands-on experience, which is why we're making Iowa a leader in work-based learning. In the last year alone, we've expanded high-school registered apprenticeships and launched the work-based learning clearinghouse, and this year will be adding \$1 million for work-based learning coordinators to be covered by operational-sharing agreements.

Momentum for this initiative is building across the state. Council Bluffs is a great example. The school district, Iowa Western Community College, and several local businesses have partnered to create TradeWorks Academy, where high-school students work with professionals to experience what it's like to have a career as a plumber, electrician, or mechanic.

It's a win-win for the students and the community. The students learn skills that lead to life-long careers. And local businesses get the workforce they so desperately need.

Emma Myers, a junior, is using TradeWorks to learn about welding. That's what her dad has been doing for 40 years, and she wants to follow in his footsteps. By the time she graduates high school, she will have a welding certificate that can immediately lead to a job right there in Council Bluffs.

I want to recognize Emma and a number of folks here today from TradeWorks. Thank you for your leadership.

In 2019, we made historic investments in K-12 education, with over \$90 million in new money, including an increase in per-pupil funding and transportation equity.

The budget I'm presenting to you today makes another historic investment, with over \$103 million in new funding so that Iowa schools can maintain the best teachers and classrooms in the world.

When it comes to workforce opportunities, Iowa is in a strong position. We have thousands of open jobs in rewarding careers. That's why we launched Future Ready Iowa.

Three years after starting the initiative, and just one year after this body overwhelmingly voted to approve funding, Iowans who are looking for a way up are finding that opportunity.

Over 6,000 Iowans are already receiving the Last Dollar Scholarship, almost 80 percent of which are adult learners. That's 6,000 Iowans who are on their way to a rewarding career.

Take Sarah Keehn, a 35-year-old mother of six from Hampton who was laid off. Because of the Last Dollar Scholarship, she is now at NIACC pursuing a medical-assistant degree, and soon she will help fill the shortage of workers in the healthcare industry.

Zach Behrensmeyer from New Liberty is another great example. He assumed college was something he couldn't afford, but the Last Dollar Scholarship has enabled and encouraged him to pursue a degree in computer-software development at Kirkwood. When Zach graduates this spring he'll leave school with a highly marketable degree in a field where the average starting salary is \$55,000.

Sarah and Zach, please stand to be recognized.

Through the Employer Innovation Fund, Future Ready Iowa is also working to spur innovation among employers and communities in addressing their workforce needs.

In Muscatine, the local community foundation partnered with Eastern Iowa Community College to create an intensive six-week program for low-income parents who have children in school. They're working to become welders or certified-nursing assistants and, if they stay on track through the program, a job will be waiting for them at the end.

On the other side of the state, Peterbilt of Sioux City and Midwest Diesel Tech Academy developed a new training program to meet the increasing demand for diesel mechanics in the area.

In Oskaloosa, the school district recognized transportation as a major barrier for students to attend career academies at Indian Hills Community College, so they developed a transportation program to make it happen.

With all three of these and more, the State of Iowa, through the Employer Innovation Fund, was a partner.

In less than a year, we have helped thousands of Iowans upskill for the new economy. Future Ready Iowa is working, which is why I'm proposing that we expand the Last Dollar Scholarship and the Employer Innovation Fund by \$2.8 million each, bringing the total investment to over \$20 million.

Future Ready Iowa will infuse Iowa's workforce with thousands of skilled employees, providing much needed support to our growing businesses.

Childcare is the next workforce issue we need to tackle. It's another barrier for families looking for a way up.

For some, it's about affordability; for others, access is the issue; and for thousands of Iowans, it's both.

This year we need to act.

First, let's make childcare more affordable by expanding Early Childhood tax credits. Currently, they are available to families making \$45,000 or less; I'm recommending that be doubled to \$90,000.

Second, we must begin to address the child-care cliff so we are not punishing parents as they continue on a path to self-sufficiency. To do this, we should implement a tiered co-pay system that doesn't punish those who work hard enough to earn a raise.

Finally, we need to enlist Iowans to find common-sense solutions that increase access to childcare.

Consider Lee Container. It's a manufacturing facility in Centerville that employs 200 people. Since opening its doors in 2008, they have expanded but were struggling to find workers. Lack of childcare was part of the problem, so Lee Container partnered with a local provider to turn a vacant elementary school into a daycare center.

That's exactly the kind of innovation we need, which is why I'm opening the Employer Innovation Fund to employers and community organizations that have ideas to expand and create childcare options in their communities.

I want to recognize Robert, the CEO of Lee Container, and Michelle from Curious Kids who are with us to today. Thank you for inspiring this great idea.

I've made it a priority of this administration to focus on prisoner re-entry and rehabilitation, because our prisons shouldn't be one stop in a circle that leads back to prison. Those in our correctional facilities are serving time for a reason, but when they leave, we want them to succeed. Because here's the thing: If they re-offend, they land back in prison, at a cost to taxpayers of \$32,000 per year.

But it's more than that. When someone has lost their way, we're called to seek them out—to leave the 99 to find the one. I believe in that calling, which is why I formed the Governor's FOCUS Committee on Criminal Justice Reform.

This committee, which is chaired by the Lt. Gov., includes law enforcement, corrections officials, the NAACP, and a wide range of stakeholders. Last month, they provided several recommendations, and we are already in the process of implementing many of them.

Last year, I signed legislation that protects employers who are willing to give returning citizens a second chance. To build on that, we hosted roundtables at our correctional facilities in Mitchellville and Rockwell City where more than 80 employers stepped inside our prison walls—and maybe a little outside their comfort zone—to learn how they can meet their workforce needs and give an Iowan a second chance at a productive and rewarding life.

Finally, I am renewing my support to amend our Constitution so that it no longer bars felons from voting after they've served their sentence.

To see why that matters, talk to William Burt from Waterloo. He spent much of his life in and out of prison, but is now a business owner who is working to change Iowa law to allow mobile barber shops—which I think is a good idea.

I recently called William to tell him that I was restoring his voting rights. Hearing those words brought tears to his eyes. You can't imagine the gratitude and dignity that Iowans like William feel when they're told they can once again exercise what Ronald Reagan called "the crown jewel of American liberties."

William, please rise so that we can recognize your efforts to be an active and productive citizen of this great State.

I am grateful to the House for starting this process last year by approving the constitutional amendment with a strong bipartisan vote of 95 to two. I also appreciate the productive conversations we are having with Senators, and I look forward to continuing to work with you to pass the amendment and craft an implementing statute that lets us avoid the confusion and lawsuits that have plagued other states' restoration efforts.

Together, we can help put returning citizens on a path to redemption. We can help them become productive members of society, reduce recidivism, and make our communities a safer place.

Opportunity lives here because of the ingenuity of our people. If Iowa is going to thrive in the next decade, we must make sure that government isn't stifling that ingenuity.

I'm concerned we are.

One quarter of Iowa's workforce requires some kind of professional license. If that sounds like a lot, that's because it is. It's the second highest in the nation, which puts our state and its people at a competitive disadvantage.

A recent study shows that our licensing system cost Iowa 48,000 jobs and \$290 million.

Our licensing requirements are also the worst for low-income people, meaning that those who need opportunity the most have the hardest time getting a license.

We should never dismiss the importance of protecting the health and safety of the people, but it's been far too long since we've modernized our licensing structure. That's what I'm asking you to do today.

First, we need to adopt universal licensing recognition. Those who go through a rigorous application process in another state, and meet certain conditions in our state, should be

able to have that license recognized here. Let's encourage these skilled workers to move to Iowa.

Second, we should waive license fees for low-income individuals. That doesn't mean we lower any standards. It just ensures that we don't deny someone a professional license simply because of their inability to pay.

Third, we currently have no uniform standard for considering criminal convictions in licensure. As a result, qualified and skilled Iowans are being denied the chance to obtain a license because of mistakes unrelated to the profession they now want to enter. This is another barrier to ex-offenders reentering the workforce and we need to change it.

Lastly, we need better oversight of the entire professional-licensing process. I'm calling for the creation of a commission that will, every four years, review every professional license requirement and the boards that oversee them.

Licensing reform is a topic that has bipartisan support, but that doesn't mean it will be easy. There will always be entrenched interests who benefit from overly burdensome regulations. But we can't let those interests stand in the way of opportunity. These reforms are long overdue, and this is the year we will begin to fix a broken system.

As we head into this legislative session, let's not focus solely on the next 12 months. This is a time to chart the path for the next ten years. To stand together to enact a comprehensive agenda that:

invests in Iowa,
returns money to taxpayers
preserves our land and water,
strengthens our schools,
looks after the health and well-being of all Iowans,
and gives every Iowan the opportunity to succeed.

So as we move into the next decade, let's put Iowans first. Let's be bold and visionary.

Let's seize this opportunity and make the next decade Iowa's best.

It's time to show the world that Opportunity Lives Here.

Thank you, God bless you, and God bless the great state of Iowa.

Governor Kim Reynolds was escorted from the House chamber by the committee previously appointed.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the Joint Convention was dissolved at 10:52 a.m.

Speaker Grassley in the chair at 11:00 a.m.

RULE 57 SUSPENDED

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to suspend Rule 57, relating to committee notice and agenda, for a meeting of the committee on Administration and Rules to meet at 3:30 p.m.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 500 Agriculture

Relating to credit transactions involving grain by providing for a grain warehouse lien, and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 501 Human Resources

Relating to insurance coverage for prescription insulin drugs.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 500

Agriculture: Paustian, Chair; Olson and Zumbach.

House Study Bill 501

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; James and Lundgren.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 11:01 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, January 15, 2019.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Third Calendar Day - Third Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, January 15, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:34 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Marvin Smith, Harvest Baptist Church, Fort Dodge. He was the guest of Windschitl of Harrison.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Marvin Smith V, son of Pastor Marvin Smith IV. He was the guest of Windschitl of Harrison.

The Journal of Tuesday, January 14, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2001, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to reimbursement rates for health care services provided to covered persons by telehealth and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2002, by Bossman, a bill for an act relating to the health care professional recruitment program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2003, by Jones and Thorup, a bill for an act requiring the use of safety belts or safety harnesses by passengers of motor vehicles, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2004, by Fisher, Dolecheck, and Gerhold, a bill for an act requiring the construction and maintenance of rumble strips on certain highways.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2005, by Bossman, a bill for an act relating to the individual income tax credits for volunteer fire fighters, volunteer emergency medical services personnel members, and reserve peace officers by increasing the amounts of the credits, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2006, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to child support delinquency and licensing sanctions relative to operation of a motor vehicle.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2007, by Konfrst, a bill for an act relating to the supports intensity scale assessment for certain Medicaid members.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2008, by M. Smith, a bill for an act relating to supervision of a master social worker for the purposes of reimbursement for services under the Medicaid program and private insurance.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2009, by Breckenridge, a bill for an act relating to reimbursement for services provided in an emergency department to Medicaid members.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2010, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to the elimination of the child support licensing sanctions process.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2011, by Olson, Mitchell, and Jones, a bill for an act relating to a deferred judgment and the denial, suspension, or revocation of a professional license, driver's license, or boating license.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2012, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to the definition of an aggravated offense for purposes of the sex offender registry.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2013, by Hite, Thorup, and Bloomingdale, a bill for an act relating to the design of county seals.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2014, by Sorensen, a bill for an act relating to the allocation of nonresident deer hunting licenses, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2015, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to the suspension of fines assessed for operating-while-intoxicated offenses.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2016, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to ignition interlock device requirements for a first operating-while-intoxicated offense.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2017, by M. Smith, a bill for an act relating to permissible documents that may be used for election day voter registration and voter identification.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT OF
THE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND RULES

January 13, 2020

To: Administration and Rules Committee

From: Meghan Nelson, Chief Clerk

Pursuant to Senate Concurrent Resolution 1, duly adopted during the Eighty-seventh General Assembly, the following is a list of changes for officers and employees of the House:

<u>Position</u>	<u>Name</u>	<u>Grade- and Step</u>	<u>Class of Appoint- ment</u>	<u>Effective Date</u>
Admin. Assist. to Ldr.	Haley J. Hook	27-1 to 27-2	P-FT	05-31-19
Sr. Admin. Assist. to Ldr. II	Jake D. Friedrichsen	41-4 to 41-5	P-FT	06-28-19
Leg. Res. Analyst I	Brian E. Guillaume	29-4 to	P-FT	06-28-19
Leg. Res. Analyst II		32-3		
Assist. Chief Clerk III	Meghan JVW Nelson	38-7 to	P-FT	06-28-19
Chief Clerk		44-5		
Sr. Leg. Res. Analyst	Jason M. Chapman	38-6 to	P-FT	07-29-19
Sr. Assist. Chief Clerk		41-4		
Admin. Assist. II to Speaker	Colin M. Tadlock	32-6 to	P-FT	09-12-19
Admin. Assist. III to Speaker		35-6		
Finance Officer I	Phyllis J. Pierce	24-6+1 to	P-FT	09-20-19
Finance Officer II		27-6		
Leg. Res. Analyst	Kristin A. Rozeboom	27-7	P-FT	09-30-19
Admin. Services Officer	Michelle A. Halverson-Haupts	23-3	P-FT	10-16-19
Sr. Admin. Assist. to Ldr. I	Mackenzie J. Nading	38-5	P-FT	10-28-19
Leg. Res. Analyst	Benjamin M. Gentz	27-5 to	P-FT	11-01-19
Leg. Res. Analyst I		29-5		
Sr. Admin. Assist. to Spkr. I	Laura A. Steven	38-7	P-FT	11-12-19
Sr. Leg. Res. Analyst	William T.D. Freeland	38-5 to	P-FT	11-29-19
		38-6		
Leg. Res. Analyst I	Natalie B. Ginty	29-7 to	P-FT	11-29-19
Leg. Res. Analyst II		32-6		
Leg. Res. Analyst	Logan J. Murray	27-5 to	P-FT	11-29-19
Leg. Res. Analyst I		29-5		
Sr. Leg. Res. Analyst	Rachelle D. Thomas	38-3 to	P-FT	11-29-19
		38-4		
Caucus Secretary	Jessica L. Flannery	21-4 to	P-FT	12-13-19
Sr. Caucus Secretary		24-3		
Leg. Res. Analyst III	Kristi L. Kious	35-7 to	P-FT	12-13-19
Sr. Leg. Res. Analyst		38-6		
Leg. Res. Analyst	Kelsey A. Thien	27-6 to	P-FT	12-13-19
Leg. Res. Analyst I		29-6		
Leg. Res. Analyst III	Amanda J. Wille	35-6	P-FT	12-13-19
		35-7		
Sr. Caucus Secretary	Ashley A. Beall	24-7 to	P-FT	12-27-19
		24-8		
Admin. Services Officer II	Robin L. Bennett	29-5 to	P-FT	12-27-19
Admin. Services Officer III		32-4		
Admin. Services Officer III	Molly M. Dolan	32-1 to	P-FT	12-27-19
		32-2		
Admin. Services Officer I	Savannah G. Prescott	26-1	P-FT	01-02-20
Doorkeeper	Donald E. Monaghan	11-1	S-O	01-08-20

<u>Position</u>	<u>Name</u>	<u>Grade- and Step</u>	<u>Class of Appoint- ment</u>	<u>Effective Date</u>
Doorkeeper	Linda L. Smuck	11-1	S-O	01-08-20
Switchboard Operator	Josiah T. Meier	14-1	S-O	01-13-20
Postmaster	Randy H. Ross	12-2 to 12-3	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Megan C. Adam	17-2 to 18-8	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Rachael D. Attema	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Sienna R. Attema	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Ivy L. Beckenholdt	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Leo A. Bormann	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Martha C. Broadnax	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Alyssa D. Brouillet	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Addie M. Cosgrove	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Robert E. Davis	17-3 to 16-3	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Alexandra L. Emberton	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Laura N. Engel	17-2 to 16-2	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Laney M. Feight	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Victoria S. Fillipi	17-7	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Susan R. Foster	18-3 to 18-4	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Grant E. Gale	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Andrea D. Gates	18-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Ashton M. Goodhue-Nolte	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Greta Haas	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Olivia A. Habinck	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Cynthia H. Hamlett	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Riley Hayes	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Danielle E. Heartsill	18-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Jacob G. Holck	18-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Cynthia L. Hunafa	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Jeffrey D. Hutton	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Sandra M. Kelaher	16-2 to 15-2	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Erin E. Kokemiller	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Lauren S. Lawson	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Devyn Leeson	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Jaelyn Lentz	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Jamie L. McCarthy	18-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Megan L. McDowell	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Drew J. Mercer	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Jill M. Morris	16-1 to 17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Sloan E. Nickel	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Valerie J.G. Nolte	17-1 to 15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Kerrigan L. Owens	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Stephanie A. Philipps	15-1	S-O	01-13-20

<u>Position</u>	<u>Name</u>	<u>Grade- and Step</u>	<u>Class of Appoint- ment</u>	<u>Effective Date</u>
Leg. Secretary	Brock P. Rogers-Waters	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Tess G. Schiesl	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Anna G. Senneff	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Natalie Sherman	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	James Simmons	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Katherine J. Simpson	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Amy Smith	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Fran D. Smith	16-4 to 16-5	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Maria B. Sorensen	16-1 to 18-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary				
Leg. Secretary	Carrie A. Swartz	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Kayla Taylor	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Justus M. Thompson	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Tressa A. Voss	18-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Gavin W. Waller	15-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Amy M. Walsh	17-2	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Elliot J. Weidenaar	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Secretary	Carissa L. Wenger	16-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Henry R. Widen	17-1	S-O	01-13-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Grant J. Zajicek	17-1	S-O	01-13-20

PAGES

Speaker's Page	Elizabeth C. Smith	9-1	S-O
Chief Clerk's Page	Benton J. Renaud	9-1	S-O
Page	Yasmin Aguilar-Rosales	9-1	S-O
Page	Jonathan C. Ball	9-1	S-O
Page	Olivia P. Brown	9-1	S-O
Page	Zoe M. Card	9-1	S-O
Page	Averey K. Den Hartog	9-1	S-O
Page	Mason E. Donelson	9-1	S-O
Page	Audrey E. Holtkamp	9-1	S-O
Page	Shaylin H. Huss	9-1	S-O
Page	Holden T. Sisco	9-1	S-O
Page	Jenna S. Smyth	9-1	S-O
Page	Allison E. Walker	9-1	S-O
Page	Blaine C. Watkins	9-1	S-O
Page	Shea L. Whaley	9-1	S-O

The following are resignations from the officers and employees of the House:

Conf. Secretary to Speaker	Terri P. Steinke	05-08-19
Chief Clerk	Carmine R. Boal	06-27-19
Supervisor of Secretaries II	Sarah E. Vanderploeg	08-08-19
Sr. Admin. Assist. to Spkr. II	Anthony D. Phillips	09-19-19
Sr. Admin. Assist. to Leader II	Matthew J. Gronewald	10-11-19

January 13, 2020

To: Administration & Rules Committee

From: Meghan Nelson, Chief Clerk

Pursuant to Senate Concurrent Resolution 1, duly adopted during the Eighty-seventh General Assembly, the following is a list of changes for officers and employees of the Joint Senate/House:

<u>Position</u>	<u>Name</u>	<u>Grade- Step</u>	<u>Class of Appoint- ment</u>	<u>Effective Date</u>
Leg. Security Officer II	David W. Garrison	23-7 to 23-8	P-FT	05-17-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Randy H. Marchant	20-5 to 20-6	P-FT	05-17-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Michael H. Winter	20-1 to 20-2	P-FT	05-31-19
Leg. Security Officer I	James A. Eyberg	20-2 to 20-3	P-FT	06-28-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Curtis L. Henderson	20-4 to 20-5	P-FT	06-28-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Timothy P. Knapp	20-6 to 20-7	P-FT	06-28-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Jody W. Elliott	20-4 to 20-5	P-FT	07-26-19
Conserv./Restor. Spec. II	Arthur A. McBride IV	31-6 to 31-7	P-FT	09-20-19
Facilities Manager I	Zachary L. Bunkers	35-7 to 35-8	P-FT	11-29-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Jeffrey L. Quigle	20-1	P-FT	12-06-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Marland H. Winter	20-1	P-FT	12-13-19

The following are resignations from the Joint officers and employees:

Leg. Security Officer I	Gerald L. McCurdy Jr.	06-13-19
Leg. Security Officer I	Leo R. Skeffington	10-03-19

Zumbach of Linn moved that the supplemental report of the committee on Administration and Rules be accepted.

The motion prevailed and the supplemental report was adopted.

COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

A. Meyer of Webster moved that a committee of three be appointed to notify the Senate that the House was ready to receive it in Joint Convention.

The motion prevailed and the Speaker appointed as such committee A. Meyer of Webster, Chair; Hinson of Linn and Williams of Black Hawk.

The House stood at ease at 8:45 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 10:01 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

A. Meyer of Webster, Chair of the committee to notify the Senate that the House was ready to receive it in Joint Convention, reported that it had performed its duty.

The report was accepted and the committee discharged.

The Sergeant-at-Arms announced the arrival of the President of the Senate, the Secretary of the Senate and the Honorable members of the Senate.

The President was escorted to the Speaker's station, the Secretary to the Chief Clerk's desk and the members of the Senate were seated in the House chamber.

JOINT CONVENTION

In accordance with law and House Concurrent Resolution 102, duly adopted, the Joint Convention was called to order at 10:03 a.m., President Schneider presiding.

Senator Whitver of Polk moved that the roll call be dispensed with and that the President of the Joint Convention be authorized to declare a quorum present, which motion prevailed.

President Schneider announced a quorum present and the Joint Convention duly organized.

Senator Whitver of Polk moved that a committee of six consisting of three members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives be appointed to escort Lieutenant Governor Adam Gregg to the House chamber for the Condition of the Judicial Branch Message.

The motion prevailed and the President appointed as such committee Senators Edler of Marshall, Greene of Des Moines and Wahls of Johnson on the part of the Senate, and Representatives Hagenow of Dallas, Brink of Mahaska and Derry of Polk, on the part of the House.

Senator Whitver of Polk moved that a committee of six consisting of three members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives be appointed to notify Acting Chief Justice David S. Wiggins that the Joint Convention was ready to receive him.

The motion prevailed and the President appointed as such committee Senators Carlin of Woodbury, Whiting of Dickinson and Hogg of Linn on the part of the Senate, and Representatives Hite of Mahaska, Lohse of Polk and Wilburn of Story, on the part of the House.

Secretary of Agriculture, Mike Naig; State Auditor, Rob Sand; Secretary of State, Paul D. Pate; State Treasurer, Michael L. Fitzgerald and Attorney General Tom Miller were escorted into the House chamber.

The Justices of the Supreme Court, the Chief Judge and Chief Judges of the Court of Appeals and the Chief Judges of the state's judicial districts were escorted into the House chamber.

The House stood at ease at 10:07 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 10:10 a.m., President Schneider in the chair.

The Acting Chief Justice's family was escorted into the House chamber.

Lieutenant Governor Adam Gregg was escorted into the House chamber.

The committee waited upon Acting Chief Justice David S. Wiggins and escorted him to the Speaker's station.

President Schneider presented Acting Chief Justice David S. Wiggins who delivered the following Condition of the Judicial Branch Message:

CONDITION OF THE JUDICIAL BRANCH MESSAGE

Mister president, Mister speaker, distinguished members of the Iowa General Assembly, Governor Reynolds, Lieutenant Governor Gregg, state officials, colleagues, family, friends, and everyone who joins us this morning to hear the condition of Iowa's judicial system.

Thank you for inviting me here today. It has been a year of passage and transition. Since the last condition of the judiciary, three of our retired justices have passed. The court will miss former Chief Justice Arthur McGiverin, Justice Daryl Hecht, and Justice Bruce Snell, Jr. These fine justices were models of dignity and service. We have also welcomed our newest justice, Justice Christopher McDonald, as Justice Hecht's successor.

We also lost Chief Justice Mark Cady, who passed away suddenly last November. His death sent shockwaves not only through the judicial branch but also throughout the state and the nation. Chief Justice Cady was an outstanding legal scholar, a thoughtful colleague, a good friend, and a strong leader. Under Chief Justice Cady's leadership, and with your support, the Iowa judicial system has become one of the best in the nation. His leadership brought our justice system to where we are today and provides us with a clear vision of where we need to go in the future in order to achieve his goal to be the best justice system in the nation.

Prior to his death, Chief Justice Cady began working on this speech. I would like to convey his thoughts on our justice system to you this morning.

In the Preamble to the United States Constitution, the framers set forth their aspiration that the new country "form a more perfect Union." The process to become a more perfect Union is not easy. But when respect and understanding for our institutions of government can be maintained, our 2 strength is revealed and provides momentum for greater justice and prosperity in our future. So it is important that I begin a report on the condition of the judiciary with the condition of our respect and commitment to a process of government and the important roles we all have in it.

We have the greatest respect for you and the state's other public officials. This respect is not only derived from your devoted service but because you speak and act for the people of Iowa. Our government was set up for you to be their voice. Courts are different. We too were set up to speak, but in a more limited way. We resolve legal disputes brought to us by Iowans by applying the law, including the values and principles found in the people's Constitution. The independence of the courts from the political branches is not a divide but our very strength as a state and as a nation.

As the voice of the people's Constitution, the courts are integrated into the fabric of each community in Iowa. We are a community based court system. In addition to our physical presence in 100 county courthouses, there are the 1700 Iowans who work for the courts and are also active members of their communities. From Waverly to Van Meter, Marshalltown to Bettendorf, Muscatine to Spencer, there are judges and court employees who volunteer their time and skills for the benefit of their communities. These judges and court employees volunteer for the YWCA, participate in community theater, serve

in the National Guard, and serve as EMTs and as firefighters. Some volunteer for 4-H, the Girl Scouts, the Boy Scouts, historic preservation commissions, community action agencies, and religious organizations. Regardless of how they choose to serve their communities during their personal time, professionally, these Iowans work in our court system every day to provide justice to their neighbors. I would like to take this moment for all of us to show our appreciation to the judges and court employees of the Iowa Judicial Branch for their tireless efforts to provide justice both inside and outside of the courthouses.

Shortly after the court selected Justice Cady as chief justice, the court began taking our court on the road. We traveled to communities around the state to hear oral arguments, meet with Iowans, and visit local schools. Those travels have been a very rewarding experience for all of us. The conversations we had with Iowans across the state revealed their belief in the importance of justice, not just in words, but also in the daily interactions in their county courthouses.

In courthouses across Iowa, we are adapting our courts to draw from the strengths of each community to establish a better process of justice. Every day, our juvenile court officers help the youthful offenders in their communities to accept responsibility for their actions, address problems, and create opportunities for their futures. Every day, clerks of court, court administrators, and court attendants help people in their communities navigate through the justice system. Every day, judges and magistrates in their communities make thousands of decisions in an effort to deliver justice that is fair to all. Every day, we all work to find better ways for our court system to provide better services for people in our communities.

Community support and involvement is vital when seeking justice because a crime harms both the victim of the crime and the community as a whole. This can be seen in Scott County, where a dramatic increase in car thefts by juveniles brought the community together to seek solutions. Now, instead of detention, juveniles and their families meet face-to-face with the victims, juvenile court officers, and other members of the community. It is an opportunity for the juveniles to learn how their actions harm their victims and all of Scott County.

In the Auto Theft Accountability Program, a juvenile court officer will review the case of a first-time juvenile offender facing charges of first- or second-degree theft or operating a motor vehicle without an owner's consent. If the juvenile fits the program's criteria, the case will be forwarded to the Scott County Attorney's Office for admission to the program. During the face-to-face meeting, the participants discuss the harm that has been done and create a plan for how the juvenile is to repair that harm. The youth offender will have three months to complete the plan. A recent plan included the juvenile paying for the damage and mowing the victim's lawn and doing other yard work for 12 weeks. In Scott County, the community and courts work together to provide justice to juveniles, victims, and the community as a whole.

In Waterloo, community leaders recognized that providing timely justice to individuals with probation violations was becoming more difficult. Congested probation dockets caused significant delays in scheduling, which resulted in long jail stays in an overcrowded jail. Judges, probation officers, the county attorney, and the public defender's office worked together to address the problem. They developed two innovative programs: Fast Track and Swift, Certain, and Fair. Both programs are for defendants with technical or simple misdemeanor probation violations.

In both programs, after a probation violation, the person is taken into immediate custody and has a hearing the next morning. At the hearing, the judge orders consistent, immediate sanctions. The outcomes we have seen so far are promising, with reductions in the jail population, a shorter wait time for a hearing, and a reduction of the number of people with repeat violations. Of the 186 people participating in the first year of Fast Track, only 13 appeared more than once. More than 300 individuals have participated since 2017. Those individuals were able to return to their families and jobs. In Waterloo, the community came together to find better ways for our court system to provide consistent and timely justice.

In Storm Lake, the Buena Vista County Family Treatment Court has formed strong bonds with community partners to find ways to better serve children and families in the child welfare system. The treatment court has the support of community providers, city and county leaders, religious organizations, as well as many, many other community partners. Because of the strong community relationships developed, participants in the family treatment court were able to share in a food distribution program that handed out 30,000 pounds of frozen food to members of the Storm Lake community. In Storm Lake, the community came together to provide justice to families threatened by parental substance abuse.

And, throughout our state, an increasing number of Iowans are using the business court for faster, less costly resolution of business disputes. That is why, with the addition of a business court judge from Humboldt and one from Des Moines, we now have five judges handling complex civil business cases in all four corners of the state. Today, I am also excited to announce that we are partnering with Drake Law School's Agricultural Law Center to spread the word to farmers about how the business court has the expertise to resolve their disputes. Farmers and business owners need and deserve fast, effective, and predictable justice.

During Chief Justice Cady's 36 years on the bench, Iowa has experienced dramatic changes in how the justice system serves our diverse communities. We continue to transform our justice system from a generalized court system into one that includes highly specialized courts designed to target and address the special needs of Iowa's communities. I hope you can see what the courts mean to your communities and how they are changing to meet the community's needs while continuing to administer justice fairly and impartially to all Iowans. Justice is more than a court system; it is what we give to each other as neighbors and Iowans.

But there is more change to come. After Governor Reynolds appoints a new member to the court, we will select a new chief justice. About that time, I will be leaving the court, and the governor will appoint another new justice to the court. While there will be many changes, I am confident that the newly composed court will serve with distinction in the tradition of Justices McGiverin, Hecht, Snell, and, of course, Chief Justice Cady.

Chief Justice Cady once told me that chief justice was the hardest job he ever had. He worked daily to cast a greater light on the accountability and progress of Iowa's justice system. Now, we in the judicial branch must continue the work Chief Justice Cady started—to promote public understanding of our justice system. We must display our shared values in a strong democracy. We must reveal the values and strengths of the institution of justice. Justice endures when we promote public trust and confidence in our court system. Justice endures when Iowans in every community see the value in the

services our court system provides. Justice endures when Iowans in every community see their fair and impartial courts as essential in our democracy.

Thank you.

Acting Chief Justice David S. Wiggins was escorted from the House chamber by the committee previously appointed.

Lieutenant Governor Adam Gregg was escorted from the House chamber by the committee previously appointed.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the Joint Convention was dissolved at 10:32 a.m.

Speaker Grassley in the chair at 10:41 a.m.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2018, by Hunter, a bill for an act concerning review of disapproval of applications for liquor control licenses and permits by local authorities.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2019, by Salmon, a bill for an act establishing a conditional exception to pre-use inspection requirements for new school buses.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2020, by Olson, Jones, and Mitchell, a bill for an act relating to radio operators blackout special registration plates for motor vehicles.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2021, by Salmon, a bill for an act rescinding an amendment to an administrative rule of the department of education requiring the installation of three-point lap-shoulder belts in all new school buses.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2022, by Hite, a bill for an act concerning fees charged for examining and copying public records relating to claims for veterans benefits.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Veterans Affairs**.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

Mascher of Johnson introduced to the House, former legislator, Jean Lloyd-Jones.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 774, previously referred to committee on **Appropriations** was rereferred to committee on **Public Safety**.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 167 Reassigned

State Government: Mitchell, Chair; Bacon and Konfrst.

House File 298 Reassigned

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Ehlert and Fry.

House File 424

State Government: Thompson, Chair; Bergan and Derry.

House File 587

State Government: Bergan, Chair; Deyoe and Nielsen.

House File 662 Reassigned

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Paustian and Wilburn.

House File 671 Reassigned

Judiciary: Gustafson, Chair; Hite and Wilburn.

House File 697 Reassigned

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Derry and Mitchell.

House File 705 Reassigned

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Derry and Mitchell.

House File 706 Reassigned

Judiciary: Mitchell, Chair; Gustafson and B. Meyer.

Senate File 305 Reassigned

Human Resources: Best, Chair; Ehlert and Osmundson.

Senate File 458

Judiciary: Jones, Chair; Konfrst and Mitchell.

Senate File 576 Reassigned

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Best and Wilburn.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 58 Reassigned**

State Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Nielsen and Sexton.

House Study Bill 77 Reassigned

Judiciary: Bergan, Chair; Jacobsen and Konfrst.

House Study Bill 176 Reassigned

Judiciary: Bergan, Chair; Jacobsen and Konfrst.

House Study Bill 211 Reassigned

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Jacobsen and Wolfe.

House Study Bill 215 Reassigned

Human Resources: Bacon, Chair; Ehlert and Moore.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 10:44 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, January 16, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fourth Calendar Day - Fourth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, January 16, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:33 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Russ Leeper, Saint John's Evangelical Lutheran Church, Charles City. He was the guest of Prichard of Floyd.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Zoe Card, Minority Leader's Page, from Pella.

The Journal of Wednesday, January 15, 2020, was approved.

COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

Salmon of Black Hawk moved that a committee of three be appointed to notify the Senate that the House was ready to receive it in Joint Convention.

The motion prevailed and the Speaker appointed as such committee Salmon of Black Hawk, Chair; Holt of Crawford and Donahue of Linn.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

Sorensen of Adair introduced to the House, former legislator, Steve Olson.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

The House stood at ease at 8:39 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 9:58 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE TO NOTIFY THE SENATE

Salmon of Black Hawk, Chair of the committee appointed to notify the Senate that the House was ready to receive it in Joint Convention reported that the committee had performed its duty.

The report was accepted, and the committee discharged.

The Sergeant-at-Arms announced the arrival of the President of the Senate, the Secretary of the Senate and the Honorable members of the Senate.

The President was escorted to the Speaker's station, the Secretary to the Chief Clerk's desk and the members of the Senate were seated in the House chamber.

JOINT CONVENTION

In accordance with law and House Concurrent Resolution 103, duly adopted, the Joint Convention was called to order at 10:00 a.m., President Schneider presiding.

Senator Whitver of Polk moved that the roll call be dispensed with and that the President of the Joint Convention be authorized to declare a quorum present, which motion prevailed.

President Schneider announced a quorum present and the Joint Convention duly organized.

Senator Whitver of Polk moved that a committee of six, consisting of three members from the Senate and three members from the House of Representatives, be appointed to escort Governor Kim Reynolds to the House chamber for the Condition of the Iowa National Guard Message.

The motion prevailed and the President appointed as such committee Senators Kapucian of Benton, Sinclair of Wayne and Mathis of Linn on the part of the Senate, and Representatives Thompson of Greene, Lundgren of Dubuque and Judge of Dallas, on the part of the House.

Senator Whiter of Polk moved that a committee of six, consisting of three members from the Senate and three members from the House of

Representatives, be appointed to escort Adjutant General Ben Corell to the House chamber for the Condition of the Iowa National Guard Message.

The motion prevailed and the President appointed as such committee Senators Dawson of Pottawattamie, Breitbach of Clayton and Taylor of Henry on the part of the Senate, and Representatives Worthan of Buena Vista, Dolecheck of Ringgold and Kurtz of Lee on the part of the House.

Secretary of Agriculture, Mike Naig; State Auditor, Rob Sand; Secretary of State, Paul D. Pate; State Treasurer, Michael L. Fitzgerald and Attorney General, Tom Miller were escorted into the House chamber.

Lieutenant Governor Adam Gregg was escorted into the House chamber.

Major General Corell's family was escorted into the House chamber.

The committee waited upon Governor Kim Reynolds and escorted her to the Speaker's station.

The committee waited upon Major General Ben Corell, Adjutant General of the Iowa National Guard and escorted him to the Speaker's station.

President Schneider presented Major General Corell, Adjutant General of the Iowa National Guard. He provides command and control of more than 100 Army and Air National Guard units with approximately 9,000 assigned Soldiers and Airmen.

Major General Corell delivered the following Condition of the Iowa National Guard Message:

CONDITION OF THE IOWA NATIONAL GUARD MESSAGE

President Schneider, Speaker Grassley, Governor Reynolds, Lieutenant Governor Gregg Distinguished members of the Iowa General Assembly, state officials, friends, family and my fellow Iowans

Good morning and thank you for allowing me this opportunity to provide you an update on the Iowa National Guard.

I am honored and humbled to be here today representing the nearly 9,000 members of the Iowa National Guard.

As the newly appointed Adjutant General this is my first opportunity to stand before you, introduce myself and share my vision for the Iowa National Guard,

A vision focused on remaining always ready to defend our country and come to the aid of Iowans in their time of need.

I realize as I stand at this podium for the first time, many of you don't know me, let me share a little bit about myself:

My journey began in the Northeast Iowa farming communities of Manchester where I was born, and Strawberry Point where I grew up.

There I learned the values of hard work, respect for others and the importance of honesty and integrity – pillars of what it is to be an Iowan.

I was taught to value everyone for their individual contributions to the collective good of our community.

I am the proud grandson of a Marine combat veteran who fought for our nation in the Pacific Campaign during WWII. I am a proud son whose father served in that same Marine Corps.

I am the proud father of three sons who are all veterans of our recent conflicts overseas; 1SG Wade, SFC Travis, and SFC Tyler Corell, all who serve as Non-Commissioned Officers in the Iowa National Guard.

Forty years ago, I married my high school sweetheart Beth, who has stood by me and kept me grounded as we have made our way together on this journey. Beth and our 3 sons are here with me this morning.

I enlisted in the Iowa National Guard 34 years ago.

I have spent most of my career as a traditional citizen-soldier balancing the demands of part-time military service with the full-time responsibilities of running the family fuel distribution business in Strawberry Point, working in that community as a volunteer EMT, and helping to raise our family.

I originally enlisted for extra money and benefits; I have stayed because I find purpose and meaning in service above one's self.

This is what has driven me throughout my more than three decades of military service and during my six overseas deployments.

These experiences gave me true understanding of both the responsibility and the privilege to lead our men and women who were conducting combat operations or providing support to fellow Iowans in times of need.

My previous deployments are where I experienced firsthand the true cost of armed conflict as we dealt with the reality of taking casualties and losing Soldiers in battle.

These experiences along with a desire to set the conditions for future success of this unique organization are what motivated me to accept the Governor's request for me to lead the Iowa National Guard.

I will use my experience and insights to move the Iowa National Guard forward, ensuring that it is always ready and can always meet the demands expected of us in an uncertain world.

I stand here today because of the quality senior leaders who came before me, officers and noncommissioned officers alike who mentored me throughout my career.

Leaders like Bud Lawson, Ron Dardis and my predecessor Tim Orr, inspiring leaders who helped shape me into the leader I am today.

Leaders whose vision delivered the Iowa National Guard to be one of the finest military organizations in our nation, and a trusted resource for the citizens of Iowa.

I am grateful for their leadership, their vision and their service to our state and nation.

The mantle of leadership has now been passed to me to shape and develop the next generation of leaders.

Those who will one day lead the Iowa National Guard into its third century of service to our state and nation and make sure the Iowa National Guard is Always Ready.

To do this, we have developed and are now implementing the Iowa National Guard Strategy (2028).

This strategic plan will guide us over the next eight years to ensure that we are prepared to mobilize, deploy and execute diverse missions as part of the U.S. military or in support of the Governor for the people of Iowa.

In pursuit of this strategy, my goal is to be the most trusted organization in the state of Iowa.

We will accomplish this through careful stewardship of the resources we are provided, we will keep fully focused on individual and unit readiness.

We must ensure that we can always provide on time and capable response options for all federal and state missions we are asked to perform.

Our National Guard is a uniquely American institution. We are a locally based force from small and large communities across our state, yet we are a resource that has global reach. We exist to meet security needs both here at home and abroad.

This requires an agile and responsive organization filled with motivated and trained people, Iowans who are willing to serve for something bigger than themselves, capable of quickly adapting to uncertain future demands and requirements.

The National Guard recruiting slogan from when I first joined stated “One weekend a month, two weeks a year,” this has evolved significantly over my career.

I believe the demand signal for our Citizen Soldiers will continue to remain high as we look into the future and assess the global challenges that exist today.

As a result, the individual and organizational requirements for all services and all components has increased as we posture our military to ensure our nation is prepared to defend our way of life and our nations interests around the globe with an all-volunteer force.

As a Reserve Component of our nation’s military, these additional requirements put increased demands on our stakeholders; our service members, their families and our employers.

We must work to build and maintain trust in all that we do. It requires us to be responsible stewards of resources, this includes our people, training time, state and federal funding, and continue to provide our Iowa National Guard units quality infrastructure across the state.

The citizens of Iowa expect and depend on us to be always ready. To do so we need teams that are fit, disciplined and result-oriented.

It is not enough to just be ready, we must also be able to respond with competent, proficient and prepared military personnel wherever their mission takes them.

This requires forward-thinking leaders, properly trained personnel and adequate programs to care for our service members and their families when our forces are engaged in operations.

We are at our best when we remember we are built on a foundation of integrity, individual moral conviction and organizational character.

This requires us to match our words to our actions, which must be consistent with our military values.

Nationally, our defense strategy is changing as the United States refocuses on its ability to conduct large-scale combat operations against near peer threats after decades focused on counterinsurgency and counterterrorism.

Yet, even as this rebalancing takes shape, we continue to deploy rotational force units in support of our strategic partners and maintain a presence in or near conflict prone areas.

To meet all these requirements, the Reserve Components are increasingly relied upon by our nation to meet mission requirements abroad as well as respond to natural and manmade disasters here at home.

The strategic threats to our country are complex and diverse.

China and Russia, great power competitors, present security challenges across the full spectrum of national power, demonstrating an increasing ability to act with debilitating effects through both kinetic and non-kinetic means.

Adversaries like Iran and North Korea continue to disrupt regional security and threaten our international partners and interests.

As we work to ensure we remain ready to meet these evolving threats, there are certain realities that influence our actions in the Iowa National Guard.

Strength readiness, keeping our positions filled with quality members is a critical task that must be at the forefront of everything we do.

There are challenges in meeting our readiness goals as we compete with a robust job market and face competition from other services, border-state National Guards and out of state educational incentives.

In order to succeed in this area we must ensure that young Iowans who want to serve choose to remain in Iowa and be a part of the Iowa National Guard.

Thanks to the funding that this legislative body has provided, we remain competitive with our state educational incentives for our members who want to stay in the state and pursue their educational goals at Iowa colleges and universities.

Equipment modernization must continue to accelerate across our military, including the National Guard, as peer threats and evolving technology expand across multiple fronts including the cyber and space domains.

In order to remain competitive in this evolving environment and best position the Iowa National Guard for future success;

I have identified Four Lines of Effort that will focus our efforts and drive the Iowa National Guard's strategic objectives for the next eight years.

First, we must Field a Competent and Ready Force.

Second, we must maintain the right Force Structure in Iowa.

Third, we must develop and maintain Sustainable Infrastructure across the state.

Lastly, we must Take Care of our Service Members, our Employees and our families.

I will elaborate on these Lines of Effort for you:

We must remain focused on fielding a competent and ready force. This ensures our ability to support missions abroad and meet security needs here in the homeland.

Success in this area requires us to anticipate future state and national requirements while developing plans that increase predictability for our members, our families and employers.

I define success as achieving or exceeding all directed unit readiness objectives across all our formations in the Iowa National Guard.

These defined and measured benchmarks are reported and evaluated quarterly giving us a clear and precise picture of the readiness of our organization.

It is critical that we seek out and leverage opportunities that enhance our service member's military trained skills.

We must develop new partnerships as we maintain the relationships we already have with other state agencies and businesses across the state.

We are proud of our established partnerships with sister departments within the State of Iowa and other community partners across the state.

These partnerships are focused on STEM initiatives, specifically in the area of cyber security and cyber defense.

With more than 100 different military specialties available in the Iowa National Guard, many of which fall into STEM related career fields, we contribute directly to the State's Future Ready Iowa initiative.

Our 168th Cyber Defense Squadron based out of the Des Moines Airbase is on the front lines of Cyber Defense.

This Iowa Guard unit is a prime example of a National Guard resource we use to collaborate with other state and federal partners enhancing the state's election security efforts and protocols.

These cyber initiatives also demonstrate how our state security mission is adapting and taking steps to defend against the evolving threats we face here at home.

Being prepared to respond to floods, tornadoes, severe winter storms and similar natural threats will remain the priority focus of our homeland response efforts.

But thanks to partnerships with other state entities and businesses, our ability to quickly respond to emerging domestic threats will continue to improve.

We must ensure we are prepared to provide Iowa National Guard units identified for federal mobilizations.

Over the past several years, the number of federal mobilizations have been relatively light for Iowa National Guard units.

This will change over the course of the next 12 months as a number of Iowa Army National Guard units will mobilize and deploy.

Currently, we have about 100 Iowa National Guard Soldiers and Airmen deployed.

By this time next year we expect to see over 2,000 Iowa National Guard members deployed overseas.

They will be in support of operations in:

EUCOM,

CENTCOM,

And AFRICOM.

This will be the largest number of our personnel deployed since 2011, involving nearly 30 percent of our Iowa Army National Guard force structure.

Based on projections, these mobilizations will begin this May, continue through this summer and be completed by early next year.

Mission requirements can and do change, but this is what we are currently expecting.

I recognize the challenges these deployments represent for our service members, their families and employers, and our Iowa National Guard communities.

We have always been fortunate here in Iowa to have incredible support from across the state.

We are reassured by our previous experiences as the Iowa National Guard once again prepares to send its Soldiers and Airmen into harm's way.

We know that the people of Iowa, its elected leaders and institutions throughout the state, will again step forward to support our men and women in uniform as we execute what our nation has ask of us.

As we prepare for large scale overseas deployments, we continue to enhance our traditional domestic response capability.

This past year, Iowa Army National Guard aviation units began conducting search and rescue exercises with

Iowa Task Force One, a specialized urban search and rescue element.

We continue to work hand and hand with the Iowa Department of Emergency Management and prepare for all aspects of support to the people of Iowa.

In addition, I have committed to the Governor that the Iowa National Guard is now, and will always be ready to respond to the needs of the people of Iowa.

We will not be late to need.

We must ensure we have the right Force Structure in the Iowa National Guard.

This means we have the right size and type of units, stationed in the right location that are able to quickly respond when needed.

This effort will complement our efforts as we seek to recruit a diversified force, one that reflects our communities and the current demographics of our state.

This is a significant endeavor that requires a total team effort to achieve.

It starts with efforts to retain high quality Soldiers and Airmen who are currently serving in the Iowa National Guard.

We must maintain emphasis on our recruiting programs.

We must ensure that the Iowa National Guard continues to be the service of choice among Iowans seeking to serve their nation in uniform.

To achieve success, we must improve our efforts in the recruitment of diverse Iowa citizens.

Many of these diverse communities are unfamiliar with the benefits and opportunities of military service in the Iowa National Guard.

We must highlight all that we have to offer including financial support for post-secondary education degree programs along with skills training, and leadership development.

We have to demonstrate to our diverse communities that they are represented in leadership positions within the Iowa National Guard.

This will be a long process with deliberate management efforts to grow future leaders who are reflective of the changing demographics in our state.

Just as critical to having the right force structure in place for the future is our ability to maintain and develop sustainable infrastructure.

This means we must invest our limited financial resources now into our existing facilities that are in optimal locations as we identify future locations that offer strategic advantage as we posture ourselves for future success.

We recognize the hard reality that we will need to divest ourselves of some legacy properties and infrastructure that is no longer sustainable to maintain,

Facilities that are located where it has been proven that we can no longer recruit enough people from that local area to meet the manning requirements required to keep a facility open.

We can no longer delay the inevitable. At some point very soon, we will start the process to close select Army Guard facilities within the state that no longer can support the needs of the Iowa National Guard.

We have initiated a careful and deliberate process to assess the future viability of all of our facilities measured against the needs of future force structure requirements and forecasted state demographic patterns.

As we start this process we will work closely with affected communities, along with local and state leadership in a transparent process to minimize the impacts of any future facility closures.

In April, we will dedicate our state of the art Davenport Readiness Center, the newest military facility in the state.

This \$23-million dollar, federally funded project, represents the culmination of many years of work to replace the historic but outdated Davenport Brady Street Armory which was one of our oldest active facilities.

This project was made possible through our great partnership with the Davenport Community School District.

Thanks to this partnership along with the support of state and federal resources, we have replaced an obsolete facility with a new modern facility that accommodates multiple units.

This investment provides the necessary space to store and maintain equipment and supports the training requirements for the future of the Iowa National Guard.

As we look to the future, we believe a Readiness Center located south of the Des Moines metro area will maximize opportunities presented by shifting demographics within the state.

We are currently in discussions for the potential development of a multi-use facility between the Iowa National Guard and the City of West Des Moines.

Completion of this project would posture the Iowa National Guard for future success and provide us with ready access to multiple interstate and state highway systems, as well as the proposed Des Moines railroad transfer station providing a quick and streamlined response capability for state emergencies and federal deployments.

The most critical component of everything we do in the Iowa National Guard is taking care of our service members, our employees and our families.

Without our people, we do not exist. Military service places significant demands and stress on our members and their families.

We separate them for days, weeks and at times, more than a year.

We send them into harm's way with the mission to protect and defend all that we hold dear.

They do so willingly because they believe in something greater than their own self-interest and find purpose and meaning in serving their state and nation.

In return, we owe them an organizational culture that recognizes and values their individual contributions and sacrifices.

We must continue to invest in programs and activities that increase our service members' safety, security and resiliency.

The Iowa National Guard is a reflection of our society and is not immune from the challenges we face in today's complex environment.

Like all organizations made up of people, we must deal with disciplinary issues stemming from substance abuse, sexual harassment and sexual misconduct.

Left unchecked, these oftentimes-interrelated problems can weaken an organization's morale and undermine its ability to accomplish its mission.

I am committed to maintaining the trust of those we serve and what is expected of us by our citizens.

I hold everyone – Leaders, Soldiers, Airmen and civilian employees alike to a standard of conduct that represents a professional organization that cares about each other.

Those that cross the line will be held accountable.

Taking care of our service members also includes frank and open discussions about a national issue that impacts the military including the Iowa National Guard and that is the issue of suicide.

This is not just a military or National Guard issue, this is an issue within our society.

Suicide is the 9th leading cause of death in Iowa. As a state, our statistics are higher than the national average.

The Iowa National Guard is a family, we grieve anytime we lose one of our own, and it is devastating when we learn it was by their own hand.

I will spare no resource in educating our Soldiers, Airmen and our families on prevention and intervention to ensure our service members get the help they need, when they need it.

As I close, I highlight for you the Iowa National Guard is among the oldest institutions in the state, first formed during territorial times.

Over the last 181 years, thousands of Iowans have proudly served their state and our nation through service in the Iowa National Guard.

The Iowa National Guard has always been there, we proudly stand today Always Ready to respond.

We must at all times remain worthy of the confidence bestowed on us by the people of Iowa.

We will continue to work each and every day to earn and keep that trust.

With your continued support and the support of Iowans everywhere,

We are always ready – warriors, citizens, neighbors – working together to strengthen the future of Iowa.

I can confirm to each of you today,

The Condition of the Iowa National Guard is strong.

Thank you!

Major General Corell was escorted from the House chamber by the committee previously appointed.

Governor Reynolds was escorted from the House chamber by the committee previously appointed.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the Joint Convention was dissolved at 10:36 a.m.

Speaker Grassley in the chair at 10:40 a.m.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2023, by Jones, Wheeler, Wills, Sorensen, Hite, and Lohse, a bill for an act exempting from the computation of the individual and corporate state income taxes broadband grants received by communications service providers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2024, by Hagenow, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa educational savings plan trust by permitting the use of funds for certain beneficiaries to attend out-of-state elementary or secondary schools, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2025, by M. Smith, a bill for an act relating to health professional practice requirements.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2026, by Brink, a bill for an act relating to requirements for physicians providing services at an ambulatory surgical center, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2027, by Moore, a bill for an act relating to provisions governing the licensure of electricians and electrical contractors.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2028, by Jones, a bill for an act providing for the issuance and display of one motor vehicle registration plate, including by requiring a study on other means available to identify motor vehicles from the front, and including transition provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2029, by Hagenow, a bill for an act relating to automobile insurance required for transportation network company drivers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2030, by Wills, a bill for an act relating to public assistance program oversight and verification of income eligibility.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2031, by Kerr, a bill for an act relating to the licensed health professional member of a local board of health.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2032, by Fisher, a bill for an act requiring the use of lighted headlamps on motor vehicles at all times of operation, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2033, by Kerr, a bill for an act requiring a road or street to meet certain requirements prior to a transfer of jurisdiction from the department of transportation to a county board of supervisors.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2034, by Lohse, a bill for an act relating to special elections to fill vacant city, county, and school board offices.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2035, by Zumbach, a bill for an act relating to limits on the compensation of county supervisors.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2036, by Holt, a bill for an act allowing certain emergency medical care providers to obtain a professional permit to carry weapons.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2037, by Wills, a bill for an act relating to lamps and clothing required for the operation of bicycles, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2038, by Salmon, a bill for an act providing for an exception to motor vehicle window tint limitations for persons with certain medical conditions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2039, by Wolfe, a bill for an act regarding the suspension of a person's driver's license for failure to pay a fine, penalty, surcharge, or court costs associated with a motor vehicle violation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2040, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to the overtaking and passing of bicycles by motor vehicles, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 502 State Government

Relating to setoff requirements concerning certain winnings on wagers.

H.S.B. 503 State Government

Concerning the determination of fees charged for examining and copying public records.

H.S.B. 504 State Government

Relating to the definition of meeting under the open meetings law.

H.S.B. 505 State Government

Relating to public notice requirements under the open meetings law.

H.S.B. 506 State Government

Relating to governmental bodies and advisory bodies under the open meetings law.

H.S.B. 507 State Government

Relating to the applicability of beverage container control provisions, handling fees, and acceptance of beverage containers, making penalties applicable, and providing effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 508 State Government

Appropriating certain tax receipts concerning internet fantasy sports contests and sports wagering to the emergency medical services fund.

H.S.B. 509 State Government

Relating to county emergency medical services by modifying provisions relating to the duration of authority for optional taxes for emergency medical services.

H.S.B. 510 State Government

Relating to the elimination of surgical smoke by hospitals and freestanding ambulatory surgical centers.

H.S.B. 511 State Government

Relating to civil liability of sports officials, providing criminal penalties for assault of sports officials, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 512 State Government

Relating to wagering taxes imposed on promotional play receipts.

H.S.B. 513 Commerce

Relating to the American law institute's restatement of the law, liability insurance.

H.S.B. 514 Commerce

Relating to specified fees and notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions.

H.S.B. 515 Commerce

Relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies.

H.S.B. 516 Commerce

Extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 517 Commerce

Relating to the disposal and acquisition of city water utilities, including at-risk systems.

H.S.B. 518 Judiciary

Relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners.

H.S.B. 519 Judiciary

Prohibiting counties and cities from banning employers from requesting from an applicant information related to the applicant's criminal history.

H.S.B. 520 State Government

Prohibiting persons from simultaneously holding more than one elective office and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 521 State Government

Relating to a disinterment permit for human and cremated remains.

H.S.B. 522 State Government

Relating to midwife licensure, providing for fees, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 523 Judiciary

Relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 524 Judiciary

Relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 525 Transportation

Removing the requirement to obtain a permit for vehicles or combinations of vehicles of excessive size transporting divisible loads of hay, straw, stover, or bagged livestock bedding that meet certain width, height, and length requirements.

H.S.B. 526 Transportation

Relating to motor vehicles, including the surrender or transfer of registration plates and cards to a county treasurer, documentary fees charged by motor vehicle dealers, and motor vehicle franchise obligations.

H.S.B. 527 Transportation

Creating a special minor's farm driver's license, and providing penalties.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 108**

Judiciary: Gustafson, Chair; Konfrst and Paustian.

House File 218 Reassigned

Natural Resources: Baxter, Chair; Osmundson and Thede.

House File 2001

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Moore and Sunde.

Senate File 198 Reassigned

Natural Resources: Baxter, Chair; Osmundson and Staed.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 10:45 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Friday, January 17, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifth Calendar Day - Fifth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, January 17, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Lohse of Polk in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Lohse of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chad Gutttau from Treynor. He was the guest of Jacobsen of Pottawattamie.

The Journal of Thursday, January 16, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2041, by Bossman, a bill for an act permitting businesses' new onsite daycare facilities or businesses' expansion of existing onsite daycare facilities to qualify as projects under the high quality jobs program, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Economic Growth**.

House File 2042, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to the information provided a patient prior to prescribing a controlled substance for acute or chronic pain.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2043, by Kressig, a bill for an act relating to civil liability of sports officials, providing criminal penalties for assault of sports officials, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2044, by Kressig, a bill for an act relating to persons authorized to certify patients to receive a medical cannabidiol registration card.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

LEADERSHIP REVISION

The Speaker announced the following changes to leadership effective January 16, 2020:

Assistant Minority Leader — McConkey replaced Breckenridge

SEAT REVISIONS

Name	Seat Assignment
Charlie McConkey	2 to 85
Wes Breckenridge	85 to 2

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

AUDITOR OF STATE

Targeted Small Business Compliance Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 11.26.

BOARD OF PAROLE

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

BOARD OF REGENTS

Transfer of Funds Regional Study Center Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.28.

Minority and Women Educators Enhancement Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.93.

Affirmative Action, Diversity, and Multicultural Accomplishment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 19B.5.

Physician Workforce Study Report, pursuant to Chapter 55.4, 2019 Iowa Acts.

COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION

Annual Report, pursuant to Chapter 172.14, 2017 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Enrich Iowa Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.57.

Condition of Iowa's Community College Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260C.14.

ACE Infrastructure Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260G.

Additional Data Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260C.14.

Senior Year Plus Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261E.3.

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Outdoor Recreation Trust Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 461.22.

Quarterly Expenditure Report, pursuant to Chapter 131.14, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC DEFENSE

Offences Reported to Civilian Law Enforcement Authorities Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 29B.116B.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Taxation and Exemption of Computers Task Force Report, pursuant to Chapter 152.31, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Outdoor Recreation Trust Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 461.22.

Highway Construction Program Expenditures and Contractual Obligations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 307.12.

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

Veterans' Trust Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 35A.13.

LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY

Domestic Abuse Training Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 80B.11.

PUBLIC TELEVISION

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

STUDENT LOAN LIQUIDITY CORPORATION

Iowa Student Loan Year in Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7C.13.

On motion by Jacobsen of Pottawattamie, the House adjourned at 8:33 a.m., until 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, January 21, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Ninth Calendar Day - Sixth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, January 21, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 10:02 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor A.J. Potter, Pleasantville Baptist Church, Pleasantville. He was the guest of Thorup of Marion.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Blaine Watkins, Majority Leader's Page from Donnellson.

The Journal of Friday, January 17, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2045, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act relating to acreage limitations for the production of hemp, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2046, by Kacena, a bill for an act providing for appropriations to the statewide fire and police retirement system and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2047, by Mommsen, a bill for an act relating to credit transactions involving agricultural items, including by providing for warehouse drying or storage liens on crops and by establishing a central filing system relating to security interests in farm products, providing fees, and including applicability, contingent implementation, and effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2048, by Brink, a bill for an act relating to the statewide preschool program by modifying provisions relating to eligibility, funding, and compulsory attendance and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2049, by Kressig, R. Smith, Gaskill, Steckman, Brown-Powers, Donahue, Williams, Staed, Anderson, A. Meyer, Thede, Kurtz, McKean, Bearinger, Mascher, B. Meyer, Wolfe, Cohoon, Forbes, Winckler, Kurth, James, Hunter, Bennett, Isenhardt, Sunde, Matson, Lensing, Wessel-Kroeschell, Gaines, McConkey, Ourth, Wilburn, Running-Marquardt, Kacena, Nielsen, Ehlert, Breckenridge, and Abdul-Samad, a bill for an act requiring school employee training and protocols relating to children's mental health, requiring that suicide prevention information be included on secondary student identification cards, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2050, by Salmon, a bill for an act relating to the rate of and authority to impose school district regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment levies for certain school budget years.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2051, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to the Medicaid home and community-based services elderly waiver monthly budget maximum.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2052, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to the medical residency training state matching grants program rural rotation requirement.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2053, by Wessel-Kroeschell and James, a bill for an act relating to limitations on cost-sharing related to insurance coverage of insulin.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2054, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to the privacy of a victim of a sex offense in a criminal or civil proceeding.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2055, by Jones and Hagenow, a bill for an act relating to the inclusion of the value of child restraint systems in the partial loss calculation for specified insurance settlements of first-party automobile partial losses and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2056, by McKean, a bill for an act relating to the employment of county engineers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2057, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act creating an Iowa institute for public policy.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2058, by Wills, a bill for an act providing for repeal of the Iowa Code over a ten-year period and procedures for legislative review and reenactment.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2059, by Sexton and Klein, a bill for an act establishing daylight saving time as the official time in this state throughout the year.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2060, by Salmon, a bill for an act relating to the date for an election to authorize the issuance of certain indebtedness by school districts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2061, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act relating to registration fees paid for certain electric vehicles, including by altering the amounts of the registration fees, creating a tax credit for registration fees paid, and exempting customers of an electric utility who have paid registration fees from certain user or franchise fees, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2062, by Bossman and Mohr, a bill for an act exempting from the sales tax the purchase price of specified digital products sold to a nonprofit food bank or blood center.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 10:10 a.m., until the conclusion of the 2:00 p.m. committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 3:19 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2063, by Brink, a bill for an act relating to requirements for and restrictions on special minor's driver's licenses, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2064, by Mascher, a bill for an act appropriating moneys for counties to encourage participation in the federal decennial census and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2065, by Brink, Kerr, Maxwell, Thorup, Wills, Bacon, Mitchell, Paustian, Baxter, Sexton, Kaufmann, Huseman, Dolecheck, Sorensen, Thompson, Jeneary, Gerhold, Osmundson, Hite, Klein, Gustafson, Shipley, Best, Carlson, Moore, Bloomingdale, and A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to certain tax credits and assistance awarded

by the economic development authority under the high quality jobs program to eligible businesses, including those in rural communities, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Economic Growth**.

House File 2066, by Brink, a bill for an act relating to the licensure of ambulatory surgical centers, providing for fees to be considered repayment receipts, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2067, by A. Meyer, Brink, Lundgren, Bossman, and Fry, a bill for an act relating to child care reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2068, by Hite, a bill for an act relating to the modification of sex offender registry requirements.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2069, by Steckman, Staed, McKean, Beringer, Kurtz, Hunter, Ehlert, Donahue, Wolfe, B. Meyer, Wilburn, Anderson, Mascher, Kurth, and Derry, a bill for an act establishing a process for voter approval of a proposition to require a township to provide emergency medical service.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2070, by Mitchell, a bill for an act providing for the nonpartisan election and nomination by county primary election of county officers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2071, by Bacon, a bill for an act prohibiting the overnight parking of motor vehicles displaying certain advertisements in publicly owned park-and-ride lots, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2039, previously referred to committee on **Transportation** was rereferred to committee on **Judiciary**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 528 Judiciary

Relating to the criminal offenses of theft in the third degree and robbery in the first degree and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 529 Judiciary

Relating to the resignations of registered agents serving certain business entities.

H.S.B. 530 Agriculture

Exempting certain farmers and hired help operating a truck tractor from the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur.

H.S.B. 531 Agriculture

Regarding driving privileges of persons issued a special minor's driver's license who reside or are employed on a farm, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 532 Human Resources

Relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program.

H.S.B. 533 Human Resources

Relating to the practice of pharmacy, and providing for a repeal.

H.S.B. 534 Human Resources

Relating to the definition of young adult for purposes of participation in the preparation for adult living program.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 12 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 20 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 42 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 119 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 170 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 515

Public Safety: Fisher, Chair; Jeneary and Olson.

House File 530

Natural Resources: Baxter, Chair; Breckenridge and Osmundson.

House File 658

Public Safety: Worthan, Chair; Kacena and Paustian.

House File 717

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Kurth and Salmon.

House File 2005

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Jacoby and Jones.

House File 2008

Human Resources: Moore, Chair; Anderson and Bergan.

House File 2023

Commerce: Lohse, Chair; Mitchell and Williams.

House File 2026

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; Moore and Wilburn.

House File 2031

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; Best and Brown-Powers.

House File 2051

Human Resources: Osmundson, Chair; Derry and Salmon.

House File 2052

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Anderson and Moore.

House File 2062

Ways and Means: Hein, Chair; Hagenow and Jacoby.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 502**

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Bossman and Cohoon.

House Study Bill 503

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Jacobsen and Lensing.

House Study Bill 504

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Bloomingdale and Lensing.

House Study Bill 505

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Bloomingdale and Lensing.

House Study Bill 506

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Bloomingdale and Lensing.

House Study Bill 507

State Government: Bossman, Chair; Derry, Lensing, Moore and Sexton.

House Study Bill 508

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Anderson and Thompson.

House Study Bill 509

State Government: Thompson, Chair; Bloomingdale, Kaufmann, Nielsen and Steckman.

House Study Bill 510

State Government: Lundgren, Chair; Bacon and Hunter.

House Study Bill 511

State Government: Moore, Chair; Donahue and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 512

State Government: Mitchell, Chair; Cohoon and Lundgren.

House Study Bill 513

Commerce: Lohse, Chair; Jacobsen and B. Meyer.

House Study Bill 514

Commerce: Mohr, Chair; Kressig and Wills.

House Study Bill 515

Commerce: Jacobsen, Chair; Judge and Lohse.

House Study Bill 516

Commerce: Sorensen, Chair; Lohse and McConkey.

House Study Bill 517

Commerce: Bloomingdale, Chair; Lundgren and Williams.

House Study Bill 518

Judiciary: Klein, Chair; Kaufmann and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House Study Bill 520

State Government: Deyoe, Chair; Sexton and Steckman.

House Study Bill 521

State Government: Lensing, Chair; Bacon and Deyoe.

House Study Bill 522

State Government: Moore, Chair; Bloomingdale and Konfrst.

House Study Bill 523

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Klein and Olson.

House Study Bill 524

Judiciary: Paustian, Chair; Gustafson and Konfrst.

House Study Bill 525

Transportation: Worthan, Chair; Cohoon and Hinson.

House Study Bill 526

Transportation: Lohse, Chair; Hinson and Sunde.

House Study Bill 527

Transportation: Huseman, Chair; Thorup and Williams.

House Study Bill 532

Human Resources: Best, Chair; Matson and Osmundson.

House Study Bill 533

Human Resources: Bacon, Chair; Brink and Forbes.

House Study Bill 534

Human Resources: Bergan, Chair; Dolecheck and Sunde.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.C.R. 104, by Wills, a concurrent resolution affirming the sovereignty of the states under the Tenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 3:21 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, January 22, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Tenth Calendar Day - Seventh Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, January 22, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Mark Doss, State Director of Capitol Ministries of Iowa. He was the guest of Baxter of Hancock.

The National Anthem was sung by Miss Iowa 2019, Emily Tinsman from Bettendorf. She was the guest of Mohr of Scott.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Yasmin Aguilar-Rosales, Page from Iowa City.

The Journal of Tuesday, January 21, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2072, by Salmon, a bill for an act prohibiting the adoption of statewide core social studies standards by the state board of education and providing for related matters.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2073, by Breckenridge, a bill for an act relating to the Medicaid institutions for mental diseases waiver, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2074, by Kacena, a bill for an act requiring negotiation regarding membership dues deductions for employee organizations in public employee collective bargaining, providing related procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2075, by Kacena, Anderson, Wilburn, Hall, Konfrst, Matson, Breckenridge, Steckman, Ourth, Williams, Staed, McKean, Bearinger, Kurtz, Hunter, Ehlert, Lensing, Winckler, Donahue, M. Smith, Wolfe, B. Meyer, Mascher, Kurth, R. Smith, Nielsen, Isenhardt, Abdul-Samad, Kressig, Derry, Sunde, Gaines, McConkey, Brown-Powers, James, Gaskill, Prichard, and Oldson, a bill for an act relating to employee organization elections administered by the public employment relations board and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2076, by Kacena, a bill for an act increasing the state minimum hourly wage and providing for subsequent increases by the same percentage as the increase in federal social security benefits.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2077, by Kacena, Staed, Gaskill, Bearinger, Kurtz, Hunter, Ehlert, Donahue, M. Smith, Breckenridge, Wilburn, Mascher, and Abdul-Samad, a bill for an act requiring the use of safety belts or safety harnesses by passengers of motor vehicles, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2078, by Kacena, Staed, Breckenridge, Gaskill, Bearinger, Kurtz, Hunter, Ehlert, Winckler, Donahue, Wilburn, Mascher, Kurth, and Abdul-Samad, a bill for an act relating to the use of an electronic communication device while driving, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2079, by Hanusa, Sieck, McConkey, Maxwell, Gerhold, Breckenridge, Jeneary, B. Meyer, A. Meyer, Jacobsen, Hagenow, Gassman, Bacon, Ourth, Hinson, Kacena, McKean, Kerr, Osmundson, Wheeler, Kaufmann, Running-Marquardt, and Moore, a bill for an act relating to flying our colors special registration plates.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2080, by Steckman, Staed, Thede, Hunter, Ehlert, Lensing, Donahue, M. Smith, Forbes, Cohoon, Wolfe, B. Meyer, Konfrst, Hall, Wilburn, Anderson, Mascher, Kacena, Kurth, R. Smith, Abdul-Samad, and Derry, a bill for an act relating to cigarettes, tobacco products, and vapor products, including the taxation of such products, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2081, by Breckenridge, a bill for an act relating to the office of the long-term care ombudsman, and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2082, by Lohse, a bill for an act creating the new resident and new graduate tax credits, available against the individual income tax, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Economic Growth**.

House File 2083, by Bossman, a bill for an act providing businesses with income, franchise, moneys and credits, and gross premiums tax credits for providing child care benefits to employees of the business, and including applicability date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Economic Growth**.

House File 2084, by Lundgren, Wills, and Fry, a bill for an act relating to the adoption of the interstate curing disease compact.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2085, by Jeneary, a bill for an act relating to newborn screening for tongue tie and lip tie.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2086, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act requiring the state medical director to provide a written certification to certain patients applying for a medical cannabidiol registration card.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2087, by Hunter, a bill for an act relating to straight party voting, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2088, by Jones, a bill for an act relating to teacher licensure renewal requirements and professional development activities for practitioners.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

COMMITTEE REVISION

The Speaker announced the following change to committee assignments effective immediately:

Education Appropriations Subcommittee
Staed replaced McConkey

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:45 a.m., until the conclusion of the 2:00 p.m. committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 3:12 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2089, by Moore, a bill for an act relating to continuity of care and nonmedical switching by health carriers, health benefit plans, and utilization review organizations, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2090, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to seizure disorders and establishing certain requirements for school districts, accredited nonpublic schools, and the department of education, and providing immunity from criminal and civil liability for certain persons who provide related assistance or services.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2091, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to the permissible use of funding from the property tax equity and relief fund.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2092, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to the personal needs allowance for certain Medicaid members.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2093, by Lohse, a bill for an act relating to smoking in a motor vehicle with a child present and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2094, by Mitchell, a bill for an act adopting the psychology interjurisdictional compact.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2095, by Mascher, a bill for an act creating a compact with certain other states to phase out corporate welfare.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2096, by B. Meyer, a bill for an act providing for paid family leave for state employees.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2097, by A. Meyer and Sunde, a bill for an act requiring the installation and maintenance of adult changing stations at highway rest areas.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2098, by Mommsen, a bill for an act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging under certain circumstances.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2099, by Bergan, a bill for an act authorizing the abatement of property taxes owed on the homestead of a disabled veteran and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2100, by Gassman, a bill for an act requiring the inclusion of pole vaulting in event schedules for high school track meets.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2101, by Gassman, a bill for an act relating to consumer-directed attendant care providers under a Medicaid home and community-based services waiver.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2102, by Sorensen, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a bow and arrow catfish-taking license, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2103, by Salmon, Brown-Powers, McConkey, Jeneary, Kurth, Kressig, Williams, Staed, Winckler, McKean, Anderson, Steckman, A. Meyer, Moore, Lohse, Gassman, Gaines, Bacon, Ehlert, Donahue, Jacoby, Sunde, Thompson, Lundgren, R. Smith, Wessel-Kroeschell, Derry, Abdul-Samad, Nielsen, Kacena, Mascher, Wilburn, Breckenridge, Judge, Hunter, Lensing, M. Smith, Forbes, Cohoon, B. Meyer, and Ourth, a bill for an act exempting from the state sales tax the purchase price of tangible personal property or specified digital products sold and services furnished to a nonprofit food bank.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

SPONSOR ADDED

House Files 201 and 2040 – Derry of Polk

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 535 Human Resources

Modifying duties to prescribe practices and procedures for implementation of a preapplication screening assessment program relating to the involuntary commitment or treatment of a person with a substance-related disorder.

H.S.B. 536 Human Resources

Relating to the behavior analyst grants program.

H.S.B. 537 Judiciary

Relating to judicial motions and causes of action arising from a person's participation in matters of public significance.

H.S.B. 538 Judiciary

Providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act.

H.S.B. 539 Judiciary

Creating the criminal offense of defrauding a drug or alcohol test in a private-sector workplace for employment purposes and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 540 Commerce

Relating to the construction, ownership, and maintenance of electric transmission lines.

H.S.B. 541 Transportation

Disqualifying a person convicted of human trafficking involving the use of a commercial motor vehicle from operating a commercial motor vehicle for life.

H.S.B. 542 Transportation

Providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 543 Commerce

Relating to health insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, and providing for fees.

H.S.B. 544 Commerce

Relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 19 Reassigned**

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 22 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 24 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 25 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 26 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 28 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 29 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 30 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 64 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 90 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 91 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 109 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 146 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 147 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 155 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 163 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 172 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 177 Reassigned

Labor: Upmeyer, Chair; Dolecheck and Hunter.

House File 238 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 254 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 255 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 278 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 370 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Kurth.

House File 416 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 438 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 462 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 463 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 464 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 465 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 476 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Zumbach, Chair; Hagenow and James.

House File 498 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 527 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 540 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Isenhardt.

House File 693 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hein, Chair; Hite and Nielsen.

House File 751 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 770 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2003

Transportation: Thorup, Chair; Kressig and Lohse.

House File 2004

Transportation: A. Meyer, Chair; Huseman and Judge.

House File 2009

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Best and Brown-Powers.

House File 2019

Transportation: Sieck, Chair; Landon and B. Meyer.

House File 2020

Transportation: Landon, Chair; Sieck and R. Smith.

House File 2022

Veterans Affairs: Hite, Chair; Gaines and Thompson.

House File 2026 Reassigned

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; Moore and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House File 2030

Human Resources: Lundgren, Chair; Salmon and Wilburn.

House File 2032

Transportation: Lohse, Chair; Isenhardt and Maxwell.

House File 2033

Transportation: Worthan, Chair; Kurtz and A. Meyer.

House File 2034

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Derry and Sexton.

House File 2035

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Derry and Jacobsen.

House File 2036

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Kacena and Klein.

House File 2038

Transportation: Landon, Chair; A. Meyer and Williams.

House File 2046

Appropriations: Worthan, Chair; Brink and Hall.

House File 2059

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Mitchell and Nielsen.

House File 2060

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Donahue and Mitchell.

House File 2064

Appropriations: Landon, Chair; Mascher and Wills.

House File 2066

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; Bacon and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House File 2067

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Ehlert and Fry.

House File 2070

State Government: Mitchell, Chair; Deyoe and Hunter.

House File 2073

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Brown-Powers and Lundgren.

House File 2081

Appropriations: Fry, Chair; Deyoe and Forbes.

House File 2084

Human Resources: Lundgren, Chair; Derry and Fry.

House File 2085

Human Resources: Salmon, Chair; Best and Matson.

House File 2088

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Donahue and Kaufmann.

Senate File 114

Public Safety: Jeneary, Chair; Kressig and Paustian.

Senate File 388 Reassigned

Transportation: Worthan, Chair; Huseman and Konfrst.

Senate File 436 Reassigned

Transportation: Lohse, Chair; Best and Cohoon.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 36 Reassigned

Transportation: Hinson, Chair; Carlson and Kurtz.

House Study Bill 161 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Brown-Powers and Hein.

House Study Bill 243 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Maxwell, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

House Study Bill 535

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Bergan and Ehlert.

House Study Bill 536

Human Resources: Osmundson, Chair; A. Meyer and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House Study Bill 541

Transportation: Thorup, Chair; Maxwell and Sunde.

House Study Bill 542

Transportation: Maxwell, Chair; B. Meyer and Thorup.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendation has been received and is on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 501), relating to insurance coverage for prescription insulin drugs.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** January 22, 2020.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 3:16 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, January 23, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Eleventh Calendar Day - Eighth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, January 23, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:31 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Reverend Dr. Benjamin Bell, Jr., Fatherhood Director of the John R. Grubb YMCA of Des Moines. He was the guest of Abdul-Samad of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jack Ball, Page from Bloomfield.

The Journal of Wednesday, January 22, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2104, by Gassman, a bill for an act creating a special minor's farm driver's license, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2105, by Shipley, a bill for an act eliminating acreage limitations for the production of hemp, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2106, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act making an appropriation to support activities and events celebrating this state's one hundredth anniversary of the state park system.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2107, by Sorensen, a bill for an act relating to the development and utilization of high-speed electronic transmission mediums.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2108, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act relating to the provision of the daily rate for supported community living services provided to Medicaid members in the family home.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2109, by Lundgren, a bill for an act establishing a charity beer and wine event permit.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2110, by Mohr, Paustian, Thede, Kurth, Mommsen, and Winckler, a bill for an act establishing the quad cities regional metropolitan authority and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2111, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act providing for the powers of commissioners of soil and water conservation districts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2112, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of utility meters and equipment used to facilitate telecommunications service, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2113, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to prohibitions on the actions of an authority under the Iowa cell siting Act.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2114, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to the applicability of the Iowa cell siting Act to certain political subdivisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2115, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to the percentage of students who are residents of Iowa or who attend postsecondary institutions in Iowa and are accepted to graduate and postgraduate studies at the state university of Iowa college of medicine or college of dentistry.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2116, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act establishing a reduced-fee lunch assistance fund to provide moneys to educational facilities to further reduce the cost of reduced-fee lunches for eligible children and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2117, by Bergan, a bill for an act relating to the development of an implementation plan for a centralized direct care workforce database.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2118, by Wheeler, a bill for an act relating to protections for certain potential recipients of anatomical gifts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2119, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to the use of an electronic communication device in a voice-activated or hands-free mode while driving, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2093, previously referred to committee on **Human Resources** was rereferred to committee on **Judiciary**.

The Speaker announced that House File 2115, previously referred to committee on **Education** was rereferred to committee on **Human Resources**.

SPONSORS ADDED

House Files 2076, 2079, 2080, 2086, 2087 and 2091 – Gaskill of Wapello
House File 2098 – Wolfe of Clinton

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

ASSOCIATION OF IOWA FAIRS

Economic Impact and Statistic Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 174.10.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Online Learning in Iowa Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.7.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS

Sex Offender Research Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216A.139.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Obstetrical Care Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 135.11.

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

Agency Narrative State Performance Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 7E.3.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Iowa Energy Center Report, pursuant to Chapter 169.35, 2017 Iowa Acts.

Industrial New Jobs Training Program Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260E.7.

Targeted Small Business Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15.108.

Renewable Chemical Production Tax Credits Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15.320.

ETHICS AND CAMPAIGN DISCLOSURE BOARD

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

LOTTERY AUTHORITY

Quarterly Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 99G.7.

PUBLIC INFORMATION BOARD

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 23.6.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 545 State Government

Relating to the administration of elections, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 546 State Government

Relating to the qualifications necessary for an applicant for licensure as a professional engineer.

H.S.B. 547 Veterans Affairs

Relating to certificate of eligibility affidavits for admission to the veterans home.

H.S.B. 548 Veterans Affairs

Relating to the military code and duty performed by a member of the United States coast guard.

H.S.B. 549 Veterans Affairs

Requiring certain disclosures related to veterans' benefit services, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 550 Veterans Affairs

Concerning funding authority for training, education, and related expenses of county veteran service officers.

H.S.B. 551 State Government

Concerning benefits under the municipal fire and police retirement system.

H.S.B. 552 State Government

Relating to gambling regulation and enforcement activities of the division of criminal investigation of the department of public safety.

H.S.B. 553 State Government

Relating to the use of fire fighting foam containing certain substances, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 554 State Government

Relating to regulation of foods sold by minors.

H.S.B. 555 State Government

Relating to employment policies for persons seeking elective office, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 556 State Government

Providing that a licensed veterinarian is immune from administrative, civil, or criminal liability in investigations or proceedings involving the mistreatment of animals.

H.S.B. 557 State Government

Establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 2014**

Natural Resources: Shipley, Chair; Fisher and Ourth.

House File 2071

Transportation: Huseman, Chair; Konfrst and Thorup.

House File 2079

Transportation: A. Meyer, Chair; Maxwell and Sunde.

House File 2080

Ways and Means: Hein, Chair; Hagenow and Jacoby.

House File 2098

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Mitchell and Wolfe.

House File 2099

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Bloomingdale and Gaskill.

House File 2103

Ways and Means: Hein, Chair; Brown-Powers and Hagenow.

Senate File 537 Reassigned

Natural Resources: Jeneary, Chair; Steckman and Zumbach.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 36 Reassigned

Transportation: Worthan, Chair; Kurtz and Landon.

House Study Bill 530

Agriculture: Maxwell, Chair; Klein and Williams.

House Study Bill 531

Agriculture: Kerr, Chair; Klein and Williams.

House Study Bill 543

Commerce: Jacobsen, Chair; Deyoe, Lundgren, Nielsen and Oldson.

House Study Bill 547

Veterans Affairs: Thompson, Chair; Ourth and Wills.

House Study Bill 548

Veterans Affairs: Wills, Chair; Brown-Powers and Wheeler.

House Study Bill 549

Veterans Affairs: Hagenow, Chair; Breckenridge and Gustafson.

House Study Bill 550

Veterans Affairs: Wheeler, Chair; Kurth and Thompson.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:38 a.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, January 27, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifteenth Calendar Day - Ninth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, January 27, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:06 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Reverend Charles Adams, Saint Thomas More Catholic Church, Coralville. He was the guest of Jacoby of Johnson.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Olivia Brown, Page from West Des Moines.

The Journal of Thursday, January 23, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2120, by Prichard, a bill for an act relating to protocols and school employee training relating to suicide prevention and the identification of adverse childhood experiences and strategies to mitigate toxic stress response and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2121, by Ehlert, Mascher, Donahue, Cohoon, B. Meyer, Oldson, Steckman, Wilburn, Jacoby, Lensing, and McKean, a bill for an act relating to the expansion of the newborn metabolic screening panel.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2122, by Brink, a bill for an act relating to the information to be disclosed by a health care provider as part of a referral of a patient to an ambulatory surgical center, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2123, by Isenhart, a bill for an act directing the Iowa utilities board to require that energy efficiency plans and programs be developed and provided by an entity appointed by the board.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2124, by Isenhart, a bill for an act authorizing cities and counties to establish energy investment districts and district boards and providing for financing of energy investments.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2125, by Jacoby, a bill for an act establishing a child care future zones program and fund within the economic development authority to award financial assistance to eligible persons involved in child care.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Economic Growth**.

House File 2126, by Winckler and Dolecheck, a bill for an act relating to the authority of the college student aid commission to organize a nonprofit corporation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2127, by Steckman, Anderson, Kurth, B. Meyer, Mascher, Abdul-Samad, Hunter, Staed, Wessel-Kroeschell, Wilburn, Shipley, Lensing, Kressig, Gaines, McConkey, Brown-Powers, and James, a bill for an act establishing a moratorium relating to the construction, including expansion, of certain confinement feeding operation structures, requesting an interim study committee, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2128, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to the definition of infant and toddler for the purposes of child care provider reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2129, by Lohse, a bill for an act authorizing the reduction of damages payable to an unresponsive property owner in condemnation proceedings and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2130, by Salmon, a bill for an act pertaining to bona fide religious purposes under the Iowa civil rights Act of 1965.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2131, by Hunter, a bill for an act relating to the state minimum hourly wage.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2132, by Sorensen, a bill for an act requiring the natural resource commission to allow catfish to be taken by bow and arrow and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2133, by Jacoby, a bill for an act relating to the hunting of black bears, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2134, by Winckler, Wolfe, and Mommsen, a bill for an act relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, including the regulation and taxation of such products, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2135, by Hunter, a bill for an act establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2136, by Mitchell, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a grant fund and a grant program administered by the economic development authority to assist eligible out-of-state candidates residing in Puerto Rico with relocation expenses to move to the state to fill specific jobs.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2137, by Landon, a bill for an act relating to public safety, including by creating a public safety equipment fund and by providing for the display of a special registration sticker on certain motor vehicles in lieu of a front registration plate, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2138, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to insurance coverage for prescription insulin drugs.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

COMMITTEE REVISION

The Speaker announced the following change to committee assignments effective January 23, 2020:

Administration and Rules

McConkey replaced Breckenridge

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2041, previously referred to committee on **Economic Growth** was rereferred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

The Speaker announced that House File 2065, previously referred to committee on **Economic Growth** was rereferred to committee on **Appropriations**.

The Speaker announced that House Files 2082 and 2083, previously referred to committee on **Economic Growth** were rereferred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

The Speaker announced that House File 2089, previously referred to committee on **Commerce** was rereferred to committee on **Human Resources**.

SPONSORS ADDED

House File 2081 – Gaskill of Wapello
House File 2104 – McKean of Jones

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 558 Education

Relating to loan repayment for refinanced eligible loans under the rural physician loan repayment program.

H.S.B. 559 Education

Relating to the reporting of certain assessment scores by approved practitioner preparation programs and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 560 Veterans Affairs

Relating to confidentiality concerning individuals allowed a disabled veteran tax credit.

H.S.B. 561 Veterans Affairs

Establishing a veterans recovery pilot program and fund for the reimbursement of expenses related to providing hyperbaric oxygen treatment to eligible veterans.

H.S.B. 562 Ways and Means

Relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 321**

Commerce: Mohr, Chair; Mitchell and Nielsen.

House File 2002

Education: Kerr, Chair; Dolecheck and Winckler.

House File 2024

Education: Hanusa, Chair; Shipley and Staed.

House File 2048

Education: Brink, Chair; Ehlert and Hanusa.

House File 2049

Education: Moore, Chair; Gassman and Mascher.

House File 2068

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Klein and Wolfe.

House File 2089

Human Resources: Moore, Chair; Brown-Powers and Osmundson.

House File 2090

Education: A. Meyer, Chair; Fry and Gaines.

House File 2093

Judiciary: Hagenow, Chair; Jacobsen and Wolfe.

House File 2115

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Derry and Fry.

House File 2120

Education: Moore, Chair; Gassman and Mascher.

House File 2122

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; Bacon and Sunde.

House File 2128

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Ehlert and Fry.

House File 2136

State Government: Mitchell, Chair; Bossman and Hunter.

Senate File 316 Reassigned

Education: Gassman, Chair; Hanusa and James.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 519

Judiciary: Holt, Chair; Bennett and Klein.

House Study Bill 528

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Mitchell and Wolfe.

House Study Bill 529

Judiciary: Hagenow, Chair; Gustafson and B. Meyer.

House Study Bill 537

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Oldson and Paustian.

House Study Bill 538

Judiciary: Jones, Chair; Paustian and Wilburn.

House Study Bill 539

Judiciary: Klein, Chair; Bennett and Kaufmann.

House Study Bill 540

Commerce: Carlson, Chair; Deyoe and Nielsen.

House Study Bill 544

Commerce: Jacobsen, Chair; Fisher and Judge.

House Study Bill 545

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Hunter and Sexton.

House Study Bill 546

State Government: Bergan, Chair; Mitchell and Nielsen.

House Study Bill 551

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Bossman, Donahue, Mascher and Thompson.

House Study Bill 552

State Government: Thompson, Chair; Cohoon and Moore.

House Study Bill 553

State Government: Moore, Chair; Bacon and Hunter.

House Study Bill 554

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Bossman and Steckman.

House Study Bill 555

State Government: Deyoe, Chair; Bergan and Steckman.

House Study Bill 556

State Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Konfrst and Sorensen.

House Study Bill 557

State Government: Bacon, Chair; Anderson and Lundgren.

House Study Bill 558

Education: Dolecheck, Chair; Kerr and Winckler.

House Study Bill 559

Education: Moore, Chair; R. Smith and Wheeler.

House Study Bill 560

Veterans Affairs: Thompson, Chair; Brown-Powers and Wills.

House Study Bill 561

Veterans Affairs: Jeneary, Chair; M. Smith and Wheeler.

House Study Bill 562

Ways and Means: Zumbach, Chair; Jacoby and Sieck.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 1:16 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Tuesday, January 28, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Sixteenth Calendar Day - Tenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, January 28, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:32 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

“I Can Only Imagine” was sung by Bearer of Fayette.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Avery DenHartog, Page from Rock Valley.

The Journal of Monday, January 27, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House Joint Resolution 2001, by Salmon, a joint resolution rescinding all previous requests by the general assembly of the state of Iowa for the United States Congress to call a federal constitutional convention pursuant to Article V of the United States Constitution.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2139, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to information and communications provided by a school official, school employee, or school nurse relative to the religious exemption from immunization of children.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2140, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to patient education prior to the prescription of an opioid.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2141, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to information to be provided by the department of public health

regarding vaccines and information distributed through the Iowa immunization program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2142, by Jones, a bill for an act relating to the apportionment of election costs to political subdivisions and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2143, by Lundgren, a bill for an act relating to the elimination of the exemption of gaming floors from the prohibitions of the smokefree air Act.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2144, by McConkey, Kacena, Brown-Powers, B. Meyer, and Kurtz, a bill for an act providing for certain fees applicable to licensed consumer fireworks sellers, and providing funds to local fire protection providers, emergency medical service providers, and law enforcement agencies for the purchase of equipment and the training of volunteers, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2145, by Bossman, a bill for an act expanding the health care professional recruitment program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2146, by Gassman, a bill for an act relating to levee and drainage districts, by increasing the threshold of the estimated cost of a repair or improvement before a hearing is required to be conducted.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2147, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to the school budget review committee by authorizing school districts and area education agencies to request revisions to reports and data certified to the department of education or other state agencies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2148, by Konfrst and James, a bill for an act relating to the education of kindergarten through grade twelve students with characteristics of dyslexia and the preparation and licensure of practitioners who provide instruction to such students.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2149, by Hanusa, a bill for an act pertaining to instruction in water safety in schools.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2150, by Staed, McKean, Kurtz, Hunter, Winckler, Ehlert, Mascher, Donahue, Cohoon, B. Meyer, Steckman, Anderson, Gaskill, Jacoby, Abdul-Samad, and Wilburn, a bill for an act providing for a work group, study, and report on hiring practices, recruitment, and background checks for employment of school bus drivers, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2151, by Gassman, a bill for an act relating to mental health and disability services regions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2152, by Wolfe and Hite, a bill for an act relating to the expungement of domestic abuse and sexual abuse dismissals.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2153, by Mohr, a bill for an act increasing the scheduled fine for writing, sending, or viewing an electronic message while driving on a highway within two hundred feet of a school.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2154, by Mohr, a bill for an act relating to child sexual abuse and child sexual assault awareness and prevention.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2155, by Mohr, a bill for an act providing for specified limitations regarding fees and fines applicable to alarm system contractors, and providing an effective date.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2156, by Sexton and Lensing, a bill for an act relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2157, by Jeneary, a bill for an act relating to requirements for licensees under the purview of the dental board relating to orthodontia services.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2158, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act creating a Hoover presidential library tax credit available against the individual and corporate income taxes, the franchise tax, the insurance premiums tax, and the moneys and credit tax.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2159, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act exempting from the sales tax certain building materials, supplies, goods, wares, merchandise, or specified digital products sold, or services furnished, to a nonprofit whose primary activity is the construction of low-cost homes by incarcerated individuals, and providing for an effective date.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2145, previously referred to committee on **Human Resources** was rereferred to committee on **Education**.

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2151 – A. Meyer of Webster

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 563 Transportation

Regarding the expiration of driver's licenses of persons who are age seventy-two or over.

H.S.B. 564 Natural Resources

Relating to apparel requirements for persons passing through public land or water during a muzzleloading season, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 565 Natural Resources

Allowing resident seniors with lifetime hunting licenses to be issued special senior statewide antlerless deer only crossbow deer hunting licenses.

H.S.B. 566 Judiciary

Relating to garnishment proceedings and service of a garnishee.

H.S.B. 567 Judiciary

Relating to forensic scientific evidence and postconviction relief.

H.S.B. 568 State Government

Relating to the rulemaking process for executive branch agencies and including transition provisions.

H.S.B. 569 Public Safety

Relating to the regulation of certain substance-related products, and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 570 Public Safety

Relating to background checks for employees of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies.

H.S.B. 571 Public Safety

Relating to participation in the sobriety and drug monitoring program.

H.S.B. 572 Public Safety

Prohibiting hemp and hemp products intended for inhalation, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including implementation and effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 573 State Government

Relating to administrative appeals by employers under the Iowa public employees' retirement system.

H.S.B. 574 Commerce

Relating to the financial exploitation of designated eligible adults, and making an appropriation.

H.S.B. 575 Commerce

Relating to matters involving insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, providing fees, and resolving inconsistencies.

H.S.B. 576 Education

Relating to supplementary weighting for limited-English-proficient students and including effective date and applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 577 Judiciary

Proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa that nothing in the Constitution of the State of Iowa shall be construed to recognize, grant, or secure a right to abortion or to require the public funding of abortion.

H.S.B. 578 Judiciary

Relating to the opening, administration, and termination of adult

guardianships and conservatorships, including conforming changes, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 579 Judiciary

Relating to guardianships and conservatorships of minors.

H.S.B. 580 Judiciary

Concerning the implantation or insertion of microchips or other devices in employees by employers.

H.S.B. 581 Human Resources

Relating to reenrollment following a member's termination from the Iowa health and wellness plan or the dental wellness plan.

H.S.B. 582 Human Resources

Relating to dispensing fees and copayments for partially dispensed quantities of prescription drugs.

H.S.B. 583 Human Resources

Relating to the practice of pharmacy, including the prescription and administration of vaccines.

H.S.B. 584 Local Government

Authorizing length of service award programs for volunteer fire fighters and emergency medical care providers, and making an appropriation.

H.S.B. 585 State Government

Providing for a study, plan, and report by the board of regents concerning emergency preparedness and response at outdoor stadiums controlled by the board and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 586 State Government

Relating to public construction bidding.

H.S.B. 587 Education

Relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 157 Reassigned**

Veterans Affairs: Salmon, Chair; M. Smith and Sorensen.

House File 607

Ways and Means: Maxwell, Chair; Gaskill and Mitchell.

House File 2097

Transportation: A. Meyer, Chair; Huseman and Sunde.

House File 2109

State Government: Lundgren, Chair; Bloomingdale and Lensing.

House File 2110

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Derry and Mitchell.

House File 2119

Transportation: A. Meyer, Chair; R. Smith and Thorup.

House File 2137

Transportation: Landon, Chair; Lohse and Williams.

House File 2140

Human Resources: Moore, Chair; Salmon and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House File 2140 Reassigned

Human Resources: Osmundson, Chair; Forbes and A. Meyer.

House File 2141

Human Resources: Moore, Chair; Salmon and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House File 2151

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Bergan and Ehlert.

Senate File 606

Ways and Means: Mitchell, Chair; Bloomingdale and James.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 563**

Transportation: Landon, Chair; R. Smith and Thorup.

House Study Bill 565

Natural Resources: Fisher, Chair; Maxwell and Jacoby.

House Study Bill 569

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Fisher and Kressig.

House Study Bill 570

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Fry and Sunde.

House Study Bill 571

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Olson and Salmon.

House Study Bill 572

Public Safety: Paustian, Chair; Holt and Olson.

House Study Bill 577

Judiciary: Holt, Chair; Hite and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House Study Bill 578

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Holt and Wolfe.

House Study Bill 579

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Holt and Wolfe.

House Study Bill 581

Human Resources: Osmundson, Chair; Moore and Wilburn.

House Study Bill 582

Human Resources: Best, Chair; Brink and Forbes.

House Study Bill 583

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Forbes and Lundgren.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2001), relating to reimbursement rates for health care services provided to covered persons by telehealth and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** January 28, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2052), relating to the medical residency training state matching grants program rural rotation requirement.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** January 28, 2020.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:43 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, January 29, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Seventeenth Calendar Day - Eleventh Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, January 29, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:32 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Abdul-Samad of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mason Donelson, Page from Knoxville.

The Journal of Tuesday, January 28, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2160, by Jones, a bill for an act authorizing a receiving school district to send school vehicles into a district of residence to transport a pupil participating in open enrollment to and from school.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2161, by Mitchell, a bill for an act relating to long acting reversible contraceptive options under the Medicaid program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2162, by Wills, a bill for an act relating to persons authorized to carry firearms on school grounds, including in a school building.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2163, by Lohse, a bill for an act relating to real estate transfer tax moneys transferred to the housing trust fund.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2164, by Fisher, Osmundson, Baxter, Gassman, Gerhold, Thompson, Jeneary, Wheeler, and Salmon, a bill for an act removing gender identity as a protected class under the Iowa civil rights Act.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2165, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act relating to certain campaign communications, providing for fees, and providing for penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2166, by Hagenow, a bill for an act increasing the speed limit on certain roads, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2167, by Mascher, a bill for an act relating to an increase in the tax on cigarettes.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2168, by Gassman, a bill for an act relating to the assessment of wind energy conversion property for certain assessment years and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2169, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act relating to bleeding control certification course requirements and waivers for school districts and accredited nonpublic schools and their students, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2170, by M. Smith, a bill for an act relating to background information provided to mental health and substance use disorder treatment providers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2171, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act establishing a child care workforce state matching grants program and fund administered by the early childhood Iowa state board to award matching state grants to eligible communities and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2172, by Matson, Sunde, Wessel-Kroeschell, Konfrst, Abdul-Samad, Kressig, Olson, Hunter, McConkey, Brown-Powers, Derry, Bennett, Gaines, Staed, Wilburn, Mascher, B. Meyer, Jacoby, Bearinger, Kurth, Gaskill, Steckman, and Ehlert, a bill for an act relating to provision of the state family planning network under the Medicaid program, and including effective date and repeal provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2173, by Hunter, a bill for an act automatically restoring the right to vote and hold elective office for persons who have been discharged from probation, parole, or work release, or who have been released from confinement.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2174, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to entering private property by persons using dogs while fur harvesting or training dogs on fur-bearing animals, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2175, by Bossman, a bill for an act relating to the construction of child care facilities by providing developers with sales and use tax refunds and income, franchise, moneys and credits, and gross premiums tax credits, providing for a fee, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2176, by Lohse, a bill for an act relating to the adjustments to state foundation aid paid to a school district following an assessed value reduction for certain property and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2177, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act providing for the establishment and administration of an electronic case management system by the department of agriculture and land stewardship for claims involving damages resulting from the application of pesticides, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2178, by Staed, a bill for an act relating to confinement feeding operations, by providing notice requirements for the removal and application of manure from confinement feeding operations, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2179, by Kacena, a bill for an act relating to the determination of city population for purposes of civil service commissions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2180, by Brink, a bill for an act relating to preferences for public construction bidding.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2181, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to penalties for drivers of motor vehicles who pass, or fail to reduce speed or stop for, school buses, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2182, by Isenhardt and Forbes, a bill for an act relating to an electric vehicle charging station grant program and fund, and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2183, by Brink, a bill for an act relating to motor vehicle insurance, including requiring owners of registered motor vehicles to maintain financial liability coverage, establishing a motor vehicle insurance verification database, authorizing the use of automated registration plate reader systems, and authorizing county enforcement

and diversion programs, establishing fees, providing penalties, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2157, previously referred to committee on **State Government** was rereferred to committee on **Human Resources**.

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2140 – Isenhart of Dubuque

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 588 Commerce

Relating to access to the Iowa communications network.

H.S.B. 589 Commerce

Relating to the definition of public improvement for public construction bidding purposes.

H.S.B. 590 Commerce

Relating to the installation of radon abatement systems in new residential construction.

H.S.B. 591 Commerce

Relating to rate regulatory proceedings before the utilities board within the utilities division of the department of commerce.

H.S.B. 592 Commerce

Relating to self-service storage insurance, and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 593 Appropriations

Relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 594 Appropriations

Relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 595 Judiciary

Creating the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 596 Judiciary

Relating to total amount recoverable as a noneconomic damage award against a health care provider.

H.S.B. 597 Veterans Affairs

Relating to the approval procedures for claims for the military service property tax exemption and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 598 Education

Relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting alleged classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing supplementary weighting for the transportation of certain students to therapeutic classrooms, making an appropriation, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 599 Economic Growth

Relating to matters under the purview of the Iowa finance authority, including the purchase of single-family or multifamily residences by a

first-time homebuyer, the creation of the first-time homebuyer grant fund, providing for fees, and making an appropriation.

H.S.B. 600 Judiciary

Relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 601 Labor

Relating to certain appeals by nonprofit organizations concerning reimbursement of the department of workforce development for the cost of unemployment benefits.

H.S.B. 602 Labor

Relating to the maximum duration of unemployment benefits for certain individuals and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 603 Labor

Relating to unemployment insurance contribution rates for certain landscaping employers.

H.S.B. 604 Labor

Relating to injunctions issued to employers for certain violations of the state unemployment insurance law.

H.S.B. 605 Labor

Relating to certain notifications issued by the department of workforce development concerning claims for unemployment benefits.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 217

Natural Resources: Thede, Chair; Fisher and Zumbach.

House File 330 Reassigned

Economic Growth: Brink, Chair; Baxter and Bennett.

House File 474

Public Safety: Fisher, Chair; Kerr and Kurtz.

House File 657

Natural Resources: Jeneary, Chair; Bearinger and Thorup.

House File 682

Public Safety: Worthan, Chair; Jeneary and Sunde.

House File 746

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2011

Judiciary: Jones, Chair; Hite and Olson.

House File 2041

Ways and Means: Osmundson, Chair; Bloomingdale and James.

House File 2054

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Klein and B. Meyer.

House File 2082

Ways and Means: Mitchell, Chair; Hagenow and Hunter.

House File 2083

Ways and Means: Bloomingdale, Chair; James and Osmundson.

House File 2102

Natural Resources: Osmundson, Chair; Breckenridge and Thorup.

House File 2103 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Brown-Powers and Wheeler.

House File 2107

Commerce: Sorensen, Chair; Lohse and B. Meyer.

House File 2125

Economic Growth: Wheeler, Chair; Gustafson and Jacoby.

House File 2126

Education: Gassman, Chair; Dolecheck and Winckler.

House File 2129

Judiciary: Hagenow, Chair; Lohse and Oldson.

House File 2132

Natural Resources: Osmundson, Chair; Breckenridge and Thorup.

House File 2133

Natural Resources: Jacoby, Chair; Mommsen and Steckman.

House File 2133 Reassigned

Natural Resources: Maxwell, Chair; Mommsen and Steckman.

House File 2139

Education: Shipley, Chair; Kurth and Wheeler.

House File 2145

Education: Kerr, Chair; Dolecheck and Winckler.

House File 2147

Education: A. Meyer, Chair; Steckman and Wheeler.

House File 2149

Education: Hanusa, Chair; Donahue and Shipley.

House File 2150

Education: Mommsen, Chair; James and Salmon.

House File 2152

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

House File 2155

State Government: Thompson, Chair; Hunter and Lundgren.

House File 2156

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Lensing and Sorensen.

House File 2158

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Jacoby and Wheeler.

House File 2159

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Gaskill and Wheeler.

House File 2163

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2167

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2171

Human Resources: Dolecheck, Chair; Bergan and Ehlert.

House File 2174

Natural Resources: Zumbach, Chair; Maxwell and Ourth.

Senate File 581 Reassigned

State Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Konfrst and Thompson.

Senate File 621

Ways and Means: Jones, Chair; Nielsen and Osmundson.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 58 Reassigned

State Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Nielsen and Sexton.

House Study Bill 62 Reassigned

State Government: Lundgren, Chair; Bossman and Nielsen.

House Study Bill 566

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Derry and Hagenow.

House Study Bill 567

Judiciary: Mitchell, Chair; Bennett and Paustian.

House Study Bill 570 Reassigned

Public Safety: Jeneary, Chair; Fry and Sunde.

House Study Bill 574

Commerce: Jacobsen, Chair; Best and Hall.

House Study Bill 575

Commerce: Jacobsen, Chair; Judge and Wills.

House Study Bill 576

Education: Mommsen, Chair; Dolecheck and Matson.

House Study Bill 580

Judiciary: Gustafson, Chair; Konfrst and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 585

State Government: Deyoe, Chair; Bergan and Hunter.

House Study Bill 587

Education: Dolecheck, Chair; A. Meyer and R. Smith.

House Study Bill 588

Commerce: Sorensen, Chair; Hall and Lohse.

House Study Bill 589

Commerce: Mitchell, Chair; Best and Jacoby.

House Study Bill 590

Commerce: Lohse, Chair; Bloomingdale and McConkey.

House Study Bill 591

Commerce: Carlson, Chair; Landon and Oldson.

House Study Bill 592

Commerce: Mitchell, Chair; Landon and Nielsen.

House Study Bill 593

Appropriations: Mohr, Chair; Hall and Worthan.

House Study Bill 594

Appropriations: Dolecheck, Chair; Kerr and McKean.

House Study Bill 595

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Olson and Paustian.

House Study Bill 596

Judiciary: Holt, Chair; Klein and B. Meyer.

House Study Bill 597

Veterans Affairs: Sorensen, Chair; Bennett and Jeneary.

House Study Bill 598

Education: Dolecheck, Chair; Donahue, Fry, Moore and R. Smith.

House Study Bill 599

Economic Growth: Wheeler, Chair; Bennett and Lohse.

House Study Bill 600

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Derry and Kaufmann.

House Study Bill 601

Labor: Hanusa, Chair; Huseman and Kurtz.

House Study Bill 602

Labor: Deyoe, Chair; McConkey and Worthan.

House Study Bill 603

Labor: Thompson, Chair; Brink and Kacena.

House Study Bill 604

Labor: Thompson, Chair; Brink and Brown-Powers.

House Study Bill 605

Labor: Hanusa, Chair; Ehlert and Huseman.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 515), relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 29, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 516), extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 29, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2031), relating to the licensed health professional member of a local board of health.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 29, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2073), relating to the Medicaid institutions for mental diseases waiver, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 29, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 532), relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 29, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 534), relating to the definition of young adult for purposes of participation in the preparation for adult living program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** January 29, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 167), relating to the practice of barbering in movable locations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** January 28, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 502), relating to setoff requirements concerning certain winnings on wagers.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 28, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

Senate File 280, a bill for an act relating to the residency of members of the armed forces stationed at specified military installations for purposes of hunting, fishing, and trapping privileges.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8001** January 28, 2020, placed on calendar.

AMENDMENT FILED

H-8001 S.F. 280 Committee on Veterans Affairs

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:40 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, January 30, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Eighteenth Calendar Day - Twelfth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, January 30, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:31 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Baxter of Hancock.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Audrey Holtkamp, Page from Ankeny.

The Journal of Wednesday, January 29, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2184, by Salmon, Kerr, Baxter, Osmundson, Gassman, Gerhold, Jeneary, Shipley, and Wheeler, a bill for an act providing for the establishment of a policy prohibiting public school teachers from engaging in political or ideological advocacy while carrying out student instruction or otherwise acting within the scope of employment by a school district, providing for related training, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2185, by Salmon, Gassman, Baxter, Gerhold, Jeneary, Shipley, and Wheeler, a bill for an act relating to the appointment of a director of public policy events at each institution of higher education governed by the state board of regents.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2186, by Donahue, a bill for an act relating to best practices for student engagement and expectations for student behavior.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2187, by Bergan, a bill for an act exempting certain facilities from electronic prescription transmission requirements and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2188, by McKean, a bill for an act relating to the award of attorney fees in proceedings for modifications of dissolution orders and decrees.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2189, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act relating to additional penalties for certain violations against bicyclists causing serious injury or death committed by a person operating a motor vehicle.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2190, by Wills, a bill for an act relating to nonresident deer hunting on land owned or formerly owned by nonresidents and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2191, by McKean, a bill for an act allowing the operation of all-terrain vehicles and off-road utility vehicles on certain two-lane primary roads.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2192, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to reimbursement rates for health care services provided to covered persons by telehealth and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2193, by Anderson, a bill for an act appropriating moneys to the department of aging for purposes of a return to community pilot project initiative.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2194, by Landon, a bill for an act increasing the minimum age for persons to be eligible for issuance of a special minor's driver's license.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2195, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the practices of cosmetology and barbering in movable locations.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2196, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to setoff requirements concerning certain winnings on wagers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2197, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the medical residency training state matching grants program rural rotation requirement.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2182 – McKean of Jones

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 606 Environmental Protection

Relating to underground storage tanks, including by creating the Iowa tanks fund and Iowa tanks fund financing program, repealing the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund, and eliminating the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund board, and including effective date and transition provisions.

H.S.B. 607 Commerce

Relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen

Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working Iowans, a workforce diploma pilot program, computer science instruction, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 608 State Government

Requiring employers to provide reasonable accommodations to employees based on pregnancy or childbirth and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 609 Public Safety

Relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 610 Public Safety

Relating to a death affecting the public interest and reporting requirements of county medical examiners.

H.S.B. 611 Public Safety

Relating to the requirements for a sex offender to be granted a modification of sex offender registry requirements.

H.S.B. 612 Judiciary

Relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases.

H.S.B. 613 Judiciary

Relating to the confidentiality of information filed with the court to secure an arrest warrant.

H.S.B. 614 Commerce

Relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances.

H.S.B. 615 Public Safety

Relating to firearms and weapons, including the storage, carrying, possession, or transportation of weapons and the establishment, use, and maintenance of shooting ranges.

H.S.B. 616 Public Safety

Establishing a cyber crime investigation division in the department of public safety to investigate crimes with a nexus to the internet or computer technology including crimes involving child exploitation and cyber intrusion.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 663**

Education: Gassman, Chair; Shipley and Staed.

House File 2037

Transportation: Lohse, Chair; Kressig and Thorup.

House File 2169

Education: A. Meyer, Chair; Fry and Gaines.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 564**

Natural Resources: Thorup, Chair; Osmundson and Ourth.

House Study Bill 568

State Government: Mitchell, Chair; Bergan and Nielsen.

House Study Bill 573

State Government: Mascher, Chair; Bacon and Kaufmann.

House Study Bill 584

Local Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Hite and Kacena.

House Study Bill 586

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Bloomingdale and Hunter.

House Study Bill 606

Environmental Protection: Gerhold, Chair; Sexton and Staed.

House Study Bill 607

Commerce: Deyoe, Chair; Fisher and Forbes.

House Study Bill 608

State Government: Lundgren, Chair; Bloomingdale and Konfrst.

House Study Bill 609

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Kressig and Paustian.

House Study Bill 610

Public Safety: Salmon, Chair; Jeneary and Sunde.

House Study Bill 611

Public Safety: Worthan, Chair; Kurtz and Thorup.

House Study Bill 612

Judiciary: Jacobsen, Chair; Paustian and Wolfe.

House Study Bill 613

Judiciary: Hagenow, Chair; Mitchell and Wilburn.

House Study Bill 614

Commerce: Lohse, Chair; Fisher and McConkey.

House Study Bill 615

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Klein and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House Study Bill 616

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Breckenridge and Thorup.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

House File 662, a bill for an act concerning jurors, relating to access to certain department of revenue taxpayer information for jury list compilation and juror information confidentiality.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 29, 2020, placed on calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 705), relating to the responsibilities of a guardian ad litem for a minor child.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** January 29, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 572), prohibiting hemp and hemp products intended for inhalation, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including implementation and effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2020), relating to radio operators blackout special registration plates for motor vehicles.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 541), disqualifying a person convicted of human trafficking involving the use of a commercial motor vehicle from operating a commercial motor vehicle for life.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2022), concerning fees charged for examining and copying public records relating to claims for veterans benefits.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.R. 101, by Shipley, a resolution requesting the establishment of an interim committee to evaluate the safety of fifth generation wireless network technology.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:39 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Friday, January 31, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Nineteenth Calendar Day - Thirteenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, January 31, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 9:00 a.m., Landon of Polk in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Landon of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Landon of Polk.

The Journal of Thursday, January 30, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2198, by Landon, a bill for an act providing for the indemnification of claims from the grain depositors and sellers indemnity fund, by persons selling grain by credit-sale contract, and providing for fees.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2199, by Salmon, Kerr, Osmundson, Gassman, Baxter, Jeneary, Shipley, and Fisher, a bill for an act relating to requirements for specific digital content-blocking capabilities on devices manufactured, distributed, leased, or sold and services distributed, leased, or sold in the state that make the internet accessible, the prohibition of certain restrictions on specific types of speech on social media internet sites, and the collection and remittance of fees for certain related activities, providing for criminal and civil liability for certain violations, and including applicability and contingent effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2200, by Shipley, a bill for an act requiring the testing of food routinely served to students by school districts for the presence of glyphosate.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2201, by Salmon, Shipley, Fisher, Baxter, Thompson, Kerr, Jeneary, Holt, Wheeler, Gerhold, Gassman, Osmundson, and Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to sexual orientation or gender identity instruction or related materials provided by school districts to pupils.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2202, by Gassman, Wheeler, Jacobsen, Baxter, Kerr, Jeneary, Gerhold, Osmundson, Salmon, Fisher, Shipley, Holt, and Gustafson, a bill for an act requiring high school students to participate in extracurricular interscholastic athletic practices, contests, or competitions based on biological sex as determined at birth.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2203, by A. Meyer, a bill for an act establishing a graduated eligibility phase-out program for state child care assistance.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2204, by Winckler, B. Meyer, Staed, Kurth, and Thede, a bill for an act relating to identification cards for employees engaged in off-site work.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2205, by Lohse, a bill for an act providing for the future repeal of the beverage containers control program, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2206, by McKean, Staed, Beringer, McConkey, Isenhardt, Lensing, Shipley, Sunde, Abdul-Samad, Jacoby, Donahue, B. Meyer, Gaskill, Gassman, Mascher, Kacena, and Kurth, a bill for an act relating to beverage container reimbursement fees paid by distributors to beverage dealers, dealer agents, and persons operating beverage container redemption centers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2207, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to county and city standards and requirements for the sale or marketing of bags.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2208, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to marijuana, including the elimination of criminal penalties relating to the use, possession, manufacture, and delivery of marijuana.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2209, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to service by the national guard on federal active duty.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2210, by Deyoe, a bill for an act relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2211, by Prichard, a bill for an act relating to the operation of home bakeries licensed by the department of inspections and appeals.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2212, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2213, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2214, by Gassman, a bill for an act providing for infrastructure to store and dispense certain types of ethanol blended gasoline, appropriating moneys for deposit in the renewable fuel infrastructure fund for use in installing motor fuel blender pumps, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2215, by Jones, a bill for an act relating to Medicaid reimbursement for breast pumps and associated supplies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2216, by Lohse, a bill for an act requiring the use of inventory checklists upon commencement of a residential tenancy and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2217, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to lobbyist's client reports, including verification of and the filing location for the reports, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2218, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2219, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the responsibilities of a guardian ad litem for a minor child.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2220, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the definition of young adult for purposes of participation in the preparation for adult living program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2221, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the licensed health professional member of a local board of health.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2222, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the Medicaid institutions for mental diseases waiver, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2223, by Wessel-Kroeschell, Isenhardt, Staed, B. Meyer, and Kurth, a bill for an act providing for paid sick leave and scheduling procedures for employees, establishing a family leave and medical leave insurance program, providing penalties and remedies, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

ATTORNEY GENERAL

Contingency Fee Agreements Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 23B.3.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

Joint Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 148C.12.

BOARD OF PHARMACY

Licensed Professions and Occupations Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 272C.4.

COUNTY ENGINEERS ASSOCIATION SERVICE BUREAU

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 312.3B.

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Capitol Planning Commission Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8A.373.

Equal Opportunity Contract Compliance Policy Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 19B.7.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Workforce Training and Economic Development Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 260C.18A.

Condition of Education Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.7.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Plumbing and Mechanical Systems Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 105.9.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Biodiesel and Biodiesel Blended Fuel Revolving Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 307.20.

Secondary Road Research Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 310.36.

Street Research Fund Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 312.3A.

Recycling Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 307.21.

Replacement and Repair of Structurally Deficient Secondary Bridges Report, pursuant to Chapter 1077.1, 2018 Iowa Acts.

Midwest Regional Rail Passenger Initiative Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 327J.3.

TREASURER OF STATE

Linked Investments for Tomorrow Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12.38.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

House File 717, a bill for an act concerning appeal rights relating to veterans preference.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 508), appropriating certain tax receipts concerning internet fantasy sports contests and sports wagering to the emergency medical services fund.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 520), prohibiting persons from simultaneously holding more than one elective office and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 554), relating to regulation of foods sold by minors.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

On motion by Lohse of Polk, the House adjourned at 9:09 a.m., until 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, February 4, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Twenty-third Calendar Day - Fourteenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, February 4, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 10:01 a.m., Wills of Dickenson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Alan Mullikin, LeGrand Friends Church, LeGrand. He was the guest of Fisher of Tama.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Shay Huss, Page from Sioux Center.

The Journal of Friday, January 31, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2224, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act appropriating certain tax receipts concerning internet fantasy sports contests and sports wagering to the emergency medical services fund.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2225, by Isenhart, a bill for an act appropriating certain tax receipts concerning internet fantasy sports contests and sports wagering.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2226, by Brown-Powers and R. Smith, a bill for an act relating to the observance of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day by school districts and accredited nonpublic schools.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2227, by Brown-Powers and Gaskill, a bill for an act prohibiting schools from scheduling school events after the school day on the date of presidential precinct caucuses or general elections.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2228, by Donahue, Gaines, Staed, Hunter, Bearinger, Wessel-Kroeschell, Wilburn, Kurth, Ehlert, Brown-Powers, Winckler, Abdul-Samad, Gaskill, and Kurtz, a bill for an act relating to a teaching recruitment in Iowa program within the department of education.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2229, by Gaines, a bill for an act providing for a teacher licensure renewal requirement relating to cultural competency training.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2230, by Fry, a bill for an act exempting from the individual income tax the value of medical care provided by a medical care provider to a patient in this state and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2231, by Brown-Powers, Breckenridge, B. Meyer, R. Smith, Staed, Kressig, James, and Gaskill, a bill for an act relating to medication policies for transferring prisoners and inmates under the purview of the department of corrections or a county sheriff.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2232, by Gaines, a bill for an act relating to the commission on the status of African Americans and the office on the status of African Americans.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2233, by Brown-Powers, Staed, and Matson, a bill for an act requiring minors to wear helmets while riding motorcycles and motorized bicycles, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2234, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to radio operators blackout special registration plates for motor vehicles.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2235, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act disqualifying a person convicted of human trafficking involving the use of a commercial motor vehicle from operating a commercial motor vehicle for life.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2236, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act concerning fees charged for examining and copying public records relating to claims for veterans benefits.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2237, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act prohibiting hemp and hemp products intended for inhalation, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including implementation and effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2238, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to regulation of foods sold by minors.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2239, by Salmon, Fisher, Shipley, Wheeler, Kerr, Jeneary, Gerhold, Jacobsen, Gassman, and Baxter, a bill for an act relating to a minor's ability to access obscene material on a distributor's internet site or internet-based application.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2240, by Baxter, a bill for an act relating to the management of the spread of diseases in animals, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2241, by Isenhardt, Thorup, and Kacena, a bill for an act relating to the manufacture, distribution, sale, and use of fire fighting foam and personal protective equipment containing perfluoroalkyl or polyfluoroalkyl substances, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2242, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act prohibiting certain public officials from simultaneously holding more than one elective office and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

Jones of Clay introduced to the House, former legislator, Clel Baudler.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

Windschitl of Harrison introduced to the House, former legislator, Rob Taylor.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 10:15 a.m., until the conclusion of the committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 5:30 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2243, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2244, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2245, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2230, previously referred to committee on **Human Resources** was rereferred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 617 State Government

Relating to the penalty for public employees and public officials ordered to pay restitution to a public employer.

H.S.B. 618 State Government

Relating to the establishment of periodic examination fees from certain cities by the auditor of state.

H.S.B. 619 State Government

Relating to the establishment of a disaster recovery homeowner assistance program and fund administered by the Iowa finance authority, transfers of moneys to certain funds, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 620 State Government

Relating to governmental ethics and the sale or lease of real estate by regulatory agency officials and employees to persons subject to the agency's regulatory authority, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 621 State Government

Relating to the compensation of the executive director of the ethics and campaign disclosure board.

H.S.B. 622 State Government

Relating to filing complaints with the Iowa public information board.

H.S.B. 623 State Government

Relating to the confidentiality of certain law enforcement reports, records, and information under Iowa's open records law.

H.S.B. 624 State Government

Relating to the placement of campaign signs and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 625 Public Safety

Concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation.

H.S.B. 626 Public Safety

Relating to the national guard of the state concerning armory board leases, persons subject to the code of military justice, and scholarship and loan repayment programs.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2157

Human Resources: Moore, Chair; Bacon and Wilburn.

House File 2166

Transportation: Sieck, Chair; Carlson and Williams.

House File 2183

Transportation: Thorup, Chair; Carlson and Judge.

House File 2194

Transportation: Landon, Chair; Isenhardt and Sieck.

House File 2203

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Ehlert and Osmundson.

House File 2210

State Government: Deyoe, Chair; Cohoon and Moore.

House File 2211

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Donahue and Moore.

House File 2215

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; Salmon and Sunde.

House File 2216

State Government: Bergan, Chair; Anderson and Deyoe.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 617

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Donahue and Moore.

House Study Bill 618

State Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Bossman and Derry.

House Study Bill 619

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Bossman and Nielsen.

House Study Bill 620

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Bacon and Hunter.

House Study Bill 621

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Bacon and Lensing.

House Study Bill 622

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Jacobsen and Lensing.

House Study Bill 623

State Government: Moore, Chair; Deyoe and Lensing.

House Study Bill 624

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Bacon and Lensing.

House Study Bill 625

Public Safety: Worthan, Chair; Fisher and Thede.

House Study Bill 626

Public Safety: Salmon, Chair; Kerr and Kurtz.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 593), relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 594), relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 587), relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2051), relating to the Medicaid home and community-based services elderly waiver monthly budget maximum.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2067), relating to child care reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2128), relating to the definition of infant and toddler for the purposes of child care provider reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 153), relating to the practice of dentistry, including the practice of dental hygiene and the services of dental assistants, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 536), relating to the behavior analyst grants program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

House File 658, a bill for an act increasing certain penalties for speeding in a motor vehicle, providing for the use of the additional moneys, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

Referred to the committee on Ways and Means pursuant to Rule 31.7.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

House File 2079, a bill for an act relating to flying our colors special registration plates.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** January 30, 2020.

Referred to the committee on Ways and Means pursuant to Rule 31.7.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 5:31 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, February 5, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Twenty-fourth Calendar Day - Fifteenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, February 5, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:33 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Nermin Spahic, Imam of the Bosnian Islamic and Cultural Center and Mosque Es-Salam, Granger. He was the guest of Abdul-Samad of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Benton Renaud, Chief Clerk's Page from Ankeny.

The Journal of Tuesday, February 4, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2246, by Staed, a bill for an act making appropriations to support entities involved in the production and distribution of food.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2247, by Staed, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa utilities board, including the number of members, the terms of the members, and restrictions on membership.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2248, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act establishing the offense of sexual activity with an individual sixteen or seventeen years of age, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2249, by Hunter and Gaskill, a bill for an act relating to the database of persons prohibited from voting or registering to vote due to conviction of a felony.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2250, by Mascher, a bill for an act relating to election systems security.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2251, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act relating to representation and residency requirements for members of the state transportation commission, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2252, by Jones, a bill for an act exempting from the individual income tax the amount of pay received by a taxpayer for providing certain child care services, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2253, by Lundgren, a bill for an act relating to price transparency for prescription drugs sold in this state, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2254, by Steckman, Winckler, Staed, Derry, Donahue, McConkey, Williams, Brown-Powers, Gaskill, and Gassman, a bill for an act relating to eligibility requirements for the future ready Iowa skilled workforce last-dollar scholarship program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 627 Human Resources

Relating to the smokefree air Act, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 628 Ways and Means

Exempting from the state individual income tax the earnings from a burial trust fund, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 629 Ways and Means

Relating to the sales and use tax by modifying the sales and use tax exemption for materials and certain machinery and equipment used in agricultural production.

H.S.B. 630 Transportation

Relating to low-speed electric bicycles, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 631 State Government

Relating to county emergency medical services by modifying provisions relating to optional taxes for emergency medical services.

H.S.B. 632 State Government

Relating to county zoning procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 633 State Government

Relating to the treatment of adoptive parent employees and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 634 State Government

Relating to rights and remedies regarding reprisals with respect to employees of the state and a political subdivision of the state.

H.S.B. 635 State Government

Relating to utility service cost disclosures in connection with certain rental properties, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 636 Environmental Protection

Relating to the review and permitting of sewer extensions and water supply distribution system extensions.

H.S.B. 637 Veterans Affairs

Relating to eligibility for a property tax exemption for certain property of veterans associations.

H.S.B. 638 Commerce

Relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 639 Veterans Affairs

Relating to permissible expenditures for moneys in the veterans trust fund.

H.S.B. 640 Transportation

Relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 641 Education

Relating to matters involving the state board of education and the department of education to reflect current practices, technology, and titles, to delete redundancies, and to resolve inconsistencies.

H.S.B. 642 Education

Relating to eligibility requirements and assessments for students under the senior year plus program and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 643 Education

Relating to eligibility requirements for the future ready Iowa skilled workforce last-dollar scholarship program.

H.S.B. 644 Education

Relating to qualifications for community college career and technical education instructors.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 11

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Klein and Kurtz.

House File 31

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Klein and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House File 32

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Kacena and Klein.

House File 65

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Kacena and Klein.

House File 66

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Abdul-Samad and Klein.

House File 67

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Abdul-Samad and Klein.

House File 69

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Kacena and Klein.

House File 83

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Abdul-Samad and Klein.

House File 189

Public Safety: Paustian, Chair; Fisher and Sunde.

House File 220

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Abdul-Samad and Klein.

House File 221

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Holt and Kressig.

House File 248

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Fry and Kacena.

House File 249

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Fry and Olson.

House File 280

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Klein and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House File 281

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Breckenridge and Holt.

House File 282

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Breckenridge and Holt.

House File 319

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Holt and Kressig.

House File 413

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Klein, Chair; Breckenridge.

House File 457

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Fry and Olson.

House File 636

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Klein and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House File 658

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Jones and Kurth.

House File 684

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Breckenridge and Jeneary.

House File 703

Public Safety: Paustian, Chair; Kerr and Kressig.

House File 714

Public Safety: Mohr, Chair; Breckenridge and Fisher.

House File 2079

Ways and Means: Maxwell, Chair; Kurtz and Sieck.

House File 2175

Ways and Means: Osmundson, Chair; Bloomingdale and James.

House File 2176

Ways and Means: Bloomingdale, Chair; Hunter and Mitchell.

House File 2196

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Hunter and Osmundson.

House File 2224

Appropriations: Bossman, Chair; Fry and Mascher.

House File 2234

Ways and Means: Maxwell, Chair; Kurtz and Sieck.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 627

Human Resources: Bacon, Chair; James and Moore.

House Study Bill 628

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Bloomingdale and Kurtz.

House Study Bill 629

Ways and Means: Zumbach, Chair; Hunter and Sieck.

House Study Bill 630

Transportation: Thorup, Chair; Kressig and Maxwell.

House Study Bill 631

State Government: Thompson, Chair; Bloomingdale, Kaufmann, Nielsen and Steckman.

House Study Bill 632

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Deyoe, Hunter, Mascher and Sexton.

House Study Bill 633

State Government: Bossman, Chair; Konfrst and Lundgren.

House Study Bill 634

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Anderson and Thompson.

House Study Bill 635

State Government: Deyoe, Chair; Bergan and Derry.

House Study Bill 636

Environmental Protection: Shipley, Chair; Sexton and Wilburn.

House Study Bill 637

Veterans Affairs: Wheeler, Chair; Jeneary and Kurth.

House Study Bill 638

Commerce: Sorensen, Chair; Lohse and Williams.

House Study Bill 639

Veterans Affairs: Gustafson, Chair; Kurth and Sorensen.

House Study Bill 640

Transportation: Huseman, Chair; Kurtz and Maxwell.

House Study Bill 641

Education: Wheeler, Chair; Shipley and Steckman.

House Study Bill 642

Education: Hanusa, Chair; Matson and Moore.

House Study Bill 643

Education: Hanusa, Chair; Kurth and Moore.

House Study Bill 644

Education: Hanusa, Chair; Kurth and Moore.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 514), relating to specified fees and notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 544), relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 5, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2126), relating to the authority of the college student aid commission to organize a nonprofit corporation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 5, 2020.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:52 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, February 6, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Twenty-fifth Calendar Day - Sixteenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, February 6, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:32 a.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Diana Northcutt, Salem United Methodist Church, Council Bluffs. She was the guest of McConkey of Pottawattamie.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Cassy Anderson from Indianola. She is the granddaughter of Pastor Diana Northcutt and the guest of McConkey of Pottawattamie.

The Journal of Wednesday, February 5, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2255, by Hunter, a bill for an act requiring employers to provide reasonable accommodations to job applicants and employees based on pregnancy or childbirth and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2256, by Hunter, a bill for an act relating to the automatic mailing of ballots and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2257, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act establishing an inmate substance abuse treatment pilot program in county jails.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2258, by Wheeler, a bill for an act relating to the electronic transmission of prescriptions and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2259, by Mohr, a bill for an act relating to human trafficking prevention training and reporting for employees of lodging providers in the state.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2260, by Kerr, a bill for an act relating to the proposal of rural four-lane bypasses by the department of transportation to the state transportation commission.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2261, by Shipley, a bill for an act establishing an education scholarship account program for pupils attending a nonpublic school or receiving private instruction, establishing an education scholarship account fund, providing an income tax exemption, establishing school district supplementary weighting for education scholarship recipients, making appropriations, providing penalties, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2262, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to health data including the collection and use of hospital data and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2263, by Konfrst, a bill for an act relating to access to an employee restroom facility in retail establishments for individuals with eligible medical conditions, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2264, by Kurth, Brown-Powers, Winckler, Gaskill, Kurtz, Kacena, Anderson, and Williams, a bill for an act excluding employee benefit costs from the calculation of certain county and city budget amounts subject to approval by resolution and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2265, by Donahue, a bill for an act requiring the department of natural resources to conduct a study related to pollinator species on properties owned by the department.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2266, by Mohr, a bill for an act regarding port authorities, including by allowing port authorities to enter into certain loan agreements and lease contracts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2267, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of dental hygienists and dental assistants, and the practice of dentistry, and providing administrative penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2268, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2269, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the Medicaid home and community-based services elderly waiver monthly budget maximum.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2270, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to child care reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2271, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the definition of infant and toddler and preschool child for the purposes of child care provider reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that Senate File 272, previously referred to committee on **Commerce** was **passed on file**.

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2223 – Gaskill of Wapello

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 645 Economic Growth

Relating to the operation of home bakeries licensed by the department of inspections and appeals.

H.S.B. 646 Public Safety

Relating to the regulation of hemp, including by providing for testing methods and the regulation of hemp products, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 647 State Government

Relating to qualifications for holding professional licensure in this state, including the granting of licenses to persons licensed in other states and acquiring residence in Iowa, disqualification provisions for

criminal convictions, the waiver of application fees, and licensee discipline, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 648 Economic Growth

Creating a sales tax exemption period for certain weapons.

H.S.B. 649 Economic Growth

Creating a recreational-activities business tax credit available for individual and corporate income taxes, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 650 State Government

Relating to county regulation of certain agricultural experiences.

H.S.B. 651 State Government

Relating to the practice of interior design, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 652 State Government

Concerning the authority of a native wine manufacturer to sell native wine for on-premises consumption.

H.S.B. 653 Public Safety

Concerning the medical cannabidiol Act.

H.S.B. 654 Public Safety

Relating to health insurance by certain peace officers of the department of public safety.

H.S.B. 655 Education

Relating to the amounts a district of residence pays to a receiving district for a pupil participating in open enrollment and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 656 State Government

Relating to the setoff procedures used by public agencies.

H.S.B. 657 Ways and Means

Relating to state and local revenue and finances including modifying individual income taxes, sales and use taxes, water service tax, and certain tax credits and provisions relating to county juvenile court expenses and mental health region funding, making appropriations, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 658 Judiciary

To relating to court-ordered reimbursement of jail costs and restitution.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 326**

Natural Resources: Fisher, Chair; Maxwell and Ourth.

House File 2013

Local Government: Hite, Chair; Hanusa and Konfrst.

House File 2056

Local Government: Jeneary, Chair; McKean and Thompson.

House File 2161

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; Matson and Salmon.

House File 2189

Judiciary: Bergan, Chair; Derry and Kaufmann.

House File 2201

Education: Salmon, Chair; Moore and Staed.

House File 2240

Natural Resources: Jeneary, Chair; Baxter and Jacoby.

House File 2262

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Lundgren and Matson.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 645**

Economic Growth: Wheeler, Chair; Baxter and Judge.

House Study Bill 646

Public Safety: Paustian, Chair; Holt and Kressig.

House Study Bill 647

State Government: Lundgren, Chair; Derry and Deyoe.

House Study Bill 648

Economic Growth: Baxter, Chair; Gassman and Jacoby.

House Study Bill 649

Economic Growth: Lohse, Chair; Brink and Hall.

House Study Bill 650

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Mascher and Sexton.

House Study Bill 651

State Government: Sorensen, Chair; Donahue and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 652

State Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Lensing and Sexton.

House Study Bill 653

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Breckenridge and Holt.

House Study Bill 654

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Breckenridge and Worthan.

House Study Bill 655

Education: Wheeler, Chair; Mascher and Salmon.

House Study Bill 656

State Government: Bossman, Chair; Cohoon and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 657

Ways and Means: Hein, Chair; Bloomingdale, Hite, Isenhardt and James.

House Study Bill 658

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Klein and Wolfe.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

House File 321, a bill for an act relating to the provision of debt management services in connection with educational loans, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8002** February 4, 2020, placed on calendar.

House File 2023, a bill for an act exempting from the computation of the individual and corporate state income taxes broadband grants received by communications service providers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 4, 2020.

Referred to the committee on Ways and Means pursuant to Rule 31.7.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Senate File 316, a bill for an act requesting the establishment of a special education interim study committee.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8003** February 5, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2068), relating to the modification of sex offender registry requirements.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 5, 2020.

Senate File 458, a bill for an act relating to debts for which the homestead is liable by providing that the homestead may be sold to satisfy debts secured by a mechanic's lien, including principal, interest, attorney fees, and costs.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 5, 2020, placed on calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 519), prohibiting counties and cities from banning employers from requesting from an applicant information related to the applicant's criminal history.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 524), relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 538), providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 5, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2110), establishing the quad cities regional metropolitan authority and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2156), relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 504), relating to the definition of meeting under the open meetings law.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

House File 2004, a bill for an act requiring the construction and maintenance of rumble strips on certain highways.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020, placed on calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 525), removing the requirement to obtain a permit for vehicles or combinations of vehicles of excessive size transporting divisible loads of hay, straw, stover, or bagged livestock bedding that meet certain width, height, and length requirements.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 542), providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 547), relating to certificate of eligibility affidavits for admission to the veterans home.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 548), relating to the military code and duty performed by a member of the United States coast guard.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 550), concerning funding authority for training, education, and related expenses of county veteran service officers.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2005), relating to the individual income tax credits for volunteer fire fighters, volunteer emergency medical services personnel members, and reserve peace officers by increasing the amounts of the credits, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 5, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2098), relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging under certain circumstances.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 5, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 562), relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 5, 2020.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.C.R. 105, by Williams, Gaines, Bennett, Steckman, Kressig, Staed, Derry, Judge, Gaskill, Brown-Powers, Anderson, Wilburn, McConkey, Matson, Kurth, M. Smith, Kacena, Thede, Mascher, Wessel-Kroeschell, Sunde, Isenhardt, Konfrst, Hunter, James, Cohoon, Oldson, Jacoby, Ehlert, Ourth, McKean, B. Meyer, Lensing, Donahue, Hall, Winckler, Abdul-Samad, Bearinger, R. Smith, Wolfe, Breckenridge, Running-Marquardt, Nielsen, Olson, Forbes, Kurtz, Prichard, Dolecheck, Huseman, Bergan, Salmon, Maxwell, Baxter, Osmundson, Gassman, Mohr, Jones, Moore, Holt, Wheeler, Sieck, Sorensen, Shipley, Mommsen, Jeneary, Worthan, A. Meyer, Lohse, Paustian, Brink, Bacon, Grassley, Thompson, Bossman, Windschitl, Landon, Hagenow, and Hite, a concurrent resolution celebrating July 2, 2019, as the 100th anniversary of the State of Iowa ratifying the Nineteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8002	H.F.	321	Committee on Commerce
H-8003	S.F.	316	Committee on Education
H-8004	H.F.	2245	Dolecheck of Ringgold
H-8005	S.F.	316	R. Smith of Black Hawk
H-8006	H.F.	2243	R. Smith of Black Hawk
			Abdul-Samad of Polk
			Anderson of Polk
			Bearinger of Fayette
			Bennett of Linn
			Breckenridge of Jasper
			Brown-Powers of Black Hawk
			Cohoon of Des Moines
			Derry of Polk
			Donahue of Linn
			Ehlert of Linn
			Forbes of Polk
			Gaines of Polk
			Gaskill of Wapello
			Hall of Woodbury
			Hunter of Polk
			Williams of Black Hawk
			Winckler of Scott
			Wolfe of Clinton
			Isenhart of Dubuque
			Jacoby of Johnson
			James of Dubuque
			Judge of Dallas
			Kacena of Woodbury
			Konfrst of Polk
			Kressig of Black Hawk
			Kurth of Scott
			Kurtz of Lee
			Lensing of Johnson
			Mascher of Johnson
			Matson of Polk
			McConkey of Pottawattamie
			McKean of Jones
			B. Meyer of Polk
			Nielsen of Johnson

Oldson of Polk
Olson of Polk
Ourth of Warren
Prichard of Floyd
Running-Marquardt of Linn
M. Smith of Marshall
Staed of Linn
Steckman of Cerro Gordo
Sunde of Polk
Thede of Scott
Wessel-Kroeschell of Story
Wilburn of Story

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:44 a.m., until 8:15 a.m., Friday, February 7, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Twenty-sixth Calendar Day - Seventeenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, February 7, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:19 a.m., Holt of Crawford in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Holt of Crawford.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Holt of Crawford.

The Journal of Thursday, February 6, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 6, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2082, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of education and the department of education to reflect current practices, technology, and titles, to delete redundancies, and to resolve inconsistencies.

Also: That the Senate has on February 6, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2095, a bill for an act allowing county attorneys and assistant county attorneys to obtain a professional permit to carry weapons.

Also: That the Senate has on February 6, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2134, a bill for an act relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 6, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2144, a bill for an act relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2272, by Baxter, Fisher, Salmon, Gassman, Jeneary, Wheeler, and Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to actions relative to treatment or intervention regarding the discordance between a minor's sex and gender identity, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2273, by Salmon, Fisher, Gassman, Shipley, Wheeler, Kerr, Gerhold, and Jacobsen, a bill for an act establishing the protecting freedom of conscience from government discrimination Act, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2274, by Shipley, a bill for an act requesting an interim study committee on gender identity, the Iowa civil rights Act of 1965, and suicide by transgender individuals.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2275, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the behavior analyst grants program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2276, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2277, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2278, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the modification of sex offender registry requirements.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2279, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2280, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the individual income tax credits for volunteer fire fighters, volunteer emergency medical services personnel members, and reserve peace officers by increasing the amounts of the credits, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2281, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging under certain circumstances.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2282, by R. Smith and Mitchell, a bill for an act concerning compensation of college athletes and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2283, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to the organization, composition, meeting, and reporting requirements of health-related commissions, councils, and boards and including transition provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2284, by Prichard, Abdul-Samad, Anderson, Bearinger, Bennett, Breckenridge, Brown-Powers, Cohoon, Derry, Donahue, Ehlert, Forbes, Gaskill, Hall, Hunter, Isenhardt, Jacoby, James, Judge,

Kacena, Konfrst, Kressig, Gaines, Lensing, Mascher, Matson, McConkey, McKean, B. Meyer, Nielsen, Oldson, Olson, Kurth, M. Smith, R. Smith, Staed, Steckman, Sunde, Thede, Wessel-Kroeschell, Wilburn, Williams, Winckler, and Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to state child care assistance, including income eligibility and waiting list guidelines and copayment requirements.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2285, by Wheeler, a bill for an act relating to the circumstances under which a grandparent or great-grandparent may petition for grandparent and great-grandparent visitation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2286, by Olson, a bill for an act prohibiting cities from annexing certain agricultural land, and providing applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2287, by Deyoe, a bill for an act relating to the registration of canoes and kayaks.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2288, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to nominations of certain persons for political office, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2289, by McKean, a bill for an act relating to voluntary campaign expenditure limitations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2290, by Prichard, Konfrst, Wessel-Kroeschell, B. Meyer, Oldson, Steckman, M. Smith, Brown-Powers, Williams, Matson, Donahue, McConkey, Staed, Kurth, McKean, James, Kacena, Breckenridge, Jacoby, Olson, Sunde, Isenhart, Thede, Gaines, Hunter,

Cohoon, Derry, Wilburn, Hall, Nielsen, Bennett, Judge, Ehlert, Wolfe, Forbes, Anderson, Mascher, Winckler, R. Smith, Abdul-Samad, Gaskill, and Lensing, a bill for an act providing small businesses with income, franchise, moneys and credits, and gross premiums tax credits for providing child care benefits to employees of the small business, and including applicability date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2291, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the authority of the college student aid commission to organize a nonprofit corporation.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2082, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of education and the department of education to reflect current practices, technology, and titles, to delete redundancies, and to resolve inconsistencies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

Senate File 2095, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act allowing county attorneys and assistant county attorneys to obtain a professional permit to carry weapons.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2134, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

Senate File 2144, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

BOARD OF PHARMACY

Prescription Monitoring Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 124.554.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS

Collaboration for Youth Development Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 216A.140.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT

Early Childhood Iowa State Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256I.4.

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Natural Resource Commission Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455A.5.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2198

Agriculture: Sieck, Chair; Gerhold and Wolfe.

House File 2248

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Lohse and Wolfe.

House File 2253

Commerce: Lundgren, Chair; Bloomingdale and Forbes.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendation has been received and is on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

House File 2097, a bill for an act requiring the installation and maintenance of adult changing stations at highway rest areas.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 6, 2020, placed on calendar.

On motion by Jones of Clay, the House adjourned at 8:27 a.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, February 10, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Twenty-ninth Calendar Day - Eighteenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, February 10, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:04 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Dan Gerrietts, Trinity Lutheran Church, Mason City. He was the guest of Steckman of Cerro Gordo.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Iowa City High School students from iJAG. They were the guests of Mascher of Johnson.

The Journal of Friday, February 7, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2292, by Wheeler, a bill for an act authorizing the establishment of a nontraditional educator preparation program by a private provider, the issuance of an interim license or endorsement to program participants by the board of educational examiners, and the employment of program participants as teachers in Iowa's schools.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2293, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to allocations made within the grants to counties water well program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Environmental Protection**.

House File 2294, by Isenhart, a bill for an act requiring the inspection of a private well serving a building upon the transfer of ownership of the building.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Environmental Protection**.

House File 2295, by Upmeyer, a bill for an act relating to transfer between trusts for persons with disabilities.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2296, by Salmon, a bill for an act relating to child fatality protocol and alleged child abuse.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2297, by Isenhardt, a bill for an act requiring that contractors and subcontractors performing work on housing programs administered by the Iowa finance authority comply with applicable federal and state laws relating to labor and employment, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2298, by Abdul-Samad, Gaines, Wilburn, Thede, and R. Smith, a bill for an act providing for minority impact statements to be attached to appropriations bills and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2299, by Landon, a bill for an act relating to notification of the general assembly concerning certain state government leases and real property acquisitions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2300, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act concerning funding authority for training, education, and related expenses of county veteran service officers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2301, by Jones, a bill for an act relating to unlicensed and unregistered child care facilities exceeding the maximum number of children authorized to be in care.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2302, by Mascher, Anderson, Cohoon, Steckman, Konfrst, Hunter, Lensing, Bennett, Thede, Winckler, Wessel-Kroeschell, Brown-Powers, Kurth, Wolfe, Gaines, Olson, Kacena, and B. Meyer, a bill for an act creating the our care, our options Act, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2303, by Upmeyer, Hinson, Salmon, Huseman, Gassman, Mommsen, Wills, Paustian, Worthan, Kerr, Fisher, Thompson, Klein, Deyoe, Zumbach, Running-Marquardt, Thorup, Jacobsen, Bacon, Carlson, Hein, Jones, Sorensen, Windschitl, Prichard, Sexton, Fry, Holt, Grassley, Shipley, Osmundson, Bloomingdale, Landon, Bossman, Hagenow, Gerhold, Moore, Donahue, McKean, Kaufmann, Steckman, Hite, Maxwell, Baxter, Gustafson, Dolecheck, Lohse, and Bergan, a bill for an act requiring consideration of anti-Semitism by governmental entities when investigating possible discriminatory acts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2304, by Upmeyer, a bill for an act relating to the advertising, promoting, and conducting of certain live musical performances, and providing civil penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2305, by Winckler, Isenhardt, and James, a bill for an act relating to human trafficking prevention training, by providing for certification of lodging providers who have voluntarily completed training and prohibiting the use of public funds to procure lodging, facilities, or services from noncertified lodging providers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2306, by Paustian, a bill for an act relating to public safety nuisances concerning licensed premises where alcoholic beverages, wine, or beer is sold or consumed.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2307, by Mascher, a bill for an act relating to cigarettes, tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, and vapor products, and including taxation of such products.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2308, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the definition of meeting and public notice requirements under the open meetings law.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2309, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the regulation by counties and cities of certain conditions of employment, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2310, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act removing the requirement to obtain a permit for vehicles or combinations of vehicles of excessive size transporting divisible loads of hay, straw, stover, or bagged livestock bedding that meet certain width, height, and length requirements.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2311, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2312, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act relating to certificate of eligibility affidavits for admission to the veterans home.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2313, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act relating to the military code and duty performed by a member of the United States coast guard.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2314, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2315, by McKean, Staed, Bearinger, McConkey, Abdul-Samad, Jacoby, Donahue, B. Meyer, Gaskill, Shipley, Mascher, Kacena, Kurth, and Wilburn, a bill for an act relating to hospital

practices including those involving sepsis protocols and the rights of a parent of a minor patient.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2316, by Thorup, a bill for an act relating to medication abortions and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2317, by Thorup, a bill for an act relating to the design of county seals.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2318, by Thorup, a bill for an act relating to persons authorized to request assistance pursuant to the statewide mutual aid compact.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2319, by Thorup, a bill for an act relating to the creation and administration of emergency response districts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2320, by Thorup, a bill for an act concerning executive branch employee travel claims.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2321, by Thorup, a bill for an act requiring the department of transportation to collect and store emergency contact information of driver's license applicants.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2322, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act establishing the quad cities regional metropolitan authority and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2323, by Wills, a bill for an act relating to deer hunting by nonresidents on land owned or formerly owned by nonresidents, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 1:26 p.m., until the conclusion of the 3:00 p.m. committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 5:10 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2096, a bill for an act allowing certain emergency medical care providers to obtain a professional permit to carry weapons.

Also: That the Senate has on February 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2097, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable.

Also: That the Senate has on February 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2119, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2120, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program.

Also: That the Senate has on February 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2142, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2164, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2324, by Baxter, Maxwell, Sexton, Gassman, and Bloomingdale, a bill for an act relating to the management of drainage or levee districts, including by providing for objections by landowners and for procedures to make a repair or construct an improvement within a district.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2325, by Maxwell, a bill for an act providing for a notice regarding a hearing to determine how land within a drainage or levee district is to be classified for purposes of assessing that land.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2326, by Maxwell, a bill for an act relating to improvements to land in drainage and levee districts, by providing for the construction or reconstruction of drainage tile lines by railroad companies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2327, by Oldson, Abdul-Samad, Anderson, Bearinger, Bennett, Breckenridge, Brown-Powers, Cohoon, Derry, Donahue, Ehlert, Forbes, Gaskill, Hall, Hunter, Isenhardt, Jacoby, James, Judge, Kacena, Konfrst, Kressig, Prichard, Gaines, Kurtz, Lensing, Mascher, Matson, McConkey, McKean, B. Meyer, Nielsen, Olson, Ourth, Kurth, Running-Marquardt, M. Smith, R. Smith, Staed, Steckman, Sunde, Thede, Wessel-Kroeschell, Wilburn, Williams, Winckler, and Wolfe, a

bill for an act relating to preexisting condition protections and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2328, by Sieck, a bill for an act providing for licensing requirements related to the provision of certain fireworks displays, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2142, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2164, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILL Appropriations Calendar

House File 2244, a bill for an act relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2144 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2244

Mohr of Scott asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2144 for House File 2244.

Senate File 2144, a bill for an act relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

RULE 31.8 SUSPENDED

Sieck of Mills asked and received unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of amendment H-8008, to Senate File 2144, under Rule 31.8 was not timely filed.

Sieck of Mills offered amendment H-8008 filed by Sieck, et al., from the floor.

Isenhart of Dubuque offered amendment H-8012, to amendment H-8008, filed by him from the floor.

Mohr of Scott rose on a point of order that amendment H-8012 was not germane, to amendment H-8008.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8012 not germane, to amendment H-8008.

Sieck of Mills moved the adoption of amendment H-8008.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and Hunter of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8008 be adopted?" (S.F. 2144)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren

Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H–8008 was adopted.

Pursuant to Rule 31.8, relating to the timely filing of amendments, amendment H–8007, filed by McConkey of Pottawattamie and Sieck of Mills from the floor, was placed out of order.

Mohr of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (S.F. 2144)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon

Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGE

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that **Senate File 2144** be immediately messaged to the Senate.

HOUSE FILE WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House File 2244 from further consideration by the House.

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2282, previously referred to committee on **Education** was rereferred to committee on **State Government**.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that Senate File 2134, previously referred to **State Government** was **passed on file**.

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2257 – M. Smith of Marshall

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 659 Human Resources

Authorizing school physicals for preschoolers to be performed by chiropractors.

H.S.B. 660 Human Resources

Relating to fetal deaths including the disposition of bodily remains, and the filing of a fetal death certificate, and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 661 Judiciary

Relating to the crime of disorderly conduct and making penalties applicable.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2146

Agriculture: Wills, Chair; Judge and Maxwell.

House File 2304

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Lohse and Wilburn.

Senate File 2082

Education: Wheeler, Chair; Shipley and Steckman.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 659

Human Resources: Salmon, Chair; Bergan and Derry.

House Study Bill 660

Human Resources: Osmundson, Chair; Bacon and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House Study Bill 661

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 574), relating to the financial exploitation of designated eligible adults, and making an appropriation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2024), relating to the Iowa educational savings plan trust by permitting the use of funds for certain beneficiaries to attend out-of-state elementary or secondary schools, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 559), relating to the reporting of certain assessment scores by approved practitioner preparation programs and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 706), relating to replacement of the term visitation with the term parenting time relative to time awarded to a parent.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 537), relating to judicial motions and causes of action arising from a person's participation in matters of public significance.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 580), concerning the implantation or insertion of microchips or other devices in employees by employers.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON LABOR

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 601), relating to certain appeals by nonprofit organizations concerning reimbursement of the department of workforce development for the cost of unemployment benefits.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 603), relating to unemployment insurance contribution rates for certain landscaping employers.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 604), relating to injunctions issued to employers for certain violations of the state unemployment insurance law.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 605), relating to certain notifications issued by the department of workforce development concerning claims for unemployment benefits.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 217), establishing a lifetime trout fishing license for certain older Iowans.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2133), relating to the hunting of black bears, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 10, 2020.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8007	S.F.	2144	McConkey of Pottawattamie Sieck of Mills
H-8008	S.F.	2144	Sieck of Mills McConkey of Pottawattamie Hanusa of Pottawattamie Jacobsen of Pottawattamie Mohr of Scott
H-8009	H.F.	2245	Dolecheck of Ringgold
H-8010	H.F.	2243	Dolecheck of Ringgold
H-8011	S.F.	2142	Dolecheck of Ringgold
H-8012	S.F.	2144	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8013	S.F.	2164	Gassman of Winnebago
H-8014	S.F.	2142	R. Smith of Black Hawk Winckler of Scott

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 5:47 p.m., until 8:30 am., Tuesday, February 11, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Thirtieth Calendar Day - Nineteenth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, February 11, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:33 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Bishop William Joensen, Diocese of Des Moines. He was the guest of Forbes of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Holden Sisco, Page from Des Moines.

The Journal of Monday, February 10, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2329, by Donahue, Gaines, and Staed, a bill for an act requiring annual volunteer service by high school students and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2330, by Fry, a bill for an act relating to authorized health professional relationships.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2096, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act allowing certain emergency medical care providers to obtain a professional permit to carry weapons.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

Senate File 2097, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2119, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

Senate File 2120, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

The House stood at ease at 8:49 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 9:24 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2331, by Isenhart, Winckler, and R. Smith, a bill for an act relating to the use of moneys administered by the Iowa energy center for energy efficiency investments and the construction of specified renewable energy generation facilities.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2332, by Staed, a bill for an act relating to the use of single-use plastic bags, containers, and straws, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Environmental Protection**.

House File 2333, by Thorup, a bill for an act relating to confidential communications between a peer support group counselor and specified individuals.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2334, by Thorup, a bill for an act establishing a task force relating to the reunification of an unaccompanied child with the child's parent, guardian, or custodian following a natural disaster.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2335, by Anderson, a bill for an act creating a crude oil disaster prevention and response fee, and providing for the deposit of the fees in certain water quality funds.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Appropriations Calendar

House File 2245, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Dolecheck of Ringgold asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8004 filed by him on February 6, 2020.

Dolecheck of Ringgold offered amendment H-8009 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8009 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2164 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2245

Dolecheck of Ringgold asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2164 for House File 2245.

Senate File 2164, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil

and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Gassman of Winnebago asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8013 filed by him on February 10, 2020.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2164)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, 1:

Shiplely

Absent or not voting, 1:

Meyer, B.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

House File 2243, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

M. Smith of Marshall asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8006 filed by him, et al., on February 6, 2020.

Dolecheck of Ringgold offered amendment H-8010 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by R. Smith of Black Hawk and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8010 be adopted?" (H.F. 2243)

The ayes were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

The nays were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart

Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 1:

Meyer, B.

Amendment H-8010 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2142 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2243

Dolecheck of Ringgold asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2142 for House File 2243.

Senate File 2142, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Dolecheck of Ringgold offered amendment H-8011 filed by him.

R. Smith of Black Hawk offered amendment H-8014, to amendment H-8011, filed by him and Winckler of Scott.

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that Senate File 2142 be deferred and that the bill retain its place on the calendar. (amendment H-8014, to amendment H-8011 pending)

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 9:59 a.m., until 11:30 a.m.

MORNING SESSION

The House reconvened at 11:40 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

The House resumed consideration of Senate File 2142, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of

growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions, previously deferred and placed on the unfinished business calendar. (amendment H-8014, to amendment H-8011 pending)

R. Smith of Black Hawk moved amendment H-8014, to amendment H-8011, filed by him and Winckler of Scott, previously deferred.

Roll call was requested by R. Smith of Black Hawk and Prichard of Floyd.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8014, to amendment H-8011, be adopted?" (S.F. 2142)

The ayes were, 47:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

The nays were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H-8014, to amendment H-8011, lost.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved the adoption of amendment H-8011.

Roll call was requested by Windschitl of Harrison and Hagenow of Dallas.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8011 be adopted?" (S.F. 2142)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 1:

Shipley

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H-8011 was adopted.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2142)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 48:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Shiple	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Meyer, B. of Polk

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2336, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act relating to the crime of invasion of privacy.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2337, by Gassman, a bill for an act exempting pay received for providing certain child care services, and creating an additional personal exemption credit against the individual income tax, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2338, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2339, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to judicial motions and causes of action arising from a person's participation in matters of public significance.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2340, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa educational savings plan trust by permitting the use of funds for certain beneficiaries to attend out-of-state elementary or secondary schools, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2341, by committee on Natural Resources, a bill for an act relating to the hunting of black bears, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **Senate Files 2142** and **2164**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2243 and 2245 from further consideration by the House.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 12:20 p.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 4:37 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2342, by Isenhart, Mascher, Lensing, Kressig, B. Meyer, Wolfe, Cohoon, Forbes, M. Smith, Donahue, Winckler, Ehlert, Hunter, Kurtz, Bearinger, McKean, Staed, Williams, Ourth, Steckman, Wilburn, Anderson, Kacena, Kurth, R. Smith, Nielsen, Abdul-Samad, Sunde, Gaines, McConkey, Wessel-Kroeschell, Brown-Powers, James, Gaskill, Prichard, and Bennett, a bill for an act appropriating moneys to the Iowa resources enhancement and protection fund.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2343, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to the control of contaminants in public drinking water supply systems, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Environmental Protection**.

House File 2344, by Thede, Shipley, Hunter, and Kurtz, a bill for an act relating to filing requirements for property tax exemptions for certain societies and organizations and including effective date, applicability, and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 662 Judiciary

Relating to interpreters for limited-English-proficient, deaf, and hard-of-hearing persons in certain court proceedings.

H.S.B. 663 State Government

Concerning the sale and off-premises transportation and consumption of certain containers of wine.

H.S.B. 664 State Government

Relating to the conduct of elections, including procedures for proposed amendments to the Iowa Constitution, the issuance of bonds, self-promotion with taxpayer funds, voter registration, and absentee ballots, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 665 Transportation

Regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles.

H.S.B. 666 Education

Relating to modified supplemental amounts for at-risk, returning dropout, and dropout prevention programs.

H.S.B. 667 Commerce

Providing that certain multi-story commercial buildings are not required to have commercial elevators in specified circumstances.

H.S.B. 668 Natural Resources

Relating to nonresident deer hunting on land owned or formerly owned by nonresidents, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 669 Natural Resources

Relating to nonresident deer hunting, creating a special nonresident hunting license, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 670 Ways and Means

Relating to certain tax incentive and tax credit programs administered by the economic development authority and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 671 Ways and Means

Relating to certain tax credits awarded by the economic development authority for equity investments in qualifying businesses or innovation funds and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 672 Human Resources

Relating to informed consent for medication abortions, and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 673 Ways and Means

Allowing counties to collect a fee for the issuance and renewal of driver's licenses and nonoperator's identification cards to persons who reside outside the county.

H.S.B. 674 Local Government

Relating to a construction manager-at-risk commercial construction alternative delivery method and prohibiting certain other alternative delivery methods in the public sector.

H.S.B. 675 Local Government

Relating to limitations on public school district bond elections and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 676 Local Government

Regarding the registration and titling of motor vehicles, including by providing for registration and titling by any county treasurer and by modifying related fees and the amount of fees retained by county treasurers.

H.S.B. 677 Local Government

Relating to the validity of certificates of the treasurer.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 40 Reassigned**

Judiciary: Jacobsen, Chair; Hite and Wolfe.

House File 47

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Kaufmann and Olson.

House File 2023

Ways and Means: Jones, Chair; Hite and McConkey.

House File 2187

Human Resources: Bergan, Chair; Forbes and Lundgren.

House File 2205

Local Government: Lohse, Chair; Jones and McKean.

House File 2217

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Donahue and Lundgren.

House File 2230

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Kurtz and Mitchell.

House File 2251

Transportation: Huseman, Chair; Konfrst and Sieck.

House File 2252

Ways and Means: Bloomingdale, Chair; James and Jones.

House File 2259

Public Safety: Mohr, Chair; Breckenridge and Thorup.

House File 2260

Transportation: Sieck, Chair; Isenhardt and Worthan.

House File 2266

State Government: Bossman, Chair; Derry and Mitchell.

House File 2282

State Government: Mitchell, Chair; Nielsen and Sorensen.

House File 2283

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Forbes and A. Meyer.

House File 2290

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2295

Human Resources: Bergan, Chair; Brink and Derry.

House File 2296

Human Resources: Salmon, Chair; Brink and Sunde.

House File 2299

State Government: Deyoe, Chair; Anderson and Bergan.

House File 2306

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Deyoe and Konfrst.

House File 2307

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2320

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Bossman and Steckman.

House File 2322

Ways and Means: Bloomingdale, Chair; Kaufmann and Kurth.

House File 2330

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Forbes and Moore.

House File 2335

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

Senate File 604

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 662**

Judiciary: Gustafson, Chair; Hite and B. Meyer.

House Study Bill 663

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Bloomingdale and Lensing.

House Study Bill 664

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Hunter and Sexton.

House Study Bill 665

Transportation: Worthan, Chair; Kurtz and Landon.

House Study Bill 666

Education: Moore, Chair; James and A. Meyer.

House Study Bill 667

Commerce: Landon, Chair; McConkey and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 668

Natural Resources: Baxter, Chair; Ourth and Shipley.

House Study Bill 669

Natural Resources: Bacon, Chair; Sieck and Staed.

House Study Bill 670

Ways and Means: Bloomingdale, Chair; Brown-Powers and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 671

Ways and Means: Bloomingdale, Chair; Brown-Powers and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 672

Human Resources: Lundgren, Chair; Fry and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House Study Bill 673

Ways and Means: Maxwell, Chair; Hein and Hunter.

House Study Bill 674

Local Government: Bossman, Chair; Hunter and Lohse.

House Study Bill 675

Local Government: Jeneary, Chair; Gaskill and Gassman.

House Study Bill 676

Local Government: Hanusa, Chair; Jones and Kressig.

House Study Bill 677

Local Government: Hite, Chair; Konfrst and Shipley.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 512), relating to wagering taxes imposed on promotional play receipts.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 546), relating to the qualifications necessary for an applicant for licensure as a professional engineer.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 556), providing that a licensed veterinarian is immune from administrative, civil, or criminal liability in investigations or proceedings involving the mistreatment of animals.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 568), relating to the rulemaking process for executive branch agencies and including transition provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2119), relating to the use of an electronic communication device in a voice-activated or hands-free mode while driving, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 563), regarding the expiration of driver's licenses of persons who are age seventy-two or over.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 560), relating to confidentiality concerning individuals allowed a disabled veteran tax credit.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

AMENDMENT FILED

H-8015 H.F. 2313 Hagenow of Dallas

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 4:38 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, February 12, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Thirty-first Calendar Day - Twentieth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, February 12, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:31 a.m., Lundgren of Dubuque in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Stephen Wonbenyakeh, Alice Church of Des Moines and Serve Africa Ministry. He was the guest of Baxter of Hancock.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jenna Smyth, Page from Bondurant.

The Journal of Tuesday, February 11, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House Joint Resolution 2002, by Jacobsen, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to terms of office of members of the general assembly and sessions of the general assembly.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House Joint Resolution 2003, by Jacobsen, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the gubernatorial line of succession.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2345, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the financial exploitation of designated eligible adults, and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2346, by Isenhart and Bearinger, a bill for an act providing for a healthy soils and watersheds initiative, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2347, by Ehlert, Kurth, Gaines, Staed, and Matson, a bill for an act requiring school districts and accredited nonpublic schools to develop and establish a policy limiting the use of smartphones in classroom learning environments.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2348, by Hunter, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa core standards for social studies and providing for regular review and revision of the standards and related administrative rules.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2349, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act establishing the language equality and acquisition for deaf kids task force.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2350, by Landon, a bill for an act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2351, by Lohse, Kaufmann, Mitchell, Bossman, Holt, Lundgren, Landon, Gerhold, Judge, Matson, James, Breckenridge, Hall, Forbes, Nielsen, and R. Smith, a bill for an act relating to property law by modifying provisions relating to rental properties, manufactured home communities, mobile home parks, and manufactured mobile home communities, modifying provisions governing actions relating to such properties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2352, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to personal injury to a viable fetus.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2353, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to permissible honoraria from restricted donors to public officials and public employees and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2354, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to permissible honoraria from restricted donors to public officials and public employees, requiring reporting to the Iowa ethics and campaign disclosure board, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2355, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to green warning special registration plates.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2356, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to the military code and duty performed by a member of the United States coast guard.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Veterans Affairs**.

House File 2357, by Hanusa, a bill for an act relating to filing for specified property tax credits and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2358, by Mommsen, a bill for an act excluding from the computation of net income for state individual income tax purposes the net capital gain from sales of agricultural property located within certain cities to a housing developer, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2359, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the reporting of certain assessment scores by approved practitioner preparation programs.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2360, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act regarding the expiration of driver's licenses of persons who are age seventy-two or over.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2361, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act concerning the implantation or insertion of microchips or other devices in employees by employers.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2362, by committee on Labor, a bill for an act relating to certain appeals by nonprofit organizations concerning reimbursement of the department of workforce development for the cost of unemployment benefits.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2363, by committee on Labor, a bill for an act relating to unemployment insurance contribution rates for certain landscaping employers.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2364, by committee on Labor, a bill for an act relating to injunctions issued to employers for certain violations of the state unemployment insurance law.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2365, by committee on Labor, a bill for an act relating to certain notifications issued by the department of workforce development concerning claims for unemployment benefits.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2366, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to replacement of the term visitation with the term parenting time relative to time awarded to a parent.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2367, by Oldson and Sunde, a bill for an act relating to the creation of an extreme risk protective order against a person in possession of a firearm who presents a significant danger to the person's self or others, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2368, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act requiring rescission of existing regulations by state agencies when new regulations are adopted, providing for approval by the department of management of rulemaking, providing related procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2369, by committee on Natural Resources, a bill for an act establishing a lifetime trout fishing license for certain older Iowans.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SPONSORS ADDED

House File 2148 – Derry of Polk

House File 2346 – Williams of Black Hawk

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 678 Human Resources

Relating to the licensing of abortion facilities, including fees, and providing penalties.

H.S.B. 679 Judiciary

Relating to nonsubstantive Code corrections, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 680 Education

Relating to language and literacy development for deaf and hard-of-hearing children.

H.S.B. 681 Ways and Means

Relating to tax credits awarded by the economic development authority for specific capital contributions made to certified rural business growth funds for investment in qualified businesses.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 2055**

Judiciary: Jones, Chair; Derry and Hagenow.

House File 2065

Appropriations: Brink, Chair; McKean and Sorensen.

House File 2153

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Fisher and Kurth.

House File 2154

Public Safety: Mohr, Chair; Breckenridge and Fry.

House File 2225

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2285

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Lohse and Wolfe.

House File 2292

Education: Wheeler, Chair; Salmon and Winckler.

House File 2300

Appropriations: Fry, Chair; Deyoe and Williams.

House File 2324

Agriculture: Sexton, Chair; Maxwell and R. Smith.

House File 2325

Agriculture: Maxwell, Chair; Sexton and R. Smith.

House File 2326

Agriculture: Maxwell, Chair; Sexton and R. Smith.

House File 2333

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Bennett and Klein.

House File 2334

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Breckenridge and Jeneary.

House File 2336

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Lohse and Olson.

House File 2337

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2344

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2345

Appropriations: Landon, Chair; Deyoe and Hall.

House File 2349

Education: Hanusa, Chair; Gaines and Gassman.

House File 2350

Education: Mommsen, Chair; Kerr and Winckler.

House File 2351

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Kaufmann and Konfrst.

House File 2353

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Anderson and Mitchell.

House File 2354

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Anderson and Mitchell.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 678**

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; James and A. Meyer.

House Study Bill 679

Judiciary: Gustafson, Chair; Konfrst and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 680

Education: Salmon, Chair; Gaines and Gassman.

House Study Bill 681

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Carlson and Gaskill.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 530), exempting certain farmers and hired help operating a truck tractor from the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 543), relating to health insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, and providing for fees.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 575), relating to matters involving insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, providing fees, and resolving inconsistencies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 589), relating to the definition of public improvement for public construction bidding purposes.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 607), relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working lowans, a workforce diploma pilot program, computer science instruction, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 614), relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2147), relating to the school budget review committee by authorizing school districts and area education agencies to request revisions to reports and data certified to the department of education or other state agencies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 576), relating to supplementary weighting for limited-English-proficient students and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2026), relating to requirements for physicians providing services at an ambulatory surgical center, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2066), relating to the licensure of ambulatory surgical centers, providing for fees to be considered repayment receipts, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2115), relating to the percentage of students who are residents of Iowa or who attend postsecondary institutions in Iowa and are accepted to graduate and postgraduate studies at the state university of Iowa college of medicine or college of dentistry.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2122), relating to the information to be disclosed by a health care provider as part of a referral of a patient to an ambulatory surgical center, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 535), modifying duties to prescribe practices and procedures for implementation of a preapplication screening assessment program relating to the involuntary commitment or treatment of a person with a substance-related disorder.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 529), relating to the resignations of registered agents serving certain business entities.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 577), proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa that nothing in the Constitution of the State of Iowa shall be construed to recognize, grant, or secure a right to abortion or to require the public funding of abortion.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 682), relating to the public safety equipment fund, providing for voluntary contributions to the fund, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 571), relating to participation in the sobriety and drug monitoring program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 11, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

House File 2033, a bill for an act requiring a road or street to meet certain requirements prior to a transfer of jurisdiction from the department of transportation to a county board of supervisors.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 11, 2020, placed on calendar.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.R. 102, by Williams, Gaines, Bennett, Steckman, Kressig, Staed, Derry, Judge, Gaskill, Brown-Powers, Anderson, Wilburn, McConkey, Matson, Kurth, M. Smith, Kacena, Thede, Mascher, Wessel-Kroeschell, Sunde, Isenhardt, Konfrst, Hunter, James, Cohoon, Oldson, Jacoby, Ehlert, Ourth, McKean, B. Meyer, Lensing, Donahue, Hall, Winckler, Abdul-Samad, Bearinger, R. Smith, Wolfe, Breckenridge, Running-Marquardt, Nielsen, Olson, Forbes, Kurtz, Prichard, Dolecheck, Huseman, Bergan, Salmon, Maxwell, Baxter, Osmundson, Gassman, Mohr, Jones, Moore,

Holt, Wheeler, Sieck, Sorensen, Shipley, Mommsen, Jeneary, Worthan, A. Meyer, Lohse, Paustian, Brink, Bacon, Grassley, Thompson, Bossman, Windschitl, Landon, Hagenow, and Hite, a resolution celebrating July 2, 2019, as the 100th anniversary of the State of Iowa ratifying the Nineteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:50 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, February 13, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Thirty-second Calendar Day - Twenty-first Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, February 13, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Dr. Randy Ehrhardt, Senior Pastor of West Des Moines Christian Church, West Des Moines. He was the guest of Sunde of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Reese Wieland from Aurelia. She was the guest of Huseman of Cherokee.

The Journal of Wednesday, February 12, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 12, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2144, a bill for an act relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2370, by Matson, a bill for an act requiring the director of the department of education to establish a low-income student and poverty weighting work group.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2371, by McKean, Staed, Kurtz, Wilburn, Anderson, Judge, Hunter, Kurth, Donahue, James, M. Smith, Derry, Gaskill, Cohoon, Wolfe, B. Meyer, Prichard, Oldson, Steckman, Thede, Nielsen, Williams, Gaines, Breckenridge, Konfrst, Matson, Brown-Powers, Shipley, McConkey, Isenhardt, Jacoby, Kressig, Kacena, Sunde, Hall, and Bearinger, a bill for an act relating to campaign finance, including expenditures, attribution statements, and reports, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2372, by committee on Agriculture, a bill for an act exempting certain farmers and hired help operating a special truck from the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2373, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the qualifications necessary for an applicant for licensure as a professional engineer.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2374, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act providing that a licensed veterinarian is immune from administrative, civil, or criminal liability in investigations or proceedings involving the mistreatment of animals.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2375, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to the use of an electronic communication device in a voice-activated or hands-free mode while driving, and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2376, by Baxter, a bill for an act providing for the regulation of commercial establishments maintaining certain animals, providing fees, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2377, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to the public safety equipment fund, providing for voluntary contributions to the fund, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2378, by Ehlert, Matson, Donahue, Staed, Wolfe, Kressig, Steckman, Mascher, Anderson, Gaskill, McKean, and Gaines, a bill for an act establishing an exception to the number of children allowed to be present for child care at any one time in a child development home under certain conditions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2379, by Thompson, a bill for an act creating a city enforcement surcharge.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

House File 2380, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to promotional play receipts, gambling games, and sports wagering.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2381, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act modifying duties to prescribe practices and procedures for implementation of a preapplication screening assessment program relating to the involuntary commitment or treatment of a person with a substance-related disorder.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2382, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act relating to confidentiality concerning individuals allowed a disabled veteran tax credit and military tax exemption.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2383, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the percentage of students who are residents of Iowa or

who attend postsecondary institutions in Iowa and are accepted to graduate and postgraduate studies at the state university of Iowa college of medicine or college of dentistry and requiring a report relating to the graduates and residents of such colleges.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

ADOPTION OF HOUSE RESOLUTION 102

Windschitl of Harrison called up for consideration House Resolution 102, a resolution celebrating July 2, 2019, as the 100th anniversary of the State of Iowa ratifying the Nineteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

Williams of Black Hawk moved the adoption of House Resolution 102.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

Williams of Black Hawk introduced to the House, former legislator Doris Kelley.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:46 a.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 2:34 p.m., Holt of Crawford in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2384, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working Iowans, a workforce diploma pilot program, computer science instruction, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2385, by Gaines, a bill for an act requiring that the United States history unit requirement under the state's educational standards include instruction in African American history.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2386, by Gaines, a bill for an act directing the state board of education to adopt rules prohibiting school districts and accredited nonpublic schools from using seclusion rooms to isolate, confine, or detain students.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2387, by Upmeyer, a bill for an act relating to speech and expression at certain eligible institutions and accredited private institutions of higher education, and providing for remedies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2388, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to matters involving insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, providing fees, and resolving inconsistencies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2389, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the rulemaking process for executive branch agencies and including transition provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2390, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to emergency care policy and procedure requirements applicable to an ambulatory surgical center.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SPONSORS ADDED

House File 2259 – Isenhart of Dubuque

House File 2349 – Staed of Linn

BILL SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on February 13, 2020, the following bill was approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

Senate File 2144, an Act relating to financial and regulatory matters by making and supplementing appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and including effective date provisions.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Comprehensive Public Safety Answering Point Cost and Expenditure Data Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 34A.7A.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Medicaid Managed Care Oversight Report, pursuant to Chapter 1139.93, 2016 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Debt Collection Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 421.17.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 682 Veterans Affairs

Relating to county commissions of veteran affairs training and making an appropriation.

H.S.B. 683 State Government

Establishing a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit.

H.S.B. 684 Agriculture

Relating to the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, including by providing for administration,

programs, and regulations, providing fees, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 685 Human Resources

Related to pharmacy benefits managers and prescription drug prices, and including applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 686 Economic Growth

Providing for a study regarding the identification, establishment, and promotion of state historical sites, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 687 Economic Growth

Requiring a study and report on revitalizing and updating rest areas.

H.S.B. 688 State Government

Relating to career and technical education programs offered by a community college and by other private educational or vocational institutions in the merged area.

H.S.B. 689 Agriculture

Relating to the renewable fuel infrastructure program for retail motor fuel sites, by providing for the award of standard financial incentives to participating persons.

H.S.B. 690 Local Government

Relating to the authority of counties and cities to regulate rental housing, and including effective date provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2153 Reassigned

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Fisher and Kurtz.

House File 2286

Local Government: Gassman, Chair; Jeneary and McKean.

House File 2303

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Kaufmann and B. Meyer.

House File 2318

Local Government: Thompson, Chair; Hanusa and Kacena.

House File 2321

Transportation: Thorup, Chair; Konfrst and Maxwell.

House File 2355

Transportation: Sieck, Chair; Konfrst and A. Meyer.

House File 2378

Human Resources: Best, Chair; Bergan and Ehlert.

Senate File 442 Reassigned

Transportation: Worthan, Chair; Huseman and Kressig.

Senate File 478 Reassigned

Transportation: Huseman, Chair; Kressig and Worthan.

Senate File 620

Ways and Means: Wheeler, Chair; Carlson and Jacoby.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 661 Reassigned**

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Klein and Wolfe.

House Study Bill 678 Reassigned

Human Resources: Brink, Chair; A. Meyer and Wessel-Kroeschell.

House Study Bill 682

Veterans Affairs: Sorensen, Chair; Jeneary and M. Smith.

House Study Bill 683

State Government: Lundgren, Chair; Lensing and Sexton.

House Study Bill 684

Agriculture: Mommsen, Chair; Baxter and Isenhardt.

House Study Bill 685

Human Resources: Best, Chair; Forbes and A. Meyer.

House Study Bill 686

Economic Growth: Wheeler, Chair; Gassman and Ourth.

House Study Bill 687

Economic Growth: Lohse, Chair; Brink and Gaskill.

House Study Bill 688

State Government: Bossman, Chair; Bergan and Konfrst.

House Study Bill 689

Agriculture: Klein, Chair; Bearinger and Hein.

House Study Bill 690

Local Government: Jones, Chair; Bossman and Staed.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2089), relating to continuity of care and nonmedical switching by health carriers, health benefit plans, and utilization review organizations, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2157), relating to requirements for licensees under the purview of the dental board relating to orthodontia services.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2203), establishing a graduated eligibility phase-out program for state child care assistance.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2262), relating to health data including the collection and use of hospital data and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

House File 326, a bill for an act relating to damages assessed for engaging in prohibited actions involving eagles, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 12, 2020, placed on calendar.

Senate File 537, a bill for an act relating to taking coyotes while using an artificial source of light.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 12, 2020, placed on calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 564), relating to apparel requirements for persons passing through public land or water during a muzzleloading season, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 565), allowing resident seniors with lifetime hunting licenses to be issued special senior statewide antlerless deer only crossbow deer hunting licenses.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 12, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 570), relating to background checks for employees of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 609), relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 611), relating to the requirements for a sex offender to be granted a modification of sex offender registry requirements.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 617), relating to the penalty for public employees and public officials ordered to pay restitution to a public employer.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 619), relating to the establishment of a disaster recovery homeowner assistance program and fund administered by the Iowa finance authority, transfers of moneys to certain funds, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 622), relating to filing complaints with the Iowa public information board.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 631), relating to county emergency medical services by modifying provisions relating to optional taxes for emergency medical services.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 633), relating to the treatment of adoptive parent employees and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 526), relating to motor vehicles, including the surrender or transfer of registration plates and cards to a county treasurer, documentary fees charged by motor vehicle dealers, and motor vehicle franchise obligations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 630), relating to low-speed electric bicycles, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 597), relating to the approval procedures for claims for the military service property tax exemption and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 637), relating to eligibility for a property tax exemption for certain property of veterans associations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 13, 2020.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.C.R. 106, by Wills, Fisher, Deyoe, Salmon, Grassley, Windschitl, Brink, Huseman, Thorup, Sexton, Zumbach, M. Smith, McConkey, Maxwell, Gustafson, Wheeler, Jacoby, Kurth, Fry, Lohse, Holt, Ourth, Bennett, Breckenridge, Hanusa, Gerhold, Best, Paustian, Klein, A. Meyer, Thompson, Mommsen, Sorensen, Carlson, Bergan,

Osmundson, Hite, Kerr, Hein, Jeneary, Moore, Dolecheck, Baxter, Worthan, and Running-Marquardt, a concurrent resolution honoring the memory of Harold Keller as one of the Marines who raised the United States flag at Iwo Jima.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 2:36 p.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, February 17, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Thirty-sixth Calendar Day - Twenty-second Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, February 17, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:02 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

“Amazing Grace” was played by bagpiper Ron Husted. He was the guest of Breckenridge of Jasper and Maxwell of Poweshiek.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Hayden and Harper Carlson from Kansas City. They are the grandchildren of Carlson of Muscatine.

The Journal of Thursday, February 13, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 13, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate Joint Resolution 2001, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa to protect life by declaring that the Constitution of the State of Iowa shall not be construed to recognize, grant, or secure a right to abortion or to require the public funding of abortion.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House Joint Resolution 2004, by committee on Judiciary, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa that nothing in the Constitution of the State of Iowa shall be construed to recognize, grant, or secure a right to abortion or to require the public funding of abortion.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2391, by Hall, a bill for an act relating to a mental health awareness course requirement for students in secondary school.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2392, by Landon, a bill for an act relating to in-person visits to facilities under the purview of the office of long-term care ombudsman.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2393, by Staed, a bill for an act requiring the department of natural resources to monitor microcystins and cylindrospermopsin in bodies of water used for recreational purposes.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Environmental Protection**.

House File 2394, by Winckler, a bill for an act relating to the declaration and bylaws for residential condominiums, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2395, by Hanusa, a bill for an act modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2396, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to the terminology used in relation to the deaf and hard-of-hearing persons.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2397, by Jacobsen, a bill for an act relating to closed captioning in places of public accommodation, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2398, by Wolfe, a bill for an act relating to the possession of firearms, offensive weapons, and ammunition by persons

arrested for or convicted of committing harassment involving a threat to commit a forcible felony and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2399, by Landon, a bill for an act relating to replacement of state patrol vehicles.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2400, by Isenhart, Williams, Brown-Powers, Kressig, R. Smith, Bearinger, and James, a bill for an act providing for a feasibility study regarding a certain passenger rail service, and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2401, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the licensure of ambulatory surgical centers, providing for fees to be considered repayment receipts, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2402, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the resignations of registered agents serving certain business entities.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2403, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to health insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, and providing for fees.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2404, by committee on Natural Resources, a bill for an act relating to apparel requirements for persons passing through public land or water during a muzzleloading season, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2405, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the information to be provided by a health care provider as part of a referral of a patient to an ambulatory surgical center, and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2406, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a disaster recovery homeowner assistance program and fund administered by the Iowa finance authority, transfers of moneys to certain funds, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2407, by Hinson, a bill for an act exempting from the sales and use tax the services provided by a municipally owned parking facility, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2408, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to motor vehicles, including the surrender or transfer of registration plates and cards to a county treasurer, documentary fees charged by motor vehicle dealers, and motor vehicle franchise obligations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2409, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to low-speed electric bicycles, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2410, by committee on Natural Resources, a bill for an act relating to the issuance of special senior statewide antlerless deer only crossbow deer hunting licenses.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2411, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to participation in the sobriety and drug monitoring program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2412, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the definition of public improvement for public construction bidding purposes.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2413, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2414, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to the requirements for a sex offender to be granted a modification of sex offender registry requirements.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2415, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2416, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to filing complaints with the Iowa public information board.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2417, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the treatment of adoptive parent employees and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2418, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to certain information in proceedings before the director of the department of education and the board of educational examiners.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2419, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to supplementary weighting for limited-English-proficient students and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2420, by Steckman, a bill for an act providing for the sale of wild mushrooms by retail food services.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2421, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act relating to the approval procedures for claims for the military service property tax exemption and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2422, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act relating to eligibility for a property tax exemption for certain property of veterans associations.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2423, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to continuity of care and nonmedical switching by health carriers, health benefit plans, and utilization review organizations, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2424, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act establishing a graduated eligibility phase-out program for state child care assistance.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate Joint Resolution 2001, by committee on State Government, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa to protect life by declaring that the Constitution of the State of Iowa shall not be construed to recognize, grant, or secure a right to abortion or to require the public funding of abortion.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 691 Judiciary

Providing for business corporations, providing for certain fees, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 692 Judiciary

Relating to statutory corrections which may adjust language to reflect current practices, insert earlier omissions, delete redundancies and inaccuracies, delete temporary language, resolve inconsistencies and conflicts, update ongoing provisions, or remove ambiguities, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 693 Judiciary

Relating to the defense of justification for certain homicide offenses.

H.S.B. 694 Judiciary

Relating to crime victims, including the collection of evidence in sexual abuse cases and the establishment of an automated tracking system involving sexual abuse evidence collection kits.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2006

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Jacobsen and Wolfe.

House File 2010

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Jacobsen and Wolfe.

House File 2118

Human Resources: Bacon, Chair; Brown-Powers and Lundgren.

House File 2153 Reassigned

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Fisher and Kurth.

House File 2328

State Government: Moore, Chair; Jacobsen and Steckman.

House File 2370

Education: Moore, Chair; Matson and Wheeler.

House File 2379

Local Government: Thompson, Chair; Jeneary and Konfrst.

House File 2387

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Kaufmann and Wolfe.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 691**

Judiciary: Jacobsen, Chair; Bergan and Derry.

House Study Bill 692

Judiciary: Jacobsen, Chair; Bergan and Konfrst.

House Study Bill 693

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Bennett and Jones.

House Study Bill 694

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Jacobsen and Wessel-Kroeschell.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8016	H.F.	2138	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8017	H.F.	2097	Staed of Linn

H-8018	H.F.	2213	Shipley of Van Buren
H-8019	H.F.	2213	Shipley of Van Buren
H-8020	H.F.	2213	Shipley of Van Buren

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 1:25 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Tuesday, February 18, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Thirty-seventh Calendar Day - Twenty-third Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, February 18, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Isaak Wangler, Abundant Life Ministries, Jefferson. He was the guest of Thompson of Greene.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Carson Hoffman, member of the United State Naval Sea Cadets from Liscomb. He was the guest of Thompson of Greene.

The Journal of Monday, February 17, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2425, by Shipley, a bill for an act requiring that school districts include a life-affirming message on student identification cards and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2426, by Hall, Ehlert, Jacoby, Kacena, Kressig, Bearer, McKean, Konfrst, Gaskill, Forbes, Judge, Staed, Steckman, Sunde, Brown-Powers, Kurth, Wilburn, Nielsen, Oldson, Mascher, and Williams, a bill for an act relating to state and school antiharassment and antibullying policies, providing for a competitive grant program to provide related training, and providing for a school climate and bullying prevention work group.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2427, by Prichard, a bill for an act relating to the national guard service scholarship program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2428, by Ehlert, Kurth, Steckman, and Donahue, a bill for an act relating to child care facilities, including licensing and registration, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2429, by Osmundson, a bill for an act relating to the awarding of joint custody and joint physical care.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2430, by Wheeler, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a cold case investigation unit within the department of public safety.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2431, by Shipley, a bill for an act eliminating controlled, counterfeit, simulated, imitation, and precursor substance-related criminal offenses and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2432, by Judge, a bill for an act relating to the manufacture, sale, and consumption of certain products containing hemp, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2433, by Baxter, Hinson, A. Meyer, Mitchell, McKean, Kaufmann, Wolfe, Osmundson, Olson, and Gassman, a bill for an act creating a life imprisonment review committee to recommend commutation or reconsideration of a sentence of a class "A" felon serving a sentence of life imprisonment without the possibility of parole.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2434, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to county emergency medical services by modifying provisions relating to optional taxes for emergency medical services.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2435, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to background checks for employees and students of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2436, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the penalty for public employees and public officials taking money from a public employer.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2437, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to requirements for licensees under the purview of the dental board relating to orthodontia services.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2438, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to health data including the collection and use of hospital data and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

COMMITTEE REVISIONS

The Speaker announced the following changes to committee assignments effective February 17, 2020:

Ethics

Lensing replaced M. Smith

Government Oversight

Olson replaced M. Smith

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 695 Ways and Means

Relating to property tax classifications, credits, assessment limitations,

exemptions, and administration, making appropriations, and including effective date, applicability, and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 696 Ways and Means

Relating to state taxation and related laws of the state, including the administration by the department of revenue of certain tax credits and refunds, income taxes, moneys and credits taxes, sales and use taxes, partnership and pass-through entity audits, and by modifying provisions relating to the reinstatement of business entities, the assessment and valuation of property, and providing penalties, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 697 State Government

Relating to crossings of rights-of-way owned by successors in interest of railroad corporations.

H.S.B. 698 State Government

Relating to conversion therapy provided to a minor, and making penalties applicable.

H.S.B. 699 Public Safety

Relating to officer disciplinary actions and establishing a legislative interim committee.

H.S.B. 700 Public Safety

Relating to officer disciplinary actions.

H.S.B. 701 Veterans Affairs

Concerning the display of the POW/MIA flag on public buildings.

H.S.B. 702 Human Resources

Relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants.

H.S.B. 703 Human Resources

Relating to the administration of the reimbursement for rent constituting property taxes paid and related matters and including effective date provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 2130**

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Gustafson and Wolfe.

House File 2239

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Bergan and Wilburn.

House File 2395

Public Safety: Fisher, Chair; Breckenridge and Jeneary.

House File 2396

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Steckman and Thompson.

House File 2397

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Steckman and Thompson.

House File 2401

Ways and Means: Brown-Powers, Chair; Osmundson, Chair; Bloomingdale.

House File 2409

Ways and Means: Maxwell, Chair; Kurtz and Mitchell.

Senate File 583

Commerce: Carlson, Chair; Forbes and Mitchell.

Senate File 612

Commerce: Sorensen, Chair; Deyoe and Williams.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 695**

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Kurth and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 696

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Kurth and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 697

State Government: Jacobsen, Chair; Cohoon and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 698

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Mascher and Mitchell.

House Study Bill 699

Public Safety: Kerr, Chair; Breckenridge and Fisher.

House Study Bill 700

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Breckenridge and Salmon.

House Study Bill 701

Veterans Affairs: Gustafson, Chair; Ourth and Sorensen.

House Study Bill 702

Human Resources: Best, Chair; Bacon and Brown-Powers.

House Study Bill 703

Human Resources: Bergan, Chair; Derry and Salmon.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2107), relating to the development and utilization of high-speed electronic transmission mediums.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 517), relating to the disposal and acquisition of city water utilities, including at-risk systems.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 588), relating to access to the Iowa communications network.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 638), relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 667), providing that certain multi-story commercial buildings are not required to have commercial elevators in specified circumstances.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC GROWTH

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 645), relating to the operation of home bakeries licensed by the department of inspections and appeals.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 686), providing for a study regarding the identification, establishment, and promotion of state historical sites, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 687), requiring a study and report on revitalizing and updating rest areas.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2048), relating to the statewide preschool program by modifying provisions relating to eligibility, funding, and compulsory attendance and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2145), expanding the health care professional recruitment program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2169), relating to bleeding control certification course requirements and waivers for school districts and accredited nonpublic schools and their students, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2350), establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 558), relating to loan repayment for refinanced eligible loans under the rural physician loan repayment program.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 642), relating to eligibility requirements and assessments for students under the senior year plus program and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 644), relating to qualifications for community college career and technical education instructors.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 636), relating to the review and permitting of sewer extensions and water supply distribution system extensions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2054), relating to the privacy of a victim of a sex offense in a criminal or civil proceeding.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2189), relating to additional penalties for certain violations against bicyclists causing serious injury or death committed by a person operating a motor vehicle.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 523), relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 539), creating the criminal offense of defrauding a drug or alcohol test in a private-sector workplace for employment purposes and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 578), relating to the opening, administration, and termination of adult guardianships and conservatorships, including conforming changes, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 579), relating to guardianships and conservatorships of minors.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 612), relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 613), relating to the confidentiality of information filed with the court to secure an arrest warrant.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 661), relating to the crime of disorderly conduct and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 662), relating to interpreters for limited-English-proficient, deaf, and hard-of-hearing persons in certain court proceedings.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON LABOR

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 602), relating to the maximum duration of unemployment benefits for certain individuals and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 657), allowing the use of a leashed dog to track and retrieve a wounded deer and providing a penalty.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2240), relating to the management of the spread of diseases in animals, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 17, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2334), establishing a task force relating to the reunification of an unaccompanied child with the child's parent, guardian, or custodian following a natural disaster.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 625), concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 626), relating to the national guard of the state concerning armory board leases, persons subject to the code of military justice, and scholarship and loan repayment programs.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2210), relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 521), relating to a disinterment permit for human and cremated remains.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 551), concerning benefits under the municipal fire and police retirement system.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 618), relating to the establishment of periodic examination fees from certain cities by the auditor of state.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 620), relating to governmental ethics and the sale or lease of real estate by regulatory agency officials and employees to persons subject to the agency's regulatory authority, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 647), relating to qualifications for holding professional licensure in this state, including the granting of licenses to persons licensed in other states and acquiring residence in Iowa, disqualification provisions for criminal convictions, the waiver of application fees, and licensee discipline, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 650), relating to county regulation of certain agricultural experiences.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 656), relating to the setoff procedures used by public agencies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

AMENDMENT FILED

H-8021

H.F.

2222

A. Meyer of Webster

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:42 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, February 19, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Thirty-eighth Calendar Day - Twenty-fourth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, February 19, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., A. Meyer of Webster in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Reverend Dr. Russell Lackey, Luther Memorial Church, Des Moines. He was the guest of Hunter of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Yasmin Aguilar-Rosales, Page from Iowa City.

The Journal of Tuesday, February 18, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2439, by Isenhart and Williams, a bill for an act relating to public utilities, including specified energy-efficiency-related programs, tax credits, and responsibilities of the Iowa energy center and office of the consumer advocate.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2440, by Kaufmann, a bill for an act prohibiting school districts and accredited nonpublic schools from administering vaccines and immunizations without prior written consent from a student's parent or guardian.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2441, by Derry, a bill for an act relating to child care facilities and epinephrine auto-injector supplies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2442, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act directing the office of the chief information officer and the Iowa telecommunications and technology commission to jointly conduct a feasibility study relating to internet exchange points.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2443, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to eligibility requirements and assessments for students under the senior year plus program and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2444, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the crime of disorderly conduct and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2445, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the privacy of a victim of a sex offense in a criminal or civil proceeding.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2446, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to additional penalties for certain violations against bicyclists causing serious injury or death committed by a person operating a motor vehicle.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2447, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2448, by committee on Education, a bill for an act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for

veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2449, by Kaufmann and Shipley, a bill for an act relating to information to be provided, recorded, and reported by health care providers relative to certain vaccinations, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2450, by Thorup, a bill for an act relating to communications systems of the department of public safety and the department of homeland security and emergency management and the statewide interoperable communications system board.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

House File 2451, by Wills, a bill for an act requiring certain percentages of new motor vehicles sold at retail in the state to be flexible fuel vehicles, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2452, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the disposal and acquisition of city water utilities, including at-risk systems.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2453, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to guardianships and conservatorships of minors.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2454, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to qualifications for community college career and technical education instructors.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2455, by committee on Natural Resources, a bill for an act allowing the use of a leashed dog to track and retrieve a wounded deer and providing a penalty.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2456, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act providing an exception to the Iowa state elevator code for certain multi-story commercial buildings in specified circumstances.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2457, by committee on Education, a bill for an act providing that the unit of health education required at the secondary school level under the state's educational standards includes bleeding control training.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2458, by committee on Natural Resources, a bill for an act relating to the management of the spread of diseases in animals, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2459, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2460, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the statewide preschool program by modifying provisions relating to eligibility, funding, and compulsory attendance and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2461, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to loan repayment for refinanced eligible loans under the rural physician loan repayment program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2462, by committee on Labor, a bill for an act relating to the maximum duration of unemployment benefits for certain individuals and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2463, by committee on Education, a bill for an act expanding the health care professional recruitment program.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2459, previously referred to committee on **Appropriations** was placed on **calendar**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 704 Public Safety

Relating to the peace officer and public safety and emergency personnel bill of rights, providing for employee assessments of supervisors of certain state officers, and including effective date provisions.

H.S.B. 705 State Government

Relating to alcoholic beverage drink pods and including effective date provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2358

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2430

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Sunde and Worthan.

House File 2433

Public Safety: Klein, Chair; Jeneary and Olson.

House File 2434

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Hein and Nielsen.

House File 2450

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Breckenridge and Jeneary.

Senate File 457 Reassigned

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Klein and Wolfe.

Senate File 526

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Klein and Olson.

Senate File 2095

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Bennett and Mitchell.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 704

Public Safety: Thorup, Chair; Paustian and Thede.

House Study Bill 705

State Government: Sexton, Chair; Lensing and Mitchell.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2198), providing for the indemnification of claims from the grain depositors and sellers indemnity fund, by persons selling grain by credit-sale contract, and providing for fees.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 684), relating to the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, including by providing for administration, programs, and regulations, providing fees, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2253), relating to price transparency for prescription drugs sold in this state, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **Yes**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 591), relating to rate regulatory proceedings before the utilities board within the utilities division of the department of commerce.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2120), relating to protocols and school employee training relating to suicide prevention and the identification of adverse childhood experiences and strategies to mitigate toxic stress response and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2370), requiring the director of the department of education to establish a low-income student and poverty weighting work group.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 598), relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting alleged classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing supplementary weighting for the transportation of certain students to therapeutic classrooms, making an appropriation, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 666), relating to modified supplemental amounts for at-risk, returning dropout, and dropout prevention programs.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 680), relating to language and literacy development for deaf and hard-of-hearing children.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2084), relating to the adoption of the interstate curing disease compact.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2171), establishing a child care workforce state matching grants program and fund administered by the early childhood Iowa state board to award matching state grants to eligible communities and making an appropriation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2187), exempting certain facilities from electronic prescription transmission requirements and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2215), relating to Medicaid reimbursement for breast pumps and associated supplies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2283), relating to the organization, composition, meeting, and reporting requirements of health-related commissions, councils, and boards and including transition provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2378), establishing an exception to the number of children allowed to be present for child care at any one time in a child development home under certain conditions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 581), relating to reenrollment following a member's termination from the Iowa health and wellness plan or the dental wellness plan.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 660), relating to fetal deaths including the disposition of bodily remains, and the filing of a fetal death certificate, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 672), relating to informed consent for medication abortions, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 678), relating to the licensing of abortion facilities, including fees, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2013), relating to the design of county seals.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2056), relating to the employment of county engineers.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 584), authorizing length of service award programs for volunteer fire fighters and emergency medical care providers, and making an appropriation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 677), relating to the validity of certificates of the treasurer.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2014), relating to the allocation of nonresident deer hunting licenses, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

House File 684, a bill for an act providing limited immunity from certain criminal offenses and prohibiting certain disciplinary sanctions for persons under twenty-one years of age who report, seek, or require emergency assistance for alcohol overdoses, and modifying penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020, placed on calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 515), relating to the criminal elements for the commission of sexual misconduct with offenders, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2153), increasing the scheduled fine for writing, sending, or viewing an electronic message while driving on a highway within two hundred feet of a school.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2395), modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 610), relating to a death affecting the public interest and reporting requirements of county medical examiners.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 653), concerning the medical cannabidiol Act.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2035), relating to limits on the compensation of county supervisors.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2059), establishing daylight saving time as the official time in this state throughout the year.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2396), relating to the terminology used in relation to the deaf and hard-of-hearing persons.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 632), relating to county zoning procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 663), concerning the sale and off-premises transportation and consumption of certain containers of wine.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 640), relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 665), regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:51 a.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, February 20, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Thirty-ninth Calendar Day - Twenty-fifth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, February 20, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:32 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Trevor E. Pinegar, Federated Church, Bondurant. He was the guest of Lohse of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Alli Walker, Page from Eddyville.

The Journal of Wednesday, February 19, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2464, by Shipley, a bill for an act increasing separation distance requirements between a confinement feeding operation structure and certain locations, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Agriculture**.

House File 2465, by Prichard, Nielsen, Forbes, Ourth, Gaskill, James, Kurtz, Steckman, Judge, Bennett, Mascher, Derry, Lensing, Donahue, Kurth, M. Smith, Wolfe, B. Meyer, Oldson, Konfrst, Breckenridge, Staed, McKean, Hall, Hunter, Wilburn, Thede, Williams, R. Smith, McConkey, Isenhardt, Abdul-Samad, Wessel-Kroeschell, Sunde, Matson, Bearinger, Brown-Powers, Kressig, Jacoby, Running-Marquardt, Kacena, and Anderson, a bill for an act relating to pharmacy benefit managers and the cost of prescription drug benefits, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2466, by Prichard, Brown-Powers, Jacoby, Cohoon, Ehlert, Gaines, Olson, Breckenridge, Hall, Hunter, Staed, Wilburn, Thede,

Williams, R. Smith, McConkey, Abdul-Samad, Wessel-Kroeschell, Sunde, Bearinger, Matson, Kressig, Judge, Running-Marquardt, Gaskill, Oldson, Kacena, M. Smith, Konfrst, McKean, Donahue, Anderson, Steckman, James, and Nielsen, a bill for an act establishing a mental health and disability services risk pool and risk pool board, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2467, by Prichard, Brown-Powers, Jacoby, Cohoon, Ehlert, Gaines, Olson, Breckenridge, Hunter, Hall, Staed, Wilburn, Thede, Williams, R. Smith, McConkey, Isenhardt, Abdul-Samad, Wessel-Kroeschell, Sunde, Matson, Bearinger, Kressig, Judge, Running-Marquardt, Gaskill, Oldson, Kacena, M. Smith, Konfrst, McKean, Anderson, Donahue, Steckman, James, and Nielsen, a bill for an act relating to expansion of the 1st five program statewide, and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2468, by Anderson, a bill for an act creating a victim restitution fund.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2469, by Gassman, a bill for an act exempting from the state sales and use tax the sales price of tangible personal property or specified digital products sold, or services furnished, to a nonprofit nursing facility.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2470, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to qualifications for holding professional licensure in this state, including the granting of licenses to persons licensed in other states and acquiring residence in Iowa, disqualification provisions for criminal convictions, the waiver of application fees, and licensee discipline, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2471, by Shipley, a bill for an act relating to human services and juvenile justice including child custody, child in need of assistance, and family in need of assistance proceedings, establishing the department of family stabilization and preservation, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2472, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the final disposition and disinterment of human remains.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2473, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act creating the criminal offense of defrauding a drug or alcohol test and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2474, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the confidentiality of information filed with the court to secure an arrest warrant.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2475, by committee on Environmental Protection, a bill for an act relating to the review and permitting of sewer extensions and water supply distribution system extensions, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2476, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2477, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to county regulation of certain agricultural experiences.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2478, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to fetal deaths including the disposition of bodily remains, and the filing of a fetal death certificate, and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2479, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2480, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to informed consent for medication abortions, and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2481, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act relating to the validity of certificates of the treasurer.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2482, by committee on Economic Growth, a bill for an act providing for a study regarding the identification, establishment, and promotion of state historical sites, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2483, by committee on Economic Growth, a bill for an act requiring a study and report on revitalizing and updating rest areas.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2484, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act relating to the employment of county engineers.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2485, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act establishing an exception to the number of children allowed to be present for child care at any one time in a child development home under certain conditions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2486, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act relating to the design and use of county seals.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT

H.S.B. 706 Local Government

Relating to open enrollment to noncontiguous school districts.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT

House Study Bill 706 (Committee of the Whole)

Local Government: Bloomingdale, Chair; Lohse, Staed, Bossman, Gaines, Gaskill, Gassman, Hanusa, Hinson, Hite, Hunter, Jeneary, Jones, Kacena, Konfrst, Kressig, Lensing, McKean, Shipley, Thede and Thompson.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2325), providing for a notice regarding a hearing to determine how land within a drainage or levee district is to be classified for purposes of assessing that land.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 531), regarding driving privileges of persons issued a special minor's driver's license who reside or are employed on a farm, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 689), relating to the renewable fuel infrastructure program for retail motor fuel sites, by providing for the award of standard financial incentives to participating persons.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 606), relating to underground storage tanks, including by creating the Iowa tanks fund and Iowa tanks fund financing program, repealing the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund, and eliminating the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund board, and including effective date and transition provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2118), relating to protections for certain potential recipients of anatomical gifts.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2151), relating to mental health and disability services regions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2295), relating to transfer between trusts for persons with disabilities.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2296), relating to child fatality protocol and alleged child abuse.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 533), relating to the practice of pharmacy, and providing for a repeal.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 582), relating to dispensing fees and copayments for partially dispensed quantities of prescription drugs.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 685), related to pharmacy benefits managers and prescription drug prices, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 702), relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2055), relating to the inclusion of the value of child restraint systems in the partial loss calculation for specified insurance settlements of first-party automobile partial losses and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2129), authorizing the reduction of damages payable to an unresponsive property owner in condemnation proceedings and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2285), relating to the circumstances under which a grandparent or great-grandparent may petition for grandparent and great-grandparent visitation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2303), requiring consideration of anti-Semitism by governmental entities when investigating possible discriminatory acts.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2304), relating to the advertising, promoting, and conducting of certain live musical performances, and providing civil penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2333), relating to confidential communications between a peer support group counselor and specified individuals.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 518), relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 528), relating to the criminal offenses of theft in the third degree and robbery in the first degree and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 566), relating to garnishment proceedings and service of a garnishee.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 567), relating to forensic scientific evidence and postconviction relief.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 595), creating the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 600), relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 658), to relating to court-ordered reimbursement of jail costs and restitution.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 679), relating to nonsubstantive Code corrections, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 691), providing for business corporations, providing for certain fees, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 692), relating to statutory corrections which may adjust language to reflect current practices, insert earlier omissions, delete redundancies and inaccuracies, delete temporary language, resolve inconsistencies and conflicts, update ongoing provisions, or remove ambiguities, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 693), relating to the defense of justification for certain homicide offenses.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 694), relating to crime victims, including the collection of evidence in sexual abuse cases and the establishment of an automated tracking system involving sexual abuse evidence collection kits.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2318), relating to persons authorized to request assistance pursuant to the statewide mutual aid compact.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 674), relating to a construction manager-at-risk commercial construction alternative delivery method and prohibiting certain other alternative delivery methods in the public sector.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 706), relating to open enrollment to noncontiguous school districts.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

House File 2259, a bill for an act relating to human trafficking prevention training and reporting for employees of lodging providers in the state.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 632), relating to county zoning procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 19, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

House File 2194, a bill for an act increasing the minimum age for persons to be eligible for issuance of a special minor's driver's license.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020, placed on calendar.

House File 2260, a bill for an act relating to the proposal of rural four-lane bypasses by the department of transportation to the state transportation commission.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 18, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 682), relating to county commissions of veteran affairs training and making an appropriation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8022	H.F.	717	Thorup of Marion
H-8023	H.F.	2339	Hite of Mahaska
H-8024	H.F.	2219	Hite of Mahaska

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:52 a.m., until 9:00 a.m., Friday, February 21, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fortieth Calendar Day - Twenty-sixth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, February 21, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 9:04 a.m., Landon of Polk in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Landon of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Owen Landon. He is the grandson of Landon of Polk.

The Journal of Thursday, February 20, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2487, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act authorizing length of service award programs for volunteer fire fighters, emergency medical care providers, and reserve peace officers.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2488, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act establishing a child care workforce state matching grants program and fund administered by the early childhood Iowa state board to award matching state grants to eligible communities and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2489, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the licensing of abortion facilities, including fees, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2490, by committee on Education, a bill for an act requiring the director of the department of education to establish a low-income student and poverty weighting work group.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2491, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act increasing the scheduled fine for writing, sending, or viewing an electronic message while driving on a highway within two hundred feet of a school.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2492, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to reenrollment following a member's termination from the Iowa health and wellness plan.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2493, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2422, previously placed on **calendar** was referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

The Speaker announced that House File 2459, previously placed on **calendar** was referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

COMPREHENSIVE PETROLEUM UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANK FUND BOARD

Progress and Activities Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455G.4.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Banking Division

Bank Required Collateral Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12C.20.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Community Mental Health Services Report, pursuant to Chapter 134.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Hawk-I Board Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 514I.5.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Economic Development Award Research Activities Credit Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15.335.

Individual Income Tax Research Activities Credit Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 422.10.

Corporate Income Tax Research Activities Credit Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 422.33.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

Peace Officers Retirement, Accident and Disability System Cancer/Infectious Disease Presumption Actuarial Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 97A.5.

LEGISLATIVE SERVICES AGENCY

Urban Renewal Tax Increment Financing Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 331.403.

OMBUDSMAN

A Tragedy of Errors: An Investigation of the Death of Natalie Finn Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 2C.17.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2036), allowing certain emergency medical care providers to obtain a professional permit to carry weapons.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2154), relating to child sexual abuse and child sexual assault awareness and prevention.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 569), relating to the regulation of certain substance-related products, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 615), relating to firearms and weapons, including the storage, carrying, possession, or transportation of weapons and the establishment, use, and maintenance of shooting ranges.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 616), establishing a cyber crime investigation division in the department of public safety to investigate crimes with a nexus to the internet or computer technology including crimes involving child exploitation and cyber intrusion.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 646), relating to the regulation of hemp, including by providing for testing methods and the regulation of hemp products, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 654), relating to health insurance by certain peace officers of the department of public safety.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 699), relating to officer disciplinary actions and establishing a legislative interim committee.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 700), relating to officer disciplinary actions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 704), relating to the peace officer and public safety and emergency personnel bill of rights, providing for employee assessments of supervisors of certain state officers, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2136), relating to the establishment of a grant fund and a grant program administered by the economic development authority to assist eligible out-of-state candidates residing in Puerto Rico with relocation expenses to move to the state to fill specific jobs.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2217), relating to lobbyist's client reports, including verification of and the filing location for the reports, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2266), regarding port authorities, including by allowing port authorities to enter into certain loan agreements and lease contracts.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2299), relating to notification of the general assembly concerning certain state government leases and real property acquisitions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 507), relating to the applicability of beverage container control provisions, handling fees, and acceptance of beverage containers, making penalties applicable, and providing effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 545), relating to the administration of elections, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 552), relating to gambling regulation and enforcement activities of the division of criminal investigation of the department of public safety.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 557), establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 651), relating to the practice of interior design, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 683), establishing a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 20, 2020.

On motion by Jacobsen of Pottawattamie, the House adjourned at 9:08 a.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, February 24, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Forty-third Calendar Day - Twenty-seventh Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, February 24, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:00 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Matt Mitchell, Harmony Bible Church, Danville. He was the guest of Mitchell of Henry.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Iowa School for the Deaf. They were the guests of Hanusa of Pottawattamie.

The Journal of Friday, February 21, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2494, by committee on Environmental Protection, a bill for an act relating to underground storage tanks, including by creating the Iowa tanks fund and Iowa tanks fund financing program, repealing the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund, and eliminating the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund board, and including effective date and transition provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2495, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2496, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to the national guard of the state concerning armory board leases, persons subject to the code of military justice, and scholarship and loan repayment programs.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2497, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to modified supplemental amounts for at-risk, returning dropout, and dropout prevention programs.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2498, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of periodic examination fees from certain cities by the auditor of state.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2499, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to dispensing fees and copayments for partially dispensed quantities of prescription drugs.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2500, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to Medicaid reimbursement for breast pumps and associated supplies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2501, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2502, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to firearms and weapons, including the storage, carrying, possession, or transportation of weapons and the establishment, use, and maintenance of shooting ranges.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2503, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the defense of justification for certain homicide offenses.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2504, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act requiring consideration of antisemitism by governmental entities when investigating possible discriminatory acts.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2505, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to the criminal elements for the commission of sexual misconduct with offenders and juveniles, and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2506, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2507, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the practice of pharmacy, and providing for a repeal.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2508, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to garnishment proceedings and service of a garnishee.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2509, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to forensic scientific evidence and postconviction relief.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2510, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to rate regulatory proceedings before the utilities board within the utilities division of the department of commerce.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2511, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to governmental ethics and campaign finance, including

the placement of campaign signs, the sale or lease of real estate by regulatory agency officials and employees to persons subject to the agency's regulatory authority, and the compensation of the executive director of the ethics and campaign disclosure board, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2512, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to county zoning procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2513, by committee on Economic Growth, a bill for an act relating to the operation of home bakeries licensed by the department of inspections and appeals.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2514, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act concerning the sale and off-premises transportation and consumption of certain containers of wine.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2515, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to crime victims, including the collection of evidence in sexual abuse cases and the establishment of an automated tracking system involving sexual abuse evidence collection kits.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2516, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act relating to open enrollment to noncontiguous school districts.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2517, by committee on Natural Resources, a bill for an act relating to the limits adopted for nonresident deer hunting licenses, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2518, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the annual compensation of county supervisors.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2519, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the adoption of the interstate curing disease compact.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2520, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the development and utilization of high-speed electronic transmission mediums.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2521, by committee on Education, a bill for an act requiring reporting by school districts to the department of education regarding protocols relating to suicide prevention and postvention and the identification of adverse childhood experiences and strategies to mitigate toxic stress response.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2522, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act authorizing the reduction of damages payable to an unresponsive property owner in condemnation proceedings and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2523, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the hiring of practitioners and transmission of certain prescriptions by free clinics.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2524, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the organization, composition, meeting, and reporting requirements of health-related commissions, councils, and boards and including transition provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2525, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the circumstances under which a grandparent or great-grandparent may petition for grandparent and great-grandparent visitation.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2526, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to transfer between trusts for persons with disabilities.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2527, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the advertising, promoting, and conducting of certain live musical performances, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2528, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act relating to persons authorized to request assistance pursuant to the statewide mutual aid compact.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2529, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to confidential communications between a peer support group counselor and specified individuals.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2530, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act establishing a task force relating to the reunification of an unaccompanied child or dependent adult with the child's or dependent adult's parent, guardian, or custodian following a natural disaster.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2531, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 1:24 p.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 5:44 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 24, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate Joint Resolution 2002, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the qualifications of electors.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2025, a bill for an act relating to the employment of county engineers.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2132, a bill for an act relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2196, a bill for an act extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2232, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa trust code, including the creation of directed trusts, the transfer of trust assets into other trusts, and requirements related to notices to beneficiaries.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2250, a bill for an act relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2296, a bill for an act regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2299, a bill for an act relating to background checks for employees and students of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies.

Also: That the Senate has on February 24, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2300, a bill for an act relating to the transfer of real estate as part of the administration of a decedent's estate, guardianship, conservatorship, or trust, and including applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2532, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting alleged classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing claims reimbursement to schools for the transportation of certain students to therapeutic classrooms, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2533, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act relating to county commissions of veteran affairs training and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2534, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the applicability of beverage container control provisions, handling fees, and acceptance of beverage containers, making penalties applicable, and providing effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2535, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to nonsubstantive Code corrections, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2536, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to statutory corrections which may adjust language to reflect current practices, insert earlier omissions, delete redundancies and inaccuracies, delete temporary language, resolve inconsistencies and conflicts, update ongoing provisions, or remove ambiguities, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Regular Calendar

House File 2197, a bill for an act relating to the medical residency training state matching grants program rural rotation requirement, was taken up for consideration.

Fry of Clarke moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2197)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.

Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2219, a bill for an act relating to the responsibilities of a guardian ad litem for a minor child, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8024 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8024 was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2219)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann

Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2221, a bill for an act relating to the licensed health professional member of a local board of health, was taken up for consideration.

Brink of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2221)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth

Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2222, a bill for an act relating to the Medicaid institutions for mental diseases waiver, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

A. Meyer of Webster offered amendment H-8021 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8021 was adopted.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and passed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2222)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow

Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2236, a bill for an act concerning fees charged for examining and copying public records relating to claims for veterans benefits, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2236)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson

Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2238, a bill for an act relating to regulation of foods sold by minors, was taken up for consideration.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2238)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann

Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2308, a bill for an act relating to the definition of meeting and public notice requirements under the open meetings law, was taken up for consideration.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2308)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth

Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2310, a bill for an act removing the requirement to obtain a permit for vehicles or combinations of vehicles of excessive size transporting divisible loads of hay, straw, stover, or bagged livestock bedding that meet certain width, height, and length requirements, was taken up for consideration.

Worthan of Buena Vista moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2310)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearerger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr

Klein	Konfrst	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley	

The nays were, 1:

Hunter

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2312, a bill for an act relating to certificate of eligibility affidavits for admission to the veterans home, was taken up for consideration.

Thompson of Greene moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2312)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James

Jeneary	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Dolecheck	Jones	Kressig	Olson
-----------	-------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Dolecheck of Ringgold	Jones of Clay
Olson of Polk	

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2197, 2219, 2221, 2222, 2236, 2238, 2308, 2310 and 2312.**

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 705, 2022, 2031, 2052 and 2073 from further consideration by the House.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2499, previously referred to committee on **Ways and Means** was placed on **calendar**.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 2357**

Ways and Means: Sieck, Chair; Jacoby and Maxwell.

House File 2380

Ways and Means: Mitchell, Chair; Kaufmann and McConkey.

House File 2384

Appropriations: Deyoe, Chair; Brink, Hall, Mohr and Running-Marquardt.

House File 2388

Ways and Means: Mitchell, Chair; Bloomingdale and Nielsen.

House File 2408

Ways and Means: Maxwell, Chair; Kurtz and Sieck.

House File 2447

Appropriations: Worthan, Chair; Oldson and Sexton.

House File 2448

Appropriations: Mommsen, Chair; Kerr and Winckler.

House File 2459

Appropriations: Sorensen, Chair; Brink and Williams.

House File 2460

Appropriations: Brink, Chair; Dolecheck and Mascher.

House File 2469

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2470

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Bloomingdale and McConkey.

House File 2488

Appropriations: Dolecheck, Chair; Kerr and Winckler.

Senate File 329

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Klein and B. Meyer.

Senate File 448 Reassigned

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Gustafson and Wolfe.

Senate File 460 Reassigned

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Hite and Olson.

Senate File 523 Reassigned

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Gustafson and Wessel-Kroeschell.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 607), modifying the sales and use tax exemption for the sale of certain component parts attached to or services performed on aircraft.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** February 24, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2023), exempting from the computation of the individual and corporate state income taxes broadband grants received by communications service providers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 24, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2176), relating to the adjustments to state foundation aid paid to a school district following an assessed value reduction for certain property and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 24, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 673), allowing counties to collect a fee for the issuance and renewal of driver's licenses and nonoperator's identification cards to persons who reside outside the county.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 24, 2020.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.R. 103, by Salmon, Gustafson, Bennett, Jeneary, Shipley, Wheeler, Hagenow, Sorensen, Thompson, Kurth, Breckenridge, Brown-Powers, M. Smith, Ourth, Jacoby, Staed, Running-Marquardt, Anderson, Williams, and Gaskill, a resolution designating the twenty-seventh day of June as Post-Traumatic Stress Injury Awareness Day and the month of June as Post-Traumatic Stress Injury Awareness Month.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8025	H.F.	2463	Winckler of Scott
H-8026	H.F.	2483	Lohse of Polk
H-8027	H.F.	2482	Wheeler of Sioux
H-8028	H.F.	2192	Fry of Clarke
H-8029	H.F.	2340	Steckman of Cerro Gordo Staed of Linn

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 6:18 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Tuesday, February 25, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Forty-fourth Calendar Day - Twenty-eighth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, February 25, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Bill Kersting, National Alliance on Mental Illness, Spencer. He was the guest of Jones of Clay.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Shea Whaley, Page from Eagle Grove.

The Journal of Monday, February 24, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2537, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act providing for business corporations, providing for certain fees, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2538, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of theft in the third degree and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2539, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to language and literacy development for deaf and hard-of-hearing children.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2540, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act establishing a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2541, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to officer disciplinary actions and establishing a legislative interim committee.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2542, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2543, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the inclusion of the value of child restraint systems in the partial loss or total loss calculation for specified insurance settlements of first-party automobile losses and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2544, by Bearinger, McKean, Lundgren, Bloomingdale, Jones, A. Meyer, Moore, Kaufmann, Lohse, Hite, Jeneary, Mohr, Mitchell, Sieck, Kerr, Ourth, and Hunter, a bill for an act relating to the practices of performing rights societies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2545, by Prichard, Konfrst, Wessel-Kroeschell, B. Meyer, Oldson, Steckman, M. Smith, Bearinger, Kressig, Brown-Powers, Williams, Matson, Donahue, Staed, Kurth, McKean, James, Kacena, Breckenridge, Jacoby, Olson, Sunde, Isenhardt, Thede, Gaines, Hunter, Cohoon, Derry, Wilburn, Hall, Nielsen, Bennett, Judge, Ehlert, Wolfe, Forbes, Anderson, Lensing, Mascher, Abdul-Samad, Winckler, R. Smith, Gaskill, and McConkey, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a grant program and grant fund administered by the department of human services to provide grants for new or expanded licensed child care centers and new or expanded registered child development homes.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

House File 2546, by Prichard, Konfrst, Wessel-Kroeschell, B. Meyer, Oldson, Steckman, M. Smith, Bearinger, Kressig, Brown-Powers, Williams, Matson, Donahue, Staed, Kurth, McKean, James, Kacena, Breckenridge, Jacoby, Olson, Sunde, Isenhardt, Thede, Gaines, Hunter, Cohoon, Derry, Wilburn, Hall, Nielsen, Bennett, Judge, Ehlert, Wolfe, Forbes, Anderson, Mascher, Winckler, Abdul-Samad, Gaskill, R. Smith, Lensing, and McConkey, a bill for an act relating to the child and dependent care credit available against the individual income tax, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2547, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2548, by committee on Agriculture, a bill for an act regarding driving privileges of persons issued a special minor's driver's license who reside or are employed on a farm, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2549, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to health insurance by certain peace officers of the department of public safety.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2550, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to lobbyist's client reports, including verification of and the filing location for the reports, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2551, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to price transparency for prescription drugs and cost-sharing calculations by carriers, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2552, by committee on Agriculture, a bill for an act providing for a notice regarding a hearing to determine how land within a drainage or levee district is to be classified for purposes of assessing that land.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:43 a.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 2:55 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2553, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act related to pharmacy benefits managers and prescription drug prices, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2554, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act creating the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child and providing penalties.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2555, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to the formation of mental health and disability services regions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2556, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to notification of the general assembly concerning certain state government leases and real property acquisitions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate Joint Resolution 2002, by committee on State Government, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the qualifications of electors.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

Senate File 2025, by Koelker, a bill for an act relating to the employment of county engineers.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2132, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2196, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2232, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa trust code, including the creation of directed trusts, the transfer of trust assets into other trusts, and requirements related to notices to beneficiaries.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2250, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2296, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2299, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to background checks for employees and students of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2300, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the transfer of real estate as part of the administration of a decedent's estate, guardianship, conservatorship, or trust, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

SENATE AMENDMENT CONSIDERED
House Refused to Concur

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie called up for consideration **House File 426**, a bill for an act relating to the insurance fraud bureau, criminal history checks for licenses granted by the insurance division, and resolving inconsistencies, amended by the Senate amendment H-1028.

Hunter of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-1064, to the Senate amendment H-1028, filed by him on March 20, 2019.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-1028.

The motion lost and the House refused to concur in the Senate amendment H-1028.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS
Regular Calendar

House File 717, a bill for an act concerning appeal rights relating to veterans preference, was taken up for consideration.

Thorup of Marion offered amendment H-8022 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8022 was adopted.

Thorup of Marion moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 717)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2313, a bill for an act relating to the military code and duty performed by a member of the United States coast guard, was taken up for consideration.

Hagenow of Dallas offered amendment H-8015 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8015 was adopted.

Wills of Dickinson moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2313)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2339, a bill for an act relating to judicial motions and causes of action arising from a person's participation in matters of public significance, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8023 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8023 was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2339)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cphoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones

Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2359, a bill for an act relating to the reporting of certain assessment scores by approved practitioner preparation programs, was taken up for consideration.

Moore of Cass moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2359)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones

Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2360, a bill for an act regarding the expiration of driver's licenses of persons who are age seventy-two or over, was taken up for consideration.

Landon of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2360)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worhan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones

Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2361, a bill for an act concerning the implantation or insertion of microchips or other devices in employees by employers, was taken up for consideration.

Gustafson of Madison moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2361)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones

Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2369, a bill for an act establishing a lifetime trout fishing license for certain older Iowans, was taken up for consideration.

The de of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2369)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones

Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2382, a bill for an act relating to confidentiality concerning individuals allowed a disabled veteran tax credit and military tax exemption, was taken up for consideration.

Thompson of Greene moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2382)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worhan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones

Olson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2383, a bill for an act relating to the percentage of students who are residents of Iowa or who attend postsecondary institutions in Iowa and are accepted to graduate and postgraduate studies at the state university of Iowa college of medicine or college of dentistry and requiring a report relating to the graduates and residents of such colleges, was taken up for consideration.

Lundgren of Dubuque rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Mascher of Johnson rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2383)

The ayes were, 54:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Carlson	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher
Fry	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 2:

Jones	Olson
-------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Jones of Clay	Olson of Polk
---------------	---------------

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 426, 717, 2313, 2339, 2359, 2360, 2361, 2369, 2382 and 2383.**

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 217 and 2115 from further consideration by the House.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2360, a bill for an act relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing claims reimbursement to school districts for costs relating to therapeutic classrooms, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

REREFERRED

The Speaker announced that Senate Joint Resolution 2002, previously referred to committee on **State Government** was rereferred to committee on **Judiciary**.

BILL SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on February 25, 2020, the following bill was approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

Senate File 2164, an Act relating to public school funding by modifying provisions relating to the regular program state cost per pupil and to appropriations to the transportation equity fund and including effective date provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2401 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Osmundson, Chair; Bloomingdale and Brown-Powers.

House File 2407

Ways and Means: Zumbach, Chair; Gaskill and Maxwell.

House File 2422

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Kurth and Wheeler.

House File 2489

Ways and Means: Osmundson, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

House File 2491

Ways and Means: Holt, Chair; Kurtz and Maxwell.

House File 2534

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Hein and Isenhart.

House File 2537

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Holt and Wolfe.

House File 2546

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendation has been received and is on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Senate File 583, a bill for an act relating to electric utility rates and infrastructure support options for private generation customers.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8033** February 24, 2020, placed on calendar.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8030	H.F.	2536	Committee on Judiciary
H-8031	H.F.	2513	Wheeler of Sioux
H-8032	H.F.	2375	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8033	S.F.	583	Committee on Commerce
H-8034	H.F.	2340	Steckman of Cerro Gordo Staed of Linn
H-8035	H.F.	2192	Fry of Clarke

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 4:26 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, February 26, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Forty-fifth Calendar Day - Twenty-ninth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, February 26, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Jerold Morris, Sunshine Open Bible Church, Des Moines. He was the guest of Salmon of Black Hawk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jack Ball, Page from Bloomfield.

The Journal of Tuesday, February 25, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2091, a bill for an act providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2093, a bill for an act relating to class "A" felonies and life sentences.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2131, a bill for an act relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2137, a bill for an act relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2198, a bill for an act relating to notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2201, a bill for an act relating to special nonresident deer and wild turkey hunting licenses issued to nonresident guests and dignitaries.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2249, a bill for an act relating to the classification and reclassification of certain secondary roads, and including applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2337, a bill for an act relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 25, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2338, a bill for an act relating to civil actions, including the total amount recoverable as a noneconomic damages award against a health care provider, recoverable damages for medical expenses, and evidence offered to prove past medical expenses.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2557, by Wolfe and Wessel-Kroeschell, a bill for an act relating to minimum sentences for certain offenders and parole and work release eligibility.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2558, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to interpreters for limited-English-proficient, deaf, and hard-of-hearing persons in certain court proceedings and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2559, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to officer disciplinary actions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2560, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act establishing daylight saving time as the official time in this state throughout the year and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2561, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to protections for certain potential recipients of anatomical gifts.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2562, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to child sexual abuse and child sexual assault awareness and prevention.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2563, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act creating a work group relating to child fatality protocol and alleged child abuse.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2564, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the opening, administration, and termination of adult guardianships and conservatorships, including conforming changes, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2565, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the setoff procedures used by public agencies and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2566, by committee on Agriculture, a bill for an act establishing a study relating to the grain depositors and sellers indemnity fund.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2091, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2131, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2137, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

R. Smith of Black Hawk introduced to the House, former legislator Wayne Ford.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

Jeneary of Plymouth introduced to the House, former legislator Ralph Klemme.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:48 a.m., until the conclusion of the budget subcommittees.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 12:28 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2567, by committee on Agriculture, a bill for an act relating to the E-15 gasoline infrastructure program, by providing for the award of financial incentives to participating persons.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2568, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act establishing a cyber crime investigation unit in the department of public safety to investigate crimes with a nexus to the internet or computer technology including crimes involving child exploitation and cyber intrusion.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2360, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing claims reimbursement to school districts for costs relating to therapeutic classrooms, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS

Regular Calendar

House File 2220, a bill for an act relating to the definition of young adult for purposes of participation in the preparation for adult living program, was taken up for consideration.

Bergan of Winneshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2220)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomindale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
----------	-------	--------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2235, a bill for an act disqualifying a person convicted of human trafficking involving the use of a commercial motor vehicle from operating a commercial motor vehicle for life, was taken up for consideration.

Thorup of Marion moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2235)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
----------	-------	--------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2269, a bill for an act relating to the Medicaid home and community-based services elderly waiver monthly budget maximum, was taken up for consideration.

Osmundson of Clayton moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2269)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomindale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
----------	-------	--------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2291, a bill for an act relating to the authority of the college student aid commission to organize a nonprofit corporation, was taken up for consideration.

Gassman of Winnebago moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2291)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomington	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
----------	-------	--------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2340, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa educational savings plan trust by permitting the use of funds for certain beneficiaries to attend out-of-state elementary or secondary schools, and including retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Steckman of Cerro Gordo asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8029 filed by her and Staed of Linn on February 24, 2020.

Steckman of Cerro Gordo asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8034 filed by her and Staed of Linn on February 25, 2020.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2340)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
----------	-------	--------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2363, a bill for an act relating to unemployment insurance contribution rates for certain landscaping employers, was taken up for consideration.

Thompson of Greene moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2363)

The ayes were, 89:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bennett	Bergan
Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge
Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Jacobsen
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, 7:

Bearinger	Derry	Hall	Isenhart
Jacoby	McKean	Running-Marquardt	

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
----------	-------	--------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2364, a bill for an act relating to injunctions issued to employers for certain violations of the state unemployment insurance law, was taken up for consideration.

Thompson of Greene moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2364)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
----------	-------	--------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2569, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a grant fund and a grant program administered by the economic development authority to assist eligible out-of-state candidates residing in Puerto Rico with relocation expenses to move to the state to fill specific jobs, and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2570, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of certain substance-related products, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2571, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act creating a work group to study information shared between county medical examiners and the Iowa division of criminal investigation criminalistics laboratory.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2572, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act relating to a construction manager-at-risk commercial construction alternative delivery method and prohibiting certain other alternative delivery methods in the public sector.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2093, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to class "A" felonies and life sentences.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2198, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2201, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to special nonresident deer and wild turkey hunting licenses issued to nonresident guests and dignitaries.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

Senate File 2249, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to the classification and reclassification of certain secondary roads, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

Senate File 2337, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2220, 2235, 2269, 2291, 2340, 2363 and 2364**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 12:57 p.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 4:31 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS
Regular Calendar

House File 2362, a bill for an act relating to certain appeals by nonprofit organizations concerning reimbursement of the department of workforce development for the cost of unemployment benefits, was taken up for consideration.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2362)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2365, a bill for an act relating to certain notifications issued by the department of workforce development concerning claims for unemployment benefits, was taken up for consideration.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2365)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2366, a bill for an act relating to replacement of the term visitation with the term parenting time relative to time awarded to a parent, was taken up for consideration.

Mitchell of Henry moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2366)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2411, a bill for an act relating to participation in the sobriety and drug monitoring program, was taken up for consideration.

Thorup of Marion moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2411)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2410, a bill for an act relating to the issuance of special senior statewide antlerless deer only crossbow deer hunting licenses, was taken up for consideration.

Fisher of Tama moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2410)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2412, a bill for an act relating to the definition of public improvement for public construction bidding purposes, was taken up for consideration.

Mitchell of Henry moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2412)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2416, a bill for an act relating to filing complaints with the Iowa public information board, was taken up for consideration.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2416)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2418, a bill for an act relating to certain information in proceedings before the director of the department of education and the board of educational examiners, was taken up for consideration.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2418)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2421, a bill for an act relating to the approval procedures for claims for the military service property tax exemption and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2421)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Bacon	Gaines	Jones
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Anderson of Polk
Jones of Clay
Olson of Polk

Bacon of Story
Gaines of Polk
Prichard of Floyd

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2362, 2365, 2366, 2410, 2411, 2412, 2416, 2418 and 2421.**

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 583, 706, 2024, 2051, 2126 and 2147 from further consideration by the House.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2118, a bill for an act relating to loan repayment for refinanced student loans under the rural physician loan repayment program, the health care professional recruitment program, and the health care loan repayment program, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2133, a bill for an act repealing provisions requiring the registration of travel agencies.

Also: That the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2153, a bill for an act relating to the administration of physical examinations and student health screenings by school districts.

Also: That the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2195, a bill for an act providing an exception to the Iowa state elevator code for certain multi-story commercial buildings in specified circumstances.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT

H.S.B. 707 Ways and Means

Exempting from the sales and use tax certain sales of computer peripherals, and rescinding related rules in the Iowa administrative code.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2406

Appropriations: Landon, Chair; Mommsen and Running-Marquardt.

House File 2419

Appropriations: Dolecheck, Chair; Brink and Winckler.

House File 2487

Appropriations: Best, Chair; Brink and McKean.

House File 2490

Appropriations: Kerr, Chair; Hall and Wills.

House File 2498

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Hein and Jacoby.

House File 2532

Appropriations: Dolecheck, Chair; Kerr and Winckler.

House File 2532 Reassigned

Appropriations: Dolecheck, Chair; Kerr and Mascher.

House File 2533

Appropriations: Fry, Chair; Forbes and Sorensen.

House File 2558

Ways and Means: Holt, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

Senate Joint Resolution 2002

Judiciary: Holt, Chair; Hite and Wolfe.

Senate File 2093

Judiciary: Klein, Chair; Bennett and Kaufmann.

Senate File 2232

Judiciary: Jacobsen, Chair; Bergan and Wilburn.

Senate File 2300

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Derry and Mitchell.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT**House Study Bill 707**

Ways and Means: Carlson, Chair; Bloomingdale and Kurth.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8036	H.F.	2424	Ehlert of Linn
H-8037	H.F.	2404	R. Smith of Black Hawk
H-8038	H.F.	2502	Holt of Crawford

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 4:58 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, February 27, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Forty-sixth Calendar Day - Thirtieth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, February 27, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:32 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Jonathan Spronk, Stated Clerk of Classis Central Plains of the Christian Reformed Church, Oskaloosa. He was the guest of Brink of Mahaska.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Benjamin, Phineas, Leah and Nicholas Spronk. They are the children of Pastor Spronk and the guests of Brink of Mahaska.

The Journal of Wednesday, February 26, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2251, a bill for an act relating to specialty areas, service commitment area distance requirements, and practice-related requirements under the rural Iowa primary care loan repayment program.

Also: That the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2261, a bill for an act relating to the provision of behavioral health services including via telehealth in a school setting.

Also: That the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2272, a bill for an act relating to public assistance program oversight, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 26, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2356, a bill for an act relating to the education of students with characteristics of dyslexia and to the preparation and licensure of practitioners for such instruction, and establishing an Iowa dyslexia board.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2573, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act modifying the sales and use tax exemption for the sale of certain component parts attached to or services performed on aircraft.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2574, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act allowing counties to collect a fee for the issuance and renewal of driver's licenses and nonoperator's identification cards to persons who reside outside the county.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2575, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act exempting from the computation of the individual and corporate state income taxes broadband grants received by communications service providers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2576, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the adjustments to state foundation aid paid to a school district following an assessed value reduction for certain property and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2118, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to loan repayment for refinanced student loans under the rural

physician loan repayment program, the health care professional recruitment program, and the health care loan repayment program, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file.**

On motion by Sexton of Calhoun, the House was recessed at 8:50 a.m., until the conclusion of the morning committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 1:09 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2577, by Running-Marquardt, Steckman, B. Meyer, Anderson, Cohoon, Konfrst, Donahue, Gaskill, Derry, Winckler, Kurth, Wilburn, Hunter, Kurtz, Forbes, Ourth, McKean, Oldson, Hall, Staed, Williams, Kacena, Nielsen, Abdul-Samad, Bearinger, Wolfe, Sunde, Matson, Wessel-Kroeschell, Lensing, Mascher, Brown-Powers, Ehlert, Bennett, and R. Smith, a bill for an act establishing a loan repayment program and fund for eligible individuals in high-demand jobs, including certified nurse aides, child care workers, and direct care workers, to be administered by the college student aid commission, and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations.**

House File 2578, by Running-Marquardt, Steckman, B. Meyer, Anderson, Cohoon, Konfrst, Donahue, Gaskill, Derry, Winckler, Kurth, Judge, Wilburn, Hunter, Kurtz, Forbes, Nielsen, Abdul-Samad, Bearinger, Wolfe, Isenhardt, Sunde, Matson, Wessel-Kroeschell, Lensing, Mascher, Brown-Powers, Ehlert, Gaines, Oldson, Bennett, R. Smith, McConkey, Kacena, Williams, Hall, Breckenridge, and Ourth, a bill for an act establishing a small business revolving loan program and small business revolving loan fund within the economic development authority to award low-interest loans to eligible small businesses.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations.**

House File 2579, by Prichard, Oldson, James, McKean, Ourth, Forbes, Steckman, Kurtz, Hunter, Wilburn, Judge, Kurth, Winckler, Derry, Gaskill, Donahue, Konfrst, Cohoon, Anderson, B. Meyer, Breckenridge, R. Smith, Kacena, Hall, Staed, Williams, Nielsen, Abdul-Samad, Bearinger, Wolfe, Isenhardt, Sunde, Matson, Wessel-Kroeschell, Lensing, Mascher, Brown-Powers, Ehlert, Thede, Gaines, Running-Marquardt, Bennett, and McConkey, a bill for an act relating to the treatment of adoptive parent employees and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

House File 2580, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act regarding port authorities, including by allowing port authorities to enter into certain loan agreements and lease contracts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2581, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of hemp, including by providing for testing methods and the regulation of hemp products, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2582, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the practice of interior design, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2583, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to court-ordered reimbursement of jail costs and restitution.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2584, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act relating to the peace officer and public safety and emergency personnel bill of rights, providing for employee assessments of supervisors of certain state officers, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2585, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the terminology used in relation to the deaf and hard-of-hearing persons.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2153, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the administration of physical examinations and student health screenings by school districts.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

Senate File 2195, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act providing an exception to the Iowa state elevator code for certain multi-story commercial buildings in specified circumstances.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Regular Calendar

House File 2502, a bill for an act relating to firearms and weapons, including the storage, carrying, possession, or transportation of weapons and the establishment, use, and maintenance of shooting ranges, was taken up for consideration.

Holt of Crawford offered amendment H-8038 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8038 was adopted.

Holt of Crawford moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2502)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Nielsen	Olson	Ourth
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 4:

Jones	Meyer, B.	Oldson	Prichard
-------	-----------	--------	----------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2477, a bill for an act relating to county regulation of certain agricultural experiences, was taken up for consideration.

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 1:48 p.m.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2477)

The ayes were, 85:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossman	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Judge
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McKean	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Osmundson	Paustian	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 11:

Breckenridge	Hunter	Jacoby	James
Kacena	McConkey	Olson	Ourth
Smith, M.	Staed	Wolfe	

Absent or not voting, 4:

Jones	Meyer, B.	Oldson	Prichard
-------	-----------	--------	----------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2512, a bill for an act relating to county zoning procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2512)

The ayes were, 66:

Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger	Bergan
Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge
Brink	Carlson	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Ehlert	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Jacobsen	Jeneary	Judge	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Kurtz	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell
McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Williams	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 29:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Donahue	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
James	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Lensing	Mascher	McConkey
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Winckler			

Absent or not voting, 5:

Jones	Meyer, B.	Oldson	Olson
Prichard			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Jones of Clay	Oldson of Polk
Olson of Polk	Meyer, B. of Polk
Prichard of Floyd	

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2135, a bill for an act relating to the final disposition and disinterment of human remains.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2270, a bill for an act relating to the identification and use of tree stands for hunting deer placed on public land and making penalties applicable.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2586, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to gambling regulation and enforcement activities of the division of criminal investigation of the department of public safety.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2587, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to voting and the administration of elections, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2588, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2589, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act concerning the medical cannabidiol Act.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2590, by committee on Public Safety, a bill for an act allowing certain emergency medical care providers to obtain a professional permit to carry weapons.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2477, 2502 and 2512**.

EXPLANATION OF VOTE

On February 26, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 2220 – “aye”	House File 2235 – “aye”
House File 2269 – “aye”	House File 2291 – “aye”
House File 2340 – “aye”	House File 2362 – “aye”
House File 2363 – “nay”	House File 2364 – “aye”
House File 2365 – “aye”	House File 2366 – “aye”
House File 2410 – “aye”	House File 2411 – “aye”
House File 2412 – “aye”	House File 2416 – “aye”
House File 2418 – “aye”	House File 2421 – “aye”

Anderson of Polk

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

BOARD OF REGENTS

Span of Control Policy Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.9C.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Kindergarten Literacy Assessment Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 279.60.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Disputed Highway Project Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 306.54.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15.107B.

Commission on Volunteer Service Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15H.2.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Senate File 612, a bill for an act relating to matters under the purview of the utilities division of the department of commerce, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 26, 2020.

Referred to the committee on Ways and Means pursuant to Rule 31.7.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Senate File 2082, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of education and the department of education to reflect current practices, technology, and titles, to delete redundancies, and to resolve inconsistencies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 26, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2041), permitting businesses' new onsite daycare facilities or businesses' expansion of existing onsite daycare facilities to qualify as projects under the high quality jobs program, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 27, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2083), providing businesses with income, franchise, moneys and credits, and gross premiums tax credits for providing child care benefits to employees of the business, and including applicability date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 27, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2175), relating to the construction of child care facilities by providing developers with sales and use tax refunds and income, franchise, moneys and credits, and gross premiums tax credits, providing for a fee, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** February 27, 2020.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.R. 104, by Hanusa and Running-Marquardt, a resolution to recognize the Iowa Small Business Development Centers and honor 2020 award winners.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8039	H.F.	2463	Staed of Linn
H-8040	H.F.	2493	Isenhart of Dubuque Kacena of Woodbury
H-8041	H.F.	2270	Ehlert of Linn
H-8042	H.F.	2511	McKean of Jones
H-8043	H.F.	2492	Wilburn of Story
H-8044	H.F.	2540	Lundgren of Dubuque
H-8045	H.F.	2463	Mascher of Johnson
H-8046	H.F.	2259	Isenhart of Dubuque James of Dubuque
H-8047	H.F.	2280	Jacoby of Johnson
H-8048	H.F.	2461	Dolecheck of Ringgold
H-8049	H.F.	2195	Windschitl of Harrison

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 2:12 p.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, March 2, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fiftieth Calendar Day - Thirty-first Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, March 2, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:01 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastors Sara and Austin Hill, First Presbyterian Church, Fort Dodge. They were the guests of A. Meyer of Webster.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Indee Grassley, Maryn Bixby, Payton Petersen, Claire McCumber, Drew Petersen, Shelby Ohrt and Jaclyn Petersen. They were the guests of Speaker Grassley.

The Journal of Thursday, February 27, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on February 27, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate Joint Resolution 2003, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the gubernatorial line of succession.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2259, a bill for an act relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2284, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of regents and the institutions the state board of regents governs, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2310, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa learning online initiative and to standards, requirements, and rules relating to online learning programs and coursework provided at the secondary school level.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2327, a bill for an act relating to the elimination of the hospital licensing board, and providing for repeals.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2329, a bill for an act relating to licensed health care providers for purposes of state law regarding concussion and brain injury policies for extracurricular interscholastic activities.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2346, a bill for an act relating to a pilot program to allow Medicaid members to participate in direct primary care agreements.

Also: That the Senate has on February 27, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2362, a bill for an act relating to the appointment of a guardian ad litem for certain child prosecution witnesses.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2591, by committee on Agriculture, a bill for an act relating to the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, including by providing for administration, programs, and regulations, providing fees, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2592, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act concerning benefits under the municipal fire and police retirement system.

Read first time and placed on the **calendar**.

House File 2593, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act permitting businesses' new onsite daycare facilities or businesses' expansion of existing onsite daycare facilities to qualify as projects under the high quality jobs program, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2594, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act providing businesses with income, franchise, moneys and credits, and gross premiums tax credits for providing child care benefits to employees of the business, and including applicability date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2595, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the construction of child care facilities by providing developers with sales and use tax refunds and income, franchise, moneys and credits, and gross premiums tax credits, providing for a fee, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2133, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act repealing provisions requiring the registration of travel agencies.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

Senate File 2261, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the provision of behavioral health services including via telehealth in a school setting.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

Senate File 2270, by committee on Natural Resources and Environment, a bill for an act relating to the identification and use of tree stands for hunting deer placed on public land and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

Senate File 2327, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the elimination of the hospital licensing board, and providing for repeals.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

Senate File 2329, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to licensed health care providers for purposes of state law regarding concussion and brain injury policies for extracurricular interscholastic activities.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

Senate File 2346, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to a pilot program to allow Medicaid members to participate in direct primary care agreements.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

Senate File 2356, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the education of students with characteristics of dyslexia and to the preparation and licensure of practitioners for such instruction, and establishing an Iowa dyslexia board.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

Senate File 2362, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the appointment of a guardian ad litem for certain child prosecution witnesses.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 1:10 p.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 3:35 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2235, a bill for an act disqualifying a person convicted of human trafficking involving the use of a commercial motor vehicle from operating a commercial motor vehicle for life.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 155, a bill for an act relating to the practice of barbering in movable locations, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2187, a bill for an act providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2188, a bill for an act concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2225, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offenses of theft in the third degree and robbery in the first degree and making penalties applicable.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2269, a bill for an act relating to the established season for hunting game birds on a preserve.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2275, a bill for an act relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2323, a bill for an act relating to the initial care plan for minor and adult guardianships and the initial plan and inventory for adult conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 2, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2357, a bill for an act relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 155, by Zumbach, a bill for an act relating to the practice of barbering in movable locations, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS

Regular Calendar

House File 2195, a bill for an act relating to the practices of cosmetology and barbering in movable locations, was taken up for consideration.

Windschitl of Harrison offered amendment H-8049 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8049 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 155 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2195

Mitchell of Henry asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 155 for House File 2195.

Senate File 155, a bill for an act relating to the practice of barbering in movable locations, was taken up for consideration.

Mitchell of Henry moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 155)

The ayes were, 92:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 8:

Anderson	Fry	Jacoby	Kurth
Landon	Lensing	Shipley	Thompson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2565, a bill for an act relating to the setoff procedures used by public agencies and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Bossman of Woodbury moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2565)

The ayes were, 93:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 7:

Anderson	Fry	Jacoby	Kurth
Lensing	Shipley	Thompson	

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House File 2565** and **Senate File 155**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 167 and 2195 from further consideration by the House.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Anderson of Polk
 Jacoby of Johnson
 Lensing of Johnson
 Thompson of Greene

Fry of Clarke
 Kurth of Scott
 Shipley of Van Buren

EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

On February 27, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 2477 – “nay”
 House File 2512 – “nay”

House File 2502 – “nay”

Oldson of Polk

On March 2, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

Senate File 155 – “aye”

Landon of Polk

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2569

Appropriations: Sorensen, Chair; Bossman and Mascher.

Senate File 2249

Transportation: Sieck, Chair; Cohoon and Huseman.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations has been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

CORRECTION

Senate File 537, a bill for an act relating to taking coyotes while using an artificial source of light.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8051** February 12, 2020.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8050	S.F.	2259	Isenhart of Dubuque Kacena of Woodbury
H-8051	S.F.	537	Committee on Natural Resources
H-8052	H.F.	2270	Ehlert of Linn
H-8053	H.F.	2372	Maxwell of Poweshiek
H-8054	H.F.	2493	Deyoe of Story
H-8055	H.F.	2518	Sexton of Calhoun
H-8056	H.F.	2523	Bergan of Winneshiek
H-8057	H.F.	2518	Hunter of Polk

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 3:47 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Tuesday, March 3, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-first Calendar Day - Thirty-second Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, March 3, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Hite of Mahaska in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Lincon Guerra, Public Safety Chaplain of the West Des Moines Police Department. He was the guest of Sunde of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Olivia Brown, Page from West Des Moines.

The Journal of Monday, March 2, 2020, was approved.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2187, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

ADOPTION OF HOUSE RESOLUTION 104

Windschitl of Harrison called up for consideration **House Resolution 104**, a resolution to recognize the Iowa Small Business Development Centers and honor 2020 award winners.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie moved the adoption of House Resolution 104.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:40 a.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 5:04 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

House File 2596, by Staed, a bill for an act requiring the installation and maintenance of adult changing stations at certain locations, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate Joint Resolution 2003, by committee on State Government, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the gubernatorial line of succession.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2135, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the final disposition and disinterment of human remains.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2188, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

Senate File 2225, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offenses of theft in the third degree and robbery in the first degree and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2251, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to specialty areas, service commitment area distance

requirements, and practice-related requirements under the rural Iowa primary care loan repayment program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

Senate File 2259, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2269, by committee on Natural Resources and Environment, a bill for an act relating to the established season for hunting game birds on a preserve.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

Senate File 2272, by committee on Labor and Business Relations, a bill for an act relating to public assistance program oversight, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

Senate File 2275, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2284, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of regents and the institutions the state board of regents governs, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

Senate File 2310, by committee on Education, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa learning online initiative and to standards, requirements, and rules relating to online learning programs and coursework provided at the secondary school level.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

Senate File 2323, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the initial care plan for minor and adult guardianships and the initial plan and inventory for adult conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2338, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to civil actions, including the total amount recoverable as a noneconomic damages award against a health care provider, recoverable damages for medical expenses, and evidence offered to prove past medical expenses.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

Senate File 2357, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS

Regular Calendar

Senate File 583, a bill for an act relating to electric utility rates and infrastructure support options for private generation customers, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Carlson of Muscatine offered amendment H-8033 filed by the committee on Commerce.

Carlson of Muscatine offered amendment H-8058, to the committee amendment H-8033, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8058, to the committee amendment H-8033, was adopted.

Carlson of Muscatine moved the adoption of the committee amendment H-8033, as amended.

The committee amendment H-8033, as amended, was adopted.

Carlson of Muscatine moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 583)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shiple
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worhan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2212, a bill for an act relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2132 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2212

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2132 for House File 2212.

Senate File 2132, a bill for an act relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies, was taken up for consideration.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2132)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipleay
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson	Kurth
----------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2267, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of dental hygienists and dental assistants, and the practice of dentistry, and providing administrative penalties, was taken up for consideration.

Bacon of Story moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2267)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shiple
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2268, a bill for an act relating to notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2198 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2268

Mohr of Scott asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2198 for House File 2268.

Senate File 2198, a bill for an act relating to notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Mohr of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2198)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell

Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson	Kurth
----------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2276, a bill for an act providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2187 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2276

Jones of Clay asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2187 for House File 2276.

Senate File 2187, a bill for an act providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act, was taken up for consideration.

Jones of Clay moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2187)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena

Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House File 2267** and **Senate Files 583, 2132, 2187 and 2198**.

House File 2277, a bill for an act relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2131 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2277

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2131 for House File 2277.

Senate File 2131, a bill for an act relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2131)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2311, a bill for an act providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2091 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2311

Maxwell of Poweshiek asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2091 for House File 2311.

Senate File 2091, a bill for an act providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Maxwell of Poweshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2091)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2314, a bill for an act relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2134 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2314

Sexton of Calhoun asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2134 for House File 2314.

Senate File 2134, a bill for an act relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Sexton of Calhoun moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2134)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomington	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes	Fry
Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams

Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 3:

Bearinger	Donahue	Lundgren
-----------	---------	----------

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson	Kurth
----------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2372, a bill for an act exempting certain farmers and hired help operating a special truck from the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur, was taken up for consideration.

Maxwell of Poweshiek offered amendment H-8053 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8053 was adopted.

Maxwell of Poweshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2372)

The ayes were, 79:

Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger	Bergan
Best	Bloomington	Bossman	Brink
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton

Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Sorensen
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley	

The nays were, 19:

Abdul-Samad	Bennett	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Donahue	Gaines	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Kacena	Konfrst
Mascher	Matson	Oldson	Smith, R.
Staed	Wessel-Kroeschell	Winckler	

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson	Kurth
----------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2373, a bill for an act relating to the qualifications necessary for an applicant for licensure as a professional engineer, was taken up for consideration.

Bergan of Winneshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2373)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey

McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley	

The nays were, 3:

Hunter	Kacena	Williams
--------	--------	----------

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson	Kurth
----------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2372, 2373** and **Senate Files 2091, 2131** and **2134**.

House File 2389, a bill for an act relating to the rulemaking process for executive branch agencies and including transition provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 5:49 p.m.

Mitchell of Henry moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2389)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers

Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Omundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2402, a bill for an act relating to the resignations of registered agents serving certain business entities, was taken up for consideration.

Hagenow of Dallas moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2402)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe

Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2415, a bill for an act relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2137 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2415

Lohse of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2137 for House File 2415.

Senate File 2137, a bill for an act relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances, was taken up for consideration.

Lohse of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2137)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Omundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills,		
	Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 684, a bill for an act providing limited immunity from certain criminal offenses and prohibiting certain disciplinary sanctions for persons under twenty-one years of age who report, seek, or require

emergency assistance for alcohol overdoses, and modifying penalties, was taken up for consideration.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 684)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 3:

Gustafson	Salmon	Wheeler
-----------	--------	---------

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson	Kurth
----------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2443, a bill for an act relating to eligibility requirements and assessments for students under the senior year plus program and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2443)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills,		
	Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 684, 2389, 2402, 2443** and **Senate File 2137**.

House File 2444, a bill for an act relating to the crime of disorderly conduct and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2444)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills,		
	Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson

Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2445, a bill for an act relating to the privacy of a victim of a sex offense in a criminal or civil proceeding, was taken up for consideration.

Lohse of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2445)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills,		
	Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2454, a bill for an act relating to qualifications for community college career and technical education instructors, was taken up for consideration.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2454)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Anderson of Polk

Kurth of Scott

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2444, 2445 and 2454.**

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2054, 2156, 2212, 2268, 2276, 2277, 2311, 2314 and 2415 from further consideration by the House.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 3, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 310, a bill for an act relating to the practice of optometry.

Also: That the Senate has on March 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2184, a bill for an act relating to peace officers, reserve peace officers, and federal officers going armed with, carrying, or transporting a firearm on school grounds.

Also: That the Senate has on March 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2348, a bill for an act relating to the restoration of voting rights to certain convicted persons and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2366, a bill for an act relating to work and employment and training requirements for public assistance programs, and including effective date and implementation provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SPONSOR ADDED

Amendment H-8067 (H.F. 2539) – Gaines of Polk

EXPLANATION OF VOTE

On February 24, 25, 26 and 27, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 717 – “aye”	House File 2197 – “aye”
House File 2219 – “aye”	House File 2220 – “aye”
House File 2221 – “aye”	House File 2222 – “aye”
House File 2235 – “aye”	House File 2236 – “aye”
House File 2238 – “aye”	House File 2269 – “aye”
House File 2291 – “aye”	House File 2308 – “aye”
House File 2310 – “aye”	House File 2312 – “aye”
House File 2313 – “aye”	House File 2339 – “aye”
House File 2340 – “aye”	House File 2359 – “aye”
House File 2360 – “aye”	House File 2361 – “aye”
House File 2362 – “aye”	House File 2363 – “aye”
House File 2364 – “aye”	House File 2365 – “aye”
House File 2366 – “aye”	House File 2369 – “aye”
House File 2382 – “aye”	House File 2383 – “aye”
House File 2410 – “aye”	House File 2411 – “aye”
House File 2412 – “aye”	House File 2416 – “aye”
House File 2418 – “aye”	House File 2421 – “aye”
House File 2477 – “aye”	House File 2502 – “aye”
House File 2512 – “aye”	

Jones of Clay

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2377

Appropriations: Worthan, Chair; Bossman and Hall.

House File 2494

Appropriations: Mommsen, Chair; McKean and Sexton.

House File 2495

Appropriations: Bossman, Chair; Running-Marquardt and Worthan.

House File 2496

Appropriations: Kerr, Chair; Dolecheck and Forbes.

House File 2500

Appropriations: Fry, Chair; Brink and Running-Marquardt.

House File 2567

Appropriations: Mommsen, Chair; Bearinger and Wills.

House File 2570

Ways and Means: Holt, Chair; Kurth and Mitchell.

House File 2580

Ways and Means: Hagenow, Chair; Bloomingdale and Jacoby.

House File 2586

Ways and Means: Kaufmann, Chair; Hunter and Mitchell.

House File 2591

Ways and Means: Isenhart, Chair; Zumbach, Chair; Maxwell.

Senate File 612

Ways and Means: Bloomingdale, Chair; Carlson and McConkey.

Senate File 2153

Education: Shipley, Chair; Gaines and Hanusa.

Senate File 2261

Human Resources: A. Meyer, Chair; Brown-Powers and Fry.

Senate File 2327

Human Resources: Fry, Chair; Bacon and Sunde.

Senate File 2329

Education: Wheeler, Chair; Matson and Mommsen.

Senate File 2346

Human Resources: Lundgren, Chair; James and A. Meyer.

Senate File 2356

Education: Salmon, Chair; Brink and James.

Senate File 2360

Appropriations: Dolecheck, Chair; Kerr and Mascher.

Senate File 2362

Judiciary: Hagenow, Chair; Paustian and Wilburn.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2345), relating to the financial exploitation of designated eligible adults, and making an appropriation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 3, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2447), relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 3, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2448), establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** March 3, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2488), establishing a child care workforce state matching grants program and fund administered by the early childhood Iowa state board to award matching state grants to eligible communities and making an appropriation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 3, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2357), relating to filing for specified property tax credits and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 3, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2388), relating to matters involving insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, providing fees, and resolving inconsistencies.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 3, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2434), relating to county emergency medical services by modifying provisions relating to optional taxes for emergency medical services.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 3, 2020.

RESOLUTIONS FILED

H.R. 105, by Salmon, Gustafson, Jeneary, Wheeler, Landon, Thompson, Gaines, Sorensen, Hagenow, Hite, M. Smith, Ourth, Kurth, Brown-Powers, Prichard, Breckenridge, Kacena, and Bennett, a resolution recognizing the centennial of the formation of the American Legion Auxiliary.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

H.R. 106, by Mitchell, Kerr, Kurtz, and Cohoon, a resolution celebrating the 100th anniversary of Southeastern Community College.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8058	S.F.	583	Carlson of Muscatine
H-8059	H.F.	2309	Holt of Crawford
H-8060	H.F.	2455	Holt of Crawford
H-8061	H.F.	2472	Lensing of Johnson
H-8062	H.F.	2457	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8063	H.F.	2563	Salmon of Black Hawk
H-8064	S.F.	537	Jeneary of Plymouth
H-8065	H.F.	310	Senate amendment
H-8066	H.F.	2552	Maxwell of Poweshiek
H-8067	H.F.	2539	Salmon of Black Hawk Gassman of Winnebago Hanusa of Pottawattamie Jacobsen of Pottawattamie
H-8068	H.F.	2554	Hite of Mahaska
H-8069	H.F.	2585	Jacobsen of Pottawattamie
H-8070	H.F.	2527	Bearinger of Fayette Lundgren of Dubuque McKean of Jones

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 6:16 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, March 4, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-second Calendar Day - Thirty-third Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, March 4, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Jones of Clay in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Ryan Trosen, Chaplain of the Iowa Veterans Home, Marshalltown. He was the guest of M. Smith of Marshall.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Eli Hartman and Teirstyn Murray, Creston High School students from iJAG. They were the guests of Moore of Cass.

The Journal of Tuesday, March 3, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2368, a bill for an act relating to the authority of counties and cities to regulate rental housing, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2597, by Jacoby, a bill for an act providing for access to feminine hygiene products in public school restrooms.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2598, by Jacoby, a bill for an act relating to vapor products including the taxation of such products, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2599, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2600, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act establishing a child care workforce state matching grants program and fund administered by the early childhood Iowa state board to award matching state grants to eligible communities and making an appropriation.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2601, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to filing for specified property tax credits and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2602, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to county emergency medical services by modifying provisions relating to optional taxes for emergency medical services.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:36 a.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 2:51 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 4, 2020, receded from the Senate amendment and passed the following bill:

House File 426, a bill for an act relating to the insurance fraud bureau, criminal history checks for licenses granted by the insurance division, and resolving inconsistencies.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2267, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of dental hygienists and dental assistants, and the practice of dentistry, and providing administrative penalties.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2512, a bill for an act relating to county zoning procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 583, a bill for an act relating to electric utility rates and infrastructure support options for private generation customers.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, amended the House amendment, concurred in the House amendment as amended, and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2142, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2191, a bill for an act relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2283, a bill for an act relating to authorized training programs for certain emergency medical care providers and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2184, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to peace officers, reserve peace officers, and federal officers going armed with, carrying, or transporting a firearm on school grounds.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

Senate File 2348, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the restoration of voting rights to certain convicted persons and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2366, by committee on Labor and Business Relations, a bill for an act relating to eligibility, work, and employment and training requirements for public assistance programs, including eligibility for child care assistance and community engagement activity requirements under the Iowa health and wellness plan, and including effective date and implementation provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Regular Calendar

House File 2539, a bill for an act relating to language and literacy development for deaf and hard-of-hearing children, was taken up for consideration.

Salmon of Black Hawk offered amendment H-8067 filed by Salmon, et al., and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8067 was adopted.

Salmon of Black Hawk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2539)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt

Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2585, a bill for an act relating to the terminology used in relation to the deaf and hard-of-hearing persons, was taken up for consideration.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie offered amendment H-8069 filed by him.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie offered amendment H-8071, to amendment H-8069, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8071, to amendment H-8069, was adopted.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved the adoption of amendment H-8069, as amended.

Amendment H-8069, as amended, was adopted.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2585)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

SENATE AMENDMENT CONSIDERED
House Concurred

Dolecheck of Ringgold called up for consideration **Senate File 2142**, a bill for an act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and

including effective date provisions, amended by the House, further amended by the Senate.

Hunter of Polk rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Hunter of Polk rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point not well taken.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8072, to the House amendment.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8072, to the House amendment.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved that the bill, as amended by the House, further amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2142)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill

Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Shipley	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2539, 2585** and **Senate File 2142**.

Regular Calendar

Senate File 458, a bill for an act relating to debts for which the homestead is liable by providing that the homestead may be sold to satisfy debts secured by a mechanic's lien, including principal, interest, attorney fees, and costs, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Jones of Clay offered amendment H-1134 filed by the committee on Judiciary.

Jones of Clay offered amendment H-1182, to the committee amendment H-1134, filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-1182, to the committee amendment H-1134, was adopted.

Jones of Clay moved the adoption of the committee amendment H-1134, as amended.

The committee amendment H-1134, as amended, was adopted.

Jones of Clay moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 458)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2374, a bill for an act providing that a licensed veterinarian is immune from administrative, civil, or criminal liability in investigations or proceedings involving the mistreatment of animals, was taken up for consideration.

Bloomington of Worth moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2374)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 537, a bill for an act relating to taking coyotes while using an artificial source of light, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Jeneary of Plymouth offered amendment H-8051 filed by the committee on Natural Resources.

Jeneary of Plymouth offered amendment H-8064, to the committee amendment H-8051, filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8064, to the committee amendment H-8051, was adopted.

Jeneary of Plymouth moved the adoption of the committee amendment H-8051, as amended.

The committee amendment H-8051, as amended, was adopted.

Jeneary of Plymouth moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 537)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2455, a bill for an act allowing the use of a leashed dog to track and retrieve a wounded deer and providing a penalty, was taken up for consideration.

Holt of Crawford offered amendment H-8060 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8060 was adopted.

Jeneary of Plymouth moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2455)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer

Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 2:

Hall	Kerr
------	------

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2461, a bill for an act relating to loan repayment for refinanced eligible loans under the rural physician loan repayment program, was taken up for consideration.

Dolecheck of Ringgold offered amendment H-8048 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8048 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2118 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2461

Dolecheck of Ringgold asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2118 for House File 2461.

Senate File 2118, a bill for an act relating to loan repayment for refinanced student loans under the rural physician loan repayment program, the health care professional recruitment program, and the health care loan repayment program, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2118)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 1:

Upmeyer

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2374, 2455** and **Senate Files 458, 537** and **2118**.

House File 2472, a bill for an act relating to the final disposition and disinterment of human remains, was taken up for consideration.

Lensing of Johnson offered amendment H-8061 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8061 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2135 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2472

Lensing of Johnson asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2135 for House File 2472.

Senate File 2135, a bill for an act relating to the final disposition and disinterment of human remains, was taken up for consideration.

Lensing of Johnson moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2135)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2474, a bill for an act relating to the confidentiality of information filed with the court to secure an arrest warrant, was taken up for consideration.

Hagenow of Dallas moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2474)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2475, a bill for an act relating to the review and permitting of sewer extensions and water supply distribution system extensions, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

The House stood at ease at 4:34 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 4:54 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

The House resumed consideration of H.F. 2475.

Shipley of Van Buren moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2475)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommmsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck

Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl Speaker	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2473, a bill for an act creating the criminal offense of defrauding a drug or alcohol test and providing penalties, was taken up for consideration.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2473)

The ayes were, 55:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Carlson	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher
Forbes	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Maxwell	McKean	Meyer, A.
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 42:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Ehlert
Gaines	Gaskill	Hall	Hunter
Isenhart	Jacoby	James	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2476, a bill for an act relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2250 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2476

Huseman of Cherokee asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2250 for House File 2476.

Senate File 2250, a bill for an act relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties, was taken up for consideration.

Huseman of Cherokee moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2250)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe

Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2473, 2474, 2475** and **Senate Files 2135** and **2250**.

House File 2481, a bill for an act relating to the validity of certificates of the treasurer, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2481)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2484, a bill for an act relating to the employment of county engineers, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2025 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2484

Jeneary of Plymouth asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2025 for House File 2484.

Senate File 2025, a bill for an act relating to the employment of county engineers, was taken up for consideration.

Jeneary of Plymouth moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2025)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2526, a bill for an act relating to transfer between trusts for persons with disabilities, was taken up for consideration.

Bergan of Winneshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2526)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2528, a bill for an act relating to persons authorized to request assistance pursuant to the statewide mutual aid compact, was taken up for consideration.

Thompson of Greene moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2528)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2529, a bill for an act relating to confidential communications between a peer support group counselor and specified individuals, was taken up for consideration.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2529)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2481, 2526, 2528, 2529** and **Senate File 2025**.

House File 2486, a bill for an act relating to the design and use of county seals, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2486)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2535, a bill for an act relating to nonsubstantive Code corrections, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Gustafson of Madison moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2535)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2493, a bill for an act relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency, was taken up for consideration.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent that amendment H-8040 be deferred.

Deyoe of Story offered amendment H-8054 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8054 was adopted.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8040 filed by him and Kacena of Woodbury on February 27, 2020, previously deferred.

SENATE FILE 2259 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2493

Deyoe of Story asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2259 for House File 2493.

Senate File 2259, a bill for an act relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency, was taken up for consideration.

Isenhart of Dubuque offered amendment H-8050 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Isenhart of Dubuque and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8050 be adopted?" (S.F. 2259)

The ayes were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby

James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

Amendment H-8050 lost.

Deyoe of Story moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2259)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones

Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 1:

Isenhardt

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson

Fry

Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2536, a bill for an act relating to statutory corrections which may adjust language to reflect current practices, insert earlier omissions, delete redundancies and inaccuracies, delete temporary language, resolve inconsistencies and conflicts, update ongoing provisions, or remove ambiguities, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, with report of committee recommending amendment passage, was taken up for consideration.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie offered amendment H-8030 filed by the committee on Judiciary and moved its adoption.

The committee amendment H-8030 was adopted.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2536)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2540, a bill for an act establishing a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit, was taken up for consideration.

Lundgren of Dubuque offered amendment H-8044 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8044 was adopted.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2540)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2486, 2535, 2536, 2540** and **Senate File 2259**.

House File 2547, a bill for an act relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners, was taken up for consideration.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2547)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth
----------	-----	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2552, a bill for an act providing for a notice regarding a hearing to determine how land within a drainage or levee district is to be classified for purposes of assessing that land, was taken up for consideration.

Maxwell of Poweshiek offered amendment H-8066 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8066 was adopted.

Maxwell of Poweshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2552)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2556, a bill for an act relating to notification of the general assembly concerning certain state government leases and real property acquisitions, was taken up for consideration.

Deyoe of Story moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2556)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2566, a bill for an act establishing a study relating to the grain depositors and sellers indemnity fund, was taken up for consideration.

Sieck of Mills moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2566)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Anderson Fry Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Anderson of Polk Fry of Clarke
Kurth of Scott

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2552, 2556 and 2566.**

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 363, 657, 2013, 2056, 2198, 2210, 2295, 2299, 2318, 2325, 2333, 2396, 2461, 2472, 2476, 2484 and 2493 from further consideration by the House.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2477, a bill for an act relating to county regulation of certain agricultural experiences.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2268, a bill for an act establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor

products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2271, a bill for an act relating to the purchasing of a youth deer hunting license and tag and the methods of take authorized for a youth hunter during youth deer hunting season.

Also: That the Senate has on March 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2318, a bill for an act relating to collaborative pharmacy practice allowing pharmacists to provide patient care and drug therapy management services.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

The House stood at ease at 6:07 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 6:40 p.m., Bossman of Woodbury in the chair.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 4, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 737, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of persons involved with animals other than livestock and certain wild animals, providing for criminal offenses and court orders associated with animal mistreatment, and including penalties.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2191, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

MOTION TO RECONSIDER

I move to reconsider the vote by which House File 2547 passed the House on March 4, 2020.

Windschitl of Harrison

EXPLANATION OF VOTE

On March 2, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 2565 – “aye”

Senate File 155 – “aye”

Lensing of Johnson

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 708 Ways and Means

Relating to the treatment of certain income as a foreign dividend for Iowa corporate income tax purposes, and modifying the business interest expense deduction for Iowa individual and corporate tax purposes and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 709 Ways and Means

Providing deductions from the individual and corporate income taxes for expenses incurred by medical cannabidiol manufacturers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House File 2591 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Zumbach, Chair; Isenhart and Maxwell.

Senate File 2133

State Government: Lundgren, Chair; Deyoe and Hunter.

Senate File 2201

Natural Resources: Bacon, Chair; Ourth and Sieck.

Senate File 2251

Education: Kerr, Chair; Dolecheck and Steckman.

Senate File 2284

Education: Hanusa, Chair; Mascher and Mommsen.

Senate File 2310

Education: Moore, Chair; Gassman and Kurth.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House Study Bill 708**

Ways and Means: Carlson, Chair; Bloomingdale and Jacoby.

House Study Bill 709

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Bloomingdale and Isenhart.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendation has been received and is on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

Senate File 388, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa patriots memorial highway, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8073** March 3, 2020, placed on calendar.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8071	H.F.	2585	Jacobsen of Pottawattamie
H-8072	S.F.	2142	Senate Amendment
H-8073	S.F.	388	Committee on Transportation
H-8074	H.F.	2542	Best of Carroll
H-8075	H.F.	2518	Hunter of Polk
H-8076	H.F.	2375	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8077	H.F.	2417	Bossmann of Woodbury

H-8078	S.F.	2225	Hite of Mahaska
H-8079	H.F.	2554	Hite of Mahaska
H-8080	H.F.	2492	Osmundson of Clayton Wilburn of Story
H-8081	H.F.	2503	Kaufmann of Cedar Bennett of Linn
H-8082	H.F.	2504	Abdul-Samad of Polk
H-8083	H.F.	2573	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8084	H.F.	737	Senate Amendment

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 6:40 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, March 5, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-third Calendar Day - Thirty-fourth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, March 5, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:32 a.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Nathan Sherrill, Lutheran Church, Council Bluffs. He was the guest of Hanusa of Pottawattamie.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Avery DenHartog, Page from Rock Valley.

The Journal of Wednesday, March 4, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2603, by Hall, a bill for an act relating to the community attraction and tourism fund and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2604, by Prichard, Abdul-Samad, Bearinger, Bennett, Breckenridge, Brown-Powers, Cohoon, Derry, Donahue, Ehlert, Forbes, Gaines, Gaskill, Hall, Hunter, Isenhardt, James, Judge, Kacena, Konfrst, Kressig, Kurtz, Mascher, Matson, McConkey, McKean, B. Meyer, Nielsen, Oldson, Olson, Ourth, Running-Marquardt, R. Smith, Staed, Steckman, Sunde, Thede, Wessel-Kroeschell, Wilburn, Williams, Winckler, and Wolfe, a bill for an act establishing a local government public safety grant fund and making an appropriation.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2605, by Prichard, McConkey, Hunter, Mascher, Oldson, Steckman, Thede, McKean, B. Meyer, Cohoon, Gaskill, Wolfe, Donahue, Winckler, Staed, James, Judge, Kurtz, Bearinger, Forbes, Bennett, Running-Marquardt, Breckenridge, Hall, Williams, Kacena, Wilburn, R. Smith, Nielsen, Abdul-Samad, Kressig, Brown-Powers,

Olson, Sunde, Wessel-Kroeschell, Matson, Derry, Ehlert, and Gaines, a bill for an act relating to the connecting Iowa farms, schools, and communities broadband grant fund and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2606, by Prichard, Hunter, McConkey, Mascher, Oldson, Steckman, Thede, B. Meyer, Cohoon, Gaskill, Wolfe, Donahue, Winckler, Staed, James, Kurtz, Wilburn, Bearinger, Forbes, Bennett, Running-Marquardt, Breckenridge, Hall, Williams, Kacena, Abdul-Samad, Kressig, Brown-Powers, Olson, Sunde, Wessel-Kroeschell, and Matson, a bill for an act providing for grants to eligible political subdivisions for rehabilitation and remediation of buildings that are public nuisances or are abandoned for community use, and making appropriations.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2607, by Hall, a bill for an act classifying mourning doves as migratory game birds, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

House File 2608, by Hall, a bill for an act providing for the registration of eligible electors upon review of electronic records received from state agencies and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2609, by Prichard, McConkey, Hunter, Mascher, Oldson, Steckman, Thede, B. Meyer, Cohoon, Gaskill, Wolfe, Donahue, Winckler, Staed, James, Judge, Kurtz, Wilburn, Bearinger, Forbes, Bennett, Running-Marquardt, Breckenridge, Hall, Williams, Kacena, R. Smith, Nielsen, Abdul-Samad, Kressig, Brown-Powers, Olson, Sunde, Wessel-Kroeschell, Matson, Derry, Ehlert, and Gaines, a bill for an act relating to the individual income tax credits for volunteer fire fighters, volunteer emergency medical services personnel members, and reserve peace officers by increasing the amounts of the credits, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2610, by Prichard, McConkey, Hunter, Mascher, Oldson, Steckman, Thede, B. Meyer, Cohoon, Gaskill, Wolfe, Donahue, Winckler, Staed, James, Judge, Kurtz, Wilburn, Bearinger, Forbes, Bennett, Running-Marquardt, Breckenridge, Hall, Williams, Kacena, Nielsen, Abdul-Samad, Kressig, Brown-Powers, Olson, Sunde, Wessel-Kroeschell, and Matson, a bill for an act relating to the workforce housing tax incentives program.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

House File 2611, by Hall, a bill for an act providing a property assessment adjustment for certain persons, applying income and age limitations, providing a penalty, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2271, by committee on Natural Resources and Environment, a bill for an act relating to the purchasing of a youth deer hunting license and tag and the methods of take authorized for a youth hunter during youth deer hunting season.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Natural Resources**.

Senate File 2318, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to collaborative pharmacy practice allowing pharmacists to provide patient care and drug therapy management services.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:41 a.m., until the conclusion of the 10:00 a.m. committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 1:04 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

QUORUM CALL

A non-record roll call was requested to determine that a quorum was present. The vote revealed ninety members present, ten absent.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Ways and Means Calendar

House File 2573, a bill for an act modifying the sales and use tax exemption for the sale of certain component parts attached to or services performed on aircraft, was taken up for consideration.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8083 filed by him on March 4, 2020.

Maxwell of Poweshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2573)

The ayes were, 89:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 7:

Hunter	Kacena	Lensing	Meyer, B.
Olson	Wessel-Kroeschell	Winckler	

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
----------	-----	-------	----------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2575, a bill for an act exempting from the computation of the individual and corporate state income taxes broadband grants received by communications service providers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Lohse of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2575)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler

Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
----------	-----	-------	----------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

Senate File 280, a bill for an act relating to the residency of members of the armed forces stationed at specified military installations for purposes of hunting, fishing, and trapping privileges, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Salmon of Black Hawk offered amendment H-8001 filed by the committee on Veterans Affairs and moved its adoption.

The committee amendment H-8001 was adopted.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 280)

The ayes were, 94:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst

Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Osmundson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 1:

Olson

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2213, a bill for an act extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Shiple of Van Buren offered amendment H-8018 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8018 lost.

Shiple of Van Buren offered amendment H-8020 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Shiple of Van Buren and Wolfe of Clinton.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8020 be adopted?" (H.F. 2213)

The ayes were, 13:

Bennett	Gaskill	Gassman	Hall
Isenhart	Jacoby	James	Kacena

Meyer, B. Wolfe	Shiple	Steckman	Winckler
--------------------	--------	----------	----------

The nays were, 82:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bergan	Best	Bloomngdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Gaines	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Sieck	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson Smith, M.	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
-----------------------	-----	-------	----------

Amendment H-8020 lost.

Shiple of Van Buren offered amendment H-8019 filed by him.

Sorensen of Adair rose on a point of order that amendment H-8019 was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8019 not germane.

Shiple of Van Buren asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8019.

Objection was raised.

Shiple of Van Buren moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8019.

Roll call was requested by Shiple of Van Buren and Windschitl of Harrison.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8019?" (H.F. 2213)

The ayes were, 8:

Bennett	Isenhart	Kaufmann	Meyer, B.
Ourth	Shiple	Staed	Wolfe

The nays were, 87:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Sieck	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

SENATE FILE 2196 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2213

Sorensen of Adair asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2196 for House File 2213.

Senate File 2196, a bill for an act extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Windschitl of Harrison rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2196)

The ayes were, 81:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Sieck	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Williams	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 14:

Bennett	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
Kacena	Konfrst	Lensing	Mascher
Shipley	Steckman	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2309, a bill for an act relating to the regulation by counties and cities of certain conditions of employment, and including effective date and applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Holt of Crawford offered amendment H-8059 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8059 was adopted.

Holt of Crawford moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2309)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2417, a bill for an act relating to the treatment of adoptive parent employees and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Bossman of Woodbury offered amendment H-8077 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Konfrst of Polk and Wolfe of Clinton.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8077 be adopted?" (H.F. 2417)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

Amendment H-8077 was adopted.

Bossman of Woodbury moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2417)

The ayes were, 94:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, R.

Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 1:

Carlson

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

The House stood at ease at 2:46 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 4:04 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

House File 2442, a bill for an act directing the office of the chief information officer and the Iowa telecommunications and technology commission to jointly conduct a feasibility study relating to internet exchange points, was taken up for consideration.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2442)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James

Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2492, a bill for an act relating to reenrollment following a member's termination from the Iowa health and wellness plan, was taken up for consideration.

Wilburn of Story offered amendment H-8043 filed by him.

Osmundson of Clayton offered amendment H-8080, to amendment H-8043, filed by her and Wilburn of Story and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8080, to amendment H-8043, was adopted.

Wilburn of Story moved the adoption of amendment H-8043, as amended.

Roll call was requested by Wilburn of Story and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8043, as amended, be adopted?" (H.F. 2492)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

Amendment H-8043, as amended, was adopted.

Osmundson of Clayton moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2492)

The ayes were, 56:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingdale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher
Forbes	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein

Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell	McKean
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Sunde
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 39:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Donahue	Ehlert
Gaines	Gaskill	Hall	Hunter
Isenhardt	Jacoby	James	Judge
Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	McConkey	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2503, a bill for an act relating to the defense of justification for certain homicide offenses, was taken up for consideration.

Kaufmann of Cedar offered amendment H-8081 filed by him and Bennett of Linn and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8081 was adopted.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2503)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2520, a bill for an act relating to the development and utilization of high-speed electronic transmission mediums, was taken up for consideration.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2520)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
Smith, M.			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2259, a bill for an act relating to human trafficking prevention training and reporting for employees of lodging providers in the state, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Isenhardt of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8046 filed by him and James of Dubuque on February 27, 2020.

Mohr of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2259)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
----------	-----	-------	----------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

The House stood at ease at 4:49 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 5:53 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2612, by Upmeyer, a bill for an act authorizing the state board of regents to approve public-private partnership agreements proposed by the institutions of higher education the state board governs, providing for the establishment of public-private partnership oversight boards, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2613, by Hall, a bill for an act relating to the mandatory submission to a chemical test by a driver of a motor vehicle involved in an accident involving death, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

House File 2614, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the financial exploitation of designated eligible adults, and making an appropriation.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2615, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2616, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to matters involving insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, providing fees, and resolving inconsistencies.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2283, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to authorized training programs for certain emergency medical care providers and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Human Resources**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILL
Regular Calendar

House File 2504, a bill for an act requiring consideration of antisemitism by governmental entities when investigating possible discriminatory acts, was taken up for consideration.

Abdul-Samad of Polk offered amendment H-8082 filed by him.

Abdul-Samad of Polk offered amendment H-8089, to amendment H-8082, filed by Abdul-Samad, et al., from the floor.

Lohse of Polk rose on a point of order that amendment H-8089 was not germane, to amendment H-8082.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8089 not germane, to amendment H-8082.

R. Smith of Black Hawk asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8089, to amendment H-8082.

Objection was raised.

R. Smith of Black Hawk moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8089, to amendment H-8082.

Roll call was requested by R. Smith of Black Hawk and Abdul-Samad of Polk.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8089, to amendment H-8082?" (H.F. 2504)

The ayes were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

Absent or not voting, 5:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Olson
Paustian			

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Lohse of Polk rose on a point of order that amendment H-8082 was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8082 not germane.

Prichard of Floyd rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point not well taken.

Holt of Crawford rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker resolved the point of order.

Windschitl of Harrison rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Holt of Crawford rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker resolved the point of order.

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 8:27 p.m.

Speaker Grassley in the chair at 8:34 p.m.

Lohse of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2504)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Salmon	Sexton	Shiple
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley	

The nays were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 4:

Anderson	Fry	Kurth	Paustian
----------	-----	-------	----------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Anderson of Polk
Kurth of Scott
Smith, M. of Marshall

Fry of Clarke
Paustian of Scott

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2259, 2309, 2417, 2442, 2492, 2503, 2504, 2520, 2573, 2575** and **Senate Files 280** and **2196**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 607, 2023, 2107, 2213 and 2303 from further consideration by the House.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that Senate File 2119, previously referred to committee on **Public Safety** was **passed on file**.

SPONSOR WITHDRAWN

House Files 565 and 2371 — Shipley of Van Buren

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Senate File 2184

Public Safety: Holt, Chair; Klein and Wessel-Kroeschell.

Senate File 2318

Human Resources: Bacon, Chair; Brink and Forbes.

Senate File 2323

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

Senate File 2348

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Holt and Wolfe.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Senate File 329, a bill for an act relating to expert witness testimony in child sexual abuse and child endangerment cases.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 4, 2020, placed on calendar.

Senate File 526, a bill for an act creating a blue alert program within the department of public safety for the apprehension of a person suspected of killing or seriously injuring a peace officer in the line of duty or due to safety concerns for a peace officer missing while on duty.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 4, 2020, placed on calendar.

Senate File 2232, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa trust code, including the creation of directed trusts, the transfer of trust assets into other trusts, and requirements related to notices to beneficiaries.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 4, 2020, placed on calendar.

Senate File 2300, a bill for an act relating to the transfer of real estate as part of the administration of a decedent's estate, guardianship, conservatorship, or trust, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 4, 2020, placed on calendar.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8085	H.F.	2518	Hunter of Polk
H-8086	H.F.	2506	Lohse of Polk
H-8087	H.F.	2424	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8088	H.F.	2510	Carlson of Muscatine
H-8089	H.F.	2504	Abdul-Samad of Polk
			Bearinger of Fayette
			Bennett of Linn
			Breckenridge of Jasper
			Brown-Powers of Black Hawk
			Cohoon of Des Moines
			Derry of Polk
			Donahue of Linn
			Ehlert of Linn
			Forbes of Polk
			Gaines of Polk
			Gaskill of Wapello
			Hall of Woodbury
			Hunter of Polk
			Isenhart of Dubuque
			Jacoby of Johnson
			James of Dubuque
			Judge of Dallas
			Kacena of Woodbury
			Konfrst of Polk
			Kressig of Black Hawk
			Kurtz of Lee
			Lensing of Johnson
			Mascher of Johnson
			Matson of Polk
			McConkey of Pottawattamie
			McKean of Jones
			B. Meyer of Polk
			Nielsen of Johnson
			Oldson of Polk
			Olson of Polk
			Ourth of Warren
			Prichard of Floyd
			Running-Marquardt of Linn
			R. Smith of Black Hawk

			Staed of Linn
			Steckman of Cerro Gordo
			Sunde of Polk
			Thede of Scott
			Wessel-Kroeschell of Story
			Wilburn of Story
			Williams of Black Hawk
			Winckler of Scott
			Wolfe of Clinton
H-8090	H.F.	2527	Lundgren of Dubuque
			Bearinger of Fayette
			Zumbach of Linn
			Sieck of Mills
			Best of Carroll
			Hinson of Linn
			Sexton of Calhoun
			Klein of Washington
			McKean of Jones
			Holt of Crawford
			Worthan of Buena Vista
			Bacon of Story
			Lohse of Polk
			Mitchell of Henry
			Mohr of Scott
			Bloomingdale of Worth
			Moore of Cass
H-8091	H.F.	2594	Bossmann of Woodbury
H-8092	H.F.	2562	Wheeler of Sioux
H-8093	H.F.	2562	Wheeler of Sioux
H-8094	H.F.	2568	Salmon of Black Hawk
H-8095	H.F.	2562	Wheeler of Sioux
H-8096	H.F.	2595	Gassman of Winnebago
H-8097	H.F.	2538	Hite of Mahaska

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 9:00 p.m., until 8:15 a.m., Friday, March 6, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-fourth Calendar Day - Thirty-fifth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, March 6, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:18 a.m., Holt of Crawford in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Holt of Crawford.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Holt of Crawford.

The Journal of Thursday, March 5, 2020, was approved.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

BOARD OF REGENTS

State Geologist Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 456.7.

COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION

Ethnic Diversity Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.2.

Vocational Technical Tuition Grant Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 261.17.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Special Education Federal Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256B.3.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

Analysis of Medicaid Member Appeals Report, pursuant to Chapter 1165.128, 2018 Iowa Acts.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8098 H.F. 2595 James of Dubuque

H-8099	H.F.	2594	James of Dubuque
H-8100	H.F.	2593	James of Dubuque
H-8101	H.F.	2589	Breckenridge of Jasper
H-8102	H.F.	2600	Winckler of Scott
H-8103	H.F.	2413	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8104	H.F.	2589	Breckenridge of Jasper

On motion by Jones of Clay, the House adjourned at 8:20 a.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, March 9, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-seventh Calendar Day - Thirty-sixth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, March 9, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:07 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor Jason Latta, Citylight Church of Emerson. He was the guest of Sieck of Mills.

“Be Thou My Vision” was played by Bagpiper Father Kelly. He was the guest of Wills of Dickinson.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Grace, Cole, Briella and Ryan Latta. They are the children of Pastor Latta and the guests of Sieck of Mills.

The Journal of Friday, March 6, 2020, was approved.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 1:13 p.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

EVENING SESSION

The House reconvened at 8:22 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2368, by committee on Local Government, a bill for an act relating to the authority of counties and cities to regulate rental housing, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS
Appropriations Calendar

House File 2600, a bill for an act establishing a child care workforce state matching grants program and fund administered by the early childhood Iowa state board to award matching state grants to eligible communities and making an appropriation, was taken up for consideration.

Winckler of Scott asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8102 filed by her on March 6, 2020.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2600)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Urmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, 1:

Salmon

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

House File 2270, a bill for an act relating to child care reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program, was taken up for consideration.

Ehlert of Linn offered amendment H-8052 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8052 lost.

Ehlert of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8041 filed by her on February 27, 2020.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2270)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isehart	Jacobsen	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst

Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, 1:

Jacoby

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2271, a bill for an act relating to the definition of infant and toddler and preschool child for the purposes of child care provider reimbursement rates under the state child care assistance program, was taken up for consideration.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2271)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Beareringer	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter

Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2424, a bill for an act establishing a graduated eligibility phase-out program for state child care assistance, was taken up for consideration.

A. Meyer of Webster offered amendment H-8087 filed by her.

James of Dubuque offered amendment H-8116, to amendment H-8087, filed by her from the floor.

A. Meyer of Webster rose on a point of order that amendment H-8116 was not germane, to amendment H-8087.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8116 not germane, to amendment H-8087.

James of Dubuque asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8116, to amendment H-8087.

Objection was raised.

James of Dubuque moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8116, to amendment H-8087.

Roll call was requested by James of Dubuque and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8116, to amendment H-8087?" (H.F. 2424)

The ayes were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler		

The nays were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

A. Meyer of Webster offered amendment H-8108, to amendment H-8087, filed by her from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8108, to amendment H-8087, was adopted, placing out of order amendment H-8107, to amendment H-8087, filed by A. Meyer of Webster from the floor.

A. Meyer of Webster moved the adoption of amendment H-8087, as amended.

Amendment H-8087, as amended, was adopted, placing out of order amendment H-8036 filed by Ehlert of Linn on February 26, 2020.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2424)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2485, a bill for an act establishing an exception to the number of children allowed to be present for child care at any one time in a child development home under certain conditions, was taken up for consideration.

Best of Carroll moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2485)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

The nays were, 1:

Jones

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2561, a bill for an act relating to protections for certain potential recipients of anatomical gifts, was taken up for consideration.

Bacon of Story moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (H.F. 2561)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2138, a bill for an act relating to insurance coverage for prescription insulin drugs, was taken up for consideration.

A. Meyer of Webster offered amendment H-8016 filed by her.

James of Dubuque offered amendment H-8115, to amendment H-8016, filed by her from the floor.

A. Meyer of Webster rose on a point of order that amendment H-8115 was not germane, to amendment H-8016.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8115 not germane, to amendment H-8016.

James of Dubuque asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8115, to amendment H-8016.

Objection was raised.

James of Dubuque moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8115, to amendment H-8016.

Roll call was requested by James of Dubuque and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8115, to amendment H-8016?" (H.F. 2138)

The ayes were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz

Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler		

The nays were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

A. Meyer of Webster moved the adoption of amendment H-8016.

Amendment H-8016 was adopted.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2138)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines

Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, 1:

Wheeler

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2192, a bill for an act relating to reimbursement rates for health care services provided to covered persons by telehealth and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Fry of Clarke offered amendment H-8028 filed by him.

Fry of Clarke offered amendment H-8035, to amendment H-8028, filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8035, to amendment H-8028, was adopted.

Fry of Clarke moved the adoption of amendment H-8028, as amended.

Amendment H-8028, as amended, was adopted.

Fry of Clarke moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2192)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Ishenart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 1:

Wolfe

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Wolfe of Clinton

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2138, 2192, 2270, 2271, 2424, 2485, 2561 and 2600.**

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2001, 2067, 2118, 2128, 2171, 2203, 2378 and 2488 from further consideration by the House.

EXPLANATION OF VOTE

On March 2, 3, and 4, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 684 – “aye”	House File 2267 – “aye”
House File 2372 – “nay”	House File 2373 – “nay”
House File 2374 – “aye”	House File 2389 – “aye”
House File 2402 – “aye”	House File 2443 – “aye”
House File 2444 – “aye”	House File 2445 – “aye”
House File 2454 – “aye”	House File 2455 – “aye”
House File 2473 – “nay”	House File 2474 – “aye”
House File 2475 – “aye”	House File 2481 – “aye”
House File 2486 – “aye”	House File 2526 – “aye”
House File 2528 – “aye”	House File 2529 – “aye”
House File 2535 – “aye”	House File 2536 – “aye”
House File 2539 – “aye”	House File 2540 – “aye”
House File 2552 – “aye”	House File 2556 – “aye”
House File 2565 – “aye”	House File 2566 – “aye”
House File 2585 – “aye”	Senate File 155 – “aye”
Senate File 458 – “aye”	Senate File 537 – “aye”
Senate File 583 – “aye”	Senate File 2025 – “aye”
Senate File 2091 – “aye”	Senate File 2118 – “aye”
Senate File 2131 – “aye”	Senate File 2132 – “aye”
Senate File 2134 – “aye”	Senate File 2135 – “aye”
Senate File 2137 – “aye”	Senate File 2142 – “nay”
Senate File 2187 – “aye”	Senate File 2198 – “aye”
Senate File 2250 – “aye”	Senate File 2259 – “aye”

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Senate File 2269

Natural Resources: Sieck, Chair; Bearinger and Zumbach.

Senate File 2271

Natural Resources: Zumbach, Chair; Baxter and Staed.

Senate File 2338

Commerce: Carlson, Chair; Jacobsen and B. Meyer.

RESOLUTIONS FILED

H.R. 107, by Upmeyer, Kaufmann, Moore, A. Meyer, Zumbach, Deyoe, Bergan, Isenhardt, Fisher, Hall, Olson, Kressig, B. Meyer, Staed, Hagenow, Mommsen, Carlson, Huseman, Gerhold, Jeneary, Lundgren, Bearinger, Hein, Jacoby, Best, Fry, Lohse, Sexton, Mohr, Maxwell, Salmon, Dolecheck, Bloomingdale, Thompson, Kerr, Jacobsen, Sieck, Landon, Hinson, Worthan, Paustian, Klein, Wills, Hanusa, Holt, Gustafson, Brink, Hite, Grassley, and Gassman, a resolution honoring and recognizing Ambassador Kenneth M. Quinn upon his retirement as president of the World Food Prize Foundation.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

H.R. 108, by Lundgren, a resolution recognizing and congratulating the Western Dubuque High School Bobcats football team on winning the Iowa High School Athletic Association Class 3A State Championship.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

H.R. 109, by Lohse, a resolution recognizing and congratulating the Southeast Polk Community School District Wrestling Team and the Bondurant-Farrar Community School District Wrestling Team on their success in the 2020 Traditional State and 2020 State Dual Team Wrestling Tournaments.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8105	H.F.	2581	Klein of Washington
H-8106	H.F.	662	Hite of Mahaska
H-8107	H.F.	2424	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8108	H.F.	2424	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8109	H.F.	2595	Gassman of Winnebago
H-8110	S.F.	2296	Kurtz of Lee
H-8111	H.F.	2510	Breckenridge of Jasper
H-8112	H.F.	2510	Hunter of Polk
H-8113	H.F.	2510	Oldson of Polk
H-8114	H.F.	2510	Running-Marquardt of Linn
H-8115	H.F.	2138	James of Dubuque
H-8116	H.F.	2424	James of Dubuque
H-8117	H.F.	2592	Ourth of Warren
H-8118	S.F.	2119	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8119	H.F.	2589	Gaskill of Wapello
H-8120	H.F.	2589	Kressig of Black Hawk
H-8121	H.F.	2510	Hunter of Polk
H-8122	H.F.	2510	Running-Marquardt of Linn
H-8123	H.F.	2510	Oldson of Polk
H-8124	H.F.	2510	Breckenridge of Jasper
H-8125	H.F.	2501	B. Meyer of Polk
H-8126	H.F.	2589	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8127	H.F.	2413	Holt of Crawford
H-8128	H.F.	2589	Klein of Washington
H-8129	H.F.	2589	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8130	H.F.	2589	Forbes of Polk

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 9:22 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Tuesday, March 10, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-eighth Calendar Day - Thirty-seventh Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, March 10, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:32 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

“The Star Spangled Banner” was sung by Miss Clinton County 2019 Alysa Goethe. She was the guest of Mommsen of Clinton and Wolfe of Clinton.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Zoe Card, Minority Leader’s Page.

The Journal of Monday, March 9, 2020, was approved.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:38 a.m., until the conclusion of the 11:00 a.m. committee block.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 4:11 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 10, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate Joint Resolution 2005, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the rights of a crime victim.

Also: That the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2009, a bill for an act regarding driving privileges of persons issued a special minor’s driver’s license who attend a public school, and making penalties applicable.

Also: That the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2298, a bill for an act relating to peace officers and retired peace officers who provide street or highway driving instruction.

Also: That the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2301, a bill for an act relating to health care benefits coverage for specified pediatric autoimmune neuropsychiatric disorders.

Also: That the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2305, a bill for an act concerning the voluntary shared work program and including applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2374, a bill for an act relating to restitution ordered in a criminal proceeding, court debt, and civil claims for reimbursement against inmates, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2392, a bill for an act relating to the operation of state government, including the review of state boards, the regulation of professions and occupations, and investigations conducted by state boards, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2400, a bill for an act relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Regular Calendar

House File 2592, a bill for an act concerning benefits under the municipal fire and police retirement system, was taken up for consideration.

Ourth of Warren asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8117 filed by him on March 9, 2020.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2592)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 1:

Deyoe

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 662, a bill for an act concerning jurors, relating to access to certain department of revenue taxpayer information for jury list compilation and juror information confidentiality, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8106 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8106 was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 662)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2097, a bill for an act requiring the installation and maintenance of adult changing stations at highway rest areas, was taken up for consideration.

Staed of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8017 filed by him on February 17, 2020.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2097)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2435, a bill for an act relating to background checks for employees and students of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2299 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2435

Jeneary of Plymouth asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2299 for House File 2435.

Senate File 2299, a bill for an act relating to background checks for employees and students of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies, was taken up for consideration.

Jeneary of Plymouth moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2299)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson

Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2437, a bill for an act relating to requirements for licensees under the purview of the dental board relating to orthodontia services, was taken up for consideration.

Moore of Cass moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2437)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bosman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman

Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thoru
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 3:

Running-Marquardt	Upmeyer	Wheeler
-------------------	---------	---------

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2553, a bill for an act related to pharmacy benefits managers and prescription drug prices, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Best of Carroll moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2553)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed

Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2538, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of theft in the third degree and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8097 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8097 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2225 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2538

Hite of Mahaska asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2225 for House File 2538.

Senate File 2225, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offenses of theft in the third degree and robbery in the first degree and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8078 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8078 was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2225)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2541, a bill for an act relating to officer disciplinary actions and establishing a legislative interim committee, was taken up for consideration.

Kerr of Louisa moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2541)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2559, a bill for an act relating to officer disciplinary actions, was taken up for consideration.

Thorup of Marion moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2559)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best

Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2563, a bill for an act creating a work group relating to child fatality protocol and alleged child abuse, was taken up for consideration.

Salmon of Black Hawk offered amendment H-8063 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8063 was adopted.

Salmon of Black Hawk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (H.F. 2563)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2568, a bill for an act establishing a cyber crime investigation unit in the department of public safety to investigate crimes with a nexus to the internet or computer technology including crimes involving child exploitation and cyber intrusion, was taken up for consideration.

Salmon of Black Hawk asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8094 filed by her on March 5, 2020.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2568)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2338, a bill for an act relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2275 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2338

Paustian of Scott asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2275 for House File 2338.

Senate File 2275, a bill for an act relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties, was taken up for consideration.

Paustian of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (S.F. 2275)

The ayes were, 78:

Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger	Bennett
Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Carlson	Cohoon
Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue
Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Jacobsen	Jacoby	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Kressig	Kurtz	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Staed	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Williams	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 22:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Brown-Powers	Gaines
Gaskill	Hunter	Isenhardt	James
Konfrst	Kurth	Lensing	Mascher
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Steckman	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2501, a bill for an act relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

B. Meyer of Polk offered amendment H-8125 filed by him.

B. Meyer of Polk offered amendment H-8134, to amendment H-8125, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8134, to amendment H-8125, was adopted.

Windschitl of Harrison rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

B. Meyer of Polk moved the adoption of amendment H-8125, as amended.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8125, as amended, be adopted?" (H.F. 2501)

The ayes were, 47:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

The nays were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink

Carlson	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher
Fry	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H-8125, as amended, lost.

SENATE FILE 2337 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2501

Lohse of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2337 for House File 2501.

Senate File 2337, a bill for an act relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Lohse of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (S.F. 2337)

The ayes were, 54:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	McConkey	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup

Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2413, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Holt of Crawford asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8127 filed by him on March 9, 2020.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8103 filed by him on March 6, 2020.

SENATE FILE 2119 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2413

Holt of Crawford asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2119 for House File 2413.

Senate File 2119, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Isenhart of Dubuque offered amendment H-8118 filed by him.

Isenhart of Dubuque offered amendment H-8137, to amendment H-8118, filed by him from the floor.

Holt of Crawford rose on a point of order that amendment H-8137 was not germane, to amendment H-8118.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8137 not germane, to amendment H-8118.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8137, to amendment H-8118.

Objection was raised.

Isenhart of Dubuque moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8137, to amendment H-8118.

Roll call was requested by Isenhart of Dubuque and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8137, to amendment H-8118?" (S.F. 2119)

The ayes were, 47:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

The nays were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson

Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

Absent or not voting, none.

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Holt of Crawford rose on a point of order that amendment H-8118 was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8118 not germane.

Holt of Crawford moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2119)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cphoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt

Salmon	Sexton	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding	

The nays were, 1:

Shiplee

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

The House stood at ease at 6:30 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 8:00 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2400, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

House File 2510, a bill for an act relating to rate regulatory proceedings before the utilities board within the utilities division of the department of commerce, was taken up for consideration.

Hunter of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8121 filed by him on March 9, 2020.

Running-Marquardt of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8122 filed by her on March 9, 2020.

Oldson of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8123 filed by her on March 9, 2020.

Breckenridge of Jasper asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8124 filed by him on March 9, 2020.

Carlson of Muscatine offered amendment H-8088 filed by him.

Breckenridge of Jasper asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8111, to amendment H-8088, filed by him on March 9, 2020.

Hunter of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8112, to amendment H-8088, filed by him on March 9, 2020.

Oldson of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8113, to amendment H-8088, filed by her on March 9, 2020.

Running-Marquardt of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8114, to amendment H-8088, filed by her on March 9, 2020.

Carlson of Muscatine moved the adoption of amendment H-8088.

Amendment H-8088 was adopted.

Carlson of Muscatine moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2510)

The ayes were, 100:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones

Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2581, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of hemp, including by providing for testing methods and the regulation of hemp products, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Paustian of Scott offered amendment H-8105 filed by Klein of Washington and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8105 was adopted.

Paustian of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2581)

The ayes were, 99:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaines

Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding	

The nays were, 1:

Gustafson

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2589, a bill for an act concerning the medical cannabidiol Act, was taken up for consideration.

Breckenridge of Jasper offered amendment H-8101 filed by him.

Breckenridge of Jasper asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8104, to amendment H-8101, filed by him on March 6, 2020.

Breckenridge of Jasper moved the adoption of amendment H-8101.

Roll call was requested by Breckenridge of Jasper and Wolfe of Clinton.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8101 be adopted?" (H.F. 2589)

The ayes were, 48:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Shipley	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H-8101 lost.

Klein of Washington offered amendment H-8128 filed by him.

Gaskill of Wapello offered amendment H-8142, to amendment H-8128, filed by her from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Gaskill of Wapello and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8142, to amendment H-8128, be adopted?" (H.F. 2589)

The ayes were, 48:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Shipley	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Borison
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H-8142, to amendment H-8128, lost.

Isenhart of Dubuque offered amendment H-8143, to amendment H-8128, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Isenhart of Dubuque and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8143, to amendment H-8128, be adopted?" (H.F. 2589)

The ayes were, 48:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines

Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Shipley	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H-8143, to amendment H-8128, lost.

Kressig of Black Hawk offered amendment H-8144, to amendment H-8128, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Kressig of Black Hawk and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8144, to amendment H-8128, be adopted?" (H.F. 2589)

The ayes were, 48:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson

Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Shiple	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

Absent or not voting, none.

Amendment H-8144, to amendment H-8128, lost.

Prichard of Floyd rose on a point of order that amendment H-8128 was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8128 not germane.

Klein of Washington asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8128.

Objection was raised.

Klein of Washington moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8128.

Roll call was requested by Klein of Washington and Windschitl of Harrison.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8128?" (H.F. 2589)

The ayes were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 47:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

Absent or not voting, none.

The motion to suspend the rules prevailed.

Klein of Washington moved the adoption of amendment H-8128.

Amendment H-8128 was adopted, placing out of order amendment H-8119 filed by Gaskill of Wapello on March 9, 2020, amendment H-8120 filed by Kressig of Black Hawk on March 9, 2020, amendment H-8126 filed by Isenhart of Dubuque on March 9, 2020, amendment H-8129 filed by Isenhart of Dubuque on March 9, 2020 and amendment H-8130 filed by Forbes of Polk on March 9, 2020.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2589)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 48:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaines
Gaskill	Gustafson	Hall	Hunter
Isenhardt	Jacoby	James	Judge
Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, none.

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 662, 2097, 2437, 2510, 2541, 2553, 2559, 2563, 2568, 2581, 2589, 2592** and **Senate Files 2119, 2225, 2275, 2299, 2337**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2157, 2296, 2338, 2413, 2435, 2501 and 2538 from further consideration by the House.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 571, a bill for an act relating to the awarding of joint custody and joint physical care.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that Senate File 2096, previously referred to committee on **Public Safety** was **passed on file**.

The Speaker announced that Senate File 2097, previously referred to committee on **Judiciary** was **passed on file**.

EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

On March 5, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 2213 – “nay”
 House File 2309 – “nay”
 House File 2442 – “aye”
 House File 2503 – “aye”
 House File 2520 – “aye”
 House File 2575 – “aye”

House File 2259 – “aye”
 House File 2417 – “aye”
 House File 2492 – “nay”
 House File 2504 – “nay”
 House File 2573 – “nay”
 Senate File 280 – “aye”

Anderson of Polk

On March 10, 2020, I inadvertently voted “nay” on amendment H-8125 (H.F. 2501), I meant to vote “aye”.

Breckenridge of Jasper

On March 2, 3, 4 and 5, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 684 – “aye”	House File 2213 – “nay”
House File 2259 – “aye”	House File 2267 – “aye”
House File 2309 – “nay”	House File 2372 – “aye”
House File 2373 – “aye”	House File 2374 – “aye”
House File 2389 – “aye”	House File 2402 – “aye”
House File 2417 – “aye”	House File 2442 – “aye”
House File 2443 – “aye”	House File 2444 – “aye”
House File 2445 – “aye”	House File 2454 – “aye”
House File 2455 – “aye”	House File 2473 – “nay”
House File 2474 – “aye”	House File 2475 – “aye”
House File 2481 – “aye”	House File 2486 – “aye”
House File 2492 – “nay”	House File 2503 – “aye”
House File 2504 – “nay”	House File 2520 – “aye”
House File 2526 – “aye”	House File 2528 – “aye”
House File 2529 – “aye”	House File 2535 – “aye”
House File 2536 – “aye”	House File 2539 – “aye”
House File 2540 – “aye”	House File 2552 – “aye”
House File 2556 – “aye”	House File 2565 – “aye”
House File 2566 – “aye”	House File 2573 – “aye”
House File 2575 – “aye”	House File 2585 – “aye”
Senate File 155 – “aye”	Senate File 280 – “aye”
Senate File 458 – “aye”	Senate File 537 – “aye”
Senate File 583 – “aye”	Senate File 2025 – “aye”
Senate File 2091 – “aye”	Senate File 2118 – “aye”
Senate File 2131 – “aye”	Senate File 2132 – “aye”
Senate File 2134 – “aye”	Senate File 2135 – “aye”
Senate File 2137 – “aye”	Senate File 2142 – “nay”
Senate File 2187 – “aye”	Senate File 2198 – “aye”
Senate File 2250 – “aye”	Senate File 2259 – “aye”

Kurth of Scott

On March 10, 2020, I inadvertently voted “aye” on Senate File 2337, I meant to vote “nay”.

McConkey of Pottawattamie

BILL SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on March 10, 2020, the following bills were approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

Senate File 155, an Act relating to the practice of barbering in movable locations, and including effective date provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT

Senate File 2283

Human Resources: Lundgren, Chair; Bacon and Matson.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

House File 2419, a bill for an act relating to supplementary weighting for limited-English-proficient students and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 10, 2020, placed on Appropriations calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2460), relating to the statewide preschool program by modifying provisions relating to eligibility, funding, and compulsory attendance and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2494), relating to underground storage tanks, including by creating the Iowa tanks fund and Iowa tanks fund financing program, repealing the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund, and eliminating the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund board, and including effective date and transition provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2496), relating to the national guard of the state concerning armory board leases, persons subject to the code of military justice, and scholarship and loan repayment programs.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2533), relating to county commissions of veteran affairs training and making an appropriation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Senate File 2329, a bill for an act relating to licensed health care providers for purposes of state law regarding concussion and brain injury policies for extracurricular interscholastic activities.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 9, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Senate File 448, a bill for an act relating to consent agreements for domestic abuse and sexual abuse protective orders.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 9, 2020, placed on calendar.

Senate File 460, a bill for an act relating to the dissemination and exhibition of obscene material to a minor by the parent or guardian of the minor, and providing penalties.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8147** March 9, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Senate File 621, a bill for an act relating to access to a copy of an original birth certificate by an adoptee or an entitled person, providing for fees, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8146** March 10, 2020, placed on Ways and Means calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2079), relating to flying our colors special registration plates.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2196), relating to setoff requirements concerning certain winnings on wagers.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2234), relating to radio operators blackout special registration plates for motor vehicles.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2558), relating to interpreters for limited-English-proficient, deaf, and hard-of-hearing persons in certain court proceedings and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 10, 2020.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8131	H.F.	2551	Lundgren of Dubuque
H-8132	H.F.	2462	Hunter of Polk
H-8133	H.F.	2462	Hunter of Polk
H-8134	H.F.	2501	B. Meyer of Polk
H-8135	H.F.	2506	Lohse of Polk
H-8136	S.F.	2097	Lohse of Polk
H-8137	S.F.	2119	Isenhardt of Dubuque
H-8138	S.F.	2296	Hunter of Polk
H-8139	H.F.	2576	Lohse of Polk
H-8140	S.F.	2357	Best of Carroll
H-8141	H.F.	2554	Hite of Mahaska
H-8142	H.F.	2589	Gaskill of Wapello
H-8143	H.F.	2589	Isenhardt of Dubuque
H-8144	H.F.	2589	Kressig of Black Hawk

H-8145	H.F.	2457	A. Meyer of Webster
H-8146	S.F.	621	Committee on Ways and Means
H-8147	S.F.	460	Committee on Judiciary

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 9:27 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Wednesday, March 11, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-ninth Calendar Day - Thirty-eighth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, March 11, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:38 a.m., Sorensen of Adair in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Pastor David Wood, Walnut Park Baptist Church, Muscatine. He was the guest of Kaufmann of Cedar.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mason Donelson, Page from Knoxville.

The Journal of Tuesday, March 10, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2617, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the national guard of the state concerning armory board leases, persons subject to the code of military justice, and scholarship and loan repayment programs.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2618, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to county commissions of veteran affairs training and making an appropriation.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2619, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to interpreters for limited-English-proficient, deaf, and hard-of-hearing persons in certain court proceedings and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2620, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to flying our colors special registration plates.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 571, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the awarding of joint custody and joint physical care.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2009, by R. Smith, a bill for an act regarding driving privileges of persons issued a special minor's driver's license who attend a public school, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

Senate File 2298, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to peace officers and retired peace officers who provide street or highway driving instruction.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

Senate File 2301, by committee on Human Resources, a bill for an act relating to health care benefits coverage for specified pediatric autoimmune neuropsychiatric disorders.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

Senate File 2305, by committee on Labor and Business Relations, a bill for an act concerning the voluntary shared work program and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Labor**.

Senate File 2374, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to restitution ordered in a criminal proceeding, court debt, and civil claims for reimbursement against inmates, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2392, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to the operation of state government, including the review of state boards, the regulation of professions and occupations, and investigations conducted by state boards, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

Jones of Clay introduced to the House, Stephanie Mehan from the St. Patrick's Association in Emmetsburg, Senator Joan Freeman from Ireland and Rianna Vivens, Miss Shamrock 2020 from Emmetsburg.

The House rose and expressed its welcome.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:51 a.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 4:14 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2454, a bill for an act relating to qualifications for community college career and technical education instructors.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2475, a bill for an act relating to the review and permitting of sewer extensions and water supply distribution system extensions, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate Joint Resolution 2004, a joint resolution designating the honeybee as the official state insect for the State of Iowa.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 537, a bill for an act relating to taking coyotes while using an artificial source of light.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2061, a bill for an act relating to persons operating a farm tractor or implement of husbandry who are exempt from driver's licensing requirements.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2308, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa medal of honor highway, and including applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2321, a bill for an act relating to the opening, administration, and termination of adult and minor guardianships and conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2341, a bill for an act relating to older individuals and dependent adults and creating certain criminal offenses and civil actions, and providing penalties.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2349, a bill for an act relating to the office of the chief information officer, including procurement preferences and a report detailing state information technology assets.

Also: That the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2394, a bill for an act relating to the custody and control of courthouses and to physical facilities provided by a city or county to the district court.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate Joint Resolution 2005, by committee on Judiciary, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the rights of a crime victim.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2349, by committee on Commerce, a bill for an act relating to the office of the chief information officer, including procurement preferences and a report detailing state information technology assets.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS
Regular Calendar

House File 2218, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2120 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2218

Best of Carroll asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2120 for House File 2218.

Senate File 2120, a bill for an act relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program, was taken up for consideration.

Best of Carroll moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2120)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck

Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2452, a bill for an act relating to the disposal and acquisition of city water utilities, including at-risk systems, was taken up for consideration.

Bloomington of Worth moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2452)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomington
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck

Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2499, a bill for an act relating to dispensing fees and copayments for partially dispensed quantities of prescription drugs, was taken up for consideration.

Best of Carroll moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2499)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck

Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2506, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Lohse of Polk offered amendment H-8135 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8135 was adopted, placing out of order amendment H-8086 filed by Lohse of Polk on March 5, 2020.

SENATE FILE 2097 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2506

Lohse of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2097 for House File 2506.

Senate File 2097, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Lohse of Polk offered amendment H-8136 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8136 was adopted.

Lohse of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2097)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills,		
	Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson

Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2514, a bill for an act concerning the sale and off-premises transportation and consumption of certain containers of wine, was taken up for consideration.

Sexton of Calhoun moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2514)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worhan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2527, a bill for an act relating to the advertising, promoting, and conducting of certain live musical performances, and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Bearinger of Fayette asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8070 filed by Bearinger, et al., on March 3, 2020.

Lundgren of Dubuque offered amendment H-8090 filed by Lundgren, et al., and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8090 was adopted.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2527)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde

Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House File 2542, a bill for an act relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Best of Carroll offered amendment H-8074 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8074 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2357 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2542

Best of Carroll asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2357 for House File 2542.

Senate File 2357, a bill for an act relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Best of Carroll asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8140 filed by him on March 10, 2020.

Best of Carroll moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2357)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2554, a bill for an act creating the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child and providing penalties, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8141 filed by him.

Hite of Mahaska asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8150, to amendment H-8141, filed by him from the floor.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8152, to amendment H-8141, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8152, to amendment H-8141, was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved the adoption of amendment H-8141, as amended.

Amendment H-8141, as amended, was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8068 filed by him.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8079, to amendment H-8068, filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8079, to amendment H-8068, was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved the adoption of amendment H-8068, as amended.

Amendment H-8068, as amended, was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2554)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr

Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Senate File 2082, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of education and the department of education to reflect current practices, technology, and titles, to delete redundancies, and to resolve inconsistencies, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Wheeler of Sioux moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2082)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaines	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean

Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Anderson Carlson

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Anderson of Polk Carlson of Muscatine

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2391, a bill for an act prohibiting the state and political subdivisions of the state from expending public moneys for payment to persons responsible for ransomware attacks.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate Joint Resolution 2004, by committee on State Government, a joint resolution designating the honeybee as the official state insect for the State of Iowa.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

Senate File 2061, by committee on Transportation, a bill for an act relating to persons operating a farm tractor or implement of husbandry who are exempt from driver's licensing requirements.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

Senate File 2268, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2308, by committee on Veterans Affairs, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa medal of honor highway, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

Senate File 2321, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the opening, administration, and termination of adult and minor guardianships and conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2452, 2499, 2514, 2527, 2554** and **Senate Files 2082, 2097, 2120** and **2357**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2218, 2304, 2506 and 2542 from further consideration by the House.

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2077 – Isenhardt of Dubuque

BILLS ENROLLED, SIGNED AND SENT TO GOVERNOR

The Chief Clerk of the House submitted the following report:

Mr. Speaker: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following bills have been examined and found correctly enrolled, signed by the Speaker of the House and the President of the Senate, and presented to the Governor for approval on this 11th day of March, 2020: House Files 426, 2235 and 2267.

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**House File 2497**

Appropriations: Dolecheck, Chair; Kerr and Winckler.

House File 2612

Appropriations: Brink, Chair; Mascher and Mohr.

Senate File 571

Judiciary: Kaufmann, Chair; Bergan and Oldson.

Senate File 2188

Appropriations: Bossman, Chair; Running-Marquardt and Worthan.

Senate File 2301

Commerce: Deyoe, Chair; Mitchell and Nielsen.

Senate File 2368

Judiciary: Lohse, Chair; Jones and Wilburn.

Senate File 2374

Judiciary: Klein, Chair; Hagenow and Wolfe.

Senate File 2392

State Government: Kaufmann, Chair; Bloomingdale and Mascher.

Senate File 2400

Appropriations: Sorensen, Chair; Brink and Williams.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2377), relating to the public safety equipment fund, providing for voluntary contributions to the fund, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** March 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2406), relating to the establishment of a disaster recovery homeowner assistance program and fund administered by the Iowa finance authority, transfers of moneys to certain funds, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** March 11, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Senate File 457, a bill for an act relating to surcharges added to criminal penalties, court funds, civil fees, misdemeanor and felony fines, and fines associated with scheduled violations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8148** March 9, 2020.

Referred to the committee on Ways and Means pursuant to Rule 31.7.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 658), increasing certain penalties for speeding in a motor vehicle, providing for the use of the additional moneys, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 628), exempting from the state individual income tax the earnings from a burial trust fund, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 11, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 671), relating to certain tax credits awarded by the economic development authority for equity investments in qualifying businesses or innovation funds and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 11, 2020.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.R. 110, by Mommsen, Wolfe, Kurth, Winckler, B. Meyer, Konfrst, Fisher, Kressig, Carlson, Best, Gerhold, Running-Marquardt, Hall, Oldson, Cohoon, Steckman, M. Smith, Nielsen, Jacoby, McConkey, Forbes, Beringer, Wilburn, Thorup, Isenhardt, Wessel-Kroeschell, Olson, Kaufmann, Staed, Kurtz, Sieck, Ehlert, Shipley, Mohr, and Maxwell, a resolution recognizing the importance of Minor League Baseball in Iowa and demanding that Major League Baseball abandon its efforts to eliminate Major League Baseball parent-club affiliation with certain franchises located in Iowa.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8148	S.F.	457	Committee on Judiciary
H-8149	H.F.	2549	Hunter of Polk
H-8150	H.F.	2554	Hite of Mahaska
H-8151	H.F.	2551	Lundgren of Dubuque
H-8152	H.F.	2554	Hite of Mahaska
H-8153	H.F.	2055	Jones of Clay
H-8154	H.F.	2543	Jones of Clay
H-8155	H.F.	2543	Isenhardt of Dubuque Kacena of Woodbury
H-8156	H.F.	2549	Thorup of Marion
H-8157	H.F.	2549	Thorup of Marion

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 5:11 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, March 12, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Sixtieth Calendar Day - Thirty-ninth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, March 12, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:33 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Don Thiltgen, Mayor of DeWitt. He was the guest of Mommsen of Clinton and Wolfe of Clinton.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Eric Zimmer, grandson of Mayor Thiltgen. He was the guest of Mommsen of Clinton and Wolfe of Clinton.

The Journal of Wednesday, March 11, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2621, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the statewide preschool program by modifying provisions relating to eligibility, funding, and compulsory attendance and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2622, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to underground storage tanks, including by creating the Iowa tanks fund and Iowa tanks fund financing program, repealing the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund, and eliminating the Iowa comprehensive petroleum underground storage tank fund board, requiring a study, and including effective date and transition provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2623, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to gambling facility licensees concerning setoff requirements on certain winnings on wagers and qualified sponsoring organizations.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2624, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to radio operators blackout special registration plates for motor vehicles, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2341, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to older individuals and dependent adults and creating certain criminal offenses and civil actions, and providing penalties.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

Senate File 2391, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act prohibiting the state or a political subdivision of the state from expending revenue received from taxpayers for payment to persons responsible for ransomware attacks, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that Senate File 2321, previously referred to committee on **Judiciary** was **passed on file**.

EXPLANATION OF VOTE

On March 11, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 2452 – “aye”
 House File 2514 – “aye”
 House File 2554 – “aye”
 Senate File 2097 – “aye”
 Senate File 2357 – “aye”

House File 2499 – “aye”
 House File 2527 – “aye”
 Senate File 2082 – “aye”
 Senate File 2120 – “aye”

Anderson of Polk

BILLS SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on March 12, 2020, the following bills were approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

House File 426, an Act relating to the insurance fraud bureau, criminal history checks for licenses granted by the insurance division, and resolving inconsistencies.

House File 2235, an Act disqualifying a person convicted of human trafficking involving the use of a commercial motor vehicle from operating a commercial motor vehicle for life.

House File 2267, an Act relating to the regulation of dental hygienists and dental assistants, and the practice of dentistry, and providing administrative penalties.

Senate File 583, an Act relating to billing methods that may be utilized in connection with distributed generation facilities.

Senate File 2025, an Act relating to the employment of county engineers.

Senate File 2091, an Act providing for exemptions relating to odometer requirements, and including effective date provisions.

Senate File 2118, an Act relating to loan repayment for refinanced student loans under the rural physician loan repayment program, the health care professional recruitment program, and the health care loan repayment program, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Senate File 2131, an Act relating to credit allowed to domestic ceding insurers for reinsurance ceded to reinsurers, and including applicability provisions.

Senate File 2132, an Act relating to the legal reserve requirements of life insurance companies.

Senate File 2134, an Act relating to the manufacturing of canned cocktails by a beer manufacturer and including effective date provisions.

Senate File 2137, an Act relating to filing requirements applicable to extensions of real estate conveyances or transactions under specified circumstances.

Senate File 2142, an Act relating to public school funding by establishing a state percent of growth and the categorical state percent of growth for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, modifying provisions and references relating to the property tax replacement payment, and including effective date provisions.

Senate File 2187, an Act providing for the application and construction of the uniform protected series Act.

Senate File 2198, an Act relating to notice provisions in connection with designated consumer lending provisions.

Senate File 2250, an Act relating to responsibilities of timber buyers and persons transporting timber, and providing penalties.

PETITION FILED

The following petition was received and placed on file:

By Jones of Clay received from Rev. Paul Schulz and 47 other constituents: "I would ask you to support the Protect Life amendment in whatever way you can."

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Senate File 457

Ways and Means: Hite, Chair; Holt and Wolfe.

Senate File 2338 Reassigned

Commerce: Carlson, Chair; B. Meyer and Wills.

Senate File 2349

Appropriations: Brink, Chair; Bossman and Williams.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

Senate File 2400, a bill for an act relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8159** March 11, 2020, placed on Appropriations calendar.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Senate Joint Resolution 2002, a joint resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution of the State of Iowa relating to the qualifications of electors.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 4, 2020, placed on calendar.

Senate File 2323, a bill for an act relating to the initial care plan for minor and adult guardianships and the initial plan and inventory for adult conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 11, 2020, placed on calendar.

Senate File 2348, a bill for an act relating to the restoration of voting rights to certain convicted persons and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 11, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

Senate File 2269, a bill for an act relating to the established season for hunting game birds on a preserve.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8158** March 11, 2020, placed on calendar.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Senate File 604, a bill for an act relating to the calculation of certain court costs in probate matters, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 11, 2020, placed on Ways and Means calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2422), relating to eligibility for a property tax exemption for certain property of veterans associations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 12, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 695), relating to property tax classifications, credits, assessment limitations, exemptions, and administration, making appropriations, and including effective date, applicability, and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 12, 2020.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8158	S.F.	2269	Committee on Natural Resources
H-8159	S.F.	2400	Committee on Appropriations
H-8160	H.F.	2595	Gassman of Winnebago
H-8161	H.F.	2414	Hite of Mahaska

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:43 a.m., until 9:30 a.m., Friday, March 13, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Sixty-first Calendar Day - Fortieth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, March 13, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 9:30 a.m., Jacobsen of Pottawattamie in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Jacobsen of Pottawattamie.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jacobsen of Pottawattamie.

The Journal of Thursday, March 12, 2020, was approved.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2394, by committee on Government Oversight, a bill for an act relating to the custody and control of courthouses and to physical facilities provided by a city or county to the district court.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Local Government**.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Glenwood Resources Center Report, pursuant to Senate File 2144.

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Flood Recovery Fund Report, pursuant to Senate File 2144.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendation has been received and is on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

Senate File 436, a bill for an act relating to wrecked or salvage motor vehicles.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 3, 2020, placed on calendar.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8162	H.F.	2572	Hunter of Polk
H-8163	H.F.	2615	Matson of Polk

On motion by Mitchell of Henry, the House adjourned at 9:32 a.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, March 16, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Sixty-fourth Calendar Day - Forty-first Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, March 16, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:23 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Dolecheck of Ringgold.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Cole Moody from Dysart. He was the guest of Zumbach of Linn.

The Journal of Friday, March 13, 2020, was approved.

RULE 57 SUSPENDED

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to suspend Rule 57, relating to committee notice and agenda, for a meeting of the committee on Appropriations to meet today.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 1:26 p.m., until the conclusion of the committee on Appropriations.

EVENING SESSION

The House reconvened at 11:17 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Windschitl of Harrison moved to suspend Rule 75, regarding voting after midnight.

A non-record roll call was requested.

The ayes were 87, nays none.

The motion to suspend Rule 75 prevailed.

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

House File 2625, by Windschitl, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making and supplementing appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

The House stood at ease at 11:19 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 11:51 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on March 16, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate Concurrent Resolution 102, a concurrent resolution to provide for the extended adjournment of the 2020 regular session of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly and for related matters.

Also: That the Senate has on March 16, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2408, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making and supplementing appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2408, by Whitver, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making and supplementing appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

CONSIDERATION OF BILL
Appropriations Calendar

House File 2625, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making and supplementing appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2408 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2625

Speaker Grassley asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2408 for House File 2625.

Senate File 2408, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making and supplementing appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Amendment H-8164 filed by Hall of Woodbury from the floor, was placed out of order.

Hall of Woodbury asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8164.

Objection was raised.

Hall of Woodbury moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8164.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and Running-Marquardt of Linn.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8164?" (S.F. 2408)

The ayes were, 41:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cphoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Hall	Isenhardt
Jacoby	James	Judge	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Lensing	Mascher

Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

Absent or not voting, 7:

Anderson	Gaines	Gaskill	Hunter
Kacena	Kurtz	Sieck	

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Speaker Grassley moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2408)

The ayes were, 93:

Abdul-Samad	Bacon	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohonue	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein

Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 7:

Anderson	Gaines	Gaskill	Hunter
Kacena	Kurtz	Sieck	

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Speaker Grassley in the chair at 12:10 a.m.

ADOPTION OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 102

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of **Senate Concurrent Resolution 102**, a concurrent resolution to provide for the extended adjournment of the 2020 regular session of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly and for related matters, and moved its adoption.

A non-record roll call was requested.

The ayes were 93, nays none.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Anderson of Polk	Gaines of Polk
Gaskill of Wapello	Hunter of Polk
Kacena of Woodbury	Kurtz of Lee
Sieck of Mills	

IMMEDIATE MESSAGE

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that **Senate Concurrent Resolution 102** and **Senate File 2408** be immediately messaged to the Senate.

HOUSE FILE WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House File 2625 from further consideration by the House.

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2086 – Kressig of Black Hawk

COMMUNICATION RECEIVED

The following communication was received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view report in full, click [here](#).

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Senate Joint Resolution 2005

Judiciary: Hite, Chair; Holt and Wolfe.

Senate File 2341

Judiciary: Gustafson, Chair; Bergan and Wolfe.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendation has been received and is on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

House File 2625, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making and supplementing appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 16, 2020, placed on Appropriations calendar.

RESOLUTION FILED

H.C.R. 107, by Grassley, a concurrent resolution to provide for the extended adjournment of the 2020 regular session of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly and for related matters.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENT FILED

H-8164 S.F. 2408 Hall of Woodbury

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 12:13 a.m., until 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, April 15, 2020 or until deemed necessary by the Legislative Council.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Forty-third Calendar Day - Forty-second Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, June 3, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 9:23 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Abdul-Samad of Polk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Speaker Grassley.

The Journal of Monday, March 16, 2020, was approved.

Windschitl of Harrison moved to adjust the following rules for the duration of the 2020 regular session:

House Rule 31.8 by suspending the provision that allows for first degree amendments to be filed at any time after the twelfth week of the second session thereby requiring that first degree amendments be filed at minimum the day prior to debate.

House Rule 39 by amending the requirement that a bill is only eligible for debate beginning with the third legislative day after it appears on the regular calendar to say that a bill will be eligible on the second legislative day.

Suspend House Rule 57 so the following committees may meet today, Wednesday June 3rd: Education, Commerce, and Ways and Means.

Suspend House Rule 61 in its entirety.

House Rule 74, by amending the rule to allow for voting to occur from Room 308. Also, by amending the ten-minute allocation for members to register their vote and instead allowing for up to 30 minutes for votes to be registered after the voting machine has been closed.

Prichard of Floyd rose on a point of order regarding House Rule 7.

The Speaker resolved the point of order.

Windschitl of Harrison moved to amend his motion to include the suspension of House Rule 7.

Roll call was requested by Prichard of Floyd and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the motion be amended?"

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 4:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jacoby	Running-Marquardt
-------	--------	--------	-------------------

The motion prevailed.

Windschitl of Harrison moved his previous motion, as amended.

Roll call was requested by Speaker Grassley and Prichard of Floyd.

On the question "Shall the House Rules be suspended?"

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 4:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jacoby	Running-Marquardt
-------	--------	--------	-------------------

The motion to suspend the rules prevailed.

ADOPTION OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 108

Windschitl of Harrison called up for consideration **House Concurrent Resolution 108**, a concurrent resolution amending joint rules of the Senate and House of Representatives for the Eighty-eighth General Assembly relating to the time of committee passage and consideration of bills.

Windschitl of Harrison moved the adoption of House Resolution 108.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGE

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that **House Concurrent Resolution 108** be immediately messaged to the Senate.

COMMITTEE REVISION

The Speaker announced the following change to committee assignments effective June 2, 2020:

Commerce

Klein replaced Deyoe

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 9:37 a.m., until the conclusion of the afternoon committee blocks.

EVENING SESSION

The House reconvened at 7:04 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 3, 2020, adopted the following resolution in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House Concurrent Resolution 108, a concurrent resolution amending joint rules of the Senate and House of Representatives for the Eighty-eighth General Assembly relating to the time of committee passage and consideration of bills.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2312, a bill for an act relating to certificate of eligibility affidavits for admission to the veterans home.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2340, A bill for an act relating to the Iowa educational savings plan trust by permitting the use of funds for certain beneficiaries to attend out-of-state elementary or secondary schools, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2382, A bill for an act relating to confidentiality concerning individuals allowed a disabled veteran tax credit and military tax exemption.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2402, a bill for an act relating to the resignations of registered agents serving certain business entities.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2411, A bill for an act relating to participation in the sobriety and drug monitoring program.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2445, a bill for an act relating to the privacy of a victim of a sex offense in a criminal or civil proceeding.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2535, a bill for an act relating to nonsubstantive Code corrections, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2536, a bill for an act relating to statutory corrections which may adjust language to reflect current practices, insert earlier omissions, delete redundancies and inaccuracies, delete temporary language, resolve inconsistencies and conflicts, update ongoing provisions, or remove ambiguities, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2554, a bill for an act relating to the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child and providing penalties.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2589, a bill for an act concerning the medical cannabidiol Act and marijuana.

Also: That the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2403, a bill for an act relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2403, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Windschitl of Harrison moved to suspend the rules to immediately consider the following bills and all the amendments to the bills: House File 310, House File 2620, House File 2456, House File 2479, Senate File 388, House File 2279, Senate File 2300 and Senate File 2348.

Roll call was requested by Prichard of Floyd and Mascher of Johnson.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended?"

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 4:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary	Olson
-------	--------	---------	-------

The motion to suspend the rules prevailed.

SENATE AMENDMENT CONSIDERED House Concurred

Bossman of Woodbury called up for consideration **House File 310**, a bill for an act relating to the practice of optometry, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8065.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8065.

Bossman of Woodbury moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 310)

The ayes were, 91:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Baxter	Bearinger
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohon	Derry	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold

Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
James	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 6:

Bacon	Jacoby	Lensing	Mascher
Mohr	Wessel-Kroeschell		

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS

Ways and Means Calendar

House File 2620, a bill for an act relating to flying our colors special registration plates, was taken up for consideration.

Maxwell of Poweshiek moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2620)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink

Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

House File 2456, a bill for an act providing an exception to the Iowa state elevator code for certain multi-story commercial buildings in specified circumstances, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2195 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2456

Landon of Polk asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2195 for House File 2456.

Senate File 2195, a bill for an act providing an exception to the Iowa state elevator code for certain multi-story commercial buildings in specified circumstances, was taken up for consideration.

Landon of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2195)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2479, a bill for an act regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2296 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2479

Worthan of Buena Vista asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2296 for House File 2479.

Senate File 2296, a bill for an act regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles, was taken up for consideration.

Hunter of Polk offered amendment H-8138 filed by him.

Worthan of Buena Vista rose on a point of order that amendment H-8138 was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8138 not germane.

Hunter of Polk asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8138.

Objection was raised.

Hunter of Polk moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8138.

Roll call was requested by Hunter of Polk and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8138?" (S.F. 2296)

The ayes were, 47:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Shiple	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thorup	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

The nays were, 50:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl	Worthan
Zumbach	Speaker		
	Grassley		

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-------	--------	---------

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Kurtz of Lee offered amendment H-8110 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Kurtz of Lee and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8110 be adopted?" (S.F. 2296)

The ayes were, 48:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Shipley
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thorup	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 49:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson

Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8110 lost.

Hunter of Polk rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point not well taken.

Worthan of Buena Vista moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2296)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 388, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa patriots memorial highway, and including applicability provisions, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Worthan of Buena Vista offered amendment H–8166 filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H–8166 was adopted, placing out of order amendment H–8073 filed by the committee on Transportation on March 4, 2020.

Worthan of Buena Vista moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (S.F. 388)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman

Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe Gaines Jeneary

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Ways and Means Calendar

House File 2279, a bill for an act relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Paustian of Scott asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8167 filed by him from the floor.

SENATE FILE 2403 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2279

Zumbach of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2403 for House File 2279.

Senate File 2403, a bill for an act relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Zumbach of Linn moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (S.F. 2403)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

Senate File 2300, a bill for an act relating to the transfer of real estate as part of the administration of a decedent's estate, guardianship, conservatorship, or trust, and including applicability provisions, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2300)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

The nays were, 1:

Bearinger

Absent or not voting, 3:

Deyoe

Gaines

Jeneary

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 2348, a bill for an act relating to the restoration of voting rights to certain convicted persons and including effective date provisions, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2348)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shiple
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl
Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger

Deyoe

Gaines

Jeneary

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

MOTION TO RECONSIDER PREVAILED

Windschitl of Harrison called up for consideration the motion to reconsider House File 2547, filed on March 4, 2020, and moved to reconsider the vote by which House File 2547, passed the House and was placed on its last reading on March 4, 2020.

The motion prevailed and the House reconsidered House File 2547.

SENATE FILE 2191 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2547

Klein of Washington asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2191 for House File 2547.

Senate File 2191, a bill for an act relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners, was taken up for consideration.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2191)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohon	Derry	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz

Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Deyoe	Gaines	Jeneary
-----------	-------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 310, 2620** and **Senate Files 388, 2191, 2195, 2296, 2300, 2348** and **2403**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2079, 2279, 2456, 2479 and 2547 from further consideration by the House.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Deyoe of Story	Gaines of Polk
Jacoby of Johnson	Jeneary of Plymouth
Running-Marquardt of Linn	

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2626, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, including by providing for administration, programs, and regulations, providing fees, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2627, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to qualifications for holding professional licensure in this state, including the granting of licenses to persons licensed in other states and acquiring residence in Iowa, disqualification provisions for criminal convictions, the waiver of application fees, and licensee discipline, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

The House stood at ease at 9:23 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 9:39 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

BILLS ENROLLED, SIGNED AND SENT TO GOVERNOR

The Chief Clerk of the House submitted the following report:

Mr. Speaker: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following bills have been examined and found correctly enrolled, signed by the Speaker of the House and the President of the Senate, and presented to the Governor for approval on this 1st day of June 2020: House Files 2454, 2475, 2477 and 2512.

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

BILLS SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on March 17, 2020, the following bill was approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

Senate File 2408, an Act relating to state and local finances by making and supplementing appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date provisions.

Also: on March 18, 2020, the following bill was approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

Senate File 2357, an Act relating to the practice and licensure of physician assistants, and including effective date provisions.

Also: on June 1, 2020, the following bills were approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

House File 2454, an Act relating to qualifications for community college career and technical education instructors.

House File 2475, an Act relating to the review and permitting of sewer extensions and water supply distribution system extensions, and including effective date provisions.

House File 2477, an Act relating to county regulation of certain agricultural experiences.

House File 2512, an Act relating to county zoning procedures, and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Senate File 537, an Act relating to taking coyotes while using an artificial source of light.

Senate File 2082, an Act relating to matters involving the state board of education and the department of education to reflect current practices, technology, and titles, to delete redundancies, and to resolve inconsistencies.

Senate File 2119, an Act relating to controlled substances, including amending the controlled substance schedules, removing certain references to marijuana, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Senate File 2120, an Act relating to controlled substances, including information collection and reporting requirements under the Iowa prescription monitoring program.

Senate File 2135, an Act relating to the final disposition and disinterment of human remains.

Senate File 2196, an Act extending the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and including effective date provisions.

Senate File 2259, an Act relating to liability arising from the donation of equipment by a municipality, fire department, emergency medical services provider, or law enforcement agency.

Senate File 2275, an Act relating to eluding or attempting to elude a pursuing law enforcement vehicle and providing penalties.

Senate File 2299, an Act relating to background checks for employees and students of certain facilities, providers, programs, and agencies.

Senate File 2337, an Act relating to civil actions involving asbestos and silica, and including applicability provisions.

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

BOARD OF REGENTS

Institute for Physical Research and Technology (ISU) Report, pursuant to Chapter 154.17, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Transfer of Funds Regional Study Centers Report, pursuant to Iowa Code Section 262.28.

Continuous Improvement Plan Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.9.

CHIEF INFORMATIONAL OFFICER

Status of Technology Upgrades or Enhancements for State Agencies Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8B.9.

COMPREHENSIVE PETROLEUM UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK FUND BOARD

Progress and Activities Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455G.4.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP

Expenditures Report, pursuant to Chapter 131.1, 2019 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Bank Required Collateral Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12C.20.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Closing the Achievement Gap Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 256.9.

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Flood Recovery Fund Report, pursuant to Chapter 1001.3, 2020 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Medicaid Management Information System Central Portal Study Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.64, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Preferred Drug List Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249A.20A.

Medicaid Managed Care Oversight Report, pursuant to Chapter 1139.94, 2016 Iowa Acts.

Nursing Facilities Private Room Supplemental Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249A.4.

Analysis of Medicaid Member Appeals Report, pursuant to Chapter 1165.128, 2018 Iowa Acts.

Glenwood Resource Center Report, pursuant to Chapter 1001.1., 2020 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Expenditure Report, pursuant to Chapter 131.14, 2019 Iowa Acts.

Low Level Radioactive Waste Compact Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 457B.1.

Environmental Protection Commission Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 455B.105.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Debt Collection Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 421.17.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Commission on Volunteer Service Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 15H.2.

LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

LOTTERY AUTHORITY

Quarterly Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 99G.7.

PUBLIC TELEVISION

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section, 625.29.

STATE PUBLIC DEFENDER

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Indigent Defense System Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 13B.2A.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT

House File 2384 Reassigned

Appropriations: Mohr, Chair; Brink, Hall, Running-Marquardt and Sorensen.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

Senate File 2301, a bill for an act relating to health care benefits coverage for specified pediatric autoimmune neuropsychiatric disorders.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 3, 2020, placed on the calendar.

Senate File 2338, a bill for an act relating to civil actions, including the total amount recoverable as a noneconomic damages award against a health care provider, recoverable damages for medical expenses, and evidence offered to prove past medical expenses.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8173** June 3, 2020, placed on the calendar.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

Senate File 2284, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of regents and the institutions the state board of regents governs, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8177** June 3, 2020, placed on the calendar.

Senate File 2310, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa learning online initiative and to standards, requirements, and rules relating to online learning programs and coursework provided at the secondary school level.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8175** June 3, 2020, placed on the calendar.

Senate File 2356, a bill for an act relating to the education of students with characteristics of dyslexia and to the preparation and licensure of practitioners for such instruction, and establishing an Iowa dyslexia board.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8174** June 3, 2020, placed on the calendar.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Senate File 2261, a bill for an act relating to the provision of behavioral health services including via telehealth in a school setting.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8165** March 12, 2020, placed on the calendar.

Senate File 2283, a bill for an act relating to authorized training programs for certain emergency medical care providers and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 12, 2020, placed on the calendar.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2470), relating to qualifications for holding professional licensure in this state, including the granting of licenses to persons licensed in other states and acquiring residence in Iowa, disqualification provisions for criminal convictions, the waiver of application fees, and licensee discipline, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 3, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2591), relating to the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, including by providing for administration, programs, and regulations, providing fees, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 3, 2020.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8165	S.F.	2261	Committee on Human Resources
H-8166	S.F.	388	Worthan of Buena Vista
H-8167	H.F.	2279	Paustian of Scott
H-8168	H.F.	2572	Hunter of Polk
H-8169	H.F.	2564	Hite of Mahaska
H-8170	S.F.	2321	Hite of Mahaska
H-8171	S.F.	2261	Salmon of Black Hawk
H-8172	H.F.	2623	Sexton of Calhoun
H-8173	S.F.	2338	Committee on Commerce
H-8174	S.F.	2356	Committee on Education
H-8175	S.F.	2310	Committee on Education
H-8176	S.F.	2283	Kaufmann of Cedar
H-8177	S.F.	2284	Committee on Education
H-8178	S.F.	2321	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8179	H.J.R.	2004	Holt of Crawford
H-8180	S.J.R.	2001	Holt of Crawford
H-8181	S.J.R.	2001	Holt of Crawford
H-8182	S.J.R.	2001	Wessel-Kroeschell of Story
H-8183	S.J.R.	2001	Wessel-Kroeschell of Story
H-8184	S.J.R.	2001	Anderson of Polk
H-8185	S.J.R.	2001	Wilburn of Story
H-8186	S.J.R.	2001	Brown-Powers of Black Hawk

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 9:39 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Thursday, June 4, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Forty-fourth Calendar Day - Forty-third Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, June 4, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:39 a.m., Gassman of Winnebago in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Baxter of Hancock.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Gassman of Winnebago.

The Journal of Wednesday, June 3, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 3, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2502, a bill for an act relating to firearms and weapons, including the storage, carrying, possession, or transportation of weapons and the establishment, use, and maintenance of shooting ranges.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 8:41 a.m., until the conclusion of the morning committee blocks.

AFTERNOON SESSION

The House reconvened at 5:50 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS

Ways and Means Calendar

House File 2623, a bill for an act relating to gambling facility licensees concerning setoff requirements on certain winnings on wagers and qualified sponsoring organizations, was taken up for consideration.

Sexton of Calhoun offered amendment H-8172 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8172 was adopted.

Sexton of Calhoun moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2623)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 2:

Bearinger Running-Marquardt

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines Jeneary Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Appropriations Calendar

Senate File 2400, a bill for an act relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Sorensen of Adair offered amendment H-8159 filed by the committee on Appropriations.

Sorensen of Adair offered amendment H-8194, to the committee amendment H-8159, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8194, to the committee amendment H-8159, was adopted.

Sorensen of Adair moved the adoption of the committee amendment H-8159, as amended.

The committee amendment H-8159, as amended, was adopted.

Sorensen of Adair moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2400)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman

Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Jeneary	Kurth
-----------	--------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

House File 2564, a bill for an act relating to the opening, administration, and termination of adult guardianships and conservatorships, including conforming changes, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8169 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8169 was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2321 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2564

Hite of Mahaska asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2321 for House File 2564.

Senate File 2321, a bill for an act relating to the opening, administration, and termination of adult and minor guardianships and

conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8170 filed by him.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8178, to amendment H-8170, filed by him on June 3, 2020.

Hite of Mahaska moved the adoption of amendment H-8170.

Amendment H-8170 was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2321)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Jeneary	Kurth
-----------	--------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Senate File 2323, a bill for an act relating to the initial care plan for minor and adult guardianships and the initial plan and inventory for adult conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2323)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacoby	James	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Worthan	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 1:

Jacobsen

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger

Gaines

Jeneary

Kurth

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 2261, a bill for an act relating to the provision of behavioral health services including via telehealth in a school setting, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

A. Meyer of Webster offered amendment H-8165 filed by the committee on Human Resources and moved its adoption.

The committee amendment H-8165 was adopted.

Salmon of Black Hawk asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8171 filed by her on June 3, 2020.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2261)

The ayes were, 92:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey

McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Sexton
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 4:

Gassman	Salmon	Shiple	Wheeler
---------	--------	--------	---------

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Jeneary	Kurth
-----------	--------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 2283, a bill for an act relating to authorized training programs for certain emergency medical care providers and including effective date provisions, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Kaufmann of Cedar offered amendment H-8176 filed by him.

Kaufmann of Cedar offered amendment H-8193, to amendment H-8176, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8193, to amendment H-8176, was adopted.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved the adoption of amendment H-8176, as amended.

Amendment H-8176, as amended, was adopted.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2283)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Worthan	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 1:

Zumbach

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Jeneary	Kurth
-----------	--------	---------	-------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Bearinger of Fayette	Gaines of Polk
Jeneary of Plymouth	Kurth of Scott

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House File 2623** and **Senate Files 2261, 2283, 2321, 2323** and **2400**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2196, 2459 and 2564 from further consideration by the House.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2269, a bill for an act relating to the Medicaid home and community-based services elderly waiver monthly budget maximum.

Also: That the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2474, a bill for an act relating to the confidentiality of information filed with the court to secure an arrest warrant.

Also: That the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2182, a bill for an act relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases.

Also: That the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2364, a bill for an act relating to a construction manager-at-risk commercial construction alternative delivery method and prohibiting certain other alternative delivery methods in the public sector and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2398, a bill for an act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations.

Also: That the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2405, a bill for an act relating to the investment and use of funds in the veterans trust fund.

Also: That the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2406, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a disaster recovery homeowner assistance program and fund administered by the Iowa finance authority, transfers of moneys to certain funds, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

The House stood at ease at 7:00 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 8:17 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

House File 2628, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a disaster recovery homeowner assistance program and fund administered by the Iowa finance authority, transfers of moneys to certain funds, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2182, by committee on Judiciary, a bill for an act relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2364, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act relating to a construction manager-at-risk commercial construction alternative delivery method and prohibiting certain other alternative delivery methods in the public sector and including effective date and applicability provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2398, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2405, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the investment and use of funds in the veterans trust fund.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

Senate File 2406, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the establishment of a disaster recovery homeowner assistance program and fund administered by the Iowa finance authority, transfers of moneys to certain funds, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

BILL SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on June 4, 2020, the following bill was approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

Senate File 2348, an Act relating to the restoration of voting rights to certain convicted persons and including effective date provisions.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

Senate File 2188, a bill for an act concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 4, 2020, placed on the Appropriations calendar.

Senate File 2349, a bill for an act relating to the office of the chief information officer, including procurement preferences and a report detailing state information technology assets.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8197** June 4, 2020, placed on the Appropriations calendar.

Senate File 2360, a bill for an act relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing claims reimbursement to school districts for costs relating to therapeutic classrooms, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8198** June 4, 2020, placed on the Appropriations calendar.

Committee Bill (Formerly House File 2384), relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working Iowans, a workforce diploma pilot program, computer science instruction, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** June 4, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Senate File 2368, a bill for an act relating to the authority of counties and cities to regulate rental housing, and including effective date provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 4, 2020, placed on the calendar.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8187	H.J.R.	2004	Wilburn of Story
H-8188	H.J.R.	2004	Wilburn of Story
H-8189	H.J.R.	2004	Brown-Powers of Black Hawk
H-8190	H.J.R.	2004	Brown-Powers of Black Hawk
H-8191	H.J.R.	2004	Wessel-Kroeschell of Story

H-8192	H.J.R.	2004	Wessel-Kroeschell of Story
H-8193	S.F.	2283	Kaufmann of Cedar
H-8194	S.F.	2400	Sorensen of Adair
H-8195	H.J.R.	2004	Anderson of Polk
H-8196	S.F.	2356	James of Dubuque
H-8197	S.F.	2349	Committee on Appropriations
H-8198	S.F.	2360	Committee on Appropriations
H-8199	S.J.R.	2001	Holt of Crawford
H-8200	S.F.	2301	Deyoe of Story
H-8201	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8202	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8203	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8204	S.F.	2338	Carlson of Muscatine
H-8205	S.F.	2284	Hanusa of Pottawattamie
H-8206	H.F.	2626	Zumbach of Linn
H-8207	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8208	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8209	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8210	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8211	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8212	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8213	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8214	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8215	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:19 p.m., until 8:30 a.m., Friday, June 5, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Forty-fifth Calendar Day - Forty-fourth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, June 5, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 8:30 a.m., Huseman of Cherokee in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Salmon of Black Hawk.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Huseman of Cherokee.

The Journal of Thursday, June 4, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 4, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2410, a bill for an act relating to the use of revenues from the secure an advanced vision for education fund for certain athletic facility infrastructure projects and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

The House stood at ease at 8:38 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 9:13 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 717, a bill for an act concerning appeal rights relating to veterans preference.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2236, a bill for an act concerning fees charged for examining and copying public records relating to claims for veterans benefits.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2310, a bill for an act removing the requirement to obtain a permit for vehicles or combinations of vehicles of excessive size transporting divisible loads of hay, straw, stover, or bagged livestock bedding that meet certain width, height, and length requirements.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2360, a bill for an act regarding the expiration of driver's licenses of persons who are age seventy-two or over.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2565, a bill for an act relating to the setoff procedures used by public agencies and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2581, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of hemp, including by providing for testing methods and the regulation of hemp products, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2623, a bill for an act relating to gambling licensees concerning setoff requirements on certain winnings on wagers, payments by credit card, and qualified sponsoring organizations.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 280, a bill for an act relating to the residency of members of the armed forces stationed at specified military installations for purposes of hunting, fishing, and trapping privileges.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2261, a bill for an act relating to the provision of behavioral health services including via telehealth in a school setting.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2373, a bill for an act modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2412, a bill for an act relating to health insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, and providing for fees.

Also: That the Senate has on June 5, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2413, a bill for an act relating to agriculture and food, including the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

House File 2629, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working Iowans, educational standards and online learning, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

SENATE MESSAGES CONSIDERED

Senate File 2373, by committee on State Government, a bill for an act modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2412, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to health insurance and the insurance division of the department of commerce, and providing for fees.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Senate File 2413, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to agriculture and food, including the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and **passed on file**.

Windschitl of Harrison asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules for the immediate consideration of House File 2626 and all the amendments.

Objection was raised.

Windschitl of Harrison moved to suspend the rules for the immediate consideration of House File 2626 and all the amendments.

Roll call was requested by Prichard of Floyd and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended?"

The ayes were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jacoby
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

The nays were, 41:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Hall	Hunter
Isenhardt	James	Judge	Kacena
Konfrst	Kressig	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.

Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 6:

Bearinger	Gaines	Gaskill	Kurth
Kurtz	Worthan		

The motion prevailed and the rules were suspended.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Ways and Means Calendar

House File 2626, a bill for an act relating to the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, including by providing for administration, programs, and regulations, providing fees, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Klein of Washington offered amendment H–8206 filed by Zumbach of Linn.

Isenhart of Dubuque offered amendment H–8238, to amendment H–8206, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Isenhart of Dubuque and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H–8238, to amendment H–8206, be adopted?" (H.F. 2626)

The ayes were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Shiple	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

Amendment H-8238, to amendment H-8206, lost.

Klein of Washington offered amendment H-8237, to amendment H-8206, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8237, to amendment H-8206, was adopted, placing out of order amendment H-8226, to amendment H-8206 and amendment H-8227, to amendment H-8206, filed by Isenhart of Dubuque from the floor.

Isenhart of Dubuque rose on a point of order that amendment H-8206, as amended, was not germane.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8206, as amended, not germane.

Klein of Washington asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8206, as amended.

Objection was raised.

Klein of Washington moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8206, as amended.

Roll call was requested by Isenhart of Dubuque and James of Dubuque.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8206, as amended?" (H.F. 2626)

The ayes were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach
Speaker			
Grassley			

The nays were, 42:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Smith, R.
Worthan			

The motion to suspend the rules prevailed.

Klein of Washington moved the adoption of amendment H-8206, as amended.

Amendment H-8206, as amended, was adopted.

SENATE FILE 2413 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2626

Klein of Washington asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2413 for House File 2626.

Senate File 2413, a bill for an act relating to agriculture and food, including the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Mascher of Johnson rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker resolved the point of order.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2413)

The ayes were, 59:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Fisher	Fry	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Salmon
Sexton	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 37:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Isenhart
Jacoby	James	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson

McConkey	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Running-Marquardt	Shiple	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

RULE 67 INVOKED
(Time Certain)

Windschitl of Harrison moved that a time certain be set for the close of debate and that the House act on the following question and all amendments filed to the question no later than 11:00 p.m. on Friday, June 5, 2020 and then immediately proceed to closing remarks and final passage of Senate File 2338.

B. Meyer of Polk rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker resolved the point of order. Windschitl of Harrison restated his motion.

Objection was raised.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Wolfe of Clinton.

On the question “Shall debate be closed at 11:00 p.m. on June 5, 2020?” (S.F. 2338)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell

Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The motion prevailed.

Regular Calendar

Senate File 2338, a bill for an act relating to civil actions, including the total amount recoverable as a noneconomic damages award against a health care provider, recoverable damages for medical expenses, and evidence offered to prove past medical expenses, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Carlson of Muscatine offered amendment H-8173 filed by the committee on Commerce.

Ourth of Warren offered amendment H-8235, to the committee amendment H-8173, filed by him, from the floor.

Carlson of Muscatine rose on a point of order that amendment H-8235 was not germane, to the committee amendment H-8173.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8235 not germane, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Ourth of Warren asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8235, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Objection was raised.

Ourth of Warren moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8235, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Roll call was requested by Ourth of Warren and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8235, to the committee amendment H-8173?" (S.F. 2338)

The ayes were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Carlson of Muscatine offered amendment H-8204, to the committee amendment H-8173, filed by him and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Hall of Woodbury.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8204, to the committee amendment H-8173, be adopted?" (S.F. 2338)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

Amendment H-8204, to the committee amendment H-8173, was adopted.

B. Meyer of Polk offered amendment H-8216, to the committee amendment H-8173, filed by him from the floor.

Holt of Crawford rose on a point of order that amendment H-8216 was not germane, to the committee amendment H-8173.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8216 not germane, to the committee amendment H-8173.

B. Meyer of Polk asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8216, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Objection was raised.

B. Meyer of Polk moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8216, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Running-Marquardt of Linn.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8216, to the committee amendment H-8173?" (S.F. 2338)

The ayes were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Ehlert
Forbes	Gaskill	Hall	Hunter
Isenhardt	Jacoby	James	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bennett	Bergan
Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink
Carlson	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher

Fry	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Hall of Woodbury offered amendment H-8236, to the committee amendment H-8173, filed by him, from the floor.

Carlson of Muscatine rose on a point of order that amendment H-8236 was not germane, to the committee amendment H-8173.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8236 not germane, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Hall of Woodbury asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8236, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Objection was raised.

Hall of Woodbury moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8236, to the committee amendment H-8173.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and Matson of Polk.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8236, to the committee amendment H-8173?" (S.F. 2338)

Rule 75 was invoked.

The ayes were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

The Speaker announced that the time certain having come to pass and all amendments be put to the question.

Carlson of Muscatine moved the adoption of the committee amendment H-8173, as amended.

Roll call was requested by Carlson of Muscatine and Windschitl of Harrison.

On the question "Shall the committee amendment H-8173, as amended, be adopted?" (S.F. 2338)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobson	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The committee amendment H-8173, as amended, was adopted.

B. Meyer of Polk moved the bill title be changed.

Objection was raised.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Hunter of Polk.

On the question "Shall the bill title be changed?" (S.F. 2338)

The ayes were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue

Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The motion to change the title lost.

Carlson of Muscatine moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2338)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen

Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 44:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kurth	Worthan
-----------	--------	-------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **Senate Files 2413 and 2338.**

HOUSE FILE WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House File 2591 from further consideration by the House.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Bearinger of Fayette	Gaines of Polk
Kurth of Scott	Worthan of Buena Vista

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 11:57 p.m.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8216	S.F.	2338	B. Meyer of Polk
H-8217	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8218	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8219	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8220	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8221	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8222	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8223	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8224	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8225	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8226	H.F.	2626	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8227	H.F.	2626	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8228	H.F.	2360	Senate amendment
H-8229	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8230	S.F.	2364	Hunter of Polk
H-8231	S.F.	2360	Donahue of Linn
H-8232	S.F.	2360	Donahue of Linn
H-8233	S.F.	2360	Donahue of Linn
H-8234	S.F.	2360	Donahue of Linn
H-8235	S.F.	2338	Ourth of Warren
H-8236	S.F.	2338	Hall of Woodbury
H-8237	H.F.	2626	Klein of Washington
H-8238	H.F.	2626	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8239	S.F.	2360	Ehlert of Linn
H-8240	S.F.	2310	Moore of Cass

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 12:00 a.m., until 1:00 p.m., Monday, June 8, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Forty-eighth Calendar Day - Forty-fifth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Monday, June 8, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 1:05 p.m., Hite of Mahaska in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Kerr of Louisa.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Brink of Mahaska.

The Journal of Friday, June 5, 2020, was approved.

SENATE MESSAGE CONSIDERED

Senate File 2410, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to the use of revenues from the secure an advanced vision for education fund for certain athletic facility infrastructure projects and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Ways and Means**.

HOUSE FILE WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House File 2626 from further consideration by the House.

COMMUNICATION RECEIVED

The following communication was received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE Credit Union Division

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 1:08 p.m., until 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, June 9, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Forty-ninth Calendar Day - Forty-sixth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, June 9, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 9:04 a.m., Bossman of Woodbury in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Bossman of Woodbury.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Bossman of Woodbury.

The Journal of Monday, June 8, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2630, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to health benefit plan network access and adequacy, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Commerce**.

House File 2631, by Isenhart, a bill for an act relating to the purchase, use, and disposal of plastic products.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Environmental Protection**.

House File 2632, by Isenhart, a bill for an act authorizing counties to prepare, adopt, administer, and enforce riparian buffer ordinances, including by providing for the adoption of rules by the division of soil conservation and water quality, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Environmental Protection**.

House File 2633, by Holt, Lohse, Jones, Hinson, Gustafson, Osmundson, and Mohr, a bill for an act relating to cigarettes, tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, and vapor products, and including taxation of such products.

Read first time and referred to committee on **State Government**.

House File 2634, by Kurtz, Thede, Hunter, M. Smith, and Thorup, a bill for an act relating to the operation of railroad trains by a crew of two or more persons, providing penalties, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Transportation**.

House File 2635, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act creating a public safety equipment fund, and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2636, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to property tax classifications, credits, assessment limitations, exemptions, and administration, making appropriations, and including effective date, applicability, and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2637, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to eligibility for a property tax exemption for certain property of veterans associations.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2638, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to certain tax credits awarded by the economic development authority for equity investments in qualifying businesses or innovation funds and including effective date provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2639, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act increasing certain penalties for speeding in a motor vehicle, providing for the use of the additional moneys, and including applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

House File 2640, by committee on Ways and Means, a bill for an act exempting from the state individual income tax the earnings from a burial trust fund, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 9:08 a.m., until the conclusion of the committee on Ways and Means.

EVENING SESSION

The House reconvened at 6:00 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

House File 2641, by Ways and Means, a bill for an act relating to state taxation and related laws of the state, including the administration by the department of revenue of certain tax credits and refunds, income taxes, moneys and credit taxes, sales and use taxes, partnership and pass-through entity audits, and by modifying provisions relating to the reinstatement of business entities, the assessment and valuation of property, the Iowa reinvestment Act, horse racing, and port authorities, and providing penalties, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on **Ways and Means calendar**.

REFERRED

The Speaker announced that House File 2636, previously placed on the **Ways and Means calendar** was referred to committee on **Appropriations**.

STUDY BILL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

H.S.B. 710 Appropriations

Relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 711 Appropriations

Relating to transportation and other infrastructure-related appropriations to the department of transportation, including allocation and use of moneys from the road use tax fund and the

primary road fund and other related provisions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

H.S.B. 712 Appropriations

Relating to and making appropriations to state departments and agencies from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund and the technology reinvestment fund, and providing for related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Senate File 457 Reassigned

Ways and Means: Holt, Chair; Hein and Wolfe.

Senate File 2410 (Committee of the Whole)

Ways and Means: Hein, Chair; Mitchell, Jacoby, Bloomingdale, Brown-Powers, Carlson, Gaskill, Hagenow, Hite, Holt, Hunter, Isenhardt, James, Jones, Kaufmann, Kurth, Kurtz, Maxwell, McConkey, Nielson, Osmundson, Sieck, Wheeler, Wolfe and Zumbach.

STUDY BILL SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

House Study Bill 710 (Committee of the Whole)

Appropriations: Mohr, Chair; Brink, Hall, Bearinger, Bennett, Best, Bossman, Deyoe, Dolecheck, Forbes, Fry, Kerr, Landon, Mascher, McKean, Mommsen, Oldson, Running-Marquardt, Sexton, Sorensen, Thede, Williams, Wills, Winckler and Worthan.

House Study Bill 711 (Committee of the Whole)

Appropriations: Mohr, Chair; Brink, Hall, Bearinger, Bennett, Best, Bossman, Deyoe, Dolecheck, Forbes, Fry, Kerr, Landon, Mascher, McKean, Mommsen, Oldson, Running-Marquardt, Sexton, Sorensen, Thede, Williams, Wills, Winckler and Worthan.

House Study Bill 712 (Committee of the Whole)

Appropriations: Mohr, Chair; Brink, Hall, Bearinger, Bennett, Best, Bossman, Deyoe, Dolecheck, Forbes, Fry, Kerr, Landon, Mascher, McKean, Mommsen, Oldson, Running-Marquardt, Sexton, Sorensen, Thede, Williams, Wills, Winckler and Worthan.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Senate File 2327, a bill for an act relating to the elimination of the hospital licensing board, and providing for repeals.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** March 12, 2020, placed on the calendar.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Senate File 620, a bill for an act relating to the procedure for disposal of certain city utilities by sale.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 9, 2020, placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

Senate File 2410, a bill for an act relating to the use of revenues from the secure an advanced vision for education fund for certain athletic facility infrastructure projects and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8244** June 9, 2020, placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 696), relating to state taxation and related laws of the state, including the administration by the department of revenue of certain tax credits and refunds, income taxes, moneys and credits taxes, sales and use taxes, partnership and pass-through entity audits, and by modifying provisions relating to the reinstatement of business entities, the assessment and valuation of property, and providing penalties, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** June 9, 2020.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8241	H.F.	2629	Deyoe of Story
H-8242	H.F.	321	Mohr of Scott
H-8243	S.F.	2301	Nielsen of Johnson
H-8244	S.F.	2410	Committee on Ways and Means

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 6:01 p.m., until 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, June 10, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Fiftieth Calendar Day - Forty-seventh Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Wednesday, June 10, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 11:10 a.m., Hinson of Linn in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Bearinger of Fayette.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Hinson of Linn.

The Journal of Tuesday, June 9, 2020, was approved.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2642, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to and making appropriations to state departments and agencies from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund and the technology reinvestment fund, and providing for related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2643, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

House File 2644, by committee on Appropriations, a bill for an act relating to transportation and other infrastructure-related appropriations to the department of transportation, including allocation and use of moneys from the road use tax fund and the primary road fund and other related provisions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and placed on the **Appropriations calendar**.

The House stood at ease at 11:15 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 2:52 p.m., Zumbach of Linn in the chair.

QUORUM CALL

A non-record roll call was requested to determine that a quorum was present. The vote revealed eighty-two members present, eighteen absent.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2362, a bill for an act relating to certain appeals by nonprofit organizations concerning reimbursement of the department of workforce development for the cost of unemployment benefits.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2481, a bill for an act relating to the validity of certificates of the treasurer.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 388, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa patriots memorial highway, and including applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2097, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure and making penalties applicable.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2225, a bill for an act relating to the criminal offenses of theft in the third degree and robbery in the first degree and making penalties applicable.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2400, a bill for an act relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 3:09 p.m.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS Regular Calendar

Senate File 2284, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of regents and the institutions the state board of regents governs, and including retroactive applicability provisions, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie offered amendment H-8177 filed by the committee on Education and moved its adoption.

The committee amendment H-8177 was adopted.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie offered amendment H-8205 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8205 was adopted.

Hanusa of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2284)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby

James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines	Upmeyer	Worthan
--------	---------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 2356, a bill for an act relating to the education of students with characteristics of dyslexia and to the preparation and licensure of practitioners for such instruction, and establishing an Iowa dyslexia board, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Salmon of Black Hawk offered amendment H-8174 filed by the committee on Education and moved its adoption.

The committee amendment H-8174 was adopted.

James of Dubuque offered amendment H-8196 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8196 lost.

Salmon of Black Hawk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2356)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingdale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isehart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Gaines Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Appropriations Calendar

House File 2599, a bill for an act relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2182 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2599

Hite of Mahaska asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2182 for House File 2599.

Senate File 2182, a bill for an act relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases, was taken up for consideration.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (S.F. 2182)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills,			
Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines

Upmeyer

Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

SENATE AMENDMENT CONSIDERED
House Concurred

Landon of Polk called up for consideration **House File 2360**, a bill for an act regarding the expiration of driver's licenses of persons who are age seventy-two or over, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8228.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8228.

Landon of Polk moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2360)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 1:

Hunter

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines

Upmeyer

Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Appropriations Calendar

Senate File 2188, a bill for an act concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Bossman of Woodbury moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question “Shall the bill pass?” (S.F. 2188)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup

Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines	Upmeyer	Worthan
--------	---------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2629, a bill for an act relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working Iowans, educational standards and online learning, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Deyoe of Story offered amendment H-8241 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8241 was adopted.

Deyoe of Story moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2629)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren

Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines	Upmeyer	Worthan
--------	---------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Senate File 2360, a bill for an act relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing claims reimbursement to school districts for costs relating to therapeutic classrooms, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Dolecheck of Ringgold offered amendment H-8198 filed by the committee on Appropriations and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Mascher of Johnson and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the committee amendment H-8198 be adopted?" (S.F. 2360)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bennett	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohon	Derry

Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Hunter
Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines	Upmeyer	Worthan
--------	---------	---------

The committee amendment H-8198 was adopted.

Ehlert of Linn offered amendment H-8239 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Ehlert of Linn and Wolfe of Clinton.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8239 be adopted?" (S.F. 2360)

The ayes were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.

Smith, R. Thede Winckler	Staed Wessel-Kroeschell Wolfe	Steckman Wilburn	Sunde Williams
--------------------------------	-------------------------------------	---------------------	-------------------

The nays were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Wheeler
Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding	

Absent or not voting, 3:

Gaines	Upmeyer	Worthan
--------	---------	---------

Amendment H–8239 lost.

Donahue of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendments H–8231 and H–8232 filed by her on June 5, 2020.

Donahue of Linn offered amendment H–8233 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H–8233 lost.

Donahue of Linn offered amendment H–8234 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Donahue of Linn and James of Dubuque.

On the question "Shall amendment H–8234 be adopted?" (S.F. 2360)

The ayes were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bearinger	Bennett
Breckenridge	Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry
Donahue	Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill

Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

The nays were, 50:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Wheeler	Windschitl
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

Absent or not voting, 4:

Gaines	Klein	Upmeyer	Worthan
--------	-------	---------	---------

Amendment H-8234 lost.

Dolecheck of Ringgold moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2360)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart

Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	ShipleY
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding	

The nays were, 3:

Bennett	Donahue	Thede
---------	---------	-------

Absent or not voting, 2:

Gaines	Worthan
--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

The House stood at ease at 4:32 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 7:16 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 716, a bill for an act relating to firearms requirements for hunting deer.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2259, a bill for an act relating to human trafficking prevention training and reporting for employees of lodging providers in the state.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2359, a bill for an act relating to the reporting of certain assessment scores by approved practitioner preparation programs.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2363, a bill for an act relating to unemployment insurance contribution rates for certain landscaping employers.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2364, a bill for an act relating to injunctions issued to employers for certain violations of the state unemployment insurance law.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2365, a bill for an act relating to certain notifications issued by the department of workforce development concerning claims for unemployment benefits.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2418, a bill for an act relating to certain information in proceedings before the director of the department of education and the board of educational examiners.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2443, a bill for an act relating to eligibility requirements and assessments for students under the senior year plus program and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2455, a bill for an act allowing the use of a leashed dog to track and retrieve a wounded deer and providing a penalty.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2486, a bill for an act relating to the design and use of county seals.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

CONSIDERATION OF BILL
Regular Calendar

Senate File 2310, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa learning online initiative and to standards, requirements, and rules relating to online learning programs and coursework provided at the secondary school level, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Moore of Cass asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8175 filed by the committee on Education on June 3, 2020.

Moore of Cass offered amendment H-8240 filed by him.

Moore of Cass asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8246, to amendment H-8240 and amendment H-8247, to amendment H-8240, filed by him from the floor.

Moore of Cass offered amendment H-8252, to amendment H-8240, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8252, to amendment H-8240, was adopted.

Brink of Mahaska offered amendment H-8245, to amendment H-8240, filed by Moore of Cass from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8245, to amendment H-8240, was adopted.

Moore of Cass moved the adoption of amendment H-8240, as amended.

Amendment H-8240, as amended, was adopted.

Moore of Cass moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2310)

The ayes were, 92:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bearinger	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 6:

Bennett	Jacoby	Lensing	Mascher
Smith, M.	Winckler		

Absent or not voting, 2:

Gaines	Worthan
--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2360, 2629** and **Senate Files 2182, 2188, 2284, 2310, 2356** and **2360**.

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 2384, 2447, 2495, 2532 and 2599 from further consideration by the House.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Gaines of Polk

Worthan of Buena Vista

The House stood at ease at 7:42 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 8:01 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

BILL SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on June 10, 2020, the following bill was approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

Senate File 2413, an Act relating to agriculture and food, including the powers and duties of the department of agriculture and land stewardship, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendations have been received and are on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 710), relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass** June 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 711), relating to transportation and other infrastructure-related appropriations to the department of transportation, including allocation and use of moneys from the road use tax fund and the primary road fund and other related provisions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 10, 2020.

Committee Bill (Formerly House Study Bill 712), relating to and making appropriations to state departments and agencies from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund and the technology reinvestment fund, and providing for related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 10, 2020.

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

Senate File 457, a bill for an act relating to surcharges added to criminal penalties, court funds, civil fees, misdemeanor and felony fines, and fines associated with scheduled violations.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Amend and Do Pass with amendment H-8248** June 10, 2020, placed on the **Ways and Means calendar**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8245	S.F.	2310	Moore of Cass
H-8246	S.F.	2310	Moore of Cass
H-8247	S.F.	2310	Moore of Cass
H-8248	S.F.	457	Committee on Ways and Means
H-8249	H.F.	2642	Bennett of Linn
H-8250	H.F.	2627	Lundgren of Dubuque
H-8251	H.F.	2365	Senate amendment
H-8252	S.F.	2310	Moore of Cass
H-8253	S.F.	2410	Running-Marquardt of Linn
H-8254	H.F.	2418	Senate amendment
H-8255	H.F.	2443	Senate amendment
H-8256	H.F.	2486	Senate amendment
H-8257	H.F.	2641	Hite of Mahaska
H-8258	H.F.	2643	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8259	H.F.	2643	Isenhart of Dubuque

H-8260	H.F.	2486	Kaufmann of Cedar Hunter of Polk
H-8261	H.F.	2641	Nielsen of Johnson

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 8:01 p.m., until 9:00 a.m., Thursday, June 11, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Fifty-first Calendar Day - Forty-eighth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Thursday, June 11, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 9:29 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Dolecheck of Ringgold.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Speaker Grassley.

The Journal of Wednesday, June 10, 2020, was approved.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 10, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 684, a bill for an act providing limited immunity from certain criminal offenses and prohibiting certain disciplinary sanctions for persons under twenty-one years of age who report, seek, or require emergency assistance for alcohol overdoses, and modifying penalties.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2220, a bill for an act relating to the definition of young adult for purposes of participation in the preparation for adult living program.

Also: That the Senate has on June 10, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2338, a bill for an act relating to civil actions, including recoverable damages for medical expenses, evidence offered to prove past medical expenses, and civil actions related to the novel coronavirus, and including retroactive applicability provisions

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

House File 2645, by Isenhardt, Ehlert, Brown-Powers, McConkey, Staed, Bearinger, Gaskill, Steckman, McKean, Lensing, Winckler, Forbes, Wilburn, Hall, R. Smith, Nielsen, Cohoon, Kacena, Abdul-Samad, Ourth, Konfrst, Mascher, Olson, James, Bennett, Wolfe, Oldson, Derry, Thede, Hunter, Kurtz, Jacoby, M. Smith, Williams, and Shipley, a bill for an act relating to a program that assists schools and school districts in purchasing fresh farm produce, making appropriations, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Education**.

House File 2646, by R. Smith, Abdul-Samad, Wessel-Kroeschell, Wilburn, Kurth, Mascher, and James, a bill for an act relating to annual reports submitted by law enforcement agencies to the attorney general regarding information collected during traffic, bicycle, or pedestrian stops.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Public Safety**.

The House stood at ease at 9:58 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 3:02 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 11, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2372, a bill for an act exempting certain farmers and hired help operating a special truck from the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur.

Also: That the Senate has on June 11, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2629, a bill for an act relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working Iowans, educational standards, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 11, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2284, a bill for an act relating to matters involving the state board of regents and the institutions the state board of regents governs, and including retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 11, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2356, a bill for an act relating to the education of students with characteristics of dyslexia and to the preparation and licensure of practitioners for such instruction, and establishing an Iowa dyslexia board.

Also: That the Senate has on June 11, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 2360, a bill for an act relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing claims reimbursement to school districts for costs relating to therapeutic classrooms, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

INTRODUCTION OF BILL

House File 2647, by Windschitl and Prichard, a bill for an act relating to peace officers, including the certification, training, and prosecution of peace officers and the use of chokeholds by peace officers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Read first time and referred to committee on **Judiciary**.

HOUSE INSISTS

Hite of Mahaska called up for consideration **House File 760**, a bill for an act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging after a certain number of consecutive days and moved that the House insist on its amendment, which motion prevailed.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE APPOINTED
(House File 760)

The Speaker announced the appointment of the conference committee to consider the differences between the House and Senate concerning **House File 760**: Hite of Mahaska, Chair; Mommsen of Clinton, Wills of Dickinson, Kurth of Scott and Wolfe of Clinton.

Appropriations Calendar

House File 2615, a bill for an act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations, was taken up for consideration.

Mommsen of Clinton asked to substitute Senate File 2398 for House File 2615.

Matson of Polk rose on a point of order.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Matson of Polk offered amendment H-8163 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8163 lost.

SENATE FILE 2398 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2615

Mommsen of Clinton asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2398 for House File 2615.

Senate File 2398, a bill for an act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations, was taken up for consideration.

Mommsen of Clinton moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2398)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 2349, a bill for an act relating to the office of the chief information officer, including procurement preferences and a report detailing state information technology assets, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Brink of Mahaska offered amendment H-8197 filed by the committee on Appropriations.

Sorensen of Adair offered amendment H-8264, to the committee amendment H-8197, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8264, to the committee amendment H-8197, was adopted.

Brink of Mahaska moved the adoption of the committee amendment H-8197, as amended.

The committee amendment H-8197, as amended, was adopted.

Brink of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2349)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 2:

McKean Meyer, B.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger Gaines Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Ways and Means Calendar

Senate File 620, a bill for an act relating to the procedure for disposal of certain city utilities by sale, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Wheeler of Sioux moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 620)

The ayes were, 68:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Carlson	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher
Fry	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Kurth
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Sunde	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 29:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Ehlert
Forbes	Gaskill	Hunter	Jacoby
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurtz	Lensing
Matson	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Smith, M.	Smith, R.

Staed
Winckler

Steckman

Thede

Wessel-Kroeschell

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger

Gaines

Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

House File 321, a bill for an act relating to the provision of debt management services in connection with educational loans, and making penalties applicable, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Mohr of Scott asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8002 filed by the committee on Commerce on February 6, 2020.

Mohr of Scott offered amendment H-8242 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8242 was adopted, placing out of order amendment H-1048 filed by Mohr of Scott on March 19, 2019.

SENATE FILE 272 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 321

Mohr of Scott asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 272 for House File 321.

Senate File 272, a bill for an act relating to the provision of debt management services in connection with educational loans, and making penalties applicable, was taken up for consideration.

Mohr of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 272)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Omundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Taед	Steckman	Sunde
Theде	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House File 760** and **Senate Files 272, 620, 2349 and 2398**.

The House stood at ease at 3:45 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 5:06 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent, pursuant to House Rule 72, for the committee on Judiciary to meet immediately upon recess to consider House File 2647 and that the House consider House File 2647 after the adjournment of the committee on Judiciary.

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House was recessed at 5:07 p.m., until the conclusion of the committee on Judiciary.

EVENING SESSION

The House reconvened at 6:00 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Regular Calendar

House File 2647, a bill for an act relating to peace officers, including the certification, training, and prosecution of peace officers and the use of chokeholds by peace officers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2647)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian

Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Bearinger Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGE

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that **House File 2647** be immediately messaged to the Senate.

The House stood at ease at 6:41 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 6:57 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Regular Calendar

House File 2531, a bill for an act modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2373 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2531

Fisher of Tama asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2373 for House File 2531.

Senate File 2373, a bill for an act modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators, was taken up for consideration.

Fisher of Tama moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2373)

The ayes were, 98:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaines	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Omundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Zumbach	Speaker Grassley		

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 2:

Bearinger Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2588, a bill for an act establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

SENATE FILE 2268 SUBSTITUTED FOR HOUSE FILE 2588

Bacon of Story asked and received unanimous consent to substitute Senate File 2268 for House File 2588.

Senate File 2268, a bill for an act establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Bacon of Story moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2268)

The ayes were, 84:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bergan	Best	Bloomington	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Fisher	Forbes	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Oldson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Staed	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 13:

Bennett	Ehlert	Gaskill	Kacena
Kurtz	Nielsen	Olson	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Steckman	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Senate File 2232, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa trust code, including the creation of directed trusts, the transfer of trust assets into other trusts, and requirements related to notices to beneficiaries, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2232)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger Gaines Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

SENATE AMENDMENT CONSIDERED
House Concurred

Kaufmann of Cedar called up for consideration **House File 2486**, a bill for an act relating to the design and use of county seals, amended by the Senate amendment H-8256.

Kaufmann of Cedar offered amendment H-8260, to the Senate amendment H-8256, filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8260, to the Senate amendment H-8256, was adopted.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8256, as amended.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8256, as amended.

Kaufmann of Cedar moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate, further amended and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2486)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hanusa

Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 2:

Hall	Kacena
------	--------

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Ways and Means Calendar

House File 2641, a bill for an act relating to state taxation and related laws of the state, including the administration by the department of revenue of certain tax credits and refunds, income taxes, moneys and credits taxes, sales and use taxes, partnership and pass-through entity audits, and by modifying provisions relating to the reinstatement of business entities, the assessment and valuation of property, the Iowa reinvestment Act, horse racing, and port authorities, and providing penalties, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 7:40 p.m.

Nielsen of Johnson offered amendment H-8261 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Nielsen of Johnson and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8261 be adopted?" (H.F. 2641)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8261 was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8257 filed by him.

Klein of Washington offered amendment H-8268, to amendment H-8257, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8268, to amendment H-8257, was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8273, to amendment H-8257, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8273, to amendment H-8257, was adopted.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8279, to amendment H-8257, filed by him from the floor.

Hite of Mahaska moved the adoption of amendment H-8257, as amended.

Amendment H-8257, as amended, was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2641)

The ayes were, 91:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 6:

Ehlert	Hunter	Lensing	Mascher
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn		

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2486, 2641** and **Senate Files 2232, 2268** and **2373**.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Bearinger of Fayette	Gaines of Polk
Worthan of Buena Vista	

The House stood at ease at 8:07 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 10:15 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 11, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2647, a bill for an act relating to peace officers, including the certification, training, and prosecution of peace officers and the use of chokeholds by peace officers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

HOUSE FILES WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House Files 321, 2135, 2350, 2395, 2448, 2531, 2588 and 2615 from further consideration by the House.

SUBCOMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT

House File 2647 (Committee of the Whole)

Judiciary: Holt, Chair; Hite, Wolfe, Bennett, Bergan, Derry, Gustafson, Hagenow, Jacobsen, Jones, Kaufmann, Klein, Konfrst, Lohse, B. Meyer, Mitchell, Oldson, Olson, Paustian, Wessel-Kroeschell and Wilburn.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MR. SPEAKER: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following committee recommendation has been received and is on file in the office of the Chief Clerk:

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

House File 2647, a bill for an act relating to peace officers, including the certification, training, and prosecution of peace officers and the use of chokeholds by peace officers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Fiscal Note: **No**

Recommendation: **Do Pass** June 11, 2020, placed on the calendar.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8262	H.F.	684	Senate amendment
H-8263	H.F.	2627	McConkey of Pottawattamie
H-8264	S.F.	2349	Sorensen of Adair
H-8265	H.F.	2643	Isenhardt of Dubuque
H-8266	H.F.	2627	Mascher of Johnson
H-8267	H.F.	2627	Lundgren of Dubuque
H-8268	H.F.	2641	Klein of Washington
H-8269	H.F.	2372	Senate amendment
H-8270	H.F.	2629	Senate amendment

H-8271	H.F.	2627	Jacoby of Johnson
H-8272	H.F.	2627	Wolfe of Clinton
H-8273	H.F.	2641	Hite of Mahaska
H-8274	H.F.	2643	Winckler of Scott
H-8275	H.F.	2643	Winckler of Scott
H-8276	H.F.	2643	Hall of Woodbury
H-8277	H.F.	737	Paustian of Scott
H-8278	H.F.	2642	McKean of Jones Isenhart of Dubuque Jacoby of Johnson Steckman of Cerro Gordo
H-8279	H.F.	2641	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8280	H.F.	2643	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8281	H.F.	2627	Nielsen of Johnson
H-8282	H.F.	2627	M. Smith of Marshall
H-8283	H.F.	2627	M. Smith of Marshall
H-8284	H.F.	2627	M. Smith of Marshall
H-8285	H.F.	2627	M. Smith of Marshall
H-8286	H.F.	2627	Nielsen of Johnson
H-8287	H.F.	2627	Lensing of Johnson
H-8288	S.F.	457	Wolfe of Clinton
H-8289	H.F.	2629	Dolecheck of Ringgold
H-8290	H.F.	2642	Bossman of Woodbury
H-8291	H.F.	2644	Bossman of Woodbury
H-8292	S.F.	457	Staed of Linn
H-8293	H.F.	2643	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8294	H.F.	2643	Mohr of Scott

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 10:15 p.m., until 9:00 a.m., Friday, June 12, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Fifty-second Calendar Day - Forty-ninth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Friday, June 12, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 9:11 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Thede of Scott.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Speaker Grassley.

The Journal of Thursday, June 11, 2020, was approved.

The House stood at ease at 9:50 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 5:04 p.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 12, 2020, appointed the conference committee to House File 760, a bill for an act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging after a certain number of consecutive days. The Conference Committee members on the part of the Senate are: The Senator from Scott, Senator Smith, R., Chair; the Senator from Boone, Senator Behn; the Senator from Scott, Senator Cournoyer; the Senator from Dubuque, Senator Jochum; the Senator from Johnson, Senator Wahls.

Also: That the Senate has on June 12, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2221, a bill for an act relating to the licensed health professional member of a local board of health.

Also: That the Senate has on June 12, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2452, a bill for an act relating to the disposal and acquisition of city water utilities, including at-risk systems.

Also: That the Senate has on June 12, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2339, a bill for an act providing for business corporations, providing for certain fees, and including effective date provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

SENATE AMENDMENTS CONSIDERED House Concurred

Deyoe of Story called up for consideration **House File 2365**, a bill for an act relating to certain notifications issued by the department of workforce development concerning claims for unemployment benefits, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8251.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8251.

Deyoe of Story moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2365)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley

Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House Concurred

Deyoe of Story called up for consideration **House File 2629**, a bill for an act relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including a child care challenge program for working Iowans, educational standards, work-based learning coordinators, and the senior year plus program, and including applicability provisions, amended by the Senate amendment H-8270.

Dolecheck of Ringgold asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8289, to the Senate amendment H-8270, filed by him on June 11, 2020.

Deyoe of Story moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8270.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8270.

Deyoe of Story moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate, further amended and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2629)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House Concurred

Klein of Washington called up for consideration **House File 684**, a bill for an act providing limited immunity from certain criminal offenses and prohibiting certain disciplinary sanctions for persons under twenty-one years of age who report, seek, or require emergency assistance for alcohol overdoses, and modifying penalties, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8262.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8262.

Klein of Washington moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 684)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shiple
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 1:

Wheeler

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger

Gaines

Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House Concurred

Maxwell of Poweshiek called up for consideration **House File 2372**, a bill for an act exempting certain farmers and hired help operating a special truck from the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8269.

Roll call was requested by R. Smith of Black Hawk and Wolfe of Clinton.

On the question "Shall the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8269?" (H.F. 2372)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shiple
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8269.

Maxwell of Poweshiek moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2372)

The ayes were, 77:

Anderson	Bacon	Baxter	Bergan
Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge
Brink	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Jacobsen	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, M.	Sorensen
Steckman	Sunde	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Wills	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, 20:

Abdul-Samad	Bennett	Brown-Powers	Donahue
Ehlert	Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby
Kacena	Konfrst	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	Nielsen	Oldson	Smith, R.
Staed	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Winckler

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House Concurred

Paustian of Scott called up for consideration **House File 737**, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of persons involved with animals other than livestock and certain wild animals, providing for criminal offenses and court orders associated with animal mistreatment, and including penalties, amended by the Senate amendment H-8084.

Paustian of Scott offered amendment H-8277, to the Senate amendment H-8084, filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8277, to the Senate amendment H-8084, was adopted.

Paustian of Scott moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8084, as amended.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8084, as amended.

Paustian of Scott moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate, further amended and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 737)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen

Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Speaker Grassley			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

Regular Calendar

Senate File 526, a bill for an act creating a blue alert program within the department of public safety for the apprehension of a person suspected of killing or seriously injuring a peace officer in the line of duty or due to safety concerns for a peace officer missing while on duty, with report of committee recommending passage, was taken up for consideration.

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 5:28 p.m.

Lohse of Polk moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 526)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson

Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhart	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Omundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 684, 737, 2365, 2372, 2629** and **Senate File 526**.

The House stood at ease at 5:30 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 8:05 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 12, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2540, a bill for an act establishing a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit.

Also: That the Senate has on June 12, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2561, a bill for an act relating to protections for certain potential recipients of anatomical gifts.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT RECEIVED
(House File 760)

A conference committee report signed by the following Senate and House members was filed June 12, 2020, on **House File 760**, a bill for an act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging after a certain number of consecutive days:

ON THE PART OF THE HOUSE:

ON THE PART OF THE SENATE:

DUSTIN HITE, CHAIRPERSON
MONICA KURTH
NORLIN MOMMSEN
JOHN WILLS
MARY WOLFE

ROBY SMITH, CHAIRPERSON
JERRY BEHN
CHRIS COURNOYER
PAM JOCHUM
ZACH WAHLS

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT CONSIDERED
(House File 760)

Hite of Mahaska called up for consideration the report of the conference committee on **House File 760**, a bill for an act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging after a certain number of consecutive days, and moved the adoption of the conference committee report and the amendments contained therein.

The motion prevailed and the conference committee report was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 760)

The ayes were, 93:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 4:

Gassman	Prichard	Shipley	Wheeler
---------	----------	---------	---------

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS

Ways and Means Calendar

House File 2627, a bill for an act relating to qualifications for holding professional licensure in this state, including the granting of licenses to persons licensed in other states and acquiring residence in Iowa, disqualification provisions for criminal convictions, the waiver of application fees, and licensee discipline, and including effective date provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Lundgren of Dubuque offered amendment H-8250 filed by her.

Wolfe of Clinton offered amendment H-8272, to amendment H-8250, filed by her and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Wolfe of Clinton and R. Smith of Black Hawk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8272, to amendment H-8250, be adopted?" (H.F. 2627)

The ayes were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills,
			Presiding

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8272, to amendment H-8250, lost.

Lundgren of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8267, to amendment H-8250, filed by her on June 11, 2020 and amendment H-8299, to amendment H-8250, filed by her from the floor.

Lundgren of Dubuque offered amendment H-8301, to amendment H-8250, filed by her from the floor.

Prichard of Floyd requested a division to amendment H-8301, to amendment H-8250, as follows:

Division A: Page 1, Lines 2-24 and Lines 26-29.

Division B: Page 1, Line 25.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved the adoption of amendment H-8301A, to amendment H-8250.

Roll call was requested by Prichard of Floyd and Lundgren of Dubuque.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8301A, to amendment H-8250, be adopted?" (H.F. 2627)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams

Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8301A, to amendment H-8250, was adopted.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved the adoption of amendment H-8301B, to amendment H-8250.

Roll call was requested by Prichard of Floyd and Hall of Woodbury.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8301B, to amendment H-8250, be adopted?" (H.F. 2627)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bosman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 44:

Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Ehlert
Forbes	Gaskill	Hall	Hunter
Isenhardt	Jacoby	James	Judge
Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed

Steckman Wilburn	Sunde Williams	Thede Winckler	Wessel-Kroeschell Wolfe
---------------------	-------------------	-------------------	----------------------------

Absent or not voting, 4:

Abdul-Samad	Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-------------	-----------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8301B, to amendment H-8250, was adopted.

Nielsen of Johnson asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8281, to amendment H-8250, filed by her on June 11, 2020.

M. Smith of Marshall asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8282, to amendment H-8250; amendment H-8283, to amendment H-8250; amendment H-8284, to amendment H-8250 and amendment H-8285, to amendment H-8250, filed by him on June 11, 2020.

Nielsen of Johnson asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8286, to amendment H-8250, filed by her on June 11, 2020.

Lensing of Johnson asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8287, to amendment H-8250, filed by her on June 11, 2020, placing out of order amendment H-8263, to amendment H-8250, filed by McConkey of Pottawattamie on June 11, 2020.

Mascher of Johnson offered amendment H-8266, to amendment H-8250, filed by her and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8266, to amendment H-8250, was adopted.

Jacoby of Johnson asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8271, to amendment H-8250, filed by him on June 11, 2020.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved the adoption of amendment H-8250, as amended.

Amendment H-8250, as amended, was adopted.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2627)

The ayes were, 62:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Carlson	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Maxwell	McKean	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Prichard	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Sunde	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Williams	Windschitl	Wolfe
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 35:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Donahue	Ehlert	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Matson
McConkey	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Winckler	

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

Appropriations Calendar

House File 2642, a bill for an act relating to and making appropriations to state departments and agencies from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund and the technology reinvestment fund, and providing for related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Bennett of Linn asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8249 filed by her on June 10, 2020.

McKean of Jones offered amendment H-8278 filed by McKean, et al., and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8278 lost.

Bossman of Woodbury offered amendment H-8290 filed by him.

Bossman of Woodbury offered amendment H-8300, to amendment H-8290, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8300, to amendment H-8290, was adopted.

Bossman of Woodbury moved the adoption of amendment H-8290, as amended.

Amendment H-8290, as amended, was adopted.

Bossman of Woodbury moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2642)

The ayes were, 58:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Carlson	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary

Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Matson
Maxwell	McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shiplely
Sieck	Sorensen	Sunde	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 39:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Donahue	Ehlert	Gaskill
Hall	Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby
James	Judge	Kacena	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	McConkey	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2644, a bill for an act relating to transportation and other infrastructure-related appropriations to the department of transportation, including allocation and use of moneys from the road use tax fund and the primary road fund and other related provisions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Bossman of Woodbury offered amendment H-8291 filed by him and moved its adoption.

Amendment H-8291 was adopted.

Bossman of Woodbury moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2644)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House File 2643, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, was taken up for consideration.

Hall of Woodbury offered amendment H-8276 filed by him.

Hall of Woodbury offered amendment H-8302, to amendment H-8276, filed by him from the floor.

Mohr of Scott rose on a point of order that amendment H-8302 was not germane, to amendment H-8276.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8302 not germane, to amendment H-8276.

Hall of Woodbury asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8302, to amendment H-8276.

Objection was raised.

Hall of Woodbury moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8302, to amendment H-8276.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8302, to amendment H-8276?" (H.F. 2643)

Rule 75 invoked.

The ayes were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 50:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson

Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Hinson	Landon
Worthan			

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Hall of Woodbury offered amendment H-8303, to amendment H-8276, filed by him from the floor.

Mohr of Scott rose on a point of order that amendment H-8303 was not germane, to amendment H-8276.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8303 not germane, to amendment H-8276.

Hall of Woodbury asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8303, to amendment H-8276.

Objection was raised.

Hall of Woodbury moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8303, to amendment H-8276.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and Kacena of Woodbury.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8303, to amendment H-8276?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohon	Derry	Donahue

Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isehart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 49:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomington	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

Absent or not voting, 6:

Bearinger	Gaines	Hinson	Landon
Upmeyer	Worthan		

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Hall of Woodbury offered amendment H-8304, to amendment H-8276, filed by him from the floor.

Mohr of Scott rose on a point of order that amendment H-8304 was not germane, to amendment H-8276.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8304 not germane, to amendment H-8276.

Hall of Woodbury asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8304, to amendment H-8276.

Objection was raised.

Hall of Woodbury moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8304, to amendment H-8276.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and James of Dubuque.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8304, to amendment H-8276?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 49:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

Absent or not voting, 6:

Bearinger	Gaines	Hinson	Landon
Upmeyer	Worthan		

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Hall of Woodbury asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8276 filed by him on June 11, 2020.

Mohr of Scott offered amendment H-8294 filed by him.

Fry of Clarke offered amendment H-8295, to amendment H-8294, filed by him from the floor.

Hall of Woodbury rose on a point of order that amendment H-8295 was not germane, to amendment H-8294.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8295 not germane, to amendment H-8294.

Fry of Clarke asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8295, to amendment H-8294.

Objection was raised.

Fry of Clarke moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8295, to amendment H-8294.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8295, to amendment H-8294?" (H.F. 2643)

Rule 75 was invoked.

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, 46:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Lohse
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The motion to suspend the rules prevailed.

Fry of Clarke moved the adoption of amendment H-8295, to amendment H-8294.

Amendment H-8295, to amendment H-8294, was adopted.

Windschitl of Harrison rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Mohr of Scott offered amendment H-8298, to amendment H-8294, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8298, to amendment H-8294, be adopted?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 97:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman

Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher
Matson	Maxwell	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton
Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Sorensen	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8298, to amendment H-8294, was adopted.

Shiple of Van Buren offered amendment H-8296, to amendment H-8294, filed by him from the floor.

Mohr of Scott rose on a point of order that amendment H-8296 was not germane, to amendment H-8294.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8296 not germane, to amendment H-8294.

Shiple of Van Buren asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8296, to amendment H-8294.

Objection was raised.

Shiple of Van Buren moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8296, to amendment H-8294.

Roll call was requested by Shiple of Van Buren and Running-Marquardt of Linn.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8296, to amendment H-8294?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 17:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Gassman
Jacoby	Kacena	Kaufmann	Lensing
Mitchell	Olson	Osmundson	Running-Marquardt
Shipley	Sorensen	Thompson	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler			

The nays were, 76:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert
Fisher	Forbes	Fry	Gaskill
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Jacobsen
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen	Oldson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Salmon
Sexton	Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

Absent or not voting, 7:

Bearinger	Gaines	Hinson	Isenhart
Landon	Wolfe	Worthan	

The motion to suspend the rules lost.

Mohr of Scott moved the adoption of amendment H-8294, as amended.

Amendment H-8294, as amended, was adopted.

Winckler of Scott offered amendment H-8274 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Winckler of Scott and Breckenridge of Jasper.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8274 be adopted?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Hinson	Landon
Worthan			

Amendment H-8274 was adopted.

Winckler of Scott offered amendment H-8275 filed by her and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Winckler of Scott and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8275 be adopted?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 50:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Hinson	Landon
Worthan			

Amendment H-8275 lost.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendments H-8258 and H-8259 filed by him on June 10, 2020 and amendments H-8265, H-8280 and H-8293 filed by him on June 11, 2020.

Mohr of Scott moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 45:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Kacena	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Ourth
Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 3:

Bearinger	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 760, 2627, 2642, 2643 and 2644.**

HOUSE FILE WITHDRAWN

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw House File 2470 from further consideration by the House.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Bearinger of Fayette
Hinson of Linn
Worthan of Buena Vista

Gaines of Polk
Landon of Polk

REPORT OF THE CHIEF CLERK

Pursuant to House Rule 42, I report that the Legal Counsel's office made the following correction:

House File 2372 on June 12, 2020:

1. Title Page, Line 5, strike "chauffeur." after "license."

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

BILL ENROLLED, SIGNED AND SENT TO GOVERNOR

The Chief Clerk of the House submitted the following report:

Mr. Speaker: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following bill has been examined and found correctly enrolled, signed by the Speaker of the House and the President of the Senate, and presented to the Governor for approval on this 12th day of June, 2020: House File 2647.

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

BILL SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that on June 12, 2020, the following bills were approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

House File 2647, an Act relating to peace officers, including the certification, training, and prosecution of peace officers and the use of chokeholds by peace officers, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8295	H.F.	2643	Fry of Clarke
H-8296	H.F.	2643	Shipley of Van Buren
H-8297	H.F.	638	Lohse of Polk
H-8298	H.F.	2643	Mohr of Scott
H-8299	H.F.	2627	Lundgren of Dubuque
H-8300	H.F.	2642	Bossman of Woodbury
H-8301	H.F.	2627	Lundgren of Dubuque
H-8302	H.F.	2643	Hall of Woodbury
H-8303	H.F.	2643	Hall of Woodbury
H-8304	H.F.	2643	Hall of Woodbury
H-8305	H.F.	2540	Senate amendment
H-8306	H.F.	638	Lohse of Polk

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 10:40 p.m., until 9:00 a.m., Saturday, June 13, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Fifty-third Calendar Day - Fiftieth Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Saturday, June 13, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 10:31 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Bacon of Story.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Speaker Grassley.

The Journal of Friday, June 12, 2020, was approved.

The House stood at ease at 10:43 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 3:06 p.m., Upmeyer of Cerro Gordo in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 599, a bill for an act relating to hunting by persons under the age of sixteen.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, adopted the Conference Committee report and passed House File 760, a bill for an act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2644, a bill for an act relating to transportation and other infrastructure-related appropriations to the department of transportation, including allocation and use of moneys from the road use tax fund and the primary road fund and other related provisions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

Speaker Grassley in the chair at 3:23 p.m.

SENATE AMENDMENTS CONSIDERED
House Concurred

A. Meyer of Webster called up for consideration **House File 2418**, a bill for an act relating to certain information in proceedings before the director of the department of education and the board of educational examiners, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8254.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8254.

A. Meyer of Webster moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2418)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Bennett	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	---------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House Concurred

Maxwell of Poweshiek called up for consideration **House File 599**, a bill for an act relating to hunting by persons under the age of sixteen, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8309.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8309.

Maxwell of Poweshiek moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 599)

The ayes were, 91:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kacena
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kressig	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed

Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Wills	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley	

The nays were, 5:

Gaskill	Hunter	Lensing	Mascher
Wessel-Kroeschell			

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Bennett	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	---------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House Concurred

Lundgren of Dubuque called up for consideration **House File 2540**, a bill for an act establishing a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8305.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8305.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2540)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones

Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Bennett	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	---------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS

Ways and Means Calendar

Senate File 457, a bill for an act relating to surcharges added to criminal penalties, court funds, civil fees, misdemeanor and felony fines, and fines associated with scheduled violations, with report of committee recommending amendment and passage, was taken up for consideration.

Holt of Crawford asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8148 filed by the committee on Judiciary on March 11, 2020.

Holt of Crawford offered amendment H-8248 filed by the committee on Ways and Means.

Wolfe of Clinton offered amendment H-8288, to the committee amendment H-8248, filed by her and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Wolfe of Clinton and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8288, to the committee amendment H-8248 be adopted?" (S.F. 457)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Hunter	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
Jacoby	James	Jeneary	Jones
Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kressig	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Oldson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Wills	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Bennett	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	---------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8288, to the committee amendment H-8248, was adopted.

Staed of Linn offered amendment H-8292, to the committee amendment H-8248, filed by him and moved its adoption.

Wills of Dickinson in the chair at 3:48 p.m.

Roll call was requested by Staed of Linn and Abdul-Samad of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8292, to the committee amendment H-8248 be adopted?" (S.F. 457)

The ayes were, 96:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bergan	Best	Bloomingdale	Bossman
Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers	Carlson
Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher	Forbes
Fry	Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Hunter	Huseman	Isenhardt
Jacobsen	Jacoby	James	Jeneary
Jones	Judge	Kacena	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lensing
Lohse	Lundgren	Mascher	Matson
Maxwell	McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.
Meyer, B.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Windschitl	Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Bennett	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	---------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8292, to the committee amendment H-8248, was adopted.

Hite of Mahaska offered amendment H-8308, to the committee amendment H-8248, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Wolfe of Clinton and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8308, to the committee amendment H-8248, be adopted?" (S.F. 457)

The ayes were, 60:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Carlson	Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gassman	Gerhold
Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Isenhart	Jacobsen
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	ShIPLEY	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 36:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Brown-Powers	Cohoon
Derry	Donahue	Ehlert	Gaskill
Hunter	Jacoby	Konfrst	Kressig
Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher
Matson	McConkey	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Bennett	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	---------	--------	---------

Amendment H-8308, to the committee amendment H-8248, was adopted.

Holt of Crawford moved the adoption of the committee amendment H-8248, as amended.

The committee amendment H-8248, as amended, was adopted.

Holt of Crawford moved that the bill be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 457)

The ayes were, 77:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Carlson	Derry	Deyoe	Dolecheck
Donahue	Fisher	Forbes	Fry
Gaskill	Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.
Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa
Hein	Hinson	Hite	Holt
Huseman	Isehart	Jacobsen	Jacoby
James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kacena	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Konfrst	Kurth	Kurtz	Landon
Lohse	Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Osmundson	Ourth	Paustian	Prichard
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Smith, M.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Williams	Windschitl	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 19:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Brown-Powers	Cohoon
Ehlert	Hunter	Kressig	Lensing
Mascher	Meyer, B.	Oldson	Olson
Running-Marquardt	Smith, R.	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Winckler	Wolfe	

Absent or not voting, 4:

Bearinger	Bennett	Gaines	Worthan
-----------	---------	--------	---------

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 599, 2418, 2540** and **Senate File 457**.

The House stood at ease at 4:07 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 10:10 p.m., Wills of Dickinson in the chair.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 594, a bill for an act relating to limitations regarding the withdrawal of a life-sustaining procedure from a minor child.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, concurred in the House amendment to the Senate amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 737, a bill for an act relating to the regulation of persons involved with animals other than livestock and certain wild animals, providing for criminal offenses and court orders associated with animal mistreatment, and including penalties.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2197, a bill for an act relating to the medical residency training state matching grants program rural rotation requirement.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2389, a bill for an act relating to the rulemaking process for executive branch agencies and including transition provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2410, a bill for an act relating to the issuance of special senior statewide antlerless deer only crossbow deer hunting licenses.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2412, a bill for an act relating to the definition of public improvement for public construction bidding purposes.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2485, a bill for an act establishing an exception to the number of children allowed to be present for child care at any one time in a child development home under certain conditions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2528, a bill for an act relating to persons authorized to request assistance pursuant to the statewide mutual aid compact.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2556, a bill for an act relating to notification of the general assembly concerning certain state government leases and real property acquisitions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2585, a bill for an act relating to the terminology used in relation to the deaf and hard-of-hearing persons.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2627, a bill for an act relating to governmental and regulatory matters including the granting and renewal of licenses, certificates, and registrations, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 457, a bill for an act relating to surcharges added to criminal penalties, court funds, civil fees, misdemeanor and felony fines, and fines associated with scheduled violations.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, concurred in the House amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

Senate File 458, a bill for an act relating to debts for which the homestead is liable by providing that the homestead may be sold to satisfy debts secured by a mechanic's lien, including principal, interest, attorney fees, and costs, and including effective date provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended the House amendment, concurred in the House amendment as amended, and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

Senate File 2310, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa learning online initiative and to standards, requirements, and rules relating to online learning programs and coursework provided at the secondary school level.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

Windschitl of Harrison moved to suspend House Rule 75 regarding voting after midnight.

The motion prevailed.

SENATE AMENDMENTS CONSIDERED
House Concurred

Moore of Cass called up for consideration **Senate File 2310**, a bill for an act relating to the Iowa learning online initiative and to standards, requirements, and rules relating to online learning programs and coursework provided at the secondary school level, amended by the House, further amended by the Senate and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8313, to the House amendment.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8313, to the House amendment.

Moore of Cass moved that the bill, as amended by the House, further amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (S.F. 2310)

The ayes were, 95:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Jones	Judge	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Landon	Lensing	Lohse
Lundgren	Mascher	Matson	Maxwell
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.
Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen	Moore
Nielsen	Olson	Olson	Osmundson
Ourth	Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Salmon	Sexton	Shiple	Sieck
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Wills,	
		Presiding	

The nays were, none.

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kacena	Kressig
Worthan			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House Concurred

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie called up for consideration **House File 594**, a bill for an act relating to limitations regarding the withdrawal of a life-sustaining procedure from a minor child, amended by the Senate amendment H-8312.

Lundgren of Dubuque offered amendment H-8314, to the Senate amendment H-8312, filed by her from the floor.

B. Meyer of Polk rose on a point of order that amendment H-8314 was not germane, to the Senate amendment H-8312.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken and amendment H-8314 not germane, to the Senate amendment H-8312.

Lundgren of Dubuque asked for unanimous consent to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8314, to the Senate amendment H-8312.

Objection was raised.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved to suspend the rules to consider amendment H-8314, to the Senate amendment H-8312.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Wolfe of Clinton.

On the question "Shall the rules be suspended to consider amendment H-8314, to the Senate amendment H-8312?" (H.F. 594)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson

Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Paustian
Salmon	Sexton	Shipley	Sieck
Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach	Wills, Presiding

The nays were, 43:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Konfrst	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt
Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Wolfe	

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kacena	Kressig
Worthan			

The motion to suspend the rules prevailed.

Lundgren of Dubuque moved the adoption of amendment H-8314, to the Senate amendment H-8312.

Roll call was requested by Sunde of Polk and Steckman of Cerro Gordo.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8314, to the Senate amendment H-8312 be adopted?" (H.F. 594)

The ayes were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson

Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 42:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhart	Jacoby	James
Judge	Konfrst	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kacena	Kressig
Worthan			

Amendment H-8314, to the Senate amendment H-8312, was adopted.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8312, as amended.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8312, as amended.

B. Meyer of Polk moved that the title be renamed.

Roll call was requested by B. Meyer of Polk and Matson of Polk.

On the question "Shall the title be renamed?" (H.F. 594)

The ayes were, 41:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hunter
Isenhardt	Jacoby	James	Judge
Konfrst	Kurth	Kurtz	Lensing
Mascher	Matson	McConkey	McKean
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 54:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hall	Hanusa	Hein
Hinson	Hite	Holt	Huseman
Jacobsen	Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann
Kerr	Klein	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Maxwell	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kacena	Kressig
Worthan			

The motion to rename the title lost.

Jacobsen of Pottawattamie moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate, further amended and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 594)

The ayes were, 53:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson
Hagenow	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen
Jeneary	Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Landon	Lohse	Lundgren
Maxwell	McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wheeler	Windschitl	Zumbach
Wills, Presiding			

The nays were, 42:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bennett	Breckenridge
Brown-Powers	Cohoon	Derry	Donahue
Ehlert	Forbes	Gaskill	Hall
Hunter	Isenhardt	Jacoby	James
Judge	Konfrst	Kurth	Kurtz
Lensing	Mascher	Matson	McConkey
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson
Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Staed	Steckman	Sunde
Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams
Winckler	Wolfe		

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kacena	Kressig
Worthan			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House Concurred

Best of Carroll called up for consideration **House File 2485**, a bill for an act establishing an exception to the number of children allowed to be present for child care at any one time in a child development home under certain conditions, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8316.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8316.

Best of Carroll moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2485)

The ayes were, 94:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Bacon	Baxter
Bennett	Bergan	Best	Bloomingtondale
Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink	Brown-Powers
Carlson	Cohoon	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Donahue	Ehlert	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Grassley, Spkr.	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hall	Hanusa	Hein	Hinson
Hite	Holt	Hunter	Huseman
Isenhardt	Jacobsen	Jacoby	James
Jeneary	Judge	Kaufmann	Kerr
Klein	Konfrst	Kurth	Kurtz
Landon	Lensing	Lohse	Lundgren
Mascher	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Meyer, B.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Smith, M.
Smith, R.	Sorensen	Staed	Steckman
Sunde	Thede	Thompson	Thorup
Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wheeler	Wilburn
Williams	Winckler	Windschitl	Wolfe
Zumbach	Wills, Presiding		

The nays were, 1:

Jones

Absent or not voting, 5:

Bearinger	Gaines	Kacena	Kressig
Worthan			

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 594, 2485** and **Senate File 2310**.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Bennett of Linn	Gaines of Polk
Kacena of Woodbury	Kressig of Black Hawk
Worthan of Buena Vista	

The House stood at ease at 11:07 p.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 12:04 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Windschitl of Harrison moved to suspend House Rule 2, regarding convening on Sundays.

The motion prevailed.

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT OF
THE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND RULES

June 12, 2020

To: Administration and Rules Committee

From: Meghan Nelson, Chief Clerk

Pursuant to Senate Concurrent Resolution 1, duly adopted during the 87th General Assembly, the following is a list of changes for officers and employees of the House:

<u>Position</u>	<u>Name</u>	<u>Grade- and Step</u>	<u>Class of Appoint- ment</u>	<u>Effective Date</u>
Leg. Secretary	Grant E. Gale	15-1 to 17-1	S-O	01-17-20
Leg. Secretary	Beverly A. Burns	17-5 to 17-6	S-O	01-24-20
Leg. Secretary	Robert A. Christenson	15-2 to 15-3	S-O	01-24-20

<u>Position</u>	<u>Name</u>	<u>Grade- and Step</u>	<u>Class of Appoint- ment</u>	<u>Effective Date</u>
Leg. Secretary	Kerrigan L. Owens	17-1 to 17-2	S-O	01-24-20
Leg. Res. Analyst I	Alison R. Ver Schuer	29-8 to 32-7	P-FT	01-24-20
Leg. Res. Analyst II				
Leg. Secretary	Joshua M. Janes	16-1	S-O	02-03-20
Leg. Secretary	Andrea D. Gates	18-1	S-O	02-06-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Maria B. Sorensen	18-2		
Leg. Comm. Secretary		18-1 to 16-1	S-O	02-06-20
Leg. Secretary	Jule L. Reynolds	16-2 to 16-3	S-O	02-07-20
Leg. Secretary	Alexandra L. Cleverley	16-1	S-O	02-10-20
Leg. Secretary	Stephanie A. Philipps	15-1 to 16-7	S-O	02-10-20
Leg. Secretary	Danielle E. Heartsill	18-1 to 18-7	S-O	03-02-20
Leg. Secretary	Stacie L. Schmidt	15-1	S-O	03-02-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Paul D. Attema	17-1 18-7	S-O	03-02-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Benjamin R. Bouwkamp	17-1	S-O	03-09-20
Leg. Comm. Secretary	Paul D. Attema	18-7 18-8	S-O	04-03-20
Leg. Secretary	Sarah L. Bell	15-1	S-O	04-03-20
			15-2	
Leg. Secretary	Lydia R. Greene	16-1 to 16-2	S-O	04-03-20
Leg. Secretary	Drake J. Lohse	16-1 to 16-2	S-O	04-03-20
Leg. Secretary	Jill M. Morris	17-1 17-2	S-O	04-03-20
Leg. Secretary	Brenda R. Olson	15-4 to 15-5	S-O	04-03-20
Leg. Secretary	Katherine J. Simpson	17-1 to 17-2	S-O	04-03-20
Leg. Secretary	Maria B. Sorensen	16-1 to 16-2	S-O	04-03-20

SPONSOR ADDED

House File 2634 – Isenhart of Dubuque

PETITION FILED

The following petition was received and placed on file:

By Shipley of Van Buren, from Mayara Carneiro and similarly aggrieved citizens of the State of Iowa, “a formal complaint and protest against policy of the State of Iowa through the Cell Sitting Act.

RESOLUTIONS FILED

H.R. 111, by Isenhart, Kurtz, Kurth, Hunter, M. Smith, Mascher, Anderson, McKean, Steckman, B. Meyer, Cohoon, Forbes, Gaskill, Derry, Winckler, Lensing, Ehlert, Brown-Powers, Wessel-Kroeschell, Donahue, Sunde, Olson, Kressig, Abdul-Samad, Staed, Williams, Bennett, Jacoby, R. Smith, Nielsen, McConkey, James, Wilburn, Konfrst, Wolfe, and Matson, a resolution urging the Governor of Iowa to take all necessary actions for the State of Iowa to become a member of the United States Climate Alliance.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

H.R. 112, by Isenhart, Williams, Kurth, Gaskill, Thede, Bearinger, Steckman, Wilburn, McKean, Bennett, Kressig, Brown-Powers, Staed, Jacoby, Ehlert, McConkey, Cohoon, Winckler, Anderson, Mascher, and Donahue, a resolution encouraging state and local governments to increase the direct purchase of nutritious and healthy food from local and regional producers, including through Iowa’s regional food systems.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8307	H.F.	2572	Hunter of Polk
H-8308	S.F.	457	Hite of Mahaska
H-8309	H.F.	599	Senate amendment
H-8310	H.F.	2572	Kacena of Woodbury
H-8311	H.F.	2572	Hunter of Polk
H-8312	H.F.	594	Senate amendment
H-8313	S.F.	2310	Senate amendment
H-8314	H.F.	594	Lundgren of Dubuque
			Salmon of Black Hawk
			Upmeyer of Cerro Gordo
			Hinson of Linn
			Osmundson of Clayton
			Bloomington of Worth
			Brink of Mahaska

H-8315	H.F.	2556	Senate amendment
H-8316	H.F.	2485	Senate amendment

On motion by Windschitl of Harrison, the House adjourned at 12:05 a.m., until 10:00 a.m., Sunday, June 14, 2020.

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

One Hundred Fifty-fourth Calendar Day - Fifty-first Session Day

Hall of the House of Representatives
Des Moines, Iowa, Sunday, June 14, 2020

The House met pursuant to adjournment at 10:07 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

Prayer was offered by Fisher of Tama.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Speaker Grassley.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker: I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has on June 13, 2020, concurred in the House amendment to the Senate amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 594, a bill for an act relating to limitations regarding the withdrawal of a life-sustaining procedure from a minor child.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2238, a bill for an act relating to regulation of foods sold by minors.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, concurred in the House amendment to the Senate amendment and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the Senate was asked:

House File 2486, a bill for an act relating to the conduct of elections, including emergency powers, procedures relating to electors, and the use of a county seal on materials related to elections.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2641, a bill for an act relating to state taxation and related laws of the state, including the administration by the department of revenue of certain tax credits and refunds, income taxes, moneys and credits taxes, sales and use taxes, partnership and pass-through entity audits, and by modifying provisions relating to the reinstatement of business entities, the assessment and valuation of property, the Iowa reinvestment Act, port authorities, and animals and food, and providing penalties, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2642, a bill for an act relating to and making appropriations to state departments and agencies from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund and the technology reinvestment fund, and providing for related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

Also: That the Senate has on June 13, 2020, amended and passed the following bill in which the concurrence of the House is asked:

House File 2643, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

W. CHARLES SMITHSON, Secretary

RULE 67 INVOKED (Time Certain)

Windschitl of Harrison moved that a time certain be set for the close of debate and that the House act on the following questions and all amendments filed to the questions no later than 1:00 p.m. on Sunday, June 14, 2020 and then immediately proceed to closing remarks and final passage of House File 2556, House File 2641, House File 2642 and House File 2643.

The motion prevailed.

SENATE AMENDMENTS CONSIDERED

Mohr of Scott called up for consideration **House File 2643**, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, amended by the Senate.

The House stood at ease at 10:11 a.m., until the fall of the gavel.

The House resumed session at 11:21 a.m., Speaker Grassley in the chair.

The Journal of Saturday, June 13, 2020, was approved.

House Concurred

Bossman of Woodbury called up for consideration **House File 2642**, a bill for an act relating to and making appropriations to state departments and agencies from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund and the technology reinvestment fund, and providing for related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8318.

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8318.

Bossman of Woodbury moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2642)

The ayes were, 63:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Derry	Deyoe
Dolecheck	Fisher	Forbes	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Matson
Maxwell	McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell
Mohr	Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson
Paustian	Salmon	Sexton	Shipley
Sieck	Smith, R.	Sorensen	Sunde
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wheeler	Wilburn	Williams	Wills
Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 29:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Cphoon	Donahue
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	McConkey
Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson	Olson

Ourth	Prichard	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.
Staed	Steckman	Thede	Winckler
Wolfe			

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

House Concurred

Mohr of Scott called up for consideration **House File 2643**, a bill for an act relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, amended by the Senate amendment H-8317, previously deferred.

Hunter of Polk offered amendment H-8320, to the Senate amendment H-8317, filed by him from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Hunter of Polk and Abdul-Samad of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8320, to the Senate amendment H-8317 be adopted?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 40:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow

Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhart	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

Amendment H-8320, to the Senate amendment H-8317, lost.

Isenhart of Dubuque asked and received unanimous consent to withdraw amendment H-8321 to the Senate amendment H-8317 and amendment H-8322 to the Senate amendment H-8317, filed by him from the floor.

R. Smith of Black Hawk rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Mohr of Scott moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8317.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and Steckman of Cerro Gordo.

On the question "Shall the House concur with Senate amendment H-8317?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein

Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	ShIPLEY	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 41:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe
Zumbach			

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worhan

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8317.

Hunter of Polk moved that the title be renamed.

Roll call was requested by Hunter of Polk and Konfrst of Polk.

On the question "Shall the title be renamed?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 40:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker
			Grassley

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worhan

The motion to rename the title lost.

Mohr of Scott moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2643)

The ayes were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 41:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe
Zumbach			

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title was agreed to.

SENATE AMENDMENT CONSIDERED House Concurred

Hite of Mahaska called up for consideration **House File 2641**, a bill for an act relating to state taxation and related laws of the state, including the administration by the department of revenue of certain tax credits and refunds, income taxes, moneys and credits taxes, sales and use taxes, partnership and pass-through entity audits, and by modifying provisions relating to the reinstatement of business entities, the assessment and valuation of property, the Iowa reinvestment Act, port authorities, and animals and food, and providing penalties, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions, amended by the Senate amendment H-8319.

Nielsen of Johnson offered amendment H-8323, to the Senate amendment H-8319, filed by her from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Donahue of Linn and Abdul-Samad of Polk.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8323, to the Senate amendment H-8319, be adopted?" (H.F. 2641)

The ayes were, 41:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Salmon	Smith, M.	Smith, R.
Staed	Steckman	Sunde	Thede
Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn	Williams	Winckler
Wolfe			

The nays were, 51:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen	Thompson
Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler	Wills
Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worhan

Amendment H-8323, to the Senate amendment H-8319, lost.

Nielsen of Johnson offered amendment H-8324, to the Senate amendment H-8319, filed by her from the floor and moved its adoption.

Roll call was requested by Hunter of Polk and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall amendment H-8324, to the Senate amendment H-8319, be adopted?" (H.F. 2641)

The ayes were, 40:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
-------------	----------	--------------	--------------

Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

The nays were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

Amendment H-8324, to the Senate amendment H-8319, lost.

Hall of Woodbury rose on a point of order under Rule 10, decorum in debate.

The Speaker ruled the point well taken.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8319.

Roll call was requested by Hall of Woodbury and James of Dubuque.

On the question "Shall the House concur with the Senate amendment H-8319?" (H.F. 2641)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry

Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 40:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8319.

Hite of Mahaska moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2641)

The ayes were, 75:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossmann	Breckenridge	Brink
Brown-Powers	Carlson	Cohoon	Derry
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Donahue	Fisher
Forbes	Fry	Gaskill	Gassman
Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow	Hall
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jacoby

James	Jeneary	Jones	Judge
Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein	Konfrst
Kurth	Kurtz	Landon	Lohse
Lundgren	Matson	Maxwell	McConkey
McKean	Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr
Mommsen	Moore	Osmundson	Ourth
Paustian	Prichard	Salmon	Sexton
Shipley	Sieck	Smith, R.	Sorensen
Sunde	Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer
Wheeler	Williams	Wills	Windschitl
Wolfe	Zumbach	Speaker	
		Grassley	

The nays were, 17:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Hunter	Lensing
Mascher	Meyer, B.	Nielsen	Oldson
Olson	Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Staed
Steckman	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell	Wilburn
Winckler			

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

House Concurred

Deyoe of Story called up for consideration **House File 2556**, a bill for an act relating to notification of the general assembly concerning certain state government leases and real property acquisitions, amended by the Senate, and moved that the House concur in the Senate amendment H-8315.

Roll call was requested by Hunter of Polk and Donahue of Linn.

On the question "Shall the House concur with the Senate amendment H-8315?" (H.F. 2556)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingtondale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow

Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen
Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shipley	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 40:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhardt	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

The motion prevailed and the House concurred in the Senate amendment H-8315.

Deyoe of Story moved that the bill, as amended by the Senate and concurred in by the House, be read a last time now and placed upon its passage which motion prevailed and the bill was read a last time.

On the question "Shall the bill pass?" (H.F. 2556)

The ayes were, 52:

Bacon	Baxter	Bergan	Best
Bloomingdale	Bossman	Brink	Carlson
Deyoe	Dolecheck	Fisher	Fry
Gassman	Gerhold	Gustafson	Hagenow
Hanusa	Hein	Hinson	Hite
Holt	Huseman	Jacobsen	Jeneary
Jones	Kaufmann	Kerr	Klein
Landon	Lohse	Lundgren	Maxwell
Meyer, A.	Mitchell	Mohr	Mommsen

Moore	Osmundson	Paustian	Salmon
Sexton	Shiple	Sieck	Sorensen
Thompson	Thorup	Upmeyer	Wheeler
Wills	Windschitl	Zumbach	Speaker Grassley

The nays were, 40:

Abdul-Samad	Anderson	Breckenridge	Brown-Powers
Cohoon	Derry	Donahue	Forbes
Gaskill	Hall	Hunter	Jacoby
James	Judge	Konfrst	Kurth
Kurtz	Lensing	Mascher	Matson
McConkey	McKean	Meyer, B.	Nielsen
Oldson	Olson	Ourth	Prichard
Running-Marquardt	Smith, M.	Smith, R.	Staed
Steckman	Sunde	Thede	Wessel-Kroeschell
Wilburn	Williams	Winckler	Wolfe

Absent or not voting, 8:

Bearinger	Bennett	Ehlert	Gaines
Isenhart	Kacena	Kressig	Worthan

The bill having received a constitutional majority was declared to have passed the House and the title, as amended, was agreed to.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence was granted during voting as follows:

Bearinger of Fayette	Bennett of Linn
Ehlert of Linn	Gaines of Polk
Isenhart of Dubuque	Kacena of Woodbury
Kressig of Black Hawk	Worthan of Buena Vista

IMMEDIATE MESSAGES

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that the following bills be immediately messaged to the Senate: **House Files 2556, 2641, 2642 and 2643.**

ADOPTION OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 109

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of **House Concurrent Resolution 109**, a concurrent resolution to provide for adjournment sine die, and moved its adoption.

The motion prevailed and the resolution was adopted.

IMMEDIATE MESSAGE

Windschitl of Harrison asked and received unanimous consent that **House Concurrent Resolution 109** be immediately messaged to the Senate.

Remarks were given by Minority Leader Prichard, Speaker Grassley and Majority Leader Windschitl. (See Supplement — Pages 784 - 787)

RESOLUTION FILED

H.R. 113, by Grassley, Windschitl, Sexton, Jacobsen, Landon, Kerr, Hinson, Bergan, Osmundson, Sorensen, Thompson, Wheeler, Shipley, Mommsen, Holt, Lundgren, Hite, Brink, Deyoe, Best, Hein, Salmon, Lohse, Jones, Sieck, Huseman, Paustian, Fry, Baxter, Bacon, Kaufmann, Mohr, Hagenow, Upmeyer, Mitchell, Fisher, Zumbach, Moore, Bloomingdale, A. Meyer, Gustafson, Gerhold, Jeneary, Hanusa, Wills, Gassman, Bossman, Carlson, Dolecheck, Klein, Thorup, and Maxwell, a resolution recognizing the leadership of President Donald J. Trump and Governor Kim Reynolds during the COVID-19 pandemic; recommending targeted expenditures of the Coronavirus Relief Fund; and stating the intent of the House of Representatives to support affordable coverage for pre-existing health conditions, support efforts to protect Iowans from foreclosure and eviction due to the COVID-19 pandemic, support a strong retirement system to allow Iowans to retire with dignity, support secure and fair elections for Iowa citizens, and oppose efforts to defund and abolish law enforcement agencies throughout Iowa.

Laid over under **Rule 25**.

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8317	H.F.	2643	Senate amendment
H-8318	H.F.	2642	Senate amendment
H-8319	H.F.	2641	Senate amendment
H-8320	H.F.	2643	Hunter of Polk
H-8321	H.F.	2643	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8322	H.F.	2643	Isenhart of Dubuque
H-8323	H.F.	2641	Nielsen of Johnson
H-8324	H.F.	2641	Nielsen of Johnson

FINAL ADJOURNMENT

By virtue of House Concurrent Resolution 109, duly adopted, the day of Sunday, June 14, 2020, having arrived, the Speaker of the House of Representatives declared the 2020 Regular Session of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly adjourned sine die at 1:38 p.m.

SUPPLEMENT

The following reports and communications were received subsequent to final adjournment:

REMARKS BY MINORITY LEADER PRICHARD

(Given on June 14, 2020 — House Journal Page 782)

Good afternoon ladies and gentleman.

As we turn our thoughts and plans for heading home, I want to thank you all for your work for Iowans. You have been leaders in your districts in a time of crisis.

First off, thank you to all the legislative staff, including LSA, clerks, pages, and doormen for putting in countless hours to make our important work possible. A big thank you to the democratic leader's staff, Jake and Dean, and the caucus staff, Joe, Dave, Brian, Joe, Kelsey, Alison, Jessica, Bill, and Rachelle.

At the end of a year that has led down a path no one could have predicted, we should ask ourselves, did we do right by Iowans in these unprecedented times?

In some ways, we did.

This body came together to make a united statement in taking the first step for racial justice.

My thanks to the Legislative Black Caucus for your leadership and tireless efforts in the fight for justice. In addition to the thousands of Iowans who spent day after day demanding change from us, the bi-partisan legislation would not have passed a few days ago without the years of work and countless conversations you have had with colleagues in this chamber that built trust and led to a better understanding of the challenges you face every day.

The bill we passed was long overdue. We know difficult conversations are ahead. We pledge to listen and stand with you.

Some have expressed surprise that the leaders of both parties co-sponsored a bill, but it should surprise no one.

We all support justice and we should all strive for it. It should not be so rare that we do work together.

As we return home, be safe, because the threat from COVID is not over.

As Democrats, we proposed several ideas that struck the delicate balance between keeping Iowans healthy and getting Iowans back to work. There is more we could have done during this COVID session to keep workers safe, make sure healthcare is affordable and accessible, gives businesses the tools they need to be successful, and gives every child a world class education in a safe environment.

Instead of working on COVID relief together, the majority party passed legislation in the closing hours of session to stop Iowans from voting and passed more restrictions on a woman's right to make her own health decisions.

While we should have worked together to do more for COVID relief, Democrats will keep listening and working to help our communities recover.

As I close, I leave you with these thoughts.

REMARKS BY SPEAKER GRASSLEY
(Given on June 14, 2020 — House Journal Page 782)

Ladies and gentlemen of the House...

I want to go on record and say that this is exactly how I predicted my first session as House Speaker would go.

In all seriousness, I never would have expected a global public health pandemic to derail our session for two and a half months.

The COVID-19 outbreak is something that has affected each of us and every Iowan, whether it's due to losing a loved one to the disease or finding themselves unemployed and financially insecure.

The first half of 2020 has truly been unprecedented.

It's in these times of uncertainty that it becomes clear that strong leadership and the ability to adapt are vitally important.

House Republicans came prepared to address a number of issues important to Iowans this session and were quick to react when events around us were rapidly changing.

When we first gaveled in back in January, I laid out some of the priorities that House Republicans wanted to focus on this year:

- Making child care more affordable and accessible for Iowa families
- Expanding high-speed broadband to underserved areas
- Ensuring our communities are able to make long-term investments in emergency medical services

These issues were already vital for the future success of our state, but their importance has clearly been amplified in the age of the COVID pandemic.

Iowans deserve access to safe and affordable child care.

Iowans need a reliable internet connection to make things like teleworking more seamless.

Iowans require prompt medical attention when faced with an emergency.

While we didn't reach the finish line with all of these proposals, we made progress and will continue to advance policies that prioritize our families, strengthen our workforce, and meet the needs of Iowans.

I am proud that the Republican House Majority is continuing the strong budget leadership that Iowans have come to expect from their state government.

Once again, House Republicans have enacted a cautious and conservative state budget that invests in priorities while respecting the hard-working taxpayers.

While the COVID pandemic has strained other state budgets, resulting in cuts to key programs like K-12 education, health care, and worker training ... Iowa is in good shape because of the forward-looking action we have taken in the past and we will continue to be in a strong position moving forward.

But there are some issues that we weren't anticipating that I'm proud that this body was able to adapt and address.

Throughout the public health pandemic, the lives of Iowa families and small business owners were turned upside down.

Iowans did their part by staying home.

Health care heroes did their part by working countless hours to keep us healthy.

Business owners did their part by shutting their doors, some of them for good.

Now is the time to put our state on the roadmap to recovery.

As we begin to safely reopen our communities and our economy, we have to make sure that those folks who have been responsible and followed public health guidelines are protected from frivolous lawsuits.

That includes:

- Front-line health care workers who were simply doing their jobs to keep Iowans safe and healthy,
- Responsible business owners, schools, churches, and others who took precautions to protect their workers and customers,
- And Everyday Iowans and businesses who helped produce and supply PPE, disinfectant, and cleaning supplies

These Iowans should be protected for their heroism, selflessness, and for doing the right thing during an unprecedented and rapidly evolving situation. That's what our COVID liability legislation is about.

But if there were businesses who failed to keep their workers safe, they can and should be held accountable for their actions. Our legislation ensures that.

I am pleased that we were able to find common ground and take a step forward on the issue of racial justice and reform.

We may not have totally seen eye to eye at the start, but through listening and mutual respect for one another, we were able to have a productive dialog and were able to come together.

This is the type of leadership that Iowans expect from their elected officials.

I want to sincerely thank Representative Abdul-Samad and Representative Smith for starting the conversation and working to advance real solutions that will make a difference. Thanks to both of you for your hard work and dedication.

I look forward to continuing to work on these issues alongside you both in future sessions.

This has been one of the most unprecedented and historic legislative sessions that the State of Iowa has ever seen.

I want to thank everyone for their hard work this session.

We made great progress this session and I look forward to what we'll accomplish when we return next January to address the priorities of Iowans.

Now, let's get back to our districts, our constituents, and most importantly, our families.

Thank you.

EXPLANATIONS OF VOTE

On June 14, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 2641 – “aye”

Amendment H–8324 to Senate amendment H–8319 (H.F. 2641) – “aye”

Senate amendment H–8319 (H.F. 2641) – “nay”

House File 2642 – “nay”

House File 2643 – “nay”

Amendment H–8320 to Senate amendment H–8317 (H.F. 2643) – “aye”

Senate amendment H–8317 (H.F. 2643) – “nay”

House File 2556 – “nay”

Senate amendment H–8315 (H.F. 2556) – “nay”

Isenhart of Dubuque

On June 13, 2020, I was necessarily absent during voting in the House chamber. Had I been present, I would have voted as follows:

House File 594 – “nay”

Amendment H–8314 to Senate amendment H–8312 (H.F. 594) – “nay”

House File 2485 – “aye”

Senate File 2310 – “aye”

Also: On June 14, 2020:

House File 2641 – “aye”

Amendment H–8323 to Senate amendment H–8319 (H.F. 2641) – “aye”

Amendment H–8324 to Senate amendment H–8319 (H.F. 2641) – “aye”

Senate amendment H–8319 (H.F. 2641) – “nay”

House File 2642 – “aye”

House File 2643 – “aye”

Amendment H–8320 to Senate amendment H–8317 (H.F. 2643) – “aye”

Senate amendment H–8317 (H.F. 2643) – “nay”

House File 2556 – “nay”

Senate amendment H–8315 (H.F. 2556) – “nay”

Kressig of Black Hawk

BILLS ENROLLED, SIGNED AND SENT TO GOVERNOR

The Chief Clerk of the House submitted the following report:

Mr. Speaker: The Chief Clerk of the House respectfully reports that the following bills have been examined and found correctly enrolled, signed by the Speaker of the House and the President of the Senate, and presented to the Governor for approval on this 16th day of June, 2020: House Files 310, 716, 717, 2220, 2236, 2269, 2310, 2312, 2340, 2360, 2362, 2382, 2402, 2411, 2445, 2455, 2474, 2481, 2502, 2535, 2536, 2554, 2565, 2581, 2589, 2623.

Also: On this 24th day of June, 2020: House Files 594, 599, 684, 737, 760, 2197, 2221, 2238, 2259, 2359, 2363, 2364, 2365, 2372, 2389, 2410, 2412, 2418, 2452, 2485, 2486, 2528, 2540, 2556, 2561, 2585, 2627, 2629, 2641, 2642, 2643 and 2644.

MEGHAN NELSON
Chief Clerk of the House

BILLS SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR

A communication was received from the Governor announcing that the following bills were approved and transmitted to the Secretary of State:

House File 310, an Act relating to the practice of optometry. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 594, an Act relating to medical procedures including abortion and limitations regarding the withdrawal of a life-sustaining procedure from a minor child. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 599, an Act relating to hunting by persons under the age of sixteen. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 684, an Act providing limited immunity from certain criminal offenses and prohibiting certain disciplinary sanctions for persons under twenty-one years of age who report, seek, or require emergency assistance for alcohol overdoses, and modifying penalties. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 716, an Act relating to firearms requirements for hunting deer. Approved June 18, 2020.

House File 717, an Act concerning appeal rights relating to veterans preference. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 737, an Act relating to the regulation of persons involved with animals other than livestock and certain wild animals, providing for criminal offenses and court orders associated with animal mistreatment, and including penalties. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 760, an Act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging. Approved June 24, 2020.

House File 2197, an Act relating to the medical residency training state matching grants program rural rotation requirement. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2220, an Act relating to the definition of young adult for purposes of participation in the preparation for adult living program. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2221, an Act relating to the licensed health professional member of a local board of health. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2236, an Act concerning fees charged for examining and copying public records relating to claims for veterans benefits. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2238, an Act relating to regulation of foods sold by minors. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2259, an Act relating to human trafficking prevention training and reporting for employees of lodging providers in the state. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 2269, an Act relating to the Medicaid home and community-based services elderly waiver monthly budget maximum. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2310, an Act removing the requirement to obtain a permit for vehicles or combinations of vehicles of excessive size transporting divisible loads of hay, straw, stover, or bagged livestock bedding that meet certain width, height, and length requirements. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2312, an Act relating to certificate of eligibility affidavits for admission to the veterans home. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2340, an Act relating to the Iowa educational savings plan trust by permitting the use of funds for certain beneficiaries to attend out-of-state elementary or secondary schools, and including retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 2359, an Act relating to the reporting of certain assessment scores by approved practitioner preparation programs. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2360, a bill for an act regarding the expiration of driver's licenses of persons who are age seventy-eight or over and including effective date provisions. Approved June 18, 2020.

House File 2362, an Act relating to certain appeals by nonprofit organizations concerning reimbursement of the department of workforce development for the cost of unemployment benefits. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2363, an Act relating to unemployment insurance contribution rates for certain landscaping employers. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2364, an Act relating to injunctions issued to employers for certain violations of the state unemployment insurance law. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2365, an Act relating to certain notifications issued by the department of workforce development concerning claims for unemployment benefits and the voluntary shared work program, and including applicability provisions. Approved June, 25, 2020.

House File 2372, an Act regarding driver's licenses, including the exemption of certain farmers and hired help operating a special truck from the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur and the optional inclusion of a mark reflecting autism spectrum disorder status on a person's driver's license. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2382, an Act relating to confidentiality concerning individuals allowed a disabled veteran tax credit and military tax exemption. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2389, an Act relating to the rulemaking process for executive branch agencies and including transition provisions. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2402, an Act relating to the resignations of registered agents serving certain business entities. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2410, an Act relating to the issuance of special senior statewide antlerless deer only crossbow deer hunting licenses. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2411, an Act relating to participation in the sobriety and drug monitoring program. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2412, an Act relating to the definition of public improvement for public construction bidding purposes. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2418, an Act relating to certain information in proceedings before the director of the department of education and the board of educational examiners, certain requests made to the school budget review committee, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2445, an Act relating to the privacy of a victim of a sex offense in a criminal or civil proceeding. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2452, an Act relating to the disposal and acquisition of city water utilities, including at-risk systems. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2455, an Act allowing the use of a leashed dog to track and retrieve a wounded deer and providing a penalty. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2474, an Act relating to the confidentiality of information filed with the court to secure an arrest warrant. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2481, an Act relating to the validity of certificates of the treasurer. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2485, an Act establishing an exception to the number of children allowed to be present for child care at any one time in a child development home under certain conditions. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2486, an Act relating to the conduct of elections, including emergency powers, procedures relating to electors, and the use of a county seal on materials related to elections. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2502, an Act relating to firearms and weapons, including the storage, carrying, possession, or transportation of weapons and the establishment, use, and maintenance of shooting ranges. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2528, an Act relating to persons authorized to request assistance pursuant to the statewide mutual aid compact. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2535, an Act relating to nonsubstantive Code corrections, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2536, an Act relating to statutory corrections which may adjust language to reflect current practices, insert earlier omissions, delete redundancies and inaccuracies, delete temporary language, resolve inconsistencies and conflicts, update ongoing provisions, or remove ambiguities, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2540, an Act concerning alcoholic beverage control, establishing a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit, providing for alcoholic beverages sales, and including effective date provisions. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 2554, an Act relating to the offense of continuous sexual abuse of a child and providing penalties. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 2561, an Act relating to protections for certain potential recipients of anatomical gifts. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2565, an Act relating to the setoff procedures used by public agencies and including effective date provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2581, an Act relating to the regulation of hemp, including by providing for testing methods and the regulation of hemp products, providing penalties, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2585, an Act relating to the terminology used in relation to the deaf and hard-of-hearing persons. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2589, an Act concerning the medical cannabidiol Act and marijuana. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 2623, an Act relating to gambling licensees concerning setoff requirements on certain winnings on wagers, payments by credit card, and qualified sponsoring organizations. Approved June 17, 2020.

House File 2627, an Act relating to governmental and regulatory matters including the granting and renewal of licenses, certificates, and registrations, and including effective date provisions. Approved June 25, 2020.

House File 2629, an Act relating to the future ready Iowa Act and other efforts to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including provisions relating to apprenticeship training programs, a child care challenge program for working Iowans, computer science educational standards, a scholarship program, and the senior year plus program, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 2641, an Act relating to state taxation and related laws of the state, including the administration by the department of revenue of certain tax credits and refunds, income taxes, moneys and credits taxes, sales and use taxes, partnership and pass-through entity audits, and by modifying provisions relating to the reinstatement of business entities, the assessment and valuation of property, the Iowa reinvestment Act, short-term rentals, special registration plates, and animals and food, and providing penalties, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 29, 2020.

House File 2642, an Act relating to and making appropriations to state departments and agencies from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund and the technology reinvestment fund, and providing for related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 30, 2020.

House File 2644, an Act relating to transportation and other infrastructure-related appropriations to the department of transportation, including allocation and use of moneys from the road use tax fund and the primary road fund and other related provisions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 30, 2020.

Senate File 272, an Act relating to the provision of debt management services in connection with educational loans, and making penalties applicable. Approved June 18, 2020.

Senate File 280, an Act relating to the residency of members of the armed forces stationed at specified military installations for purposes of hunting, fishing, and trapping privileges. Approved June 25, 2020.

Senate File 388, an Act relating to the Iowa medal of honor highway, and including applicability provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 457, an Act relating to the criminal and juvenile justice system by modifying criminal penalties, surcharges, fines, fees, and costs, creating and modifying funds, making appropriations and allocating revenues, modifying installment agreements, modifying civil claims for reimbursement, restitution, and collection of court debt, and providing effective date provisions. Approved June 25, 2020.

Senate File 458, an Act relating to debts for which the homestead is liable by providing that the homestead may be sold to satisfy debts secured by a mechanic's lien, including principal, interest, attorney fees, and costs, and including effective date provisions. Approved June 25, 2020.

Senate File 526, an Act creating a blue alert program within the department of public safety for the apprehension of a person suspected of killing or seriously injuring a peace officer in the line of duty or due to safety concerns for a peace officer missing while on duty. Approved June 29, 2020.

Senate File 620, an Act relating to the procedure for disposal of certain city utilities by sale. Approved June 18, 2020.

Senate File 2097, an Act relating to the criminal offense of indecent exposure, providing penalties, and making penalties applicable. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2182, an Act relating to the state public defender pilot project and legal representation in child welfare cases. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2188, an Act concerning federal financial assistance funding for hazard mitigation. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2191, an Act relating to the payment of required medical aid provided to prisoners. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2195, an Act providing an exception to the Iowa state elevator code for certain multi-story commercial buildings in specified circumstances. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2225, an Act relating to the criminal offense of theft in the third degree and making penalties applicable. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2232, an Act relating to the Iowa trust code, including the creation of directed trusts, the transfer of trust assets into other trusts, and requirements related to notices to beneficiaries. Approved June 25, 2020.

Senate File 2261, an Act relating to the provision of behavioral health services including via telehealth in a school setting. Approved June 29, 2020.

Senate File 2268, an Act establishing the minimum age relative to various activities relating to tobacco, tobacco products, alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes, making penalties applicable, and including effective date provisions. Approved June 29, 2020.

Senate File 2284, an Act relating to matters involving the state board of regents and the institutions the state board of regents governs, and including retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2296, an Act regarding persons who are deemed independent contractors when performing services while operating certain vehicles. Approved June 18, 2020.

Senate File 2300, an Act relating to the transfer of real estate as part of the administration of a decedent's estate, guardianship, conservatorship, or trust, and including applicability provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2310, A bill for an act relating to educational instructional requirements and funding flexibility and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 29, 2020.

Senate File 2323, an Act relating to the initial care plan for minor and adult guardianships and the initial plan and inventory for adult conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2338, an Act relating to civil actions, including recoverable damages for medical expenses, evidence offered to prove past medical expenses, and civil actions related to the novel coronavirus, and including retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 18, 2020.

Senate File 2356, an Act relating to the education of students with characteristics of dyslexia and to the preparation and licensure of practitioners for such instruction, and establishing an Iowa dyslexia board. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2360, A bill for an act relating to classroom management and related practitioner preparation procedures for reporting classroom violence and assaults, to corporal punishment, establishing a grant program and fund for creation of therapeutic classrooms, providing claims reimbursement to school districts for costs relating to therapeutic classrooms, making appropriations, and including effective date provisions. Approved June 29, 2020.

Senate File 2373, an Act modifying provisions relating to telecommunicators. Approved June 25, 2020.

Senate File 2398, an Act establishing a rural veterinarian loan repayment program for veterinary students and certain licensed veterinarians and a rural veterinary care trust fund, and making appropriations. Approved June 17, 2020.

Senate File 2400, an Act relating to broadband service, including matters under the purview of the office of the chief information officer, the empower rural Iowa broadband grant fund, and certain broadband infrastructure tax exemptions, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions. Approved June 25, 2020.

Senate File 2403, an Act relating to the excise taxes on motor fuel and certain special fuel, and including applicability provisions. Approved June 30, 2020.

GOVERNOR'S ITEM VETO MESSAGE

HOUSE FILE 2643

June 30, 2020

The Honorable Paul Pate
Secretary of State of Iowa
State Capitol Building
Des Moines, Iowa 50319

Dear Mr. Secretary:

I hereby transmit House File 2643, an Act relating to state and local finances by making appropriations, providing for legal and regulatory responsibilities, providing for other properly related matters, and including effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.

House File 2643 is approved on this date with the exception of section 57 and 91.

Section 57 would have amended Iowa law governing the funding of the Iowa Veterans Home to limit the amount of revenues or appropriation that may carry forward at the close of a fiscal year to \$800,000. Because the Iowa Veterans Home's state appropriation is less than eight percent of its total budget and the vast majority of that budget comes from revenues paid from a variety of sources, this section could have significant unintended consequences. I look forward to working with the legislature to consider alternative methods of addressing its concerns in a manner that better recognizes the unique funding and budgetary issues of the Iowa Veterans Home.

Section 91 would have authorized the Iowa Economic Development Authority to assist broadband providers in obtaining federal funds and other funds to improve broadband infrastructure. While I strongly support assisting providers in improving broadband infrastructure, Iowa's Office of the Chief Information Officer coordinates our broadband initiatives and has the best expertise to assist in these efforts. Introducing another governmental entity is unnecessary and could be counterproductive.

For these reasons, I respectfully disapprove House File 2643 in part, only as specified above, in accordance with Article III, Section 16, of the Constitution of the State of Iowa. The remainder of House File 2643 not disapproved as stated herein is approved on this date.

Sincerely,

Kim Reynolds
Governor of Iowa

GOVERNOR'S VETO MESSAGE

HOUSE FILE 2556

June 30, 2020

The Honorable Paul Pate
Secretary of State of Iowa
State Capitol
Des Moines, Iowa 50319

Dear Mr. Secretary:

I hereby transmit House File 2556, an Act concerning governmental real property and official publications.

House File 2556 contains a number of provisions with which I have no objection. But Division 11 of the bill imposes new requirements on local governmental bodies and the State of Iowa prohibiting the sale of real property unless it is sold "to the highest responsive, responsible bidder" or the governmental body, by a two-thirds vote, approves a different bidder for "good cause" or a different process.

I understand the concern that a governmental body may occasionally make a decision to sell property with which many of its constituents disagree. But I am not convinced that this bill is the appropriate solution.

Governmental bodies may reasonably conclude that factors other than price -such as a potential developer's jobs and economic impact, environmental cleanup, or improvements to the property and infrastructure — should determine to whom a property should be sold. And imposing a two-thirds vote requirement to make this choice would unnecessarily complicate a local government's decision making and could unintentionally hurt redevelopment and economic growth efforts in our state. I am also concerned that the new language lacks clarity and could lead to litigation, confusion, and unintended consequences surrounding governmental real estate transactions even where a unanimous vote approves of the transaction.

For these reasons, I respectfully disapprove of House File 2556 in its entirety.

Sincerely,

Kim Reynolds
Governor of Iowa

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED

The following communications were received in the office of the Chief Clerk and placed on file in the Legislative Services Agency: To view reports in full, click [here](#).

BOARD OF REGENTS

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Transfer of Funds Regional Study Centers Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 262.28.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Use of Medical Cannabidiol Report, pursuant to Chapter 1125.10, 2014 Iowa Acts.

CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Technology Upgrades or Enhancements Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8B.9.

DEPARTMENT FOR THE BLIND

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

Joint Investment Trust Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 12B.10A.

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Flood Recovery Fund Report, pursuant to Chapter 1001.3, 2020 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Medicaid Managed Care Oversight Report, pursuant to Chapter 1139.94, 2016 Iowa Acts.

Medical Assistance Act Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249A.4.

Glenwood Resource Center Report, pursuant to Chapter 1001.1, 2020 Iowa Acts.

Preferred Drug List Program Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249A.20A.

Family Investment Program Transfer Report, pursuant to Chapter 85.9, 2019 Iowa Acts.
Annual Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 217.21.

Nursing Facility Qualities Assurance Assessment Fee Usage Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 249L.4.

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.
Juvenile Justice Planning Advisory Council Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 476.66.

DEPARTMENT OF INSPECTION AND APPEALS

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT

Block Grants Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.22.
Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.
Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC DEFENSE

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Funds Transfer Report, pursuant to Chapter 174.3, 2017 Iowa Acts.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.
Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

GOVERNOR AND LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN

Long Term Care Ombudsman Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 231.42.

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

Judicial Review Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 625.29.

PUBLIC INFORMATION BOARD

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

STATE PUBLIC DEFENDER

Training and Technology Expenditures Report, pursuant to Iowa Code section 8.62.

RETIRING MEMBERS

The following retiring members were presented plaques in appreciation of their service and dedication to the Iowa House of Representatives.

Bruce Bearinger	District 64
Gary Carlson	District 91
Tedd Gassman	District 7
Chris Hagenow	District 19
Mary Ann Hanusa	District 16
Ashley Hinson	District 67
Dan Huseman	District 3
Tim Kacena	District 14
Vicki Lensing	District 85
Mark Smith	District 71
Linda Upmeyer	District 54
Louis Zumbach	District 95

CERTIFICATES TO HOUSE PAGES

Certificates of excellence for serving with honor and distinction as a House Page during the Second Regular Session of the Eighty-eighth General Assembly were presented to the House Pages from Speaker Grassley, Majority Leader Windschitl and Minority Leader Prichard.

Yasmin Aguilar-Rosales	Jack Ball
Olivia Brown	Zoe Card
Avery Denhartog	Mason Donelson
Audrey Holtkamp	Shay Huss
Benton Renaud	Holden Sisco
Ellie Smith	Jenna Smyth
Allison Walker	Blaine Atkins
Shea Whaley	

AMENDMENTS FILED

H-8001

- 1 Amend Senate File 280, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 2, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
- 3 2. Page 1, line 16, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

H-8002

- 1 Amend House File 321 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 1, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
- 3 2. Page 1, line 7, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
- 4 3. Page 1, line 23, by striking <engaging> and inserting
- 5 <who is engaged primarily>
- 6 4. Page 4, line 8, by striking <engaging> and inserting <who
- 7 is engaged primarily>

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

H-8003

- 1 Amend Senate File 316, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 16, after <shall> by inserting <review
- 3 special education funding distribution; shall>
- 4 2. Page 1, line 23, after <of education,> by inserting <the
- 5 board of educational examiners, institutions of higher learning
- 6 governed by the state board of regents,>
- 7 3. Page 1, line 24, after <teachers,> by inserting <early
- 8 childhood education teachers,>
- 9 4. Page 1, line 25, after <teachers,> by inserting
- 10 <professional educators of Iowa,>

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

H-8004

- 1 Amend House File 2245 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 2, lines 3 and 4, by striking <fifty thousand> and
- 3 inserting <fifty-three thousand eighty-eight>

DOLECHECK of Ringgold

H-8005

- 1 Amend the Committee amendment, H-8003, to Senate File 316,
- 2 as passed by the Senate, as follows:
- 3 1. Page 1, line 10, by striking <Iowa,> and inserting <Iowa,

4 the Iowa state education association,>

R. SMITH of Black Hawk

H-8006

1 Amend House File 2243 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, lines 9 and 10, by striking <two and one-half>

3 and inserting <three>

4 2. Page 1, lines 23 and 24, by striking <two and one-half>

5 and inserting <three>

R. SMITH of Black Hawk

ANDERSON of Polk

BENNETT of Linn

BROWN-POWERS of Black Hawk

DERRY of Polk

EHLERT of Linn

GAINES of Polk

HALL of Woodbury

WILLIAMS of Black Hawk

WOLFE of Clinton

JACOBY of Johnson

JUDGE of Dallas

KONFRST of Polk

KURTH of Scott

LENSING of Johnson

MATSON of Polk

McKEAN of Jones

NIELSEN of Johnson

OLSON of Polk

PRICHARD of Floyd

M. SMITH of Marshall

STECKMAN of Cerro Gordo

THEDE of Scott

WILBURN of Story

ABDUL-SAMAD of Polk

BEARINGER of Fayette

BRECKENRIDGE of Jasper

COHOON of Des Moines

DONAHUE of Linn

FORBES of Polk

GASKILL of Wapello

HUNTER of Polk

WINCKLER of Scott

ISENHART of Dubuque

JAMES of Dubuque

KACENA of Woodbury

KRESSIG of Black Hawk

KURTZ of Lee

MASCHER of Johnson

McCONKEY of Pottawattamie

B. MEYER of Polk

OLDSON of Polk

OURTH of Warren

RUNNING-MARQUARDT of Linn

STAED of Linn

SUNDE of Polk

WESSEL-KROESCHELL of Story

H-8007

1 Amend Senate File 2144, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

2 1. Page 1, line 31, by striking <\$20,000,000> and inserting

3 <\$21,000,000>

McCONKEY of Pottawattamie

SIECK of Mills

H-8008

1 Amend Senate File 2144, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 13 by inserting:

3 <As a condition of receiving the moneys appropriated in this

4 section, the department of human services shall submit reports

5 to the chairpersons and ranking members of the senate and house
 6 committees on human resources and to the legislative services
 7 agency detailing the manner in which the appropriated moneys
 8 are being used and containing a status report on any project
 9 to which the moneys have been allocated. The department shall
 10 submit the first report thirty days after the effective date
 11 of this division of this Act, and shall submit an additional
 12 report every thirty days thereafter until June 30, 2020.>

13 2. Page 1, line 31, by striking <\$20,000,000> and inserting
 14 <\$21,003,186>

15 3. Page 1, after line 31 by inserting:
 16 <As a condition of receiving the moneys appropriated in this
 17 section, the department of homeland security and emergency
 18 management, in coordination with the flood mitigation board,
 19 shall submit reports to the chairpersons and ranking members
 20 of the senate and house committees on appropriations and to
 21 the legislative services agency detailing the amount of the
 22 appropriated moneys that have been used and containing a status
 23 report on any project to which the moneys have been allocated.
 24 The department shall submit the first report thirty days after
 25 the effective date of this division of this Act, and shall
 26 submit an additional report every thirty days thereafter until
 27 June 30, 2020.>

SIECK of Mills
 McCONKEY of Pottawattamie
 HANUSA of Pottawattamie
 JACOBSEN of Pottawattamie
 MOHR of Scott

H-8009

1 Amend House File 2245 as follows:

2 1. By striking page 1, line 27, through page 2, line 11, and
 3 inserting:

4 <Sec. ____. Section 257.16C, subsection 3, paragraph d,
 5 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

6 (2) For ~~each the~~ fiscal year beginning ~~on or after~~ July
 7 1, 2020, there is appropriated from the general fund of the
 8 state to the department of management for deposit in the
 9 transportation equity fund the sum of the following, or so much
 10 thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes of this
 11 section:

12 (a) The amount appropriated to the transportation equity
 13 fund under this paragraph for the immediately preceding fiscal
 14 year.

15 (b) The product of the amount determined under subparagraph
 16 division (a) multiplied by the categorical percent of growth
 17 under section 257.8, subsection 2, for the budget year
 18 beginning on the same date of the fiscal year for which the
 19 appropriation is made.

20 (c) Seven million two hundred fifty-three thousand

21 eighty-eight dollars.

22 Sec. __. Section 257.16C, subsection 3, paragraph d, Code
23 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
24 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (3) For each fiscal year beginning on
25 or after July 1, 2021, there is appropriated from the general
26 fund of the state to the department of management for deposit
27 in the transportation equity fund the sum of the following, or
28 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes of
29 this section:>

30 2. By renumbering as necessary.

DOLECHECK of Ringgold

H-8010

1 Amend House File 2243 as follows:

- 2 1. Page 1, line 10, by striking <one-half> and inserting
- 3 <one-tenth>
- 4 2. Page 1, line 24, by striking <one-half> and inserting
- 5 <one-tenth>

DOLECHECK of Ringgold

H-8011

1 Amend Senate File 2142, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

- 2 1. Page 1, line 10, by striking <one-tenth> and inserting
- 3 <one-half>
- 4 2. Page 1, line 24, by striking <one-tenth> and inserting
- 5 <one-half>

DOLECHECK of Ringgold

H-8012

1 Amend the amendment, H-8008, to Senate File 2144, as passed
2 by the Senate, as follows:

- 3 1. Page 1, after line 12 by inserting:
- 4 <__. Page 1, after line 22 by inserting:
- 5 <Sec. __. Section 418.16, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
- 6 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
- 7 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (3) Whether the project includes
- 8 components enhancing the project's current or future
- 9 qualification for the pre-disaster hazard mitigation assistance
- 10 grant program administered by the federal emergency management
- 11 agency pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §5133.>>
- 12 2. Page 1, after line 27 by inserting:
- 13 <__. Page 1, after line 33 by inserting:
- 14 <Sec. __. APPLICABILITY. The following applies to project
- 15 applications reviewed by the flood mitigation board pursuant
- 16 to section 418.16, subsection 4, as amended by this division
- 17 of this Act, on or after the effective date of this division of

18 this Act:

- 19 The section of this division of this Act enacting section
 20 418.16, subsection 4, paragraph a, subparagraph (3).>
 21 _____. Title page, line 3, after <date> by inserting <and
 22 applicability>>
 23 3. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8013

- 1 Amend Senate File 2164, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 26 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. _____. Section 257.16C, subsection 2, paragraph d, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 d. A school district's transportation cost per pupil
 6 shall be determined by dividing the school district's actual
 7 transportation cost for all children entitled to transportation
 8 under section 285.1, subsection 1, paragraph "a", subparagraph
 9 (1) or (2), and transported in all school buses for a school
 10 year pursuant to section 285.1, subsection 12, less the amount
 11 received for transporting nonpublic school pupils under section
 12 285.1, by the district's actual enrollment for the school year,
 13 excluding the shared-time enrollment for the school year as
 14 defined in section 257.6.>
 15 2. By renumbering as necessary.

GASSMAN of Winnebago

H-8014

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8011, to Senate File 2142, as passed
 2 by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting:
 4 <_____. Page 1, lines 9 and 10, by striking <two and
 5 one-tenth> and inserting <three>
 6 _____. Page 1, lines 23 and 24, by striking <two and
 7 one-tenth> and inserting <three>>
 8 2. By renumbering as necessary.

R. SMITH of Black Hawk
 WINCKLER of Scott

H-8015

- 1 Amend House File 2313 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 14, by striking <or air forces> and
 3 inserting <~~or~~ air, or space forces,>

HAGENOW of Dallas

H-8016

- 1 Amend House File 2138 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 26, after <pay> by inserting <per
3 prescription filled>
- 4 2. Page 1, line 27, by striking <for a thirty-day> and
5 inserting <for up to a thirty-one day>

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8017

- 1 Amend House File 2097 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
3 <Section 1. SHORT TITLE. This Act shall be known as
4 “*Adalynn’s Law*”.>
- 5 2. By renumbering as necessary.

STAED of Linn

H-8018

- 1 Amend House File 2213 as follows:
- 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:
4 <Section 1. INTERIM STUDY COMMITTEE — EVALUATION OF FIFTH
5 GENERATION WIRELESS NETWORK TECHNOLOGY. The legislative
6 council is requested to establish an interim study committee
7 during the 2020 legislative interim to evaluate and discuss
8 issues relating to the safety of fifth generation wireless
9 network technology. The committee shall review the issues
10 related to and make recommendations regarding whether and to
11 what extent fifth generation wireless network technology can
12 be safely incorporated into Iowa’s wireless network technology
13 infrastructure. The committee shall consider testimony from
14 interested stakeholders, including but not limited to medical
15 professionals, representatives from wireless network technology
16 companies, and representatives from agencies responsible
17 for regulating wireless network technology companies. The
18 committee shall submit its findings and recommendations to the
19 general assembly by December 31, 2020.>
- 20 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting <An
21 Act requesting the establishment of an interim study committee
22 relating to evaluating the safety of fifth generation wireless
23 network technology.>

SHIPLEY of Van Buren

H-8019

- 1 Amend House File 2213 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, after line 4 by inserting:

3 <Sec. _____. **NEW SECTION. 364.10 Utility meters — equipment**
4 **used to facilitate telecommunications service — city authority.**

5 Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary,
6 an ordinance, motion, resolution, or amendment adopted by
7 a city regarding the type or location of utility meters
8 or equipment used to facilitate telecommunications service
9 in relation to residential real property shall govern the
10 installation of such meters or equipment and shall not be
11 subject to preemption by any other regulatory authority or
12 interconnection agreement.

13 Sec. _____. **NEW SECTION. 557.21A Utility meters — equipment**
14 **used to facilitate telecommunications service — declaration of**
15 **covenants.**

- 16 1. In this section, unless the context requires otherwise:
- 17 a. *“Association”* means an Iowa corporation responsible for
18 the operation of a community in which the voting membership
19 is made up of parcel owners or their agents, or a combination
20 thereof, and in which membership is a mandatory condition of
21 parcel ownership, and which is authorized to impose assessments
22 that, if unpaid, may become a lien on the parcel.
- 23 b. *“Community”* means the real property that is or will be
24 subject to a declaration of covenants that is recorded in the
25 county where the property is located.
- 26 c. *“Declaration of covenants”* means a recorded written
27 instrument in the nature of covenants running with the
28 land subjecting the land comprising the community to the
29 jurisdiction and control of an association in which the parcel
30 owners, or their association representatives, must be members.
- 31 d. *“Member”* means a member of an association and may
32 include but is not limited to a parcel owner or an association
33 representing parcel owners or a combination of each.
- 34 e. *“Parcel”* means a platted or unplatted lot, tract, unit,
35 or other subdivision of residential real property within a

PAGE 2

- 1 community, as described in the declaration of covenants and to
2 which the following apply:
- 3 (1) Is capable of separate conveyance.
- 4 (2) The parcel owner or an association in which the parcel
5 owner must be a member is obligated as follows:
- 6 (a) By the governing documents to be a member of an
7 association that serves the community.
- 8 (b) To pay to the association assessments that, if not paid,
9 may result in a lien.
- 10 f. *“Parcel owner”* means the record owner of legal title to a
11 parcel.
- 12 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
13 contrary, but subject to section 364.10, the declaration of
14 covenants shall govern the type or location of utility meters
15 and equipment used to facilitate telecommunications service
16 installed on a parcel.>

17 2. Page 1, after line 6 by inserting:
 18 <Sec. __. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following
 19 apply retroactively to utility meters and equipment used to
 20 facilitate telecommunications service installed prior to and on
 21 or after the effective date of this Act:
 22 1. The section of this Act enacting section 364.10.
 23 2. The section of this Act enacting section 557.21A.>
 24 3. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting
 25 <An Act relating to public utilities, including extending
 26 the repeal date of the Iowa cell siting Act and the
 27 regulation of utility meters and equipment used to facilitate
 28 telecommunications service, and including effective date and
 29 retroactive applicability provisions.>
 30 4. By renumbering as necessary.

SHIPLEY of Van Buren

H-8020

1 Amend House File 2213 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 8C.8A **Applicability to certain**
 4 **political subdivisions.**
 5 Notwithstanding any provision in this chapter to the
 6 contrary, a city or county may, by ordinance, initiative, or
 7 referendum, elect to not be governed by the terms of this
 8 chapter. Such election shall be effective until the earlier
 9 of the date specified in section 8C.9 or the date ten years
 10 following the date of election.>
 11 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting
 12 <An Act relating to the Iowa cell siting Act and including
 13 effective date provisions.>
 14 3. By renumbering as necessary.

SHIPLEY of Van Buren

H-8021

1 Amend House File 2222 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. STUDY AND REPORT OF MEDICAID INSTITUTIONS FOR
 5 MENTAL DISEASES WAIVER AND THE AVAILABILITY OF MENTAL HEALTH
 6 SERVICES. The department of human services shall conduct a
 7 statewide study of the current availability of mental health
 8 services in the state. The study will research and evaluate
 9 the current availability of mental health services across the
 10 continuum of care and the potential value of pursuing a section
 11 1115 demonstration waiver as specified in section 12003 of the
 12 federal 21st Century Cures Act, Pub. L. No. 114-255, to provide
 13 for reimbursement for services provided in settings that
 14 qualify as institutions for mental diseases. The department

15 shall submit a final report of the results of the study to the
 16 governor and the general assembly by February 15, 2021.
 17 Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of immediate
 18 importance, takes effect upon enactment.>
 19 2. Title page, line 1, by striking <the> and inserting <a
 20 determination of the availability of mental health services in
 21 the state including the value of pursuing a>

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8022

1 Amend House File 717 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 1, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 3 2. Page 1, line 25, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 4 3. Page 2, line 6, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

THORUP of Marion

H-8023

1 Amend House File 2339 as follows:
 2 1. Page 2, line 31, by striking <by the clerk of court>
 3 2. Page 3, by striking lines 8 through 20.
 4 3. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 5 references as necessary.

HITE of Mahaska

H-8024

1 Amend House File 2219 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 232.2, subsection 22, paragraph b, Code
 5 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
 6 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (8) Filing a report with the court prior
 7 to any dispositional hearing, permanency hearing, or review
 8 hearing which shall include all of the following:
 9 (a) The nature and number of contacts the guardian ad litem
 10 has had with the child and with other persons involved with the
 11 child's case since the last hearing.
 12 (b) Information about the child's education, health, and
 13 well-being.
 14 (c) The guardian ad litem's position on issues to be
 15 addressed in the hearing, including but not limited to legal
 16 custody, placement, visitation, and the case plan; and the
 17 child's wishes and requests.
 18 (d) Whether there is a conflict between the child's wishes
 19 and the guardian ad litem's position.
 20 (e) Any other information related to the best interest of
 21 the child.>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8025

1 Amend House File 2463 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 33 by inserting:

3 <Sec. ____ JOINT HEALTH CARE-RELATED POSTSECONDARY
4 EDUCATIONAL AND RESIDENCY ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS — REVIEW.

5 1. The college student aid commission and the department
6 of public health shall jointly conduct a review of all health
7 care-related postsecondary education assistance programs
8 established in statute and administered by the college
9 student aid commission or by the department of public health,
10 including but not limited to programs established under section
11 135.107, subsection 3, and sections 135.175, 135.176, 135.178,
12 135.179, 135.181, 261.113, 261.114, 261.115, and 261.116. The
13 commission and the department shall do all of the following:

14 a. Identify issues relating to the advantages and
15 disadvantages of combining grant, loan, or other financial
16 assistance programs or application processes relating to such
17 health care-related programs.

18 b. Identify any duplication in programming.

19 c. Explore consolidation and expansion of state-funded loan
20 repayment programs for health care providers.

21 d. Evaluate options for additional health care provider
22 retention incentive programs.

23 e. Consider length and duration of residency programs for
24 future investments.

25 f. Consider community health professional needs surveys
26 conducted in this state.

27 2. The commission and the department shall jointly
28 report the results of the review, including any findings and
29 recommendations, to the general assembly by November 1, 2020.>

30 2. Title page, line 2, after <program> by inserting <and
31 providing for a joint review of health care-related assistance
32 programs>

33 3. By renumbering as necessary.

WINCKLER of Scott

H-8026

1 Amend House File 2483 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, line 3, by striking <Iowa finance authority and
3 the Iowa>

4 2. Page 1, line 6, by striking <areas> and inserting <areas,
5 a cost-benefit analysis regarding the necessity of existing
6 rest areas,>

7 3. Page 1, line 9, by striking <Iowa finance authority and
8 the Iowa>

LOHSE of Polk

H-8027

- 1 Amend House File 2482 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 19 and 20.

WHEELER of Sioux

H-8028

- 1 Amend House File 2192 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 12, after <of> by inserting <real-time>
- 3 2. Page 1, line 13, after <other> by inserting <real-time>
- 4 3. Page 1, line 20, before <A> by inserting <a.>
- 5 4. Page 1, line 22, by striking <to a covered person by
- 6 telehealth> and inserting <by telehealth to a covered person
- 7 located at a facility>
- 8 5. Page 1, before line 26 by inserting:
- 9 <b. As a condition of reimbursement pursuant to paragraph
- 10 "a", a health carrier shall not require that an additional
- 11 health care professional be located in the same room as a
- 12 covered person while health care services for a mental health
- 13 condition, illness, injury, or disease are delivered via
- 14 telehealth by another health care professional to the covered
- 15 person.>

FRY of Clarke

H-8029

- 1 Amend House File 2340 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
- 3 <Section 1. Section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph c,
- 4 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
- 5 new subparagraph division:
- 6 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (d) The payment of qualified
- 7 education loan payments.>
- 8 2. By renumbering as necessary.

STECKMAN of Cerro Gordo
STAED of Linn

H-8030

- 1 Amend House File 2536 as follows:
- 2 1. By striking page 102, line 23, through page 103, line 2.
- 3 2. Page 136, line 22, by striking <section> and inserting
- 4 <sections>
- 5 3. By renumbering as necessary.

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

H-8031

1 Amend House File 2513 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 6, by striking <thirty-five> and inserting
3 <thirty-five>

WHEELER of Sioux

H-8032

1 Amend House File 2375 as follows:
2 1. Page 3, after line 34 by inserting:
3 <(6) A member of a public transit system, as defined in
4 section 324A.1, performing official duties while in a vehicle
5 that is not in motion.>
6 2. Page 5, after line 32 by inserting:
7 <(g) A member of a public transit system, as defined in
8 section 324A.1, performing official duties while in a vehicle
9 that is not in motion.>

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8033

1 Amend Senate File 583, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:
3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:
5 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 476.49 Billing methods for
6 distributed generation customers.
7 1. *Definitions.* For purposes of this section, unless the
8 context otherwise requires:
9 a. *“Alternate energy production facility”* means the same as
10 defined in section 476.42.
11 b. *“Distributed generation customer”* means a person
12 other than a public utility that interconnects an eligible
13 distributed generation facility to an electric distribution
14 system.
15 c. *“Distributed generation facility”* means the same as
16 defined in section 476.58, subsection 1, paragraph “b”,
17 subparagraph (2) or (3).
18 d. *“Electric utility”* means a public utility that furnishes
19 electricity to the public for compensation that is required to
20 be rate-regulated under this chapter.
21 e. *“Eligible distributed generation facility”* means a
22 distributed generation facility that elects a billing method
23 pursuant to subsection 3, and to which all of the following
24 apply:
25 (1) The facility is located behind a customer’s electricity
26 meter.
27 (2) The facility is interconnected to the electric utility
28 distribution system.

- 29 (3) The facility has an aggregate nameplate capacity less
 30 than or equal to one megawatt alternating current.
 31 (4) The facility has a capability to produce no more than
 32 one hundred ten percent of the customer's annual electricity
 33 usage.
 34 (5) The facility's generating capacity and associated
 35 energy is intended to serve only the on-site electric

PAGE 2

- 1 requirements of the customer.
 2 *f. "Inflow-outflow billing"* means a billing method for
 3 an eligible distributed generation facility whereby the net
 4 metering interval is measured hourly or subhourly, and a
 5 distributed generation customer makes payment and is credited
 6 as provided in subsection 3, paragraph "b".
 7 *g. "Net billing"* means a billing method for an eligible
 8 distributed generation facility whereby the net metering
 9 interval is equal to a monthly billing period, and a
 10 distributed generation customer makes payment and is credited
 11 as provided in subsection 3, paragraph "a".
 12 *h. "Net metering"* means a single meter monitoring only
 13 the net amount of electricity delivered to and exported by an
 14 eligible distributed generation facility, which electricity
 15 offsets electricity that would otherwise be purchased by a
 16 distributed generation customer from the electric utility.
 17 *i. "Statewide distributed generation penetration"* means
 18 the aggregate nameplate capacity of all eligible distributed
 19 generation facilities of electric utilities as a percentage of
 20 the aggregate peak demand of all electric utilities.
 21 2. *Publication of data.* The board shall collect data on
 22 the nameplate capacity of eligible distributed generation
 23 facilities, calculate the statewide distributed generation
 24 penetration percentage, and publish the data and penetration
 25 rate on an annual basis on the board's internet site.
 26 3. *Billing methods.* An electric utility shall file either a
 27 net billing or an inflow-outflow billing tariff with the board
 28 to govern the billing and crediting of eligible distributed
 29 generation facilities interconnected with the electric
 30 distribution system of an electric utility as follows:
 31 *a.* (1) An electric utility choosing to utilize the net
 32 billing method shall file a tariff with the board whereby a
 33 distributed generation customer pays all applicable charges,
 34 including applicable rider charges approved by the board and
 35 applied to non-net metering customers, for the electricity

PAGE 3

- 1 delivered to the customer over the net metering interval.
 2 A distributed generation customer shall be credited in
 3 kilowatt-hours for energy exported to the electric utility over
 4 the net metering interval. A distributed generation customer

5 may use the kilowatt-hour credits to offset kilowatt-hours
6 in future billing periods. The offset shall include any
7 applicable volumetric rider charges approved by the board and
8 applied to non-net metering customers.
9 (2) Any excess kilowatt-hours remaining at the end of
10 a twelve-month period shall be cashed out at the electric
11 utility's avoided cost rate with the funds from the cash out
12 divided evenly between the customer and the electric utility's
13 low-income home energy assistance program. The distributed
14 generation customer shall choose either a January or April cash
15 out date at the time of interconnection.
16 (3) Net billing shall not be limited in any way based on a
17 customer's peak demand.
18 (4) Net billing shall not include any fees or charges that
19 are not charged to customers in the same rate class that are
20 not net billing customers.
21 *b.* (1) An electric utility choosing to utilize the
22 inflow-outflow billing method shall file a tariff with the
23 board whereby a distributed generation customer pays all
24 applicable charges, including applicable rider charges approved
25 by the board and applied to non-net metering customers, for
26 the electricity delivered by the electric utility over the net
27 metering interval. The distributed generation customer is
28 credited in dollars at the outflow purchase rate for energy
29 exported to the utility over the net metering interval. The
30 distributed generation customer may use the dollar credits to
31 offset any applicable volumetric charges, including applicable
32 rider charges, billed on a kilowatt-hour basis.
33 (2) The electric utility shall select an hourly or subhourly
34 metering interval that balances the benefits of accurately
35 measuring power flows in each direction with the cost of

PAGE 4

1 collecting, storing, and processing meter data.
2 (3) Inflow-outflow billing shall not include any fees or
3 charges that are not charged to customers in the same rate
4 class that are not inflow-outflow customers.
5 (4) Prior to the board's approval of a value of solar
6 methodology and rate, the outflow purchase rate for an eligible
7 distributed generation facility shall be the applicable retail
8 volumetric rate, including applicable rider charges approved
9 by the board and applied to non-net metered customers. The
10 outflow purchase rate for any distributed generation facility
11 will continue to be the applicable retail volumetric rate
12 for a term of twenty years. Any change in ownership of such
13 eligible facility, or adoption and use by the electric utility
14 of a value-of-solar rate pursuant to subsection 4, shall not
15 impact the outflow purchase rate for the distributed generation
16 facility during the twenty-year term.
17 4. *Value of solar methodology.* If the board is petitioned
18 by an electric utility after July 1, 2027, or when the

19 statewide distributed generation penetration rate is equal to
20 five percent, whichever is earlier, the board shall initiate
21 a proceeding to develop a value of solar methodology and
22 rate for eligible distributed generation facilities. The
23 value of solar rate shall be determined through the use of a
24 methodology that calculates the benefits and costs an eligible
25 distributed generation facility provides to, or imposes on,
26 the electric system. The value of solar methodology shall
27 be applied independently to each electric utility. When the
28 board determines the value of solar methodology, it shall
29 determine if there is a need for separate methodologies for
30 other distributed generation technologies or if it can account
31 for the values of other technologies with modifications to the
32 value of solar methodology.
33 *a.* In establishing the methodology, the board shall initiate
34 a formal proceeding. The value of solar methodology shall be
35 determined through a study conducted by an independent third

PAGE 5

1 party and overseen by the board. Interested parties shall have
2 the opportunity to comment and offer testimony on any proposed
3 value of solar methodology before it is adopted by the board.
4 *b.* The benefits and costs in a value of solar methodology
5 shall include all of the following factors as appropriate and
6 supported by known and measurable evidence:
7 (1) The cost of energy and fuel.
8 (2) Generation capacity and reserves.
9 (3) Transmission capacity and charges.
10 (4) Distribution capacity.
11 (5) Transmission and distribution line losses.
12 (6) Fixed and variable costs associated with plant
13 operations and maintenance.
14 (7) Environmental compliance costs.
15 (8) Integration costs.
16 (9) Grid support services.
17 (10) Other factors, based on known and measurable evidence
18 of the cost or benefit of solar operations to the electric
19 utility's electric system.
20 *c.* Upon approval of the value of solar methodology, the
21 outflow purchase rate shall be limited to either a five
22 percent increase or decrease from the previous outflow purchase
23 rate. The value of solar rate shall be recomputed annually
24 and reflected in the outflow purchase rate, limited to a
25 five percent increase or decrease from the previous outflow
26 purchase rate. If the utility switches from a net billing
27 method to an inflow-outflow billing method after the value of
28 solar methodology is approved, then the previous purchase rate
29 shall be the applicable retail volumetric rate including all
30 applicable rider charges approved by the board.
31 *d.* The board shall consider, review, and update as
32 appropriate the value of solar methodology at least every three

33 years after completion of the initial methodology.
34 e. After the board has approved a value of solar methodology
35 and rate, the outflow purchase rate shall be set using the

PAGE 6

1 value of solar methodology. The outflow purchase rate for such
2 a facility will be fixed for a term of twenty years regardless
3 of any subsequent changes in the electric utility's outflow
4 purchase rate or changes in ownership of such facility.
5 5. *Forfeiture of outflow purchase credits.* Any outflow
6 purchase credits remaining at the end of an annual period
7 shall be forfeited to the rider used by the electric utility
8 pursuant to subsection 7. The distributed generation customer
9 shall choose either a January or April date at the time of
10 interconnection for the purposes of determining the annual
11 period.
12 6. *Proposal of separate rate classes.* An electric utility
13 shall not propose treating distributed generation customers
14 as a separate rate class in a general rate case prior to the
15 board's approval of a value of solar methodology or prior to
16 July 1, 2027, whichever is earlier. If an electric utility
17 chooses to propose a separate rate class for distributed
18 generation customers in a future proceeding, such a proposal
19 shall be approved or disapproved in accordance with section
20 476.6 and accompanying rules.
21 7. *Riders.* An electric utility shall be allowed to recover
22 the amounts credited to an eligible distributed generation
23 customer for outflow purchases pursuant to a rider. To the
24 extent an electric utility does not have such a rider, the
25 board shall allow an electric utility to establish a rider to
26 recover such amounts. For purposes of this subsection, "rider"
27 includes a fuel or energy adjustment clause.
28 8. *Preexisting tariff.* Any customer utilizing a net billing
29 tariff approved by the board on or before the availability
30 of inflow-outflow billing may continue to receive electric
31 service pursuant to the preexisting tariff for the remaining
32 duration of the contract regardless of any subsequent changes
33 in ownership of such facility.
34 9. *Use of funds collected through alternate energy purchase*
35 *programs.* An electric utility may use funds collected pursuant

PAGE 7

1 to section 476.47 to offset any amounts that would otherwise be
2 recovered through a rider resulting from outflow purchases of
3 excess energy produced by an eligible distributed generation
4 facility.
5 10. *Reasonableness of net billing and inflow-outflow*
6 *billing.* When the statewide net metering penetration level
7 reaches ten percent, the board shall determine whether the
8 net billing and inflow-outflow billing methods are still

9 reasonable and shall make recommendations to the general
 10 assembly. Regardless of the board's recommendations, existing
 11 facilities shall continue to be eligible for the net billing
 12 or inflow-outflow billing tariff in place at the time of
 13 installation and for twenty years of operation thereafter.>
 14 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting
 15 <An Act relating to billing methods that may be utilized in
 16 connection with distributed generation facilities.>

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

H-8034

1 Amend House File 2340 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <Section 1. Section 12D.1, subsection 2, paragraph k, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 *k. "Qualified education expenses" means the same as*
 6 *"qualified higher education expenses" as defined in section*
 7 *529(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended by Pub. L.*
 8 *No. 115-97, and shall include elementary and secondary school*
 9 *expenses for tuition described in section 529(c)(7) of the*
 10 *Internal Revenue Code, subject to the limitations imposed by*
 11 *section 529(e)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code. "Qualified*
 12 *education expenses" includes amounts paid as principal or*
 13 *interest on behalf of a beneficiary or a sibling of the*
 14 *beneficiary on any qualified education loan as defined in*
 15 *section 221(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.*
 16 Sec. __. Section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph c,
 17 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 18 new subparagraph division:
 19 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (d) Qualified education loan
 20 repayments.>
 21 2. Page 1, after line 16 by inserting:
 22 <Sec. __. Section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph c,
 23 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 24 new subparagraph divisions:
 25 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (d) "*Qualified education loan*
 26 *repayments*" means amounts paid as principal or interest on
 27 behalf of the beneficiary or a sibling of the beneficiary on
 28 any qualified education loan as defined in section 221(d) of
 29 the Internal Revenue Code, not to exceed ten thousand dollars
 30 in the aggregate for the beneficiary or a sibling of the
 31 beneficiary, respectively.
 32 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (e) "*Sibling*" means an
 33 individual who bears a relationship to the designated
 34 beneficiary which is described in section 152(d)(2)(B) of the
 35 Internal Revenue Code.>

PAGE 2

1 3. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting

2 <An Act relating to the use of Iowa educational savings plan
3 trust funds, and>
4 4. By renumbering as necessary.

STECKMAN of Cerro Gordo
STAED of Linn

H-8035

1 Amend the amendment, H-8028, to House File 2192 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 3, by striking <real-time> and inserting
3 <real-time interactive>

FRY of Clarke

H-8036

1 Amend House File 2424 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, by striking line 10 and inserting <to exceed one
3 hundred forty-five percent but is less than>
4 2. Page 1, by striking line 14 and inserting <to exceed two
5 hundred percent but is less than two hundred>
6 3. Page 1, line 17, by striking <at> and inserting
7 <exceeding>
8 4. Page 1, lines 25 and 26, by striking <of at least one
9 hundred eighty-five percent> and inserting <exceeding one
10 hundred forty-five percent>
11 5. Page 1, line 28, by striking <at least> and inserting
12 <exceeding>

EHLERT of Linn

H-8037

1 Amend House File 2404 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 17, after <department,> by inserting <on
3 private property>
4 2. Page 1, by striking lines 30 through 32 and inserting:
5 <3. A person shall not pass through public hunting land
6 during any hunting season established by the commission unless>

R. SMITH of Black Hawk

H-8038

1 Amend House File 2502 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 29, by striking <ordinance> and inserting
3 <ordinance, motion, resolution, policy, or amendment>
4 2. Page 2, line 30, after <resolution,> by inserting
5 <policy,>
6 3. Page 2, line 32, after <resolution,> by inserting
7 <policy,>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8039

- 1 Amend House File 2463 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 33 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. ___. Section 261.115, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 *b. "Health care professional"* means a physician, physician
 6 assistant, podiatrist, ~~or~~ physical therapist, registered nurse,
 7 or advanced registered nurse practitioner.>
 8 2. By renumbering as necessary.

STAED of Linn

H-8040

- 1 Amend House File 2493 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 6, by striking <agency> and inserting
 3 <agency, except that a fire department, emergency medical
 4 services provider, or law enforcement agency shall not donate
 5 equipment containing a perfluoroalkyl or polyfluoroalkyl
 6 substance>
 7 2. Page 1, line 7, after <of> by inserting <a vehicle or>
 8 3. Page 1, line 20, by striking <agency> and inserting
 9 <agency, unless such equipment contains a perfluoroalkyl or
 10 polyfluoroalkyl substance>
 11 4. Page 1, line 29, by striking <agency> and inserting
 12 <agency, unless such equipment contains a perfluoroalkyl or
 13 polyfluoroalkyl substance>

ISENHART of Dubuque
KACENA of Woodbury

H-8041

- 1 Amend House File 2270 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 6, before <market> by inserting <most
 3 recent>
 4 2. Page 1, line 7, by striking <completed in December 2017>

EHLERT of Linn

H-8042

- 1 Amend House File 2511 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <Section 1. Section 68A.102, subsection 10, paragraph a,
 4 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 (2) The payment, by any person other than a candidate or
 6 political committee who receives the service, of compensation
 7 for the personal services of another person which are rendered
 8 to a candidate or political committee for any such purpose.
 9 Sec. ___. Section 68A.102, subsection 10, paragraph a, Code

10 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
 11 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (3) A coordinated expenditure if the
 12 expenditure must be reported pursuant to subchapter IV.
 13 Sec. ____ Section 68A.102, subsections 14 and 18, Code 2020,
 14 are amended to read as follows:
 15 14. a. “Express advocacy” or to “expressly advocate” means
 16 communication that can be characterized according to at least
 17 one of the following descriptions:
 18 a. (1) The communication is political speech made in the
 19 form of a contribution.
 20 b. (2) In advocating the election or defeat of one or more
 21 clearly identified candidates or the passage or defeat of one
 22 or more clearly identified ballot issues, the communication
 23 includes explicit words that unambiguously indicate that the
 24 communication is recommending or supporting a particular
 25 outcome in the election with regard to any clearly identified
 26 candidate or ballot issue.
 27 b. “Express advocacy” or “expressly advocate” does not mean
 28 a communication that can be characterized according to one or
 29 more of the following descriptions:
 30 (1) The communication encourages individuals to register
 31 to vote or to vote, provided that the communication does not
 32 mention or depict a candidate or ballot issue.
 33 (2) The communication does not support or oppose a candidate
 34 or ballot issue.
 35 (3) The communication is a bona fide news story, commentary,

PAGE 2

1 blog, or editorial distributed through the facilities of any
 2 broadcasting station, newspaper, magazine, internet site, or
 3 other periodical publication of general circulation.
 4 (4) The communication is by a membership organization or
 5 corporation to its members, stockholders, or employees.
 6 (5) The board determines by rule that the communication is
 7 not express advocacy.
 8 18. “Political committee” means any of the following:
 9 a. A committee, but not a candidate’s committee, that
 10 accepts contributions in excess of ~~one thousand two hundred~~
 11 ~~fifty~~ dollars in the aggregate, makes expenditures in excess
 12 ~~of one thousand two hundred fifty~~ dollars in the aggregate, or
 13 incurs indebtedness in excess of ~~one thousand two hundred fifty~~
 14 dollars in the aggregate in any one calendar year to expressly
 15 advocate the nomination, election, or defeat of a candidate
 16 for public office, ~~make an electioneering communication,~~ or to
 17 expressly advocate the passage or defeat of a ballot issue.
 18 b. An association, lodge, society, cooperative, union,
 19 fraternity, sorority, educational institution, civic
 20 organization, labor organization, religious organization, or
 21 professional organization that accepts contributions in excess
 22 of ~~one thousand two hundred fifty~~ dollars in the aggregate,
 23 makes expenditures in excess of ~~one thousand two hundred fifty~~

24 dollars in the aggregate, or incurs indebtedness in excess of
 25 ~~one thousand two hundred fifty~~ dollars in the aggregate in
 26 any one calendar year to expressly advocate the nomination,
 27 election, or defeat of a candidate for public office, make an
 28 electioneering communication, or to expressly advocate the
 29 passage or defeat of a ballot issue.
 30 c. A person, other than an individual, that accepts
 31 contributions in excess of ~~one thousand two hundred fifty~~
 32 dollars in the aggregate, makes expenditures in excess of
 33 ~~one thousand two hundred fifty~~ dollars in the aggregate, or
 34 incurs indebtedness in excess of ~~one thousand two hundred fifty~~
 35 dollars in the aggregate in any one calendar year to expressly

PAGE 3

1 advocate that an individual should or should not seek election
 2 to a public office prior to the individual becoming a candidate
 3 as defined in subsection 4.
 4 Sec. ____ Section 68A.102, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsections:
 6 NEW SUBSECTION. 8A. “*Communication*” means any of the
 7 following:
 8 a. A paid advertisement broadcast over radio, television,
 9 cable, or satellite.
 10 b. The paid placement of content on the internet or other
 11 electronic communication network.
 12 c. A paid advertisement published in a newspaper or
 13 periodical or on a billboard.
 14 d. A mailing.
 15 e. A printed material.
 16 NEW SUBSECTION. 10A. “*Coordinated expenditure*” means
 17 an expenditure made in cooperation with, in consultation
 18 with, at the request of, or with the express prior consent
 19 of a candidate or committee receiving the benefit of the
 20 expenditure.
 21 NEW SUBSECTION. 13A. a. “*Electioneering communication*”
 22 means a paid communication that is publicly distributed by
 23 radio, television, cable, satellite, internet site, newspaper,
 24 periodical, billboard, mail, electronic mail, or any other
 25 distribution of materials, that is made within sixty days of
 26 the initiation of voting in an election that does not support
 27 or oppose a candidate or ballot issue, that can be received
 28 by more than one hundred persons, and that does any of the
 29 following:
 30 (1) Refers to one or more clearly identified candidates in
 31 that election.
 32 (2) Depicts the name, image, likeness, or voice of a clearly
 33 identified candidate in that election.
 34 (3) Refers to a political party, ballot issue, or a question
 35 submitted to the voters in that election.

PAGE 4

- 1 *b. "Electioneering communication"* does not include any of
 2 the following:
- 3 (1) A bona fide news story, commentary, blog, or editorial
 4 distributed through the facilities of any broadcasting station,
 5 newspaper, magazine, internet site, or other periodical
 6 publication of general circulation.
- 7 (2) A communication by a membership organization or
 8 corporation to its members, stockholders, or employees.
- 9 (3) A commercial communication that depicts a candidate's
 10 name, image, likeness, or voice only in the candidate's
 11 capacity as owner, operator, or employee of a business that
 12 existed prior to the organization of a candidate's committee by
 13 the candidate pursuant to section 68A.202.
- 14 (4) A communication that constitutes a candidate debate or
 15 forum or that solely promotes a candidate debate or forum and
 16 is made by or on behalf of the person sponsoring the debate or
 17 forum.
- 18 (5) A communication that the board determines by rule is not
 19 an electioneering communication.>
- 20 2. Page 1, after line 11 by inserting:
 21 <Sec. ____. Section 68A.402, subsection 9, Code 2020, is
 22 amended to read as follows:
- 23 9. *a. Permanent organizations.* A permanent organization
 24 temporarily engaging in activity described in section 68A.102,
 25 subsection 18, shall organize a political committee and shall
 26 keep the funds relating to that political activity segregated
 27 from its operating funds. The political committee shall file
 28 reports on the appropriate due dates as required by this
 29 section.
- 30 *b.* The reports filed under this subsection shall identify
 31 ~~the all of the following:~~
- 32 (1) The source of the original funds used for a contribution
 33 made to a candidate or a committee organized under this
 34 chapter.
- 35 (2) The aggregate amount of contributions made by each

PAGE 5

- 1 person.
- 2 (3) Each loan received from any person during the reporting
 3 period.
- 4 (4) The amount and nature of debts and obligations owed to
 5 the committee.
- 6 (5) Proceeds that total less than thirty-five dollars
 7 per person from mass collections made at fund-raising events
 8 sponsored by the committee.
- 9 (6) The total sum of contributions received by the committee
 10 for a specified candidate or committee.
- 11 (7) The full name, mailing address, occupation, and
 12 principal place of business, if any, of each person or

- 13 committee to whom an expenditure has been made during the
 14 reporting period, including the amount, date, and purpose of
 15 each expenditure and the total amount of expenditures to each
 16 person or committee.
 17 (8) The full name, mailing address, occupation, and
 18 principal place of business, if any, of each person to whom an
 19 expenditure for personal services, salaries, and reimbursement
 20 of expenses has been made, including the amount, date,
 21 and purpose of that expenditure, and the total amount of
 22 expenditures made to each person.
 23 (9) The total sum of expenditures made during the reporting
 24 period.
 25 (10) The full name, mailing address, occupation, and
 26 principal place of business, if any, of any person to whom a
 27 loan was made, and the full name, mailing address, occupation,
 28 and principal place of business, if any, of any endorsers, and
 29 the date and amount of each loan.
 30 (11) The amount and nature of debts and obligations owed by
 31 the committee.
 32 (12) Other information as may be required by the board by
 33 rule.
 34 (13) For reports of expenditures made to a consultant,
 35 advertising agency, polling firm, or other person that performs

PAGE 6

- 1 services for the committee, the report shall be itemized
 2 and described in sufficient detail to disclose the specific
 3 services performed by the entity.
 4 c. When the permanent organization ceases to be involved
 5 in the political activity, the permanent organization shall
 6 dissolve the political committee.
 7 d. As used in this subsection, “*permanent organization*”
 8 means an organization that is continuing, stable, and enduring,
 9 and was originally organized for purposes other than engaging
 10 in election activities.
 11 Sec. ___. Section 68A.402A, subsection 1, paragraphs f and
 12 g, Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 13 f. The name and mailing address of each person and committee
 14 to whom disbursements, payments for personal services,
 15 salaries, reimbursement for expenses, or loan repayments
 16 have been made by the committee from contributions during
 17 the reporting period and the amount, purpose, and date of
 18 each disbursement except that disbursements of less than five
 19 dollars may be shown as miscellaneous disbursements so long as
 20 the aggregate miscellaneous disbursements to any one person
 21 during a calendar year do not exceed one hundred dollars.
 22 Reports of disbursements under this paragraph must be itemized
 23 and sufficiently detailed to disclose the specific services
 24 performed by the person to whom a disbursement was made.
 25 g. Disbursements made to a consultant, advertising agency,
 26 or polling firm and disbursements made by the consultant,

27 advertising agency, or polling firm during the reporting
 28 period disclosing the name and address of the recipient,
 29 amount, purpose, and date. Reports of disbursements under
 30 this paragraph must be itemized and sufficiently detailed to
 31 disclose the specific services performed by the entity to whom
 32 a disbursement was made.
 33 Sec. ____ Section 68A.402A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 34 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 35 NEW PARAGRAPH. l. The total sum of disbursements made.

PAGE 7

1 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 68A.404A Electioneering
 2 communications — reports.
 3 1. A person making an electioneering communication shall
 4 file a report with the board, including a description of the
 5 communication, how the communication was distributed, and
 6 the amount of any expenditure made on the electioneering
 7 communication, except that a person spending less than two
 8 hundred fifty dollars on electioneering communications in a
 9 taxable year shall not be required to file a report.
 10 2. The board shall adopt rules for the form and schedule of
 11 reports filed under this section.
 12 Sec. ____ Section 68A.405, subsection 1, paragraphs b, c, d,
 13 e, f, g, and h, Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 14 *b.* (1) Except as set out in subsection 2, published
 15 material designed to expressly advocate the nomination,
 16 election, or defeat of a candidate for public office or
 17 the passage or defeat of a ballot issue and electioneering
 18 communications shall include on the published material
 19 or electioneering communication an attribution statement
 20 disclosing who is responsible for the published material or
 21 electioneering communication.
 22 (2) The person who is responsible for the published material
 23 or electioneering communication has the sole responsibility
 24 and liability for the attribution statement required by this
 25 section.
 26 *c.* If the person paying for the published material or
 27 electioneering communication is an individual, the words “paid
 28 for by” and the name and address of the person shall appear on
 29 the published material or electioneering communication.
 30 *d.* If more than one individual is responsible, the words
 31 “paid for by”, the names of the individuals, and either
 32 the addresses of the individuals or a statement that the
 33 addresses of the individuals are on file with the Iowa ethics
 34 and campaign disclosure board shall appear on the published
 35 material or electioneering communication.

PAGE 8

1 *e.* If the person responsible is an organization, the words
 2 “paid for by”, the name and address of the organization, and

3 the name of one officer of the organization shall appear on the
4 published material or electioneering communication.
5 *f.* If the person responsible is a corporation, the words
6 “paid for by”, the name and address of the corporation, and the
7 name and title of the corporation’s chief executive officer
8 shall appear on the published material or electioneering
9 communication.
10 *g.* If the person responsible is a committee that has filed
11 a statement of organization pursuant to section 68A.201, the
12 words “paid for by” and the name of the committee shall appear
13 on the published material or electioneering communication.
14 *h.* If the published material or electioneering communication
15 is the result of an independent expenditure subject to section
16 68A.404, the published material or electioneering communication
17 shall include a statement that the published material or
18 electioneering communication was not authorized by any
19 candidate, candidate’s committee, or ballot issue committee.
20 Sec. ____ Section 68A.405, subsection 2, paragraph d, Code
21 2020, is amended to read as follows:
22 *d.* Any published material or electioneering communication
23 that is subject to federal regulations regarding an attribution
24 requirement.
25 Sec. ____ Section 68A.405, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
26 amended to read as follows:
27 4. The board shall adopt rules relating to the placing of an
28 attribution statement on published materials and electioneering
29 communication.>
30 3. Title page, line 2, after <signs,> by inserting
31 <requirements relating to campaign expenditures, attribution
32 statements, and reports,>
33 4. By renumbering as necessary.

McKEAN of Jones

H-8043

1 Amend House File 2492 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 25 by inserting:
3 <3. This section shall not apply to an Iowa health and
4 wellness plan member who is deemed to be in substantial
5 compliance with the healthy behaviors requirement to complete a
6 wellness examination by providing proof of a scheduled wellness
7 examination appointment even if the appointment is scheduled
8 beyond the end of the applicable enrollment period.>

WILBURN of Story

H-8044

1 Amend House File 2540 as follows:
2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 123.32, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
 5 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
 6 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (7A) A charity beer, spirits, and wine
 7 event permit as provided in section 123.173B.

8 Sec. 2. NEW SECTION. **123.173B Charity beer, spirits, and**
 9 **wine event permit.**

10 1. For purposes of this section, "*authorized nonprofit*
 11 *entity*" includes a nonprofit entity which has a principal office
 12 in the state, a nonprofit corporation organized under chapter
 13 504, or a foreign corporation as defined in section 504.141,
 14 whose income is exempt from federal taxation under section
 15 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code.

16 2. Upon application to the division and receipt of a charity
 17 beer, spirits, and wine event permit, an authorized nonprofit
 18 entity may conduct an event at which the entity is authorized
 19 to serve the event's attendees beer, spirits, and wine for
 20 consumption on the premises of the event, regardless of whether
 21 the entity charges an admission fee to the event or otherwise
 22 collects the cost of the beer, spirits, and wine served from
 23 the event's attendees and subject to the requirements of this
 24 section.

25 3. An application for a charity beer, spirits, and wine
 26 event permit shall include all of the following information:

27 a. The date and time when the charity beer, spirits, and
 28 wine event is to be conducted and the location of the premises
 29 in this state where the charity beer, spirits, and wine event
 30 is to be physically conducted.

31 b. The liquor control license or wine or beer permit number
 32 issued by the division for the premises where the charity beer,
 33 spirits, and wine event is to be conducted.

34 c. A certification that the objective of the charity beer,
 35 spirits, and wine event is to raise funds solely to be used for

PAGE 2

1 educational, religious, or charitable purposes and that the
 2 entire proceeds from the charity beer, spirits, and wine event
 3 are to be expended for any of the purposes described in section
 4 423.3, subsection 78.

5 4. A charity beer, spirits, and wine event shall comply with
 6 all of the following requirements:

7 a. The event is to be conducted on a premises covered by a
 8 valid liquor control license or wine or beer permit issued by
 9 the division.

10 b. The authorized nonprofit entity shall have a written
 11 agreement with the liquor control licensee or wine or beer
 12 permittee covering the premises where the event is to be
 13 conducted specifying that that licensee or permittee shall act
 14 as the agent of the authorized nonprofit entity for the purpose
 15 of providing and serving alcoholic beverages to the attendees
 16 of the event.

17 c. The liquor control licensee or wine or beer permittee

18 covering the premises where the event is to be conducted shall
 19 supply all alcoholic beverages served to the attendees of the
 20 event.
 21 *d.* Only those types of alcoholic beverages as are authorized
 22 to be sold by the liquor control license or wine or beer permit
 23 covering the premises where the event is to be conducted are to
 24 be served to the attendees of the event.
 25 5. An authorized nonprofit entity shall be eligible to
 26 receive no more than two charity beer, spirits, and wine event
 27 permits during a calendar year and each charity beer, spirits,
 28 and wine event permit shall be valid for a period not to exceed
 29 thirty-six consecutive hours.
 30 6. Any violation of the requirements of this chapter or
 31 the rules adopted pursuant to this chapter shall subject the
 32 charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit holder to the
 33 general penalties provided in this chapter and shall constitute
 34 grounds for imposition of a civil penalty, suspension of
 35 the permit, or revocation of the permit after notice and

PAGE 3

1 opportunity for a hearing pursuant to section 123.39 and
 2 chapter 17A.
 3 Sec. 3. Section 123.179, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 4 following new subsection:
 5 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. The fee for a charity beer, spirits, and
 6 wine event permit is one hundred dollars.>

LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8045

1 Amend House File 2463 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 33 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. ___. Section 261.115, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 *b.* “*Health care professional*” means a physician, physician
 6 assistant, podiatrist, ~~or~~ physical therapist, or mental health
 7 professional.
 8 Sec. ___. Section 261.115, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 9 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 10 NEW PARAGRAPH. *c.* “*Mental health professional*” means the
 11 same as defined in section 228.1.>
 12 2. By renumbering as necessary.

MASCHER of Johnson

H-8046

1 Amend House File 2259 as follows:
 2 1. Page 3, after line 6 by inserting:
 3 <*c.* A poster issued by the commissioner that can be

4 downloaded from the department's internet site that may
 5 be displayed in the front entrance and check-in area of
 6 all lodging at which a lodging provider's employees have
 7 received human trafficking prevention training and that is
 8 owned, operated, or owned and operated by a certified lodging
 9 provider. The poster shall be modifiable to indicate the month
 10 and year in which the human trafficking prevention training
 11 was completed and shall include the state human trafficking
 12 helpline or national human trafficking hotline.>

ISENHART of Dubuque
 JAMES of Dubuque

H-8047

- 1 Amend House File 2280 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 4, by striking <two> and inserting <five>
 3 2. Page 1, line 16, by striking <two> and inserting <five>

JACOBY of Johnson

H-8048

- 1 Amend House File 2461 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <Section 1. Section 261.113, subsection 5, paragraph a,
 4 Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 a. The amount of loan repayment an eligible student who
 6 enters into an agreement pursuant to subsection 3 shall receive
 7 if in compliance with obligations under the agreement shall ~~not~~
 8 ~~exceed~~ be forty thousand dollars annually for an eligible loan
 9 if the total loan amount equals or exceeds two hundred thousand
 10 dollars. Payments under this section may be made for each year
 11 of eligible practice during a period of five consecutive years
 12 and shall not exceed a total of two hundred thousand dollars.
 13 If the total amount of an eligible student's eligible loan
 14 upon graduation is less than two hundred thousand dollars,
 15 the commission shall divide the total amount of the eligible
 16 student's eligible loan by five to determine the annual amount
 17 of loan repayment the loan recipient is eligible to receive.>
 18 2. Page 1, after line 19 by inserting:
 19 <Sec. __. Section 261.115, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 20 the following new subsection:
 21 NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. A loan repayment recipient who
 22 refinances an eligible loan by obtaining a private educational
 23 loan may continue to receive loan repayment under this section.
 24 Sec. __. Section 261.115, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 25 amended to read as follows:
 26 3. A health care professional recruitment fund is created in
 27 the state treasury as a separate fund under the control of the
 28 commission for deposit of moneys appropriated to or received
 29 by the commission for use under the program. Notwithstanding

30 section 8.33, any balance in the fund on June 30 of any fiscal
 31 year shall not revert to the general fund of the state but
 32 shall remain in the fund and be continuously available for loan
 33 ~~forgiveness~~ repayment under the program. Notwithstanding
 34 section 12C.7, subsection 2, interest or earnings on moneys
 35 deposited in the fund shall be credited to the fund.

PAGE 2

1 Sec. ____. Section 261.116, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 2 the following new subsection:
 3 NEW SUBSECTION. 4A. Refinanced loans. A loan repayment
 4 recipient who refinances a qualified student loan by obtaining
 5 a private educational loan may continue to receive loan
 6 repayment under this section if the amount of loan repayment
 7 does not exceed the lesser of the amount specified in
 8 subsection 4 or the balance of the loan repayment amount
 9 the loan repayment recipient qualified to receive with the
 10 qualified student loan.

11 Sec. ____. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of
 12 immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

13 Sec. ____. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This Act applies
 14 retroactively to January 1, 2019, for recipients of loan
 15 repayment under sections 261.113, 261.115, and 261.116.>

16 3. Title page, line 1, by striking <eligible> and inserting
 17 <student>

18 4. Title page, line 2, by striking <program> and inserting
 19 <program, the health care professional recruitment program, and
 20 the health care loan repayment program, and including effective
 21 date and retroactive applicability provisions>

22 5. By renumbering as necessary.

DOLECHECK of Ringgold

H-8049

1 Amend House File 2195 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 158.1, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 5 amended to read as follows:

6 3. "*Barbershop*" means an establishment in a fixed location
 7 or a location that is readily movable where one or more persons
 8 engage in the practice of barbering.

9 Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of immediate
 10 importance, takes effect upon enactment.>

11 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting <An
 12 Act relating to the practice of barbering in movable locations,
 13 and including effective date provisions.>

WINDSCHITL of Harrison

H-8050

- 1 Amend Senate File 2259, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 6, by striking <agency> and inserting
3 <agency, except that a fire department, emergency medical
4 services provider, or law enforcement agency shall not donate
5 equipment containing a perfluoroalkyl or polyfluoroalkyl
6 substance>
7 2. Page 1, line 7, after <of> by inserting <a vehicle or>
8 3. Page 1, line 20, by striking <agency> and inserting
9 <agency, unless such equipment contains a perfluoroalkyl or
10 polyfluoroalkyl substance>
11 4. Page 1, line 29, by striking <agency> and inserting
12 <agency, unless such equipment contains a perfluoroalkyl or
13 polyfluoroalkyl substance>

ISENHART of Dubuque
KACENA of Woodbury

H-8051

- 1 Amend Senate File 537, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:
3 1. Page 1, line 1, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
4 2. Page 1, line 7, by striking <muzzleloader> and inserting
5 <muzzleloader, bow>

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

H-8052

- 1 Amend House File 2270 as follows:
2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:
4 <Section 1. Section 237A.13, Code 2020, is amended by adding
5 the following new subsection:
6 NEW SUBSECTION. 3A. Child care providers whose
7 reimbursement rate is below the fiftieth percentile of the most
8 recent statewide reimbursement rate survey shall be set by
9 the department at the fiftieth percentile of the most recent
10 statewide reimbursement rate survey. The department shall also
11 adjust child care quality rating system bonuses to reflect the
12 increased child care reimbursement rates as appropriate.>

EHLERT of Linn

H-8053

- 1 Amend House File 2372 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 3, by striking <help> and inserting <help,
3 who is eighteen years of age or older,>

MAXWELL of Poweshiek

H-8054

1 Amend House File 2493 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 8, by striking <section> and inserting
 3 <subsection>

DEYOE of Story

H-8055

1 Amend House File 2518 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 331.907, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsection:
 6 NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. a. If the board of supervisors adopts
 7 a compensation schedule that annually compensates a supervisor
 8 in an amount greater than the median annual household income
 9 for the county based on the most recently published United
 10 States census bureau median household income statistics, the
 11 adopted compensation schedule shall not take effect until all
 12 of the following occur:
 13 (1) The board of supervisors directs the county
 14 commissioner of elections to submit to the registered voters of
 15 the county at the next general election the question of whether
 16 the adopted compensation schedule shall be approved.
 17 (2) A majority of those voting approve the adopted
 18 compensation schedule.
 19 b. The compensation of a supervisor shall be the same as
 20 provided in the most recently adopted compensation schedule
 21 that took effect until a new compensation schedule takes
 22 effect.>

SEXTON of Calhoun

H-8056

1 Amend House File 2523 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 6 and inserting:
 3 <Section 1. FREE CLINICS — ELECTRONIC PRESCRIPTION
 4 EXEMPTION.>
 5 2. Page 1, line 7, by striking <2.>

BERGAN of Winneshiek

H-8057

1 Amend House File 2518 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 331.907, subsections 1 and 3, Code 2020,
 5 are amended to read as follows:

6 1. The annual compensation of the auditor, treasurer,
 7 recorder, sheriff, ~~and county attorney, and supervisors~~
 8 shall be determined as provided in this section. The county
 9 compensation board annually shall review the compensation
 10 paid to comparable officers in other counties of this state,
 11 other states, private enterprise, and the federal government.
 12 In setting the salary of the county sheriff, the county
 13 compensation board shall consider setting the sheriff's salary
 14 so that it is comparable to salaries paid to professional
 15 law enforcement administrators and command officers of the
 16 state patrol, the division of criminal investigation of the
 17 department of public safety, and city police agencies in
 18 this state. The county compensation board shall prepare
 19 a compensation schedule for the specified elective county
 20 officers for the succeeding fiscal year. A recommended
 21 compensation schedule requires a majority vote of the
 22 membership of the county compensation board.
 23 3. The board of supervisors shall determine the
 24 compensation paid to supervisors. The board of supervisors
 25 shall consider current market factors when determining the
 26 compensation paid to supervisors. The board of supervisors
 27 shall hold a public hearing regarding a proposed compensation
 28 schedule for supervisors before the board of supervisors may
 29 vote to approve the proposed compensation schedule. The board
 30 of supervisors may adopt a decrease in compensation paid to
 31 supervisors irrespective of ~~the county compensation board's~~
 32 ~~recommended compensation schedule or other~~ approved changes in
 33 compensation paid to other elected county officers. A decrease
 34 in compensation paid to supervisors shall be adopted by the
 35 board of supervisors no less than thirty days before the county

PAGE 2

1 budget is certified under section 24.17.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8058

1 Amend the amendment, H-8033, to Senate File 583, as amended,
 2 passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 4, after line 1 by inserting:

4 <(3) Inflow-outflow billing shall not be limited in any way
 5 based on a customer's peak demand.>

6 2. Page 4, line 2, by striking <(3)> and inserting <(4)>

7 3. Page 4, line 5, by striking <(4)> and inserting <(5)>

8 4. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 9 references as necessary.

CARLSON of Muscatine

H-8059

- 1 Amend House File 2309 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 8, after <award> by inserting <reasonable>
 3 2. Page 1, line 18, after <award> by inserting <reasonable>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8060

- 1 Amend House File 2455 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 17 through 22 and inserting
 3 <any hour with consent of the property owner. A person using
 4 a dog>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8061

- 1 Amend House File 2472 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 144.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsections:
 6 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 3A. “*Cremated remains*” means all the
 7 remains of the cremated human body recovered after the
 8 completion of the cremation process, including pulverization
 9 which leaves only bone fragments reduced to unidentifiable
 10 dimensions, and may include the residue of any foreign matter
 11 including casket material, bridgework, or eyeglasses that were
 12 cremated with the human remains.
 13 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 3B. “*Cremation*” means the technical
 14 process, using heat and flame, that reduces human remains to
 15 bone fragments, with the reduction taking place through heat
 16 and evaporation. Cremation shall include the processing, and
 17 may include the pulverization, of the bone fragments.
 18 Sec. 2. Section 144.34, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 19 follows:
 20 **144.34 Disinterment — permit.**
 21 1. a. Disinterment of a dead body or fetus, without a court
 22 order, shall be allowed for the purpose of autopsy or reburial
 23 only, and then only if accomplished supervised by a funeral
 24 director. A permit for such disinterment and, thereafter,
 25 reinterment shall be issued by the state registrar according to
 26 rules adopted pursuant to chapter 17A or when ordered by the
 27 district court of the county in which such body is buried.
 28 b. Disinterment of cremated remains, without a court order,
 29 shall be allowed, but only if supervised by a funeral director.
 30 c. The state registrar, without a court order, shall not
 31 issue a permit without the consent of the person authorized to
 32 control the decedent’s remains under section 144C.5.
 33 2. a. Disinterment of a dead body or fetus for the

34 purpose of reburial may be allowed by court order only upon a
 35 showing of substantial benefit to the public, and then only if

PAGE 2

1 supervised by a funeral director.

2 b. Disinterment of a dead body or fetus for the purpose of
 3 autopsy or reburial by court order shall be allowed only when
 4 reasonable cause is shown that someone is criminally or civilly
 5 responsible for such death, after hearing, upon reasonable
 6 notice prescribed by the court to the person authorized to
 7 control the decedent's remains under section 144C.5, and then
 8 only if supervised by a funeral director.

9 c. Disinterment of a dead body or fetus for the purpose of
 10 cremation may be allowed by court order only if supervised by a
 11 funeral director. Subsequent to the disinterment, cremation
 12 of the body shall only be allowed upon a determination by the
 13 state or county medical examiner that the death was due to
 14 natural causes.

15 3. A permit for disinterment shall be issued by the state
 16 registrar according to rules adopted pursuant to chapter 17A
 17 or when ordered by the district court of the county in which
 18 such body is buried. A person authorized to control final
 19 disposition of a decedent's remains under section 144C.5 is an
 20 interested person and shall be entitled to notice prior to the
 21 obtaining of a court order.

22 4. Due consideration under this section shall be given to
 23 the public health, the dead, and the feelings of relatives
 24 preferences of a person authorized to control final disposition
 25 of a decedent's remains under section 144C.5, and any court
 26 order.

27 Sec. 3. Section 144C.3, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
 28 to read as follows:

29 4. A funeral director, an attorney, or any agent, owner, or
 30 employee of a funeral establishment, cremation establishment,
 31 cemetery, elder group home, assisted living program, adult day
 32 services program, or licensed hospice program shall not serve
 33 as a designee unless married to the declarant or related to the
 34 declarant within the third degree of consanguinity.>

LENSING of Johnson

H-8062

1 Amend House File 2457 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 256.11, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
 5 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

6 **NEW PARAGRAPH.** *d.* Commencing with the school year beginning
 7 July 1, 2021, and each succeeding school year, each school
 8 district and accredited nonpublic school shall provide bleeding

9 control training as a component of a physical education or
 10 health course at the secondary level. Such training may be
 11 taught by qualified volunteers, including but not limited to
 12 those volunteers approved by the American college of surgeons,
 13 and by qualified employees of the school district or accredited
 14 nonpublic school. The administrator of a school may exempt a
 15 student from such training if the student is not physically
 16 able to successfully complete the training.>
 17 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 18 <An Act providing for bleeding control training requirements
 19 for school districts and accredited nonpublic schools.>

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8063

1 Amend House File 2563 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 26 through 28 and inserting:
 3 <e. Any interview by law enforcement or the department or an
 4 agent of the department of a minor child who is a witness to a
 5 child death shall be conducted in a>
 6 2. Page 2, after line 25 by inserting:
 7 <d. A county attorney.
 8 e. A representative from the office of the state medical
 9 examiner.>

SALMON of Black Hawk

H-8064

1 Amend the amendment, H-8051, to Senate File 537, as amended,
 2 passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, line 4, by striking <muzzleloader> and inserting
 4 <muzzleloader>
 5 2. Page 1, line 4, by striking <muzzleloader, bow.> and
 6 inserting <muzzleloader, bow,>

JENEARY of Plymouth

H-8065

1 Amend House File 310, as passed by the House, as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 154.1, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 5 amended to read as follows:
 6 3. a. An optometrist licensed under this chapter may
 7 employ all diagnostic and therapeutic pharmaceutical agents for
 8 the purpose of diagnosis and treatment of conditions of the
 9 human eye and adnexa pursuant to this subsection, ~~excluding~~
 10 ~~the use of injections other than to counteract an anaphylactic~~
 11 ~~reaction~~, and notwithstanding section 147.107, may without

12 charge supply any of the above pharmaceuticals to commence a
13 course of therapy. A licensed optometrist may perform minor
14 surgical procedures and use medications for the diagnosis and
15 treatment of diseases, disorders, and conditions of the eye and
16 adnexa. A license to practice optometry under this chapter
17 does not authorize the performance of surgical procedures which
18 require the use of injectable or general anesthesia, moderate
19 sedation, penetration of the globe, or the use of ophthalmic
20 lasers for the purpose of ophthalmic surgery within or upon
21 the globe. The removal of pterygia and Salzmann's nodules,
22 incisional corneal refractive surgery, and strabismus surgery
23 are prohibited.

24 b. (1) A licensed optometrist may administer only the
25 following injections:

26 (a) Sub-conjunctival injections for the medical treatment
27 of the eye.

28 (b) Intra-lesional injections for the treatment of
29 chalazia.

30 (c) Botulinum toxin to the muscles of facial expression
31 innervated by the facial nerve, including for cosmetic
32 purposes.

33 (d) Injections to counteract an anaphylactic reaction.

34 (2) A licensed optometrist shall not administer any
35 injection prior to receiving approval from the board.

PAGE 2

1 (3) The board shall not approve the use of injections other
2 than to counteract an anaphylactic reaction unless the licensed
3 optometrist demonstrates to the board sufficient educational
4 or clinical training from a college or university accredited
5 by a regional or professional accreditation organization which
6 is recognized or approved by the council for higher education
7 accreditation or by the United States department of education,
8 or clinical training equivalent to clinical training offered
9 by such an institution. Training for the administration
10 and side effects of injection treatment for chalazia and of
11 botulinum toxin shall be required before a licensed optometrist
12 may administer such injections. The board shall adopt rules
13 regarding training required pursuant to this subparagraph and
14 approve training providers.

15 c. A licensed optometrist may employ and, notwithstanding
16 section 147.107, supply pharmaceutical-delivering contact
17 lenses for the purpose of treatment of conditions of the
18 human eye and adnexa. For purposes of this paragraph,
19 "pharmaceutical-delivering contact lenses" means contact lenses
20 that contain one or more therapeutic pharmaceutical agents
21 authorized for employment by this section for the purpose of
22 treatment of conditions of the human eye and adnexa and that
23 deliver such agents into the wearer's eye.

24 e. d. A licensed optometrist may prescribe oral steroids
25 for a period not to exceed fourteen days without consultation

26 with a physician.

27 ~~d. e.~~ A licensed optometrist may be authorized, where
 28 reasonable and appropriate, by rule of the board, to employ new
 29 diagnostic and therapeutic pharmaceutical agents approved by
 30 the United States food and drug administration on or after July
 31 1, 2002, for the diagnosis and treatment of the human eye and
 32 adnexa.

33 ~~e. f.~~ The board is not required to adopt rules relating to
 34 topical pharmaceutical agents, oral antimicrobial agents, oral
 35 antihistamines, oral antiglaucoma agents, and oral analgesic

PAGE 3

1 agents. A licensed optometrist may remove superficial foreign
 2 bodies from the human eye and adnexa.

3 ~~f. g.~~ The therapeutic efforts of a licensed optometrist
 4 are intended for the purpose of examination, diagnosis, and
 5 treatment of visual defects, abnormal conditions, and diseases
 6 of the human eye and adnexa, for proper optometric practice
 7 or referral for consultation or treatment to persons licensed
 8 under chapter 148.

9 ~~g. h.~~ A licensed optometrist is an optometrist who is
 10 licensed to practice optometry in this state and who is
 11 certified by the board to use the agents and procedures
 12 authorized pursuant to this subsection.

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8066

1 Amend House File 2552 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 24 by inserting:

3 <Sec. ____ Section 468.126, subsection 1, paragraph d, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:

5 ~~d. If a hearing is required under Notwithstanding~~ paragraph
 6 ~~"e" "b," if the estimated cost of the repair exceeds fifty~~
 7 ~~thousand dollars or the adjusted competitive bid threshold,~~
 8 ~~whichever is more,~~ the board shall order an engineer's report
 9 or a report from the soil and water conservation district
 10 conservationist regarding the matter ~~to~~ which shall be
 11 presented at the hearing provided in paragraph "c". The board
 12 may waive the report requirement if a prior report on the
 13 repair exists and that report is less than ten years old. At
 14 the hearing, the board shall hear objections to the feasibility
 15 of making the proposed repair.>

16 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting:

17 <An Act relating to drainage and levee districts, by
 18 providing for notice of hearing on reports of commissioners,
 19 and for repairs that require a report by an engineer or soil
 20 and water conservation district conservationist.>

21 3. By renumbering as necessary.

MAXWELL of Poweshiek

H-8067

1 Amend House File 2539 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 256B.10 Deaf and hard-of-hearing
5 **children — language developmental milestones.**

6 1. *Language developmental milestones — selection.*

7 *a.* The director of the department of education shall appoint
8 an early language development consultant to work with the
9 state school for the deaf, the area education agencies, school
10 districts, and the early hearing detection and intervention
11 program in the department of public health, and shall select
12 language developmental milestones from existing standardized
13 norms for purposes of developing a resource for use by parents
14 or guardians to monitor and track deaf and hard-of-hearing
15 children's expressive and receptive language acquisition and
16 developmental stages toward American sign language and English
17 literacy. In selecting the language developmental milestones,
18 the early language development consultant shall consider
19 recommendations from the advisory committee established under
20 subsection 5.

21 *b.* The duties of the early language development consultant
22 appointed by the director pursuant to paragraph "a" shall, at a
23 minimum, include all of the following:

- 24 (1) Developing and managing language milestones for each
25 age, from birth through age eight, in American sign language
26 and English pursuant to subsection 3.
27 (2) Staffing the advisory committee established pursuant
28 to subsection 5, including but not limited to organizing and
29 facilitating the advisory committee meetings.
30 (3) Developing and distributing resources for parents
31 pertaining to language development pursuant to subsection 4.
32 (4) Developing and distributing resources for early
33 interventionists, educators, hospitals, and health care
34 providers pertaining to language development.
35 (5) Exercising general supervision over follow-up contacts

PAGE 2

1 with parents and guardians regarding the need for valid and
2 reliable language assessments and distribution of resources
3 toward language development in American sign language and
4 English.

5 (6) Planning a parent-friendly procedure for outreach and
6 follow-up.

7 (7) Exercising general supervision over annual or biannual,
8 at the consultant's discretion, milestone assessments for deaf
9 and hard-of-hearing children.

10 (8) Managing and summarizing data outcomes for parents,
11 guardians, and partner agencies to use, including the annual
12 report published pursuant to subsection 7.

13 (9) Arranging for and exercising general supervision over
 14 the appropriate training for language assessment personnel.
 15 (10) Maintaining valid and reliable two-fold language
 16 assessment approach, utilizing both American sign language and
 17 English, in selecting milestones, compiling data, employing
 18 qualified personnel, and distributing resources.
 19 2. *Parent resource.* The parent resource developed pursuant
 20 to subsection 1 shall meet all of the following requirements:
 21 a. Include American sign language and English language
 22 developmental milestones selected under subsection 1.
 23 b. Be appropriate for use, in both content and
 24 administration, with deaf and hard-of-hearing children from
 25 birth to eight years of age, inclusive, who use American sign
 26 language or English, or both.
 27 c. Present the language developmental milestones in terms of
 28 typical development of all children from birth to eight years
 29 of age, by age range.
 30 d. Be written for clarity and ease of use by parents and
 31 guardians.
 32 e. Be aligned to the department of education's existing
 33 infant, toddler, and preschool guidelines, standards for
 34 evaluating eligibility and progress for early intervention or
 35 special education under federal law, and state standards in

PAGE 3

1 English language arts.
 2 f. Clearly specify that the parent resource is not a
 3 formal assessment of language and literacy development, and
 4 that the observations of a child by the child's parent or
 5 guardian may differ from formal assessment data presented at an
 6 individualized family service plan or individualized education
 7 program meeting.
 8 g. Clearly specify that a parent or guardian may bring
 9 the parent resource to an individualized family service plan
 10 or individualized education program meeting for purposes of
 11 sharing the parent's or guardian's observations regarding the
 12 child's development.
 13 3. *Selection of tools or assessments.* The early language
 14 development consultant, in consultation with the state school
 15 for the deaf, the area education agencies, school districts,
 16 and the early hearing detection and intervention program in the
 17 department of public health, shall select existing tools or
 18 assessments for educators that can be used to assess American
 19 sign language and English language and literacy development of
 20 deaf and hard-of-hearing children from birth to eight years of
 21 age, inclusive.
 22 a. Educator tools or assessments selected under this
 23 subsection shall meet the following criteria:
 24 (1) Be in a format that shows stages of language
 25 development.
 26 (2) Be selected for use by educators to track the

27 development of deaf and hard-of-hearing children's expressive
28 and receptive language acquisition and developmental stages
29 toward American sign language and English literacy.
30 (3) Be appropriate in both content and administration for
31 use with deaf and hard-of-hearing children.
32 *b.* Educator tools or assessments selected under this
33 subsection may do either of the following:
34 (1) Be used, in addition to any assessment required by
35 federal law, by the child's individualized family service plan

PAGE 4

1 or individualized education program team, as applicable, to
2 track deaf and hard-of-hearing children's progress in improving
3 expressive and receptive language skills, and to establish or
4 modify individualized family service plans or individualized
5 education programs.
6 (2) Reflect the recommendations of the advisory committee
7 convened under subsection 5.
8 *4. Dissemination.* The early language development
9 consultant shall disseminate the parent resource developed
10 pursuant to this section to parents and guardians of deaf and
11 hard-of-hearing children and, consistent with federal law,
12 shall disseminate the educator tools and assessments selected
13 pursuant to subsection 3 to early hearing detection and
14 invention programs, area education agencies, school districts,
15 accredited nonpublic schools, and the state school for the deaf
16 for use in the development and modification of individualized
17 family service or individualized education program plans,
18 and shall provide materials and training on the use of such
19 materials to assist deaf and hard-of-hearing children in
20 kindergarten readiness using American sign language or English,
21 or both, from birth through age eight.
22 *5. Advisory committee.*
23 *a.* The department of education shall establish and consult
24 with an advisory committee for purposes of soliciting input,
25 including input from experts on the selection of language
26 developmental milestones for children who are deaf or
27 hard-of-hearing that are equivalent to those for children who
28 are not deaf or hard-of-hearing, for inclusion in the parent
29 resource developed and disseminated to parents and guardians
30 pursuant to this section. The early language development
31 consultant shall provide staffing and administrative support
32 to the advisory committee and shall provide the committee
33 with a list of existing language developmental milestones
34 from existing standardized norms, along with any relevant
35 information held by the department regarding those language

PAGE 5

1 developmental milestones for possible inclusion in the parent
2 resource developed pursuant to this section.

- 3 b. The advisory committee shall do all of the following:
- 4 (1) Make recommendations on the selection and use of the
 5 educator tools or assessments selected pursuant to subsection
 6 3.
- 7 (2) Advise the department or its consultants on the content
 8 and administration of existing evaluation and assessment tools,
 9 instruments, and procedures used to assess the development
 10 of children with disabilities pursuant to federal law, and
 11 to assess deaf and hard-of-hearing children's language and
 12 literacy development to ensure the appropriate use of such
 13 tools, instruments, and procedures with such children, and may
 14 make recommendations regarding future research to improve the
 15 measurement of progress of deaf and hard-of-hearing children in
 16 language and literacy development.
- 17 (3) Develop a process in compliance with federal law for
 18 plan modifications if a deaf or hard-of-hearing child does not
 19 demonstrate adequate yearly progress in improving expressive
 20 and receptive language skills, as measured by an educator tool
 21 or assessment selected pursuant to subsection 3.
- 22 (4) The advisory committee shall consist of seven
 23 volunteers, the majority of whom shall be deaf or
 24 hard-of-hearing, and all of whom shall have experience
 25 or involvement within the field of education for the
 26 deaf and hard-of-hearing or relating directly to deaf and
 27 hard-of-hearing children. The advisory committee shall include
 28 all of the following members:
- 29 (a) One parent or guardian of a child who is deaf or
 30 hard-of-hearing and who uses both American sign language and
 31 English or who uses spoken English.
- 32 (b) One licensed teacher who uses American sign language and
 33 English.
- 34 (c) One licensed teacher who uses spoken English.
- 35 (d) One person who shall be the parent or guardian of a deaf

PAGE 6

- 1 or hard-of-hearing child or an interpreter, speech pathologist,
 2 teacher of the deaf, human rights advocate, child advocate, or
 3 licensed education administrator.
- 4 (e) One advocate for the deaf or an advocate of American
 5 sign language.
- 6 (f) One American sign language specialist, American sign
 7 language professor, or native signer recommended by the Iowa
 8 association of the deaf and the office of deaf services of the
 9 department of human rights.
- 10 (g) One speech pathologist whose expertise is in spoken
 11 English, or an early interventionist who uses spoken English.
- 12 c. The early language development consultant shall
 13 convene the advisory committee by March 1, 2021, and as
 14 frequently thereafter as the consultant deems necessary
 15 for purposes of this section. The advisory committee shall
 16 submit recommendations to the state board of education by

17 July 1, 2021, shall submit recommendations relating to plan
 18 modifications developed pursuant to paragraph “b”, subparagraph
 19 (3), to the state board of education and to the general
 20 assembly by December 1, 2021, and shall submit recommendations
 21 thereafter as the consultant deems necessary.
 22 6. *Activities* — *consistent with federal law*. All activities
 23 of the department of education in implementing this section
 24 shall be consistent with federal law for the education of
 25 children from birth to eight years of age, inclusive.
 26 7. *Annual report*. The department of education shall
 27 annually compile, and publish on the department’s internet
 28 site, a report using existing data reported in compliance
 29 with the state performance plan on pupils with disabilities,
 30 required under federal law, that is specific to language and
 31 literacy development in deaf and hard-of-hearing children
 32 from birth to eight years of age, inclusive, including those
 33 children who are deaf or hard-of-hearing and have other
 34 disabilities, relative to the children’s peers who are not deaf
 35 or hard-of-hearing.

PAGE 7

1 8. *Definitions*. For purposes of this section, unless the
 2 context otherwise requires:
 3 a. “*English*” includes spoken English, written English, or
 4 English with the use of visual supplements.
 5 b. “*Federal law*” means the federal Individuals with
 6 Disabilities Education Act, as amended by the federal
 7 Individuals with Disabilities Improvement Act, Pub. L. No.
 8 108-446, 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq., as amended.>

SALMON of Black Hawk
 GASSMAN of Winnebago
 HANUSA of Pottawattamie
 JACOBSEN of Pottawattamie

H-8068

1 Amend House File 2554 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 6, by striking <709.8, or 709.12,> and
 3 inserting <or 709.8,>
 4 2. Page 1, line 18, by striking <709.8, or 709.12> and
 5 inserting <or 709.8>
 6 3. Page 1, line 34, by striking <709.8, or 709.12> and
 7 inserting <or 709.8>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8069

1 Amend House File 2585 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and

3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 34.2, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
5 amended to read as follows:

6 4. A 911 system shall be capable of transmitting requests
7 for law enforcement, fire fighting, and emergency medical
8 and ambulance services to a public safety agency or agencies
9 that provide the requested service at the place where the call
10 originates. A 911 system may also provide for transmitting
11 requests for emergency management, poison control, suicide
12 prevention, and other emergency services. The public safety
13 answering point shall be capable of receiving calls from deaf
14 and hard-of-hearing persons through a telecommunications device
15 for the deaf and hard of hearing. Conferencing capability
16 with counseling, aid to persons with disabilities, and other
17 services as deemed necessary for identifying appropriate
18 emergency response services may be provided by the 911 service.

19 A public safety answering point may transmit emergency
20 response requests to private safety entities.

21 Sec. 2. Section 34A.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
22 follows:

23 **34A.9 Telecommunications devices for the speech impaired and
24 hearing-impaired deaf and hard of hearing.**

25 Each public safety answering point shall provide for the
26 installation and use of telecommunications devices for the
27 speech impaired and hearing-impaired deaf and hard of hearing.

28 Sec. 3. Section 135L.2, subsection 1, paragraph a,
29 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

30 (1) A video, to be developed by a person selected through a
31 request for proposals process or other contractual agreement,
32 which provides information regarding the various options
33 available to a pregnant minor with regard to the pregnancy,
34 including a decision to continue the pregnancy to term and
35 retain parental rights following the child's birth, a decision

PAGE 2

1 to continue the pregnancy to term and place the child for
2 adoption following the child's birth, and a decision to
3 terminate the pregnancy through abortion. The video shall
4 provide the information in a manner and language, including
5 but not limited to the use of closed captioning for the
6 hearing-impaired deaf and hard of hearing, which could be
7 understood by a minor.

8 Sec. 4. Section 147.14, subsection 1, paragraph u, Code
9 2020, is amended to read as follows:

10 u. For sign language interpreting and transliterating, four
11 members licensed to practice interpreting and transliterating,
12 three of whom shall be practicing interpreters and
13 transliterators at the time of appointment to the board and
14 at least one of whom is employed in an educational setting;
15 and three members who are consumers of interpreting or
16 transliterating services as defined in section 154E.1, each of

17 whom shall be deaf or hard of hearing.

18 Sec. 5. Section 216A.113, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
19 amended to read as follows:

20 1. The commission of deaf services is established, and shall
21 consist of seven voting members appointed by the governor,
22 subject to confirmation by the senate pursuant to section
23 2.32. Membership of the commission shall include at least four
24 members who are deaf ~~and who cannot hear human speech with or~~
25 ~~without use of amplification~~ and at least one member who is
26 hard of hearing. All members shall reside in Iowa.

27 Sec. 6. Section 235A.15, subsection 2, paragraph c,
28 subparagraph (5), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

29 (5) To the superintendent of the Iowa school for the deaf
30 if the data concerns a person employed or being considered for
31 employment or living in the school.

32 Sec. 7. Section 256B.3, subsection 9, Code 2020, is amended
33 to read as follows:

34 9. To cooperate with existing agencies such as the
35 department of human services, the Iowa department of public

PAGE 3

1 health, the ~~state~~ Iowa school for the deaf, the Iowa braille
2 and sight saving school, the children's hospitals, or other
3 agencies concerned with the welfare and health of children
4 requiring special education in the coordination of their
5 educational activities for such children.

6 Sec. 8. Section 262.7, subsection 5, Code 2020, is amended
7 to read as follows:

8 5. The ~~state~~ Iowa school for the deaf.

9 Sec. 9. Section 262.9, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
10 to read as follows:

11 2. Elect a president of each of the institutions of higher
12 learning; a superintendent of each of the other institutions;
13 a treasurer and a secretarial officer for each institution
14 annually; professors, instructors, officers, and employees;
15 and fix their compensation. Sections 279.12 through 279.19
16 and section 279.27 apply to employees of the Iowa braille and
17 sight saving school and the ~~state~~ Iowa school for the deaf,
18 who are licensed pursuant to chapter 272. In following those
19 sections in chapter 279, the references to boards of directors
20 of school districts shall be interpreted to apply to the board
21 of regents.

22 Sec. 10. Section 262.43, Code 2020, is amended to read as
23 follows:

24 **262.43 Students residing on state-owned land.**

25 The state board of regents shall pay to the local school
26 boards the tuition payments and transportation costs, as
27 otherwise authorized by statutes for the elementary or high
28 school education of students residing on land owned by the
29 state and under the control of the state board of regents.

30 Such payments for the three institutions of higher learning,

31 the state university of Iowa, the Iowa state university of
 32 science and technology, and the university of northern Iowa,
 33 shall be made from the funds of the respective institutions
 34 other than state appropriations, and for the two noncollegiate
 35 institutions, the Iowa braille and sight saving school and the

PAGE 4

1 state Iowa school for the deaf, the payments and costs shall be
 2 paid from moneys appropriated to the state board of regents.
 3 Sec. 11. Section 263.11, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 4 to read as follows:

5 2. Persons who are not eligible for admission to the schools
 6 already established for persons with an intellectual disability
 7 or epilepsy or persons who are deaf or hard of hearing or
 8 blind.

9 Sec. 12. Section 270.1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 10 follows:

11 **270.1 Superintendent.**

12 The superintendent of the school for the deaf shall be
 13 a trained and experienced educator of the deaf and hard of
 14 hearing. The superintendent's salary may include residence in
 15 the institution, but no such allowance shall be made except by
 16 express contract in advance.

17 Sec. 13. Section 270.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 18 follows:

19 **270.3 Admission.**

20 Any resident of the state less than twenty-one years of
 21 age, who has a hearing loss which is too severe to acquire an
 22 education in the public schools is eligible to attend the Iowa
 23 school for the deaf. Nonresidents similarly situated may be
 24 admitted to an education therein upon such terms as may be
 25 fixed by the state board of regents. The fee for nonresidents
 26 shall be not less than the average expense of resident pupils
 27 and shall be paid in advance.

28 Sec. 14. Section 270.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 29 follows:

30 **270.9 School Iowa school for the deaf and the Iowa braille**
 31 **and sight saving school.**

32 Funds appropriated to the Iowa school for the deaf and
 33 the Iowa braille and sight saving school for payments to the
 34 parents or guardians of pupils in either institution shall be
 35 expended as follows:

PAGE 5

- 1 1. Transportation reimbursement at a rate established
- 2 annually by the state board of regents to the parents or
- 3 guardians of children who do not reside in the institution, but
- 4 are transported to the institution on a daily basis.
- 5 2. Transportation reimbursement at a rate established
- 6 annually by the state board of regents to the parents or

7 guardians for transportation from the institution to the
 8 residence of the parent or guardian and return to the
 9 institution for children who reside in the institution.
 10 Sec. 15. Section 270.10, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 11 to read as follows:
 12 1. The state board of regents shall not merge the Iowa
 13 school for the deaf at Council Bluffs with the Iowa braille
 14 and sight saving school at Vinton or close either of those
 15 institutions until all of the following requirements have been
 16 met:
 17 a. The department of management has presented to the general
 18 assembly a comprehensive plan, program, and fiscal analysis of
 19 the existing circumstances and the circumstances which would
 20 prevail upon the proposed merger or closing, together with
 21 data which would support the contention that the merger or
 22 closing will be more efficient and effective than continuation
 23 of the existing facilities. The analysis shall include a
 24 detailed study of the educational implications of the merger
 25 or closing, the impact on the students, and the opinions and
 26 research of nationally recognized experts in the field of the
 27 education of visually impaired and deaf or hard-of-hearing
 28 students. The comprehensive plan shall further include a
 29 study relating to the programming, fiscal consequences, and
 30 political implications which would result if either a merger or
 31 an agreement under chapter 28E should be implemented between
 32 the Iowa school for the deaf in Council Bluffs and comparable
 33 state programs in the state of Nebraska.
 34 b. The general assembly has studied the plans, programs, and
 35 fiscal analysis and has reviewed their impact on the programs.

PAGE 6

1 c. The general assembly has enacted legislation authorizing
 2 either the closing or the merger to take effect not sooner than
 3 two years after the enactment of the legislation.
 4 Sec. 16. Section 280.16, subsection 7, Code 2020, is amended
 5 to read as follows:
 6 7. The Iowa braille and sight saving school, the state Iowa
 7 school for the deaf, and the institutions under the control of
 8 the department of human services as provided in section 218.1
 9 are exempt from the provisions of this section.
 10 Sec. 17. Section 299.18, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 11 follows:
 12 **299.18 Education of certain children who are deaf or hard of**
 13 **hearing, blind, or have severe disabilities.**
 14 Children who are of compulsory attendance age and who are
 15 so deaf or hard of hearing, or blind, or have such severe
 16 disabilities so as to be unable to obtain an education in the
 17 public or accredited nonpublic schools shall be sent to the
 18 appropriate state-operated school, or shall receive appropriate
 19 special education under chapter 256B, unless exempted, and
 20 any person having such a child under the person's control or

21 custody shall see that the child attends the state-operated
22 school or special education program during the scholastic year.

23 Sec. 18. Section 299.19, Code 2020, is amended to read as
24 follows:

25 **299.19 Proceeding against parent.**

26 Upon the failure of a person having the custody and control
27 of a child who is blind, deaf or hard of hearing, or has severe
28 disabilities to require the child's attendance as provided in
29 section 299.18, the state board of regents may make application
30 to the district court or the juvenile court of the county in
31 which the person resides for an order requiring the person to
32 compel the attendance of the child at the proper state-operated
33 school.

34 Sec. 19. Section 299.22, Code 2020, is amended to read as
35 follows:

PAGE 7

1 **299.22 When deaf or hard of hearing and blind children**
2 **excused.**

3 Attendance at the state-operated school may be excused when
4 the superintendent of the state-operated school certifies that
5 an interdisciplinary staffing team has determined, pursuant to
6 the requirements of chapter 256B, that the child is efficiently
7 taught for the scholastic year in an accredited nonpublic or
8 other school devoted to the instruction, by a private tutor, in
9 the public schools, or is shown to be physically or mentally
10 unable to attend school under section 299.5.

11 Sec. 20. Section 299.23, Code 2020, is amended to read as
12 follows:

13 **299.23 Agent of state board of regents.**

14 The state board of regents may employ an agent to aid in
15 the enforcement of law relative to the education of deaf or
16 hard-of-hearing children and blind children. The agent shall
17 seek out children who should be in attendance at the state
18 schools but who are not, and require such attendance. The
19 agent shall institute proceedings against persons who violate
20 the provisions of said law. The agent shall be allowed
21 compensation at a rate fixed by the board of regents, and
22 necessary traveling and hotel expenses while away from home in
23 the performance of duty.

24 Sec. 21. Section 331.381, subsection 9, Code 2020, is
25 amended to read as follows:

26 9. Comply with chapters 269 and 270 in regard to the payment
27 of costs for pupils at the Iowa braille and sight saving school
28 and the Iowa school for the deaf.

29 Sec. 22. Section 331.502, subsection 15, Code 2020, is
30 amended to read as follows:

31 15. Carry out duties relating to the collection and payment
32 of funds for educating and supporting deaf and hard-of-hearing
33 students as provided in sections 270.6 and 270.7.

34 Sec. 23. Section 331.552, subsection 13, Code 2020, is

35 amended to read as follows:

PAGE 8

1 13. Make transfer payments to the state for school expenses
2 for blind and deaf and hard-of-hearing children and support of
3 persons with mental illness as provided in sections 230.21,
4 269.2, and 270.7.

5 Sec. 24. Section 477C.2, subsections 2 and 5, Code 2020, are
6 amended to read as follows:

7 2. "*Communication impairment*" means the inability to use the
8 telephone for communication without a telecommunications device
9 for the deaf and hard of hearing.

10 5. "*Telecommunications device for the deaf and hard of*
11 *hearing*" means any specialized or supplemental telephone
12 equipment used by communication-impaired persons to provide
13 access to the telephone system.

14 Sec. 25. Section 477C.4, Code 2020, is amended to read as
15 follows:

16 **477C.4 Telecommunications devices for the deaf and hard of**
17 **hearing**.

18 With the advice of the council, the board may plan,
19 establish, administer, and promote a program to secure,
20 finance, and distribute telecommunications devices for the
21 deaf and hard of hearing. The board may establish eligibility
22 criteria for persons to receive telecommunications devices
23 for the deaf and hard of hearing, including, but not limited
24 to, requiring certification that the recipient cannot use the
25 telephone for communication without a telecommunications device
26 for the deaf and hard of hearing.

27 Sec. 26. Section 483A.24, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
28 amended to read as follows:

29 7. A license shall not be required of minor pupils of the
30 state school for the blind, state Iowa school for the deaf,
31 or of minor residents of other state institutions under the
32 control of an administrator of a division of the department
33 of human services. In addition, a person who is on active
34 duty with the armed forces of the United States, on authorized
35 leave from a duty station located outside of this state, and

PAGE 9

1 a resident of the state of Iowa shall not be required to
2 have a license to hunt or fish in this state. The military
3 person shall carry the person's leave papers and a copy of
4 the person's current earnings statement showing a deduction
5 for Iowa income taxes while hunting or fishing. In lieu of
6 carrying the person's earnings statement, the military person
7 may also claim residency if the person is registered to vote
8 in this state. If a deer or wild turkey is taken, the military
9 person shall immediately contact a state conservation officer
10 to obtain an appropriate tag to transport the animal. A

11 license shall not be required of residents of county care
 12 facilities or any person who is receiving supplementary
 13 assistance under chapter 249.

14 Sec. 27. CODE EDITOR'S DIRECTIVE. The Code editor
 15 shall correct and eliminate any references to the term
 16 "hearing impaired" or other forms of the term and shall
 17 update references anywhere else in the Iowa Code, in any
 18 bills awaiting codification, and in any bills enacted by the
 19 Eighty-eighth General Assembly, 2020 Regular Session, or any
 20 extraordinary session, in accordance with this Act.

21 Sec. 28. ADMINISTRATIVE CODE EDITOR DIRECTIVE. The
 22 administrative rules coordinator and the administrative rules
 23 review committee, in consultation with the administrative code
 24 editor, shall jointly develop a schedule for the necessary
 25 updating of the Iowa administrative code to update references
 26 in accordance with this Act.>

27 2. By renumbering as necessary.

JACOBSEN of Pottawattamie

H-8070

1 Amend House File 2527 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

3 <Section 1. Section 549.3, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:

5 1. A performing rights society shall not enter onto the
 6 business premises of a proprietor for the purpose of discussing
 7 a contract for the payment of royalties by the proprietor,
 8 ~~unless the performing rights society identifies itself to~~
 9 ~~the proprietor and describes to the proprietor the purpose~~
 10 ~~for entering onto the proprietor's business premises the~~
 11 performing rights society first makes an appointment to meet
 12 with the proprietor at the business premises during normal
 13 business hours. Upon entering onto the business premises, the
 14 performing rights society shall clearly identify itself to
 15 the proprietor and describe to the proprietor the purpose for
 16 entering onto the business premises. Sec. ____.

17 Section 549.5, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 18 follows:

19 **549.5 Improper licensing practices.**

20 A performing rights society shall not do any of the
 21 following:

22 1. A performing rights society shall not collect, Collect
 23 or attempt to collect, from a proprietor licensed by that
 24 performing rights society, a royalty payment except as provided
 25 in a contract executed pursuant to the provisions of this
 26 chapter.

28 2. Make a misleading or threatening verbal or written
 29 communication to a proprietor in connection with a contract for
 30 the payment of royalties or an attempt to collect royalties.

31 3. State or imply in a verbal or written communication with

31 a proprietor that the performing rights society is an agent
 32 or representative of a public body, regulatory agency, or law
 33 enforcement agency.>
 34 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 35 <An Act relating to the exhibition of music, including the

PAGE 2

1 practices of performing rights societies and the advertising,
 2 promoting, and conducting of certain live musical performances,
 3 and making penalties applicable.>
 4 3. By renumbering as necessary.

BEARINGER of Fayette
 LUNDGREN of Dubuque
 McKEAN of Jones

H-8071

1 Amend the amendment, H-8069, to House File 2585 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 23 through 27 and inserting:
 3 <**34A.9 Telecommunications devices for the persons with speech**
 4 **disorders and hearing-impaired the deaf and hard of hearing.**
 5 Each public safety answering point shall provide for the
 6 installation and use of telecommunications devices for the
 7 persons with speech disorders and hearing-impaired for the deaf
 8 and hard of hearing.>
 9 2. Page 1, after line 27 by inserting:
 10 <Sec. ___. Section 100.18, subsection 2, paragraph c, Code
 11 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 12 c. An owner or an owner's agent of a multiple-unit
 13 residential building or single-family dwelling shall supply
 14 light-emitting smoke detectors, upon request, for a tenant ~~with~~
 15 ~~a who is deaf or hard of hearing impairment.~~
 16 Sec. ___. Section 100.18, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
 17 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 18 c. An owner of a multiple-unit residential building or
 19 a single-family rental unit that has a fuel-fired heater or
 20 appliance, a fireplace, or an attached garage, or an owner's
 21 agent, shall supply light-emitting carbon monoxide alarms, upon
 22 request, for a tenant ~~with a who is deaf or hard of hearing~~
 23 ~~impairment.>~~
 24 3. Page 2, after line 17 by inserting:
 25 <Sec. ___. Section 154A.1, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 26 amended to read as follows:
 27 4. "*Hearing aid*" means a wearable instrument or device
 28 designed for or offered for the purpose of aiding or
 29 compensating for ~~impaired~~ human hearing disorders, and any
 30 parts, attachments, or accessories, including earmold, but
 31 excluding batteries and cords.
 32 Sec. ___. Section 154A.24, subsection 3, paragraph p, Code
 33 2020, is amended to read as follows:

34 p. Stating or implying that the use of a hearing aid will
35 restore normal hearing or preserve hearing or prevent or retard

PAGE 2

1 progressions of hearing ~~impairment~~ disorders or any other false
2 or misleading claim regarding the use or benefit of a hearing
3 aid.>

4 4. Page 8, after line 4 by inserting:
5 <Sec. _____. Section 477C.1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
6 follows:

7 **477C.1 Dual party relay service — purpose.**
8 The general assembly finds that the provision of a statewide
9 dual party relay service will further the public interest and
10 protect the health, safety, and welfare of the people of Iowa
11 through an increase in the usefulness and availability of the
12 telephone system. Many persons who are deaf, hard-of-hearing,
13 or have speech ~~impairments~~ disorders are not able to utilize
14 the telephone system without this type of service. Therefore,
15 it is the purpose of this chapter to enable the orderly
16 development, operation, promotion, and funding of a statewide
17 dual party relay service.>

18 5. Page 8, by striking lines 5 through 13 and inserting:
19 <Sec. _____. Section 477C.2, subsections 2, 4, and 5, Code
20 2020, are amended to read as follows:

21 2. “Communication ~~impairment disorder~~” means the
22 inability to use the telephone for communication without a
23 telecommunications device for the deaf and hard of hearing.

24 4. “Dual party relay service” or “relay service” means a
25 communication service which provides ~~communication-impaired~~
26 persons with communication disorders access to the telephone
27 system functionally equivalent to the access available to
28 persons ~~not communication-impaired~~ without communication
29 disorders.

30 5. “Telecommunications device for the deaf and hard of
31 hearing” means any specialized or supplemental telephone
32 equipment used by ~~communication-impaired~~ persons with
33 communication disorders to provide access to the telephone
34 system.

35 Sec. _____. Section 477C.3, subsection 2, Code 2020, is

PAGE 3

1 amended to read as follows:
2 2. The relay service, to the extent reasonably possible,
3 shall allow persons with communication ~~impairments~~ disorders to
4 use the telephone system in a manner and at a rate equivalent
5 to persons without communication ~~impairments~~ disorders.>

6 6. Page 8, after line 26 by inserting:
7 <Sec. _____. Section 477C.5, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
8 2020, is amended to read as follows:

9 a. Six consumers who have communication ~~impairments~~

10 disorders.>

11 7. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
12 references as necessary.

JACOBSEN of Pottawattamie

H-8072

1 Amend the amendment, S-5005, to Senate File 2142, as passed
2 by the Senate, as follows:
3 1. Page 1, line 3, by striking <one-half> and inserting
4 <three-tenths>
5 2. Page 1, line 5, by striking <one-half> and inserting
6 <three-tenths>
7 3. Page 1, after line 5 by inserting:
8 <__. Page 4, after line 26 by inserting:
9 <Sec. __. CODE SECTION 257.8 — IMPLEMENTATION. The
10 requirements of section 257.8, subsections 1 and 2, regarding
11 the enactment of bills establishing the state percent of growth
12 and the categorical state percent of growth within thirty
13 days of the transmission of the governor's budget required by
14 February 1 under section 8.21 during the regular legislative
15 session beginning in the base year, do not apply to this Act.>
16 __. By renumbering as necessary.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8073

1 Amend Senate File 388, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 1, by striking <Iowa patriots memorial> and
3 inserting <Medal of honor>
4 2. Page 1, line 5, by striking <"Iowa Patriots Memorial"> and
5 inserting <"Medal of Honor">
6 3. Title page, line 1, by striking <Iowa patriots memorial>
7 and inserting <medal of honor>

COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

H-8074

1 Amend House File 2542 as follows:
2 1. Page 16, line 27, by striking <100 and 101> and inserting
3 <9 and 10>
4 2. Page 16, line 33, by striking <100 and 101> and inserting
5 <9 and 10>
6 3. Page 17, line 1, by striking <100 or 101> and inserting
7 <9 or 10>

BEST of Carroll

H-8075

1 Amend the amendment, H-8055, to House File 2518 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 22 and inserting:
 3 <__. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:
 5 <Sec. __. Section 331.907, subsections 1 and 3, Code 2020,
 6 are amended to read as follows:
 7 1. The annual compensation of the auditor, treasurer,
 8 recorder, sheriff, and county attorney, ~~and supervisors~~
 9 shall be determined as provided in this section. The county
 10 compensation board annually shall review the compensation
 11 paid to comparable officers in other counties of this state,
 12 other states, private enterprise, and the federal government.
 13 In setting the salary of the county sheriff, the county
 14 compensation board shall consider setting the sheriff's salary
 15 so that it is comparable to salaries paid to professional
 16 law enforcement administrators and command officers of the
 17 state patrol, the division of criminal investigation of the
 18 department of public safety, and city police agencies in
 19 this state. The county compensation board shall prepare
 20 a compensation schedule for the specified elective county
 21 officers for the succeeding fiscal year. A recommended
 22 compensation schedule requires a majority vote of the
 23 membership of the county compensation board.
 24 3. The board of supervisors shall determine the
 25 compensation paid to supervisors. The board of supervisors
 26 shall consider current market factors when determining the
 27 compensation paid to supervisors. The board of supervisors
 28 shall hold a public hearing regarding a proposed compensation
 29 schedule for supervisors before the board of supervisors may
 30 vote to approve the proposed compensation schedule. The board
 31 of supervisors may adopt a decrease in compensation paid to
 32 supervisors irrespective of ~~the county compensation board's~~
 33 ~~recommended compensation schedule or other approved changes in~~
 34 compensation paid to other elected county officers. A decrease
 35 in compensation paid to supervisors shall be adopted by the

PAGE 2

1 board of supervisors no less than thirty days before the county
 2 budget is certified under section 24.17.>>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8076

1 Amend House File 2375 as follows:
 2 1. Page 3, line 31, before <situation> by inserting
 3 <situation, or public transit personnel responding to a
 4 transit-specific>
 5 2. Page 5, line 27, before <situation> by inserting

6 <situation, or public transit personnel responding to a
7 transit-specific>

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8077

1 Amend House File 2417 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 10, after <adopt> by inserting <a child up
3 to six years of age>

BOSSMAN of Woodbury

H-8078

1 Amend Senate File 2225, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 9 through 17.
3 2. Title page, line 1, by striking <offenses> and inserting
4 <offense>
5 3. Title page, line 2, by striking <and robbery in the first
6 degree>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8079

1 Amend the amendment, H-8068, to House File 2554 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 2 through 7 and inserting:
3 <__. Page 1, by striking line 6 and inserting <violation of
4 section 709.3 or 709.4, with the>
5 __. Page 1, by striking line 18 and inserting <abuse in
6 violation of section 709.3 or 709.4>
7 __. Page 1, lines 33 and 34, by striking <709.3, 709.4,
8 709.8, or 709.12> and inserting <709.3 or 709.4>>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8080

1 Amend the amendment, H-8043, to House File 2492, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, by striking line 7, and inserting <examination
3 appointment, if the appointment is scheduled no later than
4 ninety days>

OSMUNDSON of Clayton
WILBURN of Story

H-8081

1 Amend House File 2503 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 4 through 6 and inserting
3 <who is the subject of a nonviolent sexual advance who commits

4 a violent crime, as defined in section 915.10, upon another
 5 person as the result of that sexual advance or>
 6 2. Title page, lines 1 and 2, by striking <certain homicide
 7 offenses> and inserting <violent crimes>

KAUFMANN of Cedar
 BENNETT of Linn

H-8082

1 Amend House File 2504 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. INTERIM STUDY COMMITTEE ON HATE CRIMES AND HATE
 5 SPEECH IN IOWA.

6 1. The legislative council is requested to establish a study
 7 committee for the 2020 interim to examine occurrences of hate
 8 crimes and hate speech in this state, including but not limited
 9 to acts of racism, bigotry, antisemitism, Islamophobia, and
 10 other actions based on animus toward a person's race, religion
 11 or creed, national origin or ancestry, sex, or disability.

12 2. The study committee shall seek to identify the causes of
 13 hate crimes and hate speech in this state, any trends in the
 14 rate of occurrence of such acts, and solutions for reducing
 15 such occurrences. The study committee shall seek input from
 16 affected stakeholders.

17 3. The study committee shall consist of five members of
 18 the senate, three of whom shall be appointed by the majority
 19 leader of the senate and two of whom shall be appointed by
 20 the minority leader of the senate, and five members of the
 21 house of representatives, three of whom shall be appointed by
 22 the speaker of the house of representatives and two of whom
 23 shall be appointed by the minority leader of the house of
 24 representatives.

25 4. The interim committee shall submit its findings and
 26 recommendations in a report to the general assembly by January
 27 11, 2021.>

28 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting <An
 29 Act requesting an interim study committee on hate crimes and
 30 hate speech in Iowa.>

ABDUL-SAMAD of Polk

H-8083

1 Amend House File 2573 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

3 <DIVISION I
 4 AIRCRAFT SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION>

5 2. Page 1, after line 19 by inserting:

6 <DIVISION ____
 7 FUTURE AMENDMENTS

8 Sec. ____ Section 423.3, subsections 74 and 76, Code 2020,
9 are amended by striking the subsections and inserting in lieu
10 thereof the following:

11 74. The sales price from the sale of aircraft for use
12 in a scheduled interstate federal aviation administration
13 certificated air carrier operation.

14 76. The sales price from the sale or rental of tangible
15 personal property permanently affixed or attached as a
16 component part of the aircraft, including but not limited
17 to repair or replacement materials or parts; and the sales
18 price of all services used for aircraft repair, remodeling,
19 and maintenance services when such services are performed on
20 aircraft, aircraft engines, or aircraft component materials or
21 parts. For the purposes of this exemption, "aircraft" means
22 aircraft used in nonscheduled interstate federal aviation
23 administration certificated air carrier operation operating
24 under 14 C.F.R. ch. 1, pt. 135.

25 Sec. ____ Section 423.3, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
26 following new subsection:

27 NEW SUBSECTION. 75. The sales price from the sale or rental
28 of aircraft; the sale or rental of tangible personal property
29 permanently affixed or attached as a component part of the
30 aircraft, including but not limited to repair or replacement
31 materials or parts; and the sales price of all services used
32 for aircraft repair, remodeling, and maintenance services when
33 such services are performed on aircraft, aircraft engines, or
34 aircraft component materials or parts. For the purposes of
35 this exemption, "aircraft" means aircraft used in a scheduled

PAGE 2

1 interstate federal aviation administration certificated air
2 carrier operation.

3 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act takes
4 effect July 1, 2026.>

5 3. Title page, line 3, after <aircraft> by inserting <, and
6 including effective date provisions>

7 4. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8084

1 Amend House File 737, as passed by the House, as follows:

2 1. Page 2, line 6, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

3 2. Page 2, line 10, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

4 3. Page 3, line 12, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

5 4. Page 3, lines 33 and 34, by striking <practicing
6 veterinary medicine as provided in chapter 169> and inserting
7 <practicing veterinary medicine as provided in chapter 169>

8 5. Page 4, line 18, after <issued> by inserting <or renewed>

9 6. Page 5, line 9, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

10 7. Page 6, by striking lines 16 through 21 and inserting:
 11 <2. This section does not apply to a any of the following:
 12 a. A person issued or renewed an authorization to operate
 13 a commercial establishment, or a person acting under the
 14 direction or supervision of that person, if all of the
 15 following apply:
 16 (1) The animal, as described in subsection 1, was maintained
 17 as part of the commercial establishment's operation.
 18 (2) In providing conditions for the welfare of the animal,
 19 as described in subsection 1, the person complied with the
 20 standard of care requirements provided in section 162.10A,
 21 subsection 1, including any applicable rules adopted by the
 22 department applying to any of the following:
 23 (a) A state licensee or registrant operating pursuant to
 24 section 162.10A, subsection 2, paragraph "a" or "b".
 25 (b) A permittee operating pursuant to section 162.10A,
 26 subsection 2, paragraph "c".
 27 b. A research facility, as defined in section 162.2,
 28 provided that if the research facility has been issued or
 29 renewed a valid authorization by the department pursuant
 30 to chapter 162, and performs functions within the scope of
 31 accepted practices and disciplines associated with the research
 32 facility.>
 33 8. Page 7, line 9, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 34 9. Page 7, lines 20 and 21, by striking <practicing

35 ~~veterinary medicine as provided in chapter 169~~> and inserting

PAGE 2

1 <practicing veterinary medicine as provided in chapter 169>
 2 10. Page 8, line 10, after <issued> by inserting <or
 3 renewed>
 4 11. Page 9, by striking lines 9 and 10 and inserting:
 5 <4. a. A person who commits animal torture is guilty of an
 6 aggravated misdemeanor.>
 7 12. Page 9, line 11, by striking <5.> and inserting <b.>
 8 13. Page 9, line 11, by striking <subsection 4> and
 9 inserting <paragraph "a">
 10 14. Page 9, line 12, by striking <"C"> and inserting <"D">
 11 15. Page 9, after line 19 by inserting:
 12 <c. (1) A person convicted of animal torture shall also
 13 be sentenced, in addition to any other punishment provided
 14 by law, to an additional term of confinement committing the
 15 person into the custody of the director of the department of
 16 corrections for a period of not less than one year but not more
 17 than three years as determined by the court, with eligibility
 18 for parole as provided in chapter 906. The board of parole
 19 shall determine whether the person should be released on parole
 20 or placed in a work release program. The additional term of
 21 confinement imposed under this paragraph shall commence upon
 22 completion of the sentence imposed under paragraph "a" or "b",
 23 or any other applicable criminal sentencing provisions for

24 the underlying criminal offense, and the person shall begin
25 the additional term of confinement under supervision as if on
26 parole or work release. The person shall be placed on the
27 corrections continuum described in chapter 901B, and the terms
28 and conditions of the additional term of confinement, including
29 any violations, shall be subject to the same procedures set
30 forth in chapters 901B, 905, 906, and 908, and rules adopted
31 under those chapters for persons on parole or work release.
32 (2) The revocation of parole or work release may be
33 for a period of up to six months upon a first revocation,
34 and up to one year upon a second or subsequent revocation.
35 Notwithstanding section 903.4, the place of confinement after

PAGE 3

1 any revocation shall be at a correctional institution or
2 facility.>
3 16. Page 10, line 10, by striking <2019> and inserting
4 <2020>
5 17. Page 10, line 22, after <issued> by inserting <or
6 renewed>
7 18. Page 11, after line 2 by inserting:
8 <Sec. ___. Section 901.5, Code 2020, is amended by adding
9 the following new subsection:
10 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 14. In addition to any other sentence or
11 other penalty imposed against the defendant, the court shall
12 impose an additional term of confinement if required under
13 section 717B.3A, subsection 4.
14 Sec. ___. Section 902.12, Code 2020, is amended by adding
15 the following new subsection:
16 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 6. A person serving a sentence for a
17 conviction for animal torture in violation of section 717B.3A
18 that occurs on or after July 1, 2020, shall be denied parole or
19 work release until the person has served seven-tenths of the
20 maximum term of the person's sentence.
21 Sec. ___. Section 907.3, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
22 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
23 **NEW SUBPARAGRAPH.** (15) The offense is a violation of
24 section 717B.3A.
25 Sec. ___. Section 907.3, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
26 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
27 **NEW SUBPARAGRAPH.** (9) The offense is a violation of section
28 717B.3A.
29 Sec. ___. Section 907.3, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
30 by adding the following new paragraph:
31 **NEW PARAGRAPH.** *h.* The offense is a violation of section
32 717B.3A.>
33 19. By renumbering as necessary.

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8085

1 Amend the amendment, H-8055, to House File 2518 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 22 and inserting:
3 <Amend House File 2518 as follows:
4 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
5 inserting:
6 <Section 1. Section 331.907, subsections 1 and 3, Code 2020,
7 are amended to read as follows:
8 1. The annual compensation of the auditor, treasurer,
9 recorder, sheriff, and county attorney, ~~and supervisors~~
10 shall be determined as provided in this section. The county
11 compensation board annually shall review the compensation
12 paid to comparable officers in other counties of this state,
13 other states, private enterprise, and the federal government.
14 In setting the salary of the county sheriff, the county
15 compensation board shall consider setting the sheriff's salary
16 so that it is comparable to salaries paid to professional
17 law enforcement administrators and command officers of the
18 state patrol, the division of criminal investigation of the
19 department of public safety, and city police agencies in
20 this state. The county compensation board shall prepare
21 a compensation schedule for the specified elective county
22 officers for the succeeding fiscal year. A recommended
23 compensation schedule requires a majority vote of the
24 membership of the county compensation board.
25 3. The board of supervisors shall determine the
26 compensation paid to supervisors. The board of supervisors
27 shall consider current market factors when determining the
28 compensation paid to supervisors. The board of supervisors
29 shall hold a public hearing regarding a proposed compensation
30 schedule for supervisors before the board of supervisors may
31 vote to approve the proposed compensation schedule. The board
32 of supervisors may adopt a decrease in compensation paid to
33 supervisors irrespective of ~~the county compensation board's~~
34 ~~recommended compensation schedule or other~~ approved changes in
35 compensation paid to other elected county officers. A decrease

PAGE 2

1 in compensation paid to supervisors shall be adopted by the
2 board of supervisors no less than thirty days before the county
3 budget is certified under section 24.17.>>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8086

1 Amend House File 2506 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 13, by striking <or view of>
3 2. Page 1, lines 14 and 15, by striking <or view of>
4 3. Page 1, line 17, by striking <the rubbing or other>

LOHSE of Polk

H-8087

1 Amend House File 2424 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, line 10, by striking <one hundred eighty-five>
3 and inserting <two hundred twenty-five>

4 2. Page 1, line 11, by striking <two hundred twenty-five>
5 and inserting <two hundred sixty-three>

6 3. Page 1, by striking lines 14 and 15 and inserting <to be
7 at least two hundred twenty-five percent but less than three
8 hundred percent of the federal poverty level applicable to the>

9 4. Page 1, by striking lines 17 through 33 and inserting:

10 <2. a. A family with an income at the following percentages
11 of the federal poverty level applicable to the family size
12 for children needing basic care shall be responsible for the
13 following share of child care costs:

14 (1) A family with an income above two hundred twenty-five
15 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
16 thirty-five percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
17 thirty-three percent of the family child care costs.

18 (2) A family with an income above two hundred thirty-five
19 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
20 forty-five percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
21 forty-five percent of the family child care costs.

22 (3) A family with an income above two hundred forty-five
23 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
24 fifty-five percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
25 sixty percent of the family child care costs.

26 (4) A family with an income above two hundred fifty-five
27 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
28 sixty percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
29 seventy-five percent of the family child care costs.

30 (5) A family with an income above two hundred sixty percent
31 of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
32 sixty-three percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
33 ninety percent of the family child care costs.

34 b. A family with an income at the following percentages of
35 the federal poverty level applicable to the family size for

PAGE 2

1 children needing special needs care shall be responsible for
2 the following share of child care costs:

3 (1) A family with an income above two hundred twenty-five
4 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
5 forty-five percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
6 thirty-three percent of the family child care costs.

7 (2) A family with an income above two hundred forty-five
8 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
9 sixty-five percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
10 forty-five percent of the family child care costs.

11 (3) A family with an income above two hundred sixty-five
12 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred

13 eighty-five percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
 14 sixty percent of the family child care costs.
 15 (4) A family with an income above two hundred eighty-five
 16 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than two hundred
 17 ninety-five percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
 18 seventy-five percent of the family child care costs.
 19 (5) A family with an income above two hundred ninety-five
 20 percent of the federal poverty level but lower than three
 21 hundred percent of the federal poverty level shall pay for
 22 ninety percent of the family child care costs.
 23 c. The graduated eligibility phase-out as provided in
 24 paragraphs “a” and “b” shall be implemented no later than July
 25 1, 2021.>

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8088

1 Amend House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 2, by striking lines 14 through 30 and inserting:
 3 <NEW PARAGRAPH. Oc. For the proceeding subsequent
 4 to the effective date of a rate resulting from a rate
 5 regulatory proceeding utilizing a future test year, the
 6 rules shall establish filing requirements for the subsequent
 7 proceeding, procedural rules, and standards of reasonableness
 8 for determining whether the actual costs and revenues are
 9 reasonably consistent with those approved by the board and if
 10 refunds, reduced rates, or increased rates should be required.
 11 The subsequent proceeding shall be based upon twelve months of
 12 actual data beginning from the date that the rates based upon a
 13 future test year became effective, and the board shall conduct
 14 a hearing within ninety days after the public utility files
 15 the twelve-month data with the board, if the board determines
 16 that a hearing is necessary. The public utility shall file
 17 the twelve-month data within ninety days of the end of the
 18 twelve-month period. The board shall issue a final order
 19 within one hundred twenty days after the public utility files
 20 the twelve-month data required for the subsequent proceeding.>
 21 2. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 22 references as necessary.

CARLSON of Muscatine

H-8089

1 Amend the amendment, H-8082, to House File 2504 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 4 through 27 and inserting:
 3 <Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 729A.2A Hate crime — religion.
 4 For purposes of this chapter, “hate crime”, when committed
 5 against a person or a person’s property because of the person’s
 6 religion, includes but is not limited to a hate crime motivated
 7 by antisemitism, Islamophobia, or discriminatory intent against

8 the religious belief of evangelical Christians, atheists,
 9 agnostics, or a person with any other religious belief.>
 10 2. Page 1, by striking lines 29 and 30 and inserting <Act
 11 concerning hate crimes committed based on a person's religion.>

ABDUL-SAMAD of Polk	BEARINGER of Fayette
BENNETT of Linn	BRECKENRIDGE of Jasper
BROWN-POWERS of Black Hawk	COHOON of Des Moines
DERRY of Polk	DONAHUE of Linn
EHLERT of Linn	FORBES of Polk
GAINES of Polk	GASKILL of Wapello
HALL of Woodbury	HUNTER of Polk
ISENHART of Dubuque	JACOBY of Johnson
JAMES of Dubuque	JUDGE of Dallas
KACENA of Woodbury	KONFRST of Polk
KRESSIG of Black Hawk	KURTZ of Lee
LENSING of Johnson	MASCHER of Johnson
MATSON of Polk	McCONKEY of Pottawattamie
McKEAN of Jones	B. MEYER of Polk
NIELSEN of Johnson	OLDSON of Polk
OLSON of Polk	OURTH of Warren
PRICHARD of Floyd	RUNNING-MARQUARDT of Linn
R. SMITH of Black Hawk	STAED of Linn
STECKMAN of Cerro Gordo	SUNDE of Polk
THEDE of Scott	WESSEL-KROESCHELL of Story
WILBURN of Story	WILLIAMS of Black Hawk
WINCKLER of Scott	WOLFE of Clinton

H-8090

1 Amend House File 2527 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <Section 1. Section 549.3, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:
 5 1. A performing rights society shall not enter onto the
 6 business premises of a proprietor for the purpose of discussing
 7 a contract for the payment of royalties by the proprietor,
 8 unless ~~the performing rights society identifies itself to~~
 9 ~~the proprietor and describes to the proprietor the purpose~~
 10 ~~for entering onto the proprietor's business premises the~~
 11 performing rights society first makes an appointment to meet
 12 with the proprietor at the business premises during normal
 13 business hours. Upon entering onto the business premises, the
 14 performing rights society shall clearly identify itself to
 15 the proprietor and describe to the proprietor the purpose for
 16 entering onto the business premises.
 17 Sec. ____ Section 549.5, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 18 follows:
 19 **549.5 Improper licensing practices.**
 20 A performing rights society shall not do any of the
 21 following:
 22 1. A performing rights society shall not collect, Collect

23 or attempt to collect, from a proprietor licensed by that
 24 performing rights society, a royalty payment except as provided
 25 in a contract executed pursuant to the provisions of this
 26 chapter.
 27 2. Make a misleading or threatening verbal or written
 28 communication to a proprietor in connection with a contract for
 29 the payment of royalties or an attempt to collect royalties.
 30 3. State or imply in a verbal or written communication with
 31 a proprietor that the performing rights society is an agent
 32 or representative of a public body, regulatory agency, or law
 33 enforcement agency.
 34 Sec. _____. Section 549.7, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 35 follows:

PAGE 2

1 **549.7 Remedies — injunction.**
 2 A person who suffers a violation of this chapter may bring
 3 an action to recover reasonable attorney fees and the greater
 4 of two thousand five hundred dollars or actual damages and
 5 reasonable attorney fees and to seek an injunction or any other
 6 available remedy. A person who suffers a violation of this
 7 chapter may also seek an injunction or any other available
 8 remedy.>
 9 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 10 <An Act relating to the exhibition of music, including the
 11 practices of performing rights societies and the advertising,
 12 promoting, and conducting of certain live musical performances,
 13 and making penalties applicable.>
 14 3. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 15 references as necessary.

LUNDGREN of Dubuque
 ZUMBACH of Linn
 BEST of Carroll
 SEXTON of Calhoun
 McKEAN of Jones
 WORTHAN of Buena Vista
 LOHSE of Polk
 MOHR of Scott
 MOORE of Cass

BEARINGER of Fayette
 SIECK of Mills
 HINSON of Linn
 KLEIN of Washington
 HOLT of Crawford
 BACON of Story
 MITCHELL of Henry
 BLOOMINGDALE of Worth

H-8091

1 Amend House File 2594 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 29 and inserting:
 3 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 237A.31 Employer child care tax
 4 credit.
 5 1. The taxes imposed against the income tax imposed under
 6 chapter 422, division II or III, the franchise tax imposed
 7 under chapter 422, division V, the gross premiums tax under
 8 chapter 432, or the moneys and credits tax imposed under

9 section 533.329 shall be reduced by an employer child care tax
 10 credit equal to the amount of the federal employer-provided
 11 child care tax credit provided in section 45F of the Internal
 12 Revenue Code the taxpayer was eligible for in the same tax
 13 year.
 14 2. Any credit in excess of the tax liability is not
 15 refundable but the excess for the tax year may be credited
 16 to the tax liability for the following five years or until
 17 depleted, whichever is earlier.
 18 3. The director of the department of revenue shall adopt
 19 rules pursuant to chapter 17A to administer this section.>
 20 2. Page 1, line 34, by striking <received> and inserting
 21 <allowed>
 22 3. Page 2, line 10, by striking <received> and inserting
 23 <allowed>
 24 4. Page 2, line 15, by striking <received> and inserting
 25 <allowed>
 26 5. Page 2, line 20, by striking <received> and inserting
 27 <allowed>
 28 6. Page 2, line 26, by striking <received> and inserting
 29 <allowed>

BOSSMAN of Woodbury

H-8092

1 Amend House File 2562 as follows:
 2 1. Page 2, line 24, after <2.> by inserting <a.>
 3 2. Page 2, line 29, by striking <a.> and inserting <(1)>
 4 3. Page 2, line 34, by striking <b.> and inserting <(2)>
 5 4. Page 3, after line 7 by inserting:
 6 <b. Prior to providing age-appropriate and research-based
 7 instruction in child sexual abuse and child sexual assault
 8 awareness and prevention as specified in paragraph "a",
 9 subparagraph (2), a school board shall hold three public
 10 information meetings at least two weeks prior to the planned
 11 instruction. The proposed curriculum shall be made available
 12 for review prior to the public information meetings. One
 13 meeting shall be held between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 9:00
 14 a.m., one meeting shall be held between the hours of 5:30 p.m.
 15 and 7:30 p.m., and one meeting shall be set at a time at the
 16 discretion of the school board. Notice of the times and dates
 17 of the meetings shall be posted on the school board's internet
 18 website and social media. The meetings shall provide parents
 19 and members of the public with the curriculum and allow for
 20 questions.>

WHEELER of Sioux

H-8093

1 Amend House File 2562 as follows:

- 2 1. Page 2, line 24, after <2.> by inserting <a.>
 3 2. Page 2, line 29, by striking <a.> and inserting <(1)>
 4 3. Page 2, line 34, by striking <b.> and inserting <(2)>
 5 4. Page 3, after line 7 by inserting:
 6 <b. A parent, guardian, or custodian of a child receiving
 7 instruction as specified in paragraph “a”, subparagraph (2),
 8 shall be allowed to be present during such instruction after
 9 providing notice to the school at least one day prior to the
 10 date of such instruction.>

WHEELER of Sioux

H-8094

- 1 Amend House File 2568 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 18 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. . **NEW SECTION. 235G.1 Definitions.**
 4 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 5 requires:
 6 1. “Disseminate” means the same as defined in section 728.1.
 7 2. “Distributor” means a person who owns or operates an
 8 internet site or internet-based application.
 9 3. “Minor” means a person under the age of eighteen.
 10 4. “Obscene material” means the same as defined in section
 11 728.1.
 12 5. “Personal identification information” means an unexpired
 13 student identification card, a valid social security card,
 14 an unexpired driver’s license, an unexpired nonoperator’s
 15 identification card, an unexpired passport, a certified copy
 16 of a birth certificate, or other valid, unexpired proof of
 17 identity.
 18 Sec. . **NEW SECTION. 235G.2 Restriction on minor access**
 19 **to internet sites and internet-based applications.**
 20 A distributor shall not knowingly allow a minor to access the
 21 distributor’s internet site or internet-based application if
 22 the distributor’s internet site or internet-based application
 23 contains obscene material.
 24 Sec. . **NEW SECTION. 235G.3 Civil remedy — attorney**
 25 **fees.**
 26 1. A parent or guardian may institute a civil action
 27 for damages for a violation of section 235G.2 on behalf of
 28 any minor child for whom the parent or guardian is legally
 29 responsible. The damages shall be five hundred dollars for
 30 each violation of section 235G.2.
 31 2. A court shall award a prevailing party in an action
 32 under this section court costs and reasonable attorney fees and
 33 expert witness fees.
 34 Sec. . **NEW SECTION. 235G.4 Affirmative defense.**
 35 1. It is an affirmative defense to any claim or action under

PAGE 2

1 section 235G.3 that the distributor did all of the following:
2 *a.* Required a person accessing its internet site or
3 internet-based application to provide to the distributor
4 personal identification information verifying the person was
5 age eighteen or older when the person accessed the internet
6 site or internet-based application.
7 *b.* Required the person receiving the obscene material to
8 use an authorized access or identification code, as provided by
9 the information provider, before transmission of the obscene
10 material begins.
11 *c.* Previously issued the code by mailing it to the person
12 after ascertaining that the person was eighteen years of age or
13 older.
14 *d.* Established a procedure to immediately cancel the code of
15 any person after receiving notice, in writing or by telephone,
16 that the code has been lost, stolen, or used by persons
17 under the age of eighteen years or that the code is no longer
18 desired.
19 2. It shall not be an affirmative defense to any claim
20 or action under section 235G.3 that a minor accessed the
21 distributor's internet site or internet-based application
22 from an accredited school, public library, community college,
23 college, or university.

24 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **235G.5 Limitation of actions.**

25 An action shall not be maintained, at law or in equity, under
26 this chapter unless the action is commenced within thirty years
27 after the date of the discovery of the dissemination of obscene
28 material to a minor.

29 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **728.16 Internet dissemination of
30 obscene material to minors.**

31 1. *a.* As used in this section, "*distributor*" means a
32 person who owns or operates an internet site or internet-based
33 application.

34 *b.* A distributor shall not knowingly disseminate obscene
35 material by the use of an internet site or internet-based

PAGE 3

1 application to a minor.
2 2. It shall be a defense in any prosecution for a violation
3 of subsection 1 by a distributor accused of knowingly
4 disseminating obscene material by the use of an internet site
5 or internet-based application to a minor that the distributor
6 has taken either of the following measures to restrict access
7 to the obscene material:
8 *a.* The distributor has done all of the following:
9 (1) Required the person receiving the obscene material to
10 use an authorized access or identification code, as provided by
11 the information provider, before transmission of the obscene
12 material begins.

- 13 (2) Previously issued the code by mailing it to the
 14 applicant requiring the applicant to provide personal
 15 identification information as defined in section 235G.1
 16 verifying that the applicant was eighteen years of age or
 17 older.
- 18 (3) Established a procedure to immediately cancel the
 19 code of any person after receiving notice, in writing or by
 20 telephone, that the code has been lost, stolen, or used by
 21 persons under the age of eighteen years or that the code is no
 22 longer desired.
- 23 *b.* The distributor accused has required payment by credit
 24 card before transmission of the obscene material.
- 25 3. Any list of applicants or recipients compiled or
 26 maintained by an information-access service provider for
 27 purposes of compliance with subsection 2 is confidential and
 28 shall not be sold or otherwise disseminated except upon order
 29 of the court.
- 30 4. *a.* A violation of subsection 1 is an aggravated
 31 misdemeanor.
- 32 *b.* A violation of subsection 1 by a distributor who has been
 33 previously convicted of a violation of subsection 1 is a class
 34 "D" felony.>
- 35 2. Title page, line 1, after <Act> by inserting <relating to

PAGE 4

- 1 internet material, including the dissemination of and access to
 2 obscene material by minors and>
 3 3. By renumbering as necessary.

SALMON of Black Hawk

H-8095

- 1 Amend House File 2562 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 19, by striking <shall> and inserting <may>
 3 2. Page 2, line 24, after <2.> by inserting <a.>
 4 3. Page 2, line 28, by striking <human the following:> and
 5 inserting <human>
 6 4. Page 2, line 29, by striking <a. Human>
 7 5. Page 2, line 34, by striking <Child> and inserting <Each
 8 school board may provide age-appropriate and research-based
 9 instruction in child>
 10 6. Page 3, by striking lines 8 through 18.

WHEELER of Sioux

H-8096

- 1 Amend House File 2595 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <DIVISION I

4 CHILD CARE FACILITIES>

5 2. Page 9, line 11, after <This> by inserting <division of
6 this>

7 3. Page 9, after line 13 by inserting:

8 <DIVISION II

9 ADDITIONAL PERSONAL EXEMPTION CREDIT

10 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 422.10C Additional personal
11 exemption credit — child.

12 1. The taxes imposed under this division less the credits
13 allowed under this division, except for the credits for
14 withheld tax and estimated tax paid in section 422.16, shall
15 be reduced by an additional personal exemption credit in the
16 amount of one thousand dollars for each dependent.

17 2. The additional personal exemption credit shall be
18 added to any personal exemption claimed under section 422.12,
19 subsection 2.

20 3. The tax credit shall be reduced but not below zero by
21 the amount of the child and dependent care or early childhood
22 development tax credits claimed by the taxpayer pursuant to
23 section 422.12C.

24 4. Any credit in excess of the tax liability is refundable.
25 However, for nonresidents or part-year residents, the amount of
26 the credit in excess of the tax liability that may be refunded
27 shall be in the ratio of their Iowa source net income to their
28 all source net income under rules prescribed by the director.

29 5. For purposes of this section, “*dependent*” has the same
30 meaning as provided by the Internal Revenue Code, except the
31 dependent must be under the age of thirteen.

32 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act takes
33 effect January 1, 2021.

34 Sec. __. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
35 to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2021.

PAGE 2

1 4. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
2 <An Act relating to tax credits and sales and use tax refunds
3 for the construction of child care facilities, adding an
4 additional personal exemption credit against the individual
5 income tax for a child, and including effective date and
6 applicability provisions.>

7 5. By renumbering as necessary.

GASSMAN of Winnebago

H-8097

1 Amend House File 2538 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 8 by inserting:

3 <Sec. __. Section 902.12, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
4 amended to read as follows:

5 3. A person serving a sentence for a conviction for

6 robbery in the first degree in violation of section 711.2
 7 for a conviction that occurs on or after July 1, ~~2018~~ 2019,
 8 shall be denied parole or work release until the person has
 9 served between one-half and seven-tenths of the maximum term
 10 of the person's sentence as determined under section 901.11,
 11 subsection 3.>
 12 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting <An
 13 Act relating to the criminal offenses of theft in the third
 14 degree and robbery in the first degree and making penalties
 15 applicable.>
 16 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HITE of Mahaska

H-8098

1 Amend House File 2595 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <DIVISION I
 5 Section 1. Section 422.12C, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 6 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
 7 thereof the following:
 8 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the amounts
 9 of nonrefundable credits allowed under this division, shall
 10 be reduced by a child and dependent care credit equal to the
 11 following percentages of the federal child and dependent care
 12 credit provided in section 21 of the Internal Revenue Code,
 13 without regard to whether or not the federal credit was limited
 14 by the taxpayer's federal tax liability:
 15 a. For a taxpayer with net income of less than forty-five
 16 thousand dollars, one hundred percent.
 17 b. For a taxpayer with net income of forty-five thousand
 18 dollars or more but less than ninety thousand dollars, thirty
 19 percent.
 20 c. For a taxpayer with net income of ninety thousand dollars
 21 or more but less than one hundred thousand dollars, twenty-five
 22 percent.
 23 d. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred thousand
 24 dollars or more but less than one hundred twenty-five thousand
 25 dollars, twenty percent.
 26 e. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred twenty-five
 27 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred fifty
 28 thousand dollars, fifteen percent.
 29 f. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred fifty
 30 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred seventy-five
 31 thousand dollars, ten percent.
 32 g. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred
 33 seventy-five thousand dollars or more but less than two hundred
 34 fifty thousand dollars, five percent.
 35 h. For a taxpayer with net income of two hundred fifty

PAGE 2

1 thousand dollars or more, zero percent.
 2 Sec. 2. **RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY.** This division of this
 3 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020 for tax years
 4 beginning on or after that date.

5 **DIVISION II**

6 Sec. 3. **NEW SECTION. 237D.1 Definitions.**

- 7 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 8 requires:
 9 1. “*Child*” means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
 10 2. “*Child care*” means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
 11 3. “*Child development home*” means the same as defined in
 12 section 237A.1.
 13 4. “*Department*” means the department of human services.
 14 5. “*Facility*” means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
 15 6. “*Fund*” means the child care center and child development
 16 home grant fund.
 17 7. “*Home*” means a child development home.
 18 8. “*Licensed child care center*” or “*center*” means a facility
 19 providing child care or preschool services for seven or more
 20 children that has been issued a license by the department
 21 pursuant to section 237A.2.
 22 9. “*Program*” means the child care center and child
 23 development home grant program.

24 Sec. 4. **NEW SECTION. 237D.2 Child care center and child**
 25 **development home grant fund.**

- 26 1. A child care center and child development home grant fund
 27 is created and established as a separate and distinct fund in
 28 the state treasury under the control of the department.
 29 2. *a.* The fund may consist of any moneys appropriated by
 30 the general assembly for purposes of this chapter and any other
 31 moneys that are lawfully available to the department. Moneys
 32 in the fund are appropriated to the department and shall be
 33 used for the purposes of this chapter.
 34 *b.* Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys in the fund
 35 that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close of the

PAGE 3

1 fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for
 2 expenditure for the purposes of this section in succeeding
 3 fiscal years. Notwithstanding section 12C.7, subsection 2,
 4 interest earned on moneys in the fund shall be credited to the
 5 fund.

6 Sec. 5. **NEW SECTION. 237D.3 Child care center and child**
 7 **development home grant program.**

- 8 1. The department shall adopt rules to establish and
 9 administer a child care center and child development home
 10 grant program to provide for the allocation of money in the
 11 fund in the form of grants, not to exceed fifty thousand
 12 dollars per grant, to eligible persons for costs related to

13 the establishment of a new licensed child care center or
 14 a new child development home, or for the expansion of an
 15 existing licensed child care center or the expansion of an
 16 existing child development home. For any one fiscal year, the
 17 department shall not approve more than four million dollars
 18 in grants. The rules adopted by the department shall specify
 19 the eligibility requirements for applicants of the program and
 20 the items eligible for a program grant. Items eligible for a
 21 program grant must include the costs related to licensing or
 22 registration, supplies, and infrastructure.

23 2. A new center or a new home must be licensed or registered
 24 and fully operational within two years of the date of an
 25 applicant's receipt of a grant.

26 3. Of the children for whom a new or expanded center or a
 27 new or expanded home provide child care, a minimum of twenty
 28 percent of the children must be from a family that qualifies
 29 for state child care assistance pursuant to section 237A.13.

30 4. A person that is awarded a grant shall enter into an
 31 agreement with the department that specifies the requirements
 32 that must be maintained throughout the period of the agreement
 33 in order for the person to retain the grant. The agreement
 34 must contain, at a minimum, provisions addressing all of the
 35 following:

PAGE 4

1 a. The legal name of the person receiving the grant.
 2 b. The amount of the grant.
 3 c. Annual certification by the person to the department of
 4 compliance with the requirements of the agreement, the program,
 5 and this chapter.
 6 d. The repayment of the grant, or a portion of the grant,
 7 if the person does not meet all of the requirements of the
 8 agreement, the program, and this chapter.
 9 e. If a new center or a new home for which the grant was
 10 received goes out of business within two years of the date the
 11 new center or new home becomes fully operational pursuant to
 12 subsection 2, the grant shall be subject to repayment. If an
 13 expanded center or an expanded home for which the grant was
 14 received goes out of business within two years of the date on
 15 which the grant was received, the grant shall be subject to
 16 repayment.

17 DIVISION III

18 Sec. 6. **NEW SECTION. 237A.31 Small business child care tax**
 19 **credit.**

20 1. As used in this section "*small business*" means any
 21 enterprise which is located in this state, which is operated
 22 for profit and under a single management, and which has either
 23 fewer than twenty employees or an annual gross income of less
 24 than four million dollars computed as the average of the three
 25 preceding fiscal years. This definition does not apply to any
 26 program or activity for which a definition for small business

27 is provided for the program or activity by federal law or
 28 regulation or other state law.
 29 2. A small business may receive a child care tax credit
 30 for providing child care employee benefits to employees of
 31 the business. The credit may be applied against income tax
 32 imposed under chapter 422, division II or III, the franchise
 33 tax imposed under chapter 422, division V, the gross premiums
 34 tax imposed under chapter 432, or the moneys and credits tax
 35 imposed in section 533.329. The amount of the credit equals

PAGE 5

1 the costs to provide the benefit up to three thousand dollars
 2 per employee per year.
 3 3. The aggregate amount of tax credits authorized pursuant
 4 to this section shall not exceed a total of two million
 5 dollars per fiscal year, and shall be awarded on a first-come,
 6 first-served basis.
 7 4. To be eligible for a small business child care tax
 8 credit, the small business must provide child care employee
 9 benefits to employees of the business through any of the
 10 following:
 11 a. Build a new structure or rehabilitate an existing
 12 structure to be used as a child care center at or near the small
 13 business where the children of the employees of the business
 14 are provided child care. A small business may construct or
 15 rehabilitate the structure in conjunction with another business
 16 but only the actual cost of the business shall be considered in
 17 determining the credit.
 18 b. Operate or lease a child care center at or near the small
 19 business where the children of the employees of the business
 20 are provided child care.
 21 5. Any credit in excess of the tax liability is not
 22 refundable but the excess for the tax year may be credited
 23 to the tax liability for the following five years or until
 24 depleted, whichever is earlier. The director of revenue shall
 25 adopt rules to implement this section.
 26 Sec. 7. NEW SECTION. 422.12O Small business child care tax
 27 credit.
 28 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the credits
 29 allowed under section 422.12, shall be reduced by a small
 30 business child care tax credit received pursuant to section
 31 237A.31.
 32 2. An individual may claim the tax credit allowed a
 33 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,
 34 or trust electing to have the income taxed directly to the
 35 individual. The amount claimed by the individual shall be

PAGE 6

1 based upon the pro rata share of the individual's earnings of a
 2 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,

3 or trust.

4 Sec. 8. Section 422.33, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
5 following new subsection:

6 NEW SUBSECTION. 31. The taxes imposed under this division
7 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
8 received pursuant to section 237A.31.

9 Sec. 9. Section 422.60, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
10 following new subsection:

11 NEW SUBSECTION. 14. The taxes imposed under this division
12 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
13 received pursuant to section 237A.31.

14 Sec. 10. NEW SECTION. **432.12N Small business child care**
15 **tax credit.**

16 The taxes imposed under this chapter shall be reduced by
17 a small business child care tax credit received pursuant to
18 section 237A.31.

19 Sec. 11. Section 533.329, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
20 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

21 NEW PARAGRAPH. 1. The moneys and credits tax imposed under
22 this section shall be reduced by a small business child care
23 tax credit received pursuant to section 237A.31.

24 Sec. 12. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
25 to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2021.

26 DIVISION IV

27 Sec. 13. Section 237A.13, subsection 7, paragraph c, Code
28 2020, is amended to read as follows:

29 c. Families with an income of more than one hundred
30 percent but not more than ~~one two~~ ~~hundred forty-five~~ percent
31 of the federal poverty level whose members, for at least
32 twenty-eight hours per week in the aggregate, are employed
33 or are participating at a satisfactory level in an approved
34 training program or educational program.

35 Sec. 14. DIRECTIVE TO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES — CHILD

PAGE 7

1 CARE ASSISTANCE.

2 1. The department of human services shall amend its
3 administrative rules pursuant to chapter 17A to do all of the
4 following:

5 a. Provide income eligibility for state child care
6 assistance, according to family size for children needing basic
7 care, to families whose nonexempt gross monthly income does not
8 exceed two hundred percent of the federal poverty level.

9 b. Adjust the state child care assistance copayment
10 schedule in incrementally increased amounts for families whose
11 nonexempt gross monthly income does not exceed two hundred
12 percent of the federal poverty level.

13 2. The rules adopted pursuant to this section shall take
14 effect January 1, 2021.>

15 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
16 <An Act relating to child care, grants and tax credits relating

17 to child care, state child care assistance, and including
18 applicability and retroactive applicability provisions.>

JAMES of Dubuque

H-8099

1 Amend House File 2594 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

3 <DIVISION I>

4 2. Page 2, line 27, before <Act> by inserting <division of
5 this>

6 3. Page 2, after line 28 by inserting:

7 <DIVISION II

8 Sec. ___. Section 422.12C, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
9 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
10 thereof the following:

11 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the amounts
12 of nonrefundable credits allowed under this division, shall
13 be reduced by a child and dependent care credit equal to the
14 following percentages of the federal child and dependent care
15 credit provided in section 21 of the Internal Revenue Code,
16 without regard to whether or not the federal credit was limited
17 by the taxpayer's federal tax liability:

18 a. For a taxpayer with net income of less than forty-five
19 thousand dollars, one hundred percent.

20 b. For a taxpayer with net income of forty-five thousand
21 dollars or more but less than ninety thousand dollars, thirty
22 percent.

23 c. For a taxpayer with net income of ninety thousand dollars
24 or more but less than one hundred thousand dollars, twenty-five
25 percent.

26 d. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred thousand
27 dollars or more but less than one hundred twenty-five thousand
28 dollars, twenty percent.

29 e. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred twenty-five
30 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred fifty
31 thousand dollars, fifteen percent.

32 f. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred fifty
33 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred seventy-five
34 thousand dollars, ten percent.

35 g. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred

PAGE 2

1 seventy-five thousand dollars or more but less than two hundred
2 fifty thousand dollars, five percent.

3 h. For a taxpayer with net income of two hundred fifty
4 thousand dollars or more, zero percent.

5 Sec. ___. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
6 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020 for tax years
7 beginning on or after that date.

8 DIVISION III

9 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 237D.1 Definitions.**

10 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
11 requires:

- 12 1. *“Child”* means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
- 13 2. *“Child care”* means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
- 14 3. *“Child development home”* means the same as defined in
15 section 237A.1.
- 16 4. *“Department”* means the department of human services.
- 17 5. *“Facility”* means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
- 18 6. *“Fund”* means the child care center and child development
19 home grant fund.
- 20 7. *“Home”* means a child development home.
- 21 8. *“Licensed child care center”* or *“center”* means a facility
22 providing child care or preschool services for seven or more
23 children that has been issued a license by the department
24 pursuant to section 237A.2.
- 25 9. *“Program”* means the child care center and child
26 development home grant program.

27 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 237D.2 Child care center and child
28 development home grant fund.**

- 29 1. A child care center and child development home grant fund
30 is created and established as a separate and distinct fund in
31 the state treasury under the control of the department.
- 32 2. *a.* The fund may consist of any moneys appropriated by
33 the general assembly for purposes of this chapter and any other
34 moneys that are lawfully available to the department. Moneys
35 in the fund are appropriated to the department and shall be

PAGE 3

- 1 used for the purposes of this chapter.
- 2 *b.* Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys in the fund
3 that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close of the
4 fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for
5 expenditure for the purposes of this section in succeeding
6 fiscal years. Notwithstanding section 12C.7, subsection 2,
7 interest earned on moneys in the fund shall be credited to the
8 fund.

9 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 237D.3 Child care center and child
10 development home grant program.**

- 11 1. The department shall adopt rules to establish and
12 administer a child care center and child development home
13 grant program to provide for the allocation of money in the
14 fund in the form of grants, not to exceed fifty thousand
15 dollars per grant, to eligible persons for costs related to
16 the establishment of a new licensed child care center or
17 a new child development home, or for the expansion of an
18 existing licensed child care center or the expansion of an
19 existing child development home. For any one fiscal year, the
20 department shall not approve more than four million dollars
21 in grants. The rules adopted by the department shall specify

22 the eligibility requirements for applicants of the program and
 23 the items eligible for a program grant. Items eligible for a
 24 program grant must include the costs related to licensing or
 25 registration, supplies, and infrastructure.
 26 2. A new center or a new home must be licensed or registered
 27 and fully operational within two years of the date of an
 28 applicant's receipt of a grant.
 29 3. Of the children for whom a new or expanded center or a
 30 new or expanded home provide child care, a minimum of twenty
 31 percent of the children must be from a family that qualifies
 32 for state child care assistance pursuant to section 237A.13.
 33 4. A person that is awarded a grant shall enter into an
 34 agreement with the department that specifies the requirements
 35 that must be maintained throughout the period of the agreement

PAGE 4

1 in order for the person to retain the grant. The agreement
 2 must contain, at a minimum, provisions addressing all of the
 3 following:
 4 a. The legal name of the person receiving the grant.
 5 b. The amount of the grant.
 6 c. Annual certification by the person to the department of
 7 compliance with the requirements of the agreement, the program,
 8 and this chapter.
 9 d. The repayment of the grant, or a portion of the grant,
 10 if the person does not meet all of the requirements of the
 11 agreement, the program, and this chapter.
 12 e. If a new center or a new home for which the grant was
 13 received goes out of business within two years of the date the
 14 new center or new home becomes fully operational pursuant to
 15 subsection 2, the grant shall be subject to repayment. If an
 16 expanded center or an expanded home for which the grant was
 17 received goes out of business within two years of the date on
 18 which the grant was received, the grant shall be subject to
 19 repayment.

20 DIVISION IV

21 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **237A.31 Small business child care**
 22 **tax credit.**

23 1. As used in this section "*small business*" means any
 24 enterprise which is located in this state, which is operated
 25 for profit and under a single management, and which has either
 26 fewer than twenty employees or an annual gross income of less
 27 than four million dollars computed as the average of the three
 28 preceding fiscal years. This definition does not apply to any
 29 program or activity for which a definition for small business
 30 is provided for the program or activity by federal law or
 31 regulation or other state law.
 32 2. A small business may receive a child care tax credit
 33 for providing child care employee benefits to employees of
 34 the business. The credit may be applied against income tax
 35 imposed under chapter 422, division II or III, the franchise

PAGE 5

- 1 tax imposed under chapter 422, division V, the gross premiums
 2 tax imposed under chapter 432, or the moneys and credits tax
 3 imposed in section 533.329. The amount of the credit equals
 4 the costs to provide the benefit up to three thousand dollars
 5 per employee per year.
- 6 3. The aggregate amount of tax credits authorized pursuant
 7 to this section shall not exceed a total of two million
 8 dollars per fiscal year, and shall be awarded on a first-come,
 9 first-served basis.
- 10 4. To be eligible for a small business child care tax
 11 credit, the small business must provide child care employee
 12 benefits to employees of the business through any of the
 13 following:
- 14 a. Build a new structure or rehabilitate an existing
 15 structure to be used as a child care center at or near the small
 16 business where the children of the employees of the business
 17 are provided child care. A small business may construct or
 18 rehabilitate the structure in conjunction with another business
 19 but only the actual cost of the business shall be considered in
 20 determining the credit.
- 21 b. Operate or lease a child care center at or near the small
 22 business where the children of the employees of the business
 23 are provided child care.
- 24 5. Any credit in excess of the tax liability is not
 25 refundable but the excess for the tax year may be credited
 26 to the tax liability for the following five years or until
 27 depleted, whichever is earlier. The director of revenue shall
 28 adopt rules to implement this section.
- 29 **Sec. ____.** NEW SECTION. **422.12P Small business child care**
 30 **tax credit.**
- 31 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the credits
 32 allowed under section 422.12, shall be reduced by a small
 33 business child care tax credit received pursuant to section
 34 237A.31.
- 35 2. An individual may claim the tax credit allowed a

PAGE 6

- 1 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,
 2 or trust electing to have the income taxed directly to the
 3 individual. The amount claimed by the individual shall be
 4 based upon the pro rata share of the individual's earnings of a
 5 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,
 6 or trust.
- 7 **Sec. ____.** Section 422.33, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 8 the following new subsection:
 9 NEW SUBSECTION. 31. The taxes imposed under this division
 10 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
 11 received pursuant to section 237A.31.
- 12 **Sec. ____.** Section 422.60, Code 2020, is amended by adding

13 the following new subsection:

14 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 14. The taxes imposed under this division
15 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
16 received pursuant to section 237A.31.

17 Sec. __. **NEW SECTION.** 432.12N **Small business child care**
18 **tax credit.**

19 The taxes imposed under this chapter shall be reduced by
20 a small business child care tax credit received pursuant to
21 section 237A.31.

22 Sec. __. Section 533.329, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
23 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

24 **NEW PARAGRAPH.** 1. The moneys and credits tax imposed under
25 this section shall be reduced by a small business child care
26 tax credit received pursuant to section 237A.31.

27 Sec. __. **APPLICABILITY.** This division of this Act applies
28 to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2021.

29 **DIVISION V**

30 Sec. __. Section 237A.13, subsection 7, paragraph c, Code
31 2020, is amended to read as follows:

32 c. Families with an income of more than one hundred
33 percent but not more than ~~one two~~ ~~hundred forty five~~ percent
34 of the federal poverty level whose members, for at least
35 twenty-eight hours per week in the aggregate, are employed

PAGE 7

1 or are participating at a satisfactory level in an approved
2 training program or educational program.

3 Sec. __. **DIRECTIVE TO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES — CHILD**
4 **CARE ASSISTANCE.**

5 1. The department of human services shall amend its
6 administrative rules pursuant to chapter 17A to do all of the
7 following:

8 a. Provide income eligibility for state child care
9 assistance, according to family size for children needing basic
10 care, to families whose nonexempt gross monthly income does not
11 exceed two hundred percent of the federal poverty level.

12 b. Adjust the state child care assistance copayment
13 schedule in incrementally increased amounts for families whose
14 nonexempt gross monthly income does not exceed two hundred
15 percent of the federal poverty level.

16 2. The rules adopted pursuant to this section shall take
17 effect January 1, 2021.>

18 4. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
19 <An Act relating to child care, grants and tax credits relating
20 to child care, state child care assistance, and including
21 applicability and retroactive applicability provisions.>

H-8100

1 Amend House File 2593 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <DIVISION I

5 Section 1. Section 422.12C, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
6 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
7 thereof the following:

8 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the amounts
9 of nonrefundable credits allowed under this division, shall
10 be reduced by a child and dependent care credit equal to the
11 following percentages of the federal child and dependent care
12 credit provided in section 21 of the Internal Revenue Code,
13 without regard to whether or not the federal credit was limited
14 by the taxpayer's federal tax liability:

15 a. For a taxpayer with net income of less than forty-five
16 thousand dollars, one hundred percent.

17 b. For a taxpayer with net income of forty-five thousand
18 dollars or more but less than ninety thousand dollars, thirty
19 percent.

20 c. For a taxpayer with net income of ninety thousand dollars
21 or more but less than one hundred thousand dollars, twenty-five
22 percent.

23 d. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred thousand
24 dollars or more but less than one hundred twenty-five thousand
25 dollars, twenty percent.

26 e. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred twenty-five
27 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred fifty
28 thousand dollars, fifteen percent.

29 f. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred fifty
30 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred seventy-five
31 thousand dollars, ten percent.

32 g. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred
33 seventy-five thousand dollars or more but less than two hundred
34 fifty thousand dollars, five percent.

35 h. For a taxpayer with net income of two hundred fifty

PAGE 2

1 thousand dollars or more, zero percent.

2 Sec. 2. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
3 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020 for tax years
4 beginning on or after that date.

5 DIVISION II

6 Sec. 3. NEW SECTION. 237D.1 Definitions.

7 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
8 requires:

9 1. "Child" means the same as defined in section 237A.1.

10 2. "Child care" means the same as defined in section 237A.1.

11 3. "Child development home" means the same as defined in
12 section 237A.1.

- 13 4. *“Department”* means the department of human services.
 14 5. *“Facility”* means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
 15 6. *“Fund”* means the child care center and child development
 16 home grant fund.
 17 7. *“Home”* means a child development home.
 18 8. *“Licensed child care center”* or *“center”* means a facility
 19 providing child care or preschool services for seven or more
 20 children that has been issued a license by the department
 21 pursuant to section 237A.2.
 22 9. *“Program”* means the child care center and child
 23 development home grant program.
 24 **Sec. 4. NEW SECTION. 237D.2 Child care center and child**
 25 **development home grant fund.**
 26 1. A child care center and child development home grant fund
 27 is created and established as a separate and distinct fund in
 28 the state treasury under the control of the department.
 29 2. *a.* The fund may consist of any moneys appropriated by
 30 the general assembly for purposes of this chapter and any other
 31 moneys that are lawfully available to the department. Moneys
 32 in the fund are appropriated to the department and shall be
 33 used for the purposes of this chapter.
 34 *b.* Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys in the fund
 35 that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close of the

PAGE 3

- 1 fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for
 2 expenditure for the purposes of this section in succeeding
 3 fiscal years. Notwithstanding section 12C.7, subsection 2,
 4 interest earned on moneys in the fund shall be credited to the
 5 fund.
 6 **Sec. 5. NEW SECTION. 237D.3 Child care center and child**
 7 **development home grant program.**
 8 1. The department shall adopt rules to establish and
 9 administer a child care center and child development home
 10 grant program to provide for the allocation of money in the
 11 fund in the form of grants, not to exceed fifty thousand
 12 dollars per grant, to eligible persons for costs related to
 13 the establishment of a new licensed child care center or
 14 a new child development home, or for the expansion of a
 15 existing licensed child care center or the expansion of an
 16 existing child development home. For any one fiscal year, the
 17 department shall not approve more than four million dollars
 18 in grants. The rules adopted by the department shall specify
 19 the eligibility requirements for applicants of the program and
 20 the items eligible for a program grant. Items eligible for a
 21 program grant must include the costs related to licensing or
 22 registration, supplies, and infrastructure.
 23 2. A new center or a new home must be licensed or registered
 24 and fully operational within two years of the date of an
 25 applicant’s receipt of a grant.
 26 3. Of the children for whom a new or expanded center or a

27 new or expanded home provide child care, a minimum of twenty
 28 percent of the children must be from a family that qualifies
 29 for state child care assistance pursuant to section 237A.13.
 30 4. A person that is awarded a grant shall enter into an
 31 agreement with the department that specifies the requirements
 32 that must be maintained throughout the period of the agreement
 33 in order for the person to retain the grant. The agreement
 34 must contain, at a minimum, provisions addressing all of the
 35 following:

PAGE 4

1 a. The legal name of the person receiving the grant.
 2 b. The amount of the grant.
 3 c. Annual certification by the person to the department of
 4 compliance with the requirements of the agreement, the program,
 5 and this chapter.
 6 d. The repayment of the grant, or a portion of the grant,
 7 if the person does not meet all of the requirements of the
 8 agreement, the program, and this chapter.
 9 e. If a new center or a new home for which the grant was
 10 received goes out of business within two years of the date the
 11 new center or new home becomes fully operational pursuant to
 12 subsection 2, the grant shall be subject to repayment. If an
 13 expanded center or an expanded home for which the grant was
 14 received goes out of business within two years of the date on
 15 which the grant was received, the grant shall be subject to
 16 repayment.

17 DIVISION III

18 Sec. 6. NEW SECTION. 237A.31 **Small business child care tax**
 19 **credit.**

20 1. As used in this section "*small business*" means any
 21 enterprise which is located in this state, which is operated
 22 for profit and under a single management, and which has either
 23 fewer than twenty employees or an annual gross income of less
 24 than four million dollars computed as the average of the three
 25 preceding fiscal years. This definition does not apply to any
 26 program or activity for which a definition for small business
 27 is provided for the program or activity by federal law or
 28 regulation or other state law.
 29 2. A small business may receive a child care tax credit
 30 for providing child care employee benefits to employees of
 31 the business. The credit may be applied against income tax
 32 imposed under chapter 422, division II or III, the franchise
 33 tax imposed under chapter 422, division V, the gross premiums
 34 tax imposed under chapter 432, or the moneys and credits tax
 35 imposed in section 533.329. The amount of the credit equals

PAGE 5

1 the costs to provide the benefit up to three thousand dollars
 2 per employee per year.

- 3 3. The aggregate amount of tax credits authorized pursuant
 4 to this section shall not exceed a total of two million
 5 dollars per fiscal year, and shall be awarded on a first-come,
 6 first-served basis.
- 7 4. To be eligible for a small business child care tax
 8 credit, the small business must provide child care employee
 9 benefits to employees of the business through any of the
 10 following:
- 11 *a.* Build a new structure or rehabilitate an existing
 12 structure to be used as a child care center at or near the small
 13 business where the children of the employees of the business
 14 are provided child care. A small business may construct or
 15 rehabilitate the structure in conjunction with another business
 16 but only the actual cost of the business shall be considered in
 17 determining the credit.
- 18 *b.* Operate or lease a child care center at or near the small
 19 business where the children of the employees of the business
 20 are provided child care.
- 21 5. Any credit in excess of the tax liability is not
 22 refundable but the excess for the tax year may be credited
 23 to the tax liability for the following five years or until
 24 depleted, whichever is earlier. The director of revenue shall
 25 adopt rules to implement this section.
- 26 **Sec. 7. NEW SECTION. 422.12O Small business child care tax**
 27 **credit.**
- 28 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the credits
 29 allowed under section 422.12, shall be reduced by a small
 30 business child care tax credit received pursuant to section
 31 237A.31.
- 32 2. An individual may claim the tax credit allowed a
 33 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,
 34 or trust electing to have the income taxed directly to the
 35 individual. The amount claimed by the individual shall be

PAGE 6

- 1 based upon the pro rata share of the individual's earnings of a
 2 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,
 3 or trust.
- 4 Sec. 8. Section 422.33, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 5 following new subsection:
 6 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 31. The taxes imposed under this division
 7 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
 8 received pursuant to section 237A.31.
- 9 Sec. 9. Section 422.60, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 10 following new subsection:
 11 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 14. The taxes imposed under this division
 12 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
 13 received pursuant to section 237A.31.
- 14 Sec. 10. **NEW SECTION. 432.12N Small business child care**
 15 **tax credit.**
- 16 The taxes imposed under this chapter shall be reduced by

17 a small business child care tax credit received pursuant to
18 section 237A.31.

19 Sec. 11. Section 533.329, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
20 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
21 NEW PARAGRAPH. 1. The moneys and credits tax imposed under
22 this section shall be reduced by a small business child care
23 tax credit received pursuant to section 237A.31.

24 Sec. 12. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
25 to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2021.

26 DIVISION IV

27 Sec. 13. Section 237A.13, subsection 7, paragraph c, Code
28 2020, is amended to read as follows:

29 c. Families with an income of more than one hundred
30 percent but not more than ~~one~~ two hundred ~~forty-five~~ percent
31 of the federal poverty level whose members, for at least
32 twenty-eight hours per week in the aggregate, are employed
33 or are participating at a satisfactory level in an approved
34 training program or educational program.

35 Sec. 14. DIRECTIVE TO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES — CHILD

PAGE 7

1 CARE ASSISTANCE.

- 2 1. The department of human services shall amend its
3 administrative rules pursuant to chapter 17A to do all of the
4 following:
5 a. Provide income eligibility for state child care
6 assistance, according to family size for children needing basic
7 care, to families whose nonexempt gross monthly income does not
8 exceed two hundred percent of the federal poverty level.
9 b. Adjust the state child care assistance copayment
10 schedule in incrementally increased amounts for families whose
11 nonexempt gross monthly income does not exceed two hundred
12 percent of the federal poverty level.
13 2. The rules adopted pursuant to this section shall take
14 effect January 1, 2021.>
15 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
16 <An Act relating to child care, grants and tax credits relating
17 to child care, state child care assistance, and including
18 applicability and retroactive applicability provisions.>

JAMES of Dubuque

H-8101

1 Amend House File 2589 as follows:

- 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:
4 <Section 1. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, paragraph i, Code
5 2020, is amended to read as follows:
6 i. ~~Untreatable~~ Chronic pain.
7 Sec. 2. Section 124E.2, subsections 5 and 6, Code 2020, are

8 amended to read as follows:

9 5. *“Health care practitioner”* means an individual licensed
10 under chapter 148 to practice medicine and surgery or
11 osteopathic medicine and surgery, a physician assistant
12 licensed under chapter 148C, a podiatrist licensed pursuant to
13 chapter 149, an advanced registered nurse practitioner licensed
14 under chapter 152, or an advanced practice registered nurse
15 under chapter 152E, who is a patient’s primary care provider.

16 *“Health care practitioner”* shall not include a physician
17 assistant licensed under chapter 148C or an advanced registered
18 nurse practitioner licensed pursuant to chapter 152 or 152E.

19 6. *“Medical cannabidiol”* means any pharmaceutical
20 grade cannabinoid found in the plant *Cannabis sativa* L. or
21 *Cannabis indica* or any other preparation thereof ~~that has~~
22 ~~a tetrahydrocannabinol level of no more than three percent~~
23 ~~and~~ that is delivered in a form recommended by the medical
24 cannabidiol board, approved by the board of medicine, and
25 adopted by the department pursuant to rule.

26 Sec. 3. Section 124E.2, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
27 following new subsection:

28 NEW SUBSECTION. 7A. *“Total tetrahydrocannabinol”* means
29 eighty-seven and seven-tenths percent of the amount of
30 tetrahydrocannabinol plus the amount of tetrahydrocannabinolic
31 acid.

32 Sec. 4. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph
33 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

34 Subject to subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the~~
35 ~~issuance of issue~~ a medical cannabidiol registration card by

PAGE 2

1 ~~the department of transportation~~ to a patient who:

2 Sec. 5. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph d,
3 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
4 follows:

5 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
6 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
7 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:

8 Sec. 6. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
9 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

10 Sec. 7. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, unnumbered paragraph
11 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

12 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued to a patient
13 by the department ~~of transportation~~ pursuant to subsection 1
14 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:

15 Sec. 8. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
16 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

17 Sec. 9. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, unnumbered paragraph
18 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

19 For a patient in a primary caregiver’s care, subject to
20 subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the issuance of issue~~
21 a medical cannabidiol registration card by ~~the department of~~

22 transportation to the primary caregiver who:

23 Sec. 10. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph b,
24 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
25 follows:

26 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
27 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
28 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:

29 Sec. 11. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
30 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

31 Sec. 12. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, unnumbered paragraph
32 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

33 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued by the
34 department of ~~transportation~~ to a primary caregiver pursuant to
35 subsection 3 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:

PAGE 3

1 Sec. 13. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
2 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

3 Sec. 14. Section 124E.4, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
4 by striking the subsection.

5 Sec. 15. Section 124E.5, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
6 to read as follows:

7 2. The medical cannabidiol board shall convene at least
8 twice ~~but no more than four times~~ per year.

9 Sec. 16. Section 124E.5, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
10 to read as follows:

11 ~~6. The medical cannabidiol board may recommend a statutory~~
12 ~~revision to the definition of medical cannabidiol contained in~~
13 ~~this chapter that increases the tetrahydrocannabinol level to~~
14 ~~more than three percent, however, any such recommendation shall~~
15 ~~be submitted to the general assembly during the regular session~~
16 ~~of the general assembly following such submission. The general~~
17 ~~assembly shall have the sole authority to revise the definition~~
18 ~~of medical cannabidiol for purposes of this chapter.~~

19 Sec. 17. Section 124E.9, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
20 following new subsections:

21 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
22 shall employ a pharmacist or pharmacy technician licensed or
23 registered pursuant to chapter 155A for the purpose of making
24 dosing recommendations.

25 NEW SUBSECTION. 14. A medical cannabidiol dispensary shall
26 not dispense more than a combined total of twenty-five grams
27 of total tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's
28 primary caregiver in a ninety-day period, except as provided in
29 subsection 15. The department may decrease this limit by rule
30 as provided in section 124E.11, subsection 2, paragraph "c".

31 NEW SUBSECTION. 15. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
32 may dispense more than a combined total of twenty-five grams
33 of total tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's
34 primary caregiver in a ninety-day period if any of the
35 following apply:

PAGE 4

- 1 a. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 2 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 3 patient's debilitating medical condition is a terminal illness
 4 with a life expectancy of less than one year. A certification
 5 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total
 6 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
 7 health care practitioner.
- 8 b. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 9 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 10 the patient has participated in the medical cannabidiol program
 11 and that the health care practitioner has determined that
 12 twenty-five grams of total tetrahydrocannabinol in a ninety-day
 13 period is insufficient to treat the patient's debilitating
 14 medical condition. A certification issued pursuant to this
 15 paragraph shall include a total tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed
 16 appropriate by the patient's health care practitioner.
- 17 Sec. 18. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 18 subparagraph (1), subparagraph division (a), Code 2020, is
 19 amended to read as follows:
- 20 (a) To authorized employees or agents of the department ~~and~~
 21 ~~the department of transportation~~ as necessary to perform the
 22 duties of the department ~~and the department of transportation~~
 23 pursuant to this chapter.
- 24 Sec. 19. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 25 subparagraph (1), subparagraph division (c), Code 2020, is
 26 amended to read as follows:
- 27 (c) To authorized employees of a medical cannabidiol
 28 dispensary, but only for the ~~purpose~~ purposes of verifying that
 29 a person is lawfully in possession of a medical cannabidiol
 30 registration card issued pursuant to this chapter ~~and that a~~
 31 person has not purchased total tetrahydrocannabinol in excess
 32 of the amount authorized by this chapter.
- 33 Sec. 20. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 34 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 35 new subparagraph division:

PAGE 5

- 1 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (e) To a health care
 2 practitioner for the purpose of determining whether a patient
 3 seeking a written certification pursuant to section 124E.3 has
 4 already received a written certification from another health
 5 care practitioner.
- 6 Sec. 21. Section 124E.12, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 7 amended to read as follows:
- 8 7. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the department,
 9 ~~the department of transportation~~, the governor, or any employee
 10 of any state agency shall not be held civilly or criminally
 11 liable for any injury, loss of property, personal injury, or
 12 death caused by any act or omission while acting within the

13 scope of office or employment as authorized under this chapter.

14 Sec. 22. NEW SECTION. 124E.20 Observational effectiveness
15 **study.**

16 The department may conduct an observational effectiveness
17 study in cooperation with patients and health care
18 practitioners and pursuant to rules of the department in order
19 to study the effectiveness of medical cannabidiol in the
20 treatment of debilitating medical conditions.

21 Sec. 23. PROTECTION OF FEDERAL FUNDING. The department
22 of public health shall request guarantees from the agencies
23 of the federal government providing funding to educational
24 and long-term care facilities that facilities with policies
25 allowing patients to possess medical cannabidiol on the grounds
26 of the facilities consistent with chapter 124E or allowing
27 facility staff to administer medical cannabidiol to a patient
28 shall not lose eligibility for any federal funding due to such
29 policies.

30 Sec. 24. TRANSITION PROVISIONS. A medical cannabidiol
31 registration card issued prior to July 1, 2020, remains
32 effective and continues in effect as issued for the
33 twelve-month period following its issuance.>

BRECKENRIDGE of Jasper

H-8102

1 Amend House File 2600 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, line 4, by striking <matching grants> and
3 inserting <grant>

4 2. Page 1, line 7, by striking <matching grants> and
5 inserting <grant>

6 3. Page 1, line 10, by striking <matching>

7 4. Page 1, line 11, by striking <grants> and inserting
8 <grant>

9 5. Page 1, line 12, by striking <matching>

10 6. Page 1, line 13, by striking <grants> and inserting
11 <grant>

12 7. Page 1, line 14, by striking <matching grants> and
13 inserting <grant>

14 8. Page 1, line 19, by striking <matching>

15 9. Page 1, line 32, by striking <five> and inserting <ten>

16 10. Page 2, by striking line 2 and inserting <state grant
17 program to provide state grants>

18 11. Page 2, line 3, by striking <on a dollar-for-dollar
19 basis.>

20 12. Page 2, line 5, after <helps> by inserting
21 <(T.E.A.C.H.)>

22 13. Page 2, line 6, after <strategies.> by inserting <To be
23 eligible for a grant, a community must demonstrate the ability
24 to match a grant awarded by the state board in an amount equal
25 to a minimum of seventy percent of the grant awarded by the

- 26 state board.>
 27 14. Page 2, line 7, by striking <matching>
 28 15. Title page, line 1, by striking <matching>
 29 16. Title page, line 2, by striking <grants> and inserting
 30 <grant>
 31 17. Title page, line 3, by striking <matching>

WINCKLER of Scott

H-8103

- 1 Amend House File 2413 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <DIVISION I
 4 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES>
 5 2. Page 6, after line 26 by inserting:
 6 <DIVISION II
 7 DRUG PARAPHERNALIA AND SYRINGE SERVICES PROGRAM
 8 Sec. ___. Section 124.414, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
 9 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 10 *b. "Drug paraphernalia" does not include hypodermic needles*
 11 *or syringes if manufactured, delivered, sold, or possessed for*
 12 *a lawful purpose. "Lawful purpose" includes hypodermic needles*
 13 *or syringes delivered, sold, or possessed through an approved*
 14 *syringe services program established pursuant to rules adopted*
 15 *by the department of public health.*
 16 Sec. ___. Section 135.19, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 17 the following new subsection:
 18 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. The department shall establish and
 19 implement a syringe services program for persons who unlawfully
 20 inject controlled substances and who are at an increased risk
 21 for exposure to hepatitis B or hepatitis C. The program
 22 shall include hepatitis C testing, referrals for treatment
 23 of substance use disorders, and training for opioid overdose
 24 prevention and reversal.
 25 Sec. ___. Section 141A.3, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 26 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 27 NEW PARAGRAPH. *g.* Establish and implement a syringe
 28 services program for persons who unlawfully inject controlled
 29 substances and who are at risk of HIV infection. The program
 30 shall include testing for HIV infection, referrals for
 31 treatment of substance use disorders, and training in opioid
 32 overdose prevention and reversal.
 33 DIVISION III
 34 EFFECTIVE DATE>
 35 3. Title page, line 1, after <substances> by inserting <and

PAGE 2

- 1 drug paraphernalia>
 2 4. Title page, line 3, after <marijuana,> by inserting
 3 <establishing a syringe services program,>

4 5. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8104

1 Amend the amendment, H-8101, to House File 2589 as follows:

2 1. By striking page 1, line 4, through page 5, line 33, and
3 inserting:

4 <<Section 1. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, paragraph i,
5 Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

6 *i. Untreatable Severe or chronic pain.*

7 Sec. 2. Section 124E.2, subsections 5 and 6, Code 2020, are
8 amended to read as follows:

9 5. "*Health care practitioner*" means an individual licensed
10 under chapter 148 to practice medicine and surgery or
11 osteopathic medicine and surgery, a physician assistant
12 licensed under chapter 148C, or an advanced registered nurse
13 practitioner licensed under chapter 152 or 152E, who is a
14 patient's primary care provider. "~~*Health care practitioner*~~"
15 ~~shall not include a physician assistant licensed under chapter~~
16 ~~148C or an advanced registered nurse practitioner licensed~~
17 ~~pursuant to chapter 152 or 152E.~~

18 6. "*Medical cannabidiol*" means any pharmaceutical
19 grade cannabinoid found in the plant *Cannabis sativa* L. or
20 *Cannabis indica* or any other preparation thereof ~~that has~~
21 ~~a tetrahydrocannabinol level of no more than three percent~~
22 ~~and~~ that is delivered in a form recommended by the medical
23 cannabidiol board, approved by the board of medicine, and
24 adopted by the department pursuant to rule.

25 Sec. 3. Section 124E.2, subsection 8, Code 2020, is amended
26 by striking the subsection.

27 Sec. 4. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
28 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

29 Sec. 5. Section 124E.9, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
30 following new subsections:

31 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
32 may employ a pharmacist or pharmacy technician licensed or
33 registered pursuant to chapter 155A.

34 NEW SUBSECTION. 14. a. Except as otherwise provided in
35 paragraph "b", a medical cannabidiol dispensary shall not

PAGE 2

1 dispense more than a combined total of twenty-five grams of
2 tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's primary
3 caregiver in a ninety-day period.

4 *b.* The board of medicine shall adopt rules allowing the
5 health care practitioner who originally certified a patient
6 to receive a medical cannabidiol registration card to apply
7 for, and the medical cannabidiol board to expeditiously and
8 efficiently grant, a waiver to permit the patient and the

9 patient's primary caregiver to receive more than a combined
 10 total of twenty-five grams of tetrahydrocannabinol in a
 11 ninety-day period if the health care practitioner submits
 12 documentation certifying all of the following:
 13 (1) The health care practitioner performed a physical
 14 examination of the patient and has determined that twenty-five
 15 grams of tetrahydrocannabinol per ninety-day period is not an
 16 adequate amount to alleviate the patient's debilitating medical
 17 condition.
 18 (2) The patient's debilitating medical condition is a
 19 terminal illness with a life expectancy of less than one year.
 20 Sec. 6. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 21 subparagraph (1), subparagraph division (c), Code 2020, is
 22 amended to read as follows:
 23 (c) To authorized employees of a medical cannabidiol
 24 dispensary, but only for the ~~purpose~~ purposes of verifying that
 25 a person is lawfully in possession of a medical cannabidiol
 26 registration card issued pursuant to this chapter and that a
 27 person has not purchased tetrahydrocannabinol in excess of the
 28 amount authorized by this chapter.
 29 Sec. 7. Section 124E.11, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 30 by adding the following new paragraph:
 31 NEW PARAGRAPH. j. Collect and evaluate data on patient
 32 demographics, effective treatment options, clinical outcomes,
 33 and quality of life outcomes for the purpose of reporting on
 34 the benefits, risks, and outcomes encountered by patients with
 35 a debilitating medical condition engaged in the use of medical

PAGE 3

1 cannabidiol.>>

BRECKENRIDGE of Jasper

H-8105

1 Amend House File 2581 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 14, by striking <a human or animal> and
 3 inserting <the human>
 4 2. Page 1, lines 15 and 16, by striking <a human or animal>
 5 and inserting <the human>
 6 3. Page 1, line 23, by striking <a human or animal> and
 7 inserting <the human>
 8 4. Page 1, lines 24 and 25, by striking <a human or animal>
 9 and inserting <the human>
 10 5. Page 1, line 27, by striking <a human or animal> and
 11 inserting <the human>
 12 6. By striking page 1, line 34, through page 2, line 1, and
 13 inserting <sold, or distributed as food, a food additive, a
 14 dietary supplement, or a drug.>
 15 7. Page 2, line 4, by striking <body of a human or animal>
 16 and inserting <human body>

- 17 8. Page 2, after line 14 by inserting:
 18 <Sec. ___. Section 204.2, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
 19 amended to read as follows:
 20 6. a. "*Hemp*" means the plant cannabis sativa L. and any
 21 part of that plant, including the seeds thereof, and all
 22 derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts,
 23 and salts of isomers, whether growing or not, with a maximum
 24 delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of not more than
 25 three-tenths of one percent on a dry weight basis as calculated
 26 pursuant to an official test as provided in section 204.8.
 27 b. "*Hemp*" also means a plant of the genus cannabis
 28 other than cannabis sativa L., with a maximum delta-9
 29 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of not more than
 30 three-tenths of one percent on a dry weight basis as calculated
 31 pursuant to an official test as provided in section 204.8, but
 32 only to the extent allowed by the department in accordance with
 33 applicable federal law, including the federal hemp law.>
 34 9. Page 3, line 18, by striking <state of the hemp's origin>
 35 and inserting <jurisdiction where the hemp was produced>

PAGE 2

- 1 10. Page 4, line 34, after <department> by inserting <of
 2 inspections and appeals>
 3 11. Page 4, line 35, after <the department> by inserting <of
 4 inspections and appeals>
 5 12. Page 4, line 35, after <The department> by inserting <of
 6 inspections and appeals>
 7 13. Page 5, line 1, after <department> by inserting <of
 8 inspections and appeals>
 9 14. Page 5, line 2, after <department> by inserting <of
 10 inspections and appeals>
 11 15. Page 5, line 10, by striking <crop inspection> and
 12 inserting <analysis>
 13 16. Page 5, by striking lines 24 and 25 and inserting
 14 <jurisdiction pursuant to a state or tribal plan approved by
 15 the United States department of agriculture pursuant to the
 16 federal hemp law may be imported for use by a>
 17 17. Page 8, by striking lines 20 and 21 and inserting:
 18 <b. The person is required to hold a temporary harvest and
 19 transportation permit to possess, harvest, or move hemp.>
 20 18. Page 8, line 34, by striking <or animal>
 21 19. Page 9, line 13, by striking <or animal>
 22 20. By renumbering as necessary.

KLEIN of Washington

H-8106

- 1 Amend House File 662 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 2, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 3 2. Page 1, line 15, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

- 4 3. Page 2, line 6, after <name> by inserting <date of
5 birth, last four digits of the>
6 4. Page 2, line 21, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
7 5. Page 2, line 33, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
8 6. Page 3, after line 12 by inserting:
9 <Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act takes effect January 1,
10 2023.>
11 7. Title page, line 3, after <confidentiality> by inserting
12 <, and including effective date provisions>
13 8. By renumbering as necessary.

HITE of Mahaska

H-8107

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8087, to House File 2424 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 18, after <income> by inserting <at or>
3 2. Page 1, line 22, after <income> by inserting <at or>
4 3. Page 1, line 23, after <than> by inserting <or at>
5 4. Page 1, line 24, by striking <fifty-five> and inserting
6 <fifty>
7 5. Page 1, by striking lines 26 through 33.
8 6. Page 2, line 7, after <income> by inserting <at or>
9 7. Page 2, line 11, after <income> by inserting <at or>
10 8. Page 2, line 12, after <than> by inserting <or at>
11 9. Page 2, line 13, by striking <eighty-five> and inserting
12 <seventy-five>
13 10. Page 2, by striking lines 15 through 22.

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8108

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8087, to House File 2424 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 5, by striking <two hundred sixty-three> and
3 inserting <two hundred fifty>
4 2. Page 1, lines 7 and 8, by striking <three hundred> and
5 inserting <two hundred seventy-five>
6 3. Page 1, line 18, after <income> by inserting <at or>
7 4. Page 1, line 22, after <income> by inserting <at or>
8 5. Page 1, line 23, after <than> by inserting <or at>
9 6. Page 1, line 24, by striking <fifty-five> and inserting
10 <fifty>
11 7. Page 1, by striking lines 26 through 33.
12 8. Page 2, line 7, after <income> by inserting <at or>
13 9. Page 2, line 11, after <income> by inserting <at or>
14 10. Page 2, line 12, after <than> by inserting <or at>
15 11. Page 2, line 13, by striking <eighty-five> and inserting
16 <seventy-five>
17 12. Page 2, by striking lines 15 through 22.

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8109

1 Amend the amendment, H-8096, to House File 2595 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 16, by striking <one thousand> and inserting
 3 <two hundred fifty>
 4 2. Page 1, line 17, after <2.> by inserting <a.>
 5 3. Page 1, line 19, after <2> by inserting <, and shall not
 6 exceed five hundred dollars in the aggregate>
 7 4. Page 1, after line 19 by inserting:
 8 <b. Married taxpayers who file separate returns or file
 9 separately on a combined return form must determine the tax
 10 credit under subsection 1 based upon their combined net income
 11 and allocate the total credit amount to each spouse in the
 12 proportion that each spouse's respective net income bears to
 13 the total combined net income.>

GASSMAN of Winnebago

H-8110

1 Amend Senate File 2296, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 2, after line 3 by inserting:
 3 <(vii) The owner-operator is not pressured or coerced to
 4 satisfy any of the conditions set forth in this subparagraph
 5 division (b) with the intent of changing the status of the
 6 owner-operator to an independent contractor.>

KURTZ of Lee

H-8111

1 Amend the amendment, H-8088, to House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 2 by inserting:
 3 <__. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. __. Section 476.6, subsection 15, paragraph a,
 5 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 6 (2) Gas and electric utilities required to be
 7 rate-regulated under this chapter may request an energy
 8 efficiency plan or demand response plan modification during the
 9 course of a five-year plan. A modification may be requested
 10 due to changes in funding as a result of public utility
 11 customers requesting exemptions from the plan or for any other
 12 reason identified by the gas or electric utility. ~~The board~~
 13 ~~shall take action on a modification request made by a gas or~~
 14 ~~electric utility within ninety days after the modification~~
 15 ~~request is filed. If the board fails to take action within~~
 16 ~~ninety days after a modification request is filed, the~~
 17 ~~modification request shall be deemed approved.~~
 18 Sec. __. Section 476.6, subsection 15, paragraph c,
 19 subparagraph (4), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 20 (4) ~~The board shall approve, reject, or modify a plan filed~~
 21 ~~pursuant to this subsection no later than March 31, 2019. If~~

22 the board fails to approve, reject, or modify a plan filed by a
 23 gas or electric utility on or before such date, any plan filed
 24 by the gas or electric utility that was approved by the board
 25 prior to May 4, 2018, shall be terminated. The board shall
 26 not require or allow a gas or electric utility to implement an
 27 energy efficiency plan or demand response plan that does not
 28 meet the requirements of this subsection.
 29 Sec. ____ Section 476.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 30 following new subsection:
 31 **NEW SUBSECTION. 22. Board action on filings — cost of**
 32 **living rate cap.** Notwithstanding any other provision of law to
 33 the contrary, the board shall not be required to take action on
 34 any filing under this chapter within a specific time period and
 35 shall be allotted any time period which the board determines

PAGE 2

1 is reasonably necessary and appropriate to make a final
 2 determination on such filing. Upon the review of any requested
 3 change in rate for a rate-regulated public utility and prior
 4 to the board's final determination, the rate-regulated public
 5 utility shall maintain a rate which does not exceed a current
 6 cost of living rate as determined by the board.>>
 7 2. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 8 <__. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and
 9 inserting <An Act relating to matters under the purview of the
 10 utilities division of the department of commerce.>>
 11 3. By renumbering as necessary.

BRECKENRIDGE of Jasper

H-8112

1 Amend the amendment, H-8088, to House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 2 by inserting:
 3 <__. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. ____ Section 476.6, subsection 8, Code 2020, is
 5 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 6 **NEW PARAGRAPH. c.** A rate-regulated public utility that
 7 automatically adjusts rates or charges to increase consumer
 8 costs shall be subjected to a random audit by the board or the
 9 office of the consumer advocate and shall report to the board
 10 and the office of the consumer advocate all of the following
 11 information:
 12 (1) The total amount of profits on the utility's investment
 13 returns.
 14 (2) An explanation regarding how such increase in consumer
 15 costs will be spent or invested by the utility.
 16 (3) The total amount of moneys used by the utility for
 17 funding weatherization assistance programs and other customer
 18 assistance programs.>>
 19 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8113

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8088, to House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 2 by inserting:
 3 <__. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. __. Section 476.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsection:
 6 NEW SUBSECTION. 22. Utilization of a historic or future test
 7 year in rate regulatory proceeding — payments. A public utility
 8 that utilizes a historic test year or a future test year in a
 9 rate regulatory proceeding pursuant to section 476.33 shall
 10 pay a total of two-tenths of one percent of the amounts the
 11 public utility charges to its customers to the weatherization
 12 assistance program administered by the division of community
 13 action agencies of the department of human rights.>>
 14 2. By renumbering as necessary.

OLDSON of Polk

H-8114

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8088, to House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 2 by inserting:
 3 <__. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. __. Section 476.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsections:
 6 NEW SUBSECTION. 22. Rate base increase — proposed rate
 7 increase filings — limits.
 8 *a.* Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary,
 9 the board shall not approve a proposed rate base increase for a
 10 rate-regulated public utility which exceeds three percent of
 11 the public utility's approved rate base for the previous year.
 12 *b.* Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary,
 13 the board shall prohibit a rate-regulated public utility from
 14 filing more than one application for a proposed rate increase
 15 in a single year or filing an application for a proposed rate
 16 increase which proposes multiple-year rate increases.
 17 NEW SUBSECTION. 23. Proposed rate increase — public
 18 input. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 19 contrary, upon the initiation of a formal proceeding to
 20 evaluate a rate-regulated public utility's application for a
 21 proposed rate increase, the board shall solicit input from
 22 customers and other interested members of the public regarding
 23 the proposed rate increase. The board shall consider such
 24 public input as part of its decision to approve, modify, or
 25 reject the proposed rate increase.>>
 26 2. By renumbering as necessary.

RUNNING-MARQUARDT of Linn

H-8115

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8016, to House File 2138 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 3 by inserting:
3 <__. Page 1, line 26, by striking <one hundred> and
4 inserting <fifty>>
5 2. By renumbering as necessary.

JAMES of Dubuque

H-8116

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8087, to House File 2424 as follows:
2 1. By striking page 1, line 2, through page 2, line 25, and
3 inserting:
4 <__. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
5 inserting:
6 <DIVISION I
7 Section 1. Section 422.12C, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
8 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
9 thereof the following:
10 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the amounts
11 of nonrefundable credits allowed under this division, shall
12 be reduced by a child and dependent care credit equal to the
13 following percentages of the federal child and dependent care
14 credit provided in section 21 of the Internal Revenue Code,
15 without regard to whether or not the federal credit was limited
16 by the taxpayer's federal tax liability:
17 a. For a taxpayer with net income of less than forty-five
18 thousand dollars, one hundred percent.
19 b. For a taxpayer with net income of forty-five thousand
20 dollars or more but less than ninety thousand dollars, thirty
21 percent.
22 c. For a taxpayer with net income of ninety thousand dollars
23 or more but less than one hundred thousand dollars, twenty-five
24 percent.
25 d. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred thousand
26 dollars or more but less than one hundred twenty-five thousand
27 dollars, twenty percent.
28 e. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred twenty-five
29 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred fifty
30 thousand dollars, fifteen percent.
31 f. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred fifty
32 thousand dollars or more but less than one hundred seventy-five
33 thousand dollars, ten percent.
34 g. For a taxpayer with net income of one hundred
35 seventy-five thousand dollars or more but less than two hundred

PAGE 2

- 1 fifty thousand dollars, five percent.
2 h. For a taxpayer with net income of two hundred fifty

3 thousand dollars or more, zero percent.

4 Sec. 2. **RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY.** This division of this
5 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020 for tax years
6 beginning on or after that date.

7 **DIVISION II**

8 Sec. 3. **NEW SECTION. 237D.1 Definitions.**

9 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
10 requires:

- 11 1. *“Child”* means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
- 12 2. *“Child care”* means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
- 13 3. *“Child development home”* means the same as defined in
14 section 237A.1.
- 15 4. *“Department”* means the department of human services.
- 16 5. *“Facility”* means the same as defined in section 237A.1.
- 17 6. *“Fund”* means the child care center and child development
18 home grant fund.
- 19 7. *“Home”* means a child development home.
- 20 8. *“Licensed child care center”* or *“center”* means a facility
21 providing child care or preschool services for seven or more
22 children that has been issued a license by the department
23 pursuant to section 237A.2.
- 24 9. *“Program”* means the child care center and child
25 development home grant program.

26 Sec. 4. **NEW SECTION. 237D.2 Child care center and child**
27 **development home grant fund.**

- 28 1. A child care center and child development home grant fund
29 is created and established as a separate and distinct fund in
30 the state treasury under the control of the department.
- 31 2. *a.* The fund may consist of any moneys appropriated by
32 the general assembly for purposes of this chapter and any other
33 moneys that are lawfully available to the department. Moneys
34 in the fund are appropriated to the department and shall be
35 used for the purposes of this chapter.

PAGE 3

- 1 *b.* Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys in the fund
2 that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close of the
3 fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for
4 expenditure for the purposes of this section in succeeding
5 fiscal years. Notwithstanding section 12C.7, subsection 2,
6 interest earned on moneys in the fund shall be credited to the
7 fund.

8 Sec. 5. **NEW SECTION. 237D.3 Child care center and child**
9 **development home grant program.**

- 10 1. The department shall adopt rules to establish and
11 administer a child care center and child development home
12 grant program to provide for the allocation of money in the
13 fund in the form of grants, not to exceed fifty thousand
14 dollars per grant, to eligible persons for costs related to
15 the establishment of a new licensed child care center or
16 a new child development home, or for the expansion of an

17 existing licensed child care center or the expansion of an
 18 existing child development home. For any one fiscal year, the
 19 department shall not approve more than four million dollars
 20 in grants. The rules adopted by the department shall specify
 21 the eligibility requirements for applicants of the program and
 22 the items eligible for a program grant. Items eligible for a
 23 program grant must include the costs related to licensing or
 24 registration, supplies, and infrastructure.

25 2. A new center or a new home must be licensed or registered
 26 and fully operational within two years of the date of an
 27 applicant's receipt of a grant.

28 3. Of the children for whom a new or expanded center or a
 29 new or expanded home provide child care, a minimum of twenty
 30 percent of the children must be from a family that qualifies
 31 for state child care assistance pursuant to section 237A.13.

32 4. A person that is awarded a grant shall enter into an
 33 agreement with the department that specifies the requirements
 34 that must be maintained throughout the period of the agreement
 35 in order for the person to retain the grant. The agreement

PAGE 4

1 must contain, at a minimum, provisions addressing all of the
 2 following:

3 a. The legal name of the person receiving the grant.
 4 b. The amount of the grant.
 5 c. Annual certification by the person to the department of
 6 compliance with the requirements of the agreement, the program,
 7 and this chapter.
 8 d. The repayment of the grant, or a portion of the grant,
 9 if the person does not meet all of the requirements of the
 10 agreement, the program, and this chapter.
 11 e. If a new center or a new home for which the grant was
 12 received goes out of business within two years of the date the
 13 new center or new home becomes fully operational pursuant to
 14 subsection 2, the grant shall be subject to repayment. If an
 15 expanded center or an expanded home for which the grant was
 16 received goes out of business within two years of the date on
 17 which the grant was received, the grant shall be subject to
 18 repayment.

19 DIVISION III

20 Sec. 6. NEW SECTION. 237A.31 **Small business child care tax**
 21 **credit.**

22 1. As used in this section "*small business*" means any
 23 enterprise which is located in this state, which is operated
 24 for profit and under a single management, and which has either
 25 fewer than twenty employees or an annual gross income of less
 26 than four million dollars computed as the average of the three
 27 preceding fiscal years. This definition does not apply to any
 28 program or activity for which a definition for small business
 29 is provided for the program or activity by federal law or
 30 regulation or other state law.

31 2. A small business may receive a child care tax credit
 32 for providing child care employee benefits to employees of
 33 the business. The credit may be applied against income tax
 34 imposed under chapter 422, division II or III, the franchise
 35 tax imposed under chapter 422, division V, the gross premiums

PAGE 5

1 tax imposed under chapter 432, or the moneys and credits tax
 2 imposed in section 533.329. The amount of the credit equals
 3 the costs to provide the benefit up to three thousand dollars
 4 per employee per year.

5 3. The aggregate amount of tax credits authorized pursuant
 6 to this section shall not exceed a total of two million
 7 dollars per fiscal year, and shall be awarded on a first-come,
 8 first-served basis.

9 4. To be eligible for a small business child care tax
 10 credit, the small business must provide child care employee
 11 benefits to employees of the business through any of the
 12 following:

13 a. Build a new structure or rehabilitate an existing
 14 structure to be used as a child care center at or near the small
 15 business where the children of the employees of the business
 16 are provided child care. A small business may construct or
 17 rehabilitate the structure in conjunction with another business
 18 but only the actual cost of the business shall be considered in
 19 determining the credit.

20 b. Operate or lease a child care center at or near the small
 21 business where the children of the employees of the business
 22 are provided child care.

23 5. Any credit in excess of the tax liability is not
 24 refundable but the excess for the tax year may be credited
 25 to the tax liability for the following five years or until
 26 depleted, whichever is earlier. The director of revenue shall
 27 adopt rules to implement this section.

28 Sec. 7. **NEW SECTION. 422.120 Small business child care tax**
 29 **credit.**

30 1. The taxes imposed under this division, less the credits
 31 allowed under section 422.12, shall be reduced by a small
 32 business child care tax credit received pursuant to section
 33 237A.31.

34 2. An individual may claim the tax credit allowed a
 35 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,

PAGE 6

1 or trust electing to have the income taxed directly to the
 2 individual. The amount claimed by the individual shall be
 3 based upon the pro rata share of the individual's earnings of a
 4 partnership, S corporation, limited liability company, estate,
 5 or trust.

6 Sec. 8. Section 422.33, Code 2020, is amended by adding the

7 following new subsection:
 8 **NEW SUBSECTION. 31.** The taxes imposed under this division
 9 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
 10 received pursuant to section 237A.31.
 11 Sec. 9. Section 422.60, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 12 following new subsection:
 13 **NEW SUBSECTION. 14.** The taxes imposed under this division
 14 shall be reduced by a small business child care tax credit
 15 received pursuant to section 237A.31.
 16 Sec. 10. **NEW SECTION. 432.12N Small business child care**
 17 **tax credit.**
 18 The taxes imposed under this chapter shall be reduced by
 19 a small business child care tax credit received pursuant to
 20 section 237A.31.
 21 Sec. 11. Section 533.329, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 22 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 23 **NEW PARAGRAPH. 1.** The moneys and credits tax imposed under
 24 this section shall be reduced by a small business child care
 25 tax credit received pursuant to section 237A.31.
 26 Sec. 12. **APPLICABILITY.** This division of this Act applies
 27 to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2021.
 28 **DIVISION IV**
 29 Sec. 13. Section 237A.13, subsection 7, paragraph c, Code
 30 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 31 c. Families with an income of more than one hundred
 32 percent but not more than ~~one two hundred forty-five~~ percent
 33 of the federal poverty level whose members, for at least
 34 twenty-eight hours per week in the aggregate, are employed
 35 or are participating at a satisfactory level in an approved

PAGE 7

1 training program or educational program.
 2 Sec. 14. **DIRECTIVE TO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES — CHILD**
 3 **CARE ASSISTANCE.**
 4 1. The department of human services shall amend its
 5 administrative rules pursuant to chapter 17A to do all of the
 6 following:
 7 a. Provide income eligibility for state child care
 8 assistance, according to family size for children needing basic
 9 care, to families whose nonexempt gross monthly income does not
 10 exceed two hundred percent of the federal poverty level.
 11 b. Adjust the state child care assistance copayment
 12 schedule in incrementally increased amounts for families whose
 13 nonexempt gross monthly income does not exceed two hundred
 14 percent of the federal poverty level.
 15 2. The rules adopted pursuant to this section shall take
 16 effect January 1, 2021.>
 17 _____. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 18 <An Act relating to child care, grants and tax credits relating
 19 to child care, state child care assistance, and including

20 applicability and retroactive applicability provisions.>>

JAMES of Dubuque

H-8117

1 Amend House File 2592 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <Section 1. Section 97B.50, subsection 2, paragraphs a and
 4 b, Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 5 a. A vested member who retires from the retirement system
 6 due to disability and commences receiving disability benefits
 7 pursuant to the federal Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §423 et
 8 seq., and who has not reached the normal retirement date, shall
 9 receive benefits as selected under section 97B.51, and shall
 10 not have benefits reduced upon retirement as required under
 11 subsection 1 regardless of whether the member has completed
 12 thirty or more years of membership service. However, the
 13 benefits under this subsection shall be suspended during any
 14 period in which the member returns to covered employment and is
 15 no longer eligible for disability benefits under the federal
 16 Social Security Act. This section takes effect July 1, 1990,
 17 for a member meeting the requirements of this paragraph who
 18 retired from the retirement system at any time after July 4,
 19 1953. Eligible members retiring on or after July 1, 2000, are
 20 entitled to the receipt of retroactive adjustment payments for
 21 no more than thirty-six months immediately preceding the month
 22 in which written application for retirement due to disability
 23 was received by the system.
 24 b. A vested member who retires from the retirement system
 25 due to disability and commences receiving disability benefits
 26 pursuant to the federal Railroad Retirement Act, 45 U.S.C. §231
 27 et seq., and who has not reached the normal retirement date,
 28 shall receive benefits as selected under section 97B.51, and
 29 shall not have benefits reduced upon retirement as required
 30 under subsection 1 regardless of whether the member has
 31 completed thirty or more years of membership service. However,
 32 the benefits under this subsection shall be suspended during
 33 any period in which the member returns to covered employment
 34 and is no longer eligible for disability benefits under the
 35 federal Railroad Retirement Act. This section takes effect

PAGE 2

1 July 1, 1990, for a member meeting the requirements of this
 2 paragraph who retired from the retirement system at any time
 3 since July 4, 1953. Eligible members retiring on or after July
 4 1, 2000, are entitled to the receipt of retroactive adjustment
 5 payments for no more than thirty-six months immediately
 6 preceding the month in which written application for retirement
 7 due to disability was received by the system.>
 8 2. Title page, line 1, after <under the> by inserting <Iowa

9 public employees retirement system and the>
10 3. By renumbering as necessary.

COURTH of Warren

H-8118

1 Amend Senate File 2119, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
3 <DIVISION I
4 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES>
5 2. Page 6, after line 26 by inserting:
6 <DIVISION II
7 DRUG PARAPHERNALIA AND SYRINGE SERVICES PROGRAM
8 Sec. __. Section 124.414, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
9 2020, is amended to read as follows:
10 b. *“Drug paraphernalia”* does not include hypodermic needles
11 or syringes if manufactured, delivered, sold, or possessed for
12 a lawful purpose. *“Lawful purpose”* includes hypodermic needles
13 or syringes delivered, sold, or possessed through an approved
14 syringe services program established pursuant to rules adopted
15 by the department of public health.
16 Sec. __. Section 135.19, Code 2020, is amended by adding
17 the following new subsection:
18 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 3. The department shall establish and
19 implement a syringe services program for persons who unlawfully
20 inject controlled substances and who are at an increased risk
21 for exposure to hepatitis B or hepatitis C. The program
22 shall include hepatitis C testing, referrals for treatment
23 of substance use disorders, and training for opioid overdose
24 prevention and reversal.
25 Sec. __. Section 141A.3, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
26 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
27 **NEW PARAGRAPH.** g. Establish and implement a syringe
28 services program for persons who unlawfully inject controlled
29 substances and who are at risk of HIV infection. The program
30 shall include testing for HIV infection, referrals for
31 treatment of substance use disorders, and training in opioid
32 overdose prevention and reversal.
33 DIVISION III
34 EFFECTIVE DATE>
35 3. Title page, line 1, after <substances> by inserting <and

PAGE 2

1 drug paraphernalia>
2 4. Title page, line 3, after <marijuana,> by inserting
3 <establishing a syringe services program.>
4 5. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8119

1 Amend House File 2589 as follows:
 2 1. Page 2, before line 35 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. _____. Section 124E.4, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:
 5 5. *Expiration date of card.* A medical cannabidiol
 6 registration card issued pursuant to this section shall expire
 7 ~~one-year~~ three years after the date of issuance and may be
 8 renewed.>

GASKILL of Wapello

H-8120

1 Amend House File 2589 as follows:
 2 1. Page 3, line 23, by striking <four and one-half> and
 3 inserting <fifteen>
 4 2. Page 3, line 30, by striking <four and one-half> and
 5 inserting <fifteen grams>
 6 3. Page 4, lines 9 and 10, by striking <four and one-half>
 7 and inserting <fifteen grams>

KRESSIG of Black Hawk

H-8121

1 Amend House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. _____. Section 476.6, subsection 8, Code 2020, is
 4 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 5 NEW PARAGRAPH. c. A rate-regulated public utility that
 6 automatically adjusts rates or charges to increase consumer
 7 costs shall be subjected to a random audit by the board or the
 8 office of the consumer advocate and shall report to the board
 9 and the office of the consumer advocate all of the following
 10 information:
 11 (1) The total amount of profits on the utility's investment
 12 returns.
 13 (2) An explanation regarding how such increase in consumer
 14 costs will be spent or invested by the utility.
 15 (3) The total amount of moneys used by the utility for
 16 funding weatherization assistance programs and other customer
 17 assistance programs.>
 18 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8122

1 Amend House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:

3 <Sec. ____ Section 476.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 4 the following new subsections:
 5 NEW SUBSECTION. 22. Rate base increase — proposed rate
 6 increase filings — limits.
 7 *a.* Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary,
 8 the board shall not approve a proposed rate base increase for a
 9 rate-regulated public utility which exceeds three percent of
 10 the public utility's approved rate base for the previous year.
 11 *b.* Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary,
 12 the board shall prohibit a rate-regulated public utility from
 13 filing more than one application for a proposed rate increase
 14 in a single year or filing an application for a proposed rate
 15 increase which proposes multiple-year rate increases.
 16 NEW SUBSECTION. 23. Proposed rate increase — public
 17 input. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 18 contrary, upon the initiation of a formal proceeding to
 19 evaluate a rate-regulated public utility's application for a
 20 proposed rate increase, the board shall solicit input from
 21 customers and other interested members of the public regarding
 22 the proposed rate increase. The board shall consider such
 23 public input as part of its decision to approve, modify, or
 24 reject the proposed rate increase.>
 25 2. By renumbering as necessary.

RUNNING-MARQUARDT of Linn

H-8123

1 Amend House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. ____ Section 476.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 4 the following new subsection:
 5 NEW SUBSECTION. 22. Utilization of a historic or future test
 6 year in rate regulatory proceeding — payments. A public utility
 7 that utilizes a historic test year or a future test year in a
 8 rate regulatory proceeding pursuant to section 476.33 shall
 9 pay a total of two-tenths of one percent of the amounts the
 10 public utility charges to its customers to the weatherization
 11 assistance program administered by the division of community
 12 action agencies of the department of human rights.>
 13 2. By renumbering as necessary.

OLDSON of Polk

H-8124

1 Amend House File 2510 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 20 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. ____ Section 476.6, subsection 15, paragraph a,
 4 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 (2) Gas and electric utilities required to be
 6 rate-regulated under this chapter may request an energy

7 efficiency plan or demand response plan modification during the
 8 course of a five-year plan. A modification may be requested
 9 due to changes in funding as a result of public utility
 10 customers requesting exemptions from the plan or for any other
 11 reason identified by the gas or electric utility. ~~The board
 12 shall take action on a modification request made by a gas or
 13 electric utility within ninety days after the modification
 14 request is filed. If the board fails to take action within
 15 ninety days after a modification request is filed, the
 16 modification request shall be deemed approved.~~

17 Sec. __. Section 476.6, subsection 15, paragraph c,
 18 subparagraph (4), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

19 (4) ~~The board shall approve, reject, or modify a plan filed
 20 pursuant to this subsection no later than March 31, 2019. If
 21 the board fails to approve, reject, or modify a plan filed by a
 22 gas or electric utility on or before such date, any plan filed
 23 by the gas or electric utility that was approved by the board
 24 prior to May 4, 2018, shall be terminated. The board shall
 25 not require or allow a gas or electric utility to implement an
 26 energy efficiency plan or demand response plan that does not
 27 meet the requirements of this subsection.~~

28 Sec. __. Section 476.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 29 following new subsection:

30 **NEW SUBSECTION. 22. Board action on filings — cost of**
 31 *living rate cap.* Notwithstanding any other provision of law to
 32 the contrary, the board shall not be required to take action on
 33 any filing under this chapter within a specific time period and
 34 shall be allotted any time period which the board determines
 35 is reasonably necessary and appropriate to make a final

PAGE 2

1 determination on such filing. Upon the review of any requested
 2 change in rate for a rate-regulated public utility and prior
 3 to the board's final determination, the rate-regulated public
 4 utility shall maintain a rate which does not exceed a current
 5 cost of living rate as determined by the board.>

6 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 7 <An Act relating to matters under the purview of the utilities
 8 division of the department of commerce.>

9 3. By renumbering as necessary.

BRECKENRIDGE of Jasper

H-8125

1 Amend House File 2501 as follows:

2 1. Page 2, line 18, after <APPLICABILITY.> by inserting <1.>

3 2. Page 2, after line 21 by inserting:

4 <2. This Act shall not apply to an asbestos action,
 5 including an action alleging a nonmalignant or malignant
 6 condition, or a silica action involving silicosis, filed by a

7 veteran. An action filed by a veteran on or after July 1, 2020,
8 shall be governed by section 686B.3, Code 2020. For purposes
9 of this subsection, “*veteran*” means the same as defined in
10 section 35.1.>

11 3. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
12 references as necessary.

B. MEYER of Polk

H-8126

1 Amend House File 2589 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, before line 4 by inserting:

3 <Sec. ___. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
4 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

5 NEW PARAGRAPH. j. Post-traumatic stress disorder.>

6 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8127

1 Amend House File 2413 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 124.201A, Code 2020, is amended
5 by striking the section and inserting in lieu thereof the
6 following:

7 **124.201A Cannabis-derived products — rules.**

8 1. If a cannabis-derived investigational product approved
9 as a prescription drug medication by the United States food
10 and drug administration is added to the federal schedule
11 of controlled substances by the federal drug enforcement
12 administration and notice of the addition is given to the
13 board, the board shall similarly add the prescription drug
14 medication in the schedule of controlled substances under this
15 chapter.

16 2. If a cannabis-derived product approved as a
17 prescription drug medication by the United States food and
18 drug administration is eliminated from or revised in the
19 federal schedule of controlled substances by the federal drug
20 enforcement administration and notice of the elimination or
21 revision is given to the board, the board shall similarly
22 eliminate or revise the prescription drug medication in the
23 schedule of controlled substances under this chapter.

24 3. The board shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A
25 to administer this section. The board may adopt rules on an
26 emergency basis as provided in section 17A.4, subsection 3, and
27 section 17A.5, subsection 2, to administer this section, and
28 the rules shall be effective immediately upon filing unless
29 a later date is specified in the rules. Any emergency rules
30 adopted in accordance with this section shall also be published

31 as a notice of intended action as provided in section 17A.4,
 32 subsection 1.
 33 4. Any cannabis-derived investigational product or
 34 cannabis-derived product approved as a prescription drug
 35 medication by the United States food and drug administration

PAGE 2

1 shall not be considered marijuana or cannabimimetic agents,
 2 both as defined in section 124.204, tetrahydrocannabinols
 3 as used in section 124.204, subsection 4, paragraph “u”,
 4 unnumbered paragraph 1, or hemp as defined in section 204.2.
 5 Sec. 2. Section 124.204, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 6 by adding the following new paragraph:

7 NEW PARAGRAPH. *be.* MT-45 (1-cyclohexyl-4-(1,2-
 8 diphenylethyl)piperazine).

9 Sec. 3. Section 124.204, subsection 4, paragraph m, Code
 10 2020, is amended to read as follows:

11 *m.* Marijuana, ~~except as otherwise provided by rules of the~~
 12 ~~board for medicinal purposes.~~

13 Sec. 4. Section 124.204, subsection 4, paragraph u,
 14 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 15 follows:

16 Tetrahydrocannabinols, ~~except as otherwise provided~~
 17 ~~by rules of the board for medicinal purposes,~~ meaning
 18 tetrahydrocannabinols naturally contained in a plant of
 19 the genus Cannabis (Cannabis plant) as well as synthetic
 20 equivalents of the substances contained in the Cannabis plant,
 21 or in the resinous extractives of such plant, and synthetic
 22 substances, derivatives, and their isomers with similar
 23 chemical structure and pharmacological activity to those
 24 substances contained in the plant, such as the following:

25 Sec. 5. Section 124.204, subsection 6, paragraph i, Code
 26 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraphs:
 27 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (27) 1-(1,3-benzodioxol-5-yl)-2-
 28 (ethylamino)-pentan-1-one. Other names: N-ethylpentylone or
 29 ephylone.

30 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (28) N-Ethylhexedrone, its optical,
 31 positional, and geometric isomers, salts and salts of isomers
 32 (Other name: 2-(ethylamino)-1-phenylhexan-1-one).

33 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (29) alpha-Pyrrolidinohexanophenone, its
 34 optical, positional, and geometric isomers, salts and salts of
 35 isomers (Other names: α-PHP; alpha-pyrrolidinohexiophenone;

PAGE 3

1 1-phenyl-2-(pyrrolidin-1-yl)hexan-1-one).

2 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (30) 4-Methyl-alpha-
 3 ethylaminopentiophenone, its optical, positional, and geometric
 4 isomers, salts and salts of isomers (Other names: 4—MEAP;
 5 2-(ethylamino)-1-(4-methylphenyl)pentan-1-one).

6 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (31) 4'-Methyl-alpha-

7 pyrrolidinohexiophenone, its optical, positional, and
8 geometric isomers, salts and salts of isomers (Other
9 names: MPHP; 4'-methyl-alpha-pyrrolidinohexanophenone;
10 1-(4-methylphenyl)-2-(pyrrolidin-1-yl)hexan-1-one).
11 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (32) alpha-Pyrrolidinoheptaphenone,
12 its optical, positional, and geometric isomers,
13 salts and salts of isomers (Other names: PV8;
14 1-phenyl-2-(pyrrolidin-1-yl)heptan-1-one).
15 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (33) 4'-Chloro-alpha-
16 pyrrolidinovalerophenone, its optical, positional, and
17 geometric isomers, salts and salts of isomers (Other names:
18 4-chloro- α -PVP; 4'-chloro-alpha-pyrrolidinopentiophenone;
19 1-(4-chlorophenyl)-2-(pyrrolidin-1-yl)pentan-1-one).
20 Sec. 6. Section 124.204, subsection 7, Code 2020, is amended
21 by striking the subsection.
22 Sec. 7. Section 124.204, subsection 9, Code 2020, is amended
23 by adding the following new paragraphs:
24 NEW PARAGRAPH. *af.* N-(1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)-N-
25 phenylcyclopropanecarboxamide, its isomers, esters, ethers,
26 salts and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers. Other name:
27 cyclopropyl fentanyl.
28 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ag.* N-(1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)-N-
29 phenylpentanamide, its isomers, esters, ethers, salts and salts
30 of isomers, esters and ethers. Other name: valeryl fentanyl.
31 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ah.* N-(4-fluorophenyl)-N-(1-
32 phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)butyramide, its isomers, esters,
33 ethers, salts and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers. Other
34 name: para-fluorobutyryl fentanyl.
35 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ai.* N-(4-methoxyphenyl)-N-

PAGE 4

1 (1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)butyramide, its isomers, esters,
2 ethers, salts and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers. Other
3 name: para-methoxybutyryl fentanyl.
4 NEW PARAGRAPH. *aj.* N-(4-chlorophenyl)-N-(1-
5 phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)isobutyryramide, its isomers, esters,
6 ethers, salts and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers. Other
7 name: para-chloroisobutyryl fentanyl.
8 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ak.* N-(1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)-
9 N-phenylisobutyramide, its isomers, esters, ethers, salts and
10 salts of isomers, esters, and ethers. Other name: isobutyryl
11 fentanyl.
12 NEW PARAGRAPH. *al.* N-(1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)-
13 N-phenylcyclopentanecarboxamide, its isomers, esters, ethers,
14 salts and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers. Other name:
15 cyclopentyl fentanyl.
16 NEW PARAGRAPH. *am.* N-(2-fluorophenyl)-2-methoxy-N-
17 (1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)acetamide, its isomers, esters,
18 ethers, salts and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers. Other
19 name: ocfentanil.
20 NEW PARAGRAPH. *an.* Fentanyl-related substances, their

21 isomers, esters, ethers, salts and salts of isomers, esters
 22 and ethers. “*Fentanyl-related substance*” means any substance
 23 not otherwise listed under this schedule or another schedule,
 24 and for which no exemption or approval is in effect under
 25 section 505 of the federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act that
 26 is structurally related to fentanyl by one or more of the
 27 following modifications:

28 (1) Replacement of the phenyl portion of the phenethyl group
 29 by any monocycle, whether or not further substituted in or on
 30 the monocycle.

31 (2) Substitution in or on the phenethyl group with alkyl,
 32 alkenyl, alkoxy, hydroxyl, halo, haloalkyl, amino, or nitro
 33 groups.

34 (3) Substitution in or on the piperidine ring with alkyl,
 35 alkenyl, alkoxy, ester, ether, hydroxyl, halo, haloalkyl,

PAGE 5

1 amino, or nitro groups.

2 (4) Replacement of the aniline ring with any aromatic
 3 monocycle whether or not further substituted in or on the
 4 aromatic monocycle.

5 (5) Replacement of the *N*-propionyl group by another acyl
 6 group.

7 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ao.* Naphthalen-1-yl 1-(5-fluoropentyl)-
 8 1*H*-indole-3-carboxylate. Other names: NM2201 or CBL2201.

9 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ap.* *N*-(1-amino-3-methyl-1-oxobutan-
 10 2-yl)-1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1*H*-indazole-3-carboxamide. Other
 11 name: 5F-AB-PINACA.

12 NEW PARAGRAPH. *aq.* 1-(4-cyanobutyl)-*N*-(2-phenylpropan-
 13 2-yl)-1*H*-indazole-3-carboxamide. Other names:

14 4-CN-CUMYL-BUTINACA, 4-cyano-CUMYL-BUTINACA, 4-CN-CUMYL
 15 BINACA, CUMYL-4CN-BINACA, or SGT-78.

16 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ar.* Methyl 2-(1-(cyclohexylmethyl)-1*H*-
 17 indole-3-carboxamido)-3-methylbutanoate. Other names:
 18 MMB-CHMICA or AMB-CHMICA.

19 NEW PARAGRAPH. *as.* 1-(5-fluoropentyl)-*N*-(2-
 20 phenylpropan-2-yl)-1*H*-pyrrolo[2,3-*b*]pyridine-3-carboxamide.

21 Other name: 5F-CUMYL-P7AICA.

22 NEW PARAGRAPH. *at.* Ethyl 2-(1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1*H*-
 23 indazole-3-carboxamido)-3,3-dimethylbutanoate, its optical,
 24 positional, and geometric isomers, salts and salts of isomers
 25 (other name: 5F-EDMB-PINACA).

26 NEW PARAGRAPH. *au.* Methyl 2-(1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1*H*-indole-
 27 3-carboxamido)-3,3-dimethylbutanoate, its optical, positional,
 28 and geometric isomers, salts and salts of isomers (other name:
 29 5F-MDMB-PICA).

30 NEW PARAGRAPH. *av.* *N*-(adamantan-1-yl)-1-(4-fluorobenzyl)-
 31 1*H*-indazole-3-carboxamide, its optical, positional, and
 32 geometric isomers, salts and salts of isomers (other names:
 33 FUB-AKB48, FUB-APINACA, AKB48 *N*-(4-FLUOROBENZYL)).

34 NEW PARAGRAPH. *aw.* 1-(5-fluoropentyl)-*N*-(2-

35 phenylpropan-2-yl)-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide, its optical,

PAGE 6

1 positional, and geometric isomers, salts and salts of isomers
2 (other names: 5F-CUMYL-PINACA, SGT-25).
3 NEW PARAGRAPH. *ax.* (1-(4-fluorobenzyl)-1H-
4 indol-3-yl)(2,2,3,3-tetramethylcyclopropyl) methanone, its
5 optical, positional, and geometric isomers, salts and salts of
6 isomers (other name: FUB-144).
7 Sec. 8. Section 124.206, subsection 7, paragraph a, Code
8 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
9 Sec. 9. Section 124.208, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
10 2020, is amended to read as follows:
11 c. Any substance which contains any quantity of a derivative
12 of barbituric acid or any salt thereof including but not
13 limited to Fioricet.
14 Sec. 10. Section 124.210, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
15 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
16 NEW PARAGRAPH. *bd.* Brexanolone.
17 Sec. 11. Section 124.210, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
18 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
19 NEW PARAGRAPH. *m.* Solriamfetol (2-amino-3-phenylpropyl
20 carbamate; benzenepropanol, beta-amino-, carbamate (ester)).
21 Sec. 12. Section 124.212, Code 2020, is amended by adding
22 the following new subsection:
23 NEW SUBSECTION. 6. *Approved cannabidiol drugs.* A
24 drug product in finished dosage formulation that
25 has been approved by the United States food and
26 drug administration that contains cannabidiol
27 (2-[1R-3-methyl-6R-(1-methylethenyl)-2-cyclohexen-1-yl]-5-
28 pentyl-1,3-benzenediol) derived from cannabis and no more than
29 0.1 percent (w/w) residual tetrahydrocannabinols.
30 Sec. 13. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of
31 immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8128

1 Amend House File 2589 as follows:
2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:
4 <Section 1. Section 96.5, Code 2020, is amended by adding
5 the following new subsection:
6 NEW SUBSECTION. 14. *Marijuana or controlled substance use in*
7 *the workplace — disqualified.*
8 a. For purposes of this subsection, unless the context
9 otherwise requires:
10 (1) “Controlled substance” means the same as defined in
11 section 124.101.
12 (2) “Marijuana” means the same as defined in section 124E.2.

13 b. If the department finds that the individual became
 14 separated from employment due to ingesting marijuana in the
 15 workplace, working while under the influence of marijuana, or
 16 testing positive for any other controlled substance, for which
 17 the individual did not have a current prescription or which the
 18 individual was otherwise using unlawfully, under a drug testing
 19 policy pursuant to section 730.5 or any other procedures
 20 provided by federal statutes, federal regulations, or orders
 21 issued pursuant to federal law.

22 c. A disqualification under this subsection shall continue
 23 until the individual has worked in and has been paid wages for
 24 insured work equal to ten times the individual's weekly benefit
 25 amount, provided the individual is otherwise eligible.

26 Sec. 2. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, paragraph i, Code
 27 2020, is amended to read as follows:

28 i. ~~Untreatable~~ Chronic pain.

29 Sec. 3. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 30 by adding the following new paragraphs:

31 NEW PARAGRAPH. j. Severe, intractable autism with
 32 self-injurious or aggressive behaviors.

33 NEW PARAGRAPH. k. Post-traumatic stress disorder.

34 Sec. 4. Section 124E.2, subsections 5 and 6, Code 2020, are
 35 amended to read as follows:

PAGE 2

1 5. *"Health care practitioner"* means an individual licensed
 2 under chapter 148 to practice medicine and surgery or
 3 osteopathic medicine and surgery, a physician assistant
 4 licensed under chapter 148C, an advanced registered nurse
 5 practitioner licensed under chapter 152, or an advanced
 6 practice registered nurse under chapter 152E, who is a
 7 patient's primary care provider or a podiatrist licensed
 8 pursuant to chapter 149. *"Health care practitioner"* shall not
 9 include a physician assistant licensed under chapter 148C or
 10 ~~an advanced registered nurse practitioner licensed pursuant to~~
 11 ~~chapter 152 or 152E.~~

12 6. *"Medical cannabidiol"* means any pharmaceutical
 13 grade cannabinoid found in the plant *Cannabis sativa* L. or
 14 *Cannabis indica* or any other preparation thereof ~~that has~~
 15 ~~a tetrahydrocannabinol level of no more than three percent~~
 16 ~~and~~ that is delivered in a form recommended by the medical
 17 cannabidiol board, approved by the board of medicine, and
 18 adopted by the department pursuant to rule.

19 Sec. 5. Section 124E.2, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 20 following new subsections:

21 NEW SUBSECTION. 4A. *"Employee"* means a natural person who
 22 is employed in this state for wages by an employer.

23 NEW SUBSECTION. 4B. *"Employer"* means a person who in this
 24 state employs for wages an employee.

25 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. *"Laboratory"* means the state hygienic
 26 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City or any other

27 independent medical cannabidiol testing facility accredited
28 to standard ISO/IEC 17025 by an international organization
29 for standards-approved accrediting body, with a controlled
30 substance registration certificate from the United States drug
31 enforcement administration and a certificate of registration
32 from the board of pharmacy. For the purposes of this chapter,
33 an independent laboratory is a laboratory operated by an
34 entity that has no equity ownership in a medical cannabidiol
35 manufacturer.

PAGE 3

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 5B. “Marijuana” means any derivative of
2 marijuana including but not limited to medical cannabidiol.
3 NEW SUBSECTION. 7A. “Total tetrahydrocannabinol”
4 means eighty-seven and seven-tenths percent of the
5 amount of tetrahydrocannabinolic acid plus the amount of
6 tetrahydrocannabinol.
7 Sec. 6. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph
8 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
9 Subject to subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the~~
10 ~~issuance of issue~~ a medical cannabidiol registration card ~~by~~
11 ~~the department of transportation~~ to a patient who:
12 Sec. 7. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph d,
13 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
14 follows:
15 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
16 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
17 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:
18 Sec. 8. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
19 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
20 Sec. 9. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, unnumbered paragraph
21 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
22 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued to a patient
23 by the department ~~of transportation~~ pursuant to subsection 1
24 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:
25 Sec. 10. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
26 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
27 Sec. 11. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, unnumbered paragraph
28 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
29 For a patient in a primary caregiver’s care, subject to
30 subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the issuance of issue~~
31 a medical cannabidiol registration card ~~by the department of~~
32 ~~transportation~~ to the primary caregiver who:
33 Sec. 12. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph b,
34 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
35 follows:

PAGE 4

1 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
2 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~

3 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:

4 Sec. 13. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
5 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

6 Sec. 14. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, unnumbered paragraph
7 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

8 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued by the
9 department of ~~transportation~~ to a primary caregiver pursuant to
10 subsection 3 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:

11 Sec. 15. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
12 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

13 Sec. 16. Section 124E.4, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
14 by striking the subsection.

15 Sec. 17. Section 124E.5, subsections 2 and 6, Code 2020, are
16 amended to read as follows:

17 2. The medical cannabidiol board shall convene at least
18 twice ~~but no more than four times~~ per year.

19 ~~6. The medical cannabidiol board may recommend a statutory~~
20 ~~revision to the definition of medical cannabidiol contained in~~
21 ~~this chapter that increases the tetrahydrocannabinol level to~~
22 ~~more than three percent, however, any such recommendation shall~~
23 ~~be submitted to the general assembly during the regular session~~
24 ~~of the general assembly following such submission. The general~~
25 ~~assembly shall have the sole authority to revise the definition~~
26 ~~of medical cannabidiol for purposes of this chapter.~~

27 Sec. 18. Section 124E.6, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
28 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
29 following:

30 4. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with
31 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
32 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer
33 as provided in section 124E.7. The department shall require
34 that the laboratory report testing results to the medical
35 cannabidiol manufacturer and the department as determined by

PAGE 5

1 the department by rule. If a medical cannabidiol manufacturer
2 contracts with a laboratory other than the state hygienic
3 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City, the
4 department shall approve the laboratory to perform testing
5 pursuant to this chapter.

6 Sec. 19. Section 124E.7, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
7 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
8 following:

9 1. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with
10 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
11 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer as
12 to content, contamination, and consistency. The cost of all
13 laboratory testing shall be paid by the medical cannabidiol
14 manufacturer.

15 Sec. 20. Section 124E.9, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
16 following new subsections:

17 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 18 shall employ a pharmacist or pharmacy technician licensed or
 19 registered pursuant to chapter 155A for the purpose of making
 20 dosing recommendations.

21 NEW SUBSECTION. 14. A medical cannabidiol dispensary shall
 22 not dispense more than a combined total of four and one-half
 23 grams of total tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the
 24 patient's primary caregiver in a ninety-day period, except as
 25 provided in subsection 15.

26 NEW SUBSECTION. 15. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 27 may dispense more than a combined total of four and one-half
 28 of total tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's
 29 primary caregiver in a ninety-day period if any of the
 30 following apply:

31 a. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 32 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 33 patient's debilitating medical condition is a terminal illness
 34 with a life expectancy of less than one year. A certification
 35 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total

PAGE 6

1 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
 2 health care practitioner.

3 b. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 4 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 5 the patient has participated in the medical cannabidiol program
 6 and that the health care practitioner has determined that four
 7 and one-half of total tetrahydrocannabinol in a ninety-day
 8 period is insufficient to treat the patient's debilitating
 9 medical condition. A certification issued pursuant to this
 10 paragraph shall include a total tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed
 11 appropriate by the patient's health care practitioner.

12 Sec. 21. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 13 subparagraph (1), subparagraph divisions (a) and (c), Code
 14 2020, are amended to read as follows:

15 (a) To authorized employees or agents of the department ~~and~~
 16 ~~the department of transportation~~ as necessary to perform the
 17 duties of the department ~~and the department of transportation~~
 18 pursuant to this chapter.

19 (c) To authorized employees of a medical cannabidiol
 20 dispensary, but only for the ~~purpose~~ purposes of verifying that
 21 a person is lawfully in possession of a medical cannabidiol
 22 registration card issued pursuant to this chapter and that a
 23 person has not purchased total tetrahydrocannabinol in excess
 24 of the amount authorized by this chapter.

25 Sec. 22. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 26 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 27 new subparagraph division:

28 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (e) To a health care
 29 practitioner for the purpose of determining whether a patient
 30 seeking a written certification pursuant to section 124E.3 has

31 already received a written certification from another health
 32 care practitioner.
 33 Sec. 23. Section 124E.12, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 34 amended to read as follows:
 35 7. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the department,

PAGE 7

1 ~~the department of transportation~~, the governor, or any employee
 2 of any state agency shall not be held civilly or criminally
 3 liable for any injury, loss of property, personal injury, or
 4 death caused by any act or omission while acting within the
 5 scope of office or employment as authorized under this chapter.
 6 Sec. 24. NEW SECTION. **124E.20 Observational effectiveness**
 7 **study.**

8 The department may conduct an observational effectiveness
 9 study in cooperation with patients and health care
 10 practitioners and pursuant to rules of the department in order
 11 to study the effectiveness of medical cannabidiol in the
 12 treatment of debilitating medical conditions.

13 Sec. 25. NEW SECTION. **124E.21 Employer regulation of**
 14 **marijuana use.**

15 1. Nothing in this chapter shall require an employer
 16 to permit or accommodate the use, consumption, possession,
 17 transfer, display, transportation, distribution, sale, or
 18 growing of marijuana in the workplace.

19 2. Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit an employer from
 20 implementing policies restricting the use of marijuana by
 21 employees for the purpose of promoting workplace health and
 22 safety.

23 3. Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit an employer
 24 from including in a contract with an employee a provision
 25 prohibiting the use of marijuana.

26 4. Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit an employer
 27 from establishing and enforcing a zero-tolerance drug policy
 28 or a drug-free workplace by use of a drug testing policy in
 29 accordance with section 730.5 or any other procedures provided
 30 by federal statutes, federal regulations, or orders issued
 31 pursuant to federal law.

32 Sec. 26. NEW SECTION. **124E.22 Regulation of marijuana**
 33 **use by government medical assistance programs, private health**
 34 **insurers, and other entities.**

35 Nothing in this chapter shall require a government

PAGE 8

1 medical assistance program, private health insurer, workers'
 2 compensation carrier, or self-insured employer providing
 3 workers' compensation benefits to reimburse a person for costs
 4 associated with the medical use of marijuana.

5 Sec. 27. NEW SECTION. **124E.23 Regulation of marijuana use**
 6 **on property.**

7 Nothing in this chapter shall require a person that owns,
 8 occupies, or controls a property to allow the use, consumption,
 9 possession, transfer, display, transportation, distribution,
 10 sale, or growing of marijuana on or in that property.

11 Sec. 28. NEW SECTION. 124E.24 Limitation of liability.

12 Nothing in this chapter shall create any claim, cause of
 13 action, sanction, or penalty, for discrimination or under
 14 any other theory of liability, under chapter 216 or any
 15 other provision of law, based on an act, omission, policy, or
 16 contractual provision permissible under this chapter including
 17 but not limited to refusing to hire, discharging, disciplining,
 18 discriminating, retaliating, or otherwise taking any adverse
 19 employment action against a person with respect to hiring,
 20 tenure, or any terms, conditions, or privileges of employment.

21 Sec. 29. NEW SECTION. 124E.25 Cannabis-derived products
 22 — exemption.

23 This chapter shall not apply to any cannabis-derived
 24 investigational product or cannabis-derived product approved as
 25 a prescription drug medication by the United States food and
 26 drug administration.

27 Sec. 30. NEW SECTION. 124E.26 Applicability.

28 The provisions of this chapter apply notwithstanding any
 29 other provision of law to the contrary.

30 Sec. 31. PROTECTION OF FEDERAL FUNDING. The department
 31 of public health shall request guarantees from the agencies
 32 of the federal government providing funding to educational
 33 and long-term care facilities that facilities with policies
 34 allowing patients to possess medical cannabidiol on the grounds
 35 of the facilities consistent with chapter 124E or allowing

PAGE 9

1 facility staff to administer medical cannabidiol to a patient
 2 shall not lose eligibility for any federal funding due to such
 3 policies.

4 Sec. 32. TRANSITION PROVISIONS. A medical cannabidiol
 5 registration card issued prior to July 1, 2020, remains
 6 effective and continues in effect as issued for the
 7 twelve-month period following its issuance.>

8 2. Title page, line 1, after <Act> by inserting <and
 9 marijuana>

KLEIN of Washington

H-8129

1 Amend House File 2589 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, before line 29 by inserting:

3 <Sec. NEW SECTION. 124E.3A State medical director
 4 certification — rules.

5 1. The department shall establish by rule by January 1,
 6 2021, a process for a patient who has been denied a written

7 certification by a health care practitioner pursuant to section
 8 124E.3 to receive a written certification from the state
 9 medical director of the department.

10 2. The process established pursuant to subsection 1 shall
 11 include all of the following provisions:

12 a. The patient shall submit the patient's medical records
 13 to the state medical director.

14 b. The state medical director shall verify that the
 15 patient's health care practitioner refused to provide a written
 16 certification to the patient pursuant to section 124E.3.

17 c. The state medical director shall determine whether
 18 the patient suffers from a debilitating medical condition
 19 that qualifies for the use of medical cannabidiol under this
 20 chapter.

21 d. The state medical director shall determine whether the
 22 patient may benefit from the use of medical cannabidiol.

23 e. If the state medical director determines that the patient
 24 suffers from a debilitating medical condition, that the patient
 25 may benefit from the use of medical cannabidiol, and that the
 26 patient's health care practitioner refused to provide a written
 27 certification to the patient, the state medical director shall
 28 provide a written certification to the patient.

29 3. The custodian of a patient's medical records shall
 30 provide the patient's medical records to the state medical
 31 director or the patient for the purpose of obtaining a written
 32 certification pursuant to this section without charge to the
 33 patient or the state medical director.

34 4. The state medical director shall keep confidential all
 35 medical records provided to the state medical director pursuant

PAGE 2

1 to this section.>

2 2. Page 1, before line 34 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. ___. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph c, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 c. Submits a written certification to the department signed
 6 by the patient's health care practitioner or the state medical
 7 director that the patient is suffering from a debilitating
 8 medical condition.>

9 3. Page 2, before line 20 by inserting:
 10 <Sec. ___. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 11 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 12 a. Submits a written certification to the department signed
 13 by the patient's health care practitioner or the state medical
 14 director that the patient in the primary caregiver's care is
 15 suffering from a debilitating medical condition.>

16 4. Page 5, before line 4 by inserting:
 17 <Sec. ___. Section 124E.12, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 18 amended to read as follows:
 19 1. A health care practitioner, including any authorized
 20 agent or employee thereof, or the state medical director,

21 including any authorized agent or employee thereof, shall not
 22 be subject to prosecution for the unlawful certification,
 23 possession, or administration of marijuana under the laws of
 24 this state for activities arising directly out of or directly
 25 related to the certification or use of medical cannabidiol
 26 in the treatment of a patient diagnosed with a debilitating
 27 medical condition as authorized by this chapter.>
 28 5. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8130

1 Amend House File 2589 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 4 and 5 and inserting:
 3 <Sec. ____ Section 124E.2, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:>
 5 2. Page 1, by striking lines 16 through 22.
 6 3. Page 3, by striking lines 6 through 15.
 7 4. Page 3, line 17, by striking <subsections> and inserting
 8 <subsection>
 9 5. By striking page 3, line 22, through page 4, line 14.
 10 6. Page 4, by striking lines 22 through 30.
 11 7. By renumbering as necessary.

FORBES of Polk

H-8131

1 Amend House File 2551 as follows:
 2 1. Page 3, by striking lines 32 through 35 and inserting:
 3 <Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 510D.5 Summary enforcement.**
 4 1. Upon a determination by the commissioner that a
 5 manufacturer or a manufacturer's agent has violated a provision
 6 of this chapter, a rule adopted by the commissioner, or an
 7 order issued by the commissioner under this chapter, the
 8 commissioner may do any of the following:
 9 a. Issue a summary order, including a brief statement
 10 of findings of fact and conclusions of law, and direct the
 11 manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent to cease and desist
 12 engaging in the act or practice that is in violation of the
 13 provisions of this chapter.
 14 b. Take other affirmative action that in the judgment of the
 15 commissioner is necessary to ensure that the manufacturer or
 16 the manufacturer's agent complies with the requirements of this
 17 chapter.
 18 2. a. A manufacturer or a manufacturer's agent that has
 19 been issued a summary order under this section may contest
 20 the summary order by filing a request for a contested case
 21 proceeding and hearing pursuant to chapter 17A, and in
 22 accordance with rules adopted by the commissioner. The
 23 manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent shall have at least

24 thirty calendar days from the date that the summary order
25 is issued to file a request for a contested case proceeding
26 and hearing. If a contested case proceeding and hearing is
27 not timely requested the summary order shall become final by
28 operation of law.
29 *b.* Section 17A.18A shall not apply to a summary order issued
30 under this section.
31 *c.* A summary order issued pursuant to this section shall
32 remain effective from the date of issuance unless overturned
33 by a presiding officer of a contested case hearing, or by
34 a court following the manufacturer's or the manufacturer's
35 agent's request for judicial review of a final action by the

PAGE 2

1 commissioner.
2 3. A manufacturer or a manufacturer's agent violating
3 a summary order issued under this section shall be deemed
4 in contempt of the summary order. Upon request of the
5 commissioner, the attorney general shall petition the
6 district court to enforce the summary order as certified
7 by the commissioner. The district court shall adjudge the
8 manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent in contempt of
9 the summary order if the court finds after hearing that the
10 manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent is not in compliance
11 with the summary order. The court may assess a civil penalty
12 of not more than one thousand dollars for each day that the
13 manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent is in violation of the
14 summary order and may issue further orders as the court deems
15 appropriate.
16 Sec. ____. **NEW SECTION. 510D.6 Enforcement after hearing.**
17 1. If, after a hearing pursuant to section 510D.5, the
18 commissioner determines that a manufacturer or a manufacturer's
19 agent has violated a provision of this chapter, a rule adopted
20 by the commissioner, or an order issued by the commissioner
21 under this chapter, the commissioner shall reduce the findings
22 to writing and shall issue and cause to be served upon the
23 manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent all of the following:
24 *a.* A copy of the commissioner's findings.
25 *b.* An order requiring the manufacturer or the manufacturer's
26 agent to cease and desist from violating the provisions of this
27 chapter.
28 2. The commissioner may take other affirmative action that
29 in the judgment of the commissioner is necessary to ensure that
30 the manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent complies with
31 the requirements of this chapter. The commissioner may also,
32 at the commissioner's discretion, order payment of a civil
33 penalty of not more than five thousand dollars for each of the
34 manufacturer's or the manufacturer's agent's violations of this
35 chapter.

PAGE 3

1 3. A manufacturer or a manufacturer's agent that violates
2 an order of the commissioner, and while such order is in
3 effect, may, after notice and hearing and upon order of the
4 commissioner, be subject to a civil penalty of not more than
5 ten thousand dollars for each violation of the commissioner's
6 order. A manufacturer or a manufacturer's agent violating an
7 order issued by the commissioner under this subsection shall
8 be deemed in contempt of the order. A civil penalty collected
9 pursuant to this section shall be deposited as provided in
10 section 505.7.

11 4. Judicial review of an action of the commissioner may be
12 sought by a manufacturer or a manufacturer's agent pursuant to
13 chapter 17A. To the extent that a decision or order of the
14 commissioner is affirmed in a judicial review proceeding, the
15 court shall issue an order directing that the manufacturer
16 or the manufacturer's agent comply with the terms of the
17 commissioner's decision or order.

18 5. After the period for judicial review of an order of the
19 commissioner has expired and no petition for judicial review
20 has been filed, upon request of the commissioner, the attorney
21 general shall proceed in the district court to enforce the
22 order of the commissioner. The court shall issue an order
23 directing that the manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent
24 comply with the terms of the commissioner's order.

25 6. Upon request of the commissioner, the attorney general
26 shall petition the district court to enforce an order as
27 certified by the commissioner. The district court shall
28 adjudge the manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent in
29 contempt of the commissioner's order if the court finds after
30 hearing that the manufacturer or the manufacturer's agent is
31 not in compliance with the commissioner's order. The court may
32 order a civil penalty of not more than one thousand dollars per
33 day for each day of noncompliance against the manufacturer or
34 the manufacturer's agent and may issue further orders as the
35 court deems appropriate.>

PAGE 4

1 2. Page 6, by striking lines 15 through 18 and inserting:
2 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 510E.4 Summary enforcement.**
3 1. Upon a determination by the commissioner that a health
4 carrier or a health carrier's agent has violated a provision of
5 this chapter, a rule adopted by the commissioner, or an order
6 issued by the commissioner under this chapter, the commissioner
7 may do any of the following:
8 a. Issue a summary order, including a brief statement of
9 findings of fact and conclusions of law, and direct the health
10 carrier or the health carrier's agent to cease and desist
11 engaging in the act or practice that is in violation of the
12 provisions of this chapter.

13 *b.* Take other affirmative action that in the judgment of the
 14 commissioner is necessary to ensure that the health carrier or
 15 the health carrier's agent complies with the requirements of
 16 this chapter.

17 2. *a.* A health carrier or a health carrier's agent
 18 that has been issued a summary order under this section may
 19 contest the summary order by filing a request for a contested
 20 case proceeding and hearing pursuant to chapter 17A, and in
 21 accordance with rules adopted by the commissioner. The health
 22 carrier or the health carrier's agent shall have at least
 23 thirty calendar days from the date that the summary order
 24 is issued to file a request for a contested case proceeding
 25 and hearing. If a contested case proceeding and hearing is
 26 not timely requested the summary order shall become final by
 27 operation of law.

28 *b.* Section 17A.18A shall not apply to a summary order issued
 29 under this section.

30 *c.* A summary order issued pursuant to this section shall
 31 remain effective from the date of issuance unless overturned
 32 by a presiding officer of a contested case hearing, or by a
 33 court following the health carrier's or the health carrier's
 34 agent's request for a judicial review of a final action by the
 35 commissioner.

PAGE 5

1 3. A health carrier or a health carrier's agent violating
 2 a summary order issued under this section shall be deemed
 3 in contempt of the summary order. Upon request of the
 4 commissioner, the attorney general shall petition the district
 5 court to enforce the summary order as certified by the
 6 commissioner. The district court shall adjudge the health
 7 carrier or the health carrier's agent in contempt of the
 8 summary order if the court finds after hearing that the health
 9 carrier or the health carrier's agent is not in compliance with
 10 the summary order. The court may assess a civil penalty of
 11 not more than one thousand dollars per day against the health
 12 carrier or the health carrier's agent for each day that the
 13 health carrier or the health carrier's agent is in violation of
 14 the summary order, and may issue further orders as the court
 15 deems appropriate.

16 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 510E.5 Enforcement after hearing.

17 1. If, after a hearing pursuant to section 510E.4, the
 18 commissioner determines that a health carrier or a health
 19 carrier's agent has violated a provision of this chapter, a
 20 rule adopted by the commissioner, or an order issued by the
 21 commissioner under this chapter, the commissioner shall reduce
 22 the findings to writing and shall issue and cause to be served
 23 upon the health carrier or the health carrier's agent all of
 24 the following:

25 *a.* A copy of the commissioner's findings.

26 *b.* An order requiring the health carrier or the health

27 carrier's agent to cease and desist from violating the
28 provisions of this chapter.
29 2. The commissioner may take other affirmative action that
30 in the judgment of the commissioner is necessary to ensure that
31 the health carrier or the health carrier's agent complies with
32 the requirements of this chapter. The commissioner may also,
33 at the commissioner's discretion, order payment of a civil
34 penalty of not more than five thousand dollars for each of the
35 health carrier's or the health carrier's agent's violations of

PAGE 6

1 this chapter.
2 3. A health carrier or a health carrier's agent that
3 violates an order of the commissioner, and while such order is
4 in effect, may, after notice and hearing and upon order of the
5 commissioner, be subject to a civil penalty of not more than
6 ten thousand dollars for each violation of the commissioner's
7 order. A health carrier or a health carrier's agent violating
8 an order issued by the commissioner under this section shall
9 be deemed in contempt of the order. A civil penalty collected
10 pursuant to this subsection shall be deposited as provided in
11 section 505.7.
12 4. Judicial review of an action of the commissioner may be
13 sought by a health carrier or a health carrier's agent pursuant
14 to chapter 17A. To the extent that a decision or order of the
15 commissioner is affirmed in a judicial review proceeding, the
16 court shall issue an order directing that the health carrier
17 or the health carrier's agent comply with the terms of the
18 commissioner's decision or order.
19 5. After the period for judicial review of an order of the
20 commissioner has expired and no petition for judicial review
21 has been filed, upon request of the commissioner, the attorney
22 general shall proceed in the district court to enforce the
23 order of the commissioner. The court shall issue an order
24 directing that the health carrier or the health carrier's agent
25 comply with the terms of the commissioner's order.
26 6. Upon request of the commissioner, the attorney general
27 shall petition the district court to enforce an order as
28 certified by the commissioner. The district court shall
29 adjudge the health carrier or the health carrier's agent in
30 contempt of the commissioner's order if the court finds after
31 hearing that the health carrier or the health carrier's agent
32 is not in compliance with the commissioner's order. The court
33 may order a civil penalty of not more than one thousand dollars
34 per day for each day of noncompliance against the health
35 carrier or the health carrier's agent and may issue further

PAGE 7

- 1 orders as the court deems appropriate.>
 2 3. By renumbering as necessary.

LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8132

- 1 Amend House File 2462 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 13 through 20 and inserting
 3 <during the individual's base period. However, the director
 4 shall recompute wage credits for an individual who is laid off
 5 in a permanent mass layoff of more than fifty employees due to
 6 the individual's employer going out of business at the factory,
 7 establishment, or other premises at which the individual was
 8 last employed, by crediting the individual's account with
 9 one-half, instead of one-third, of the wages for insured work
 10 paid to the individual during the individual's base period.
 11 Benefits paid to an eligible individual shall>
 12 2. Page 1, by striking lines 24 through 31 and inserting
 13 <wage credits are based were paid. However if the state "off"
 14 indicator is in effect and if the individual is laid off in a
 15 permanent mass layoff of more than fifty employees due to the
 16 individual's employer going out of business at the factory,
 17 establishment, or other premises at which the individual was
 18 last employed, the maximum benefits payable shall be extended
 19 to thirty-nine times the individual's weekly benefit amount,
 20 but not to exceed the total of the wage credits accrued to the
 21 individual's account.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8133

- 1 Amend House File 2462 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 13 through 20 and inserting
 3 <during the individual's base period. However, the director
 4 shall recompute wage credits for an individual who is laid
 5 off due to the individual's employer going out of business at
 6 the factory, establishment, or other premises at which the
 7 individual was last employed due to a natural disaster, by
 8 crediting the individual's account with one-half, instead of
 9 one-third, of the wages for insured work paid to the individual
 10 during the individual's base period. Benefits paid to an
 11 eligible individual shall>
 12 2. Page 1, by striking lines 24 through 31 and inserting
 13 <wage credits are based were paid. However if the state "off"
 14 indicator is in effect and if the individual is laid off due to
 15 the individual's employer going out of business at the factory,
 16 establishment, or other premises at which the individual was
 17 last employed due to a natural disaster, the maximum benefits

18 payable shall be extended to thirty-nine times the individual's
 19 weekly benefit amount, but not to exceed the total of the wage
 20 credits accrued to the individual's account.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8134

1 Amend the amendment, H-8125, to House File 2501 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 2 through 12 and inserting:
 3 <__. Page 1, line 3, after <2.> by inserting <a.>
 4 __. Page 1, line 11, by striking <a.> and inserting <a.
 5 (1)>
 6 __. Page 1, line 17, by striking <b.> and inserting <(2)>
 7 __. Page 1, line 20, by striking <c.> and inserting <(3)>
 8 __. Page 1, line 25, by striking <d.> and inserting <(4)>
 9 __. Page 1, line 29, by striking <e.> and inserting <(5)>
 10 __. Page 1, line 33, by striking <f.> and inserting <(6)>
 11 __. Page 2, line 2, by striking <g.> and inserting <g. (7)>
 12 __. Page 2, line 4, by striking <h.> and inserting <h. (8)>
 13 __. Page 2, after line 5 by inserting:
 14 b. This subsection shall not apply to an asbestos action,
 15 including an action alleging a nonmalignant or malignant
 16 condition, or a silica action involving silicosis, filed by a
 17 veteran. For purposes of this paragraph, "veteran" means the
 18 same as defined in section 35.1. A veteran shall be required
 19 to file with the complaint or other initial pleading all of the
 20 following:
 21 (1) A detailed narrative medical report and diagnosis that
 22 complies with subsection 1.
 23 (2) A summary of all locations at which the veteran has been
 24 stationed and the corresponding calendar years served at each
 25 location.>>
 26 2. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 27 references as necessary.

B. MEYER of Polk

H-8135

1 Amend House File 2506 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 709.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:
 6 **709.9 Indecent exposure.**
 7 A person who exposes the person's genitals or pubes to
 8 another not the person's spouse, or who commits a sex act in
 9 the presence of or view of a third person, or who masturbates
 10 underneath or outside of the person's clothing in the presence
 11 of another, commits a serious misdemeanor, if all of the
 12 following apply:

13 1. The person does so to arouse or satisfy the sexual
 14 desires of either ~~party; and party.~~
 15 2. The person knows or reasonably should know that the act
 16 is offensive to the viewer or the viewer was a child at the time
 17 of the act.>

LOHSE of Polk

H-8136

1 Amend Senate File 2097, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 709.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:
 6 **709.9 Indecent exposure — masturbation.**
 7 1. A person who exposes the person's genitals or ~~pubes~~ pubic
 8 area to another not the person's spouse, or who commits a sex
 9 act in the presence of or view of a third person, commits a
 10 serious misdemeanor; if all of the following apply:
 11 1. *a.* The person does so to arouse or satisfy the sexual
 12 desires of either party; ~~and~~
 13 2. *b.* The person knows or reasonably should know that the
 14 act is offensive to the viewer.
 15 2. *a.* A person who masturbates in public in the presence of
 16 another, not a child, commits a serious misdemeanor.
 17 *b.* A person who masturbates in public in the presence of a
 18 child commits an aggravated misdemeanor.
 19 *c.* For the purpose of this subsection, "masturbate" means
 20 physical stimulation of a person's own genitals or pubic area
 21 for the purpose of sexual gratification or arousal of the
 22 person, regardless of whether the genitals or pubic area is
 23 exposed or covered.>
 24 2. Title page, line 1, after <exposure> by inserting <,
 25 providing penalties,>

LOHSE of Polk

H-8137

1 Amend the amendment, H-8118, to Senate File 2119, as passed
 2 by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, after line 7 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. . **NEW SECTION. 124.101C Injection drug use —**
 5 **legislative findings.**
 6 The general assembly of the state of Iowa finds and declares
 7 the following:
 8 1. Injection drug use is the main driver for increases in
 9 hepatitis C cases among young adults due partially to recent
 10 increases in the misuse of prescription and nonprescription
 11 opioids as well as increases in opioid injections.
 12 2. The number of patients diagnosed with opioid use disorder

13 increased three hundred seventy-eight percent from thirty-nine
14 thousand one hundred nine in 1999 to one hundred eighty-six
15 thousand nine hundred seventy-nine in 2013 in a seventeen-state
16 sample.

17 3. Opioid use disorder imposes considerable financial
18 burdens on state Medicaid programs, and the burden is
19 increasing over time. After adjusting for inflation, total
20 Medicaid costs associated with opioid use disorder more than
21 tripled over a five-year time period, reaching more than
22 three billion dollars in 2013, from nine hundred nineteen
23 million dollars in 1999, with most of the growth due to excess
24 nonopioid use disorder treatment costs for patients with opioid
25 use disorder, which increased three hundred sixty-three percent
26 over the period, triple the rate of growth in expenditures for
27 opioid use disorder treatment services.

28 4. Findings extrapolated to the entire United States
29 suggest that the Medicaid costs associated with opioid use
30 disorder increased from more than two billion dollars in 1999
31 to more than eight billion dollars in 2013, with the cumulative
32 costs over a fifteen-year time period amounting to more than
33 seventy-two billion four hundred million dollars.

34 5. The centers for disease control and prevention of
35 the United States department of health and human services

PAGE 2

1 recommends that states scale up effective programs to promote
2 drug treatment as well as hepatitis testing and treatment
3 efforts in local communities.

4 6. Syringe services can be important in reducing the risk
5 of infection with blood-borne pathogens such as hepatitis
6 B and HIV, as well as hepatitis C, and should be part of a
7 comprehensive program that also addresses access to treatment,
8 medication-assisted treatment, and education of medical
9 professionals on the appropriate prescription of opioids.

10 7. Syringe services programs are a proven method of getting
11 people into substance use disorder treatment, with one study
12 finding that users of syringe services programs are five
13 times more likely to enter treatment than those who did not
14 participate.

15 8. The national academies of sciences, engineering, and
16 medicine recommends that states expand access to syringe
17 services programs combined with opioid agonist therapies in
18 accessible venues.>

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8138

1 Amend Senate File 2296, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 96.14, subsection 2, paragraph e, Code
 5 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 6 e. (1) If the department finds that any employer has
 7 willfully failed to pay any contribution or part thereof when
 8 required by this chapter and the rules of the department,
 9 with intent to defraud the department, then such employer
 10 shall in addition to such contribution or part thereof, pay
 11 a contribution equal to fifty percent of the amount of such
 12 contribution or part thereof, as the case may be.
 13 (2) If the department finds that such a failure to pay by an
 14 employer involves the misclassification of an employee's wages
 15 on a federal 1099 record, for any subsequent finding by the
 16 department of such a failure to pay by that employer involving
 17 the misclassification of an employee's wages on a federal 1099
 18 record, the additional contribution required by subparagraph
 19 (1) shall instead equal one hundred percent of the amount the
 20 employer failed to pay due to misclassification.>
 21 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting
 22 <An Act increasing certain penalties for employers willfully
 23 misclassifying employees for unemployment compensation
 24 contribution purposes.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8139

1 Amend House File 2576 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 4, after <paid> by inserting <or had a
 3 reduction in property taxes due>
 4 2. Page 1, line 15, after <repayment> by inserting <or
 5 reduction>
 6 3. Page 2, after line 1 by inserting:
 7 <Sec. __. ADJUSTMENT TO STATE FOUNDATION AID FOR SCHOOL
 8 BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.
 9 1. If a school district was required to repay property
 10 taxes paid or had a reduction in property taxes due for school
 11 taxes levied for the school budget year beginning July 1,
 12 2019, on a property that received an assessed value reduction
 13 for the assessment year beginning January 1, 2018, by action
 14 of the board of review or property assessment appeal board,
 15 or by judicial action, and the amount of the reduction for
 16 the property exceeded forty-seven million dollars, the school
 17 district is eligible for an adjustment in state foundation aid
 18 for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020.
 19 2. To receive the adjustment in state foundation aid, the
 20 school district shall apply to the department of management
 21 within thirty days following the effective date of this Act and
 22 section 257.12, subsection 3, shall not apply. The department
 23 of management shall determine the amount of adjustment in state
 24 foundation aid pursuant to subsection 3.
 25 3. The department of management shall determine the amount
 26 of state foundation aid which the school district would

27 have received under section 257.1 for the school budget year
 28 beginning July 1, 2019, in the manner provided in section
 29 257.12, subsection 2. The adjustment in state foundation
 30 aid under this section shall be paid as provided in section
 31 257.16.>

32 4. Page 2, line 4, by striking <This> and inserting <Except
 33 as otherwise provided in this Act, this>

34 5. By renumbering as necessary.

LOHSE of Polk

H-8140

1 Amend Senate File 2357, as passed by the Senate, as follows:

2 1. Page 8, line 29, by striking <may use> and inserting

3 <will not be subject to discipline by the board for using>

4 2. Page 13, line 20, after <except> by inserting <when such

5 representation is exempt from discipline>

BEST of Carroll

H-8141

1 Amend House File 2554 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

3 <Section 1. Section 692A.101, subsection 1, paragraph a,

4 Code 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:

5 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (9) Continuous sex abuse in violation of
 6 section 709.23.

7 Sec. ____ Section 692A.101, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code

8 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:

9 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (4) Continuous sex abuse in violation of
 10 section 709.23.

11 Sec. ____ Section 692A.102, subsection 1, paragraph c, Code

12 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:

13 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (013) Continuous sex abuse in violation
 14 of section 709.23.>

15 2. Page 2, after line 1 by inserting:

16 <Sec. ____ Section 902.14, subsection 1, Code 2020, is

17 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

18 NEW PARAGRAPH. d. Continuous sex abuse in violation of
 19 section 709.23.

20 Sec. ____ Section 903B.10, subsection 3, Code 2020, is

21 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

22 NEW PARAGRAPH. j. Continuous sex abuse in violation of
 23 section 709.23.>

24 3. Title page, line 1, by striking <creating> and inserting

25 <relating to>

26 4. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal

27 references as necessary.

HITE of Mahaska

H-8142

1 Amend the amendment, H-8128, to House File 2589 as follows:

2 1. By striking page 1, line 2, through page 9, line 9, and
3 inserting:

4 <1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
5 inserting:

6 <Section 1. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, paragraph i, Code
7 2020, is amended to read as follows:

8 *i. Untreatable Chronic pain.*

9 Sec. 2. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
10 by adding the following new paragraphs:

11 NEW PARAGRAPH. *j.* Severe, intractable autism with
12 self-injurious or aggressive behaviors.

13 NEW PARAGRAPH. *k.* Post-traumatic stress disorder.

14 Sec. 3. Section 124E.2, subsections 5 and 6, Code 2020, are
15 amended to read as follows:

16 5. “*Health care practitioner*” means an individual licensed
17 under chapter 148 to practice medicine and surgery or
18 osteopathic medicine and surgery, a physician assistant
19 licensed under chapter 148C, an advanced registered nurse
20 practitioner licensed under chapter 152, or an advanced
21 practice registered nurse under chapter 152E, who is a
22 patient’s primary care provider or a podiatrist licensed
23 pursuant to chapter 149. ~~“Health care practitioner” shall not~~
24 ~~include a physician assistant licensed under chapter 148C or~~
25 ~~an advanced registered nurse practitioner licensed pursuant to~~
26 ~~chapter 152 or 152E.~~

27 6. “*Medical cannabidiol*” means any pharmaceutical
28 grade cannabinoid found in the plant *Cannabis sativa* L. or
29 *Cannabis indica* or any other preparation thereof ~~that has~~
30 ~~a tetrahydrocannabinol level of no more than three percent~~
31 ~~and~~ that is delivered in a form recommended by the medical
32 cannabidiol board, approved by the board of medicine, and
33 adopted by the department pursuant to rule.

34 Sec. 4. Section 124E.2, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
35 following new subsection:

PAGE 2

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. “*Laboratory*” means the state hygienic
2 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City or any other
3 independent medical cannabidiol testing facility accredited
4 to standard ISO/IEC 17025 by an international organization
5 for standards-approved accrediting body, with a controlled
6 substance registration certificate from the United States drug
7 enforcement administration and a certificate of registration
8 from the board of pharmacy. For the purposes of this chapter,
9 an independent laboratory is a laboratory operated by an
10 entity that has no equity ownership in a medical cannabidiol
11 manufacturer.

12 Sec. 5. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph

13 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

14 Subject to subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the~~
 15 ~~issuance of issue~~ a medical cannabidiol registration card by
 16 ~~the department of transportation~~ to a patient who:

17 Sec. 6. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph d,
 18 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 19 follows:

20 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
 21 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
 22 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:

23 Sec. 7. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
 24 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

25 Sec. 8. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, unnumbered paragraph
 26 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

27 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued to a patient
 28 by the department ~~of transportation~~ pursuant to subsection 1
 29 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:

30 Sec. 9. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
 31 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

32 Sec. 10. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, unnumbered paragraph
 33 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

34 For a patient in a primary caregiver's care, subject to
 35 subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the issuance of issue~~

PAGE 3

1 a medical cannabidiol registration card ~~by the department of~~
 2 ~~transportation~~ to the primary caregiver who:

3 Sec. 11. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph b,
 4 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:

6 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
 7 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
 8 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:

9 Sec. 12. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
 10 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

11 Sec. 13. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, unnumbered paragraph
 12 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

13 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued by the
 14 department ~~of transportation~~ to a primary caregiver pursuant to
 15 subsection 3 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:

16 Sec. 14. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
 17 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

18 Sec. 15. Section 124E.4, subsection 5, Code 2020, is amended
 19 to read as follows:

20 5. *Expiration date of card.* A medical cannabidiol
 21 registration card issued pursuant to this section shall expire
 22 ~~one year~~ three years after the date of issuance and may be
 23 renewed.

24 Sec. 16. Section 124E.4, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
 25 by striking the subsection.

26 Sec. 17. Section 124E.5, subsections 2 and 6, Code 2020, are

27 amended to read as follows:

28 2. The medical cannabidiol board shall convene at least
 29 twice ~~but no more than four times~~ per year.
 30 6. ~~The medical cannabidiol board may recommend a statutory~~
 31 ~~revision to the definition of medical cannabidiol contained in~~
 32 ~~this chapter that increases the tetrahydrocannabinol level to~~
 33 ~~more than three percent, however, any such recommendation shall~~
 34 ~~be submitted to the general assembly during the regular session~~
 35 ~~of the general assembly following such submission.~~ The general

PAGE 4

1 assembly shall have the sole authority to revise the definition
 2 of medical cannabidiol for purposes of this chapter.
 3 Sec. 18. Section 124E.6, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
 4 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
 5 following:

6 4. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with
 7 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
 8 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer
 9 as provided in section 124E.7. The department shall require
 10 that the laboratory report testing results to the medical
 11 cannabidiol manufacturer and the department as determined by
 12 the department by rule. If a medical cannabidiol manufacturer
 13 contracts with a laboratory other than the state hygienic
 14 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City, the
 15 department shall approve the laboratory to perform testing
 16 pursuant to this chapter.

17 Sec. 19. Section 124E.7, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 18 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
 19 following:

20 1. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with
 21 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
 22 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer as
 23 to content, contamination, and consistency. The cost of all
 24 laboratory testing shall be paid by the medical cannabidiol
 25 manufacturer.

26 Sec. 20. Section 124E.9, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 27 following new subsections:

28 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 29 shall employ a pharmacist or pharmacy technician licensed or
 30 registered pursuant to chapter 155A for the purpose of making
 31 dosing recommendations.

32 NEW SUBSECTION. 14. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 33 shall not dispense more than a combined total of fifteen grams
 34 of total tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's
 35 primary caregiver in a ninety-day period, except as provided

PAGE 5

1 in subsection 15.

2 NEW SUBSECTION. 15. A medical cannabidiol dispensary may

3 dispense more than a combined total of fifteen grams of total
 4 tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's primary
 5 caregiver in a ninety-day period if any of the following apply:
 6 *a.* The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 7 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 8 patient's debilitating medical condition is a terminal illness
 9 with a life expectancy of less than one year. A certification
 10 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total
 11 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
 12 health care practitioner.
 13 *b.* The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 14 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 15 the patient has participated in the medical cannabidiol program
 16 and that the health care practitioner has determined that
 17 fifteen grams of total tetrahydrocannabinol in a ninety-day
 18 period is insufficient to treat the patient's debilitating
 19 medical condition. A certification issued pursuant to this
 20 paragraph shall include a total tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed
 21 appropriate by the patient's health care practitioner.
 22 Sec. 21. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 23 subparagraph (1), subparagraph divisions (a) and (c), Code
 24 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 25 (a) To authorized employees or agents of the department ~~and~~
 26 ~~the department of transportation~~ as necessary to perform the
 27 duties of the department ~~and the department of transportation~~
 28 pursuant to this chapter.
 29 (c) To authorized employees of a medical cannabidiol
 30 dispensary, but only for the ~~purpose~~ purposes of verifying that
 31 a person is lawfully in possession of a medical cannabidiol
 32 registration card issued pursuant to this chapter ~~and that a~~
 33 person has not purchased total tetrahydrocannabinol in excess
 34 of the amount authorized by this chapter.
 35 Sec. 22. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,

PAGE 6

1 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 2 new subparagraph division:
 3 **NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION.** (e) To a health care
 4 practitioner for the purpose of determining whether a patient
 5 seeking a written certification pursuant to section 124E.3 has
 6 already received a written certification from another health
 7 care practitioner.
 8 Sec. 23. Section 124E.12, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 9 amended to read as follows:
 10 7. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the department,
 11 ~~the department of transportation~~, the governor, or any employee
 12 of any state agency shall not be held civilly or criminally
 13 liable for any injury, loss of property, personal injury, or
 14 death caused by any act or omission while acting within the
 15 scope of office or employment as authorized under this chapter.
 16 Sec. 24. **NEW SECTION. 124E.20 Observational effectiveness**

17 **study.**

18 The department may conduct an observational effectiveness
19 study in cooperation with patients and health care
20 practitioners and pursuant to rules of the department in order
21 to study the effectiveness of medical cannabidiol in the
22 treatment of debilitating medical conditions.

23 Sec. 25. PROTECTION OF FEDERAL FUNDING. The department
24 of public health shall request guarantees from the agencies
25 of the federal government providing funding to educational
26 and long-term care facilities that facilities with policies
27 allowing patients to possess medical cannabidiol on the grounds
28 of the facilities consistent with chapter 124E or allowing
29 facility staff to administer medical cannabidiol to a patient
30 shall not lose eligibility for any federal funding due to such
31 policies.

32 Sec. 26. TRANSITION PROVISIONS. A medical cannabidiol
33 registration card issued prior to July 1, 2020, remains
34 effective and continues in effect as issued for the
35 twelve-month period following its issuance.>>

GASKILL of Wapello

H-8143

1 Amend the amendment, H-8128, to House File 2589 as follows:

2 1. By striking page 1, line 2, through page 9, line 9, and
3 inserting:

4 <1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
5 inserting:

6 <Section 1. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, paragraph i, Code
7 2020, is amended to read as follows:

8 *i. Untreatable Chronic* pain.

9 Sec. 2. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
10 by adding the following new paragraphs:

11 NEW PARAGRAPH. *j.* Severe, intractable autism with
12 self-injurious or aggressive behaviors.

13 NEW PARAGRAPH. *k.* Post-traumatic stress disorder.

14 Sec. 3. Section 124E.2, subsections 5 and 6, Code 2020, are
15 amended to read as follows:

16 5. "*Health care practitioner*" means an individual licensed
17 under chapter 148 to practice medicine and surgery or
18 osteopathic medicine and surgery, a physician assistant
19 licensed under chapter 148C, an advanced registered nurse
20 practitioner licensed under chapter 152, or an advanced
21 practice registered nurse under chapter 152E, who is a
22 patient's primary care provider or a podiatrist licensed
23 pursuant to chapter 149. "*Health care practitioner*" shall not
24 include a physician assistant licensed under chapter 148C or
25 an advanced registered nurse practitioner licensed pursuant to
26 chapter 152 or 152E.

27 6. "*Medical cannabidiol*" means any pharmaceutical

28 grade cannabinoid found in the plant *Cannabis sativa* L. or
29 *Cannabis indica* or any other preparation thereof that has
30 a tetrahydrocannabinol level of no more than three percent
31 and that is delivered in a form recommended by the medical
32 cannabidiol board, approved by the board of medicine, and
33 adopted by the department pursuant to rule.
34 Sec. 4. Section 124E.2, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
35 following new subsection:

PAGE 2

1 **NEW SUBSECTION. 5A.** “*Laboratory*” means the state hygienic
2 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City or any other
3 independent medical cannabidiol testing facility accredited
4 to standard ISO/IEC 17025 by an international organization
5 for standards-approved accrediting body, with a controlled
6 substance registration certificate from the United States drug
7 enforcement administration and a certificate of registration
8 from the board of pharmacy. For the purposes of this chapter,
9 an independent laboratory is a laboratory operated by an
10 entity that has no equity ownership in a medical cannabidiol
11 manufacturer.

12 Sec. 5. **NEW SECTION. 124E.3A State medical director**
13 **certification — rules.**

14 1. The department shall establish by rule by January 1,
15 2021, a process for a patient who has been denied a written
16 certification by a health care practitioner pursuant to section
17 124E.3 to receive a written certification from the state
18 medical director of the department.
19 2. The process established pursuant to subsection 1 shall
20 include all of the following provisions:
21 *a.* The patient shall submit the patient’s medical records
22 to the state medical director.
23 *b.* The state medical director shall verify that the
24 patient’s health care practitioner refused to provide a written
25 certification to the patient pursuant to section 124E.3.
26 *c.* The state medical director shall determine whether
27 the patient suffers from a debilitating medical condition
28 that qualifies for the use of medical cannabidiol under this
29 chapter.
30 *d.* The state medical director shall determine whether the
31 patient may benefit from the use of medical cannabidiol.
32 *e.* If the state medical director determines that the patient
33 suffers from a debilitating medical condition, that the patient
34 may benefit from the use of medical cannabidiol, and that the
35 patient’s health care practitioner refused to provide a written

PAGE 3

1 certification to the patient, the state medical director shall
2 provide a written certification to the patient.
3 3. The custodian of a patient’s medical records shall

4 provide the patient's medical records to the state medical
 5 director or the patient for the purpose of obtaining a written
 6 certification pursuant to this section without charge to the
 7 patient or the state medical director.
 8 4. The state medical director shall keep confidential all
 9 medical records provided to the state medical director pursuant
 10 to this section.
 11 Sec. 6. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph
 12 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 13 Subject to subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the~~
 14 ~~issuance of issue~~ a medical cannabidiol registration card by
 15 ~~the department of transportation~~ to a patient who:
 16 Sec. 7. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph c, Code
 17 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 18 c. Submits a written certification to the department signed
 19 by the patient's health care practitioner or the state medical
 20 director that the patient is suffering from a debilitating
 21 medical condition.
 22 Sec. 8. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph d,
 23 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 24 follows:
 25 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
 26 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
 27 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:
 28 Sec. 9. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
 29 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
 30 Sec. 10. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, unnumbered paragraph
 31 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 32 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued to a patient
 33 by the department ~~of transportation~~ pursuant to subsection 1
 34 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:
 35 Sec. 11. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code

PAGE 4

1 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
 2 Sec. 12. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, unnumbered paragraph
 3 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 4 For a patient in a primary caregiver's care, subject to
 5 subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the issuance of issue~~
 6 a medical cannabidiol registration card by ~~the department of~~
 7 ~~transportation~~ to the primary caregiver who:
 8 Sec. 13. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 9 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 10 a. Submits a written certification to the department signed
 11 by the patient's health care practitioner or the state medical
 12 director that the patient in the primary caregiver's care is
 13 suffering from a debilitating medical condition.
 14 Sec. 14. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph b,
 15 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 16 follows:
 17 Submits an application to the department, on a form created

18 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
19 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:
20 Sec. 15. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
21 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
22 Sec. 16. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, unnumbered paragraph
23 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
24 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued by the
25 department of ~~transportation~~ to a primary caregiver pursuant to
26 subsection 3 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:
27 Sec. 17. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
28 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
29 Sec. 18. Section 124E.4, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
30 by striking the subsection.
31 Sec. 19. Section 124E.5, subsections 2 and 6, Code 2020, are
32 amended to read as follows:
33 2. The medical cannabidiol board shall convene at least
34 twice ~~but no more than four times~~ per year.
35 6. ~~The medical cannabidiol board may recommend a statutory~~

PAGE 5

1 ~~revision to the definition of medical cannabidiol contained in~~
2 ~~this chapter that increases the tetrahydrocannabinol level to~~
3 ~~more than three percent, however, any such recommendation shall~~
4 ~~be submitted to the general assembly during the regular session~~
5 ~~of the general assembly following such submission.~~ The general
6 assembly shall have the sole authority to revise the definition
7 of medical cannabidiol for purposes of this chapter.
8 Sec. 20. Section 124E.6, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
9 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
10 following:
11 4. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with
12 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
13 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer
14 as provided in section 124E.7. The department shall require
15 that the laboratory report testing results to the medical
16 cannabidiol manufacturer and the department as determined by
17 the department by rule. If a medical cannabidiol manufacturer
18 contracts with a laboratory other than the state hygienic
19 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City, the
20 department shall approve the laboratory to perform testing
21 pursuant to this chapter.
22 Sec. 21. Section 124E.7, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
23 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
24 following:
25 1. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with
26 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
27 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer as
28 to content, contamination, and consistency. The cost of all
29 laboratory testing shall be paid by the medical cannabidiol
30 manufacturer.
31 Sec. 22. Section 124E.9, Code 2020, is amended by adding the

32 following new subsections:
 33 **NEW SUBSECTION. 13.** A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 34 shall employ a pharmacist or pharmacy technician licensed or
 35 registered pursuant to chapter 155A for the purpose of making

PAGE 6

1 dosing recommendations.
 2 **NEW SUBSECTION. 14.** A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 3 shall not dispense more than a combined total of fifteen grams
 4 of total tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's
 5 primary caregiver in a ninety-day period, except as provided
 6 in subsection 15.
 7 **NEW SUBSECTION. 15.** A medical cannabidiol dispensary may
 8 dispense more than a combined total of fifteen grams of total
 9 tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's primary
 10 caregiver in a ninety-day period if any of the following apply:
 11 *a.* The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 12 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 13 patient's debilitating medical condition is a terminal illness
 14 with a life expectancy of less than one year. A certification
 15 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total
 16 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
 17 health care practitioner.
 18 *b.* The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 19 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 20 the patient has participated in the medical cannabidiol program
 21 and that the health care practitioner has determined that
 22 fifteen grams of total tetrahydrocannabinol in a ninety-day
 23 period is insufficient to treat the patient's debilitating
 24 medical condition. A certification issued pursuant to this
 25 paragraph shall include a total tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed
 26 appropriate by the patient's health care practitioner.
 27 **Sec. 23.** Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 28 subparagraph (1), subparagraph divisions (a) and (c), Code
 29 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 30 (a) To authorized employees or agents of the department ~~and~~
 31 ~~the department of transportation~~ as necessary to perform the
 32 duties of the department ~~and the department of transportation~~
 33 pursuant to this chapter.
 34 (c) To authorized employees of a medical cannabidiol
 35 dispensary, but only for the ~~purpose~~ purposes of verifying that

PAGE 7

1 a person is lawfully in possession of a medical cannabidiol
 2 registration card issued pursuant to this chapter and that a
 3 person has not purchased total tetrahydrocannabinol in excess
 4 of the amount authorized by this chapter.
 5 **Sec. 24.** Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 6 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 7 new subparagraph division:

8 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (e) To a health care
 9 practitioner for the purpose of determining whether a patient
 10 seeking a written certification pursuant to section 124E.3 has
 11 already received a written certification from another health
 12 care practitioner.

13 Sec. 25. Section 124E.12, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 14 amended to read as follows:

15 1. A health care practitioner, including any authorized
 16 agent or employee thereof, or the state medical director,
 17 including any authorized agent or employee thereof, shall not
 18 be subject to prosecution for the unlawful certification,
 19 possession, or administration of marijuana under the laws of
 20 this state for activities arising directly out of or directly
 21 related to the certification or use of medical cannabidiol
 22 in the treatment of a patient diagnosed with a debilitating
 23 medical condition as authorized by this chapter.

24 Sec. 26. Section 124E.12, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 25 amended to read as follows:

26 7. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the department,
 27 ~~the department of transportation,~~ the governor, or any employee
 28 of any state agency shall not be held civilly or criminally
 29 liable for any injury, loss of property, personal injury, or
 30 death caused by any act or omission while acting within the
 31 scope of office or employment as authorized under this chapter.

32 Sec. 27. NEW SECTION. 124E.20 Observational effectiveness
 33 study.

34 The department may conduct an observational effectiveness
 35 study in cooperation with patients and health care

PAGE 8

1 practitioners and pursuant to rules of the department in order
 2 to study the effectiveness of medical cannabidiol in the
 3 treatment of debilitating medical conditions.

4 Sec. 28. PROTECTION OF FEDERAL FUNDING. The department
 5 of public health shall request guarantees from the agencies
 6 of the federal government providing funding to educational
 7 and long-term care facilities that facilities with policies
 8 allowing patients to possess medical cannabidiol on the grounds
 9 of the facilities consistent with chapter 124E or allowing
 10 facility staff to administer medical cannabidiol to a patient
 11 shall not lose eligibility for any federal funding due to such
 12 policies.

13 Sec. 29. TRANSITION PROVISIONS. A medical cannabidiol
 14 registration card issued prior to July 1, 2020, remains
 15 effective and continues in effect as issued for the
 16 twelve-month period following its issuance.>>

H-8144

1 Amend the amendment, H-8128, to House File 2589 as follows:

2 1. By striking page 1, line 2, through page 9, line 9, and
3 inserting:

4 <1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
5 inserting:

6 <Section 1. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, paragraph i, Code
7 2020, is amended to read as follows:

8 *i. Untreatable Chronic pain.*

9 Sec. 2. Section 124E.2, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
10 by adding the following new paragraphs:

11 NEW PARAGRAPH. j. Severe, intractable autism with
12 self-injurious or aggressive behaviors.

13 NEW PARAGRAPH. k. Post-traumatic stress disorder.

14 Sec. 3. Section 124E.2, subsections 5 and 6, Code 2020, are
15 amended to read as follows:

16 5. "*Health care practitioner*" means an individual licensed
17 under chapter 148 to practice medicine and surgery or
18 osteopathic medicine and surgery, a physician assistant
19 licensed under chapter 148C, an advanced registered nurse
20 practitioner licensed under chapter 152, or an advanced
21 practice registered nurse under chapter 152E, who is a
22 patient's primary care provider or a podiatrist licensed
23 pursuant to chapter 149. ~~"Health care practitioner" shall not~~
24 ~~include a physician assistant licensed under chapter 148C or~~
25 ~~an advanced registered nurse practitioner licensed pursuant to~~
26 ~~chapter 152 or 152E.~~

27 6. "*Medical cannabidiol*" means any pharmaceutical
28 grade cannabinoid found in the plant *Cannabis sativa* L. or
29 *Cannabis indica* or any other preparation thereof ~~that has~~
30 ~~a tetrahydrocannabinol level of no more than three percent~~
31 ~~and~~ that is delivered in a form recommended by the medical
32 cannabidiol board, approved by the board of medicine, and
33 adopted by the department pursuant to rule.

34 Sec. 4. Section 124E.2, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
35 following new subsection:

PAGE 2

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. "*Laboratory*" means the state hygienic
2 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City or any other
3 independent medical cannabidiol testing facility accredited
4 to standard ISO/IEC 17025 by an international organization
5 for standards-approved accrediting body, with a controlled
6 substance registration certificate from the United States drug
7 enforcement administration and a certificate of registration
8 from the board of pharmacy. For the purposes of this chapter,
9 an independent laboratory is a laboratory operated by an
10 entity that has no equity ownership in a medical cannabidiol
11 manufacturer.

12 Sec. 5. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph

13 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

14 Subject to subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the~~
 15 ~~issuance of issue~~ a medical cannabidiol registration card by
 16 ~~the department of transportation~~ to a patient who:

17 Sec. 6. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph d,
 18 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 19 follows:

20 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
 21 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
 22 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:

23 Sec. 7. Section 124E.4, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
 24 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

25 Sec. 8. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, unnumbered paragraph
 26 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

27 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued to a patient
 28 by the department ~~of transportation~~ pursuant to subsection 1
 29 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:

30 Sec. 9. Section 124E.4, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
 31 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

32 Sec. 10. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, unnumbered paragraph
 33 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

34 For a patient in a primary caregiver's care, subject to
 35 subsection 7, the department may ~~approve the issuance of issue~~

PAGE 3

1 a medical cannabidiol registration card ~~by the department of~~
 2 ~~transportation~~ to the primary caregiver who:

3 Sec. 11. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph b,
 4 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:

6 Submits an application to the department, on a form created
 7 by the department, ~~in consultation with the department of~~
 8 ~~transportation~~, that contains all of the following:

9 Sec. 12. Section 124E.4, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
 10 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

11 Sec. 13. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, unnumbered paragraph
 12 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

13 A medical cannabidiol registration card issued by the
 14 department ~~of transportation~~ to a primary caregiver pursuant to
 15 subsection 3 shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:

16 Sec. 14. Section 124E.4, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
 17 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

18 Sec. 15. Section 124E.4, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
 19 by striking the subsection.

20 Sec. 16. Section 124E.5, subsections 2 and 6, Code 2020, are
 21 amended to read as follows:

22 2. The medical cannabidiol board shall convene at least
 23 twice ~~but no more than four times~~ per year.

24 6. ~~The medical cannabidiol board may recommend a statutory~~
 25 ~~revision to the definition of medical cannabidiol contained in~~
 26 ~~this chapter that increases the tetrahydrocannabinol level to~~

27 ~~more than three percent, however, any such recommendation shall~~
 28 ~~be submitted to the general assembly during the regular session~~
 29 ~~of the general assembly following such submission.~~ The general
 30 assembly shall have the sole authority to revise the definition
 31 of medical cannabidiol for purposes of this chapter.
 32 Sec. 17. Section 124E.6, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
 33 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
 34 following:
 35 4. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with

PAGE 4

1 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
 2 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer
 3 as provided in section 124E.7. The department shall require
 4 that the laboratory report testing results to the medical
 5 cannabidiol manufacturer and the department as determined by
 6 the department by rule. If a medical cannabidiol manufacturer
 7 contracts with a laboratory other than the state hygienic
 8 laboratory at the university of Iowa in Iowa City, the
 9 department shall approve the laboratory to perform testing
 10 pursuant to this chapter.
 11 Sec. 18. Section 124E.7, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 12 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
 13 following:
 14 1. A medical cannabidiol manufacturer shall contract with
 15 a laboratory to perform spot-check testing of the medical
 16 cannabidiol produced by the medical cannabidiol manufacturer as
 17 to content, contamination, and consistency. The cost of all
 18 laboratory testing shall be paid by the medical cannabidiol
 19 manufacturer.
 20 Sec. 19. Section 124E.9, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 21 following new subsections:
 22 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 23 shall employ a pharmacist or pharmacy technician licensed or
 24 registered pursuant to chapter 155A for the purpose of making
 25 dosing recommendations.
 26 NEW SUBSECTION. 14. A medical cannabidiol dispensary
 27 shall not dispense more than a combined total of fifteen grams
 28 of total tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's
 29 primary caregiver in a ninety-day period, except as provided
 30 in subsection 15.
 31 NEW SUBSECTION. 15. A medical cannabidiol dispensary may
 32 dispense more than a combined total of fifteen grams of total
 33 tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's primary
 34 caregiver in a ninety-day period if any of the following apply:
 35 a. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to

PAGE 5

1 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 2 patient's debilitating medical condition is a terminal illness

3 with a life expectancy of less than one year. A certification
 4 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total
 5 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
 6 health care practitioner.

7 b. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
 8 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 9 the patient has participated in the medical cannabidiol program
 10 and that the health care practitioner has determined that
 11 fifteen grams of total tetrahydrocannabinol in a ninety-day
 12 period is insufficient to treat the patient's debilitating
 13 medical condition. A certification issued pursuant to this
 14 paragraph shall include a total tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed
 15 appropriate by the patient's health care practitioner.

16 Sec. 20. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 17 subparagraph (1), subparagraph divisions (a) and (c), Code
 18 2020, are amended to read as follows:

19 (a) To authorized employees or agents of the department ~~and~~
 20 ~~the department of transportation~~ as necessary to perform the
 21 duties of the department ~~and the department of transportation~~
 22 pursuant to this chapter.

23 (c) To authorized employees of a medical cannabidiol
 24 dispensary, but only for the ~~purpose~~ purposes of verifying that
 25 a person is lawfully in possession of a medical cannabidiol
 26 registration card issued pursuant to this chapter and that a
 27 person has not purchased total tetrahydrocannabinol in excess
 28 of the amount authorized by this chapter.

29 Sec. 21. Section 124E.11, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 30 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 31 new subparagraph division:

32 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (e) To a health care
 33 practitioner for the purpose of determining whether a patient
 34 seeking a written certification pursuant to section 124E.3 has
 35 already received a written certification from another health

PAGE 6

1 care practitioner.

2 Sec. 22. Section 124E.12, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 3 amended to read as follows:

4 7. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the department,
 5 ~~the department of transportation~~, the governor, or any employee
 6 of any state agency shall not be held civilly or criminally
 7 liable for any injury, loss of property, personal injury, or
 8 death caused by any act or omission while acting within the
 9 scope of office or employment as authorized under this chapter.

10 Sec. 23. NEW SECTION. 124E.20 Observational effectiveness
 11 study.

12 The department may conduct an observational effectiveness
 13 study in cooperation with patients and health care
 14 practitioners and pursuant to rules of the department in order
 15 to study the effectiveness of medical cannabidiol in the
 16 treatment of debilitating medical conditions.

17 Sec. 24. PROTECTION OF FEDERAL FUNDING. The department
 18 of public health shall request guarantees from the agencies
 19 of the federal government providing funding to educational
 20 and long-term care facilities that facilities with policies
 21 allowing patients to possess medical cannabidiol on the grounds
 22 of the facilities consistent with chapter 124E or allowing
 23 facility staff to administer medical cannabidiol to a patient
 24 shall not lose eligibility for any federal funding due to such
 25 policies.

26 Sec. 25. TRANSITION PROVISIONS. A medical cannabidiol
 27 registration card issued prior to July 1, 2020, remains
 28 effective and continues in effect as issued for the
 29 twelve-month period following its issuance.>>

KRESSIG of Black Hawk

H-8145

1 Amend the amendment, H-8062, to House File 2457 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 8, by striking <shall> and inserting <may>
 3 2. Page 1, by striking lines 18 and 19 and inserting <An
 4 Act authorizing school districts and accredited nonpublic
 5 schools to provide bleeding control training to students at the
 6 secondary level.>

A. MEYER of Webster

H-8146

1 Amend Senate File 621, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, line 1, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 4 2. Page 5, line 15, by striking <1950> and inserting <1970>
 5 3. Page 5, line 16, by striking <2020> and inserting <2021>
 6 4. Page 5, line 23, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 7 5. Page 7, line 2, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 8 6. Page 7, line 10, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 9 7. Page 7, line 32, by striking <1950> and inserting <1970>

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

H-8147

1 Amend Senate File 460, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 728.2, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:
 6 **728.2 Dissemination and exhibition of obscene material to**
 7 **minors.**
 8 1. Any person, other than the parent or guardian of the
 9 minor not subject to subsection 2, who knowingly disseminates

10 or exhibits obscene material to a minor, including the
11 exhibition of obscene material so that it can be observed by a
12 minor on or off the premises where it is displayed, is guilty
13 of a public offense and shall upon conviction be guilty of a
14 serious misdemeanor.
15 2. Any parent or guardian who has been convicted of or
16 adjudicated delinquent for any sex offense classified as a tier
17 I, tier II, or tier III offense under chapter 692A requiring
18 registration as a sex offender, or who is required to register
19 in another jurisdiction under the other jurisdiction's sex
20 offender registry for a sex offense, is subject to conviction
21 for a violation of subsection 1.>

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

H-8148

1 Amend Senate File 457, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:
3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:
5 <DIVISION I
6 SURCHARGES ADDED TO CRIMINAL PENALTIES AND DISTRIBUTION OF
7 SURCHARGE MONEYS
8 Section 1. Section 135.25, Code 2020, is amended to read as
9 follows:
10 **135.25 Emergency medical services fund.**
11 An emergency medical services fund is created in the state
12 treasury under the control of the department. The fund
13 includes, but is not limited to, amounts appropriated by the
14 general assembly, amounts transferred pursuant to section
15 602.8108, subsection 4, and other moneys available from
16 federal or private sources which are to be used for purposes
17 of this section. Funds remaining in the fund at the end of
18 each fiscal year shall not revert to the general fund of the
19 state but shall remain in the emergency medical services fund,
20 notwithstanding section 8.33. The fund is established to
21 assist counties by matching, on a dollar-for-dollar basis,
22 moneys spent by a county for the acquisition of equipment for
23 the provision of emergency medical services and by providing
24 grants to counties for education and training in the delivery
25 of emergency medical services, as provided in this section and
26 section 422D.6. A county seeking matching funds under this
27 section shall apply to the emergency medical services division
28 of the department. The department shall adopt rules concerning
29 the application and awarding process for the matching funds and
30 the criteria for the allocation of moneys in the fund if the
31 moneys are insufficient to meet the emergency medical services
32 needs of the counties. Moneys allocated by the department to a
33 county for emergency medical services purposes may be used for
34 equipment or training and education as determined by the board
35 of supervisors pursuant to section 422D.6.

PAGE 2

1 Sec. 2. Section 331.301, subsection 16, Code 2020, is
2 amended by striking the subsection.

3 Sec. 3. Section 331.302, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
4 to read as follows:

5 2. For a violation of an ordinance a county shall not
6 provide a penalty in excess of the maximum fine and term of
7 imprisonment for a simple misdemeanor under section 903.1,
8 subsection 1, paragraph "a". The ~~criminal penalty crime~~
9 services surcharge required by section 911.1 shall be added to
10 a county fine and is not a part of the county's penalty.

11 Sec. 4. Section 364.3, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
12 to read as follows:

13 2. For a violation of an ordinance a city shall not
14 provide a penalty in excess of the maximum fine and term of
15 imprisonment for a simple misdemeanor under section 903.1,
16 subsection 1, paragraph "a". An amount equal to ten percent of
17 all fines collected by cities shall be deposited in the account
18 established in section 602.8108. However, one hundred percent
19 of all fines collected by a city pursuant to section 321.236,
20 subsection 1, shall be retained by the city. The ~~criminal~~
21 penalty crime services surcharge required by section 911.1
22 shall be added to a city fine and is not a part of the city's
23 penalty.

24 Sec. 5. Section 602.8102, subsection 135A, Code 2020, is
25 amended to read as follows:

26 135A. Assess the surcharges provided by sections 911.1,
27 ~~911.2, 911.2A, 911.2B, 911.2C, 911.3, and 911.4~~ and 911.5.

28 Sec. 6. Section 602.8106, subsections 2 and 3, Code 2020,
29 are amended to read as follows:

30 2. The clerk of the district court shall remit ~~ninety eight~~
31 percent of all fines and forfeited bail to the city that was
32 the plaintiff in any action, and shall provide that city with a
33 statement showing the total number of cases, the total of all
34 fines and forfeited bail collected, and the total of all cases
35 dismissed. The remaining ~~ten~~ twenty percent shall be submitted

PAGE 3

1 to the state court administrator.

2 3. a. The clerk of the district court shall remit all fines
3 and forfeited bail for violation of a county ordinance, except
4 an ordinance relating to vehicle speed or weight restrictions,
5 to the county treasurer of the county that was the plaintiff
6 in the action, and shall provide that county with a statement
7 showing the total number of cases, the total of all fines and
8 forfeited bail collected, and the total of all cases dismissed.
9 However, if

10 b. If a county ordinance provides a penalty for a violation
11 which is also penalized under state law, or the court imposes
12 a fine or forfeiture for any simple misdemeanor punishable as

13 a scheduled violation pursuant to a citation issued by the
 14 sheriff as defined in section 331.101, the fines and forfeited
 15 bail collected for the violation shall be submitted to the
 16 state court administrator as follows:

17 (1) Ninety-one percent to the state court administrator as
 18 provided in section 602.8108, subsection 4.

19 (2) Nine percent to the county where the violation occurred
 20 or citation was issued.

21 Sec. 7. Section 602.8107, subsection 2, paragraph c,
 22 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

23 ~~(2) Fines or penalties and eriminal penalty and law~~
 24 ~~enforcement initiative surcharges~~ the crime services surcharge.

25 Sec. 8. Section 602.8107, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
 26 2020, is amended to read as follows:

27 a. This subsection does not apply to amounts collected for
 28 victim restitution, the victim compensation fund, the ~~eriminal~~
 29 ~~penalty crime services~~ surcharge, sex offender civil penalty,
 30 ~~drug abuse resistance education surcharge, the law enforcement~~
 31 ~~initiative surcharge,~~ county enforcement surcharge, amounts
 32 collected as a result of procedures initiated under subsection
 33 5 or under section 8A.504, or fees charged pursuant to section
 34 356.7.

35 Sec. 9. Section 602.8108, subsections 3 and 7, Code 2020,

PAGE 4

1 are amended to read as follows:
 2 3. The clerk of the district court shall remit to the
 3 state court administrator, not later than the fifteenth day
 4 of each month, ~~ninety-five percent of all moneys collected~~
 5 ~~from the eriminal penalty surcharge~~ surcharges provided in
 6 ~~section sections 911.1 and 911.5~~ sections 911.1 and 911.5 during the preceding calendar
 7 month. ~~The clerk shall remit the remainder to the county~~
 8 ~~treasurer of the county that was the plaintiff in the action~~
 9 ~~or to the city that was the plaintiff in the action. Of the~~
 10 ~~amount received from the clerk, the state court administrator~~
 11 ~~shall allocate seventeen and deposit each month forty-six~~
 12 ~~percent in the juvenile detention home fund in section 232.142,~~
 13 ~~thirty-two percent to be deposited in the victim compensation~~
 14 ~~fund established in section 915.94, and eighty-three percent~~
 15 ~~to be deposited in the general fund~~ twenty percent in the
 16 criminalistics laboratory fund established in section 691.9,
 17 and two percent in the drug abuse resistance education fund
 18 established in section 80E.4.

19 7. The clerk of the district court shall remit all moneys
 20 collected from the assessment of the ~~surecharges~~ surcharge
 21 ~~provided in sections section 911.2B and 911.2C~~ provided in section 911.2B and 911.2C to the state
 22 court administrator for deposit in the address confidentiality
 23 program revolving fund created in section 9.8.

24 Sec. 10. Section 602.8108, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 25 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
 26 thereof the following:

27 4. The clerk of the district court shall remit to the
 28 state court administrator, not later than the fifteenth day of
 29 each month, ninety-one percent of all moneys collected from
 30 county enforcement as provided section 602.8106, subsection 2,
 31 paragraph "b", subparagraph (1), during the preceding calendar
 32 month. Of the amount received from the clerk, the state court
 33 administrator shall allocate and deposit one and three-tenths
 34 percent in the emergency medical services fund in section
 35 135.25, and shall allocate and deposit the remainder in the

PAGE 5

1 general fund of the state.
 2 Sec. 11. Section 602.8108, subsections 5 and 8, Code 2020,
 3 are amended by striking the subsections.
 4 Sec. 12. Section 805.8, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 5 to read as follows:
 6 1. *Application.* Except as otherwise indicated, violations
 7 of sections of the Code specified in sections 805.8A, 805.8B,
 8 and 805.8C are scheduled violations, and the scheduled fine
 9 for each of those violations is as provided in those sections,
 10 whether the violation is of state law or of a county or city
 11 ordinance. The ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge
 12 required by section 911.1 and the ~~county enforcement surcharge~~
 13 ~~required by section 911.4, if applicable,~~ shall be added to the
 14 scheduled fine.
 15 Sec. 13. Section 902.9, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 16 to read as follows:
 17 2. The surcharges required by sections 911.1, ~~911.2,~~
 18 911.2A, and ~~911.3~~ 911.5 shall be added to a fine imposed on a
 19 class "C" or class "D" felon, as provided by those sections,
 20 and are not a part of or subject to the maximums set in this
 21 section.
 22 Sec. 14. Section 903.1, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
 23 to read as follows:
 24 4. The surcharges required by sections 911.1, ~~911.2,~~
 25 911.2A, ~~911.3,~~ and 911.4 and 911.5 shall be added to a fine
 26 imposed on a misdemeanor as provided in those sections,
 27 and are not a part of or subject to the maximums set in this
 28 section.
 29 Sec. 15. Section 911.1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 30 follows:
 31 **911.1 ~~Criminal penalty~~ Crime services surcharge.**
 32 1. A ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge shall be
 33 levied against law violators as provided in this section.
 34 When a court imposes a fine or forfeiture for a violation of
 35 state law, or a city or county ordinance, except an ordinance

PAGE 6

1 regulating the parking of motor vehicles, the court ~~or the~~
 2 clerk of the district court shall assess an additional penalty

3 in the form of a ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge
 4 equal to ~~thirty-five~~ fifteen percent of the fine or forfeiture
 5 imposed.

6 2. In the event of multiple offenses, the surcharge shall
 7 be based upon the total amount of fines or forfeitures imposed
 8 for all offenses.

9 3. When a fine or forfeiture is suspended in whole or in
 10 part, the court shall reduce the surcharge in proportion to the
 11 amount suspended.

12 4. The surcharge is subject to the provisions of chapter
 13 909 governing the payment and collection of fines, as provided
 14 in section 909.8.

15 5. The surcharge shall be remitted by the clerk of court as
 16 provided in section 602.8108, subsection 3.

17 Sec. 16. Section 911.2A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 18 to read as follows:

19 1. In addition to any other surcharge, the court ~~or clerk~~
 20 ~~of the district court~~ shall assess a human trafficking victim
 21 surcharge of one thousand dollars if an adjudication of
 22 guilt or a deferred judgment has been entered for a criminal
 23 violation of section 725.1, subsection 2, or section 710A.2,
 24 725.2, or 725.3.

25 Sec. 17. Section 911.2B, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 26 follows:

27 **911.2B Domestic abuse assault, or sexual abuse, stalking, and**
 28 **human trafficking victim related crimes surcharge.**

29 1. In addition to any other surcharge, the court ~~or clerk~~
 30 ~~of the district court~~ shall assess a domestic abuse assault,
 31 domestic abuse protective order contempt, sexual abuse,
 32 stalking, and human trafficking victim surcharge of ~~one hundred~~
 33 ninety dollars if an adjudication of guilt or a deferred
 34 judgment has been entered for a violation of section 708.2A,
 35 708.11, or 710A.2, or chapter 709, or if a defendant is held

PAGE 7

1 in contempt of court for violating a domestic abuse protective
 2 order issued pursuant to chapter 236.

3 2. In the event of multiple offenses, the surcharge shall be
 4 imposed for each applicable offense.

5 3. The surcharge shall be remitted by the clerk of court as
 6 provided in section 602.8108, subsection 7.

7 Sec. 18. NEW SECTION. 911.5 Agricultural theft surcharge.

8 1. In addition to any other surcharge, the court or clerk of
 9 the district court shall assess an agricultural theft surcharge
 10 equal to five hundred dollars, if an adjudication of guilt or
 11 a deferred judgment has been entered for a criminal violation
 12 involving any of the following:

13 *a.* Theft of agricultural property under section 714.2,
 14 subsection 1, 2, or 3.

15 *b.* Criminal mischief under section 716.3, 716.4, or 716.5,
 16 by damaging, defacing, altering, or destroying agricultural

17 property.

18 2. As used in this section, agricultural property means any
19 of the following:

20 *a.* A crop as defined in section 717A.1.

21 *b.* Livestock as defined in section 717.1.

22 *c.* (1) A colony or package as defined in section 160.1A,
23 or a hive where bees are kept as described in section 160.5,
24 if the department of agriculture and land stewardship is
25 authorized by that chapter to inspect the colony, package, or
26 hive or to regulate the movement of the colony, package, or
27 hive.

28 (2) A queen bee that is part of a colony or is being moved
29 to be part of a colony as described in subparagraph (1).

30 3. The surcharge shall be remitted by the clerk of the
31 district court as provided in section 602.8108, subsection 3.

32 Sec. 19. REPEAL. Sections 911.2, 911.2C, 911.3, and 911.4,
33 Code 2020, are repealed.

34 DIVISION II
35 COURT FUNDS

PAGE 8

1 Sec. 20. Section 602.1302, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
2 amended to read as follows:

3 1. Except as otherwise provided by sections 602.1303-
4 ~~602.1304~~, and 602.8108 or other applicable law, the expenses of
5 operating and maintaining the judicial branch shall be paid out
6 of the general fund of the state from funds appropriated by the
7 general assembly for the judicial branch. State funding shall
8 be phased in as provided in section 602.11101.

9 Sec. 21. Section 602.1304, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
10 amended to read as follows:

11 1. Except as provided in article 8 ~~and subsection 2 of this~~
12 ~~section~~, all fees and other revenues collected by judicial
13 officers and court employees shall be paid into the general
14 fund of the state.

15 Sec. 22. Section 602.1304, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
16 amended by striking the subsection.

17 Sec. 23. Section 602.8108, subsection 9, Code 2020, is
18 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
19 thereof the following:

20 9. *a.* A court technology and modernization fund is
21 established as a separate fund in the state treasury. The
22 state court administrator shall allocate seven million dollars
23 of the moneys received under subsection 2 to be deposited in
24 the fund, which shall be administered by the judicial branch.

25 *b.* The moneys in the fund shall be used to enhance the
26 ability of the judicial branch to process cases more quickly
27 and efficiently, to electronically transmit information to
28 state government, local governments, law enforcement agencies,
29 and the public, and to improve public access to the court
30 system. The moneys in the collection fund may also be used for

31 any the following:

- 32 (1) The Iowa court information system.
 33 (2) Records management, equipment, services, and projects.
 34 (3) Other technological improvements approved by the
 35 judicial branch.

PAGE 9

- 1 (4) Electronic legal research equipment, systems, and
 2 projects.
 3 (5) The study, development, and implementation of other
 4 innovations and projects that would improve the administration
 5 of justice.
 6 (6) Capital improvements necessitated by the installation
 7 of or connection with the Iowa court information system, the
 8 Iowa communications network, or other like networks.
 9 c. The fund shall be separate from the general fund of
 10 the state and the balance in the fund shall not be considered
 11 part of the balance of the general fund of the state.
 12 Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys in the fund shall not
 13 revert to the general fund. Notwithstanding section 12C.7,
 14 subsection 2, interest or earnings on moneys in the court
 15 technology and modernization fund shall remain in the court
 16 technology and modernization fund and any interest and earnings
 17 shall be in addition to the maximum annual deposit amount.

18 Sec. 24. TRANSFER OF REMAINING FUNDS. Any unobligated
 19 or unencumbered moneys remaining in the enhanced court
 20 collections fund in section 602.1304 at the end of the fiscal
 21 year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, shall be
 22 transferred to the court technology and modernization fund.

23 DIVISION III

24 CIVIL FEES AND COURT COSTS

25 Sec. 25. Section 602.8105, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020,
 26 are amended to read as follows:

27 1. The clerk of the district court shall collect the
 28 following fees:

29 a. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, for
 30 filing and docketing a petition, one hundred ~~eighty-five~~
 31 ninety-five dollars. In counties having a population of
 32 ninety-eight thousand or over, an additional five dollars shall
 33 be charged and collected to be known as the journal publication
 34 fee and used for the purposes provided for in section 618.13.

35 Ob. For filing and docketing a petition for dissolution

PAGE 10

1 of marriage, which includes the docketing of any dissolution
 2 decree, two hundred sixty-five dollars. It is the intent of
 3 the general assembly that twenty percent of the funds generated
 4 from these fees be appropriated and used for sexual assault
 5 and domestic violence centers and eighty percent of the funds
 6 generated from these fees be appropriated to the general fund

- 7 ~~of the state.~~
- 8 *b.* For filing and docketing a petition pursuant to chapter
9 598 other than a dissolution of marriage petition, one hundred
10 ten dollars.
- 11 *c.* For filing and docketing an application for modification
12 of a dissolution decree to which a written stipulation is
13 attached at the time of filing containing the agreement of the
14 parties to the terms of modification, one hundred ten dollars.
- 15 ~~*d.* For entering a final decree of dissolution of marriage,
16 fifty dollars. It is the intent of the general assembly that
17 the funds generated from the dissolution fees be appropriated
18 and used for sexual assault and domestic violence centers.~~
- 19 *e.* *d.* For filing and docketing a petition for adoption
20 pursuant to chapter 600, one hundred zero dollars. ~~For
21 multiple adoption petitions filed at the same time by the same
22 petitioner under section 600.3, the filing fee and any court
23 costs for any petition filed in addition to the first petition
24 filed are waived.~~
- 25 *f.* *e.* For filing and docketing a small claims action, the
26 amounts specified in section 631.6.
- 27 *g.* *f.* For an appeal from a judgment in small claims or for
28 filing and docketing a writ of error, one hundred eighty-five
29 ninety-five dollars.
- 30 ~~*h.* *g.* For a motion to show cause in a civil case, fifty
31 sixty dollars.~~
- 32 *i.* *h.* For filing and docketing a transcript of the judgment
33 in a civil case, fifty sixty dollars.
- 34 *j.* *i.* For filing a tribal judgment, one hundred ten
35 dollars.

PAGE 11

- 1 2. The clerk of the district court shall collect the
2 following fees for miscellaneous services:
- 3 *a.* For filing and entering any other statutory lien, ~~fifty~~
4 sixty dollars.
- 5 *b.* For a certificate and seal, ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
6 However, there shall be no charge for a certificate and seal to
7 an application to procure a pension, bounty, or back pay for a
8 member of the armed services or other person.
- 9 *c.* For certifying a change in title of real estate, ~~fifty~~
10 sixty dollars.
- 11 *d.* For filing a praecipe to issue execution under chapter
12 626, ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars. The fee shall be
13 recoverable by the creditor from the debtor against whom the
14 execution is issued. A fee payable by a political subdivision
15 of the state under this paragraph shall be collected by the
16 clerk of the district court as provided in section 602.8109.
17 However, the fee shall be waived and shall not be collected
18 from a political subdivision of the state if a county attorney
19 or county attorney's designee is collecting a delinquent
20 judgment pursuant to section 602.8107, subsection 4.

21 e. For filing a praecipe to issue execution under chapter
 22 654, ~~fifty sixty~~ dollars.
 23 f. For filing a confession of judgment under chapter 676,
 24 ~~fifty sixty~~ dollars if the judgment is five thousand dollars or
 25 less, and one hundred ~~ten~~ dollars if the judgment exceeds five
 26 thousand dollars.
 27 g. For filing a lis pendens, ~~fifty sixty~~ dollars.
 28 h. For applicable convictions under section 692A.110 prior
 29 to July 1, 2009, a civil penalty of two hundred ~~ten~~ dollars,
 30 and for applicable convictions under section 692A.110 on or
 31 after July 1, 2009, a civil penalty of two hundred ~~fifty sixty~~
 32 dollars.
 33 i. Other fees provided by law.
 34 Sec. 26. Section 602.8106, subsection 1, paragraph d, Code
 35 2020, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 12

1 d. For court costs in scheduled violation cases where a
 2 court appearance is required, ~~sixty fifty-five~~ dollars.
 3 Sec. 27. Section 631.6, subsection 1, paragraphs a and c,
 4 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 5 a. Fees for filing and docketing shall be ~~eighty-five~~
 6 ~~ninety-five~~ dollars.
 7 c. Postage charged for the mailing of original notice shall
 8 be ~~ten twenty~~ dollars.
 9 Sec. 28. STUDY ON PRO HAC VICE ATTORNEY FEE. The judicial
 10 branch shall conduct a study to determine whether the amount of
 11 the current fee to appear pro hac vice is appropriate. If the
 12 judicial branch determines that the fee to appear pro hac vice
 13 is not appropriate, the judicial branch shall adjust the fee
 14 accordingly.

15 DIVISION IV

16 SCHEDULED VIOLATIONS

17 Sec. 29. Section 321.24, subsection 12, Code 2020, is
 18 amended to read as follows:
 19 12. A person who violates this section commits a simple
 20 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
 21 805.8A, subsection 2, paragraph "b".
 22 Sec. 30. Section 321.260, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 23 amended to read as follows:
 24 2. It shall be unlawful for any person to have in the
 25 person's possession any official traffic-control device
 26 except by legal right or authority. Any person convicted
 27 of unauthorized possession of any official traffic-control
 28 device shall upon conviction be guilty of a simple misdemeanor
 29 punishable as a scheduled violation under section 805.8A,
 30 subsection 8, paragraph "c". In addition to any other
 31 penalties, the punishment imposed for a violation of this
 32 subsection shall include assessment of a fine of not less than
 33 two hundred fifty dollars.
 34 Sec. 31. Section 321.262, subsection 2, Code 2020, is

35 amended to read as follows:

PAGE 13

1 2. The driver shall remain at the scene of the accident
 2 until the driver has fulfilled the requirements of section
 3 321.263. Any person failing to remain at the scene of the
 4 accident or fulfill the requirements of section 321.263 under
 5 such circumstances shall be guilty of a simple misdemeanor
 6 ~~and punished as provided in section 321.482 punishable as~~
 7 a scheduled violation under section 805.8A, subsection 14,
 8 paragraph "m".

9 Sec. 32. Section 321.264, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 10 follows:

11 **321.264 Striking unattended vehicle.**

12 The driver of any vehicle which collides with any vehicle
 13 which is unattended shall immediately stop and shall then and
 14 there either locate and notify the operator or owner of such
 15 vehicle of the name and address of the driver and owner of the
 16 vehicle striking the unattended vehicle or shall leave in a
 17 conspicuous place in the vehicle struck a written notice giving
 18 the name and address of the driver and of the owner of the
 19 vehicle doing the striking and a statement of the circumstances
 20 thereof. A person who violates this section commits a simple
 21 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
 22 805.8A, subsection 14, paragraph "n".

23 Sec. 33. Section 321.265, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 24 follows:

25 **321.265 Striking fixtures upon a highway.**

26 The driver of a vehicle involved in an accident resulting
 27 in damage to property legally upon or adjacent to a highway
 28 shall take reasonable steps to locate and notify the owner,
 29 a peace officer, or person in charge of the damaged property
 30 of the damage and shall inform the person of the driver's name
 31 and address and the registration number of the vehicle causing
 32 the damage and shall, upon request and if available, exhibit
 33 the driver's license of the driver of the vehicle and shall
 34 report the accident when and as required in section 321.266. A
 35 person who violates this section commits a simple misdemeanor

PAGE 14

1 punishable as a scheduled violation under section 805.8A,
 2 subsection 14, paragraph "o".

3 Sec. 34. Section 321.324A, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 4 the following new subsection:

5 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. A person who violates this section
 6 commits a simple misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled
 7 violation under section 805.8A, subsection 6, paragraph "Os".

8 Sec. 35. Section 321.371, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 9 amended to read as follows:

10 2. A person who violates this section commits a simple

11 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
12 805.8A, subsection 14, paragraph "p".

13 Sec. 36. Section 321.372, subsection 5, paragraph b,
14 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
15 (1) For a first offense under subsection 3, the person is
16 guilty of a simple misdemeanor punishable by a fine of at least
17 ~~two hundred fifty three hundred forty-five~~ dollars but not more
18 than ~~six hundred seventy-five~~ nine hundred thirty dollars or
19 by imprisonment for not more than thirty days, or by both. The
20 department may require the person to attend and successfully
21 complete, at the person's own expense, a driver improvement
22 program approved by the department in lieu of driver's license
23 suspension for the offense pursuant to section 321.210.

24 Sec. 37. Section 321.383, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
25 amended to read as follows:

26 4. ~~Any~~ Except as provided in subsection 5, any person
27 who violates any provision of this section ~~shall be fined~~
28 ~~as provided in~~ commits a simple misdemeanor punishable as a
29 scheduled violation under section 805.8A, subsection 3.

30 Sec. 38. Section 321.383, Code 2020, is amended by adding
31 the following new subsection:

32 **NEW SUBSECTION. 5.** A person who operates a self-propelled
33 implement of husbandry at a speed which exceeds the limit
34 of thirty-five miles per hour commits a simple misdemeanor
35 punishable as a scheduled violation under section 805.8A,

PAGE 15

1 subsection 5.

2 Sec. 39. Section 321.431, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
3 amended to read as follows:

4 6. A person who violates this section commits a simple
5 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
6 805.8A, subsection 3, paragraph "ad".

7 Sec. 40. Section 805.8A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
8 follows:

9 **805.8A Motor vehicle and transportation scheduled violations.**

10 1. *Parking violations.*

11 a. For parking violations under sections 321.236, 321.239,
12 321.358, 321.360, and 321.361, the scheduled fine is five
13 dollars, except if the local authority has established the
14 fine by ordinance. The scheduled fine for a parking violation
15 pursuant to section 321.236 increases by five dollars if
16 authorized by ordinance and if the parking violation is not
17 paid within thirty days of the date upon which the violation
18 occurred. For purposes of calculating the unsecured appearance
19 bond required under section 805.6, the scheduled fine shall
20 be five dollars, or if the amount of the fine is greater than
21 five dollars, the unsecured appearance bond shall be the amount
22 of the fine established by the local authority. However,
23 violations charged by a city or county upon simple notice of a
24 fine instead of a uniform citation and complaint required by

25 section 321.236, subsection 1, paragraph “b”, are not scheduled
 26 violations, and this section shall not apply to any offense
 27 charged in that manner. For a parking violation under section
 28 461A.38, the scheduled fine is ten dollars. For a parking
 29 violation under section 321.362, the scheduled fine is twenty
 30 dollars.
 31 *b.* For a parking violation under section 321L.2A, subsection
 32 2, the scheduled fine is twenty dollars.
 33 *c.* For violations under section 321L.2A, subsection 3,
 34 sections 321L.3, 321L.4, subsection 2, and section 321L.7, the
 35 scheduled fine is two hundred dollars.

PAGE 16

1 2. *Title and registration violations.* For title or
 2 registration violations under the following sections, the
 3 scheduled fine is as follows:
 4 *a.* Section 321.17~~\$50~~ \$70.
 5 *b.* Section 321.24~~\$135~~.
 6 ~~*b.*~~ *c.* Section 321.25~~\$100~~ \$135.
 7 ~~*e.*~~ *d.* Section 321.32~~\$20~~ \$30.
 8 ~~*d.*~~ *e.* Section 321.34~~\$20~~ \$30.
 9 ~~*e.*~~ *f.* Section 321.37~~\$20~~ \$30.
 10 ~~*f.*~~ *g.* Section 321.38~~\$20~~ \$30.
 11 ~~*g.*~~ *h.* Section 321.41~~\$20~~ \$30.
 12 ~~*h.*~~ *i.* Section 321.45~~\$100~~ \$135.
 13 ~~*i.*~~ *j.* Section 321.46~~\$100~~ \$135.
 14 ~~*j.*~~ *k.* Section 321.47~~\$100~~ \$135.
 15 ~~*k.*~~ *l.* Section 321.48~~\$100~~ \$135.
 16 ~~*l.*~~ *m.* Section 321.52~~\$100~~ \$135.
 17 ~~*m.*~~ *n.* Section 321.55~~\$50~~ \$70.
 18 ~~*n.*~~ *o.* Section 321.57~~\$100~~ \$135.
 19 ~~*o.*~~ *p.* Section 321.62~~\$100~~ \$135.
 20 ~~*p.*~~ *q.* Section 321.67~~\$100~~ \$135.
 21 ~~*q.*~~ *r.* Section 321.98~~\$50~~ \$70.
 22 ~~*r.*~~ *s.* Section 321.99~~\$200~~ \$260.
 23 ~~*s.*~~ *t.* Section 321.104~~\$100~~ \$135.
 24 ~~*t.*~~ *u.* Section 321.115~~\$30~~ \$45.
 25 ~~*u.*~~ *v.* Section 321.115A~~\$30~~ \$45.
 26 3. *Equipment violations.* For equipment violations under the
 27 following sections, the scheduled fine is as follows:
 28 *a.* Section 321.234A~~\$50~~ \$70.
 29 *b.* Section 321.247~~\$100~~ \$135.
 30 *c.* Section 321.317~~\$20~~ \$30.
 31 *d.* Section 321.381~~\$100~~ \$135.
 32 *e.* Section 321.381A~~\$100~~ \$135.
 33 *f.* Section 321.382~~\$25~~ \$35.
 34 *g.* Section 321.383, subsection 4~~\$30~~ \$45.
 35 *h.* Section 321.384~~\$30~~ \$45.

PAGE 17

- 1 *i.* Section 321.385~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 2 *j.* Section 321.386~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 3 *k.* Section 321.387~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 4 *l.* Section 321.388~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 5 *m.* Section 321.389~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 6 *n.* Section 321.390~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 7 *o.* Section 321.392~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 8 *p.* Section 321.393~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 9 *q.* Section 321.398~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 10 *r.* Section 321.402~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 11 *s.* Section 321.403~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 12 *t.* Section 321.404~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 13 *u.* Section 321.404A~~\$25~~ \$35.
- 14 *v.* Section 321.409~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 15 *w.* Section 321.415~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 16 *x.* Section 321.419~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 17 *y.* Section 321.420~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 18 *z.* Section 321.421~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 19 *aa.* Section 321.422~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 20 *ab.* Section 321.423~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 21 *ac.* Section 321.430~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 22 *ad.* Section 321.431~~\$135.~~
- 23 ~~*ae.*~~ *ae.* Section 321.432~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 24 ~~*af.*~~ *af.* Section 321.433~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 25 ~~*ag.*~~ *ag.* Section 321.436~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 26 ~~*ah.*~~ *ah.* Section 321.438~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 27 ~~*ai.*~~ *ai.* Section 321.439~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 28 ~~*aj.*~~ *aj.* Section 321.440~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 29 ~~*ak.*~~ *ak.* Section 321.441~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 30 ~~*al.*~~ *al.* Section 321.442~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 31 ~~*am.*~~ *am.* Section 321.444~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 32 4. *Driver's license violations.* For driver's license
- 33 violations under the following sections, the scheduled fine is
- 34 as follows:
- 35 *a.* Section 321.174~~\$200~~ \$260.

PAGE 18

- 1 *b.* Section 321.174A~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 2 *c.* Section 321.178, subsection 2,
- 3 paragraph "a", subparagraph (2)~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 4 *d.* Section 321.180~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 5 *e.* Section 321.180B~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 6 *f.* Section 321.193~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 7 *g.* Section 321.194~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 8 *h.* Section 321.216~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 9 *i.* Section 321.216B~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 10 *j.* Section 321.216C~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 11 *k.* Section 321.219~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 12 *l.* Section 321.220~~\$200~~ \$260.

13 5. *Speed violations.*

- 14 a. For excessive speed violations in excess of the limit
 15 under section 321.236, subsections 5 and 11, ~~sections~~ section
 16 321.285, section 321.383, subsection 5, and section 461A.36,
 17 the scheduled fine shall be the following:
 18 (1) ~~Twenty~~ thirty dollars for speed not more than five miles
 19 per hour in excess of the limit.
 20 (2) ~~Forty fifty-five~~ dollars for speed greater than five but
 21 not more than ten miles per hour in excess of the limit.
 22 (3) ~~Eighty~~ One hundred five dollars for speed greater than
 23 ten but not more than fifteen miles per hour in excess of the
 24 limit.
 25 (4) ~~Ninety~~ One hundred twenty dollars for speed greater
 26 than fifteen but not more than twenty miles per hour in excess
 27 of the limit.
 28 (5) One hundred ~~thirty-five~~ dollars plus five dollars for
 29 each mile per hour of excessive speed over twenty miles per
 30 hour over the limit.
 31 b. Excessive speed by a school bus is punishable as provided
 32 in subsection 10.
 33 c. Excessive speed in conjunction with a violation of
 34 section 321.278 is not a scheduled violation, whatever the
 35 amount of excess speed.

PAGE 19

- 1 d. For a violation under section 321.295, the scheduled fine
 2 is ~~fifty seventy~~ dollars.
 3 6. *Operating violations.* For operating violations under the
 4 following sections, the scheduled fine is as follows:
 5 a. Section 321.236, subsections 3, 4, 9,
 6 and 12 ~~\$20~~ \$30.
 7 b. Section 321.275, subsections 1
 8 through 7 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 9 c. Section 321.277A ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 10 d. Section 321.288 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 11 e. Section 321.297 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 12 f. Section 321.299 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 13 g. Section 321.302 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 14 h. Section 321.303 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 15 i. Section 321.304, subsections 1
 16 and 2 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 17 j. Section 321.305 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 18 k. Section 321.306 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 19 l. Section 321.311 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 20 m. Section 321.312 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 21 n. Section 321.314 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 22 o. Section 321.315 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 23 p. Section 321.316 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 24 q. Section 321.318 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 25 r. Section 321.323 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 26 Os. Section 321.324A \$135.

- 27 s. Section 321.340~~\$100~~ \$135.
 28 t. Section 321.353~~\$100~~ \$135.
 29 u. Section 321.354~~\$100~~ \$135.
 30 v. Section 321.363~~\$35~~ \$50.
 31 w. Section 321.365~~\$35~~ \$50.
 32 x. Section 321.366~~\$100~~ \$135.
 33 y. Section 321.395~~\$100~~ \$135.
 34 7. *Failure to yield or obey violations*. For failure to yield
 35 or obey violations under the following sections, the scheduled

PAGE 20

- 1 fine is as follows:
 2 a. Section 321.257, subsection 2, for a violation by an
 3 operator of a motor vehicle~~\$100~~ \$135.
 4 b. Section 321.298~~\$100~~ \$135.
 5 c. Section 321.307~~\$100~~ \$135.
 6 d. Section 321.313~~\$100~~ \$135.
 7 e. Section 321.319~~\$100~~ \$135.
 8 f. Section 321.320~~\$100~~ \$135.
 9 g. Section 321.321~~\$100~~ \$135.
 10 h. Section 321.327~~\$100~~ \$135.
 11 i. Section 321.329~~\$100~~ \$135.
 12 j. Section 321.333~~\$100~~ \$135.
 13 8. *Traffic sign or signal violations*. For traffic sign or
 14 signal violations under the following sections, the scheduled
 15 fine is as follows:
 16 a. Section 321.236, subsections 2 and 6~~\$35~~ \$50.
 17 b. Section 321.256~~\$100~~ \$135.
 18 c. Section 321.260, subsection 2~~\$455~~.
 19 ~~e.~~ d. Section 321.294~~\$100~~ \$135.
 20 ~~d.~~ e. Section 321.304, subsection 3~~\$100~~ \$135.
 21 ~~e.~~ f. Section 321.322~~\$100~~ \$135.
 22 9. *Bicycle or pedestrian violations*. For bicycle or
 23 pedestrian violations under the following sections, the
 24 scheduled fine for a pedestrian or bicyclist is as follows:
 25 a. Section 321.234, subsections 3 and 4~~\$25~~ \$35.
 26 b. Section 321.236, subsection 10~~\$15~~ \$25.
 27 c. Section 321.257, subsection 2~~\$25~~ \$35.
 28 d. Section 321.275, subsection 8~~\$25~~ \$35.
 29 e. Section 321.325~~\$25~~ \$35.
 30 f. Section 321.326~~\$25~~ \$35.
 31 g. Section 321.328~~\$25~~ \$35.
 32 h. Section 321.331~~\$25~~ \$35.
 33 i. Section 321.332~~\$25~~ \$35.
 34 j. Section 321.397~~\$25~~ \$35.
 35 k. Section 321.434~~\$25~~ \$35.

PAGE 21

- 1 9A. *Electric personal assistive mobility device*
 2 *violations*. For violations under section 321.235A, the

- 3 scheduled fine is ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars.
- 4 10. *School bus violations.* For violations by an operator of
- 5 a school bus under sections 321.285 and 321.372, subsections 1
- 6 and 2, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 7 However, an excessive speed violation by a school bus of
- 8 more than ten miles per hour in excess of the limit is not a
- 9 scheduled violation.
- 10 11. *a. Emergency vehicle and equipment-related*
- 11 *violations.* For violations relating to authorized emergency
- 12 vehicles, fire apparatus and equipment, and police bicycles
- 13 under the following sections, the scheduled fine is as follows:
- 14 (1) Section 321.231~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 15 (2) Section 321.323A, subsection 1~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 16 (3) Section 321.324~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 17 (4) Section 321.367~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 18 (5) Section 321.368~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 19 *b. Violations relating to stationary nonemergency vehicles.*
- 20 For violations relating to the approach of certain stationary
- 21 nonemergency vehicles under section 321.323A, subsections 2 and
- 22 3, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 23 12. *Restrictions on vehicles.*
- 24 *a.* For violations under sections 321.309, 321.310, 321.394,
- 25 321.461, and 321.462, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty-five~~ fifty
- 26 dollars.
- 27 *b.* For violations under section 321.437, the scheduled fine
- 28 is ~~thirty-five~~ fifty dollars.
- 29 *c.* For height, length, width, and load violations under
- 30 sections 321.454, 321.455, 321.456, 321.457, and 321.458, the
- 31 scheduled fine is two hundred sixty dollars.
- 32 *d.* For violations under section 321.466, the scheduled fine
- 33 is ~~twenty~~ twenty-five dollars for each two thousand pounds or
- 34 fraction thereof of overweight.
- 35 *e.* (1) Violations of the schedule of axle and tandem axle

PAGE 22

- 1 and gross or group of axle weight violations in section 321.463
- 2 shall be scheduled violations subject to the provisions,
- 3 procedures, and exceptions contained in sections 805.6 through
- 4 805.11, irrespective of the amount of the fine under that
- 5 schedule.
- 6 (a) Violations of the schedule of weight violations shall be
- 7 chargeable, where the fine charged does not exceed one thousand
- 8 dollars, only by uniform citation and complaint.
- 9 (b) Violations of the schedule of weight violations, where
- 10 the fine charged exceeds one thousand dollars shall, when the
- 11 violation is admitted and section 805.9 applies, be chargeable
- 12 upon uniform citation and complaint, indictment, or county
- 13 attorney's information, but otherwise shall be chargeable only
- 14 upon indictment or county attorney's information.
- 15 (2) In all cases of charges under the schedule of weight
- 16 violations, the charge shall specify the amount of fine charged

17 under the schedule. Where a defendant is convicted and the
 18 fine under the foregoing schedule of weight violations exceeds
 19 one thousand dollars, the conviction shall be of an indictable
 20 offense although section 805.9 is employed and whether the
 21 violation is charged upon uniform citation and complaint,
 22 indictment, or county attorney's information.

23 *f.* For a violation under section 321E.16, other than the
 24 provisions relating to weight, the scheduled fine is two
 25 hundred sixty dollars.

26 13. *Motor carrier and other operator violations.*

27 *a.* (1) For a violation under section 321.54, the scheduled
 28 fine is ~~thirty~~ forty-five dollars.

29 (2) For violations under sections 326.22 and 326.23, the
 30 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

31 *b.* For a violation under section 321.449, 321.449A, or
 32 321.449B, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

33 *c.* For violations under sections 321.364, 321.450, 321.460,
 34 and 452A.52, the scheduled fine is two hundred sixty dollars.

35 *d.* For violations of section 325A.3, subsection 6, or

PAGE 23

1 section 325A.8, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 2 dollars.

3 *e.* For violations of chapter 325A, other than a violation of
 4 section 325A.3, subsection 6, or section 325A.8, the scheduled
 5 fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.

6 *f.* For violations of section 327B.1, subsection 1 or 3, the
 7 scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.

8 14. *Miscellaneous violations.*

9 *a. Failure to obey a peace officer.* For a violation under
 10 section 321.229, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 11 dollars.

12 *b. Abandoning a motor vehicle.* For a violation under
 13 section 321.91, the scheduled fine is two hundred sixty
 14 dollars.

15 *c. Seat belt or restraint violations.*

16 (1) For a violation under section 321.445, the scheduled
 17 fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

18 (2) For a violation under section 321.446, the scheduled
 19 fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.

20 *d. Litter and debris violations.* For violations under
 21 sections 321.369 and 321.370, the scheduled fine is ~~seventy~~
 22 ninety dollars.

23 *e. Open container violations.* For violations under sections
 24 321.284 and 321.284A, the scheduled fine is two hundred sixty
 25 dollars.

26 *f. Proof of financial responsibility.* If, in connection
 27 with a motor vehicle accident, a person is charged and found
 28 guilty of a violation of section 321.20B, subsection 1,
 29 the scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred forty-five dollars;
 30 otherwise, the scheduled fine for a violation of section

31 321.20B, subsection 1, is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five
 32 dollars. Notwithstanding section 805.12, fines collected
 33 pursuant to this paragraph shall be submitted to the state
 34 court administrator and distributed fifty percent to the victim
 35 compensation fund established in section 915.94, twenty-five

PAGE 24

1 percent to the county in which such fine is imposed, and
 2 twenty-five percent to the general fund of the state.
 3 *g. Speed detection jamming devices.* For a violation under
 4 section 321.232, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 5 dollars.
 6 *h. Railroad crossing violations.* For violations under
 7 sections 321.341, 321.342, 321.343, and 321.344, and 321.344B,
 8 the scheduled fine is two hundred sixty dollars.
 9 *i. Road work zone violations.* The scheduled fine for any
 10 moving traffic violation under chapter 321, as provided in
 11 this section, shall be doubled if the violation occurs within
 12 any road work zone, as defined in section 321.1. However,
 13 notwithstanding subsection 5, the scheduled fine for violating
 14 the speed limit in a road work zone is as follows:
 15 (1) One hundred ~~fifty~~ ninety-five dollars for speed not more
 16 than ten miles per hour over the posted speed limit.
 17 (2) Three hundred ninety dollars for speed greater than ten
 18 but not more than twenty miles per hour over the posted speed
 19 limit.
 20 (3) ~~Five~~ Six hundred forty-five dollars for speed greater
 21 than twenty but not more than twenty-five miles per hour over
 22 the posted speed limit.
 23 (4) One thousand two hundred eighty-five dollars for speed
 24 greater than twenty-five miles per hour over the posted speed
 25 limit.
 26 *j. Vehicle component parts records violations.* For
 27 violations under section 321.95, the scheduled fine is fifty
 28 seventy dollars.
 29 *k. Actions against a person on a bicycle.* For violations
 30 under section 321.281, the scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred
 31 fifty twenty-five dollars.
 32 *l. Writing, sending, or viewing an electronic message while*
 33 *driving violations.* For violations under section 321.276, the
 34 scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~ forty-five dollars.
 35 *m. Leaving scene of traffic accident.* For violations under

PAGE 25

1 section 321.262, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 2 dollars.
 3 *n. Striking unattended vehicle.* For violations under
 4 section 321.264, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 5 dollars.
 6 *o. Striking fixtures upon highway.* For violations under

7 section 321.265, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
8 dollars.
9 *p. Clearing up wrecks. For violations under section*
10 *321.371, the scheduled fine is thirty-five dollars.*
11 Sec. 41. Section 805.8B, Code 2020, is amended to read as
12 follows:
13 **805.8B Navigation, recreation, hunting, and fishing scheduled**
14 **violations.**
15 1. *Navigation violations.*
16 a. For violations of registration, inspections,
17 identification, and record provisions under sections 462A.5,
18 462A.35, and 462A.37, and for unused or improper or defective
19 lights and warning devices under section 462A.9, subsections 3,
20 4, 5, 9, and 10, the scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.
21 b. For violations of registration, identification, and
22 record provisions under sections 462A.4 and 462A.10, and for
23 unused or improper or defective equipment under section 462A.9,
24 subsections 2, 6, 7, 8, 13, and 14, and section 462A.11, and
25 for operation violations under sections 462A.26, 462A.31, and
26 462A.33, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
27 c. For operating violations under sections 462A.12, 462A.15,
28 subsection 1, sections 462A.24, and 462A.34, the scheduled fine
29 is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars. However, a violation of
30 section 462A.12, subsection 2, is not a scheduled violation.
31 d. For violations of use, location, and storage of vessels,
32 devices, and structures under sections 462A.27, 462A.28, and
33 462A.32, the scheduled fine is ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars.
34 e. For violations of all subdivision ordinances under
35 section 462A.17, subsection 2, except those relating to

PAGE 26

1 matters subject to regulation by authority of section 462A.31,
2 subsection 5, the scheduled fine is the same as prescribed for
3 similar violations of state law. For violations of subdivision
4 ordinances for which there is no comparable state law, the
5 scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.
6 2. *Snowmobile violations.*
7 a. For registration or user permit violations under section
8 321G.3, subsection 1, or section 321G.4B, the scheduled fine is
9 ~~fifty~~ sixty-five dollars.
10 b. (1) For operating violations under section 321G.9, the
11 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
12 (2) For operating violations under sections 321G.11 and
13 321G.13, subsection 1, paragraph "d", the scheduled fine is
14 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
15 (3) For operating violations under section 321G.13,
16 subsection 1, paragraphs "a", "b", "e", "f", "g", "h", and "i",
17 and section 321G.13, subsections 2 and 3, the scheduled fine is
18 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
19 c. For improper or defective equipment under section
20 321G.12, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.

- 21 *d.* For violations of section 321G.19, the scheduled fine is
 22 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 23 *e.* For decal violations under section 321G.5, the scheduled
 24 fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 25 *f.* For stop signal violations under section 321G.17, the
 26 scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 27 *g.* For violations of section 321G.20 and for education
 28 certificate violations under section 321G.24, subsection 1, the
 29 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 30 *h.* For violations of section 321G.21, the scheduled fine is
 31 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 32 2A. *All-terrain vehicle violations.*
- 33 *a.* For registration or user permit violations under section
 34 321I.3, subsection 1, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy
 35 dollars.

PAGE 27

- 1 *b.* (1) For operating violations under sections 321I.12 and
 2 321I.14, subsection 1, paragraph “*d*”, the scheduled fine is
 3 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 4 (2) For operating violations under section 321I.10,
 5 subsections 1 and 4, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy
 6 dollars.
- 7 (3) For operating violations under section 321I.14,
 8 subsection 1, paragraphs “*a*”, “*e*”, “*f*”, “*g*”, and “*h*”, and
 9 section 321I.14, subsections 2, 3, 4, and 5, the scheduled fine
 10 is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 11 *c.* For improper or defective equipment under section
 12 321I.13, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 13 *d.* For violations of section 321I.20, the scheduled fine is
 14 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 15 *e.* For decal violations under section 321I.6, the scheduled
 16 fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 17 *f.* For stop signal violations under section 321I.18, the
 18 scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 19 *g.* For violations of section 321I.21 and for education
 20 certificate violations under section 321I.26, subsection 1, the
 21 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 22 *h.* For violations of section 321I.22, the scheduled fine is
 23 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 24 3. *Hunting and fishing violations.*
- 25 *a.* For violations of section 484A.2, the scheduled fine is
 26 ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.
- 27 *b.* For violations of sections 481A.54, 481A.69, 481A.71,
 28 481A.72, 482.6, 483A.3, 483A.6, 483A.8A, 483A.19, 483A.27, and
 29 483A.27A, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 30 *c.* For violations of sections 481A.6, 481A.21, 481A.22,
 31 481A.26, 481A.50, 481A.56, 481A.60 through 481A.62, 481A.83,
 32 481A.84, 481A.92, 481A.123, 481A.145, subsection 3, sections
 33 483A.6A, 483A.7, 483A.8, 483A.23, 483A.24, and 483A.28, the
 34 scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.

35 *d.* For violations of sections 481A.7, 481A.24, 481A.47,

PAGE 28

1 481A.52, 481A.53, 481A.55, 481A.58, 481A.76, 481A.90, 481A.91,
2 481A.97, 481A.122, 481A.126, 481A.142, 481A.145, subsection
3 2, sections 482.5, 482.7, 482.8, 482.10, and 483A.37, the
4 scheduled fine is ~~forty~~ fifty seventy dollars.
5 *e.* For violations of sections 481A.57, 481A.85, 481A.93,
6 481A.95, 481A.120, 481A.137, 481B.5, 482.3, 482.9, 482.15, and
7 483A.42, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
8 *f.* For violations of section 481A.38 relating to the taking,
9 pursuing, killing, trapping or ensnaring, buying, selling,
10 possessing, or transporting any game, protected nongame
11 animals, fur-bearing animals, or fur or skin of the animals,
12 mussels, frogs, or fish or part of them, the scheduled fines
13 are as follows:
14 (1) For deer or turkey, the scheduled fine is one hundred
15 thirty-five dollars.
16 (2) For protected nongame, the scheduled fine is one hundred
17 thirty-five dollars.
18 (3) For mussels, frogs, spawn, or fish, the scheduled fine
19 is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
20 (4) For other game, the scheduled fine is fifty seventy
21 dollars.
22 (5) For fur-bearing animals, the scheduled fine is
23 ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred dollars.
24 *g.* For violations of section 481A.38 relating to an attempt
25 to take, pursue, kill, trap, buy, sell, possess, or transport
26 any game, protected nongame animals, fur-bearing animals, or
27 fur or skin of the animals, mussels, frogs, or fish or part of
28 them, the scheduled fines are as follows:
29 (1) For game or fur-bearing animals, the scheduled fine is
30 ~~forty~~ fifty seventy dollars.
31 (2) For protected nongame, the scheduled fine is fifty
32 seventy dollars.
33 (3) For mussels, frogs, spawn, or fish, the scheduled fine
34 is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.
35 *h.* For violations of section 481A.48 relating to

PAGE 29

1 restrictions on game birds and animals, the scheduled fines are
2 as follows:
3 (1) For out-of-season, the scheduled fine is one hundred
4 thirty-five dollars.
5 (2) For over limit, the scheduled fine is one hundred
6 thirty-five dollars.
7 (3) For attempt to take, the scheduled fine is fifty seventy
8 dollars.
9 (4) For general waterfowl restrictions, the scheduled fine
10 is fifty seventy dollars.

- 11 (a) For no federal stamp, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
 12 seventy dollars.
- 13 (b) For unplugged shotgun, the scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty
 14 dollars.
- 15 (c) For possession of other than steel shot, the scheduled
 16 fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 17 (d) For early or late shooting, the scheduled fine is
 18 ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 19 (5) For possession of a prohibited pistol or revolver while
 20 hunting deer, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 21 dollars.
- 22 (6) For possession of a prohibited rifle while hunting
 23 deer, the scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five
 24 dollars.
- 25 *i.* For violations of section 481A.67 relating to general
 26 violations of fishing laws, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~
 27 thirty-five dollars.
- 28 (1) For over limit catch, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
 29 forty-five dollars.
- 30 (2) For under minimum length or weight, the scheduled fine
 31 is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 32 (3) For out-of-season fishing, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
 33 seventy dollars.
- 34 *j.* For violations of section 481A.73 relating to trotlines
 35 and throwlines:

PAGE 30

- 1 (1) For trotline or throwline violations in legal waters,
 2 the scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 3 (2) For trotline or throwline violations in illegal waters,
 4 the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 5 *k.* For violations of section 481A.144, subsection 4, or
 6 section 481A.145, subsections 4, 5, and 6, relating to minnows:
- 7 (1) For general minnow violations, the scheduled fine is
 8 ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 9 (2) For commercial purposes, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
 10 seventy dollars.
- 11 *l.* For violations of section 481A.87 relating to the taking
 12 or possessing of fur-bearing animals out of season:
- 13 (1) For red fox, gray fox, or mink, the scheduled fine is
 14 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 15 (2) For all other furbearers, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
 16 seventy dollars.
- 17 *m.* For violations of section 482.4 relating to gear tags:
- 18 (1) For commercial license violations, the scheduled fine
 19 is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 20 (2) For no gear tags, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~
 21 thirty-five dollars.
- 22 *n.* For violations of section 482.11, the scheduled fine is
 23 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 24 *o.* For violations of rules adopted pursuant to section

25 483A.1 relating to licenses and permits, the scheduled fines
26 are as follows:
27 (1) For a license or permit costing ten dollars or less, the
28 scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
29 (2) For a license or permit costing more than ten dollars
30 but not more than twenty dollars, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
31 forty-five dollars.
32 (3) For a license or permit costing more than twenty dollars
33 but not more than forty dollars, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
34 seventy dollars.
35 (4) For a license or permit costing more than forty dollars

PAGE 31

1 but not more than fifty dollars, the scheduled fine is ~~seventy~~
2 ninety-five dollars.
3 (5) For a license or permit costing more than fifty dollars
4 but less than one hundred dollars, the scheduled fine is one
5 hundred thirty-five dollars.
6 (6) For a license or permit costing one hundred dollars or
7 more, the scheduled fine is two times the cost of the original
8 license or permit.
9 *p.* For violations of section 483A.26 relating to false
10 claims for licenses:
11 (1) For making a false claim for a license by a resident,
12 the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
13 (2) For making a false claim for a license by a nonresident,
14 the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
15 *q.* For violations of section 483A.36 relating to the
16 conveyance of guns:
17 (1) For conveying an assembled, unloaded gun, the scheduled
18 fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
19 (2) For conveying a loaded gun, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
20 seventy dollars.
21 4. *Ginseng violations.* For a violation of section 456A.24,
22 subsection 11, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
23 dollars.
24 5. *Aquatic invasive species violations.* For violations
25 of section 456A.37, subsection 3, the scheduled fine is as
26 follows:
27 *a.* For violations of section 456A.37, subsection 3,
28 paragraph "a", the scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred forty-five
29 dollars.
30 *b.* For violations of section 456A.37, subsection 3,
31 paragraph "b", the scheduled fine is ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred
32 dollars.
33 *c.* For repeat violations of section 456A.37, subsection 3,
34 paragraph "a" or "b", within the same twelve-month period, the
35 scheduled fine shall include an additional fine of ~~five~~ six

PAGE 32

- 1 hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars for each violation.
- 2 6. *Misuse of parks and preserves.*
- 3 a. For violations under sections 461A.39, 461A.45, and
- 4 461A.50, the scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.
- 5 b. For violations under sections 461A.40, 461A.46, and
- 6 461A.49, the scheduled fine is ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars.
- 7 c. For violations of sections 461A.35, 461A.42, and 461A.44,
- 8 the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 9 d. For violations of section 461A.48, the scheduled fine is
- 10 ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 11 e. For violations under section 461A.43, the scheduled fine
- 12 is ~~thirty~~ forty-five dollars.
- 13 Sec. 42. Section 805.8C, Code 2020, is amended to read as
- 14 follows:
- 15 **805.8C Miscellaneous scheduled violations.**
- 16 1. *Energy emergency violations.* For violations of an
- 17 executive order issued by the governor under the provisions of
- 18 section 473.8, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 19 2. *Alcoholic beverage violations.* For violations of section
- 20 123.49, subsection 2, paragraph "h", the scheduled fine for
- 21 a licensee or permittee is one thousand ~~five~~ nine hundred
- 22 twenty-five dollars, and the scheduled fine for a person who
- 23 is employed by a licensee or permittee is ~~five~~ six hundred
- 24 forty-five dollars.
- 25 3. *Violations related to smoking, tobacco, tobacco products,*
- 26 *alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes.*
- 27 a. For violations described in section 142D.9, subsection 1,
- 28 the scheduled fine is fifty dollars, and is a civil penalty,
- 29 and the ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge under section
- 30 911.1 shall not be added to the penalty, and the court costs
- 31 pursuant to section 805.9, subsection 6, shall not be imposed.
- 32 If the civil penalty assessed for a violation described in
- 33 section 142D.9, subsection 1, is not paid in a timely manner,
- 34 a citation shall be issued for the violation in the manner
- 35 provided in section 804.1. However, a person under age

PAGE 33

- 1 eighteen shall not be detained in a secure facility for failure
- 2 to pay the civil penalty. The complainant shall not be charged
- 3 a filing fee.
- 4 b. For violations of section 453A.2, subsection 1, by an
- 5 employee of a retailer, the scheduled fine is as follows:
- 6 (1) If the violation is a first offense, the scheduled fine
- 7 is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 8 (2) If the violation is a second offense, the scheduled fine
- 9 is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.
- 10 (3) If the violation is a third or subsequent offense, the
- 11 scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred forty-five dollars.
- 12 c. For violations of section 453A.2, subsection 2, the

13 scheduled fine is as follows and is a civil penalty, and the
 14 ~~criminal penalty crime services~~ surcharge under section 911.1
 15 shall not be added to the penalty, and the court costs pursuant
 16 to section 805.9, subsection 6, shall not be imposed:
 17 (1) If the violation is a first offense, the scheduled fine
 18 is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
 19 (2) If the violation is a second offense, the scheduled fine
 20 is one hundred ~~thirty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
 21 (3) If the violation is a third or subsequent offense, the
 22 scheduled fine is ~~two three~~ hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.
 23 4. *Electrical or mechanical amusement device violations.*
 24 a. For violations of legal age for operating an electrical
 25 or mechanical amusement device required to be registered
 26 as provided in section 99B.53, pursuant to section 99B.57,
 27 subsection 1, the scheduled fine is ~~two three~~ hundred ~~fifty~~
 28 twenty-five dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a person
 29 under the age of eighteen shall not result in the person being
 30 detained in a secure facility.
 31 b. For first offense violations concerning electrical or
 32 mechanical amusement devices as provided in section 99B.54,
 33 subsection 2, the scheduled fine is ~~two three~~ hundred ~~fifty~~
 34 twenty-five dollars.
 35 5. *Gambling violations.*

PAGE 34

1 a. For violations of legal age for gambling wagering under
 2 section 99D.11, subsection 7, section 99F.9, subsection 5,
 3 and section 725.19, subsection 1, the scheduled fine is ~~five~~
 4 six hundred ~~forty-five~~ forty-five dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a
 5 person under the age of eighteen shall not result in the person
 6 being detained in a secure facility.
 7 b. For legal age violations for entering or attempting
 8 to enter a facility under section 99F.9, subsection 6, the
 9 scheduled fine is ~~five six~~ hundred ~~forty-five~~ forty-five dollars. Failure
 10 to pay the fine by a person under the age of eighteen shall not
 11 result in the person being detained in a secure facility.
 12 6. *Pseudoephedrine sales violations.* For violations of
 13 section 126.23A, subsection 1, by an employee of a retailer, or
 14 for violations of section 126.23A, subsection 2, paragraph "a",
 15 by a purchaser, the scheduled fine is as follows:
 16 a. If the violation is a first offense, the scheduled fine
 17 is two hundred ~~sixty~~ sixty dollars.
 18 b. If the violation is a second offense, the scheduled fine
 19 is ~~two three~~ hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.
 20 c. If the violation is a third or subsequent offense, the
 21 scheduled fine is ~~five six~~ hundred ~~forty-five~~ forty-five dollars.
 22 7. *Alcoholic beverage violations by persons eighteen,*
 23 *nineteen, or twenty years of age.* For first offense violations
 24 of section 123.47, subsection 4, the scheduled fine is two
 25 hundred ~~sixty~~ sixty dollars.
 26 8. *Unlicensed premises owner — under eighteen years of age*

27 *consumption or possession.* For first offense violations of
 28 section 123.47, subsection 2, the scheduled fine is two hundred
 29 sixty dollars.
 30 9. *Notification violations.* For violations of section
 31 229.22, subsection 6, the scheduled fine is one thousand
 32 dollars for a first violation and two thousand dollars for a
 33 second or subsequent violation. The scheduled fine under this
 34 subsection is a civil penalty, and the ~~criminal penalty~~ crime
 35 services surcharge under section 911.1 shall not be added to

PAGE 35

1 the penalty.
 2 10. *Scrap metal transaction violations.* For violations
 3 of section 714.27, the scheduled fine is one hundred dollars
 4 for a first violation, five hundred dollars for a second
 5 violation within two years, and one thousand dollars for a
 6 third or subsequent violation within two years. The scheduled
 7 fine under this subsection is a civil penalty which shall
 8 be deposited into the general fund of the county or city if
 9 imposed by a designated officer or employee of a county or
 10 city, or deposited in the general fund of the state if imposed
 11 by a state agency, and the ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services
 12 surcharge under section 911.1 shall not be added to the
 13 penalty.
 14 11. *Trespassing violations.* For trespasses punishable under
 15 section 716.8, subsection 1 or 5, the scheduled fine is two
 16 hundred sixty dollars for a first violation, ~~five~~ six hundred
 17 forty-five dollars for a second violation, and one thousand
 18 two hundred eighty-five dollars for a third or subsequent
 19 violation.
 20 12. *Internet fantasy sports contest violations.* For
 21 violations of legal age for entering an internet fantasy sports
 22 contest under section 99E.7, the scheduled fine is five hundred
 23 dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a person under the age
 24 of eighteen shall not result in the person being detained in
 25 a secure facility.

DIVISION V

MISDEMEANOR AND FELONY FINES

26
 27 Sec. 43. Section 902.9, subsection 1, paragraphs d and e,
 28 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 29 d. A class "C" felon, not an habitual offender, shall be
 30 confined for no more than ten years, and in addition shall be
 31 sentenced to a fine of at least one thousand three hundred
 32 seventy dollars but not more than ~~ten~~ thirteen thousand six
 33 hundred sixty dollars.
 34 e. A class "D" felon, not an habitual offender, shall be
 35

PAGE 36

1 confined for no more than five years, and in addition shall
 2 be sentenced to a fine of at least ~~seven hundred fifty~~ one

3 ~~thousand twenty-five~~ dollars but not more than ~~seven ten~~
4 ~~thousand five two hundred forty-five~~ dollars.

5 Sec. 44. Section 903.1, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020, are
6 amended to read as follows:

7 1. If a person ~~eighteen~~ years of age or older is convicted
8 of a simple or serious misdemeanor and a specific penalty is
9 not provided for or if a person under ~~eighteen~~ years of age
10 has been waived to adult court pursuant to section 232.45 on
11 a felony charge and is subsequently convicted of a simple,
12 serious, or aggravated misdemeanor, the court shall determine
13 the sentence, and shall fix the period of confinement or the
14 amount of fine, which fine shall not be suspended by the court,
15 within the following limits:

16 a. For a simple misdemeanor, there shall be a fine of at
17 least ~~sixty-five one hundred five~~ dollars but not to exceed ~~six~~
18 ~~eight hundred twenty-five fifty-five~~ dollars. The court may
19 order imprisonment not to exceed thirty days in lieu of a fine
20 or in addition to a fine.

21 b. For a serious misdemeanor, there shall be a fine of at
22 least ~~three four hundred fifteen thirty~~ dollars but not to
23 exceed ~~one two thousand eight five hundred seventy-five sixty~~
24 dollars. In addition, the court may also order imprisonment
25 not to exceed one year.

26 2. When a person is convicted of an aggravated misdemeanor,
27 and a specific penalty is not provided for, the maximum penalty
28 shall be imprisonment not to exceed two years. There shall be
29 a fine of at least ~~six eight hundred twenty-five fifty-five~~
30 dollars but not to exceed ~~six eight~~ thousand ~~two five~~ hundred
31 ~~fifty forty~~ dollars. When a judgment of conviction of an
32 aggravated misdemeanor is entered against any person and the
33 court imposes a sentence of confinement for a period of more
34 than one year the term shall be an indeterminate term.

35

DIVISION VI

PAGE 37

1 CRIMINALISTICS LABORATORY FUND

2 Sec. 45. Section 691.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
3 follows:

4 **691.9 Criminalistics laboratory fund.**

5 A criminalistics laboratory fund is created as a separate
6 fund in the state treasury under the control of the department
7 of public safety. The fund shall consist of appropriations
8 made to the fund and transfers of interest, moneys collected
9 from the crime services surcharge established in section 911.1,
10 and earnings. All moneys in the fund are appropriated to
11 the department of public safety for use by the department in
12 criminalistics laboratory equipment and supply purchasing,
13 maintenance, depreciation, ~~and training, and payments of the~~
14 fees charged by the department of administrative services for
15 the criminalistics laboratory facility in Ankeny. Any balance
16 in the fund on June 30 of any fiscal year shall not revert to

17 any other fund of the state but shall remain available for the
18 purposes described in this section.

19 DIVISION VII

20 DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION FUND

21 Sec. 46. NEW SECTION. **80E.4 Drug abuse resistance education**
22 **fund.**

23 A drug abuse resistance education fund is created as a
24 separate fund in the state treasury under the control of the
25 governor's office of drug control policy for use by the drug
26 abuse resistance education program and other programs with a
27 similar purpose. The fund shall consist of appropriations made
28 to the fund and transfers of interest, moneys collected from
29 the crime services surcharge established in section 911.1,
30 and earnings. All moneys in the fund are appropriated to the
31 governor's office of drug control policy. Notwithstanding
32 section 8.33, any balance in the fund on June 30 of any fiscal
33 year shall not revert to any other fund of the state but shall
34 remain available for the purposes described in this section.

35 DIVISION VIII

PAGE 38

1 FUNDING FOR JUVENILE DETENTION HOME FUND

2 Sec. 47. Section 232.142, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
3 amended to read as follows:

4 6. A juvenile detention home fund is created in the state
5 treasury under the authority of the department. The fund shall
6 consist of moneys deposited in the fund pursuant to ~~sections~~
7 ~~321.218A and 321A.32A~~ section 602.8108. The moneys in the fund
8 shall be used for the costs of the establishment, improvement,
9 operation, and maintenance of county or multicounty juvenile
10 detention homes in accordance with annual appropriations made
11 by the general assembly from the fund for these purposes.

12 Sec. 48. Section 321.210B, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
13 amended to read as follows:

14 7. *a.* A civil penalty assessed pursuant to section
15 ~~321.218A, 321A.32A, or 321J.17~~ shall be added to the amount
16 owing under the installment agreement.

17 *b.* ~~The clerk of the district court shall transmit to the~~
18 ~~department, from the first moneys collected, an amount equal to~~
19 ~~the amount of any civil penalty assessed pursuant to section~~
20 ~~321.218A or 321A.32A and added to the installment agreement.~~
21 ~~The department shall transmit the money received from the~~
22 ~~clerk of the district court pursuant to this paragraph to the~~
23 ~~treasurer of state for deposit in the juvenile detention home~~
24 ~~fund created in section 232.142.~~

25 *e.* *b.* The clerk of the district court shall transmit to the
26 department, from the first moneys collected, an amount equal to
27 the amount of any civil penalty assessed pursuant to section
28 321J.17 and added to the installment agreement. The department
29 shall transmit the money received from the clerk of the
30 district court pursuant to this paragraph to the treasurer of

31 state who shall deposit one-half of the money in the separate
 32 fund established in section 915.94 and one-half of the money in
 33 the general fund of the state.
 34 Sec. 49. Section 321M.9, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 35 to read as follows:

PAGE 39

1 1. *Fees to counties.* Notwithstanding any other provision
 2 in the Code to the contrary, the county treasurer of a county
 3 authorized to issue driver's licenses under this chapter shall
 4 retain for deposit in the county general fund seven dollars of
 5 fees received for each issuance or renewal of driver's licenses
 6 and nonoperator's identification cards, but shall not retain
 7 any moneys for the issuance of any persons with disabilities
 8 identification devices. The five dollar processing fee charged
 9 by a county treasurer for collection of a civil penalty under
 10 section ~~321.218A, 321A.32A, or~~ 321J.17 shall be retained for
 11 deposit in the county general fund. The county treasurer
 12 shall remit the balance of fees and all civil penalties to the
 13 department.

14 Sec. 50. Section 331.557A, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 15 amended to read as follows:

16 4. Accept payment of the civil ~~penalties~~ penalty assessed
 17 pursuant to ~~sections 321.218A, 321A.32A, and section 321J.17~~
 18 and remit the ~~penalties~~ penalty to the state department of
 19 transportation.

20 Sec. 51. REPEAL. Sections 321.218A and 321.32A, Code 2020,
 21 are repealed.>

22 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 23 <An Act relating to the criminal and juvenile justice system
 24 by modifying criminal penalties, surcharges, fines, fees, and
 25 costs, creating and modifying funds, making appropriations and
 26 allocating revenues, and modifying installment agreements.>

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

H-8149

1 Amend House File 2549 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 15 by inserting:

3 <3. A peace officer exercising the option to participate
 4 in the group health insurance plan as provided by this section
 5 shall be required to pay the state police officers council
 6 labor union an amount to cover the costs incurred by the
 7 employee organization for negotiating the collective bargaining
 8 agreement that provides the group health insurance plan.>

9 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8150

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8141, to House File 2554 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 5, by striking <sex> and inserting <sexual>
 3 2. Page 1, line 9, by striking <sex> and inserting <sexual>
 4 3. Page 1, line 13, by striking <sex> and inserting <sexual>
 5 4. Page 1, line 18, by striking <sex> and inserting <sexual>
 6 5. Page 1, line 22, by striking <sex> and inserting <sexual>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8151

- 1 Amend House File 2551 as follows:
 2 1. Page 3, after line 3 by inserting:
 3 <g. The aggregate manufacturer-level direct and
 4 administrative costs related to marketing and advertising of
 5 the prescription drug for the immediately preceding calendar
 6 year.>
 7 2. Page 7, after line 3 by inserting:
 8 <_. "Interchangeable biological product" means the same as
 9 defined in section 155A.3.>
 10 3. Page 7, after line 10 by inserting:
 11 <_. "Specialty drug" means the same as defined in section
 12 510E.1.>
 13 4. Page 7, line 13, after <or> by inserting <need-based
 14 payments paid>
 15 5. Page 7, line 17, after <for> by inserting <a specialty
 16 drug or>
 17 6. Page 7, line 19, after <equivalent> by inserting <or an
 18 interchangeable biological product>
 19 7. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 20 <An Act relating to price transparency and cost-sharing for
 21 prescription drugs, and including applicability provisions.>
 22 8. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 23 references as necessary.

LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8152

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8141, to House File 2554 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 5, by striking <sex abuse> and inserting
 3 <sexual abuse of a child>
 4 2. Page 1, line 9, by striking <sex abuse> and inserting
 5 <sexual abuse of a child>
 6 3. Page 1, line 13, by striking <sex abuse> and inserting
 7 <sexual abuse of a child>
 8 4. Page 1, line 18, by striking <sex abuse> and inserting
 9 <sexual abuse of a child>
 10 5. Page 1, line 22, by striking <sex abuse> and inserting
 11 <sexual abuse of a child>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8153

- 1 Amend House File 2055 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 3, by striking <1.>
- 3 2. Page 1, by striking lines 12 and 13.

JONES of Clay

H-8154

- 1 Amend House File 2543 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, line 3, by striking <1.>
- 3 2. Page 1, by striking lines 14 and 15.

JONES of Clay

H-8155

- 1 Amend House File 2543 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
- 3 <Section 1. Section 321.445, subsection 2, paragraph a,
- 4 Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
- 5 *a.* The driver and ~~front seat occupants~~ passengers of a
- 6 type of motor vehicle that is subject to registration in Iowa,
- 7 except a motorcycle or a motorized bicycle, shall each wear a
- 8 properly adjusted and fastened safety belt or safety harness
- 9 any time the vehicle is in forward motion on a street or
- 10 highway in this state, except that a child under eighteen years
- 11 of age shall be secured as required under section 321.446.
- 12 Sec. _____. Section 321.445, subsection 2, paragraph b,
- 13 subparagraphs (1), (2), and (6), Code 2020, are amended to read
- 14 as follows:
- 15 (1) The driver ~~or front seat occupants~~ and passengers of a
- 16 motor vehicle which is not required to be equipped with safety
- 17 belts or safety harnesses.
- 18 (2) The driver and ~~front seat occupants~~ passengers of a
- 19 motor vehicle who are actively engaged in work which requires
- 20 them to alight from and reenter the vehicle at frequent
- 21 intervals, providing the vehicle does not exceed twenty-five
- 22 miles per hour between stops.
- 23 (6) ~~Front seat occupants~~ Passengers of an authorized
- 24 emergency vehicle while they are being transported in an
- 25 emergency. However, this exemption does not apply to the
- 26 driver of the authorized emergency vehicle.
- 27 Sec. _____. Section 321.445, subsections 3 and 5, Code 2020,
- 28 are amended to read as follows:
- 29 3. The driver and ~~front seat~~ passengers may be each charged
- 30 separately for improperly used or nonused equipment under
- 31 subsection 2. However, the driver shall not be charged for a
- 32 violation committed by a passenger who is fourteen years of
- 33 age or older unless the passenger is unable to properly fasten
- 34 a ~~seat~~ safety belt or safety harness due to a temporary or

35 permanent disability. The owner of the motor vehicle may be

PAGE 2

1 charged for equipment violations under subsection 1.
 2 5. The department shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A
 3 providing exceptions from application of subsections 1 and 2
 4 for ~~front~~ seats and ~~front seat~~ passengers of motor vehicles
 5 owned, leased, rented, or primarily used by persons with
 6 disabilities who use collapsible wheelchairs.
 7 Sec. ____ Section 321.446, subsection 3, paragraph d, Code
 8 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
 9 Sec. ____ Section 321.446, subsection 4, paragraphs b and c,
 10 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 11 b. If a passenger fourteen years of age or older is unable
 12 to properly fasten a ~~seatbelt~~ safety belt or safety harness
 13 due to a temporary or permanent disability, an operator who
 14 transports such a person in violation of subsection 2 may
 15 be charged with a violation of this section. Otherwise,
 16 a passenger fourteen years of age or older who violates
 17 subsection 2 shall be charged in lieu of the operator.
 18 c. If a child under fourteen years of age, or a child
 19 fourteen years of age or older who is unable to fasten a
 20 ~~seatbelt~~ safety belt or safety harness due to a temporary or
 21 permanent disability, is being transported in a taxicab or
 22 in a personal vehicle operated by a transportation network
 23 company driver, as defined in section 321N.1, in a manner
 24 that is not in compliance with subsection 1 or 2, the parent,
 25 legal guardian, or other responsible adult traveling with the
 26 child shall be served with a citation for a violation of this
 27 section in lieu of the taxicab operator or transportation
 28 network company driver. Otherwise, if a passenger being
 29 transported in the taxicab or in a personal vehicle operated by
 30 a transportation network company driver is fourteen years of
 31 age or older, the citation shall be served on the passenger in
 32 lieu of the taxicab operator or transportation network company
 33 driver.>
 34 2. Page 1, by striking lines 16 through 19 and inserting:
 35 <Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. The following applies to

PAGE 3

1 first-party automobile partial losses, and first-party
 2 automobile total losses, for automobiles that are subject to a
 3 partial loss or to a total loss occurring on or after July 1,
 4 2020:
 5 The section of this Act enacting section 507B.4D.>
 6 3. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
 7 <An Act relating to safety belts, safety harnesses, and child
 8 restraint systems in motor vehicles, including applicability

9 provisions and making penalties applicable.>
10 4. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque
KACENA of Woodbury

H-8156

1 Amend House File 2549 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 80.7 Peace officers — health
5 insurance.

6 1. *a.* (1) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary,
7 peace officers employed within the department that are not
8 covered under a collective bargaining agreement who were at
9 any time eligible to be enrolled in the group health insurance
10 plan that is negotiated under chapter 20 between the state
11 and the state police officers council labor union and who
12 elect to participate in a group health insurance plan provided
13 by the state, shall only be permitted, if not prohibited to
14 participate pursuant to paragraph “b”, to participate in the
15 group health insurance plan that is negotiated under chapter 20
16 between the state and the state police officers council labor
17 union for peace officers subject to the requirements of this
18 subsection. In addition, a peace officer who was covered under
19 a collective bargaining agreement and who becomes a manager
20 or supervisor and is no longer covered by the agreement shall
21 not lose group health insurance benefits as provided by the
22 agreement.

23 (2) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, a peace
24 officer who was not covered under a collective bargaining
25 agreement shall not be allowed to participate in the group
26 health insurance plan negotiated under chapter 20 between the
27 state and the state police officers council upon retirement.

28 *b.* By September 1, 2020, and by September 1 of each year
29 thereafter, the governing body of the state police officers
30 council shall have the right to offer or terminate the ability
31 to participate in the group health insurance plan provided
32 by this subsection for the subsequent calendar year and
33 shall provide written notice of the council’s decision to the
34 department by September 1. The Iowa state patrol supervisors
35 association shall have the opportunity to address the governing

PAGE 2

1 board of the state police officers council concerning the
2 decision of the governing board under this paragraph on or
3 after July 1 but before September 1 of each calendar year.
4 2. The department shall be authorized to retain any savings
5 to the department for peace officers participating in the group
6 health insurance plan pursuant to subsection 1 from moneys

7 appropriated to the department.

8 Sec. 2. NEW SECTION. 456A.13A Full-time officers — health
9 **insurance.**

10 1. *a.* (1) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary,
11 full-time officers as defined in section 456A.13 that are not
12 covered under a collective bargaining agreement who were at
13 any time eligible to be enrolled in the group health insurance
14 plan that is negotiated under chapter 20 between the state
15 and the state police officers council labor union and who
16 elect to participate in a group health insurance plan provided
17 by the state, shall only be permitted, if not prohibited to
18 participate pursuant to paragraph “b”, to participate in the
19 group health insurance plan that is negotiated under chapter
20 20 between the state and the state police officers council
21 labor union for full-time officers subject to the requirements
22 of this subsection. In addition, a full-time officer who
23 was covered under a collective bargaining agreement and who
24 becomes a manager or supervisor and is no longer covered by
25 the agreement shall not lose group health insurance benefits
26 as provided by the agreement.

27 (2) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, a
28 full-time officer who was not covered under a collective
29 bargaining agreement shall not be allowed to participate in
30 the group health insurance plan negotiated under chapter 20
31 between the state and the state police officers council upon
32 retirement.

33 *b.* By September 1, 2020, and by September 1 of each year
34 thereafter, the governing body of the state police officers
35 council shall have the right to offer or terminate the ability

PAGE 3

1 to participate in the group health insurance plan provided
2 by this subsection for the subsequent calendar year and
3 shall provide written notice of the council’s decision to the
4 department by September 1.

5 2. The department shall calculate the savings to the
6 department for full-time officers employed in the law
7 enforcement bureau of the department who are participating in
8 the group health insurance plan pursuant to subsection 1. The
9 department shall transfer to the state fish and game protection
10 fund created in section 456A.17 from moneys appropriated to the
11 department an amount equal to the savings calculated by the
12 department.

13 Sec. 3. GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN REPORTING — STATE
14 POLICE OFFICERS COUNCIL. Prior to July 1 of each calendar
15 year, the provider of the group health insurance plan
16 negotiated under chapter 20 between the state and the state
17 police officers council labor union shall submit a report
18 to the state police officers council and the departments of
19 public safety and natural resources necessary for purposes of
20 complying with the requirements of sections 80.7 and 456A.13A.

21 The report shall include usage statistics that separately
22 account for employees in the group health insurance plan
23 covered by a collective bargaining agreement negotiated by the
24 state police officers council and those employees that are
25 not covered by a collective bargaining agreement and shall
26 include any information that led to any premium rate increase
27 or decrease for the following calendar year.>

28 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting <An
29 Act relating to health insurance by certain peace officers of
30 the departments of public safety and natural resources, and
31 making appropriations.>

THORUP of Marion

H-8157

1 Amend House File 2549 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 80.7 Peace officers — health
5 **insurance.**

6 1. *a.* Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary,
7 peace officers employed within the department that are not
8 covered under a collective bargaining agreement who were at
9 any time eligible to be enrolled in the group health insurance
10 plan that is negotiated under chapter 20 between the state
11 and the state police officers council labor union and who
12 elect to participate in a group health insurance plan provided
13 by the state, shall only be permitted, if not prohibited to
14 participate pursuant to subsection 2, to participate in the
15 group health insurance plan that is negotiated under chapter 20
16 between the state and the state police officers council labor
17 union for peace officers subject to the requirements of this
18 section. In addition, a peace officer who was covered under
19 a collective bargaining agreement and who becomes a manager
20 or supervisor and is no longer covered by the agreement shall
21 not lose group health insurance benefits as provided by the
22 agreement.

23 *b.* Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, peace
24 officers participating in the group health insurance plan
25 pursuant to paragraph “a” shall have the option, upon
26 retirement, to continue participation in the group health
27 insurance plan pursuant to section 509A.13 subject to the
28 requirements of this section. In addition, a retired peace
29 officer who was not covered under a collective bargaining
30 agreement and not eligible to participate in the group health
31 insurance plan as provided by this section shall have the
32 option, until December 31, 2020, to participate in the group
33 health insurance plan as provided by this section pursuant to
34 section 509A.13 subject to the requirements of this section.
35 An election by a retired peace officer to participate in the

PAGE 2

1 group health insurance plan as authorized by this paragraph is
 2 irrevocable.
 3 2. By September 1, 2020, and by September 1 of each year
 4 thereafter, the governing body of the state police officers
 5 council shall have the right to offer or terminate the ability
 6 to participate in the group health insurance plan provided
 7 by this subsection for the subsequent calendar year and
 8 shall provide written notice of the council's decision to the
 9 department by September 1. The Iowa state patrol supervisors
 10 association shall have the opportunity to address the governing
 11 board of the state police officers council concerning the
 12 decision of the governing board under this subsection on or
 13 after July 1 but before September 1 of each calendar year.

14 Sec. 2. **NEW SECTION. 456A.13A Full-time officers — health**
 15 **insurance.**

16 1. *a.* Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary,
 17 full-time officers as defined in section 456A.13 that are not
 18 covered under a collective bargaining agreement who were at
 19 any time eligible to be enrolled in the group health insurance
 20 plan that is negotiated under chapter 20 between the state
 21 and the state police officers council labor union and who
 22 elect to participate in a group health insurance plan provided
 23 by the state, shall only be permitted, if not prohibited to
 24 participate pursuant to subsection 2, to participate in the
 25 group health insurance plan that is negotiated under chapter
 26 20 between the state and the state police officers council
 27 labor union for full-time officers subject to the requirements
 28 of this subsection. In addition, a full-time officer who
 29 was covered under a collective bargaining agreement and who
 30 becomes a manager or supervisor and is no longer covered by
 31 the agreement shall not lose group health insurance benefits
 32 as provided by the agreement.

33 *b.* Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary,
 34 full-time officers participating in the group health insurance
 35 plan pursuant to paragraph "a" shall have the option, upon

PAGE 3

1 retirement, to continue participation in the group health
 2 insurance plan pursuant to section 509A.13 subject to the
 3 requirements of this section. In addition, a retired full-time
 4 officer who was not covered under a collective bargaining
 5 agreement and not eligible to participate in the group health
 6 insurance plan as provided by this section shall have the
 7 option, until December 31, 2020, to participate in the group
 8 health insurance plan as provided by this section pursuant to
 9 section 509A.13 subject to the requirements of this section.
 10 An election by a retired full-time officer to participate in
 11 the group health insurance plan as authorized by this paragraph
 12 is irrevocable.

13 2. By September 1, 2020, and by September 1 of each year
 14 thereafter, the governing body of the state police officers
 15 council shall have the right to offer or terminate the ability
 16 to participate in the group health insurance plan provided
 17 by this subsection for the subsequent calendar year and
 18 shall provide written notice of the council's decision to the
 19 department by September 1.

20 Sec. 3. GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN REPORTING — STATE
 21 POLICE OFFICERS COUNCIL. Prior to July 1 of each calendar
 22 year, the provider of the group health insurance plan
 23 negotiated under chapter 20 between the state and the state
 24 police officers council labor union shall submit a report
 25 to the state police officers council and the departments of
 26 public safety and natural resources necessary for purposes of
 27 complying with the requirements of sections 80.7 and 456A.13A.
 28 The report shall include usage statistics that separately
 29 account for employees in the group health insurance plan
 30 covered by a collective bargaining agreement negotiated by the
 31 state police officers council and those employees that are
 32 not covered by a collective bargaining agreement and shall
 33 include any information that led to any premium rate increase
 34 or decrease for the following calendar year.>

35 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting <An

PAGE 4

1 Act relating to health insurance by certain peace officers of
 2 the departments of public safety and natural resources.>

THORUP of Marion

H-8158

1 Amend Senate File 2269, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 28, by striking <roosters> and inserting
 3 <chukars, quail, or rooster pheasants>

COMMITTEE ON NATURAL RESOURCES

H-8159

1 Amend Senate File 2400, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 3, line 18, after <including for> by inserting
 4 <broadband mapping and>
 5 2. Page 3, line 22, after <use> by inserting <not more than
 6 one percent of the>
 7 3. Page 3, line 22, after <fund> by inserting <at the
 8 beginning of the fiscal year>
 9 4. Page 5, by striking lines 15 through 32 and inserting:
 10 <5. The office shall not award a grant pursuant to this
 11 section that exceeds fifteen thirty-five percent of the

12 communications service provider’s project cost. The total
 13 amount of the grants the office awards from the empower rural
 14 Iowa broadband grant fund pursuant to this section shall be as
 15 follows:
 16 a. For projects that will result in the installation of
 17 broadband infrastructure that will facilitate broadband service
 18 providing a minimum download speed less than one hundred
 19 megabits per second but greater than or equal to the download
 20 speed specified in the definition of targeted service area
 21 in section 8B.1, and a minimum upload speed less than twenty
 22 megabits per second but greater than or equal to the upload
 23 speed specified in the definition of targeted service area in
 24 section 8B.1, the total amount of the grants the office awards
 25 shall not exceed fifty percent of the moneys in the fund at the
 26 beginning of the fiscal year. However, if the amount requested
 27 for projects that facilitate broadband service at the speeds
 28 described in paragraph “b” for the fiscal year is less than the
 29 amount reserved for projects under paragraph “b”, the office may
 30 award the difference to projects under this paragraph for the
 31 same fiscal year.
 32 b. For projects that will result in the installation of
 33 broadband infrastructure that will facilitate broadband service
 34 providing a minimum download speed of one hundred megabits
 35 per second and a minimum upload speed of twenty megabits per

PAGE 2

1 second, the total amount of the grants the office awards shall
 2 not exceed fifty percent of the moneys in the fund at the
 3 beginning of the fiscal year. However, if the amount requested
 4 for projects that facilitate broadband service at the speeds
 5 described in paragraph “a” for the fiscal year is less than the
 6 amount reserved for projects under paragraph “a”, the office may
 7 award the difference to projects under this paragraph for the
 8 same fiscal year.>

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

H-8160

1 Amend House File 2595 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 3 <DIVISION I
 4 CHILD CARE FACILITIES>
 5 2. Page 9, line 11, after <This> by inserting <division of
 6 this>
 7 3. Page 9, after line 13 by inserting:
 8 <DIVISION II
 9 ADDITIONAL PERSONAL EXEMPTION CREDIT
 10 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 422.10C Additional personal
 11 exemption credit — child.
 12 1. The taxes imposed under this division less the credits

13 allowed under this division, except for the credits for
 14 withheld tax and estimated tax paid in section 422.16, shall
 15 be reduced by an additional personal exemption credit in the
 16 amount of two hundred fifty dollars for each dependent, and
 17 shall not exceed five hundred dollars in the aggregate.
 18 2. The additional personal exemption credit shall be
 19 added to any personal exemption claimed under section 422.12,
 20 subsection 2.
 21 3. A taxpayer is only eligible to claim the additional
 22 personal exemption credit if the taxpayer has earned income.
 23 Married taxpayers who file separate returns or file separately
 24 on a combined return form must allocate the personal income
 25 credit to a spouse with the earned income in order to be
 26 eligible to claim the credit.
 27 4. A taxpayer shall be ineligible to claim the additional
 28 personal exemption credit if the taxpayer claims either the
 29 child and dependent care or early childhood development tax
 30 credit under section 422.12C.
 31 5. Any credit in excess of the tax liability is refundable.
 32 However, for nonresidents or part-year residents, the amount of
 33 the credit in excess of the tax liability that may be refunded
 34 shall be in the ratio of their Iowa source net income to their
 35 all source net income under rules prescribed by the director.

PAGE 2

1 6. For purposes of this section, “*dependent*” has the same
 2 meaning as provided by the Internal Revenue Code, except the
 3 dependent must be under the age of seven at the end of the tax
 4 year.
 5 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act takes
 6 effect January 1, 2021.
 7 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 8 to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2021.
 9 4. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
 10 <An Act relating to tax credits and sales and use tax refunds
 11 for the construction of child care facilities, adding an
 12 additional personal exemption credit against the individual
 13 income tax for a child, and including effective date and
 14 applicability provisions.>
 15 5. By renumbering as necessary.

GASSMAN of Winnebago

H-8161

1 Amend House File 2414 as follows:
 2 1. Page 2, by striking lines 21 and 22 and inserting:
 3 <3. The application shall be filed in the ~~sex offender's~~
 4 county of principal residence where a conviction requiring the
 5 sex offender's registration occurred.>
 6 2. Page 2, line 33, after <period.> by inserting <The

7 court shall provide all parties including the victim and all
 8 other parties receiving notice under subsection 4 with the
 9 opportunity to be heard.
 10 a. The victim may appear at the hearing and may provide the
 11 court with verbal or written testimony.
 12 b. At the hearing, the sex offender must establish by
 13 clear and convincing evidence the offender is not a current
 14 or potential threat to public safety and it is in the best
 15 interest of justice to grant the offender's application.
 16 c. In determining whether to grant or deny an application
 17 for a modification, the court may consider, in addition to the
 18 factors specified in subsection 2, any other evidence the court
 19 deems appropriate, including but not limited to all of the
 20 following:
 21 (1) The sex offender's age and level of maturity at the time
 22 of the offense.
 23 (2) The sex offender's age and level of maturity at the time
 24 of the application and hearing.
 25 (3) Whether the sex offender has accepted responsibility
 26 for the offender's actions.
 27 (4) The victim's age and level of maturity at the time of
 28 the offense.
 29 (5) The nature of the offense.
 30 (6) The severity of the offense.
 31 (7) Any mitigating or aggravating factors surrounding the
 32 offense.
 33 (8) The sex offender's criminal history prior to the
 34 offense.
 35 (9) The sex offender's history subsequent to the offense.

PAGE 2

1 (10) Any statements offered by the victim.
 2 (11) Whether the sex offender has maintained a stable
 3 residence, and if not, whether the failure to maintain a stable
 4 residence was the result of the requirement that the sex
 5 offender register.
 6 (12) Whether the sex offender has maintained stable
 7 employment, and if not, whether the failure to maintain stable
 8 employment was the result of the requirement that the sex
 9 offender register.
 10 (13) Whether the sex offender has adequately addressed any
 11 drug or alcohol abuse or addiction.
 12 (14) Whether the sex offender has adequately addressed any
 13 mental health concerns.
 14 (15) Any statements or letters of support.
 15 (16) Any evidence of the sex offender's community service or
 16 community involvement.
 17 d. After the hearing, the court may grant or deny the
 18 application.>
 19 3. Page 3, after line 15 by inserting:
 20 <7. A sex offender may file an application under this

21 section not more than once every two years.>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8162

- 1 Amend House File 2572 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 23 through 32.
 3 2. Page 7, line 28, after <entity> by inserting <, excluding
 4 the state board of regents,>
 5 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8163

- 1 Amend House File 2615 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 34, by striking <four> and inserting <five>
 3 2. Page 3, line 2, by striking <four> and inserting <five>
 4 3. Page 3, line 17, by striking <fifteen> and inserting
 5 <twelve>
 6 4. Page 3, line 19, by striking <four> and inserting <five>
 7 5. Page 3, line 32, by striking <four> and inserting <five>

MATSON of Polk

H-8164

- 1 Amend Senate File 2408, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 8, after line 11 by inserting:
 3 <DIVISION VII
 4 TELEHEALTH
 5 Sec. ____ Section 514C.34, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 6 amended by adding the following new paragraphs:
 7 NEW PARAGRAPH. *0a. "Covered person" means the same as*
 8 *defined in section 514J.102.*
 9 NEW PARAGRAPH. *0c. "Health carrier" means the same as*
 10 *defined in section 514J.102.*
 11 Sec. ____ Section 514C.34, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 12 the following new subsection:
 13 NEW SUBSECTION. *3A. A health carrier shall reimburse a*
 14 *health care professional for health care services provided to*
 15 *a covered person by telehealth on the same basis and at the*
 16 *same rate as the health carrier would apply to the same health*
 17 *care services provided to a covered person by the health care*
 18 *professional in person.*
 19 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 20 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 21 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 22 to health care services provided by a health care professional
 23 to a covered person by telehealth on or after March 9, 2020.
 24 DIVISION VIII

25 FORECLOSURES, EVICTIONS, AND OTHER ACTIONS — SUSPENSION
 26 Sec. __. FORECLOSURES, EVICTIONS, AND OTHER ACTIONS —
 27 SUSPENSION.

28 1. The general assembly finds that as the result of the
 29 economic, health, and social conditions present in this state
 30 related to the COVID-19 virus pandemic, emergency conditions
 31 exist warranting the enactment and implementation of the
 32 provisions of this division of this Act.

33 2. For the period of proclamation of disaster emergency
 34 2020-32, issued March 9, 2020, relating to the COVID-19
 35 virus, and any subsequent proclamation of disaster emergency

PAGE 2

1 relating to the COVID-19 virus issued by the governor pursuant
 2 to section 29C.6, administrative, judicial, or other actions
 3 seeking foreclosure, eviction, or repossession related to a
 4 mortgage or security interest for residential real property
 5 located in this state shall not be initiated or enforced until
 6 after the specified disaster emergency proclamation time
 7 period. For purposes of this section, “mortgage” means the
 8 same as defined in section 16.1.

9 3. For the period of proclamation of disaster emergency
 10 2020-32, issued March 9, 2020, relating to the COVID-19
 11 virus, and any subsequent proclamation of disaster emergency
 12 relating to the COVID-19 virus issued by the governor pursuant
 13 to section 29C.6, administrative, judicial, or other actions
 14 seeking eviction, repossession, or termination of a rental
 15 agreement related to a rental agreement governed by chapter
 16 562A or 562B shall not be initiated or enforced until after the
 17 specified disaster emergency proclamation time period.

18 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 19 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

20 Sec. __. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 21 to actions related to mortgages, security instruments, and
 22 rental agreements in effect on or entered into after the
 23 effective date of this division of this Act.

24 DIVISION IX

25 UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES DURING PROCLAMATION OF
 26 DISASTER EMERGENCY — COVID-19 VIRUS

27 Sec. __. Section 96.4, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 28 following new subsection:

29 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. *α*. Benefits based on service in
 30 employment in any capacity compensated on an hourly basis
 31 shall be paid to an individual for any week of unemployment
 32 in the period of proclamation of disaster emergency 2020-32,
 33 issued March 9, 2020, relating to the COVID-19 virus, and any
 34 subsequent proclamation of disaster emergency relating to the
 35 COVID-19 virus issued by the governor pursuant to section

PAGE 3

1 29C.6, if such unemployment is the result of an individual
 2 being infected with the COVID-19 virus or quarantined due to
 3 possible infection; the individual providing care for a family
 4 member infected with the COVID-19 virus or quarantined due
 5 to possible infection; or the individual's employment being
 6 terminated due to the economic impact of the COVID-19 virus on
 7 the individual's employer.

8 *b.* Benefits described in paragraph "a" are otherwise payable
 9 in the same amount, on the same terms, and subject to the same
 10 conditions as compensation payable on the same basis of other
 11 service subject to this chapter.

12 *c.* For purposes of this subsection, "economic impact of the
 13 COVID-19 virus on the individual's employer" includes an employer
 14 that goes out of business; the factory, establishment, or
 15 other premises at which an individual is employed going out of
 16 business; or the layoff of the individual, if such activities
 17 result from the economic impact of the COVID-19 virus.

18 Sec. ___. IMPLEMENTATION OF ACT. Section 25B.2, subsection
 19 3, shall not apply to this division of this Act.

20 Sec. ___. EMERGENCY RULES. The department of workforce
 21 development shall adopt emergency rules under section 17A.4,
 22 subsection 3, and section 17A.5, subsection 2, paragraph "b",
 23 to implement the provisions of this division of this Act and
 24 the rules shall be effective immediately upon filing unless
 25 a later date is specified in the rules. Any rules adopted
 26 in accordance with this section shall also be published as a
 27 notice of intended action as provided in section 17A.4.

28 Sec. ___. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 29 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

30 Sec. ___. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division
 31 of this Act applies retroactively beginning with any week
 32 of unemployment in the period of proclamation of disaster
 33 emergency 2020-32, issued March 9, 2020, relating to the
 34 COVID-19 virus. An individual may retroactively submit a claim
 35 for unemployment benefits for such a week in accordance with

PAGE 4

1 chapter 96 as amended by this division of this Act.>

2 2. Title page, line 4, after <date> by inserting <and
 3 applicability>

4 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HALL of Woodbury

H-8165

1 Amend Senate File 2261, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 2, by striking lines 33 through 35 and inserting <or

- 4 guardian for the student to participate in such screening.>
 5 2. Page 3, by striking lines 13 through 17 and inserting:
 6 <b. The mental health professional may notify the student’s
 7 primary care provider following provision of written consent
 8 by the student’s parent or guardian. If a student does not
 9 have a primary care provider, the mental health professional
 10 may provide a listing of local primary care providers to the
 11 student’s parent or guardian.>
 12 3. By striking page 5, line 25, through page 6, line 3.
 13 4. Page 6, line 26, after <faith> by inserting <and in
 14 accordance with the provisions of this chapter>
 15 5. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 16 references as necessary.

COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

H-8166

- 1 Amend Senate File 388, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 314.31 Iowa medal of honor
 5 **highway — signs purchased and installed by private entities.**
 6 1. The segment of the highway known as United States highway
 7 20 which crosses this state from Sioux City to Dubuque shall be
 8 designated as the “Iowa Medal of Honor Highway”.
 9 2. The department shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A
 10 to provide for an application, approval, and inspection process
 11 for the purchase and installation of signs indicating the “Iowa
 12 Medal of Honor Highway” designation by private entities. The
 13 department shall approve applications for sign purchase and
 14 installation that meet its rule requirements. All costs and
 15 expenses of the purchase and installation of the signs shall be
 16 paid by the private entity whose application is approved. The
 17 department may approve more than one application to purchase
 18 and install the signs. The department shall require that any
 19 signs placed pursuant to this subsection include a graphic
 20 depiction of the three versions of the medal of honor for the
 21 army, navy, and air force.
 22 Sec. 2. APPLICABILITY. This Act applies to the segment
 23 of the highway known as United States highway 20 described in
 24 this Act on the effective date of this Act, and shall apply to
 25 the segment of that highway thereafter regardless of whether
 26 the highway’s designation as United States highway 20 is
 27 subsequently changed by the government of the United States.>
 28 2. Title page, line 1, by striking <patriots memorial> and
 29 inserting <medal of honor>

WORTHAN of Buena Vista

H-8167

1 Amend House File 2279 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <Section 1. Section 452A.3, subsection 1, unnumbered
5 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

6 Except as otherwise provided in this section and in this
7 subchapter, until June 30, ~~2020~~ 2021, this subsection shall
8 apply to the excise tax imposed on each gallon of motor fuel
9 used for any purpose for the privilege of operating motor
10 vehicles in this state.

11 Sec. 2. Section 452A.3, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
12 to read as follows:

13 2. Except as otherwise provided in this section and in this
14 subchapter, after June 30, ~~2020~~ 2021, an excise tax of thirty
15 cents is imposed on each gallon of motor fuel used for any
16 purpose for the privilege of operating motor vehicles in this
17 state.

18 Sec. 3. Section 452A.3, subsection 6, paragraph a,
19 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

20 (1) Except as otherwise provided in this section and in this
21 subchapter, for the period ending June 30, 2015, and for the
22 period beginning July 1, ~~2020~~ 2021, and thereafter, the tax
23 rate on special fuel for diesel engines of motor vehicles used
24 for any purpose for the privilege of operating motor vehicles
25 in this state is thirty-two and five-tenths cents per gallon.

26 Sec. 4. Section 452A.3, subsection 6, paragraph a,
27 subparagraph (2), unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended
28 to read as follows:

29 Except as provided in this section and in this subchapter,
30 for the period beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, ~~2020~~
31 2021, this subparagraph shall apply to the excise tax imposed
32 on each gallon of special fuel for diesel engines of motor
33 vehicles used for any purpose for the privilege of operating
34 motor vehicles in this state. The rate of the excise tax
35 shall be based on the number of gallons of biodiesel blended

PAGE 2

1 fuel classified as B-11 or higher that is distributed in this
2 state as expressed as a percentage of the number of gallons of
3 special fuel for diesel engines of motor vehicles distributed
4 in this state, which is referred to as the distribution
5 percentage. The department shall determine the percentage
6 basis for each determination period beginning January 1 and
7 ending December 31. The rate for the excise tax shall apply
8 for the period beginning July 1 and ending June 30 following
9 the end of the determination period. The rate for the excise
10 tax shall be as follows:>

H-8168

- 1 Amend House File 2572 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 7, by striking lines 27 through 34.
- 3 2. Page 7, line 35, by striking <2.>
- 4 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8169

- 1 Amend House File 2564 as follows:
- 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
- 3 inserting:
- 4 <DIVISION I
- 5 ADULT AND MINOR GUARDIANSHIPS AND CONSERVATORSHIPS
- 6 Section 1. Section 232D.103, Code 2020, is amended to read
- 7 as follows:
- 8 **232D.103 Jurisdiction.**
- 9 The juvenile court has exclusive jurisdiction in a
- 10 guardianship proceeding concerning a minor who is alleged to be
- 11 in need of a guardianship, and guardianships of minors.
- 12 Sec. 2. Section 232D.105, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
- 13 amended to read as follows:
- 14 1. A petition alleging that a minor is in need of a
- 15 conservatorship is not subject to this chapter. Such
- 16 proceedings shall be governed by chapter 633 and may be
- 17 initiated pursuant to section ~~633.627~~ 633.557.
- 18 Sec. 3. Section 232D.301, subsection 2, paragraph d,
- 19 subparagraph (3), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
- 20 (3) Any adult who has had the primary care of the minor or
- 21 with whom the minor has lived for at least six months ~~prior to~~
- 22 immediately preceding the filing of the petition.
- 23 Sec. 4. Section 232D.302, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
- 24 amended to read as follows:
- 25 2. Notice shall be served upon the minor’s known parents
- 26 listed in the petition in accordance with the rules of civil
- 27 procedure. If a parent has not filed an affidavit consenting
- 28 to the appointment of a guardian, the notice shall inform
- 29 the minor’s known parents listed in the petition that the
- 30 parents are entitled to representation if the parents meet the
- 31 conditions of section 232D.304.
- 32 Sec. 5. Section 232D.305, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
- 33 amended to read as follows:
- 34 1. The court may appoint any qualified person as a court
- 35 visitor for the minor who has demonstrated sufficient knowledge

PAGE 2

- 1 to appropriately perform the duties that the court directs.
- 2 Sec. 6. Section 232D.305, Code 2020, is amended by adding
- 3 the following new subsection:

4 NEW SUBSECTION. 6. A court visitor shall be discharged
5 from all further duties upon the appointment of a guardian or
6 conservator, unless further ordered by the court. The court
7 may order a court visitor to continue to serve if the court
8 determines continued service would be in the best interest of
9 the protected person. If the court continues the service of
10 the court visitor, the court may limit the direct duties of the
11 court visitor as the court deems necessary. The court visitor
12 shall thereafter continue to serve until discharged by the
13 court.

14 Sec. 7. Section 232D.306, Code 2020, is amended by adding
15 the following new subsection:

16 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. A hearing on the petition may be
17 recorded if a court reporter is not used.

18 Sec. 8. Section 232.309, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
19 following new subsection:

20 NEW SUBSECTION. 8. The court may order an extension of
21 the temporary guardianship for thirty days for good cause
22 shown, including a showing that a hearing on a petition for a
23 guardianship under section 232D.301 cannot be scheduled within
24 thirty days after the order for a temporary guardianship is
25 ordered. Prior to or contemporaneously with the filing for an
26 application for the extension of time, the guardian shall file
27 a report with the court setting forth all of the following:
28 a. All actions conducted by the guardian on behalf of the
29 protected person from the time of the initial appointment of
30 the guardian up to the time of the report.

31 b. All actions that the guardian plans to conduct on behalf
32 of the protected person during the thirty day extension period.

33 Sec. 9. Section 232D.401, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
34 amended to read as follows:

35 1. The order by the court appointing a guardian for a minor

PAGE 3

1 shall state the basis for the order and the date on which the
2 first reporting period for the guardianship shall end.

3 Sec. 10. Section 232D.401, subsection 3, unnumbered
4 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

5 An order by the court appointing a guardian for a minor shall
6 state the powers granted to the guardian. Except as otherwise
7 limited by court order, the court may grant the guardian the
8 following powers, ~~which may be exercised without prior court~~
9 ~~approval:~~

10 Sec. 11. Section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
11 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
12 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (2A) The guardian's plan, if any, for
13 applying for and receiving funds and benefits payable for the
14 support of the minor.

15 Sec. 12. Section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
16 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
17 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (11) The results of the guardian's

18 efforts to apply for funds or benefits on behalf of the
 19 protected person.
 20 Sec. 13. Section 232D.501, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 21 the following new subsection:
 22 NEW SUBSECTION. 5. The failure of a guardian to timely
 23 make a report required under subsection 1 shall be reported by
 24 the clerk of the court to the court for an order to enforce
 25 compliance with the filing requirements.
 26 Sec. 14. NEW SECTION. **232D.506 Confidentiality.**
 27 1. Official juvenile court records in guardianship
 28 proceedings shall be confidential and are not public records.
 29 2. Confidential records may be inspected and their contents
 30 shall be disclosed to the following without a court order,
 31 provided that a person or entity who inspects or receives a
 32 confidential record under this subsection shall not disclose
 33 the confidential record or its contents unless required by law:
 34 *a.* The judge and professional court staff.
 35 *b.* The protected person and the protected person's attorney.

PAGE 4

1 *c.* The protected person's parent, guardian, custodian, court
 2 visitor, and any attorney representing such person.
 3 3. Confidential records may be inspected and their contents
 4 shall be disclosed to the following with a court order,
 5 provided that a person or entity who inspects or receives a
 6 confidential record under this subsection shall not disclose
 7 the confidential record or its contents unless required by law:
 8 *a.* A person or entity conducting bona fide research on minor
 9 guardianships.
 10 *b.* A person or entity for good cause shown.
 11 Sec. 15. Section 633.556, subsections 4, 5, and 8, Code
 12 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 13 4. The petition shall list the name and address of the
 14 ~~petitioner and the petitioner's relationship to the respondent.~~
 15 following:
 16 *a.* The name and address of the respondent.
 17 *b.* The petitioner and the petitioner's relationship to the
 18 respondent.
 19 *c.* The name and address of the proposed guardian or
 20 conservator and the reason the proposed guardian or conservator
 21 should be selected.
 22 5. The petition shall list the name and address, to the
 23 extent known, of the following:
 24 ~~*a.* The name and address of the proposed guardian and the~~
 25 ~~reason the proposed guardian should be selected.~~
 26 ~~*b.* a. Any spouse of the respondent.~~
 27 ~~*c.* b. Any adult children of the respondent.~~
 28 ~~*d.* c. Any parents of the respondent.~~
 29 ~~*e.* d. Any adult, who has had the primary care of the~~
 30 ~~respondent or with whom the respondent has lived for at least~~
 31 ~~six months prior to immediately preceding the filing of the~~

32 petition, or any institution or facility where the respondent
33 has resided for at least six months prior to the filing of the
34 petition.
35 ~~§. e.~~ Any legal representative or representative payee of

PAGE 5

1 the respondent.
2 ~~§. f.~~ Any person designated as an attorney in fact in a
3 durable power of attorney for health care which is valid under
4 chapter 144B, or any person designated as an agent in a durable
5 power of attorney which is valid under chapter 633B.
6 ~~8. The petition shall provide a brief description of~~
7 ~~the respondent's alleged functional limitations that make~~
8 ~~the respondent unable to communicate or carry out important~~
9 ~~decisions concerning the respondent's financial affairs.~~
10 Sec. 16. Section 633.558, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
11 amended to read as follows:
12 3. Notice of the filing of a petition given to persons under
13 ~~subsections subsection 2 and 3~~ shall include a statement that
14 such persons may register to receive notice of the hearing
15 on the petition and other proceedings and the manner of such
16 registration.
17 Sec. 17. Section 633.560, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
18 amended to read as follows:
19 3. The court shall require the proposed guardian or
20 conservator to attend the hearing on the petition but the court
21 may excuse the proposed guardian's or conservator's attendance
22 for good cause shown.
23 Sec. 18. Section 633.561, subsection 4, paragraphs c and f,
24 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
25 c. Ensure that the respondent has been properly advised of
26 the respondent's rights in a guardianship or conservatorship
27 proceeding.
28 f. Ensure that the guardianship or conservatorship
29 procedures conform to the statutory and due process
30 requirements of Iowa law.
31 Sec. 19. Section 633.561, subsection 5, paragraphs a and b,
32 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
33 a. Inform the respondent of the effects of the order entered
34 for appointment of guardian or conservator.
35 b. Advise the respondent of the respondent's rights to

PAGE 6

1 petition for modification or termination of the guardianship
2 or conservatorship.
3 Sec. 20. Section 633.561, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
4 amended to read as follows:
5 6. If the court determines that it would be in the
6 respondent's best interest to have legal representation
7 with respect to any further proceedings in a guardianship

8 or conservatorship, the court may appoint an attorney to
 9 represent the respondent at the expense of the respondent or
 10 the respondent's estate, or if the respondent is indigent the
 11 cost of the court appointed attorney shall be assessed against
 12 the county in which the proceedings are pending.

13 Sec. 21. Section 633.562, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 14 amended to read as follows:

15 1. If the court determines that the appointment of a court
 16 visitor would be in the best interest of the respondent, the
 17 court shall appoint a court visitor at the expense of the
 18 respondent or the respondent's estate, or, if the respondent
 19 is indigent, the cost of the court visitor shall be assessed
 20 against the county in which the proceedings are pending. The
 21 court may appoint any qualified person as a court visitor,
 22 who has demonstrated sufficient knowledge to appropriately
 23 perform the duties that the court directs, in a guardianship
 24 or conservatorship proceeding.

25 Sec. 22. Section 633.562, subsection 5, paragraphs a and b,
 26 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

27 a. A recommendation regarding the appropriateness of a
 28 limited guardianship or conservatorship for the respondent,
 29 including whether less restrictive alternatives are available.

30 b. A statement of the qualifications of the guardian or
 31 conservator together with a statement of whether the respondent
 32 has expressed agreement with the appointment of the proposed
 33 guardian or conservator.

34 Sec. 23. Section 633.562, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 35 the following new subsection:

PAGE 7

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. A court visitor shall be discharged
 2 from all further duties upon appointment of a guardian or
 3 conservator, unless further ordered by the court. The court
 4 may order a court visitor to continue to serve if the court
 5 determines continued service would be in the best interest of
 6 the protected person. If the court continues the service of
 7 the court visitor, the court may limit the direct duties of the
 8 court visitor as the court deems necessary. The court visitor
 9 shall thereafter continue to serve until discharged by the
 10 court.

11 Sec. 24. Section 633.563, subsection 7, unnumbered
 12 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

13 The results of the evaluation ordered by the court shall be
 14 ~~made available to~~ filed with the court and made available to
 15 the following:

16 Sec. 25. Section 633.564, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 17 amended to read as follows:

18 1. The court shall request criminal record checks and
 19 checks of the child abuse, dependent adult abuse, and sexual
 20 offender registries in this state for all proposed guardians
 21 and conservators, other than financial institutions with Iowa

22 trust powers, unless a proposed guardian or conservator has
23 undergone the required background checks under this section
24 within the twelve months prior to the filing of a petition.

25 Sec. 26. Section 633.569, subsections 1, 2, and 3, Code
26 2020, are amended to read as follows:

27 1. A person authorized to file a petition under section
28 ~~633.552, 633.553, or 633.554~~ 633.556 or 633.557 may file an
29 application for the emergency appointment of a temporary
30 guardian or conservator.

31 2. Such application shall state all of the following:

32 a. The name and address of the respondent.

33 b. The name and address of the petitioner.

34 ~~b. c.~~ c. The name and address of the proposed guardian or
35 conservator and the reason the proposed guardian or conservator

PAGE 8

1 should be selected.

2 d. The names and addresses, to the extent known, of any
3 other person who must be named in the petition for appointment
4 of a guardian or conservator under section 633.556 or 633.557.

5 e. e. The reason the emergency appointment of a temporary
6 guardian or conservator is sought.

7 3. The court may enter an ex parte order appointing a
8 temporary guardian or conservator on an emergency basis under
9 this section if the court finds that all of the following
10 conditions are met:

11 a. There is not sufficient time to file a petition and hold
12 a hearing pursuant to section ~~633.552, 633.553, or 633.554~~
13 633.556 or 633.557.

14 b. The appointment of a temporary guardian or conservator
15 is necessary to avoid immediate or irreparable harm to the
16 respondent.

17 c. There is reason to believe that the basis for appointment
18 of guardian or conservator exists under section ~~633.552,~~
19 ~~633.553, or 633.554~~ 633.556 or 633.557.

20 Sec. 27. Section 633.569, Code 2020, is amended by adding
21 the following new subsections:

22 NEW SUBSECTION. 8. The court may order an extension of
23 the temporary guardianship or conservatorship for thirty days
24 for good cause shown, including a showing that a hearing on a
25 petition for a guardianship or conservatorship under section
26 633.556 or 633.557 cannot be scheduled within thirty days after
27 the order for a temporary guardianship or conservatorship is
28 ordered. Prior to or contemporaneously with the filing for
29 an application for the extension of time, the guardian or
30 conservator shall file a report with the court setting forth
31 all of the following:

32 a. All actions conducted by the guardian or conservator on
33 behalf of the protected person from the time of the initial
34 appointment of the guardian up to the time of the report.

35 b. All actions that the guardian or conservator plans to

PAGE 9

1 conduct on behalf of the protected person during the thirty-day
 2 extension period.
 3 NEW SUBSECTION. 9. The temporary guardian or conservator
 4 shall submit any report the court requires.

5 Sec. 28. Section 633.570, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020,
 6 are amended to read as follows:

7 1. In a proceeding for the appointment of a guardian,
 8 the respondent shall be given written notice which advises
 9 the respondent of ~~the powers that~~ that the court may grant
 10 a guardian ~~may exercise without court approval pursuant to~~
 11 the powers set out in section 633.635, subsection 2, and the
 12 powers ~~that the guardian may exercise only with court approval~~
 13 pursuant to set out in section 633.635, subsection 3.

14 2. In a proceeding for the appointment of a conservator,
 15 the respondent shall be given written notice which advises the
 16 respondent of ~~the powers that~~ the court may grant a conservator
 17 ~~may exercise without court approval pursuant to the powers set~~
 18 out in section 633.646 and ~~the powers that the guardian may~~
 19 ~~exercise only with court approval pursuant to section 633.647~~
 20 633.642.

21 Sec. 29. Section 633.635, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 22 amended to read as follows:

23 1. The order by the court appointing a guardian shall state
 24 the basis for the guardianship pursuant to section 633.552
 25 and the date on which the first reporting period for the
 26 guardianship shall end.

27 Sec. 30. Section 633.635, subsection 2, unnumbered
 28 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

29 Based upon the evidence produced at the hearing, the court
 30 may grant a guardian the following powers and duties with
 31 respect to a protected person ~~which may be exercised without~~
 32 prior court approval:

33 Sec. 31. Section 633.635, subsection 3, unnumbered
 34 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

35 A Notwithstanding subsection 2, a guardian may be granted

PAGE 10

1 the following powers which may only be exercised upon court
 2 approval:

3 Sec. 32. Section 633.641, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:

5 3. ~~If a protected person has executed a valid power of~~
 6 ~~attorney under chapter 633B, the conservator shall act in~~
 7 ~~accordance with the applicable provisions of chapter 633B~~If
 8 the court appoints a conservator for a protected person
 9 who has previously executed a valid power of attorney under
 10 chapter 633B, the power of attorney is suspended unless the
 11 power of attorney provides otherwise or the court appointing
 12 the conservator orders that the power of attorney should

13 continue. If the power of attorney continues, the agent is
 14 accountable to the conservator as well as to the principal.
 15 The power of attorney shall be reinstated upon termination of
 16 the conservatorship as a result of the principal regaining
 17 capacity.

18 Sec. 33. Section 633.642, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code
 19 2020, is amended to read as follows:

20 Except as otherwise ordered by the court, and except
 21 for those powers relating to all fiduciaries as set out in
 22 sections 633.63 through 633.162 which may be exercised without
 23 approval of the court unless expressly modified by the court,
 24 a conservator must give notice to persons entitled to notice
 25 and receive specific prior authorization by the court before
 26 the conservator may take any other action on behalf of the
 27 protected person. ~~These other powers~~ Powers requiring court
 28 approval include but are not limited to the authority of the
 29 conservator to:

30 Sec. 34. Section 633.669, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 31 follows:

32 **633.669 Reporting requirements — assistance by clerk** Reports
 33 by guardians.

34 1. A guardian appointed by the court under this chapter
 35 shall file with the court the following written verified

PAGE 11

1 reports which shall not be waived by the court:
 2 a. An initial care plan filed within sixty days of
 3 appointment. The information in the initial care plan shall
 4 include but not be limited to the following information:
 5 (1) The current residence of the protected person and the
 6 guardian's plan for the protected person's living arrangements.
 7 (2) The current sources of payment for the protected
 8 person's living expenses and other expenses, and the guardian's
 9 plan for payment of the protected person's living expenses and
 10 other expenses.
 11 (3) The protected person's health status and health care
 12 needs, and the guardian's plan for meeting the protected
 13 person's ~~needs for medical, dental, and other~~ health care
 14 needs.
 15 (3A) Whether the protected person has a living will or
 16 health care power of attorney.
 17 (4) If applicable, the protected person's need for other
 18 professional services for mental, behavioral, or emotional
 19 health, and the guardian's plan for other professional services
 20 needed by the protected person.
 21 (5) If applicable, the protected person's employment
 22 status, the protected person's need for educational, training,
 23 or vocational services, and the guardian's plan for meeting the
 24 educational, training, and vocational needs of the protected
 25 person.
 26 (6) If applicable, the guardian's plan for facilitating the

27 participation of the protected person in social activities.
 28 (7) The guardian's plan for facilitating contacts between
 29 the protected person and the protected person's family members
 30 and other ~~significant~~ persons significant in the life of the
 31 protected person.
 32 (8) The guardian's plan for contact with, and activities on
 33 behalf of, the protected person.
 34 (9) The powers that the guardian requests to carry out the
 35 initial care plan.

PAGE 12

1 (10) The guardian shall file an amended plan when there
 2 has been a significant change in the circumstances or the
 3 guardian seeks to deviate significantly from the plan. The
 4 guardian must obtain court approval of the amended plan before
 5 implementing any of its provisions.
 6 b. An annual report, filed within sixty days of the close
 7 of the reporting period, ~~unless the court otherwise orders on~~
 8 ~~good cause shown.~~ The ~~information in the annual report shall~~
 9 include but not be limited to the following information:
 10 (1) The current living arrangements of the protected
 11 person.
 12 (2) The sources of payment for the protected person's living
 13 expenses and other expenses.
 14 (3) A description, if applicable, of the following:
 15 (a) The protected person's ~~physical and mental health~~
 16 status and the ~~medical, dental, and other professional health~~
 17 services provided to the protected person.
 18 (b) If applicable, the protected person's employment status
 19 and the educational, training, and vocational services provided
 20 to the protected person.
 21 (0c) The guardian's facilitation of the participation of
 22 the protected person in social activities.
 23 (c) The contact of the protected person with family members
 24 and other significant persons.
 25 (d) The nature and extent of the guardian's visits with, and
 26 activities on behalf of, the protected person.
 27 (04) The guardian's changes to the care plan for the
 28 protected person for the next annual reporting period.
 29 (004) The powers that the guardian requests to carry out
 30 the care plan for the protected person for the next annual
 31 reporting period.
 32 (4) The guardian's recommendation as to the need for
 33 continuation of the guardianship.
 34 (5) The ability of the guardian to continue as guardian.
 35 (6) The need of the guardian for assistance in providing or

PAGE 13

1 arranging for the provision of the care and protection of the
 2 protected person.

- 3 c. A final report within thirty days of the termination
 4 of the guardianship under section 633.675 unless that time is
 5 extended by the court.
- 6 2. The court shall develop a simplified uniform reporting
 7 form for use in filing the required reports.
- 8 3. The clerk of the court shall notify the guardian in
 9 writing of the reporting requirements and shall provide
 10 information and assistance to the guardian in filing the
 11 reports.
- 12 4. Reports of guardians shall be reviewed and approved by a
 13 district court judge or referee.
- 14 5. Reports required by this section shall be served on the
 15 protected person, the protected person's attorney, if any, and
 16 the court visitor, if any.

17 Sec. 35. Section 633.670, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 18 follows:

19 **633.670 Reports by conservators.**

- 20 1. A conservator appointed by the court under this chapter
 21 shall file ~~an~~ with the court a written verified initial
 22 financial management plan for protecting, managing, investing,
 23 expending, and distributing the assets of the conservatorship
 24 estate within ninety days after appointment which shall not be
 25 waived by the court. The plan must be based on the needs of
 26 the protected person and take into account the best interest
 27 of the protected person as well as the protected person's
 28 preference, values, and prior directions to the extent known
 29 to, or reasonably ascertainable by, the conservator.
- 30 ~~a. The initial plan shall include all of the following: The~~
 31 initial financial management plan shall state the protected
 32 person's age, residence, living arrangements, and sources of
 33 payment for living expenses.
- 34 ~~(1) A budget containing projected expenses and resources,~~
 35 ~~including an estimate of the total amount of fees the~~

PAGE 14

- 1 ~~conservator anticipates charging per year and a statement or~~
 2 ~~list of the amount the conservator proposes to charge for each~~
 3 ~~service the conservator anticipates providing to the protected~~
 4 ~~person.~~
- 5 ~~(2) A statement as to how the conservator will involve~~
 6 ~~the protected person in decisions about management of the~~
 7 ~~conservatorship estate.~~
- 8 ~~(3) If ordered by the court, any step the conservator plans~~
 9 ~~to take to develop or restore the ability of the protected~~
 10 ~~person to manage the conservatorship estate.~~
- 11 ~~(4) An estimate of the duration of the conservatorship.~~
- 12 b. If applicable, the protected person's will shall be
 13 attached to the plan or filed with the court and the protected
 14 person's prepaid burial trust and powers of attorney shall be
 15 described.
- 16 c. The conservator shall include a proposed budget for the

17 protected person and budget-related information for the next
18 annual reporting period including all of the following:
19 (1) The protected person's receipts and income and
20 the projected sources of income including, if applicable,
21 wages, social security income, pension and retirement plan
22 distribution, veterans' benefits, rental income, interest
23 earnings, and dividends, and the total estimated receipts and
24 income.
25 (2) The protected person's liabilities and debts including,
26 if applicable, mortgage, car loans, credit card debt, federal,
27 state, and property taxes owed and the total estimated
28 liabilities and debts; a list and concise explanation of
29 any liability or debt owed by the protected person to the
30 conservator; a list and concise explanation of the liability of
31 any other person for a liability of the protected person.
32 (3) The protected person's estimated expenses on a monthly
33 and annual basis including, if applicable, nursing home or
34 facility charge, real property expenses for residence, food and
35 household expenses, utilities, household help and caregiver

PAGE 15

1 expenses, health services and health insurance expenses,
2 educational and vocational expenses, personal auto and other
3 transportation expenses, clothing expenses, personal allowance
4 and other personal expenses, liabilities and debts, attorney
5 fees and other professional expenses, conservator fees, and
6 other administrative expenses.
7 d. The conservator shall include a list of the protected
8 person's assets and the conservator's plan for management
9 of these assets including, if applicable, financial
10 accounts including checking and certificates of deposit and
11 cash, investments including stocks, bonds, mutual funds,
12 exchange-traded funds, individual retirement accounts and other
13 investment accounts, pension, profit-sharing, annuities, and
14 retirement fund, personal property including household goods
15 and vehicles, receivables including mortgages and liens payable
16 to the protected person's estate or trust, life insurance, and
17 other property.
18 e. The conservator shall include a statement as to how the
19 conservator will involve the protected person in decisions
20 about management of the conservatorship estate.
21 f. If ordered by the court, the conservator shall include
22 any action the conservator plans to take to develop or
23 restore the ability of the protected person to manage the
24 conservatorship estate.
25 g. The conservator shall include the authority that the
26 conservator requests to carry out the initial financial plan
27 including expenditures in accordance with the proposed budget
28 for the protected person and the plan for the management of the
29 assets of the protected person for the next annual reporting
30 period.

31 *b. h.* Within two days after filing the initial plan, the
 32 The conservator shall ~~give~~ provide notice of the filing of
 33 the initial plan with a copy of the plan to the protected
 34 person, the protected person's attorney, if any, and court
 35 ~~advisor~~ visitor, if any, and others as directed by the court.

PAGE 16

1 The notice must state that any person entitled to a copy of
 2 the plan must file any objections to the plan not later than
 3 ~~fifteen days after it is filed~~ twenty days from the date of
 4 mailing notice of filing the initial plan.
 5 *e. i.* At least twenty days after the plan has been filed,
 6 the court shall review and determine whether the plan should
 7 be approved or revised, after considering objections filed and
 8 whether the plan is consistent with the conservator's powers
 9 and duties.
 10 ~~d. j.~~ After approval by the court, the conservator shall
 11 provide a copy of the approved plan and order approving the
 12 plan to the protected person, the protected person's attorney,
 13 if any, and court ~~advisor~~ visitor, if any, and others as
 14 directed by the court.
 15 *e. k.* The conservator shall file an amended plan when
 16 there has been a significant change in circumstances or the
 17 conservator seeks to deviate significantly from the plan.
 18 Before the amended plan is implemented, the provisions for
 19 court approval of the plan shall be followed as provided in
 20 paragraphs "b", "c", and "d" "h", "i", and "j".
 21 2. A conservator shall file an inventory of the protected
 22 person's assets within ninety days after appointment which
 23 includes an oath or affirmation that the inventory is believed
 24 to be complete and accurate as far as information permits.
 25 ~~Copies~~ After approval by the court, the conservator shall
 26 provide a copy of the inventory ~~shall be provided~~ to the
 27 protected person, the protected person's attorney, if any,
 28 and court ~~advisor~~ visitor, if any, and others as directed by
 29 the court. When the conservator receives additional property
 30 of the protected person, or becomes aware of its existence,
 31 a description of the property shall be included in the
 32 conservator's next annual report.
 33 3. A conservator shall file a written ~~and~~ verified report on
 34 an annual basis for the period since the end of the preceding
 35 report period. ~~The court which~~ shall not ~~waive these reports~~

PAGE 17

1 be waived by the court.
 2 *a.* ~~These reports shall include all of the following:~~ The
 3 annual report shall state the age, the residence and the living
 4 arrangements of the protected person, and sources of payment
 5 for the protected person's living expenses during the reporting
 6 period.

- 7 ~~(1) Balance of funds on hand at the beginning and end of the~~
8 ~~period.~~
9 ~~(2) Disbursements made.~~
10 ~~(3) Changes in the conservator's plan.~~
11 ~~(4) List of assets as of the end of the period.~~
12 ~~(5) Bond amount and surety's name.~~
13 ~~(6) Residence and physical location of the protected~~
14 ~~person.~~
15 ~~(7) General physical and mental condition of the protected~~
16 ~~person.~~
17 ~~(8) Other information reflecting the condition of the~~
18 ~~conservatorship estate.~~
19 b. These reports shall be filed: The conservator shall
20 submit with the annual report an inventory of the assets of the
21 protected person as of the last day of the reporting period
22 including the total value of assets at the beginning and end
23 of the reporting period.
24 (1) On an annual basis within sixty days of the end of the
25 reporting period unless the court orders an extension for good
26 cause shown in accordance with the rules of probate procedure.
27 c. The annual report shall include an itemization of all
28 income or funds received and all expenditures made by the
29 conservator on behalf of the protected person. If any of
30 the expenditures were made to provide support for or pay the
31 debts of another person, the annual report shall include an
32 explanation of these expenditures. If any of the expenditures
33 were made to pay any liability or debt owed by the protected
34 person to the conservator, the annual report shall include an
35 explanation of these expenditures. If any of the expenditures

PAGE 18

- 1 were made to pay any liability or debt that is also owed by
2 another person or entity, the annual report shall include an
3 explanation of these expenditures.
4 d. The annual report shall include the following budget and
5 information related to the budget for the protected person:
6 (1) A description of changes, if any, made in the budget
7 approved by the court for the preceding reporting period.
8 (2) A proposed budget and budget-related information for
9 the next reporting period containing the information set forth
10 in subsection 1, paragraph "c."
11 (3) A request for approval of the proposed budget and
12 authority to make expenditures in accordance with the proposed
13 budget.
14 e. The annual report shall include the following information
15 related to the management of the assets of the protected
16 person:
17 (1) A description of changes, if any, in the plan for
18 management of the assets of the protected person approved by
19 the court for the preceding reporting period.
20 (2) A proposed plan for management of the assets of the

21 protected person for the next reporting period.
 22 (3) A request for approval of the proposed plan for
 23 management of the assets of the protected person and the
 24 authority to carry out the plan.
 25 f. The annual report shall describe, if applicable, how the
 26 protected person was involved and will be involved in decisions
 27 about management of assets.
 28 g. The annual report shall describe, if ordered by the
 29 court, the actions that have been taken and that will be taken
 30 by the conservator to develop or restore the ability of the
 31 protected person to manage the conservatorship's assets.
 32 h. The conservator may request court approval of fees
 33 provided by an attorney on behalf of the conservatorship or the
 34 protected person during the preceding reporting period.
 35 i. The conservator may request court approval of fees

PAGE 19

1 provided the conservator on behalf of the conservatorship or
 2 the protected person during the preceding reporting period.
 3 4. The conservator shall file a written verified final
 4 report with the court as follows:
 5 (2) a. Within thirty days following removal of the
 6 conservator.
 7 (3) b. Upon the conservator's filing of a resignation and
 8 before the resignation is accepted by the court.
 9 (4) c. Within sixty days following the termination of the
 10 conservatorship.
 11 (5) d. At other times as ordered by the court.
 12 e. 5. Reports required by this section shall be served on
 13 the protected person, the protected person's attorney and court
 14 advisor, if any, the court visitor, if any, and the veterans
 15 administration if the protected person is receiving veterans
 16 benefits.
 17 Sec. 36. Section 633.675, subsections 2, 3, and 4, Code
 18 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 19 2. The court shall terminate a guardianship if ~~it~~ the
 20 court finds by clear and convincing evidence that the basis
 21 for appointing a guardian pursuant to section 633.552 is not
 22 satisfied.
 23 3. The court shall terminate a conservatorship if the court
 24 finds by clear and convincing evidence that the basis for
 25 appointing a conservator pursuant to section 633.553 or 633.554
 26 is not satisfied.
 27 4. The standard of proof and the burden of proof to be
 28 applied in a termination proceeding to terminate a guardianship
 29 or conservatorship for an adult shall be the same as set forth
 30 in section 633.551, subsection 2.
 31 Sec. 37. REPORTS AND POWERS OF GUARDIANS AND CONSERVATORS —
 32 TRANSITION PROVISIONS.
 33 1. Minor guardianships. Notwithstanding the provisions
 34 of section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph "a", designating

35 a verified initial care plan be filed by the guardian within

PAGE 20

1 sixty days of appointment, for all minor guardianship cases
2 wherein the guardianship was established and the guardian was
3 appointed prior to January 1, 2020, the initial care plan
4 required by section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph "a",
5 shall be filed with the previously scheduled annual report.
6 The annual report must comply with the requirements set forth
7 in section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph "a". Guardians
8 appointed prior to January 1, 2020, have continuing authority
9 to perform acts concerning the protected person that were
10 authorized prior to January 1, 2020, through the date of the
11 guardian's previously scheduled annual report.
12 2. Adult guardianships. Notwithstanding the provisions of
13 section 633.669, subsection 1, paragraph "a", designating an
14 initial care plan be filed by the guardian within sixty days
15 of appointment, for all adult guardianship cases wherein the
16 guardianship was established and the guardian was appointed
17 prior to January 1, 2020, the initial care plan required by
18 section 633.669, subsection 1, paragraph "a", shall be filed
19 with the previously scheduled annual report. The annual report
20 must comply with the requirements set forth in section 633.669,
21 subsection 1, paragraph "a". Guardians appointed prior to
22 January 1, 2020, have continuing authority to perform acts
23 concerning the protected person that were authorized prior to
24 January 1, 2020, through the date of the guardian's previously
25 scheduled annual report.
26 3. Conservatorships. Notwithstanding the provisions of
27 section 633.670, subsection 1, paragraph "a", and section
28 633.670, subsection 2, designating an initial plan and
29 inventory be filed within ninety days of appointment, for
30 all conservatorship cases wherein the conservatorship was
31 established and the conservator was appointed prior to
32 January 1, 2020, the initial plan required by section 633.670,
33 subsection 1, paragraph "a", and inventory required by section
34 633.670, subsection 2, shall be filed with the previously
35 scheduled annual report. The annual report must comply with

PAGE 21

1 the requirements set forth in section 633.670, subsection 3,
2 paragraph "a". Conservators appointed prior to January 1,
3 2020, have continuing authority to perform acts concerning the
4 protected person that were authorized prior to January 1, 2020,
5 through the date of the conservator's previously scheduled
6 annual report.
7 Sec. 38. EFFECTIVE DATE. The following, being deemed of
8 immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment:
9 The section of this division of this Act relating to
10 transition provisions for reports and powers of guardians and

11 conservators.

12 Sec. 39. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following applies
13 retroactively to January 1, 2020:

14 The section of this division of this Act relating to
15 transition provisions for reports and powers of guardians and
16 conservators.

17 DIVISION II

18 CONFORMING CHANGES

19 Sec. 40. Section 633.3, subsections 9, 17, 22, and 23, Code
20 2020, are amended to read as follows:

21 9. *Conservator* — a person appointed by the court to have
22 the custody and control of the property of a ward protected
23 person under the provisions of this probate code.

24 17. *Estate* — the real and personal property of either a
25 decedent or a ward protected person, and may also refer to the
26 real and personal property of a trust described in section
27 633.10.

28 22. *Guardian* — the person appointed by the court to have
29 the custody of the person of the ward protected person under
30 the provisions of this probate code.

31 23. *Guardian of the property* — at the election of the
32 person appointed by the court to have the custody and care of
33 the property of a ward protected person, the term “*guardian of*
34 *the property*” may be used, which term shall be synonymous with
35 the term “*conservator*”.

PAGE 22

1 Sec. 41. Section 633.78, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph
2 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

3 A fiduciary under this chapter may present a written request
4 to any person for the purpose of obtaining property owned by
5 a decedent or by a ward protected person of a conservatorship
6 for which the fiduciary has been appointed, or property to
7 which a decedent or ward protected person is entitled, or
8 for information about such property needed to perform the
9 fiduciary’s duties. The request must contain statements
10 confirming all of the following:

11 Sec. 42. Section 633.78, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
12 2020, is amended to read as follows:

13 *b.* The request has been signed by all fiduciaries acting on
14 behalf of the decedent or ward protected person.

15 Sec. 43. Section 633.78, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
16 2020, is amended to read as follows:

17 *a.* Damages sustained by the decedent’s or ward’s protected
18 person’s estate.

19 Sec. 44. Section 633.80, Code 2020, is amended to read as
20 follows:

21 **633.80 Fiduciary of a fiduciary.**

22 A fiduciary has no authority to act in a matter wherein the
23 fiduciary’s decedent or ward protected person was merely a
24 fiduciary, except that the fiduciary shall file a report and

25 accounting on behalf of the decedent or ward protected person
 26 in said matter.

27 Sec. 45. Section 633.93, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 28 follows:

29 **633.93 Limitation on actions affecting deeds.**

30 No action for recovery of any real estate sold by any
 31 fiduciary can be maintained by any person claiming under the
 32 deceased, the ward protected person, or a beneficiary, unless
 33 brought within five years after the date of the recording of
 34 the conveyance.

35 Sec. 46. Section 633.112, Code 2020, is amended to read as

PAGE 23

1 follows:

2 **633.112 Discovery of property.**

3 The court may require any person suspected of having
 4 possession of any property, including records and documents,
 5 of the decedent, ward protected person, or the estate, or of
 6 having had such property under the person's control, to appear
 7 and submit to an examination under oath touching such matters,
 8 and if on such examination it appears that the person has the
 9 wrongful possession of any such property, the court may order
 10 the delivery thereof to the fiduciary. Such a person shall be
 11 liable to the estate for all damages caused by the person's
 12 acts.

13 Sec. 47. Section 633.123, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 14 subparagraph (3), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

15 (3) The needs and rights of the beneficiaries or the ward
 16 protected person.

17 Sec. 48. Section 633.558, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 18 amended to read as follows:

19 3. Notice of the filing of a petition given to persons under
 20 ~~subsections subsection 2 and 3~~ shall include a statement that
 21 such persons may register to receive notice of the hearing
 22 on the petition and other proceedings and the manner of such
 23 registration.

24 Sec. 49. Section 633.560, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 25 amended to read as follows:

26 3. The court shall require the proposed guardian or
 27 conservator to attend the hearing on the petition but the court
 28 may excuse the proposed guardian's or conservator's attendance
 29 for good cause shown.

30 Sec. 50. Section 633.561, subsection 4, paragraphs c and f,
 31 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

32 c. Ensure that the respondent has been properly advised of
 33 the respondent's rights in a guardianship or conservatorship
 34 proceeding.

35 f. Ensure that the guardianship or conservatorship

PAGE 24

1 procedures conform to the statutory and due process
2 requirements of Iowa law.

3 Sec. 51. Section 633.561, subsection 5, paragraphs a and b,
4 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

5 *a.* Inform the respondent of the effects of the order entered
6 for appointment of guardian or conservator.

7 *b.* Advise the respondent of the respondent's rights to
8 petition for modification or termination of the guardianship
9 or conservatorship.

10 Sec. 52. Section 633.562, subsection 5, paragraphs a and b,
11 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

12 *a.* A recommendation regarding the appropriateness of a
13 limited guardianship or conservatorship for the respondent,
14 including whether less restrictive alternatives are available.

15 *b.* A statement of the qualifications of the guardian or
16 conservator together with a statement of whether the respondent
17 has expressed agreement with the appointment of the proposed
18 guardian or conservator.

19 Sec. 53. Section 633.580, subsections 1 and 4, Code 2020,
20 are amended to read as follows:

21 1. The name, age, and last known post office address of the
22 proposed ward protected person.

23 4. A general description of the property of the proposed
24 ward protected person within this state and of the proposed
25 ward's protected person's right to receive property; also, the
26 estimated present value of the real estate, the estimated value
27 of the personal property, and the estimated gross annual income
28 of the estate. If any money is payable, or to become payable,
29 to the proposed ward protected person by the United States
30 through the United States department of veterans affairs, the
31 petition shall so state.

32 Sec. 54. Section 633.591A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
33 follows:

34 **633.591A Voluntary petition for appointment of conservator**
35 **for a minor — standby basis.**

PAGE 25

1 A person having physical and legal custody of a minor
2 may execute a verified petition for the appointment of a
3 standby conservator of the proposed ward's protected person's
4 property, upon the express condition that the petition shall
5 be acted upon by the court only upon the occurrence of an event
6 specified or the existence of a described condition of the
7 mental or physical health of the petitioner, the occurrence
8 of which event, or the existence of which condition, shall be
9 established in the manner directed in the petition.

10 Sec. 55. Section 633.603, Code 2020, is amended to read as
11 follows:

12 **633.603 Appointment of foreign conservators.**

13 When there is no conservatorship, nor any application
14 therefor pending, in this state, the duly qualified foreign
15 conservator or guardian of a nonresident ward protected
16 person may, upon application, be appointed conservator of the
17 property of such person in this state; provided that a resident
18 conservator is appointed to serve with the foreign conservator;
19 and provided further, that for good cause shown, the court
20 may appoint the foreign conservator to act alone without the
21 appointment of a resident conservator.

22 Sec. 56. Section 633.604, Code 2020, is amended to read as
23 follows:

24 **633.604 Application.**

25 The application for appointment of a foreign conservator
26 or guardian as conservator in this state shall include the
27 name and address of the nonresident ward protected person, and
28 of the nonresident conservator or guardian, and the name and
29 address of the resident conservator to be appointed. It shall
30 be accompanied by a certified copy of the original letters
31 or other authority conferring the power upon the foreign
32 conservator or guardian to act as such. The application
33 shall also state the cause for the appointment of the foreign
34 conservator to act as sole conservator, if such be the case.

35 Sec. 57. Section 633.605, Code 2020, is amended to read as

PAGE 26

1 follows:

2 **633.605 Personal property.**

3 A foreign conservator or guardian of a nonresident may
4 be authorized by the court of the county wherein such ward
5 protected person has personal property to receive the same upon
6 compliance with the provisions of sections 633.606, 633.607 and
7 633.608.

8 Sec. 58. Section 633.607, Code 2020, is amended to read as
9 follows:

10 **633.607 Order for delivery.**

11 Upon the filing of the bond as above provided, and the court
12 being satisfied with the amount thereof, it shall order the
13 personal property of the ward protected person delivered to
14 such conservator or guardian.

15 Sec. 59. Section 633.633, Code 2020, is amended to read as
16 follows:

17 **633.633 Provisions applicable to all fiduciaries shall**
18 **govern.**

19 The provisions of this probate code applicable to all
20 fiduciaries shall govern the appointment, qualification, oath
21 and bond of guardians and conservators, except that a guardian
22 shall not be required to give bond unless the court, for good
23 cause, finds that the best interests of the ward protected
24 person require a bond. The court shall then fix the terms and
25 conditions of such bond.

26 Sec. 60. Section 633.633B, Code 2020, is amended to read as

27 follows:

28 **633.633B Tort liability of guardians and conservators.**

29 The fact that a person is a guardian or conservator shall not
30 in itself make the person personally liable for damages for the
31 acts of the ward protected person.

32 Sec. 61. Section 633.636, Code 2020, is amended to read as
33 follows:

34 **633.636 Effect of appointment of guardian or conservator.**

35 The appointment of a guardian or conservator shall not

PAGE 27

1 constitute an adjudication that the ward protected person is of
2 unsound mind.

3 Sec. 62. Section 633.637, Code 2020, is amended to read as
4 follows:

5 **633.637 Powers of ward protected person.**

6 1. A ward protected person for whom a conservator has been
7 appointed shall not have the power to convey, encumber, or
8 dispose of property in any manner, other than by will if the
9 ward protected person possesses the requisite testamentary
10 capacity, unless the court determines that the ward protected
11 person has a limited ability to handle the ward's protected
12 person's own funds. If the court makes such a finding, the
13 court shall specify to what extent the ward protected person
14 may possess and use the ward's protected person's own funds.

15 2. Any modification of the powers of the ward protected
16 person that would be more restrictive of the ward's protected
17 person's control over the ward's protected person's financial
18 affairs shall be based upon clear and convincing evidence
19 and the burden of persuasion is on the conservator. Any
20 modification that would be less restrictive of the ward's
21 protected person's control over the ward's protected person's
22 financial affairs shall be based upon proof in accordance with
23 the requirements of section 633.675.

24 Sec. 63. Section 633.637A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
25 follows:

26 **633.637A Rights of ward protected person under guardianship.**

27 An adult ward protected person under a guardianship has the
28 right of communication, visitation, or interaction with other
29 persons upon the consent of the adult ward protected person,
30 subject to section 633.635, subsection 2, paragraph "i", and
31 section 633.635, subsection 3, paragraph "c". If an adult ward
32 protected person is unable to give express consent to such
33 communication, visitation, or interaction with a person due
34 to a physical or mental condition, consent of an adult ward
35 protected person may be presumed by a guardian or a court based

PAGE 28

1 on an adult ward's protected person's prior relationship with
2 such person.

3 Sec. 64. Section 633.638, Code 2020, is amended to read as
4 follows:

5 **633.638 Presumption of fraud.**

6 If a conservator be appointed, all contracts, transfers and
7 gifts made by the ward protected person after the filing of the
8 petition shall be presumed to be a fraud against the rights
9 and interest of the ward protected person except as otherwise
10 directed by the court pursuant to section 633.637.

11 Sec. 65. Section 633.639, Code 2020, is amended to read as
12 follows:

13 **633.639 Title to ward's protected person's property.**

14 The title to all property of the ward protected person is
15 in the ward protected person and not the conservator subject,
16 however, to the possession of the conservator and to the
17 control of the court for the purposes of administration,
18 sale or other disposition, under the provisions of the
19 law. Any real property titled at any time in the name of a
20 conservatorship shall be deemed to be titled in the ward's
21 protected person's name subject to the conservator's right of
22 possession.

23 Sec. 66. Section 633.640, Code 2020, is amended to read as
24 follows:

25 **633.640 Conservator's right to possession.**

26 Every conservator shall have a right to, and shall take,
27 possession of all of the real and personal property of the
28 ward protected person. The conservator shall pay the taxes
29 and collect the income therefrom until the conservatorship is
30 terminated. The conservator may maintain an action for the
31 possession of the property, and to determine the title to the
32 same.

33 Sec. 67. Section 633.643, Code 2020, is amended to read as
34 follows:

35 **633.643 Disposal of will by conservator.**

PAGE 29

1 When an instrument purporting to be the will of the ward
2 protected person comes into the hands of a conservator, the
3 conservator shall immediately deliver it to the court.

4 Sec. 68. Section 633.644, Code 2020, is amended to read as
5 follows:

6 **633.644 Court order to preserve testamentary intent of ward**
7 **protected person.**

8 Upon receiving an instrument purporting to be the will of a
9 living ward protected person under the provisions of section
10 633.643, the court may open said will and read it. The court
11 with or without notice, as it may determine, may enter such
12 orders in the conservatorship as it deems advisable for the
13 proper administration of the conservatorship in light of the
14 expressed testamentary intent of the ward protected person.

15 Sec. 69. Section 633.645, Code 2020, is amended to read as
16 follows:

17 **633.645 Court to deliver will to clerk.**

18 An instrument purporting to be the will of a ward protected
19 person coming into the hands of the court under the provisions
20 of section 633.643, shall thereafter be resealed by the court
21 and be deposited with the clerk to be held by said clerk as
22 provided in sections 633.286 through 633.289.

23 Sec. 70. Section 633.653A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
24 follows:

25 **633.653A Claims for cost of medical care or services.**

26 The provision of medical care or services to a ward protected
27 person who is a recipient of medical assistance under chapter
28 249A creates a claim against the conservatorship for the amount
29 owed to the provider under the medical assistance program for
30 the care or services. The amount of the claim, after being
31 allowed or established as provided in this part, shall be paid
32 by the conservator from the assets of the conservatorship.

33 Sec. 71. Section 633.654, Code 2020, is amended to read as
34 follows:

35 **633.654 Form and verification of claims — general**

PAGE 30

1 **requirements.**

2 No claim shall be allowed against the estate of a ward
3 protected person upon application of the claimant unless
4 it shall be in writing, filed in duplicate with the clerk,
5 stating the claimant's name and address, and describing the
6 nature and the amount thereof, if ascertainable. It shall be
7 accompanied by the affidavit of the claimant, or of someone for
8 the claimant, that the amount is justly due, or if not due,
9 when it will or may become due, that no payments have been
10 made thereon which are not credited, and that there are no
11 offsets to the same, to the knowledge of the affiant, except as
12 therein stated. The duplicate of said claim shall be mailed
13 by the clerk to the conservator or the conservator's attorney
14 of record; however, valid contract claims arising in the
15 ordinary course of the conduct of the business or affairs of
16 the ward protected person by the conservator may be paid by the
17 conservator without requiring affidavit or filing.

18 Sec. 72. Section 633.656, Code 2020, is amended to read as
19 follows:

20 **633.656 How claim entitled.**

21 All claims filed against the estate of the ward protected
22 person shall be entitled in the name of the claimant against
23 the conservator as such, naming the conservator, and in all
24 further proceedings thereon, this title shall be preserved.

25 Sec. 73. Section 633.660, Code 2020, is amended to read as
26 follows:

27 **633.660 Execution and levy prohibited.**

28 No execution shall issue upon, nor shall any levy be made
29 against, any property of the estate of a ward protected person
30 under any judgment against the ward protected person or a

31 conservator, but the provisions of this section shall not be so
 32 construed as to prevent the enforcement of a mortgage, pledge,
 33 or other lien upon property in an appropriate proceeding.
 34 Sec. 74. Section 633.661, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 35 follows:

PAGE 31

1 **633.661 Claims of conservators.**

2 If the conservator is a creditor of the ward protected
 3 person, the conservator shall file the claim as other
 4 creditors, and the court shall appoint some competent person as
 5 temporary conservator to represent the ward protected person
 6 at the hearing on the conservator's claim. The same procedure
 7 shall be followed in the case of coconservators where all
 8 such conservators are creditors of the ward protected person;
 9 but if one of the coconservators is not a creditor of the
 10 ward protected person, such disinterested conservator shall
 11 represent the ward protected person at the hearing on any claim
 12 against the ward protected person by a coconservator.

13 Sec. 75. Section 633.662, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 14 follows:

15 **633.662 Claims not filed.**

16 The conservator may pay any valid claim against the estate of
 17 the ward protected person even though such claim has not been
 18 filed, but all such payments made by the conservator shall be
 19 at the conservator's own peril.

20 Sec. 76. Section 633.664, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 21 follows:

22 **633.664 Liens not affected by failure to file claim.**

23 Nothing in sections 633.654 and 633.658 shall affect or
 24 prevent an action or proceeding to enforce any mortgage,
 25 pledge, or other lien upon the property of the ward protected
 26 person.

27 Sec. 77. Section 633.665, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 28 follows:

29 **633.665 Separate actions and claims.**

30 1. Any action pending against the ward protected person at
 31 the time the conservator is appointed shall also be considered
 32 a claim filed in the conservatorship if notice of substitution
 33 is served on the conservator as defendant and a duplicate of
 34 the proof of service of notice of such proceeding is filed in
 35 the conservatorship proceeding.

PAGE 32

1 2. A separate action based on a debt or other liability
 2 of the ward protected person may be commenced against the
 3 conservator in lieu of filing a claim in the conservatorship.
 4 Such an action shall be commenced by serving an original notice
 5 on the conservator and filing a duplicate of the proof of
 6 service of notice of such proceeding in the conservatorship

7 proceeding. Such an action shall also be considered a claim
8 filed in the conservatorship. Such an action may be commenced
9 only in a county where the venue would have been proper if
10 there were no conservatorship and the action had been commenced
11 against the ward protected person.

12 Sec. 78. Section 633.667, Code 2020, is amended to read as
13 follows:

14 **633.667 Payment of claims in insolvent conservatorships.**

15 When it appears that the assets in a conservatorship are
16 insufficient to pay in full all the claims against such
17 conservatorship, the conservator shall report such matter to
18 the court, and the court shall, upon hearing, with notice to
19 all persons who have filed claims in the conservatorship, make
20 an order for the pro rata payment of claims giving claimants
21 the same priority, if any, as they would have if the ward
22 protected person were not under conservatorship.

23 Sec. 79. Section 633.668, Code 2020, is amended to read as
24 follows:

25 **633.668 Conservator may make gifts.**

26 For good cause shown and under order of court, a conservator
27 may make gifts on behalf of the ward protected person out of
28 the assets under a conservatorship to persons or religious,
29 educational, scientific, charitable, or other nonprofit
30 organizations to whom or to which such gifts were regularly
31 made prior to the commencement of the conservatorship, or on
32 a showing to the court that such gifts would benefit the ward
33 protected person or the ward's protected person's estate from
34 the standpoint of income, gift, estate or inheritance taxes.
35 The making of gifts out of the assets must not foreseeably

PAGE 33

1 impair the ability to provide adequately for the best interests
2 of the ward protected person.

3 Sec. 80. Section 633.673, Code 2020, is amended to read as
4 follows:

5 **633.673 Court costs in guardianships.**

6 The ward protected person or the ward's protected person's
7 estate shall be charged with the court costs of a ward's
8 protected person's guardianship, including the guardian's fees
9 and the fees of the attorney for the guardian. The court
10 may, upon application, enter an order waiving payment of the
11 court costs in indigent cases. However, if the ward protected
12 person or ward's protected person's estate becomes financially
13 capable of paying any waived costs, the costs shall be paid
14 immediately.

15 Sec. 81. Section 633.676, Code 2020, is amended to read as
16 follows:

17 **633.676 Assets exhausted.**

18 At any time that the assets of the ward's protected person's
19 estate do not exceed the amount of the charges and claims
20 against it, the court may direct the conservator to proceed to

21 terminate the conservatorship.

22 Sec. 82. Section 633.677, Code 2020, is amended to read as
23 follows:

24 **633.677 Accounting to ward protected person — notice.**

25 Upon the termination of a conservatorship, the conservator
26 shall pay the costs of administration and shall render a full
27 and complete accounting to the ward protected person or the
28 ward's protected person's personal representative and to the
29 court. Notice of the final report of a conservator shall be
30 served on the ward protected person or the ward's protected
31 person's personal representative, in accordance with section
32 633.40, unless notice is waived. An order prescribing notice
33 may be made before or after the filing of the final report.

34 Sec. 83. Section 633.681, Code 2020, is amended to read as
35 follows:

PAGE 34

1 **633.681 Assets of minor ward protected person exhausted.**

2 When the assets of a minor ward's protected person's
3 conservatorship are exhausted or consist of personal property
4 only of an aggregate value not in excess of twenty-five
5 thousand dollars, the court, upon application or upon its
6 own motion, may terminate the conservatorship. The order
7 for termination shall direct the conservator to deliver any
8 property remaining after the payment of allowed claims and
9 expenses of administration to a custodian under any uniform
10 transfers to minors Act. Such delivery shall have the same
11 force and effect as if delivery had been made to the ward
12 protected person after attaining majority.

13 Sec. 84. Section 633.682, Code 2020, is amended to read as
14 follows:

15 **633.682 Discharge of conservator and release of bond.**

16 Upon settlement of the final accounting of a conservator,
17 and upon determining that the property of the ward protected
18 person has been delivered to the person or persons lawfully
19 entitled thereto, the court shall discharge the conservator and
20 exonerate the surety on the conservator's bond.>

21 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and
22 inserting <An Act relating to the opening, administration,
23 and termination of adult and minor guardianships and
24 conservatorships, and including effective date and retroactive
25 applicability provisions.>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8170

1 Amend Senate File 2321, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:

5 <DIVISION I
6 MINOR GUARDIANSHIPS

7 Section 1. Section 232.3, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
8 amended to read as follows:

9 1. During the pendency of an action under this chapter, a
10 party to the action is estopped from litigating concurrently
11 the custody, guardianship, or placement of a child who is the
12 subject of the action, in a court other than the juvenile court
13 with jurisdiction of the pending action under this chapter. A
14 district judge, district associate judge, juvenile court judge,
15 magistrate, or judicial hospitalization referee, upon notice
16 of the pendency of an action under this chapter, shall not
17 issue an order, finding, or decision relating to the custody,
18 guardianship, or placement of the child who is the subject of
19 the action, under any law, including but not limited to chapter
20 232D, 598, or 598B; ~~or 633.~~

21 Sec. 2. Section 232.3, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
22 following new subsection:

23 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. An action which is pending under chapter
24 232D prior to an action being brought under this chapter shall
25 be stayed by the court in the chapter 232D action unless the
26 court follows the procedures in subsection 2 and authorizes a
27 party to the action to litigate a specific issue under this
28 chapter.

29 Sec. 3. Section 232D.103, Code 2020, is amended to read as
30 follows:

31 **232D.103 Jurisdiction.**

32 The juvenile court has exclusive jurisdiction in a
33 guardianship proceeding concerning a minor who is alleged to be
34 in need of a guardianship, and guardianships of minors.

35 Sec. 4. Section 232D.105, subsection 1, Code 2020, is

PAGE 2

1 amended to read as follows:

2 1. A petition alleging that a minor is in need of a
3 conservatorship is not subject to this chapter. Such
4 proceedings shall be governed by chapter 633 and may be
5 initiated pursuant to section ~~633.627~~ 633.557.

6 Sec. 5. NEW SECTION. 232D.107 Confidentiality.

7 Official juvenile court records in guardianship proceedings
8 shall be confidential and are not public records. Confidential
9 records may be inspected and their contents shall be disclosed
10 to the following without court order, provided that a person
11 or entity who inspects or receives a confidential record under
12 this section shall not disclose the confidential record or its
13 contents unless required by law:

- 14 1. The judge and professional court staff.
- 15 2. The minor and the minor's counsel.
- 16 3. The minor's parent, guardian or custodian, court
17 visitor, and any counsel representing such person.

18 Sec. 6. Section 232D.301, subsection 2, paragraph d,

19 subparagraph (3), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

20 (3) Any adult who has had the primary care of the minor or
 21 with whom the minor has lived for at least any time during the
 22 six months prior to immediately preceding the filing of the
 23 petition.

24 Sec. 7. Section 232D.301, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 25 amended to read as follows:

26 4. The petition shall state whether a limited guardianship
 27 is appropriate, and whether a conservatorship for the minor is
 28 needed or already in existence.

29 Sec. 8. Section 232D.302, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 30 amended to read as follows:

31 2. Notice shall be served upon the minor's known parents
 32 listed in the petition in accordance with the rules of civil
 33 procedure. If the parent has not filed a consent to the
 34 appointment of a guardian, the notice shall inform any parent
 35 named in the petition that the parent may be entitled to

PAGE 3

1 representation under the conditions described in section
 2 232D.304.

3 Sec. 9. Section 232D.305, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:

5 1. The court may appoint a court visitor for the minor. A
 6 person is qualified to serve as a court visitor if the court
 7 determines the person has demonstrated sufficient knowledge of
 8 guardianships to adequately perform the duties in subsection 3.

9 Sec. 10. Section 232D.306, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 10 the following new subsection:

11 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. A hearing on the petition may be
 12 recorded if a court reporter is not used.

13 Sec. 11. Section 232D.307, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020,
 14 are amended to read as follows:

15 1. The court shall request criminal record checks and checks
 16 of the child abuse, dependent adult abuse, and sex offender
 17 registries in this state for all proposed guardians other than
 18 financial institutions with Iowa trust powers unless a proposed
 19 guardian has undergone the required background checks in this
 20 section within the ~~twelve~~ six months prior to the filing of
 21 a petition and the background check has been provided to the
 22 court.

23 2. The court shall review the results of background
 24 checks in determining the suitability of a proposed guardian
 25 for appointment, and may, for good cause, share with the
 26 respondent, the respondent's attorney, and the protected
 27 person's attorney, the results of background checks.

28 Sec. 12. Section 232D.401, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 29 amended to read as follows:

30 1. The order by the court appointing a guardian for a minor
 31 shall state the basis for the order and the date on which the
 32 first reporting period for the guardianship will end.

33 Sec. 13. Section 232D.401, subsection 3, unnumbered
34 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
35 An order by the court appointing a guardian for a minor shall

PAGE 4

1 state the powers granted to the guardian. Except as otherwise
2 limited by court order, the court may grant the guardian the
3 following powers, which may be exercised without ~~prior~~ further
4 court approval:

5 Sec. 14. Section 232D.401, subsection 3, paragraph e, Code
6 2020, is amended to read as follows:

7 e. Applying for and receiving funds and benefits payable
8 for the support of the minor if the minor does not have a
9 conservator. If the minor has a conservator, the guardian
10 shall notify the conservator at least ten days before applying
11 for funds or benefits for the support of the minor.

12 Sec. 15. Section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph a,
13 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
14 follows:

15 A verified initial care plan filed within sixty days of
16 appointment. The information, to the extent known, in the
17 initial care plan shall include but not be limited to the
18 following information:

19 Sec. 16. Section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
20 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
21 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (2A) The guardian's plan, if any, for
22 applying for and receiving funds and benefits payable for the
23 support of the minor.

24 Sec. 17. Section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph b,
25 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
26 follows:

27 A verified annual report filed within thirty days of the
28 close of the reporting period. The information, to the extent
29 known, in the annual report shall include but not be limited
30 to the following information:

31 Sec. 18. Section 232D.501, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
32 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraphs:
33 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (11) The results of the guardian's
34 efforts to apply for funds or benefits for the minor, and
35 an accounting for the use of such funds or benefits by the

PAGE 5

1 guardian.
2 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (12) Any other information the guardian
3 deems necessary for the court to consider.

4 Sec. 19. Section 232D.501, Code 2020, is amended by adding
5 the following new subsections:

6 NEW SUBSECTION. 5. A copy of the verified initial care plan
7 and verified annual report shall be served, annually, on the
8 protected person, the protected person's attorney, if any, and

9 court visitor, if any.

10 NEW SUBSECTION. 6. The court, for good cause, may extend
11 the deadline for filing required reports. Required reports of
12 a guardian which are not timely filed and which are delinquent,
13 and for which no extension for filing has been granted by the
14 court, shall be administered in the same manner as provided in
15 section 633.32.

16 DIVISION II

17 ADULT GUARDIANSHIPS AND MINOR AND ADULT CONSERVATORSHIPS

18 Sec. 20. Section 235B.6, subsection 2, paragraph d, Code
19 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
20 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (7) To a district court conducting
21 checks of the dependent adult abuse registry for all proposed
22 guardians and conservators pursuant to section 633.564.

23 Sec. 21. Section 633.556, subsections 4, 5, and 8, Code
24 2020, are amended to read as follows:

25 4. The petition shall list the name and address of the
26 ~~petitioner and the petitioner's relationship to the respondent.~~
27 following:

28 a. The respondent.

29 b. The petitioner and the petitioner's relationship to the
30 respondent.

31 c. The proposed guardian or conservator and the reason the
32 proposed guardian or conservator should be selected.

33 5. The petition shall list the name and address, to the
34 extent known, of the following:

35 ~~a. The name and address of the proposed guardian and the~~

PAGE 6

1 ~~reason the proposed guardian should be selected.~~

2 ~~b. a.~~ Any spouse of the respondent.

3 ~~c. b.~~ Any adult children of the respondent.

4 ~~d. c.~~ Any parents of the respondent.

5 ~~e. d.~~ Any adult, who has had the primary care of the
6 respondent or with whom the respondent has lived for ~~at least~~
7 any time during the six months prior to immediately preceding
8 the filing of the petition, or any institution or facility
9 where the respondent has resided ~~for at least six months prior~~
10 to any time during the six months immediately preceding the
11 filing of the petition.

12 ~~f. e.~~ Any legal representative or representative payee of
13 the respondent.

14 ~~g. f.~~ Any person designated as an attorney in fact in a
15 durable power of attorney for health care which is valid under
16 chapter 144B, or any person designated as an agent in a durable
17 power of attorney which is valid under chapter 633B.

18 8. ~~The~~ A petition for conservator shall provide a brief
19 description of the respondent's alleged functional limitations
20 that make the respondent unable to communicate or carry out
21 important decisions concerning the respondent's financial
22 affairs. A petition for guardianship shall provide a brief

23 description of the respondent's alleged functional limitations
24 that make the respondent unable to provide for the respondent's
25 safety, care, or necessities.

26 Sec. 22. Section 633.561, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
27 2020, is amended to read as follows:

28 *a. If the respondent is an adult and is not the petitioner*
29 *Except as provided in paragraph "b", the respondent is entitled*
30 *to representation by an attorney. Upon the filing of the*
31 *petition, the court shall appoint an attorney to represent the*
32 *respondent, set a hearing on the petition, and provide for*
33 *notice of the appointment of counsel and the date for hearing.*

34 Sec. 23. Section 633.561, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
35 amended to read as follows:

PAGE 7

1 6. If the court determines that it would be in the
2 respondent's best interest to have legal representation
3 with respect to any further proceedings in a guardianship
4 or conservatorship, the court may appoint an attorney to
5 represent the respondent at the expense of the respondent or
6 the respondent's estate, or if the respondent is indigent the
7 cost of the court appointed attorney shall be assessed against
8 the county in which the proceedings are pending.

9 Sec. 24. Section 633.562, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
10 amended to read as follows:

11 1. If the court determines that the appointment of a court
12 visitor would be in the best interest of the respondent, the
13 court shall appoint a court visitor at the expense of the
14 respondent or the respondent's estate, or, if the respondent
15 is indigent, the cost of the court visitor shall be assessed
16 against the county in which the proceedings are pending. The
17 court may appoint any qualified person as a court visitor in
18 a guardianship or conservatorship proceeding. A person is
19 qualified to serve in this capacity if the court determines the
20 person has demonstrated sufficient knowledge of guardianships
21 or conservatorships to adequately perform the duties in
22 subsection 3.

23 Sec. 25. Section 633.562, Code 2020, is amended by adding
24 the following new subsection:

25 **NEW SUBSECTION. 7.** A court visitor shall be discharged
26 from all further duties upon appointment of a guardian or
27 conservator, unless otherwise ordered by the court. The court
28 may order a court visitor to continue to serve if the court
29 determines continued service would be in the best interest of
30 the protected person. If the court continues the service of
31 the court visitor, the court may limit the direct duties of the
32 court visitor as the court deems necessary. The court visitor
33 shall thereafter continue to serve until discharged by the
34 court.

35 Sec. 26. Section 633.563, subsection 7, unnumbered

PAGE 8

1 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

2 The results of the evaluation ordered by the court shall be
3 ~~made available to~~ filed with the court and made available to
4 the following:

5 Sec. 27. Section 633.564, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020,
6 are amended to read as follows:

7 1. The court shall request criminal record checks and
8 checks of the child abuse, dependent adult abuse, and sexual
9 offender registries in this state for all proposed guardians
10 and conservators, other than financial institutions with Iowa
11 trust powers, unless a proposed guardian or conservator has
12 undergone the required background checks required by this
13 section within the six months prior to the filing of a petition
14 and the background check has been provided to the court.

15 2. The court shall review the results of background checks
16 in determining the suitability of a proposed guardian or
17 conservator for appointment, and may, for good cause, share
18 with the respondent, the respondent's attorney, and the
19 protected person's attorney, the results of the background
20 checks.

21 Sec. 28. Section 633.569, Code 2020, is amended to read as
22 follows:

23 **633.569 Emergency appointment of temporary guardian or**
24 **conservator.**

25 1. A person authorized to file a petition under section
26 ~~633.552, 633.553, or 633.554~~ 633.556 or 633.557 may file an
27 application for the emergency appointment of a temporary
28 guardian or conservator.

29 2. Such application shall state all of the following:

30 a. The name and address of the respondent.

31 Ob. The name and address of the petitioner and the
32 petitioner's relationship to the respondent.

33 b. The name and address of the proposed guardian or
34 conservator and the reason the proposed guardian or conservator
35 should be selected.

PAGE 9

1 Oc. The names and addresses, to the extent known, of any
2 other persons who must be named in the petition for appointment
3 of a guardian or conservator under section 633.556 or 633.557.

4 c. The reason the emergency appointment of a temporary
5 guardian or conservator is sought.

6 3. The court may enter an ex parte order appointing a
7 temporary guardian or conservator on an emergency basis
8 under this section if the court finds by clear and convincing
9 evidence that all of the following conditions are met:

10 a. There is not sufficient time to file a petition and hold
11 a hearing pursuant to section ~~633.552, 633.553, or 633.554~~
12 633.556, 633.557, or 633.560.

- 13 b. The appointment of a temporary guardian or conservator
14 is necessary to avoid immediate or irreparable harm to the
15 respondent before a hearing with notice to the respondent can
16 be held.
- 17 c. There is reason to believe that the basis for appointment
18 of guardian or conservator exists under section ~~633.552,~~
19 ~~633.553, or 633.554~~ 633.556 or 633.557.
- 20 04. Immediately on filing of an application for the
21 emergency appointment of a temporary guardian or conservator,
22 the court shall appoint an attorney to represent the respondent
23 in the proceeding.
- 24 4. Notice of a petition for the appointment of a temporary
25 guardian or conservator and the issuance of an ex parte
26 order appointing a temporary guardian or conservator shall be
27 provided not later than forty-eight hours after the issuance of
28 the order of appointment to the respondent, the respondent's
29 attorney, and any other person the court determines should
30 receive notice. Notice shall be provided by personal service
31 unless otherwise directed by the court.
- 32 5. ~~Upon the issuance of an ex parte order, if the respondent~~
33 ~~is an adult, the respondent may file a request for a hearing.~~
34 ~~If the respondent is a minor, the respondent, a parent having~~
35 ~~legal custody of the respondent, or any other person having~~

PAGE 10

- 1 legal custody of the respondent may file a written request for
2 a hearing. ~~Such hearing shall be held no later than seven days~~
3 ~~after the filing of a written request~~ A hearing shall be held
4 not more than seven days after the issuance of an ex parte
5 order appointing a temporary guardian or conservator.
- 6 6. The powers of the temporary guardian or conservator
7 set forth in the order of the court shall be limited to those
8 necessary to address the emergency situation requiring the
9 appointment of a temporary guardian or conservator.
- 10 7. The temporary guardianship or conservatorship shall
11 terminate within ~~thirty~~ sixty days after the order is issued.
- 12 8. The court may extend the duration of the temporary
13 guardianship or conservatorship for good cause beyond the sixty
14 days if the court determines after a hearing that the temporary
15 guardianship or conservatorship should continue. An extension
16 shall not be for more than sixty days at a time.
- 17 9. The temporary guardian or conservator shall submit any
18 report the court requires.
- 19 Sec. 29. Section 633.635, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
20 amended to read as follows:
- 21 1. The order by the court appointing a guardian shall state
22 the basis for the guardianship pursuant to section 633.552
23 and the date on which the first reporting period for the
24 guardianship shall end.
- 25 Sec. 30. Section 633.641, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
26 amended to read as follows:

27 3. ~~If a protected person has executed a valid power of~~
 28 ~~attorney under chapter 633B, the conservator shall act in~~
 29 ~~accordance with the applicable provisions of chapter 633B~~
 30 If the court appoints a conservator for a protected person
 31 who has previously executed a valid power of attorney under
 32 chapter 633B, the power of attorney is suspended unless the
 33 power of attorney provides otherwise or the court appointing
 34 the conservator orders that the power of attorney should
 35 continue. If the power of attorney continues, the agent is

PAGE 11

1 accountable to the conservator as well as the principal. The
 2 power of attorney shall be reinstated upon termination of the
 3 conservatorship for reasons other than the protected person's
 4 death.
 5 Sec. 31. Section 633.642, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code
 6 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 7 Except as otherwise ordered by the court, and except
 8 for those powers relating to all fiduciaries as set out in
 9 sections 633.63 through 633.162 which may be exercised without
 10 approval of the court unless expressly modified by the court,
 11 a conservator must give notice to persons entitled to notice
 12 and receive specific prior authorization by the court before
 13 the conservator may take any other action on behalf of the
 14 protected person. ~~These other powers~~ Powers requiring court
 15 approval include, but are not limited to the authority of the
 16 conservator to:

17 Sec. 32. Section 633.669, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 18 follows:
 19 **633.669 Reporting requirements — assistance by clerk Reports**
 20 **by guardians.**

21 1. A guardian appointed by the court under this chapter
 22 shall file with the court the following ~~written~~ verified
 23 reports which shall not be waived by the court:
 24 a. An initial care plan filed within sixty days of
 25 appointment. The information, to the extent known, in the
 26 initial care plan shall include but not be limited to the
 27 following information:
 28 (1) The current residence of the protected person and the
 29 guardian's plan for the protected person's living arrangements.
 30 (2) The current sources of payment for the protected
 31 person's living expenses and other expenses, and the guardian's
 32 plan for payment of the protected person's living expenses and
 33 other expenses.
 34 (3) The protected person's health status and health care
 35 needs, and the guardian's plan for meeting the protected

PAGE 12

1 person's ~~needs for medical, dental, and other~~ health care
 2 needs.

- 3 (3A) Whether the protected person has a living will or
4 health care power of attorney.
- 5 (4) If applicable, the protected person's need for other
6 professional services for mental, behavioral, or emotional
7 health, and the guardian's plan for other professional services
8 needed by the protected person.
- 9 (5) If applicable, the protected person's employment
10 status, the protected person's need for educational, training,
11 or vocational services, and the guardian's plan for meeting the
12 educational, training, and vocational needs of the protected
13 person.
- 14 (6) If applicable, the guardian's plan for facilitating the
15 participation of the protected person in social activities.
- 16 (7) The guardian's plan for facilitating contacts between
17 the protected person and the protected person's family members
18 and other ~~significant~~ persons significant in the life of the
19 protected person.
- 20 (8) The guardian's plan for contact with, and activities on
21 behalf of, the protected person.
- 22 (9) The powers that the guardian requests to carry out the
23 initial care plan.
- 24 (10) The guardian shall file an amended plan when there
25 has been a significant change in the circumstances or the
26 guardian seeks to deviate significantly from the plan. The
27 guardian must obtain court approval of the amended plan before
28 implementing any of its provisions.
- 29 b. An annual report, filed within sixty days of the close
30 of the reporting period, ~~unless the court otherwise orders~~
31 ~~on good cause shown.~~ The information in the annual report
32 shall include but not be limited to, to the extent known, the
33 following information:
- 34 (1) The current living arrangements of the protected
35 person.

PAGE 13

- 1 (2) The sources of payment for the protected person's living
2 expenses and other expenses.
- 3 (3) A description, if applicable, of the following:
- 4 (a) The protected person's ~~physical and mental health~~
5 ~~status and the medical, dental, and other professional health~~
6 services provided to the protected person.
- 7 (b) If applicable, the protected person's employment status
8 and the educational, training, and vocational services provided
9 to the protected person.
- 10 (0c) The guardian's facilitation of the participation of
11 the protected person in social activities.
- 12 (c) The contact of the protected person with family members
13 and other significant persons.
- 14 (d) The nature and extent of the guardian's visits with, and
15 activities on behalf of, the protected person.
- 16 (04) The guardian's changes to the care plan for the

17 protected person for the next annual reporting period.
 18 (004) The powers that the guardian requests to carry out
 19 the care plan for the protected person for the next annual
 20 reporting period.
 21 (4) The guardian's recommendation as to the need for
 22 continuation of the guardianship.
 23 (5) The ability of the guardian to continue as guardian.
 24 (6) The need of the guardian for assistance in providing or
 25 arranging for the provision of the care and protection of the
 26 protected person.
 27 (7) Any other information the guardian deems necessary for
 28 the court to consider.
 29 c. A final report within thirty days of the termination
 30 of the guardianship under section 633.675 unless that time is
 31 extended by the court.
 32 2. The court shall develop a simplified uniform reporting
 33 form for use in filing the required reports.
 34 3. The clerk of the court shall notify the guardian in
 35 writing of the reporting requirements and shall provide

PAGE 14

1 information and assistance to the guardian in filing the
 2 reports.
 3 4. Reports of guardians shall be reviewed and approved by a
 4 district court judge or referee.
 5 5. The court, for good cause, may extend the deadline for
 6 filing required reports. Required reports of a guardian which
 7 are not timely filed and which are delinquent, and for which no
 8 extension for filing has been granted by the court, shall be
 9 administered as provided in section 633.32.
 10 Sec. 33. Section 633.669, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 11 the following new subsection:
 12 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 5. A copy of the verified initial care plan
 13 and verified annual report shall be served, annually, on the
 14 protected person, the protected person's attorney, if any, and
 15 court visitor, if any.
 16 Sec. 34. Section 633.670, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 17 follows:
 18 **633.670 Reports by conservators.**
 19 1. A conservator shall file ~~an~~ a verified initial financial
 20 management plan for protecting, managing, investing, expending,
 21 and distributing the assets of the conservatorship estate
 22 within ninety days after appointment which shall not be waived
 23 by the court. The plan must be based on the needs of the
 24 protected person and take into account the best interest of the
 25 protected person as well as the protected person's preference,
 26 values, and prior directions to the extent known to, or
 27 reasonably ascertainable by, the conservator.
 28 ~~a. The initial plan shall include all of the following:~~ The
 29 initial financial management plan shall state the protected
 30 person's age, residence, living arrangements, and sources of

31 payment for living expenses.
 32 (1) A budget containing projected expenses and resources,
 33 including an estimate of the total amount of fees the
 34 conservator anticipates charging per year and a statement or
 35 list of the amount the conservator proposes to charge for each

PAGE 15

1 service the conservator anticipates providing to the protected
 2 person.
 3 (2) A statement as to how the conservator will involve
 4 the protected person in decisions about management of the
 5 conservatorship estate.
 6 (3) If ordered by the court, any step the conservator plans
 7 to take to develop or restore the ability of the protected
 8 person to manage the conservatorship estate.
 9 (4) An estimate of the duration of the conservatorship.
 10 b. If applicable, the protected person's will shall be filed
 11 with the court clerk and the protected person's prepaid burial
 12 trust and powers of attorney shall be described.
 13 c. The conservator shall include a proposed budget for the
 14 protected person and budget-related information for the next
 15 annual reporting period including all of the following:
 16 (1) The protected person's receipts and income and the
 17 projected source of income, if applicable, and the total
 18 estimated receipts and income.
 19 (2) The protected person's liabilities and debts and the
 20 total estimated liabilities and debts; a list and explanation
 21 of any liability or debt owed by the protected person to the
 22 conservator; a list and explanation of the liability of any
 23 other person for a liability of the protected person.
 24 (3) The protected person's estimated expenses on a
 25 monthly and annual basis including conservator fees and other
 26 administrative expenses.
 27 d. The conservator shall include a list of the protected
 28 person's assets and the conservator's plan for management of
 29 these assets.
 30 e. The conservator shall include a statement as to how the
 31 conservator will involve the protected person in decisions
 32 about management of the conservatorship estate.
 33 f. If ordered by the court, the conservator shall include
 34 any action the conservator plans to take to develop or
 35 restore the ability of the protected person to manage the

PAGE 16

1 conservatorship estate.
 2 g. The conservator shall include the authority that the
 3 conservator requests to carry out the initial financial plan
 4 including expenditures in accordance with the proposed budget
 5 for the protected person and the plan for the management of the
 6 assets of the protected person for the next annual reporting

7 period.

8 *b. h.* Within two days after filing the initial plan, the
 9 The conservator shall give provide notice of the filing of
 10 the initial plan with and a copy of the initial plan to the
 11 protected person, the protected person's attorney, if any, and
 12 court advisor visitor, if any, and others as directed by the
 13 court. The notice must state that any person entitled to a
 14 copy of the plan must file any objections to the plan not later
 15 than fifteen days after it is filed twenty days from the date
 16 of mailing notice of filing the initial plan.

17 *e. i.* At least If no objections have been filed within
 18 twenty days after the plan has been filed, the court shall
 19 review and determine whether the plan should be approved or
 20 revised, after considering objections filed and whether the
 21 plan is consistent with the conservator's powers and duties
 22 mailing notice of filing the initial plan, the conservator
 23 shall submit a proposed order to the court approving the
 24 initial plan. Upon the court's approval of the plan under
 25 this subsection, the conservator shall provide a copy of the
 26 approved plan and order approving the plan to the protected
 27 person, the protected person's attorney, if any, and court
 28 visitor, if any, and others as directed by the court.

29 *d. j.* After approval by the court, the conservator shall
 30 provide a copy of the approved plan and order approving the
 31 plan to the protected person, the protected person's attorney
 32 and court advisor, if any, and others as directed by the court
 33 If any objections to the proposed plan are filed within twenty
 34 days after the conservator has mailed notice of filing the
 35 plan, the court shall set the matter for hearing and provide

PAGE 17

1 notice of the hearing date, time, and place to the same parties
 2 who were sent copies of the initial plan. Following the
 3 hearing on the conservator's proposed plan, the conservator
 4 shall provide a copy of the approved plan and order approving
 5 the plan to the protected person, the protected person's
 6 attorney, if any, and court visitor, if any, and others as
 7 directed by the court.

8 *e. k.* The conservator shall file an amended plan when
 9 there has been a significant change in circumstances or the
 10 conservator seeks to deviate significantly from the plan.
 11 Before the amended plan is implemented, the provisions for
 12 court approval of the plan shall be followed as provided in
 13 paragraphs "b", "e", and "d" the initial financial management
 14 plan.

15 2. A conservator shall file attach an inventory of the
 16 protected person's assets within ninety days after appointment
 17 and debts to the initial financial management plan, which
 18 includes an oath or affirmation that the inventory is believed
 19 to be complete and accurate as far as information permits.
 20 Copies of the inventory shall be provided to the protected

21 person, the protected person's attorney, if any, and court
 22 ~~advisor~~ visitor, if any, and others as directed by the
 23 court. When the conservator receives additional property
 24 of the protected person, or becomes aware of its existence,
 25 a description of the property shall be included in the
 26 conservator's next annual report.
 27 3. A conservator shall file a ~~written and~~ verified report on
 28 an annual basis for the period since the end of the preceding
 29 report period. ~~The court which~~ shall not waive these reports
 30 be waived by the court.
 31 ~~a. These reports shall include all of the following: The~~
 32 annual report shall state the age, the residence and the living
 33 arrangements of the protected person, and sources of payment
 34 for the protected person's living expenses during the reporting
 35 period.

PAGE 18

1 (1) ~~Balance of funds on hand at the beginning and end of the~~
 2 ~~period.~~
 3 ~~(2) Disbursements made.~~
 4 ~~(3) Changes in the conservator's plan.~~
 5 ~~(4) List of assets as of the end of the period.~~
 6 ~~(5) Bond amount and surety's name.~~
 7 ~~(6) Residence and physical location of the protected~~
 8 ~~person.~~
 9 ~~(7) General physical and mental condition of the protected~~
 10 ~~person.~~
 11 ~~(8) Other information reflecting the condition of the~~
 12 ~~conservatorship estate.~~
 13 ~~b. These reports shall be filed: The conservator shall~~
 14 submit with the annual report an inventory of the assets of the
 15 protected person as of the last day of the reporting period the
 16 total value of assets at the beginning and end of the reporting
 17 period.
 18 ~~(1) On an annual basis within sixty days of the end of the~~
 19 ~~reporting period unless the court orders an extension for good~~
 20 ~~cause shown in accordance with the rules of probate procedure.~~
 21 ~~c. The annual report shall include an itemization of all~~
 22 ~~income or funds received and all expenditures made by the~~
 23 ~~conservator on behalf of the protected person. If any of~~
 24 ~~the expenditures were made to provide support for or pay the~~
 25 ~~debts of another person, the annual report shall include an~~
 26 ~~explanation of these expenditures. If any of the expenditures~~
 27 ~~were made to pay any liability or debt owed by the protected~~
 28 ~~person to the conservator, the annual report shall include an~~
 29 ~~explanation of these expenditures. If any of the expenditures~~
 30 ~~were made to pay any liability or debt that is also owed by~~
 31 ~~another person or entity, the annual report shall include an~~
 32 ~~explanation of these expenditures.~~
 33 ~~d. The annual report shall include the following budget and~~
 34 ~~information related to the budget for the protected person:~~

35 (1) A description of changes, if any, made in the budget

PAGE 19

1 approved by the court for the preceding reporting period.
 2 (2) A proposed budget and budget-related information for
 3 the next reporting period containing the information set forth
 4 in subsection 1, paragraph "c".
 5 (3) A request for approval of the proposed budget and
 6 authority to make expenditures in accordance with the proposed
 7 budget.
 8 e. The annual report shall include the following information
 9 related to the management of the assets of the protected
 10 person:
 11 (1) A description of changes, if any, in the plan for
 12 management of the assets of the protected person approved by
 13 the court for the preceding reporting period.
 14 (2) A proposed plan for management of the assets of the
 15 protected person for the next reporting period.
 16 (3) A request for approval of the proposed plan for
 17 management of the assets of the protected person and the
 18 authority to carry out the plan.
 19 f. The conservator shall include a statement as to how the
 20 conservator will involve the protected person in decisions
 21 about management of the conservatorship estate.
 22 g. The annual report shall describe, if ordered by the
 23 court, the actions that have been taken and that will be taken
 24 by the conservator to develop or restore the ability of the
 25 protected person to manage the conservatorship's assets.
 26 h. The conservator may request court approval of fees
 27 provided by an attorney on behalf of the conservatorship or the
 28 protected person during the preceding reporting period.
 29 i. The conservator may request court approval of fees
 30 provided the conservator on behalf of the conservatorship or
 31 the protected person during the preceding reporting period.
 32 4. The conservator shall file a verified final report with
 33 the court as follows:
 34 (2) a. Within thirty days following removal of the
 35 conservator.

PAGE 20

1 (3) b. Upon the conservator's filing of a resignation and
 2 before the resignation is accepted by the court.
 3 (4) c. Within sixty days following the termination of the
 4 conservatorship.
 5 (5) d. At other times as ordered by the court.
 6 e. 5. Reports required by this section The initial
 7 financial management plan, the inventory of the protected
 8 person's assets, and the annual report shall be served,
 9 annually, on the protected person, the protected person's
 10 attorney, if any, and court advisor visitor, if any, and the

11 veterans administration if the protected person is receiving
 12 ~~veterans veterans'~~ benefits.

13 6. The court, for good cause, may extend the deadline for
 14 filing required reports. Required reports of a conservator
 15 which are not timely filed and which are delinquent, and for
 16 which no extension for filing has been granted by the court,
 17 shall be administered as provided in section 633.32.

18 Sec. 35. Section 633.675, subsections 2, 3, and 4, Code
 19 2020, are amended to read as follows:

20 2. The court shall terminate a guardianship for an adult if
 21 ~~it the court~~ finds ~~by clear and convincing evidence~~ that the
 22 basis for appointing a guardian pursuant to section 633.552 is
 23 not satisfied.

24 3. The court shall terminate a conservatorship for an adult
 25 if the court finds ~~by clear and convincing evidence~~ that the
 26 basis for appointing a conservator pursuant to section 633.553
 27 or 633.554 is not satisfied.

28 4. The standard of proof and the burden of proof to be
 29 applied in a termination proceeding to terminate a guardianship
 30 or conservatorship for an adult shall be the same as set forth
 31 in section 633.551, subsection 2.

32 Sec. 36. REPEAL. Section 633.671, Code 2020, is repealed.

33 Sec. 37. EFFECTIVE DATE. The following, being deemed of
 34 immediate importance, take effect upon enactment:

35 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section

PAGE 21

1 633.669, subsection 1.

2 2. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 3 633.670.

4 Sec. 38. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following apply
 5 retroactively to January 1, 2020:

6 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 7 633.669, subsection 1.

8 2. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 9 633.670.

10 DIVISION III
 11 CONFORMING CHANGES

12 Sec. 39. Section 633.3, subsections 9, 17, 22, and 23, Code
 13 2020, are amended to read as follows:

14 9. *Conservator* — a person appointed by the court to have
 15 the custody and control of the property of a ward protected
 16 person under the provisions of this probate code.

17 17. *Estate* — the real and personal property of either a
 18 decedent or a ward protected person, and may also refer to the
 19 real and personal property of a trust described in section
 20 633.10.

21 22. *Guardian* — the person appointed by the court to have
 22 the custody of the person of the ward protected person under
 23 the provisions of this probate code.

24 23. *Guardian of the property* — at the election of the

25 person appointed by the court to have the custody and care of
26 the property of a ward protected person, the term “*guardian of*
27 *the property*” may be used, which term shall be synonymous with
28 the term “*conservator*”.

29 Sec. 40. Section 633.78, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph
30 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

31 A fiduciary under this chapter may present a written request
32 to any person for the purpose of obtaining property owned by
33 a decedent or by a ward protected person of a conservatorship
34 for which the fiduciary has been appointed, or property to
35 which a decedent or ward protected person is entitled, or

PAGE 22

1 for information about such property needed to perform the
2 fiduciary’s duties. The request must contain statements
3 confirming all of the following:

4 Sec. 41. Section 633.78, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
5 2020, is amended to read as follows:

6 b. The request has been signed by all fiduciaries acting on
7 behalf of the decedent or ward protected person.

8 Sec. 42. Section 633.78, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
9 2020, is amended to read as follows:

10 a. Damages sustained by the decedent’s or ward’s protected
11 person’s estate.

12 Sec. 43. Section 633.80, Code 2020, is amended to read as
13 follows:

14 **633.80 Fiduciary of a fiduciary.**

15 A fiduciary has no authority to act in a matter wherein the
16 fiduciary’s decedent or ward protected person was merely a
17 fiduciary, except that the fiduciary shall file a report and
18 accounting on behalf of the decedent or ward protected person
19 in said matter.

20 Sec. 44. Section 633.93, Code 2020, is amended to read as
21 follows:

22 **633.93 Limitation on actions affecting deeds.**

23 No action for recovery of any real estate sold by any
24 fiduciary can be maintained by any person claiming under the
25 deceased, the ward protected person, or a beneficiary, unless
26 brought within five years after the date of the recording of
27 the conveyance.

28 Sec. 45. Section 633.112, Code 2020, is amended to read as
29 follows:

30 **633.112 Discovery of property.**

31 The court may require any person suspected of having
32 possession of any property, including records and documents,
33 of the decedent, ward protected person, or the estate, or of
34 having had such property under the person’s control, to appear
35 and submit to an examination under oath touching such matters,

PAGE 23

1 and if on such examination it appears that the person has the
2 wrongful possession of any such property, the court may order
3 the delivery thereof to the fiduciary. Such a person shall be
4 liable to the estate for all damages caused by the person's
5 acts.

6 Sec. 46. Section 633.123, subsection 1, paragraph b,
7 subparagraph (3), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

8 (3) The needs and rights of the beneficiaries or the ~~ward~~
9 protected person.

10 Sec. 47. Section 633.558, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
11 amended to read as follows:

12 3. Notice of the filing of a petition given to persons under
13 ~~subsections subsection 2 and 3~~ shall include a statement that
14 such persons may register to receive notice of the hearing
15 on the petition and other proceedings and the manner of such
16 registration.

17 Sec. 48. Section 633.560, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
18 amended to read as follows:

19 3. The court shall require the proposed guardian or
20 conservator to attend the hearing on the petition but the court
21 may excuse the proposed guardian's or conservator's attendance
22 for good cause shown.

23 Sec. 49. Section 633.561, subsection 4, paragraphs c and f,
24 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

25 c. Ensure that the respondent has been properly advised of
26 the respondent's rights in a guardianship or conservatorship
27 proceeding.

28 f. Ensure that the guardianship or conservatorship
29 procedures conform to the statutory and due process
30 requirements of Iowa law.

31 Sec. 50. Section 633.561, subsection 5, paragraphs a and b,
32 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

33 a. Inform the respondent of the effects of the order entered
34 for appointment of guardian or conservator.

35 b. Advise the respondent of the respondent's rights to

PAGE 24

1 petition for modification or termination of the guardianship
2 or conservatorship.

3 Sec. 51. Section 633.562, subsection 5, paragraphs a and b,
4 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

5 a. A recommendation regarding the appropriateness of a
6 limited guardianship or conservatorship for the respondent,
7 including whether less restrictive alternatives are available.

8 b. A statement of the qualifications of the guardian or
9 conservator together with a statement of whether the respondent
10 has expressed agreement with the appointment of the proposed
11 guardian or conservator.

12 Sec. 52. Section 633.580, subsections 1 and 4, Code 2020,

13 are amended to read as follows:

14 1. The name, age, and last known post office address of the
 15 proposed ward protected person.
 16 4. A general description of the property of the proposed
 17 ward protected person within this state and of the proposed
 18 ~~ward's~~ protected person's right to receive property; also, the
 19 estimated present value of the real estate, the estimated value
 20 of the personal property, and the estimated gross annual income
 21 of the estate. If any money is payable, or to become payable,
 22 to the proposed ward protected person by the United States
 23 through the United States department of veterans affairs, the
 24 petition shall so state.

25 Sec. 53. Section 633.591A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 26 follows:

27 **633.591A Voluntary petition for appointment of conservator**
 28 **for a minor — standby basis.**

29 A person having physical and legal custody of a minor
 30 may execute a verified petition for the appointment of a
 31 standby conservator of the proposed ward's protected person's
 32 property, upon the express condition that the petition shall
 33 be acted upon by the court only upon the occurrence of an event
 34 specified or the existence of a described condition of the
 35 mental or physical health of the petitioner, the occurrence

PAGE 25

1 of which event, or the existence of which condition, shall be
 2 established in the manner directed in the petition.

3 Sec. 54. Section 633.603, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 4 follows:

5 **633.603 Appointment of foreign conservators.**

6 When there is no conservatorship, nor any application
 7 therefor pending, in this state, the duly qualified foreign
 8 conservator or guardian of a nonresident ward protected
 9 person may, upon application, be appointed conservator of the
 10 property of such person in this state; provided that a resident
 11 conservator is appointed to serve with the foreign conservator;
 12 and provided further, that for good cause shown, the court
 13 may appoint the foreign conservator to act alone without the
 14 appointment of a resident conservator.

15 Sec. 55. Section 633.604, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 16 follows:

17 **633.604 Application.**

18 The application for appointment of a foreign conservator
 19 or guardian as conservator in this state shall include the
 20 name and address of the nonresident ward protected person, and
 21 of the nonresident conservator or guardian, and the name and
 22 address of the resident conservator to be appointed. It shall
 23 be accompanied by a certified copy of the original letters
 24 or other authority conferring the power upon the foreign
 25 conservator or guardian to act as such. The application
 26 shall also state the cause for the appointment of the foreign

27 conservator to act as sole conservator, if such be the case.
28 Sec. 56. Section 633.605, Code 2020, is amended to read as
29 follows:
30 **633.605 Personal property.**
31 A foreign conservator or guardian of a nonresident may
32 be authorized by the court of the county wherein such ~~ward~~
33 protected person has personal property to receive the same upon
34 compliance with the provisions of sections 633.606, 633.607 and
35 633.608.

PAGE 26

1 Sec. 57. Section 633.607, Code 2020, is amended to read as
2 follows:
3 **633.607 Order for delivery.**
4 Upon the filing of the bond as above provided, and the court
5 being satisfied with the amount thereof, it shall order the
6 personal property of the ~~ward~~ protected person delivered to
7 such conservator or guardian.
8 Sec. 58. Section 633.633, Code 2020, is amended to read as
9 follows:
10 **633.633 Provisions applicable to all fiduciaries shall**
11 **govern.**
12 The provisions of this probate code applicable to all
13 fiduciaries shall govern the appointment, qualification, oath
14 and bond of guardians and conservators, except that a guardian
15 shall not be required to give bond unless the court, for good
16 cause, finds that the best interests of the ~~ward~~ protected
17 person require a bond. The court shall then fix the terms and
18 conditions of such bond.
19 Sec. 59. Section 633.633B, Code 2020, is amended to read as
20 follows:
21 **633.633B Tort liability of guardians and conservators.**
22 The fact that a person is a guardian or conservator shall not
23 in itself make the person personally liable for damages for the
24 acts of the ~~ward~~ protected person.
25 Sec. 60. Section 633.636, Code 2020, is amended to read as
26 follows:
27 **633.636 Effect of appointment of guardian or conservator.**
28 The appointment of a guardian or conservator shall not
29 constitute an adjudication that the ~~ward~~ protected person is of
30 unsound mind.
31 Sec. 61. Section 633.637, Code 2020, is amended to read as
32 follows:
33 **633.637 Powers of ~~ward~~ protected person.**
34 1. A ~~ward~~ protected person for whom a conservator has been
35 appointed shall not have the power to convey, encumber, or

PAGE 27

1 dispose of property in any manner, other than by will if the
2 ~~ward~~ protected person possesses the requisite testamentary

3 capacity, unless the court determines that the ward protected
 4 person has a limited ability to handle the ward's protected
 5 person's own funds. If the court makes such a finding, the
 6 court shall specify to what extent the ward protected person
 7 may possess and use the ward's protected person's own funds.
 8 2. Any modification of the powers of the ward protected
 9 person that would be more restrictive of the ward's protected
 10 person's control over the ward's protected person's financial
 11 affairs shall be based upon clear and convincing evidence
 12 and the burden of persuasion is on the conservator. Any
 13 modification that would be less restrictive of the ward's
 14 protected person's control over the ward's protected person's
 15 financial affairs shall be based upon proof in accordance with
 16 the requirements of section 633.675.

17 Sec. 62. Section 633.637A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 18 follows:

19 **633.637A Rights of ward protected person under guardianship.**

20 An adult ward protected person under a guardianship has the
 21 right of communication, visitation, or interaction with other
 22 persons upon the consent of the adult ward protected person,
 23 subject to section 633.635, subsection 2, paragraph "i", and
 24 section 633.635, subsection 3, paragraph "c". If an adult ward
 25 protected person is unable to give express consent to such
 26 communication, visitation, or interaction with a person due
 27 to a physical or mental condition, consent of an adult ward
 28 protected person may be presumed by a guardian or a court based
 29 on an adult ward's protected person's prior relationship with
 30 such person.

31 Sec. 63. Section 633.638, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 32 follows:

33 **633.638 Presumption of fraud.**

34 If a conservator be appointed, all contracts, transfers and
 35 gifts made by the ward protected person after the filing of the

PAGE 28

1 petition shall be presumed to be a fraud against the rights
 2 and interest of the ward protected person except as otherwise
 3 directed by the court pursuant to section 633.637.

4 Sec. 64. Section 633.639, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:

6 **633.639 Title to ward's protected person's property.**

7 The title to all property of the ward protected person is
 8 in the ward protected person and not the conservator and to the
 9 however, to the possession of the conservator and to the
 10 control of the court for the purposes of administration,
 11 sale or other disposition, under the provisions of the
 12 law. Any real property titled at any time in the name of a
 13 conservatorship shall be deemed to be titled in the ward's
 14 protected person's name subject to the conservator's right of
 15 possession.

16 Sec. 65. Section 633.640, Code 2020, is amended to read as

17 follows:

18 **633.640 Conservator's right to possession.**

19 Every conservator shall have a right to, and shall take,
20 possession of all of the real and personal property of the
21 ~~ward~~ protected person. The conservator shall pay the taxes
22 and collect the income therefrom until the conservatorship is
23 terminated. The conservator may maintain an action for the
24 possession of the property, and to determine the title to the
25 same.

26 Sec. 66. Section 633.643, Code 2020, is amended to read as
27 follows:

28 **633.643 Disposal of will by conservator.**

29 When an instrument purporting to be the will of the ~~ward~~
30 protected person comes into the hands of a conservator, the
31 conservator shall immediately deliver it to the court.

32 Sec. 67. Section 633.644, Code 2020, is amended to read as
33 follows:

34 **633.644 Court order to preserve testamentary intent of ~~ward~~**
35 **protected person.**

PAGE 29

1 Upon receiving an instrument purporting to be the will of a
2 living ~~ward~~ protected person under the provisions of section
3 633.643, the court may open said will and read it. The court
4 with or without notice, as it may determine, may enter such
5 orders in the conservatorship as it deems advisable for the
6 proper administration of the conservatorship in light of the
7 expressed testamentary intent of the ~~ward~~ protected person.

8 Sec. 68. Section 633.645, Code 2020, is amended to read as
9 follows:

10 **633.645 Court to deliver will to clerk.**

11 An instrument purporting to be the will of a ~~ward~~ protected
12 person coming into the hands of the court under the provisions
13 of section 633.643, shall thereafter be resealed by the court
14 and be deposited with the clerk to be held by said clerk as
15 provided in sections 633.286 through 633.289.

16 Sec. 69. Section 633.653A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
17 follows:

18 **633.653A Claims for cost of medical care or services.**

19 The provision of medical care or services to a ~~ward~~ protected
20 person who is a recipient of medical assistance under chapter
21 249A creates a claim against the conservatorship for the amount
22 owed to the provider under the medical assistance program for
23 the care or services. The amount of the claim, after being
24 allowed or established as provided in this part, shall be paid
25 by the conservator from the assets of the conservatorship.

26 Sec. 70. Section 633.654, Code 2020, is amended to read as
27 follows:

28 **633.654 Form and verification of claims — general**
29 **requirements.**

30 No claim shall be allowed against the estate of a ~~ward~~

31 protected person upon application of the claimant unless
 32 it shall be in writing, filed in duplicate with the clerk,
 33 stating the claimant's name and address, and describing the
 34 nature and the amount thereof, if ascertainable. It shall be
 35 accompanied by the affidavit of the claimant, or of someone for

PAGE 30

1 the claimant, that the amount is justly due, or if not due,
 2 when it will or may become due, that no payments have been
 3 made thereon which are not credited, and that there are no
 4 offsets to the same, to the knowledge of the affiant, except as
 5 therein stated. The duplicate of said claim shall be mailed
 6 by the clerk to the conservator or the conservator's attorney
 7 of record; however, valid contract claims arising in the
 8 ordinary course of the conduct of the business or affairs of
 9 the ~~ward~~ protected person by the conservator may be paid by the
 10 conservator without requiring affidavit or filing.

11 Sec. 71. Section 633.656, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 12 follows:

13 **633.656 How claim entitled.**

14 All claims filed against the estate of the ~~ward~~ protected
 15 person shall be entitled in the name of the claimant against
 16 the conservator as such, naming the conservator, and in all
 17 further proceedings thereon, this title shall be preserved.

18 Sec. 72. Section 633.660, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 19 follows:

20 **633.660 Execution and levy prohibited.**

21 No execution shall issue upon, nor shall any levy be made
 22 against, any property of the estate of a ~~ward~~ protected person
 23 under any judgment against the ~~ward~~ protected person or a
 24 conservator, but the provisions of this section shall not be so
 25 construed as to prevent the enforcement of a mortgage, pledge,
 26 or other lien upon property in an appropriate proceeding.

27 Sec. 73. Section 633.661, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 28 follows:

29 **633.661 Claims of conservators.**

30 If the conservator is a creditor of the ~~ward~~ protected
 31 person, the conservator shall file the claim as other
 32 creditors, and the court shall appoint some competent person as
 33 temporary conservator to represent the ~~ward~~ protected person
 34 at the hearing on the conservator's claim. The same procedure
 35 shall be followed in the case of coconservators where all

PAGE 31

1 such conservators are creditors of the ~~ward~~ protected person;
 2 but if one of the coconservators is not a creditor of the
 3 ~~ward~~ protected person, such disinterested conservator shall
 4 represent the ~~ward~~ protected person at the hearing on any claim
 5 against the ~~ward~~ protected person by a coconservator.

6 Sec. 74. Section 633.662, Code 2020, is amended to read as

7 follows:

8 **633.662 Claims not filed.**

9 The conservator may pay any valid claim against the estate of
10 the ward protected person even though such claim has not been
11 filed, but all such payments made by the conservator shall be
12 at the conservator's own peril.

13 Sec. 75. Section 633.664, Code 2020, is amended to read as
14 follows:

15 **633.664 Liens not affected by failure to file claim.**

16 Nothing in sections 633.654 and 633.658 shall affect or
17 prevent an action or proceeding to enforce any mortgage,
18 pledge, or other lien upon the property of the ward protected
19 person.

20 Sec. 76. Section 633.665, Code 2020, is amended to read as
21 follows:

22 **633.665 Separate actions and claims.**

23 1. Any action pending against the ward protected person at
24 the time the conservator is appointed shall also be considered
25 a claim filed in the conservatorship if notice of substitution
26 is served on the conservator as defendant and a duplicate of
27 the proof of service of notice of such proceeding is filed in
28 the conservatorship proceeding.

29 2. A separate action based on a debt or other liability
30 of the ward protected person may be commenced against the
31 conservator in lieu of filing a claim in the conservatorship.
32 Such an action shall be commenced by serving an original notice
33 on the conservator and filing a duplicate of the proof of
34 service of notice of such proceeding in the conservatorship
35 proceeding. Such an action shall also be considered a claim

PAGE 32

1 filed in the conservatorship. Such an action may be commenced
2 only in a county where the venue would have been proper if
3 there were no conservatorship and the action had been commenced
4 against the ward protected person.

5 Sec. 77. Section 633.667, Code 2020, is amended to read as
6 follows:

7 **633.667 Payment of claims in insolvent conservatorships.**

8 When it appears that the assets in a conservatorship are
9 insufficient to pay in full all the claims against such
10 conservatorship, the conservator shall report such matter to
11 the court, and the court shall, upon hearing, with notice to
12 all persons who have filed claims in the conservatorship, make
13 an order for the pro rata payment of claims giving claimants
14 the same priority, if any, as they would have if the ward
15 protected person were not under conservatorship.

16 Sec. 78. Section 633.668, Code 2020, is amended to read as
17 follows:

18 **633.668 Conservator may make gifts.**

19 For good cause shown and under order of court, a conservator
20 may make gifts on behalf of the ward protected person out of

21 the assets under a conservatorship to persons or religious,
 22 educational, scientific, charitable, or other nonprofit
 23 organizations to whom or to which such gifts were regularly
 24 made prior to the commencement of the conservatorship, or on
 25 a showing to the court that such gifts would benefit the ward
 26 protected person or the ward's protected person's estate from
 27 the standpoint of income, gift, estate or inheritance taxes.
 28 The making of gifts out of the assets must not foreseeably
 29 impair the ability to provide adequately for the best interests
 30 of the ward protected person.

31 Sec. 79. Section 633.673, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 32 follows:

33 **633.673 Court costs in guardianships.**

34 The ward protected person or the ward's protected person's
 35 estate shall be charged with the court costs of a ward's

PAGE 33

1 protected person's guardianship, including the guardian's fees
 2 and the fees of the attorney for the guardian. The court
 3 may, upon application, enter an order waiving payment of the
 4 court costs in indigent cases. However, if the ward protected
 5 person or ward's protected person's estate becomes financially
 6 capable of paying any waived costs, the costs shall be paid
 7 immediately.

8 Sec. 80. Section 633.676, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 9 follows:

10 **633.676 Assets exhausted.**

11 At any time that the assets of the ward's protected person's
 12 estate do not exceed the amount of the charges and claims
 13 against it, the court may direct the conservator to proceed to
 14 terminate the conservatorship.

15 Sec. 81. Section 633.677, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 16 follows:

17 **633.677 Accounting to ward protected person — notice.**

18 Upon the termination of a conservatorship, the conservator
 19 shall pay the costs of administration and shall render a full
 20 and complete accounting to the ward protected person or the
 21 ward's protected person's personal representative and to the
 22 court. Notice of the final report of a conservator shall be
 23 served on the ward protected person or the ward's protected
 24 person's personal representative, in accordance with section
 25 633.40, unless notice is waived. An order prescribing notice
 26 may be made before or after the filing of the final report.

27 Sec. 82. Section 633.681, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 28 follows:

29 **633.681 Assets of minor ward protected person exhausted.**

30 When the assets of a minor ward's protected person's
 31 conservatorship are exhausted or consist of personal property
 32 only of an aggregate value not in excess of twenty-five
 33 thousand dollars, the court, upon application or upon its
 34 own motion, may terminate the conservatorship. The order

35 for termination shall direct the conservator to deliver any

PAGE 34

1 property remaining after the payment of allowed claims and
 2 expenses of administration to a custodian under any uniform
 3 transfers to minors Act. Such delivery shall have the same
 4 force and effect as if delivery had been made to the ~~ward~~
 5 protected person after attaining majority.

6 Sec. 83. Section 633.682, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 7 follows:

8 **633.682 Discharge of conservator and release of bond.**

9 Upon settlement of the final accounting of a conservator,
 10 and upon determining that the property of the ~~ward~~ protected
 11 person has been delivered to the person or persons lawfully
 12 entitled thereto, the court shall discharge the conservator and
 13 exonerate the surety on the conservator's bond.>

14 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and
 15 inserting <An Act relating to the opening, administration,
 16 and termination of adult and minor guardianships and
 17 conservatorships, including conforming changes, and including
 18 effective date and retroactive applicability provisions.>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8171

1 Amend Senate File 2261, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, line 9, by striking <or "screening">

4 2. Page 1, lines 33 and 34, by striking <a behavioral health
 5 screening or other>

6 3. By striking page 2, line 24, through page 3, line 17,
 7 and inserting

8 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 280A.2 Behavioral health screenings**
 9 **and assessments in school settings — prohibited.**

10 A school district, an accredited nonpublic school, or
 11 an area education agency shall not contract with a mental
 12 health professional to provide behavioral health screenings to
 13 students.>

14 4. Page 6, line 24, by striking <voluntary behavioral health
 15 screenings or>

16 5. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 17 references as necessary.

SALMON of Black Hawk

H-8172

1 Amend House File 2623 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 24 by inserting:

3 <Sec. __. Section 99E.5, subsection 2, Code 2020, is

- 4 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 5 **NEW PARAGRAPH. j.** Prohibit participants in an internet
 6 fantasy sports contest from making any payments by credit
 7 card.>
 8 2. Page 2, after line 7 by inserting:
 9 <Sec. ____ Section 99F.9, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 10 amended to read as follows:
 11 7. A licensee shall not accept a credit card as defined
 12 in section 537.1301, subsection 17, for sports wagering or to
 13 purchase coins, tokens, or other forms of credit to be wagered
 14 on gambling games.>
 15 3. Title page, line 1, by striking <facility>
 16 4. Title page, line 2, after <wagers> by inserting <,
 17 payments by credit card,>
 18 5. By renumbering as necessary.

SEXTON of Calhoun

H-8173

- 1 Amend Senate File 2338, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 14 and inserting:
 3 <DIVISION I
 4 EVIDENCE OF MEDICAL EXPENSES AND RECOVERABLE DAMAGES FOR
 5 MEDICAL EXPENSES>
 6 2. Page 2, after line 5 by inserting:
 7 <DIVISION ____
 8 COVID-19-RELATED LIABILITY
 9 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 686D.1 Short title.**
 10 This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “*COVID-19*
 11 *Response and Back-to-Business Limited Liability Act*”.
 12 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 686D.2 Definitions.**
 13 When used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 14 requires:
 15 1. “*COVID-19*” means the novel coronavirus identified
 16 as SARS-CoV-2, the disease caused by the novel coronavirus
 17 SARS-CoV-2 or a virus mutating therefrom, and conditions
 18 associated with the disease caused by the novel coronavirus
 19 SARS-CoV-2 or a virus mutating therefrom.
 20 2. “*Disinfecting or cleaning supplies*” means and includes
 21 hand sanitizers, disinfectants, sprays, and wipes.
 22 3. “*Health care facility*” means and includes all of the
 23 following:
 24 a. A facility as defined in section 514J.102.
 25 b. A facility licensed pursuant to chapter 135B.
 26 c. A facility licensed pursuant to chapter 135C.
 27 d. Residential care facilities, nursing facilities,
 28 intermediate care facilities for persons with mental illness,
 29 intermediate care facilities for persons with intellectual
 30 disabilities, hospice programs, elder group homes, and assisted
 31 living programs.
 32 4. “*Health care professional*” means physicians and other

33 health care practitioners who are licensed, certified, or
34 otherwise authorized or permitted by the laws of this state
35 to administer health care services in the ordinary course

PAGE 2

1 of business or in the practice of a profession, whether
2 paid or unpaid, including persons engaged in telemedicine or
3 telehealth. “*Health care professional*” includes the employer or
4 agent of a health care professional who provides or arranges
5 health care.
6 5. “*Health care provider*” means and includes a health care
7 professional, health care facility, home health care facility,
8 and any other person or facility otherwise authorized or
9 permitted by any federal or state statute, regulation, order,
10 or public health guidance to administer health care services
11 or treatment.
12 6. “*Health care services*” means services for the diagnosis,
13 prevention, treatment, care, cure, or relief of a health
14 condition, illness, injury, or disease.
15 7. “*Minimum medical condition*” means a diagnosis of COVID-19
16 that requires inpatient hospitalization or results in death.
17 8. “*Person*” means the same as defined in section 4.1.
18 “*Person*” includes an agent of a person.
19 9. “*Personal protective equipment*” means and includes
20 protective clothing, gloves, face shields, goggles, facemasks,
21 respirators, gowns, aprons, coveralls, and other equipment
22 designed to protect the wearer from injury or the spread of
23 infection or illness.
24 10. “*Premises*” means and includes any real property and
25 any appurtenant building or structure serving a commercial,
26 residential, educational, religious, governmental, cultural,
27 charitable, or health care purpose.
28 11. “*Public health guidance*” means and includes written
29 guidance related to COVID-19 issued by any of the following:
30 a. The centers for disease control and prevention of the
31 federal department of health and human services.
32 b. The centers for Medicare and Medicaid services of the
33 federal department of health and human services.
34 c. The federal occupational safety and health
35 administration.

PAGE 3

1 d. The office of the governor.
2 e. Any state agency, including the department of public
3 health.
4 12. “*Qualified product*” means and includes all of the
5 following:
6 a. Personal protective equipment used to protect the wearer
7 from COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
8 b. Medical devices, equipment, and supplies used to treat

- 9 COVID-19, including medical devices, equipment, or supplies
 10 that are used or modified for an unapproved use to treat
 11 COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
 12 c. Medical devices, equipment, and supplies used outside of
 13 their normal use to treat COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of
 14 COVID-19.
 15 d. Medications used to treat COVID-19, including medications
 16 prescribed or dispensed for off-label use to attempt to treat
 17 COVID-19.
 18 e. Tests to diagnose or determine immunity to COVID-19.
 19 f. Any component of an item described in paragraphs “a”
 20 through “e”.

21 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.3 Actual injury requirement in**
 22 **civil actions alleging COVID-19 exposure.**

- 23 A person shall not bring or maintain a civil action alleging
 24 exposure or potential exposure to COVID-19 unless one of the
 25 following applies:
 26 1. The civil action relates to a minimum medical condition.
 27 2. The civil action involves an act that was intended to
 28 cause harm.
 29 3. The civil action involves an act that constitutes actual
 30 malice.

31 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.4 Premises owner’s duty of care**
 32 **— limited liability.**

- 33 A person who possesses or is in control of a premises,
 34 including a tenant, lessee, or occupant of a premises, who
 35 directly or indirectly invites or permits an individual onto

PAGE 4

- 1 a premises, shall not be liable for civil damages for any
 2 injuries sustained from the individual’s exposure to COVID-19,
 3 whether the exposure occurs on the premises or during any
 4 activity managed by the person who possesses or is in control
 5 of a premises, unless any of the following apply to the person
 6 who possesses or is in control of the premises:
 7 1. The person who possesses or is in control of the premises
 8 recklessly disregards a substantial and unnecessary risk that
 9 the individual would be exposed to COVID-19.
 10 2. The person who possesses or is in control of the
 11 premises exposes the individual to COVID-19 through an act that
 12 constitutes actual malice.
 13 3. The person who possesses or is in control of the premises
 14 intentionally exposes the individual to COVID-19.
 15 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.5 Safe harbor for compliance**
 16 **with regulations, executive orders, or public health guidance.**
 17 A person in this state shall not be held liable for civil
 18 damages for any injuries sustained from exposure or potential
 19 exposure to COVID-19 if the act or omission alleged to violate
 20 a duty of care was in substantial compliance or was consistent
 21 with any federal or state statute, regulation, order, or public
 22 health guidance related to COVID-19 that was applicable to the

23 person or activity at issue at the time of the alleged exposure
24 or potential exposure.
25 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.6 Liability of health care**
26 **providers.**
27 1. A health care provider shall not be liable for civil
28 damages for causing or contributing, directly or indirectly, to
29 the death or injury of an individual as a result of the health
30 care provider's acts or omissions while providing or arranging
31 health care in support of the state's response to COVID-19.
32 This subsection shall apply to all of the following:
33 *a.* Injury or death resulting from screening, assessing,
34 diagnosing, caring for, or treating individuals with a
35 suspected or confirmed case of COVID-19.

PAGE 5

1 *b.* Prescribing, administering, or dispensing a
2 pharmaceutical for off-label use to treat a patient with a
3 suspected or confirmed case of COVID-19.
4 *c.* Acts or omissions while providing health care to
5 individuals unrelated to COVID-19 when those acts or omissions
6 support the state's response to COVID-19, including any of the
7 following:
8 (1) Delaying or canceling nonurgent or elective dental,
9 medical, or surgical procedures, or altering the diagnosis or
10 treatment of an individual in response to any federal or state
11 statute, regulation, order, or public health guidance.
12 (2) Diagnosing or treating patients outside the normal
13 scope of the health care provider's license or practice.
14 (3) Using medical devices, equipment, or supplies outside
15 of their normal use for the provision of health care, including
16 using or modifying medical devices, equipment, or supplies for
17 an unapproved use.
18 (4) Conducting tests or providing treatment to any
19 individual outside the premises of a health care facility.
20 (5) Acts or omissions undertaken by a health care provider
21 because of a lack of staffing, facilities, medical devices,
22 equipment, supplies, or other resources attributable to
23 COVID-19 that renders the health care provider unable to
24 provide the level or manner of care to any person that
25 otherwise would have been required in the absence of COVID-19.
26 (6) Acts or omissions undertaken by a health care provider
27 relating to use or nonuse of personal protective equipment.
28 2. This section shall not relieve any person of liability
29 for civil damages for any act or omission which constitutes
30 recklessness or willful misconduct.
31 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.7 Supplies, equipment, and**
32 **products designed, manufactured, labeled, sold, distributed, and**
33 **donated in response to COVID-19.**
34 1. Any person that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,
35 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning

PAGE 6

- 1 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified product
 2 in response to COVID-19 shall not be liable in a civil action
 3 alleging personal injury, death, or property damage caused by
 4 or resulting from the design, manufacturing, labeling, selling,
 5 distributing, or donating of the household disinfecting
 6 or cleaning supplies, personal protective equipment, or a
 7 qualified product.
- 8 2. Any person that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,
 9 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning
 10 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified product
 11 in response to COVID-19 shall not be liable in a civil action
 12 alleging personal injury, death, or property damage caused by
 13 or resulting from a failure to provide proper instructions or
 14 sufficient warnings.
- 15 3. This section shall not apply in the event of any of the
 16 following:
- 17 *a.* The person that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,
 18 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning
 19 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified
 20 product had actual knowledge of a defect in the household
 21 disinfecting or cleaning supplies, personal protective
 22 equipment, or a qualified product when put to the use for which
 23 the household disinfecting or cleaning supplies, personal
 24 protective equipment, or a qualified product was designed,
 25 manufactured, sold, distributed, or donated, and the person
 26 recklessly disregarded a substantial and unnecessary risk that
 27 the household disinfecting or cleaning supplies, personal
 28 protective equipment, or a qualified product would cause
 29 serious personal injury, death, or serious property damage.
- 30 *b.* The person that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,
 31 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning
 32 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified product
 33 acted with actual malice.
- 34 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 686D.8 Construction.
 35 This chapter shall not be construed to do any of the

PAGE 7

- 1 following:
- 2 1. Create, recognize, or ratify a claim or cause of action
 3 of any kind.
- 4 2. Eliminate or satisfy a required element of a claim or
 5 cause of action of any kind.
- 6 3. Affect the rights or limits under workers' compensation
 7 as provided in chapter 85, 85A, or 85B.
- 8 4. Abrogate, amend, repeal, alter, or affect any statutory
 9 or common law immunity or limitation of liability.
- 10 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 11 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020.>
- 12 3. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting

13 <An Act relating to civil actions, including recoverable
 14 damages for medical expenses, evidence offered to prove
 15 past medical expenses, and civil actions related to the
 16 novel coronavirus, and including retroactive applicability
 17 provisions.>
 18 4. By renumbering as necessary.

COMMITTEE ON COMMERCE

H-8174

1 Amend Senate File 2356, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 5, line 26, by striking <or endorsement for>
 3 and inserting <with an endorsement for prekindergarten,
 4 prekindergarten or elementary>
 5 2. Page 5, line 26, by striking <education> and inserting
 6 <education,>

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

H-8175

1 Amend Senate File 2310, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 4 <DIVISION ____
 5 ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM AND COURSEWORK REQUIREMENTS>
 6 2. Page 5, after line 26 by inserting:
 7 <DIVISION ____
 8 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR USE OF CERTAIN MONEYS BY SCHOOL
 9 DISTRICTS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
 10 Sec. ____ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT MONEYS AND HOURS
 11 REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME FOR THE
 12 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding section 257.10,
 13 subsection 10, and the professional development requirements
 14 of chapter 284, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020,
 15 and ending June 30, 2021, the moneys calculated and paid to
 16 the school district for professional development pursuant to
 17 section 257.10, subsection 10, or section 257.37A, subsection
 18 2, to provide thirty-six hours of professional development
 19 opportunities held outside of the minimum school day, may
 20 instead be used by a school district to provide instructional
 21 time to the school calendar in addition to the amount of
 22 instructional time required under section 279.10, subsection 1,
 23 and the thirty-six-hour professional development requirement
 24 of chapter 284 shall be reduced by such number of hours of
 25 additional instructional time.
 26 Sec. ____ DISTRICT MANAGEMENT LEVY FUND — PERMISSIBLE USES
 27 BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.
 28 1. For the school budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 29 ending June 30, 2021, unencumbered moneys remaining in the
 30 district management levy fund under section 298A.3 at the

31 end of the budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 32 June 30, 2020, and the taxes certified for levy before the
 33 effective date of this Act under section 298.4 and deposited in
 34 the district management levy fund for the school budget year
 35 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, in addition

PAGE 2

1 to the purposes authorized under section 298.4, may be expended
 2 by a school district to provide additional instructional time
 3 to the school calendar in excess of the amount of instructional
 4 time required under section 279.10, subsection 1, during the
 5 school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
 6 2. The board of directors of a school district,
 7 notwithstanding the budget amendment requirements of chapters
 8 24 and 257, may authorize the expenditure of specified district
 9 management levy funds for purposes specified in subsection 1
 10 by resolution of the board specifying the amount to be used
 11 and the purposes from which the funds will be reallocated, if
 12 the resolution of the board is approved and filed with the
 13 department of education on or before June 30, 2021.>
 14 3. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 15 <An Act relating to educational instructional requirements and
 16 funding flexibility.>
 17 4. By renumbering as necessary.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

H-8176

1 Amend Senate File 2283, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 4 <DIVISION I
 5 LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAMS
 6 Section 1. NEW SECTION. 100B.41 Length of service award
 7 **programs — authorization.**
 8 The governing body of a municipality, as defined in section
 9 100B.21, shall be authorized to establish a length of service
 10 award program for volunteer fire fighters as defined in
 11 section 85.61, volunteer emergency medical care providers
 12 as defined in section 147A.1, and reserve peace officers as
 13 defined in section 80D.1A. The program shall provide length
 14 of service awards, as described in section 457(e)(11) of the
 15 Internal Revenue Code, to volunteer fire fighters, volunteer
 16 emergency medical care providers, and reserve peace officers
 17 serving a municipality that elects to establish a program. The
 18 program shall be designed to treat awards from the program as
 19 a tax-deferred benefit under the Internal Revenue Code. The
 20 governing body of the municipality shall, in consultation with
 21 the chief or other person in command of the fire department
 22 and police department serving the municipality, as applicable,

23 adopt guidelines providing for eligibility requirements for
 24 participation by volunteer fire fighters, volunteer emergency
 25 medical care providers, and reserve peace officers, minimum
 26 vesting requirements, distribution requirements, and such other
 27 guidelines as deemed necessary to operate the program.
 28 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 100B.42 Length of service award
 29 program grant fund — appropriation.
 30 1. A length of service award program grant fund is created
 31 in the state treasury under the control of the state fire
 32 service and emergency response council. The fund shall consist
 33 of all moneys appropriated to the fund.
 34 2. Moneys in the length of service award program grant
 35 fund are appropriated to the state fire service and emergency

PAGE 2

1 response council for the purpose of providing grants to
 2 municipalities establishing a length of service award program
 3 as described in section 100B.41 to provide contributions to
 4 the program on behalf of participants in the program. The
 5 state fire service and emergency response council shall
 6 develop and submit to the state fire marshal for adoption rules
 7 establishing a grant application process. The grant process
 8 shall provide for up to a dollar-for-dollar funding match from
 9 a municipality establishing a length of service award program.
 10 3. Notwithstanding section 12C.7, subsection 2, interest or
 11 earnings on moneys deposited in the fund shall be credited to
 12 the fund. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys credited to the
 13 fund shall not revert at the close of a fiscal year.

14 DIVISION __

15 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES TRAINING PROGRAMS>

16 2. Page 1, by striking lines 17 and 18 and inserting:
 17 <Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 18 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

19 DIVISION __

20 OPTIONAL TAXES FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

21 Sec. __. Section 422D.1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 22 follows:

23 **422D.1 Authorization — ~~election~~ — imposition and repeal —**
 24 **use of revenues.**

25 1. *a.* A Upon adoption of a resolution declaring emergency
 26 medical services to be an essential county service under
 27 subsection 1A, and subject to the limitations of this chapter,
 28 a county board of supervisors may offer for voter approval
 29 impose any of the following taxes or a combination of the
 30 following taxes:

31 (1) Local option income surtax.

32 (2) An ad valorem property tax.

33 *b.* Revenues generated from these taxes shall be used for
 34 emergency medical services as provided in section 422D.6.

35 1A. a. To be effective, the resolution declaring emergency

PAGE 3

1 medical services to be an essential service shall be considered
 2 and voted on for approval at two meetings of the board prior to
 3 the meeting at which the resolution is to be finally approved
 4 by a majority of the board by recorded vote, as defined in
 5 section 331.101. Notice of the first meeting of the board
 6 at which the resolution is considered and voted on shall be
 7 published not less than sixty days prior to the date of the
 8 meeting in one or more newspapers that meet the requirements
 9 of section 618.14. The requirements for approval of the
 10 resolution or approval of the imposition of a tax under this
 11 chapter shall not be suspended or waived by the board.
 12 b. Each county for which a resolution has been adopted
 13 under this subsection shall coordinate efforts between
 14 the county emergency management coordinator and the local
 15 emergency medical services agencies to establish a county
 16 emergency medical services system advisory council to assist
 17 in researching and assessing the service needs of the county
 18 and guiding implementation of services in the county within
 19 a council structure and in the manner provided in the most
 20 recently updated Iowa emergency medical services system
 21 standards.
 22 c. The county emergency medical services system advisory
 23 council established under paragraph "b" shall annually assess
 24 and review the emergency medical services needs of the county
 25 and shall include the results of such review and assessment
 26 in an annual report filed with the board of supervisors. The
 27 annual report shall be publicly available upon filing with the
 28 board of supervisors. The board of supervisors shall receive
 29 public comment regarding the report at one or more meetings
 30 of the board of supervisors. Any meeting of the board of
 31 supervisors at which public comment on the annual report is
 32 heard shall be at least fourteen days following the date the
 33 annual report is filed with the board of supervisors.
 34 2. a. The taxes for emergency medical services shall only
 35 be imposed after an election at which a majority of those

PAGE 4

1 voting on the question of imposing the tax or combination of
 2 taxes specified in subsection 1, paragraph "a", subparagraph
 3 (1) or (2), vote in favor of the question. However, the A tax
 4 or combination of taxes specified in subsection 1 shall not
 5 be imposed on property within or on residents of a benefited
 6 emergency medical services district under chapter 357F. The
 7 question of imposing the tax or combination of the taxes may
 8 be submitted at the regular city election, a special election,
 9 or the general election. Notice of the question shall be
 10 provided by publication at least sixty days before the time of
 11 the election and shall identify the tax or combination of taxes
 12 and the rate or rates, as applicable. If a majority of those

13 ~~voting on the question approve the imposition of the tax or~~
14 ~~combination of taxes, the~~ The tax or combination of taxes shall
15 may be imposed as follows:

16 (1) A local option income surtax ~~shall~~ may be imposed for
17 tax years beginning on or after January 1 of the fiscal year in
18 which the ~~favorable election was held~~ ordinance imposing the
19 surtax is filed with the director under section 422D.3.

20 (2) An ad valorem property tax ~~shall~~ may be imposed for the
21 fiscal year in which the ~~election was held~~ resolution under
22 subsection 1A is adopted.

23 *b.* Before a county imposes an income surtax as specified
24 in subsection 1, paragraph “a”, subparagraph (1), a benefited
25 emergency medical services district in the county shall be
26 dissolved, and the county shall be liable for the outstanding
27 obligations of the benefited district. If the benefited
28 district extends into more than one county, the county imposing
29 the income surtax shall be liable for only that portion of the
30 obligations relating to the portion of the benefited district
31 in the county.

32 3. Revenues received by the county from the taxes imposed
33 under this chapter shall be deposited into the emergency
34 medical services trust fund created pursuant to section 422D.6
35 and shall be used as provided in that section.

PAGE 5

1 4. *a.* ~~Any tax or combination of taxes imposed shall be~~
2 ~~for a maximum period of five years. Discontinuance of the~~
3 ~~authority to impose a tax under this chapter shall be by~~
4 ~~election under paragraph “b” or by petition and election under~~
5 ~~paragraph “c”.~~
6 *b.* ~~At the next general election or regular city election~~
7 ~~following adoption of the resolution under subsection 1A,~~
8 ~~whichever occurs first, the board of supervisors shall, subject~~
9 ~~to the election deadlines for ballot printing and publication,~~
10 ~~direct the county commissioner of elections to submit to the~~
11 ~~voters of the county the question of whether to discontinue~~
12 ~~the authority to impose one or more of the taxes under this~~
13 ~~chapter.~~

14 *c.* ~~Upon receipt of a valid petition as provided in section~~
15 ~~331.306, the board of supervisors shall direct the county~~
16 ~~commissioner of elections to submit to the voters of the county~~
17 ~~the question of whether to discontinue the authority to impose~~
18 ~~one or more of the taxes under this chapter.~~

19 *d.* ~~If a majority of those voting on the question of~~
20 ~~discontinuance of the board’s authority to impose the tax~~
21 ~~favours discontinuance, the board shall not impose the property~~
22 ~~tax for any fiscal year beginning after the election approving~~
23 ~~the discontinuance and shall not impose the income surtax~~
24 ~~for any tax year beginning after the election approving~~
25 ~~the discontinuance unless imposition is subsequently again~~
26 ~~authorized. Following discontinuance of the authority to~~

27 ~~impose the taxes under this chapter, authority to reimpose the~~
 28 ~~taxes requires approval in accordance with this section.~~
 29 Sec. ____ Section 422D.3, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 30 amended to read as follows:
 31 1. A local income surtax shall be imposed January 1 of
 32 the fiscal year in which the ~~favorable election was held~~
 33 ~~ordinance imposing the surtax is filed with the director under~~
 34 ~~subsection 3~~ for tax years beginning on or after January 1, and
 35 is repealed as provided in section 422D.1, subsection 4, ~~as of~~

PAGE 6

1 ~~December 31 for tax years beginning after December 31.~~
 2 Sec. ____ Section 422D.5, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 3 follows:
 4 **422D.5 Property tax levy.**
 5 A county may levy an emergency medical services tax at
 6 the rate set by the board of supervisors ~~and approved at the~~
 7 ~~election as provided in section 422D.1, on all taxable property~~
 8 in the county for fiscal years beginning with the fiscal year
 9 in which the ~~favorable election was held~~ resolution under
 10 subsection 1A is adopted. ~~The reason for imposing the tax~~
 11 ~~and the amount needed shall be set out on the ballot.~~ The
 12 rate shall be set so as to raise only the amount needed. The
 13 ~~authority to impose the levy is repealed for subsequent fiscal~~
 14 ~~years may be discontinued as provided in section 422D.1,~~
 15 subsection 4.
 16 Sec. ____ Section 422D.6, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 17 follows:
 18 **422D.6 Emergency medical services trust fund.**
 19 1. A county authorized to impose a tax under this chapter
 20 shall establish an emergency medical services trust fund
 21 into which revenues received from the taxes imposed shall be
 22 deposited. Moneys in the trust fund shall be used for any
 23 operational cost of providing emergency medical services. In
 24 addition, moneys in the fund may be used for the purpose of
 25 matching federal or state funds for education and training
 26 related to emergency medical services. Moneys remaining in the
 27 fund following discontinuance of the authority to impose the
 28 taxes as provided in section 422D.1, subsection 4, shall remain
 29 in the fund and may be expended for the purposes specified in
 30 this section.
 31 2. A county may enter into chapter 28E agreements ~~with other~~
 32 ~~counties~~ in order to ensure adequate coverage of the county's
 33 service area.
 34 ~~3. Costs which are eligible for emergency medical services~~
 35 ~~trust fund expenditures include, but are not limited to:~~

PAGE 7

- 1 ~~a. Defibrillators.~~
- 2 ~~b. Nondisposable essential ambulance equipment, as defined~~

- 3 by rule by the Iowa department of public health.
 4 ~~c. Communications pagers, radios, and base repeaters.~~
 5 ~~d. Training in the use of emergency medical services~~
 6 ~~equipment.~~
 7 ~~e. Vehicles including, but not limited to, ambulances,~~
 8 ~~fire apparatus, boats, rescue/first response vehicles, and~~
 9 ~~snowmobiles.~~
 10 ~~f. Automotive parts.~~
 11 ~~g. Buildings.~~
 12 ~~h. Land.~~
 13 Sec. ___. IMPLEMENTATION. This division of this Act
 14 shall not affect the imposition and collection of taxes under
 15 chapter 422D in effect on the effective date of this division
 16 of this Act, and such taxes shall continue to be imposed and
 17 administered until the period of authority to impose such taxes
 18 in effect immediately prior to the effective date of this
 19 division of this Act expires.>
 20 3. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting
 21 <An Act relating to emergency services by authorizing length
 22 of service award programs, modifying provisions relating to
 23 authorized training programs, modifying provisions relating to
 24 optional taxes for emergency medical services, and including
 25 effective>
 26 4. By renumbering as necessary.

KAUFMANN of Cedar

H-8177

- 1 Amend Senate File 2284, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 3, by striking lines 7 through 12.
 4 2. By renumbering as necessary.

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

H-8178

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8170, to Senate File 2321, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 2, after line 17 by inserting:
 4 <4. The office of ombudsman.>

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8179

- 1 Amend House Joint Resolution 2004 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
 5 the State of Iowa is proposed:

6 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
 7 by adding the following new section:
 8 Sec. 26. **Protection of life.** To defend the dignity of all
 9 human life, and to protect mothers and unborn children from
 10 efforts to expand abortion even to the day of birth, we the
 11 people of the State of Iowa declare that this Constitution
 12 shall not be construed to recognize, grant, or secure a right
 13 to abortion or to require the public funding of abortion.
 14 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
 15 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
 16 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
 17 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
 18 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
 19 date of that election.>
 20 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
 21 <A Joint Resolution proposing an amendment to the Constitution
 22 of the State of Iowa to protect life by declaring that the
 23 Constitution of the State of Iowa shall not be construed to
 24 recognize, grant, or secure a right to abortion or to require
 25 the public funding of abortion.>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8180

1 Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the Senate,
 2 as follows:
 3 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
 4 inserting:
 5 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
 6 the State of Iowa is proposed:
 7 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
 8 by adding the following new section:
 9 Sec. 26. **Protection of life.** To defend the dignity of all
 10 human life, and to protect mothers and unborn children, we the
 11 people of the State of Iowa declare that this Constitution
 12 shall not be construed to recognize, grant, or secure a right
 13 to abortion or to require the public funding thereof.
 14 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
 15 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
 16 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
 17 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
 18 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
 19 date of that election.>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8181

1 Amend the amendment, H-8180, to Senate Joint Resolution
 2 2001, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 19 and inserting:

4 <Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the
5 Senate, as follows:
6 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
7 inserting:
8 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
9 the State of Iowa is proposed:
10 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
11 by adding the following new section:
12 Sec. 26. **Constitutional clarification.** To defend and
13 protect unborn children, we the people of the State of Iowa
14 declare that this Constitution does not recognize, grant,
15 or secure a right to abortion or require the public funding
16 thereof.
17 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
18 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
19 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
20 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
21 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
22 date of that election.>
23 _____. Title page, lines 3 and 4, by striking <shall not be
24 construed to> and inserting <does not>
25 _____. Title page, lines 4 and 5, by striking <to require the
26 public funding of abortion> and inserting <require the public
27 funding thereof>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8182

1 Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the Senate,
2 as follows:
3 1. Page 1, line 10, after <of abortion.> by inserting
4 <This section shall not be construed to prohibit or affect the
5 disposition of unused embryos produced for the purposes of
6 in-vitro fertilization.>

WESSEL-KROESCHELL of Story

H-8183

1 Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the Senate,
2 as follows:
3 1. Page 1, line 10, after <of abortion.> by inserting <This
4 section shall not be construed to prohibit the sale, use,
5 prescription, or administration of a measure, drug, or chemical
6 designed for the purposes of contraception.>

WESSEL-KROESCHELL of Story

H-8184

1 Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the Senate,

2 as follows:

3 1. Page 1, line 10, after <of abortion> by inserting <
4 unless the pregnancy is the result of rape or incest, or unless
5 the woman is certified by a physician to be in danger of death
6 unless the abortion is performed>

ANDERSON of Polk

H-8185

1 Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the Senate,
2 as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
4 inserting:
5 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
6 the State of Iowa is proposed:

7 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
8 by adding the following new section:

9 Sec. 26. **Prohibition of racial discrimination.** The state
10 shall prohibit and bring to an end by all appropriate means,
11 including legislation, as required by the circumstances, racial
12 discrimination by any person, group, or organization.

13 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
14 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
15 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
16 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
17 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
18 date of that election.>

19 2. Title page, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting
20 <of the State of Iowa to prohibit racial discrimination.>

WILBURN of Story

H-8186

1 Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the Senate,
2 as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
4 inserting:
5 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
6 the State of Iowa is proposed:

7 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
8 by adding the following new section:

9 Sec. 26. **Pandemic — protections.** During a pandemic, the
10 health care of Iowans and the rights of workers are public
11 concerns and all reasonable efforts shall be made to protect
12 them.

13 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
14 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
15 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
16 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
17 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the

18 date of that election.>
19 2. Title page, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting
20 <of the State of Iowa establishing that during a pandemic the
21 health care of Iowans and the rights of workers are public
22 concerns to be protected.>

BROWN-POWERS of Black Hawk

H-8187

1 Amend the amendment, H-8179, to House Joint Resolution 2004
2 as follows:
3 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 25 and inserting:
4 <Amend House Joint Resolution 2004 as follows:
5 _____. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
6 inserting:
7 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
8 the State of Iowa is proposed:
9 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
10 by adding the following new section:
11 **Sec. 26. Prohibition of racial discrimination.** The state
12 shall prohibit and bring to an end by all appropriate means,
13 including legislation, as required by the circumstances, racial
14 discrimination by any person, group, or organization.
15 **Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION.** The foregoing amendment
16 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
17 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
18 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
19 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
20 date of that election.>
21 _____. Title page, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting
22 <of the State of Iowa to prohibit racial discrimination.>>

WILBURN of Story

H-8188

1 Amend House Joint Resolution 2004 as follows:
2 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
3 inserting:
4 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
5 the State of Iowa is proposed:
6 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
7 by adding the following new section:
8 **Sec. 26. Prohibition of racial discrimination.** The state
9 shall prohibit and bring to an end by all appropriate means,
10 including legislation, as required by the circumstances, racial
11 discrimination by any person, group, or organization.
12 **Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION.** The foregoing amendment
13 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
14 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
15 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as

16 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
 17 date of that election.>
 18 2. Title page, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting
 19 <of the State of Iowa to prohibit racial discrimination.>

WILBURN of Story

H-8189

1 Amend the amendment, H-8179, to House Joint Resolution 2004
 2 as follows:
 3 1. By striking page 1, lines 1 through 25, and inserting:
 4 <Amend House Joint Resolution 2004 as follows:
 5 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
 6 inserting:
 7 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
 8 the State of Iowa is proposed:
 9 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
 10 by adding the following new section:
 11 Sec. 26. **Pandemic — protections.** During a pandemic, the
 12 health care of Iowans and the rights of workers are public
 13 concerns and all reasonable efforts shall be made to protect
 14 them.
 15 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
 16 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
 17 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
 18 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
 19 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
 20 date of that election.>
 21 2. Title page, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting
 22 <of the State of Iowa establishing that during a pandemic the
 23 health care of Iowans and the rights of workers are public
 24 concerns to be protected.>>

BROWN-POWERS of Black Hawk

H-8190

1 Amend House Joint Resolution 2004 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
 5 the State of Iowa is proposed:
 6 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
 7 by adding the following new section:
 8 Sec. 26. **Pandemic — protections.** During a pandemic, the
 9 health care of Iowans and the rights of workers are public
 10 concerns and all reasonable efforts shall be made to protect
 11 them.
 12 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
 13 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
 14 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for

15 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
16 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
17 date of that election.>

18 2. Title page, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting
19 <of the State of Iowa establishing that during a pandemic the
20 health care of Iowans and the rights of workers are public
21 concerns to be protected.>

BROWN-POWERS of Black Hawk

H-8191

1 Amend the amendment, H-8179, to House Joint Resolution 2004
2 as follows:

3 1. Page 1, line 13, after <of abortion.> by inserting
4 <This section shall not be construed to prohibit or affect the
5 disposition of unused embryos produced for the purposes of
6 in-vitro fertilization.>

WESSEL-KROESCHELL of Story

H-8192

1 Amend the amendment, H-8179, to House Joint Resolution 2004
2 as follows:

3 1. Page 1, line 13, after <of abortion.> by inserting <This
4 section shall not be construed to prohibit the sale, use,
5 prescription, or administration of a measure, drug, or chemical
6 designed for the purposes of contraception.>

WESSEL-KROESCHELL of Story

H-8193

1 Amend the amendment, H-8176, to Senate File 2283, as
2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 5, line 28, after <section.> by inserting <However,
4 following an election approving the discontinuance of the
5 authority to impose one or more of the taxes under this
6 chapter, the board of supervisors is prohibited from adopting
7 a resolution declaring emergency medical services to be an
8 essential county service under subsection 1A for a period of
9 two years beginning on the date of the election approving the
10 discontinuance.>

KAUFMANN of Cedar

H-8194

1 Amend the amendment, H-8159, to Senate File 2400, as
2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 2, after line 8 by inserting:

4 <__. Page 7, after line 7 by inserting:
 5 <Sec. __. PUBLIC HEALTH DISASTER EMERGENCY
 6 GRANTS. Notwithstanding section 8B.11 and any rules adopted
 7 by the office of the chief information officer pursuant to
 8 chapter 8B, the office of the chief information officer may
 9 provide grants of federal moneys obtained as a result of the
 10 public health disaster emergency proclaimed by the governor on
 11 March 17, 2020, to communications service providers to install
 12 broadband infrastructure in this state or facilitate broadband
 13 service in this state so long as the office of the chief
 14 information officer complies with the federal requirements for
 15 the use of the federal moneys.>
 16 __. By renumbering as necessary.>

SORENSEN of Adair

H-8195

1 Amend the amendment, H-8179, to House Joint Resolution 2004
 2 as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, line 13, after <of abortion> by inserting <,
 4 unless the pregnancy is the result of rape or incest, or unless
 5 the woman is certified by a physician to be in danger of death
 6 unless the abortion is performed>

ANDERSON of Polk

H-8196

1 Amend Senate File 2356, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 33, by striking <2024> and inserting <2020>
 3 2. By striking page 2, line 27, through page 3, line 13, and
 4 inserting:
 5 <d. A representative of an institution of higher education
 6 in Iowa with documented expertise in dyslexia and reading
 7 instruction.
 8 e. The department dyslexia consultant if maintained by the
 9 department pursuant to section 256.9, subsection 60.
 10 f. One school administrator.
 11 g. One reading specialist.
 12 h. One special education teacher.
 13 i. An elementary core literacy teacher.
 14 j. Two representatives of decoding dyslexia who are parents
 15 of children with dyslexia.
 16 k. One representative of decoding dyslexia who is an
 17 individual with dyslexia.
 18 l. One provider certified in a structured literacy reading
 19 program.
 20 m. One psychologist or speech language pathologist licensed
 21 in the state of Iowa with experience in diagnosing dyslexia.
 22 3. Members serving pursuant to subsection 2, paragraphs "b"
 23 through "m", shall be appointed by the director. The initial

24 term of members serving pursuant to subsection 2, paragraphs
 25 “f” through “m”, shall be two years and such members whose terms
 26 expire shall not be reappointed. Terms of members serving
 27 pursuant to subsection 2, paragraphs “f” through “m”, who are
 28 appointed following the initial board shall be three years. A
 29 vacancy on the board shall be filled in the same manner as the
 30 original appointment. A member appointed to fill a vacancy
 31 created other than by expiration of a term shall be appointed
 32 for the remainder of the unexpired term.

33 4. The department, in coordination with the Iowa reading
 34 research center, shall provide administrative support to the
 35 board.>

PAGE 2

1 3. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 2 references as necessary.

JAMES of Dubuque

H-8197

1 Amend Senate File 2349, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

4 <DIVISION I
 5 CLOUD COMPUTING>

6 2. Page 1, line 2, by striking <subsection> and inserting
 7 <subsections>

8 3. Page 1, after line 5 by inserting:
 9 <NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. “Foreign government” means a
 10 government other than the government of the United States, its
 11 states, territories, or possessions.>

12 4. Page 2, after line 8 by inserting:
 13 <e. Cloud computing service providers shall store state data
 14 on servers located within the United States. The servers on
 15 which state data is stored shall not be under the control of a
 16 foreign government.>

17 5. Page 2, by striking lines 21 and 22 and inserting
 18 <applications, including the date a state agency or department
 19 began using each information technology application, the life
 20 expectancy of each information technology application, and the
 21 percentage of the information technology applications that are
 22 cloud-based applications.>

23 6. Page 3, after line 5 by inserting:

24 <DIVISION ____
 25 BUDGETARY INFORMATION

26 Sec. ____ Section 8.6, subsection 16, paragraph b, Code
 27 2020, is amended to read as follows:

28 b. The department of revenue, the department of
 29 administrative services, the office of the chief information
 30 officer, the institutions governed by the state board of

31 regents pursuant to section 262.7, each judicial district's
 32 department of correctional services, and the state department
 33 of transportation shall provide salary data to the department
 34 of management and the legislative services agency to operate
 35 the state's salary model. The format and frequency of

PAGE 2

1 provision of the salary data shall be determined by the
 2 department of management and the legislative services agency.
 3 Sec. ____ Section 8.35A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 4 to read as follows:

5 1. By July 1, the director of the department of management,
 6 in conjunction with the director of the department of
 7 administrative services and the chief information officer of
 8 the state, shall provide a projected expenditure breakdown
 9 of each appropriation for the beginning fiscal year to the
 10 legislative services agency in the form and level of detail
 11 requested by the legislative services agency. By the fifteenth
 12 of each month, the director, in conjunction with the director
 13 of the department of administrative services and the chief
 14 information officer of the state, shall transmit to the
 15 legislative services agency a record for each appropriation
 16 of actual expenditures for the prior month of the fiscal year
 17 and the fiscal year to date in the form and level of detail
 18 as requested by the legislative services agency. By October
 19 1, the director, in conjunction with the director of the
 20 department of administrative services and the chief information
 21 officer of the state, shall transmit the total record of an
 22 appropriation, including reversions and transfers for the prior
 23 fiscal year ending June 30, to the legislative services agency.

24 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 25 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.>

26 7. Title page, line 3, after <assets> by inserting <,
 27 budgetary reporting, and including effective date provisions>

28 8. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 29 references as necessary.

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

H-8198

1 Amend Senate File 2360, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, line 4, after <to> by inserting <all>
 4 2. Page 2, line 19, after <priority.> by inserting <Grant
 5 awards shall be distributed as equitably as possible among
 6 small, medium, and large school districts. For purposes of
 7 this subsection, a small school district is a district with an
 8 actual enrollment of fewer than six hundred pupils; a medium
 9 school district is a district with an actual enrollment that
 10 is at least six hundred pupils, but less than two thousand

- 11 five hundred pupils; and a large school district is a district
 12 with an actual enrollment of two thousand five hundred or more
 13 pupils.>
- 14 3. Page 3, line 9, after <moneys> by inserting <credited
 15 to the therapeutic classroom incentive fund established under
 16 subsection 5>
- 17 4. Page 4, line 31, by striking <2022> and inserting <2023>
- 18 5. Page 5, line 3, by striking <2021> and inserting <2022>
- 19 6. Page 11, by striking lines 8 through 24.
- 20 7. Page 11, by striking lines 30 through 32 and inserting
 21 <or criminal liability which might otherwise be incurred or>
- 22 8. Page 12, by striking lines 1 through 5.
- 23 9. Page 12, by striking lines 8 through 12 and inserting:
 24 <NEW SUBSECTION. 4. A school employee's employer and the
 25 board of educational examiners shall not engage in reprisal or
 26 retaliation against a school employee who, in the reasonable
 27 course of the employee's employment responsibilities, comes
 28 into physical contact with a student in accordance with this
 29 section.>
- 30 10. Page 12, line 15, by striking <2020> and inserting
 31 <2021>
- 32 11. Page 12, line 16, by striking <2021> and inserting
 33 <2022>
- 34 12. Page 12, by striking line 35 and inserting <beginning
 35 July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022, the following>

PAGE 2

- 1 13. Page 13, line 9, by striking <2020> and inserting <2021>
- 2 14. Page 13, line 10, by striking <2021> and inserting
 3 <2022>
- 4 15. By renumbering as necessary.

COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

H-8199

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8180, to Senate Joint Resolution
 2 2001, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
- 3 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 19 and inserting:
 4 <Amend Senate Joint Resolution 2001, as passed by the
 5 Senate, as follows:
- 6 1. By striking everything after the resolving clause and
 7 inserting:
 8 <Section 1. The following amendment to the Constitution of
 9 the State of Iowa is proposed:
- 10 Article I of the Constitution of the State of Iowa is amended
 11 by adding the following new section:
 12 Sec. 26. To defend and protect unborn children, we the
 13 people of the State of Iowa declare that this Constitution does
 14 not recognize, grant, or secure a right to abortion or require
 15 the public funding thereof.

16 Sec. 2. REFERRAL AND PUBLICATION. The foregoing amendment
 17 to the Constitution of the State of Iowa is referred to the
 18 general assembly to be chosen at the next general election for
 19 members of the general assembly, and shall be published as
 20 provided by law for three consecutive months previous to the
 21 date of that election.>
 22 _____. Title page, lines 3 and 4, by striking <shall not be
 23 construed to> and inserting <does not>
 24 _____. Title page, lines 4 and 5, by striking <to require the
 25 public funding of abortion> and inserting <require the public
 26 funding thereof>>

HOLT of Crawford

H-8200

1 Amend Senate File 2301, as passed by the Senate, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 32, after <younger> by inserting <and that
 3 is consistent with the recommendations of the American academy
 4 of pediatrics committee on infectious diseases contained in the
 5 most recent edition of the red book report>

DEYOE of Story

H-8201

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 4, by striking lines 21 through 26 and inserting
 4 <and the private sector.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8202

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:
 5 <DIVISION I
 6 PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BIDDING DEFINITIONS
 7 Section 1. Section 26.2, subsection 3, paragraph b,
 8 subparagraph (5), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 9 (5) Construction or repair or maintenance work performed
 10 for a city utility under chapter 388 when such work is
 11 performed by its employees or when such work relates to
 12 existing utility infrastructure or to establishing connections
 13 to existing utility systems.
 14 (6) Construction or repair or maintenance work performed
 15 for a rural water district under chapter 357A by its employees.
 16 DIVISION II
 17 ALTERNATIVE PROJECT DELIVERY CONTRACTS

18 Sec. 2. NEW SECTION. 26.17 Alternative project delivery
19 **contracts.**

20 1. As used in this section, unless the context otherwise
21 requires:

22 *a. "Alternative project delivery contract"* means either a
23 design-build or construction manager-at-risk contract.

24 *b. "Bridging criteria professional"* means a person,
25 corporation, partnership, or other legal entity that is
26 employed by or contracted by a government entity to assist
27 the government entity in the development of project design
28 criteria, requests for proposals, and any additional services
29 requested by the government entity to represent its interests
30 in relation to a project and who meets either of the following
31 requirements:

32 (1) Is duly licensed to practice architecture within the
33 state and can demonstrate specific knowledge of the project
34 type where alternative project delivery services are being
35 sought.

PAGE 2

1 (2) Is duly licensed as a professional engineer within the
2 state and can demonstrate specific knowledge of the project
3 type where alternative project delivery services are being
4 sought.

5 *c. "Construction manager-at-risk"* means a sole
6 proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity
7 that acts as a consultant to the government entity in the
8 development and design phases and then assumes the risk for
9 the construction, rehabilitation, alteration, or repair of a
10 project at the contracted fixed or guaranteed maximum price,
11 similar to a general contractor during the construction phase.
12 A project using a construction manager-at-risk does not include
13 the construction, reconstruction, or improvement of a highway,
14 bridge, or culvert.

15 *d. "Design-build"* means a project delivery method subject to
16 a two or three-phase selection process for which the design and
17 construction services are furnished under one contract.

18 *e. "Design-build contract"* means a contract between
19 a government entity and a design-builder to furnish the
20 architecture of record, engineering of record, and related
21 services as required for a given public project, and to
22 furnish the labor, materials, and other construction services
23 for the same public project. A design-build contract may be
24 conditioned upon subsequent refinements in scope and price, and
25 may permit the government entity to make changes in the scope
26 of the project without invalidating the design-build contract.

27 *f. "Design-build project"* means the design, construction,
28 alteration, addition, remodeling, or improvement of any
29 buildings, infrastructure, or facilities under contract with a
30 government entity. *"Design-build project"* does not include a
31 project for the construction, reconstruction, or improvement of

32 a highway, bridge, or culvert.
 33 g. *“Design-builder”* means any individual, partnership,
 34 joint venture, or corporation subject to a best-value or
 35 qualification-based selection that offers to provide or

PAGE 3

1 provides design services and general contracting services
 2 through a design-build contract in which services within
 3 the scope of the practice of professional architecture or
 4 engineering are performed respectively by a licensed architect
 5 or licensed engineer and in which services within the scope of
 6 general contracting are performed by a general contractor or
 7 other legal entity that furnishes architecture or engineering
 8 services and construction services either directly or through
 9 subcontracts or joint ventures.
 10 h. *“Design bridging criteria package”* means the
 11 performance-oriented program, scope, design, and performance
 12 specifications for the design-build project sufficient to
 13 permit a design-builder to prepare a response to a government
 14 entity’s request for proposals for a design-build project.
 15 i. *“Government entity”* means the same as *“governmental*
 16 *entity”* defined in section 26.2 including, for the purpose of
 17 this section, the state board of regents.
 18 j. *“Proposal”* means an offer by a design-builder in response
 19 to a request for proposals to enter into a design-build
 20 contract.
 21 k. *“Request for proposals”* means the document by which
 22 a government entity solicits proposals for a design-build
 23 contract.
 24 l. *“Stipend”* means a payment to a design-builder who did not
 25 score the highest number of points at the conclusion of phase
 26 three of the best-value selection process to defray the cost of
 27 participating in phase two of the selection process, and for
 28 the use of any intellectual properties obtained.
 29 2. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, a
 30 government entity shall be authorized to enter into an
 31 alternative project delivery contract.
 32 3. Construction manager-at-risk contracts.
 33 a. A government entity shall publicly disclose its intent to
 34 use the construction manager-at-risk method and its selection
 35 criteria at least one week prior to publishing the request

PAGE 4

1 for proposals and request for statements of qualifications.
 2 The government entity shall publish its request for proposals
 3 and statements of qualifications. Before or concurrently
 4 with selecting a construction manager-at-risk, the government
 5 entity shall select or designate an engineer or architect
 6 who shall prepare the construction documents for the project
 7 and who shall comply with all state laws, as applicable. If

8 the engineer or architect is not a full-time employee of the
9 government entity, the government entity shall select the
10 engineer or architect on a basis of demonstrated competence and
11 qualifications. The government entity's engineer or architect
12 for a project may not serve, alone or in combination with
13 another, as the construction manager-at-risk. This paragraph
14 does not prohibit a government entity's engineer or architect
15 from providing customary construction-phase services under
16 the engineer's or architect's original professional service
17 agreement in accordance with applicable licensing laws.

18 *b.* The government entity may provide or contract for,
19 independently of the construction manager-at-risk, inspection
20 services, testing of construction materials, engineering, and
21 verification of testing services necessary for acceptance of
22 the project by the government entity.

23 *c.* The government entity shall select the construction
24 manager-at-risk in a two-phase process.

25 (1) Phase one. The government entity shall prepare a
26 request for statements of qualifications for the first phase.
27 The request shall include general information on the project
28 site, project scope, schedule, selection criteria, the time
29 and place for receipt of statements of qualifications, and
30 other information that may assist the government entity in its
31 selection of a construction manager-at-risk. The selection
32 criteria may include the construction manager-at-risk's
33 experience, past performance, safety record, proposed personnel
34 and methodology, and other appropriate factors that demonstrate
35 the capability of the construction manager-at-risk. The

PAGE 5

1 government entity shall not request fees or prices in phase
2 one.

3 (2) Phase two. In phase two, the government entity
4 shall issue a request for proposals. The government entity
5 may request that no more than five nor fewer than two
6 construction managers-at-risk, selected solely on the basis
7 of qualifications, provide additional information, including
8 the construction manager-at-risk's project proposal, proposed
9 fee, its price for fulfilling the general conditions, and its
10 distribution plan for sharing any cost savings after completion
11 of said project. Qualifications shall account for a minimum
12 of forty percent of the evaluation. Cost shall account for a
13 maximum of sixty percent of the evaluation.

14 *d.* For each phase, the government entity shall receive,
15 publicly open, and read aloud the names of the construction
16 managers submitting proposals or statements of qualifications,
17 respectively. Within forty-five days after the date of opening
18 the proposals or statements of qualification submissions, the
19 government entity or its representative shall evaluate and rank
20 each proposal or statement of qualifications submission in
21 relation to the criteria set forth in the applicable request.

22 *e.* The government entity or its representative shall
23 select the construction manager-at-risk that submits the
24 proposal that offers the best value for the government entity
25 based on the published selection criteria and on its ranking
26 evaluation. The government entity or its representative
27 shall first attempt to negotiate a contract with the selected
28 construction manager-at-risk. If the government entity or its
29 representative is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract
30 with the selected construction manager-at-risk, the government
31 entity or its representative shall, formally and in writing,
32 end negotiations with that construction manager-at-risk and
33 proceed to negotiate with the next construction manager-at-risk
34 in the order of the selection ranking until a contract
35 is reached or negotiations with all ranked construction

PAGE 6

1 managers-at-risk end.
2 *f.* The selected construction manager-at-risk shall publicly
3 advertise and receive bids or proposals from trade contractors
4 or subcontractors for the performance of all major elements of
5 the work other than the minor work that may be included in the
6 general conditions. A construction manager-at-risk submits
7 its sealed bid or sealed proposal in the same manner as all
8 other trade contractors or subcontractors. All sealed bids
9 or proposals shall be submitted at the time and location as
10 specified in the advertisement for bids or proposals and shall
11 be publicly opened and the identity of each bidder and their
12 bid amount shall be read aloud.
13 *g.* The construction manager-at-risk and the government
14 entity or its representative shall review all trade contractor,
15 subcontractor, or construction manager-at-risk bids or
16 proposals in a manner that does not disclose the contents of
17 the bid or proposal during the selection process to a person
18 not employed by the construction manager-at-risk, engineer,
19 architect, or government entity involved with the project. If
20 the construction manager-at-risk submitted bids or proposals,
21 the government entity shall determine if the construction
22 manager-at-risk's bid or proposal offers the best value for the
23 government entity. After all proposals have been evaluated and
24 clarified, the award of all contracts shall be made public.
25 *h.* If the construction manager-at-risk reviews, evaluates,
26 and recommends to the government entity a bid or proposal from
27 a trade contractor or subcontractor but the government entity
28 requires another bid or proposal to be accepted, the government
29 entity shall compensate the construction manager-at-risk by
30 a change in price, time, or guaranteed maximum cost for any
31 additional cost and risk that the construction manager-at-risk
32 may incur because of the government entity's requirement that
33 another bid or proposal be accepted.
34 *i.* If a selected trade contractor materially defaults in the
35 performance of its work or fails to execute a contract with a

PAGE 7

1 construction manager-at-risk after being selected in accordance
2 with this subsection, the construction manager-at-risk may
3 itself, without advertising, fulfill the contract requirements
4 or select a replacement trade contractor to fulfill the
5 contract requirements.

6 4. In soliciting proposals for a design-build contract,
7 a government entity shall determine the scope and level of
8 detail required to permit design-builders to submit proposals
9 in accordance with the request for proposals given the nature
10 of the project.

11 5. *a.* A bridging criteria professional may be retained by
12 the government entity as the government entity's representative
13 to advise the government entity on design-build matters. The
14 use of the bridging criteria professional shall be strictly
15 to guide and administer the government's needs through the
16 process. The bridging criteria professional shall have
17 demonstrated sufficient previous experience in rules and
18 procedures specific to the design-build process. The bridging
19 criteria professional shall, along with the government
20 entity, be authorized to make recommendations or influence
21 the acceptance of any material, process, or procedure used
22 during the design and construction processes in accordance
23 with the criteria established for the project for the purpose
24 of evaluating compliance of the work. The bridging criteria
25 professional may be employed or contracted by the government
26 entity to act on behalf of the government entity for the sole
27 purpose of administrative procedures and may not be connected
28 in any means to the design-build team. The duration of
29 bridging criteria professional services, prior to the issuance
30 of a design-build contract, may begin when establishing
31 the government entity's program requirements through design
32 development if the complexity of the project with the
33 governmental entity merits this level of bridging information.

34 *b.* The design bridging criteria package developed by the
35 bridging criteria professional, which may include preliminary

PAGE 8

1 designs for the project, may extend to the design development
2 level of detail, including design expectations, capacity,
3 durability, standards, ingress and egress requirements,
4 international building code considerations, performance
5 requirements, the government entity's operational expectations,
6 requirements for interior and exterior spaces, material and
7 building system quality standards, and design and construction
8 schedule timelines. Longevity of materials and system
9 performance requirements shall be identified in the design
10 bridging criteria package to identify materials and systems
11 that have the potential to exceed the length of time the
12 project is funded. The design bridging criteria package may

13 include site development requirements, description of the
14 site, surveys, soil and environmental information concerning
15 the site, provisions for utilities, storm water retention
16 and disposal, parking requirements, requirements related
17 to applicable local laws, local permitting requirements,
18 preliminary designs for the project or portions thereof, and
19 other criteria for the intended use of the project.
20 6. A government entity shall publicly disclose its intent to
21 solicit proposals for a design-build contract and its project
22 design bridging criteria package in the same manner that it
23 would post notice for the competitive bidding process in
24 section 26.3.
25 7. In soliciting proposals for a design-build contract, a
26 government entity shall establish in the request for proposals
27 a time, place, and other specific instructions for the receipt
28 of proposals. Proposals not submitted in strict accordance
29 with the instructions may be subject to rejection. Minor
30 irregularities may be waived by the government entity.
31 8. A request for proposals shall be prepared for each
32 design-build contract and shall contain, at minimum, the
33 following elements:
34 *a.* The procedures to be followed for submitting proposals,
35 the criteria for evaluating proposals and their relative

PAGE 9

1 weight, and the procedure for making awards.
2 *b.* The proposed terms and conditions for the design-build
3 contract, if available.
4 *c.* The design bridging criteria package.
5 *d.* A description of the drawings, specifications, or other
6 information to be submitted with the proposal, with guidance
7 as to the form and level of completeness of the drawings,
8 specifications, or other information that will be acceptable.
9 *e.* A schedule for planned commencement and completion of the
10 design-build contract, if available.
11 *f.* Budget limits for the design-build contract, if any.
12 *g.* Requirements including any available ratings for
13 performance bonds, payment bonds, and insurance, if any.
14 *h.* If using a three-phase, best-value selection process, the
15 amount of the stipend that will be available.
16 *i.* Any other information that the government entity in
17 its discretion chooses to request including but not limited
18 to surveys, soil reports, drawings of existing structures,
19 environmental studies, photographs, references to public
20 records, or affirmative action and minority business enterprise
21 requirements consistent with state and federal law.
22 9. A government entity seeking to enter a design-build
23 contract shall solicit design-build proposals either by
24 using a three-phase, best-value process or a two-phase,
25 qualifications-based process.
26 *a.* When solicitations require a three-phase, best-value

27 selection process, the process shall be conducted as follows:
28 (1) Phase one. Request for statements of qualifications of
29 design-builders.
30 (a) The government entity shall review submitted statements
31 of the qualifications and assign points to each in accordance
32 with this section and as set out in the instructions of the
33 request for qualifications.
34 (b) All design-builders shall submit a statement of
35 qualifications that shall include but not be limited to:

PAGE 10

1 (i) Demonstrated ability to perform projects comparable in
2 design, scope, and complexity.
3 (ii) References of owners for whom design-build projects,
4 construction projects, or design projects have been performed.
5 (iii) Qualifications of personnel who will manage the
6 design and construction aspects of the project.
7 (iv) The names and qualifications of the primary design
8 consultants and the primary trade contractors with whom the
9 design-builder proposes to subcontract or joint venture. The
10 design-builder may not replace an identified contractor,
11 subcontractor, design consultant, or subconsultant without the
12 written approval of the government entity.
13 (c) The government entity shall evaluate the qualifications
14 of all the design-builders who submitted statements of
15 qualifications in accordance with the instructions of the
16 request for qualifications. Qualified design-builders
17 selected by the government entity may proceed to phase two
18 of the selection process. The evaluation shall narrow the
19 number of qualified design-builders submitting statements of
20 qualifications to not fewer than two nor more than five. Under
21 no circumstances shall price or fees be a part of the request
22 for statements of qualifications criteria. Design-builders may
23 be interviewed in either phase one or phase two of the process.
24 Points assigned in phase one of the evaluation process shall
25 not carry forward to phase two or phase three of the process.
26 All qualified design-builders shall be ranked on points given
27 in phases two and three only.
28 (d) Once no fewer than two and no more than five qualified
29 design-builders have been selected, the government entity shall
30 issue its request for proposals and provide the design-builders
31 a specified amount of time in which to concurrently assemble
32 phase two and phase three proposals.
33 (2) Phase two. Solicitation of technical proposals,
34 including conceptual design for the project.
35 (a) A design-builder shall submit its design for the project

PAGE 11

1 to the level of detail required for the proposal along with
2 such other information the government entity requests, which

3 may include a schedule, qualifications, and experience.
4 (b) The ability of the design-builder to meet the schedule
5 for completing a project as specified by the government entity
6 may be considered as an element of evaluation in phase two.
7 (c) Under no circumstances shall the design proposal
8 contain any reference to the cost of the proposal.
9 (d) The submitted designs shall be evaluated and assigned
10 points in accordance with the requirements of the request for
11 proposals. Phase two shall account for not less than forty
12 percent and no more than sixty percent of the total point score
13 as specified in the request for proposals.
14 (3) Phase three. Proposal of construction costs.
15 (a) The government entity shall invite the selected
16 design-builders to participate in phase three. The
17 design-builders shall provide a fixed cost of design and
18 construction. The proposal shall be accompanied by bid
19 security and any other items, such as statements of minority
20 participation, as required by the request for proposals.
21 (b) Cost proposals shall be submitted in accordance with
22 the instructions in the request for proposals. The government
23 entity shall reject any proposal that is not submitted within
24 the required time frame. Phase three shall account for not
25 less than forty percent and no more than sixty percent of the
26 total point score as specified in the request for proposals.
27 (c) Proposals for phase two and phase three shall be
28 submitted concurrently at the time and place specified in the
29 request for proposals, but in separate envelopes or other means
30 of submission. The phase three cost proposals shall be opened
31 and read aloud only after phase two design proposals have been
32 evaluated and assigned points, ranked in order, and posted.
33 Cost proposals shall be opened and read aloud at the time and
34 place specified in the request for proposals. At the same time
35 and place, the evaluation team shall make public its scoring

PAGE 12

1 of phase two. Cost proposals shall be evaluated in accordance
2 with the requirements of the request for proposals.
3 (d) If the government entity determines that it is not in
4 the best interest of the government entity to proceed with the
5 project pursuant to the proposal offered by the design-builder
6 with the highest total number of points, the government entity
7 shall reject all proposals. In this event, all design-builders
8 with lower point totals in phases two and three shall receive
9 a stipend and the responsive design-builder with the highest
10 point total shall receive an amount equal to two times the
11 stipend. If the government entity decides to award the
12 project, the responsive design-builder with the highest point
13 total shall be awarded the contract.
14 (e) As an inducement to qualified design-builders, the
15 government entity shall pay a stipend, the amount of which
16 shall be established in the request for proposals, to each

17 design-builder who submitted a proposal but was not accepted.
18 Such stipend shall be no less than one-half of one percent
19 of the total project budget. Upon payment of the stipend to
20 such a design-builder, the government entity shall acquire
21 a nonexclusive right to use the design submitted by the
22 design-builder, and the design-builder shall have no further
23 liability for the use of the design by the government entity in
24 any manner. If the design-builder desires to retain all rights
25 and interests in the design proposed, the design-builder shall
26 forfeit the stipend.
27 *b.* When solicitations require a two-phase,
28 qualifications-based selection process, the process shall be
29 conducted as follows:
30 (1) Phase one. Request for statements of qualifications of
31 design-builders.
32 (a) The government entity must prepare a request for
33 statements of qualifications. The request shall include
34 general information on the project site, project scope,
35 schedule, selection criteria, the time and place for receipt

PAGE 13

1 of statements of qualifications, and other information
2 that may assist the government entity in its selection of a
3 design-builder.
4 (b) The government entity shall state the selection
5 criteria in the request for statements of qualifications. The
6 selection criteria may include the design-builder's experience,
7 past performance, safety record, proposed personnel and
8 methodology, and other appropriate factors that demonstrate the
9 capability of the design-builder.
10 (c) Selection criteria will be ranked and assigned points
11 for each category. Point assignments shall be included as a
12 part of the request for statements of qualifications.
13 (d) The government entity shall not request fees or prices
14 in phase one. Any submissions with disclosed fees or prices
15 will be disqualified and removed from consideration.
16 (2) Phase two. Negotiations.
17 (a) Negotiations shall be conducted, beginning with the
18 design-builder ranked first. If a contract satisfactory
19 and advantageous to the government entity can be negotiated
20 at a price considered fair and reasonable and pursuant to
21 contractual terms and conditions acceptable to the government
22 entity, the award shall be made to that design-builder.
23 (b) In the event that a contract cannot be negotiated
24 with the design-builder ranked first, negotiations with that
25 design-builder shall be formally terminated. The government
26 entity shall conduct negotiations with the next-highest-ranked
27 design-builder and continue this process until a contract can
28 be negotiated that meets the terms of subparagraph division (a)
29 of this subparagraph.
30 Sec. 3. Section 262.34, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended

31 to read as follows:

32 1. a. When the estimated cost of construction, repairs,
 33 or improvement of buildings or grounds under charge of the
 34 state board of regents, including construction, renovation, or
 35 repairs by a private party of a property to be lease-purchased

PAGE 14

1 by the board, exceeds one hundred thousand dollars, the board
 2 shall advertise for bids for the contemplated improvement or
 3 construction and shall let the work to the lowest responsible
 4 bidder. However, if in the judgment of the board bids received
 5 are not acceptable, the board may reject all bids and proceed
 6 with the construction, repair, or improvement by a method as
 7 the board may determine. All plans and specifications for
 8 repairs or construction, together with bids on the plans or
 9 specifications, shall be filed by the board and be open for
 10 public inspection. All bids submitted under this section shall
 11 be accompanied by a deposit of money, a certified check, or a
 12 credit union certified share draft in an amount as the board
 13 may prescribe.

14 b. The state board of regents may proceed with a
 15 construction, repair, or improvement by using an alternative
 16 project delivery contract in accordance with the provisions of
 17 section 26.17.>

18 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
 19 <An Act relating to public construction bidding.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8203

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 4, by striking lines 29 through 35 and inserting
 4 <73A.28.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8204

1 Amend the amendment, H-8173, to Senate File 2338, as passed
 2 by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 7, line 7, after <85B> by inserting <, or the rights
 4 or limits related to police officers or fire fighters under
 5 chapter 410 or 411>

CARLSON of Muscatine

H-8205

1 Amend Senate File 2284, as amended, passed, and reprinted by

2 the Senate, as follows:

- 3 1. Page 7, by striking lines 2 through 9.
- 4 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HANUSA of Pottawattamie

H-8206

1 Amend House File 2626 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <DIVISION I

5 DEPARTMENTAL ORGANIZATION

6 Section 1. Section 159.5, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
7 amended to read as follows:

8 ~~7. Establish and maintain a marketing news service bureau~~
9 ~~in the department which shall, in cooperation with the~~
10 ~~federal market news and grading division~~ Cooperate with the
11 agricultural marketing service of the United States department
12 of agriculture, ~~to collect and disseminate data and information~~
13 relative to the market prices and conditions of agricultural
14 products raised, produced, and handled in the state.

15 Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
16 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

17 DIVISION II

18 ANIMALS

19 PART A

20 COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS

21 Sec. 3. Section 162.2A, subsection 3, paragraph d, Code
22 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

23 PART B

24 ANIMAL HEALTH

25 Sec. 4. NEW SECTION. 163.2A Part — definitions.

26 As used in this part, unless the context otherwise requires:

27 1. “*Animal*” means any livestock or agricultural animal as
28 defined in section 717A.1.

29 2. “*Interested person*” means the owner of an animal; a
30 person caring for the animal, if different from the owner of
31 the animal; or a person holding a perfected agricultural lien
32 or security interest in the animal under chapter 554.

33 Sec. 5. Section 163.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
34 follows:

35 **163.3 Veterinary and special assistants.**

PAGE 2

1 The secretary or the secretary’s designee may appoint one
2 or more veterinarians licensed pursuant to chapter 169 in each
3 county as assistant veterinarians. The secretary may also
4 appoint ~~such one or more~~ special assistants as may be necessary
5 in cases of emergency, including as provided in section 163.3A.

6 Sec. 6. Section 163.3A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended

7 to read as follows:

8 1. The department may provide veterinary emergency
 9 preparedness and response services necessary to prevent or
 10 control a serious threat to the public health, public safety,
 11 or the state's economy caused by the transmission of disease
 12 among ~~livestock as defined in section 717.1 or agricultural~~
 13 ~~animals as defined in section 717A.1.~~ The services may include
 14 measures necessary to ensure that all such animals carrying
 15 disease are properly identified, segregated, treated, or
 16 destroyed as provided in this Code.

17 Sec. 7. Section 163.3C, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 18 by striking the subsection.

19 Sec. 8. Section 163.3C, subsection 2, unnumbered paragraph
 20 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

21 The department shall develop and establish a foreign animal
 22 disease preparedness and response strategy for use by the
 23 department in order to prevent, control, or eradicate the
 24 transmission of foreign animal diseases among populations
 25 of livestock animals. The strategy may be part of the
 26 department's veterinary emergency preparedness and response
 27 services as provided in section 163.3A. The strategy shall
 28 provide additional expertise and resources to increase
 29 biosecurity efforts that assist in the prevention of a foreign
 30 animal disease outbreak in this state. In developing and
 31 establishing the strategy, the department shall consult with
 32 interested persons including but not limited to the following:

33 Sec. 9. Section 163.3C, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
 34 to read as follows:

35 3. The department shall implement the foreign animal

PAGE 3

1 disease preparedness and response strategy if necessary to
 2 prevent, control, or eradicate the transmission and incidence
 3 of foreign animal diseases that may threaten or actually
 4 threaten livestock animals in this state. In implementing
 5 the strategy, the department may utilize emergency response
 6 measures as otherwise required under section 163.3A. The
 7 department may but is not required to consult with interested
 8 persons when implementing the strategy.

9 Sec. 10. NEW SECTION. 163.3D Emergency measures —
 10 abandoned animals — authorization and seizure.

11 1. *a.* The department may seize one or more abandoned
 12 animals pursuant to an authorization providing emergency
 13 measures to prevent or control the transmission of an
 14 infectious or contagious disease among any population or
 15 species of animals.

16 *b.* The authorization must be any of the following:

17 (1) A declaration or proclamation issued by the governor
 18 pursuant to chapter 29C, including as provided in section
 19 163.3A.

20 (2) An order issued by the secretary or the secretary's

21 designee pursuant to a provision in this subtitle.
22 (3) Any other provision of law in this subtitle that
23 requires the department to control the transmission of an
24 infectious or contagious disease among a population or species
25 of animals in this state.
26 c. If there is a conflict between a measure authorized to
27 be taken under paragraph "a", that is less restrictive than the
28 standards or procedures provided in this section, the measures
29 authorized to be taken under paragraph "a" shall prevail.
30 2. The department may appoint veterinary assistants or
31 special assistants as provided in section 163.3 as required to
32 administer this section.
33 3. It is presumed that an abandoned animal belonging to a
34 species subject to emergency measures as provided in subsection
35 1 has been exposed to an infectious or contagious disease as

PAGE 4

1 provided in the authorization.
2 4. As part of the seizure of an abandoned animal, the
3 department may take, impound, and retain custody of the animal,
4 including by maintaining the animal in a manner and at a
5 location determined by the department to be reasonable under
6 the emergency circumstances. The department may take action as
7 provided in this subtitle to ensure that all animals exposed to
8 an infectious or contagious disease are properly identified,
9 tested, segregated, treated, or destroyed as provided in this
10 subtitle.
11 5. a. The department may seize an animal if the department
12 has a reasonable suspicion the animal has been abandoned,
13 including by entering onto public or private property or into a
14 private motor vehicle, trailer, or semitrailer parked on public
15 or private property, as provided in this subsection.
16 b. The department may enter onto private property or into
17 a private motor vehicle, trailer, or semitrailer to seize an
18 abandoned animal if the department obtains a search warrant
19 issued by a court, or enters onto the premises in a manner
20 consistent with the laws of this state and the United States,
21 including Article I, section 8, of the Constitution of the
22 State of Iowa, or the fourth amendment to the Constitution of
23 the United States.
24 c. An abandoned animal shall only be seized by the
25 department pursuant to the following conditions:
26 (1) The department provides written notice of its
27 abandonment determination to all reasonably identifiable
28 interested persons. The department shall make a good-faith
29 effort to provide the notice to interested persons by regular
30 mail, hand delivery, telephone, electronic mail, or other
31 reasonable means. The notice shall include all of the
32 following:
33 (a) The name and address of the department.
34 (b) A description of the animal subject to seizure.

35 (c) The delivery date of the notice.

PAGE 5

1 (d) A statement informing the interested person that the
 2 animal may be seized pursuant to this chapter within one day
 3 following the delivery date of the notice. The statement
 4 must specify a date, time, and location for delivery of the
 5 interested person's response designated by the department, as
 6 provided in this subsection.
 7 (e) A statement informing the interested person that in
 8 order to avoid seizure of the animal, the person must respond
 9 to the notice in writing, stating that the animal has not been
 10 abandoned and identifying what measures are being taken to care
 11 for and manage the animal.
 12 (2) Notwithstanding subparagraph (1), if the department
 13 determines that it is not feasible to provide direct notice
 14 of its abandonment determination to an interested person,
 15 the department shall deliver a constructive notice of the
 16 determination to that person by any reasonable manner, which
 17 may include posting the notice at or near the place where
 18 the animal is located. The department shall also post the
 19 constructive notice on the department's internet site.
 20 *d.* The department may seize the animal if the department
 21 fails to receive a written response by the interested person by
 22 the end of normal office hours of the next day the department
 23 is available to receive the response after written notice of
 24 the department's abandonment determination is delivered.
 25 *e.* Upon a determination by the department that exigent
 26 circumstances exist, the department may enter onto private
 27 property without a warrant and may seize an abandoned animal,
 28 in a manner consistent with the laws of this state and
 29 the United States, including Article I, section 8, of the
 30 Constitution of the State of Iowa, or the fourth amendment to
 31 the Constitution of the United States.
 32 6. If an animal is seized pursuant to this section, the
 33 department shall post a notice in a conspicuous place at the
 34 location where the animal was seized. The notice shall state
 35 the animal has been seized by the department pursuant to this

PAGE 6

1 section and at least briefly describe where and when the animal
 2 was seized, the species and number of animals seized, and that
 3 a dispositional proceeding is to be conducted pursuant to
 4 section 163.3E.
 5 Sec. 11. NEW SECTION. **163.3E Emergency measures —**
 6 **abandoned animals — dispositional proceeding.**
 7 1. *a.* The department shall file a petition with the
 8 district court for the disposition of an animal seized pursuant
 9 to section 163.3D as soon as practicable.
 10 *b.* The court shall notify the department and all interested

11 persons of the dispositional proceeding in a manner determined
12 reasonable by the court. The court shall hear the matter
13 within twenty-four hours from the time the department's
14 petition is filed. The court may grant a continuance by a
15 motion of the department or upon petition by an interested
16 person. However, the interested person shall post a bond or
17 other security with the department in an amount determined by
18 the court, which shall not be more than the amount sufficient
19 to provide for the maintenance of the animal for the duration
20 of the continuance.

21 2. Upon a determination by the department that exigent
22 circumstances exist, the dispositional proceeding may be
23 conducted by an administrative law judge in the same manner
24 as an emergency adjudicative proceeding pursuant to section
25 17A.18A. The administrative law judge shall notify the
26 department and all interested persons of the dispositional
27 proceeding in a manner determined reasonable by the
28 administrative law judge given the circumstances in the case.
29 The procedures provided in this section may be supplemented
30 or modified by a declaration or proclamation issued by the
31 governor or an order issued by the secretary or the secretary's
32 designee pursuant to section 163.3D.

33 3. *a.* A court or administrative law judge shall issue an
34 order for the disposition of the animal after making any of the
35 following determinations:

PAGE 7

1 (1) That no interested person holds a legal interest in
2 the seized animal. In that case, the animal shall be deemed
3 abandoned and the order shall extinguish all prior legal
4 interests in the animal. The order shall grant an undivided
5 ownership interest in the animal free from any security
6 interest or other agricultural lien or encumbrance to the
7 department.

8 (2) That an interested person holds a legal interest in
9 the seized animal, and the department has reasonable suspicion
10 to believe that the animal has been exposed to an infectious
11 or contagious disease. In that case, the order shall provide
12 for the disposition of the animal in the same manner as if the
13 department had identified the animal as having been exposed to
14 the infectious or contagious disease under the authorization
15 provided in section 163.3D.

16 (3) That a person holds a legal interest in the seized
17 animal, and there is no reasonable suspicion that the seized
18 animal has been exposed to an infectious or contagious disease.
19 In that case, the order shall direct the department to transfer
20 custody of the animal to the interested person. In the event
21 the animal is returned to the interested person, the department
22 shall not be subject to any claim for damages caused by the
23 seizure if the department's actions were taken pursuant to
24 the department's emergency efforts to establish and maintain

25 quarantine in response to a disease outbreak, as set forth in
26 section 669.14, subsection 3.
27 *b.* A reasonable suspicion asserted by the department may
28 be based on any credible evidence that shows the animal's
29 possible exposure to an infectious or contagious disease or the
30 animal was abandoned. This paragraph "*b*" does not require the
31 department to conduct a test of an animal to determine whether
32 an animal has been exposed.
33 *c.* If two or more interested parties may be transferred
34 custody of an animal by the department pursuant to paragraph
35 "*a*", subparagraph (3), the court or administrative law judge

PAGE 8

1 shall order the department to transfer the animal to the owner
2 or otherwise to the interested person best able to care for the
3 animal without prejudicing the rights of any other interested
4 person. However, in any cause of action brought by an
5 interested person contesting the order to transfer under this
6 subsection, the department shall not be included as a party.
7 4. *a.* In a dispositional proceeding conducted by a court or
8 administrative law judge under this section, or in a separate
9 cause of action brought by the department against an interested
10 person, the court or administrative law judge may award the
11 department all of the following:
12 (1) An amount necessary to reimburse the department for
13 expenses incurred in seizing and maintaining an abandoned
14 animal as well as any costs for the disposition of the
15 abandoned animal.
16 (2) Expenses related to the investigation and adjudication
17 of the case.
18 *b.* In a dispositional proceeding conducted by a court under
19 this section, or in a separate cause of action brought by the
20 department against an interested person, the court may award
21 the department court costs and reasonable attorney fees.
22 *c.* An award ordered under this subsection shall be paid
23 by an interested party who is transferred a seized animal by
24 the court or administrative law judge, or the owner of the
25 seized animal as determined by the court or administrative law
26 judge. The amount awarded the department shall be subtracted
27 from the proceeds, if any, received by the department from the
28 disposition of the animal. Any amount awarded by a court shall
29 be taxed as part of the costs of the cause of action.
30 *d.* If more than one interested person holds a legal interest
31 in the animal, the court or administrative law judge shall
32 calculate the respective contributions of the interested
33 persons based upon the percentage of legal interest in the
34 seized animal held by each interested person. The amount paid
35 to the department shall be sufficient to allow the department

PAGE 9

1 to repay the livestock remediation fund as provided in section
 2 459.501 and fully reimburse the department for all costs, fees,
 3 and expenses incurred by the department under this section.
 4 Sec. 12. NEW SECTION. **163.3F Interference with official**
 5 **acts.**

6 1. A person shall not interfere with an official act of the
 7 department taken in the performance of a duty to prevent or
 8 control the transmission of an infectious or contagious disease
 9 among a population or species of animals, if the official act
 10 is authorized as part of any of the following:

11 a. A veterinary emergency preparedness and response service
 12 pursuant to section 163.3A.

13 b. A foreign animal disease preparedness and response
 14 strategy pursuant to section 163.3C.

15 c. An emergency measure pursuant to section 163.3D or
 16 163.3E.

17 2. Under this section, an official act of the department
 18 may be performed by a departmental employee, or a veterinary or
 19 special assistant appointed pursuant to section 163.3.

20 Sec. 13. NEW SECTION. **163.33 Feral swine.**

21 1. "*Feral swine*" means any swine running at large.

22 2. A person shall not knowingly release swine to become
 23 feral swine.

24 3. Upon discovery of feral swine on public or private
 25 property, the department may destroy or order the destruction
 26 of the feral swine. However, the department shall not destroy
 27 the feral swine or order the feral swine's destruction, unless
 28 the department concludes, after conducting a reasonable inquiry
 29 in the area where the feral swine is located, that the feral
 30 swine's ownership cannot be determined. The department may
 31 call upon a peace officer or appropriate state or federal
 32 agency, including but not limited to the department of natural
 33 resources or the department of public safety, to enforce this
 34 section as set forth in section 159.16.

35 4. A person may destroy feral swine if the feral swine is

PAGE 10

1 on the person's property or is damaging the person's personal
 2 property. The person shall immediately notify the department
 3 of the destruction of the feral swine and allow for possible
 4 testing of the feral swine by the department.

5 5. This section shall not be construed to limit the powers
 6 of the department otherwise granted by law.

7 Sec. 14. Section 163.61, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
 8 by adding the following new paragraph:

9 NEW PARAGRAPH. c. A person who interferes with an official
 10 act as provided in section 163.3F shall be subject to a civil
 11 penalty of at least one hundred dollars but not more than ten
 12 thousand dollars. In the case of a continuing violation,

13 each day of the continuing violation is a separate violation.
 14 However, a person shall not be subject to a civil penalty
 15 totaling more than two hundred fifty thousand dollars arising
 16 out of the same violation.

17 Sec. 15. Section 459.501, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 18 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
 19 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (3) (a) To allocate moneys to the
 20 department of agriculture and land stewardship for the payment
 21 of expenses incurred by the department of agriculture and land
 22 stewardship associated with all of the following:

23 (i) Providing for seizure of animals pursuant to sections
 24 169.3D and 169.3E.

25 (ii) Court costs, reasonable attorney fees, and expenses
 26 related to the investigation and prosecution of the case
 27 arising from the seizure of animals.

28 (b) The department of natural resources shall allocate
 29 any amount of unencumbered and unobligated moneys demanded in
 30 writing by the department of agriculture and land stewardship
 31 as provided in this subparagraph. The department of natural
 32 resources shall complete the allocation upon receiving the
 33 demand.

34 (c) The department of agriculture and land stewardship
 35 shall repay the fund any amount received from an interested

PAGE 11

1 person pursuant to an order by a court in a dispositional
 2 proceeding conducted pursuant to section 163.3E.

3 Sec. 16. REPEAL. Section 166D.3, Code 2020, is repealed.

4 Sec. 17. CODE EDITOR DIRECTIVE.

5 1. The Code editor is directed to make the following
 6 transfer:

7 Section 163.3 to section 163.3G.

8 2. The Code editor shall correct internal references in the
 9 Code and in any enacted legislation as necessary due to the
 10 enactment of this section.

11 Sec. 18. CODE EDITOR DIRECTIVE. The Code editor shall
 12 divide chapter 163, subchapter I, into parts, including
 13 sections 163.1 and 163.2 as part A, sections 163.2A through
 14 163.5, including sections amended or enacted as provided in
 15 this part of this division of this Act, as part B, and sections
 16 163.6 through 163.25 as part C.

17 PART C

18 FOOD ANIMALS

19 Sec. 19. NEW SECTION. **716.7A Food operation trespass.**

20 1. As used in this section, unless the context otherwise
 21 requires:

22 a. “*Apiary*” and “*bee*” mean the same as defined in section
 23 160.1A.

24 b. “*Food animal*” means an animal belonging to the bovine,
 25 caprine, ovine, or porcine species; farm deer as defined in
 26 section 170.1; turkeys, chickens, or other poultry; fish or

27 other aquatic organisms confined in private waters for human
 28 consumption; or bees.
 29 *c. "Food establishment", "food processing plant", and*
 30 *"farmers market"* mean the same as defined in section 137F.1.
 31 *d. "Food operation"* means any of the following:
 32 (1) A location where a food animal is produced, maintained,
 33 or otherwise housed or kept, or processed in any manner.
 34 (2) A location other than as described in subparagraph (1)
 35 where a food animal is kept, including an apiary, livestock

PAGE 12

1 market, vehicle or trailer attached to a vehicle, fair,
 2 exhibition, or a business operated by a person licensed to
 3 practice veterinary medicine pursuant to chapter 169.
 4 (3) A location where a meat food product, poultry product,
 5 milk or milk product, eggs or an egg product, aquatic product,
 6 or honey is prepared for human consumption, including a food
 7 processing plant, a slaughtering establishment operating under
 8 the provisions of 21 U.S.C. §451 et seq. or 21 U.S.C. §601
 9 et seq.; or a slaughtering establishment subject to state
 10 inspection as provided in chapter 189A.
 11 (4) A food establishment or farmers market that sells or
 12 offers for sale a meat food product, poultry product, milk
 13 or milk product, eggs or an egg product, aquatic product, or
 14 honey.
 15 *e. "Meat food product", "poultry product", and "prepared"*
 16 mean the same as defined in section 189A.2.
 17 2. A person commits food operation trespass by entering
 18 or remaining on the property of a food operation without the
 19 consent of a person who has real or apparent authority to allow
 20 the person to enter or remain on the property.
 21 3. Subsection 2 does not apply to any of the following:
 22 *a.* A person entering a right-of-way, if the person has not
 23 been notified or requested by posted signage or other means to
 24 abstain from entering onto the right-of-way or to vacate the
 25 right-of-way.
 26 *b.* A person having lawful authority to enter onto the
 27 property of the food operation, including but not limited to a
 28 federal, state, or local government official.
 29 *c.* A person who is given express permission by the owner of
 30 the food operation to enter onto or remain on the property of
 31 the food operation.
 32 *d.* A person employed by a food operation while acting in the
 33 course of employment.
 34 Sec. 20. Section 716.8, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 35 following new subsection:

PAGE 13

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 8. *a.* For a first offense, a person who
 2 commits food operation trespass is guilty of an aggravated

3 misdemeanor.

4 *b.* For a second or subsequent offense, a person who commits
5 food operation trespass is guilty of a class "D" felony.

6 PART D

7 EFFECTIVE DATE

8 Sec. 21. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
9 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

10 DIVISION III

11 FERTILIZERS AND SOIL CONDITIONERS

12 Sec. 22. Section 200.3, subsection 24, Code 2020, is amended
13 by striking the subsection.

14 Sec. 23. Section 200.14, Code 2020, is amended to read as
15 follows:

16 **200.14 Rules.**

17 1. ~~*a.* The secretary is authorized, after public hearing,~~
18 ~~following due notice, to department may adopt rules setting~~
19 ~~forth pursuant to chapter 17A providing minimum general~~
20 safety standards for the design, construction, location,
21 installation, and operation of equipment for storage, handling,
22 transportation by tank truck or tank trailer, and utilization
23 of ~~anhydrous ammonia~~ fertilizers and soil conditioners.

24 ~~*α.* *b.* The rules shall be such as are reasonably necessary~~
25 ~~for the protection and safety of the public and persons using~~
26 ~~anhydrous ammonia fertilizers or soil conditioners,~~ and shall
27 be in substantial conformity with the generally accepted
28 standards of safety.

29 ~~*b.* Rules that are in substantial conformity with the~~
30 ~~published standards of the agricultural ammonia institute for~~
31 ~~the design, installation and construction of containers and~~
32 ~~pertinent equipment for the storage and handling of anhydrous~~
33 ~~ammonia, shall be deemed to be in substantial conformity with~~
34 ~~the generally accepted standards of safety.~~

35 2. ~~*c.* Anhydrous ammonia Fertilizer and soil conditioner~~

PAGE 14

1 equipment shall be installed and maintained in a safe operating
2 condition and in conformity with rules adopted by the ~~secretary~~
3 department.

4 3. ~~2. The secretary shall enforce this chapter and, after~~
5 ~~due publicity and due public hearing, department may adopt such~~
6 reasonable rules as may be necessary in order to carry into
7 effect the purpose, ~~and intent~~ and to secure the efficient
8 administration, of this chapter.

9 4. ~~3.~~ This chapter does not prohibit the use of storage
10 tanks smaller than transporting tanks nor the transfer of all
11 kinds of fertilizer ~~including anhydrous ammonia fertilizers~~
12 or soil conditioners directly from transporting tanks to
13 implements of husbandry, if proper safety precautions are
14 observed.

15 Sec. 24. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
16 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

17 DIVISION IV
18 WEIGHTS AND MEASURES
19 PART A
20 GENERAL

21 Sec. 25. Section 214.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
22 following new subsection:

23 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. “Weighmaster” means a person who keeps
24 and regularly uses a commercial weighing and measuring device
25 to accurately weigh objects for others as part of the person’s
26 business operated on a profit, cooperative, or nonprofit basis.

27 Sec. 26. Section 214.3, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
28 to read as follows:

29 1. ~~The~~ A license ~~issued by the department~~ for ~~the~~ inspection
30 of a commercial weighing and measuring device shall expire on
31 December 31 of each year, and for a motor fuel pump on June 30
32 of each year. ~~The amount of the fee due for each license shall~~
33 ~~be as provided in subsection 3, except that the fee for a motor~~
34 ~~fuel pump shall be four dollars and fifty cents if paid within~~
35 ~~one month from the date the license is due.~~

PAGE 15

1 Sec. 27. Section 214.3, subsection 3, paragraph e,
2 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
3 (2) Retail motor fuel pump, ~~nine~~ four dollars and fifty
4 cents.

5 Sec. 28. Section 214.4, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph
6 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

7 If the department does not receive payment of the license
8 fee required pursuant to section 214.3 within one month from
9 the due date, the department shall ~~send~~ deliver a notice to
10 the owner or operator of the device. ~~The notice shall be~~
11 ~~delivered by certified mail.~~ The notice shall state all of the
12 following:

13 Sec. 29. Section 214.6, Code 2020, is amended to read as
14 follows:

15 **214.6 Oath Duties of weighmasters weighmaster.**

16 ~~All persons keeping a commercial weighing and measuring~~
17 ~~device, before entering upon their duties as weighmasters, A~~
18 ~~weighmaster shall be sworn before some person having authority~~
19 ~~to administer oaths, to keep their~~ ensure that a commercial
20 weighing and measuring device is correctly balanced, ~~to make~~
21 true weights, and ~~to shall~~ render a correct account to the
22 person having weighing done.

23 Sec. 30. Section 214.11, Code 2020, is amended to read as
24 follows:

25 **214.11 Inspections — recalibrations — penalty.**

26 1. The department shall provide for annual inspections
27 of all motor fuel pumps, including but not limited to motor
28 fuel blender pumps, licensed under this chapter. Inspections
29 shall be for the purpose of determining the accuracy ~~of the~~
30 ~~pumps’ measuring mechanisms, and for such~~ and correctness of

31 ~~motor fuel pumps. For that purpose the department's inspectors~~
 32 ~~may enter upon the premises of any wholesale dealer or retail~~
 33 ~~dealer, as they are defined in section 214A.1, of motor fuel~~
 34 ~~or fuel oil within this state.~~
 35 2. Upon completion of an inspection, the inspector shall

PAGE 16

1 affix the department's seal to the measuring mechanism of the
 2 motor fuel pump. The seal shall be appropriately marked,
 3 dated, and recorded by the inspector. If the owner of an
 4 inspected and sealed motor fuel pump is registered with the
 5 department as a servicer in accordance with section 215.23,
 6 or employs a person so registered as a servicer, the owner
 7 or other servicer may open the motor fuel pump, break the
 8 department's seal, recalibrate the measuring mechanism if
 9 necessary, and reseal the motor fuel pump as long as the
 10 department is notified of the recalibration within forty-eight
 11 hours, ~~on a form in a manner~~ provided by the department.
 12 2. 3. A person violating a provision of this section is,
 13 upon conviction, guilty of a simple misdemeanor.

14 PART B
 15 MOTOR FUEL

16 Sec. 31. Section 214A.2A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 17 amended to read as follows:

18 1. Fuel which is sold or is kept, offered, or exposed for
 19 sale as kerosene shall be labeled as kerosene. The label
 20 shall include the word "kerosene" ~~and a~~ or the designation as
 21 ~~either "K1" or "K2"~~ "K1 kerosene", and shall indicate that
 22 the kerosene is in compliance with the standard specification
 23 adopted by A.S.T.M. international specification D3699 (1982).

24 Sec. 32. REPEAL. Section 214A.15, Code 2020, is repealed.

25 PART C
 26 INSPECTIONS

27 Sec. 33. Section 215.4, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 28 follows:

29 **215.4 Tag for inaccurate or incorrect device — reinspection**
 30 **— license fee.**

31 A commercial weighing and measuring device found to be
 32 inaccurate or incorrect upon inspection by the department
 33 shall be rejected or tagged "condemned until repaired" and
 34 the ~~"licensed for commercial use"~~ inspection sticker shall be
 35 removed. If notice is received by the department that the

PAGE 17

1 device has been repaired and upon reinspection the device is
 2 found to be accurate or correct, ~~the a~~ license fee ~~shall not~~
 3 may be charged for the reinspection. However, a second license
 4 fee shall be charged if upon reinspection the device is found
 5 to be inaccurate. The device shall be tagged "condemned" and
 6 removed from service if a third reinspection fails.

7 Sec. 34. Section 215.7, Code 2020, is amended to read as
8 follows:

9 **215.7 Transactions by false weights or measures.**

10 1. A person shall be deemed to have violated the provisions
11 of this chapter and shall be punished as provided in chapter
12 189, if the person does any of the following apply:

13 ~~1. a. The person sells~~ Sells, trades, delivers, charges
14 for, or claims to have delivered to a purchaser an amount
15 of any commodity which is less in weight or measure than
16 that which is asked for, agreed upon, claimed to have been
17 delivered, or noted on the delivery ticket.

18 ~~2. b. The person makes~~ Makes a settlement for or enters
19 a credit, based upon any false weight or measurement, for any
20 commodity purchased.

21 ~~3. c. The person makes~~ Makes a settlement for or enters
22 a credit, based upon any false weight or measurement, for any
23 labor where the price of producing or mining is determined by
24 weight or measure.

25 ~~4. d. The person records~~ Records a false weight or
26 measurement upon the weight ticket or book.

27 2. The department may adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A
28 that allow for reasonable variations and exceptions for small
29 packages.

30 3. A person who violates this section is guilty of a simple
31 misdemeanor.

32 Sec. 35. Section 215.23, Code 2020, is amended to read as
33 follows:

34 **215.23 Servicer's license.**

35 1. A servicer shall not install, service, or repair a

PAGE 18

1 ~~commercial weighing and measuring device until the servicer~~
2 ~~has demonstrated that the servicer has available adequate~~
3 ~~testing equipment, and that the servicer possesses a working~~
4 ~~knowledge of all devices the servicer intends to install or~~
5 ~~repair and of all appropriate weights, measures, statutes, and~~
6 ~~rules, as evidenced by passing a qualifying examination to~~
7 ~~be conducted by the department and obtaining a license. The~~
8 ~~secretary of agriculture shall establish by rule pursuant to~~
9 ~~chapter 17A, requirements for and contents of the examination.~~

10 The department may adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A setting
11 forth qualification requirements for persons applying for a
12 servicer's license, including an examination.

13 2. In determining these a servicer's qualifications, the
14 ~~secretary shall~~ department may consider the specifications
15 of the United States national institute of standards and
16 technology, handbook 44, "Specifications, Tolerances, and
17 Technical Requirements for Weighing and Measuring Devices",
18 or the current successor or equivalent specifications adopted
19 by the United States national institute of standards and
20 technology.

21 ~~3. The secretary shall department may require an annual the~~
 22 ~~payment of license fee of not more than five dollars for an~~
 23 ~~amount established by rule for each license issued under this~~
 24 ~~section.~~

25 ~~4. Each A~~ license shall expire ~~one year~~ two years from its
 26 date of issuance.

27 Sec. 36. REPEAL. Sections 215.3 and 215.8, Code 2020, are
 28 repealed.

29 PART D

30 EFFECTIVE DATE

31 Sec. 37. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 32 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.>

33 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 34 <An Act relating to agriculture and the powers and duties of
 35 the department of agriculture and land stewardship, including

PAGE 19

1 by providing for administration, programs, and regulations,
 2 providing fees, providing penalties, making penalties
 3 applicable, and including effective date provisions.>

ZUMBACH of Linn

H-8207

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking page 1, line 31, through page 2, line 15.

4 2. Title page, lines 4 and 5, by striking <and including
 5 effective and applicability provisions>

6 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8208

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, by striking lines 7 through 15 and inserting

4 <entity>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8209

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking page 1, line 31, through page 2, line 15.

4 2. Page 9, line 23, after <entity> by inserting <, excluding
 5 the state board of regents,>

6 3. Title page, lines 4 and 5 by striking <and including

7 effective date and applicability provisions>

8 4. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8210

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 8, by striking lines 6 through 10 and inserting
4 <contract work and materials package.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8211

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:

5 <Section 1. Section 96.14, subsection 2, paragraph e, Code
6 2020, is amended to read as follows:

7 e. (1) If the department finds that any employer has
8 willfully failed to pay any contribution or part thereof when
9 required by this chapter and the rules of the department,
10 with intent to defraud the department, then such employer
11 shall in addition to such contribution or part thereof, pay
12 a contribution equal to fifty percent of the amount of such
13 contribution or part thereof, as the case may be.

14 (2) If the department finds that a failure to pay by
15 an employer pursuant to subparagraph (1) involves the
16 misclassification of an employee's wages on a federal 1099
17 record, for any subsequent finding by the department of such a
18 failure to pay by that employer involving the misclassification
19 of an employee's wages on a federal 1099 record, the additional
20 contribution required by subparagraph (1) shall instead equal
21 one hundred percent of the amount the employer failed to pay
22 due to the misclassification.>

23 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
24 <An Act increasing certain penalties for employers willfully
25 misclassifying employees for unemployment compensation
26 contribution purposes.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8212

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 8, by striking lines 23 through 26 and inserting
4 <self-perform work for a trade package that is below one
5 hundred thousand dollars. If a trade package is in excess of

6 one hundred thousand dollars, the>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8213

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 8, line 22, by striking <may> and inserting <shall>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8214

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:

5 <Section 1. NEW SECTION. 85A.9 Occupational disease —
6 **COVID-19 virus exposure.**

7 1. Notwithstanding section 85A.8, an employee, as described
8 in section 85A.3, who contracts the COVID-19 virus and who
9 alleges the employee's employment has subjected the employee
10 to an increased risk of exposure to the COVID-19 virus is
11 presumed to have an occupational disease arising out of and in
12 the course of employment if the requirements of subsection 2
13 are met.

14 2. An employee is presumed to have an occupational
15 disease arising out of and in the course of employment if the
16 employee's contraction of the COVID-19 virus is confirmed by
17 a positive laboratory test or, if a laboratory test is not
18 available for the employee, as diagnosed and documented by the
19 employee's licensed physician, licensed physician assistant, or
20 licensed advanced registered nurse practitioner based upon the
21 employee's symptoms. The employee shall provide a copy of the
22 positive laboratory test or the written documentation of the
23 diagnosis to the employer or the employer's insurance carrier.

24 3. If the employee has met the requirements of subsections
25 1 and 2, the presumption that the employee has an occupational
26 disease arising out of and in the course of employment shall
27 only be rebutted upon proof by the employer or the employer's
28 insurance carrier that the employment did not pose an increased
29 risk of exposure to the employee and that the employee's
30 disease was caused by a nonoccupational exposure to the
31 COVID-19 virus.

32 4. The date of injury for an employee who has contracted
33 the COVID-19 virus under this section shall be the date that
34 the employee was first unable to work due to symptoms of the
35 COVID-19 virus, or the date the employee was first informed,

PAGE 2

1 through a positive laboratory test or diagnosis, that the
 2 employee contracted the COVID-19 virus, whichever occurred
 3 first.
 4 5. An employee who has contracted the COVID-19 virus but
 5 who is not entitled to the presumption provided under this
 6 section is not precluded from claiming an occupational disease
 7 as otherwise provided for in this chapter or from claiming a
 8 personal injury.
 9 6. The commissioner shall provide a detailed report on
 10 workers' compensation claims due to the COVID-19 virus under
 11 this section to the workers' compensation advisory committee
 12 and the chairpersons and ranking members of the senate standing
 13 committee on labor and business relations and the house
 14 standing committee on labor by January 15, 2021.
 15 Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of immediate
 16 importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 17 Sec. 3. APPLICABILITY. This Act applies to employees, as
 18 described in section 85A.3, who contract the COVID-19 virus on
 19 or after the effective date of this Act.>
 20 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
 21 <An Act relating to occupational disease compensation and
 22 including effective and applicability date provisions.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8215

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:
 5 <Section 1. Section 85.27, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 6 amended to read as follows:
 7 4. a. (1) For purposes of this section, the employer is
 8 obliged to furnish reasonable services and supplies to treat an
 9 injured employee, and has the right to choose the care unless
 10 the employee has predesignated a physician as provided in
 11 paragraph "b". If the employer chooses the care, the employer
 12 shall hold the employee harmless for the cost of care until the
 13 employer notifies the employee that the employer is no longer
 14 authorizing all or any part of the care and the reason for
 15 the change in authorization. An employer is not liable for
 16 the cost of care that the employer arranges in response to a
 17 sudden emergency if the employee's condition, for which care
 18 was arranged, is not related to the employment. The treatment
 19 must be offered promptly and be reasonably suited to treat the
 20 injury without undue inconvenience to the employee.
 21 (2) If the employee has reason to be dissatisfied with the
 22 care offered, the employee should communicate the basis of
 23 such dissatisfaction to the employer, in writing if requested,

24 following which the employer and the employee may agree to
25 alternate care reasonably suited to treat the injury. If the
26 employer and employee cannot agree on such alternate care, the
27 commissioner may, upon application and reasonable ~~proofs~~ proof
28 of the necessity therefor, allow and order other care. In an
29 emergency, the employee may choose the employee's care at the
30 employer's expense, provided the employer or the employer's
31 agent cannot be reached immediately.
32 (3) An application made under this ~~subsection~~ paragraph
33 "a" shall be considered an original proceeding for purposes
34 of commencement and contested case proceedings under section
35 85.26. The hearing shall be conducted pursuant to chapter

PAGE 2

1 17A. Before a hearing is scheduled, the parties may choose
2 a telephone hearing, an audio-video conference hearing, or
3 an in-person hearing. A request for an in-person hearing
4 shall be approved unless the in-person hearing would be
5 impractical because of the distance between the parties to the
6 hearing. The workers' compensation commissioner shall issue a
7 decision within ten working days of receipt of an application
8 for alternate care made pursuant to a telephone hearing or
9 audio-video conference hearing or within fourteen working days
10 of receipt of an application for alternate care made pursuant
11 to an in-person hearing. The employer shall notify an injured
12 employee of the employee's ability to contest the employer's
13 choice of care pursuant to this ~~subsection~~ paragraph "a".
14 b. (1) An injured employee has the right to choose care,
15 unless care needs to be provided at the job site in response to
16 a life-threatening emergency, if the employee has predesignated
17 a physician who is a primary care provider, who has previously
18 provided medical treatment to the employee and has retained
19 the employee's medical records, to provide treatment for the
20 injury. Upon hire and periodically during employment, an
21 employer shall provide written notice to all employees who have
22 not yet predesignated a physician, of their rights under this
23 paragraph "b" to predesignate such a physician for treatment of
24 an injury, in a manner prescribed by the workers' compensation
25 commissioner by rule. The employer or the employer's insurer
26 shall not coerce or otherwise attempt to influence an injured
27 employee's choice of a physician to provide care. An employee
28 shall, as soon as practicable, notify the employer of an
29 injury, and upon receiving such notice of an injury from an
30 employee, the employer shall again provide written notice to
31 that employee of the employee's rights under this paragraph
32 "b" in a manner prescribed by the workers' compensation
33 commissioner by rule. If an employer fails to notify employees
34 of their right to choose a physician as provided in this
35 paragraph "b", the employee has the right to choose any

PAGE 3

1 physician to provide treatment for the injury and the treatment
2 shall be considered care authorized under this section.
3 (2) For the purposes of this paragraph "b", "physician"
4 includes an individual physician, a group of physicians, or
5 a clinic. For the purposes of this paragraph "b", "primary
6 care provider" means an employee's personal physician who is
7 licensed to practice medicine and surgery, osteopathic medicine
8 and surgery, or osteopathy in this state or in another state
9 and provides primary care and who is a family or general
10 practitioner, a pediatrician, an internist, an obstetrician,
11 or a gynecologist. A physician who practices in another
12 state shall not be predesignated by an employee unless the
13 physician's office is located within sixty miles of where
14 the employee is employed or was injured unless the workers'
15 compensation commissioner allows otherwise. A physician chosen
16 by an injured employee to provide treatment is authorized to
17 arrange for any consultation, surgical consultation, referral,
18 emergency care, or other specialized medical services as the
19 physician deems necessary to treat the injury. The employer
20 shall pay for all such care, unless the workers' compensation
21 commissioner determines otherwise.
22 (3) If the employer has reason to be dissatisfied with the
23 care chosen by the employee, the employer should communicate
24 the basis of such dissatisfaction to the employee, in writing
25 if requested, following which the employee and the employer may
26 agree to alternate care reasonably suited to treat the injury.
27 If the employee and employer cannot agree on such alternate
28 care, the commissioner may, upon application and reasonable
29 proof of the necessity therefor, allow and order other care.
30 (4) An application made under this paragraph "b" shall be
31 considered an original proceeding for purposes of commencement
32 and contested case proceedings under section 85.26. The
33 hearing shall be conducted pursuant to chapter 17A. Before
34 a hearing is scheduled, the parties may choose a telephone
35 hearing, an audio-video conference hearing, or an in-person

PAGE 4

1 hearing. A request for an in-person hearing shall be approved
2 unless the in-person hearing would be impractical because of
3 the distance between the parties to the hearing. The workers'
4 compensation commissioner shall issue a decision within ten
5 working days of receipt of an application for alternate care
6 made pursuant to a telephone hearing or audio-video conference
7 hearing or within fourteen working days of receipt of an
8 application for alternate care made pursuant to an in-person
9 hearing.
10 Sec. 2. Section 85.39, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
11 following new subsection:
12 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. If the employee has chosen a physician

13 to provide care as provided in section 85.27, subsection
 14 4, paragraph "b", when it is medically indicated that no
 15 significant improvement from an injury is anticipated, the
 16 employee may obtain a medical opinion from the employee's
 17 physician, at the employer's expense, regarding the extent of
 18 the employee's permanent disability. If the employee obtains
 19 such an evaluation and the employer believes this evaluation
 20 of permanent disability to be too high, the employer may
 21 arrange for a medical examination of the injured employee by a
 22 physician of the employer's choice for the purpose of obtaining
 23 a medical opinion regarding the extent of the employee's
 24 permanent disability. If an employee is required to leave
 25 work for which the employee is being paid wages to attend
 26 an examination under this subsection, the employee shall be
 27 compensated at the employee's regular rate for the time the
 28 employee is required to leave work, and the employee shall be
 29 furnished transportation to and from the place of examination,
 30 or the employer may elect to pay the employee the reasonable
 31 cost of transportation. The physician chosen by the employer
 32 to conduct the examination has the right to confer with and
 33 obtain from any physician who has treated the injured employee
 34 sufficient history of the injury to make a proper examination.
 35 The refusal by the employee to submit to the examination shall

PAGE 5

1 suspend the employee's right to any compensation for the period
 2 of the refusal. Compensation shall not be payable for the
 3 period of suspension.

4 Sec. 3. **APPLICABILITY.** This Act applies to injuries
 5 occurring on or after January 1, 2021.>

6 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
 7 <An Act relating to the choice of doctor to treat an injured
 8 employee under workers' compensation laws and including
 9 applicability date provisions.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8216

1 Amend the amendment, H-8173, to Senate File 2338, as passed
 2 by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking page 1, line 2, through page 7, line 9, and
 4 inserting:

5 <__. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 14 and inserting:

6 <DIVISION __

7 EVIDENCE OF MEDICAL EXPENSES AND RECOVERABLE DAMAGES FOR
 8 MEDICAL EXPENSES>

9 __. Page 2, after line 5 by inserting:

10 <DIVISION __

11 COVID-19 RELATED LIABILITY

12 Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 686D.1 Short title.**

13 This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the
 14 *“COVID-19 Response, Back to Business, Employer Protection,*
 15 *Worker Protection, Patient Protection, and Nursing Home Resident*
 16 *Protection Limited Liability Act”.*

17 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.2 Definitions.**

18 When used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 19 requires:

20 1. *“COVID-19”* means the novel coronavirus identified
 21 as SARS-CoV-2, the disease caused by the novel coronavirus
 22 SARS-CoV-2 or a virus mutating therefrom, and conditions
 23 associated with the disease caused by the novel coronavirus
 24 SARS-CoV-2 or a virus mutating therefrom.

25 2. *“Disinfecting or cleaning supplies”* means and includes
 26 hand sanitizers, disinfectants, sprays, and wipes.

27 3. *“Health care facility”* means and includes all of the
 28 following:

29 a. A facility as defined in section 514J.102.

30 b. A facility licensed pursuant to chapter 135B.

31 c. A facility licensed pursuant to chapter 135C.

32 d. Residential care facilities, nursing facilities,
 33 intermediate care facilities for persons with mental illness,
 34 intermediate care facilities for persons with intellectual
 35 disabilities, hospice programs, elder group homes, and assisted

PAGE 2

1 living programs.

2 4. *“Health care professional”* means physicians and other
 3 health care practitioners who are licensed, certified, or
 4 otherwise authorized or permitted by the laws of this state
 5 to administer health care services in the ordinary course
 6 of business or in the practice of a profession, whether
 7 paid or unpaid, including persons engaged in telemedicine or
 8 telehealth. *“Health care professional”* includes the employer or
 9 agent of a health care professional who provides or arranges
 10 health care.

11 5. *“Health care provider”* means and includes a health care
 12 professional, health care facility, home health care facility,
 13 and any other person or facility otherwise authorized or
 14 permitted by any federal or state statute, regulation, order,
 15 or public health guidance to administer health care services
 16 or treatment.

17 6. *“Health care services”* means services for the diagnosis,
 18 prevention, treatment, care, cure, or relief of a health
 19 condition, illness, injury, or disease.

20 7. *“Minimum medical condition”* means a diagnosis of
 21 COVID-19.

22 8. *“Person”* means the same as defined in section 4.1.

23 *“Person”* includes an agent of a person.

24 9. *“Personal protective equipment”* means and includes
 25 protective clothing, gloves, face shields, goggles, facemasks,
 26 respirators, gowns, aprons, coveralls, and other equipment

- 27 designed to protect the wearer from injury or the spread of
 28 infection or illness.
- 29 10. *“Premises”* means and includes any real property and
 30 any appurtenant building or structure serving a commercial,
 31 residential, educational, religious, governmental, cultural,
 32 charitable, or health care purpose.
- 33 11. *“Public health guidance”* means and includes written
 34 guidance related to COVID-19 issued by any of the following:
 35 a. The centers for disease control and prevention of the

PAGE 3

- 1 federal department of health and human services.
 2 b. The centers for Medicare and Medicaid services of the
 3 federal department of health and human services.
 4 c. The federal occupational safety and health
 5 administration.
 6 d. The office of the governor.
 7 e. Any state agency, including the department of public
 8 health.
- 9 12. *“Qualified product”* means and includes all of the
 10 following:
 11 a. Personal protective equipment used to protect the wearer
 12 from COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
 13 b. Medical devices, equipment, and supplies used to treat
 14 COVID-19, including medical devices, equipment, or supplies
 15 that are used or modified for an unapproved use to treat
 16 COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
 17 c. Medical devices, equipment, and supplies used outside of
 18 their normal use to treat COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of
 19 COVID-19.
 20 d. Medications used to treat COVID-19, including medications
 21 prescribed or dispensed for off-label use to attempt to treat
 22 COVID-19.
 23 e. Tests to diagnose or determine immunity to COVID-19.
 24 f. Any component of an item described in paragraphs “a”
 25 through “e”.
- 26 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.3 Civil actions alleging**
 27 **COVID-19 exposure.**
 28 A person shall not bring or maintain a civil action alleging
 29 exposure or potential exposure to COVID-19 unless one of the
 30 following applies:
 31 1. The civil action relates to a minimum medical condition.
 32 2. The civil action involves an act that was intended to
 33 cause harm.
 34 3. The civil action involves an act that constitutes actual
 35 malice.

PAGE 4

- 1 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.4 Premises owner’s duty of care**
 2 **— limited liability.**

3 A person who possesses or is in control of a premises,
4 including a tenant, lessee, or occupant of a premises, who
5 directly or indirectly invites or permits an individual onto
6 a premises, shall not be liable for civil damages for any
7 injuries sustained from the individual's exposure to COVID-19,
8 whether the exposure occurs on the premises or during any
9 activity managed by the person who possesses or is in control
10 of a premises, if the person qualifies for the protection
11 afforded by section 686D.5.

12 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.5 Safe harbor for compliance**
13 **with regulations, executive orders, or public health guidance.**

14 A person in this state shall not be held liable for civil
15 damages for any injuries sustained from exposure or potential
16 exposure to COVID-19 if the act or omission alleged to violate
17 a duty of care was in substantial compliance or was consistent
18 with any federal or state statute, regulation, order, or public
19 health guidance related to COVID-19 that was applicable to the
20 person or activity at issue at the time of the alleged exposure
21 or potential exposure.

22 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.6 Liability of health care**
23 **providers.**

24 A health care provider that qualifies for the protection
25 afforded by section 686D.5 shall not be liable for civil
26 damages for causing or contributing, directly or indirectly, to
27 the death or injury of an individual as a result of the health
28 care provider's acts or omissions while providing or arranging
29 health care in support of the state's response to COVID-19.

30 This section shall apply to all of the following:

- 31 1. Injury or death resulting from screening, assessing,
32 diagnosing, caring for, or treating individuals with a
33 suspected or confirmed case of COVID-19.
- 34 2. Prescribing, administering, or dispensing a
35 pharmaceutical for off-label use to treat a patient with a

PAGE 5

- 1 suspected or confirmed case of COVID-19.
- 2 3. Acts or omissions while providing health care to
3 individuals unrelated to COVID-19 when those acts or omissions
4 support the state's response to COVID-19, including any of the
5 following:
 - 6 a. Delaying or canceling nonurgent or elective dental,
7 medical, or surgical procedures, or altering the diagnosis or
8 treatment of an individual in response to any federal or state
9 statute, regulation, order, or public health guidance.
 - 10 b. Diagnosing or treating patients outside the normal scope
11 of the health care provider's license or practice.
 - 12 c. Using medical devices, equipment, or supplies outside of
13 their normal use for the provision of health care, including
14 using or modifying medical devices, equipment, or supplies for
15 an unapproved use.
 - 16 d. Conducting tests or providing treatment to any individual

17 outside the premises of a health care facility.
 18 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.7 Supplies, equipment, and**
 19 **products designed, manufactured, labeled, sold, distributed, and**
 20 **donated in response to COVID-19.**
 21 1. Any person that qualifies for the protection afforded
 22 by section 686D.5 that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,
 23 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning
 24 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified product
 25 in response to COVID-19 shall not be liable in a civil action
 26 alleging personal injury, death, or property damage caused by
 27 or resulting from the design, manufacturing, labeling, selling,
 28 distributing, or donating of the household disinfecting
 29 or cleaning supplies, personal protective equipment, or a
 30 qualified product.
 31 2. Any person that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,
 32 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning
 33 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified product
 34 in response to COVID-19 shall not be liable in a civil action
 35 alleging personal injury, death, or property damage caused by

PAGE 6

1 or resulting from a failure to provide proper instructions or
 2 sufficient warnings.
 3 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.8 Construction.**
 4 This chapter shall not be construed to affect the rights or
 5 limits under workers' compensation as provided in chapter 85,
 6 85A, or 85B.
 7 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.9 Repeal.**
 8 This chapter is repealed December 31, 2022.>>

B. MEYER of Polk

H-8217

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:
 5 <Section 1. Section 84A.5, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 6 amended to read as follows:
 7 4. The division of labor services is responsible for the
 8 administration of the laws of this state under chapters 88,
 9 88A, 88B, 89, 89A, 89B, 90A, 91, 91A, 91C, 91D, 91E, 91F, 92,
 10 and 94A, and sections 73A.21 and 85.68. The executive head of
 11 the division is the labor commissioner, appointed pursuant to
 12 section 91.2.
 13 Sec. 2. Section 91.4, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 14 to read as follows:
 15 2. The director of the department of workforce development,
 16 in consultation with the labor commissioner, shall, at the
 17 time provided by law, make an annual report to the governor

18 setting forth in appropriate form the business and expense of
 19 the division of labor services for the preceding year, the
 20 number of remedial actions taken under chapter 89A, the number
 21 of disputes or violations processed by the division and the
 22 disposition of the disputes or violations, and other matters
 23 pertaining to the division which are of public interest,
 24 together with recommendations for change or amendment of the
 25 laws in this chapter and chapters 88, 88A, 88B, 89, 89A, 89B,
 26 90A, 91A, 91C, 91D, 91E, 91F, 92, and 94A, and section 85.68,
 27 and the recommendations, if any, shall be transmitted by the
 28 governor to the first general assembly in session after the
 29 report is filed.

30 Sec. 3. **NEW SECTION. 91F.1 Short title.**

31 This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “*Public*
 32 *Improvement Quality Protection Act*”.

33 Sec. 4. **NEW SECTION. 91F.2 Public policy.**

34 It is in the public interest that public improvements
 35 are completed by the best means and highest quality of labor

PAGE 2

1 reasonably available, and that workers working on public
 2 improvements be compensated according to the real value of the
 3 services they perform. It is the policy of this state that the
 4 wages of workers working on public improvements should be at
 5 least equal to the prevailing wage rates paid for similar work
 6 by responsible contractors in the community as a whole in order
 7 to accomplish all of the following:

- 8 1. Protect workers and their contractors and subcontractors
 9 from the effects of serious and unfair competition resulting
 10 from wage levels detrimental to efficiency and well-being.
- 11 2. Ensure that contractors compete with one another
 12 on the basis of the ability to perform work competently
 13 and efficiently while maintaining community-established
 14 compensation standards.
- 15 3. Recognize that local participation in public
 16 improvements and family wage income and benefits are essential
 17 to the protection of community standards.
- 18 4. Encourage training and education of workers to industry
 19 skills standards.
- 20 5. Encourage contractors and subcontractors to use funds
 21 allocated for employee fringe benefits for the actual purchase
 22 of those benefits.

23 Sec. 5. **NEW SECTION. 91F.3 Definitions.**

24 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 25 requires:

- 26 1. “*Commissioner*” means the labor commissioner appointed
 27 pursuant to section 91.2.
- 28 2. “*Contractor*” or “*subcontractor*” means a person who
 29 undertakes, offers to undertake, purports to have the capacity
 30 to undertake, or submits a bid, individually or through others,
 31 to engage in a public improvement.

32 3. "*Custom fabrication*" means the fabrication of plumbing,
 33 heating, cooling, ventilation, architectural systems,
 34 structural systems, exhaust duct systems, or mechanical
 35 insulation.

PAGE 3

1 4. "*Division*" means the division of labor of the department
 2 of workforce development.
 3 5. *a. "Fringe benefits"* means the following for the
 4 provision or purchase of any of the benefits enumerated in
 5 paragraph "*b*":
 6 (1) The contribution irrevocably made by a contractor or
 7 subcontractor to a trustee or to a third person pursuant to a
 8 plan, fund, or program.
 9 (2) The costs to the contractor or subcontractor which
 10 may be reasonably anticipated in providing benefits to
 11 workers pursuant to an enforceable commitment to carry out a
 12 financially responsible plan or program, given in writing to
 13 the workers affected.
 14 *b.* (1) Medical or hospital care.
 15 (2) Pensions or annuities on retirement or death.
 16 (3) Supplemental unemployment benefits.
 17 (4) Life insurance.
 18 (5) Disability and sickness insurance.
 19 (6) Accident insurance for nonwork-related accidents.
 20 (7) Vacation or holiday pay.
 21 (8) Defraying costs of apprenticeship programs approved by
 22 and registered with the United States department of labor's
 23 office of apprenticeship.
 24 6. "*Interested party*" means any of the following:
 25 *a.* A contractor who submits a bid for the purpose of
 26 securing the award of a contract for a public improvement.
 27 *b.* A subcontractor of a contractor mentioned in a bid
 28 referred to in paragraph "*a*".
 29 *c.* A worker employed by a contractor or subcontractor
 30 described in either paragraph "*a*" or "*b*".
 31 *d.* A labor organization that represents workers engaged
 32 in the same craft or classification as workers employed by a
 33 contractor or subcontractor described in either paragraph "*a*"
 34 or "*b*" and that exists, in whole or in part, for the purpose
 35 of negotiating with employers concerning the wages, hours, or

PAGE 4

1 terms and conditions of employment of employees.
 2 *e.* A joint labor-management committee established pursuant
 3 to the federal Labor Management Cooperation Act of 1978, 29
 4 U.S.C. §175a.
 5 7. "*Locality*" means a county of this state.
 6 8. "*Maintenance work*" means the repair of existing public
 7 improvements when the size, type, or extent of the public

- 8 improvement is not changed or increased.
- 9 9. *“Prevailing wage rate”* means the hourly wage plus
10 fringe benefits that the commissioner determines prevails in
11 accordance with this chapter, including all of the following:
12 a. Apprentice ratios and the prevailing apprentice pay
13 levels for each craft, classification, or type of worker which
14 the commissioner determines prevails in accordance with section
15 91F.5.
- 16 b. A prevailing rate for overtime pay for work in excess
17 of the normal prevailing workday and for weekend overtime pay
18 for each craft, classification, or type of worker, including
19 apprentices.
- 20 c. Holiday pay for holidays that prevail in the locality in
21 which the work is being performed.
- 22 10. *“Public body”* means the state and any of its political
23 subdivisions, including but not limited to a county, city,
24 township, school district, state board of regents, and public
25 utility. For the purposes of this chapter, *“public utility”*
26 includes municipally owned utilities and municipally owned
27 waterworks.
- 28 11. a. *“Public improvement”* means any of the following that
29 meets the criteria set out in paragraphs *“b”* and *“c”*:
30 (1) Construction, alteration, reconstruction, repair,
31 rehabilitation, refinishing, refurbishing, remodeling,
32 renovation, custom fabricating, maintenance, landscaping,
33 improving, moving, wrecking, painting, decorating, or
34 demolishing of, or adding to or subtracting from any building,
35 structure, highway, road, street, bridge, alley, sewer, ditch,

PAGE 5

- 1 sewage disposal plant, waterworks, parking facility, railroad,
2 excavation or other structure, project, development, or
3 improvement, or any part thereof undertaken by a public body,
4 including any of the following related activities:
5 (a) The erection of scaffolding or other structures or
6 works.
7 (b) The maintenance, repair, assembly, or disassembly of
8 equipment.
9 (c) The testing of materials.
10 (d) The hauling of refuse from a site to an outside disposal
11 location.
12 (e) The cleaning of grounds or structures.
13 (f) The addition to or fabrication into any structure,
14 project, development, or improvement of any material or article
15 of merchandise undertaken by a public body.
- 16 (2) The preparation and removal of roadway construction
17 zones, lane closures, flagging, or traffic diversions
18 undertaken by a public body.
- 19 (3) The installation, repair, maintenance, or calibration
20 of monitoring equipment for underground storage tanks
21 undertaken by a public body.

- 22 (4) Work that is performed on any property or premises
23 dedicated exclusively or nearly so to the completion of a
24 public improvement, and transportation of supplies, material,
25 and equipment to or from the property or premises undertaken
26 by a public body.
- 27 *b.* Work on the public improvement is performed under public
28 supervision or direction, and the work is financed wholly or
29 in part from public funds, or if at the time of commencement
30 of the public improvement all of the following conditions with
31 respect to the public improvement are met:
- 32 (1) Not less than fifty-five percent of the structure is
33 leased by a public body, or is subject to an agreement to be
34 subsequently leased by a public body.
- 35 (2) The portion of the structure that is leased or subject

PAGE 6

- 1 to an agreement to be subsequently leased by a public body
2 measures more than twenty thousand square feet.
- 3 *c.* The public improvement has an estimated total cost that
4 exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars.
- 5 12. "*Worker*." means an individual who performs any
6 labor or service for a contractor or subcontractor on a
7 public improvement but does not include an individual when
8 transporting a seller, supplier, manufacturer, or processor of
9 materials or equipment. The individual is deemed an employee
10 of a contractor or subcontractor unless all of the following
11 apply:
- 12 *a.* The individual provides labor or services free from the
13 direction or control over the means and manner of providing the
14 labor or services, subject only to the right of the person for
15 whom the labor or services are provided to specify the desired
16 results.
- 17 *b.* The individual providing the labor or services is
18 responsible for obtaining business registrations or licenses
19 required by state law or local ordinance to provide the labor
20 or services.
- 21 *c.* The individual providing the labor or services furnishes
22 the tools and equipment necessary to provide the labor or
23 services.
- 24 *d.* The individual providing the labor or services has the
25 authority to hire and fire employees to perform the labor or
26 services.
- 27 *e.* Payment for the labor or services is made upon
28 completion of the performance of specific portions of a public
29 improvement, or is made on the basis of a periodic retainer.
- 30 *f.* The individual providing the labor or services represents
31 to the public that the labor or services are to be provided
32 by an independently established business. An individual is
33 engaged in an independently established business when four or
34 more of the following circumstances exist:
- 35 (1) Labor or services are primarily performed at a location

PAGE 7

- 1 separate from the individual's residence or in a specified
2 portion of the residence that is set aside for performing labor
3 or services.
- 4 (2) Commercial advertising or business cards are purchased
5 by the individual, or the individual is a member of a trade or
6 professional association.
- 7 (3) Telephone or electronic mail listings used by the
8 individual for the labor or services are different from the
9 individual's personal listings.
- 10 (4) Labor or services are performed only pursuant to a
11 written contract.
- 12 (5) Labor or services are performed for two or more persons
13 or entities within a period of one year.
- 14 (6) The individual assumes financial responsibility
15 for errors and omissions in the performance of the labor or
16 services as evidenced by insurance, performance bonds, and
17 warranties relating to the labor or services provided.
- 18 Sec. 6. NEW SECTION. 91F.4 Administration — **rules.**
- 19 1. The commissioner and the division shall administer this
20 chapter.
- 21 2. The commissioner shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter
22 17A to administer this chapter.
- 23 Sec. 7. NEW SECTION. 91F.5 Determination of prevailing
24 **wages.**
- 25 1. The commissioner shall determine annually and publish,
26 on the first business day of July, the prevailing wage rates
27 by locality for each craft, classification, or type of worker
28 needed to perform work on public improvements. The rates shall
29 be conclusive for one year from the date of publication unless
30 superseded within the one year by a later publication of the
31 commissioner, or for a longer period as provided in subsection
32 5.
- 33 2. The commissioner shall announce all prevailing wage rate
34 determinations by locality and give notice by posting them
35 on the portion of the department of workforce development's

PAGE 8

- 1 internet site related to the division. A printed version of
2 the prevailing wage rates for the state shall be available to
3 the public upon request to the division.
- 4 3. The public body awarding any contract for a public
5 improvement, or otherwise undertaking any public improvement,
6 shall obtain from the internet site the prevailing wage rate
7 in the locality in which work on the public improvement is
8 to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of
9 worker needed to perform work on the public improvement.
- 10 After a public improvement contract is awarded, or a public
11 improvement is otherwise undertaken, the prevailing wage
12 rate published by the commissioner and stated in the public

13 body's public improvement procurement documents shall remain
14 in effect throughout the duration of the public improvement
15 unless superseded by a later determination and publication by
16 the commissioner, or unless multiyear prevailing wage rates
17 have been published by the commissioner at the time the public
18 improvement procurement documents were released.

19 4. a. In determining the annual prevailing wage rate
20 for any craft, classification, or type of worker, the
21 commissioner shall ascertain and consider the applicable
22 wage rates and fringe benefits established by collective
23 bargaining agreements, the prevailing wage rate determinations
24 that may exist for federal public improvements within the
25 locality, and other data obtained by the department during any
26 prevailing wage rate survey of contractors who participate in
27 an apprenticeship program approved by and registered with the
28 United States department of labor's office of apprenticeship,
29 who provide health insurance and retirement benefits for their
30 workers, and who are registered with the division. Based
31 upon these considerations, the commissioner shall calculate
32 the prevailing wage rates based on the wage rate plus fringe
33 benefits most often occurring for each craft, classification,
34 or other type of worker within each locality.

35 b. The minimum annual prevailing wage rate determination

PAGE 9

1 established by the department shall not be lower than the
2 prevailing wage rate determination that may exist for federal
3 public improvements within the locality and in the nearest
4 labor market area.

5 c. None of the fringe benefits enumerated in this chapter
6 may be considered in the determination of prevailing wage
7 rates if the contractor or subcontractor is required by other
8 federal, state, or local law to provide such fringe benefits.

9 5. If the commissioner determines that the prevailing
10 wage rate for any craft, classification, or type of worker
11 is the rate established by a collective bargaining agreement
12 applicable in the locality, the commissioner may adopt that
13 rate by reference and that determination shall be effective
14 for the life of the agreement or until the commissioner adopts
15 another rate.

16 6. a. At any time within fifteen days after the division
17 has published on the department of workforce development's
18 internet site the annual prevailing wage rates for each
19 classification, craft, or other type of worker in the locality,
20 any interested person affected may object to the determination
21 or the part of the determination as the interested person
22 may deem objectionable by filing a written notice with the
23 commissioner by restricted certified mail as defined in
24 section 618.15. When objecting to a prevailing wage rate
25 determination, the interested person shall submit, as a
26 part of the written notice, the prevailing wage rate the

27 interested person believes to be the correct prevailing wage
28 rate determination, stating the specific grounds to support
29 that position. Upon receipt of the notice of objection, the
30 commissioner shall reconsider the determination and shall
31 affirm or modify the determination and reply in writing by
32 restricted certified mail to the interested person within
33 fifteen days from the date of the receipt of the notice of
34 objection. Any modification to the prevailing wage rate
35 determination shall be effective on the date the modification

PAGE 10

1 is published by the commissioner.
2 *b.* If the commissioner declines to modify the determination,
3 within ten days upon receiving receipt of the commissioner's
4 decision, the interested person affected may submit in writing
5 the objection to the division by restricted certified mail,
6 stating the specified grounds of the objection. The department
7 of inspections and appeals shall be notified of the objection
8 and set a date for a hearing before an administrative law judge
9 on the objection, after giving notice by restricted certified
10 mail to the interested person and the division at least ten
11 days before the date of the hearing of the time and place of
12 the hearing. The hearing shall be held within forty-five days
13 after the objection is filed, and shall not be postponed or
14 reset for a later date except upon the consent, in writing, of
15 the interested person and the division.
16 7. The party requesting a hearing shall have the burden of
17 establishing that the annual prevailing wage rate determination
18 for that locality was not determined in accordance with this
19 chapter. If the party requesting a hearing under this section
20 objects to the commissioner's failure to include a craft,
21 classification, or type of worker within the annual prevailing
22 wage rate determination in the locality, the objector shall
23 have the burden of establishing that there is no existing
24 prevailing wage rate classification for the particular craft,
25 classification, or type of worker in any of the localities
26 under consideration.
27 8. The administrative law judge may in the administrative
28 law judge's discretion hear each written objection filed
29 separately or consolidate for hearing any one or more written
30 objections filed with the division. At the hearing, the
31 division shall introduce into evidence the investigation it
32 instituted which formed the basis of its determination, and the
33 division or any interested objectors may introduce evidence
34 that is material to the determination. The administrative
35 law judge shall rule upon each written objection and make a

PAGE 11

1 final determination, as the administrative law judge believes
2 the evidence warrants, and promptly serve a copy of the final

3 determination by personal service or restricted certified mail
 4 on all parties to the proceedings. The administrative law
 5 judge shall render a final determination within thirty days
 6 after the conclusion of the hearing.
 7 9. If proceedings to review judicially the final
 8 determination of the administrative law judge are not
 9 instituted as provided in this section, the determination
 10 shall be final and binding. The provisions of section 17A.19
 11 shall apply to and govern all proceedings. Appeals from all
 12 final orders and judgments entered by the court in review of
 13 the final determination of the administrative law judge may be
 14 taken by any party to the action. In all reviews or appeals
 15 under this chapter, the attorney general shall represent the
 16 division and defend its determination.

17 10. This section does not give reason or provide cause for
 18 an injunction to halt or delay any public improvement.

19 Sec. 8. NEW SECTION. 91F.6 Payment of prevailing wages
 20 required.

21 1. Contractors and subcontractors engaged in a public
 22 improvement shall pay not less than the current specified
 23 prevailing wage rates to all of their workers engaged in the
 24 public improvement. However, this chapter does not prohibit
 25 the payment of more than the prevailing wage rate to any
 26 workers engaged in a public improvement.

27 2. All contractors and subcontractors required to pay the
 28 prevailing wage rate under this chapter shall pay the wages
 29 in legal tender, without any deduction for food, sleeping
 30 accommodations, transportation, use of tools or safety
 31 equipment, vehicle or equipment rental, or any other thing of
 32 any kind or description.

33 Sec. 9. NEW SECTION. 91F.7 Requirements for public
 34 improvements.

35 1. The public body awarding a contract for a public

PAGE 12

1 improvement or otherwise undertaking a public improvement shall
 2 specify in the call for bids for the contract that this chapter
 3 applies to the public improvement.

4 2. If a public improvement requires the payment of
 5 prevailing wage rates, the public body shall require the
 6 contractor to execute a written instrument that not less
 7 than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to all workers
 8 performing work on the public improvement. The written
 9 instrument shall also contain a provision that if it is found
 10 that any of the contractor's workers engaged in the public
 11 improvement have been paid at a wage rate less than the
 12 prevailing wage rate required by this chapter, the public body
 13 may terminate the contractor's right to proceed with the work
 14 and the contractor and its sureties shall be liable to the
 15 public body for any excess costs occasioned by the failure to
 16 pay the prevailing wage rate. The written instrument shall

17 have attached a list of the specified prevailing wage rates
18 for all crafts, classifications, or types of workers in the
19 locality for each worker needed to be included in the contract
20 for the public improvement.
21 3. If a contract is let for a public improvement requiring
22 the payment of prevailing wage rates, the public body
23 awarding the contract shall cause to be inserted in the public
24 improvement specifications and contract a stipulation that
25 not less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to all
26 workers performing work under the contract. The contract
27 shall also contain a provision to the effect that if it is
28 found that any of the contractor's workers engaged in the
29 public improvement have been paid at a wage rate less than the
30 prevailing wage rate required by this chapter, the public body
31 may terminate the contractor's right to proceed with the work
32 and the contractor and its sureties shall be liable to the
33 public body for any excess costs occasioned by the failure to
34 pay the prevailing wage rate. All bid specifications shall
35 list the specified prevailing wage rates for all crafts,

PAGE 13

1 classifications, or types of workers in the locality for each
2 worker needed to be included in the contract.
3 4. If a public improvement requires the payment of
4 prevailing wage rates, the contractor shall require any
5 subcontractors engaged by the contractor on the public
6 improvement to execute a written instrument that not less
7 than the prevailing wage rates shall be paid to all workers
8 performing work on the public improvement. The written
9 instrument shall also contain a provision that if it is
10 found that any of the subcontractor's workers engaged in the
11 public improvement have been paid at a wage rate less than the
12 prevailing wage rate required by this chapter, the public body
13 may terminate the subcontractor's right to proceed with the
14 work and the subcontractor and its sureties shall be liable to
15 the public body for any excess costs occasioned by the failure
16 to pay the prevailing wage rate. The written instrument shall
17 have attached a list of the specified prevailing wage rates
18 for all crafts, classifications, or types of workers in the
19 locality for each worker needed to be included in the contract.
20 5. If a subcontract is let for a public improvement
21 requiring the payment of the prevailing wage rate, the
22 contractor to whom the contract is awarded shall insert
23 into the subcontract and into the public improvement project
24 specifications for each subcontract a written stipulation that
25 not less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to all
26 workers performing work under the subcontract. A subcontractor
27 shall insert into each lower-tiered subcontract a stipulation
28 that not less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid
29 to all workers performing work under the subcontract. The
30 subcontract shall also contain a provision that if it is

31 found that any of the subcontractor's workers engaged in the
 32 public improvement have been paid at a wage rate less than the
 33 prevailing wage rate required by this chapter, the public body
 34 may terminate the subcontractor's right to proceed with the
 35 work and the subcontractor and its sureties shall be liable to

PAGE 14

1 the public body for any excess costs occasioned by the failure
 2 to pay the prevailing wage rate. All bid specifications shall
 3 list the specified prevailing wage rates for all crafts,
 4 classifications, or types of workers in the locality for each
 5 worker needed to be included in the subcontract.
 6 6. A contractor or subcontractor engaging in a public
 7 improvement shall submit a performance bond in an amount
 8 determined by the public body which bond shall include a
 9 provision that will guarantee the payment of the prevailing
 10 wage rates as required by the contract.
 11 7. Before final payment is made by or on behalf of a public
 12 body of any sum or sums due on a public improvement, the
 13 treasurer of the public body or other officer or person charged
 14 with the custody and disbursement of the funds of the public
 15 body shall require the contractor and subcontractor to file a
 16 written statement with the public body, in a form satisfactory
 17 to the division, certifying to the amounts then due and owing
 18 from the contractor and subcontractor to any and all workers
 19 for wages due on account of the public improvement, setting
 20 forth the names of the persons whose wages are unpaid and
 21 the amount due to each respectively. The statement shall be
 22 verified by the oath of the contractor or subcontractor, as the
 23 case may be, that the contractor or subcontractor has read the
 24 statement certified by the contractor or subcontractor, knows
 25 the contents, and that the statement is true in accordance with
 26 the contractor's or subcontractor's own knowledge. However,
 27 this chapter shall not impair the right of a contractor to
 28 receive final payment from a public body because of the failure
 29 of a subcontractor to comply with provisions of this chapter.
 30 The treasurer of the public body or other officer or person
 31 charged with the custody and disbursement of the funds of the
 32 public body shall withhold the amount, if any, listed on the
 33 verified statement filed pursuant to this section for the
 34 benefit of the worker whose wages are unpaid as shown by the
 35 verified statement filed by the contractor or subcontractor,

PAGE 15

1 and the public body shall pay directly to any worker the amount
 2 shown by the statement to be due to the worker for the wages.
 3 Payment shall discharge the obligation of the contractor or
 4 subcontractor to the person receiving the payment to the extent
 5 of the amount of the payment.
 6 8. The public body awarding a contract for a public

7 improvement or otherwise undertaking a public improvement shall
8 notify the commissioner in writing, on a form prescribed by
9 the commissioner, if a contract subject to the provisions of
10 this chapter has been awarded. The public body shall file
11 the notification with the commissioner within thirty days
12 after the contract is awarded or before commencement of the
13 public improvement, and shall include a list of all first-tier
14 subcontractors.

15 Sec. 10. NEW SECTION. **91F.8 Federal public improvements**
16 **— not applicable.**

17 The provisions of this chapter shall not be applicable
18 to public improvements financed entirely by federal funds
19 which require a prevailing wage rate determination by the
20 United States department of labor. However, unless a federal
21 provision applies, if a public improvement is financed in part
22 by a public body and in part by federal funds, the higher of the
23 prevailing wage rates shall prevail for the public improvement.

24 Sec. 11. NEW SECTION. **91F.9 Records required.**

25 1. While participating in a public improvement, the
26 contractor and each subcontractor shall do all of the
27 following:
28 *a.* Make and keep, for a period of not less than three years,
29 accurate records of all workers employed by the contractor or
30 subcontractor on the public improvement. The records shall
31 include each worker's name, address, telephone number when
32 available, social security number, trade classification, the
33 hourly wages paid in each pay period, the number of hours
34 worked each day, and the starting and ending times of work each
35 day.

PAGE 16

1 *b.* Submit weekly a certified payroll to the public body
2 in charge of the public improvement. The certified payroll
3 shall consist of a complete copy of the records identified in
4 paragraph "a". The certified payroll shall be accompanied by a
5 statement signed by the contractor or subcontractor which avers
6 that the records are true and accurate and the hourly wages
7 paid to each worker are not less than the prevailing wage rate
8 required by this chapter.

9 2. The public body in charge of the public improvement
10 shall keep the records submitted in accordance with subsection
11 1, paragraph "b", for a period of not less than three years.
12 The records shall be considered public records and be made
13 available in accordance with chapter 22. Personal information
14 submitted in accordance with subsection 1, paragraph "a",
15 including names, addresses, social security numbers, telephone
16 numbers, and other identifying information shall remain
17 confidential and shall not be made public.

18 3. The contractor and each subcontractor shall make
19 available for inspection the records identified in subsection
20 1, paragraph "a", to the public body in charge of the public

21 improvement, its officers and agents, and to the division.
 22 4. For the purpose of verifying the accuracy of the records
 23 submitted pursuant to this section, the contractor and each
 24 subcontractor shall make its workers available at the site of
 25 the public improvement for interview by the public body in
 26 charge of the public improvement, its officers and agents, and
 27 the division.
 28 5. Contractors and subcontractors performing work on public
 29 improvements subject to this chapter shall post the prevailing
 30 wage rates for each craft, classification, or type of workers
 31 involved in the public improvement in a prominent and easily
 32 accessible place at the site of the public improvement or at
 33 the place or places used by the contractor or subcontractor to
 34 pay workers their wages.
 35 Sec. 12. NEW SECTION. **91F.10 Powers of commissioner.**

PAGE 17

1 The commissioner shall do all of the following:
 2 1. Inquire diligently about any complaint of a violation of
 3 this chapter, institute actions for penalties prescribed, and
 4 enforce generally the provisions of this chapter.
 5 2. Sue for injunctive relief against the awarding of a
 6 contract, the undertaking of a public improvement, or the
 7 continuation of a public improvement when the prevailing wage
 8 rate requirements of this chapter have not been met.
 9 3. Investigate and ascertain the wages of workers engaged in
 10 any public improvement in this state.
 11 4. *a.* Enter and inspect the place of business or employment
 12 of a contractor, subcontractor, or workers employed on a public
 13 improvement in this state, for the purpose of examining and
 14 inspecting books, registers, payrolls, and other records of a
 15 contractor or subcontractor that in any way relate to or have a
 16 bearing upon the question of wages, hours, and other conditions
 17 of employment of workers covered under this chapter.
 18 *b.* Copy the books, registers, payrolls, and other
 19 records as the commissioner or the commissioner's authorized
 20 representative deems necessary or appropriate.
 21 *c.* Question the workers for the purpose of ascertaining
 22 whether the provisions of this chapter have been and are being
 23 complied with.
 24 *d.* Administer oaths, take or cause to be taken depositions
 25 of witnesses, and require by subpoena the attendance and
 26 testimony of witnesses and the production of all books,
 27 registers, payrolls, and other evidence relative to the matter
 28 under investigation or hearing.
 29 5. Require from a contractor or subcontractor full and
 30 correct statements in writing, including sworn statements,
 31 with respect to wages, hours, names, addresses, and other
 32 information pertaining to its workers and their employment,
 33 as the commissioner or the commissioner's authorized
 34 representative may deem necessary or appropriate.

35 6. Require a contractor or subcontractor to file, within

PAGE 18

1 ten days of receipt of a request, any records enumerated in
2 subsection 4, sworn as to their validity and accuracy as
3 required by subsection 5. If the contractor or subcontractor
4 fails to provide the requested records within ten days, the
5 commissioner may direct, within fifteen days after the end
6 of the ten-day period, that the fiscal or financial officer
7 charged with the custody and disbursements of the funds of the
8 public body, which contracted for construction of the public
9 improvement or undertook the public improvement, to immediately
10 withhold from payment to the contractor or subcontractor
11 up to twenty-five percent of the amount to be paid to the
12 contractor or subcontractor under the terms of the contract
13 or written instrument under which the public improvement is
14 being performed. The amount withheld shall be immediately
15 released upon receipt by the public body of a notice from
16 the commissioner indicating that the request for records as
17 required by this section has been satisfied.

18 7. If a contractor or subcontractor fails to provide
19 requested records in accordance with subsection 6 within ten
20 days, direct, within fifteen days after the end of the ten-day
21 period, the fiscal or financial officer charged with the
22 custody and disbursements of the funds of the public body,
23 which contracted for construction of the public improvement or
24 undertook the public improvement, to pay directly to workers
25 employed by the contractor or subcontractor from the amount
26 withheld from the contractor or subcontractor pursuant to
27 subsection 6 any prevailing wage rates found to be due and
28 payable to the workers.

29 8. Contract with a person registered as a public accountant
30 under chapter 542 to conduct an audit of a contractor,
31 subcontractor, or public body.

32 Sec. 13. NEW SECTION. **91F.11 Notice of violations.**

33 1. For purposes of this section:

34 a. *“Accurate records”* means the payroll records required
35 to be submitted to the public body in charge of the public

PAGE 19

1 improvement by section 91F.9. *“Accurate records”* also means the
2 hourly rate of contribution and costs paid for fringe benefits
3 and whether the contributions and costs of the fringe benefits
4 were paid into a fund or paid directly to the worker.

5 b. *“Decision”* means a determination by the division that a
6 single violation of this chapter has occurred, warranting the
7 commissioner to issue a notice of violation to a contractor or
8 subcontractor.

9 c. *“Notice of second violation”* is a formal written notice
10 issued by the division advising a contractor or subcontractor

11 that a second or subsequent violation has occurred within three
 12 years from the date of the notice of a first violation.
 13 *d. "Notice of violation"* means a formal written notice
 14 issued by the division to a contractor or subcontractor
 15 that the division has made a decision that the contractor or
 16 subcontractor has violated this chapter.
 17 *e. "Violation"* means that a contractor or subcontractor has
 18 done one of the following:
 19 (1) Failed or refused to pay the prevailing wage rate to one
 20 or more workers as required by this chapter.
 21 (2) Failed to keep accurate records as required by this
 22 chapter.
 23 (3) Failed to produce for the division accurate records or
 24 produced records not in compliance with this chapter.
 25 (4) Refused to submit records or testimony to the division
 26 in response to a subpoena issued in accordance with this
 27 chapter.
 28 (5) Refused to comply with the certified payroll provision
 29 of section 91F.9.
 30 (6) Refused the division access, at any reasonable hour at
 31 a location within the state, to inspect the contractor's or
 32 subcontractor's records as required by this chapter.
 33 (7) Failed to insert into each subcontract or lower-tiered
 34 subcontract and into the public improvement specifications
 35 for each subcontract or lower-tiered subcontract or provide a

PAGE 20

1 written instrument if no contract exists, a written stipulation
 2 that not less than the prevailing wage rate be paid as required
 3 by this chapter, and a statement that if it is found that a
 4 subcontractor's workers engaged in the public improvement have
 5 been paid at a rate of wages less than the prevailing wage rate
 6 required to be paid by the contract, the public body shall
 7 terminate the subcontractor's right to proceed with the work.
 8 (8) Failed to obtain a bond in the proper amount that
 9 guarantees the payment of the prevailing wage rates required in
 10 the contract.
 11 (9) Failed to post the prevailing wage rates as required by
 12 this chapter.
 13 2. After receipt of a complaint or on the division's
 14 initiative, the commissioner shall review the investigative
 15 file to determine whether a violation has occurred for
 16 which the contractor or subcontractor must be given notice.
 17 All information and observations made during an audit or
 18 investigation shall be considered and shall constitute the
 19 basis for the division's decision that this chapter has
 20 been violated and that a notice of violation is required
 21 to be issued. The notice of violation shall identify the
 22 specific violation and the amount of moneys estimated due the
 23 division and in controversy based on reasons contained in the
 24 investigative file.

25 3. In making a decision that a contractor or subcontractor
26 has failed to allow the commissioner access to accurate
27 records, the commissioner shall rely on the information
28 contained in the investigative file, the certified payroll
29 records submitted to the public body in charge of the public
30 improvement or any other information, and shall assess a
31 separate violation for each day worked by each worker on the
32 public improvement. Each decision of a separate violation
33 shall be listed in the notice of violation.
34 4. In determining that this chapter has been violated and
35 that the issuance of a notice of violation is required, the

PAGE 21

1 commissioner shall base the decision on one or any combination
2 of the following reasons:
3 a. The severity of the violation, which includes the
4 following:
5 (1) The amount of wages that are determined to be underpaid
6 pursuant to this chapter.
7 (2) The activity or conduct complained of that violates the
8 requirements of this chapter and was not merely a technical,
9 nonsubstantive error. Examples of a technical error include
10 but are not limited to a mathematical error, bookkeeping error,
11 transposition of numbers, or computer or programming error.
12 b. The nature and duration of the present violation and the
13 prior history of the contractor or subcontractor related to
14 this history. The prior history considered shall not exceed
15 seven years before the date of the notice of violation.
16 c. Whether the contractor or subcontractor submitted
17 certified payroll records with the public body in charge of the
18 public improvement; whether the contractor or subcontractor
19 has kept payroll records and accurate records for three years;
20 and whether the contractor or subcontractor produced certified
21 payroll records in accordance with section 91F.9.
22 d. Whether the contractor or subcontractor has violated any
23 other provision of this chapter.
24 5. The notices of the first, second, and subsequent
25 violations shall be sent by restricted certified mail,
26 addressed to the last known address of the contractor or
27 subcontractor involved. The notices shall contain a reference
28 to the specific provisions of this chapter alleged to have been
29 violated, identify the particular public improvement involved,
30 identify the conduct complained of, and identify whether the
31 notice is a notice of a first, second, or subsequent violation,
32 and include a contractor's or subcontractor's statement of
33 liabilities.
34 Sec. 14. NEW SECTION. **91F.12 Violations — remedies and**
35 **penalties.**

PAGE 22

- 1 1. If the commissioner determines that a public body has
 2 divided a public improvement into more than one contract for
 3 the purpose of avoiding compliance with this chapter, the
 4 commissioner shall issue an order compelling compliance. In
 5 making a determination whether a public body has divided a
 6 public improvement into more than one contract for the purpose
 7 of avoiding compliance with this chapter, the commissioner
 8 shall consider all of the following:
- 9 a. The physical separation of the public improvement
 10 structures or work.
 - 11 b. The timing of the work on the public improvement phases
 12 or structures.
 - 13 c. The continuity of public improvement contractors and
 14 subcontractors working on public improvement parts or phases.
 - 15 d. The manner in which the public body and the contractor
 16 and subcontractors administer and implement work on the public
 17 improvement.
- 18 2. A worker employed by the contractor or subcontractor who
 19 is paid less than the specified prevailing wage rate under this
 20 chapter shall have a private right of action for the difference
 21 between the amount so paid and the specified prevailing wage
 22 rate, together with costs and reasonable attorney fees as shall
 23 be allowed by the court.
- 24 3. The contractor or subcontractor shall additionally be
 25 liable to the division for fifty percent of the amount of
 26 underpayments and shall be additionally liable to the worker
 27 for punitive damages in an amount equal to five percent of the
 28 liability to the division for underpayments for each month
 29 following the date of payment during which underpayments remain
 30 unpaid, together with costs and reasonable attorney fees as
 31 shall be allowed by the court.
- 32 4. If a second or subsequent action to recover underpayments
 33 is brought against a contractor or subcontractor within a
 34 three-year period and the contractor or subcontractor is
 35 found liable for underpayments to a worker, the contractor or

PAGE 23

- 1 subcontractor shall be liable to the division for seventy-five
 2 percent of the amount of underpayments payable as a result of
 3 the second or subsequent action, additionally liable to the
 4 worker for ten percent of the amount of the liability to the
 5 division for underpayments for each month following the date
 6 of payment during which the underpayments remain unpaid, and
 7 further liable to the worker for triple the difference between
 8 the amount so paid to the worker and the specified prevailing
 9 wage rate required, together with costs and reasonable attorney
 10 fees as shall be allowed by the court. The three-year period
 11 begins to run from the date the contractor or subcontractor is
 12 determined liable for the first violation.

13 5. The commissioner and any interested party shall also
14 have a right of action on behalf of a worker who has a right of
15 action under this chapter. An action brought to recover the
16 same shall be deemed to be a suit for wages, and all judgments
17 entered in the action shall have the same force and effect as
18 other judgments for wages. At the request of a worker employed
19 by a contractor or subcontractor who is paid less than the
20 prevailing wage rate required by this chapter, the commissioner
21 may take an assignment of the wage claim in trust for the
22 assigning worker and may bring any legal action necessary to
23 collect the claim, and the contractor or subcontractor shall
24 be required to pay the expenses of the division incurred in
25 collecting the claim.

26 6. In circumstances where a worker may not be available to
27 receive a payment or judgment, the payment due the worker shall
28 revert to the division after one year elapses from the time
29 payment was attempted to be made or judgment was rendered.

30 7. *a.* It is a violation of this chapter to do any of the
31 following:

32 (1) To request or demand, either before or after the worker
33 is engaged in a public improvement, that a worker pay back,
34 return, donate, contribute, or give any part or all of the
35 worker's wages, salary, or thing of value, to any person, upon

PAGE 24

1 the statement, representation, or understanding that failure to
2 comply with the request or demand will prevent the worker from
3 procuring or retaining employment.

4 (2) To directly or indirectly pay, request, or authorize any
5 other person to violate this chapter.

6 *b.* This subsection does not apply to an agent or
7 representative of a duly constituted labor organization acting
8 in the collection of dues or assessments of the organization.

9 8. In addition to other penalties provided under this
10 chapter, whoever induces a worker working on a public
11 improvement subject to this chapter to give up or forego
12 any part of the prevailing wage rates to which the worker
13 is entitled under this chapter by threat not to employ
14 or by threat of dismissal from employment is guilty of a
15 serious misdemeanor. An agreement between the worker and the
16 contractor or subcontractor to work for less than the specified
17 prevailing wage rate shall not be a defense to criminal
18 prosecution.

19 9. *a.* A contract shall not be awarded by a public
20 body to a contractor or subcontractor who, on two separate
21 occasions within a three-year period, has been determined
22 to have violated this chapter, or to any firm, corporation,
23 partnership, or association in which the contractor or
24 subcontractor has any interest until five years have elapsed
25 from the date on which a final determination is rendered
26 finding the contractor or subcontractor in violation of this

27 chapter.

28 *b.* For the purposes of this subsection, “*any interest*” means
 29 an interest in the entity bidding or performing work on the
 30 public improvement, whether as an owner, partner, officer,
 31 manager, employee, agent, consultant, or representative. “*Any*
 32 *interest*” includes but is not limited to all instances where the
 33 barred contractor or subcontractor receives payments, whether
 34 cash or any other form of compensation, from any entity bidding
 35 or performing work on the public improvement, or enters into

PAGE 25

1 a contract with the entity bidding or performing work on the
 2 public improvement for services performed or to be performed
 3 under contract that have been or will be assigned or sublet,
 4 or for vehicles, tools, equipment, or supplies that have been
 5 or will be sold, rented, or leased during the period from the
 6 initiation of the barring proceedings until the end of the term
 7 of the barring period. “*Any interest*” does not include shares
 8 held in a publicly traded corporation if the shares were not
 9 received as compensation after the barring of an entity bidding
 10 or performing work on a public improvement.

11 10. If the division determines that a contractor or
 12 subcontractor has violated this chapter on two separate
 13 occasions within a three-year period, the division shall list
 14 on the department of workforce development’s internet site and
 15 keep on record the name of the contractor or subcontractor and
 16 give notice by restricted certified mail of the list to any
 17 public body requesting the list.

18 11. Upon a determination that a contractor or subcontractor
 19 has violated this chapter on two separate occasions within a
 20 three-year period, the division shall notify the violating
 21 contractor or subcontractor by restricted certified mail. The
 22 contractor or subcontractor has ten working days to request of
 23 the division a hearing before an administrative law judge on
 24 the alleged violation. Failure to respond within ten working
 25 days shall result in automatic and immediate barring of the
 26 violator from work as provided in subsection 9 and placement
 27 and publication of the violator’s name on the department of
 28 workforce development’s internet site as provided in subsection
 29 10. If the contractor or subcontractor requests a hearing
 30 within ten working days by restricted certified mail, the
 31 department of inspections and appeals shall set a hearing
 32 before an administrative law judge on the alleged violation.
 33 The 2 shall take place no later than forty-five calendar days
 34 after the receipt by the division of the request for a hearing.
 35 An action by an administrative law judge constitutes final

PAGE 26

1 agency action and is subject to judicial review under section
 2 17A.19.

3 12. The attorney general shall prosecute the cases
 4 identified in this section upon complaint by the commissioner
 5 or by any interested person. In any proceeding brought
 6 pursuant to this section, the commissioner shall be represented
 7 by the attorney general.

8 13. This section does not give reason or provide cause for
 9 an injunction to halt or delay any public improvement.

10 Sec. 15. NEW SECTION. 91F.13 Apprentices.

11 This chapter shall not prevent the employment of apprentices
 12 upon public improvements. However, an apprentice employed
 13 on a public improvement must be registered with the United
 14 States department of labor's office of apprenticeship under
 15 an apprenticeship program registered with that office, paid
 16 the proper wages specified in the standards of apprenticeship,
 17 and engaged only in the trade to which the apprentice is
 18 registered. If the apprentice is employed on a public
 19 improvement in a trade to which the apprentice is not
 20 registered with the United States department of labor's office
 21 of apprenticeship, the apprentice shall be treated as any other
 22 worker under this chapter.

23 Sec. 16. IMPLEMENTATION OF ACT. Section 25B.2, subsection
 24 3, shall not apply to this Act.

25 Sec. 17. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act takes effect January 1,
 26 2021.>

27 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 5 and inserting
 28 <requiring the payment of local prevailing wage rates to
 29 persons working on public improvements for public bodies,
 30 providing remedies and penalties, and including effective date
 31 provisions.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8218

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, after line 20 by inserting:

4 <6. Section 313.4, subsection 1, paragraph "c", shall not
 5 apply to any public improvement that is subject to a guaranteed
 6 maximum price contract.>

7 2. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 8 references as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8219

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, by striking lines 22 through 29.

4 2. Page 9, line 30, by striking <2.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8220

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:

4 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 26A.5 Employee rights during**
5 **infectious disease emergencies.**

6 1. For purposes of this section, "*period of infectious*
7 *disease emergency*" means that period of time that a disease or
8 virus determined to be life-threatening to a person exposed to
9 the disease or virus has been declared a pandemic, epidemic, or
10 public health emergency by the federal government, governor, or
11 local public health authorities.

12 2. Except as prohibited by federal law, an employee
13 performing work during a period of infectious disease emergency
14 on a public improvement subject to a guaranteed maximum price
15 contract shall have all of the following rights:

16 a. Any collective bargaining agreement entered into by
17 employees performing work on a public improvement subject to
18 a guaranteed maximum price contract shall not be modified or
19 terminated by the employer, including pursuant to bankruptcy
20 proceedings, unless the employer does so pursuant to the terms
21 provided in the contract.

22 b. An employee shall have access to an employee
23 representative upon request. An employee, employer, or
24 employer representative shall not threaten, or discourage in
25 any way, an employee from communicating with the employee
26 representative.

27 c. An employee representative shall have access to the
28 workplace to verify that proper safety protocols are being
29 observed.

30 d. An employee representative may interview employees during
31 their shift without the employer or an employer representative
32 present. Such interviews shall be confidential. An employer
33 shall not threaten an employee to coerce the employee into
34 divulging the content of the conversation.

35 e. An employer shall remain neutral in employee collective

PAGE 2

1 bargaining organizational efforts.>

2 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8221

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:

4 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 26A.5 Infectious disease**
5 **preparedness, response, and control plans.**

6 1. For purposes of this section and section 26A.6, “*period*
 7 *of infectious disease emergency*” means that period of time
 8 that a disease or virus determined to be life-threatening to
 9 a person exposed to the disease or virus has been declared a
 10 pandemic, epidemic, or public health emergency by the federal
 11 government, governor, or local public health authorities.

12 2. Employees performing work during a period of infectious
 13 disease emergency on a public improvement subject to a
 14 guaranteed maximum price contract are required to continue
 15 to report to the employees’ job site. The employer shall,
 16 upon the date of reporting, meet with the employees to adopt a
 17 preparedness, response, and control plan that is designed for
 18 the job site and is in accordance with all applicable federal
 19 centers for disease control guidelines. The plan shall do all
 20 of the following:

21 a. Identify all areas and activities where disease exposures
 22 may take place and provide control procedures to eliminate,
 23 reduce, and prevent exposure, including a description of
 24 priority of control procedures.

25 b. Include protocols for informing employees of positive
 26 cases of disease contraction and immediately responding to such
 27 cases.

28 c. Provide for reducing or suspending work on the public
 29 improvement temporarily in order to allow for time to further
 30 refine the plan and provide a safe work environment.

31 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **26A.6 Infectious disease response —**
 32 **occupational safety and health.**

33 The labor commissioner, pursuant to the authority provided
 34 under chapter 88, shall coordinate with employees performing
 35 work during a period of infectious disease emergency on a

PAGE 2

1 public improvement subject to a guaranteed maximum price
 2 contract that lack applicable health and safety standards
 3 pertaining to the period of infectious disease emergency to
 4 ensure the employees are adequately protected from exposure to
 5 the disease and shall provide inspectors acting pursuant to
 6 chapter 88 with training and supplies sufficient to ensure the
 7 employees’ workplaces are safe during the period of infectious
 8 disease emergency.>

9 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8222

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:

4 <Sec. ____ Section 85.34, subsection 2, paragraph n, Code
 5 2020, is amended to read as follows:

6 n. For the loss of a shoulder by an employee who is not
 7 employed for work on a public improvement project subject to
 8 a guaranteed maximum price contract under chapter 26A, weekly
 9 compensation during four hundred weeks.>
 10 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8223

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. __. APPROPRIATION — WAGE PAYMENT COLLECTION. There
 5 is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the
 6 department of workforce development for the fiscal year
 7 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
 8 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
 9 purposes designated:
 10 For the employment of twenty additional employees, who shall
 11 be attorneys and investigators, for the purpose of enforcement
 12 of chapter 91A, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
 13 miscellaneous purposes:
 14 \$ 2,000,000>
 15 2. Title page, line 4, after <sector> by inserting <,
 16 making an appropriation relating to wage payment collection
 17 enforcement,>
 18 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8224

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 26A.5 Whistleblower protections.**
 5 An employee performing work on a public improvement subject
 6 to a guaranteed maximum price contract shall have the right to
 7 submit a complaint to the employee’s employer regarding any
 8 working condition that the employee believes in good faith
 9 is unsafe. An employee shall not be subject to disciplinary
 10 action, intimidation, or other adverse employment action for
 11 making such a complaint. If the employer does not resolve the
 12 complaint to the employee’s satisfaction or otherwise make a
 13 good faith effort to determine an alternative resolution, the
 14 employee shall have the right to refuse an assigned task if the
 15 employee believes in good faith that performing the task could
 16 result in serious injury or death.>
 17 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8225

- 1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:
- 3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:
4 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 26A.5 Independent contractors.**
5 1. If an independent contractor will perform work on a
6 public improvement that is subject to a guaranteed maximum
7 price contract for which the independent contractor will
8 receive at least eight hundred dollars in compensation over a
9 period of one hundred twenty days, the independent contractor's
10 contract for work shall be in writing and shall include all of
11 the following information:
12 a. The work to be performed.
13 b. The rate of compensation for the work to be performed.
14 c. The approximate dates on which the work will be
15 performed.
16 2. An independent contractor shall be compensated as
17 provided in the contract, but not later than thirty days
18 after the completion of the work. Failure to provide such
19 compensation as provided in the contract and this section shall
20 be subject to the remedies provided in chapter 91A.>
21 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8226

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8206, to House File 2626 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 22 by inserting:
3 <Sec. __. Section 162.2A, Code 2020, is amended by adding
4 the following new subsection:
5 **NEW SUBSECTION. 4A.** A commercial establishment shall not
6 be issued or renewed a state license by the department, unless
7 a person applying for the state license presents the department
8 with a valid, government-issued photo identification, or other
9 form of similar identification approved by the department, as
10 proof of identity that the person may legally act on behalf
11 of the commercial establishment in making the application.
12 The application must be signed by the person under penalty of
13 perjury subject to the penalty provisions of section 162.13,
14 subsection 1. Upon completion of the initial inspection,
15 the issued or renewed state license shall include a unique
16 identification number that is a public record under chapter
17 22.>
18 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8227

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8206, to House File 2626 as follows:

2 1. Page 13, after line 9 by inserting:

3 <DIVISION ___

4 LOCAL FARM PRODUCE PROGRAM

5 Sec. ___. **NEW SECTION. 190A.11 Definitions.**

6 As used in this subchapter, unless the context otherwise
7 requires:

8 1. "*Department*" means the department of agriculture and land
9 stewardship.

10 2. "*Farm source*" means a farmer who produces fresh farm
11 produce and sells directly to consumers or to a distributor or
12 broker of fresh farm produce.

13 3. "*Fresh farm produce*" means vegetables, fruits, or nuts
14 intended for inclusion as part of a school diet, including
15 school meals and snacks as described in section 190A.3, if the
16 vegetables, fruits, or nuts are not processed except for being
17 trimmed, cleaned, dried, sorted, or packaged.

18 4. "*Fund*" means the local farm produce fund created in
19 section 190A.12.

20 5. "*Program*" means the local farm produce program created
21 in section 190A.13.

22 6. "*School*" means a public school or nonpublic school, as
23 those terms are defined in section 280.2, or that portion of a
24 public school or nonpublic school that provides facilities for
25 teaching any grade from kindergarten through grade twelve.

26 7. "*School district*" means a school district as described
27 in chapter 274.

28 Sec. ___. **NEW SECTION. 190A.12 Local farm produce fund.**

29 1. A local farm produce fund is created in the state
30 treasury under the management and control of the department.

31 2. The fund shall include moneys appropriated to the fund
32 by the general assembly. The fund may include other moneys
33 available to and obtained or accepted by the department,
34 including moneys from public or private sources.

35 3. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to support the

PAGE 2

1 program in a manner determined by the department, including for
2 reasonable administrative costs incurred by the department.

3 However, the department shall not use more than five percent
4 of moneys credited to the fund during a fiscal year to pay for
5 reasonable administrative costs.

6 4. *a.* Notwithstanding section 12C.7, interest or earnings
7 on moneys in the fund shall be credited to the fund.

8 *b.* Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys credited to the
9 fund that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the end of a
10 fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for the
11 purposes designated.

12 Sec. ___. **NEW SECTION. 190A.13 Local farm produce program.**

13 1. A local farm produce program is created. The program
14 shall be controlled and administered by the department.

15 2. The purpose of the program is to assist schools and

16 school districts in purchasing fresh farm produce.
17 3. The department shall reimburse a school or school
18 district for expenditures incurred by the school or school
19 district for the purchase of fresh farm produce during
20 the school year in which the school or school district is
21 participating in the program.
22 4. A school or school district must apply each year to the
23 department to participate in the program according to rules
24 adopted by the department pursuant to chapter 17A.
25 5. To be eligible to participate in the program, a school or
26 school district must purchase the fresh farm produce directly
27 from a farm source as follows:
28 *a.* Except as provided in paragraph “*b*”, the farm source must
29 be located in this state.
30 *b.* If the school district shares a border with another
31 state, or the school is part of a school district that shares
32 a border with another state, the farm source may be located
33 in the other state. However, the food source must be located
34 within thirty miles from the school district’s border with that
35 state and the department must approve the purchase.

PAGE 3

1 6. The department shall require proof of purchase prior to
2 reimbursing the school or school district for the purchase of
3 fresh farm produce.
4 7. The department may administer the program in cooperation
5 with the department of education and the participating school
6 district or school district in which a participating school is
7 located.
8 8. *a.* The department shall reimburse a participating
9 school or school district that submits a claim as required
10 by the department. The department shall pay the claim on a
11 matching basis with the department contributing one dollar for
12 every three dollars expended by the school or school district.
13 However, a school or school district shall not receive
14 more than five thousand dollars during any year in which it
15 participates in the program.
16 *b.* If the department determines that there are not
17 sufficient moneys in the fund to satisfy all applications that
18 are submitted by schools and school districts, the department
19 shall distribute available moneys after reducing the requested
20 amounts by a like percentage.
21 *c.* Notwithstanding paragraph “*a*”, if the department
22 determines that there are sufficient moneys in the fund to
23 satisfy all claims that may be submitted by schools and school
24 districts, the department shall provide for the distribution of
25 the available moneys in a manner determined equitable by the
26 department to schools and school districts in counties where
27 the county board of health has identified obesity or another
28 diet-related illness in youth as a priority in the board’s
29 community health needs assessment and health improvement plan.

30 Sec. ____ APPROPRIATION.

31 1. There is appropriated to the department of agriculture
32 and land stewardship for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
33 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, from the moneys available to
34 the state pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
35 Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, the following amount, or

PAGE 4

1 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purpose
2 designated:
3 For deposit in the local farm produce fund created in section
4 190A.12, as enacted in this Act:

5 \$ 1,925,000
6 2. Notwithstanding sections 8.33 and 190A.12, moneys
7 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
8 unobligated shall not revert and shall be transferred on
9 December 31, 2020, to the general fund of the state and are
10 appropriated to the economic development authority for the
11 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021,
12 for purposes related to assisting small businesses impacted by
13 the coronavirus.

14 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
15 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

16 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
17 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
18 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.>

19 2. Page 19, line 2, after <fees,> by inserting <making
20 appropriations,>

21 3. Page 19, line 3, after <date> by inserting <and
22 retroactive applicability>

23 4. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8228

1 Amend House File 2360, as passed by the House, as follows:

2 1. Page 1, line 4, by striking <seventy-two> and inserting
3 <~~seventy-two~~ seventy-eight>

4 2. Page 1, line 10, by striking <~~seventy-eighth~~> and
5 inserting <eightieth>

6 3. Page 1, line 12, by striking <~~or age seventy-two or over~~>
7 and inserting <~~or age seventy-two~~ seventy-eight or over>

8 4. Page 1, by striking lines 14 through 17 and inserting
9 <occurring in the year of issuance. A licensee whose license
10 is restricted>

11 5. Page 1, after line 23 by inserting:

12 <Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act takes effect September
13 1, 2020.>

14 6. Title page, line 2, by striking <seventy-two or over> and
15 inserting <seventy-eight or over and including effective date

16 provisions>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8229

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:
 4 <Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 26A.5 Infectious disease response**
 5 **— personal protective equipment.**
 6 1. For purposes of this section and section 26A.6, “*period*
 7 *of infectious disease emergency*” means that period of time
 8 that a disease or virus determined to be life-threatening to
 9 a person exposed to the disease or virus has been declared a
 10 pandemic, epidemic, or public health emergency by the federal
 11 government, governor, or local public health authorities.
 12 2. The employer of an employee performing work during a
 13 period of infectious disease emergency on a public improvement
 14 subject to a guaranteed maximum price contract shall provide
 15 the employee with a supply of personal protective equipment,
 16 including but not limited to face coverings or face shields, to
 17 ensure the employee is not exposed to the disease at work. The
 18 employer shall promptly replenish the supply as needed.
 19 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 26A.6 Infectious disease response —**
 20 **health care — insurance.**
 21 1. During a period of infectious disease emergency, an
 22 employer shall provide an employee performing work during a
 23 period of infectious disease emergency on a public improvement
 24 subject to a guaranteed maximum price contract a minimum of
 25 fourteen days of paid sick leave.
 26 2. During a period of infectious disease emergency, an
 27 employer shall provide an employee performing work during a
 28 period of infectious disease emergency on a public improvement
 29 subject to a guaranteed maximum price contract a minimum of
 30 twelve weeks of family and medical leave, which shall not run
 31 concurrently with the leave provided under subsection 1, to
 32 provide care for the employee’s spouse, children, or parents
 33 due to medical conditions resulting from the disease.
 34 3. *a.* The insurance commissioner shall establish a
 35 program whereby a resident of this state who performed work

PAGE 2

1 during or immediately preceding a period of infectious disease
 2 emergency on a public improvement subject to a guaranteed
 3 maximum price contract, whose health insurance coverage lapses
 4 during a period of infectious disease emergency due to loss of
 5 employment, and who chooses to obtain health care continuation
 6 coverage pursuant to Tit. I of the federal Employee Retirement
 7 Income Security Act of 1974, Pub. L. No. 93-406, is provided
 8 with a monthly subsidy in an amount necessary to cover the full

9 cost for which the resident would be responsible to maintain
10 such coverage during the period.

11 *b.* There is appropriated annually from the general fund
12 of the state to the insurance division of the department
13 of commerce from funds not otherwise appropriated an
14 amount necessary to pay the cost of such subsidies and any
15 administrative expenses incurred by the insurance division in
16 the implementation of this subsection.

17 *c.* The insurance commissioner may use any available source
18 of federal funding to cover or offset the cost of providing
19 subsidies or administering the program.

20 4. *a.* The insurance commissioner shall establish a
21 program to provide health insurance coverage during a period
22 of infectious disease emergency to any resident of this state
23 who performed work during or immediately preceding a period of
24 infectious disease emergency on a public improvement subject to
25 a guaranteed maximum price contract and who is not otherwise
26 able to obtain such coverage under another provision of
27 state or federal law. Such coverage shall be provided at no
28 cost to the resident and shall, at minimum, be sufficient to
29 provide all necessary care needed due to contraction of the
30 disease, aggravation of existing medical conditions due to such
31 contraction, or onset of new medical conditions other than the
32 disease due to such contraction. Such coverage shall allow
33 the resident to obtain medical care from one or more licensed
34 medical professionals of the resident's choice.

35 *b.* There is appropriated annually from the general fund

PAGE 3

1 of the state to the insurance division of the department of
2 commerce from funds not otherwise appropriated an amount
3 necessary to pay the cost of providing such insurance coverage
4 and any administrative expenses incurred by the insurance
5 division in the implementation of this subsection.

6 *c.* The insurance commissioner may use any available source
7 of federal funding to cover or offset the cost of providing
8 insurance coverage or administering the program.

9 5. The insurance commissioner shall adopt rules pursuant to
10 chapter 17A to administer this section.>

11 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8230

1 Amend Senate File 2364, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, after line 33 by inserting:

4 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 26A.5 Minimum wage.**

5 Notwithstanding section 91D.1, as of July 1, 2021, the

6 state hourly wage for an employee performing work on a public

7 improvement under a guaranteed maximum price contract shall
8 be at least \$15.00, and for an employee who has not completed
9 ninety calendar days of employment with the employer shall be
10 at least \$14.10.>

11 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8231

1 Amend Senate File 2360, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 2, by striking lines 29 through 31 and inserting
4 <therapeutic classrooms with one to five pupils and classrooms
5 with six to ten pupils.>

6 2. Page 3, by striking lines 6 through 8.

7 3. Page 5, after line 33 by inserting:

8 <03. The number of students assigned to a therapeutic
9 classroom under this section and section 256.25 shall not
10 exceed ten. To qualify for claims reimbursement under this
11 section, a therapeutic classroom must be assigned a teacher
12 holding a special education instructional endorsement for the
13 appropriate grade level issued by the board of educational
14 examiners under chapter 272, and shall be assigned at least one
15 additional qualified instructional support staff person.>

16 4. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
17 references as necessary.

DONAHUE of Linn

H-8232

1 Amend Senate File 2360, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 7, by striking lines 17 through 23 and inserting:
4 <(3) If a child with an individualized education program
5 causes classroom school personnel to clear all other students
6 out of the regular classroom in order to calm the child with an
7 individualized education program, such child shall be removed
8 from the general education environment until the child is able
9 to consistently use coping skills, which shall be taught to
10 the child in a special education environment, to enable the
11 child to participate in a general education environment without
12 causing a severe disruption to the classroom or causing all
13 other students in the classroom to be cleared from the regular
14 classroom.>

DONAHUE of Linn

H-8233

1 Amend Senate File 2360, as amended, passed, and reprinted by

2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 9, line 9, after <classroom.> by inserting <Each
4 area education agency shall consult with school personnel
5 employed by the school districts within the boundaries of the
6 area education agency to develop protocols to follow when a
7 classroom is cleared in accordance with this subsection. Such
8 protocols shall include but not be limited to a plan for the
9 students who are leaving the classroom to minimize loss of
10 learning, a plan for the student causing the room to clear
11 for the remainder of the day that does not include a return
12 to the classroom, a plan for school personnel employed in the
13 school building to work with students who feel trauma after a
14 classroom is cleared, and a plan for meeting with parents of
15 students assigned to the classroom.>

DONAHUE of Linn

H-8234

1 Amend Senate File 2360, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 10, line 2, after <school.> by inserting <After
4 reporting two or more such incidents, the teacher may report
5 the alleged incidents to the board of directors of the school
6 district. If the teacher believes the threats of violence or
7 assault have not been remedied by the school's administration
8 or by the school board in a timely manner, the teacher may
9 appeal the school board's decision, or lack thereof, to the
10 state board of education in the manner provided in section
11 256.7, subsection 6. The state board of education shall
12 determine, based on the facts, whether the requested relief is
13 warranted based on the rights of the student involved. The
14 provisions of sections 70A.29, 280.27, and 613.21 shall apply
15 to the appeal and any reports submitted in accordance with this
16 section.>

DONAHUE of Linn

H-8235

1 Amend the amendment, H-8173, to Senate File 2338, as passed
2 by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. By striking page 1, line 2, through page 7, line 18, and
4 inserting:
5 <__. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
6 inserting:

7 DIVISION I
8 ESSENTIAL WORKERS

9 Sec. __. Section 85A.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
10 follows:

11 **85A.3 Employees covered.**

12 All employees as defined by the workers' compensation law

13 of Iowa, and as further defined by this section, employed in
 14 any business or industrial process hereinafter designated and
 15 described and who in the course of their employment are exposed
 16 to an occupational disease as herein defined are subject to
 17 the provisions of this chapter. For purposes of this section,
 18 “employee” means the following individuals, whether engaged by
 19 an employer as an employee or independent contractor:
 20 1. A worker licensed or certified under chapter 147, 147A,
 21 148, 148A, 148C, 149, 151, 152, 153, 154, 154B, 154F, or 155A
 22 to provide in this state professional health care service to an
 23 individual during that individual’s medical care, treatment,
 24 or confinement.
 25 2. A worker providing emergency services, including fire
 26 fighting, police, ambulance, emergency medical services, or
 27 hazardous materials response services.
 28 3. A worker providing sanitation services.
 29 4. A worker at a business which the state or a political
 30 subdivision of the state has determined must remain open to
 31 serve the public during the public health disaster emergency
 32 proclaimed by the governor on March 17, 2020.
 33 5. Any other worker who cannot work remotely during the
 34 public health disaster emergency proclaimed by the governor on
 35 March 17, 2020.

PAGE 2

1 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 2 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 3 DIVISION II
 4 OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE
 5 <Sec. __. NEW SECTION. **85A.9 Occupational disease —**
 6 **COVID-19 virus exposure.**
 7 1. Notwithstanding section 85A.8, an employee, as described
 8 in section 85A.3, who contracts the COVID-19 virus and who
 9 alleges the employee’s employment has subjected the employee
 10 to an increased risk of exposure to the COVID-19 virus is
 11 presumed to have an occupational disease arising out of and in
 12 the course of employment if the requirements of subsection 2
 13 are met.
 14 2. An employee is presumed to have an occupational
 15 disease arising out of and in the course of employment if the
 16 employee’s contraction of the COVID-19 virus is confirmed by
 17 a positive laboratory test or, if a laboratory test is not
 18 available for the employee, as diagnosed and documented by the
 19 employee’s licensed physician, licensed physician assistant, or
 20 licensed advanced registered nurse practitioner based upon the
 21 employee’s symptoms. The employee shall provide a copy of the
 22 positive laboratory test or the written documentation of the
 23 diagnosis to the employer or the employer’s insurance carrier.
 24 3. If the employee has met the requirements of subsections
 25 1 and 2, the presumption that the employee has an occupational
 26 disease arising out of and in the course of employment shall

27 only be rebutted upon proof by the employer or the employer's
 28 insurance carrier that the employment did not pose an increased
 29 risk of exposure to the employee and that the employee's
 30 disease was caused by a nonoccupational exposure to the
 31 COVID-19 virus.
 32 4. The date of injury for an employee who has contracted
 33 the COVID-19 virus under this section shall be the date that
 34 the employee was first unable to work due to symptoms of the
 35 COVID-19 virus, or the date the employee was first informed,

PAGE 3

1 through a positive laboratory test or diagnosis, that the
 2 employee contracted the COVID-19 virus, whichever occurred
 3 first.
 4 5. An employee who has contracted the COVID-19 virus but
 5 who is not entitled to the presumption provided under this
 6 section is not precluded from claiming an occupational disease
 7 as otherwise provided for in this chapter or from claiming a
 8 personal injury.
 9 6. The commissioner shall provide a detailed report on
 10 workers' compensation claims due to the COVID-19 virus under
 11 this section to the workers' compensation advisory committee
 12 and the chairpersons and ranking members of the senate standing
 13 committee on labor and business relations and the house
 14 standing committee on labor by January 15, 2021.
 15 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 16 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 17 Sec. __. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 18 to employees, as described in section 85A.3, who contract the
 19 COVID-19 virus on or after the effective date of this Act.

20 DIVISION III

21 COVID-19 RELATED LIABILITY

22 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 686D.1 Short title.
 23 This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the
 24 *"COVID-19 Response, Back to Business, Worker Protection,*
 25 *Patient Protection, and Nursing Home Resident Protection Limited*
 26 *Liability Act"*.
 27 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 686D.2 Definitions.
 28 When used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 29 requires:
 30 1. *"COVID-19"* means the novel coronavirus identified
 31 as SARS-CoV-2, the disease caused by the novel coronavirus
 32 SARS-CoV-2 or a virus mutating therefrom, and conditions
 33 associated with the disease caused by the novel coronavirus
 34 SARS-CoV-2 or a virus mutating therefrom.
 35 2. *"Disinfecting or cleaning supplies"* means and includes

PAGE 4

1 hand sanitizers, disinfectants, sprays, and wipes.
 2 3. *"Health care facility"* means and includes all of the

- 3 following:
- 4 a. A facility as defined in section 514J.102.
- 5 b. A facility licensed pursuant to chapter 135B.
- 6 c. A facility licensed pursuant to chapter 135C.
- 7 d. Residential care facilities, nursing facilities,
- 8 intermediate care facilities for persons with mental illness,
- 9 intermediate care facilities for persons with intellectual
- 10 disabilities, hospice programs, elder group homes, and assisted
- 11 living programs.
- 12 4. "*Health care professional*" means physicians and other
- 13 health care practitioners who are licensed, certified, or
- 14 otherwise authorized or permitted by the laws of this state
- 15 to administer health care services in the ordinary course
- 16 of business or in the practice of a profession, whether
- 17 paid or unpaid, including persons engaged in telemedicine or
- 18 telehealth. "*Health care professional*" includes the employer or
- 19 agent of a health care professional who provides or arranges
- 20 health care.
- 21 5. "*Health care provider*" means and includes a health care
- 22 professional, health care facility, home health care facility,
- 23 and any other person or facility otherwise authorized or
- 24 permitted by any federal or state statute, regulation, order,
- 25 or public health guidance to administer health care services
- 26 or treatment.
- 27 6. "*Health care services*" means services for the diagnosis,
- 28 prevention, treatment, care, cure, or relief of a health
- 29 condition, illness, injury, or disease.
- 30 7. "*Minimum medical condition*" means a diagnosis of
- 31 COVID-19.
- 32 8. "*Person*" means the same as defined in section 4.1.
- 33 "*Person*" includes an agent of a person.
- 34 9. "*Personal protective equipment*" means and includes
- 35 protective clothing, gloves, face shields, goggles, facemasks,

PAGE 5

- 1 respirators, gowns, aprons, coveralls, and other equipment
- 2 designed to protect the wearer from injury or the spread of
- 3 infection or illness.
- 4 10. "*Premises*" means and includes any real property and
- 5 any appurtenant building or structure serving a commercial,
- 6 residential, educational, religious, governmental, cultural,
- 7 charitable, or health care purpose.
- 8 11. "*Public health guidance*" means and includes written
- 9 guidance related to COVID-19 issued by any of the following:
- 10 a. The centers for disease control and prevention of the
- 11 federal department of health and human services.
- 12 b. The centers for Medicare and Medicaid services of the
- 13 federal department of health and human services.
- 14 c. The federal occupational safety and health
- 15 administration.
- 16 d. The office of the governor.

- 17 e. Any state agency, including the department of public
 18 health.
- 19 12. *“Qualified product”* means and includes all of the
 20 following:
- 21 a. Personal protective equipment used to protect the wearer
 22 from COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
- 23 b. Medical devices, equipment, and supplies used to treat
 24 COVID-19, including medical devices, equipment, or supplies
 25 that are used or modified for an unapproved use to treat
 26 COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of COVID-19.
- 27 c. Medical devices, equipment, and supplies used outside of
 28 their normal use to treat COVID-19 or to prevent the spread of
 29 COVID-19.
- 30 d. Medications used to treat COVID-19, including medications
 31 prescribed or dispensed for off-label use to attempt to treat
 32 COVID-19.
- 33 e. Tests to diagnose or determine immunity to COVID-19.
- 34 f. Any component of an item described in paragraphs “a”
 35 through “e”.

PAGE 6

- 1 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.3 Civil actions alleging**
 2 **COVID-19 exposure.**
- 3 A person shall not bring or maintain a civil action alleging
 4 exposure or potential exposure to COVID-19 unless one of the
 5 following applies:
- 6 1. The civil action relates to a minimum medical condition.
 7 2. The civil action involves an act that was intended to
 8 cause harm.
 9 3. The civil action involves an act that constitutes actual
 10 malice.
- 11 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.4 Premises owner’s duty of care**
 12 **— limited liability.**
- 13 A person who possesses or is in control of a premises,
 14 including a tenant, lessee, or occupant of a premises, who
 15 directly or indirectly invites or permits an individual onto
 16 a premises, shall not be liable for civil damages for any
 17 injuries sustained from the individual’s exposure to COVID-19,
 18 whether the exposure occurs on the premises or during any
 19 activity managed by the person who possesses or is in control
 20 of a premises, if the person qualifies for the protection
 21 afforded by section 686D.5.
- 22 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.5 Safe harbor for compliance**
 23 **with regulations, executive orders, or public health guidance.**
- 24 A person in this state shall not be held liable for civil
 25 damages for any injuries sustained from exposure or potential
 26 exposure to COVID-19 if the act or omission alleged to violate
 27 a duty of care was in substantial compliance or was consistent
 28 with any federal or state statute, regulation, order, or public
 29 health guidance related to COVID-19 that was applicable to the
 30 person or activity at issue at the time of the alleged exposure

31 or potential exposure.

32 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. **686D.6 Liability of health care**
33 **providers.**

34 A health care provider that qualifies for the protection
35 afforded by section 686D.5 shall not be liable for civil

PAGE 7

1 damages for causing or contributing, directly or indirectly, to
2 the death or injury of an individual as a result of the health
3 care provider's acts or omissions while providing or arranging
4 health care in support of the state's response to COVID-19.

5 This section shall apply to all of the following:

6 1. Injury or death resulting from screening, assessing,
7 diagnosing, caring for, or treating individuals with a
8 suspected or confirmed case of COVID-19.

9 2. Prescribing, administering, or dispensing a
10 pharmaceutical for off-label use to treat a patient with a
11 suspected or confirmed case of COVID-19.

12 3. Acts or omissions while providing health care to
13 individuals unrelated to COVID-19 when those acts or omissions
14 support the state's response to COVID-19, including any of the
15 following:

16 a. Delaying or canceling nonurgent or elective dental,
17 medical, or surgical procedures, or altering the diagnosis or
18 treatment of an individual in response to any federal or state
19 statute, regulation, order, or public health guidance.

20 b. Diagnosing or treating patients outside the normal scope
21 of the health care provider's license or practice.

22 c. Using medical devices, equipment, or supplies outside of
23 their normal use for the provision of health care, including
24 using or modifying medical devices, equipment, or supplies for
25 an unapproved use.

26 d. Conducting tests or providing treatment to any individual
27 outside the premises of a health care facility.

28 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. **686D.7 Supplies, equipment, and**
29 **products designed, manufactured, labeled, sold, distributed, and**
30 **donated in response to COVID-19.**

31 1. Any person that qualifies for the protection afforded
32 by section 686D.5 that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,
33 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning
34 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified product
35 in response to COVID-19 shall not be liable in a civil action

PAGE 8

1 alleging personal injury, death, or property damage caused by
2 or resulting from the design, manufacturing, labeling, selling,
3 distributing, or donating of the household disinfecting
4 or cleaning supplies, personal protective equipment, or a
5 qualified product.

6 2. Any person that designs, manufactures, labels, sells,

7 distributes, or donates household disinfecting or cleaning
 8 supplies, personal protective equipment, or a qualified product
 9 in response to COVID-19 shall not be liable in a civil action
 10 alleging personal injury, death, or property damage caused by
 11 or resulting from a failure to provide proper instructions or
 12 sufficient warnings.

13 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.8 Construction.**

14 This chapter shall not be construed to affect the rights or
 15 limits under workers' compensation as provided in chapter 85,
 16 85A, or 85B.

17 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **686D.9 Repeal.**

18 This chapter is repealed December 31, 2022.

19 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 20 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020.>

21 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and
 22 inserting <An Act relating to COVID-19, including workers'
 23 compensation claims arising from COVID-19, civil actions
 24 related to COVID-19, and including effective date provisions,
 25 applicability provisions, and retroactive applicability
 26 provisions.>

OURTH of Warren

H-8236

1 Amend the amendment, H-8173, to Senate File 2338, as passed
 2 by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 7, after line 11 by inserting:

4 <DIVISION ____

5 BUSINESS REPORTING OF COVID-19

6 Sec. ____ BUSINESSES — REPORTING OF COVID-19.

7 1. Pursuant to chapter 139A and notwithstanding any
 8 provision of law to the contrary, for the protection of the
 9 public the department of public health shall require every
 10 business which identifies employees infected with COVID-19 to
 11 report each infection to the department of public health within
 12 twenty-four hours of identifying the infection. The department
 13 shall disclose the identity of the business to the public and
 14 the number of infections reported by the business as necessary
 15 to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and protect the public. The
 16 department shall develop and make available to businesses a
 17 form for the reporting of infections of COVID-19 under this
 18 section.

19 2. For the purposes of this section:

20 a. "Business" means and includes every trade, occupation,
 21 or profession employing at least fifty employees, and to which
 22 any of the following circumstances apply:

23 (1) At least ten percent of the business's employees have
 24 confirmed cases of COVID-19.

25 (2) At least ten percent of the business's employees are
 26 absent from the business's premises at any one time as a result
 27 of infection with or exposure to COVID-19.

28 b. "Employee" means a person who has entered into the
 29 employment of, or works under contract of service, express or
 30 implied, for a business.>
 31 2. Page 7, by striking lines 13 through 17 and inserting <An
 32 Act relating to public health, including recoverable damages
 33 for medical expenses, evidence offered to prove past medical
 34 expenses, civil actions related to the novel coronavirus,
 35 and the reporting of incidences of COVID-19 infections to

PAGE 2

1 the department of public health, and including retroactive
 2 applicability provisions.>
 3 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HALL of Woodbury

H-8237

1 Amend the amendment, H-8206, to House File 2626, as follows:
 2 1. By striking page 1, line 4, through page 18, line 32, and
 3 inserting:
 4 <<DIVISION I
 5 ANIMAL HEALTH
 6 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 163.2A Part — definitions.**
 7 As used in this part, unless the context otherwise requires:
 8 1. "*Animal*" means any livestock or agricultural animal as
 9 defined in section 717A.1.
 10 2. "*Interested person*" means the owner of an animal; a
 11 person caring for the animal, if different from the owner of
 12 the animal; or a person holding a perfected agricultural lien
 13 or security interest in the animal under chapter 554.
 14 Sec. ____ Section 163.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 15 follows:
 16 **163.3 Veterinary and special assistants.**
 17 The secretary or the secretary's designee may appoint one
 18 or more veterinarians licensed pursuant to chapter 169 in each
 19 county as assistant veterinarians. The secretary may also
 20 appoint ~~such one or more~~ special assistants as may be necessary
 21 in cases of emergency, including as provided in section 163.3A.
 22 Sec. ____ Section 163.3A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 23 amended to read as follows:
 24 1. The department may provide veterinary emergency
 25 preparedness and response services necessary to prevent or
 26 control a serious threat to the public health, public safety,
 27 or the state's economy caused by the transmission of disease
 28 among ~~livestock as defined in section 717.1 or agricultural~~
 29 ~~animals as defined in section 717A.1.~~ The services may include
 30 measures necessary to ensure that all such animals carrying
 31 disease are properly identified, segregated, treated, or
 32 destroyed as provided in this Code.
 33 Sec. ____ Section 163.3C, subsection 1, Code 2020, is

34 amended by striking the subsection.
 35 Sec. ____. Section 163.3C, subsection 2, unnumbered

PAGE 2

1 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 2 The department shall develop and establish a foreign animal
 3 disease preparedness and response strategy for use by the
 4 department in order to prevent, control, or eradicate the
 5 transmission of foreign animal diseases among populations
 6 of ~~livestock~~ animals. The strategy may be part of the
 7 department's veterinary emergency preparedness and response
 8 services as provided in section 163.3A. The strategy shall
 9 provide additional expertise and resources to increase
 10 biosecurity efforts that assist in the prevention of a foreign
 11 animal disease outbreak in this state. In developing and
 12 establishing the strategy, the department shall consult with
 13 interested persons including but not limited to the following:
 14 Sec. ____. Section 163.3C, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 15 amended to read as follows:
 16 3. The department shall implement the foreign animal
 17 disease preparedness and response strategy if necessary to
 18 prevent, control, or eradicate the transmission and incidence
 19 of foreign animal diseases that may threaten or actually
 20 threaten ~~livestock~~ animals in this state. In implementing
 21 the strategy, the department may utilize emergency response
 22 measures as otherwise required under section 163.3A. The
 23 department may but is not required to consult with interested
 24 persons when implementing the strategy.
 25 Sec. ____. **NEW SECTION. 163.3D Emergency measures —**
 26 **abandoned animals — authorization and seizure.**
 27 1. *a.* The department may seize one or more abandoned
 28 animals pursuant to an authorization providing emergency
 29 measures to prevent or control the transmission of an
 30 infectious or contagious disease among any population or
 31 species of animals.
 32 *b.* The authorization must be any of the following:
 33 (1) A declaration or proclamation issued by the governor
 34 pursuant to chapter 29C, including as provided in section
 35 163.3A.

PAGE 3

1 (2) An order issued by the secretary or the secretary's
 2 designee pursuant to a provision in this subtitle.
 3 (3) Any other provision of law in this subtitle that
 4 requires the department to control the transmission of an
 5 infectious or contagious disease among a population or species
 6 of animals in this state.
 7 *c.* If there is a conflict between a measure authorized to
 8 be taken under paragraph "a", that is less restrictive than the
 9 standards or procedures provided in this section, the measures

10 authorized to be taken under paragraph "a" shall prevail.
11 2. The department may appoint veterinary assistants or
12 special assistants as provided in section 163.3 as required to
13 administer this section.
14 3. It is presumed that an abandoned animal belonging to a
15 species subject to emergency measures as provided in subsection
16 1 has been exposed to an infectious or contagious disease as
17 provided in the authorization.
18 4. As part of the seizure of an abandoned animal, the
19 department may take, impound, and retain custody of the animal,
20 including by maintaining the animal in a manner and at a
21 location determined by the department to be reasonable under
22 the emergency circumstances. The department may take action as
23 provided in this subtitle to ensure that all animals exposed to
24 an infectious or contagious disease are properly identified,
25 tested, segregated, treated, or destroyed as provided in this
26 subtitle.
27 5. a. The department may seize an animal if the department
28 has a reasonable suspicion the animal has been abandoned,
29 including by entering onto public or private property or into a
30 private motor vehicle, trailer, or semitrailer parked on public
31 or private property, as provided in this subsection.
32 b. The department may enter onto private property or into
33 a private motor vehicle, trailer, or semitrailer to seize an
34 abandoned animal if the department obtains a search warrant
35 issued by a court, or enters onto the premises in a manner

PAGE 4

1 consistent with the laws of this state and the United States,
2 including Article I, section 8, of the Constitution of the
3 State of Iowa, or the fourth amendment to the Constitution of
4 the United States.
5 c. An abandoned animal shall only be seized by the
6 department pursuant to the following conditions:
7 (1) The department provides written notice of its
8 abandonment determination to all reasonably identifiable
9 interested persons. The department shall make a good-faith
10 effort to provide the notice to interested persons by regular
11 mail, hand delivery, telephone, electronic mail, or other
12 reasonable means. The notice shall include all of the
13 following:
14 (a) The name and address of the department.
15 (b) A description of the animal subject to seizure.
16 (c) The delivery date of the notice.
17 (d) A statement informing the interested person that the
18 animal may be seized pursuant to this chapter within one day
19 following the delivery date of the notice. The statement
20 must specify a date, time, and location for delivery of the
21 interested person's response designated by the department, as
22 provided in this subsection.
23 (e) A statement informing the interested person that in

24 order to avoid seizure of the animal, the person must respond
 25 to the notice in writing, stating that the animal has not been
 26 abandoned and identifying what measures are being taken to care
 27 for and manage the animal.
 28 (2) Notwithstanding subparagraph (1), if the department
 29 determines that it is not feasible to provide direct notice
 30 of its abandonment determination to an interested person,
 31 the department shall deliver a constructive notice of the
 32 determination to that person by any reasonable manner, which
 33 may include posting the notice at or near the place where
 34 the animal is located. The department shall also post the
 35 constructive notice on the department's internet site.

PAGE 5

1 *d.* The department may seize the animal if the department
 2 fails to receive a written response by the interested person by
 3 the end of normal office hours of the next day the department
 4 is available to receive the response after written notice of
 5 the department's abandonment determination is delivered.
 6 *e.* Upon a determination by the department that exigent
 7 circumstances exist, the department may enter onto private
 8 property without a warrant and may seize an abandoned animal,
 9 in a manner consistent with the laws of this state and
 10 the United States, including Article I, section 8, of the
 11 Constitution of the State of Iowa, or the fourth amendment to
 12 the Constitution of the United States.
 13 6. If an animal is seized pursuant to this section, the
 14 department shall post a notice in a conspicuous place at the
 15 location where the animal was seized. The notice shall state
 16 the animal has been seized by the department pursuant to this
 17 section and at least briefly describe where and when the animal
 18 was seized, the species and number of animals seized, and that
 19 a dispositional proceeding is to be conducted pursuant to
 20 section 163.3E.
 21 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 163.3E Emergency measures —
 22 **abandoned animals — dispositional proceeding.**
 23 1. *a.* The department shall file a petition with the
 24 district court for the disposition of an animal seized pursuant
 25 to section 163.3D as soon as practicable.
 26 *b.* The court shall notify the department and all interested
 27 persons of the dispositional proceeding in a manner determined
 28 reasonable by the court. The court shall hear the matter
 29 within twenty-four hours from the time the department's
 30 petition is filed. The court may grant a continuance by a
 31 motion of the department or upon petition by an interested
 32 person. However, the interested person shall post a bond or
 33 other security with the department in an amount determined by
 34 the court, which shall not be more than the amount sufficient
 35 to provide for the maintenance of the animal for the duration

PAGE 6

- 1 of the continuance.
- 2 2. Upon a determination by the department that exigent
3 circumstances exist, the dispositional proceeding may be
4 conducted by an administrative law judge in the same manner
5 as an emergency adjudicative proceeding pursuant to section
6 17A.18A. The administrative law judge shall notify the
7 department and all interested persons of the dispositional
8 proceeding in a manner determined reasonable by the
9 administrative law judge given the circumstances in the case.
10 The procedures provided in this section may be supplemented
11 or modified by a declaration or proclamation issued by the
12 governor or an order issued by the secretary or the secretary's
13 designee pursuant to section 163.3D.
- 14 3. *a.* A court or administrative law judge shall issue an
15 order for the disposition of the animal after making any of the
16 following determinations:
- 17 (1) That no interested person holds a legal interest in
18 the seized animal. In that case, the animal shall be deemed
19 abandoned and the order shall extinguish all prior legal
20 interests in the animal. The order shall grant an undivided
21 ownership interest in the animal free from any security
22 interest or other agricultural lien or encumbrance to the
23 department.
- 24 (2) That an interested person holds a legal interest in
25 the seized animal, and the department has reasonable suspicion
26 to believe that the animal has been exposed to an infectious
27 or contagious disease. In that case, the order shall provide
28 for the disposition of the animal in the same manner as if the
29 department had identified the animal as having been exposed to
30 the infectious or contagious disease under the authorization
31 provided in section 163.3D.
- 32 (3) That a person holds a legal interest in the seized
33 animal, and there is no reasonable suspicion that the seized
34 animal has been exposed to an infectious or contagious disease.
35 In that case, the order shall direct the department to transfer

PAGE 7

- 1 custody of the animal to the interested person. In the event
2 the animal is returned to the interested person, the department
3 shall not be subject to any claim for damages caused by the
4 seizure if the department's actions were taken pursuant to
5 the department's emergency efforts to establish and maintain
6 quarantine in response to a disease outbreak, as set forth in
7 section 669.14, subsection 3.
- 8 *b.* A reasonable suspicion asserted by the department may
9 be based on any credible evidence that shows the animal's
10 possible exposure to an infectious or contagious disease or the
11 animal was abandoned. This paragraph "b" does not require the
12 department to conduct a test of an animal to determine whether

13 an animal has been exposed.
 14 c. If two or more interested parties may be transferred
 15 custody of an animal by the department pursuant to paragraph
 16 "a", subparagraph (3), the court or administrative law judge
 17 shall order the department to transfer the animal to the owner
 18 or otherwise to the interested person best able to care for the
 19 animal without prejudicing the rights of any other interested
 20 person. However, in any cause of action brought by an
 21 interested person contesting the order to transfer under this
 22 subsection, the department shall not be included as a party.
 23 4. a. In a dispositional proceeding conducted by a court or
 24 administrative law judge under this section, or in a separate
 25 cause of action brought by the department against an interested
 26 person, the court or administrative law judge may award the
 27 department all of the following:
 28 (1) An amount necessary to reimburse the department for
 29 expenses incurred in seizing and maintaining an abandoned
 30 animal as well as any costs for the disposition of the
 31 abandoned animal.
 32 (2) Expenses related to the investigation and adjudication
 33 of the case.
 34 b. In a dispositional proceeding conducted by a court under
 35 this section, or in a separate cause of action brought by the

PAGE 8

1 department against an interested person, the court may award
 2 the department court costs and reasonable attorney fees.
 3 c. An award ordered under this subsection shall be paid
 4 by an interested party who is transferred a seized animal by
 5 the court or administrative law judge, or the owner of the
 6 seized animal as determined by the court or administrative law
 7 judge. The amount awarded the department shall be subtracted
 8 from the proceeds, if any, received by the department from the
 9 disposition of the animal. Any amount awarded by a court shall
 10 be taxed as part of the costs of the cause of action.
 11 d. If more than one interested person holds a legal interest
 12 in the animal, the court or administrative law judge shall
 13 calculate the respective contributions of the interested
 14 persons based upon the percentage of legal interest in the
 15 seized animal held by each interested person. The amount paid
 16 to the department shall be sufficient to allow the department
 17 to repay the livestock remediation fund as provided in section
 18 459.501 and fully reimburse the department for all costs, fees,
 19 and expenses incurred by the department under this section.
 20 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **163.3F Interference with official**
 21 **acts.**
 22 1. A person shall not interfere with an official act of the
 23 department taken in the performance of a duty to prevent or
 24 control the transmission of an infectious or contagious disease
 25 among a population or species of animals, if the official act
 26 is authorized as part of any of the following:

27 a. A veterinary emergency preparedness and response service
 28 pursuant to section 163.3A.
 29 b. A foreign animal disease preparedness and response
 30 strategy pursuant to section 163.3C.
 31 c. An emergency measure pursuant to section 163.3D or
 32 163.3E.
 33 2. Under this section, an official act of the department
 34 may be performed by a departmental employee, or a veterinary or
 35 special assistant appointed pursuant to section 163.3.

PAGE 9

1 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **163.33 Feral swine.**
 2 1. "*Feral swine*" means any swine running at large.
 3 2. A person shall not knowingly release swine to become
 4 feral swine.
 5 3. Upon discovery of feral swine on public or private
 6 property, the department may destroy or order the destruction
 7 of the feral swine. However, the department shall not destroy
 8 the feral swine or order the feral swine's destruction, unless
 9 the department concludes, after conducting a reasonable inquiry
 10 in the area where the feral swine is located, that the feral
 11 swine's ownership cannot be determined. The department may
 12 call upon a peace officer or appropriate state or federal
 13 agency, including but not limited to the department of natural
 14 resources or the department of public safety, to enforce this
 15 section as set forth in section 159.16.
 16 4. A person may destroy feral swine if the feral swine is
 17 on the person's property or is damaging the person's personal
 18 property. The person shall immediately notify the department
 19 of the destruction of the feral swine and allow for possible
 20 testing of the feral swine by the department.
 21 5. This section shall not be construed to limit the powers
 22 of the department otherwise granted by law.
 23 Sec. ____ Section 163.61, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 24 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 25 NEW PARAGRAPH. c. A person who interferes with an official
 26 act as provided in section 163.3F shall be subject to a civil
 27 penalty of at least one hundred dollars but not more than ten
 28 thousand dollars. In the case of a continuing violation,
 29 each day of the continuing violation is a separate violation.
 30 However, a person shall not be subject to a civil penalty
 31 totaling more than two hundred fifty thousand dollars arising
 32 out of the same violation.
 33 Sec. ____ Section 459.501, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 34 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
 35 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (3) (a) To allocate moneys to the

PAGE 10

1 department of agriculture and land stewardship for the payment
 2 of expenses incurred by the department of agriculture and land

3 stewardship associated with all of the following:

4 (i) Providing for seizure of animals pursuant to sections
5 169.3D and 169.3E.

6 (ii) Court costs, reasonable attorney fees, and expenses
7 related to the investigation and prosecution of the case
8 arising from the seizure of animals.

9 (b) The department of natural resources shall allocate
10 any amount of unencumbered and unobligated moneys demanded in
11 writing by the department of agriculture and land stewardship
12 as provided in this subparagraph. The department of natural
13 resources shall complete the allocation upon receiving the
14 demand.

15 (c) The department of agriculture and land stewardship
16 shall repay the fund any amount received from an interested
17 person pursuant to an order by a court in a dispositional
18 proceeding conducted pursuant to section 163.3E.

19 Sec. ____ REPEAL. Section 166D.3, Code 2020, is repealed.

20 Sec. ____ CODE EDITOR DIRECTIVE.

21 1. The Code editor is directed to make the following
22 transfer:

23 Section 163.3 to section 163.3G.

24 2. The Code editor shall correct internal references in the
25 Code and in any enacted legislation as necessary due to the
26 enactment of this section.

27 Sec. ____ CODE EDITOR DIRECTIVE. The Code editor shall
28 divide chapter 163, subchapter I, into parts, including
29 sections 163.1 and 163.2 as part A, sections 163.2A through
30 163.5, including sections amended or enacted as provided in
31 this division of this Act, as part B, and sections 163.6
32 through 163.25 as part C.

33 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
34 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

35 DIVISION II

PAGE 11

1 FOOD OPERATION TRESPASS

2 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **716.7A Food operation trespass.**

3 1. As used in this section, unless the context otherwise
4 requires:

5 a. “*Apiary*” and “*bee*” mean the same as defined in section
6 160.1A.

7 b. “*Food animal*” means an animal belonging to the bovine,
8 caprine, ovine, or porcine species; farm deer as defined in
9 section 170.1; turkeys, chickens, or other poultry; fish or
10 other aquatic organisms confined in private waters for human
11 consumption; or bees.

12 c. “*Food establishment*”, “*food processing plant*”, and
13 “*farmers market*” mean the same as defined in section 137F.1.

14 d. “*Food operation*” means any of the following:

15 (1) A location where a food animal is produced, maintained,
16 or otherwise housed or kept, or processed in any manner.

- 17 (2) A location other than as described in subparagraph (1)
 18 where a food animal is kept, including an apiary, livestock
 19 market, vehicle or trailer attached to a vehicle, fair,
 20 exhibition, or a business operated by a person licensed to
 21 practice veterinary medicine pursuant to chapter 169.
 22 (3) A location where a meat food product, poultry product,
 23 milk or milk product, eggs or an egg product, aquatic product,
 24 or honey is prepared for human consumption, including a food
 25 processing plant, a slaughtering establishment operating under
 26 the provisions of 21 U.S.C. §451 et seq. or 21 U.S.C. §601
 27 et seq.; or a slaughtering establishment subject to state
 28 inspection as provided in chapter 189A.
 29 (4) A food establishment or farmers market that sells or
 30 offers for sale a meat food product, poultry product, milk
 31 or milk product, eggs or an egg product, aquatic product, or
 32 honey.
 33 e. *“Meat food product”, “poultry product”, and “prepared”*
 34 mean the same as defined in section 189A.2.
 35 2. A person commits food operation trespass by entering

PAGE 12

- 1 or remaining on the property of a food operation without the
 2 consent of a person who has real or apparent authority to allow
 3 the person to enter or remain on the property.
 4 3. Subsection 2 does not apply to any of the following:
 5 a. A person entering a right-of-way, if the person has not
 6 been notified or requested by posted signage or other means to
 7 abstain from entering onto the right-of-way or to vacate the
 8 right-of-way.
 9 b. A person having lawful authority to enter onto the
 10 property of the food operation, including but not limited to a
 11 federal, state, or local government official.
 12 c. A person who is given express permission by the owner of
 13 the food operation to enter onto or remain on the property of
 14 the food operation.
 15 d. A person employed by a food operation while acting in the
 16 course of employment.
 17 Sec. ____ Section 716.8, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 18 following new subsection:
 19 NEW SUBSECTION. 8. a. For a first offense, a person who
 20 commits food operation trespass as provided in section 716.7A
 21 is guilty of an aggravated misdemeanor.
 22 b. For a second or subsequent offense, a person who commits
 23 food operation trespass as provided in section 716.7A is guilty
 24 of a class “D” felony.
 25 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 26 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.>>
 27 2. By striking page 18, line 34, through page 19, line
 28 3, and inserting: <<An Act relating to agriculture and
 29 food, including the powers and duties of the department
 30 of agriculture and land stewardship, providing penalties,

31 making penalties applicable, and including effective date
32 provisions.>>

KLEIN of Washington

H-8238

1 Amend the amendment, H-8206, to House File 2626 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 3 by inserting:

3 <<DIVISION ____

4 LOCAL FARM PRODUCE PROGRAM

5 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 190A.11 Definitions.**

6 As used in this subchapter, unless the context otherwise
7 requires:

8 1. *“Department”* means the department of agriculture and land
9 stewardship.

10 2. *“Farm source”* means a farmer who produces fresh farm
11 produce and sells directly to consumers or to a distributor or
12 broker of fresh farm produce.

13 3. *“Fresh farm produce”* means vegetables, fruits, or nuts
14 intended for inclusion as part of a school diet, including
15 school meals and snacks as described in section 190A.3, if the
16 vegetables, fruits, or nuts are not processed except for being
17 trimmed, cleaned, dried, sorted, or packaged.

18 4. *“Fund”* means the local farm produce fund created in
19 section 190A.12.

20 5. *“Program”* means the local farm produce program created
21 in section 190A.13.

22 6. *“School”* means a public school or nonpublic school, as
23 those terms are defined in section 280.2, or that portion of a
24 public school or nonpublic school that provides facilities for
25 teaching any grade from kindergarten through grade twelve.

26 7. *“School district”* means a school district as described
27 in chapter 274.

28 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 190A.12 Local farm produce fund.**

29 1. A local farm produce fund is created in the state
30 treasury under the management and control of the department.

31 2. The fund shall include moneys appropriated to the fund
32 by the general assembly. The fund may include other moneys
33 available to and obtained or accepted by the department,
34 including moneys from public or private sources.

35 3. Moneys in the fund are appropriated to support the

PAGE 2

1 program in a manner determined by the department, including for
2 reasonable administrative costs incurred by the department.
3 However, the department shall not use more than five percent
4 of moneys credited to the fund during a fiscal year to pay for
5 reasonable administrative costs.

6 4. a. Notwithstanding section 12C.7, interest or earnings
7 on moneys in the fund shall be credited to the fund.

8 *b.* Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys credited to the
 9 fund that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the end of a
 10 fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for the
 11 purposes designated.

12 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **190A.13 Local farm produce program.**

13 1. A local farm produce program is created. The program
 14 shall be controlled and administered by the department.

15 2. The purpose of the program is to assist schools and
 16 school districts in purchasing fresh farm produce.

17 3. The department shall reimburse a school or school
 18 district for expenditures incurred by the school or school
 19 district for the purchase of fresh farm produce during
 20 the school year in which the school or school district is
 21 participating in the program.

22 4. A school or school district must apply each year to the
 23 department to participate in the program according to rules
 24 adopted by the department pursuant to chapter 17A.

25 5. To be eligible to participate in the program, a school or
 26 school district must purchase the fresh farm produce directly
 27 from a farm source as follows:

28 *a.* Except as provided in paragraph “*b*”, the farm source must
 29 be located in this state.

30 *b.* If the school district shares a border with another
 31 state, or the school is part of a school district that shares
 32 a border with another state, the farm source may be located
 33 in the other state. However, the food source must be located
 34 within thirty miles from the school district’s border with that
 35 state and the department must approve the purchase.

PAGE 3

1 6. The department shall require proof of purchase prior to
 2 reimbursing the school or school district for the purchase of
 3 fresh farm produce.

4 7. The department may administer the program in cooperation
 5 with the department of education and the participating school
 6 district or school district in which a participating school is
 7 located.

8 8. *a.* The department shall reimburse a participating
 9 school or school district that submits a claim as required
 10 by the department. The department shall pay the claim on a
 11 matching basis with the department contributing one dollar for
 12 every three dollars expended by the school or school district.
 13 However, a school or school district shall not receive
 14 more than five thousand dollars during any year in which it
 15 participates in the program.

16 *b.* If the department determines that there are not
 17 sufficient moneys in the fund to satisfy all applications that
 18 are submitted by schools and school districts, the department
 19 shall distribute available moneys after reducing the requested
 20 amounts by a like percentage.

21 *c.* Notwithstanding paragraph “*a*”, if the department

22 determines that there are sufficient moneys in the fund to
 23 satisfy all claims that may be submitted by schools and school
 24 districts, the department shall provide for the distribution of
 25 the available moneys in a manner determined equitable by the
 26 department to schools and school districts in counties where
 27 the county board of health has identified obesity or another
 28 diet-related illness in youth as a priority in the board's
 29 community health needs assessment and health improvement plan.

30 Sec. __. APPROPRIATION.

31 1. There is appropriated to the department of agriculture
 32 and land stewardship for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 33 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, from the moneys available to
 34 the state pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
 35 Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, the following amount, or

PAGE 4

1 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purpose
 2 designated:
 3 For deposit in the local farm produce fund created in section
 4 190A.12, as enacted in this Act:

5 \$ 1,925,000

6 2. Notwithstanding sections 8.33 and 190A.12, moneys
 7 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
 8 unobligated shall not revert and shall be transferred on
 9 December 31, 2020, to the general fund of the state and are
 10 appropriated to the economic development authority for the
 11 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021,
 12 for purposes related to assisting small businesses impacted by
 13 the coronavirus.

14 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 15 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

16 Sec. __. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 17 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
 18 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.>

19 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8239

1 Amend Senate File 2360, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, line 10, after <280.21.> by inserting <The
 4 director shall provide guidance to school districts and
 5 accredited nonpublic schools on best practices for providing
 6 mental health supports to a student who witnesses, at a
 7 school or on school grounds, an incident of severe behavioral
 8 disturbance by another student, actions by school personnel to
 9 suppress another student's behavioral disturbance, or violent
 10 acts by another student directed toward school personnel.>

11 2. Page 12, after line 12 by inserting:

12 <Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 280.31 Behavioral disturbance
 13 notification.

14 If a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 15 provides a notification of behavioral disturbance to a parent
 16 or guardian of a student enrolled in the school district or
 17 school, the school district or school shall provide on the
 18 school district's or school's internet site a list of mental
 19 health services available to students, and the notification
 20 shall include a reference to the school district's or school's
 21 internet site or the list of mental health services available
 22 to students.>

23 3. By renumbering as necessary.

EHLERT of Linn

H-8240

1 Amend Senate File 2310, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:

4 <DIVISION I

5 ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM AND COURSEWORK REQUIREMENTS>

6 2. Page 2, line 4, by striking <a.>

7 3. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 28.

8 4. Page 3, line 20, by striking <(1) or (2)> and inserting
 9 <(1), (2), or (3)>

10 5. Page 3, line 27, by striking <either> and inserting <any>

11 6. Page 4, after line 6 by inserting:

12 <(3) An online learning platform offered, subject to the
 13 initial availability of federal funds, by the department in
 14 collaboration with one or more area education agencies or in
 15 partnership with school districts and accredited nonpublic
 16 schools. The online learning platform may deliver distance
 17 education to secondary students, including students receiving
 18 independent private instruction as defined in section 299A.1,
 19 subsection 2, paragraph "b", competent private instruction
 20 under section 299A.2, or private instruction by a nonlicensed
 21 person under section 299A.3, provided the coursework offered
 22 by the online learning platform is taught and supervised by
 23 a teacher licensed under chapter 272 who has online learning
 24 experience and the course content meets the requirements
 25 established by rule pursuant to section 256.7, subsection 32,
 26 paragraph "c". The department and the area education agencies
 27 operating online learning programs pursuant to section 273.16
 28 shall coordinate to ensure the most effective use of resources
 29 and delivery of services. Federal funds, if available, may
 30 be used to offset what would otherwise be costs to school
 31 districts for participation in the program.>

32 7. Page 4, by striking line 11 and inserting:

33 <c. ~~Private providers utilized to provide courses by Courses~~
 34 provided by private providers to a school>

35 8. Page 5, after line 25 by inserting:

PAGE 2

1 <Sec. _____. Section 279.10, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 2 the following new subsection:
 3 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 3. *a.* For the school year beginning July
 4 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, any instruction provided in
 5 accordance with a return-to-learn plan submitted by a school
 6 district or accredited nonpublic school to the department of
 7 education in response to a proclamation of a public health
 8 disaster emergency, issued by the governor pursuant to section
 9 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, shall be deemed to meet the
 10 requirements of subsection 1, regardless of the nature,
 11 location, or medium of instruction if the return-to-learn plan
 12 contains the minimum number of days or hours as required by
 13 subsection 1.
 14 *b.* For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 15 June 30, 2021, a school district or accredited nonpublic
 16 school that uses a return-to-learn plan submitted pursuant
 17 to paragraph “*a*” to provide instruction and student support
 18 to respond to school closures, including but not limited
 19 to closures due to inclement weather, the school district
 20 or school, as appropriate, shall be deemed to meet the
 21 requirements of subsection 1, regardless of the nature,
 22 location, or medium of instruction.
 23 *c.* This subsection is repealed on July 1, 2021.>
 24 9. Page 5, after line 26 by inserting:

25 <DIVISION ____
 26 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR USE OF CERTAIN MONEYS BY SCHOOL
 27 DISTRICTS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
 28 Sec. _____. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT MONEYS AND HOURS
 29 REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME FOR THE
 30 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding section 257.10,
 31 subsection 10, and the professional development requirements
 32 of chapter 284, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020,
 33 and ending June 30, 2021, the moneys calculated and paid to
 34 the school district for professional development pursuant to
 35 section 257.10, subsection 10, or section 257.37A, subsection

PAGE 3

1 2, to provide thirty-six hours of professional development
 2 opportunities held outside of the minimum school day, may
 3 instead be used by a school district to provide instructional
 4 time to the school calendar in addition to the amount of
 5 instructional time required under section 279.10, subsection 1,
 6 and the thirty-six-hour professional development requirement
 7 of chapter 284 shall be reduced by such number of hours of
 8 additional instructional time.
 9 Sec. _____. DISTRICT MANAGEMENT LEVY FUND — PERMISSIBLE USES
 10 BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.
 11 1. For the school budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 12 ending June 30, 2021, unencumbered moneys remaining in the

13 district management levy fund under section 298A.3 at the
 14 end of the budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 15 June 30, 2020, and the taxes certified for levy before the
 16 effective date of this Act under section 298.4 and deposited in
 17 the district management levy fund for the school budget year
 18 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, in addition
 19 to the purposes authorized under section 298.4, may be expended
 20 by a school district to provide additional instructional time
 21 to the school calendar in excess of the amount of instructional
 22 time required under section 279.10, subsection 1, during the
 23 school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
 24 2. The board of directors of a school district,
 25 notwithstanding the budget amendment requirements of chapters
 26 24 and 257, may authorize the expenditure of specified district
 27 management levy funds for purposes specified in subsection 1
 28 by resolution of the board specifying the amount to be used
 29 and the purposes from which the funds will be reallocated, if
 30 the resolution of the board is approved and filed with the
 31 department of education on or before June 30, 2021.

32 DIVISION ____
 33 EMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR CERTAIN EDUCATIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL AND
 34 POLICY REQUIREMENTS
 35 Sec. ____ OPEN ENROLLMENT — EXTENSION OF NOTIFICATION

PAGE 4

1 DEADLINE FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding
 2 section 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, for the school
 3 year commencing July 1, 2020, a parent or guardian shall have
 4 until July 15, 2020, to notify to the district of residence and
 5 the receiving district, on forms prescribed by the department
 6 of education, that the parent or guardian intends to enroll
 7 the parent’s or guardian’s child in an online public school
 8 in another school district, if the child, another resident of
 9 the child’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the child
 10 has a significant health condition that increases the risk
 11 of COVID-19. The notification shall include the name of the
 12 person with the health condition, specify the person’s health
 13 condition, include written verification of the health condition
 14 from the person’s physician or licensed health care provider
 15 and, for persons other than the child, whether the person with
 16 the health condition is a resident of the child’s residence
 17 or the child’s regular caretaker. Section 282.18, subsection
 18 3, shall not apply to a notification submitted in accordance
 19 with this section. Notwithstanding section 282.18, subsection
 20 2, paragraph “b”, the superintendent of the receiving school
 21 district is authorized to approve a notification received
 22 under this section. Within fourteen days of receipt of such
 23 notification, the superintendent shall notify the parent or
 24 guardian and the school district of residence that the request
 25 has been approved or denied. If the notification has been
 26 denied or if further review is required, the superintendent

27 shall provide the parent or guardian with an explanation of
 28 the approval process and expected timeline for the review. A
 29 decision to deny a request submitted under this section is
 30 subject to appeal under section 290.1. The state board shall
 31 exercise broad discretion to achieve just and equitable results
 32 that are in the best interest of the affected child. This
 33 section is not intended to extend the provisions of section
 34 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, for enrollment in a
 35 physical school district.

PAGE 5

1 Sec. __. SCHOOL DISTRICT AND ACCREDITED NONPUBLIC SCHOOL
 2 DUTIES RELATING TO PRIVATE INSTRUCTION AND AN ONLINE LEARNING
 3 PROGRAM FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR.

4 1. For the school year commencing July 1, 2020, all of the
 5 following shall apply:
 6 a. A school district shall provide to children receiving
 7 competent private instruction available texts or supplementary
 8 materials on the same basis as they are provided to enrolled
 9 students and shall provide available texts or supplemental
 10 instructional materials on the same basis as they are provided
 11 to enrolled students when a child is under dual enrollment or
 12 in a home school assistance program.
 13 b. A school district or accredited nonpublic school shall
 14 offer an assistance program for parents, guardians, or legal
 15 or actual custodians providing private instruction to a child
 16 of compulsory attendance age.
 17 2. The provisions of this section shall only apply to
 18 children who are enrolled in a school district’s home school
 19 assistance program by the child’s parent, guardian, or legal or
 20 actual custodian.

21 Sec. __. SCHOOL DISTRICT CLOSURES DURING THE 2020-2021
 22 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020,
 23 and ending June 30, 2021, the board of directors of a school
 24 district may authorize closure of the school district due to
 25 an outbreak of COVID-19. School districts are encouraged to
 26 follow guidelines issued by the centers for disease control and
 27 prevention of the United States department of health and human
 28 services and may consult with the local board of health when
 29 determining social distancing measures or authorizing a school
 30 closure.

31 Sec. __. INSTRUCTIONAL TIME PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOL
 32 DISTRICTS AND ACCREDITED NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR THE 2020-2021
 33 SCHOOL YEAR.

34 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 35 contrary, the instructional time requirements of section

PAGE 6

1 279.10, subsection 1, and the minimum school day requirements
 2 of section 256.7, subsection 19, shall not be waived any time

3 during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
4 30, 2021, for school closure due to the COVID-19 pandemic
5 unless the school district or the authorities in charge of the
6 accredited nonpublic school, as appropriate, provide compulsory
7 remote learning, including online learning, electronic
8 learning, distance learning, or virtual learning.

9 2. If the board of directors of a school district or
10 the authorities in charge of an accredited nonpublic school
11 determines any time during the school year beginning July
12 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, that a remote-learning
13 period is necessary, the school board or the authorities, as
14 appropriate, shall ensure that teachers and other necessary
15 school staff are available during the remote-learning period to
16 support students, to participate in professional development
17 opportunities, and to perform other job-related functions
18 during the regular, required contract hours, even if the
19 accessibility to or by the teachers and other necessary school
20 staff is offered remotely through electronic means.

21 Sec. ___. TRUANCY REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL
22 YEAR. In addition to the provisions of chapter 299, a
23 child who is enrolled in a school district or accredited
24 nonpublic school but who does not participate in compulsory
25 remote-learning opportunities, including online learning,
26 electronic learning, distance learning, or virtual learning,
27 offered by the school district or accredited nonpublic school
28 of enrollment during a period of school closure implemented any
29 time during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
30 June 30, 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic shall be considered
31 truant. This section is not applicable to a child who was
32 receiving competent private instruction or independent private
33 instruction in accordance with the requirements of chapter
34 299A, whose parent, guardian, or legal custodian notified the
35 school district prior to July 1, 2019. Any child who was

PAGE 7

1 enrolled in a public school or accredited nonpublic school
2 prior to July 1, 2019, may be subject to the provisions of
3 chapter 299 if the child's parent, guardian, or legal custodian
4 did not, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, complete
5 and send the report required under section 299.4 to the school
6 district of residence of the child in a timely manner.

7 Sec. ___. TEACHER ENDORSEMENT WAIVER FOR THE 2020-2021
8 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
9 ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding any provision to the
10 contrary, if a school district or accredited nonpublic school
11 has made every reasonable and good-faith effort to employ a
12 teacher licensed under chapter 272 who holds an endorsement for
13 a specified grade level or subject area and is unable to employ
14 a teacher with the appropriate endorsement, and the school
15 district or accredited nonpublic school is also unable to
16 develop, or use a private provider to provide, an online course

17 that meets the requirements of chapter 256, the director of
 18 the department of education may waive the teacher-endorsement
 19 requirements for the specified grade level or subject area for
 20 the school district or accredited nonpublic school, and the
 21 provisions of section 256.9, subsection 48, and section 272.15,
 22 subsection 4, shall not apply.

23 Sec. ____ MISCELLANEOUS POLICY PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOLS
 24 FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. The following provisions are
 25 applicable for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 26 ending June 30, 2021:

27 1. SOCIAL DISTANCING. In implementing social distancing
 28 policies, the board of directors of each school district and
 29 the authorities in charge of each accredited nonpublic school
 30 shall prioritize core academic subjects.

31 2. STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS. The provisions of section 256.7,
 32 subsection 21, paragraph “b”, relating to the administration
 33 of statewide summative assessment of student progress, and the
 34 assessments administered in accordance with sections 279.60
 35 and 279.68, shall not be waived, and such assessments shall be

PAGE 8

1 administered to students as required by those sections.
 2 3. CPR CERTIFICATION — EXCEPTION FOR GRADUATION. If a
 3 school district or accredited nonpublic school closes on the
 4 advice of a local board of health, the department of public
 5 health, or because the governor proclaims a public health
 6 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, a student who meets the
 7 graduation requirements of section 256.7, subsection 26,
 8 paragraph “a”, the requirements of section 280.9A, and the
 9 school district’s or accredited nonpublic school’s graduation
 10 requirements may graduate without meeting the cardiopulmonary
 11 resuscitation certification requirements of section 256.11,
 12 section 6, paragraph “c”.

13 4. NOTIFICATION OF SIGNIFICANT HEALTH CONDITION —
 14 COMPULSORY REMOTE LEARNING. If a parent or guardian of a
 15 student enrolled in a school district or accredited nonpublic
 16 school notifies the school district or accredited nonpublic
 17 school in writing that the student, another resident of the
 18 student’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the student
 19 has a significant health condition that increases the risk of
 20 COVID-19, the school district or accredited nonpublic school
 21 shall make reasonable accommodations for the student, on a
 22 case-by-case basis, to attend school through remote learning.
 23 The provision of special education and accommodations for
 24 students who have individualized education programs or
 25 section 504 plans in compliance with the requirements of
 26 section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 29 U.S.C. §794, and
 27 with Tit. II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42
 28 U.S.C. §12131–12165, will be determined by each respective
 29 individualized education program team or section 504 team.
 30 The notification shall include the name of the person with

31 the health condition, specify the person's health condition,
 32 include written verification of the health condition from the
 33 person's physician or licensed health care provider and, for
 34 persons other than the student, whether the person with the
 35 health condition is a resident of the student's residence

PAGE 9

1 or the student's regular caretaker. A school district or
 2 an accredited nonpublic school may collaborate with an area
 3 education agency or another school district or accredited
 4 nonpublic school to provide remote learning opportunities to a
 5 student who meets the requirements of this section.
 6 5. Notwithstanding section 256.7, subsection 32; section
 7 256.9, subsection 55; section 256.43; or any other provision to
 8 the contrary, a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 9 may provide instruction primarily over the internet if such
 10 instruction is provided in accordance with a return-to-learn
 11 plan submitted by the school district or school to the
 12 department of education in response to a proclamation of a
 13 public health disaster emergency, issued by the governor
 14 pursuant to section 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, without
 15 regard to whether the school or school district is approved to
 16 provide instruction primarily over the internet. Instruction
 17 provided pursuant to this section shall be provided by teachers
 18 licensed pursuant to chapter 272 and shall assure and maintain
 19 evidence of alignment of the courses with the Iowa core and
 20 core content requirements and standards.>
 21 10. By renumbering as necessary.

MOORE of Cass

H-8241

1 Amend House File 2629 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, lines 14 and 15, by striking <K-12 EDUCATIONAL
 3 STANDARDS — ONLINE COURSEWORK> and inserting <EDUCATIONAL
 4 STANDARDS>
 5 2. Page 9, line 9, by striking <2021> and inserting <2022>
 6 3. By striking page 9, line 15, through page 11, line 6.
 7 4. Title page, line 4, by striking <and online learning>
 8 5. By renumbering as necessary.

DEYOE of Story

H-8242

1 Amend House File 321 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 533A.1, subsection 2, Code 2019, is
 5 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

6 NEW PARAGRAPH. *e.* Serving as an intermediary between a
 7 debtor and one or more creditors or loan servicers of the
 8 debtor for the purpose of seeking modification of the terms of
 9 an educational loan.

10 Sec. 2. Section 533A.1, Code 2019, is amended by adding the
 11 following new subsections:

12 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. “*Educational loan*” means the same as
 13 defined in section 261F.1.

14 NEW SUBSECTION. 8A. “*Loan servicer*” means a person who is
 15 engaged in the direct collection of payments on a loan from
 16 the debtor or holds the right to undertake direct collection
 17 of payments on a loan from the debtor, including but not
 18 limited to receiving scheduled periodic payments from the
 19 debtor pursuant to the terms of the loan or holding the right
 20 to service the loan, such as by contracting with or otherwise
 21 arranging for another person to service the loan.

22 Sec. 3. NEW SECTION. 533A.8A **Educational loan debt**
 23 **management services — contract requirements — prohibitions —**
 24 **remedies.**

25 1. In addition to any other requirements applicable to a
 26 licensee pursuant to this chapter, a licensee who is engaged
 27 primarily in the business of debt management in connection with
 28 educational loans, as described in section 533A.1, subsection
 29 2, paragraph “e”, shall do so in accordance with this section.
 30 The provisions of this section are not exclusive and do not
 31 relieve persons or a contract from compliance with other
 32 applicable law.

33 2. A licensee shall not receive any compensation for
 34 providing educational loan debt management services until after
 35 the licensee has fully performed all services that the licensee

PAGE 2

1 contracted to perform or represented the licensee would
 2 perform, and shall not request any payment from the debtor or
 3 require the debtor to provide payment to any third party prior
 4 to fully performing all services.

5 3. *a.* A debtor has an unconditional right to cancel a
 6 contract with a licensee for educational loan debt management
 7 services at any time prior to midnight of the third business
 8 day following the date a contract which complies with this
 9 section is signed and executed.

10 *b.* Cancellation of a contract occurs when the debtor
 11 delivers, by any means, written notice of cancellation to the
 12 address specified in the contract. Notice of cancellation,
 13 if delivered by mail, is effective when deposited in the
 14 mail properly addressed with postage prepaid. Notice of
 15 cancellation delivered by electronic mail is effective upon
 16 transmission. Notice of cancellation delivered personally is
 17 effective upon delivery. Notice of cancellation given by the
 18 debtor need not take the particular form as provided in the
 19 contract and, however expressed, is effective if the notice of

20 cancellation indicates the intention of the debtor not to be
 21 bound by the contract.

22 4. A contract to provide debt management services in
 23 connection with an educational loan shall be written in clear,
 24 understandable language, shall clearly and conspicuously set
 25 forth any and all terms, restrictions, and conditions governing
 26 the contract, and shall describe fully and in detail all
 27 services that the licensee contracts to perform for the debtor.
 28 The contract shall be dated and signed by the debtor. The
 29 contract shall set forth information required in this section
 30 in at least ten point type. The following shall be included in
 31 the contract:

32 a. The licensee's name, the licensee's electronic mail
 33 address, and the physical address of the licensee's place of
 34 business to which the notice of cancellation is to be mailed
 35 or otherwise delivered. A post office box does not constitute

PAGE 3

1 a physical address. A post office box may be designated for
 2 delivery by mail only if it is accompanied by a physical
 3 address at which the notice could be delivered by a method
 4 other than mail.

5 b. A disclosure statement in substantially the following
 6 form shall appear in at least fourteen point boldface type
 7 immediately above the place where the debtor is to sign:
 8 You, the debtor, may cancel this contract at any time prior
 9 to midnight of the third business day after the contract is
 10 signed and executed. See the attached notice of cancellation
 11 form for an explanation of this right.

12 c. A completed, easily detachable form in duplicate,
 13 captioned "notice of cancellation", as an attachment, in at
 14 least fourteen point boldface type, containing the following
 15 statement in substantially the following form and language:
 16 NOTICE OF CANCELLATION
 17
 18 (date contract is signed and executed)
 19 You, the debtor, may cancel this contract without any
 20 penalty or obligation, within three business days from the
 21 above date.
 22 To cancel this contract, you may use any of the following
 23 methods: (1) send by postal mail or otherwise deliver a
 24 signed and dated copy of this cancellation notice, or any
 25 other written notice of cancellation, to (physical address of
 26 licensee's place of business); or (2) send by electronic mail a
 27 notice of cancellation to (licensee's electronic mail address).
 28 No later than midnight of (date).
 29 I hereby cancel this contract.
 30
 31 (date)
 32
 33 (debtor's signature)

34 *d.* A disclosure statement in substantially the following
 35 form shall appear in at least fourteen point boldface type

PAGE 4

1 immediately above the "Notice of Cancellation" form described
 2 in paragraph "c".
 3 NOTICE REQUIRED BY IOWA LAW
 4 (Insert name of licensee) or anyone working for (insert name
 5 of licensee) CANNOT take payment directly from you or require
 6 you to pay for or finance its services through a third party
 7 until (insert name of licensee) has fully performed each and
 8 every service that (insert name of licensee) contracted to
 9 perform or represented that (insert name of licensee) would
 10 perform.
 11 5. A licensee who is engaged primarily in the business of
 12 debt management in connection with educational loans shall not
 13 do any of the following:
 14 *a.* Claim, demand, charge, collect, or receive compensation
 15 until after the licensee has fully performed each and every
 16 service the licensee contracted to perform or represented the
 17 licensee would perform.
 18 *b.* Execute a contract with a debtor for educational loan
 19 debt management services in violation of this section.
 20 *c.* Receive consideration from any third party in connection
 21 with services rendered to a debtor unless the consideration is
 22 first fully disclosed to the debtor.
 23 *d.* Prohibit or impede a debtor from contacting any creditor,
 24 lender, loan servicer, government entity, attorney, counselor,
 25 individual, or company that may seek to help the debtor. Any
 26 such provision is void and unenforceable.
 27 *e.* Access or obtain a debtor's federal student aid
 28 information in violation of federal law.
 29 *f.* Compensate employees, including independent contractors,
 30 based on the number of debtors recruited by the employees or
 31 enrolled in particular programs, or provide compensation to
 32 employees on any other commission-based system.
 33 *g.* Pay or offer to pay any compensation, bonus, gift,
 34 commission, or other consideration to any person for the
 35 referral of a debtor to the licensee's business.

PAGE 5

1 *h.* Accept or receive any compensation, bonus, gift,
 2 commission, or other consideration for service to the
 3 debtor from any person other than the debtor, the debtor's
 4 representative, or any third party providing financing that is
 5 otherwise in compliance with the requirements of this section.
 6 *i.* Disclose any information regarding a debtor to anyone
 7 other than law enforcement, government entities, loan
 8 servicers, creditors of the debtor, or as required by law.
 9 *j.* Disclose any information regarding the creditor of

10 a debtor to anyone other than the debtor, the debtor's
11 representative, or as required by law.

12 6. *a.* A violation of this section is an unlawful practice
13 pursuant to section 714.16, and all remedies of section
14 714.16 are available for such an action. A private cause of
15 action brought under this section by a debtor is in the public
16 interest. A debtor may bring an action against a licensee
17 for a violation of this section. If the court finds that the
18 licensee violated this section, the court shall award the
19 debtor actual damages, appropriate equitable relief, and the
20 costs of the action, and shall award reasonable fees to the
21 debtor's attorney.

22 *b.* The rights and remedies provided in paragraph "a" are
23 cumulative to, and not a limitation of, any other rights and
24 remedies provided by law. Any action brought by a person other
25 than the attorney general or the superintendent pursuant to
26 this section must be commenced within four years from the date
27 of the alleged violation.

28 *c.* Notwithstanding any other provision of this section,
29 an action shall not be brought on the basis of a violation of
30 this section, except by a debtor against whom the violation was
31 committed or by the attorney general or superintendent. This
32 limitation does not apply to administrative action by either
33 the attorney general or the superintendent.>

MOHR of Scott

H-8243

1 Amend the amendment, H-8200, to Senate File 2301, as passed
2 by the Senate, as follows:
3 1. Page 1, line 5, after <report> by inserting <or with the
4 recommendations of the national institute of mental health>

NIELSEN of Johnson

H-8244

1 Amend Senate File 2410, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the Senate, as follows:
3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:
5 <Section 1. Section 423F.3, subsection 7, paragraph a, Code
6 2020, is amended to read as follows:
7 *a.* Prior to approving the use of revenues received under
8 this chapter for an athletic facility infrastructure project
9 within the scope of the school district's approved revenue
10 purpose statement or pursuant to subsection 4 for a school
11 district without an approved revenue statement, the board of
12 directors shall adopt a resolution setting forth the proposal
13 for the athletic facility infrastructure project and hold an

14 additional public hearing on the issue of construction of the
15 athletic facility. Notice of the time and place of the public
16 hearing shall be published not less than ten nor more than
17 twenty days before the public hearing in a newspaper which is a
18 newspaper of general circulation in the school district. If
19 at any time prior to the fifteenth day following the hearing,
20 the secretary of the board of directors receives a petition
21 containing the required number of signatures and asking that
22 the question of the approval of the use of revenues for the
23 athletic facility infrastructure project be submitted to the
24 voters of the school district, the board of directors shall
25 either rescind the board's resolution for the use of revenues
26 for the athletic facility infrastructure project or direct the
27 county commissioner of elections to submit the question to the
28 registered voters of the school district at an election held
29 on a date specified in section 39.2, subsection 4, paragraph
30 "c". The petition must be signed by eligible electors equal in
31 number to not less than one hundred or thirty percent of the
32 number of voters who cast a vote for the board of directors of
33 the school district at the last preceding election of school
34 officials under section 277.1, whichever is greater. If a
35 majority of those voting on the question favors the use of the

PAGE 2

1 revenues for the athletic facility infrastructure project, the
2 board shall be authorized to approve such use by resolution of
3 the board. If a majority of those voting on the question does
4 not favor the use of the revenues for the athletic facility
5 infrastructure project, the board of directors shall rescind
6 the board's resolution for the use of revenues for the athletic
7 facility infrastructure project. If a petition is not received
8 by the board of directors within the prescribed time period,
9 the board of directors may approve the use of revenues for
10 the athletic facility infrastructure project without voter
11 approval.

12 Sec. 2. Section 423F.4, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
13 2020, is amended to read as follows:

14 *b.* For bonds subject to the requirements of paragraph
15 "a", if at any time prior to the fifteenth day following the
16 hearing, the secretary of the board of directors receives a
17 petition containing the required number of signatures and
18 asking that the question of the issuance of such bonds be
19 submitted to the voters of the school district, the board shall
20 either rescind its adoption of the resolution or direct the
21 county commissioner of elections to submit the question to the
22 registered voters of the school district at an election held
23 on a date specified in section 39.2, subsection 4, paragraph
24 "c". The petition must be signed by eligible electors equal in
25 number to not less than one hundred or thirty percent of the
26 number of voters who cast a vote for the board of directors of
27 the school district at the last preceding election of school

28 officials under section 277.1, whichever is greater. If the
 29 board submits the question at an election and a majority of
 30 those voting on the question favors issuance of the bonds, the
 31 board shall be authorized to issue the bonds.
 32 Sec. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of immediate
 33 importance, takes effect upon enactment.>
 34 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 35 <An Act relating to petitions for an election related to

PAGE 3

1 the use of revenues from the secure an advanced vision for
 2 education fund and including effective date provisions.>

COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

H-8245

1 Amend the amendment, H-8240, to Senate File 2310, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 9, before line 21 by inserting:
 4 <__. Page 5, after line 26 by inserting:
 5 <DIVISION __
 6 SCHOOL DISTRICT SAVINGS REPORT
 7 Sec. __. SCHOOL DISTRICT COVID-19 SAVINGS REPORT FOR
 8 BUDGET YEAR 2019-2020. Each school district shall submit a
 9 report to the department of education, in a format and by a
 10 date as determined by the department, detailing the beginning
 11 fund balances for the budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 12 any savings to the school district resulting from the closure
 13 of schools due to the COVID-19 pandemic during the school
 14 budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020,
 15 including but not limited to savings from transportation, the
 16 number of employees laid off by the school district listed
 17 by staff position and whether such employees were reported
 18 to receive unemployment compensation benefits, and spring or
 19 summer programs canceled or otherwise impacted.>>
 20 2. By renumbering as necessary.

MOORE of Cass

H-8246

1 Amend the amendment, H-8240, to Senate File 2310, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking page 1, line 3, through page 9, line 20, and
 4 inserting:
 5 <__. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 6 DIVISION I
 7 ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM AND COURSEWORK REQUIREMENTS>
 8 __. Page 2, line 4, by striking <a.>
 9 __. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 28.

10 ____ Page 2, line 31, by striking <The provisions of
 11 subsection 5> and inserting:
 12 <(1) The offer and teach requirements of subsection 5,
 13 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
 14 ____ Page 2, line 35, by striking <(1)> and inserting <(a)>
 15 ____ Page 3, line 4, by striking <(2)> and inserting <(b)>
 16 ____ Page 3, after line 6 by inserting:
 17 <(2) Notwithstanding subparagraph (1), unnumbered paragraph
 18 1, if either subparagraph (1), subparagraph division (a) or
 19 (b), apply, a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 20 may exceed the limitation specified in subparagraph (1),
 21 unnumbered paragraph 1, to provide world language, personal
 22 finance literacy, and computer science coursework online
 23 in accordance with paragraph “c” and the offer and teach
 24 requirements of subsection 5, paragraphs “j” and “k”, and any
 25 such requirement as may be established under subsection 5 for
 26 computer science, shall not apply.>
 27 ____ Page 3, line 7, after <may> by inserting <at the
 28 discretion of the department>
 29 ____ Page 3, line 8, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
 30 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
 31 ____ Page 3, line 12, by striking <the requirements of
 32 subsection 5> and inserting <such requirements>
 33 ____ Page 3, line 15, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
 34 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
 35 ____ Page 3, line 20, by striking <(1) or (2)> and inserting

PAGE 2

1 <(1), (2), or (3)>
 2 ____ Page 3, line 27, by striking <either> and inserting
 3 <any>
 4 ____ Page 4, after line 6 by inserting:
 5 <(3) An online learning platform offered, subject to the
 6 initial availability of federal funds, by the department in
 7 collaboration with one or more area education agencies or in
 8 partnership with school districts and accredited nonpublic
 9 schools. The online learning platform may deliver distance
 10 education to secondary students, including students receiving
 11 independent private instruction as defined in section 299A.1,
 12 subsection 2, paragraph “b”, competent private instruction
 13 under section 299A.2, or private instruction by a nonlicensed
 14 person under section 299A.3, provided the coursework offered
 15 by the online learning platform is taught and supervised by
 16 a teacher licensed under chapter 272 who has online learning
 17 experience and the course content meets the requirements
 18 established by rule pursuant to section 256.7, subsection 32,
 19 paragraph “c”. The department and the area education agencies
 20 operating online learning programs pursuant to section 273.16
 21 shall coordinate to ensure the most effective use of resources
 22 and delivery of services. Federal funds, if available, may
 23 be used to offset what would otherwise be costs to school

24 districts for participation in the program.>
 25 _____. Page 4, by striking line 11 and inserting:
 26 <c. ~~Private providers utilized to provide courses by Courses~~
 27 provided by private providers to a school>
 28 _____. Page 5, after line 25 by inserting:
 29 <Sec. _____. Section 279.10, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 30 the following new subsection:
 31 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. a. For the school year beginning July
 32 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, any instruction provided in
 33 accordance with a return-to-learn plan submitted by a school
 34 district or accredited nonpublic school to the department of
 35 education in response to a proclamation of a public health

PAGE 3

1 disaster emergency, issued by the governor pursuant to section
 2 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, shall be deemed to meet the
 3 requirements of subsection 1, regardless of the nature,
 4 location, or medium of instruction if the return-to-learn plan
 5 contains the minimum number of days or hours as required by
 6 subsection 1.
 7 b. This subsection is repealed on July 1, 2021.>
 8 _____. Page 5, after line 26 by inserting:
 9 <DIVISION ____
 10 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR USE OF CERTAIN MONEYS BY SCHOOL
 11 DISTRICTS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
 12 Sec. _____. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT MONEYS AND HOURS
 13 REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME FOR THE
 14 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding section 257.10,
 15 subsection 10, and the professional development requirements
 16 of chapter 284, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020,
 17 and ending June 30, 2021, the moneys calculated and paid to
 18 the school district for professional development pursuant to
 19 section 257.10, subsection 10, or section 257.37A, subsection
 20 2, to provide thirty-six hours of professional development
 21 opportunities held outside of the minimum school day, may
 22 instead be used by a school district to provide instructional
 23 time to the school calendar in addition to the amount of
 24 instructional time required under section 279.10, subsection 1,
 25 and the thirty-six-hour professional development requirement
 26 of chapter 284 shall be reduced by such number of hours of
 27 additional instructional time.
 28 Sec. _____. DISTRICT MANAGEMENT LEVY FUND — PERMISSIBLE USES
 29 BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.
 30 1. For the school budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 31 ending June 30, 2021, unencumbered moneys remaining in the
 32 district management levy fund under section 298A.3 at the
 33 end of the budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 34 June 30, 2020, and the taxes certified for levy before the
 35 effective date of this Act under section 298.4 and deposited in

PAGE 4

1 the district management levy fund for the school budget year
 2 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, in addition
 3 to the purposes authorized under section 298.4, may be expended
 4 by a school district to provide additional instructional time
 5 to the school calendar in excess of the amount of instructional
 6 time required under section 279.10, subsection 1, during the
 7 school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
 8 2. The board of directors of a school district,
 9 notwithstanding the budget amendment requirements of chapters
 10 24 and 257, may authorize the expenditure of specified district
 11 management levy funds for purposes specified in subsection 1
 12 by resolution of the board specifying the amount to be used
 13 and the purposes from which the funds will be reallocated, if
 14 the resolution of the board is approved and filed with the
 15 department of education on or before June 30, 2021.

16 DIVISION ____

17 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR CERTAIN EDUCATIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL AND
 18 POLICY REQUIREMENTS

19 Sec. ____ OPEN ENROLLMENT — EXTENSION OF NOTIFICATION
 20 DEADLINE FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding
 21 section 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, for the school
 22 year commencing July 1, 2020, a parent or guardian shall have
 23 until July 15, 2020, to notify to the district of residence and
 24 the receiving district, on forms prescribed by the department
 25 of education, that the parent or guardian intends to enroll
 26 the parent’s or guardian’s child in an online public school
 27 in another school district, if the child, another resident of
 28 the child’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the child
 29 has a significant health condition that increases the risk
 30 of COVID-19. The notification shall include the name of the
 31 person with the health condition, specify the person’s health
 32 condition, include written verification of the health condition
 33 from the person’s physician or licensed health care provider
 34 and, for persons other than the child, whether the person with
 35 the health condition is a resident of the child’s residence

PAGE 5

1 or the child’s regular caretaker. Section 282.18, subsection
 2 3, shall not apply to a notification submitted in accordance
 3 with this section. Notwithstanding section 282.18, subsection
 4 2, paragraph “b”, the superintendent of the receiving school
 5 district is authorized to approve a notification received
 6 under this section. Within fourteen days of receipt of such
 7 notification, the superintendent shall notify the parent or
 8 guardian and the school district of residence that the request
 9 has been approved or denied. If the notification has been
 10 denied or if further review is required, the superintendent
 11 shall provide the parent or guardian with an explanation of
 12 the approval process and expected timeline for the review. A

13 decision to deny a request submitted under this section is
14 subject to appeal under section 290.1. The state board shall
15 exercise broad discretion to achieve just and equitable results
16 that are in the best interest of the affected child. This
17 section is not intended to extend the provisions of section
18 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph "a", for enrollment in a
19 physical school district.

20 Sec. ___. SCHOOL DISTRICT DUTIES RELATING TO PRIVATE
21 INSTRUCTION AND AN ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM FOR THE 2020-2021
22 SCHOOL YEAR.

23 1. For the school year commencing July 1, 2020, all of the
24 following shall apply:

25 a. Each school district shall provide to children receiving
26 competent private instruction available texts or supplementary
27 materials on the same basis as they are provided to enrolled
28 students and shall provide available texts or supplemental
29 instructional materials on the same basis as they are provided
30 to enrolled students when a child is under dual enrollment or
31 in a home school assistance program.

32 b. Each school district shall offer an assistance program
33 for parents, guardians, or legal or actual custodians providing
34 private instruction to a child of compulsory attendance age.

35 2. The provisions of this section shall only apply to

PAGE 6

1 children who are enrolled in a school district's home school
2 assistance program by the child's parent, guardian, or legal or
3 actual custodian.

4 Sec. ___. SCHOOL DISTRICT CLOSURES DURING THE 2020-2021
5 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
6 ending June 30, 2021, if the governor proclaims a public health
7 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, the board of directors of a
8 school district may authorize closure of the school district
9 or any school district attendance center due to an outbreak
10 of COVID-19 in the school district or any school district
11 attendance center. School districts are encouraged to follow
12 guidelines issued by the centers for disease control and
13 prevention of the United States department of health and human
14 services and may consult with the local board of health when
15 determining social distancing measures or authorizing a school
16 closure.

17 Sec. ___. INSTRUCTIONAL TIME PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOL
18 DISTRICTS AND ACCREDITED NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR THE 2020-2021
19 SCHOOL YEAR.

20 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
21 contrary, the instructional time requirements of section
22 279.10, subsection 1, and the minimum school day requirements
23 of section 256.7, subsection 19, shall not be waived any time
24 during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
25 30, 2021, for school closure due to the COVID-19 pandemic
26 unless the school district or the authorities in charge of the

27 accredited nonpublic school, as appropriate, provide compulsory
 28 remote learning, including online learning, electronic
 29 learning, distance learning, or virtual learning.
 30 2. If the board of directors of a school district or
 31 the authorities in charge of an accredited nonpublic school
 32 determines any time during the school year beginning July
 33 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, that a remote-learning
 34 period is necessary, the school board or the authorities, as
 35 appropriate, shall ensure that teachers and other necessary

PAGE 7

1 school staff are available during the remote-learning period to
 2 support students, to participate in professional development
 3 opportunities, and to perform other job-related functions
 4 during the regular, required contract hours, even if the
 5 accessibility to or by the teachers and other necessary school
 6 staff is offered remotely through electronic means.
 7 Sec. ____ TRUANCY REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL
 8 YEAR. In addition to the provisions of chapter 299, a
 9 child who is enrolled in a school district or accredited
 10 nonpublic school but who does not participate in compulsory
 11 remote-learning opportunities, including online learning,
 12 electronic learning, distance learning, or virtual learning,
 13 offered by the school district or accredited nonpublic school
 14 of enrollment during a period of school closure implemented any
 15 time during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 16 June 30, 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic shall be considered
 17 truant. This section is not applicable to a child who was
 18 receiving competent private instruction or independent private
 19 instruction in accordance with the requirements of chapter
 20 299A, whose parent, guardian, or legal custodian notified the
 21 school district prior to July 1, 2019. Any child who was
 22 enrolled in a public school or accredited nonpublic school
 23 prior to July 1, 2019, may be subject to the provisions of
 24 chapter 299 if the child's parent, guardian, or legal custodian
 25 did not, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, complete
 26 and send the report required under section 299.4 to the school
 27 district of residence of the child in a timely manner.
 28 Sec. ____ TEACHER ENDORSEMENT WAIVER FOR THE 2020-2021
 29 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 30 ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding any provision to the
 31 contrary, if a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 32 has made every reasonable and good-faith effort to employ a
 33 teacher licensed under chapter 272 who holds an endorsement for
 34 a specified grade level or subject area and is unable to employ
 35 a teacher with the appropriate endorsement, and the school

PAGE 8

1 district or accredited nonpublic school is also unable to
 2 develop, or use a private provider to provide, an online course

3 that meets the requirements of chapter 256, the director of
 4 the department of education may waive the teacher-endorsement
 5 requirements for the specified grade level or subject area for
 6 the school district or accredited nonpublic school, and the
 7 provisions of section 256.9, subsection 48, and section 272.15,
 8 subsection 4, shall not apply.

9 Sec. ____ MISCELLANEOUS POLICY PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOLS
 10 FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. The following provisions are
 11 applicable for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 12 ending June 30, 2021:

13 1. SOCIAL DISTANCING. In implementing social distancing
 14 policies, the board of directors of each school district and
 15 the authorities in charge of each accredited nonpublic school
 16 shall prioritize core academic subjects.

17 2. STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS. The provisions of section 256.7,
 18 subsection 21, paragraph “b”, relating to the administration
 19 of statewide summative assessment of student progress, and the
 20 assessments administered in accordance with sections 279.60
 21 and 279.68, shall not be waived, and such assessments shall be
 22 administered to students as required by those sections.

23 3. CPR CERTIFICATION — EXCEPTION FOR GRADUATION. If a
 24 school district or accredited nonpublic school closes on the
 25 advice of a local board of health, the department of public
 26 health, or because the governor proclaims a public health
 27 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, a student who meets the
 28 graduation requirements of section 256.7, subsection 26,
 29 paragraph “a”, the requirements of section 280.9A, and the
 30 school district’s or accredited nonpublic school’s graduation
 31 requirements may graduate without meeting the cardiopulmonary
 32 resuscitation certification requirements of section 256.11,
 33 section 6, paragraph “c”.

34 4. NOTIFICATION OF SIGNIFICANT HEALTH CONDITION —
 35 COMPULSORY REMOTE LEARNING. If a parent or guardian of a

PAGE 9

1 student enrolled in a school district or accredited nonpublic
 2 school notifies the school district or accredited nonpublic
 3 school in writing that the student, another resident of the
 4 student’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the student
 5 has a significant health condition that increases the risk of
 6 COVID-19, the school district or accredited nonpublic school
 7 shall make reasonable accommodations for the student, on a
 8 case-by-case basis, to attend school through remote learning.
 9 The provision of special education and accommodations for
 10 students who have individualized education programs or
 11 section 504 plans in compliance with the requirements of
 12 section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 29 U.S.C. §794, and
 13 with Tit. II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42
 14 U.S.C. §12131–12165, will be determined by each respective
 15 individualized education program team or section 504 team.
 16 The notification shall include the name of the person with

17 the health condition, specify the person's health condition,
 18 include written verification of the health condition from the
 19 person's physician or licensed health care provider and, for
 20 persons other than the student, whether the person with the
 21 health condition is a resident of the student's residence
 22 or the student's regular caretaker. A school district or
 23 an accredited nonpublic school may collaborate with an area
 24 education agency or another school district or accredited
 25 nonpublic school to provide remote learning opportunities to a
 26 student who meets the requirements of this section.
 27 5. Notwithstanding section 256.7, subsection 32; section
 28 256.9, subsection 55; section 256.43; or any other provision to
 29 the contrary, a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 30 may provide instruction primarily over the internet if such
 31 instruction is provided in accordance with a return-to-learn
 32 plan submitted by the school district or school to the
 33 department of education in response to a proclamation of a
 34 public health disaster emergency, issued by the governor
 35 pursuant to section 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, without

PAGE 10

1 regard to whether the school or school district is approved to
 2 provide instruction primarily over the internet. Instruction
 3 provided pursuant to this section shall be provided by teachers
 4 licensed pursuant to chapter 272 and shall assure and maintain
 5 evidence of alignment of the courses with the Iowa core and
 6 core content requirements and standards.>
 7 _____. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 8 <An Act relating to educational instructional requirements and
 9 funding flexibility.>>
 10 2. By renumbering as necessary.

MOORE of Cass

H-8247

1 Amend the amendment, H-8240, to Senate File 2310, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking page 1, line 3, through page 9, line 20, and
 4 inserting:
 5 <____. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 6 DIVISION I
 7 ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM AND COURSEWORK REQUIREMENTS>
 8 _____. Page 2, line 4, by striking <a.>
 9 _____. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 28.
 10 _____. Page 2, line 31, by striking <The provisions of
 11 subsection 5> and inserting:
 12 <(1) The offer and teach requirements of subsection 5,
 13 paragraphs "a" through "e" and "g" through "j";>
 14 _____. Page 2, line 35, by striking <(1)> and inserting <(a)>
 15 _____. Page 3, line 4, by striking <(2)> and inserting <(b)>

- 16 ____ Page 3, after line 6 by inserting:
 17 <(2) Notwithstanding subparagraph (1), unnumbered paragraph
 18 1, if either subparagraph (1), subparagraph division (a) or
 19 (b), apply, a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 20 may exceed the limitation specified in subparagraph (1),
 21 unnumbered paragraph 1, to provide world language, personal
 22 finance literacy, and computer science coursework online
 23 in accordance with paragraph “c” and the offer and teach
 24 requirements of subsection 5, paragraphs “j” and “k”, and any
 25 such requirement as may be established under subsection 5 for
 26 computer science, shall not apply.>
 27 ____ Page 3, line 7, after <may> by inserting <at the
 28 discretion of the department>
 29 ____ Page 3, line 8, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
 30 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
 31 ____ Page 3, line 12, by striking <the requirements of
 32 subsection 5> and inserting <such requirements>
 33 ____ Page 3, line 15, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
 34 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
 35 ____ Page 3, line 20, by striking <(1) or (2)> and inserting

PAGE 2

- 1 <(1), (2), or (3)>
 2 ____ Page 3, line 27, by striking <either> and inserting
 3 <any>
 4 ____ Page 4, after line 6 by inserting:
 5 <(3) An online learning platform offered, subject to the
 6 initial availability of federal funds, by the department in
 7 collaboration with one or more area education agencies or in
 8 partnership with school districts and accredited nonpublic
 9 schools. The online learning platform may deliver distance
 10 education to secondary students, including students receiving
 11 independent private instruction as defined in section 299A.1,
 12 subsection 2, paragraph “b”, competent private instruction
 13 under section 299A.2, or private instruction by a nonlicensed
 14 person under section 299A.3, provided the coursework offered
 15 by the online learning platform is taught and supervised by
 16 a teacher licensed under chapter 272 who has online learning
 17 experience and the course content meets the requirements
 18 established by rule pursuant to section 256.7, subsection 32,
 19 paragraph “c”. The department and the area education agencies
 20 operating online learning programs pursuant to section 273.16
 21 shall coordinate to ensure the most effective use of resources
 22 and delivery of services. Federal funds, if available, may
 23 be used to offset what would otherwise be costs to school
 24 districts for participation in the program.>
 25 ____ Page 4, by striking line 11 and inserting:
 26 <c. Private providers utilized to provide courses by Courses
 27 provided by private providers to a school>
 28 ____ Page 5, after line 25 by inserting:
 29 <Sec. ____ Section 279.10, Code 2020, is amended by adding

30 the following new subsection:

31 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 3. *a.* For the school year beginning July
 32 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, any instruction provided in
 33 accordance with a return-to-learn plan submitted by a school
 34 district or accredited nonpublic school to the department of
 35 education in response to a proclamation of a public health

PAGE 3

1 disaster emergency, issued by the governor pursuant to section
 2 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, shall be deemed to meet the
 3 requirements of subsection 1, regardless of the nature,
 4 location, or medium of instruction if the return-to-learn plan
 5 contains the minimum number of days or hours as required by
 6 subsection 1.

7 *b.* This subsection is repealed on July 1, 2021.>

8 _____. Page 5, after line 26 by inserting:

9 <DIVISION ____

10 **TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR USE OF CERTAIN MONEYS BY SCHOOL**
 11 **DISTRICTS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME**

12 **Sec. ____.** **PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT MONEYS AND HOURS**
 13 **REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME FOR THE**
 14 **2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR.** Notwithstanding section 257.10,
 15 subsection 10, and the professional development requirements
 16 of chapter 284, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020,
 17 and ending June 30, 2021, the moneys calculated and paid to
 18 the school district for professional development pursuant to
 19 section 257.10, subsection 10, or section 257.37A, subsection
 20 2, to provide thirty-six hours of professional development
 21 opportunities held outside of the minimum school day, may
 22 instead be used by a school district to provide instructional
 23 time to the school calendar in addition to the amount of
 24 instructional time required under section 279.10, subsection 1,
 25 and the thirty-six-hour professional development requirement
 26 of chapter 284 shall be reduced by such number of hours of
 27 additional instructional time.

28 **Sec. ____.** **DISTRICT MANAGEMENT LEVY FUND — PERMISSIBLE USES**
 29 **BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.**

30 1. For the school budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 31 ending June 30, 2021, unencumbered moneys remaining in the
 32 district management levy fund under section 298A.3 at the
 33 end of the budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 34 June 30, 2020, and the taxes certified for levy before the
 35 effective date of this Act under section 298.4 and deposited in

PAGE 4

1 the district management levy fund for the school budget year
 2 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, in addition
 3 to the purposes authorized under section 298.4, may be expended
 4 by a school district to provide additional instructional time
 5 to the school calendar in excess of the amount of instructional

6 time required under section 279.10, subsection 1, during the
7 school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
8 2. The board of directors of a school district,
9 notwithstanding the budget amendment requirements of chapters
10 24 and 257, may authorize the expenditure of specified district
11 management levy funds for purposes specified in subsection 1
12 by resolution of the board specifying the amount to be used
13 and the purposes from which the funds will be reallocated, if
14 the resolution of the board is approved and filed with the
15 department of education on or before June 30, 2021.

16 DIVISION ____

17 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR CERTAIN EDUCATIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL AND
18 POLICY REQUIREMENTS

19 Sec. ____. OPEN ENROLLMENT — EXTENSION OF NOTIFICATION
20 DEADLINE FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding
21 section 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, for the school
22 year commencing July 1, 2020, a parent or guardian shall have
23 until July 15, 2020, to notify to the district of residence and
24 the receiving district, on forms prescribed by the department
25 of education, that the parent or guardian intends to enroll
26 the parent’s or guardian’s child in an online public school
27 in another school district, if the child, another resident of
28 the child’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the child
29 has a significant health condition that increases the risk
30 of COVID-19. The notification shall include the name of the
31 person with the health condition, specify the person’s health
32 condition, include written verification of the health condition
33 from the person’s physician or licensed health care provider
34 and, for persons other than the child, whether the person with
35 the health condition is a resident of the child’s residence

PAGE 5

1 or the child’s regular caretaker. Section 282.18, subsection
2 3, shall not apply to a notification submitted in accordance
3 with this section. Notwithstanding section 282.18, subsection
4 2, paragraph “b”, the superintendent of the receiving school
5 district is authorized to approve a notification received
6 under this section. Within fourteen days of receipt of such
7 notification, the superintendent shall notify the parent or
8 guardian and the school district of residence that the request
9 has been approved or denied. If the notification has been
10 denied or if further review is required, the superintendent
11 shall provide the parent or guardian with an explanation of
12 the approval process and expected timeline for the review. A
13 decision to deny a request submitted under this section is
14 subject to appeal under section 290.1. The state board shall
15 exercise broad discretion to achieve just and equitable results
16 that are in the best interest of the affected child. This
17 section is not intended to extend the provisions of section
18 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, for enrollment in a
19 physical school district.

20 Sec. ____ SCHOOL DISTRICT DUTIES RELATING TO PRIVATE
21 INSTRUCTION AND AN ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM FOR THE 2020-2021
22 SCHOOL YEAR.

23 For the school year commencing July 1, 2020, all of the
24 following shall apply:

25 1. Each school district shall provide to children receiving
26 competent private instruction available texts or supplementary
27 materials on the same basis as they are provided to enrolled
28 students and shall provide available texts or supplemental
29 instructional materials on the same basis as they are provided
30 to enrolled students when a child is under dual enrollment or
31 in a home school assistance program.

32 2. Each school district shall offer an assistance program
33 for parents, guardians, or legal or actual custodians providing
34 competent private instruction to a child of compulsory
35 attendance age.

PAGE 6

1 Sec. ____ SCHOOL DISTRICT CLOSURES DURING THE 2020-2021
2 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
3 ending June 30, 2021, if the governor proclaims a public health
4 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, the board of directors of a
5 school district may authorize closure of the school district
6 or any school district attendance center due to an outbreak
7 of COVID-19 in the school district or any school district
8 attendance center. School districts are encouraged to follow
9 guidelines issued by the centers for disease control and
10 prevention of the United States department of health and human
11 services and may consult with the local board of health when
12 determining social distancing measures or authorizing a school
13 closure.

14 Sec. ____ INSTRUCTIONAL TIME PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOL
15 DISTRICTS AND ACCREDITED NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR THE 2020-2021
16 SCHOOL YEAR.

17 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
18 contrary, the instructional time requirements of section
19 279.10, subsection 1, and the minimum school day requirements
20 of section 256.7, subsection 19, shall not be waived any time
21 during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
22 30, 2021, for school closure due to the COVID-19 pandemic
23 unless the school district or the authorities in charge of the
24 accredited nonpublic school, as appropriate, provide compulsory
25 remote learning, including online learning, electronic
26 learning, distance learning, or virtual learning.

27 2. If the board of directors of a school district or
28 the authorities in charge of an accredited nonpublic school
29 determines any time during the school year beginning July
30 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, that a remote-learning
31 period is necessary, the school board or the authorities, as
32 appropriate, shall ensure that teachers and other necessary
33 school staff are available during the remote-learning period to

34 support students, to participate in professional development
35 opportunities, and to perform other job-related functions

PAGE 7

1 during the regular, required contract hours, even if the
2 accessibility to or by the teachers and other necessary school
3 staff is offered remotely through electronic means.
4 Sec. ____ TRUANCY REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL
5 YEAR. In addition to the provisions of chapter 299, a
6 child who is enrolled in a school district or accredited
7 nonpublic school but who does not participate in compulsory
8 remote-learning opportunities, including online learning,
9 electronic learning, distance learning, or virtual learning,
10 offered by the school district or accredited nonpublic school
11 of enrollment during a period of school closure implemented any
12 time during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
13 June 30, 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic shall be considered
14 truant. This section is not applicable to a child who was
15 receiving competent private instruction or independent private
16 instruction in accordance with the requirements of chapter
17 299A, whose parent, guardian, or legal custodian notified the
18 school district prior to July 1, 2019. Any child who was
19 enrolled in a public school or accredited nonpublic school
20 prior to July 1, 2019, may be subject to the provisions of
21 chapter 299 if the child's parent, guardian, or legal custodian
22 did not, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, complete
23 and send the report required under section 299.4 to the school
24 district of residence of the child in a timely manner.
25 Sec. ____ TEACHER ENDORSEMENT WAIVER FOR THE 2020-2021
26 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
27 ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding any provision to the
28 contrary, if a school district or accredited nonpublic school
29 has made every reasonable and good-faith effort to employ a
30 teacher licensed under chapter 272 who holds an endorsement for
31 a specified grade level or subject area and is unable to employ
32 a teacher with the appropriate endorsement, and the school
33 district or accredited nonpublic school is also unable to
34 develop, or use a private provider to provide, an online course
35 that meets the requirements of chapter 256, the director of

PAGE 8

1 the department of education may waive the teacher-endorsement
2 requirements for the specified grade level or subject area for
3 the school district or accredited nonpublic school, and the
4 provisions of section 256.9, subsection 48, and section 272.15,
5 subsection 4, shall not apply.
6 Sec. ____ MISCELLANEOUS POLICY PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOLS
7 FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. The following provisions are
8 applicable for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
9 ending June 30, 2021:

10 1. SOCIAL DISTANCING. In implementing social distancing
 11 policies, the board of directors of each school district and
 12 the authorities in charge of each accredited nonpublic school
 13 shall prioritize core academic subjects.

14 2. STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS. The provisions of section 256.7,
 15 subsection 21, paragraph “b”, relating to the administration
 16 of statewide summative assessment of student progress, and the
 17 assessments administered in accordance with sections 279.60
 18 and 279.68, shall not be waived, and such assessments shall be
 19 administered to students as required by those sections.

20 3. CPR CERTIFICATION — EXCEPTION FOR GRADUATION. If a
 21 school district or accredited nonpublic school closes on the
 22 advice of a local board of health, the department of public
 23 health, or because the governor proclaims a public health
 24 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, a student who meets the
 25 graduation requirements of section 256.7, subsection 26,
 26 paragraph “a”, the requirements of section 280.9A, and the
 27 school district’s or accredited nonpublic school’s graduation
 28 requirements may graduate without meeting the cardiopulmonary
 29 resuscitation certification requirements of section 256.11,
 30 section 6, paragraph “c”.

31 4. NOTIFICATION OF SIGNIFICANT HEALTH CONDITION —
 32 COMPULSORY REMOTE LEARNING. If a parent or guardian of a
 33 student enrolled in a school district or accredited nonpublic
 34 school notifies the school district or accredited nonpublic
 35 school in writing that the student, another resident of the

PAGE 9

1 student’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the student
 2 has a significant health condition that increases the risk of
 3 COVID-19, the school district or accredited nonpublic school
 4 shall make reasonable accommodations for the student, on a
 5 case-by-case basis, to attend school through remote learning.
 6 The provision of special education and accommodations for
 7 students who have individualized education programs or
 8 section 504 plans in compliance with the requirements of
 9 section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 29 U.S.C. §794, and
 10 with Tit. II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42
 11 U.S.C. §12131–12165, will be determined by each respective
 12 individualized education program team or section 504 team.
 13 The notification shall include the name of the person with
 14 the health condition, specify the person’s health condition,
 15 include written verification of the health condition from the
 16 person’s physician or licensed health care provider and, for
 17 persons other than the student, whether the person with the
 18 health condition is a resident of the student’s residence
 19 or the student’s regular caretaker. A school district or
 20 an accredited nonpublic school may collaborate with an area
 21 education agency or another school district or accredited
 22 nonpublic school to provide remote learning opportunities to a
 23 student who meets the requirements of this section.

24 5. Notwithstanding section 256.7, subsection 32; section
 25 256.9, subsection 55; section 256.43; or any other provision to
 26 the contrary, a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 27 may provide instruction primarily over the internet if such
 28 instruction is provided in accordance with a return-to-learn
 29 plan submitted by the school district or school to the
 30 department of education in response to a proclamation of a
 31 public health disaster emergency, issued by the governor
 32 pursuant to section 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, without
 33 regard to whether the school or school district is approved to
 34 provide instruction primarily over the internet. Instruction
 35 provided pursuant to this section shall be provided by teachers

PAGE 10

1 licensed pursuant to chapter 272 and shall assure and maintain
 2 evidence of alignment of the courses with the Iowa core and
 3 core content requirements and standards.>
 4 _____. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 5 <An Act relating to educational instructional requirements and
 6 funding flexibility.>>
 7 2. By renumbering as necessary.

MOORE of Cass

H-8248

1 Amend Senate File 457, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:
 5 <DIVISION I
 6 SURCHARGES ADDED TO CRIMINAL PENALTIES AND DISTRIBUTION OF
 7 SURCHARGE MONEYS
 8 Section 1. Section 331.301, subsection 16, Code 2020, is
 9 amended by striking the subsection.
 10 Sec. 2. Section 331.302, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 11 to read as follows:
 12 2. For a violation of an ordinance a county shall not
 13 provide a penalty in excess of the maximum fine and term of
 14 imprisonment for a simple misdemeanor under section 903.1,
 15 subsection 1, paragraph "a". The ~~criminal penalty crime~~
 16 services surcharge required by section 911.1 shall be added to
 17 a county fine and is not a part of the county's penalty.
 18 Sec. 3. Section 356.7, subsection 5, paragraph a, Code 2020,
 19 is amended to read as follows:
 20 a. Of the moneys collected and credited to the county
 21 general fund as provided in this section and section 602.8106,
 22 subsection 4, paragraph "b", subparagraph (2), sixty percent of
 23 the moneys collected shall be used for the following purposes:
 24 (1) Courthouse security equipment and law enforcement
 25 personnel costs.

26 (2) Infrastructure improvements of a jail, including new or
 27 remodeling costs.
 28 (3) Infrastructure improvements of juvenile detention
 29 facilities, including new or remodeling costs.
 30 (4) Medical and prescription drug costs of inmates in jail.
 31 Sec. 4. Section 364.3, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 32 to read as follows:
 33 2. For a violation of an ordinance a city shall not
 34 provide a penalty in excess of the maximum fine and term of
 35 imprisonment for a simple misdemeanor under section 903.1,

PAGE 2

1 subsection 1, paragraph "a". An amount equal to ~~ten~~ twenty
 2 percent of all fines collected by cities shall be deposited
 3 in the account established in section 602.8108. However, one
 4 hundred percent of all fines collected by a city pursuant to
 5 section 321.236, subsection 1, shall be retained by the city.
 6 ~~The criminal penalty crime services~~ crime services surcharge required by
 7 section 911.1 shall be added to a city fine and is not a part
 8 of the city's penalty.
 9 Sec. 5. Section 602.8102, subsection 135A, Code 2020, is
 10 amended to read as follows:
 11 135A. Assess the surcharges provided by sections 911.1,
 12 ~~911.2, 911.2A, 911.2B, 911.2C, 911.3, and 911.4 and 911.5.~~
 13 Sec. 6. Section 602.8106, subsection 1, paragraphs d and e,
 14 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 15 d. For court costs in scheduled violation cases where a
 16 court appearance is required, ~~sixty~~ fifty-five dollars.
 17 e. For court costs in scheduled violation cases where a
 18 court appearance is not required, ~~sixty~~ fifty-five dollars.
 19 Sec. 7. Section 602.8106, subsections 2, 3, and 4, Code
 20 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 21 2. The clerk of the district court shall remit ~~ninety~~ eighty
 22 percent of all fines and forfeited bail to the city that was
 23 the plaintiff in any action, and shall provide that city with a
 24 statement showing the total number of cases, the total of all
 25 fines and forfeited bail collected, and the total of all cases
 26 dismissed. The remaining ~~ten~~ twenty percent shall be submitted
 27 to the state court administrator.
 28 3. The clerk of the district court shall remit all fines
 29 and forfeited bail for violation of a county ordinance, ~~except~~
 30 ~~an ordinance relating to vehicle speed or weight restrictions,~~
 31 to the county treasurer of the county that was the plaintiff
 32 in the action, and shall provide that county with a statement
 33 showing the total number of cases, the total of all fines and
 34 forfeited bail collected, and the total of all cases dismissed,
 35 except all fines and forfeited bail for violation of a county

PAGE 3

1 ordinance relating to vehicle speed or weight restrictions

2 shall be distributed pursuant to subsection 4, paragraph
 3 "b". However, if ~~If~~ a county ordinance provides a penalty
 4 for a violation which is also penalized under state law, the
 5 fines and forfeited bail collected for the violation shall be
 6 ~~submitted to the state court administrator~~ distributed pursuant
 7 to subsection 4, paragraph "b".

8 4. a. ~~The Except as provided in paragraph "b",~~ the clerk of
 9 the district court shall submit all other fines, fees, costs,
 10 and forfeited bail received from a magistrate to the state
 11 court administrator.

12 b. ~~The fine amount for a violation that occurred within the~~
 13 boundaries of the county shall be distributed as follows:

14 (1) Ninety-one percent to the state court administrator.
 15 (2) Nine percent to the county treasurer for deposit in the
 16 county general fund where the violation occurred.

17 Sec. 8. Section 602.8107, subsection 2, paragraph c,
 18 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

19 (2) ~~Fines or penalties and eriminal penalty and law~~
 20 ~~enforcement initiative surcharges~~ the crime services surcharge.

21 Sec. 9. Section 602.8107, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
 22 2020, is amended to read as follows:

23 a. This subsection does not apply to amounts collected
 24 for victim restitution, the victim compensation fund, the
 25 ~~eriminal penalty crime services~~ crime services surcharge, sex offender civil
 26 penalty, ~~drug abuse resistance education surcharge, the law~~
 27 ~~enforcement initiative surcharge, county enforcement surcharge,~~
 28 agricultural theft surcharge, amounts collected as a result
 29 of procedures initiated under subsection 5 or under section
 30 8A.504, or fees charged pursuant to section 356.7.

31 Sec. 10. Section 602.8108, subsections 3 and 7, Code 2020,
 32 are amended to read as follows:

33 3. The clerk of the district court shall remit to the state
 34 court administrator, not later than the fifteenth day of each
 35 month, ~~ninety-five percent of~~ all moneys collected from the

PAGE 4

1 ~~eriminal penalty~~ surcharge provided in section 911.1 during the
 2 preceding calendar month. ~~The clerk shall remit the remainder~~
 3 ~~to the county treasurer of the county that was the plaintiff~~
 4 ~~in the action or to the city that was the plaintiff in the~~
 5 ~~action. Of the amount received from the clerk, the state~~
 6 ~~court administrator shall allocate seventeen and deposit each~~
 7 month forty-six percent in the juvenile detention home fund
 8 in section 232.142, thirty-two percent to be deposited in the
 9 victim compensation fund established in section 915.94, and
 10 eighty-three percent to be deposited in the general fund twenty
 11 percent in the criminalistics laboratory fund established in
 12 section 691.9, and two percent in the drug abuse resistance
 13 education fund established in section 80E.4.

14 7. The clerk of the district court shall remit all moneys
 15 collected from the assessment of the ~~surcharges~~ surcharge

16 provided in ~~sections section~~ 911.2B and 911.2C to the state
 17 court administrator for deposit in the address confidentiality
 18 program revolving fund created in section 9.8.

19 Sec. 11. Section 602.8108, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 20 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
 21 thereof the following:

22 4. The clerk of the district court shall remit to the
 23 state court administrator, not later than the fifteenth day of
 24 each month, ninety-one percent of all moneys collected from
 25 county enforcement as provided section 602.8106, subsection 4,
 26 paragraph "b", subparagraph (1), during the preceding calendar
 27 month. Of the amount received from the clerk, the state court
 28 administrator shall allocate and deposit one and three-tenths
 29 percent in the emergency medical services fund in section
 30 135.25, and shall allocate and deposit the remainder in the
 31 general fund of the state.

32 Sec. 12. Section 602.8108, subsections 5 and 8, Code 2020,
 33 are amended by striking the subsections.

34 Sec. 13. Section 602.8108, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 35 the following new subsection:

PAGE 5

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. The clerk of the district court
 2 shall remit all moneys collected from the agricultural
 3 theft surcharge provided in section 911.5 to the state court
 4 administrator no later than the fifteenth day of each month for
 5 deposit in the general fund of the state.

6 Sec. 14. Section 805.8, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 7 to read as follows:

8 1. *Application.* Except as otherwise indicated, violations
 9 of sections of the Code specified in sections 805.8A, 805.8B,
 10 and 805.8C are scheduled violations, and the scheduled fine
 11 for each of those violations is as provided in those sections,
 12 whether the violation is of state law or of a county or city
 13 ordinance. The ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge
 14 required by section 911.1 and the ~~county enforcement surcharge~~
 15 ~~required by section 911.4, if applicable,~~ shall be added to the
 16 scheduled fine.

17 Sec. 15. Section 902.9, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 18 to read as follows:

19 2. The surcharges required by sections 911.1, ~~911.2,~~
 20 911.2A, and ~~911.3~~ 911.5 shall be added to a fine imposed on a
 21 class "C" or class "D" felon, as provided by those sections,
 22 and are not a part of or subject to the maximums set in this
 23 section.

24 Sec. 16. Section 903.1, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
 25 to read as follows:

26 4. The surcharges required by sections 911.1, ~~911.2,~~
 27 911.2A, ~~911.3,~~ and ~~911.4~~ and 911.5 shall be added to a fine
 28 imposed on a misdemeanor as provided in those sections,
 29 and are not a part of or subject to the maximums set in this

30 section.

31 Sec. 17. Section 911.1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
32 follows:

33 **911.1 Criminal penalty Crime services surcharge.**

34 1. A ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge shall be
35 levied against law violators as provided in this section.

PAGE 6

1 When a court imposes a fine or forfeiture for a violation of
2 state law, or a city or county ordinance, except an ordinance
3 regulating the parking of motor vehicles, the court ~~or the~~
4 ~~clerk of the district court~~ shall assess an additional penalty
5 in the form of a ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge
6 equal to ~~thirty-five~~ fifteen percent of the fine or forfeiture
7 imposed.

8 2. In the event of multiple offenses, the surcharge shall
9 be based upon the total amount of fines or forfeitures imposed
10 for all offenses.

11 3. When a fine or forfeiture is suspended in whole or in
12 part, the court shall reduce the surcharge in proportion to the
13 amount suspended.

14 4. The surcharge is subject to the provisions of chapter
15 909 governing the payment and collection of fines, as provided
16 in section 909.8.

17 5. The surcharge shall be remitted by the clerk of court as
18 provided in section 602.8108, subsection 3.

19 Sec. 18. Section 911.2A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
20 to read as follows:

21 1. In addition to any other surcharge, the court ~~or clerk~~
22 ~~of the district court~~ shall assess a human trafficking victim
23 surcharge of one thousand dollars if an adjudication of
24 guilt or a deferred judgment has been entered for a criminal
25 violation of section 725.1, subsection 2, or section 710A.2,
26 725.2, or 725.3.

27 Sec. 19. Section 911.2B, Code 2020, is amended to read as
28 follows:

29 **911.2B Domestic ~~abuse assault, or sexual abuse, stalking, and~~
30 ~~human trafficking victim related crimes surcharge.~~**

31 1. In addition to any other surcharge, the court ~~or clerk~~
32 ~~of the district court~~ shall assess a domestic abuse assault,
33 domestic abuse protective order contempt, sexual abuse,
34 stalking, and human trafficking victim surcharge of ~~one hundred~~
35 ninety dollars if an adjudication of guilt or a deferred

PAGE 7

1 judgment has been entered for a violation of section 708.2A,
2 708.11, or 710A.2, or chapter 709, or if a defendant is held
3 in contempt of court for violating a domestic abuse protective
4 order issued pursuant to chapter 236.

5 2. In the event of multiple offenses, the surcharge shall be

- 6 imposed for each applicable offense.
- 7 3. The surcharge shall be remitted by the clerk of court as
8 provided in section 602.8108, subsection 7.
- 9 **Sec. 20. NEW SECTION. 911.5 Agricultural theft surcharge.**
- 10 1. In addition to any other surcharge, the court or clerk of
11 the district court shall assess an agricultural theft surcharge
12 equal to five hundred dollars, if an adjudication of guilt or
13 a deferred judgment has been entered for a criminal violation
14 involving any of the following:
- 15 a. Theft of agricultural property under section 714.2,
16 subsection 1, 2, or 3.
- 17 b. Criminal mischief under section 716.3, 716.4, or 716.5,
18 by damaging, defacing, altering, or destroying agricultural
19 property.
- 20 2. As used in this section, agricultural property means any
21 of the following:
- 22 a. A crop as defined in section 717A.1.
- 23 b. Livestock as defined in section 717.1.
- 24 c. (1) A colony or package as defined in section 160.1A,
25 or a hive where bees are kept as described in section 160.5,
26 if the department of agriculture and land stewardship is
27 authorized by that chapter to inspect the colony, package, or
28 hive or to regulate the movement of the colony, package, or
29 hive.
- 30 (2) A queen bee that is part of a colony or is being moved
31 to be part of a colony as described in subparagraph (1).
- 32 3. The surcharge shall be remitted by the clerk of the
33 district court as provided in section 602.8108, subsection 13.
- 34 **Sec. 21. REPEAL.** Sections 911.2, 911.2C, 911.3, and 911.4,
35 Code 2020, are repealed.

PAGE 8

- 1 **DIVISION II**
- 2 **COURT FUNDS**
- 3 **Sec. 22.** Section 602.1302, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
4 amended to read as follows:
- 5 1. Except as otherwise provided by sections 602.1303,
6 ~~602.1304~~, and 602.8108 or other applicable law, the expenses of
7 operating and maintaining the judicial branch shall be paid out
8 of the general fund of the state from funds appropriated by the
9 general assembly for the judicial branch. State funding shall
10 be phased in as provided in section 602.11101.
- 11 **Sec. 23.** Section 602.1304, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
12 amended to read as follows:
- 13 1. Except as provided in article 8 ~~and subsection 2 of this~~
14 ~~section~~, all fees and other revenues collected by judicial
15 officers and court employees shall be paid into the general
16 fund of the state.
- 17 **Sec. 24.** Section 602.1304, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
18 amended by striking the subsection.
- 19 **Sec. 25.** Section 602.8108, subsection 9, Code 2020, is

20 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
21 thereof the following:
22 9. *a.* A court technology and modernization fund is
23 established as a separate fund in the state treasury. The
24 state court administrator shall allocate seven million dollars
25 of the moneys received under subsection 2 to be deposited in
26 the fund, which shall be administered by the judicial branch.
27 *b.* The moneys in the fund shall be used to enhance the
28 ability of the judicial branch to process cases more quickly
29 and efficiently, to electronically transmit information to
30 state government, local governments, law enforcement agencies,
31 and the public, and to improve public access to the court
32 system. The moneys in the collection fund may also be used for
33 any the following:
34 (1) The Iowa court information system.
35 (2) Records management, equipment, services, and projects.

PAGE 9

1 (3) Other technological improvements approved by the
2 judicial branch.
3 (4) Electronic legal research equipment, systems, and
4 projects.
5 (5) The study, development, and implementation of other
6 innovations and projects that would improve the administration
7 of justice.
8 (6) Capital improvements necessitated by the installation
9 of or connection with the Iowa court information system, the
10 Iowa communications network, or other like networks.
11 *c.* The fund shall be separate from the general fund of
12 the state and the balance in the fund shall not be considered
13 part of the balance of the general fund of the state.
14 Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys in the fund shall not
15 revert to the general fund. Notwithstanding section 12C.7,
16 subsection 2, interest or earnings on moneys in the court
17 technology and modernization fund shall remain in the court
18 technology and modernization fund and any interest and earnings
19 shall be in addition to the maximum annual deposit amount.
20 Sec. 26. TRANSFER OF REMAINING FUNDS. Any unobligated
21 or unencumbered moneys remaining in the enhanced court
22 collections fund in section 602.1304 at the end of the fiscal
23 year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, shall be
24 transferred to the court technology and modernization fund.

DIVISION III

CIVIL FEES AND COURT COSTS

27 Sec. 27. Section 602.8105, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020,
28 are amended to read as follows:
29 1. The clerk of the district court shall collect the
30 following fees:
31 *a.* Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, for
32 filing and docketing a petition, one hundred ~~eighty-five~~
33 ninety-five dollars. In counties having a population of

34 ninety-eight thousand or over, an additional five dollars shall
 35 be charged and collected to be known as the journal publication

PAGE 10

1 fee and used for the purposes provided for in section 618.13.
 2 Ob. For filing and docketing a petition for dissolution
 3 of marriage, which includes the docketing of any dissolution
 4 decree, two hundred sixty-five dollars. It is the intent of
 5 the general assembly that twenty percent of the funds generated
 6 from these fees be appropriated and used for sexual assault
 7 and domestic violence centers and eighty percent of the funds
 8 generated from these fees be appropriated to the general fund
 9 of the state.
 10 b. For filing and docketing a petition pursuant to chapter
 11 598 other than a dissolution of marriage petition, one hundred
 12 ten dollars.
 13 c. For filing and docketing an application for modification
 14 of a dissolution decree to which a written stipulation is
 15 attached at the time of filing containing the agreement of the
 16 parties to the terms of modification, one hundred ten dollars.
 17 ~~d.~~ For entering a final decree of dissolution of marriage,
 18 ~~fifty~~ dollars. It is the intent of the general assembly that
 19 the funds generated from the dissolution fees be appropriated
 20 and used for sexual assault and domestic violence centers.
 21 ~~e.~~ d. For filing and docketing a petition for adoption
 22 pursuant to chapter 600, ~~one hundred zero~~ dollars. For
 23 multiple adoption petitions filed at the same time by the same
 24 petitioner under section 600.3, the filing fee and any court
 25 costs for any petition filed in addition to the first petition
 26 filed are waived.
 27 ~~f.~~ e. For filing and docketing a small claims action, the
 28 amounts specified in section 631.6.
 29 ~~g.~~ f. For an appeal from a judgment in small claims or for
 30 filing and docketing a writ of error, one hundred ~~eighty-five~~
 31 ninety-five dollars.
 32 ~~h.~~ g. For a motion to show cause in a civil case, ~~fifty~~
 33 sixty dollars.
 34 ~~i.~~ h. For filing and docketing a transcript of the judgment
 35 in a civil case, ~~fifty~~ sixty dollars.

PAGE 11

1 ~~j.~~ i. For filing a tribal judgment, one hundred ten
 2 dollars.
 3 2. The clerk of the district court shall collect the
 4 following fees for miscellaneous services:
 5 a. For filing and entering any other statutory lien, ~~fifty~~
 6 sixty dollars.
 7 b. For a certificate and seal, ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
 8 However, there shall be no charge for a certificate and seal to
 9 an application to procure a pension, bounty, or back pay for a

- 10 member of the armed services or other person.
- 11 c. For certifying a change in title of real estate, ~~fifty~~
- 12 ~~sixty~~ dollars.
- 13 d. For filing a praecipe to issue execution under chapter
- 14 626, ~~twenty-five~~ ~~thirty-five~~ dollars. The fee shall be
- 15 recoverable by the creditor from the debtor against whom the
- 16 execution is issued. A fee payable by a political subdivision
- 17 of the state under this paragraph shall be collected by the
- 18 clerk of the district court as provided in section 602.8109.
- 19 However, the fee shall be waived and shall not be collected
- 20 from a political subdivision of the state if a county attorney
- 21 or county attorney's designee is collecting a delinquent
- 22 judgment pursuant to section 602.8107, subsection 4.
- 23 e. For filing a praecipe to issue execution under chapter
- 24 654, ~~fifty~~ ~~sixty~~ dollars.
- 25 f. For filing a confession of judgment under chapter 676,
- 26 ~~fifty~~ ~~sixty~~ dollars if the judgment is five thousand dollars or
- 27 less, and one hundred ~~ten~~ dollars if the judgment exceeds five
- 28 thousand dollars.
- 29 g. For filing a lis pendens, ~~fifty~~ ~~sixty~~ dollars.
- 30 h. For applicable convictions under section 692A.110 prior
- 31 to July 1, 2009, a civil penalty of two hundred ~~ten~~ dollars,
- 32 and for applicable convictions under section 692A.110 on or
- 33 after July 1, 2009, a civil penalty of two hundred ~~fifty~~ ~~sixty~~
- 34 dollars.
- 35 i. Other fees provided by law.

PAGE 12

- 1 Sec. 28. Section 602.8106, subsection 1, paragraph d, Code
- 2 2020, is amended to read as follows:
- 3 d. For court costs in scheduled violation cases where a
- 4 court appearance is required, ~~sixty~~ ~~fifty-five~~ dollars.
- 5 Sec. 29. Section 631.6, subsection 1, paragraphs a and c,
- 6 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
- 7 a. Fees for filing and docketing shall be ~~eighty-five~~
- 8 ~~ninety-five~~ dollars.
- 9 c. Postage charged for the mailing of original notice shall
- 10 be ~~ten~~ ~~twenty~~ dollars.
- 11 DIVISION IV
- 12 SCHEDULED VIOLATIONS
- 13 Sec. 30. Section 321.24, subsection 12, Code 2020, is
- 14 amended to read as follows:
- 15 12. A person who violates this section commits a simple
- 16 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
- 17 805.8A, subsection 2, paragraph "b".
- 18 Sec. 31. Section 321.260, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
- 19 amended to read as follows:
- 20 2. It shall be unlawful for any person to have in the
- 21 person's possession any official traffic-control device
- 22 except by legal right or authority. Any person convicted
- 23 of unauthorized possession of any official traffic-control

24 device shall upon conviction be guilty of a simple misdemeanor
 25 punishable as a scheduled violation under section 805.8A,
 26 subsection 8, paragraph "c". In addition to any other
 27 penalties, the punishment imposed for a violation of this
 28 subsection shall include assessment of a fine of not less than
 29 two hundred fifty dollars.

30 Sec. 32. Section 321.262, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 31 amended to read as follows:

32 2. The driver shall remain at the scene of the accident
 33 until the driver has fulfilled the requirements of section
 34 321.263. Any person failing to remain at the scene of the
 35 accident or fulfill the requirements of section 321.263 under

PAGE 13

1 such circumstances shall be guilty of a simple misdemeanor
 2 and punished as provided in section 321.482 punishable as
 3 a scheduled violation under section 805.8A, subsection 14,
 4 paragraph "m".

5 Sec. 33. Section 321.264, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 6 follows:

7 **321.264 Striking unattended vehicle.**

8 The driver of any vehicle which collides with any vehicle
 9 which is unattended shall immediately stop and shall then and
 10 there either locate and notify the operator or owner of such
 11 vehicle of the name and address of the driver and owner of the
 12 vehicle striking the unattended vehicle or shall leave in a
 13 conspicuous place in the vehicle struck a written notice giving
 14 the name and address of the driver and of the owner of the
 15 vehicle doing the striking and a statement of the circumstances
 16 thereof. A person who violates this section commits a simple
 17 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
 18 805.8A, subsection 14, paragraph "n".

19 Sec. 34. Section 321.265, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 20 follows:

21 **321.265 Striking fixtures upon a highway.**

22 The driver of a vehicle involved in an accident resulting
 23 in damage to property legally upon or adjacent to a highway
 24 shall take reasonable steps to locate and notify the owner,
 25 a peace officer, or person in charge of the damaged property
 26 of the damage and shall inform the person of the driver's name
 27 and address and the registration number of the vehicle causing
 28 the damage and shall, upon request and if available, exhibit
 29 the driver's license of the driver of the vehicle and shall
 30 report the accident when and as required in section 321.266. A
 31 person who violates this section commits a simple misdemeanor
 32 punishable as a scheduled violation under section 805.8A,
 33 subsection 14, paragraph "o".

34 Sec. 35. Section 321.324A, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 35 the following new subsection:

PAGE 14

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. A person who violates this section
2 commits a simple misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled
3 violation under section 805.8A, subsection 6, paragraph "0s".

4 Sec. 36. Section 321.371, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
5 amended to read as follows:

6 2. A person who violates this section commits a simple
7 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
8 805.8A, subsection 14, paragraph "p".

9 Sec. 37. Section 321.372, subsection 5, paragraph b,
10 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

11 (1) For a first offense under subsection 3, the person is
12 guilty of a simple misdemeanor punishable by a fine of at least
13 ~~two hundred fifty~~ three hundred forty-five dollars but not more
14 than ~~six hundred seventy-five~~ nine hundred thirty dollars or
15 by imprisonment for not more than thirty days, or by both. The
16 department may require the person to attend and successfully
17 complete, at the person's own expense, a driver improvement
18 program approved by the department in lieu of driver's license
19 suspension for the offense pursuant to section 321.210.

20 Sec. 38. Section 321.383, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
21 amended to read as follows:

22 4. ~~Any~~ Except as provided in subsection 5, any person
23 who violates any provision of this section shall be fined
24 ~~as provided in~~ commits a simple misdemeanor punishable as a
25 scheduled violation under section 805.8A, subsection 3.

26 Sec. 39. Section 321.383, Code 2020, is amended by adding
27 the following new subsection:

28 NEW SUBSECTION. 5. A person who operates a self-propelled
29 implement of husbandry at a speed which exceeds the limit
30 of thirty-five miles per hour commits a simple misdemeanor
31 punishable as a scheduled violation under section 805.8A,
32 subsection 5.

33 Sec. 40. Section 321.431, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
34 amended to read as follows:

35 6. A person who violates this section commits a simple

PAGE 15

1 misdemeanor punishable as a scheduled violation under section
2 805.8A, subsection 3, paragraph "ad".

3 Sec. 41. Section 805.8A, Code 2020, is amended to read as
4 follows:

5 **805.8A Motor vehicle and transportation scheduled violations.**

6 1. *Parking violations.*

7 a. For parking violations under sections 321.236, 321.239,
8 321.358, 321.360, and 321.361, the scheduled fine is five
9 dollars, except if the local authority has established the
10 fine by ordinance. The scheduled fine for a parking violation
11 pursuant to section 321.236 increases by five dollars if
12 authorized by ordinance and if the parking violation is not

13 paid within thirty days of the date upon which the violation
 14 occurred. For purposes of calculating the unsecured appearance
 15 bond required under section 805.6, the scheduled fine shall
 16 be five dollars, or if the amount of the fine is greater than
 17 five dollars, the unsecured appearance bond shall be the amount
 18 of the fine established by the local authority. However,
 19 violations charged by a city or county upon simple notice of a
 20 fine instead of a uniform citation and complaint required by
 21 section 321.236, subsection 1, paragraph "b", are not scheduled
 22 violations, and this section shall not apply to any offense
 23 charged in that manner. For a parking violation under section
 24 461A.38, the scheduled fine is ten dollars. For a parking
 25 violation under section 321.362, the scheduled fine is twenty
 26 dollars.
 27 b. For a parking violation under section 321L.2A, subsection
 28 2, the scheduled fine is twenty dollars.
 29 c. For violations under section 321L.2A, subsection 3,
 30 sections 321L.3, 321L.4, subsection 2, and section 321L.7, the
 31 scheduled fine is two hundred dollars.
 32 2. *Title and registration violations.* For title or
 33 registration violations under the following sections, the
 34 scheduled fine is as follows:
 35 a. Section 321.17~~\$50~~ \$70.

PAGE 16

1 b. Section 321.24~~\$135~~.
 2 ~~b. c.~~ Section 321.25~~\$100~~ \$135.
 3 ~~e. d.~~ Section 321.32~~\$20~~ \$30.
 4 ~~d. e.~~ Section 321.34~~\$20~~ \$30.
 5 ~~e. f.~~ Section 321.37~~\$20~~ \$30.
 6 ~~f. g.~~ Section 321.38~~\$20~~ \$30.
 7 ~~g. h.~~ Section 321.41~~\$20~~ \$30.
 8 ~~h. i.~~ Section 321.45~~\$100~~ \$135.
 9 ~~i. j.~~ Section 321.46~~\$100~~ \$135.
 10 ~~j. k.~~ Section 321.47~~\$100~~ \$135.
 11 ~~k. l.~~ Section 321.48~~\$100~~ \$135.
 12 ~~l. m.~~ Section 321.52~~\$100~~ \$135.
 13 ~~m. n.~~ Section 321.55~~\$50~~ \$70.
 14 ~~n. o.~~ Section 321.57~~\$100~~ \$135.
 15 ~~o. p.~~ Section 321.62~~\$100~~ \$135.
 16 ~~p. q.~~ Section 321.67~~\$100~~ \$135.
 17 ~~q. r.~~ Section 321.98~~\$50~~ \$70.
 18 ~~r. s.~~ Section 321.99~~\$200~~ \$260.
 19 ~~s. t.~~ Section 321.104~~\$100~~ \$135.
 20 ~~t. u.~~ Section 321.115~~\$30~~ \$45.
 21 ~~u. v.~~ Section 321.115A~~\$30~~ \$45.
 22 3. *Equipment violations.* For equipment violations under the
 23 following sections, the scheduled fine is as follows:
 24 a. Section 321.234A~~\$50~~ \$70.
 25 b. Section 321.247~~\$100~~ \$135.
 26 c. Section 321.317~~\$20~~ \$30.

- 27 *d.* Section 321.381~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 28 *e.* Section 321.381A~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 29 *f.* Section 321.382~~\$25~~ \$35.
- 30 *g.* Section 321.383, subsection 4~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 31 *h.* Section 321.384~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 32 *i.* Section 321.385~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 33 *j.* Section 321.386~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 34 *k.* Section 321.387~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 35 *l.* Section 321.388~~\$20~~ \$30.

PAGE 17

- 1 *m.* Section 321.389~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 2 *n.* Section 321.390~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 3 *o.* Section 321.392~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 4 *p.* Section 321.393~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 5 *q.* Section 321.398~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 6 *r.* Section 321.402~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 7 *s.* Section 321.403~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 8 *t.* Section 321.404~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 9 *u.* Section 321.404A~~\$25~~ \$35.
- 10 *v.* Section 321.409~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 11 *w.* Section 321.415~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 12 *x.* Section 321.419~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 13 *y.* Section 321.420~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 14 *z.* Section 321.421~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 15 *aa.* Section 321.422~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 16 *ab.* Section 321.423~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 17 *ac.* Section 321.430~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 18 *ad.* Section 321.431~~\$135.~~
- 19 ~~*ae.*~~ *ae.* Section 321.432~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 20 ~~*af.*~~ *af.* Section 321.433~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 21 ~~*ag.*~~ *ag.* Section 321.436~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 22 ~~*ah.*~~ *ah.* Section 321.438~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 23 ~~*ai.*~~ *ai.* Section 321.439~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 24 ~~*aj.*~~ *aj.* Section 321.440~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 25 ~~*ak.*~~ *ak.* Section 321.441~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 26 ~~*al.*~~ *al.* Section 321.442~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 27 ~~*am.*~~ *am.* Section 321.444~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 28 4. *Driver's license violations.* For driver's license
- 29 violations under the following sections, the scheduled fine is
- 30 as follows:
- 31 *a.* Section 321.174~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 32 *b.* Section 321.174A~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 33 *c.* Section 321.178, subsection 2,
- 34 paragraph "a", subparagraph (2)~~\$30~~ \$45.
- 35 *d.* Section 321.180~~\$50~~ \$70.

PAGE 18

- 1 *e.* Section 321.180B~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 2 *f.* Section 321.193~~\$50~~ \$70.

- 3 g. Section 321.194~~\$50~~ \$70.
- 4 h. Section 321.216~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 5 i. Section 321.216B~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 6 j. Section 321.216C~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 7 k. Section 321.219~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 8 l. Section 321.220~~\$200~~ \$260.
- 9 5. *Speed violations.*
- 10 a. For excessive speed violations in excess of the limit
- 11 under section 321.236, subsections 5 and 11, sections section
- 12 321.285, section 321.383, subsection 5, and section 461A.36,
- 13 the scheduled fine shall be the following:
- 14 (1) ~~Twenty~~ thirty dollars for speed not more than five miles
- 15 per hour in excess of the limit.
- 16 (2) ~~Forty~~ fifty-five dollars for speed greater than five but
- 17 not more than ten miles per hour in excess of the limit.
- 18 (3) ~~Eighty~~ One hundred five dollars for speed greater than
- 19 ten but not more than fifteen miles per hour in excess of the
- 20 limit.
- 21 (4) ~~Ninety~~ One hundred twenty dollars for speed greater
- 22 than fifteen but not more than twenty miles per hour in excess
- 23 of the limit.
- 24 (5) One hundred ~~thirty-five~~ dollars plus five dollars for
- 25 each mile per hour of excessive speed over twenty miles per
- 26 hour over the limit.
- 27 b. Excessive speed by a school bus is punishable as provided
- 28 in subsection 10.
- 29 c. Excessive speed in conjunction with a violation of
- 30 section 321.278 is not a scheduled violation, whatever the
- 31 amount of excess speed.
- 32 d. For a violation under section 321.295, the scheduled fine
- 33 is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 34 6. *Operating violations.* For operating violations under the
- 35 following sections, the scheduled fine is as follows:

PAGE 19

- 1 a. Section 321.236, subsections 3, 4, 9,
- 2 and 12~~\$20~~ \$30.
- 3 b. Section 321.275, subsections 1
- 4 through 7~~\$35~~ \$50.
- 5 c. Section 321.277A~~\$35~~ \$50.
- 6 d. Section 321.288~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 7 e. Section 321.297~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 8 f. Section 321.299~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 9 g. Section 321.302~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 10 h. Section 321.303~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 11 i. Section 321.304, subsections 1
- 12 and 2~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 13 j. Section 321.305~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 14 k. Section 321.306~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 15 l. Section 321.311~~\$100~~ \$135.
- 16 m. Section 321.312~~\$100~~ \$135.

- 17 n. Section 321.314 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 18 o. Section 321.315 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 19 p. Section 321.316 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 20 q. Section 321.318 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 21 r. Section 321.323 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 22 Os. Section 321.324A \$135.
 23 s. Section 321.340 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 24 t. Section 321.353 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 25 u. Section 321.354 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 26 v. Section 321.363 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 27 w. Section 321.365 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 28 x. Section 321.366 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 29 y. Section 321.395 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 30 7. *Failure to yield or obey violations.* For failure to yield
 31 or obey violations under the following sections, the scheduled
 32 fine is as follows:
 33 a. Section 321.257, subsection 2, for a violation by an
 34 operator of a motor vehicle ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 35 b. Section 321.298 ~~\$100~~ \$135.

PAGE 20

- 1 c. Section 321.307 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 2 d. Section 321.313 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 3 e. Section 321.319 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 4 f. Section 321.320 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 5 g. Section 321.321 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 6 h. Section 321.327 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 7 i. Section 321.329 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 8 j. Section 321.333 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 9 8. *Traffic sign or signal violations.* For traffic sign or
 10 signal violations under the following sections, the scheduled
 11 fine is as follows:
 12 a. Section 321.236, subsections 2 and 6 ~~\$35~~ \$50.
 13 b. Section 321.256 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 14 c. Section 321.260, subsection 2 \$455.
 15 ~~e.~~ d. Section 321.294 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 16 ~~e.~~ e. Section 321.304, subsection 3 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 17 ~~e.~~ f. Section 321.322 ~~\$100~~ \$135.
 18 9. *Bicycle or pedestrian violations.* For bicycle or
 19 pedestrian violations under the following sections, the
 20 scheduled fine for a pedestrian or bicyclist is as follows:
 21 a. Section 321.234, subsections 3 and 4 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 22 b. Section 321.236, subsection 10 ~~\$15~~ \$25.
 23 c. Section 321.257, subsection 2 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 24 d. Section 321.275, subsection 8 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 25 e. Section 321.325 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 26 f. Section 321.326 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 27 g. Section 321.328 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 28 h. Section 321.331 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 29 i. Section 321.332 ~~\$25~~ \$35.
 30 j. Section 321.397 ~~\$25~~ \$35.

- 31 *k.* Section 321.434~~\$25~~ \$35.
 32 9A. *Electric personal assistive mobility device*
 33 *violations.* For violations under section 321.235A, the
 34 scheduled fine is ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars.
 35 10. *School bus violations.* For violations by an operator of

PAGE 21

- 1 a school bus under sections 321.285 and 321.372, subsections 1
 2 and 2, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
 3 However, an excessive speed violation by a school bus of
 4 more than ten miles per hour in excess of the limit is not a
 5 scheduled violation.
 6 11. *a. Emergency vehicle and equipment-related*
 7 *violations.* For violations relating to authorized emergency
 8 vehicles, fire apparatus and equipment, and police bicycles
 9 under the following sections, the scheduled fine is as follows:
 10 (1) Section 321.231~~\$100~~ \$135.
 11 (2) Section 321.323A, subsection 1~~\$100~~ \$135.
 12 (3) Section 321.324~~\$100~~ \$135.
 13 (4) Section 321.367~~\$100~~ \$135.
 14 (5) Section 321.368~~\$100~~ \$135.
 15 *b. Violations relating to stationary nonemergency vehicles.*
 16 For violations relating to the approach of certain stationary
 17 nonemergency vehicles under section 321.323A, subsections 2 and
 18 3, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
 19 12. *Restrictions on vehicles.*
 20 *a.* For violations under sections 321.309, 321.310, 321.394,
 21 321.461, and 321.462, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty-five~~ fifty
 22 dollars.
 23 *b.* For violations under section 321.437, the scheduled fine
 24 is ~~thirty-five~~ fifty dollars.
 25 *c.* For height, length, width, and load violations under
 26 sections 321.454, 321.455, 321.456, 321.457, and 321.458, the
 27 scheduled fine is two hundred sixty dollars.
 28 *d.* For violations under section 321.466, the scheduled fine
 29 is ~~twenty~~ twenty-five dollars for each two thousand pounds or
 30 fraction thereof of overweight.
 31 *e.* (1) Violations of the schedule of axle and tandem axle
 32 and gross or group of axle weight violations in section 321.463
 33 shall be scheduled violations subject to the provisions,
 34 procedures, and exceptions contained in sections 805.6 through
 35 805.11, irrespective of the amount of the fine under that

PAGE 22

- 1 schedule.
 2 (a) Violations of the schedule of weight violations shall be
 3 chargeable, where the fine charged does not exceed one thousand
 4 dollars, only by uniform citation and complaint.
 5 (b) Violations of the schedule of weight violations, where
 6 the fine charged exceeds one thousand dollars shall, when the

7 violation is admitted and section 805.9 applies, be chargeable
8 upon uniform citation and complaint, indictment, or county
9 attorney's information, but otherwise shall be chargeable only
10 upon indictment or county attorney's information.

11 (2) In all cases of charges under the schedule of weight
12 violations, the charge shall specify the amount of fine charged
13 under the schedule. Where a defendant is convicted and the
14 fine under the foregoing schedule of weight violations exceeds
15 one thousand dollars, the conviction shall be of an indictable
16 offense although section 805.9 is employed and whether the
17 violation is charged upon uniform citation and complaint,
18 indictment, or county attorney's information.

19 *f.* For a violation under section 321E.16, other than the
20 provisions relating to weight, the scheduled fine is two
21 hundred ~~sixty~~ dollars.

22 13. *Motor carrier and other operator violations.*

23 *a.* (1) For a violation under section 321.54, the scheduled
24 fine is ~~thirty~~ forty-five dollars.

25 (2) For violations under sections 326.22 and 326.23, the
26 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

27 *b.* For a violation under section 321.449, 321.449A, or
28 321.449B, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

29 *c.* For violations under sections 321.364, 321.450, 321.460,
30 and 452A.52, the scheduled fine is two hundred sixty dollars.

31 *d.* For violations of section 325A.3, subsection 6, or
32 section 325A.8, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
33 dollars.

34 *e.* For violations of chapter 325A, other than a violation of
35 section 325A.3, subsection 6, or section 325A.8, the scheduled

PAGE 23

1 fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.

2 *f.* For violations of section 327B.1, subsection 1 or 3, the
3 scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.

4 14. *Miscellaneous violations.*

5 *a. Failure to obey a peace officer.* For a violation under
6 section 321.229, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
7 dollars.

8 *b. Abandoning a motor vehicle.* For a violation under
9 section 321.91, the scheduled fine is two hundred sixty
10 dollars.

11 *c. Seat belt or restraint violations.*

12 (1) For a violation under section 321.445, the scheduled
13 fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

14 (2) For a violation under section 321.446, the scheduled
15 fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.

16 *d. Litter and debris violations.* For violations under
17 sections 321.369 and 321.370, the scheduled fine is seventy
18 ninety dollars.

19 *e. Open container violations.* For violations under sections
20 321.284 and 321.284A, the scheduled fine is two hundred sixty

21 dollars.

22 *f. Proof of financial responsibility.* If, in connection
 23 with a motor vehicle accident, a person is charged and found
 24 guilty of a violation of section 321.20B, subsection 1,
 25 the scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars;
 26 otherwise, the scheduled fine for a violation of section
 27 321.20B, subsection 1, is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~fifty~~ twenty-five
 28 dollars. Notwithstanding section 805.12, fines collected
 29 pursuant to this paragraph shall be submitted to the state
 30 court administrator and distributed fifty percent to the victim
 31 compensation fund established in section 915.94, twenty-five
 32 percent to the county in which such fine is imposed, and
 33 twenty-five percent to the general fund of the state.
 34 *g. Speed detection jamming devices.* For a violation under
 35 section 321.232, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five

PAGE 24

1 dollars.

2 *h. Railroad crossing violations.* For violations under
 3 sections 321.341, 321.342, 321.343, and 321.344, and 321.344B,
 4 the scheduled fine is two hundred ~~sixty~~ dollars.
 5 *i. Road work zone violations.* The scheduled fine for any
 6 moving traffic violation under chapter 321, as provided in
 7 this section, shall be doubled if the violation occurs within
 8 any road work zone, as defined in section 321.1. However,
 9 notwithstanding subsection 5, the scheduled fine for violating
 10 the speed limit in a road work zone is as follows:
 11 (1) One hundred ~~fifty~~ ninety-five dollars for speed not more
 12 than ten miles per hour over the posted speed limit.
 13 (2) Three hundred ninety dollars for speed greater than ten
 14 but not more than twenty miles per hour over the posted speed
 15 limit.
 16 (3) ~~Five~~ Six hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars for speed greater
 17 than twenty but not more than twenty-five miles per hour over
 18 the posted speed limit.
 19 (4) One thousand two hundred eighty-five dollars for speed
 20 greater than twenty-five miles per hour over the posted speed
 21 limit.
 22 *j. Vehicle component parts records violations.* For
 23 violations under section 321.95, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
 24 seventy dollars.
 25 *k. Actions against a person on a bicycle.* For violations
 26 under section 321.281, the scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred
 27 ~~fifty~~ twenty-five dollars.
 28 *l. Writing, sending, or viewing an electronic message while*
 29 *driving violations.* For violations under section 321.276, the
 30 scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~ forty-five dollars.
 31 *m. Leaving scene of traffic accident.* For violations under
 32 section 321.262, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 33 dollars.
 34 *n. Striking unattended vehicle.* For violations under

35 section 321.264, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five

PAGE 25

1 dollars.

2 *o. Striking fixtures upon highway. For violations under*

3 section 321.265, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five

4 dollars.

5 *p. Clearing up wrecks. For violations under section*

6 321.371, the scheduled fine is thirty-five dollars.

7 Sec. 42. Section 805.8B, Code 2020, is amended to read as

8 follows:

9 **805.8B Navigation, recreation, hunting, and fishing scheduled**
10 **violations.**

11 1. *Navigation violations.*

12 *a.* For violations of registration, inspections,

13 identification, and record provisions under sections 462A.5,

14 462A.35, and 462A.37, and for unused or improper or defective

15 lights and warning devices under section 462A.9, subsections 3,

16 4, 5, 9, and 10, the scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.

17 *b.* For violations of registration, identification, and

18 record provisions under sections 462A.4 and 462A.10, and for

19 unused or improper or defective equipment under section 462A.9,

20 subsections 2, 6, 7, 8, 13, and 14, and section 462A.11, and

21 for operation violations under sections 462A.26, 462A.31, and

22 462A.33, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.

23 *c.* For operating violations under sections 462A.12, 462A.15,

24 subsection 1, sections 462A.24, and 462A.34, the scheduled fine

25 is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars. However, a violation of

26 section 462A.12, subsection 2, is not a scheduled violation.

27 *d.* For violations of use, location, and storage of vessels,

28 devices, and structures under sections 462A.27, 462A.28, and

29 462A.32, the scheduled fine is ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars.

30 *e.* For violations of all subdivision ordinances under

31 section 462A.17, subsection 2, except those relating to

32 matters subject to regulation by authority of section 462A.31,

33 subsection 5, the scheduled fine is the same as prescribed for

34 similar violations of state law. For violations of subdivision

35 ordinances for which there is no comparable state law, the

PAGE 26

1 scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.

2 2. *Snowmobile violations.*

3 *a.* For registration or user permit violations under section

4 321G.3, subsection 1, or section 321G.4B, the scheduled fine is

5 ~~fifty~~ sixty-five dollars.

6 *b.* (1) For operating violations under section 321G.9, the

7 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

8 (2) For operating violations under sections 321G.11 and

9 321G.13, subsection 1, paragraph "d", the scheduled fine is

10 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.

- 11 (3) For operating violations under section 321G.13,
 12 subsection 1, paragraphs “a”, “b”, “e”, “f”, “g”, “h”, and “i”,
 13 and section 321G.13, subsections 2 and 3, the scheduled fine is
 14 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 15 c. For improper or defective equipment under section
 16 321G.12, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 17 d. For violations of section 321G.19, the scheduled fine is
 18 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 19 e. For decal violations under section 321G.5, the scheduled
 20 fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 21 f. For stop signal violations under section 321G.17, the
 22 scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 23 g. For violations of section 321G.20 and for education
 24 certificate violations under section 321G.24, subsection 1, the
 25 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 26 h. For violations of section 321G.21, the scheduled fine is
 27 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 28 2A. *All-terrain vehicle violations.*
- 29 a. For registration or user permit violations under section
 30 321I.3, subsection 1, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy
 31 dollars.
- 32 b. (1) For operating violations under sections 321I.12 and
 33 321I.14, subsection 1, paragraph “d”, the scheduled fine is
 34 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 35 (2) For operating violations under section 321I.10,

PAGE 27

- 1 subsections 1 and 4, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy
 2 dollars.
- 3 (3) For operating violations under section 321I.14,
 4 subsection 1, paragraphs “a”, “e”, “f”, “g”, and “h”, and
 5 section 321I.14, subsections 2, 3, 4, and 5, the scheduled fine
 6 is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 7 c. For improper or defective equipment under section
 8 321I.13, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 9 d. For violations of section 321I.20, the scheduled fine is
 10 ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 11 e. For decal violations under section 321I.6, the scheduled
 12 fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 13 f. For stop signal violations under section 321I.18, the
 14 scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 15 g. For violations of section 321I.21 and for education
 16 certificate violations under section 321I.26, subsection 1, the
 17 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
- 18 h. For violations of section 321I.22, the scheduled fine is
 19 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 20 3. *Hunting and fishing violations.*
- 21 a. For violations of section 484A.2, the scheduled fine is
 22 ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.
- 23 b. For violations of sections 481A.54, 481A.69, 481A.71,
 24 481A.72, 482.6, 483A.3, 483A.6, 483A.8A, 483A.19, 483A.27, and

25 483A.27A, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
26 c. For violations of sections 481A.6, 481A.21, 481A.22,
27 481A.26, 481A.50, 481A.56, 481A.60 through 481A.62, 481A.83,
28 481A.84, 481A.92, 481A.123, 481A.145, subsection 3, sections
29 483A.6A, 483A.7, 483A.8, 483A.23, 483A.24, and 483A.28, the
30 scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
31 d. For violations of sections 481A.7, 481A.24, 481A.47,
32 481A.52, 481A.53, 481A.55, 481A.58, 481A.76, 481A.90, 481A.91,
33 481A.97, 481A.122, 481A.126, 481A.142, 481A.145, subsection
34 2, sections 482.5, 482.7, 482.8, 482.10, and 483A.37, the
35 scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.

PAGE 28

1 e. For violations of sections 481A.57, 481A.85, 481A.93,
2 481A.95, 481A.120, 481A.137, 481B.5, 482.3, 482.9, 482.15, and
3 483A.42, the scheduled fine is one hundred ~~thirty-five~~ dollars.
4 f. For violations of section 481A.38 relating to the taking,
5 pursuing, killing, trapping or ensnaring, buying, selling,
6 possessing, or transporting any game, protected nongame
7 animals, fur-bearing animals, or fur or skin of the animals,
8 mussels, frogs, or fish or part of them, the scheduled fines
9 are as follows:
10 (1) For deer or turkey, the scheduled fine is one hundred
11 thirty-five dollars.
12 (2) For protected nongame, the scheduled fine is one hundred
13 thirty-five dollars.
14 (3) For mussels, frogs, spawn, or fish, the scheduled fine
15 is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
16 (4) For other game, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy
17 dollars.
18 (5) For fur-bearing animals, the scheduled fine is
19 ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred dollars.
20 g. For violations of section 481A.38 relating to an attempt
21 to take, pursue, kill, trap, buy, sell, possess, or transport
22 any game, protected nongame animals, fur-bearing animals, or
23 fur or skin of the animals, mussels, frogs, or fish or part of
24 them, the scheduled fines are as follows:
25 (1) For game or fur-bearing animals, the scheduled fine is
26 ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
27 (2) For protected nongame, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
28 seventy dollars.
29 (3) For mussels, frogs, spawn, or fish, the scheduled fine
30 is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.
31 h. For violations of section 481A.48 relating to
32 restrictions on game birds and animals, the scheduled fines are
33 as follows:
34 (1) For out-of-season, the scheduled fine is one hundred
35 thirty-five dollars.

PAGE 29

- 1 (2) For over limit, the scheduled fine is one hundred
 2 thirty-five dollars.
- 3 (3) For attempt to take, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~ seventy
 4 dollars.
- 5 (4) For general waterfowl restrictions, the scheduled fine
 6 is ~~thirty~~ seventy dollars.
- 7 (a) For no federal stamp, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
 8 seventy dollars.
- 9 (b) For unplugged shotgun, the scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty
 10 dollars.
- 11 (c) For possession of other than steel shot, the scheduled
 12 fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 13 (d) For early or late shooting, the scheduled fine is
 14 ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 15 (5) For possession of a prohibited pistol or revolver while
 16 hunting deer, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
 17 dollars.
- 18 (6) For possession of a prohibited rifle while hunting
 19 deer, the scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~thirty~~ twenty-five
 20 dollars.
- 21 *i.* For violations of section 481A.67 relating to general
 22 violations of fishing laws, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~
 23 thirty-five dollars.
- 24 (1) For over limit catch, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
 25 forty-five dollars.
- 26 (2) For under minimum length or weight, the scheduled fine
 27 is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
- 28 (3) For out-of-season fishing, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
 29 seventy dollars.
- 30 *j.* For violations of section 481A.73 relating to trotlines
 31 and throwlines:
- 32 (1) For trotline or throwline violations in legal waters,
 33 the scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 34 (2) For trotline or throwline violations in illegal waters,
 35 the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~ seventy dollars.

PAGE 30

- 1 *k.* For violations of section 481A.144, subsection 4, or
 2 section 481A.145, subsections 4, 5, and 6, relating to minnows:
- 3 (1) For general minnow violations, the scheduled fine is
 4 ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
- 5 (2) For commercial purposes, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
 6 seventy dollars.
- 7 *l.* For violations of section 481A.87 relating to the taking
 8 or possessing of fur-bearing animals out of season:
- 9 (1) For red fox, gray fox, or mink, the scheduled fine is
 10 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
- 11 (2) For all other furbearers, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
 12 seventy dollars.
- 13 *m.* For violations of section 482.4 relating to gear tags:
- 14 (1) For commercial license violations, the scheduled fine

15 is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
16 (2) For no gear tags, the scheduled fine is ~~twenty-five~~
17 thirty-five dollars.
18 *n.* For violations of section 482.11, the scheduled fine is
19 one hundred thirty-five dollars.
20 *o.* For violations of rules adopted pursuant to section
21 483A.1 relating to licenses and permits, the scheduled fines
22 are as follows:
23 (1) For a license or permit costing ten dollars or less, the
24 scheduled fine is ~~twenty~~ thirty dollars.
25 (2) For a license or permit costing more than ten dollars
26 but not more than twenty dollars, the scheduled fine is ~~thirty~~
27 forty-five dollars.
28 (3) For a license or permit costing more than twenty dollars
29 but not more than forty dollars, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
30 seventy dollars.
31 (4) For a license or permit costing more than forty dollars
32 but not more than fifty dollars, the scheduled fine is ~~seventy~~
33 ninety-five dollars.
34 (5) For a license or permit costing more than fifty dollars
35 but less than one hundred dollars, the scheduled fine is one

PAGE 31

1 hundred thirty-five dollars.
2 (6) For a license or permit costing one hundred dollars or
3 more, the scheduled fine is two times the cost of the original
4 license or permit.
5 *p.* For violations of section 483A.26 relating to false
6 claims for licenses:
7 (1) For making a false claim for a license by a resident,
8 the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
9 (2) For making a false claim for a license by a nonresident,
10 the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
11 *q.* For violations of section 483A.36 relating to the
12 conveyance of guns:
13 (1) For conveying an assembled, unloaded gun, the scheduled
14 fine is ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
15 (2) For conveying a loaded gun, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~
16 seventy dollars.
17 4. *Ginseng violations.* For a violation of section 456A.24,
18 subsection 11, the scheduled fine is one hundred thirty-five
19 dollars.
20 5. *Aquatic invasive species violations.* For violations
21 of section 456A.37, subsection 3, the scheduled fine is as
22 follows:
23 *a.* For violations of section 456A.37, subsection 3,
24 paragraph "a", the scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred forty-five
25 dollars.
26 *b.* For violations of section 456A.37, subsection 3,
27 paragraph "b", the scheduled fine is ~~seventy-five~~ one hundred
28 dollars.

- 29 c. For repeat violations of section 456A.37, subsection 3,
 30 paragraph “a” or “b”, within the same twelve-month period, the
 31 scheduled fine shall include an additional fine of ~~five~~ six
 32 hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars for each violation.
 33 6. *Misuse of parks and preserves.*
 34 a. For violations under sections 461A.39, 461A.45, and
 35 461A.50, the scheduled fine is ~~ten~~ twenty dollars.

PAGE 32

- 1 b. For violations under sections 461A.40, 461A.46, and
 2 461A.49, the scheduled fine is ~~fifteen~~ twenty-five dollars.
 3 c. For violations of sections 461A.35, 461A.42, and 461A.44,
 4 the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
 5 d. For violations of section 461A.48, the scheduled fine is
 6 ~~twenty-five~~ thirty-five dollars.
 7 e. For violations under section 461A.43, the scheduled fine
 8 is ~~thirty~~ forty-five dollars.
 9 Sec. 43. Section 805.8C, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 10 follows:
 11 **805.8C Miscellaneous scheduled violations.**
 12 1. *Energy emergency violations.* For violations of an
 13 executive order issued by the governor under the provisions of
 14 section 473.8, the scheduled fine is ~~fifty~~ seventy dollars.
 15 2. *Alcoholic beverage violations.* For violations of section
 16 123.49, subsection 2, paragraph “h”, the scheduled fine for
 17 a licensee or permittee is one thousand ~~five~~ nine hundred
 18 ~~twenty-five~~ dollars, and the scheduled fine for a person who
 19 is employed by a licensee or permittee is ~~five~~ six hundred
 20 ~~forty-five~~ dollars.
 21 3. *Violations related to smoking, tobacco, tobacco products,*
 22 *alternative nicotine products, vapor products, and cigarettes.*
 23 a. For violations described in section 142D.9, subsection 1,
 24 the scheduled fine is fifty dollars, and is a civil penalty,
 25 and the ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge under section
 26 911.1 shall not be added to the penalty, and the court costs
 27 pursuant to section 805.9, subsection 6, shall not be imposed.
 28 If the civil penalty assessed for a violation described in
 29 section 142D.9, subsection 1, is not paid in a timely manner,
 30 a citation shall be issued for the violation in the manner
 31 provided in section 804.1. However, a person under age
 32 eighteen shall not be detained in a secure facility for failure
 33 to pay the civil penalty. The complainant shall not be charged
 34 a filing fee.
 35 b. For violations of section 453A.2, subsection 1, by an

PAGE 33

- 1 employee of a retailer, the scheduled fine is as follows:
 2 (1) If the violation is a first offense, the scheduled fine
 3 is one hundred thirty-five dollars.
 4 (2) If the violation is a second offense, the scheduled fine

5 is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~forty~~ twenty-five dollars.

6 (3) If the violation is a third or subsequent offense, the
7 scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars.

8 c. For violations of section 453A.2, subsection 2, the
9 scheduled fine is as follows and is a civil penalty, and the
10 ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services surcharge under section 911.1
11 shall not be added to the penalty, and the court costs pursuant
12 to section 805.9, subsection 6, shall not be imposed:

13 (1) If the violation is a first offense, the scheduled fine
14 is ~~forty~~ seventy dollars.

15 (2) If the violation is a second offense, the scheduled fine
16 is one hundred ~~thirty-five~~ dollars.

17 (3) If the violation is a third or subsequent offense, the
18 scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~forty~~ twenty-five dollars.

19 4. *Electrical or mechanical amusement device violations.*

20 a. For violations of legal age for operating an electrical
21 or mechanical amusement device required to be registered
22 as provided in section 99B.53, pursuant to section 99B.57,
23 subsection 1, the scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~forty~~
24 twenty-five dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a person
25 under the age of eighteen shall not result in the person being
26 detained in a secure facility.

27 b. For first offense violations concerning electrical or
28 mechanical amusement devices as provided in section 99B.54,
29 subsection 2, the scheduled fine is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~forty~~
30 twenty-five dollars.

31 5. *Gambling violations.*

32 a. For violations of legal age for gambling wagering under
33 section 99D.11, subsection 7, section 99F.9, subsection 5,
34 and section 725.19, subsection 1, the scheduled fine is ~~five~~
35 six hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a

PAGE 34

1 person under the age of eighteen shall not result in the person
2 being detained in a secure facility.

3 b. For legal age violations for entering or attempting
4 to enter a facility under section 99F.9, subsection 6, the
5 scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars. Failure
6 to pay the fine by a person under the age of eighteen shall not
7 result in the person being detained in a secure facility.

8 6. *Pseudoephedrine sales violations.* For violations of
9 section 126.23A, subsection 1, by an employee of a retailer, or
10 for violations of section 126.23A, subsection 2, paragraph "a",
11 by a purchaser, the scheduled fine is as follows:

12 a. If the violation is a first offense, the scheduled fine
13 is two hundred ~~sixty~~ dollars.

14 b. If the violation is a second offense, the scheduled fine
15 is ~~two~~ three hundred ~~forty~~ twenty-five dollars.

16 c. If the violation is a third or subsequent offense, the
17 scheduled fine is ~~five~~ six hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars.

18 7. *Alcoholic beverage violations by persons eighteen,*

19 *nineteen, or twenty years of age.* For first offense violations
 20 of section 123.47, subsection 4, the scheduled fine is two
 21 hundred sixty dollars.
 22 8. *Unlicensed premises owner* — *under eighteen years of age*
 23 *consumption or possession.* For first offense violations of
 24 section 123.47, subsection 2, the scheduled fine is two hundred
 25 sixty dollars.
 26 9. *Notification violations.* For violations of section
 27 229.22, subsection 6, the scheduled fine is one thousand
 28 dollars for a first violation and two thousand dollars for a
 29 second or subsequent violation. The scheduled fine under this
 30 subsection is a civil penalty, and the ~~criminal penalty~~ crime
 31 services surcharge under section 911.1 shall not be added to
 32 the penalty.
 33 10. *Scrap metal transaction violations.* For violations
 34 of section 714.27, the scheduled fine is one hundred dollars
 35 for a first violation, five hundred dollars for a second

PAGE 35

1 violation within two years, and one thousand dollars for a
 2 third or subsequent violation within two years. The scheduled
 3 fine under this subsection is a civil penalty which shall
 4 be deposited into the general fund of the county or city if
 5 imposed by a designated officer or employee of a county or
 6 city, or deposited in the general fund of the state if imposed
 7 by a state agency, and the ~~criminal penalty~~ crime services
 8 surcharge under section 911.1 shall not be added to the
 9 penalty.
 10 11. *Trespassing violations.* For trespasses punishable under
 11 section 716.8, subsection 1 or 5, the scheduled fine is two
 12 hundred sixty dollars for a first violation, ~~five~~ six hundred
 13 forty-five dollars for a second violation, and one thousand
 14 two hundred eighty-five dollars for a third or subsequent
 15 violation.
 16 12. *Internet fantasy sports contest violations.* For
 17 violations of legal age for entering an internet fantasy sports
 18 contest under section 99E.7, the scheduled fine is five hundred
 19 dollars. Failure to pay the fine by a person under the age
 20 of eighteen shall not result in the person being detained in
 21 a secure facility.

22 DIVISION V

23 MISDEMEANOR AND FELONY FINES

24 Sec. 44. Section 902.9, subsection 1, paragraphs d and e,
 25 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:
 26 *d.* A class “C” felon, not an habitual offender, shall be
 27 confined for no more than ten years, and in addition shall be
 28 sentenced to a fine of at least one thousand three hundred
 29 seventy dollars but not more than ~~ten~~ thirteen thousand six
 30 hundred sixty dollars.
 31 *e.* A class “D” felon, not an habitual offender, shall be
 32 confined for no more than five years, and in addition shall

33 be sentenced to a fine of at least ~~seven hundred fifty one~~
 34 ~~thousand twenty-five~~ dollars but not more than ~~seven ten~~
 35 ~~thousand five two~~ hundred ~~forty-five~~ dollars.

PAGE 36

1 Sec. 45. Section 903.1, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020, are
 2 amended to read as follows:
 3 1. If a person eighteen years of age or older is convicted
 4 of a simple or serious misdemeanor and a specific penalty is
 5 not provided for or if a person under eighteen years of age
 6 has been waived to adult court pursuant to section 232.45 on
 7 a felony charge and is subsequently convicted of a simple,
 8 serious, or aggravated misdemeanor, the court shall determine
 9 the sentence, and shall fix the period of confinement or the
 10 amount of fine, which fine shall not be suspended by the court,
 11 within the following limits:
 12 a. For a simple misdemeanor, there shall be a fine of at
 13 least ~~sixty five one~~ hundred ~~five~~ dollars but not to exceed ~~six~~
 14 ~~eight~~ hundred ~~twenty-five~~ ~~fifty-five~~ dollars. The court may
 15 order imprisonment not to exceed thirty days in lieu of a fine
 16 or in addition to a fine.
 17 b. For a serious misdemeanor, there shall be a fine of at
 18 least ~~three four~~ hundred ~~fifteen~~ ~~thirty~~ dollars but not to
 19 exceed ~~one two~~ thousand ~~eight five~~ hundred ~~seventy-five~~ ~~sixty~~
 20 dollars. In addition, the court may also order imprisonment
 21 not to exceed one year.
 22 2. When a person is convicted of an aggravated misdemeanor,
 23 and a specific penalty is not provided for, the maximum penalty
 24 shall be imprisonment not to exceed two years. There shall be
 25 a fine of at least ~~six eight~~ hundred ~~twenty-five~~ ~~fifty-five~~
 26 dollars but not to exceed ~~six eight~~ thousand ~~two five~~ hundred
 27 ~~fifty forty~~ dollars. When a judgment of conviction of an
 28 aggravated misdemeanor is entered against any person and the
 29 court imposes a sentence of confinement for a period of more
 30 than one year the term shall be an indeterminate term.

31 DIVISION VI

32 CRIMINALISTICS LABORATORY FUND

33 Sec. 46. Section 691.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 34 follows:
 35 **691.9 Criminalistics laboratory fund.**

PAGE 37

1 A criminalistics laboratory fund is created as a separate
 2 fund in the state treasury under the control of the department
 3 of public safety. The fund shall consist of appropriations
 4 made to the fund and transfers of interest, moneys collected
 5 from the crime services surcharge established in section 911.1,
 6 and earnings. All moneys in the fund are appropriated to
 7 the department of public safety for use by the department in
 8 criminalistics laboratory equipment and supply purchasing,

9 maintenance, depreciation, ~~and training, and payments of the~~
 10 ~~fees charged by the department of administrative services for~~
 11 ~~the criminalistics laboratory facility in Ankeny.~~ Any balance
 12 in the fund on June 30 of any fiscal year shall not revert to
 13 any other fund of the state but shall remain available for the
 14 purposes described in this section.

15 DIVISION VII

16 DRUG ABUSE RESISTANCE EDUCATION FUND

17 Sec. 47. NEW SECTION. 80E.4 Drug abuse resistance education
 18 fund.

19 A drug abuse resistance education fund is created as a
 20 separate fund in the state treasury under the control of the
 21 governor's office of drug control policy for use by the drug
 22 abuse resistance education program and other programs with a
 23 similar purpose. The fund shall consist of appropriations made
 24 to the fund and transfers of interest, moneys collected from
 25 the crime services surcharge established in section 911.1,
 26 and earnings. All moneys in the fund are appropriated to the
 27 governor's office of drug control policy. Notwithstanding
 28 section 8.33, any balance in the fund on June 30 of any fiscal
 29 year shall not revert to any other fund of the state but shall
 30 remain available for the purposes described in this section.

31 DIVISION VIII

32 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND

33 Sec. 48. Section 135.25, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 34 follows:

35 **135.25 Emergency medical services fund.**

PAGE 38

1 An emergency medical services fund is created in the state
 2 treasury under the control of the department. The fund
 3 includes, but is not limited to, amounts appropriated by the
 4 general assembly, amounts transferred pursuant to section
 5 602.8108, subsection 4, and other moneys available from
 6 federal or private sources which are to be used for purposes
 7 of this section. Funds remaining in the fund at the end of
 8 each fiscal year shall not revert to the general fund of the
 9 state but shall remain in the emergency medical services fund,
 10 notwithstanding section 8.33. The fund is established to
 11 assist counties by matching, on a dollar-for-dollar basis,
 12 moneys spent by a county for the acquisition of equipment for
 13 the provision of emergency medical services and by providing
 14 grants to counties for education and training in the delivery
 15 of emergency medical services, as provided in this section and
 16 section 422D.6. A county seeking matching funds under this
 17 section shall apply to the emergency medical services division
 18 of the department. The department shall adopt rules concerning
 19 the application and awarding process for the matching funds and
 20 the criteria for the allocation of moneys in the fund if the
 21 moneys are insufficient to meet the emergency medical services
 22 needs of the counties. Moneys allocated by the department to a

23 county for emergency medical services purposes may be used for
 24 equipment or training and education as determined by the board
 25 of supervisors pursuant to section 422D.6.

26 DIVISION IX

27 FUNDING FOR JUVENILE DETENTION HOME FUND

28 Sec. 49. Section 232.142, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
 29 amended to read as follows:

30 6. A juvenile detention home fund is created in the state
 31 treasury under the authority of the department. The fund shall
 32 consist of moneys deposited in the fund pursuant to ~~sections~~
 33 ~~321.218A and 321A.32A~~ section 602.8108. The moneys in the fund
 34 shall be used for the costs of the establishment, improvement,
 35 operation, and maintenance of county or multicounty juvenile

PAGE 39

1 detention homes in accordance with annual appropriations made
 2 by the general assembly from the fund for these purposes.

3 Sec. 50. Section 321.210B, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:

5 7. *a.* A civil penalty assessed pursuant to section
 6 ~~321.218A, 321A.32A, or 321J.17~~ shall be added to the amount
 7 owing under the installment agreement.

8 *b.* ~~The clerk of the district court shall transmit to the~~
 9 ~~department, from the first moneys collected, an amount equal to~~
 10 ~~the amount of any civil penalty assessed pursuant to section~~
 11 ~~321.218A or 321A.32A and added to the installment agreement.~~
 12 ~~The department shall transmit the money received from the~~
 13 ~~clerk of the district court pursuant to this paragraph to the~~
 14 ~~treasurer of state for deposit in the juvenile detention home~~
 15 ~~fund created in section 232.142.~~

16 *e. b.* The clerk of the district court shall transmit to the
 17 department, from the first moneys collected, an amount equal to
 18 the amount of any civil penalty assessed pursuant to section
 19 321J.17 and added to the installment agreement. The department
 20 shall transmit the money received from the clerk of the
 21 district court pursuant to this paragraph to the treasurer of
 22 state who shall deposit one-half of the money in the separate
 23 fund established in section 915.94 and one-half of the money in
 24 the general fund of the state.

25 Sec. 51. Section 321M.9, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 26 to read as follows:

27 1. *Fees to counties.* Notwithstanding any other provision
 28 in the Code to the contrary, the county treasurer of a county
 29 authorized to issue driver's licenses under this chapter shall
 30 retain for deposit in the county general fund seven dollars of
 31 fees received for each issuance or renewal of driver's licenses
 32 and nonoperator's identification cards, but shall not retain
 33 any moneys for the issuance of any persons with disabilities
 34 identification devices. The five dollar processing fee charged
 35 by a county treasurer for collection of a civil penalty under

PAGE 40

1 section ~~321.218A, 321A.32A, or~~ 321J.17 shall be retained for
 2 deposit in the county general fund. The county treasurer
 3 shall remit the balance of fees and all civil penalties to the
 4 department.

5 Sec. 52. Section 331.557A, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 6 amended to read as follows:

7 4. Accept payment of the civil ~~penalties~~ penalty assessed
 8 pursuant to ~~sections 321.218A, 321A.32A, and section~~ 321J.17
 9 and remit the ~~penalties~~ penalty to the state department of
 10 transportation.

11 Sec. 53. REPEAL. Sections 321.218A and 321A.32A, Code 2020,
 12 are repealed.

13 DIVISION X

14 NONRESIDENT STATE PARK USER FEE PILOT PROGRAM

15 Sec. 54. Section 455A.14A, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
 16 2020, is amended to read as follows:

17 a. The department shall charge an entrance fee of five
 18 dollars per vehicle ~~for a~~ if the vehicle is operated by a
 19 nonresident of the state, which the nonresident operator shall
 20 pay.

21 Sec. 55. Section 455A.14B, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
 22 2020, is amended to read as follows:

23 a. The department shall charge an entrance fee of five
 24 dollars per vehicle ~~for a~~ if the vehicle is operated by a
 25 nonresident of the state, which the nonresident operator shall
 26 pay.

27 Sec. 56. Section 805.8C, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 28 following new subsection:

29 NEW SUBSECTION. 13. *State park user fee violations.* For
 30 failure to pay the entrance fee by a nonresident operator of a
 31 vehicle under section 455A.14A, subsection 1, paragraph "a",
 32 or under section 455A.14B, subsection 1, paragraph "a", the
 33 scheduled fine is fifteen dollars.

34 DIVISION XI

35 EFFECTIVE DATE

PAGE 41

1 Sec. 57. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act takes effect July 15,
 2 2020.>

3 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 4 <An Act relating to the criminal and juvenile justice system
 5 by modifying criminal penalties, surcharges, fines, fees, and
 6 costs, creating and modifying funds, making appropriations and
 7 allocating revenues, modifying installment agreements, and
 8 providing effective date provisions.>

H-8249

- 1 Amend House File 2642 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 5, by striking line 1 and inserting:
- 3 <..... \$ 130,000>
- 4 2. Page 6, after line 25 by inserting:
- 5 <e. To the fire service training bureau for costs associated
- 6 with moving the fire safety training bureau, notwithstanding
- 7 section 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph "c":
- 8 FY 2020-2021:
- 9 \$ 150,000>
- 10 3. By renumbering as necessary.

BENNETT of Linn

H-8250

- 1 Amend House File 2627 as follows:
- 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
- 3 inserting:
- 4 <DIVISION I
- 5 PROFESSIONAL LICENSING
- 6 Section 1. Section 103.6, subsection 1, paragraph e, Code
- 7 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
- 8 Sec. 2. Section 103.9, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
- 9 by striking the subsection.
- 10 Sec. 3. Section 103.10, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
- 11 by striking the subsection.
- 12 Sec. 4. Section 103.12, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
- 13 by striking the subsection.
- 14 Sec. 5. Section 103.12A, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
- 15 by striking the subsection.
- 16 Sec. 6. Section 103.13, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
- 17 by striking the subsection.
- 18 Sec. 7. Section 103.15, subsection 7, Code 2020, is amended
- 19 by striking the subsection.
- 20 Sec. 8. Section 105.10, subsection 5, Code 2020, is amended
- 21 by striking the subsection.
- 22 Sec. 9. Section 105.22, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
- 23 by striking the subsection.
- 24 Sec. 10. Section 135.105A, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
- 25 amended to read as follows:
- 26 5. The department shall adopt rules regarding minimum
- 27 requirements for lead inspector, lead abater, and lead-safe
- 28 renovator training programs, certification, work practice
- 29 standards, and suspension and revocation requirements, and
- 30 shall implement the training and certification programs. Rules
- 31 adopted pursuant to this subsection shall comply with chapter
- 32 272C. The department shall seek federal funding and shall
- 33 establish fees in amounts sufficient to defray the cost of the
- 34 programs. The fees shall be used for any of the department's
- 35 duties under this subchapter, including but not limited

PAGE 2

1 to the costs of full-time equivalent positions for program
 2 services and investigations. Fees received shall be considered
 3 repayment receipts as defined in section 8.2.

4 Sec. 11. Section 147.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:

6 **147.3 Qualifications.**

7 An applicant for a license to practice a profession under
 8 this subtitle is not ineligible because of age, citizenship,
 9 sex, race, religion, marital status, or national origin,
 10 although the application form may require citizenship
 11 information. ~~A board may consider the past criminal record of~~
 12 ~~an applicant only if the conviction relates to the practice of~~
 13 ~~the profession for which the applicant requests to be licensed.~~

14 Sec. 12. Section 147.55, subsection 5, Code 2020, is amended
 15 by striking the subsection.

16 Sec. 13. Section 147A.7, subsection 1, paragraph j, Code
 17 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

18 Sec. 14. Section 148.6, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
 19 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

20 Sec. 15. Section 148H.7, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
 21 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

22 Sec. 16. Section 151.9, subsection 5, Code 2020, is amended
 23 by striking the subsection.

24 Sec. 17. Section 152.10, subsection 2, paragraph c, Code
 25 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

26 Sec. 18. Section 153.34, subsection 9, Code 2020, is amended
 27 by striking the subsection.

28 Sec. 19. Section 154A.24, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 29 amended by striking the subsection.

30 Sec. 20. Section 156.9, subsection 2, paragraph e, Code
 31 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

32 Sec. 21. Section 272.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 33 following new subsection:

34 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. "*Offense directly relates*" refers to
 35 either of the following:

PAGE 3

1 a. The actions taken in furtherance of an offense are
 2 actions customarily performed within the scope of practice of
 3 a licensed profession.

4 b. The circumstances under which an offense was committed
 5 are circumstances customary to a licensed profession.

6 Sec. 22. Section 272.2, subsection 14, paragraph a, Code
 7 2020, is amended to read as follows:

8 a. The board may deny a license to or revoke the license
 9 of a person upon the board's finding by a preponderance of
 10 evidence that either the person has been convicted of ~~a crime~~
 11 an offense and the offense directly relates to the duties and
 12 responsibilities of the profession or that there has been

13 a founded report of child abuse against the person. Rules
14 adopted in accordance with this paragraph shall provide that
15 in determining whether a person should be denied a license or
16 that a practitioner's license should be revoked, the board
17 shall consider the nature and seriousness of the founded abuse
18 or crime in relation to the position sought, the time elapsed
19 since the crime was committed, the degree of rehabilitation
20 which has taken place since the incidence of founded abuse or
21 the commission of the crime, the likelihood that the person
22 will commit the same abuse or crime again, and the number of
23 founded abuses committed by or criminal convictions of the
24 person involved.

25 Sec. 23. Section 272C.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
26 following new subsection:

27 NEW SUBSECTION. 7A. "*Offense directly relates*" refers to
28 either of the following:

29 a. The actions taken in furtherance of an offense are
30 actions customarily performed within the scope of practice of
31 a licensed profession.

32 b. The circumstances under which an offense was committed
33 are circumstances customary to a licensed profession.

34 Sec. 24. Section 272C.4, subsection 13, Code 2020, is
35 amended by striking the subsection.

PAGE 4

1 Sec. 25. Section 272C.10, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
2 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
3 thereof the following:

4 5. Conviction of a felony offense, if the offense directly
5 relates to the profession or occupation of the licensee, in the
6 courts of this state or another state, territory, or country.
7 Conviction as used in this subsection includes a conviction of
8 an offense which if committed in this state would be a felony
9 without regard to its designation elsewhere, and includes a
10 finding or verdict of guilt made or returned in a criminal
11 proceeding even if the adjudication of guilt is withheld or not
12 entered. A certified copy of the final order or judgment of
13 conviction or plea of guilty in this state or in another state
14 constitutes conclusive evidence of the conviction.

15 Sec. 26. NEW SECTION. **272C.12 Licensure of persons licensed**
16 **in other jurisdictions.**

17 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an
18 occupational or professional license, certificate, or
19 registration, including a license, certificate, or registration
20 issued by the board of educational examiners, shall be issued
21 without an examination to a person who establishes residency
22 in this state or to a person who is married to an active duty
23 member of the military forces of the United States and who is
24 accompanying the member on an official permanent change of
25 station to a military installation located in this state if all
26 of the following conditions are met:

- 27 *a.* The person is currently licensed, certified, or
28 registered by at least one other issuing jurisdiction in the
29 occupation or profession applied for with a substantially
30 similar scope of practice and the license, certificate, or
31 registration is in good standing in all issuing jurisdictions
32 in which the person holds a license, certificate, or
33 registration.
34 *b.* The person has been licensed, certified, or registered by
35 another issuing jurisdiction for at least one year.

PAGE 5

- 1 *c.* When the person was licensed by the issuing jurisdiction,
2 the issuing jurisdiction imposed minimum educational
3 requirements and, if applicable, work experience and clinical
4 supervision requirements, and the issuing jurisdiction verifies
5 that the person met those requirements in order to be licensed
6 in that issuing jurisdiction.
7 *d.* The person previously passed an examination required by
8 the other issuing jurisdiction for licensure, certification,
9 or registration, if applicable.
10 *e.* The person has not had a license, certificate, or
11 registration revoked and has not voluntarily surrendered a
12 license, certificate, or registration in any other issuing
13 jurisdiction or country while under investigation for
14 unprofessional conduct.
15 *f.* The person has not had discipline imposed by any other
16 regulating entity in this state or another issuing jurisdiction
17 or country. If another jurisdiction has taken disciplinary
18 action against the person, the appropriate licensing board
19 shall determine if the cause for the action was corrected and
20 the matter resolved. If the licensing board determines that
21 the matter has not been resolved by the jurisdiction imposing
22 discipline, the licensing board shall not issue or deny a
23 license, certificate, or registration to the person until the
24 matter is resolved.
25 *g.* The person does not have a complaint, allegation, or
26 investigation pending before any regulating entity in another
27 issuing jurisdiction or country that relates to unprofessional
28 conduct. If the person has any complaints, allegations, or
29 investigations pending, the appropriate licensing board shall
30 not issue or deny a license, certificate, or registration to
31 the person until the complaint, allegation, or investigation
32 is resolved.
33 *h.* The person pays all applicable fees.
34 *i.* The person does not have a criminal history that would
35 prevent the person from holding the license, certificate, or

PAGE 6

- 1 registration applied for in this state.
2 2. A person licensed pursuant to this section is subject to

3 the laws regulating the person's practice in this state and is
 4 subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate licensing board.
 5 3. This section does not apply to any of the following:
 6 a. The ability of a licensing board, agency, or department
 7 to require the submission of fingerprints or completion of a
 8 criminal history check.
 9 b. Criteria for a license, certificate, or registration that
 10 is established by an interstate compact.
 11 c. The ability of a licensing board, agency, or department
 12 to require a person to take and pass an examination specific to
 13 the laws of this state prior to issuing a license. A licensing
 14 board, agency, or department that requires an applicant to take
 15 and pass an examination specific to the laws of this state
 16 shall issue an applicant a temporary license that is valid
 17 for a period of three months and may be renewed once for an
 18 additional period of three months.
 19 d. A license issued by the department of transportation.
 20 e. A person who is licensed by another issuing jurisdiction
 21 and is granted a privilege to practice in this state by another
 22 provision of law without receiving a license in this state.
 23 f. A person applying for a license through a national
 24 licensing organization.
 25 4. A license, certificate, or registration issued
 26 pursuant to this section does not grant the person receiving
 27 the license, certificate, or registration eligibility to
 28 practice pursuant to an interstate compact. A licensing
 29 board shall determine eligibility for a person to hold a
 30 license, certificate, or registration pursuant to this section
 31 regardless of the person's eligibility to practice pursuant to
 32 an interstate compact.
 33 5. For the purposes of this section, "*issuing jurisdiction*"
 34 means the duly constituted authority in another state that has
 35 issued a professional license, certificate, or registration to

PAGE 7

1 a person.
 2 Sec. 27. NEW SECTION. 272C.13 Educational requirements —
 3 **work experience.**
 4 1. Except as provided in subsection 2, a person applying
 5 for a professional or occupational license, certificate, or
 6 registration in this state who is not licensed, certified, or
 7 registered in another state shall be considered to have met any
 8 education, training, or work experience requirements imposed
 9 by a licensing board in this state if the person has three or
 10 more years of related work experience within the four years
 11 preceding the date of application.
 12 2. This section does not apply to a license, certificate,
 13 or registration issued by the board of medicine, the board of
 14 nursing, the dental board, or the board of pharmacy.
 15 Sec. 28. NEW SECTION. 272C.14 Waiver of fees.
 16 A licensing board, agency, or department shall waive any

17 fee charged to an applicant for a license if the applicant's
 18 household income does not exceed two hundred percent of the
 19 federal poverty income guidelines and the applicant is applying
 20 for the license for the first time in this state.

21 Sec. 29. NEW SECTION. 272C.15 Disqualifications for
 22 **criminal convictions limited.**

23 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 24 contrary, except for chapter 272, a person's conviction of a
 25 crime may be grounds for the denial, revocation, or suspension
 26 of a license only if an unreasonable risk to public safety
 27 exists because the offense directly relates to the duties
 28 and responsibilities of the profession and the appropriate
 29 licensing board, agency, or department does not grant an
 30 exception pursuant to subsection 4.

31 2. A licensing board, agency, or department that may deny a
 32 license on the basis of an applicant's conviction record shall
 33 provide a list of the specific convictions that may disqualify
 34 an applicant from receiving a license. Any such offense
 35 shall be an offense that directly relates to the duties and

PAGE 8

1 responsibilities of the profession.

2 3. A licensing board, agency, or department shall not deny
 3 an application for a license on the basis of an arrest that
 4 was not followed by a conviction or based on a finding that an
 5 applicant lacks good character, suffers from moral turpitude,
 6 or on other similar basis.

7 4. A licensing board, agency, or department shall grant
 8 an exception to an applicant who would otherwise be denied a
 9 license due to a criminal conviction if the following factors
 10 establish by clear and convincing evidence that the applicant
 11 is rehabilitated and an appropriate candidate for licensure:

12 a. The nature and seriousness of the crime for which the
 13 applicant was convicted.

14 b. The amount of time that has passed since the commission
 15 of the crime. There is a rebuttable presumption that an
 16 applicant is rehabilitated and an appropriate candidate
 17 for licensure five years after the date of the applicant's
 18 release from incarceration, provided that the applicant was
 19 not convicted of sexual abuse in violation of section 709.4,
 20 a sexually violent offense as defined in section 229A.2,
 21 dependent adult abuse in violation of section 235B.20, a
 22 forcible felony as defined in section 702.11, or domestic abuse
 23 assault in violation of section 708.2A, and the applicant
 24 has not been convicted of another crime after release from
 25 incarceration.

26 c. The circumstances relative to the offense, including any
 27 aggravating and mitigating circumstances or social conditions
 28 surrounding the commission of the offense.

29 d. The age of the applicant at the time the offense was
 30 committed.

- 31 *e.* Any treatment undertaken by the applicant.
32 *f.* Whether a certification of employability has been issued
33 to the applicant pursuant to section 906.19.
34 *g.* Any letters of reference submitted on behalf of the
35 applicant.

PAGE 9

- 1 *h.* All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present
2 fitness of the applicant.
3 5. An applicant may petition the relevant licensing board,
4 agency, or department, in a form prescribed by the board,
5 agency, or department, for a determination as to whether the
6 applicant's criminal record will prevent the applicant from
7 receiving a license. The board, agency, or department shall
8 issue such a determination at the next regularly scheduled
9 meeting of the board, agency, or department or within thirty
10 days of receiving the petition, whichever is later. The
11 board, agency, or department shall hold a closed session
12 while determining whether an applicant's criminal record will
13 prevent the applicant from receiving a license and while
14 determining whether to deny an applicant's application on
15 the basis of an applicant's criminal conviction. A board,
16 agency, or department may charge a fee to recoup the costs of
17 such a determination, provided that such fee shall not exceed
18 twenty-five dollars.
19 6. *a.* A licensing board, agency, or department that
20 denies an applicant a license solely or partly because of
21 the applicant's prior conviction of a crime shall notify the
22 applicant in writing of all of the following:
23 (1) The grounds for the denial or disqualification.
24 (2) That the applicant has the right to a hearing to
25 challenge the licensing authority's decision.
26 (3) The earliest date the applicant may submit a new
27 application.
28 (4) That evidence of rehabilitation of the applicant may be
29 considered upon reapplication.
30 *b.* A determination by a licensing board, agency, or
31 department that an applicant's criminal conviction is
32 specifically listed as a disqualifying conviction and the
33 offense directly relates to the duties and responsibilities
34 of the applicant's profession must be documented in written
35 findings for each factor specified in subsection 5 sufficient

PAGE 10

- 1 for a review by a court.
2 *c.* In any administrative or civil hearing authorized by
3 this section or chapter 17A, a licensing board, agency, or
4 department shall carry the burden of proof on the question of
5 whether the applicant's criminal offense directly relates to
6 the duties and responsibilities of the profession for which the

7 license is sought.

8 7. A board, agency, or department may require an applicant
 9 with a criminal record to submit the applicant's complete
 10 criminal record detailing an applicant's offenses with an
 11 application. A board, agency, or department may also require
 12 an applicant with a criminal record to submit a personal
 13 statement regarding whether each offense directly relates to
 14 the duties and performance of the applicant's occupation. For
 15 the purposes of this subsection, "*complete criminal record*"
 16 includes the complaint and judgment of conviction for each
 17 offense of which the applicant has been convicted.

18 Sec. 30. RULEMAKING PROCEDURES AND APPLICABILITY.

19 1. The boards designated in section 147.13 other than the
 20 board of medicine, the board of nursing, the dental board, and
 21 the board of pharmacy, when carrying out rulemaking pursuant to
 22 chapter 17A to implement the provisions of this Act, shall each
 23 adopt the same rules, which shall be applicable to all such
 24 boards. The bureau of professional licensure of the department
 25 of public health shall assist the boards in carrying out such
 26 rulemaking.

27 2. The accountancy examining board, the architectural
 28 examining board, the engineering and land surveying examining
 29 board, the interior design examining board, the landscape
 30 architectural examining board, and the real estate commission,
 31 when carrying out rulemaking pursuant to chapter 17A to
 32 implement the provisions of this Act, shall each adopt the same
 33 rules, which shall be applicable to all such boards and the
 34 real estate commission. The professional licensing bureau of
 35 the department of commerce shall assist the boards and the real

PAGE 11

1 estate commission in carrying out such rulemaking.

2 3. This section shall not apply to any rulemaking pursuant
 3 to chapter 17A by a board or commission to implement the
 4 provisions of this Act that the board or commission determines
 5 is necessary to address circumstances or legal requirements
 6 uniquely applicable to the board or commission.

7 Sec. 31. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act takes
 8 effect January 1, 2021.

9 DIVISION II

10 MISCELLANEOUS CHANGES

11 Sec. 32. Section 22.2, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 12 following new subsection:
 13 NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. If feasible, the custodian of a public
 14 record may provide for the electronic examination and copying
 15 of a public record in lieu of requiring in-person examination
 16 and copying of a public record. This subsection does not apply
 17 to searches of all indexes, general and specific, of public
 18 records relating to documents, instruments, and muniments of
 19 title, for the purpose of performing title searches, real
 20 property searches, or creating real property abstracts.

21 Sec. 33. Section 22.4, Code 2020, is amended to read as
22 follows:

23 **22.4 Hours when available Public records requests.**

24 The rights of persons under this chapter may be exercised
25 under any of the following circumstances:

26 1. In person, at any time during the customary office hours
27 of the lawful custodian of the records. However, if the lawful
28 custodian does not have customary office hours of at least
29 thirty hours per week, such right may be exercised at any time
30 from 9:00 a.m. to noon and from 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday
31 through Friday, excluding legal holidays, unless the person
32 exercising such right and the lawful custodian agree on a
33 different time.

34 2. In writing, by telephone, or by electronic means. The
35 lawful custodian of the records shall post information for

PAGE 12

1 making such requests in a manner reasonably calculated to
2 apprise the public of that information.

3 Sec. 34. Section 80A.1, subsection 12, Code 2020, is amended
4 to read as follows:

5 12. *“Private security business”* means a business of
6 furnishing, for hire or reward, guards, watch personnel,
7 armored car personnel, patrol personnel, or other persons to
8 protect persons or property, to prevent the unlawful taking of
9 goods and merchandise, or to prevent the misappropriation or
10 concealment of goods, merchandise, money, securities, or other
11 valuable documents or papers, and includes an individual who
12 for hire patrols, watches, or guards a residential, industrial,
13 or business property or district. *“Private security business”*
14 does not include a business for debt collection as defined in
15 section 537.7102.

16 Sec. 35. Section 89A.3, subsection 2, paragraph i, Code
17 2020, is amended to read as follows:

18 i. The amount of fees charged and collected for inspection,
19 permits, and commissions. Fees shall be set at an amount
20 sufficient to cover costs as determined from consideration
21 of the reasonable time required to conduct an inspection,
22 reasonable hourly wages paid to inspectors, and reasonable
23 transportation and similar expenses. The safety board shall
24 also be authorized to consider setting reduced fees for
25 nonprofit associations and nonprofit corporations, as described
26 in chapters 501B and 504.

27 Sec. 36. Section 125.38, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
28 to read as follows:

29 1. Subject to reasonable rules regarding hours of
30 visitation which the department may adopt, a patient in
31 a facility shall be granted an opportunity for adequate
32 consultation with counsel, and for continuing contact with
33 family and friends consistent with an effective treatment
34 program, provided that such consultation and contact may be

35 provided telephonically or electronically.

PAGE 13

1 Sec. 37. Section 135B.5, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
2 to read as follows:

3 1. Upon receipt of an application for license and the
4 license fee, the department shall issue a license if the
5 applicant and hospital facilities comply with this chapter,
6 chapter 135, and the rules of the department. Each licensee
7 shall receive annual reapproval upon payment of five hundred
8 dollars and upon filing of an application form which is
9 available from the department. The annual licensure fee shall
10 be dedicated to support and provide educational programs on
11 regulatory issues for hospitals licensed under this chapter ~~in~~
12 ~~consultation with the hospital licensing board.~~ Licenses shall
13 be either general or restricted in form. Each license shall be
14 issued only for the premises and persons or governmental units
15 named in the application and is not transferable or assignable
16 except with the written approval of the department. Licenses
17 shall be posted in a conspicuous place on the licensed premises
18 as prescribed by rule of the department.

19 Sec. 38. Section 135B.7, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
20 2020, is amended to read as follows:

21 a. The department, with the ~~advice and approval of the~~
22 ~~hospital licensing board and approval of the state board of~~
23 health, shall adopt rules setting out the standards for the
24 different types of hospitals to be licensed under this chapter.
25 The department shall enforce the rules.

26 Sec. 39. Section 272.2, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
27 2020, is amended to read as follows:

28 a. License practitioners, which includes the authority to
29 establish criteria for the licenses; establish issuance and
30 renewal requirements, provided that a continuing education
31 requirement may be completed by electronic means; create
32 application and renewal forms; create licenses that authorize
33 different instructional functions or specialties; develop a
34 code of professional rights and responsibilities, practices,
35 and ethics, which shall, among other things, address the

PAGE 14

1 failure of a practitioner to fulfill contractual obligations
2 under section 279.13; and develop any other classifications,
3 distinctions, and procedures which may be necessary to exercise
4 licensing duties. In addressing the failure of a practitioner
5 to fulfill contractual obligations, the board shall consider
6 factors beyond the practitioner's control.

7 Sec. 40. Section 483A.24, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
8 2020, is amended to read as follows:

9 a. Fifty of the nonresident deer hunting licenses shall
10 be allocated as ~~requested by a majority of a committee~~

11 ~~consisting of the majority leader of the senate, speaker of~~
12 ~~the house of representatives, and director of the economic~~
13 ~~development authority, or their designees determined by the~~
14 ~~department.~~ The licenses provided pursuant to this subsection
15 shall be in addition to the number of nonresident licenses
16 authorized pursuant to section 483A.8. The purpose of the
17 special nonresident licenses is to allow state officials and
18 local development groups to promote the state and its natural
19 resources to nonresident guests and dignitaries. Photographs,
20 videotapes, or any other form of media resulting from the
21 hunting visitation shall not be used for political campaign
22 purposes. The nonresident licenses shall be issued without
23 application upon purchase of a nonresident annual hunting
24 license that includes the wildlife habitat fee and the purchase
25 of a nonresident deer hunting license. The licenses are valid
26 in all zones open to deer hunting. The hunter education
27 certificate requirement pursuant to section 483A.27 is waived
28 for a nonresident issued a license pursuant to this subsection.
29 Sec. 41. Section 483A.24, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
30 2020, is amended to read as follows:
31 *a.* Fifty of the nonresident wild turkey hunting licenses
32 shall be allocated as ~~requested by a majority of a committee~~
33 ~~consisting of the majority leader of the senate, speaker of~~
34 ~~the house of representatives, and director of the economic~~
35 ~~development authority, or their designees determined by the~~

PAGE 15

1 department. The licenses provided pursuant to this subsection
2 shall be in addition to the number of nonresident licenses
3 authorized pursuant to section 483A.7. The purpose of the
4 special nonresident licenses is to allow state officials and
5 local development groups to promote the state and its natural
6 resources to nonresident guests and dignitaries. Photographs,
7 videotapes, or any other form of media resulting from the
8 hunting visitation shall not be used for political campaign
9 purposes. The nonresident licenses shall be issued without
10 application upon purchase of a nonresident annual hunting
11 license that includes the wildlife habitat fee and the purchase
12 of a nonresident wild turkey hunting license. The licenses are
13 valid in all zones open to wild turkey hunting. The hunter
14 education certificate requirement pursuant to section 483A.27
15 is waived for a nonresident issued a license pursuant to this
16 subsection.
17 Sec. 42. Section 543D.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
18 follows:
19 **543D.9 Education and experience requirement.**
20 The board shall determine what real estate appraisal or
21 real estate appraisal review experience and what education
22 shall be required to provide appropriate assurance that
23 an applicant for certification is competent to perform the
24 certified appraisal work which is within the scope of practice

25 defined by the board. All experience required for initial
 26 certification shall be performed as a registered associate
 27 real estate appraiser acting under the direct supervision of
 28 a certified real estate appraiser who meets the supervisory
 29 requirements established by applicable federal authorities or
 30 federal law, rule, or policy in effect at the time the hours
 31 of experience are claimed, except as the board may provide by
 32 rule. Subject to requirements or limitations established by
 33 applicable federal authorities or federal law, rule, or policy,
 34 hours qualifying for experience in a bordering state will
 35 be considered qualifying hours for experience in this state

PAGE 16

1 without requiring a waiver or authorization from the board in
 2 accordance with rules and standards adopted by the board, as
 3 long as a majority of qualifying hours are completed in this
 4 state. Qualifying hours completed in a bordering state shall
 5 be under the direct supervision of a certified real estate
 6 appraiser with active certification in that bordering state.
 7 The board shall prescribe a required minimum number of tested
 8 hours of education relating to the provisions of this chapter,
 9 the uniform appraisal standards, and other rules issued in
 10 accordance with this chapter.

11 Sec. 43. Section 544A.8, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 12 following new subsection:

13 **NEW SUBSECTION. 5.** A person applying to the board for
 14 licensure who has passed a module of the architect registration
 15 examination but failed to pass the exam shall not be required
 16 to retake the module that the applicant previously passed in
 17 subsequent examinations.

18 Sec. 44. REPEAL. Chapter 9D, Code 2020, is repealed.

19 Sec. 45. REPEAL. Sections 135B.10 and 135B.11, Code 2020,
 20 are repealed.

21 Sec. 46. 2018 Iowa Acts, chapter 1142, section 8, as amended
 22 by 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 118, is amended to read
 23 as follows:

24 **SEC. 8. FUTURE REPEAL.** Section 155A.44, Code 2018, is
 25 repealed effective July 1, ~~2020~~ 2021.

26 Sec. 47. **CONTINUING EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS.** The boards
 27 designated in section 147.13 shall require licensees required
 28 to complete continuing education credits prior to the renewal
 29 of a license set to expire in 2020 to complete such continuing
 30 education credits by June 30, 2021. A license set to expire in
 31 2020 shall not expire until June 30, 2021.

32 Sec. 48. **CONTINUING EDUCATION — ELECTRONIC MEANS.** For the
 33 period beginning on the effective date of this Act through June
 34 30, 2021, notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary,
 35 each licensing board, as defined in section 272C.1, shall allow

PAGE 17

1 licensees to satisfy continuing education requirements by
2 electronic means.

3 Sec. 49. TELEHEALTH SERVICES — TEMPORARY PROVISIONS.

- 4 1. For the period beginning on the effective date of this
5 Act through June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 514C.34,
6 subsection 1, paragraph “c”, the definition of “telehealth”
7 shall include the delivery of health care services through
8 an audio-only telephone transmission. The commissioner of
9 insurance shall ensure that any health carrier, as defined in
10 section 514J.102, shall reimburse a health care professional,
11 as defined in section 514J.102, for medically necessary,
12 clinically appropriate covered services for telehealth services
13 provided to a covered person, as defined in section 514J.102,
14 on the same basis and at the same rate as the health carrier
15 would apply to the same health care services provided to a
16 covered person by the health care professional in person.
- 17 2. For the period beginning on the effective date of this
18 Act through June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 147.137, 653
19 IAC 13.11, 641 IAC 155.2, and other implementing administrative
20 rules establishing preconditions, limitations, or restrictions
21 on the provision of telehealth or telemedicine services,
22 telehealth and telemedicine services may be provided without
23 such preconditions, limitations, or restrictions.
- 24 3. For the period beginning on the effective date of this
25 Act through June 30, 2021, notwithstanding 641 IAC 155.21(19),
26 641 IAC 155.23(4), and other administrative rules which require
27 in-person interactions with health care providers and allow
28 in-person visitation in inpatient treatment programs, such
29 interactions and visitations may occur by electronic means.
- 30 Sec. 50. TELEHEALTH SERVICES — REPORTS.
- 31 1. The three largest private health care systems in
32 the state, the university of Iowa health care system, and
33 associations representing carriers and health care providers,
34 as defined in section 514C.13, shall, by March 15, 2021, submit
35 reports to the general assembly that include the following

PAGE 18

- 1 data:
- 2 a. The overhead and administrative cost savings for
3 telehealth services as compared to in-person health care
4 services, specified by covered service.
- 5 b. Investments made in telehealth services.
- 6 c. The number of telehealth services that are followed by
7 in-person health care visits.
- 8 d. The rate of potentially preventable events for
9 individuals utilizing in-person health care services as
10 compared to telehealth services, including but not limited
11 to hospital admissions, hospital readmissions, and hospital
12 emergency department use.

13 e. The rate of medication adherence for individuals
 14 utilizing in-person health care services as compared to
 15 telehealth services.
 16 f. The utilization of telehealth services as compared
 17 to in-person health care services, specified by both the
 18 percentage of dollars spent and claims.
 19 g. Any incidences of fraud, waste, or abuse identified by
 20 the carrier.
 21 2. Each report under subsection 1 shall present data
 22 separately based on whether the patient received telehealth
 23 services in a health care facility or in another location.
 24 If available, each report shall also include information on
 25 whether a patient is a resident of a rural area of Iowa.
 26 Sec. 51. SCHOOL PHYSICALS — TEMPORARY PROVISIONS. For
 27 the period beginning on the effective date of this Act through
 28 December 31, 2020, a student participating in interscholastic
 29 athletics who presents to the student's superintendent a
 30 certificate signed on or after July 1, 2019, by a licensed
 31 physician or surgeon, osteopathic physician or surgeon,
 32 chiropractor, physician assistant, or advanced registered nurse
 33 practitioner, to the effect that the student has been examined
 34 and may safely engage in athletic competition, shall be deemed
 35 to have complied with the regulatory provisions of 281 IAC

PAGE 19

1 36.14(1).
 2 Sec. 52. SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS — TEMPORARY PROVISIONS. For
 3 the period beginning on the effective date of this Act
 4 through December 31, 2020, notwithstanding the provisions of
 5 chapters 490, 491, 499, and 501A requiring an in-person meeting
 6 of shareholders, policyholders, or members, an in-person
 7 meeting of shareholders, policyholders, or members shall
 8 not be required if the meeting is held by means of remote
 9 communication and provides shareholders, policyholders, or
 10 members a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting
 11 and to vote on matters submitted for action at such meeting,
 12 including an opportunity to communicate and to read or hear the
 13 proceedings of the meeting, substantially concurrent with the
 14 occurrence of such meeting.
 15 Sec. 53. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 16 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.>
 17 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 6 and inserting
 18 <An Act relating to governmental and regulatory matters
 19 including the granting and renewal of licenses, certificates,
 20 and registrations, and including effective date provisions.>

LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8251

1 Amend House File 2365, as passed by the House, as follows:

2 1. Page 2, after line 6 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. ___. Section 96.40, subsection 2, paragraph e, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 e. The reduction in hours and corresponding reduction in
 6 wages must be applied equally to all employees in the affected
 7 unit for each week reported.
 8 Sec. ___. Section 96.40, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 9 following new subsection:
 10 NEW SUBSECTION. 4A. An employer may file an appeal in
 11 writing of a denial or approval of a plan or revocation of an
 12 approved plan by the department within thirty days from the
 13 date of the decision.
 14 Sec. ___. Section 96.40, subsection 9, paragraph b, Code
 15 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 16 b. An employer may provide as part of the plan a training
 17 program the employees may attend during the hours that
 18 have been reduced. Such a training program may include a
 19 training program funded under the federal Workforce Investment
 20 Innovation and Opportunity Act, of 1998, Pub. L. No. 105-220
 21 113-128. If the employer is able to show that the training
 22 program will provide a substantive increase in the workplace
 23 and employability skills of the employee so as to reduce the
 24 potential for future periods of unemployment, the department
 25 shall relieve the employer of charges for benefits paid to the
 26 individual attending training under the plan. The employee
 27 may attend the training at the work site utilizing internal
 28 resources, provided the training is outside of the normal
 29 course of employment, or in conjunction with an educational
 30 institution.
 31 Sec. ___. APPLICABILITY. The sections of this Act amending
 32 section 96.40 apply to all voluntary shared work plans approved
 33 by the department of workforce development on or after the
 34 effective date of this Act.>
 35 2. Title page, line 3, after <benefits> by inserting <and

PAGE 2

1 the voluntary shared work program, and including applicability
 2 provisions>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8252

1 Amend the amendment, H-8240, to Senate File 2310, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking page 1, line 3, through page 9, line 20, and
 4 inserting:
 5 <___. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 6 DIVISION I
 7 ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM AND COURSEWORK REQUIREMENTS>
 8 ___. Page 2, line 4, by striking <a.>

- 9 ____ Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 28.
- 10 ____ Page 2, line 31, by striking <The provisions of
- 11 subsection 5> and inserting:
- 12 <(1) The offer and teach requirements of subsection 5,
- 13 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
- 14 ____ Page 2, line 35, by striking <(1)> and inserting <(a)>
- 15 ____ Page 3, line 4, by striking <(2)> and inserting <(b)>
- 16 ____ Page 3, after line 6 by inserting:
- 17 <(2) Notwithstanding subparagraph (1), unnumbered paragraph
- 18 1, if either subparagraph (1), subparagraph division (a) or
- 19 (b), apply, a school district or accredited nonpublic school
- 20 may exceed the limitation specified in subparagraph (1),
- 21 unnumbered paragraph 1, to provide world language, personal
- 22 finance literacy, and computer science coursework online
- 23 in accordance with paragraph “c” and the offer and teach
- 24 requirements of subsection 5, paragraphs “j” and “k”, and any
- 25 such requirement as may be established under subsection 5 for
- 26 computer science, shall not apply.>
- 27 ____ Page 3, line 7, after <may> by inserting <at the
- 28 discretion of the department>
- 29 ____ Page 3, line 8, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
- 30 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
- 31 ____ Page 3, line 12, by striking <the requirements of
- 32 subsection 5> and inserting <such requirements>
- 33 ____ Page 3, line 15, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
- 34 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
- 35 ____ Page 3, line 20, by striking <(1) or (2)> and inserting

PAGE 2

- 1 <(1), (2), or (3)>
- 2 ____ Page 3, line 27, by striking <either> and inserting
- 3 <any>
- 4 ____ Page 4, after line 6 by inserting:
- 5 <(3) An online learning platform offered, subject to the
- 6 initial availability of federal funds, by the department in
- 7 collaboration with one or more area education agencies or in
- 8 partnership with school districts and accredited nonpublic
- 9 schools. The online learning platform may deliver distance
- 10 education to secondary students, including students receiving
- 11 independent private instruction as defined in section 299A.1,
- 12 subsection 2, paragraph “b”, competent private instruction
- 13 under section 299A.2, or private instruction by a nonlicensed
- 14 person under section 299A.3, provided the coursework offered
- 15 by the online learning platform is taught and supervised by
- 16 a teacher licensed under chapter 272 who has online learning
- 17 experience and the course content meets the requirements
- 18 established by rule pursuant to section 256.7, subsection 32,
- 19 paragraph “c”. The department and the area education agencies
- 20 operating online learning programs pursuant to section 273.16
- 21 shall coordinate to ensure the most effective use of resources
- 22 and delivery of services. Federal funds, if available, may

23 be used to offset what would otherwise be costs to school
 24 districts for participation in the program.>
 25 ____ Page 4, by striking line 11 and inserting:
 26 <c. Private providers utilized to provide courses by Courses
 27 provided by private providers to a school>
 28 ____ Page 5, after line 25 by inserting:
 29 <Sec. ____ Section 279.10, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 30 the following new subsection:
 31 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. *a.* For the school year beginning July
 32 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, any instruction provided in
 33 accordance with a return-to-learn plan submitted by a school
 34 district or accredited nonpublic school to the department of
 35 education in response to a proclamation of a public health

PAGE 3

1 disaster emergency, issued by the governor pursuant to section
 2 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, shall be deemed to meet the
 3 requirements of subsection 1, regardless of the nature,
 4 location, or medium of instruction if the return-to-learn plan
 5 contains the minimum number of days or hours as required by
 6 subsection 1.
 7 *b.* This subsection is repealed on July 1, 2021.>
 8 ____ Page 5, after line 26 by inserting:
 9 <DIVISION ____
 10 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR USE OF CERTAIN MONEYS BY SCHOOL
 11 DISTRICTS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
 12 Sec. ____ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT MONEYS AND HOURS
 13 REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME FOR THE
 14 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding section 257.10,
 15 subsection 10, and the professional development requirements
 16 of chapter 284, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020,
 17 and ending June 30, 2021, the moneys calculated and paid to
 18 the school district for professional development pursuant to
 19 section 257.10, subsection 10, or section 257.37A, subsection
 20 2, to provide thirty-six hours of professional development
 21 opportunities held outside of the minimum school day, may
 22 instead be used by a school district to provide instructional
 23 time to the school calendar in addition to the amount of
 24 instructional time required under section 279.10, subsection 1,
 25 and the thirty-six-hour professional development requirement
 26 of chapter 284 shall be reduced by such number of hours of
 27 additional instructional time.
 28 Sec. ____ DISTRICT MANAGEMENT LEVY FUND — PERMISSIBLE USES
 29 BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.
 30 1. For the school budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 31 ending June 30, 2021, unencumbered moneys remaining in the
 32 district management levy fund under section 298A.3 at the
 33 end of the budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 34 June 30, 2020, and the taxes certified for levy before the
 35 effective date of this Act under section 298.4 and deposited in

PAGE 4

1 the district management levy fund for the school budget year
 2 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, in addition
 3 to the purposes authorized under section 298.4, may be expended
 4 by a school district to provide additional instructional time
 5 to the school calendar in excess of the amount of instructional
 6 time required under section 279.10, subsection 1, during the
 7 school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
 8 2. The board of directors of a school district,
 9 notwithstanding the budget amendment requirements of chapters
 10 24 and 257, may authorize the expenditure of specified district
 11 management levy funds for purposes specified in subsection 1
 12 by resolution of the board specifying the amount to be used
 13 and the purposes from which the funds will be reallocated, if
 14 the resolution of the board is approved and filed with the
 15 department of education on or before June 30, 2021.

16 DIVISION ____

17 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR CERTAIN EDUCATIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL AND
 18 POLICY REQUIREMENTS

19 Sec. ____ OPEN ENROLLMENT — EXTENSION OF NOTIFICATION
 20 DEADLINE FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding
 21 section 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, for the school
 22 year commencing July 1, 2020, a parent or guardian shall have
 23 until July 15, 2020, to notify to the district of residence and
 24 the receiving district, on forms prescribed by the department
 25 of education, that the parent or guardian intends to enroll
 26 the parent’s or guardian’s child in an online public school
 27 in another school district, if the child, another resident of
 28 the child’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the child
 29 has a significant health condition that increases the risk
 30 of COVID-19. The notification shall include the name of the
 31 person with the health condition, specify the person’s health
 32 condition, include written verification of the health condition
 33 from the person’s physician or licensed health care provider
 34 and, for persons other than the child, whether the person with
 35 the health condition is a resident of the child’s residence

PAGE 5

1 or the child’s regular caretaker. Section 282.18, subsection
 2 3, shall not apply to a notification submitted in accordance
 3 with this section. Notwithstanding section 282.18, subsection
 4 2, paragraph “b”, the superintendent of the receiving school
 5 district is authorized to approve a notification received
 6 under this section. Within fourteen days of receipt of such
 7 notification, the superintendent shall notify the parent or
 8 guardian and the school district of residence that the request
 9 has been approved or denied. If the notification has been
 10 denied or if further review is required, the superintendent
 11 shall provide the parent or guardian with an explanation of
 12 the approval process and expected timeline for the review. A

13 decision to deny a request submitted under this section is
14 subject to appeal under section 290.1. The state board shall
15 exercise broad discretion to achieve just and equitable results
16 that are in the best interest of the affected child. This
17 section is not intended to extend the provisions of section
18 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph "a", for enrollment in a
19 physical school district.

20 Sec. ____. SCHOOL DISTRICT DUTIES RELATING TO COMPETENT
21 PRIVATE INSTRUCTION FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. For the
22 school year commencing July 1, 2020, each school district shall
23 provide to children receiving competent private instruction
24 available texts or supplementary materials on the same basis
25 as they are provided to enrolled students and shall provide
26 available texts or supplemental instructional materials on the
27 same basis as they are provided to enrolled students when a
28 child is under dual enrollment or in a home school assistance
29 program.

30 Sec. ____. SCHOOL DISTRICT CLOSURES DURING THE 2020-2021
31 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
32 ending June 30, 2021, if the governor proclaims a public health
33 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, the board of directors of a
34 school district may authorize closure of the school district
35 or any school district attendance center due to an outbreak

PAGE 6

1 of COVID-19 in the school district or any school district
2 attendance center. School districts are encouraged to follow
3 guidelines issued by the centers for disease control and
4 prevention of the United States department of health and human
5 services and may consult with the local board of health when
6 determining social distancing measures or authorizing a school
7 closure.

8 Sec. ____. INSTRUCTIONAL TIME PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOL
9 DISTRICTS AND ACCREDITED NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR THE 2020-2021
10 SCHOOL YEAR.

11 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
12 contrary, the instructional time requirements of section
13 279.10, subsection 1, and the minimum school day requirements
14 of section 256.7, subsection 19, shall not be waived any time
15 during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
16 30, 2021, for school closure due to the COVID-19 pandemic
17 unless the school district or the authorities in charge of the
18 accredited nonpublic school, as appropriate, provide compulsory
19 remote learning, including online learning, electronic
20 learning, distance learning, or virtual learning.

21 2. If the board of directors of a school district or
22 the authorities in charge of an accredited nonpublic school
23 determines any time during the school year beginning July
24 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, that a remote-learning
25 period is necessary, the school board or the authorities, as
26 appropriate, shall ensure that teachers and other necessary

27 school staff are available during the remote-learning period to
 28 support students, to participate in professional development
 29 opportunities, and to perform other job-related functions
 30 during the regular, required contract hours, even if the
 31 accessibility to or by the teachers and other necessary school
 32 staff is offered remotely through electronic means.
 33 Sec. ___. TRUANCY REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL
 34 YEAR. In addition to the provisions of chapter 299, a
 35 child who is enrolled in a school district or accredited

PAGE 7

1 nonpublic school but who does not participate in compulsory
 2 remote-learning opportunities, including online learning,
 3 electronic learning, distance learning, or virtual learning,
 4 offered by the school district or accredited nonpublic school
 5 of enrollment during a period of school closure implemented any
 6 time during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 7 June 30, 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic shall be considered
 8 truant. This section is not applicable to a child who was
 9 receiving competent private instruction or independent private
 10 instruction in accordance with the requirements of chapter
 11 299A, whose parent, guardian, or legal custodian notified the
 12 school district prior to July 1, 2019. Any child who was
 13 enrolled in a public school or accredited nonpublic school
 14 prior to July 1, 2019, may be subject to the provisions of
 15 chapter 299 if the child's parent, guardian, or legal custodian
 16 did not, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, complete
 17 and send the report required under section 299.4 to the school
 18 district of residence of the child in a timely manner.
 19 Sec. ___. TEACHER ENDORSEMENT WAIVER FOR THE 2020-2021
 20 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 21 ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding any provision to the
 22 contrary, if a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 23 has made every reasonable and good-faith effort to employ a
 24 teacher licensed under chapter 272 who holds an endorsement for
 25 a specified grade level or subject area and is unable to employ
 26 a teacher with the appropriate endorsement, and the school
 27 district or accredited nonpublic school is also unable to
 28 develop, or use a private provider to provide, an online course
 29 that meets the requirements of chapter 256, the director of
 30 the department of education may waive the teacher-endorsement
 31 requirements for the specified grade level or subject area for
 32 the school district or accredited nonpublic school, and the
 33 provisions of section 256.9, subsection 48, and section 272.15,
 34 subsection 4, shall not apply.
 35 Sec. ___. MISCELLANEOUS POLICY PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOLS

PAGE 8

1 FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. The following provisions are
 2 applicable for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and

3 ending June 30, 2021:

4 1. SOCIAL DISTANCING. In implementing social distancing
5 policies, the board of directors of each school district and
6 the authorities in charge of each accredited nonpublic school
7 shall prioritize core academic subjects.

8 2. STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS. The provisions of section 256.7,
9 subsection 21, paragraph “b”, relating to the administration
10 of statewide summative assessment of student progress, and the
11 assessments administered in accordance with sections 279.60
12 and 279.68, shall not be waived, and such assessments shall be
13 administered to students as required by those sections.

14 3. CPR CERTIFICATION — EXCEPTION FOR GRADUATION. If a
15 school district or accredited nonpublic school closes on the
16 advice of a local board of health, the department of public
17 health, or because the governor proclaims a public health
18 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, a student who meets the
19 graduation requirements of section 256.7, subsection 26,
20 paragraph “a”, the requirements of section 280.9A, and the
21 school district’s or accredited nonpublic school’s graduation
22 requirements may graduate without meeting the cardiopulmonary
23 resuscitation certification requirements of section 256.11,
24 section 6, paragraph “c”.

25 4. NOTIFICATION OF SIGNIFICANT HEALTH CONDITION —
26 COMPULSORY REMOTE LEARNING. If a parent or guardian of a
27 student enrolled in a school district or accredited nonpublic
28 school notifies the school district or accredited nonpublic
29 school in writing that the student, another resident of the
30 student’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the student
31 has a significant health condition that increases the risk of
32 COVID-19, the school district or accredited nonpublic school
33 shall make reasonable accommodations for the student, on a
34 case-by-case basis, to attend school through remote learning.
35 The provision of special education and accommodations for

PAGE 9

1 students who have individualized education programs or
2 section 504 plans in compliance with the requirements of
3 section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 29 U.S.C. §794, and
4 with Tit. II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42
5 U.S.C. §12131–12165, will be determined by each respective
6 individualized education program team or section 504 team.
7 The notification shall include the name of the person with
8 the health condition, specify the person’s health condition,
9 include written verification of the health condition from the
10 person’s physician or licensed health care provider and, for
11 persons other than the student, whether the person with the
12 health condition is a resident of the student’s residence
13 or the student’s regular caretaker. A school district or
14 an accredited nonpublic school may collaborate with an area
15 education agency or another school district or accredited
16 nonpublic school to provide remote learning opportunities to a

17 student who meets the requirements of this section.
 18 5. Notwithstanding section 256.7, subsection 32; section
 19 256.9, subsection 55; section 256.43; or any other provision to
 20 the contrary, a school district or accredited nonpublic school
 21 may provide instruction primarily over the internet if such
 22 instruction is provided in accordance with a return-to-learn
 23 plan submitted by the school district or school to the
 24 department of education in response to a proclamation of a
 25 public health disaster emergency, issued by the governor
 26 pursuant to section 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, without
 27 regard to whether the school or school district is approved to
 28 provide instruction primarily over the internet. Instruction
 29 provided pursuant to this section shall be provided by teachers
 30 licensed pursuant to chapter 272 and shall assure and maintain
 31 evidence of alignment of the courses with the Iowa core and
 32 core content requirements and standards.>
 33 _____. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 34 <An Act relating to educational instructional requirements and
 35 funding flexibility.>>

PAGE 10

1 2. By renumbering as necessary.

MOORE of Cass

H-8253

1 Amend the amendment, H-8244, to Senate File 2410, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, by striking lines 30 through 34 and inserting
 4 <"c". The petition must be signed by eligible electors equal in
 5 number to ~~not less than one hundred~~ the lesser of one thousand
 6 or thirty percent of the number of voters who cast a vote for
 7 the board of directors of the school district at the last
 8 preceding election of school officials under section 277.1,
 9 ~~whichever is greater~~ but not less than one hundred. If a>
 10 2. Page 2, by striking lines 24 through 28 and inserting
 11 <"c". The petition must be signed by eligible electors equal in
 12 number to ~~not less than one hundred~~ the lesser of one thousand
 13 or thirty percent of the number of voters who cast a vote for
 14 the board of directors of the school district at the last
 15 preceding election of school officials under section 277.1,
 16 ~~whichever is greater~~ but not less than one hundred. If the>

RUNNING-MARQUARDT of Linn

H-8254

1 Amend House File 2418, as passed by the House, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 13 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. _____. Section 257.40, Code 2020, is amended to read as

4 follows:

5 **257.40 Approval of requests for modified supplement amounts**
6 **for adopted program plans.**

7 1. The board of directors of a school district requesting
8 to use a modified supplemental amount for costs in excess of
9 the funding received under section 257.11, subsection 4, for
10 programs for at-risk students, secondary students who attend
11 alternative programs and alternative schools, or returning
12 dropouts and dropout prevention shall submit requests for a
13 modified supplemental amount, including budget costs, to the
14 school budget review committee not later than January 15 of the
15 budget year preceding the budget year during which the program
16 will be offered. The school budget review committee shall
17 review the request and shall grant approval for the request if
18 the amount requested does not exceed an amount equal to the
19 limitation of section 257.41, subsection 3, minus any funds for
20 the adopted program carried forward from the year prior to the
21 base year. The board of directors shall certify by resolution
22 that the request complies with the school district's adopted
23 program plan. If the amount requested exceeds an amount equal
24 to the limitation of section 257.41, subsection 3, minus any
25 funds for the adopted program carried forward from the year
26 prior to the base year, the amount approved by the school
27 budget review committee shall equal the limitation amount
28 minus any funds for the adopted program carried forward from
29 the year prior to the base year. Not later than March 15, the
30 school budget review committee shall notify the department
31 of management of the names of the school districts for which
32 programs using a modified supplemental amount for funding have
33 been approved and the approved budget of each program listed
34 separately for each school district having an approved request.
35 If requested, the board of directors shall provide the adopted

PAGE 2

1 program plan for any audit performed under chapter 11 or other
2 provision of law.

3 2. If a school district submits a request after January 15
4 but before March 1 of the budget year preceding the budget year
5 during which the program will be offered, the school budget
6 review committee may grant the modified supplemental amount
7 request based on the specifications under subsection 1.>

8 2. Page 1, after line 27 by inserting:

9 <Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of
10 immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

11 Sec. __. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following applies
12 retroactively to January 1, 2020, for requests for modified
13 supplemental amounts filed on or after that date:

14 The section of this Act amending section 257.40.>

15 3. Title page, line 3, by striking <examiners> and inserting
16 <examiners, certain requests made to the school budget review
17 committee, and including effective date and retroactive

- 18 applicability provisions>
 19 4. By renumbering as necessary.

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8255

- 1 Amend House File 2443, as passed by the House, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 14 and inserting:
 3 <Sec. __. Section 261E.3, subsection 1, paragraph e, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 5 e. (1) The student, ~~except as otherwise provided in this~~
 6 ~~paragraph "e",~~ shall have demonstrated proficiency in reading,
 7 mathematics, and science as evidenced by ~~achievement~~ any of the
 8 following:
 9 (a) Achievement scores on the latest administration of the
 10 state assessment for which scores are available and as defined
 11 by the department. ~~However, a~~
 12 (b) If the student is receiving competent private
 13 ~~instruction under chapter 299A, may demonstrate proficiency~~
 14 by submitting the written recommendation of the licensed
 15 practitioner providing supervision to the student in accordance
 16 with section 299A.2; ~~Such student~~ may also demonstrate
 17 proficiency as evidenced by achievement scores on the annual
 18 achievement evaluation required under section 299A.4; or may
 19 demonstrate proficiency as evidenced by a selection index,
 20 which is the sum of the critical reading, mathematics, and
 21 writing skills assessments, of at least one hundred forty-one
 22 on the preliminary scholastic aptitude test administered by
 23 the college board; a composite score of at least twenty-one on
 24 the college readiness assessment administered by ACT, inc.;
 25 or a sum of the critical reading and mathematics scores of at
 26 least nine hundred ninety on the college readiness assessment
 27 administered by the college board.
 28 (2) (a) If a student is not proficient in one or more of
 29 the content areas listed in ~~this paragraph, has not taken the~~
 30 ~~college readiness assessments identified in this paragraph,~~
 31 ~~or has not achieved the scores specified in this paragraph,~~
 32 ~~the subparagraph (1), the student may demonstrate proficiency~~
 33 ~~through measures of college readiness jointly agreed upon by~~
 34 ~~the school board and the eligible postsecondary institution.~~
 35 (b) The school board may establish alternative but

PAGE 2

- 1 equivalent qualifying performance measures including but not
 2 limited to additional administrations of the state assessment,
 3 portfolios of student work, student performance rubric, or
 4 end-of-course assessments.>
 5 2. Page 1, after line 16 by inserting:
 6 <Sec. __. APPLICABILITY. Notwithstanding section 261E.3,
 7 subsection 1, paragraph "e", subparagraph (1), subparagraph

- 8 division (a), as enacted by this Act, for the school year
 9 beginning July 1, 2020, the achievement scores from the state
 10 assessment administered during the school year beginning July
 11 1, 2018, shall be considered the latest available scores.>
 12 3. Title page, line 1, by striking <and assessments>
 13 4. Title page, line 3, after <date> by inserting <and
 14 applicability>
 15 5. By renumbering as necessary.

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8256

- 1 Amend House File 2486, as passed by the House, as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:
 4 <DIVISION I
 5 SECRETARY OF STATE EMERGENCY POWERS
 6 Section 1. Section 47.1, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 7 to read as follows:
 8 2. The state commissioner of elections may exercise
 9 emergency powers over any election being held in a district in
 10 which either a natural or other disaster or extremely inclement
 11 weather has occurred within twenty-one days of the election.
 12 The state commissioner of elections may also exercise emergency
 13 powers during an armed conflict involving United States armed
 14 forces, or mobilization of those forces, or if an election
 15 contest court finds that there were errors in the conduct of
 16 an election making it impossible to determine the result. The
 17 state commissioner of elections shall exercise emergency powers
 18 as provided in section 47.12.
 19 Sec. 2. Section 47.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 20 following new subsection:
 21 **NEW SUBSECTION. 2A.** The general assembly may, by concurrent
 22 resolution, rescind an emergency declaratory order. If the
 23 general assembly is not in session, the legislative council
 24 may, by a majority vote, rescind the emergency declaration
 25 order. Rescission shall be effective upon filing of the
 26 concurrent resolution or vote of the legislative council with
 27 the secretary of state.
 28 Sec. 3. Section 47.1, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended by
 29 striking the subsection.
 30 Sec. 4. **NEW SECTION. 47.12 Emergency election procedures.**
 31 1. For purposes of this section:
 32 a. *"Election contest court"* means any of the courts
 33 specified in sections 57.1, 58.4, 61.1, 62.1A, and 376.10.
 34 b. *"Extremely inclement weather"* means a natural occurrence,
 35 such as a rainstorm, windstorm, ice storm, blizzard, tornado,

PAGE 2

- 1 or other weather conditions, that makes travel extremely

2 dangerous, that threatens the public health and safety, or that
3 damages and destroys public and private property.

4 *c. "Natural disaster"* means a natural occurrence, such
5 as a fire, flood, blizzard, earthquake, tornado, windstorm,
6 ice storm, or other events, that threatens the public health
7 and safety or that damages and destroys public and private
8 property.

9 *d. "Other disaster"* means an occurrence caused by machines
10 or people, such as fire, hazardous substance, or nuclear power
11 plant accident or incident, that threatens the public health
12 and safety or that damages and destroys public and private
13 property.

14 2. The county commissioner of elections, or the county
15 commissioner's designee, may notify the state commissioner
16 that due to a natural or other disaster or extremely inclement
17 weather an election cannot safely be conducted in the time
18 or place for which the election is scheduled to be held. If
19 the county commissioner or the county commissioner's designee
20 is unable to transmit notice of the hazardous conditions,
21 the notice may be given by any elected county official.
22 Verification of the county commissioner's agreement with the
23 severity of the conditions and the danger to the election
24 process shall be transmitted to the state commissioner as soon
25 as possible. Notice may be given by telephone, electronic
26 mail, or by facsimile machine, but a signed notice shall also
27 be delivered to the state commissioner.

28 3. After receiving notice of hazardous conditions, the
29 state commissioner, or the state commissioner's designee, may
30 declare that an emergency exists in the affected precinct or
31 precincts. A copy of the declaration of the emergency shall
32 be provided to the county commissioner and posted on the
33 internet site for both the state commissioner and the county
34 commissioner.

35 4. *a.* When the state commissioner has declared that an

PAGE 3

1 emergency exists due to a natural or other disaster or to
2 extremely inclement weather, the county commissioner, or the
3 county commissioner's designee, shall consult with the state
4 commissioner to develop a plan to conduct the election under
5 the emergency conditions.

6 *b.* Modifications may be made to the method for conducting
7 the election including relocation of polling places,
8 postponement of the hour of opening the polls, postponement of
9 the date of the election if no candidates for federal offices
10 are on the ballot, reduction in the number of precinct election
11 officials in nonpartisan elections, or other reasonable and
12 prudent modifications that will permit the election to be
13 conducted, but no modifications shall be made to requirements
14 for voter identification and absentee ballot request
15 and delivery. All modifications to the usual method for

16 conducting elections shall be approved in advance by the state
17 commissioner unless prior approval is impossible to obtain.
18 c. If an emergency exists in all precincts of a county,
19 the number of polling places shall not be reduced by more than
20 thirty-five percent. The polling places allowed to open shall
21 be equitably distributed in the county based on the ratio of
22 regular polling places located in unincorporated areas in the
23 county to regular polling places in incorporated areas in the
24 county.
25 5. a. A substitute polling place shall be as close as
26 possible to the originally designated polling place and shall
27 be within the same precinct if possible. Preference shall
28 be given to buildings that are accessible to the elderly and
29 disabled. Public buildings shall be made available without
30 charge by the authorities responsible for their administration.
31 If necessary, more than one precinct may be located in the same
32 room.
33 b. A notice of the location of the substitute polling place
34 shall be posted on the door of the former polling place not
35 later than one hour before the scheduled time for opening the

PAGE 4

1 polls or as soon as possible. If it is unsafe or impossible
2 to post the sign on the door of the former polling place, the
3 notice shall be posted in some other visible place at or near
4 the site of the former polling place. If time permits, notice
5 of the relocation of the polling place shall be published in
6 the same newspaper in which notice of election was published,
7 otherwise notice of relocation may be published in any
8 newspaper of general circulation in the political subdivision
9 that will appear on or before election day. The county
10 commissioner shall inform all broadcast media and print news
11 organizations serving the jurisdiction of the modifications and
12 publish a notice on the county commissioner's internet site.
13 6. An election, other than an election at which a federal
14 office appears on the ballot, may be postponed until the
15 following Tuesday. If the election involves more than one
16 precinct, the postponement must include all precincts within
17 the political subdivision. If the election is postponed,
18 ballots shall not be reprinted to reflect the modification in
19 the election date. The date of the close of voter registration
20 by mail for the election shall not be extended. Precinct
21 election registers prepared for the original election date may
22 be used or reprinted at the commissioner's discretion. Except
23 as provided in this section, a postponed election shall be
24 conducted in the same manner as an election taking place on the
25 regularly scheduled election day.
26 7. a. Absentee ballots shall be delivered to voters
27 pursuant to section 53.22 until the date the election is
28 actually held. Absentee ballots shall be accepted at the
29 commissioner's office until the hour the polls close on

30 the date the election is held. Absentee ballots that are
 31 postmarked no later than the day before the election is
 32 actually held or that bear a barcode traceable to a date of
 33 entry into the federal mail system no later than the day before
 34 the election is actually held shall be accepted if received no
 35 later than the length of time prescribed for the usual conduct

PAGE 5

1 of the election. The time shall be calculated from the date on
 2 which the election is held, not the date for which the election
 3 was originally scheduled.
 4 *b.* If absentee ballots have been tabulated before the
 5 election is postponed, the absentee ballots shall be sealed in
 6 an envelope by the absentee and special voters precinct board
 7 and stored securely until the date the election is actually
 8 held. The sealed envelopes shall be opened by the absentee
 9 and special voters precinct board on the date the election is
 10 actually held, counters on the tabulating equipment, if any,
 11 shall be reset to zero, and all absentee ballots tabulated on
 12 the original election date shall be retabulated.
 13 8. The absentee and special voters precinct board shall
 14 meet to consider provisional ballots at the times specified in
 15 sections 50.22 and 52.23, calculated from the date the election
 16 is held. No absentee ballots shall be counted until the date
 17 the election is held.
 18 9. The canvass of votes shall be rescheduled for one week
 19 after the originally scheduled canvass date.
 20 10. *a.* If the emergency is declared while the polls are
 21 open and the decision is made to postpone the election, each
 22 precinct polling place in the political subdivision shall be
 23 notified to close its doors and to halt all voting immediately.
 24 People present in the polling place who are waiting to vote
 25 shall not be given ballots. People who have received and
 26 marked their ballots shall deposit them in the ballot box.
 27 Unmarked ballots shall be returned to the precinct election
 28 officials.
 29 *b.* The precinct election officials shall seal all ballots
 30 that were cast before the declaration of the emergency in
 31 secure containers. The containers shall be clearly marked as
 32 ballots from the postponed election. If it is safe to do so,
 33 the ballot containers, election register, and other election
 34 supplies shall be transported to the county commissioner's
 35 office. The ballots shall be stored in a secure place. If

PAGE 6

1 it is unsafe to travel to the county commissioner's office,
 2 the chairperson of the precinct election board shall securely
 3 store the ballots and the election register until it is safe
 4 to return the ballots and election register to the county
 5 commissioner. If no contest is pending six months after the

- 6 canvass for the election is completed, the unopened, sealed
7 ballot containers shall be destroyed.
- 8 c. If automatic tabulating equipment is used, the automatic
9 tabulating equipment shall be closed and sealed without
10 printing the results. Before the date the election is held,
11 the automatic tabulating equipment shall be reset to zero.
12 Documents showing the progress of the count, if any, shall be
13 sealed in an envelope and stored. No person shall reveal the
14 progress of the count. After six months, the sealed envelope
15 containing the vote totals shall be destroyed if no contest is
16 pending.
- 17 11. The state commissioner shall maintain records of each
18 emergency declaration. The records of emergency declarations
19 for federal elections shall be kept for twenty-two months
20 and records for all other elections shall be kept for six
21 months following the election. The records shall include the
22 following information:
- 23 a. The county in which the emergency occurred.
24 b. The date and time the emergency declaration was
25 requested.
26 c. The name and title of the person making the request.
27 d. The name and date of the election affected.
28 e. The jurisdiction for which the election is to be
29 conducted.
30 f. The number of precincts in the jurisdiction.
31 g. The number of precincts affected by the emergency.
32 h. The nature of the emergency.
33 i. The date or dates of the occurrence of the natural or
34 other disaster or extremely inclement weather.
35 j. The conditions affecting the conduct of the election.

PAGE 7

- 1 k. Whether the polling places may safely be opened on time.
2 l. Any action taken such as but not limited to moving the
3 polling place, changing the voting system, or postponing the
4 election until the following Tuesday.
5 m. The method to be used to inform the public of changes
6 made in the election procedure.
7 n. The signature of the state commissioner or the state
8 commissioner's designee who was responsible for declaring the
9 emergency.
- 10 12. a. (1) If an emergency occurs that will adversely
11 affect the conduct of an election at which candidates for
12 federal office will appear on the ballot, the election shall
13 not be postponed or delayed. Emergency measures shall be
14 limited to relocation of polling places, modification of
15 the method of voting not including requirements for voter
16 identification and absentee ballot request and delivery,
17 reduction of the number of precinct election officials at
18 a precinct, and other modifications of prescribed election
19 procedures that will enable the election to be conducted on the

20 date and during the hours required by law.
21 (2) The primary election held in June of even-numbered years
22 and the general election held in November of even-numbered
23 years shall not be postponed. Special elections called by
24 the governor pursuant to section 69.14 shall not be postponed
25 unless no federal office appears on the ballot.
26 *b.* If a federal or state court order extends the time
27 established for closing the polls pursuant to section 49.73,
28 any person who votes after the statutory hour for closing the
29 polls shall vote only by casting a provisional ballot pursuant
30 to section 49.81. Provisional ballots cast after the statutory
31 hour for closing the polls shall be sealed in a separate
32 envelope from provisional ballots cast during the statutory
33 polling hours. The absentee and special voters precinct board
34 shall tabulate and report the results of the two sets of
35 provisional ballots separately.

PAGE 8

1 13. A voter who is entitled to vote by absentee ballot under
2 the federal Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting
3 Act, 42 U.S.C. §1973ff et seq., and the provisions set forth
4 in chapter 53, subchapter II, may return an absentee ballot
5 via electronic transmission only if the voter is located in an
6 area designated by the federal department of defense to be an
7 imminent danger pay area or if the voter is an active member of
8 the army, navy, marine corps, merchant marine, coast guard, air
9 force, or Iowa national guard and is located outside the United
10 States or any of its territories. Procedures for the return of
11 absentee ballots by electronic transmission shall be determined
12 by the state commissioner by rule.
13 14. *a.* If an election contest court finds that there were
14 errors in the conduct of an election that make it impossible
15 to determine the result of the election, the contest court
16 shall notify the state commissioner of its finding. The state
17 commissioner shall order a repeat election to be held. The
18 repeat election date shall be set by the state commissioner.
19 The repeat election shall be conducted under the state
20 commissioner's supervision.
21 *b.* The repeat election shall be held at the earliest
22 possible time, but it shall not be held earlier than fourteen
23 days after the date the election was set aside. Voter
24 registration, publication, equipment testing, and other
25 applicable deadlines shall be calculated from the date of the
26 repeat election.
27 *c.* The repeat election shall be conducted under the same
28 procedures required for the election that was set aside,
29 except that all known errors in preparation and procedure
30 shall be corrected. The nominations from the initial election
31 shall be used in the repeat election unless the contest court
32 specifically rejects the initial nomination process in its
33 findings. Precinct election officials for the repeat election

- 34 may be replaced at the discretion of the auditor.
 35 *d.* The following materials prepared for the original

PAGE 9

1 election shall be used or reconstructed for the repeat
 2 election:

- 3 (1) Ballots showing the date of repeat election, which may
 4 be stamped on ballots printed for the original election.
 5 (2) Notice of election showing the date of repeat election.

6 DIVISION II
 7 COUNTY SEALS

8 Sec. 5. Section 331.552, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
 9 to read as follows:

10 4. a. Keep the official county seal provided by the county.
 11 The official seal shall be an impression seal on the face of
 12 which shall appear the name of the county, the word "county"
 13 which may be abbreviated, ~~the word "treasurer" which may be~~
 14 ~~abbreviated,~~ and the word "Iowa". A county shall have only one
 15 official county seal.

16 b. Notwithstanding paragraph "a", the county commissioner
 17 of elections may use a facsimile of the official county seal
 18 or a modified facsimile of the official county seal for the
 19 purposes of election duties set forth in sections 43.36 and
 20 49.51, and section 49.57, subsection 6. If modified, the
 21 county seal shall contain the name of the county, the word
 22 "county", which may be abbreviated, the word "auditor", which
 23 may be abbreviated, and the word "Iowa".

24 DIVISION III
 25 VOTER IDENTIFICATION

26 Sec. 6. Section 53.2, subsection 4, paragraph a, unnumbered
 27 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

28 ~~Each application shall contain the following information To~~
 29 request an absentee ballot, a registered voter shall provide:

30 Sec. 7. Section 53.2, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code 2020,
 31 is amended to read as follows:

32 *b.* If insufficient information has been provided, including
 33 the absence of a voter verification number, either on the
 34 prescribed form or on an application created by the applicant,
 35 the commissioner shall, ~~by the best means available, obtain~~

PAGE 10

1 ~~the additional necessary information within twenty-four hours~~
 2 ~~after the receipt of the absentee ballot request, contact the~~
 3 ~~applicant by telephone and electronic mail, if such information~~
 4 ~~has been provided by the applicant. If the commissioner is~~
 5 ~~unable to contact the applicant by telephone or electronic~~
 6 ~~mail, the commissioner shall send a notice to the applicant~~
 7 ~~at the address where the applicant is registered to vote, or~~
 8 ~~to the applicant's mailing address if it is different from~~
 9 ~~the residential address. If the applicant has requested the~~

10 ballot to be sent to an address that is not the applicant's
 11 residential or mailing address, the commissioner shall send an
 12 additional notice to the address where the applicant requested
 13 the ballot to be sent. A commissioner shall not use the voter
 14 registration system to obtain additional necessary information.
 15 A voter requesting or casting a ballot pursuant to section
 16 53.22 shall not be required to provide a voter verification
 17 number.

18 Sec. 8. Section 53.2, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended by
 19 adding the following new paragraph:
 20 NEW PARAGRAPH. d. If an applicant does not have current
 21 access to the applicant's voter verification number, the
 22 commissioner shall verify the applicant's identity prior to
 23 supplying the voter verification number by asking the applicant
 24 to provide at least two of the following facts about the
 25 applicant:

- 26 (1) Date of birth.
- 27 (2) The last four digits of the applicant's social security
- 28 number, if applicable.
- 29 (3) Residential address.
- 30 (4) Mailing address.
- 31 (5) Middle name.

32 (6) Voter verification number as defined in paragraph "c".
 33 Sec. 9. Section 53.10, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code 2020,
 34 is amended to read as follows:
 35 a. Each person who wishes to vote by absentee ballot at

PAGE 11

1 the commissioner's office shall first sign an application
 2 for a ballot including the following information: name,
 3 current address, voter verification number, and the election
 4 for which the ballot is requested. The person may report a
 5 change of address or other information on the person's voter
 6 registration record at that time. Prior to furnishing a
 7 ballot, the commissioner shall verify the person's identity
 8 as provided in section 49.78. The registered voter shall
 9 immediately mark the ballot; enclose the ballot in a secrecy
 10 envelope, if necessary, and seal it in the envelope marked
 11 with the affidavit; subscribe to the affidavit on the reverse
 12 side of the envelope; and return the absentee ballot to the
 13 commissioner. The commissioner shall record the numbers
 14 appearing on the application and affidavit envelope along with
 15 the name of the registered voter.

16 Sec. 10. Section 53.10, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 17 by adding the following new paragraph:
 18 NEW PARAGRAPH. ob. If an unregistered person offering
 19 to vote an absentee ballot pursuant to this section prior to
 20 the deadline in section 48A.9 does not have an Iowa driver's
 21 license, an Iowa nonoperator's identification card, or a voter
 22 identification number assigned to the voter by the state
 23 commissioner pursuant to section 47.7, subsection 2, the person

24 may satisfy identity and residence requirements as provided in
25 section 49.78. This section shall also apply to a registered
26 voter casting a ballot pursuant to this section who has not yet
27 received a voter verification number.

28 Sec. 11. Section 53.18, subsections 2 and 3, Code 2020, are
29 amended to read as follows:

30 2. a. If the commissioner receives the return envelope
31 containing the completed absentee ballot by 5:00 p.m. on the
32 Saturday before the election for general elections and by 5:00
33 p.m. on the Friday before the election for all other elections,
34 the commissioner shall review the affidavit marked on the
35 return envelope, if applicable, for completeness or shall open

PAGE 12

1 the return envelope to review the affidavit for completeness.
2 ~~If the affidavit is incomplete, the commissioner shall, within~~
3 ~~twenty-four hours of the time the envelope was received, notify~~
4 ~~the voter of that fact and that the voter may complete the~~
5 ~~affidavit in person at the office of the commissioner by 5:00~~
6 ~~p.m. on the day before the election, vote a replacement ballot~~
7 ~~in the manner and within the time period provided in subsection~~
8 ~~3, or appear at the voter's precinct polling place on election~~
9 ~~day and cast a ballot in accordance with section 53.19,~~
10 ~~subsection 3. If the affidavit lacks the signature of the~~
11 ~~registered voter, the commissioner shall, within twenty-four~~
12 ~~hours of the receipt of the envelope, notify the voter of the~~
13 ~~deficiency and inform the voter that the voter may vote a~~
14 ~~replacement ballot as provided in subsection 3, cast a ballot~~
15 ~~as provided in section 53.19, subsection 3, or complete the~~
16 ~~affidavit in person at the office of the commissioner not later~~
17 ~~than noon on the Monday following the election, or if the law~~
18 ~~authorizing the election specifies that the votes be canvassed~~
19 ~~earlier than the Monday following the election, before the~~
20 ~~canvass of the election.~~

21 b. If the commissioner receives the return envelope
22 containing the completed absentee ballot after the deadline
23 in paragraph "a", the commissioner shall submit the affidavit
24 to the absentee and special voters precinct board for review.
25 If the absentee and special voters precinct determines that
26 the affidavit is incomplete, the commissioner shall, within
27 twenty-four hours of the determination, notify the voter. If
28 the affidavit lacks the signature of the registered voter, the
29 commissioner shall notify the voter that the voter may complete
30 the affidavit in person at the office of the commissioner
31 not later than noon on the Monday following the election, or
32 if the law authorizing the election specifies that the votes
33 be canvassed earlier than the Monday following the election,
34 before the canvass of the election.

35 3. If the affidavit envelope or the return envelope marked

PAGE 13

1 with the affidavit contains a defect that would cause the
 2 absentee ballot to be rejected by the absentee and special
 3 voters precinct board, the commissioner shall immediately
 4 notify the voter of that fact and that the voter's absentee
 5 ballot shall not be counted unless the voter requests and
 6 returns a replacement ballot in the time permitted under
 7 section 53.17, subsection 2. ~~For the purposes of this section,
 8 a return envelope marked with the affidavit shall be considered
 9 to contain a defect if it appears to the commissioner that
 10 the signature on the envelope has been signed by someone
 11 other than the registered voter, in comparing the signature
 12 on the envelope to the signature on record of the registered
 13 voter named on the envelope. A signature or marking made
 14 in accordance with section 39.3, subsection 17, shall not
 15 be considered a defect for purposes of this section.~~ The
 16 voter may request a replacement ballot in person, in writing,
 17 or over the telephone. The same serial number that was
 18 assigned to the records of the original absentee ballot
 19 application shall be used on the envelope and records of the
 20 replacement ballot. The envelope marked with the affidavit and
 21 containing the completed replacement ballot shall be marked
 22 "Replacement ballot". The envelope marked with the affidavit
 23 and containing the original ballot shall be marked "Defective"
 24 and the replacement ballot shall be attached to such envelope
 25 containing the original ballot and shall be stored in a secure
 26 place until they are delivered to the absentee and special
 27 voters precinct board, notwithstanding sections 53.26 and
 28 53.27.

29 Sec. 12. Section 53.18, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 30 following new subsection:

31 NEW SUBSECTION. 04. For the purposes of this section, a
 32 return envelope marked with the affidavit shall be considered
 33 incomplete if the affidavit lacks the registered voter's
 34 signature. A signature or marking made in accordance with
 35 section 39.3, subsection 17, shall not cause an affidavit to be

PAGE 14

1 considered incomplete.
 2 Sec. 13. Section 53.22, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
 3 to read as follows:
 4 3. Any registered voter who becomes a patient, tenant, or
 5 resident of a hospital, assisted living program, or health care
 6 facility in the county where the voter is registered to vote
 7 within three days prior to the date of any election after the
 8 deadline to make a written application for an absentee ballot
 9 as provided in section 53.2 or on election day may request an
 10 absentee ballot during that period or on election day. As an
 11 alternative to the application procedure prescribed by section
 12 53.2, the registered voter may make the request directly to

13 the officers who are delivering and returning absentee ballots
14 under this section. Alternatively, the request may be made by
15 telephone to the office of the commissioner not later than four
16 hours before the close of the polls. If the requester is found
17 to be a registered voter of that county, these officers shall
18 deliver the appropriate absentee ballot to the registered voter
19 in the manner prescribed by this section.

20 Sec. 14. Section 53.22, subsection 6, paragraph a, Code
21 2020, is amended to read as follows:

22 a. If the registered voter becomes a patient, tenant, or
23 resident of a hospital, assisted living program, or health
24 care facility outside the county where the voter is registered
25 to vote ~~within three days before the date of any election~~
26 after the deadline to make a written application for an
27 absentee ballot as provided in section 53.2 or on election
28 day, the voter may designate a person to deliver and return
29 the absentee ballot. The designee may be any person the voter
30 chooses except that no candidate for any office to be voted
31 upon for the election for which the ballot is requested may
32 deliver a ballot under this subsection. The request for an
33 absentee ballot may be made by telephone to the office of the
34 commissioner not later than four hours before the close of the
35 polls. If the requester is found to be a registered voter of

PAGE 15

1 that county, the ballot shall be delivered by mail or by the
2 person designated by the voter. An application form shall be
3 included with the absentee ballot and shall be signed by the
4 voter and returned with the ballot.

5 DIVISION IV

6 CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS

7 Sec. 15. Section 43.14, subsection 1, paragraph g, Code
8 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

9 Sec. 16. Section 43.24, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
10 2020, is amended to read as follows:

11 a. Objections to the legal sufficiency of a nomination
12 petition or certificate of nomination filed or issued under
13 this chapter or to the eligibility of a candidate may be filed
14 in writing by any person who would have the right to vote for
15 the candidate for the office in question. Objections relating
16 to incorrect or incomplete information for information that is
17 required under section 43.14 or 43.18 shall be sustained.

18 Sec. 17. Section 44.6, Code 2020, is amended to read as
19 follows:

20 **44.6 Hearing before state commissioner.**

21 Objections filed with the state commissioner shall be
22 considered by the secretary of state and auditor of state and
23 attorney general, and a majority decision shall be final; but
24 if the objection is to the certificate of nomination of one
25 or more of the above named officers, said officer or officers
26 so objected to shall not pass upon the same, but their places

27 shall be filed, respectively, by the treasurer of state,
 28 the governor, and the secretary of agriculture. Objections
 29 relating to incorrect or incomplete information for information
 30 that is required under section 44.3 shall be sustained.

31 Sec. 18. Section 44.7, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 32 follows:

33 **44.7 Hearing before commissioner.**

34 Except as otherwise provided in section 44.8, objections
 35 filed with the commissioner shall be considered by the county

PAGE 16

1 auditor, county treasurer, and county attorney, and a majority
 2 decision shall be final. However, if the objection is to the
 3 certificate of nomination of one or more of the above named
 4 county officers, the officer or officers objected to shall not
 5 pass upon the objection, but their places shall be filled,
 6 respectively, by the chairperson of the board of supervisors,
 7 the sheriff, and the county recorder. Objections relating to
 8 incorrect or incomplete information for information that is
 9 required under section 44.3 shall be sustained.

10 Sec. 19. Section 44.8, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 11 following new subsection:

12 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. Objections relating to incorrect or
 13 incomplete information for information that is required under
 14 section 44.3 shall be sustained.

15 Sec. 20. Section 45.5, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code 2020,
 16 is amended by striking the paragraph.

17 Sec. 21. Section 47.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 18 following new subsection:

19 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. The state registrar of voters shall use
 20 information from the electronic registration information center
 21 to update information in the statewide voter registration
 22 system, including but not limited to the following reports:

23 a. In-state duplicates.

24 b. In-state updates.

25 c. Cross-state matches.

26 d. Deceased.

27 e. Eligible but unregistered.

28 f. National change of address.

29 Sec. 22. Section 48A.10A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 30 amended to read as follows:

31 1. The state registrar shall compare lists of persons who
 32 are registered to vote with the department of transportation's
 33 driver's license and nonoperator's identification card files
 34 and shall, on an initial basis, issue a voter identification
 35 card to each active, registered voter whose name does not

PAGE 17

1 appear in the department of transportation's files or upon the
 2 request of the registered voter. The voter identification

3 card shall include the name of the registered voter, a
 4 signature line above which the registered voter shall
 5 sign the voter identification card, the registered voter's
 6 identification number assigned to the voter pursuant to section
 7 47.7, subsection 2, and an additional four-digit personal
 8 identification number assigned by the state commissioner.

9 **Sec. 23. NEW SECTION. 49.42B Form of official ballot —**
 10 **candidates for president and vice president.**

11 When candidates for president and vice president of the
 12 United States appear on the ballot, the following statement
 13 shall appear directly above the section of the ballot listing
 14 such candidates:

15 [A ballot cast for the named candidates for president and vice
 16 president of the United States is considered to be cast for
 17 the slate of presidential electors nominated by the political
 18 party, nonparty political organization, or independent
 19 candidate.]

20 Sec. 24. Section 50.48, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
 21 by adding the following new paragraph:

22 **NEW PARAGRAPH. c.** In addition to the persons listed in
 23 paragraph "a", the candidate requesting the recount and the
 24 apparent winning candidate may each submit a request to a
 25 commissioner from a county other than the county conducting the
 26 recount to be present at the recount. Such a commissioner may
 27 report any irregularities observed by the commissioner at any
 28 time after the election to the state commissioner.

29 Sec. 25. Section 53.8, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 30 following new subsection:

31 **NEW SUBSECTION. 4. a.** The state commissioner shall not
 32 mail an application for an absentee ballot to a person who has
 33 not requested such application.

34 **b.** The commissioner and the state commissioner shall not
 35 mail an absentee ballot to a person who has not submitted an

PAGE 18

1 application for an absentee ballot.

2 Sec. 26. Section 53.30, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 3 follows:

4 **53.30 Ballots, ballot envelopes, and other information**
 5 **preserved.**

6 1. At the conclusion of each meeting of the absentee and
 7 special voter precinct board, the board shall reconcile the
 8 number of signed affidavits provided to the board by the
 9 commissioner and the number of ballots that were counted and
 10 tabulated. The board shall record the number of ballots that
 11 were rejected prior to opening the affidavit envelope, the
 12 number of absentee ballots that have been challenged and are
 13 currently unopened, and the number of absentee ballots that
 14 were accepted for counting and tabulation. The board shall
 15 also reconcile the number of provisional ballots provided
 16 to the board by the commissioner, the number of provisional

17 ballots that were accepted for counting and tabulation, and the
 18 number of provisional ballots that were rejected.

19 2. At the conclusion of each meeting of the absentee and
 20 special voters precinct board, the board shall securely seal
 21 all ballots counted by them in the manner prescribed in section
 22 50.12. The ballot envelopes, including the affidavit envelope
 23 if an affidavit envelope was provided, the return envelope, and
 24 secrecy envelope bearing the signatures of precinct election
 25 officials, as required by section 53.23, shall be preserved.
 26 All applications for absentee ballots, ballots rejected without
 27 being opened, absentee ballot logs, and any other documents
 28 pertaining to the absentee ballot process shall be preserved
 29 until such time as the documents may be destroyed pursuant to
 30 section 50.19.

31 3. Following each primary and general election,
 32 commissioners shall report to the state commissioner the
 33 number of voted absentee ballots received by the commissioner,
 34 the total number of absentee ballots counted and tabulated
 35 by the board, and the number of absentee ballots rejected by

PAGE 19

1 the board. The commissioner shall also provide the number of
 2 provisional ballots cast, the number of provisional ballots
 3 rejected, and the number of provisional ballots that were
 4 counted and tabulated by the board.

5 Sec. 27. Section 54.5, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 6 to read as follows:

7 2. The state central committee shall also file a list of
 8 the names and addresses of the party's presidential electors
 9 and alternate electors, one from each congressional district
 10 and two from the state at large, not later than 5:00 p.m.
 11 on the eighty-first day before the general election. A
 12 political party may elect up to two alternate electors at the
 13 party's state convention. Additionally, the party's state
 14 central committee may nominate one alternate elector for each
 15 congressional district.

16 Sec. 28. Section 54.5, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 17 following new subsection:

18 **NEW SUBSECTION. 2A.** Each elector nominee and alternate
 19 elector nominee of a political party or group of petitioners
 20 shall execute the following pledge, which shall accompany
 21 the submission of the corresponding names to the state
 22 commissioner:

23 If selected for the position of elector, I agree to serve
 24 and to mark my ballots for president and vice president for
 25 the nominees for those offices of the party (or group of
 26 petitioners) that nominated me.

27 Sec. 29. Section 54.7, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 28 follows:

29 **54.7 Meeting — certificate.**

30 1. The presidential electors and alternate electors shall

31 meet in the capitol, at the seat of government, on the first
 32 Monday after the second Wednesday in December next following
 33 their election.

34 2. If, at the time of such meeting, any elector for any
 35 cause is absent, ~~those present shall at once proceed to~~

PAGE 20

1 ~~elect, from the citizens of the state, a substitute elector or~~
 2 ~~electors, and certify the choice so made to the governor, and~~
 3 ~~the governor shall immediately cause the person or persons so~~
 4 ~~selected to be notified thereof the state commissioner shall~~
 5 appoint an individual to substitute for the elector as follows:
 6 a. If the alternate elector is present to vote, by
 7 appointing the alternate elector for the vacant position.
 8 b. If the alternate elector is not present to vote, by
 9 appointing an elector chosen by lot from among the other
 10 alternate electors present to vote who were nominated by the
 11 same political party or group of petitioners.
 12 c. If the number of alternate electors present to vote is
 13 insufficient to fill a vacant position pursuant to paragraphs
 14 "a" and "b", by appointing any immediately available citizen
 15 of the state who is qualified to serve as an elector and
 16 chosen through nomination by a plurality vote of the remaining
 17 electors, including nomination and vote by a single elector if
 18 only one remains.
 19 d. If there is a tie between at least two nominees to
 20 substitute as an elector in a vote conducted under paragraph
 21 "c", by appointing an elector chosen by lot from among those
 22 nominees.
 23 e. If all elector positions are vacant and cannot be filled
 24 through the processes set forth in paragraphs "a", "b", "c", and
 25 "d", by appointing a single presidential elector with remaining
 26 vacant positions filled pursuant to the method set forth in
 27 paragraph "c" and, if necessary, paragraph "d".
 28 3. To qualify to substitute for an elector under subsection
 29 2, an individual who has not executed the pledge required for
 30 elector nominees and alternate elector nominees under section
 31 54.5 shall execute the following pledge:
 32 I agree to serve and to mark my ballots for president and vice
 33 president consistent with the pledge of the individual whose
 34 elector position I have succeeded.
 35 Sec. 30. Section 54.8, Code 2020, is amended by striking the

PAGE 21

1 section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:
 2 **54.8 Elector voting — certificate of governor.**
 3 1. At the time designated for elector voting and after all
 4 vacant positions have been filled under section 54.7, the state
 5 commissioner shall provide each elector with a presidential
 6 and a vice presidential ballot. The elector shall mark the

7 elector's presidential and vice presidential ballots with
 8 the elector's votes for the offices of president and vice
 9 president, respectively, along with the elector's signature and
 10 the elector's legibly printed name.

11 2. Except as otherwise provided by law of this state outside
 12 of this chapter, each elector shall present both completed
 13 ballots to the state commissioner who shall examine the ballots
 14 and accept and cast all ballots of electors whose votes are
 15 consistent with their pledges executed under section 54.5
 16 or 54.7. Except as otherwise provided by law of this state
 17 outside of this chapter, the state commissioner shall not
 18 accept and shall not count an elector's presidential and vice
 19 presidential ballots if the elector has not marked both ballots
 20 or has marked one ballot in violation of the elector's pledge.

21 3. An elector who refuses to present a ballot, presents
 22 an unmarked ballot, or presents a ballot marked in violation
 23 of the elector's pledge executed under section 54.5 or 54.7
 24 vacates the office of elector. The state commissioner shall
 25 declare the creation of the vacancy and fill the vacancy
 26 pursuant to section 54.7.

27 4. The state commissioner shall distribute ballots to
 28 and collect ballots from a substitute elector and repeat the
 29 process set forth in this section for examining ballots,
 30 declaring and filling vacant positions as required, and
 31 recording appropriately completed ballots from the substituted
 32 electors until all of the state's electoral votes have been
 33 cast and recorded.

34 5. The governor shall duly certify the results, under the
 35 seal of the state, to the United States secretary of state, and

PAGE 22

1 as required by Act of Congress related to such elections.
 2 Sec. 31. **NEW SECTION. 54.8A Elector replacement —**
 3 **associated certificates.**

4 1. After the vote of this state's electors is completed,
 5 if the final list of electors differs from any list that the
 6 governor previously included on a certificate of ascertainment
 7 prepared and transmitted under 3 U.S.C. §6, the state
 8 commissioner shall immediately prepare an amended certificate
 9 of ascertainment and transmit the amended certificate to the
 10 governor for the governor's signature.

11 2. The governor shall immediately deliver the signed
 12 amended certificate of ascertainment to the state commissioner
 13 and a signed duplicate original of the amended certificate
 14 of ascertainment to all individuals entitled to receive this
 15 state's certificate of ascertainment, indicating that the
 16 amended certificate of ascertainment is to be substituted for
 17 the certificate of ascertainment previously submitted.

18 3. The state commissioner shall prepare a certificate
 19 of vote. The electors on the final list shall sign the
 20 certificate. The state commissioner shall process and

21 transmit the signed certificate with the amended certificate of
 22 ascertainment under 3 U.S.C. §§9 through 11.

23 Sec. 32. Section 54.9, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 24 follows:

25 **54.9 Compensation.**

26 The electors shall each receive a compensation of
 27 ~~five dollars~~ one-half of the federal general services
 28 administration's per diem rate for the relevant date and
 29 location for every day's attendance, and the same mileage as
 30 members of the general assembly which shall be paid from funds
 31 not otherwise appropriated from the general fund of the state.

32 Sec. 33. Section 68A.406, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
 33 2020, is amended to read as follows:

34 ~~f. Property Notwithstanding paragraphs "d" and "e",~~
 35 property leased by a candidate, committee, or an organization

PAGE 23

1 established to advocate the nomination, election, or defeat of
 2 a candidate or the passage or defeat of a ballot issue that
 3 has not yet registered pursuant to section 68A.201, when ~~the~~
 4 ~~property is used as campaign headquarters or a campaign office~~
 5 ~~and~~ the placement of the sign is limited to the space that is
 6 actually leased.

7 Sec. 34. REPEAL. Section 43.80, Code 2020, is repealed.

8 Sec. 35. EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes effect January
 9 1, 2021:

10 The section of this division of this Act repealing section
 11 43.80.

12 DIVISION V

13 NOMINATIONS BY PETITION

14 Sec. 36. Section 43.20, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 15 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
 16 following:

17 1. Nomination papers shall be signed by eligible electors as
 18 provided in section 45.1.

19 Sec. 37. Section 43.20, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 20 by striking the subsection.

21 Sec. 38. Section 45.1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 22 follows:

23 **45.1 Nominations by petition.**

24 1. Nominations for candidates for president and vice
 25 president, governor and lieutenant governor, and ~~for other~~
 26 ~~statewide elected offices~~ United States senator may be made
 27 by nomination petitions signed by not less than ~~one thousand~~
 28 ~~five hundred eligible electors residing in not less than~~
 29 ~~ten counties of the state~~ four thousand eligible electors,
 30 including at least two hundred eligible electors each from at
 31 least ten counties of the state.

32 2. Nominations for candidates for statewide offices other
 33 than those listed in subsection 1 may be made by nomination
 34 petitions signed by not less than two thousand five hundred

35 eligible electors, including at least one hundred twenty-five

PAGE 24

1 eligible electors from not less than ten counties of the state.
 2 ~~2.~~ 3. Nominations for candidates for a representative
 3 in the United States house of representatives may be made by
 4 nomination petitions signed by not less than ~~the number of~~
 5 eligible electors equal to the number of signatures required in
 6 subsection 1 divided by the number of congressional districts.
 7 ~~Signers of the petition shall be eligible electors who are~~
 8 residents of the congressional district two thousand eligible
 9 electors who are residents of the congressional district,
 10 including at least seventy-seven eligible electors each from at
 11 least one-half of the counties in the congressional district.
 12 ~~3.~~ 4. Nominations for candidates for the state senate
 13 may be made by nomination petitions signed by not less than
 14 one hundred eligible electors who are residents of the senate
 15 district.
 16 ~~4.~~ 5. Nominations for candidates for the state house of
 17 representatives may be made by nomination petitions signed by
 18 not less than fifty eligible electors who are residents of the
 19 representative district.
 20 ~~5.~~ 6. Nominations for candidates for offices filled by the
 21 voters of a whole county may be made by nomination petitions
 22 signed by not less than two hundred eligible electors who are
 23 residents of the county ~~equal in number to at least one percent~~
 24 ~~of the number of registered voters in the county on July 1 in~~
 25 ~~the year preceding the year in which the office will appear on~~
 26 ~~the ballot, or by at least two hundred fifty eligible electors~~
 27 ~~who are residents of the county, whichever is less.~~
 28 ~~6.~~ 7. Nominations for candidates for the office of county
 29 supervisor elected by the voters of a supervisor district may
 30 be made by nomination petitions signed by not less than two
 31 hundred eligible electors who are residents of the supervisor
 32 ~~district equal in number to at least one percent of the number~~
 33 ~~of registered voters in the supervisor district on July 1 in~~
 34 ~~the year preceding the year in which the office will appear on~~
 35 ~~the ballot, or by at least one hundred fifty eligible electors~~

PAGE 25

1 ~~who are residents of the supervisor district, whichever is~~
 2 ~~less.~~
 3 ~~7.~~ 8. *a.* Nomination papers for the offices of president
 4 and vice president shall include the names of the candidates
 5 for both offices on each page of the petition. A certificate
 6 listing the names of the candidates for presidential electors,
 7 one from each congressional district and two from the state at
 8 large, shall be filed in the state commissioner's office at the
 9 same time the nomination papers are filed.
 10 *b.* Nomination papers for the offices of governor and

11 lieutenant governor shall include the names of candidates for
 12 both offices on each page of the petition. Nomination papers
 13 for other statewide elected offices and all other offices shall
 14 include the name of the candidate on each page of the petition.

15 8. 9. Nominations for candidates for elective offices in
 16 cities where the council has adopted nominations under this
 17 chapter may be submitted as follows:

18 *a.* Except as otherwise provided in subsection 9 10, in
 19 cities having a population of ~~three thousand five hundred~~
 20 twenty thousand or greater according to the most recent federal
 21 decennial census, nominations may be made by nomination papers
 22 signed by not less than ~~twenty-five one hundred~~ eligible
 23 electors who are residents of the city or ward.

24 *b.* In cities having a population of ~~one hundred five~~
 25 thousand or greater, but less than ~~three thousand five hundred~~
 26 twenty thousand, according to the most recent federal decennial
 27 census, nominations may be made by nomination papers signed by
 28 not less than ~~ten fifty~~ eligible electors who are residents of
 29 the city or ward.

30 *c.* In cities having a population ~~less than one hundred of~~
 31 one thousand or greater, but less than five thousand, according
 32 to the most recent federal decennial census, nominations may
 33 be made by nomination papers signed by not less than ~~five~~
 34 twenty-five eligible electors who are residents of the city.

35 *d.* In cities having a population less than one thousand

PAGE 26

1 according to the most recent decennial census, nominations
 2 may be made by nomination papers signed by not less than ten
 3 eligible electors who are residents of the city.

4 ~~9. 10.~~ Nominations for ~~candidates, other than partisan~~
 5 ~~candidates, for elective offices in special charter cities~~
 6 ~~subject to section 43.112 may be submitted as follows:~~

7 ~~*a.* For the office of mayor and alderman at large,~~
 8 ~~nominations and ward alderman in special charter cities subject~~
 9 ~~to the provisions of section 43.112 may be made by nomination~~
 10 ~~papers signed by not less than one hundred eligible electors~~
 11 ~~residing in the city equal in number to at least two percent of~~
 12 ~~the total vote received by all candidates for mayor at the last~~
 13 ~~preceding city election.~~

14 ~~*b.* For the office of ward alderman, nominations may be made~~
 15 ~~by nomination papers signed by eligible electors residing in~~
 16 ~~the ward equal in number to at least two percent of the total~~
 17 ~~vote received by all candidates for ward alderman in that ward~~
 18 ~~at the last preceding city election.~~

19 Sec. 39. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act takes
 20 effect January 1, 2021.

DIVISION VI

AFFIDAVIT OF CANDIDACY

22 Sec. 40. AFFIDAVIT OF CANDIDACY — 2020 GENERAL ELECTION
 23 NOMINEES. For the 2020 general election, a candidate nominated

25 for county hospital trustee or township trustee shall file
 26 with the county commissioner a signed, notarized affidavit of
 27 candidacy and nomination petition, if applicable, by 5:00 p.m.
 28 not less than sixty-nine days before the general election. An
 29 affidavit of candidacy shall include the information required
 30 under section 44.3.>
 31 2. Title page, by striking line 1 and inserting <An Act
 32 relating to the conduct of elections, including the use of
 33 emergency powers during elections, nomination procedures,
 34 issuance of bonds, voter registration, absentee ballots,
 35 campaign finance, and the use of a county seal on materials

PAGE 27

1 related to elections, and including effective date provisions.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8257

1 Amend House File 2641 as follows:
 2 1. Page 29, line 31, by striking <423.3A> and inserting
 3 <423.3, subsection 3A>
 4 2. Page 30, line 3, by striking <423.3A> and inserting
 5 <423.3, subsection 3A>
 6 3. Page 31, line 19, after <beginning> by inserting <on or>
 7 4. Page 31, line 20, by striking <claimed> and inserting
 8 <awarded>
 9 5. Page 31, line 22, before <calendar> by inserting
 10 <current>
 11 6. Page 31, line 23, before <calendar> by inserting
 12 <current>
 13 7. Page 31, line 25, before <calendar> by inserting
 14 <current>
 15 8. Page 31, line 26, before <calendar> by inserting
 16 <current>

HITE of Mahaska

H-8258

1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:
 2 1. Page 11, after line 19 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. ___. Section 455A.18, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 4 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph and inserting in
 5 lieu thereof the following:
 6 a. For each fiscal year there is appropriated, from the
 7 general fund to the Iowa resources enhancement and protection
 8 fund, twenty million dollars to be used as provided in this
 9 chapter. However, in any fiscal year, if moneys from the
 10 lottery are appropriated to the Iowa resources enhancement and
 11 protection fund, the amount appropriated under this subsection

12 to that fund shall be reduced by the amount appropriated from
13 the lottery.>

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8259

1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:
2 1. Page 11, after line 19 by inserting:
3 <DIVISION ____
4 GROUNDWATER PROTECTION FUND
5 Sec. ____ BULK TRANSPORT OF WATER. Of moneys available for
6 use by the department of natural resources from the groundwater
7 protection fund created in section 455E.11 for the fiscal year
8 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, which are
9 not allocated pursuant to that section, the department shall
10 support the protection of the state's groundwater, including by
11 providing for administration; the prevention of the groundwater
12 extracted for bulk transport to another state for any purpose;
13 regulation and programs; salaries, support, maintenance,
14 equipment; and miscellaneous purposes.>
15 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8260

1 Amend the amendment, H-8256, to House File 2486, as passed by
2 the House, as follows:
3 1. By striking page 1, line 4, through page 27, line 1, and
4 inserting:
5 <Sec. ____ Section 43.14, subsection 1, paragraph g, Code
6 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
7 Sec. ____ Section 45.5, subsection 1, paragraph f, Code
8 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
9 Sec. ____ Section 47.1, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
10 to read as follows:
11 2. a. The state commissioner of elections may exercise
12 emergency powers over any election being held in a district
13 in which either a natural or other disaster or extremely
14 inclement weather has occurred. The state commissioner's
15 decision to alter any conduct for an election using emergency
16 powers must be approved by the legislative council. If the
17 legislative council does not approve the secretary of state's
18 use of emergency powers to conduct an election, the legislative
19 council may choose to present and approve its own election
20 procedures or choose to take no further action. The state
21 commissioner of elections may also exercise emergency powers
22 during an armed conflict involving United States armed forces,
23 or mobilization of those forces, or if an election contest
24 court finds that there were errors in the conduct of an
25 election making it impossible to determine the result.

26 b. If an emergency exists in all precincts of a county,
 27 the number of polling places shall not be reduced by more than
 28 thirty-five percent. The polling places allowed to open shall
 29 be equitably distributed in the county based on the ratio of
 30 regular polling places located in unincorporated areas in the
 31 county to regular polling places in incorporated areas in the
 32 county.
 33 Sec. ____ Section 49.57, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
 34 to read as follows:
 35 6. A portion of the ballot shall include the words “Official

PAGE 2

1 ballot”, the unique identification number or name assigned by
 2 the commissioner to the ballot style, the date of the election,
 3 and the impression or likeness of the county seal of the county
 4 of the commissioner who has caused the ballot to be printed
 5 pursuant to section 49.51.
 6 Sec. ____ Section 54.5, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 7 to read as follows:
 8 2. The state central committee shall also file a list of
 9 the names and addresses of the party’s presidential electors
 10 and alternate electors, one from each congressional district
 11 and two from the state at large, not later than 5:00 p.m.
 12 on the eighty-first day before the general election. A
 13 political party may elect up to two alternate electors at the
 14 party’s state convention. Additionally, the party’s state
 15 central committee may nominate one alternate elector for each
 16 congressional district.
 17 Sec. ____ Section 54.5, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 18 following new subsection:
 19 NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. Each elector nominee and alternate
 20 elector nominee of a political party or group of petitioners
 21 shall execute the following pledge, which shall accompany
 22 the submission of the corresponding names to the state
 23 commissioner:
 24 If selected for the position of elector, I agree to serve
 25 and to mark my ballots for president and vice president for
 26 the nominees for those offices of the party (or group of
 27 petitioners) that nominated me.
 28 Sec. ____ Section 54.7, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 29 follows:
 30 **54.7 Meeting — certificate.**
 31 1. The presidential electors and alternate electors shall
 32 meet in the capitol, at the seat of government, on the first
 33 Monday after the second Wednesday in December next following
 34 their election.
 35 2. If, at the time of such meeting, any elector for any

PAGE 3

1 cause is absent, ~~those present shall at once proceed to~~

2 elect, from the citizens of the state, a substitute elector or
 3 electors, and certify the choice so made to the governor, and
 4 the governor shall immediately cause the person or persons so
 5 selected to be notified thereof the state commissioner shall
 6 appoint an individual to substitute for the elector as follows:
 7 a. If the alternate elector is present to vote, by
 8 appointing the alternate elector for the vacant position.
 9 b. If the alternate elector is not present to vote, by
 10 appointing an elector chosen by lot from among the other
 11 alternate electors present to vote who were nominated by the
 12 same political party or group of petitioners.
 13 c. If the number of alternate electors present to vote is
 14 insufficient to fill a vacant position pursuant to paragraphs
 15 "a" and "b", by appointing any immediately available citizen
 16 of the state who is qualified to serve as an elector and
 17 chosen through nomination by a plurality vote of the remaining
 18 electors, including nomination and vote by a single elector if
 19 only one remains.
 20 d. If there is a tie between at least two nominees to
 21 substitute as an elector in a vote conducted under paragraph
 22 "c", by appointing an elector chosen by lot from among those
 23 nominees.
 24 e. If all elector positions are vacant and cannot be filled
 25 through the processes set forth in paragraphs "a", "b", "c", and
 26 "d", by appointing a single presidential elector with remaining
 27 vacant positions filled pursuant to the method set forth in
 28 paragraph "c" and, if necessary, paragraph "d".
 29 3. To qualify to substitute for an elector under subsection
 30 2, an individual who has not executed the pledge required for
 31 elector nominees and alternate elector nominees under section
 32 54.5 shall execute the following pledge:
 33 I agree to serve and to mark my ballots for president and vice
 34 president consistent with the pledge of the individual whose
 35 elector position I have succeeded.

PAGE 4

1 Sec. ____ Section 54.8, Code 2020, is amended by striking
 2 the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:
 3 **54.8 Elector voting — certificate of governor.**
 4 1. At the time designated for elector voting and after all
 5 vacant positions have been filled under section 54.7, the state
 6 commissioner shall provide each elector with a presidential
 7 and a vice presidential ballot. The elector shall mark the
 8 elector's presidential and vice presidential ballots with
 9 the elector's votes for the offices of president and vice
 10 president, respectively, along with the elector's signature and
 11 the elector's legibly printed name.
 12 2. Except as otherwise provided by law of this state outside
 13 of this chapter, each elector shall present both completed
 14 ballots to the state commissioner who shall examine the ballots
 15 and accept and cast all ballots of electors whose votes are

16 consistent with their pledges executed under section 54.5
 17 or 54.7. Except as otherwise provided by law of this state
 18 outside of this chapter, the state commissioner shall not
 19 accept and shall not count an elector's presidential and vice
 20 presidential ballots if the elector has not marked both ballots
 21 or has marked one ballot in violation of the elector's pledge.
 22 3. An elector who refuses to present a ballot, presents
 23 an unmarked ballot, or presents a ballot marked in violation
 24 of the elector's pledge executed under section 54.5 or 54.7
 25 vacates the office of elector. The state commissioner shall
 26 declare the creation of the vacancy and fill the vacancy
 27 pursuant to section 54.7.
 28 4. The state commissioner shall distribute ballots to
 29 and collect ballots from a substitute elector and repeat the
 30 process set forth in this section for examining ballots,
 31 declaring and filling vacant positions as required, and
 32 recording appropriately completed ballots from the substituted
 33 electors until all of the state's electoral votes have been
 34 cast and recorded.
 35 5. The governor shall duly certify the results, under the

PAGE 5

1 seal of the state, to the United States secretary of state, and
 2 as required by Act of Congress related to such elections.
 3 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **54.8A Elector replacement** —
 4 **associated certificates.**
 5 1. After the vote of this state's electors is completed,
 6 if the final list of electors differs from any list that the
 7 governor previously included on a certificate of ascertainment
 8 prepared and transmitted under 3 U.S.C. §6, the state
 9 commissioner shall immediately prepare an amended certificate
 10 of ascertainment and transmit the amended certificate to the
 11 governor for the governor's signature.
 12 2. The governor shall immediately deliver the signed
 13 amended certificate of ascertainment to the state commissioner
 14 and a signed duplicate original of the amended certificate
 15 of ascertainment to all individuals entitled to receive this
 16 state's certificate of ascertainment, indicating that the
 17 amended certificate of ascertainment is to be substituted for
 18 the certificate of ascertainment previously submitted.
 19 3. The state commissioner shall prepare a certificate
 20 of vote. The electors on the final list shall sign the
 21 certificate. The state commissioner shall process and
 22 transmit the signed certificate with the amended certificate of
 23 ascertainment under 3 U.S.C. §§9 through 11.
 24 Sec. ____ Section 331.552, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 25 amended to read as follows:
 26 4. Keep the official county seal provided by the county.
 27 The official seal shall be an impression seal on the face of
 28 which shall appear the name of the county, the word "county",
 29 which may be abbreviated, ~~the word "treasurer" which may be~~

30 abbreviated, and the word "Iowa".
31 Sec. __. AFFIDAVIT OF CANDIDACY — 2020 GENERAL ELECTION
32 NOMINEES. For the 2020 general election, a candidate nominated
33 for county hospital trustee or township trustee shall file
34 with the county commissioner a signed, notarized affidavit of
35 candidacy and nomination petition, if applicable, by 5:00 p.m.

PAGE 6

1 not less than sixty-nine days before the general election. An
2 affidavit of candidacy shall include the information required
3 under section 44.3.>
4 2. Title page, by striking line 1 and inserting <An Act
5 relating to the conduct of elections, including emergency
6 powers, procedures relating to electors, and the use of a
7 county seal on materials related to elections.>
8 3. By renumbering as necessary.>

KAUFMANN of Cedar
HUNTER of Polk

H-8261

1 Amend House File 2641 as follows:
2 1. Page 23, after line 26 by inserting:
3 <Section 1. Section 423.3, Code 2020, is amended by adding
4 the following new subsection:
5 NEW SUBSECTION. 107. The sales price from the sale of
6 feminine hygiene products. For purposes of this subsection,
7 "*feminine hygiene products*" means sanitary napkins, tampons, or
8 other similar items used for feminine hygiene.>
9 2. By renumbering as necessary.

NIELSEN of Johnson

H-8262

1 Amend House File 684, as passed by the House, as follows:
2 1. Page 1, line 1, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
3 2. Page 1, line 6, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
4 3. Page 1, line 12, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
5 4. Page 1, line 20, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
6 5. Page 1, line 31, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8263

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
2 1. Page 7, by striking lines 2 through 14.
3 2. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
4 references as necessary.

McCONKEY of Pottawattamie

H-8264

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8197, to Senate File 2349, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. Page 2, after line 25 by inserting:
 4 <DIVISION ___
 5 INTERNET EXCHANGE POINT FEASIBILITY STUDY
 6 Sec. ___. INTERNET EXCHANGE POINT FEASIBILITY STUDY. The
 7 office of the chief information officer and the Iowa
 8 telecommunications and technology commission shall jointly
 9 conduct a feasibility study regarding the construction and
 10 installation of an internet exchange point. The office and the
 11 commission shall assess a timeline to construct and install an
 12 internet exchange point, the cost to construct and install an
 13 internet exchange point, internet exchange point maintenance
 14 requirements, internet exchange point maintenance costs,
 15 internet exchange point upgrade costs, upgrades recommended to
 16 be performed on an internet exchange point, and the optimum
 17 number of internet exchange points for the state. The office
 18 and the commission shall submit a report, including findings
 19 and recommendations, to the general assembly by December 15,
 20 2020.>
 21 2. Page 2, line 27, after <reporting,> by inserting <a joint
 22 feasibility study relating to internet exchange points,>
 23 3. By renumbering as necessary.

SORENSEN of Adair

H-8265

- 1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:
 2 1. Page 6, line 8, by striking <The> and inserting
 3 <1. The>
 4 2. Page 6, after line 14 by inserting:
 5 <2. A portion of the funds appropriated in this section
 6 shall be used to pay for both the federal and nonfederal shares
 7 of medical assistance for a person who is otherwise ineligible
 8 for medical care coverage, has established residence in this
 9 state in accordance with the Compacts of Free Association
 10 (COFA) between the government of the United States and the
 11 governments of the Federated States of Micronesia, the Republic
 12 of the Marshall Islands, and the Republic of Palau pursuant to
 13 48 U.S.C. §1921, Tit. 1, Article IV, section 141, and who, as
 14 of a date referenced in the most recently published enumeration
 15 of qualified nonimmigrants, is a resident of an affected
 16 jurisdiction as specified in the Compact of Free Association
 17 Amendments Act of 2003, Pub. L. No. 108-188.>

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8266

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, line 14, by striking <or the board of pharmacy>
 3 and inserting <the board of pharmacy, or the board of
 4 educational examiners>

MASCHER of Johnson

H-8267

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, lines 6 and 7, by striking <is not licensed,
 3 certified, or registered in another state> and inserting
 4 <relocates to this state from another state that did not
 5 require a professional or occupational license, certificate, or
 6 registration to practice the person's profession or occupation>
 7 2. Page 9, line 35, by striking <5> and inserting <4>

LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8268

1 Amend the amendment, H-8257, to House File 2641 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 16 by inserting:
 3 <__. Page 91, after line 34 by inserting:
 4 <DIVISION __
 5 FOOD OPERATION TRESPASS
 6 Sec. __. Section 716.7A, subsection 1, paragraph d, as
 7 enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2413, section 17, is
 8 amended to read as follows:
 9 d. (1) "Food operation" means any of the following:
 10 (H) (a) A location where a food animal is produced,
 11 maintained, or otherwise housed or kept, or processed in any
 12 manner.
 13 (2) (b) A location other than as described in subparagraph
 14 (H) division (a) where a food animal is kept, including an
 15 apiary, livestock market, vehicle or trailer attached to a
 16 vehicle, fair, exhibition, or a business operated by a person
 17 licensed to practice veterinary medicine pursuant to chapter
 18 169.
 19 (3) (c) A location where a meat food product, poultry
 20 product, milk or milk product, eggs or an egg product, aquatic
 21 product, or honey is prepared for human consumption, including
 22 a food processing plant, a slaughtering establishment operating
 23 under the provisions of 21 U.S.C. §451 et seq. or 21 U.S.C.
 24 §601 et seq.; or a slaughtering establishment subject to state
 25 inspection as provided in chapter 189A.
 26 (4) (2) A "Food operation" does not include a food
 27 establishment or farmers market that sells or offers for sale a
 28 meat food product, poultry product, milk or milk product, eggs
 29 or an egg product, aquatic product, or honey.

30 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 31 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 32 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 33 Act applies retroactively to June 10, 2020.>
 34 ____ Title page, line 8, by striking <and port authorities,>
 35 and inserting <port authorities, and animals and food,>

PAGE 2

1 ____ By renumbering as necessary.>

KLEIN of Washington

H-8269

1 Amend House File 2372, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the House, as follows:
 3 1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 4 <Section 1. Section 321.189, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsection:
 6 NEW SUBSECTION. 10. *Autism spectrum disorder status.* A
 7 licensee who has an autism spectrum disorder, as defined in
 8 section 514C.28, may request that the license be marked to
 9 reflect the licensee’s autism spectrum disorder status on
 10 the face of the license when the licensee applies for the
 11 issuance or renewal of a license. The department may adopt
 12 rules pursuant to chapter 17A establishing criteria under which
 13 a license may be marked, including requiring the licensee
 14 to submit medical proof of the licensee’s autism spectrum
 15 disorder status. When a driver’s license is so marked, the
 16 licensee’s autism spectrum disorder status shall be noted
 17 in the electronic database used by the department and law
 18 enforcement to access registration, titling, and driver’s
 19 license information. The department, in consultation with the
 20 mental health and disability services commission, shall develop
 21 educational media to raise awareness of a licensee’s ability to
 22 request the license be marked to reflect the licensee’s autism
 23 spectrum disorder status.
 24 Sec. 2. Section 321.190, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
 25 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
 26 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (6) An applicant for a nonoperator’s
 27 identification card who has an autism spectrum disorder, as
 28 defined in section 514C.28, may request that the card be marked
 29 to reflect the applicant’s autism spectrum disorder status
 30 on the face of the card when the applicant applies for the
 31 issuance or renewal of a card. The department may adopt rules
 32 pursuant to chapter 17A establishing criteria under which a
 33 card may be marked, including requiring the applicant to submit
 34 medical proof of the applicant’s autism spectrum disorder
 35 status. The department, in consultation with the mental health

PAGE 2

- 1 and disability services commission, shall develop educational
2 media to raise awareness of an applicant's ability to request
3 the card be marked to reflect the applicant's autism spectrum
4 disorder status.>
- 5 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting <An
6 Act regarding driver's licenses, including the exemption of
7 certain farmers and hired help operating a special truck from
8 the requirement to be licensed as a chauffeur and the optional
9 inclusion of a mark reflecting autism spectrum disorder status
10 on a person's driver's license.>
- 11 3. By renumbering as necessary.

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8270

- 1 Amend House File 2629, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the House, as follows:
- 3 1. Page 8, line 8, by striking <2022> and inserting <2023>
- 4 2. Page 8, line 21, by striking <2022> and inserting <2023>
- 5 3. Page 9, line 20, after <plan> by inserting <by>
- 6 4. Page 10, after line 10 by inserting:
7 <Sec. ___. EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes effect July
8 1, 2021:
9 The section of this division of this Act amending section
10 256.7, subsection 26, paragraph "a", subparagraph (4).>
- 11 5. By striking page 10, line 11, through page 12, line 3.
- 12 6. Page 13, after line 21 by inserting:
13 <Sec. ___. EMERGENCY RULES. The department of education
14 and the college student aid commission may adopt emergency
15 rules under section 17A.4, subsection 3, and section 17A.5,
16 subsection 2, paragraph "b", to implement the provisions of
17 this division of this Act and the rules shall be effective
18 immediately upon filing unless a later date is specified in the
19 rules. Any rules adopted in accordance with this section shall
20 also be published as a notice of intended action as provided
21 in section 17A.4.
- 22 Sec. ___. EFFECTIVE UPON ENACTMENT. Unless otherwise
23 provided, this division of this Act, if approved by the
24 governor on or after July 1, 2020, takes effect upon enactment.
- 25 Sec. ___. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. Unless otherwise
26 provided, this division of this Act, if approved by the
27 governor on or after July 1, 2020, applies retroactively to
28 July 1, 2020.>
- 29 7. Title page, by striking lines 2 through 5 and inserting
30 <to strengthen Iowa's workforce, including provisions relating
31 to apprenticeship training programs, a child care challenge
32 program for working Iowans, computer science educational
33 standards, a scholarship program, and the senior year
34 plus program, and including effective date and retroactive

35 applicability provisions.>

PAGE 2

1 8. By renumbering as necessary.

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8271

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:

2 1. Page 10, after line 17 by inserting:

3 <Sec. __. **NEW SECTION. 272C.16 Bonding.**

4 The department of workforce development shall provide a bond
5 to a person who is required to hold a bond in order to practice
6 that person's licensed, registered, or certified profession
7 but who is unable to obtain such a bond due to the person's
8 conviction of a crime. The department of workforce development
9 shall adopt rules to implement this section.>

10 2. By renumbering as necessary.

JACOBY of Johnson

H-8272

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:

2 1. By striking page 1, line 4, through page 19, line 20, and
3 inserting:

4 <Sec. __. Section 103.6, subsection 1, paragraph e, Code
5 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

6 Sec. __. Section 103.9, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
7 by striking the subsection.

8 Sec. __. Section 103.10, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
9 amended by striking the subsection.

10 Sec. __. Section 103.12, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
11 amended by striking the subsection.

12 Sec. __. Section 103.12A, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
13 amended by striking the subsection.

14 Sec. __. Section 103.13, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
15 amended by striking the subsection.

16 Sec. __. Section 103.15, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
17 amended by striking the subsection.

18 Sec. __. Section 105.10, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
19 amended by striking the subsection.

20 Sec. __. Section 105.22, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
21 amended by striking the subsection.

22 Sec. __. Section 147.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
23 follows:

24 **147.3 Qualifications.**

25 An applicant for a license to practice a profession under
26 this subtitle is not ineligible because of age, citizenship,
27 sex, race, religion, marital status, or national origin,

28 although the application form may require citizenship
29 information. ~~A board may consider the past criminal record of~~
30 ~~an applicant only if the conviction relates to the practice of~~
31 ~~the profession for which the applicant requests to be licensed.~~
32 Sec. ____ Section 147.55, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
33 amended by striking the subsection.
34 Sec. ____ Section 147A.7, subsection 1, paragraph j, Code
35 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

PAGE 2

1 Sec. ____ Section 148.6, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
2 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
3 Sec. ____ Section 148H.7, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
4 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
5 Sec. ____ Section 151.9, subsection 5, Code 2020, is amended
6 by striking the subsection.
7 Sec. ____ Section 152.10, subsection 2, paragraph c, Code
8 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
9 Sec. ____ Section 153.34, subsection 9, Code 2020, is
10 amended by striking the subsection.
11 Sec. ____ Section 154A.24, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
12 amended by striking the subsection.
13 Sec. ____ Section 156.9, subsection 2, paragraph e, Code
14 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.
15 Sec. ____ Section 272.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
16 following new subsection:
17 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. "*Offense directly relates*" refers to
18 either of the following:
19 a. The actions taken in furtherance of an offense are
20 actions customarily performed within the scope of practice of
21 a licensed profession.
22 b. The circumstances under which an offense was committed
23 are circumstances customary to a licensed profession.
24 Sec. ____ Section 272.2, subsection 14, paragraph a, Code
25 2020, is amended to read as follows:
26 a. The board may deny a license to or revoke the license
27 of a person upon the board's finding by a preponderance of
28 evidence that either the person has been convicted of ~~a crime~~
29 an offense and the offense directly relates to the duties and
30 responsibilities of the profession or that there has been
31 a founded report of child abuse against the person. Rules
32 adopted in accordance with this paragraph shall provide that
33 in determining whether a person should be denied a license or
34 that a practitioner's license should be revoked, the board
35 shall consider the nature and seriousness of the founded abuse

PAGE 3

1 or crime in relation to the position sought, the time elapsed
2 since the crime was committed, the degree of rehabilitation
3 which has taken place since the incidence of founded abuse or

4 the commission of the crime, the likelihood that the person
5 will commit the same abuse or crime again, and the number of
6 founded abuses committed by or criminal convictions of the
7 person involved.

8 Sec. ____ Section 272C.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding
9 the following new subsection:

10 NEW SUBSECTION. 7A. *“Offense directly relates”* refers to
11 either of the following:

12 a. The actions taken in furtherance of an offense are
13 actions customarily performed within the scope of practice of
14 a licensed profession.

15 b. The circumstances under which an offense was committed
16 are circumstances customary to a licensed profession.

17 Sec. ____ Section 272C.10, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
18 amended by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu
19 thereof the following:

20 5. Conviction of a felony offense, if the offense directly
21 relates to the profession or occupation of the licensee, in the
22 courts of this state or another state, territory, or country.
23 Conviction as used in this subsection includes a conviction of
24 an offense which if committed in this state would be a felony
25 without regard to its designation elsewhere, and includes a
26 finding or verdict of guilt made or returned in a criminal
27 proceeding even if the adjudication of guilt is withheld or not
28 entered. A certified copy of the final order or judgment of
29 conviction or plea of guilty in this state or in another state
30 constitutes conclusive evidence of the conviction.

31 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **272C.12 Disqualifications for**
32 **criminal convictions limited.**

33 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
34 contrary, except for chapter 272, a person’s conviction of a
35 crime may be grounds for the denial, revocation, or suspension

PAGE 4

1 of a license only if an unreasonable risk to public safety
2 exists because the offense directly relates to the duties
3 and responsibilities of the profession and the appropriate
4 licensing board, agency, or department does not grant an
5 exception pursuant to subsection 4.

6 2. A licensing board, agency, or department that may deny a
7 license on the basis of an applicant’s conviction record shall
8 provide a list of the specific convictions that may disqualify
9 an applicant from receiving a license. Any such offense
10 shall be an offense that directly relates to the duties and
11 responsibilities of the profession.

12 3. A licensing board, agency, or department shall not deny
13 an application for a license on the basis of an arrest that
14 was not followed by a conviction or based on a finding that an
15 applicant lacks good character, suffers from moral turpitude,
16 or on other similar basis.

17 4. A licensing board, agency, or department shall grant

18 an exception to an applicant who would otherwise be denied a
19 license due to a criminal conviction if the following factors
20 establish by clear and convincing evidence that the applicant
21 is rehabilitated and an appropriate candidate for licensure:
22 *a.* The nature and seriousness of the crime for which the
23 applicant was convicted.
24 *b.* The amount of time that has passed since the commission
25 of the crime. There is a rebuttable presumption that an
26 applicant is rehabilitated and an appropriate candidate
27 for licensure five years after the date of the applicant's
28 release from incarceration, provided that the applicant was
29 not convicted of sexual abuse in violation of section 709.4,
30 a sexually violent offense as defined in section 229A.2,
31 dependent adult abuse in violation of section 235B.20, a
32 forcible felony as defined in section 702.11, or domestic abuse
33 assault in violation of section 708.2A, and the applicant
34 has not been convicted of another crime after release from
35 incarceration.

PAGE 5

1 *c.* The circumstances relative to the offense, including any
2 aggravating and mitigating circumstances or social conditions
3 surrounding the commission of the offense.
4 *d.* The age of the applicant at the time the offense was
5 committed.
6 *e.* Any treatment undertaken by the applicant.
7 *f.* Whether a certification of employability has been issued
8 to the applicant pursuant to section 906.19.
9 *g.* Any letters of reference submitted on behalf of the
10 applicant.
11 *h.* All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present
12 fitness of the applicant.
13 5. An applicant may petition the relevant licensing board,
14 agency, or department, in a form prescribed by the board,
15 agency, or department, for a determination as to whether the
16 applicant's criminal record will prevent the applicant from
17 receiving a license. The board, agency, or department shall
18 issue such a determination at the next regularly scheduled
19 meeting of the board, agency, or department or within thirty
20 days of receiving the petition, whichever is later. The
21 board, agency, or department shall hold a closed session
22 while determining whether an applicant's criminal record will
23 prevent the applicant from receiving a license and while
24 determining whether to deny an applicant's application on
25 the basis of an applicant's criminal conviction. A board,
26 agency, or department may charge a fee to recoup the costs of
27 such a determination, provided that such fee shall not exceed
28 twenty-five dollars.
29 6. *a.* A licensing board, agency, or department that
30 denies an applicant a license solely or partly because of
31 the applicant's prior conviction of a crime shall notify the

32 applicant in writing of all of the following:
 33 (1) The grounds for the denial or disqualification.
 34 (2) That the applicant has the right to a hearing to
 35 challenge the licensing authority's decision.

PAGE 6

1 (3) The earliest date the applicant may submit a new
 2 application.
 3 (4) That evidence of rehabilitation of the applicant may be
 4 considered upon reapplication.
 5 *b.* A determination by a licensing board, agency, or
 6 department that an applicant's criminal conviction is
 7 specifically listed as a disqualifying conviction and the
 8 offense directly relates to the duties and responsibilities
 9 of the applicant's profession must be documented in written
 10 findings for each factor specified in subsection 4 sufficient
 11 for a review by a court.
 12 *c.* In any administrative or civil hearing authorized by
 13 this section or chapter 17A, a licensing board, agency, or
 14 department shall carry the burden of proof on the question of
 15 whether the applicant's criminal offense directly relates to
 16 the duties and responsibilities of the profession for which the
 17 license is sought.
 18 7. A board, agency, or department may require an applicant
 19 with a criminal record to submit the applicant's complete
 20 criminal record detailing an applicant's offenses with an
 21 application. A board, agency, or department may also require
 22 an applicant with a criminal record to submit a personal
 23 statement regarding whether each offense directly relates to
 24 the duties and performance of the applicant's occupation. For
 25 the purposes of this subsection, "*complete criminal record*"
 26 includes the complaint and judgment of conviction for each
 27 offense of which the applicant has been convicted.
 28 Sec. ____ RULEMAKING PROCEDURES AND APPLICABILITY.
 29 1. The boards designated in section 147.13 other than the
 30 board of medicine, the board of nursing, the dental board, and
 31 the board of pharmacy, when carrying out rulemaking pursuant to
 32 chapter 17A to implement the provisions of this Act, shall each
 33 adopt the same rules, which shall be applicable to all such
 34 boards. The bureau of professional licensure of the department
 35 of public health shall assist the boards in carrying out such

PAGE 7

1 rulemaking.
 2 2. The accountancy examining board, the architectural
 3 examining board, the engineering and land surveying examining
 4 board, the interior design examining board, the landscape
 5 architectural examining board, and the real estate commission,
 6 when carrying out rulemaking pursuant to chapter 17A to
 7 implement the provisions of this Act, shall each adopt the same

8 rules, which shall be applicable to all such boards and the
9 real estate commission. The professional licensing bureau of
10 the department of commerce shall assist the boards and the real
11 estate commission in carrying out such rulemaking.
12 3. This section shall not apply to any rulemaking pursuant
13 to chapter 17A by a board or commission to implement the
14 provisions of this Act that the board or commission determines
15 is necessary to address circumstances or legal requirements
16 uniquely applicable to the board or commission.
17 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act takes effect January 1,
18 2021.
19 __. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 6 and
20 inserting <An Act relating to disqualifications from holding
21 a professional license in this state due to a criminal
22 conviction, and including effective date provisions.>>

WOLFE of Clinton

H-8273

1 Amend the amendment, H-8257, to House File 2641 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 16 by inserting:
3 <__. Page 74, by striking lines 4 through 15 and inserting:
4 <Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
5 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
6 Sec. __. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
7 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020, for tax years
8 beginning on or after that date.
9 DIVISION __
10 IOWA SMALL BUSINESS RELIEF GRANT PROGRAM
11 Sec. __. Section 422.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
12 following new subsection:
13 NEW SUBSECTION. 59. Subtract, to the extent included,
14 the amount of any financial assistance grant provided to an
15 eligible small business by the economic development authority
16 under the Iowa small business relief grant program created
17 during calendar year 2020 to provide financial assistance to
18 eligible small businesses economically impacted by the COVID-19
19 pandemic.
20 Sec. __. Section 422.35, Code 2020, is amended by adding
21 the following new subsection:
22 NEW SUBSECTION. 26. Subtract, to the extent included,
23 the amount of any financial assistance grant provided to an
24 eligible small business by the economic development authority
25 under the Iowa small business relief grant program created
26 during calendar year 2020 to provide financial assistance to
27 eligible small businesses economically impacted by the COVID-19
28 pandemic.
29 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
30 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
31 Sec. __. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
32 Act applies retroactively to March 23, 2020, for tax years

- 33 ending on or after that date.>
 34 _____. Title page, line 8, by striking <horse racing,>
 35 _____. By renumbering as necessary.>

PAGE 2

- 1 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HITE of Mahaska

H-8274

- 1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:
 2 1. Page 5, after line 13 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. _____. Section 261.20, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:
 5 2. The maximum balance of the scholarship and tuition
 6 grant reserve fund is an amount equal to ~~one~~ two percent of
 7 the funds appropriated to the scholarship and tuition grant
 8 programs under section 261.25 during the preceding fiscal year.
 9 The moneys in the fund shall be placed in separate accounts
 10 within the fund, according to the source and purpose of the
 11 original appropriation. Moneys in the various accounts shall
 12 only be used to alleviate a current fiscal year shortfall in
 13 appropriations for scholarship or tuition grant programs that
 14 have the same nature as the programs for which the moneys
 15 were originally appropriated. At the conclusion of a fiscal
 16 year, any surplus appropriations made to the commission for
 17 scholarship or tuition grant programs are appropriated to the
 18 scholarship and grant reserve fund in an amount equal to the
 19 amount of the surplus or the amount necessary to achieve the
 20 maximum balance, whichever amount is less.>
 21 2. By renumbering as necessary.

WINCKLER of Scott

H-8275

- Amend House File 2643 as follows:
 2 1. Page 5, after line 13 by inserting:
 3 <Sec. _____. Section 261.132, subsection 1, paragraph
 4 d, subparagraph (3), Code 2020, is amended by striking the
 5 subparagraph.>
 6 2. By renumbering as necessary.

WINCKLER of Scott

H-8276

- 1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:
 2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 3 inserting:

4 <DIVISION I
5 CONTINUING APPROPRIATIONS
6 Section 1. CONTINUING APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021.
7 1. APPROPRIATIONS DETERMINED FROM FY 2019-2020 LINE ITEM
8 AND LIMITED STANDING APPROPRIATIONS.
9 a. For all line item appropriations, standing limited
10 appropriations, and standing unlimited appropriations otherwise
11 limited by law, including appropriations from federal and
12 nonstate funds, the department of management, with the approval
13 of the legislative council and in consultation with the
14 legislative services agency, shall determine the amount of such
15 line item appropriations, standing limited appropriations, and
16 standing unlimited appropriations otherwise limited by law,
17 including appropriations from federal and nonstate funds, made
18 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30,
19 2020, by taking into consideration all of the following:
20 (1) 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate Files 2144 and 2408, and other
21 2020 Iowa Acts.
22 (2) 2019 Iowa Acts.
23 (3) All interdepartmental and intradepartmental transfers
24 made pursuant to section 8.39 and other provisions of law.
25 (4) Other provisions of law.
26 b. The department of management, in consultation with the
27 legislative services agency, shall also identify the entities
28 to which such appropriations were made, or the entities'
29 successors.
30 c. The department of management, in consultation with the
31 legislative services agency, shall disclose the determined
32 amounts and identified entities to the chairpersons and ranking
33 members of the senate and house of representatives standing
34 committees on appropriations.
35 2. CONTINUING APPROPRIATIONS. There is appropriated

PAGE 2

1 from the appropriate state fund or account to the entities
2 identified pursuant to subsection 1, for the fiscal year
3 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, amounts, or
4 so much thereof as is necessary, equal to the amounts of all
5 line item appropriations, standing limited appropriations, and
6 standing unlimited appropriations otherwise limited by law,
7 including federal and nonstate funds, made for the fiscal year
8 beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, as determined
9 pursuant to subsection 1, to be used for the same designated
10 purposes.
11 3. DUPLICATIVE STANDING APPROPRIATIONS SUPPLANTED. The
12 amounts appropriated under subsection 2 shall supplant
13 any duplicative standing appropriation for the fiscal year
14 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
15 4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021.
16 Any powers, duties, limitations, or requirements, including
17 reporting requirements, set forth in 2019 Iowa Acts, chapters

18 85, 89, 131, 135, 136, 154, 155, and 163, for the fiscal
19 year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, are
20 applicable for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and
21 ending June 30, 2021.

22 5. ALLOCATION AMOUNTS. For any line item appropriation,
23 standing limited appropriation, or standing unlimited
24 appropriation otherwise limited by law identified pursuant
25 to subsection 1 which is subject to an allocation amount for
26 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30,
27 2020, the amount appropriated under subsection 2 based on such
28 appropriation shall be subject to the same allocation amount
29 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
30 2021.

31 6. NONREVERSION PROVISIONS. For any line item
32 appropriation, standing limited appropriation, or standing
33 unlimited appropriation otherwise limited by law identified
34 pursuant to subsection 1 that is subject to a specified
35 nonreversion provision, whether for a limited or unlimited

PAGE 3

1 period, the amount appropriated under subsection 2 based on
2 such appropriation shall be subject to the same specified
3 nonreversion provision, and in the case of a specified
4 nonreversion provision for a limited period, the period shall
5 be considered to be one fiscal year longer than specified for
6 the appropriation identified pursuant to subsection 1.

7 7. FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT POSITIONS. The amounts
8 appropriated under subsection 2 to an entity identified
9 pursuant to subsection 1 may be used by the entity for a number
10 of full-time equivalent positions for the fiscal year beginning
11 July 1, 2020, and ending June 20, 2021, equal to the number of
12 full-time equivalent positions authorized for the entity for
13 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30,
14 2020.

15 8. EXCLUSIONS. This section does not apply to any of the
16 following:

17 a. Appropriations made from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure
18 fund and the technology reinvestment fund pursuant to 2019 Iowa
19 Acts, chapter 137.

20 b. Appropriations made to the department of transportation
21 from the road use tax fund and the primary road fund pursuant
22 to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 52.

23 c. The appropriation made to the department of
24 administrative services from the general fund of the state for
25 establishing a listing of real property owned or leased by
26 the state pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 136, section 1,
27 subsection 1, paragraph "d".

28 d. The appropriation made to the department of agriculture
29 and land stewardship from the general fund of the state for
30 deposit in the hungry canyons account of the loess hills
31 development and conservation fund pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts,

32 chapter 131, section 9, subsection 1.
 33 e. The appropriation made to the department of cultural
 34 affairs from the general fund of the state for payment of
 35 rent for the state records center pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts,

PAGE 4

1 chapter 154, section 1, subsection 1, paragraph “g”.
 2 f. The appropriation made to the Iowa law enforcement
 3 academy from the general fund of the state for costs associated
 4 with temporary relocation of the Iowa law enforcement academy
 5 pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 163, section 10, subsection
 6 1, paragraph “a”, subparagraph (2).
 7 g. The appropriation made to the department of homeland
 8 security and emergency management from the general fund of the
 9 state for flood recovery pursuant to 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate
 10 File 2144, section 3.
 11 h. The appropriation made to the department of management
 12 for distribution of moneys to other governmental entities for
 13 the payment of rate adjustments established by the office of
 14 the chief information officer pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts,
 15 chapter 136, section 16, subsection 2.
 16 i. Any line item appropriation, standing limited
 17 appropriation, or standing unlimited appropriation otherwise
 18 limited by law that is otherwise provided for in this Act.
 19 Sec. 2. REPEAL. 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2408, sections
 20 7 and 8, are repealed.

21 DIVISION II

22 ADMINISTRATION AND REGULATION APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

23 Sec. 3. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES. There
 24 is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the
 25 department of administrative services for the fiscal year
 26 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
 27 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
 28 purposes designated:

29 For the payment of utility costs, and for not more than the
 30 following full-time equivalent positions:
 31 \$ 3,882,948
 32 FTEs 1.00
 33 Notwithstanding section 8.33, any excess moneys appropriated
 34 for utility costs in this section shall not revert to the
 35 general fund of the state at the end of the fiscal year but

PAGE 5

1 shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 2 designated during the succeeding fiscal year.
 3 Sec. 4. DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT — LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL
 4 OF CERTAIN CONTRACTS. For the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 5 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the department of management
 6 shall not enter into any agreement or contract for more than
 7 one million dollars without the approval of the legislative

8 council.

9

DIVISION III

EDUCATION APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

10

11 Sec. 5. STATE BOARD OF REGENTS. There is appropriated from
12 the general fund of the state to the state board of regents
13 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
14 30, 2021, the following amounts, or so much thereof as is
15 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

16

1. STATE SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF

17

For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
18 purposes, and for not more than the following full-time
19 equivalent positions:

20

..... \$ 10,536,171

21

..... FTEs 101.84

22

2. IOWA BRAILLE AND SIGHT SAVING SCHOOL

23

For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
24 purposes, and for not more than the following full-time
25 equivalent positions:

26

..... \$ 4,434,459

27

..... FTEs 58.00

28

DIVISION IV

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

29

Sec. 6. TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES BLOCK

30

GRANT. There is appropriated from the fund created in section
31 8.41 to the department of human services for the fiscal year
32 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, from moneys
33 received under the federal temporary assistance for needy
34 families (TANF) block grant pursuant to the federal Personal
35

PAGE 6

1 Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996,
2 Pub. L. No. 104-193, and successor legislation, the following
3 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
4 purposes designated:

5

To be credited to the family investment program account and
6 used for assistance under the family investment program under
7 chapter 239B:

8

..... \$ 5,002,006

9

Sec. 7. MEDICAL ASSISTANCE. There is appropriated from the
10 general fund of the state to the department of human services
11 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
12 2021, the following amount, or so much thereof as is necessary,
13 to be used for the purpose designated:

14

For medical assistance program reimbursement and associated
15 costs as specifically provided in the reimbursement
16 methodologies in effect on June 30, 2020, except as otherwise
17 expressly authorized by law, consistent with options under
18 federal law and regulations, and contingent upon receipt of
19 approval from the office of the governor of reimbursement for
20 each abortion performed under the program:

21

..... \$ 1,466,364,409

22 The prohibitions, limitations, transfers, authorizations,
23 requirements applicable to state and private entities, and
24 requirements applicable to the use of appropriated moneys,
25 including allocation amounts, set forth in 2019 Iowa Acts,
26 chapter 85, section 13, subsections 1 through 24, apply to
27 the moneys appropriated in this section for the fiscal year
28 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.

29 Sec. 8. STATE SUPPLEMENTARY ASSISTANCE.

30 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the
31 state to the department of human services for the fiscal year
32 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
33 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
34 purpose designated:

35 For the state supplementary assistance program:

PAGE 7

1 \$ 7,349,002

2 2. The department shall increase the personal needs
3 allowance for residents of residential care facilities by the
4 same percentage and at the same time as federal supplemental
5 security income and federal social security benefits are
6 increased due to a recognized increase in the cost of living.
7 The department may adopt emergency rules to implement this
8 subsection.

9 3. If during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,
10 the department projects that state supplementary assistance
11 expenditures for a calendar year will not meet the federal
12 pass-through requirement specified in Tit. XVI of the federal
13 Social Security Act, section 1618, as codified in 42 U.S.C.
14 §1382g, the department may take actions including but not
15 limited to increasing the personal needs allowance for
16 residential care facility residents and making programmatic
17 adjustments or upward adjustments of the prescribed residential
18 care facility or in-home health-related care reimbursement
19 rates to ensure that federal requirements are met. In
20 addition, the department may make other programmatic and rate
21 adjustments necessary to remain within the amount appropriated
22 in this section while ensuring compliance with federal
23 requirements. The department may adopt emergency rules to
24 implement the provisions of this subsection.

25 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in
26 this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the
27 close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain
28 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the
29 close of the succeeding fiscal year.

30 Sec. 9. CHILDREN'S HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM.

31 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the
32 state to the department of human services for the fiscal year
33 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
34 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
35 purpose designated:

PAGE 8

1 For maintenance of the healthy and well kids in Iowa (hawk-i)
 2 program pursuant to chapter 514I, including supplemental dental
 3 services, for receipt of federal financial participation under
 4 Tit. XXI of the federal Social Security Act, which creates the
 5 children’s health insurance program:

6 \$ 37,598,984

7 2. Of the funds appropriated in this section, \$146,682 is
 8 allocated for continuation of the contract for outreach with
 9 the department of public health.

10 3. A portion of the funds appropriated in this section may
 11 be transferred to the appropriations made for field operations
 12 or medical contracts to be used for the integration of hawk-i
 13 program eligibility, payment, and administrative functions
 14 under the purview of the department of human services,
 15 including for the Medicaid management information system
 16 upgrade.

17 Sec. 10. STATE RESOURCE CENTERS.

18 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the
 19 state to the department of human services for the fiscal year
 20 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
 21 amounts, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
 22 purposes designated:

23 a. For the state resource center at Glenwood for salaries,
 24 support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:

25 \$ 16,700,867

26 b. For the state resource center at Woodward for salaries,
 27 support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:

28 \$ 10,913,360

29 2. The department may continue to bill for state resource
 30 center services utilizing a scope of services approach used for
 31 private providers of intermediate care facilities for persons
 32 with an intellectual disability services, in a manner which
 33 does not shift costs between the medical assistance program,
 34 counties, or other sources of funding for the state resource
 35 centers.

PAGE 9

1 3. The state resource centers may expand the time-limited
 2 assessment and respite services during the fiscal year.
 3 4. If the department’s administration and the department
 4 of management concur with a finding by a state resource
 5 center’s superintendent that projected revenues can reasonably
 6 be expected to pay the salary and support costs for a new
 7 employee position, or that such costs for adding a particular
 8 number of new positions for the fiscal year would be less
 9 than the overtime costs if new positions would not be added,
 10 the superintendent may add the new position or positions. If
 11 the vacant positions available to a resource center do not
 12 include the position classification desired to be filled, the

13 state resource center’s superintendent may reclassify any
14 vacant position as necessary to fill the desired position. The
15 superintendents of the state resource centers may, by mutual
16 agreement, pool vacant positions and position classifications
17 during the course of the fiscal year in order to assist one
18 another in filling necessary positions.

19 5. If existing capacity limitations are reached in
20 operating units, a waiting list is in effect for a service or
21 a special need for which a payment source or other funding
22 is available for the service or to address the special need,
23 and facilities for the service or to address the special need
24 can be provided within the available payment source or other
25 funding, the superintendent of a state resource center may
26 authorize opening not more than two units or other facilities
27 and begin implementing the service or addressing the special
28 need during fiscal year 2020-2021.

29 6. Notwithstanding section 8.33, and notwithstanding
30 the amount limitation specified in section 222.92, moneys
31 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
32 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
33 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
34 designated until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

35 Sec. 11. JUVENILE INSTITUTION. There is appropriated

PAGE 10

1 from the general fund of the state to the department of human
2 services for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
3 June 30, 2021, the following amounts, or so much thereof as is
4 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

5 1. a. For operation of the state training school at Eldora
6 and for salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
7 purposes, and for not more than the following full-time
8 equivalent positions:

9	\$ 16,029,488
10	FTEs 207.00

11 b. Of the funds appropriated in this subsection, \$91,000
12 shall be used for distribution to licensed classroom teachers
13 at this and other institutions under the control of the
14 department of human services based upon the average student
15 yearly enrollment at each institution as determined by the
16 department.

17 2. A portion of the moneys appropriated in this section
18 shall be used by the state training school at Eldora for
19 grants for adolescent pregnancy prevention activities at the
20 institution in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.

21 3. Of the funds appropriated in this subsection, \$212,000
22 shall be used by the state training school at Eldora for a
23 substance use disorder treatment program at the institution for
24 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.

25 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in
26 this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the

27 close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain
28 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the
29 close of the succeeding fiscal year.

30 DIVISION V

31 PROPERTY TAX CREDITS

32 Sec. 12. PROPERTY TAX CREDITS.

33 1. In lieu of the standing appropriations in the following
34 designated sections, for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
35 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, there is appropriated from

PAGE 11

1 the general fund of the state the following amounts for the
2 following designated purposes:

3 a. For reimbursement for the homestead property tax credit
4 under section 425.1:

5 \$139,984,518

6 b. For implementing the elderly and disabled tax credit and
7 reimbursement pursuant to sections 425.16 through 425.40:

8 \$ 20,500,000

9 2. If the director of revenue determines that the amount of
10 claims for credit for property taxes due pursuant to paragraphs
11 "a" and "b", plus the amount of claims for reimbursement for
12 rent constituting property taxes paid which are to be paid
13 during a fiscal year may exceed the total amount appropriated
14 for that fiscal year, the director shall estimate the
15 percentage of the credits and reimbursements which will be
16 funded by the appropriation. The county treasurer shall notify
17 the director of the amount of property tax credits claimed by
18 June 26, 2020. The director shall estimate the percentage of
19 the property tax credits and rent reimbursement claims that
20 will be funded by the appropriation and notify the county
21 treasurer of the percentage estimate by June 30, 2020. The
22 estimated percentage shall be used in computing for each claim
23 the amount of property tax credit and reimbursement for rent
24 constituting property taxes paid for that fiscal year. If
25 the director overestimates the percentage of funding, claims
26 for reimbursement for rent constituting property taxes paid
27 shall be paid until they can no longer be paid at the estimated
28 percentage of funding. Rent reimbursement claims filed after
29 that point in time shall receive priority and shall be paid in
30 the following fiscal year.

31 Sec. 13. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
32 Act, if approved by the governor after June 26, 2020, applies
33 retroactively to June 26, 2020.

34 DIVISION VI

35 CORRECTIVE PROVISIONS

PAGE 12

1 Sec. 14. Section 100B.41, as enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts,
2 Senate File 2259, section 1, is amended to read as follows:

3 **100B.41 Donation of fire fighting, emergency medical**
 4 **response, and law enforcement equipment.**

5 A fire department, emergency medical services provider, or
 6 law enforcement agency may donate used vehicles or equipment
 7 to an organization that provides fire response or emergency
 8 medical services, or to a law enforcement agency. An entity
 9 making a good faith donation of equipment pursuant to this
 10 ~~subsection~~ section shall be immune from civil liability from
 11 any claim arising from the performance, failure to perform,
 12 nature, age, condition, or packaging of any vehicle or
 13 equipment used in fire fighting, emergency medical response,
 14 or law enforcement.

15 Sec. 15. Section 260C.48, subsection 1, paragraph a,
 16 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, as enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts,
 17 House File 2454, section 1, is amended to read as follows:

18 (2) For purposes of subparagraph (1), subparagraph
 19 divisions (b) and (c), if the instructor is a licensed
 20 practitioner who holds a career and technical endorsement under
 21 chapter 272, relevant work experience in the occupational area
 22 includes but is not limited to classroom instruction in a
 23 career and technical education subject area offered by a school
 24 district or accredited nonpublic school.

25 Sec. 16. Section 321.279, subsection 2, paragraph b, as
 26 enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2275, section 1, is
 27 amended to read as follows:

28 *b.* The driver of a motor vehicle who commits a violation
 29 under this ~~section~~ subsection and who has previously committed
 30 a violation under this ~~section~~ subsection or subsection 3 is,
 31 upon conviction, guilty of a class "D" felony.

32 Sec. 17. Section 514C.35, subsection 4, paragraph d,
 33 subparagraph (1), if enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File
 34 2261, section 5, is amended to read as follows:

35 (1) ~~Any~~ Any school, other than a public school, that is

PAGE 13

1 accredited pursuant to section 256.11 for any and all levels
 2 for grades one through twelve.

3 Sec. 18. Section 709.23, subsection 2, if enacted by 2020
 4 Iowa Acts, House File 2554, section 4, is amended to read as
 5 follows:

6 2. A person who commits continuous sexual abuse of a
 7 child is, upon conviction, guilty of a class "B" felony.
 8 Notwithstanding section 902.9, subsection 1, paragraph "b",
 9 a person convicted of a violation of this ~~subsection~~ section
 10 involving any combination of three or more acts of sexual abuse
 11 that includes a violation of section 709.3 or 709.4 shall be
 12 confined for no more than fifty years.

13 Sec. 19. 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 9,
 14 subsection 2, paragraph b, subparagraph (1), subparagraph
 15 division (a), is amended to read as follows:

16 (a) Review of requirements. The supervising physician and

17 the physician assistant shall review all of the requirements
 18 of physician assistant licensure, practice, supervision, and
 19 delegation of medical services as set forth in section 148.13
 20 and chapter 148C, ~~the~~ Iowa administrative code ~~chapter~~ chapters
 21 under 653 IAC, and 645 IAC chapters 326 to 329.

22 Sec. 20. 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 10,
 23 subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph 1, is amended to read as
 24 follows:

25 ~~The Notwithstanding section 148C.5, the~~ board of physician
 26 assistants shall rescind all of the following:

27 Sec. 21. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 28 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

29 Sec. 22. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following apply
 30 retroactively to March 18, 2020:

31 1. The section of this division of this Act amending 2020
 32 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 9.

33 2. The section of this division of this Act amending 2020
 34 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 10.

35 DIVISION VII

PAGE 14

1 CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE AND RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY

2 Sec. 23. EFFECTIVE UPON ENACTMENT. Unless otherwise
 3 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 4 July 1, 2020, takes effect upon enactment.

5 Sec. 24. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. Unless otherwise
 6 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 7 July 1, 2020, applies retroactively to July 1, 2020.>

HALL of Woodbury

H-8277

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-8084, to House File 737, as
 2 passed by the House, as follows:

- 3 1. Page 2, line 5, by striking <4. a.> and inserting <4.>
- 4 2. Page 2, by striking lines 7 through 9.
- 5 3. By striking page 2, line 11, through page 3, line 2.
- 6 4. Page 3, by striking lines 7 through 32.
- 7 5. By renumbering as necessary.

PAUSTIAN of Scott

H-8278

1 Amend House File 2642 as follows:

- 2 1. Page 5, by striking line 12 and inserting:
- 3 <..... \$ 7,500,000>

4 2. Page 7, by striking line 16 and inserting:
5 <..... \$ 1,500,000>

McKEAN of Jones
ISENHART of Dubuque
JACOBY of Johnson
STECKMAN of Cerro Gordo

H-8279

1 Amend the amendment, H-8257, to House File 2641 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 16 by inserting:
3 <_. Page 59, line 33, after <district.> by inserting
4 <If, however, the twelve-month period includes any portion of
5 time during which the area of the district was included within
6 an area that the governor proclaimed a disaster emergency
7 or the president of the United States declared a disaster
8 emergency, the average monthly amount of sales for each of
9 the corresponding months during the most recently available
10 twenty-four-month period shall be used.>
11 _____. Page 60, line 4, after <district.> by inserting <If
12 however, the twelve-month period includes any portion of time
13 during which the area of the district was included within
14 an area that the governor proclaimed a disaster emergency
15 or the president of the United States declared a disaster
16 emergency, the average monthly amount of sales for each of
17 the corresponding months during the most recently available
18 twenty-four-month period shall be used.>
19 _____. Page 61, line 4, by striking <twelve-month> and
20 inserting <time>
21 _____. Page 61, line 23, by striking <twelve month> and
22 inserting <time>>
23 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8280

1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:
2 1. Page 11, after line 19 by inserting:
3 <DIVISION ____
4 LOCAL FOOD AND FARM PROGRAM
5 Sec. ____ LOCAL FOOD AND FARM PROGRAM.
6 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state
7 to the department of agriculture and land stewardship for the
8 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021,
9 the following amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be
10 used for the purposes designated:
11 For purposes of supporting the local food and farm program
12 pursuant to chapter 267A:
13 \$ 100,000
14 2. Of the moneys appropriated in subsection 1, the

15 department shall use not more than \$25,000 to develop an
 16 incentive program for the purchase of food products by
 17 government entities from farmers for distribution at the
 18 local level. The department shall submit a report regarding
 19 the initiative to the chairperson and ranking members of the
 20 joint appropriations subcommittee on agriculture and natural
 21 resources not later than December 1, 2021. The report shall
 22 include findings and recommendations to improve the program.
 23 3. The department shall enter into a cost-sharing agreement
 24 with the Iowa state university of science and technology to
 25 support the local food and farm program coordinator position
 26 as part of the university's cooperative extension service in
 27 agriculture and home economics pursuant to chapter 267A.
 28 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in
 29 this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the
 30 close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain
 31 available to be used for the purposes designated until the
 32 close of the succeeding fiscal year.>
 33 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8281

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, line 13, after <issued by the> by inserting
 3 <board of optometry, the>

NIELSEN of Johnson

H-8282

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, line 13, after <issued by the> by inserting
 3 <board of physical and occupational therapy, the>

M. SMITH of Marshall

H-8283

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, line 13, after <issued by the> by inserting
 3 <board of behavioral science, the>

M. SMITH of Marshall

H-8284

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, line 13, after <issued by the> by inserting
 3 <board of physician assistants, the>

M. SMITH of Marshall

H-8285

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
2 1. Page 7, line 13, after <issued by the> by inserting
3 <board of social work, the>

M. SMITH of Marshall

H-8286

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
2 1. Page 7, line 13, after <issued by the> by inserting
3 <board of speech pathology and audiology, the>

NIELSEN of Johnson

H-8287

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
2 1. Page 7, line 13, after <issued by the> by inserting
3 <board of respiratory care and polysomnography, the>

LENSING of Johnson

H-8288

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8248, to Senate File 457, as amended,
2 passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
3 1. Page 3, after line 16 by inserting:
4 <Sec. ___. Section 602.8107, subsection 1, paragraph b,
5 Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
6 *b. (1) "Installment agreement" means an agreement made for*
7 *the payment of court debt in excess of one hundred dollars in*
8 *installments.*
9 *(2) The judicial branch may establish a threshold*
10 *amount that is lower than the threshold amount specified in*
11 *subparagraph (1) by court rule.*
12 2. By renumbering as necessary.

WOLFE of Clinton

H-8289

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8270, to House File 2629, as amended,
2 passed, and reprinted by the House, as follows:
3 1. Page 1, after line 11 by inserting:
4 <___. Page 12, line 6, by striking <PROGRAM> and inserting
5 <AND GRANT PROGRAMS>>
6 2. Page 1, after line 12 by inserting:
7 <Sec. ___. Section 261.132, subsection 1, paragraph d,
8 subparagraph (3), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
9 (3) Has not been enrolled in postsecondary education during

10 the ~~twenty-four~~ twelve months preceding the date on which the
 11 commission receives the individual's application to participate
 12 in the program.>

13 3. Page 1, line 33, after <scholarship> by inserting <and a
 14 grant>

15 4. By renumbering as necessary.

DOLECHECK of Ringgold

H-8290

1 Amend House File 2642 as follows:

2 1. Page 9, line 31, after <firewall> by inserting <and
 3 distributed denial-of-service attack>

4 2. Page 11, lines 16 and 17, by striking <the prior fiscal
 5 year> and inserting <the prior fiscal year years>

6 3. Page 11, after line 31 by inserting:

7 <Sec. ____ 2016 Iowa Acts, chapter 1133, section 7, is
 8 amended to read as follows:

9 SEC. 7. REVERSION.

10 1. For Except as provided in subsection 2, for purposes
 11 of section 8.33, unless specifically provided otherwise,
 12 unencumbered or unobligated moneys made from an appropriation
 13 in this division of this Act shall not revert but shall remain
 14 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the
 15 close of the fiscal year that ends three years after the end of
 16 the fiscal year for which the appropriation is made. However,
 17 if the project or projects for which such appropriation was
 18 made are completed in an earlier fiscal year, unencumbered
 19 or unobligated moneys shall revert at the close of that same
 20 fiscal year.

21 2. For purposes of section 8.33, unless specifically
 22 provided otherwise, unencumbered or unobligated moneys
 23 appropriated in section 6, subsection 2, of this division of
 24 this 2016 Act, shall not revert but shall remain available for
 25 the purpose designated until the close of the fiscal year that
 26 begins July 1, 2020.>

27 4. Page 12, lines 31 and 32, by striking <the prior fiscal
 28 year> and inserting <the prior fiscal year years>

29 5. By renumbering as necessary.

BOSSMAN of Woodbury

H-8291

1 Amend House File 2644, as passed by the House, as follows:

2 1. Page 5, after line 14 by inserting:

3 <Sec. ____ The department of transportation shall submit
 4 an annual report to the general assembly on or before December
 5 31 for the next five fiscal years which shall include any cost
 6 savings to the department from adding additional full-time
 7 equivalent employees from the fiscal year prior.>

8 2. By renumbering as necessary.

BOSSMAN of Woodbury

H-8292

1 Amend the amendment, H-8248, to Senate File 457, as amended,
2 passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 5, line 5, after <state> by inserting <, and
4 the amount deposited is appropriated to the department of
5 agriculture and land stewardship to support the Iowa emergency
6 food purchase program fund established in section 190B.201>

7 2. Page 40, after line 33 by inserting:

8 <DIVISION ____
9 IOWA EMERGENCY FOOD PURCHASE PROGRAM FUND
10 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **190B.201 Iowa emergency food**
11 **purchase program fund.**

12 1. An Iowa emergency food purchase program fund is
13 established in the state treasury and shall be administered
14 by the department of agriculture and land stewardship. The
15 fund shall consist of moneys appropriated to the fund pursuant
16 to section 602.8108, subsection 13, and any other moneys
17 appropriated to the fund.

18 2. The purpose of the fund is to relieve situations of
19 emergency experienced by families or individuals who reside in
20 this state, including low-income families and individuals and
21 unemployed families and individuals, by distributing food to
22 those persons, and the department may contract with an Iowa
23 food bank association to manage the program.

24 3. The Iowa food bank association managing the program
25 shall distribute food under the program to emergency feeding
26 organizations in this state. The Iowa food bank association
27 shall report to the department as required by the department.

28 4. *"Iowa food bank association"* means a private nonprofit
29 entity that meets all of the following requirements:

30 a. The association is organized under chapter 504.

31 b. The association qualifies under section 501(c)(3) of the
32 Internal Revenue Code as an organization exempt from federal
33 income tax under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

34 c. The association's members include food banks, or
35 affiliations of food banks, that together serve all counties

PAGE 2

1 in this state.

2 d. The association's principal office is located in this
3 state.

4 5. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys in the fund
5 that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close of
6 the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available
7 for expenditure for the purposes designated until two years
8 following the last day of the fiscal year in which the funds

9 were originally appropriated.>
10 3. By renumbering as necessary.

STAED of Linn

H-8293

1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:
2 1. Page 13, after line 20 by inserting:
3 <DIVISION ___
4 FOREIGN ANIMAL DISEASES AFFLICTING LIVESTOCK
5 Sec. ___. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP —
6 APPROPRIATION.
7 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state
8 to the department of agriculture and land stewardship for the
9 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021,
10 the following amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be
11 used for the purposes designated:
12 For deposit in the foreign animal disease preparedness and
13 response fund created in section 163.3B:
14 \$ 550,000
15 2. Of the amount appropriated in subsection 1, not more
16 than \$50,000 shall be used to contract with Iowa state
17 university of science and technology to conduct an assessment
18 of factors which may contribute to the vulnerability to
19 disease of this state’s livestock population, including genetic
20 diversity and production concentration. The university shall
21 prepare a report of its assessment, including findings and
22 recommendations, which shall be submitted to the department,
23 the governor, and the general assembly not later than January
24 15, 2021.
25 DIVISION ___
26 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AND DAM SAFETY
27 Sec. ___. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES. In
28 administering floodplain management and dam safety projects
29 supported by moneys appropriated by this Act, the department
30 shall provide support to government entities seeking to receive
31 assistance from the federal emergency management agency under
32 the federal building resilient infrastructure and communities
33 grant program.
34 DIVISION ___
35 PESTICIDE DRIFT REPORTING

PAGE 2

1 Sec. ___. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP
2 — APPROPRIATION. The department of agricultural and land
3 stewardship shall expend moneys appropriated in this Act to
4 establish and maintain an electronic case management system
5 accessible via the department’s internet site. The electronic
6 case management system shall allow a person to view, download,
7 or print documents contained in a case file compiled when the

8 department conducts an investigation of a possible violation of
9 section 206.11, including a report alleging damages caused by
10 pesticide drift and information related to that report.

11 DIVISION ____

12 BENEFICIAL USE OF GROUNDWATER

13 Sec. ____ STATE UNIVERSITY OF IOWA — IOWA GEOLOGICAL
14 SURVEY. From moneys available for use by the Iowa geological
15 survey of the state as created within the state university of
16 Iowa pursuant to section 456.1, for the fiscal year beginning
17 July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the Iowa geological
18 survey shall conduct a study regarding policies to further the
19 beneficial uses of groundwater, including but not limited to
20 the process of approving permits to withdraw groundwater. The
21 department shall submit a report concerning findings and any
22 recommendations to the governor and general assembly not later
23 than January 15, 2021.>

24 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8294

1 Amend House File 2643 as follows:

2 1. Page 2, line 13, by striking <2021> and inserting <2021,
3 and any specified date contained therein shall apply one year
4 later than specified in such chapters>

5 2. Page 3, by striking lines 20 through 24.

6 3. Page 3, line 33, by striking <subparagraph (2)> and
7 inserting <subparagraph (2), as amended in this Act>

8 4. Page 12, before line 1 by inserting:
9 <Sec. ____ Section 124E.9, subsection 15, if enacted by 2020
10 Iowa Acts, House File 2589, section 20, is amended to read as
11 follows:

12 15. A medical cannabidiol dispensary may dispense more
13 than a combined total of four and one-half grams of total
14 tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's primary
15 caregiver in a ninety-day period if any of the following apply:
16 a. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to
17 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
18 patient's debilitating medical condition is a terminal illness
19 with a life expectancy of less than one year. A certification
20 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total
21 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
22 health care practitioner.
23 b. The health care practitioner who certified the patient
24 to receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies
25 that the patient has participated in the medical cannabidiol
26 program and that the health care practitioner has determined
27 that four and one-half grams of total tetrahydrocannabinol
28 in a ninety-day period is insufficient to treat the
29 patient's debilitating medical condition. A certification
30 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total

31 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient’s
32 health care practitioner.
33 Sec. ____ Section 218.70, Code 2020, as amended by 2020 Iowa
34 Acts, House File 2536, section 78, if enacted, is amended to
35 read as follows:

PAGE 2

1 **218.70 Payment to party entitled.**

2 Moneys transmitted to the treasurer ~~or~~ of state under
3 section 218.68 shall be paid, at any time within ten years
4 from the death of the intestate, to any person who is shown
5 to be entitled thereto. Payment shall be made from the state
6 treasury out of the support fund of such institution in the
7 manner provided for the payment of other claims from that
8 fund.>

9 5. Page 13, after line 20 by inserting:

10 <DIVISION ____

11 IOWA STATE FAIR BOARD — BOND AUTHORIZATION

12 Sec. ____ IOWA STATE FAIR BOARD — BOND AUTHORIZATION. If

13 the Iowa state fair board decides not to hold the Iowa state
14 fair for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
15 June 30, 2021, the Iowa state fair board is authorized to
16 issue and sell negotiable revenue bonds of the Iowa state fair
17 authority pursuant to section 173.14B during the fiscal year
18 for purposes of providing sufficient funds for the advancement
19 of any of its corporate purposes, including salaries, support,
20 maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes.

21 DIVISION ____

22 IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY — RELOCATION

23 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 163, section 10,
24 subsection 1, paragraph a, subparagraph (2), is amended to read
25 as follows:

26 (2) For the costs associated with temporary relocation of
27 the Iowa law enforcement academy:

28 \$ 1,015,442

29 Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in this
30 subparagraph that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the
31 close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain
32 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the
33 close of the fiscal year that begins July 1, 2020.

34 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
35 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

PAGE 3

1 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
2 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
3 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.

4 DIVISION ____

5 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CONCURRENT ENROLLMENT

6 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 135, section 5, subsection

7 27, is amended to read as follows:

8 27. NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CONCURRENT ENROLLMENT PAYMENTS TO
9 COMMUNITY COLLEGES

10 For payments to community colleges for the concurrent
11 enrollment of accredited nonpublic students under section
12 261E.8, subsection 2, paragraph “b”, if enacted by 2019 Iowa
13 Acts, Senate File 603:

14 \$ 1,000,000

15 Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in this
16 subsection that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close
17 of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available
18 for expenditure for the purposes designated until the close of
19 the fiscal year that begins July 1, 2020.

20 Sec. ____ NONREVERSION NOT APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. The
21 specified nonreversion provision set forth in 2019 Iowa Acts,
22 chapter 135, section 5, subsection 27, as amended in this
23 division of this Act, is not applicable to the associated
24 appropriation made for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,
25 and ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 1 of this
26 Act.

27 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
28 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

29 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
30 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
31 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.

32 DIVISION ____

33 RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT AND PROTECTION

34 Sec. ____ Section 455A.18, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
35 2020, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 4

1 a. For each fiscal year of the fiscal period beginning
2 July 1, 1997, and ending June 30, ~~2021~~ 2023, there is
3 appropriated from the general fund, to the Iowa resources
4 enhancement and protection fund, the amount of twenty million
5 dollars, to be used as provided in this chapter. However,
6 in any fiscal year of the fiscal period, if moneys from the
7 lottery are appropriated by the state to the fund, the amount
8 appropriated under this subsection shall be reduced by the
9 amount appropriated from the lottery.

10 DIVISION ____

11 CIVIL TRIALS — LOCATION

12 Sec. ____ CIVIL TRIALS — LOCATION. Notwithstanding any
13 provision to the contrary, for the fiscal year beginning July
14 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, if all parties in a case
15 agree, a civil trial including a jury trial may take place in a
16 county contiguous to the county with proper jurisdiction, even
17 if the contiguous county is located in an adjacent judicial
18 district or judicial election district. If the trial is moved
19 pursuant to this section, court personnel shall treat the case
20 as if a change of venue occurred.

21 DIVISION ____
 22 CLERKS OF THE DISTRICT COURT
 23 Sec. ____ Section 602.1215, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 24 amended to read as follows:
 25 1. Subject to the provisions of section 602.1209,
 26 subsection 3, the district judges of each judicial election
 27 district shall by majority vote appoint persons to serve as
 28 clerks of the district court within the judicial election
 29 district. The district judges of a judicial election district
 30 may appoint a person to serve as clerk of the district court
 31 for more than one ~~but not more than four contiguous counties~~
 32 county in the same judicial district. A person does not
 33 qualify for appointment to the office of clerk of the district
 34 court unless the person is at the time of application a
 35 resident of the state. A clerk of the district court may

PAGE 5

1 be removed from office for cause by the chief judge of the
 2 judicial district, after consultation with the district judges
 3 of the judicial election district. Prior to removal, the
 4 clerk of the district court shall be notified of the cause for
 5 removal.

6 DIVISION ____
 7 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY APPROPRIATION — FY 2019-2020
 8 Sec. ____ DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. There is
 9 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the
 10 department of public safety for the fiscal year beginning July
 11 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, the following amount, or
 12 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
 13 designated:

14 For overtime expenses, including salaries, support,
 15 maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:

16 \$ 2,400,000
 17 Sec. ____ APPROPRIATION NOT APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. The
 18 appropriation set forth in this division of this Act is not
 19 applicable for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 20 ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 1 of this Act.

21 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 22 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

23 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 24 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
 25 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.

26 DIVISION ____
 27 ALARM SYSTEM CONTRACTORS — FEES AND FINES

28 Sec. ____ Section 100C.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 29 the following new subsection:
 30 NEW SUBSECTION. 8A. “*False alarm*” means the activation of
 31 an alarm system when a situation requiring emergency response
 32 does not actually exist. For purposes of this chapter, “*false*
 33 *alarm*” does not include the activation of an alarm system as a
 34 result of weather conditions.

35 Sec. ____ Section 100C.6, subsection 1, Code 2020, is

PAGE 6

1 amended to read as follows:

2 1. Relieve any person from payment of any local permit or
3 building fee, except as provided in section 100C.11.

4 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 100C.11 Alarm systems — fees or**
5 **fees — limitations.**

6 A political subdivision shall not adopt or enforce an
7 ordinance, resolution, rule, or other measure requiring an
8 alarm system contractor to pay a fee or fine associated with
9 any of the following:

10 1. False alarms.

11 2. Emergency response to false alarms.

12 3. Permits associated with placing or keeping an alarm
13 system in service, not including any installation permits
14 required by the political subdivision's building code.

15 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 100C.12 Collection of fees.**

16 1. If, prior to the effective date of this division of this
17 Act, an alarm system contractor charged its customers an amount
18 equal to the costs the political subdivision of the state
19 imposed on the alarm system contractor for permits associated
20 with placing or keeping an alarm in service, as shown on a
21 separate line item on the customer's invoice, the alarm system
22 contractor may continue to collect from its customers such fees
23 until December 31, 2020. The alarm system contractor shall
24 pay to the political subdivision of the state or its designee
25 the fees collected under this section in accordance with the
26 instructions of the political subdivision or the political
27 subdivision's designee.

28 2. Fees collected by an alarm system contractor under
29 this section shall not be subject to audit by a political
30 subdivision or the political subdivision's designee.

31 Sec. ____ **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This division of this Act, being
32 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

33 **DIVISION ____**

34 **ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY**

35 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 3, subsection

PAGE 7

1 1, paragraph b, is amended by adding the following new
2 subparagraph:

3 **NEW SUBPARAGRAPH.** (7) For technical assistance to
4 communications service providers in completing applications for
5 federal funds, or any other funds from any public or private
6 sources, related to improving broadband infrastructure.

7 Sec. ____ **POWERS APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021.** The powers
8 set forth in 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 3, subsection
9 1, paragraph b, as amended in this division of this Act, are
10 applicable to the associated appropriation made for the fiscal

11 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, pursuant
12 to section 1 of this Act.

13 Sec. ____ INSURANCE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. From the
14 moneys collected by the insurance division in excess of the
15 anticipated gross revenues under section 505.7, subsection
16 3, during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, \$100,000
17 shall be transferred to the economic development authority for
18 insurance economic development and international insurance
19 economic development.

20 Sec. ____ UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION
21 PROGRAM. Notwithstanding section 96.9, subsection 4, paragraph
22 "a", moneys credited to the state by the secretary of the
23 treasury of the United States pursuant to section 903 of the
24 Social Security Act are appropriated to the department of
25 workforce development and shall be used by the department for
26 the administration of the unemployment compensation program
27 only. This appropriation shall not apply to any fiscal year
28 beginning after December 31, 2020.

29 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
30 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

31 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following applies
32 retroactively to July 1, 2019:

33 The section of this division of this Act enacting 2019
34 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 3, subsection 1, paragraph b,
35 subparagraph (7).

PAGE 8

1 DIVISION ____
2 CONTINGENT APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

3 Sec. ____ COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION. There is
4 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the college
5 student aid commission for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
6 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so
7 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
8 designated:

9 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2629,
10 if enacted, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
11 miscellaneous purposes:

12 \$ 32,000

13 Sec. ____ DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. There is
14 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the
15 department of public safety for the fiscal year beginning July
16 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or
17 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
18 designated:

19 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2581, as
20 amended in this Act, if enacted, including salaries, support,
21 maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:

22 \$ 411,000

23 Sec. ____ IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY. There is
24 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the Iowa

25 law enforcement academy for the fiscal year beginning July
26 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or
27 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
28 designated:

29 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2647,
30 if enacted, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
31 miscellaneous purposes:

32 \$ 140,000

33 Sec. ____ CONTINGENT REPEAL. The section of this division
34 of this Act appropriating moneys to the college student aid
35 commission is repealed if 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2629, is

PAGE 9

1 not enacted.

2 Sec. ____ CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes
3 effect on the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File
4 2581, as amended in this Act, if enacted:

5 The section of this division of this Act appropriating moneys
6 to the department of public safety.

7 Sec. ____ CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes
8 effect on the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File
9 2647, if enacted:

10 The section of this division of this Act appropriating
11 moneys to the Iowa law enforcement academy.

12 DIVISION ____

13 ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FOUNDATION AID

14 Sec. ____ ADJUSTMENT TO STATE FOUNDATION AID FOR SCHOOL
15 BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.

16 1. If a school district was required to repay property
17 taxes paid or had a reduction in property taxes due for school
18 taxes levied for the school budget year beginning July 1, 2019,
19 on a property that received an assessed value reduction for
20 the assessment year beginning January 1, 2018, by action of
21 the board of review or property assessment appeal board, or
22 by judicial action, and the amount of the reduction for the
23 property exceeded \$47,000,000, the school district is eligible
24 for an adjustment in state foundation aid for the budget year
25 beginning July 1, 2020.

26 2. To receive the adjustment in state foundation aid, the
27 school district shall apply to the department of management
28 within thirty days following the effective date of this
29 division of this Act and section 257.12, subsection 3, shall
30 not apply. The department of management shall determine the
31 amount of adjustment in state foundation aid pursuant to
32 subsection 3.

33 3. The department of management shall determine the amount
34 of state foundation aid which the school district would
35 have received under section 257.1 for the school budget year

PAGE 10

1 beginning July 1, 2019, in the manner provided in section
 2 257.12, subsection 2. The adjustment in state foundation aid
 3 under this section shall be paid as provided in section 257.16.
 4 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 5 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

6 DIVISION ____
 7 HEMP REGULATION

8 Sec. ____ REPEAL. 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2581, section
 9 19, if enacted, is repealed.

10 Sec. ____ 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2581, if enacted, is
 11 amended by adding the following new section:

12 NEW SECTION. 19A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed
 13 of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

14 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following applies
 15 retroactively to the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, House
 16 File 2581, as amended in this division of this Act, if enacted:

17 The section of this division of this Act repealing 2020 Iowa
 18 Acts, House File 2581, section 19.>

19 6. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
 20 references as necessary.

MOHR of Scott

H-8295

1 Amend the amendment, H-8294, to House File 2643 as follows:

2 1. Page 1, after line 7 by inserting:

3 < ____ Page 6, line 12, by striking <24> and inserting <20>

4 ____ Page 7, line 14, after <designated> by inserting

5 <, including for liability amounts associated with the
 6 supplemental nutrition assistance program payment error rate,>

7 ____ Page 10, after line 15 by inserting:

8 <DIVISION ____

9 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — PRIOR APPROPRIATIONS AND OTHER
 10 PROVISIONS

11 RURAL PSYCHIATRIC RESIDENCIES

12 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection
 13 4, paragraph j, is amended to read as follows:

14 j. Of the funds appropriated in this subsection, \$400,000
 15 shall be used for rural psychiatric residencies to support the
 16 annual creation and training of four psychiatric residents who
 17 will provide mental health services in underserved areas of
 18 the state. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys that remain
 19 unencumbered or unobligated at the close of the fiscal year
 20 shall not revert but shall remain available for expenditure for
 21 the purposes designated for subsequent fiscal years.

22 FAMILY INVESTMENT PROGRAM ACCOUNT

23 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, is amended
 24 by adding the following new subsection:

25 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys

26 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
27 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
28 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
29 designated, and may be transferred to the appropriations made
30 in this division of this Act for general administration and
31 field operations for technology needs including the eligibility
32 integrated applications solutions (ELIAS) project, until the
33 close of the succeeding fiscal year.
34 STATE SUPPLEMENTARY ASSISTANCE
35 Sec. _____. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 15, subsection

PAGE 2

1 4, is amended to read as follows:
2 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated
3 in this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated
4 at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert but
5 shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
6 designated, including for liability amounts associated with the
7 supplemental nutrition assistance program payment error rate,
8 until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.
9 CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES
10 Sec. _____. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, subsection
11 18, is amended to read as follows:
12 18. Of the funds appropriated in this section, at least
13 \$147,000 shall be used for the continuation of the child
14 welfare provider training academy, a collaboration between the
15 coalition for family and children's services in Iowa and the
16 department. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys allocated
17 under this subsection that remain unencumbered or unobligated
18 at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall
19 remain available for expenditure for the purposes designated
20 until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.
21 Sec. _____. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, is amended
22 by adding the following new subsection:
23 NEW SUBSECTION. 24. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys
24 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
25 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
26 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
27 designated, and including services implemented to meet the
28 requirements of the federal Family First Prevention Services
29 Act, until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.
30 MENTAL HEALTH INSTITUTES
31 Sec. _____. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection
32 2, is amended to read as follows:
33 2. a. Notwithstanding sections 218.78 and 249A.11, any
34 revenue received from the state mental health institute at
35 Cherokee or the state mental health institute at Independence

PAGE 3

1 pursuant to 42 C.F.R §438.6(e) may be retained and expended by

2 the mental health institute.
 3 b. Notwithstanding sections 218.78 and 249A.11, any
 4 COVID-19 related funding received through federal funding
 5 sources by the state mental health institute at Cherokee or the
 6 state mental health institute at Independence may be retained
 7 and expended by the mental health institute.

8 FIELD OPERATIONS

9 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 27, is amended
 10 by adding the following new subsection:
 11 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys
 12 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
 13 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
 14 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 15 designated until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

16 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

17 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 28, is amended
 18 by adding the following new subsection:
 19 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 7. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys
 20 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
 21 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
 22 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 23 designated until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

24 DECATEGORIZATION FY 2018 CARRYOVER FUNDING

25 Sec. ____ DECATEGORIZATION CARRYOVER FUNDING FY 2018 —
 26 TRANSFER TO MEDICAID PROGRAM. Notwithstanding section 232.188,
 27 subsection 5, paragraph “b”, any state-appropriated moneys in
 28 the funding pool that remained unencumbered or unobligated
 29 at the close of the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017, and
 30 were deemed carryover funding to remain available for the two
 31 succeeding fiscal years that still remain unencumbered or
 32 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 33 2019, shall not revert but shall be transferred to the medical
 34 assistance program for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.

35 Sec. ____ LIMITATION NOT APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. All

PAGE 4

1 of the following amendments to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, are
 2 not applicable to the associated appropriations made for the
 3 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021,
 4 notwithstanding section 1 of this Act:
 5 1. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, as amended in this
 6 division of this Act.
 7 2. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, subsection 18, as
 8 amended in this division of this Act.
 9 3. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, subsection 24, if
 10 enacted by this division of this Act.
 11 4. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 27, as amended in
 12 this division of this Act.
 13 5. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 28, as amended in
 14 this division of this Act.
 15 Sec. ____ LIMITATION APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. All of

16 the following amendments to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, are
 17 applicable to the associated appropriations made for the fiscal
 18 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, pursuant
 19 to section 1 of this Act:

20 1. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 4,
 21 paragraph “j”.

22 2. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 15, subsection 4.

23 3. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection 2, as
 24 amended in this division of this Act.

25 Sec. ___. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 26 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

27 Sec. ___. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 28 Act applies retroactively to July 1, 2019.

29 DIVISION ____
 30 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — FY 2019-2020 PROVISIONS NOT
 31 APPLICABLE FOR FY 2020-2021

32 Sec. ___. HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PROVISIONS NOT
 33 APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. The following provisions of 2019
 34 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, are not applicable to the associated
 35 appropriations made for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,

PAGE 5

1 and ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 1 of this
 2 Act:

3 1. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 2,
 4 paragraph “a”.

5 2. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 7,
 6 paragraph “b”.

7 3. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 9,
 8 paragraph “b”.

9 4. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 4, subsection 1.

10 5. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, subsection 4.

11 6. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 13, subsections 21,
 12 22, 23, and 24.

13 7. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 22, subsection 2.

14 8. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection 1,
 15 paragraph “a”, subparagraph (2).

16 9. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection 1,
 17 paragraph “b”, subparagraph (2).

18 10. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 26, subsection 1,
 19 paragraph “b”.

20 11. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 27, subsection 2.

21 12. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 32, subsection 1.

22 13. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 33.

23 14. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, divisions VII, VIII, XI,
 24 XII, XIV, XVI, XIX, and XXVII.

25 DIVISION ____
 26 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — NEW PROVISIONS APPLICABLE FOR FY
 27 2020-2021

28 STATE MEDICAL EXAMINER

29 Sec. ___. STATE MEDICAL EXAMINER — USE OF MONEYS. For

30 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
 31 2021, a portion of the moneys appropriated from the general
 32 fund of the state to the department of public health for
 33 public protection shall be used to support the office of the
 34 state medical examiner and to address the growth in demand
 35 for services. The office of the state medical examiner shall

PAGE 6

1 enter into a memorandum of understanding with the university
 2 of Iowa hospitals and clinics to coordinate the completion of
 3 forensic autopsies to address increased caseloads and prolonged
 4 backlogs, and to promote regional efficiencies.

5 HOPES — HFI

6 Sec. ___. HEALTHY OPPORTUNITIES FOR PARENTS TO EXPERIENCE
 7 SUCCESS (HOPES) — HEALTHY FAMILIES IOWA (HFI) PROGRAM. For
 8 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
 9 2021, of the funds appropriated from the general fund of the
 10 state to the department of public health for healthy children
 11 and families, not more than \$734,000 shall be used for the
 12 healthy opportunities for parents to experience success (HOPES)
 13 — healthy families Iowa (HFI) program established pursuant to
 14 section 135.106.

15 SEXUAL VIOLENCE PREVENTION PROGRAMMING

16 Sec. ___. SEXUAL VIOLENCE PREVENTION PROGRAMMING. For
 17 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
 18 30, 2021, of the moneys appropriated from the general fund
 19 of the state to the department of public health for public
 20 protection, up to \$243,000 shall be used for sexual violence
 21 prevention programming through a statewide organization
 22 representing programs serving victims of sexual violence
 23 through the department's sexual violence prevention program,
 24 and for continuation of a training program for sexual assault
 25 response team (SART) members, including representatives of
 26 law enforcement, victim advocates, prosecutors, and certified
 27 medical personnel. The amount allocated in this section shall
 28 not be used to supplant funding administered for other sexual
 29 violence prevention or victims assistance programs.

30 TAX PREPARATION ASSISTANCE

31 Sec. ___. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES — TAX PREPARATION
 32 ASSISTANCE. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 33 ending June 30, 2021, of the moneys appropriated from the
 34 general fund of the state to the department of human services
 35 to be credited to the family investment program account and

PAGE 7

1 used for family investment assistance under chapter 239B,
 2 \$195,000 shall be used for a contract executed in accordance
 3 with 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, subsection 4,
 4 with an Iowa-based nonprofit organization with a history of
 5 providing tax preparation assistance to low-income Iowans in

6 order to expand the usage of the earned income tax credit.
7 The purpose of the contract is to supply this assistance to
8 underserved areas of the state.

9 HEALTH PROGRAM OPERATIONS

10 Sec. ____ HEALTH PROGRAM OPERATIONS. There is appropriated
11 from the general fund of the state to the department of human
12 services for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
13 June 30, 2021, the following amount or so much thereof as is
14 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

15 For health program operations:
16 \$ 17,831,343

17 1. The department of inspections and appeals shall provide
18 all state matching moneys for survey and certification
19 activities performed by the department of inspections
20 and appeals. The department of human services is solely
21 responsible for distributing the federal matching moneys for
22 such activities.

23 2. Of the moneys appropriated in this section, \$50,000 shall
24 be used for continuation of home and community-based services
25 waiver quality assurance programs, including the review and
26 streamlining of processes and policies related to oversight and
27 quality management to meet state and federal requirements.

28 3. Of the amount appropriated in this section, up to
29 \$200,000 may be transferred to the appropriation for general
30 administration to be used for additional full-time equivalent
31 positions in the development of key health initiatives such
32 as development and oversight of managed care programs and
33 development of health strategies targeted toward improved
34 quality and reduced costs in the Medicaid program.

35 4. Of the moneys appropriated in this section, \$1,000,000

PAGE 8

1 shall be used for planning and development, in cooperation with
2 the department of public health, of a phased-in program to
3 provide a dental home for children.

4 5. a. Of the moneys appropriated in this section, \$573,000
5 shall be credited to the autism support program fund created
6 in section 225D.2 to be used for the autism support program
7 created in chapter 225D, with the exception of the following
8 amount of this allocation which shall be used as follows:

9 b. Of the moneys allocated in this subsection, \$25,000 shall
10 be used for the public purpose of continuation of a grant to a
11 nonprofit provider of child welfare services that has been in
12 existence for more than 115 years, is located in a county with
13 a population between 200,000 and 220,000 according to the most
14 recent federal decennial census, is licensed as a psychiatric
15 medical institution for children, and provides school-based
16 programming, to be used for support services for children with
17 autism spectrum disorder and their families.

18 Sec. ____ REFERENCES TO MEDICAL CONTRACTS — REPLACED. For
19 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,

20 2021, all references in 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, division V,
 21 to “medical contracts” shall be replaced with the term “health
 22 program operations” and all transfers of funds made to or from
 23 the appropriation for medical contracts shall instead be made
 24 to or from the appropriation for health program operations.

25 CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

26 Sec. ___. CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES — GROUP FOSTER
 27 CARE. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 28 June 30, 2021, of the funds appropriated from the general fund
 29 of the state to the department of human services for child and
 30 family services, \$26,025,000 is allocated as the statewide
 31 expenditure target under section 232.143 for group foster care
 32 maintenance and services. If the department projects that such
 33 expenditures for the fiscal year will be less than the target
 34 amount allocated in this paragraph “a”, the department may
 35 reallocate the excess to provide additional funding for family

PAGE 9

1 foster care, independent living, family-centered services,
 2 shelter care, or the child welfare emergency services addressed
 3 with the allocation for shelter care.

4 FAMILY SUPPORT SUBSIDY PROGRAM

5 Sec. ___. FAMILY SUPPORT SUBSIDY PROGRAM. For the fiscal
 6 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, of the
 7 moneys appropriated from the general fund of the state to the
 8 department of human services for the family support subsidy
 9 program, at least \$875,195 is transferred to the department
 10 of public health for the family support center component of
 11 the comprehensive family support program under chapter 225C,
 12 subchapter V.

13 DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES PROVIDER REIMBURSEMENTS

14 Sec. ___. PROVIDERS REIMBURSED UNDER THE DEPARTMENT OF
 15 HUMAN SERVICES.

16 1. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 17 ending June 30, 2021, the following reimbursement rates and
 18 methodologies shall apply:

- 19 a. (1) For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,
 20 case-mix, non-case-mix, and special population nursing
 21 facilities shall be reimbursed in accordance with the
 22 methodology in effect on June 30, 2020.
 23 (2) For managed care claims, the department of human
 24 services shall adjust the payment rate floor for nursing
 25 facilities, annually, to maintain a rate floor that is no
 26 lower than the Medicaid fee-for-service case-mix adjusted
 27 rate calculated in accordance with subparagraph (1) and
 28 441 IAC 81.6. The department shall then calculate adjusted
 29 reimbursement rates, including but not limited to add-on
 30 payments, annually, and shall notify Medicaid managed care
 31 organizations of the adjusted reimbursement rates within 30
 32 days of determining the adjusted reimbursement rates. Any
 33 adjustment of reimbursement rates under this subparagraph shall

34 be budget neutral to the state budget.
35 (3) Medicaid managed care organizations shall adjust

PAGE 10

1 facility-specific rates based upon payment rate listings issued
2 by the department. The rate adjustments shall be applied
3 prospectively from the effective date of the rate letter issued
4 by the department.
5 b. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, reimbursement
6 rates for inpatient hospital services shall be rebased
7 effective October 1, 2020, subject to Medicaid program upper
8 payment limit rules, and adjusted as necessary to maintain
9 expenditures within the amount appropriated to the department
10 for this purpose for the fiscal year.
11 c. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, under
12 both fee-for-service and managed care administration of
13 the Medicaid program, critical access hospitals shall be
14 reimbursed for inpatient and outpatient services based on the
15 hospital-specific critical access hospital cost adjustment
16 factor methodology utilizing the most recent and complete cost
17 reporting period as applied prospectively within the funds
18 appropriated for such purpose for the fiscal year.
19 d. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, assertive
20 community treatment per diem rates shall remain at the rates in
21 effect on June 30, 2020.
22 e. Notwithstanding section 234.38, for the fiscal
23 year beginning July 1, 2020, the foster family basic daily
24 maintenance rate and the maximum adoption subsidy rate for
25 children ages 0 through 5 years shall be \$16.78, the rate for
26 children ages 6 through 11 years shall be \$17.45, the rate for
27 children ages 12 through 15 years shall be \$19.10, and the
28 rate for children and young adults ages 16 and older shall be
29 \$19.35. For youth ages 18 through 23 who have exited foster
30 care, the preparation for adult living program maintenance rate
31 shall be \$602.70 per month. The maximum payment for adoption
32 subsidy nonrecurring expenses shall be limited to \$500 and the
33 disallowance of additional amounts for court costs and other
34 related legal expenses implemented pursuant to 2010 Iowa Acts,
35 chapter 1031, section 408, shall be continued.

PAGE 11

1 f. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, the
2 reimbursement rate for family-centered services providers shall
3 be established by contract.
4 2. With the exception of the providers and services
5 specified in subsection 1, all other provider and service
6 reimbursement rates and methodologies specified in 2019 Iowa
7 Acts, chapter 85, section 31, shall continue to be applicable
8 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
9 2021.

10 EMERGENCY RULES

11 Sec. ____ EMERGENCY RULES.

12 1. If necessary to comply with federal requirements
 13 including time frames, or if specifically authorized by a
 14 provision of this division of this Act, the department of
 15 human services or the mental health and disability services
 16 commission may adopt administrative rules under section 17A.4,
 17 subsection 3, and section 17A.5, subsection 2, paragraph "b",
 18 to implement the provisions of this division of this Act and
 19 the rules shall become effective immediately upon filing or
 20 on a later effective date specified in the rules, unless the
 21 effective date of the rules is delayed or the applicability
 22 of the rules is suspended by the administrative rules review
 23 committee. Any rules adopted in accordance with this section
 24 shall not take effect before the rules are reviewed by the
 25 administrative rules review committee. The delay authority
 26 provided to the administrative rules review committee under
 27 section 17A.4, subsection 7, and section 17A.8, subsection 9,
 28 shall be applicable to a delay imposed under this section,
 29 notwithstanding a provision in those sections making them
 30 inapplicable to section 17A.5, subsection 2, paragraph "b".
 31 Any rules adopted in accordance with the provisions of this
 32 section shall also be published as a notice of intended action
 33 as provided in section 17A.4.

34 2. If during a fiscal year, the department of human
 35 services is adopting rules in accordance with this section

PAGE 12

1 or as otherwise directed or authorized by state law, and the
 2 rules will result in an expenditure increase beyond the amount
 3 anticipated in the budget process or if the expenditure was
 4 not addressed in the budget process for the fiscal year, the
 5 department shall notify the persons designated by this division
 6 of this Act for submission of reports, the chairpersons and
 7 ranking members of the committees on appropriations, and
 8 the department of management concerning the rules and the
 9 expenditure increase. The notification shall be provided at
 10 least 30 calendar days prior to the date notice of the rules
 11 is submitted to the administrative rules coordinator and the
 12 administrative code editor.

13 REPORT ON NONREVERSION OF FUNDS

14 Sec. ____ REPORT ON NONREVERSION OF FUNDS. The department
 15 of human services shall report the expenditure of any moneys
 16 for which nonreversion authorization was provided for the
 17 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020,
 18 for the family investment program account, state supplementary
 19 assistance, child and family services, the mental health
 20 institutes, field operations, or general administration to the
 21 chairpersons and ranking members of the joint appropriations
 22 subcommittee on health and human services, the legislative
 23 services agency, and the four legislative caucus staffs on a

24 quarterly basis beginning October 1, 2020.

25 CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

26 Sec. ____ CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES APPROPRIATION. For the
27 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, a
28 portion of the funds appropriated from the general fund of the
29 state to the department of human services for child and family
30 services may be used for family-centered services for purposes
31 of complying with the federal Family First Prevention Services
32 Act of 2018, Pub. L. No. 115-123, and successor legislation.

33 DIVISION ____

34 PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PROVISIONS

35 COVID-19 REGULATIONS

PAGE 13

1 Sec. ____ COVID-19 FEDERAL REGULATION. For the time
2 period beginning on the effective date of this division of
3 this Act, and ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding state
4 administrative rules to the contrary, to the extent federal
5 regulations relating to the COVID-19 pandemic differ from state
6 administrative rules, including applicable federal waivers, the
7 federal regulations are controlling during the pendency of the
8 federally declared state of emergency.

9 COUNTY HOSPITAL FUNDING

10 Sec. ____ COUNTY HOSPITAL FUNDING — SUSTAINING OF HOSPITAL
11 OPERATIONS. For the time period beginning on the effective
12 date of this division of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021,
13 notwithstanding any provision of section 347.14, subsection
14 4, to the contrary, a board of trustees of a county hospital
15 may borrow moneys secured solely by hospital revenues for the
16 purpose of providing working capital or for general financing
17 needs to sustain hospital operations.

18 Sec. ____ COUNTY HOSPITAL FUNDING — NONCURRENT DEBT

19 ISSUANCE. For the time period beginning on the effective
20 date of this division of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021,
21 notwithstanding any provision of section 331.478, subsections
22 2 and 3, to the contrary, a board of trustees of a county
23 hospital may authorize noncurrent debt for the purpose of
24 providing working capital or for general financing needs to
25 sustain a county hospital's operations including in the form of
26 natural disaster loans from the state or federal government.

27 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
28 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

29 DIVISION ____

30 MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY SERVICES

31 Sec. ____ Section 331.389, subsection 4, paragraph c, Code
32 2020, is amended to read as follows:

33 c. The department shall work with any county that has not
34 agreed to be part of a region in accordance with paragraph
35 "a" and with the regions forming around the county to resolve

PAGE 14

1 issues preventing the county from joining a region. In
 2 addition to the regional governance agreement requirements
 3 in section 331.392, the department may compel the county and
 4 region to engage in mediation for resolution of a dispute.
 5 The costs incurred for mediation shall be paid by the county
 6 and the region in dispute according to their governance
 7 agreement. A county that has not agreed to be part of a
 8 region in accordance with paragraph "a" shall be assigned by
 9 the department to a region, unless exempted prior to July 1,
 10 2014. A county assigned by the department to a region shall
 11 be included in that region's amended governance agreement
 12 pursuant to this section as of an effective date designated by
 13 the department. The assigned county and region shall operate
 14 according to the region's existing governance agreement until
 15 the regional governance agreement is amended.

16 Sec. ____ Section 331.389, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
 17 amended to read as follows:

18 5. a. If the department determines that a region or an
 19 exempted county is not adequately fulfilling the requirements
 20 under this chapter for a regional service system, the
 21 department shall address the region or county in the following
 22 order:

- 23 ~~a.~~ (1) Require compliance with a corrective action plan.
- 24 ~~b.~~ (2) Reduce the amount of the annual state funding
 25 provided for the regional service system, not to exceed fifteen
 26 percent of the amount.
- 27 ~~e.~~ (3) Withdraw approval for the region or for the county
 28 exemption, as applicable.
- 29 b. The department shall rely on all information available,
 30 including annual audits submitted under section 331.391,
 31 regional governance agreements submitted under section 331.392,
 32 and annual service and budget plans submitted under section
 33 331.393 in determining whether a region or an exempted county
 34 is adequately fulfilling the requirements for a regional
 35 service system. The department may request and review

PAGE 15

1 financial documents, contracts, and other audits, and may
 2 perform on-site reviews and interviews to gather information.

3 Sec. ____ Section 331.392, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 4 amended to read as follows:

- 5 4. The financial provisions of the agreement shall include
 6 all of the following:
- 7 a. Methods for pooling, management, and expenditure of the
 8 funding under the control of the regional administrator. If
 9 the agreement does not provide for pooling of the participating
 10 county moneys in a single fund, the agreement shall specify how
 11 the participating county moneys will be subject to the control
 12 of the regional administrator.

- 13 b. (1) Methods for allocating administrative funding and
 14 resources.
 15 (2) Methods for allocating a region's cash flow amount in
 16 the event a county leaves the region. A region's cash flow
 17 amount shall be divided by the percentage of each county's
 18 population according to the region's population indicated
 19 in the region's annual service and budget plan and shall be
 20 allocated to the counties. This subparagraph shall apply to
 21 all agreements in existence or entered into on or after July
 22 1, 2020.
- 23 c. Contributions and uses of initial funding or related
 24 contributions made by the counties participating in the
 25 region for purposes of commencing operations by the regional
 26 administrator.
- 27 d. Methods for acquiring or disposing of real property.
- 28 e. A process for determining the use of savings for
 29 reinvestment.
- 30 f. A process for performance of an annual independent audit
 31 of the regional administrator. The annual independent audit
 32 prepared by the regional administrator shall be submitted to
 33 the department upon completion of the audit.
- 34 Sec. _____. Section 331.392, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 35 the following new subsection:

PAGE 16

- 1 **NEW SUBSECTION. 6.** All agreements shall be submitted to the
 2 department. The department shall approve the agreement if the
 3 agreement complies with the requirements of this section.
- 4 Sec. _____. MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY SERVICES —
 5 REGIONALIZATION AUTHORIZATION.
- 6 1. The department of human services shall facilitate the
 7 county social services mental health and disability services
 8 region dividing into two separate regions. All member
 9 counties shall participate in the planning as required by the
 10 department. Counties in the western portion of the region may
 11 form a new region if the counties meet the requirements of
 12 this section. Counties in the eastern portion of the region
 13 shall retain the name county social services if a new region is
 14 formed by the counties in the western portion of the region.
- 15 2. County formation of a proposed new mental health and
 16 disability services region pursuant to this section is subject
 17 to all of the following:
- 18 a. The aggregate population of all counties forming
 19 the region is at least 50,000 and includes at least one
 20 incorporated city with a population of more than 24,000. For
 21 purposes of this subparagraph, "population" means the same as
 22 defined in section 331.388, subsection 4, Code 2020.
- 23 b. Notwithstanding section 331.389, subsection 4, on or
 24 before February 1, 2021, the counties forming the region have
 25 complied with section 331.389, subsection 3, and all of the
 26 following additional requirements:

- 27 (1) The board of supervisors of each county forming the
 28 region has voted to approve a chapter 28E agreement.
 29 (2) The duly authorized representatives of all the counties
 30 forming the region have signed a chapter 28E agreement that is
 31 in compliance with section 331.392 and 441 IAC 25.14.
 32 (3) The county board of supervisors' or supervisors'
 33 designee members and other members of the region's governing
 34 board are appointed in accordance with section 331.390.
 35 (4) Executive staff for the region's regional administrator

PAGE 17

- 1 are identified or engaged.
 2 (5) The regional service management plan is developed in
 3 accordance with section 331.393 and 441 IAC 25.18 and 441 IAC
 4 25.21 and is submitted to the department.
 5 (6) The initial regional service management plan shall
 6 identify the service provider network for the region, identify
 7 the information technology and data management capacity to be
 8 employed to support regional functions, and establish business
 9 functions, accounting procedures, and other administrative
 10 processes.
 11 c. Each county forming the region shall submit the
 12 compliance information required in paragraph "b" to the
 13 director of human services on or before February 1, 2021.
 14 Within forty-five days of receipt of such information, the
 15 director of human services shall determine if the region is in
 16 full compliance and shall approve the region if the region has
 17 met all of the requirements of this section.
 18 d. The director of human services shall work with a county
 19 making a request under this section that has not agreed or
 20 is unable to join the proposed new region to resolve issues
 21 preventing the county from joining the proposed new region.
 22 e. By February 1, 2021, the director of human services
 23 shall assign a county, making a request under this section
 24 that has not reached an agreement to be part of the proposed
 25 new region, to an existing region or to another new proposed
 26 region, consistent with this section.
 27 3. If approved by the department, the region shall commence
 28 full operations no later than July 1, 2021.
 29 Sec. ____ MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY SERVICES — TRANSFER
 30 OF FUNDS. Notwithstanding section 331.432, a county with a
 31 population of over 300,000 based on the most recent federal
 32 decennial census may transfer funds from any other fund
 33 of the county to the mental health and disability regional
 34 services fund for the purposes of providing mental health and
 35 disability services for the fiscal year beginning July 1,

PAGE 18

- 1 2020, and ending June 30, 2021. The county shall submit a
 2 report to the governor and the general assembly by September

3 1, 2021, including the source of any funds transferred, the
4 amount of the funds transferred, and the mental health and
5 disability services provided with the transferred funds. The
6 county shall work with the department to maximize the use of
7 the medical assistance program and other third-party payment
8 sources, including but not limited to identifying individuals
9 enrolled with or eligible for Medicaid whose Medicaid-covered
10 services are being paid by the county or could be converted to
11 Medicaid-covered services.

12 DIVISION ____

13 FOSTER HOME INSURANCE FUND

14 Sec. ____ Section 237.13, Code 2020, is amended by striking
15 the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

16 **237.13 Foster home insurance fund.**

17 1. For the purposes of this section, “*foster home*” means an
18 individual, as defined in section 237.1, subsection 7, who is
19 licensed to provide child foster care and shall also be known
20 as a “*licensed foster home*”.

21 2. The foster home insurance fund shall be administered by
22 the department of human services. The fund shall consist of
23 all moneys appropriated by the general assembly for deposit
24 in the fund. The department shall use moneys in the fund to
25 reimburse foster parents for the cost of purchasing foster care
26 liability insurance and to perform the administrative functions
27 necessary to carry out this section.

28 3. The department of human services shall adopt rules,
29 pursuant to chapter 17A, to carry out the provisions of this
30 section.

31 DIVISION ____

32 VETERANS HOME CARRYFORWARD

33 Sec. ____ Section 35D.18, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
34 amended to read as follows:

35 5. Notwithstanding section 8.33, ~~any~~ up to eight hundred

PAGE 19

1 thousand dollars of the balance in the Iowa veterans home
2 annual appropriation or revenues that remains unencumbered or
3 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
4 but shall remain available for expenditure for specified
5 purposes of the Iowa veterans home until the close of the
6 succeeding fiscal year.>>

7 2. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
8 references as necessary.

FRY of Clarke

H-8296

1 Amend the amendment, H-8294, to House File 2643 as follows:

2 1. Page 10, after line 18 by inserting:

3 <DIVISION ____

4 PSILOCYBIN AND PSILOCYN
 5 Sec. _____. Section 124.204, subsection 4, paragraphs s and t,
 6 Code 2020, are amended by striking the paragraphs.>

SHIPLEY of Van Buren

H-8297

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-1317, to House File 638, as
 2 passed by the House, as follows:
 3 1. By striking page 1, line 4, through page 2, line 18, and
 4 inserting:
 5 <<DIVISION ____
 6
 7
 8
 9
 10
 11
 12
 13
 14
 15
 16
 17
 18
 19
 20
 21
 22
 23
 24
 25
 26
 27
 28
 29
 30
 31
 32
 33
 34
 35

PAGE 2

1 effective date of this division of this Act.
 2
 3
 4 Sec. _____. Section 562B.32, subsection 1, paragraph d, Code
 5 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 6 d. For exercising any of the rights and remedies pursuant

7 to this chapter or chapter 216.

8 Sec. ____ Section 562B.32, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
9 amended to read as follows:

10 2. If the landlord acts in violation of subsection 1
11 of this section, the tenant is entitled to the remedies
12 provided in section 562B.24 and has a defense in an action for
13 possession. In an action by or against the tenant, evidence
14 of a complaint within ~~six months~~ one year prior to the alleged
15 act of retaliation creates a presumption that the landlord's
16 conduct was in retaliation. The presumption does not arise
17 if the tenant made the complaint after notice of termination
18 of the rental agreement. For the purpose of this subsection,
19 "*presumption*" means that the trier of fact must find the
20 existence of the fact presumed unless and until evidence is
21 introduced which would support a finding of its nonexistence.

22 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
23 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

24 DIVISION ____
25 RENT INCREASES

26 Sec. ____ Section 562B.14, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
27 amended to read as follows:

28 7. Each tenant shall be notified, in writing, of any rent
29 increase at least ~~sixty~~ one hundred twenty days before the
30 effective date. Such effective date shall not be sooner than
31 the expiration date of the original rental agreement or any
32 renewal or extension thereof.

33 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
34 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

35 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies

PAGE 3

1 to rent increases under chapter 562B occurring on or after the
2 effective date of this division of this Act.

3 DIVISION ____
4 LANDLORD REMEDIES AND PROCEDURES

5 Sec. ____ Section 555B.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
6 follows:

7 **555B.3 Action for abandonment — jurisdiction.**

8 A real property owner not requesting notification by the
9 sheriff as provided in section 555B.2 may bring an action
10 alleging abandonment in the court within the county where the
11 real property is located ~~provided that there is no lien on~~
12 ~~the mobile home or personal property other than a tax lien~~
13 ~~pursuant to chapter 435.~~ The action shall be tried as an
14 equitable action. Unless commenced as a small claim, the
15 petition shall be presented to a district judge. Upon receipt
16 of the petition, either the court or the clerk of the district
17 court shall set a date for a hearing not later than fourteen
18 days from the date of the receipt of the petition, except when
19 there is a lien on the mobile home or personal property, other
20 than a tax lien, the court or the clerk of the district court

21 shall set a date for a hearing no sooner than twenty-five days
 22 from the date of the receipt of the petition so as to allow for
 23 service on the lienholder.

24 Sec. _____. Section 555B.4, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 25 the following new subsection:
 26 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. If a lien, other than a tax lien, exists
 27 on the mobile home or personal property at the time an action
 28 for abandonment is initiated, personal service pursuant to rule
 29 of civil procedure 1.305 shall be made upon the lienholder
 30 no less than twenty days before the hearing. The notice to
 31 the lienholder shall describe the mobile home and shall state
 32 the docket, case number, date, time at which the hearing is
 33 scheduled, and the lienholder's right to assert a claim to
 34 the mobile home at the hearing. The notice shall also state
 35 that failure to assert a claim to the mobile home within the

PAGE 4

1 judicial proceedings is deemed a waiver of all right, title,
 2 claim, and interest in the mobile home and is deemed consent to
 3 the sale or disposal of the mobile home. If personal service
 4 upon the lienholder cannot be completed in time to give the
 5 lienholder the minimum notice required by this section, the
 6 court may set a new hearing date.

7 Sec. _____. Section 555B.8, subsections 2 and 3, Code 2020,
 8 are amended to read as follows:

9 2. ~~If Except as otherwise ordered by the court, if the~~
 10 mobile home owner or other claimant asserts a claim to the
 11 property, the judgment shall be satisfied before the mobile
 12 home owner or other claimant may take possession of the mobile
 13 home or personal property.

14 3. If no claim is asserted to the mobile home or personal
 15 property or if the judgment is not satisfied at the time of
 16 entry, an order shall be entered allowing the real property
 17 owner to sell or otherwise dispose of the mobile home and
 18 personal property pursuant to section 555B.9. ~~If Except as~~
 19 ~~otherwise ordered by the court, if a claimant satisfies the~~
 20 judgment at the time of entry, the court shall enter an order
 21 permitting and directing the claimant to remove the mobile home
 22 or personal property from its location within a reasonable time
 23 to be fixed by the court. The court shall also determine the
 24 amount of further rent or storage charges to be paid by the
 25 claimant to the real property owner at the time of removal.

26 Sec. _____. Section 555B.9, subsections 1, 2, 3, and 4, Code
 27 2020, are amended to read as follows:

28 1. Pursuant to an order for disposal under section 555B.8,
 29 subsection 3, the real property owner shall dispose of the
 30 mobile home and personal property by public or private sale in
 31 a commercially reasonable manner. If the personal property,
 32 lienholder, owner, or other claimant has asserted a claim
 33 to the mobile home or personal property within the judicial
 34 proceedings, that person shall be notified of the sale by

35 restricted certified mail not less than five days before the

PAGE 5

1 sale. The notice is deemed given upon the mailing. The real
2 property owner may buy at any public sale, and if the mobile
3 home or personal property is of a type customarily sold in
4 a recognized market or is the subject of widely distributed
5 standard price quotations, the real property owner may buy at a
6 private sale.

7 2. A sale pursuant to subsection 1 transfers to the
8 purchaser for value, all of the mobile home owner's rights
9 in the mobile home and personal property, and discharges the
10 real property owner's interest in the mobile home and personal
11 property, ~~and any tax lien, and any other lien.~~ The purchaser
12 takes free of all rights and interests even though the real
13 property owner fails to comply with the requirements of this
14 chapter or of any judicial proceedings, if the purchaser acts
15 in good faith.

16 3. The proceeds of the sale of mobile home and personal
17 property shall be distributed as follows:

18 a. First, to satisfy the real property owner's judgment
19 obtained under section 555B.8.

20 b. Second, to satisfy any tax lien for which a claim was
21 asserted pursuant to section 555B.4, subsection 3.

22 2c. Third, to satisfy any other lien for which a claim was
23 asserted pursuant to section 555B.4, subsection 4.

24 c. Any surplus remaining after the proceeds are distributed
25 shall be held by the real property owner for six months. If
26 the mobile home owner fails to claim the surplus in that time,
27 the surplus may be retained by the real property owner. If
28 a deficiency remains after distribution of the proceeds, the
29 mobile home owner is liable for the amount of the deficiency.

30 4. Notwithstanding subsections 1 through 3, the real
31 property owner may propose to retain the mobile home and
32 personal property in satisfaction of the judgment obtained
33 pursuant to section 555B.8. Written notice of the proposal
34 shall be sent to the mobile home owner, lienholder, or other
35 claimant, if that person has asserted a claim to the mobile

PAGE 6

1 home or personal property in the judicial proceedings. If
2 the real property owner receives objection in writing from
3 the mobile home owner, lienholder, or other claimant within
4 twenty-one days after the notice was sent, the real property
5 owner shall dispose of the mobile home and personal property
6 pursuant to subsection 1. If no written objection is received
7 by the real property owner within twenty-one days after the
8 notice was sent, the mobile home and personal property may be
9 retained. Retention of the mobile home and personal property
10 discharges the judgment of the real property owner, ~~and any tax~~

11 lien, and any other lien.

12 Sec. ____ Section 562A.9, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
13 amended to read as follows:

14 4. For rental agreements in which the rent does not exceed
15 seven hundred dollars per month, a rental agreement shall not
16 provide for a late fee that exceeds twelve dollars per day or a
17 total amount of sixty dollars per month. For rental agreements
18 in which the rent is greater than seven hundred dollars per
19 month but less than one thousand four hundred dollars per
20 month, a rental agreement shall not provide for a late fee that
21 exceeds twenty dollars per day or a total amount of one hundred
22 dollars per month. For rental agreements in which the rent is
23 at least one thousand four hundred dollars per month, a rental
24 agreement shall not provide for a late fee that exceeds two
25 percent of the rent per day or a total amount of ten percent of
26 the rent per month.

27 Sec. ____ Section 562B.10, subsections 4 and 7, Code 2020,
28 are amended to read as follows:

29 4. For rental agreements in which the rent does not exceed
30 seven hundred dollars per month, a rental agreement shall not
31 provide for a late fee that exceeds twelve dollars per day or a
32 total amount of sixty dollars per month. For rental agreements
33 in which the rent is greater than seven hundred dollars per
34 month but less than one thousand four hundred dollars per
35 month, a rental agreement shall not provide for a late fee that

PAGE 7

1 exceeds twenty dollars per day or a total amount of one hundred
2 dollars per month. For rental agreements in which the rent is
3 at least one thousand four hundred dollars per month, a rental
4 agreement shall not provide for a late fee that exceeds two
5 percent of the rent per day or a total amount of ten percent of
6 the rent per month.

7 a. If a tenant who was sole owner of a mobile home dies
8 during the term of a rental agreement then that person's heirs
9 or legal representative or the landlord shall have the right
10 to cancel the tenant's lease by giving sixty days' written
11 notice to the person's heirs or legal representative or to
12 the landlord, whichever is appropriate, and the heirs or the
13 legal representative shall have the same rights, privileges and
14 liabilities of the original tenant.

15 b. (1) If a tenant who was sole owner of a mobile home dies
16 during the term of a rental agreement resulting in the mobile
17 home being abandoned as provided in section 562B.27, subsection
18 1, and the landlord cannot, despite due diligence, locate such
19 tenant's heirs or legal representatives, then the landlord may
20 bring an action for abandonment as provided in section 555B.3,
21 naming as defendants the estate of the tenant and any and all
22 unknown heirs of the tenant and, upon the landlord's filing
23 of an affidavit that personal service cannot be had on any
24 heir, legal representative, or estate of the tenant, the court

25 shall permit original notice of such action to be served by
 26 publication pursuant to subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.
 27 (2) Publication of the original notice shall be made
 28 once each week for three consecutive weeks in a newspaper of
 29 general circulation published in the county where the petition
 30 is filed, as provided in rules of civil procedure 1.313 and
 31 1.314. Service is complete after the third consecutive weekly
 32 publication.
 33 (3) In the event any tax lien or other lien exists on
 34 the mobile home, the landlord may proceed with an action for
 35 abandonment as provided in section 555B.3, except that:

PAGE 8

1 (a) Notice shall be provided to the county treasurer as
 2 provided in section 555B.4, subsection 3, if a tax lien exists.
 3 (b) Personal service pursuant to rule of civil procedure
 4 1.305 shall be made upon any lienholder no less than twenty
 5 days before the hearing.
 6 (4) Any notice to a lienholder shall state that failure
 7 to assert a claim to the mobile home is deemed a waiver of
 8 all right, title, claim, and interest in the mobile home and
 9 is deemed consent to the sale or disposal of the mobile home.
 10 If personal service upon the lienholder cannot be completed
 11 in time to give the lienholder the minimum notice required by
 12 subparagraph (3), the court may set a new hearing date.

13 Sec. ____ Section 648.5, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 14 to read as follows:

15 1. An action for forcible entry and detainer shall be
 16 brought in a county where all or part of the premises is
 17 located. Such an action shall be tried as an equitable action.
 18 Upon receipt of the petition, the court shall set a date,
 19 time, and place for hearing. The court shall set the date
 20 of hearing no later than eight days from the filing date,
 21 except that the court shall set a later hearing date no later
 22 than fifteen days from the date of filing if the plaintiff
 23 requests or consents to the later date of hearing. The
 24 requirement regarding the setting of the initial hearing is not
 25 a jurisdictional requirement and does not affect the court's
 26 subject matter jurisdiction to hear the action for forcible
 27 entry and detainer.

28 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. The following take effect January
 29 1, 2021:

30 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 31 562A.9, subsection 4.

32 2. The portion of the section of this division of this Act
 33 amending section 562B.10, subsection 4.

34 DIVISION ____
 35 UNLAWFUL OUSTER

PAGE 9

1 Sec. ____ Section 562B.24, Code 2020, is amended to read as
2 follows:

3 **562B.24 Tenant's remedies for landlord's unlawful ouster,**
4 **exclusion or diminution of services.**

5 If the landlord unlawfully removes or excludes the tenant
6 from the manufactured home community or mobile home park or
7 willfully diminishes services to the tenant by interrupting
8 or causing the interruption of electric, gas, water, or
9 other essential service to the tenant, the tenant may recover
10 possession, require the restoration of essential services or
11 terminate the rental agreement and, in either case, recover an
12 amount not to exceed two months' periodic rent, ~~and~~ twice the
13 actual damages sustained by the tenant, and reasonable attorney
14 fees. If the rental agreement is terminated, the landlord
15 shall return all prepaid rent and security.

16 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
17 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

18 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act
19 applies to actions under section 562B.24 filed on or after the
20 effective date of this division of this Act.

21 DIVISION ____

22 WRONGFUL FAILURE TO PROVIDE ESSENTIAL SERVICES

23 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **562B.23A Wrongful failure to supply**
24 **running water or essential services.**

25 1. If contrary to the rental agreement or section 562B.16
26 the landlord deliberately or negligently fails to supply
27 running water or other essential services, the tenant may give
28 written notice to the landlord specifying the breach and may
29 do one of the following:

- 30 a. Procure reasonable amounts of water or other essential
31 services during the period of the landlord's noncompliance and
32 deduct the actual and reasonable cost from the rent.
33 b. Recover damages based upon the diminution in the fair
34 market value of the mobile home space.
35 c. Recover any rent already paid for the period of the

PAGE 10

1 landlord's noncompliance which shall be reimbursed on a pro
2 rata basis.

3 2. If the tenant proceeds under this section, the tenant may
4 not proceed under section 562B.22 as to that breach.

5 3. The rights under this section do not arise until the
6 tenant has given notice to the landlord or if the condition was
7 caused by the deliberate or negligent act or omission of the
8 tenant, a member of the tenant's family, or other person on the
9 premises with the consent of the tenant.

10 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
11 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

12 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies

13 to actions under section 562B.23A filed on or after the
14 effective date of this division of this Act.

15 DIVISION ____

16 HOME EQUIPMENT MODIFICATIONS — PROHIBITED RENTAL AGREEMENT
17 PROVISIONS

18 Sec. ____ Section 562B.11, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
19 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
20 NEW PARAGRAPH. e. Agrees to modify the mobile home,
21 manufactured home, or modular home in a way that would
22 substantially impair the ability of the tenant to move the
23 home from the mobile home space, unless such modification is
24 required by federal law, including but not limited to the
25 model manufactured home installation standards, 24 C.F.R. pt.
26 3285, the manufactured home construction and safety standards,
27 24 C.F.R. pt. 3280, or the manufactured home procedural and
28 enforcement regulations, 24 C.F.R. pt. 3282, or by state or
29 local law, the manufacturer's installation instructions, any
30 requirement arising from the landlord's financing of the home
31 or of the mobile home park or manufactured home community in
32 which the home is located, or unless such modification is
33 otherwise necessary for the safe and proper installation of the
34 home.

35 DIVISION ____

PAGE 11

1 LANDLORD SALES

2 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **562B.17A Sale of mobile home by**
3 **landlord.**

4 1. Any sale of a mobile home located in a manufactured
5 home community or mobile home park by a landlord or landlord's
6 agent shall be by written agreement and the landlord shall
7 produce and assign the current certificate of title obtained
8 from the department of transportation. The agreement shall
9 state the basic terms of sale, including the total cost of
10 the mobile home, finance charges, annual percentage rate, and
11 the frequency and amount of each installment payment. Such
12 agreement shall comply with the finance charge rate limitation
13 in section 103A.58, subsection 1.

14 2. Any such sale that does not comply with this section
15 may be voided by the buyer and the buyer may recover damages
16 incurred, amounts paid as a rental deposit in excess of two
17 months' rent for the mobile home, and reasonable attorney fees.

18 3. A claim under subsection 2 may be combined with an action
19 under chapter 648.

20 Sec. ____ Section 648.19, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
21 amended to read as follows:

22 1. An action under this chapter shall not be filed in
23 connection with any other action, with the exception of a claim
24 for rent or recovery as provided in section 555B.3, 562A.24,
25 562A.32, 562B.17A, 562B.22, 562B.25, or 562B.27, nor shall it
26 be made the subject of counterclaim.

27 DIVISION ____
 28 DISCLOSURE OF UTILITY CHARGES
 29 Sec. ____ Section 562B.14, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
 30 amended to read as follows:
 31 6. a. The landlord or any person authorized to enter into
 32 a rental agreement on the landlord's behalf shall provide a
 33 written explanation of utility rates, charges and services to
 34 the prospective tenant before the rental agreement is signed
 35 unless the utility charges are paid by the tenant directly to

PAGE 12

1 the utility company.
 2 b. If a landlord obtains a utility service from a utility
 3 provider and furnishes the utility to the tenant and the
 4 landlord's charge to the tenant is based upon the utility
 5 provider's charge or rate for the use of such utility to
 6 consumers, an increase in the landlord's charge to a tenant
 7 for the utility that corresponds to the same increase in the
 8 utility provider's charge or rate to the landlord shall be
 9 effective thirty days after the landlord provides written
 10 notice of such increase to the tenant, unless the landlord does
 11 not receive at least sixty days' prior notice of such increase
 12 from the utility provider in which case no prior notice of the
 13 increase from the landlord to the tenant is required for the
 14 increase to be effective.

15 DIVISION ____
 16 FURNISHING OF WATER AND UTILITY CHARGES
 17 Sec. ____ Section 423.3, subsection 103, Code 2020, is
 18 amended to read as follows:
 19 103. a. (1) The sales price from the sale or furnishing by
 20 a water utility of a water service in the state to consumers or
 21 users.
 22 (2) Water service furnished by a mobile home park that does
 23 not engage in the sale of water service. For purposes of this
 24 subsection, a mobile home park does not engage in the sale of
 25 water service if all of the following apply:
 26 (a) The water service is not furnished to tenants for a
 27 separately itemized price.
 28 (b) The water service is not otherwise identifiable from
 29 an invoice, bill, catalogue, price list, rate card, receipt,
 30 agreement, or other similar document, including where the total
 31 sales price increases when water service is included in the
 32 sale to tenants.
 33 (c) The water service is incidental to the rental of real
 34 property.
 35 b. For purposes of this subsection:

PAGE 13

1 (1) "Mobile home park" means the same as defined in section
 2 562B.7.

3 ~~(1)~~ (2) “*Water service*” means the delivery of water by
4 piped distribution system.

5 ~~(2)~~ (3) “*Water utility*” means a public utility as defined
6 in section 476.1 that furnishes water by piped distribution
7 system to the public for compensation.

8 Sec. ____ Section 423G.4, Code 2020, is amended by striking
9 the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

10 **423G.4 Exemptions.**

11 There is exempted from the tax imposed by this chapter the
12 following:

13 1. The sales price from transactions exempt from state
14 sales tax under section 423.3. However, the sales price from
15 transactions exempt from state sales tax under section 423.3,
16 subsection 103, shall not be exempt unless as provided in
17 subsection 2 or 3.

18 2. *a.* The sales price from the sale or furnishing of water
19 by a mobile home park through a piped distribution system
20 maintained by the mobile home park, to a consumer or user of
21 water who is a tenant, if all of the following apply:

22 (1) The water was obtained from a water utility.

23 (2) A tax was imposed by this chapter on the sales price
24 from the sale or furnishing of water by a water utility to the
25 mobile home park based upon readings of the master meter of the
26 mobile home park.

27 (3) The tenant is not charged for water by the mobile home
28 park in an amount that is more than the rate the tenant would be
29 charged for consuming or using water from the water utility,
30 plus an administrative fee under section 562B.16, subsection 3,
31 not to exceed five dollars per month.

32 *b.* As used in this section:

33 (1) “*Master meter*” means a single meter used in determining
34 the amount of water provided to a mobile home park.

35 (2) “*Mobile home park*” means the same as defined in section

PAGE 14

1 562B.7 and also includes a “*manufactured home community*”, as
2 defined in section 562B.7.

3 (3) “*Piped distribution system*” includes a submetered
4 distribution system.

5 (4) “*Tenant*” means the same as defined in section 562B.7.

6 (5) “*Water utility*” means a public utility as defined in
7 section 476.1 that furnishes water by a piped distribution
8 system to the public for compensation.

9 3. Water service furnished by a mobile home park that does
10 not engage in the sale of water service. For purposes of this
11 subsection, a mobile home park does not engage in the sale of
12 water service if all of the following apply:

13 *a.* The water service is not furnished to tenants for a
14 separately itemized price.

15 *b.* The water service is not otherwise identifiable from
16 an invoice, bill, catalogue, price list, rate card, receipt,

17 agreement, or other similar document, including where the total
 18 sales price increases when water service is included in the
 19 sale to tenants.

20 c. The water service is incidental to the rental of real
 21 property.

22 Sec. ____ Section 455B.171, subsection 26, Code 2020, is
 23 amended to read as follows:

24 26. *“Public water supply system”* means, except as provided
 25 in section 455B.200, a system for the provision to the public
 26 of piped water for human consumption, if the system has at
 27 least fifteen service connections or regularly serves at least
 28 twenty-five individuals. The term includes any source of
 29 water and any collection, treatment, storage, and distribution
 30 facilities under control of the operator of the system and used
 31 primarily in connection with the system, and any collection or
 32 pretreatment storage facilities not under such control which
 33 are used primarily in connection with the system.

34 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 455B.200 Mobile home parks.

35 1. As used in this section:

PAGE 15

1 a. *“Mobile home park”* means the same as defined in section
 2 423G.4.

3 b. *“Tenant”* means the same as defined in section 562B.7.

4 c. *“Water utility”* means a public utility as defined in
 5 section 476.1 that furnishes water by a piped distribution
 6 system to the public for compensation.

7 2. For purposes of this part 1, a mobile home park shall
 8 not be considered a public water supply system if the mobile
 9 home park sells or furnishes water to a tenant and all of the
 10 following apply:

11 a. The water was obtained from a water utility prior to
 12 selling or furnishing the water to a tenant.

13 b. The tenant is not charged more than the rate the tenant
 14 would be charged for consuming or using water from the water
 15 utility, plus an administrative fee under section 562B.16,
 16 subsection 3, not to exceed five dollars per month.

17 Sec. ____ Section 562B.14, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
 18 amended to read as follows:

19 6. The landlord or any person authorized to enter into
 20 a rental agreement on the landlord’s behalf shall provide
 21 a written explanation of utility rates, fees, charges, and
 22 services, subject to section 562B.16, subsection 3, to the
 23 prospective tenant before the rental agreement is signed unless
 24 the utility charges are paid by the tenant directly to the
 25 utility company.

26 Sec. ____ Section 562B.16, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 27 the following new subsection:

28 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. A landlord that is responsible for
 29 payment of utilities being provided to the tenant shall not
 30 charge to the tenant an amount in excess of the actual cost of

31 the utility and as specified in writing under section 562B.14,
32 subsection 6. However, in addition to the actual cost of the
33 utility, a landlord that is responsible for the payment of one
34 or more utilities being provided to the tenant may impose a
35 monthly utility administration fee to each tenant not to exceed

PAGE 16

1 five dollars per month.
2 Sec. __. Section 562B.25, Code 2020, is amended by adding
3 the following new subsection:
4 NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. The failure of a tenant to pay utility
5 charges that exceed the actual cost of the utility provided
6 as required by section 562B.16, subsection 3, shall not be
7 considered noncompliance with the rental agreement.>
8 2. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 22 and inserting <An
9 Act relating to property law by modifying provisions relating
10 to rental properties, manufactured home communities, mobile
11 home parks, and manufactured mobile home communities, modifying
12 provisions governing actions relating to such properties, and
13 including effective date and applicability provisions.>>
14 3. By renumbering as necessary.

LOHSE of Polk

H-8298

1 Amend the amendment, H-8294, to House File 2643 as follows:
2 1. Page 1, after line 7 by inserting:
3 <__. Page 11, after line 16 by inserting:
4 <Sec. __. TAXPAYER RELIEF FUND — APPROPRIATION. There
5 is appropriated from the taxpayer relief fund created in
6 section 8.57E to the department of revenue for the fiscal year
7 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
8 amounts, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
9 purposes designated:
10 1. For reimbursement for the homestead property tax credit
11 under section 425.1:
12 \$ 2,799,690
13 2. For implementing the elderly and disabled tax credit and
14 reimbursement pursuant to sections 425.16 through 425.40:
15 \$ 2,460,000>>
16 2. Page 5, after line 16 by inserting:
17 <Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in this
18 section that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close of
19 the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for
20 expenditure for the purposes designated until the close of the
21 fiscal year that begins July 1, 2020.>
22 3. Page 8, after line 12 by inserting:
23 <Sec. __. COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION. There is
24 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the college
25 student aid commission for the fiscal year beginning July 1,

26 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so
 27 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
 28 designated:
 29 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2398,
 30 if enacted, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
 31 miscellaneous purposes:
 32 \$ 300,000>
 33 4. Page 8, line 35, after <commission> by inserting <for
 34 implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2629,>
 35 5. Page 9, after line 1 by inserting:

PAGE 2

1 <Sec. ____. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes
 2 effect on the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File
 3 2398, if enacted:
 4 The section of this division of this Act appropriating
 5 moneys to the college student aid commission for implementation
 6 of 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2398.>
 7 6. Page 10, after line 18 by inserting:
 8 <DIVISION __
 9 GRAIN REGULATION
 10 Sec. ____. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated from the
 11 general fund of the state to the department of agriculture
 12 and land stewardship for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 13 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so
 14 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
 15 designated:
 16 For the administration and enforcement of chapters 203
 17 and 203C, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
 18 miscellaneous purposes:
 19 \$ 350,000
 20 Sec. ____. SUSPENSION. Notwithstanding section 203D.5,
 21 the fees described in that section shall not be assessable or
 22 owing.
 23 Sec. ____. REPEAL. The section of this division of this Act
 24 suspending fees under section 203D.5 is repealed on March 1,
 25 2021.
 26 Sec. ____. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 27 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 28 DIVISION __
 29 RETURNS ON SEARCH WARRANTS
 30 Sec. ____. Section 808.8, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 31 to read as follows:
 32 2. The officer must file, with the officer’s return, a
 33 complete inventory of the property taken, ~~and state under oath~~
 34 including a sworn statement that it is accurate to the best of
 35 the officer’s knowledge. The magistrate must, if requested,

PAGE 3

1 deliver a copy of the inventory of seized property to the

2 person from whose possession it was taken and to the applicant
3 for the warrant.

4 Sec. ____ CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this
5 Act takes effect on the effective date of rules prescribed by
6 the supreme court and submitted to the legislative council
7 pursuant to section 602.4202, that establish processes and
8 procedures for the application and issuance of a search warrant
9 by electronic means to implement 2017 Iowa Acts, chapter 37.

10 DIVISION ____
11 RURAL IMPROVEMENT ZONES

12 Sec. ____ Section 357H.1, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
13 amended to read as follows:

14 1. The board of supervisors of a county with less than
15 twenty thousand residents, not counting persons admitted or
16 committed to an institution enumerated in section 218.1 or
17 904.102, based upon the most recent certified federal census,
18 and with a private ~~lake~~ real estate development adjacent to or
19 abutting in part a lake may designate an area surrounding the
20 lake, if it is an unincorporated area of the county, a rural
21 improvement zone upon receipt of a petition pursuant to section
22 357H.2, and upon the board's determination that the area is in
23 need of improvements.

24 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
25 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

26 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
27 to rural improvement zones in existence on or established on or
28 after the effective date of this division of this Act.

29 DIVISION ____
30 COUNTY ZONING

31 <Sec. ____ Section 335.8, subsection 1, Code 2020, as
32 amended by 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2512, section 3, is
33 amended to read as follows:

34 1. In order to avail itself of the powers conferred by this
35 chapter, the board of supervisors shall appoint a commission

PAGE 4

1 consisting of eligible electors, as defined in section 39.3,
2 who reside within the ~~area regulated by the county zoning~~
3 ~~ordinance~~ county, but outside the corporate limits of any city,
4 to be known as the county zoning commission. The commission
5 may recommend the boundaries of the various districts and
6 appropriate regulations and restrictions to be enforced in
7 the districts. The commission shall, with due diligence,
8 prepare a preliminary report and hold public hearings on the
9 preliminary report before submitting the commission's final
10 report. The board of supervisors shall not hold its public
11 hearings or take action until it has received the final report
12 of the commission. After the adoption of the regulations,
13 restrictions, and boundaries of districts, the zoning
14 commission may, from time to time, recommend to the board of
15 supervisors amendments, supplements, changes, or modifications.

16 The commission’s report and any recommendations may include a
 17 proposed ordinance or amendments to an ordinance.
 18 Sec. ____ Section 335.11, Code 2020, as amended by 2020
 19 Iowa Acts, House File 2512, section 4, is amended to read as
 20 follows:
 21 **335.11 Membership of board.**
 22 The board of adjustment shall consist of five members who
 23 are eligible electors, as defined in section 39.3, and who
 24 reside within the ~~area regulated by the county zoning ordinance~~
 25 county, but outside the corporate limits of any city, each to
 26 be appointed for a term of five years, excepting that when the
 27 board shall first be created one member shall be appointed for
 28 a term of five years, one for a term of four years, one for a
 29 term of three years, one for a term of two years, and one for
 30 a term of one year. Members shall be removable for cause by
 31 the appointing authority upon written charges and after public
 32 hearing. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term of
 33 any member whose term becomes vacant.
 34 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 35 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

PAGE 5

1 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 2 Act applies retroactively to June 1, 2020, to members of county
 3 zoning commissions and county boards of adjustment holding
 4 office on or after that date.
 5 DIVISION ____
 6 COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION
 7 Sec. ____ 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 17,
 8 subsection 1, paragraph d, is amended to read as follows:
 9 d. COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION
 10 For deposit in the future ready Iowa skilled workforce grant
 11 fund established pursuant to section 261.132, as enacted by
 12 2018 Iowa Acts, chapter 1067, section 13:
 13 \$ 1,000,000
 14 Of the moneys appropriated in this lettered paragraph,
 15 \$600,000 shall be transferred to the future ready Iowa skilled
 16 workforce last-dollar scholarship fund created in section
 17 261.131.
 18 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 19 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 20 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 21 Act applies retroactively to July 1, 2019.>>
 22 7. By renumbering as necessary.

MOHR of Scott

H-8299

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:
 2 1. Page 7, lines 6 and 7, by striking <is not licensed,

- 3 certified, or registered in another state shall> and inserting
 4 <relocates to this state from another state that did not
 5 require a professional or occupational license, certificate, or
 6 registration to practice the person's profession or occupation
 7 may>
- 8 2. Page 7, line 10, after <experience> by inserting <with a
 9 substantially similar scope of practice>
- 10 3. Page 7, line 11, after <application> by inserting <as
 11 determined by the board>
- 12 4. Page 7, after line 14 by inserting:
 13 <3. If this Code or administrative rules require
 14 a person applying for a professional or occupational
 15 license, certificate, or registration in this state to
 16 pass an examination to obtain the license, certificate, or
 17 registration, a person applying for licensure, certification,
 18 or registration under this section shall be required to pass
 19 the same examination.>
- 20 5. Page 9, line 35, by striking <5> and inserting <4>
 21 6. Page 10, line 22, after <this> by inserting <division of
 22 this>
- 23 7. Page 16, line 33, after <date> by inserting <of this
 24 division>
- 25 8. Page 17, line 4, after <date> by inserting <of this
 26 division>
- 27 9. Page 17, line 17, after <date> by inserting <of this
 28 division>
- 29 10. Page 17, line 24, after <date> by inserting <of this
 30 division>
- 31 11. Page 18, line 27, after <date> by inserting <of this
 32 division>
- 33 12. Page 19, line 3, after <date> by inserting <of this
 34 division>

LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8300

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8290, to House File 2642 as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, after line 28 by inserting:
 3 <__. Page 14, after line 27 by inserting:
 4 <DIVISION __
 5 REBUILD IOWA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND APPROPRIATION
 6 Sec. __. IOWA ECONOMIC EMERGENCY FUND TRANSFERS.
 7 Notwithstanding any provision of section 8.55 to the contrary
 8 and for purposes of transfers from the Iowa economic emergency
 9 fund created in section 8.55 as provided in this section during
 10 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, the maximum balance of
 11 the Iowa economic emergency fund is the amount equal to two
 12 and one-half percent of the adjusted revenue estimate for the
 13 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020. If the amount of moneys
 14 in the Iowa economic emergency fund is equal to the maximum
 15 balance, moneys in excess of this amount shall be distributed

16 as follows during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020:

17 1. The first seventy million dollars shall be transferred to
18 the general fund of the state.

19 2. Of the excess remaining after the transfer in subsection
20 1, the difference, reduced by the transfer made in subsection
21 1, between the actual net revenue for the general fund of the
22 state for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
23 June 30, 2020, and the adjusted revenue estimate for the fiscal
24 year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, shall
25 be transferred to the taxpayer relief fund created in section
26 8.57E.

27 3. The remainder of the excess, if any, shall be transferred
28 to the general fund of the state.

29 Sec. ___. REBUILD IOWA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND — GENERAL FUND
30 APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated from the general fund
31 of the state for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and
32 ending June 30, 2020, to the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund
33 created in section 8.57, the sum of seventy million dollars.

34 Sec. ___. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
35 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

PAGE 2

1 Sec. ___. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
2 Act applies retroactively to June 1, 2020.>>

3 2. By renumbering, redesignating, and correcting internal
4 references as necessary.

BOSSMAN of Woodbury

H-8301

1 Amend the amendment, H-8250, to House File 2627 as follows:

2 1. Page 7, lines 6 and 7, by striking <is not licensed,
3 certified, or registered in another state shall> and inserting
4 <relocates to this state from another state that did not
5 require a professional or occupational license, certificate, or
6 registration to practice the person's profession or occupation
7 may>

8 2. Page 7, line 10, after <experience> by inserting <with a
9 substantially similar scope of practice>

10 3. Page 7, line 11, after <application> by inserting <as
11 determined by the board>

12 4. Page 7, after line 14 by inserting:

13 <3. If this Code or administrative rules require
14 a person applying for a professional or occupational
15 license, certificate, or registration in this state to
16 pass an examination to obtain the license, certificate, or
17 registration, a person applying for licensure, certification,
18 or registration under this section shall be required to pass
19 the same examination.>

20 5. Page 9, line 35, by striking <5> and inserting <4>

- 21 6. Page 10, line 22, after <this> by inserting <division of
22 this>
23 7. Page 16, line 33, after <date> by inserting <of this
24 division>
25 8. By striking page 17, line 3, through page 18, line 25.
26 9. Page 18, line 27, after <date> by inserting <of this
27 division>
28 10. Page 19, line 3, after <date> by inserting <of this
29 division>

LUNDGREN of Dubuque

H-8302

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8276, to House File 2643 as follows:
2 1. Page 6, after line 21 by inserting:
3 <Of the funds appropriated in this section, \$13,000,000
4 shall be used to provide reimbursement to critical access
5 hospitals for inpatient and outpatient services based on
6 a critical access hospital adjustment factor methodology
7 developed by the department of human services.>
8 2. Page 13, after line 34 by inserting:
9 <DIVISION ___
10 UTILITY DISCONNECTION RESTRICTIONS
11 Sec. ___. UTILITY DISCONNECTION RESTRICTIONS.
12 1. When used in this section, unless the context otherwise
13 requires:
14 a. "Coronavirus" means the coronavirus identified as
15 SARS-CoV-2, the disease caused by the coronavirus SARS-CoV-2
16 or a virus mutating therefrom, and conditions associated with
17 the disease caused by the coronavirus SARS-CoV-2 or a virus
18 mutating therefrom.
19 b. "Primary caregiver" means an individual who takes
20 responsibility for managing the well-being of another
21 individual with respect to the other individual's recovery
22 from a coronavirus infection at any time from March 17, 2020,
23 through December 31, 2020.
24 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
25 contrary, a utility shall not discontinue, reduce, or impair
26 service to any of the following:
27 a. An individual who becomes unemployed at any time from
28 March 17, 2020, through December 31, 2020, as a result of the
29 impact of the coronavirus on the individual's employer.
30 b. A primary caregiver.
31 3. The utilities board within the utilities division of the
32 department of commerce shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter
33 17A to administer this section.
34 DIVISION ___
35 TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT PROHIBITED

PAGE 2

1 Sec. ____ TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT DUE TO COVID-19
2 INFECTION OR EXPOSURE PROHIBITED.

3 1. As used in this section:

4 a. "Employee" means a natural person who is employed in this
5 state for wages by an employer.

6 b. "Employer" means a person, as defined in chapter 4, who
7 in this state employs for wages a natural person.

8 2. An employer shall not lay off or otherwise terminate the
9 employment of an employee due to the employee having contracted
10 or been exposed to the COVID-19 virus.

11 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
12 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

13 DIVISION ____

14 STATE BUSINESS ENTITIES — CORONAVIRUS RELIEF

15 Sec. ____ STATE BUSINESS ENTITIES — CORONAVIRUS
16 RELIEF. The state shall give priority to business entities
17 formed under the laws of this state over business entities
18 formed under the laws of any other state in regards to
19 contracts entered into by the state with business entities
20 involving use of the moneys received by the state from the
21 federal coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to the federal
22 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No.
23 116-136.

24 DIVISION ____

25 WORKERS' COMPENSATION

26 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **85.4 Volunteer health care**
27 **professionals — COVID-19.**

28 1. As used in this section, unless the context otherwise
29 requires:

30 a. "*COVID-19*" means a severe acute respiratory syndrome
31 coronavirus 2 or the disease caused by severe acute respiratory
32 syndrome coronavirus 2.

33 b. "*Department*" means the same as defined in section 7E.4.

34 c. "*Head of the department*" means the same as defined in
35 section 7E.4.

PAGE 3

1 d. "*Health care professional*" means the same as defined in
2 section 514J.102.

3 e. "*Health care provider*" or "*provider*" means the same as
4 defined in section 514J.102.

5 f. "*Health care services*" means services for the assessment,
6 diagnosis, prevention, treatment, cure, or relief of a health
7 condition, illness, or disease related to COVID-19.

8 2. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, a health
9 care professional that engages in the provision of health care
10 services on a volunteer basis at the direction of the governor
11 or the governor's designee, or at the direction of the head of
12 the department of a department or the head of the department's

13 designee, shall be classified as an employee of the state for
 14 purposes of workers' compensation pursuant to this chapter for
 15 the duration of the health care professional's provision of
 16 health care services on a volunteer basis.

17 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 18 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

19 DIVISION ____

20 COVID-19 HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN COVERAGE

21 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **514C.35 COVID-19 — health benefit**
 22 **plan coverage.**

23 1. As used in this section, unless the context otherwise
 24 requires:

25 a. "*Commissioner*" means the commissioner of insurance.

26 b. "*Cost-sharing*" means any coverage limit, copayment,
 27 coinsurance, deductible, or other out-of-pocket expense
 28 obligation imposed on a covered person by a health benefit plan
 29 providing for third-party payment or prepayment of health or
 30 medical expenses.

31 c. "*Covered person*" means a policyholder, subscriber,
 32 or other individual participating in a health benefit plan
 33 providing for third-party payment or prepayment of health or
 34 medical expenses.

35 d. "*COVID-19*" means a severe acute respiratory syndrome

PAGE 4

1 coronavirus 2 or the disease caused by severe acute respiratory
 2 syndrome coronavirus 2.

3 e. "*Facility*" means the same as defined in section 514J.102.

4 f. "*Health benefit plan*" means any policy, contract,
 5 certificate, or agreement, including a short-term
 6 limited-duration policy or a high deductible plan, offered or
 7 issued by a health carrier to provide, deliver, arrange for,
 8 pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health care services.

9 g. "*Health care professional*" means the same as defined in
 10 section 514J.102.

11 h. "*Health care provider*" or "*provider*" means the same as
 12 defined in section 514J.102.

13 i. "*Health care services*" means services for the assessment,
 14 diagnosis, prevention, treatment, cure, or relief of a health
 15 condition, illness, or disease related to COVID-19.

16 j. "*Health carrier*" means an entity subject to the
 17 insurance laws and regulations of this state, or subject
 18 to the jurisdiction of the commissioner, including an
 19 insurance company offering sickness and accident plans, a
 20 health maintenance organization, a nonprofit health service
 21 corporation, a plan established pursuant to chapter 509A for
 22 public employees, a plan offered or maintained by a multiple
 23 employer welfare association, or any other entity providing
 24 a plan of health insurance, health benefits, or health care
 25 services. Notwithstanding section 505.20, subsection 1, "*health*
 26 *carrier*" also includes a nonprofit agricultural organization

27 domiciled in the state that sponsors a health benefit plan
 28 pursuant to section 505.20.
 29 *k. "Step therapy protocol"* means the same as defined in
 30 section 514F.7.
 31 2. Notwithstanding the uniformity of treatment requirements
 32 of section 514C.6, a health benefit plan that provides for
 33 third-party payment or prepayment of health or medical expenses
 34 must comply with all of the following requirements:
 35 *a.* Waive all cost-sharing requirements for health care

PAGE 5

1 services recommended by a covered person's health care
 2 professional.
 3 *b.* Waive prior authorization requirements for all health
 4 care services recommended by a covered person's health care
 5 professional.
 6 *c.* Waive all requirements mandating a covered person
 7 receive health care services from an in-network health care
 8 provider if the health benefit plan is unable to provide timely
 9 and reasonable in-network access to health care services as
 10 recommended by a covered person's health care professional.
 11 *d.* Permit an employer to continue coverage under a group
 12 plan for an employee who would otherwise be ineligible for
 13 coverage based on a reduction in the number of hours worked by
 14 the employee due to a COVID-19 related issue.
 15 *e.* Establish a grace period or other continuity of coverage
 16 policy to mitigate the financial risk for covered persons and
 17 health care providers due to delayed payment or nonpayment of
 18 health benefit plan premiums by a covered person.
 19 3. Notwithstanding the uniformity of treatment requirements
 20 of section 514C.6, a health benefit plan that provides for
 21 third-party payment or prepayment of health or medical expenses
 22 that provides coverage for prescription drugs must comply
 23 with all of the following requirements for prescription drugs
 24 prescribed by a covered person's health care professional for a
 25 health condition, illness, or disease related to COVID-19:
 26 *a.* Waive time restrictions for prescription refills
 27 and authorize reimbursements to a pharmacy or a pharmacist
 28 for filling an up-to-thirty-day supply of a prescription
 29 for a covered person, regardless of the date on which that
 30 prescription has most recently been filled for that covered
 31 person.
 32 *b.* Waive prior authorization requirements and step therapy
 33 protocols if a covered person's prescribing health care
 34 professional recommends an alternative drug for the covered
 35 person due to a shortage of the drug initially prescribed for

PAGE 6

1 the covered person by the health care professional.
 2 *c.* Expedite a formulary exception for a covered person

3 who is suffering from a health condition, illness, or disease
4 related to COVID-19 that jeopardizes the covered person's
5 health, life, or ability to regain maximum function.

6 *d.* Expedite a formulary exception for a covered person
7 who is suffering from a health condition, illness, or disease
8 related to COVID-19 if the covered person is currently
9 receiving health care services that involve a nonformulary
10 prescription drug.

11 *e.* Allow a covered person to use an out-of-network pharmacy
12 to fill a covered prescription at the covered person's
13 in-network health benefit plan level if a shortage of the
14 prescription drug renders in-network pharmacies unable to fill
15 the prescription.

16 4. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary,
17 the board of pharmacy shall waive requirements for electronic
18 prescription transmission pursuant to section 124.308,
19 subsection 2, for all prescription drugs prescribed by
20 a covered person's health care professional for a health
21 condition, illness, or disease related to COVID-19.

22 5. Notwithstanding the uniformity of treatment requirements
23 of section 514C.6, a health benefit plan that provides for
24 third-party payment or prepayment of health or medical expenses
25 shall not do any of the following:

26 *a.* Retroactively deny reimbursement to a health care
27 provider based on the provider's network status.

28 *b.* Retroactively deny reimbursement to a health care
29 provider based on a covered person receiving a diagnosis other
30 than a diagnosis related to COVID-19.

31 *c.* Cancel a covered person's health benefit plan or refuse
32 to renew a covered person's health benefit plan based on the
33 covered person's COVID-19 status.

34 *d.* Increase premiums based on a group's decreased enrollment
35 or participation in a health benefit plan due to COVID-19.

PAGE 7

1 6. To ensure compliance with this section, a health carrier
2 shall submit each of the health carrier's health benefit plans
3 to the commissioner pursuant to rules promulgated by the
4 commissioner.

5 7. A health carrier shall communicate all requirements
6 pursuant to subsections 2 and 3 in writing to all covered
7 persons and to all health care providers that are contracted
8 with the health carrier.

9 8. This section shall not apply to accident-only, specified
10 disease, short-term hospital or medical, hospital confinement
11 indemnity, credit, dental, vision, Medicare supplement,
12 long-term care, basic hospital and medical-surgical expense
13 coverage as defined by the commissioner of insurance,
14 disability income insurance coverage, coverage issued as a
15 supplement to liability insurance, workers' compensation or
16 similar insurance, or automobile medical payment insurance.

17 9. The commissioner of insurance shall adopt rules pursuant
 18 to chapter 17A to administer this section. Such rules shall
 19 include the requirement that all health carriers adopt a
 20 uniform system of billing that allows health care providers to
 21 timely process billing codes related to health care services
 22 provided pursuant to this section.

23 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 24 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

25 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division
 26 of this Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020, for
 27 health benefit plans that are delivered, issued for delivery,
 28 continued, or renewed in this state on or after that date.

29 DIVISION ____
 30 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

31 Sec. ____ Section 96.6, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 32 to read as follows:

33 2. *Initial determination.*

34 *a.* A representative designated by the director shall
 35 promptly notify all interested parties to the claim of its

PAGE 8

1 filing within five business days, and the parties have ten
 2 days from the date of mailing the notice of the filing of the
 3 claim by ordinary mail to the last known address to protest
 4 payment of benefits to the claimant. The representative shall
 5 promptly examine the claim and any protest, take the initiative
 6 to ascertain relevant information concerning the claim, and,
 7 on the basis of the facts found by the representative, shall
 8 determine whether or not the claim is valid, the week with
 9 respect to which benefits shall commence, the weekly benefit
 10 amount payable and its maximum duration, and whether any
 11 disqualification shall be imposed. If a fact finding interview
 12 will be held by the department to obtain information on a
 13 specific eligibility or disqualification issue, the department
 14 shall schedule the interview within five business days of the
 15 interview being requested or a determination by the department
 16 that an interview is necessary. The interview shall be held
 17 within ten business days following the date the interview is
 18 scheduled.

19 *b.* The claimant has the burden of proving that the claimant
 20 meets the basic eligibility conditions of section 96.4. The
 21 employer has the burden of proving that the claimant is
 22 disqualified for benefits pursuant to section 96.5, except as
 23 provided by this subsection. The claimant has the initial
 24 burden to produce evidence showing that the claimant is not
 25 disqualified for benefits in cases involving section 96.5,
 26 subsections 10 and 11, and has the burden of proving that a
 27 voluntary quit pursuant to section 96.5, subsection 1, was for
 28 good cause attributable to the employer and that the claimant
 29 is not disqualified for benefits in cases involving section
 30 96.5, subsection 1, paragraphs "a" through "h".

31 c. Unless the claimant or other interested party, after
 32 notification or within ten calendar days after notification
 33 was mailed to the claimant's last known address, files an
 34 appeal from the decision, the decision is final and benefits
 35 shall be paid or denied in accordance with the decision.

PAGE 9

1 If an administrative law judge affirms a decision of the
 2 representative, or the appeal board affirms a decision of the
 3 administrative law judge allowing benefits, the benefits shall
 4 be paid regardless of any appeal which is thereafter taken,
 5 but if the decision is finally reversed, no employer's account
 6 shall be charged with benefits so paid and this relief from
 7 charges shall apply to both contributory and reimbursable
 8 employers, notwithstanding section 96.8, subsection 5.

9 Sec. ___. Section 96.11, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 10 following new subsection:

11 NEW SUBSECTION. 17. *Electronic notifications for weekly*
 12 *claims.* The department shall provide an individual submitting
 13 a claim for benefits with an electronic confirmation that the
 14 claim was successfully submitted. The confirmation shall
 15 include a confirmation number for the claim and shall be
 16 provided for each weekly claim. Such confirmation shall not be
 17 considered an acknowledgment that a claim is valid.

18 Sec. ___. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 19 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

20 Sec. ___. APPLICABILITY.

21 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 22 96.6, subsection 2, applies to claims for unemployment benefits
 23 filed and fact finding interviews scheduled on or after the
 24 effective date of this Act.

25 2. The section of this division of this Act enacting section
 26 96.11, subsection 17, applies to claims for unemployment
 27 benefits with an effective date on or after the second Sunday
 28 after the effective date of this Act.

29 DIVISION ___

30 SUSPENSION OF EVICTIONS AND FORECLOSURES

31 Sec. ___. SUSPENSION OF CERTAIN EVICTIONS — EXTENSION
 32 OF SUSPENSION. The provisions of section 562A.27, section
 33 562B.25, and section 648.1, subsections 2 through 6, that allow
 34 for the termination of a rental agreement by a landlord or
 35 allow for the eviction of a tenant shall be suspended through

PAGE 10

1 September 30, 2020. This suspension shall not apply to the
 2 termination of a rental agreement or to the eviction of a
 3 tenant under emergency or other circumstances pursuant to any
 4 other law.

5 Sec. ___. SUSPENSION OF FORECLOSURES AND FORFEITURES —
 6 EXTENSION OF SUSPENSION.

7 1. The provisions of chapters 646, 654, 655A, and 656
 8 that permit the commencement of foreclosure or forfeiture
 9 proceedings on residential, commercial, or agricultural real
 10 property located in the state or that permit the continued
 11 prosecution of a foreclosure or forfeiture proceeding that has
 12 already commenced on residential, commercial, or agricultural
 13 real property located in the state shall be suspended through
 14 September 30, 2020.

15 2. Nothing in this section shall be construed to relieve any
 16 person of the person's obligation to make mortgage payments or
 17 to comply with any other mortgage obligation that the person
 18 may have pursuant to a mortgage.

19 3. The superintendent of the division of banking and the
 20 superintendent of credit unions shall identify any tools,
 21 means, or methods to mitigate the threat of foreclosure or
 22 forfeiture for persons that hold an interest in residential,
 23 commercial, or agricultural real property in Iowa.

24 Sec. ___. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 25 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

26 Sec. ___. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 27 Act applies retroactively to May 27, 2020.

28 DIVISION ____

29 COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS

30 Sec. ___. CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — COMMUNITY HEALTH
 31 CENTERS. Of the funds received by the state from the federal
 32 Coronavirus Relief Fund created pursuant to the federal
 33 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No.
 34 116-136, \$20,000,000 shall be distributed to community health
 35 centers throughout the state to be used in accordance with the

PAGE 11

1 federal Act.

2 DIVISION ____

3 PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT FOR SCHOOLS

4 Sec. ___. DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT — PERSONAL

5 PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT FOR SCHOOLS — REIMBURSEMENT CLAIMS —

6 APPROPRIATION. Each school district and accredited nonpublic

7 school that purchases personal protective equipment during

8 the budget year commencing July 1, 2020, may submit to the

9 department of management, in a format prescribed by the

10 department, a request for reimbursement for the costs of the

11 personal protective equipment purchased during the fiscal

12 year commencing July 1, 2020. The department of management

13 shall use funds available to the state pursuant to the federal

14 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L.

15 No. 116-136, that are available without any match requirement,

16 to reimburse Iowa's school districts and accredited nonpublic

17 schools for the costs incurred by the school districts and

18 schools in purchasing personal protective equipment during

19 the 2020-2021 school year. There is appropriated from moneys

20 received by the state pursuant to the federal Coronavirus

21 relief fund created pursuant to the federal Coronavirus Aid,
 22 Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, to
 23 the department of management for the fiscal year beginning
 24 July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, an amount necessary to
 25 reimburse school districts and accredited nonpublic schools
 26 for the costs of the personal protective equipment purchased
 27 during the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2020. If the moneys
 28 available to the state pursuant to the federal Coronavirus Aid,
 29 Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, are
 30 insufficient to pay the full amount of reimbursements requested
 31 in accordance with this section, the department shall prorate
 32 the amount of reimbursement paid to each school district and
 33 accredited nonpublic school submitting a reimbursement request
 34 pursuant to this section.

35 DIVISION ____

PAGE 12

1 PHYSICAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT LEVY

2 Sec. ____ SCHOOL DISTRICT PHYSICAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT LEVY

3 — PERMISSIBLE USES BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.

4 1. For the school budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 5 ending June 30, 2021, unencumbered moneys remaining in the
 6 physical plant and equipment levy fund under section 298A.4 at
 7 the end of the budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 8 June 30, 2020, and the taxes certified for levy before the
 9 effective date of this division of this Act under section 298.2
 10 and deposited in the physical plant and equipment levy fund for
 11 the school budget year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
 12 30, 2021, in addition to the purposes authorized under section
 13 298.3, may be used by a school district to purchase personal
 14 protective equipment for staff and students for use during the
 15 school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
 16 2. The board of directors of a school district,
 17 notwithstanding the budget amendment requirements of chapters
 18 24 and 257, may authorize the expenditure of specified physical
 19 plant and equipment levy funds for purposes specified in
 20 subsection 1 by resolution of the board specifying the amount
 21 to be used and the purposes from which the funds will be
 22 reallocated, if the resolution of the board is approved and
 23 filed with the department of education and the department of
 24 management on or before June 30, 2021.

25 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 26 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

27 DIVISION ____

28 INFECTIOUS DISEASE EMERGENCY RESPONSE

29 Sec. ____ Section 88.5, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 30 following new subsection:

31 NEW SUBSECTION. 5A. *Emergency temporary standards* —
 32 *infectious disease emergencies.*

33 a. If, during a period of infectious disease emergency,
 34 as defined in section 95.1, the secretary provides a federal

35 occupational safety and health standard, including an emergency

PAGE 13

1 temporary standard, or provides any other guideline or
 2 recommendation, relating to the infectious disease that is
 3 the subject of the period, the commissioner shall provide
 4 for one or more temporary standards pursuant to subsection
 5 5 implementing the standard, guideline, or recommendation
 6 within one week of the issuance of the standard, guideline, or
 7 recommendation. The commissioner shall initiate the procedures
 8 provided for under this chapter for the purpose of promulgating
 9 a permanent standard as provided in subsection 1 of this
 10 section within one month of such issuance if the period remains
 11 in effect.

12 *b.* Emergency standards provided pursuant to this subsection
 13 shall include a requirement that affected employers provide,
 14 at no cost to employees, personal protective equipment and
 15 sanitizing liquid in order to prevent the contraction or spread
 16 of the infectious disease.

17 Sec. ____ Section 88.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 18 following new subsection:

19 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 10. *Procedures for complaints regarding*
 20 *periods of infectious disease emergency.* The division shall
 21 respond to any complaint of a violation of this chapter during
 22 a period of infectious disease emergency as defined in section
 23 95.1 that pertains to the infectious disease within twenty-four
 24 hours of receiving the complaint. The response shall confirm
 25 that the division has received the complaint and shall
 26 describe the steps the division will carry out to conduct an
 27 investigation of the complaint. The division shall begin such
 28 an investigation within seventy-two hours of receiving such a
 29 complaint. Upon request, and notwithstanding subsection 8, the
 30 division shall provide the person who made a complaint with an
 31 update on the progress of the investigation and a projected
 32 timeline for its completion.

33 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION.** **95.1 Definitions.**

34 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 35 requires:

PAGE 14

1 1. *“Employee”* means a natural person who is employed in this
 2 state for wages by an employer.
 3 2. *“Employer”* means a person, as defined in chapter 4, who
 4 in this state employs for wages a natural person.
 5 3. *“Period of infectious disease emergency”* means that
 6 period of time that a disease or virus determined to be
 7 life-threatening to a person exposed to the disease or virus
 8 has been declared a pandemic, epidemic, or public health
 9 emergency by the federal government, governor, or local public
 10 health authorities.

11 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **95.2 Paid sick leave.**

12 During a period of infectious disease emergency, an employer
13 with fifty or more employees shall provide a minimum of two
14 weeks of paid sick leave to an employee who shows symptoms
15 known to be associated with an infectious disease that is the
16 subject of a period of infectious disease emergency during such
17 period.

18 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **95.3 Attendance policies.**

19 1. The general assembly declares that it is the public
20 policy of the state to maintain the integrity and vitality
21 of value-added agricultural manufacturing including but not
22 limited to meat packing and grain milling facilities within
23 this state by permitting employees during a pandemic or other
24 period of infectious disease emergency to miss work without
25 penalty when demonstrating symptoms consistent with the
26 symptoms associated with COVID-19 or any other infectious
27 disease as identified by the United States centers for disease
28 control or another government agency.

29 2. An employer with fifty or more employees at a value-added
30 agricultural manufacturing facility, including but not limited
31 to a meat packing or grain milling facility, shall not enforce
32 the termination provisions of any employer policy based
33 on attendance, a no-fault attendance policy, a point-based
34 attendance policy, or any other attendance policy, against an
35 employee when the employee was absent from work due to symptoms

PAGE 15

1 known to be associated with an infectious disease that is the
2 subject of a period of infectious disease emergency during
3 such period. Such an employer shall not remove incentive
4 pay or other attendance-related bonuses from an employee due
5 to absence from work due to symptoms known to be associated
6 with an infectious disease that is the subject of a period of
7 infectious disease emergency during such period.

8 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **95.4 Employee notification.**

9 During a period of infectious disease emergency, if an
10 employer with fifty or more employees determines that ten
11 percent or more of the employer's employees have contracted
12 or been exposed to a person who has contracted the infectious
13 disease, the employer shall notify all employees of the
14 infection rate within twenty-four hours of the determination.
15 An employer shall comply with all laws, regulations, and
16 rules relating to the confidentiality or privacy of personal
17 information or medical records, including but not limited to
18 the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
19 of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191, when implementing this section.

20 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **95.5 Whistleblower protection.**

21 1. An employer or the employer's agent shall not
22 discriminate or take any other adverse employment action
23 against any employee who raises a concern by any medium about
24 workplace health and safety practices or hazards relating

25 to an infectious disease that is the subject of a period
 26 of infectious disease emergency during such period to the
 27 employer, the employer's agent, another employee, a government
 28 agency, or to any member of the public.
 29 2. An employer or the employer's agent shall not require
 30 any employee to sign a contract or other agreement that would
 31 limit or prevent the employee from disclosing information
 32 about workplace health and safety practices or hazards
 33 relating to an infectious disease that is the subject of a
 34 period of infectious disease emergency during such period to
 35 another employee, a government agency, or to any member of the

PAGE 16

1 public. An employer shall not require an employee to otherwise
 2 abide by a workplace policy that would limit or prevent such
 3 disclosures, and such a policy is void on and after the
 4 effective date of this Act.
 5 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **95.6 Public employee collective**
 6 **bargaining.**
 7 1. Upon the commencement of a period of infectious disease
 8 emergency, a public employee collective bargaining unit,
 9 including one with less than thirty percent of members who are
 10 public safety employees, may request to engage in supplemental
 11 collective bargaining with a public employer pertaining to
 12 health and safety measures in the workplace relating to the
 13 infectious disease under applicable collective bargaining
 14 procedures under chapter 20. The employer shall promptly
 15 commence such collective bargaining subject to applicable
 16 collective bargaining procedures under chapter 20.
 17 2. This section applies notwithstanding any provision of
 18 chapter 20 to the contrary.
 19 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **95.7 Enforcement.**
 20 The labor commissioner shall implement and enforce this
 21 chapter. The labor commissioner shall adopt rules pursuant to
 22 chapter 17A to administer this chapter. The labor commissioner
 23 may coordinate with the public employment relations board in
 24 the implementation of section 95.6.
 25 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **139A.27 Infectious disease emergency**
 26 **— personal protective equipment.**
 27 1. During a period of infectious disease emergency,
 28 as defined in section 95.1, the department shall make all
 29 available efforts to facilitate the ability of employers
 30 in this state to provide personal protective equipment and
 31 sanitizing liquid to their employees to prevent infection by
 32 and spread of the infectious disease.
 33 2. In carrying out this section, the department shall give
 34 first priority to employers subject to emergency temporary
 35 standards under section 88.5, subsection 5A, that are unable to

PAGE 17

1 obtain sufficient personal protective equipment and sanitizing
2 liquid without assistance from the department, and shall give
3 second priority to other employers that are unable to obtain
4 sufficient personal protective equipment and sanitizing liquid
5 without assistance from the department. If personal protective
6 equipment and sanitizing liquid cannot be obtained by the
7 department or employers without cost, the department shall
8 give consideration to the financial ability of an employer to
9 obtain personal protective equipment and sanitizing liquid when
10 determining prioritization.

11 3. The department shall coordinate with federal, state, and
12 local agencies, nonprofit organizations, and the private sector
13 to obtain personal protective equipment and sanitizing liquid
14 for purposes of implementing this section.

15 Sec. __. DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT —
16 OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH COMPLIANCE INSPECTORS.

17 1. The labor commissioner or the labor commissioner's
18 designee shall hire five additional full-time occupational
19 safety and health compliance inspectors to conduct inspections
20 pursuant to section 88.6. Notwithstanding subsection 8.39,
21 subsections 1 and 3, and notwithstanding any other law to the
22 contrary, without the prior written consent and approval of
23 the governor or the department of management, the director
24 of the department of workforce development may transfer
25 any unobligated and unencumbered moneys in any fund under
26 the control of the department of workforce development,
27 including moneys appropriated to the department from the
28 special employment security contingency fund created pursuant
29 to section 96.13, subsection 3, for the purpose of hiring
30 additional occupational safety and health compliance inspectors
31 pursuant to this section.

32 2. a. All transfers made under this section shall be
33 reported to the legislative fiscal committee by the tenth day
34 of the month following the month in which the transfer is made.
35 The report shall contain the following:

PAGE 18

- 1 (1) The amount of each transfer.
- 2 (2) The date of each transfer.
- 3 (3) The departments and funds affected.
- 4 (4) A brief explanation of the reason for the transfer.
- 5 (5) Such other information as may be required by the
6 committee.

7 b. A summary of all transfers made under the provisions
8 of this section shall be included in the annual report of the
9 legislative fiscal committee.

10 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
11 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

12 Sec. __. APPLICABILITY. The section of this division

13 of this Act enacting section 85A.9 applies to employees, as
 14 described in section 85A.3, who contract an infectious disease
 15 on or after the effective date of this division of this Act.

16 DIVISION ____

17 IOWA SMALL BUSINESS RELIEF PROGRAM

18 Sec. ____ IOWA SMALL BUSINESS RELIEF PROGRAM.
 19 1. Of the moneys received by the state from the federal
 20 coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to the federal
 21 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No.
 22 116-136, \$50,000,000 shall be transferred within ten calendar
 23 days of the effective date of this division of this Act to
 24 the small business disaster assistance fund administered by
 25 the economic development authority for purposes of awarding
 26 grants under the Iowa small business relief program pursuant to
 27 subsection 2.
 28 2. Within ten calendar days of the effective date of this
 29 division of this Act the economic development authority shall
 30 begin accepting additional applications for the Iowa small
 31 business relief program from small businesses located in Iowa
 32 that operated as sole proprietorships or that employed up to
 33 fifty people prior to March 17, 2020, and that have experienced
 34 a business disruption due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In
 35 addition, small businesses that were eligible and applied for

PAGE 19

1 the Iowa small business relief program during the application
 2 period that ended March 31, 2020, and that were not awarded a
 3 grant are also eligible to apply during the new application
 4 period.

5 3. Moneys transferred pursuant to subsection 1 that have not
 6 been disbursed as grants under the Iowa small business relief
 7 program pursuant to subsection 2 by November 30, 2020, shall
 8 revert to the Iowa coronavirus relief fund.

9 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 10 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

11 DIVISION ____

12 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

13 Sec. ____ CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — DOMESTIC VIOLENCE.

14 1. A portion of the moneys received by the state from the
 15 federal coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to the federal
 16 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No.
 17 116-136, shall be appropriated to the department of justice
 18 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June
 19 30, 2020, to provide additional domestic violence prevention
 20 resources to existing grant programs, shelters, hotlines, law
 21 enforcement, and personnel who provide services to victims of
 22 domestic violence.

23 2. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in
 24 this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the
 25 close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain
 26 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the

27 close of the fiscal year that begins July 1, 2021.
 28 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 29 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 30 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 31 Act applies retroactively to July 1, 2019.
 32 DIVISION ____
 33 EARLY CHILDHOOD IOWA FUND
 34 Sec. ____ EARLY CHILDHOOD IOWA FUND. Of the moneys
 35 received by the state from the federal coronavirus relief

PAGE 20

1 fund created pursuant to the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
 2 and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, there is
 3 appropriated to the department of education for the fiscal year
 4 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
 5 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
 6 purposes designated:
 7 For deposit in the school ready children grants account of
 8 the early childhood Iowa fund created in section 256I.11:
 9 \$ 453,256>
 10 3. By renumbering as necessary.

HALL of Woodbury

H-8303

1 Amend the amendment, H-8276, to House File 2643, as follows:
 2 1. Page 13, after line 34 by inserting:
 3 <DIVISION ____
 4 OVERSIGHT BY LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL
 5 Sec. ____ OVERSIGHT BY LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. For the fiscal
 6 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, all of
 7 the following apply:
 8 1. On or before September 30, 2020, and on or before
 9 December 31, 2020, the department of management shall submit
 10 to the legislative council a detailed list of all expenditures
 11 made from moneys received by the state from the federal
 12 coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to the federal
 13 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L.
 14 No. 116-136. In addition, the department of management shall
 15 notify the legislative council of any contract or agreement
 16 with a private entity for the expenditure of such moneys,
 17 including the name of the private entity and the amount to be
 18 expended, within fourteen days after the contract or agreement
 19 takes effect.
 20 2. The department of management shall not expend more than
 21 \$10,000,000 collectively during the fiscal year on any one
 22 contract, agreement, or purpose without the approval of the
 23 legislative council.
 24 3. The department of management shall not make an
 25 interdepartmental or intradepartmental transfer under section

26 8.39 of more than \$2,000,000 or otherwise transfer more than
 27 \$2,000,000 collectively during the fiscal year from any one
 28 fund or account to any other fund or account without the
 29 approval of the legislative council.
 30 DIVISION ____
 31 COMPETITIVE BIDDING
 32 Sec. ____ COMPETITIVE BIDDING REINSTATEMENT.
 33 Notwithstanding any provision of a proclamation of disaster
 34 emergency issued by the governor during 2020 relating to
 35 COVID-19 to the contrary, competitive bidding procedures

PAGE 2

1 otherwise required for state agencies pursuant to Code chapters
 2 8A and 8B shall be followed and not be altered or waived unless
 3 for an immediate public health need.
 4 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 5 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 6 DIVISION ____
 7 FEDERAL FUND PREFERENCE
 8 Sec. ____ IOWA BUSINESSES — FEDERAL FUND PREFERENCE. As
 9 a condition of expending any money received from the federal
 10 coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to the federal
 11 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No.
 12 116-136, any state agency authorized to enter into a contract
 13 to expend such funds shall give first preference in awarding a
 14 contract to an Iowa-based business.
 15 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 16 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 17 DIVISION ____
 18 COMPLIANCE — AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
 19 Sec. ____ COMPLIANCE — AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES
 20 ACT. Any public or private entity that is the ultimate
 21 recipient of federal funds received and disbursed by the state
 22 shall comply with the federal Americans with Disabilities Act
 23 of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq., as a condition of receiving
 24 the federal funds from the state.
 25 DIVISION ____
 26 COVID-19 FUNDING ANNOUNCEMENT RESTRICTIONS
 27 Sec. ____ COVID-19 FUNDING — ANNOUNCEMENT. The governor
 28 or any other person of the executive branch shall not announce
 29 the award of federal funding related to COVID-19 within six
 30 weeks before or on the day of a general election or within six
 31 weeks before the commencement of absentee voting for a general
 32 election or during the absentee-voting period for a general
 33 election.
 34 DIVISION ____
 35 CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE BY PUBLIC BOARD MEMBERS

PAGE 3

1 Sec. ____ Section 7E.8, Code 2020, is amended to read as

2 follows:

3 **7E.8 Members of boards, committees, commissions, and councils**
 4 **— disclosure requirements.**

5 1. A member of any board, committee, commission, or council
 6 who was subject to senate confirmation pursuant to section 2.32
 7 shall disclose to the appointing authority for that board,
 8 committee, commission, or council if the member has filed
 9 subsequent to senate confirmation a registration statement
 10 pursuant to the federal Foreign Agents Registration Act of
 11 1938, as amended, 22 U.S.C. §611 et seq.

12 2. A member of any board, committee, commission, or council
 13 who makes a contribution as defined in section 68A.102 shall
 14 report such contribution to the Iowa ethics and campaign
 15 disclosure board established under section 68B.32 in a form
 16 prescribed by the Iowa ethics and campaign disclosure board by
 17 rule.

18 DIVISION ___

19 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEMBERS

20 Sec. ___. NEW SECTION. **68B.9 Public employment of members**
 21 **of the general assembly — advertising requirements.**

22 A member of the general assembly, both during and after
 23 the termination of service, shall not accept employment with
 24 an agency or the judicial branch unless the position that the
 25 member accepts was conspicuously posted for at least thirty
 26 days on the agency's or judicial branch's internet site and was
 27 otherwise advertised in a manner typical for similar positions
 28 at the agency or judicial branch.

29 Sec. ___. Section 68B.34, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 30 follows:

31 **68B.34 Additional penalty.**

32 In addition to any penalty contained in any other provision
 33 of law, a person who knowingly and intentionally violates a
 34 provision of sections 68B.2A through ~~68B.8~~ 68B.9, sections
 35 68B.22 through 68B.24, or sections 68B.35 through 68B.38

PAGE 4

1 is guilty of a serious misdemeanor and may be reprimanded,
 2 suspended, or dismissed from the person's position or otherwise
 3 sanctioned.

4 Sec. ___. APPLICABILITY. The following applies to
 5 employment entered into between a member of the general
 6 assembly and an agency or the judicial branch on or after the
 7 effective date of this division of this Act:

8 The section of this Act enacting section 68B.9.

9 DIVISION ___

10 OPEN MEETINGS AND PUBLIC RECORDS

11 Sec. ___. Section 21.2, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 12 by adding the following new paragraph:

13 NEW PARAGRAPH. *k.* A group self-insurance program that was
 14 established in 1986 that provides liability insurance pursuant
 15 to section 670.7 to at least fifty percent of the counties in

16 this state.

17 Sec. ____ Section 22.1, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
18 to read as follows:

19 1. “*Government body*” means this state, or any county,
20 city, township, school corporation, political subdivision,
21 tax-supported district, nonprofit corporation other than a
22 fair conducting a fair event as provided in chapter 174, whose
23 facilities or indebtedness are supported in whole or in part
24 with property tax revenue and which is licensed to conduct
25 pari-mutuel wagering pursuant to chapter 99D; the governing
26 body of a drainage or levee district as provided in chapter
27 468, including a board as defined in section 468.3, regardless
28 of how the district is organized; a group self-insurance
29 program that was established in 1986 that provides liability
30 insurance pursuant to section 670.7 to at least fifty percent
31 of the counties in this state; or other entity of this state,
32 or any branch, department, board, bureau, commission, council,
33 committee, official, or officer of any of the foregoing or any
34 employee delegated the responsibility for implementing the
35 requirements of this chapter.

PAGE 5

1 DIVISION ____
2 CAMPAIGN FINANCE

3 Sec. ____ Section 68A.102, subsection 10, paragraph a,
4 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

5 (2) The payment, by any person other than a candidate or
6 political committee who receives the service, of compensation
7 for the personal services of another person which are rendered
8 to a candidate or political committee for any such purpose.

9 Sec. ____ Section 68A.102, subsection 10, paragraph a, Code
10 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
11 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (3) A coordinated expenditure if the
12 expenditure must be reported pursuant to subchapter IV.

13 Sec. ____ Section 68A.102, subsections 14 and 18, Code 2020,
14 are amended to read as follows:

15 14. a. “Express advocacy” or ~~to~~ “expressly advocate” means
16 communication that can be characterized according to at least
17 one of the following descriptions:

18 ~~a.~~ (1) The communication is political speech made in the
19 form of a contribution.

20 ~~b.~~ (2) In advocating the election or defeat of one or more
21 clearly identified candidates or the passage or defeat of one
22 or more clearly identified ballot issues, the communication
23 includes explicit words that unambiguously indicate that the
24 communication is recommending or supporting a particular
25 outcome in the election with regard to any clearly identified
26 candidate or ballot issue.

27 b. “Express advocacy” or “expressly advocate” does not mean
28 a communication that can be characterized according to one or
29 more of the following descriptions:

- 30 (1) The communication encourages individuals to register
 31 to vote or to vote, provided that the communication does not
 32 mention or depict a candidate or ballot issue.
 33 (2) The communication does not support or oppose a candidate
 34 or ballot issue.
 35 (3) The communication is a bona fide news story, commentary,

PAGE 6

- 1 blog, or editorial distributed through the facilities of any
 2 broadcasting station, newspaper, magazine, internet site, or
 3 other periodical publication of general circulation.
 4 (4) The communication is by a membership organization or
 5 corporation to its members, stockholders, or employees.
 6 (5) The board determines by rule that the communication is
 7 not express advocacy.
 8 18. *“Political committee”* means any of the following:
 9 a. A committee, but not a candidate’s committee, that
 10 accepts contributions in excess of ~~one thousand~~ two hundred
 11 fifty dollars in the aggregate, makes expenditures in excess
 12 of ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty dollars in the aggregate, or
 13 incurs indebtedness in excess of ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty
 14 dollars in the aggregate in any one calendar year to expressly
 15 advocate the nomination, election, or defeat of a candidate
 16 for public office, make an electioneering communication, or to
 17 expressly advocate the passage or defeat of a ballot issue.
 18 b. An association, lodge, society, cooperative, union,
 19 fraternity, sorority, educational institution, civic
 20 organization, labor organization, religious organization, or
 21 professional organization that accepts contributions in excess
 22 of ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty dollars in the aggregate,
 23 makes expenditures in excess of ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty
 24 dollars in the aggregate, or incurs indebtedness in excess of
 25 ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty dollars in the aggregate in
 26 any one calendar year to expressly advocate the nomination,
 27 election, or defeat of a candidate for public office, make an
 28 electioneering communication, or to expressly advocate the
 29 passage or defeat of a ballot issue.
 30 c. A person, other than an individual, that accepts
 31 contributions in excess of ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty
 32 dollars in the aggregate, makes expenditures in excess of
 33 ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty dollars in the aggregate, or
 34 incurs indebtedness in excess of ~~one thousand~~ two hundred fifty
 35 dollars in the aggregate in any one calendar year to expressly

PAGE 7

- 1 advocate that an individual should or should not seek election
 2 to a public office prior to the individual becoming a candidate
 3 as defined in subsection 4.
 4 Sec. ____ Section 68A.102, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsections:

6 NEW SUBSECTION. 8A. "*Communication*" means any of the
7 following:

- 8 a. A paid advertisement broadcast over radio, television,
9 cable, or satellite.
- 10 b. The paid placement of content on the internet or other
11 electronic communication network.
- 12 c. A paid advertisement published in a newspaper or
13 periodical or on a billboard.
- 14 d. A mailing.
- 15 e. A printed material.

16 NEW SUBSECTION. 10A. "*Coordinated expenditure*" means
17 an expenditure made in cooperation with, in consultation
18 with, at the request of, or with the express prior consent
19 of a candidate or committee receiving the benefit of the
20 expenditure.

21 NEW SUBSECTION. 13A. a. "*Electioneering communication*"
22 means a paid communication that is publicly distributed by
23 radio, television, cable, satellite, internet site, newspaper,
24 periodical, billboard, mail, electronic mail, or any other
25 distribution of materials, that is made within sixty days of
26 the initiation of voting in an election that does not support
27 or oppose a candidate or ballot issue, that can be received
28 by more than one hundred persons, and that does any of the
29 following:

- 30 (1) Refers to one or more clearly identified candidates in
31 that election.
- 32 (2) Depicts the name, image, likeness, or voice of a clearly
33 identified candidate in that election.
- 34 (3) Refers to a political party, ballot issue, or a question
35 submitted to the voters in that election.

PAGE 8

1 b. "*Electioneering communication*" does not include any of
2 the following:

- 3 (1) A bona fide news story, commentary, blog, or editorial
4 distributed through the facilities of any broadcasting station,
5 newspaper, magazine, internet site, or other periodical
6 publication of general circulation.
- 7 (2) A communication by a membership organization or
8 corporation to its members, stockholders, or employees.
- 9 (3) A commercial communication that depicts a candidate's
10 name, image, likeness, or voice only in the candidate's
11 capacity as owner, operator, or employee of a business that
12 existed prior to the organization of a candidate's committee by
13 the candidate pursuant to section 68A.202.
- 14 (4) A communication that constitutes a candidate debate or
15 forum or that solely promotes a candidate debate or forum and
16 is made by or on behalf of the person sponsoring the debate or
17 forum.
- 18 (5) A communication that the board determines by rule is not
19 an electioneering communication.

20 Sec. ____ Section 68A.402, subsection 9, Code 2020, is
21 amended to read as follows:
22 9. a. Permanent organizations. A permanent organization
23 temporarily engaging in activity described in section 68A.102,
24 subsection 18, shall organize a political committee and shall
25 keep the funds relating to that political activity segregated
26 from its operating funds. The political committee shall file
27 reports on the appropriate due dates as required by this
28 section.
29 b. The reports filed under this subsection shall identify
30 the all of the following:
31 (1) The source of the original funds used for a contribution
32 made to a candidate or a committee organized under this
33 chapter.
34 (2) The aggregate amount of contributions made by each
35 person.

PAGE 9

1 (3) Each loan received from any person during the reporting
2 period.
3 (4) The amount and nature of debts and obligations owed to
4 the committee.
5 (5) Proceeds that total less than thirty-five dollars
6 per person from mass collections made at fund-raising events
7 sponsored by the committee.
8 (6) The total sum of contributions received by the committee
9 for a specified candidate or committee.
10 (7) The full name, mailing address, occupation, and
11 principal place of business, if any, of each person or
12 committee to whom an expenditure has been made during the
13 reporting period, including the amount, date, and purpose of
14 each expenditure and the total amount of expenditures to each
15 person or committee.
16 (8) The full name, mailing address, occupation, and
17 principal place of business, if any, of each person to whom an
18 expenditure for personal services, salaries, and reimbursement
19 of expenses has been made, including the amount, date,
20 and purpose of that expenditure, and the total amount of
21 expenditures made to each person.
22 (9) The total sum of expenditures made during the reporting
23 period.
24 (10) The full name, mailing address, occupation, and
25 principal place of business, if any, of any person to whom a
26 loan was made, and the full name, mailing address, occupation,
27 and principal place of business, if any, of any endorsers, and
28 the date and amount of each loan.
29 (11) The amount and nature of debts and obligations owed by
30 the committee.
31 (12) Other information as may be required by the board by
32 rule.
33 (13) For reports of expenditures made to a consultant,

34 advertising agency, polling firm, or other person that performs
 35 services for the committee, the report shall be itemized

PAGE 10

1 and described in sufficient detail to disclose the specific
 2 services performed by the entity.

3 c. When the permanent organization ceases to be involved
 4 in the political activity, the permanent organization shall
 5 dissolve the political committee.

6 d. As used in this subsection, “*permanent organization*”
 7 means an organization that is continuing, stable, and enduring,
 8 and was originally organized for purposes other than engaging
 9 in election activities.

10 Sec. ____ Section 68A.402A, subsection 1, paragraphs f and
 11 g, Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

12 f. The name and mailing address of each person and committee
 13 to whom disbursements, payments for personal services,
 14 salaries, reimbursement for expenses, or loan repayments
 15 have been made by the committee from contributions during
 16 the reporting period and the amount, purpose, and date of
 17 each disbursement except that disbursements of less than five
 18 dollars may be shown as miscellaneous disbursements so long as
 19 the aggregate miscellaneous disbursements to any one person
 20 during a calendar year do not exceed one hundred dollars.
 21 Reports of disbursements under this paragraph must be itemized
 22 and sufficiently detailed to disclose the specific services
 23 performed by the person to whom a disbursement was made.
 24 g. Disbursements made to a consultant, advertising agency,
 25 or polling firm and disbursements made by the consultant,
 26 advertising agency, or polling firm during the reporting
 27 period disclosing the name and address of the recipient,
 28 amount, purpose, and date. Reports of disbursements under
 29 this paragraph must be itemized and sufficiently detailed to
 30 disclose the specific services performed by the entity to whom
 31 a disbursement was made.

32 Sec. ____ Section 68A.402A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 33 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

34 NEW PARAGRAPH. l. The total sum of disbursements made.
 35 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 68A.404A Electioneering

PAGE 11

1 **communications — reports.**

2 1. A person making an electioneering communication shall
 3 file a report with the board, including a description of the
 4 communication, how the communication was distributed, and
 5 the amount of any expenditure made on the electioneering
 6 communication, except that a person spending less than two
 7 hundred fifty dollars on electioneering communications in a
 8 taxable year shall not be required to file a report.

9 2. The board shall adopt rules for the form and schedule of

10 reports filed under this section.

11 Sec. ____ Section 68A.405, subsection 1, paragraphs b, c, d,
12 e, f, g, and h, Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

13 *b.* (1) Except as set out in subsection 2, published
14 material designed to expressly advocate the nomination,
15 election, or defeat of a candidate for public office or
16 the passage or defeat of a ballot issue and electioneering
17 communications shall include on the published material
18 or electioneering communication an attribution statement
19 disclosing who is responsible for the published material or
20 electioneering communication.

21 (2) The person who is responsible for the published material
22 or electioneering communication has the sole responsibility
23 and liability for the attribution statement required by this
24 section.

25 *c.* If the person paying for the published material or
26 electioneering communication is an individual, the words “paid
27 for by” and the name and address of the person shall appear on
28 the published material or electioneering communication.

29 *d.* If more than one individual is responsible, the words
30 “paid for by”, the names of the individuals, and either
31 the addresses of the individuals or a statement that the
32 addresses of the individuals are on file with the Iowa ethics
33 and campaign disclosure board shall appear on the published
34 material or electioneering communication.

35 *e.* If the person responsible is an organization, the words

PAGE 12

1 “paid for by”, the name and address of the organization, and
2 the name of one officer of the organization shall appear on the
3 published material or electioneering communication.

4 *f.* If the person responsible is a corporation, the words
5 “paid for by”, the name and address of the corporation, and the
6 name and title of the corporation’s chief executive officer
7 shall appear on the published material or electioneering
8 communication.

9 *g.* If the person responsible is a committee that has filed
10 a statement of organization pursuant to section 68A.201, the
11 words “paid for by” and the name of the committee shall appear
12 on the published material or electioneering communication.

13 *h.* If the published material or electioneering communication
14 is the result of an independent expenditure subject to section
15 68A.404, the published material or electioneering communication
16 shall include a statement that the published material or
17 electioneering communication was not authorized by any
18 candidate, candidate’s committee, or ballot issue committee.

19 Sec. ____ Section 68A.405, subsection 2, paragraph d, Code
20 2020, is amended to read as follows:

21 *d.* Any published material or electioneering communication
22 that is subject to federal regulations regarding an attribution
23 requirement.

24 Sec. ____ Section 68A.405, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 25 amended to read as follows:
 26 4. The board shall adopt rules relating to the placing of an
 27 attribution statement on published materials and electioneering
 28 communication.
 29 DIVISION ____
 30 TEST IOWA PROGRAM STANDARDS
 31 Sec. ____ TEST IOWA PROGRAM STANDARDS. If the performance
 32 goals and standards set forth under any test Iowa program
 33 contract or agreement are not met by a private entity that is a
 34 party to the contract or agreement, the contract or agreement
 35 is immediately voided and any unexpended moneys shall be

PAGE 13

1 transferred to an Iowa-based health care provider or research
 2 institute capable of managing widespread testing for the novel
 3 coronavirus.>
 4 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HALL of Woodbury

H-8304

1 Amend the amendment, H-8276, to House File 2643 as follows:
 2 1. Page 13, after line 34 by inserting:
 3 <DIVISION ____
 4 PREEXISTING CONDITIONS
 5 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 514M.1 Short title.
 6 This chapter shall be known and may be cited as *“The Protect*
 7 *Coverage for Preexisting Conditions Act”*.
 8 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 514M.2 Definitions.
 9 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise
 10 requires:
 11 1. *“Commissioner”* means the commissioner of insurance.
 12 2. *“Health benefit plan”* means any policy, contract,
 13 certificate, or agreement, including a short-term,
 14 limited-duration policy or a high deductible plan, offered or
 15 issued by a health carrier to provide, deliver, arrange for,
 16 pay for, or reimburse any of the costs of health care services.
 17 3. *“Health care services”* means services for the diagnosis,
 18 prevention, treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition,
 19 illness, injury, or disease.
 20 4. *“Health carrier”* means an entity subject to the
 21 insurance laws and regulations of this state, or subject
 22 to the jurisdiction of the commissioner, including an
 23 insurance company offering sickness and accident plans, a
 24 health maintenance organization, a nonprofit health service
 25 corporation, a plan established pursuant to chapter 509A for
 26 public employees, a plan offered or maintained by a multiple
 27 employer welfare association, or any other entity providing
 28 a plan of health insurance, health benefits, or health care

29 services. Notwithstanding section 505.20, subsection 1, “*health*
30 *carrier*” also includes a nonprofit agricultural organization
31 domiciled in the state that sponsors a health benefit plan
32 pursuant to section 505.20.
33 5. “*Preexisting condition exclusion*” means a limitation or
34 exclusion of benefits, or a denial of coverage, relating to
35 a condition based on the fact that the condition was present

PAGE 2

1 before the date of enrollment for such coverage or the date
2 of denial of coverage, whether or not any medical advice,
3 diagnosis, care, or treatment was recommended or received for
4 the condition before the date of enrollment or the date of
5 denial of coverage.
6 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 514M.3 Preexisting conditions.
7 Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary,
8 a health carrier that offers an individual health benefit plan
9 or a group health benefit plan in this state shall not do
10 either of the following:
11 1. Deny coverage to any employer or to any individual that
12 is eligible to apply for the individual health benefit plan or
13 the group health benefit plan.
14 2. Impose any preexisting condition exclusion on an
15 employer or on an individual with respect to the individual
16 health benefit plan or the group health benefit plan.
17 Sec. __. NEW SECTION. 514M.4 Premium rates.
18 1. *a.* Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
19 contrary, a health carrier that offers an individual health
20 benefit plan or a group health benefit plan in this state shall
21 develop premium rates for the individual health benefit plan
22 or the group health benefit plan based only on the following
23 factors:
24 (1) Age, except that the rate shall not vary by more than
25 three-to-one for like individuals of different ages who are age
26 twenty-one and older.
27 (2) Whether the health benefit plan covers an individual or
28 family.
29 (3) Tobacco use, except that the rate shall not vary by more
30 than one and one-half times the rate charged to a nontobacco
31 user.
32 (4) Geographic rating area established in compliance with
33 federal law.
34 *b.* Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
35 contrary, with respect to premium rates for family coverage

PAGE 3

1 under an individual health benefit plan or a group health
2 benefit plan offered in this state, a health carrier shall
3 apply the factors permitted pursuant to paragraph “*a*” based on
4 the premium that is attributable to each family member covered

5 under the health benefit plan in accordance with rules adopted
 6 by the commissioner.
 7 2. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 8 contrary, a health carrier that offers an individual health
 9 benefit plan or a group health benefit plan in this state shall
 10 adjust the premium rates established pursuant to subsection 1
 11 no more frequently than annually and based only on the factors
 12 in subsection 1, paragraph “a”, except that the health carrier
 13 may adjust the premium rates in the following circumstances:
 14 a. With respect to a small group health plan, if there are
 15 changes in enrollment.
 16 b. There is a change to the family composition of an
 17 individual enrolled in an individual health benefit plan or of
 18 an employee enrolled in a group health benefit plan.
 19 c. There is a change in the geographic rating area or in
 20 tobacco use for an individual enrolled in an individual health
 21 benefit plan.
 22 d. An individual enrolled in an individual health benefit
 23 plan requests changes to the health benefit plan or a small
 24 employer requests changes to a group health benefit plan.
 25 e. A change in federal law or federal regulations requiring
 26 a premium rate adjustment.
 27 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **514M.5 Rules.**
 28 The commissioner shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A
 29 as necessary to implement and administer this chapter.
 30 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **514M.6 Enforcement.**
 31 The commissioner shall take any action within the
 32 commissioner’s authority to enforce compliance with this
 33 chapter.
 34 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act
 35 applies to health benefit plans that are delivered, issued

PAGE 4

1 for delivery, continued, or renewed in this state on or after
 2 January 1, 2021.
 3 DIVISION ____
 4 CHANGE EFFORTS PROHIBITED
 5 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **135.192 Sexual orientation and**
 6 **gender identity change efforts** — **prohibitions** — **penalties.**
 7 1. For the purposes of this section, unless the context
 8 otherwise requires:
 9 a. “*Child*” means an individual who is under the age of 18.
 10 b. “*Practitioner*” means a physician and surgeon or
 11 osteopathic physician and surgeon licensed under chapter 148
 12 who specializes in the practice of psychiatry; a psychologist
 13 licensed under chapter 154B; a licensed marital and family
 14 therapist or mental health counselor or a temporary licensed
 15 marital and family therapist or mental health counselor as
 16 defined in section 154D.1; a social worker licensed pursuant to
 17 chapter 154C; a licensed school counselor, school psychologist,
 18 or school social worker; an advanced registered nurse

19 practitioner; a practitioner as defined in section 272.1; a
20 victim counselor as defined in section 915.20A; a psychiatric
21 nurse; any other person who provides counseling or mental
22 health or behavioral health services as a part of the person's
23 professional training or practice under Iowa law or rule; or
24 any student, intern, volunteer, or other person assisting
25 or acting under the direction or guidance of any of these
26 professionals.

27 c. (1) *"Sexual orientation or gender identity change*
28 *efforts"* means any practice or treatment by a practitioner
29 that seeks to change an individual's sexual orientation or
30 gender identity, including but not limited to efforts to change
31 behaviors or gender expressions, or to eliminate or reduce
32 sexual or romantic attractions or feelings toward individuals
33 of the same gender.

34 (2) *"Sexual orientation or gender identity change efforts"*
35 does not include any of the following practices, as long as the

PAGE 5

1 practice does not seek to change sexual orientation or gender
2 identity:

3 (a) Counseling or therapy that provides acceptance,
4 support, and understanding of the individual or the
5 facilitation of an individual's coping, social support,
6 and identity exploration and development, including sexual
7 orientation-neutral interventions to prevent or address
8 unlawful conduct or unsafe sexual practices.

9 (b) Counseling for an individual seeking to transition from
10 one gender to another.

11 2. A practitioner shall not engage in sexual orientation or
12 gender identity change efforts with a child.

13 3. A practitioner who engages in sexual orientation or
14 gender identity change efforts with a child shall be subject
15 to disciplinary action by the licensing entity or disciplinary
16 authority with professional jurisdiction over the practitioner.

17 Sec. __. SEXUAL ORIENTATION AND GENDER IDENTITY CHANGE
18 EFFORTS — CHILD FOSTER CARE — MANDATORY REPORTERS — RULES.

19 1. For the purposes of this section:

20 a. (1) "Child" means, as applicable, either a person less
21 than eighteen years of age or a person eighteen or nineteen
22 years of age who meets any of the following conditions:

23 (a) Is in full-time attendance at an accredited school
24 pursuing a course of study leading to a high school diploma.

25 (b) Is attending an instructional program leading to a high
26 school equivalency diploma.

27 (c) Has been identified by the director of special education
28 of the area education agency as a child requiring special
29 education as defined in section 256B.2, subsection 1.

30 (2) A person over eighteen years of age who has received a
31 high school diploma or a high school equivalency diploma is not
32 a "child" within the definition in this paragraph "a".

- 33 b. “Mental injury” means the same as defined in section
- 34 232.2.
- 35 c. “Sexual orientation or gender identity change efforts”

PAGE 6

- 1 means the same as defined in section 135.192.
- 2 2. The department of human services shall adopt rules
- 3 pursuant to chapter 17A relating to all of the following:
- 4 a. To prohibit, as a condition of licensure, an agency or
- 5 individual licensed pursuant to chapter 237 to provide child
- 6 foster care from participating in sexual orientation or gender
- 7 identity change efforts with a child for whom the licensed
- 8 agency or individual is providing child foster care.
- 9 b. To identify research-based instruction that supports
- 10 lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and questioning youth,
- 11 including linguistic tools such as the correct use of pronouns
- 12 and names, for incorporation into necessary training for
- 13 department staff and for agencies or individuals licensed
- 14 pursuant to chapter 237 to provide child foster care.
- 15 c. To provide guidance to a mandatory reporter, as
- 16 enumerated in section 232.69, subsection 1, in associating
- 17 sexual orientation or gender identity change efforts with a
- 18 child with mental injury constituting child abuse pursuant to
- 19 section 232.68, subsection 2.

20 DIVISION ___

21 STATE CONTRACTS — IOWA PREFERENCE

- 22 Sec. ___. Section 8A.311, Code 2020, is amended by adding
- 23 the following new subsection:
- 24 **NEW SUBSECTION. 12A.** If the lowest responsive bid received
- 25 by the state for products or other purchases is from an
- 26 out-of-state business, and an Iowa-based business submitted a
- 27 bid which is within five percent or ten thousand dollars of
- 28 the price of the lowest bid, whichever is less, the Iowa-based
- 29 business which submitted the lowest responsive bid shall be
- 30 notified and shall be allowed to match the lowest bid before
- 31 a contract is awarded.
- 32 Sec. ___. **NEW SECTION. 8F.6 Preference.**
- 33 An oversight agency shall give preference in awarding a
- 34 service contract to a recipient entity under this chapter to
- 35 an Iowa-based business.

PAGE 7

1 DIVISION ___

2 PUBLIC RETIREMENT SYSTEMS GOALS

- 3 Sec. ___. Section 97D.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
- 4 following new subsection:
- 5 **NEW SUBSECTION. 01.** It is the intent of the general
- 6 assembly to maintain strong and stable public retirement
- 7 systems that allow employees to retire with dignity.

8 DIVISION ___

9 GROUNDWATER PROTECTION FUND

10 Sec. ____ BULK TRANSPORT OF WATER. Of moneys available for
 11 use by the department of natural resources from the groundwater
 12 protection fund created in section 455E.11 for the fiscal year
 13 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, which are
 14 not allocated pursuant to that section, the department shall
 15 support the protection of the state's groundwater, including by
 16 providing for administration; the prevention of the groundwater
 17 extracted for bulk transport to another state for any purpose;
 18 regulation and programs; salaries, support, maintenance, and
 19 equipment; and miscellaneous purposes.

20 DIVISION ____

21 UNITED STATES CLIMATE ALLIANCE

22 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 28O.1 United States Climate
 23 **Alliance.**

24 The governor shall take all necessary actions for the state
 25 to become a member of, participate in, and maintain membership
 26 in the United States climate alliance.

27 DIVISION ____

28 TELEHEALTH PARITY

29 Sec. ____ Section 514C.34, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 30 amended by adding the following new paragraphs:
 31 NEW PARAGRAPH. 0a. "Covered person" means the same as
 32 defined in section 514J.102.

33 NEW PARAGRAPH. 0c. "Health carrier" means the same as
 34 defined in section 514J.102.

35 Sec. ____ Section 514C.34, Code 2020, is amended by adding

PAGE 8

1 the following new subsection:

2 NEW SUBSECTION. 3A. A health carrier shall reimburse a
 3 health care professional for health care services provided to
 4 a covered person by telehealth on the same basis and at the
 5 same rate as the health carrier would apply to the same health
 6 care services provided to a covered person by the health care
 7 professional in person.

8 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 9 to health care services provided by a health care professional
 10 to a covered person by telehealth on or after January 1, 2021.

11 DIVISION ____

12 TAX CREDIT PROGRAM CAP

13 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 422.120 Tax credit programs —
 14 **limitation.**

15 1. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary,
 16 moneys awarded under a tax credit program shall not exceed the
 17 amount awarded during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019,
 18 and ending June 30, 2020, in subsequent fiscal years.

19 2. If necessary for the administration of a tax credit
 20 program, the tax credits may be awarded on a first-come,
 21 first-served basis until the maximum amount allowable under
 22 subsection 1 has been awarded.

23 3. This section does not apply to the tax programs subject
 24 to limitation in section 15.119 or to the earned income tax
 25 credit in section 422.12B.

26 DIVISION ____

27 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY
 28 SERVICES

29 Sec. ____ CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — MENTAL HEALTH AND
 30 DISABILITY SERVICES. Of the funds received by the state from
 31 the federal coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to the
 32 federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act,
 33 Pub. L. No. 116-136, \$25,000,000 shall be deposited in the
 34 mental health and disability regional services fund created
 35 in section 225C.7A. Moneys deposited in the mental health

PAGE 9

1 and disability regional services fund under this section
 2 are appropriated to the department of human services for
 3 distribution to the mental health and disability services
 4 regions to fund mental health and disability services in
 5 accordance with section 225C.7A.

6 DIVISION ____

7 RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT AND PROTECTION

8 Sec. ____ Section 455A.18, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 9 2020, is amended to read as follows:

10 a. For each fiscal year of the fiscal period beginning
 11 July 1, 1997, and ending June 30, ~~2021~~ 2031, there is
 12 appropriated from the general fund, to the Iowa resources
 13 enhancement and protection fund, the amount of twenty million
 14 dollars, to be used as provided in this chapter. However,
 15 in any fiscal year of the fiscal period, if moneys from the
 16 lottery are appropriated by the state to the fund, the amount
 17 appropriated under this subsection shall be reduced by the
 18 amount appropriated from the lottery.

19 DIVISION ____

20 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF — ESSENTIAL EMPLOYEES

21 Sec. ____ ESSENTIAL EMPLOYEES. Notwithstanding any
 22 provision of law to the contrary, for purposes of any moneys
 23 expended by the state from the federal coronavirus relief fund
 24 created pursuant to the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
 25 Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, persons employed
 26 for purposes of childcare shall be considered essential
 27 employees.

28 DIVISION ____

29 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF — SMALL BUSINESS GRANTS

30 Sec. ____ SMALL BUSINESS GRANTS. Notwithstanding any
 31 provision of law to the contrary, for purposes of any moneys
 32 expended by the state from the federal coronavirus relief fund
 33 created pursuant to the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
 34 Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, for small business
 35 grants, nonprofit organizations are eligible to be awarded such

PAGE 10

1 grants.

2 DIVISION ____
3 TESTING SHORTAGE4 Sec. ____ TESTING SHORTAGE. In the event a shortage
5 of tests for the novel coronavirus occurs in this state,
6 healthcare workers, members of vulnerable populations, and
7 those persons working with members of vulnerable populations
8 shall be given first preference to receive a test.>

9 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HALL of Woodbury

H-8305

1 Amend House File 2540, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
2 the House, as follows:3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
4 inserting:

5 <DIVISION I

6 CHARITY BEER, SPIRITS, AND WINE EVENT PERMIT

7 Section 1. Section 123.32, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
8 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
9 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (7A) A charity beer, spirits, and wine
10 event permit as provided in section 123.173B.11 Sec. 2. NEW SECTION. **123.173B Charity beer, spirits, and**
12 **wine event permit.**13 1. For purposes of this section, "*authorized nonprofit*
14 *entity*" includes a nonprofit entity which has a principal office
15 in the state, a nonprofit corporation organized under chapter
16 504, or a foreign corporation as defined in section 504.141,
17 whose income is exempt from federal taxation under section
18 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code.19 2. Upon application to the division and receipt of a charity
20 beer, spirits, and wine event permit, an authorized nonprofit
21 entity may conduct an event at which the entity is authorized
22 to serve the event's attendees beer, spirits, and wine for
23 consumption on the premises of the event, regardless of whether
24 the entity charges an admission fee to the event or otherwise
25 collects the cost of the beer, spirits, and wine served from
26 the event's attendees and subject to the requirements of this
27 section.28 3. An application for a charity beer, spirits, and wine
29 event permit shall include all of the following information:
30 a. The date and time when the charity beer, spirits, and
31 wine event is to be conducted and the location of the premises
32 in this state where the charity beer, spirits, and wine event
33 is to be physically conducted.34 b. The liquor control license or wine or beer permit number
35 issued by the division for the premises where the charity beer,

PAGE 2

- 1 spirits, and wine event is to be conducted.
- 2 c. A certification that the objective of the charity beer,
3 spirits, and wine event is to raise funds solely to be used for
4 educational, religious, or charitable purposes and that the
5 entire proceeds from the charity beer, spirits, and wine event
6 are to be expended for any of the purposes described in section
7 423.3, subsection 78.
- 8 4. A charity beer, spirits, and wine event shall comply with
9 all of the following requirements:
- 10 a. The event is to be conducted on a premises covered by a
11 valid liquor control license or wine or beer permit issued by
12 the division.
- 13 b. The authorized nonprofit entity shall have a written
14 agreement with the liquor control licensee or wine or beer
15 permittee covering the premises where the event is to be
16 conducted specifying that that licensee or permittee shall act
17 as the agent of the authorized nonprofit entity for the purpose
18 of providing and serving alcoholic beverages to the attendees
19 of the event.
- 20 c. The liquor control licensee or wine or beer permittee
21 covering the premises where the event is to be conducted shall
22 supply all alcoholic beverages served to the attendees of the
23 event.
- 24 d. Only those types of alcoholic beverages as are authorized
25 to be sold by the liquor control license or wine or beer permit
26 covering the premises where the event is to be conducted are to
27 be served to the attendees of the event.
- 28 5. An authorized nonprofit entity shall be eligible to
29 receive no more than two charity beer, spirits, and wine event
30 permits during a calendar year and each charity beer, spirits,
31 and wine event permit shall be valid for a period not to exceed
32 thirty-six consecutive hours.
- 33 6. Any violation of the requirements of this chapter or
34 the rules adopted pursuant to this chapter shall subject the
35 charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit holder to the

PAGE 3

- 1 general penalties provided in this chapter and shall constitute
2 grounds for imposition of a civil penalty, suspension of
3 the permit, or revocation of the permit after notice and
4 opportunity for a hearing pursuant to section 123.39 and
5 chapter 17A.
- 6 Sec. 3. Section 123.179, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
7 following new subsection:
8 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. The fee for a charity beer, spirits, and
9 wine event permit is one hundred dollars.
- 10 DIVISION II
11 WINE SALES
- 12 Sec. 4. Section 123.178, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended

13 to read as follows:

14 1. A person holding a class "B" wine permit may sell wine at
15 retail for consumption off the premises. Wine shall be sold
16 for consumption off the premises in original containers ~~only~~
17 except as provided in subsection 4.

18 Sec. 5. Section 123.178, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
19 following new subsections:

20 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 4. Subject to the rules of the division,
21 sales made pursuant to this section may be made in a container
22 other than the original container only if all of the following
23 requirements are met:

24 a. The wine is transferred from the original container to
25 the container to be sold on the licensed premises at the time
26 of sale or when sold by telephonic or other electronic means.

27 b. The person transferring the wine from the original
28 container to the container to be sold shall be eighteen years
29 of age or more.

30 c. The container to be sold shall be no larger than
31 seventy-two ounces.

32 d. The container to be sold shall be securely sealed by a
33 method authorized by the division that is designed so that if
34 the sealed container is reopened or the seal tampered with, it
35 is visibly apparent that the seal on the container of wine has

PAGE 4

1 been tampered with or the sealed container has otherwise been
2 reopened.

3 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 5. A container of wine other than the
4 original container that is sold and sealed in compliance
5 with the requirements of subsection 4 and the rules of the
6 division shall not be deemed an open container subject to the
7 requirements of sections 321.284 and 321.284A if the sealed
8 container is unopened and the seal has not been tampered with,
9 and the contents of the container have not been partially
10 removed.

11 Sec. 6. Section 123.178A, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
12 amended to read as follows:

13 1. A person holding a class "B" native wine permit may sell
14 native wine only at retail for consumption off the premises.
15 Native wine shall be sold for consumption off the premises in
16 original containers ~~only~~ except as provided in subsection 4.

17 Sec. 7. Section 123.178A, Code 2020, is amended by adding
18 the following new subsections:

19 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 4. Subject to the rules of the division,
20 sales made pursuant to this section may be made in a container
21 other than the original container only if all of the following
22 requirements are met:

23 a. The wine is transferred from the original container to
24 the container to be sold on the licensed premises at the time
25 of sale or when sold by telephonic or other electronic means.

26 b. The person transferring the wine from the original

27 container to the container to be sold shall be eighteen years
28 of age or more.
29 c. The container to be sold shall be no larger than
30 seventy-two ounces.
31 d. The container to be sold shall be securely sealed by a
32 method authorized by the division that is designed so that if
33 the sealed container is reopened or the seal tampered with, it
34 is visibly apparent that the seal on the container of wine has
35 been tampered with or the sealed container has otherwise been

PAGE 5

1 reopened.
2 NEW SUBSECTION. 5. A container of wine other than the
3 original container that is sold and sealed in compliance
4 with the requirements of subsection 4 and the rules of the
5 division shall not be deemed an open container subject to the
6 requirements of sections 321.284 and 321.284A if the sealed
7 container is unopened and the seal has not been tampered with,
8 and the contents of the container have not been partially
9 removed.
10 Sec. 8. Section 123.178B, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
11 amended to read as follows:
12 1. A person holding a class "C" native wine permit may
13 sell native wine only at retail for consumption on or off the
14 premises. Sales of wine for consumption off the premises made
15 pursuant to this section shall be made in original containers
16 except as provided in subsection 5.
17 Sec. 9. Section 123.178B, Code 2020, is amended by adding
18 the following new subsections:
19 NEW SUBSECTION. 5. Subject to the rules of the division,
20 sales made pursuant to this section may be made in a container
21 other than the original container only if all of the following
22 requirements are met:
23 a. The wine is transferred from the original container to
24 the container to be sold on the licensed premises at the time
25 of sale or when sold by telephonic or other electronic means.
26 b. The person transferring the wine from the original
27 container to the container to be sold shall be eighteen years
28 of age or more.
29 c. The container to be sold shall be no larger than
30 seventy-two ounces.
31 d. The container to be sold shall be securely sealed by a
32 method authorized by the division that is designed so that if
33 the sealed container is reopened or the seal tampered with, it
34 is visibly apparent that the seal on the container of wine has
35 been tampered with or the sealed container has otherwise been

PAGE 6

1 reopened.
2 NEW SUBSECTION. 6. A container of wine other than the

3 original container that is sold and sealed in compliance
4 with the requirements of subsection 5 and the rules of the
5 division shall not be deemed an open container subject to the
6 requirements of sections 321.284 and 321.284A if the sealed
7 container is unopened and the seal has not been tampered with,
8 and the contents of the container have not been partially
9 removed.

10 DIVISION III
11 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES SALES

12 Sec. 10. Section 123.30, subsection 3, paragraph c,
13 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

14 (1) A class "C" liquor control license may be issued to
15 a commercial establishment but must be issued in the name
16 of the individuals who actually own the entire business and
17 shall authorize the holder to purchase alcoholic liquors in
18 original unopened containers from class "E" liquor control
19 licensees only, wine from class "A" wine permittees or class
20 "B" wine permittees who also hold class "E" liquor control
21 licenses only as provided in sections 123.173 and 123.177,
22 and to sell alcoholic beverages to patrons by the individual
23 drink for consumption on the premises only. However, alcoholic
24 liquor, wine, and beer may also be sold for consumption off
25 the premises. In addition, mixed drinks or cocktails may
26 also be sold for consumption off the premises subject to the
27 requirements of section 123.49, subsection 2, paragraph "d".
28 The holder of a class "C" liquor control license may also hold
29 a special class "A" beer permit for the premises licensed under
30 a class "C" liquor control license for the purpose of operating
31 a brewpub pursuant to this chapter.

32 Sec. 11. Section 123.30, subsection 3, paragraph c,
33 subparagraph (3), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

34 (3) A class "C" native distilled spirits liquor control
35 license may be issued to a native distillery but shall be

PAGE 7

1 issued in the name of the individuals who actually own the
2 business and shall only be issued to a native distillery which,
3 combining all production facilities of the business, produces
4 and manufactures not more than one hundred thousand proof
5 gallons of distilled spirits on an annual basis. The license
6 shall authorize the holder to sell native distilled spirits
7 manufactured on the premises of the native distillery to
8 patrons by the individual drink for consumption on the premises
9 and mixed drinks or cocktails for consumption off the premises
10 subject to the requirements of section 123.49, subsection 2,
11 paragraph "d". All native distilled spirits sold by a native
12 distillery for on-premises consumption and mixed drinks or
13 cocktails sold for consumption off the premises shall be
14 purchased from a class "E" liquor control licensee in original
15 unopened containers.

16 Sec. 12. Section 123.43A, subsection 6, Code 2020, is

17 amended to read as follows:

18 6. Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the
19 contrary or the fact that a person is the holder of a class
20 "A" native distilled spirits license, a native distillery
21 which, combining all production facilities of the business,
22 produces and manufactures not more than one hundred thousand
23 proof gallons of native distilled spirits on an annual basis
24 may sell those native distilled spirits manufactured on the
25 premises of the native distillery for consumption on the
26 premises by applying for a class "C" native distilled spirits
27 liquor control license as provided in section 123.30. A
28 native distillery may be granted not more than one class "C"
29 native distilled spirits liquor control license. All native
30 distilled spirits sold by a native distillery for on-premises
31 consumption and mixed drinks or cocktails sold for consumption
32 off the premises shall be purchased from a class "E" liquor
33 control licensee. A manufacturer of native distilled spirits
34 may be issued a class "C" native distilled spirits liquor
35 control license regardless of whether the manufacturer is also

PAGE 8

1 a manufacturer of beer pursuant to a class "A" beer permit or
2 a manufacturer of native wine pursuant to a class "A" wine
3 permit.

4 Sec. 13. Section 123.49, subsection 2, paragraph d, Code
5 2020, is amended by adding the following new subparagraph:
6 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (3) Mixed drinks or cocktails mixed on
7 premises covered by a class "C" liquor control license or a
8 class "C" native distilled spirits liquor control license for
9 consumption off the licensed premises may be sold if the mixed
10 drink or cocktail is immediately sealed with a lid or other
11 method of securing the product and is promptly taken from the
12 licensed premises prior to consumption of the mixed drink or
13 cocktail. A mixed drink or cocktail that is sold and sealed
14 in compliance with the requirements of this subparagraph shall
15 not be deemed an open container subject to the requirements
16 of sections 321.284 and 321.284A if the sealed container is
17 unopened and the seal has not been tampered with, and the
18 contents of the container have not been partially removed.

19 Sec. 14. Section 123.131, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
20 2020, is amended to read as follows:

21 a. The beer is transferred from the original container to
22 the container to be sold on the licensed premises at the time
23 of sale or when sold by telephonic or other electronic means.

24 Sec. 15. EMERGENCY RULES. The alcoholic beverages division
25 of the department of commerce may adopt emergency rules under
26 section 17A.4, subsection 3, and section 17A.5, subsection 2,
27 paragraph "b", to implement the provisions of this division
28 of this Act and the rules shall be effective immediately upon
29 filing unless a later date is specified in the rules. Any
30 rules adopted in accordance with this section shall also be

31 published as a notice of intended action as provided in section
 32 17A.4.
 33 Sec. 16. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 34 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.>
 35 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 and 2 and inserting

PAGE 9

1 <An Act concerning alcoholic beverage control, establishing
 2 a charity beer, spirits, and wine event permit, providing
 3 for alcoholic beverages sales, and including effective date
 4 provisions.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8306

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-1317, to House File 638, as
 2 passed by the House, as follows:
 3 1. By striking page 1, line 4, through page 2, line 18, and
 4 inserting:
 5 <<DIVISION ____
 6 RETRALIATION
 7 Sec. ____ Section 562B.32, subsection 1, paragraph d, Code
 8 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 9 *d.* For exercising any of the rights and remedies pursuant
 10 to this chapter or chapter 216.
 11 Sec. ____ Section 562B.32, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 12 amended to read as follows:
 13 2. If the landlord acts in violation of subsection 1
 14 of this section, the tenant is entitled to the remedies
 15 provided in section 562B.24 and has a defense in an action for
 16 possession. In an action by or against the tenant, evidence
 17 of a complaint within ~~six months~~ one year prior to the alleged
 18 act of retaliation creates a presumption that the landlord's
 19 conduct was in retaliation. The presumption does not arise
 20 if the tenant made the complaint after notice of termination
 21 of the rental agreement. For the purpose of this subsection,
 22 "*presumption*" means that the trier of fact must find the
 23 existence of the fact presumed unless and until evidence is
 24 introduced which would support a finding of its nonexistence.
 25 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 26 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 27 DIVISION ____
 28 RENT INCREASES
 29 Sec. ____ Section 562B.14, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 30 amended to read as follows:
 31 7. Each tenant shall be notified, in writing, of any rent
 32 increase at least ~~sixty~~ one hundred twenty days before the
 33 effective date. Such effective date shall not be sooner than
 34 the expiration date of the original rental agreement or any
 35 renewal or extension thereof.

PAGE 2

1 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
2 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

3 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
4 to rent increases under chapter 562B occurring on or after the
5 effective date of this division of this Act.

6 DIVISION ____
7 LANDLORD REMEDIES AND PROCEDURES

8 Sec. ____ Section 555B.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
9 follows:

10 **555B.3 Action for abandonment — jurisdiction.**

11 A real property owner not requesting notification by the
12 sheriff as provided in section 555B.2 may bring an action
13 alleging abandonment in the court within the county where the
14 real property is located ~~provided that there is no lien on~~
15 ~~the mobile home or personal property other than a tax lien~~
16 ~~pursuant to chapter 435.~~ The action shall be tried as an
17 equitable action. Unless commenced as a small claim, the
18 petition shall be presented to a district judge. Upon receipt
19 of the petition, either the court or the clerk of the district
20 court shall set a date for a hearing not later than fourteen
21 days from the date of the receipt of the petition, except when
22 there is a lien on the mobile home or personal property, other
23 than a tax lien, the court or the clerk of the district court
24 shall set a date for a hearing no sooner than twenty-five days
25 from the date of the receipt of the petition so as to allow for
26 service on the lienholder.

27 Sec. ____ Section 555B.4, Code 2020, is amended by adding
28 the following new subsection:
29 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. If a lien, other than a tax lien, exists
30 on the mobile home or personal property at the time an action
31 for abandonment is initiated, personal service pursuant to rule
32 of civil procedure 1.305 shall be made upon the lienholder
33 no less than twenty days before the hearing. The notice to
34 the lienholder shall describe the mobile home and shall state
35 the docket, case number, date, time at which the hearing is

PAGE 3

1 scheduled, and the lienholder's right to assert a claim to
2 the mobile home at the hearing. The notice shall also state
3 that failure to assert a claim to the mobile home within the
4 judicial proceedings is deemed a waiver of all right, title,
5 claim, and interest in the mobile home and is deemed consent to
6 the sale or disposal of the mobile home. If personal service
7 upon the lienholder cannot be completed in time to give the
8 lienholder the minimum notice required by this section, the
9 court may set a new hearing date.

10 Sec. ____ Section 555B.8, subsections 2 and 3, Code 2020,
11 are amended to read as follows:

12 2. If Except as otherwise ordered by the court, if the

13 mobile home owner or other claimant asserts a claim to the
14 property, the judgment shall be satisfied before the mobile
15 home owner or other claimant may take possession of the mobile
16 home or personal property.
17 3. If no claim is asserted to the mobile home or personal
18 property or if the judgment is not satisfied at the time of
19 entry, an order shall be entered allowing the real property
20 owner to sell or otherwise dispose of the mobile home and
21 personal property pursuant to section 555B.9. If Except as
22 otherwise ordered by the court, if a claimant satisfies the
23 judgment at the time of entry, the court shall enter an order
24 permitting and directing the claimant to remove the mobile home
25 or personal property from its location within a reasonable time
26 to be fixed by the court. The court shall also determine the
27 amount of further rent or storage charges to be paid by the
28 claimant to the real property owner at the time of removal.
29 Sec. ____ Section 555B.9, subsections 1, 2, 3, and 4, Code
30 2020, are amended to read as follows:
31 1. Pursuant to an order for disposal under section 555B.8,
32 subsection 3, the real property owner shall dispose of the
33 mobile home and personal property by public or private sale in
34 a commercially reasonable manner. If the personal property,
35 lienholder, owner, or other claimant has asserted a claim

PAGE 4

1 to the mobile home or personal property within the judicial
2 proceedings, that person shall be notified of the sale by
3 restricted certified mail not less than five days before the
4 sale. The notice is deemed given upon the mailing. The real
5 property owner may buy at any public sale, and if the mobile
6 home or personal property is of a type customarily sold in
7 a recognized market or is the subject of widely distributed
8 standard price quotations, the real property owner may buy at a
9 private sale.
10 2. A sale pursuant to subsection 1 transfers to the
11 purchaser for value, all of the mobile home owner's rights
12 in the mobile home and personal property, and discharges the
13 real property owner's interest in the mobile home and personal
14 property, ~~and~~ any tax lien, and any other lien. The purchaser
15 takes free of all rights and interests even though the real
16 property owner fails to comply with the requirements of this
17 chapter or of any judicial proceedings, if the purchaser acts
18 in good faith.
19 3. The proceeds of the sale of mobile home and personal
20 property shall be distributed as follows:
21 a. First, to satisfy the real property owner's judgment
22 obtained under section 555B.8.
23 b. Second, to satisfy any tax lien for which a claim was
24 asserted pursuant to section 555B.4, subsection 3.
25 Oc. Third, to satisfy any other lien for which a claim was
26 asserted pursuant to section 555B.4, subsection 4.

27 c. Any surplus remaining after the proceeds are distributed
 28 shall be held by the real property owner for six months. If
 29 the mobile home owner fails to claim the surplus in that time,
 30 the surplus may be retained by the real property owner. If
 31 a deficiency remains after distribution of the proceeds, the
 32 mobile home owner is liable for the amount of the deficiency.
 33 4. Notwithstanding subsections 1 through 3, the real
 34 property owner may propose to retain the mobile home and
 35 personal property in satisfaction of the judgment obtained

PAGE 5

1 pursuant to section 555B.8. Written notice of the proposal
 2 shall be sent to the mobile home owner, lienholder, or other
 3 claimant, if that person has asserted a claim to the mobile
 4 home or personal property in the judicial proceedings. If
 5 the real property owner receives objection in writing from
 6 the mobile home owner, lienholder, or other claimant within
 7 twenty-one days after the notice was sent, the real property
 8 owner shall dispose of the mobile home and personal property
 9 pursuant to subsection 1. If no written objection is received
 10 by the real property owner within twenty-one days after the
 11 notice was sent, the mobile home and personal property may be
 12 retained. Retention of the mobile home and personal property
 13 discharges the judgment of the real property owner, ~~and~~ any tax
 14 lien, and any other lien.

15 Sec. ___. Section 562A.9, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 16 amended to read as follows:

17 4. For rental agreements in which the rent does not exceed
 18 seven hundred dollars per month, a rental agreement shall not
 19 provide for a late fee that exceeds twelve dollars per day or a
 20 total amount of sixty dollars per month. For rental agreements
 21 in which the rent is greater than seven hundred dollars per
 22 month but less than one thousand four hundred dollars per
 23 month, a rental agreement shall not provide for a late fee that
 24 exceeds twenty dollars per day or a total amount of one hundred
 25 dollars per month. For rental agreements in which the rent is
 26 at least one thousand four hundred dollars per month, a rental
 27 agreement shall not provide for a late fee that exceeds two
 28 percent of the rent per day or a total amount of ten percent of
 29 the rent per month.

30 Sec. ___. Section 562B.10, subsections 4 and 7, Code 2020,
 31 are amended to read as follows:

32 4. For rental agreements in which the rent does not exceed
 33 seven hundred dollars per month, a rental agreement shall not
 34 provide for a late fee that exceeds twelve dollars per day or a
 35 total amount of sixty dollars per month. For rental agreements

PAGE 6

1 in which the rent is greater than seven hundred dollars per
 2 month but less than one thousand four hundred dollars per

3 month, a rental agreement shall not provide for a late fee that
4 exceeds twenty dollars per day or a total amount of one hundred
5 dollars per month. For rental agreements in which the rent is
6 at least one thousand four hundred dollars per month, a rental
7 agreement shall not provide for a late fee that exceeds two
8 percent of the rent per day or a total amount of ten percent of
9 the rent per month.
10 7. a. If a tenant who was sole owner of a mobile home dies
11 during the term of a rental agreement then that person's heirs
12 or legal representative or the landlord shall have the right
13 to cancel the tenant's lease by giving sixty days' written
14 notice to the person's heirs or legal representative or to
15 the landlord, whichever is appropriate, and the heirs or the
16 legal representative shall have the same rights, privileges and
17 liabilities of the original tenant.
18 b. (1) If a tenant who was sole owner of a mobile home dies
19 during the term of a rental agreement resulting in the mobile
20 home being abandoned as provided in section 562B.27, subsection
21 1, and the landlord cannot, despite due diligence, locate such
22 tenant's heirs or legal representatives, then the landlord may
23 bring an action for abandonment as provided in section 555B.3,
24 naming as defendants the estate of the tenant and any and all
25 unknown heirs of the tenant and, upon the landlord's filing
26 of an affidavit that personal service cannot be had on any
27 heir, legal representative, or estate of the tenant, the court
28 shall permit original notice of such action to be served by
29 publication pursuant to subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.
30 (2) Publication of the original notice shall be made
31 once each week for three consecutive weeks in a newspaper of
32 general circulation published in the county where the petition
33 is filed, as provided in rules of civil procedure 1.313 and
34 1.314. Service is complete after the third consecutive weekly
35 publication.

PAGE 7

1 (3) In the event any tax lien or other lien exists on
2 the mobile home, the landlord may proceed with an action for
3 abandonment as provided in section 555B.3, except that:
4 (a) Notice shall be provided to the county treasurer as
5 provided in section 555B.4, subsection 3, if a tax lien exists.
6 (b) Personal service pursuant to rule of civil procedure
7 1.305 shall be made upon any lienholder no less than twenty
8 days before the hearing.
9 (4) Any notice to a lienholder shall state that failure
10 to assert a claim to the mobile home is deemed a waiver of
11 all right, title, claim, and interest in the mobile home and
12 is deemed consent to the sale or disposal of the mobile home.
13 If personal service upon the lienholder cannot be completed
14 in time to give the lienholder the minimum notice required by
15 subparagraph (3), the court may set a new hearing date.
16 Sec. ____. Section 648.5, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended

17 to read as follows:

18 1. An action for forcible entry and detainer shall be
 19 brought in a county where all or part of the premises is
 20 located. Such an action shall be tried as an equitable action.
 21 Upon receipt of the petition, the court shall set a date,
 22 time, and place for hearing. The court shall set the date
 23 of hearing no later than eight days from the filing date,
 24 except that the court shall set a later hearing date no later
 25 than fifteen days from the date of filing if the plaintiff
 26 requests or consents to the later date of hearing. The
 27 requirement regarding the setting of the initial hearing is not
 28 a jurisdictional requirement and does not affect the court's
 29 subject matter jurisdiction to hear the action for forcible
 30 entry and detainer.

31 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. The following take effect January
 32 1, 2021:

- 33 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 34 562A.9, subsection 4.
 35 2. The portion of the section of this division of this Act

PAGE 8

1 amending section 562B.10, subsection 4.

2 DIVISION ____
 3 UNLAWFUL OUSTER

4 Sec. ____ Section 562B.24, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 5 follows:

6 **562B.24 Tenant's remedies for landlord's unlawful ouster,**
 7 **exclusion or diminution of services.**

8 If the landlord unlawfully removes or excludes the tenant
 9 from the manufactured home community or mobile home park or
 10 willfully diminishes services to the tenant by interrupting
 11 or causing the interruption of electric, gas, water, or
 12 other essential service to the tenant, the tenant may recover
 13 possession, require the restoration of essential services or
 14 terminate the rental agreement and, in either case, recover an
 15 amount not to exceed two months' periodic rent, and twice the
 16 actual damages sustained by the tenant, and reasonable attorney
 17 fees. If the rental agreement is terminated, the landlord
 18 shall return all prepaid rent and security.

19 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 20 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

21 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act
 22 applies to actions under section 562B.24 filed on or after the
 23 effective date of this division of this Act.

24 DIVISION ____

25 WRONGFUL FAILURE TO PROVIDE ESSENTIAL SERVICES

26 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **562B.23A Wrongful failure to supply**
 27 **running water or essential services.**

28 1. If contrary to the rental agreement or section 562B.16
 29 the landlord deliberately or negligently fails to supply
 30 running water or other essential services, the tenant may give

31 written notice to the landlord specifying the breach and may
 32 do one of the following:
 33 *a.* Procure reasonable amounts of water or other essential
 34 services during the period of the landlord's noncompliance and
 35 deduct the actual and reasonable cost from the rent.

PAGE 9

1 *b.* Recover damages based upon the diminution in the fair
 2 market value of the mobile home space.
 3 *c.* Recover any rent already paid for the period of the
 4 landlord's noncompliance which shall be reimbursed on a pro
 5 rata basis.
 6 2. If the tenant proceeds under this section, the tenant may
 7 not proceed under section 562B.22 as to that breach.
 8 3. The rights under this section do not arise until the
 9 tenant has given notice to the landlord or if the condition was
 10 caused by the deliberate or negligent act or omission of the
 11 tenant, a member of the tenant's family, or other person on the
 12 premises with the consent of the tenant.
 13 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 14 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 15 Sec. ____ APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 16 to actions under section 562B.23A filed on or after the
 17 effective date of this division of this Act.

18 DIVISION ____
 19 HOME EQUIPMENT MODIFICATIONS — PROHIBITED RENTAL AGREEMENT
 20 PROVISIONS

21 Sec. ____ Section 562B.11, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 22 amended by adding the following new paragraph:
 23 NEW PARAGRAPH. *e.* Agrees to modify the mobile home,
 24 manufactured home, or modular home in a way that would
 25 substantially impair the ability of the tenant to move the
 26 home from the mobile home space, unless such modification is
 27 required by federal law, including but not limited to the
 28 model manufactured home installation standards, 24 C.F.R. pt.
 29 3285, the manufactured home construction and safety standards,
 30 24 C.F.R. pt. 3280, or the manufactured home procedural and
 31 enforcement regulations, 24 C.F.R. pt. 3282, or by state or
 32 local law, the manufacturer's installation instructions, any
 33 requirement arising from the landlord's financing of the home
 34 or of the mobile home park or manufactured home community in
 35 which the home is located, or unless such modification is

PAGE 10

1 otherwise necessary for the safe and proper installation of the
 2 home.
 3 DIVISION ____
 4 LANDLORD SALES
 5 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. **562B.17A Sale of mobile home by**
 6 **landlord.**

7 1. Any sale of a mobile home located in a manufactured
 8 home community or mobile home park by a landlord or landlord's
 9 agent shall be by written agreement and the landlord shall
 10 produce and assign the current certificate of title obtained
 11 from the department of transportation. The agreement shall
 12 state the basic terms of sale, including the total cost of
 13 the mobile home, finance charges, annual percentage rate, and
 14 the frequency and amount of each installment payment. Such
 15 agreement shall comply with the finance charge rate limitation
 16 in section 103A.58, subsection 1.

17 2. Any such sale that does not comply with this section
 18 may be voided by the buyer and the buyer may recover damages
 19 incurred, amounts paid as a rental deposit in excess of two
 20 months' rent for the mobile home, and reasonable attorney fees.

21 3. A claim under subsection 2 may be combined with an action
 22 under chapter 648.

23 Sec. _____. Section 648.19, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 24 amended to read as follows:

25 1. An action under this chapter shall not be filed in
 26 connection with any other action, with the exception of a claim
 27 for rent or recovery as provided in section 555B.3, 562A.24,
 28 562A.32, 562B.17A, 562B.22, 562B.25, or 562B.27, nor shall it
 29 be made the subject of counterclaim.

30 DIVISION ____

31 DISCLOSURE OF UTILITY CHARGES

32 Sec. _____. Section 562B.14, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
 33 amended to read as follows:

34 6. a. The landlord or any person authorized to enter into
 35 a rental agreement on the landlord's behalf shall provide a

PAGE 11

1 written explanation of utility rates, charges and services to
 2 the prospective tenant before the rental agreement is signed
 3 unless the utility charges are paid by the tenant directly to
 4 the utility company.

5 b. If a landlord obtains a utility service from a utility
 6 provider and furnishes the utility to the tenant and the
 7 landlord's charge to the tenant is based upon the utility
 8 provider's charge or rate for the use of such utility to
 9 consumers, an increase in the landlord's charge to a tenant
 10 for the utility that corresponds to the same increase in the
 11 utility provider's charge or rate to the landlord shall be
 12 effective thirty days after the landlord provides written
 13 notice of such increase to the tenant, unless the landlord does
 14 not receive at least sixty days' prior notice of such increase
 15 from the utility provider in which case no prior notice of the
 16 increase from the landlord to the tenant is required for the
 17 increase to be effective.

18 DIVISION ____

19 FURNISHING OF WATER AND UTILITY CHARGES

20 Sec. _____. Section 423.3, subsection 103, Code 2020, is

21 amended to read as follows:

22 103. *a.* (1) The sales price from the sale or furnishing by
23 a water utility of a water service in the state to consumers or
24 users.

25 (2) Water service furnished by a mobile home park that does
26 not engage in the sale of water service. For purposes of this
27 subsection, a mobile home park does not engage in the sale of
28 water service if all of the following apply:

29 (a) The water service is not furnished to tenants for a
30 separately itemized price.

31 (b) The water service is not otherwise identifiable from
32 an invoice, bill, catalogue, price list, rate card, receipt,
33 agreement, or other similar document, including where the total
34 sales price increases when water service is included in the
35 sale to tenants.

PAGE 12

1 (c) The water service is incidental to the rental of real
2 property.

3 *b.* For purposes of this subsection:

4 (1) "Mobile home park" means the same as defined in section
5 562B.7.

6 (1) (2) "Water service" means the delivery of water by
7 pipd distribution system.

8 (2) (3) "Water utility" means a public utility as defined
9 in section 476.1 that furnishes water by pipd distribution
10 system to the public for compensation.

11 Sec. ____ Section 423G.4, Code 2020, is amended by striking
12 the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

13 **423G.4 Exemptions.**

14 There is exempted from the tax imposed by this chapter the
15 following:

16 1. The sales price from transactions exempt from state
17 sales tax under section 423.3. However, the sales price from
18 transactions exempt from state sales tax under section 423.3,
19 subsection 103, shall not be exempt unless as provided in
20 subsection 2 or 3.

21 2. *a.* The sales price from the sale or furnishing of water
22 by a mobile home park through a pipd distribution system
23 maintained by the mobile home park, to a consumer or user of
24 water who is a tenant, if all of the following apply:

25 (1) The water was obtained from a water utility.

26 (2) A tax was imposed by this chapter on the sales price
27 from the sale or furnishing of water by a water utility to the
28 mobile home park based upon readings of the master meter of the
29 mobile home park.

30 (3) The tenant is not charged for water by the mobile home
31 park in an amount that is more than the rate the tenant would be
32 charged for consuming or using water from the water utility,
33 plus an administrative fee under section 562B.16, subsection 3,
34 not to exceed five dollars per month.

35 b. As used in this section:

PAGE 13

- 1 (1) “*Master meter*” means a single meter used in determining
 2 the amount of water provided to a mobile home park.
 3 (2) “*Mobile home park*” means the same as defined in section
 4 562B.7 and also includes a “*manufactured home community*”, as
 5 defined in section 562B.7.
 6 (3) “*Piped distribution system*” includes a submetered
 7 distribution system.
 8 (4) “*Tenant*” means the same as defined in section 562B.7.
 9 (5) “*Water utility*” means a public utility as defined in
 10 section 476.1 that furnishes water by a piped distribution
 11 system to the public for compensation.
 12 3. Water service furnished by a mobile home park that does
 13 not engage in the sale of water service. For purposes of this
 14 subsection, a mobile home park does not engage in the sale of
 15 water service if all of the following apply:
 16 a. The water service is not furnished to tenants for a
 17 separately itemized price.
 18 b. The water service is not otherwise identifiable from
 19 an invoice, bill, catalogue, price list, rate card, receipt,
 20 agreement, or other similar document, including where the total
 21 sales price increases when water service is included in the
 22 sale to tenants.
 23 c. The water service is incidental to the rental of real
 24 property.
 25 Sec. ____ Section 455B.171, subsection 26, Code 2020, is
 26 amended to read as follows:
 27 26. “*Public water supply system*” means, except as provided
 28 in section 455B.200, a system for the provision to the public
 29 of piped water for human consumption, if the system has at
 30 least fifteen service connections or regularly serves at least
 31 twenty-five individuals. The term includes any source of
 32 water and any collection, treatment, storage, and distribution
 33 facilities under control of the operator of the system and used
 34 primarily in connection with the system, and any collection or
 35 pretreatment storage facilities not under such control which

PAGE 14

- 1 are used primarily in connection with the system.
 2 Sec. ____ **NEW SECTION. 455B.200 Mobile home parks.**
 3 1. As used in this section:
 4 a. “*Mobile home park*” means the same as defined in section
 5 423G.4.
 6 b. “*Tenant*” means the same as defined in section 562B.7.
 7 c. “*Water utility*” means a public utility as defined in
 8 section 476.1 that furnishes water by a piped distribution
 9 system to the public for compensation.
 10 2. For purposes of this part 1, a mobile home park shall

11 not be considered a public water supply system if the mobile
 12 home park sells or furnishes water to a tenant and all of the
 13 following apply:

14 a. The water was obtained from a water utility prior to
 15 selling or furnishing the water to a tenant.

16 b. The tenant is not charged more than the rate the tenant
 17 would be charged for consuming or using water from the water
 18 utility, plus an administrative fee under section 562B.16,
 19 subsection 3, not to exceed five dollars per month.

20 Sec. _____. Section 562B.14, subsection 6, Code 2020, is
 21 amended to read as follows:

22 6. The landlord or any person authorized to enter into
 23 a rental agreement on the landlord's behalf shall provide
 24 a written explanation of utility rates, fees, charges, and
 25 services, subject to section 562B.16, subsection 3, to the
 26 prospective tenant before the rental agreement is signed unless
 27 the utility charges are paid by the tenant directly to the
 28 utility company.

29 Sec. _____. Section 562B.16, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 30 the following new subsection:

31 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. A landlord that is responsible for
 32 payment of utilities being provided to the tenant shall not
 33 charge to the tenant an amount in excess of the actual cost of
 34 the utility and as specified in writing under section 562B.14,
 35 subsection 6. However, in addition to the actual cost of the

PAGE 15

1 utility, a landlord that is responsible for the payment of one
 2 or more utilities being provided to the tenant may impose a
 3 monthly utility administration fee to each tenant not to exceed
 4 five dollars per month.

5 Sec. _____. Section 562B.25, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 6 the following new subsection:

7 NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. The failure of a tenant to pay utility
 8 charges that exceed the actual cost of the utility provided
 9 as required by section 562B.16, subsection 3, shall not be
 10 considered noncompliance with the rental agreement.>

11 2. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 22 and inserting <An
 12 Act relating to property law by modifying provisions relating
 13 to rental properties, manufactured home communities, mobile
 14 home parks, and manufactured mobile home communities, modifying
 15 provisions governing water service and actions relating to such
 16 properties, and including effective date and applicability
 17 provisions.>>

18 3. By renumbering as necessary.

LOHSE of Polk

H-8307

1 Amend House File 2572 as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <DIVISION I

5 PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BIDDING REQUIREMENTS

6 Section 1. Section 26.2, subsection 3, paragraph b,
7 subparagraph (5), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

8 (5) Construction or repair or maintenance work performed
9 for a city utility under chapter 388 when such work is
10 performed by its employees or when such work relates to
11 existing utility infrastructure or to establishing connections
12 to existing utility systems.

13 (6) Construction or repair or maintenance work performed
14 for a rural water district under chapter 357A by its employees.

15 Sec. 2. Section 26.4, Code 2020, is amended to read as
16 follows:

17 ~~26.4 Exemptions from competitive bids and quotations~~
18 ~~Architectural and engineering services — exemptions —~~
19 ~~prohibitions.~~

20 1. Architectural, landscape architectural, or engineering
21 design services procured for a public improvement are not
22 subject to sections 26.3 and 26.14.

23 2. Fee-based selection of an architect, landscape
24 architect, or engineer for a public improvement shall be
25 prohibited.

26 Sec. 3. Section 262.34, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
27 following new subsection:

28 NEW SUBSECTION. 6. Notwithstanding any provision of this
29 chapter to the contrary, the state board of regents shall
30 not be authorized to enter into a design-build contract to
31 construct, repair, or improve buildings or grounds. For
32 purposes of this subsection, “*design-build contract*” means
33 a single contract providing for both design services and
34 construction services that may include maintenance, operations,
35 preconstruction, and other related services.

PAGE 2

1 DIVISION II

2 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE CONTRACTS

3 Sec. 4. NEW SECTION. 26A.1 Definitions.

4 As used in this chapter, unless the context clearly
5 indicates otherwise:

6 1. “*Construction manager-at-risk*” means a sole
7 proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity
8 that assumes the risk for the construction, rehabilitation,
9 alteration, or repair of a project and provides consultant
10 services to the government entity in the development and design
11 phases, working collaboratively with the design professionals
12 involved.

13 2. “*Governmental entity*” means the state, political
14 subdivisions of the state, public school corporations, and all
15 officers, boards, or commissions empowered by law to enter

16 into contracts for the construction of public improvements,
 17 including the state board of regents.
 18 3. *“Guaranteed maximum price contract”* means the agreed
 19 to fixed or guaranteed maximum price pursuant to a contract
 20 entered into by the construction manager-at-risk and the
 21 governmental entity.

22 4. *“Public improvement”* means as defined in section 26.2.

23 5. *“Repair or maintenance work”* means as defined in section
 24 26.2.

25 Sec. 5. **NEW SECTION. 26A.2 Authorization.**

26 Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, a
 27 governmental entity shall be authorized to enter into a
 28 guaranteed maximum price contract for the construction of a
 29 public improvement pursuant to this chapter.

30 Sec. 6. **NEW SECTION. 26A.3 Guaranteed maximum price**
 31 **contract — process.**

32 1. A governmental entity shall publicly disclose the
 33 governmental entity’s intent to enter into a guaranteed
 34 maximum price contract and the governmental entity’s selection
 35 criteria at least fourteen days prior to publishing a request

PAGE 3

1 for statements of qualifications. Public disclosure shall
 2 be in a relevant contractor plan room service with statewide
 3 circulation, a relevant construction lead generating service
 4 with statewide circulation, and on an internet site sponsored
 5 by either a governmental entity or a statewide association that
 6 represents the governmental entity.

7 2. The governmental entity shall select or designate an
 8 engineer licensed under chapter 542B, a landscape architect
 9 licensed under chapter 544B, or an architect licensed
 10 under chapter 544A by utilizing a quality-based selection
 11 process. Fee-based selection of the engineer, landscape
 12 architect, or architect shall be prohibited. The engineer,
 13 landscape architect, or architect selected or designated by
 14 the government entity under this subsection shall have the
 15 responsibility of preparing construction documents for the
 16 project and shall review the construction for conformance with
 17 design intent.

18 3. *a.* (1) The governmental entity shall prepare a request
 19 for statements of qualifications. The request shall include
 20 general information on the project site, project scope,
 21 schedule, selection criteria, and the time and place for
 22 receipt of statements of qualifications. Selection criteria
 23 and general information included in the request for statements
 24 of qualifications may be developed in coordination with
 25 the engineer, landscape architect, or architect selected or
 26 designated by the governmental entity as provided under this
 27 section.

28 (2) Selection criteria may include the contractor’s
 29 experience undertaking projects of similar size and scope

30 in either the public or private sector, past performance,
31 safety record, proposed personnel, and proposed methodology.
32 Selection criteria shall include experience in both the public
33 and the private sector. Selection criteria shall not include
34 specific delivery methods, including guaranteed maximum price
35 projects. In addition, selection criteria shall not include

PAGE 4

1 training, testing, or other certifications that may only be
2 obtained through organized labor affiliated organizations or
3 other limited-membership organizations.
4 (3) A request for statements of qualifications under this
5 subsection shall be subject to the requirements of section
6 73A.28. In addition, a governmental entity shall not by
7 ordinance, rule, or any other action relating to the request
8 for qualifications stipulate criteria that would directly
9 or indirectly restrict the selection of a construction
10 manager-at-risk to any predetermined class of providers based
11 on labor organization affiliation or any other criteria other
12 than that allowed pursuant to this paragraph.
13 *b.* The request for statements of qualifications shall be
14 posted not less than thirteen and not more than forty-five days
15 before the date for response in a relevant contractor plan room
16 service with statewide circulation, in a relevant construction
17 lead generating service with statewide circulation, and on an
18 internet site sponsored by either a governmental entity or a
19 statewide association that represents the governmental entity.
20 If circumstances beyond the control of the governmental
21 entity require postponement and there are no changes to the
22 project's contract documents, a notice of the revised date
23 shall be posted not less than four and not more than forty-five
24 days before the revised date for answering the request for
25 proposals and statements of qualifications in a relevant
26 contractor plan room service with statewide circulation, in a
27 relevant construction lead generating service with statewide
28 circulation, and on an internet site sponsored by either a
29 government entity or a statewide association that represents
30 the governmental entity.
31 *c.* The governmental entity shall receive, publicly open, and
32 read aloud the names of the contractors submitting statements
33 of qualifications. Within forty-five days after the date of
34 opening the statements of qualifications submissions, the
35 governmental entity shall evaluate each proposal or statement

PAGE 5

1 of qualifications submission in relation to the criteria set
2 forth in the request.
3 4. *a.* After considering the proposals based upon
4 qualifications, the governmental entity shall issue a request
5 for proposals to each contractor who meets the qualifications

6 which shall include selection and evaluation criteria. Each
7 contractor issued a request for proposals shall be permitted
8 to submit a proposal and each proposal submitted shall include
9 the construction manager-at-risk's proposed fees. The request
10 for proposals shall be subject to the requirements of section
11 73A.28.

12 *b.* The governmental entity shall receive, publicly open, and
13 read aloud the names of the contractors submitting proposals.
14 Within forty-five days after the date of opening the proposals,
15 the governmental entity shall evaluate and rank each proposal
16 in relation to the criteria set forth in the applicable
17 request.

18 *c.* The governmental entity or its representative shall
19 select the construction manager-at-risk that submits the
20 proposal that offers the best value for the governmental
21 entity based on the published selection criteria and on
22 its ranking evaluation. The governmental entity shall
23 first attempt to negotiate a contract with the selected
24 construction manager-at-risk. If the governmental entity
25 is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the
26 selected construction manager-at-risk, the governmental entity
27 shall, formally and in writing, end negotiations with that
28 construction manager-at-risk and proceed to negotiate with the
29 next construction manager-at-risk in the order of the selection
30 ranking until a contract is reached or negotiations with all
31 ranked construction managers-at-risk end.

32 *d.* The governmental entity shall make available to the
33 public the final scoring and ranking evaluation of the request
34 for proposals received.

35 5. *a.* If the estimated total cost of trade contract work

PAGE 6

1 and materials packages is in excess of the adjusted competitive
2 bid threshold established in section 314.1B, the construction
3 manager-at-risk shall advertise for competitive bids, receive
4 bids, prepare bid analyses, and award contracts to qualified
5 firms on trade contract work and materials packages in
6 accordance with all of the following:

7 (1) Prior to advertising for competitive bids and awarding
8 contracts on trade contract work and materials packages, the
9 construction manager-at-risk shall provide public notice of the
10 opportunity to submit bids on trade contract work and materials
11 packages in a relevant contractor plan room service with
12 statewide circulation, a relevant construction lead generating
13 service with statewide circulation, and on an internet site
14 sponsored by either a governmental entity or a statewide
15 association that represents the governmental entity.

16 (2) (a) The construction manager-at-risk shall utilize
17 objective prequalification criteria to develop a list of
18 qualified firms who may bid and be awarded a contract on a
19 particular trade contract work and materials package. All

20 firms who meet the objective prequalification criteria as
21 a qualified firm shall be allowed to submit a bid for the
22 relevant trade contract work and materials package. In
23 addition, a firm that is prequalified with the state department
24 of transportation pursuant to section 314.1 shall be considered
25 to meet the objective prequalification criteria as a qualified
26 firm and shall be allowed to submit a bid for purposes of work
27 related to parking lots, streets, site development, or bridge
28 structure components.

29 (b) Prequalification criteria shall be limited to a
30 firm's experience as a contractor, capacity of key personnel,
31 technical competence, capability to perform, the past
32 performance of the firm and the firm's employees to include
33 the firm's safety record and compliance with state and federal
34 law, and availability to and familiarity with the location of
35 the project subject to bid. Prequalification criteria shall

PAGE 7

1 be reasonably and materially related to the relevant trade
2 contract work and materials package. The prequalification
3 criteria shall not include training, testing, or other
4 certifications that may only be obtained through organized
5 labor affiliated organizations or other limited-membership
6 organizations. Prequalification criteria shall be subject to
7 the requirements of section 73A.28.

8 (3) The governmental entity and the construction
9 manager-at-risk shall participate in the bid review and
10 evaluation process. After the bids have been tabulated,
11 the contracts shall be awarded to the lowest responsive,
12 responsible bidder. All awards shall be made available to the
13 public.

14 (4) Notwithstanding any provision of this paragraph to
15 the contrary, a construction manager-at-risk shall not be
16 required to bid work that will be self-performed pursuant to
17 the contract with the governmental entity. If the construction
18 manager-at-risk intends to self-perform, the construction
19 manager-at-risk must notify the governmental entity in writing
20 of the construction manager-at-risk's intent to do so and
21 identify the trade contract work and material packages that
22 will be self-performed. A construction manager-at-risk shall
23 not be required to comply with bidding requirements for general
24 conditions as provided in the contract with the governmental
25 entity.

26 b. If a selected trade contractor materially defaults in
27 the performance of its work or fails to execute a contract,
28 the construction manager-at-risk may, without advertising,
29 fulfill the contract requirements or select a replacement trade
30 contractor to fulfill the contract requirements.

31 **Sec. 7. NEW SECTION. 26A.4 Prohibited contracts.**

32 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
33 contrary, a governmental entity shall not be authorized

34 to enter into a design-build contract for the construction
 35 of a public improvement. For purposes of this subsection,

PAGE 8

1 *“design-build contract”* means a single contract providing for
 2 both design services and construction services that may include
 3 maintenance, operations, preconstruction, and other related
 4 services.

5 2. A governmental entity shall not be authorized to
 6 enter into a guaranteed maximum price contract for public
 7 improvements relating to highway and bridge construction.>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8308

1 Amend the amendment, H-8248, to Senate File 457, as amended,
 2 passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 40, after line 33 by inserting:

4 <DIVISION ____
 5 CIVIL CLAIMS FOR REIMBURSEMENT

6 Sec. ____ Section 331.659, subsection 1, paragraph a,
 7 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 8 follows:

9 A Except for a civil claim for reimbursement under section
 10 356.7, a sheriff or a deputy sheriff shall not:

11 Sec. ____ Section 356.7, subsection 2, paragraph i, Code
 12 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

13 Sec. ____ Section 356.7, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
 14 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
 15 following:

16 4. A claim for reimbursement shall be filed in a separate
 17 civil action rather than as a claim in the underlying criminal
 18 case.

19 Sec. ____ Section 602.8102, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 20 the following new subsection:

21 NEW SUBSECTION. 105C. Apply payments made to a civil claim
 22 for reimbursement judgment under section 356.7 to court debt,
 23 as defined in section 602.8107, in the priority order set out
 24 in section 602.8107, subsection 2, if the debtor has delinquent
 25 court debt.

26 Sec. ____ Section 602.8105, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 27 amended by adding the following new paragraph:

28 NEW PARAGRAPH. k. For a civil claim for reimbursement under
 29 section 356.7, zero dollars.

30 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 31 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

32 DIVISION ____
 33 RESTITUTION

34 Sec. ____ Section 602.8107, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
 35 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph and inserting in

PAGE 2

1 lieu thereof the following:

2 a. “*Court debt*” means all restitution, fees, and forfeited
3 bail.

4 Sec. ____ Section 602.8107, subsection 2, paragraphs b and
5 c, Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

6 b. (1) If Except as provided in subparagraph (2), if a case
7 number is not identified, the clerk shall apply the payment to
8 the balance owed in the criminal case with the oldest judgment
9 against the person.

10 (2) The clerk shall apply payments to pecuniary damages
11 in other criminal cases when no case number is identified in
12 priority order from the oldest judgment to the most recent
13 judgment before applying payments to any other court debt.

14 c. Payments received under this section shall be applied in
15 the following priority order:

16 (1) Pecuniary damages as defined in section 910.1,
17 subsection 3.

18 (2) Fines or penalties and criminal penalty and law
19 enforcement initiative surcharges.

20 (3) Crime victim compensation program reimbursement.

21 (4) Court costs, ~~including correctional fees assessed~~
22 ~~pursuant to sections 356.7 and 904.108~~, court-appointed
23 attorney fees, or public defender expenses.

24 Sec. ____ Section 602.8107, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
25 2020, is amended to read as follows:

26 a. This subsection does not apply to amounts collected for
27 ~~victim~~ restitution involving pecuniary damages, the victim
28 compensation fund, the criminal penalty surcharge, sex offender
29 civil penalty, drug abuse resistance education surcharge,
30 the law enforcement initiative surcharge, county enforcement
31 surcharge, or amounts collected as a result of procedures
32 initiated under subsection 5 or under section 8A.504, ~~or fees~~
33 ~~charged pursuant to section 356.7.~~

34 Sec. ____ Section 909.3, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
35 to read as follows:

PAGE 3

1 1. ~~All~~ Unless a plan of payment has been issued pursuant to
2 chapter 910, fines imposed by the court shall be paid on the
3 day the fine is imposed, and the person shall be instructed to
4 pay such fines with the office of the clerk of the district
5 court on the date of imposition.

6 Sec. ____ Section 910.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
7 following new subsections:

8 NEW SUBSECTION. 01. “*Category “A” restitution*” means fines,
9 penalties, and surcharges.

10 NEW SUBSECTION. 001. “*Category “B” restitution*” means
11 the contribution of funds to a local anticrime organization
12 which provided assistance to law enforcement in an offender’s

13 case, the payment of crime victim compensation program
14 reimbursements, payment of restitution to public agencies
15 pursuant to section 321J.2, subsection 13, paragraph “b”,
16 court costs, court-appointed attorney fees ordered pursuant to
17 section 815.9, including the expense of a public defender, and
18 payment to the medical assistance program pursuant to chapter
19 249A for expenditures paid on behalf of the victim resulting
20 from the offender’s criminal activities including investigative
21 costs incurred by the Medicaid fraud control unit pursuant to
22 section 249A.50.
23 NEW SUBSECTION. 1A. “*Financial affidavit*” means a signed
24 affidavit under penalty of perjury that provides financial
25 information about the offender to enable the sentencing court
26 or the department of corrections to make a determination
27 regarding the ability of the offender to pay category “B”
28 restitution. “*Financial affidavit*” includes the offender’s
29 income, physical and mental health, age, education, employment,
30 inheritance, other debts, other amounts of restitution owed,
31 family circumstances, and any assets subject to execution,
32 including but not limited to cash, accounts at financial
33 institutions, stocks, bonds, and any other property which may
34 be applied to the satisfaction of judgments.
35 NEW SUBSECTION. 3A. “*Permanent restitution order*” means an

PAGE 4

1 enforceable restitution order entered either at the time of
2 sentencing or at a later date determined by the court.
3 NEW SUBSECTION. 3B. “*Plan of payment*” or “*restitution plan*
4 *of payment*” means a plan for paying restitution wherein the
5 defendant is ordered to pay a certain amount of money each
6 month to repay outstanding restitution.
7 NEW SUBSECTION. 3C. “*Plan of restitution*” means a permanent
8 restitution order, restitution plan of payment, any other
9 court order relating to restitution, or any combination of the
10 foregoing.
11 Sec. _____. Section 910.1, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
12 by striking the subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the
13 following:
14 4. “*Restitution*” means pecuniary damages, category “A”
15 restitution, and category “B” restitution.
16 Sec. _____. Section 910.2, Code 2020, is amended by striking
17 the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:
18 **910.2 Restitution or community service ordered by sentencing**
19 **court.**
20 1. *a.* In all criminal cases in which there is a plea of
21 guilty, verdict of guilty, or special verdict upon which a
22 judgment of conviction is rendered, the sentencing court shall
23 order that pecuniary damages be paid by each offender to the
24 victims of the offender’s criminal activities, and that all
25 other restitution be paid to the clerk of court subject to the
26 following:

- 27 (1) Pecuniary damages and category “A” restitution shall be
 28 ordered without regard to an offender’s reasonable ability to
 29 make payments.
 30 (2) Category “B” restitution shall be ordered subject to
 31 an offender’s reasonable ability to make payments pursuant to
 32 section 910.2A.
 33 *b.* Pecuniary damages shall be paid to victims in full before
 34 category “A” and category “B” restitution are paid.
 35 *c.* In structuring a plan of restitution, the plan of payment

PAGE 5

- 1 shall provide for payments in the following order of priority:
 2 (1) Pecuniary damages to the victim.
 3 (2) Category “A” restitution.
 4 (3) Category “B” restitution in the following order:
 5 (a) Crime victim compensation program reimbursement.
 6 (b) Public agencies.
 7 (c) Court costs.
 8 (d) Court-appointed attorney fees ordered pursuant to
 9 section 815.9, including the expense of a public defender.
 10 (e) Contribution to a local anticrime organization.
 11 (f) The medical assistance program.
 12 2. *a.* When the offender is not reasonably able to pay
 13 all or a part of category “B” restitution, the court may
 14 require the offender in lieu of that portion of category “B”
 15 restitution for which the offender is not reasonably able to
 16 pay, to perform a needed public service for a governmental
 17 agency or for a private nonprofit agency which provides a
 18 service to the youth, elderly, or poor of the community.
 19 *b.* When community service is ordered, the court shall set
 20 a specific number of hours of service to be performed by the
 21 offender. When calculating the amount of community service to
 22 be performed in lieu of payment of court-appointed attorney
 23 fees, the court shall determine the approximate equivalent
 24 value of the expenses of the public defender. The judicial
 25 district department of correctional services shall provide for
 26 the assignment of the offender to a public agency or private
 27 nonprofit agency to perform the required service.
 28 **Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 910.2A Reasonable ability to pay —**
 29 **category “B” restitution payments.**
 30 1. An offender is presumed to have the reasonable ability
 31 to make restitution payments for the full amount of category
 32 “B” restitution.
 33 2. If an offender requests that the court determine the
 34 amount of category “B” restitution payments the offender is
 35 reasonably able to make toward paying the full amount of such

PAGE 6

- 1 restitution, the court shall hold a hearing and make such a
 2 determination, subject to the following provisions:

3 a. To obtain relief at such a hearing, the offender must
 4 affirmatively prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the
 5 offender is unable to reasonably make payments toward the full
 6 amount of category "B" restitution.

7 b. The offender must furnish the prosecuting attorney and
 8 sentencing court with a completed financial affidavit. Failure
 9 to furnish a completed financial affidavit waives any claim
 10 regarding the offender's reasonable ability to pay.

11 c. The prosecuting attorney, the attorney for the defendant,
 12 and the court shall be permitted to question the offender
 13 regarding the offender's reasonable ability to pay.

14 d. Based on the evidence offered at the hearing, including
 15 but not limited to the financial affidavit, the court shall
 16 determine the amount of category "B" restitution the offender
 17 is reasonably able to make payments toward, and order the
 18 offender to make payments toward that amount.

19 3. a. If an offender does not make a request as provided in
 20 subsection 2 at the time of sentencing or within thirty days
 21 after the court issues a permanent restitution order, the court
 22 shall order the offender to pay the full amount of category "B"
 23 restitution.

24 b. An offender's failure to request a determination
 25 pursuant to this section waives all future claims regarding
 26 the offender's reasonable ability to pay, except as provided
 27 by section 910.7.

28 4. If an offender requests that the court make a
 29 determination pursuant to subsection 2, the offender's
 30 financial affidavit shall be filed of record in all criminal
 31 cases for which the offender owes restitution and the affidavit
 32 shall be accessible by a prosecuting attorney or attorney for
 33 the offender without court order or appearance.

34 5. A court that makes a determination under this section is
 35 presumed to have properly exercised its discretion. A court is

PAGE 7

1 not required to state its reasons for making a determination.
 2 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 910.2B Conversion of existing
 3 **restitution orders.**

4 1. All of the following, if entered by a district court
 5 prior to the effective date of this Act, shall be converted to
 6 permanent restitution orders:

7 a. A temporary restitution order.
 8 b. A supplemental restitution order.
 9 c. A restitution order that does not contain a determination
 10 of the defendant's reasonable ability to pay the restitution
 11 ordered.

12 2. The only means by which a defendant may challenge the
 13 conversion of a restitution order is through the filing of a
 14 petition pursuant to section 910.7.

15 3. The provisions of this chapter, including but not limited
 16 to the procedures in section 910.2A, shall apply to a challenge

17 to the conversion of an existing restitution order in the
 18 district court and on appeal.
 19 4. A challenge to the conversion of an existing restitution
 20 order to a permanent restitution order shall be filed in the
 21 district court no later than one year from the effective date
 22 of this Act.

23 Sec. _____. Section 910.3, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 24 follows:

25 **910.3 Determination of amount of restitution.**

26 1. The ~~county~~ prosecuting attorney shall prepare a
 27 statement of pecuniary damages to victims of the defendant
 28 and, if applicable, any award by the crime victim compensation
 29 program and expenses incurred by public agencies pursuant to
 30 section 321J.2, subsection 13, paragraph "b", and shall provide
 31 the statement to the presentence investigator or submit the
 32 statement to the court at the time of sentencing.

33 2. The clerk of court shall prepare a statement of
 34 court-appointed attorney fees ordered pursuant to section
 35 815.9, including the expense of a public defender; and court

PAGE 8

1 ~~costs including correctional fees claimed by a sheriff or~~
 2 ~~municipality pursuant to section 356-7, which shall be provided~~
 3 ~~to the presentence investigator or submitted to the court at~~
 4 ~~the time of sentencing.~~

5 3. ~~If these~~ the statements in subsection 1 or 2 are provided
 6 to the presentence investigator, they shall become a part of
 7 the presentence report.

8 4. If pecuniary damage amounts are not available or are
 9 incomplete at the time of sentencing, the ~~county~~ prosecuting
 10 attorney shall provide a statement of pecuniary damages
 11 incurred up to that time to the clerk of court.

12 5. The statement of pecuniary damages shall ordinarily be
 13 provided no later than thirty days after sentencing. However,
 14 a prosecuting attorney may file a statement of pecuniary
 15 damages within a reasonable time after the prosecuting attorney
 16 is notified by a victim of any pecuniary damages incurred.

17 6. If a defendant believes no person suffered pecuniary
 18 damages, the defendant shall so state.

19 7. If the defendant has any mental or physical impairment
 20 which would limit or prohibit the performance of a public
 21 service, the defendant shall so state. The court may order a
 22 mental or physical examination, or both, of the defendant to
 23 determine a proper course of action. ~~At the time of sentencing~~
 24 ~~or at a later date to be determined by the court, the~~

25 8. ~~The court shall set out the~~ enter a permanent restitution
 26 order setting out the amount of restitution including the
 27 amount of public service to be performed as restitution and
 28 the persons to whom restitution must be paid. A permanent
 29 restitution order entered at the time of sentencing is part of
 30 the final judgment of sentence as defined in section 814.6 and

31 shall be considered in a properly perfected appeal.
 32 9. If the full amount of restitution cannot be determined
 33 at the time of sentencing, the court shall issue a temporary
 34 permanent restitution order determining a reasonable amount
 35 for setting forth the amount of restitution identified up to

PAGE 9

1 that time. ~~At a later date as determined by the court, the~~
 2 ~~court shall issue a permanent, supplemental order, setting the~~
 3 ~~full amount of restitution. The court shall enter further~~
 4 ~~supplemental orders, if necessary. These court orders shall be~~
 5 ~~known as the plan of restitution.~~

6 10. A permanent restitution order may be superseded by
 7 subsequent orders if additional or different restitution is
 8 ordered. A permanent restitution order entered after the time
 9 of sentencing shall only be challenged pursuant to section
 10 910.7.

11 Sec. ____ Section 910.4, subsection 1, paragraph b,
 12 subparagraphs (1) and (2), Code 2020, are amended to read as
 13 follows:

14 (1) If the court extends the period of probation, the period
 15 of probation shall not be for more than the maximum period of
 16 probation for the offense committed except for an extension of
 17 a period of probation as authorized in section 907.7. After
 18 discharge from probation or after the expiration of the period
 19 of probation, as extended if applicable, the failure of an
 20 offender to comply with the plan of restitution ~~ordered by the~~
 21 ~~court~~ shall constitute contempt of court.

22 (2) If an offender's probation is revoked, the offender's
 23 assigned probation officer shall forward to the director of
 24 the Iowa department of corrections, all known information
 25 concerning the offender's restitution ~~plan, restitution plan of~~
 26 ~~payment, the restitution payment balance obligations, including~~
 27 ~~but not limited to the plan of restitution,~~ and any other
 28 pertinent information concerning or affecting restitution by
 29 the offender.

30 Sec. ____ Section 910.4, subsections 2 and 3, Code 2020, are
 31 amended to read as follows:

32 2. When the offender is committed to a county jail, or to
 33 an alternate facility, the office or individual charged with
 34 supervision of the offender shall prepare a restitution plan
 35 of payment ~~taking into consideration the offender's income,~~

PAGE 10

1 ~~physical and mental health, age, education, employment and~~
 2 ~~family circumstances and shall submit the plan to the court.~~
 3 ~~a. The office or individual charged with supervision of the~~
 4 ~~offender shall review the plan of restitution ordered by the~~
 5 ~~court, and shall submit a restitution plan of payment to the~~
 6 ~~sentencing court.~~

7 ~~b. a.~~ When community service is ordered by the court as
 8 restitution, the restitution plan of payment shall set out a
 9 plan to meet the requirement for the community service.
 10 ~~e. The court may approve or modify the plan of restitution~~
 11 ~~and restitution plan of payment.~~
 12 ~~d. b.~~ When there is a significant change in the offender's
 13 income or circumstances, the office or individual which has
 14 supervision of the restitution plan of payment shall submit a
 15 modified restitution plan of payment to the court.
 16 3. a. When there is a transfer of supervision from one
 17 office or individual charged with supervision of the offender
 18 to another, the sending office or individual shall forward to
 19 the receiving office or individual all necessary information
 20 regarding the balance owed against the original amount of
 21 restitution ordered and the balance of public service required.
 22 b. ~~When~~ If there has been a significant change in the
 23 offender's circumstances and or income have significantly
 24 changed, the receiving office or individual shall submit a
 25 new restitution plan of payment to the sentencing court ~~for~~
 26 ~~approval or modification based on the considerations enumerated~~
 27 ~~in this section.~~
 28 Sec. ____ Section 910.4, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 29 following new subsection:
 30 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. Notwithstanding any other provision
 31 in this chapter, the plan of payment shall be based on all
 32 information pertinent to the offender's reasonable ability to
 33 pay. The first monthly payment under such a plan shall be made
 34 within thirty days of the approval of the plan.
 35 Sec. ____ Section 910.6, Code 2020, is amended to read as

PAGE 11

1 follows:
 2 **910.6 Payment plan — copy to victims.**
 3 An office or individual preparing a restitution plan of
 4 payment or modified restitution plan of payment, ~~when it is~~
 5 ~~approved by the court if approval is required under section~~
 6 ~~910.4, or when the plan is completed if court approval~~
 7 ~~under section 910.4 is not required,~~ shall forward a copy to
 8 the clerk of court in the county in which the offender was
 9 sentenced. The clerk of court shall forward a copy of the
 10 restitution plan of payment or modified plan of payment to the
 11 victim or victims.
 12 Sec. ____ Section 910.7, subsections 1 and 3, Code 2020, are
 13 amended to read as follows:
 14 1. At any time during the period of probation, parole, or
 15 incarceration, the offender, the prosecuting attorney, or the
 16 office or individual who prepared the offender's restitution
 17 plan may petition the court on any matter related to the plan
 18 of restitution or restitution plan of payment and the court
 19 shall grant a hearing if on the face of the petition it appears
 20 that a hearing is warranted.

21 3. If a petition related to a plan of restitution has been
 22 filed, the offender, the ~~county~~ prosecuting attorney, the
 23 department of corrections if the offender is currently confined
 24 in a correctional institution, the office or individual who
 25 prepared the offender's restitution plan, and the victim shall
 26 receive notice prior to any hearing under this section.

27 Sec. __. Section 910.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 28 following new subsections:

29 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. An appellate court shall not review
 30 or modify an offender's plan of restitution, restitution
 31 plan of payment, or any other issue related to an offender's
 32 restitution under this subsection, unless the offender has
 33 exhausted the offender's remedies under this section and
 34 obtained a ruling from the district court prior to the issue
 35 being raised in the appellate courts.

PAGE 12

1 NEW SUBSECTION. 5. Appellate review of a district court
 2 ruling under this section shall be by writ of certiorari.

3 Sec. __. Section 910.9, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
 4 to read as follows:

5 ~~3. Fines, penalties, and surcharges, crime victim~~
 6 ~~compensation program reimbursement, public agency restitution,~~
 7 ~~court costs including correctional fees claimed by a sheriff~~
 8 ~~or municipality pursuant to section 356.7, and court-appointed~~
 9 ~~attorney fees ordered pursuant to section 815.9, including the~~
 10 ~~expenses for public defenders, Category "A" restitution and~~
 11 category "B" restitution shall not be withheld by the clerk of
 12 court until all pecuniary damages to victims have been paid in
 13 full. Payments to victims shall be made by the clerk of court
 14 at least quarterly. Payments by a clerk of court shall be made
 15 no later than the last business day of the quarter, but may be
 16 made more often at the discretion of the clerk of court. The
 17 clerk of court receiving final payment from an offender shall
 18 notify all victims that full restitution has been made. Each
 19 office or individual charged with supervising an offender who
 20 is required to perform community service as full or partial
 21 restitution shall keep records to assure compliance with the
 22 portions of the plan of restitution and restitution plan of
 23 payment relating to community service and, when the offender
 24 has complied fully with the community service requirement,
 25 notify the sentencing court.

26 Sec. __. FINANCIAL AFFIDAVIT — SUPREME COURT RULES. The
 27 supreme court shall adopt rules prescribing the form and
 28 content of the financial affidavit.

29 Sec. __. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 30 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

31 DIVISION __
 32 COLLECTION OF COURT DEBT

33 Sec. __. Section 321.40, subsection 10, Code 2020, is
 34 amended to read as follows:

35 10. *a.* The clerk of the district court shall notify the

PAGE 13

1 county treasurer of any delinquent court debt, as defined in
2 section 602.8107, which is being collected by the ~~private~~
3 ~~collection designee~~ department of revenue pursuant to section
4 602.8107, subsection 3, or the county attorney pursuant to
5 section 602.8107, subsection 4. The county treasurer shall
6 refuse to renew the vehicle registration of the applicant upon
7 such notification from the clerk of the district court in
8 regard to such applicant.

9 *b.* If the applicant enters into or renews an installment
10 agreement as defined in section 602.8107, that is satisfactory
11 to the ~~private collection designee~~ department of revenue, the
12 county attorney, or the county attorney's designee, the ~~private~~
13 ~~collection designee~~ department of revenue, county attorney, or
14 a county attorney's designee shall provide the county treasurer
15 with written or electronic notice of the installment agreement
16 within five days of entering into the installment agreement.
17 The county treasurer shall temporarily lift the registration
18 hold on an applicant for a period of ten days if the treasurer
19 receives such notice in order to allow the applicant to
20 register a vehicle for the year. If the applicant remains in
21 compliance with the installment agreement entered into with
22 the ~~private collection designee~~ department of revenue or the
23 county attorney or the county attorney's designee, subsequent
24 lifts of registration holds shall be granted without additional
25 restrictions.

26 Sec. ____ Section 321.210A, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
27 amended to read as follows:

28 2. If after suspension, the person enters into an
29 installment agreement with the county attorney, the county
30 attorney's designee, or the ~~private collection designee~~
31 department of revenue in accordance with section 321.210B to
32 pay the fine, penalty, court cost, or surcharge, the person's
33 license shall be reinstated by the department upon receipt of a
34 report of an executed installment agreement.

35 Sec. ____ Section 321.210B, subsections 1, 3, 8, 9, 11, and

PAGE 14

1 13, Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

2 1. *a.* If a person's fine, penalty, surcharge, or court
3 cost is deemed delinquent as provided in section 602.8107,
4 subsection 2, and the person's driver's license has been
5 suspended pursuant to section 321.210A, or the clerk of the
6 district court has reported the delinquency to the department
7 as required by section 321.210A, the person may execute an
8 installment agreement as defined in section 602.8107 with
9 the county attorney, the county attorney's designee, or the
10 ~~private collection designee under contract with the judicial~~

11 ~~branch pursuant to section 602.8107, subsection 5~~ department
 12 of revenue, to pay the delinquent amount and the civil penalty
 13 assessed in subsection 7 in installments. Prior to execution
 14 of the installment agreement, the person shall provide the
 15 county attorney, the county attorney's designee, or the ~~private~~
 16 ~~collection designee~~ department of revenue with a financial
 17 statement in order for the parties to the agreement to
 18 determine the amount of the installment payments.

19 *b.* Cases involving court debt assigned to a county attorney,
 20 a county attorney's designee, or the ~~private collection~~
 21 ~~designee~~ department of revenue shall remain so assigned.

22 3. The county attorney, the county attorney's designee, or
 23 the ~~private collection designee~~ department of revenue shall
 24 file or give notice of the installment agreement with the clerk
 25 of the district court in the county where the fine, penalty,
 26 surcharge, or court cost was imposed, within five days of
 27 execution of the agreement.

28 8. *a.* Except as provided in paragraph "b", upon
 29 determination by the county attorney, the county attorney's
 30 designee, or the ~~private collection designee~~ department of
 31 revenue that the person is in default, the county attorney, the
 32 county attorney's designee, or the ~~private collection designee~~
 33 department of revenue shall notify the clerk of the district
 34 court.

35 *b.* (1) If the person is in default and the person

PAGE 15

1 provides a new financial statement within fifteen days of
 2 the determination made pursuant to paragraph "a" indicating
 3 that the person's financial condition has changed to such an
 4 extent that lower installment payments would have been required
 5 prior to the execution of the initial installment agreement
 6 under subsection 1, the county attorney, the county attorney's
 7 designee, or the ~~private collection designee~~ department of
 8 revenue shall not notify the clerk of the district court,
 9 and the person shall not be considered in default. The new
 10 installment payments shall be based upon the new financial
 11 statement filed in compliance with this subparagraph.

12 (2) A person making new installment payments after
 13 complying with the provisions of subparagraph (1) shall not be
 14 considered executing a new installment agreement for purposes
 15 of calculating the number of installment agreements a person
 16 may execute in a person's lifetime under subsection 12.

17 9. The clerk of the district court, upon receipt of a
 18 notification of a default from the county attorney, the
 19 county attorney's designee, or the ~~private collection designee~~
 20 department of revenue, shall report the default to the
 21 department of transportation.

22 11. If a new fine, penalty, surcharge, or court cost
 23 is imposed on a person after the person has executed an
 24 installment agreement with the county attorney, the county

25 attorney's designee, or the ~~private collection designee~~
 26 department of revenue, and the new fine, penalty, surcharge,
 27 or court cost is deemed delinquent as provided in section
 28 602.8107, subsection 2, and the person's driver's license
 29 has been suspended pursuant to section 321.210A, the person
 30 may enter into a second installment agreement with the
 31 county attorney, county attorney's designee, or the ~~private~~
 32 ~~collection designee~~ department of revenue to pay the delinquent
 33 amount and the civil penalty, if assessed, in subsection 7 in
 34 installments.
 35 13. Except for a civil penalty assessed and collected

PAGE 16

1 pursuant to subsection 7, any amount collected under the
 2 installment agreement by the county attorney or the county
 3 attorney's designee shall be distributed as provided in section
 4 602.8107, subsection 4, and any amount collected by the ~~private~~
 5 ~~collection designee~~ department of revenue shall be deposited
 6 with the clerk of the district court for distribution under
 7 section 602.8108.
 8 Sec. _____. Section 602.8107, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
 9 amended to read as follows:
 10 3. *Collection by ~~private collection designee under contract~~*
 11 *~~with the judicial branch~~ department of revenue.*
 12 a. (1) Thirty days after court debt has been assessed
 13 and full payment has not been received, or if an installment
 14 payment is not received within thirty days after the date it
 15 is due, the judicial branch shall assign a case to the ~~private~~
 16 ~~collection designee under contract with the judicial branch~~
 17 ~~pursuant to subsection 5 to collect debts owed to the clerk of~~
 18 ~~the district court~~ department of revenue, unless the case has
 19 been assigned to the county attorney under paragraph "c".
 20 (2) The department of revenue may impose a fee established
 21 by rule to reflect the cost of processing which shall be added
 22 to the debt owed to the clerk of the district court.
 23 b. In addition, court debt which is being collected under
 24 an installment agreement pursuant to section 321.210B which is
 25 in default that remains delinquent shall remain assigned to
 26 the ~~private collection designee~~ department of revenue if the
 27 installment agreement was executed with the ~~private collection~~
 28 ~~designee~~ department of revenue; or to the county attorney
 29 or county attorney's designee if the installment agreement
 30 was executed with the county attorney or county attorney's
 31 designee.
 32 c. Thirty days after court debt has been assessed and full
 33 payment has not been received, or if an installment payment is
 34 not received within thirty days after the date it is due, and
 35 if a county attorney has filed with the clerk of the district

PAGE 17

1 court a notice of full commitment to collect delinquent court
2 debt pursuant to subsection 4, the case shall be assigned
3 to the county attorney as provided in subsection 4. The
4 judicial branch shall assign cases with delinquent court debt
5 to a county attorney in the same format and with the same
6 frequency as cases with delinquent court debt are assigned to
7 the ~~private collection designee~~ department of revenue under
8 paragraph "a", and a county attorney shall not be required
9 to file an individual notice of full commitment to collect
10 delinquent court debt for each assigned case. If the county
11 attorney or the county attorney's designee, while collecting
12 delinquent court debt pursuant to subsection 4, determines that
13 a person owes additional court debt for which a case has not
14 been assigned by the judicial branch, the county attorney or
15 the county attorney's designee shall notify the clerk of the
16 district court of the appropriate case numbers and the judicial
17 branch shall assign these cases to the county attorney for
18 collection if the additional court debt is delinquent.

19 Sec. ____ Section 602.8107, subsection 4, unnumbered
20 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

21 The county attorney or the county attorney's designee may
22 collect court debt after the court debt is deemed delinquent
23 pursuant to subsection 2. In order to receive a percentage of
24 the amounts collected pursuant to this subsection, the county
25 attorney must first file with the clerk of the district court
26 on or before July 1 of the first year the county attorney
27 collects court debt under this subsection, a notice of full
28 commitment to collect delinquent court debt, and a memorandum
29 of understanding with the state court administrator for all
30 cases assigned to the county for collection by the court.
31 The notice shall contain a list of procedures which will be
32 initiated by the county attorney. For a county attorney
33 filing a notice of full commitment for the first time, the
34 cases involving delinquent court debt previously assigned to
35 the ~~private collection designee~~ department of revenue shall

PAGE 18

1 remain assigned to the ~~private collection designee~~ department
2 of revenue. Cases involving delinquent court debt assigned
3 to the county attorney after the filing of a notice of full
4 commitment by the county attorney shall remain assigned to the
5 county attorney. A county attorney who chooses to discontinue
6 collection of delinquent court debt shall file with the clerk
7 of the district court on or before May 15 a notice of the intent
8 to cease collection of delinquent court debt at the start of
9 the next fiscal year. If a county attorney ceases collection
10 efforts, or if the state court administrator deems that a
11 county attorney collections program has become ineligible to
12 collect as specified in paragraph "f", all cases involving

13 delinquent court debt assigned to the county attorney shall
 14 be transferred on July 1 to the ~~private collection designee~~
 15 department of revenue for collection, except that debt
 16 associated with any existing installment agreement shall remain
 17 assigned to the county for collection unless an installment
 18 payment becomes delinquent, after which the delinquent debt
 19 associated with the installment agreement shall be transferred
 20 promptly to the ~~private collection designee~~ department of
 21 revenue for collection.

22 Sec. ____ Section 602.8107, subsection 4, paragraph f, Code
 23 2020, is amended to read as follows:

24 *f.* Beginning July 1, 2017, within two years of beginning
 25 to collect delinquent court debt, a county attorney shall be
 26 required to collect one hundred percent of the applicable
 27 threshold amount specified in paragraph “c”. If a county
 28 attorney collects more than eighty percent but less than one
 29 hundred percent of the applicable threshold amount, the state
 30 court administrator shall provide notice to the county attorney
 31 specifying that in order to remain eligible to participate in
 32 the county attorney collection program, the county attorney
 33 must collect at least one hundred twenty-five percent of the
 34 applicable threshold amount by the end of the next fiscal year.
 35 If a county attorney who has been given such a notice fails

PAGE 19

1 to collect one hundred twenty-five percent of the applicable
 2 threshold amount, the state court administrator shall provide
 3 notice to the county attorney that the county is ineligible to
 4 participate in the county attorney collection program for the
 5 next two fiscal years and all existing and future court cases
 6 with delinquent court debt shall be assigned to the ~~private~~
 7 ~~collection designee~~ department of revenue. The provisions of
 8 this paragraph apply to all counties, including those counties
 9 where delinquent court debt is collected pursuant to a chapter
 10 28E agreement with one or more counties.

11 Sec. ____ Section 602.8107, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
 12 amended by striking the subsection.

13 Sec. ____ Section 602.8107, subsection 7, Code 2020, is
 14 amended to read as follows:

15 *7. Reports.* The judicial branch shall prepare a report
 16 aging the court debt. ~~The report shall include the amounts~~
 17 ~~collected by the private collection designee, the distribution~~
 18 ~~of these amounts, and the amount of the fee collected by the~~
 19 ~~private collection designee.~~ In addition, the report shall
 20 include the amounts written off pursuant to subsection 6. The
 21 judicial branch shall provide the report to the co-chairpersons
 22 and ranking members of the joint appropriations subcommittee on
 23 the justice system, the legislative services agency, and the
 24 department of management by December 15 of each year.

25 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act takes
 26 effect January 1, 2021.>

- 27 2. Page 41, line 1, by striking <This> and inserting <Unless
 28 otherwise provided, this>
 29 3. Page 41, line 7, after <agreements,> by inserting
 30 <modifying civil claims for reimbursement, restitution, and
 31 collection of court debt,>
 32 4. By renumbering as necessary.

HITE of Mahaska

H-8309

- 1 Amend House File 599, as passed by the House, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 1, by striking <2019> and inserting <2020>
 3 2. Page 1, line 11, after <hunt wild turkey> by inserting
 4 <appropriate for the minor's residency status>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8310

- 1 Amend House File 2572 as follows:
 2 1. Page 5, line 13, after <request.> by inserting <Prior to
 3 selecting the construction manager-at-risk, the governmental
 4 entity shall require a prospective construction manager-at-risk
 5 to complete a quality assurance questionnaire as provided by
 6 the governmental entity which shall, in part, require the
 7 prospective construction manager-at-risk to certify that the
 8 construction manager-at-risk and subcontractors for that
 9 construction manager-at-risk have not been determined to
 10 have wrongfully classified an employee as an independent
 11 contractor.>

KACENA of Woodbury

H-8311

- 1 Amend the amendment, H-8307, to House File 2572 as follows:
 2 1. By striking page 1, line 1, through page 8, line 7, and
 3 inserting:
 4 <__. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 5 inserting:
 6 <DIVISION I
 7 PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BIDDING REQUIREMENTS
 8 Sec. __. Section 26.2, subsection 3, paragraph b,
 9 subparagraph (5), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 10 (5) Construction or repair or maintenance work performed
 11 for a city utility under chapter 388 when such work is
 12 performed by its employees or when such work relates to
 13 existing utility infrastructure or to establishing connections
 14 to existing utility systems.
 15 (6) Construction or repair or maintenance work performed
 16 for a rural water district under chapter 357A by its employees.

17 Sec. ____ Section 26.4, Code 2020, is amended to read as
18 follows:

19 **~~26.4 Exemptions from competitive bids and quotations~~**
20 **~~Architectural and engineering services — exemptions —~~**
21 **~~prohibitions.~~**

22 1. Architectural, landscape architectural, or engineering
23 design services procured for a public improvement are not
24 subject to sections 26.3 and 26.14.

25 2. Fee-based selection of an architect, landscape
26 architect, or engineer for a public improvement shall be
27 prohibited.

28 DIVISION II

29 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE CONTRACTS

30 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 26A.1 Definitions.

31 As used in this chapter, unless the context clearly
32 indicates otherwise:

33 1. *“Construction manager-at-risk”* means a sole
34 proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity
35 that assumes the risk for the construction, rehabilitation,

PAGE 2

1 alteration, or repair of a project and provides consultant
2 services to the government entity in the development and design
3 phases, working collaboratively with the design professionals
4 involved.

5 2. *“Governmental entity”* means the state, political
6 subdivisions of the state, public school corporations, and all
7 officers, boards, or commissions empowered by law to enter
8 into contracts for the construction of public improvements,
9 including the state board of regents.

10 3. *“Guaranteed maximum price contract”* means the agreed
11 to fixed or guaranteed maximum price pursuant to a contract
12 entered into by the construction manager-at-risk and the
13 governmental entity.

14 4. *“Public improvement”* means as defined in section 26.2.

15 5. *“Repair or maintenance work”* means as defined in section
16 26.2.

17 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 26A.2 Authorization.

18 Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, a
19 governmental entity shall be authorized to enter into a
20 guaranteed maximum price contract for the construction of a
21 public improvement pursuant to this chapter.

22 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 26A.3 Guaranteed maximum price
23 contract — process.

24 1. A governmental entity shall publicly disclose the
25 governmental entity’s intent to enter into a guaranteed
26 maximum price contract and the governmental entity’s selection
27 criteria at least fourteen days prior to publishing a request
28 for statements of qualifications. Public disclosure shall
29 be in a relevant contractor plan room service with statewide
30 circulation, a relevant construction lead generating service

31 with statewide circulation, and on an internet site sponsored
32 by either a governmental entity or a statewide association that
33 represents the governmental entity.
34 2. The governmental entity shall select or designate an
35 engineer licensed under chapter 542B, a landscape architect

PAGE 3

1 licensed under chapter 544B, or an architect licensed
2 under chapter 544A by utilizing a quality-based selection
3 process. Fee-based selection of the engineer, landscape
4 architect, or architect shall be prohibited. The engineer,
5 landscape architect, or architect selected or designated by
6 the government entity under this subsection shall have the
7 responsibility of preparing construction documents for the
8 project and shall review the construction for conformance with
9 design intent.
10 3. *a.* (1) The governmental entity shall prepare a request
11 for statements of qualifications. The request shall include
12 general information on the project site, project scope,
13 schedule, selection criteria, and the time and place for
14 receipt of statements of qualifications. Selection criteria
15 and general information included in the request for statements
16 of qualifications may be developed in coordination with
17 the engineer, landscape architect, or architect selected or
18 designated by the governmental entity as provided under this
19 section.
20 (2) Selection criteria may include the contractor's
21 experience undertaking projects of similar size and scope
22 in either the public or private sector, past performance,
23 safety record, proposed personnel, and proposed methodology.
24 Selection criteria shall include experience in both the public
25 and the private sector. Selection criteria shall not include
26 specific delivery methods, including guaranteed maximum price
27 projects.
28 (3) A request for statements of qualifications under this
29 subsection shall be subject to the requirements of section
30 73A.28.
31 *b.* The request for statements of qualifications shall be
32 posted not less than thirteen and not more than forty-five days
33 before the date for response in a relevant contractor plan room
34 service with statewide circulation, in a relevant construction
35 lead generating service with statewide circulation, and on an

PAGE 4

1 internet site sponsored by either a governmental entity or a
2 statewide association that represents the governmental entity.
3 If circumstances beyond the control of the governmental
4 entity require postponement and there are no changes to the
5 project's contract documents, a notice of the revised date
6 shall be posted not less than four and not more than forty-five

7 days before the revised date for answering the request for
8 proposals and statements of qualifications in a relevant
9 contractor plan room service with statewide circulation, in a
10 relevant construction lead generating service with statewide
11 circulation, and on an internet site sponsored by either a
12 government entity or a statewide association that represents
13 the governmental entity.

14 c. The governmental entity shall receive, publicly open, and
15 read aloud the names of the contractors submitting statements
16 of qualifications. Within forty-five days after the date of
17 opening the statements of qualifications submissions, the
18 governmental entity shall evaluate each proposal or statement
19 of qualifications submission in relation to the criteria set
20 forth in the request.

21 4. a. After considering the proposals based upon
22 qualifications, the governmental entity shall issue a request
23 for proposals to each contractor who meets the qualifications
24 which shall include selection and evaluation criteria. Each
25 contractor issued a request for proposals shall be permitted
26 to submit a proposal and each proposal submitted shall include
27 the construction manager-at-risk's proposed fees. The request
28 for proposals shall be subject to the requirements of section
29 73A.28.

30 b. The governmental entity shall receive, publicly open, and
31 read aloud the names of the contractors submitting proposals.
32 Within forty-five days after the date of opening the proposals,
33 the governmental entity shall evaluate and rank each proposal
34 in relation to the criteria set forth in the applicable
35 request.

PAGE 5

1 c. The governmental entity or its representative shall
2 select the construction manager-at-risk that submits the
3 proposal that offers the best value for the governmental
4 entity based on the published selection criteria and on
5 its ranking evaluation. The governmental entity shall
6 first attempt to negotiate a contract with the selected
7 construction manager-at-risk. If the governmental entity
8 is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the
9 selected construction manager-at-risk, the governmental entity
10 shall, formally and in writing, end negotiations with that
11 construction manager-at-risk and proceed to negotiate with the
12 next construction manager-at-risk in the order of the selection
13 ranking until a contract is reached or negotiations with all
14 ranked construction managers-at-risk end.

15 d. The governmental entity shall make available to the
16 public the final scoring and ranking evaluation of the request
17 for proposals received.

18 5. a. If the estimated total cost of trade contract work
19 and materials packages is in excess of the adjusted competitive
20 bid threshold established in section 314.1B, the construction

21 manager-at-risk shall advertise for competitive bids, receive
22 bids, prepare bid analyses, and award contracts to qualified
23 firms on trade contract work and materials packages in
24 accordance with all of the following:
25 (1) Prior to advertising for competitive bids and awarding
26 contracts on trade contract work and materials packages, the
27 construction manager-at-risk shall provide public notice of the
28 opportunity to submit bids on trade contract work and materials
29 packages in a relevant contractor plan room service with
30 statewide circulation, a relevant construction lead generating
31 service with statewide circulation, and on an internet site
32 sponsored by either a governmental entity or a statewide
33 association that represents the governmental entity.
34 (2) (a) The construction manager-at-risk shall utilize
35 objective prequalification criteria to develop a list of

PAGE 6

1 qualified firms who may bid and be awarded a contract on a
2 particular trade contract work and materials package. All
3 firms who meet the objective prequalification criteria as
4 a qualified firm shall be allowed to submit a bid for the
5 relevant trade contract work and materials package. In
6 addition, a firm that is prequalified with the state department
7 of transportation pursuant to section 314.1 shall be considered
8 to meet the objective prequalification criteria as a qualified
9 firm and shall be allowed to submit a bid for purposes of work
10 related to parking lots, streets, site development, or bridge
11 structure components.
12 (b) Prequalification criteria shall be limited to a
13 firm's experience as a contractor, capacity of key personnel,
14 technical competence, capability to perform, the past
15 performance of the firm and the firm's employees to include
16 the firm's safety record and compliance with state and federal
17 law, and availability to and familiarity with the location of
18 the project subject to bid. Prequalification criteria shall
19 be reasonably and materially related to the relevant trade
20 contract work and materials package. Prequalification criteria
21 shall be subject to the requirements of section 73A.28.
22 (3) The governmental entity and the construction
23 manager-at-risk shall participate in the bid review and
24 evaluation process. After the bids have been tabulated,
25 the contracts shall be awarded to the lowest responsive,
26 responsible bidder. All awards shall be made available to the
27 public.
28 (4) Notwithstanding any provision of this paragraph to
29 the contrary, a construction manager-at-risk shall not be
30 required to bid work that will be self-performed pursuant to
31 the contract with the governmental entity. If the construction
32 manager-at-risk intends to self-perform, the construction
33 manager-at-risk must notify the governmental entity in writing
34 of the construction manager-at-risk's intent to do so and

35 identify the trade contract work and material packages that

PAGE 7

1 will be self-performed. A construction manager-at-risk shall
 2 not be required to comply with bidding requirements for general
 3 conditions as provided in the contract with the governmental
 4 entity.
 5 *b.* If a selected trade contractor materially defaults in
 6 the performance of its work or fails to execute a contract,
 7 the construction manager-at-risk may, without advertising,
 8 fulfill the contract requirements or select a replacement trade
 9 contractor to fulfill the contract requirements.
 10 Sec. ____ NEW SECTION. 26A.4 Prohibited contracts.
 11 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 12 contrary, a governmental entity, excluding the state board of
 13 regents, shall not be authorized to enter into a design-build
 14 contract for the construction of a public improvement. For
 15 purposes of this subsection, "*design-build contract*" means
 16 a single contract providing for both design services and
 17 construction services that may include maintenance, operations,
 18 preconstruction, and other related services.
 19 2. A governmental entity shall not be authorized to
 20 enter into a guaranteed maximum price contract for public
 21 improvements relating to highway and bridge construction.>>

HUNTER of Polk

H-8312

1 Amend House File 594, as passed by the House, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 4, by striking <A court> and inserting <1.
 3 A court>
 4 2. Page 1, by striking lines 10 through 12 and inserting <is
 5 a false artifact.
 6 2. For the purposes of this section:
 7 *a.* "*Life-sustaining procedure*" means the same as defined in
 8 section 144A.2.
 9 *b.* "*Minor*" means the same as specified in section 599.1.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8313

1 Amend the amendment, S-5135, to Senate File 2310, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
 3 1. By striking page 1, line 3, through page 10, line 15, and
 4 inserting:
 5 <1. Page 1, before line 1 by inserting:
 6 <DIVISION I
 7 ONLINE LEARNING PROGRAM AND COURSEWORK REQUIREMENTS>
 8 2. Page 2, line 4, by striking <a.>

- 9 3. Page 2, by striking lines 20 through 28.
- 10 4. Page 2, line 31, by striking <The provisions of
- 11 subsection 5> and inserting:
- 12 <(1) The offer and teach requirements of subsection 5,
- 13 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
- 14 5. Page 2, line 35, by striking <(1)> and inserting <(a)>
- 15 6. Page 3, line 4, by striking <(2)> and inserting <(b)>
- 16 7. Page 3, after line 6 by inserting:
- 17 <(2) If a school district or accredited nonpublic school
- 18 meets the requirements of subparagraph (1), subparagraph
- 19 division (a) or (b), the school district or accredited
- 20 nonpublic school may exceed the two-subject limitation
- 21 specified in subparagraph (1), unnumbered paragraph 1, for the
- 22 purpose of providing world language, personal finance literacy,
- 23 and computer science coursework online in accordance with
- 24 paragraph “c”;>
- 25 8. Page 3, line 8, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
- 26 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
- 27 9. Page 3, line 12, by striking <the requirements of
- 28 subsection 5> and inserting <such requirements>
- 29 10. Page 3, line 15, by striking <5> and inserting <5,
- 30 paragraphs “a” through “e” and “g” through “j”;>
- 31 11. Page 3, line 20, by striking <(1) or (2)> and inserting
- 32 <(1), (2), or (3)>
- 33 12. Page 3, line 27, by striking <either> and inserting
- 34 <any>
- 35 13. Page 4, after line 6 by inserting:

PAGE 2

- 1 <(3) An online learning platform offered, subject to the
- 2 initial availability of federal funds, by the department in
- 3 collaboration with one or more area education agencies or in
- 4 partnership with school districts and accredited nonpublic
- 5 schools. The online learning platform may deliver distance
- 6 education to students, including students receiving independent
- 7 private instruction as defined in section 299A.1, subsection
- 8 2, paragraph “b”, competent private instruction under section
- 9 299A.2, or private instruction by a nonlicensed person under
- 10 section 299A.3, provided such students register with the
- 11 school district of residence and the coursework offered by the
- 12 online learning platform is taught and supervised by a teacher
- 13 licensed under chapter 272 who has online learning experience
- 14 and the course content meets the requirements established by
- 15 rule pursuant to section 256.7, subsection 32, paragraph “c”.
- 16 The department and the area education agencies operating online
- 17 learning programs pursuant to section 273.16 shall coordinate
- 18 to ensure the most effective use of resources and delivery
- 19 of services. Federal funds, if available, may be used to
- 20 offset what would otherwise be costs to school districts for
- 21 participation in the program.>
- 22 14. Page 4, by striking line 11 and inserting:

23 <c. Private providers utilized to provide courses by Courses
 24 provided by private providers to a school>
 25 15. Page 5, after line 25 by inserting:
 26 <Sec. ___. Section 279.10, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 27 the following new subsection:
 28 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. a. For the school year beginning July
 29 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, any instruction provided in
 30 accordance with a return-to-learn plan submitted by a school
 31 district or accredited nonpublic school to the department of
 32 education in response to a proclamation of a public health
 33 disaster emergency, issued by the governor pursuant to section
 34 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, shall be deemed to meet the
 35 requirements of subsection 1, regardless of the nature,

PAGE 3

1 location, or medium of instruction if the return-to-learn
 2 plan contains the minimum number of days or hours as required
 3 by subsection 1. Any return-to-learn plan submitted by a
 4 school district or accredited nonpublic school must contain
 5 provisions for in-person instruction and provide that in-person
 6 instruction is the presumed method of instruction.
 7 b. This subsection is repealed on July 1, 2021.>
 8 16. Page 5, after line 26 by inserting:
 9 <DIVISION __
 10 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR USE OF CERTAIN MONEYS BY SCHOOL
 11 DISTRICTS TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
 12 Sec. ___. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT MONEYS AND HOURS
 13 REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL TIME FOR THE
 14 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding section 257.10,
 15 subsection 10, and the professional development requirements
 16 of chapter 284, for the school year beginning July 1, 2020,
 17 and ending June 30, 2021, the moneys calculated and paid to
 18 the school district for professional development pursuant to
 19 section 257.10, subsection 10, or section 257.37A, subsection
 20 2, to provide thirty-six hours of professional development
 21 opportunities held outside of the minimum school day, may
 22 instead be used by a school district to provide instructional
 23 time to the school calendar in addition to the amount of
 24 instructional time required under section 279.10, subsection 1,
 25 and the thirty-six-hour professional development requirement
 26 of chapter 284 shall be reduced by such number of hours of
 27 additional instructional time.
 28 DIVISION __
 29 TEMPORARY FLEXIBILITY FOR CERTAIN EDUCATIONAL INSTRUCTIONAL AND
 30 POLICY REQUIREMENTS
 31 Sec. ___. OPEN ENROLLMENT — EXTENSION OF NOTIFICATION
 32 DEADLINE FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. Notwithstanding
 33 section 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, for the school
 34 year commencing July 1, 2020, a parent or guardian shall have
 35 until July 15, 2020, to notify to the district of residence and

PAGE 4

1 the receiving district, on forms prescribed by the department
2 of education, that the parent or guardian intends to enroll
3 the parent's or guardian's child in an online public school
4 in another school district, if the child, another resident of
5 the child's residence, or a regular caretaker of the child
6 has a significant health condition that increases the risk
7 of COVID-19. The notification shall include the name of the
8 person with the health condition, specify the person's health
9 condition, include written verification of the health condition
10 from the person's physician or licensed health care provider
11 and, for persons other than the child, whether the person with
12 the health condition is a resident of the child's residence
13 or the child's regular caretaker. Section 282.18, subsection
14 3, shall not apply to a notification submitted in accordance
15 with this section. Notwithstanding section 282.18, subsection
16 2, paragraph "b", the superintendent of the receiving school
17 district is authorized to approve a notification received
18 under this section. Within fourteen days of receipt of such
19 notification, the superintendent shall notify the parent or
20 guardian and the school district of residence that the request
21 has been approved or denied. If the notification has been
22 denied or if further review is required, the superintendent
23 shall provide the parent or guardian with an explanation of
24 the approval process and expected timeline for the review. A
25 decision to deny a request submitted under this section is
26 subject to appeal under section 290.1. The state board shall
27 exercise broad discretion to achieve just and equitable results
28 that are in the best interest of the affected child. This
29 section is not intended to extend the provisions of section
30 282.18, subsection 2, paragraph "a", for enrollment in a
31 physical school district.

32 Sec. ____ SCHOOL DISTRICT DUTIES RELATING TO COMPETENT
33 PRIVATE INSTRUCTION FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. For
34 the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
35 2021, upon request of a parent, guardian, or legal or actual

PAGE 5

1 custodian, each school district shall provide to children
2 receiving competent private instruction available texts or
3 supplementary materials on the same basis as they are provided
4 to regularly enrolled students when a child is under dual
5 enrollment or in a home school assistance program. This
6 section shall only apply to children who are enrolled in their
7 school district's home school assistance program by the child's
8 parent, guardian, or legal or actual custodian.

9 Sec. ____ SCHOOL DISTRICT CLOSURES DURING THE 2020-2021
10 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
11 ending June 30, 2021, if the governor proclaims a public health
12 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, the board of directors of a

13 school district may authorize closure of the school district
 14 or any school district attendance center due to an outbreak
 15 of COVID-19 in the school district or any school district
 16 attendance center. School districts are encouraged to follow
 17 guidelines issued by the centers for disease control and
 18 prevention of the United States department of health and human
 19 services and the Iowa department of public health, and may
 20 consult with the local board of health when determining social
 21 distancing measures or authorizing a school closure.

22 Sec. ____ INSTRUCTIONAL TIME PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOL
 23 DISTRICTS AND ACCREDITED NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS FOR THE 2020-2021
 24 SCHOOL YEAR.

25 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 26 contrary, the instructional time requirements of section
 27 279.10, subsection 1, and the minimum school day requirements
 28 of section 256.7, subsection 19, shall not be waived any
 29 time during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 30 ending June 30, 2021, for school closure due to the COVID-19
 31 pandemic unless the school district or the authorities in
 32 charge of the accredited nonpublic school, as appropriate,
 33 provide compulsory remote learning, including online learning,
 34 electronic learning, distance learning, or virtual learning.
 35 Unless explicitly authorized in a proclamation of a public

PAGE 6

1 health disaster emergency issued by the governor pursuant to
 2 section 29C.6 and related to COVID-19, a brick-and-mortar
 3 school district or accredited nonpublic school shall not take
 4 action to provide instruction primarily through remote-learning
 5 opportunities.

6 2. If the board of directors of a school district or
 7 the authorities in charge of an accredited nonpublic school
 8 determines any time during the school year beginning July 1,
 9 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, that a remote-learning period
 10 is necessary, the school board or the authorities in charge of
 11 an accredited nonpublic school, as appropriate, shall ensure
 12 that teachers and other necessary school staff are available
 13 during the remote-learning period to support students, to
 14 participate in professional development opportunities, and
 15 to perform other job-related functions during the regular,
 16 required contract hours, even if the accessibility to or by the
 17 teachers and other necessary school staff is offered remotely.

18 Sec. ____ TRUANCY REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL
 19 YEAR. In addition to the provisions of chapter 299, a
 20 child who is enrolled in a school district or accredited
 21 nonpublic school but who does not participate in compulsory
 22 remote-learning opportunities, including online learning,
 23 electronic learning, distance learning, or virtual learning,
 24 offered by the school district or accredited nonpublic school
 25 of enrollment during a period of school closure implemented
 26 any time during the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and

27 ending June 30, 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic shall be
28 considered truant. This section is not applicable to a child
29 who was receiving competent private instruction or independent
30 private instruction in accordance with the requirements of
31 chapter 299A prior to July 1, 2019. Any child who was enrolled
32 in a public school or accredited nonpublic school prior to July
33 1, 2019, may be subject to the provisions of chapter 299 if
34 the child's parent, guardian, or legal custodian did not, for
35 the school year beginning July 1, 2020, complete and send the

PAGE 7

1 report required under section 299.4 to the school district of
2 residence of the child in a timely manner.
3 Sec. __. TEACHER ENDORSEMENT WAIVER FOR THE 2020-2021
4 SCHOOL YEAR. For the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
5 ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding any provision to the
6 contrary, if a school district or accredited nonpublic school
7 has made every reasonable and good-faith effort to employ a
8 teacher licensed under chapter 272 who holds an endorsement for
9 a specified grade level or subject area and is unable to employ
10 a teacher with the appropriate endorsement, and the school
11 district or accredited nonpublic school is also unable to
12 develop, or use a private provider to provide, an online course
13 that meets the requirements of chapter 256, the director of
14 the department of education may waive the teacher-endorsement
15 requirements for the specified grade level or subject area for
16 the school district or accredited nonpublic school, and the
17 provisions of section 256.9, subsection 48, and section 272.15,
18 subsection 4, shall not apply.
19 Sec. __. MISCELLANEOUS POLICY PROVISIONS FOR SCHOOLS
20 FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR. The following provisions are
21 applicable for the school year beginning July 1, 2020, and
22 ending June 30, 2021:
23 1. SOCIAL DISTANCING. In implementing social distancing
24 policies included in a return-to-learn plan, the board of
25 directors of each school district and the authorities in charge
26 of each accredited nonpublic school shall, to the extent
27 possible, provide in-person instruction for core academic
28 subjects.
29 2. STATEWIDE ASSESSMENTS. The provisions of section 256.7,
30 subsection 21, paragraph "b", relating to the administration
31 of statewide summative assessment of student progress, and the
32 assessments administered in accordance with sections 279.60
33 and 279.68, shall not be waived, and such assessments shall be
34 administered to students as required by those sections.
35 3. CPR CERTIFICATION — EXCEPTION FOR GRADUATION. If a

PAGE 8

1 school district or accredited nonpublic school closes on the
2 advice of a local board of health, the department of public

3 health, or because the governor proclaims a public health
4 disaster pursuant to section 29C.6, a student who meets the
5 graduation requirements of section 256.7, subsection 26,
6 paragraph “a”, the requirements of section 280.9A, and the
7 school district’s or accredited nonpublic school’s graduation
8 requirements may graduate without meeting the cardiopulmonary
9 resuscitation certification requirements of section 256.11,
10 section 6, paragraph “c”.

11 4. NOTIFICATION OF SIGNIFICANT HEALTH CONDITION —
12 COMPULSORY REMOTE LEARNING. If a parent or guardian of a
13 student enrolled in a school district or accredited nonpublic
14 school notifies the school district or accredited nonpublic
15 school in writing that the student, another resident of the
16 student’s residence, or a regular caretaker of the student
17 has a significant health condition that increases the risk of
18 COVID-19, the school district or accredited nonpublic school
19 shall make reasonable accommodations for the student, on a
20 case-by-case basis, to attend school through remote learning.
21 The provision of special education and accommodations for
22 students who have individualized education programs or
23 section 504 plans in compliance with the requirements of
24 section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 29 U.S.C. §794, and
25 with Tit. II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42
26 U.S.C. §12131–12165, will be determined by each respective
27 individualized education program team or section 504 team.
28 The notification shall include the name of the person with
29 the health condition, specify the person’s health condition,
30 include written verification of the health condition from the
31 person’s physician or licensed health care provider and, for
32 persons other than the student, whether the person with the
33 health condition is a resident of the student’s residence
34 or the student’s regular caretaker. A school district or
35 an accredited nonpublic school may collaborate with an area

PAGE 9

1 education agency or another school district or accredited
2 nonpublic school to provide remote learning opportunities to a
3 student who meets the requirements of this section.
4 5. Notwithstanding section 256.7, subsection 32; section
5 256.9, subsection 55; section 256.43; or any other provision
6 to the contrary, a school district or accredited nonpublic
7 school may provide instruction primarily through continuous
8 remote-learning opportunities if such instruction is provided
9 in accordance with a return-to-learn plan submitted by
10 the school district or accredited nonpublic school to the
11 department of education in response to a proclamation of a
12 public health disaster emergency explicitly addressing school
13 closures, issued by the governor pursuant to section 29C.6 and
14 related to COVID-19, without regard to whether the accredited
15 nonpublic school or school district is approved to provide
16 instruction primarily through continuous remote-learning

17 opportunities. Instruction provided pursuant to this section
 18 shall be provided by teachers licensed pursuant to chapter 272
 19 and shall assure and maintain evidence of alignment of the
 20 courses with the Iowa core and core content requirements and
 21 standards.

22 DIVISION ____

23 SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT REPORT

24 Sec. ____ SCHOOL DISTRICT COVID-19 IMPACT REPORT FOR BUDGET
 25 YEAR 2019-2020. Each school district shall submit a report
 26 to the department of education, in a format and by a date
 27 as determined by the department, detailing any reduction in
 28 expenditures to the school district resulting from the closure
 29 of schools due to the COVID-19 pandemic during the school
 30 budget year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020,
 31 including but not limited to reductions in expenditures for
 32 transportation, the number of contract employees which include
 33 certified and classified employees laid off by the school
 34 district and the number of non-contract employees laid off
 35 by the school district, both listed by staff position, and

PAGE 10

1 spring or summer programs canceled or otherwise impacted. The
 2 department shall prepare and, by November 15, 2020, submit to
 3 the general assembly, a report that details for each school
 4 district the total net impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on each
 5 school district's budget.

6 DIVISION ____

7 EFFECTIVE DATES AND APPLICABILITY

8 Sec. ____ EFFECTIVE UPON ENACTMENT. Unless otherwise
 9 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 10 July 1, 2020, takes effect upon enactment.

11 Sec. ____ RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. Unless otherwise
 12 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 13 July 1, 2020, applies retroactively to July 1, 2020.>

14 17. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 4 and inserting
 15 <An Act relating to educational instructional requirements
 16 and funding flexibility and including effective date and
 17 retroactive applicability provisions.>

18 18. By renumbering as necessary.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8314

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-8312, to House File 594, as
 2 passed by the House, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, after line 9 by inserting:

4 <____. Page 1, after line 12 by inserting:

5 <Sec. ____ Section 146A.1, subsection 1, unnumbered
 6 paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

7 A physician performing an abortion shall obtain written

8 certification from the pregnant woman of all of the following
9 at least ~~seventy-two~~ twenty-four hours prior to performing an
10 abortion:>

11 ____ Title page, line 1, after <relating to> by inserting
12 <medical procedures including abortion and>>

LUNDGREN of Dubuque
UPMEYER of Cerro Gordo
OSMUNDSON of Clayton
BRINK of Mahaska

SALMON of Black Hawk
HINSON of Linn
BLOOMINGDALE of Worth

H-8315

1 Amend House File 2556, as passed by the House, as follows:

2 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
3 inserting:

4 <DIVISION I

5 PUBLIC REAL PROPERTY AND LEASE CONTRACTS

6 Section 1. **NEW SECTION. 7E.5B Real property lease or**
7 **purchase — notice.**

8 In addition to any other provision of law, any purchase or
9 lease of real property, other than on a temporary basis, when
10 necessary in order to implement the programs of an authority or
11 protect the investments of an authority, shall require prior
12 written notice from the authority to the legislative services
13 agency. The legislative services agency shall submit the
14 notification to the government oversight standing committees
15 of the general assembly. The notification shall include the
16 information as described in section 8A.321, subsection 16.

17 Sec. 2. Section 8A.321, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
18 following new subsection:

19 **NEW SUBSECTION. 16.** At least thirty days prior to entering
20 into a contract for a lease or renewal of a lease pursuant
21 to subsection 6 or a contract for the acquisition of real
22 property pursuant to subsection 9 in which any part or the
23 total amount of the contract is at least fifty thousand
24 dollars, notify the legislative services agency concerning the
25 contract. The legislative services agency shall submit the
26 notification to the general assembly's standing committees on
27 government oversight. The notification is required regardless
28 of the source of payment for the lease, renewal of lease, or
29 acquisition of real property. The notification shall include
30 all of the following information:

- 31 a. A description of the buildings and office space subject
- 32 to the lease or renewal of lease or a description of the real
- 33 property to be acquired.
- 34 b. The proposed terms of the contract.
- 35 c. The cost of the contract, including principal and

PAGE 2

1 interest costs. If the actual cost of a contract is not known

2 at least thirty days prior to entering into the contract, the
 3 director shall estimate the principal and interest costs for
 4 the contract.
 5 *d.* An identification of the means and source of payment of
 6 the contract.
 7 *e.* An analysis of consequences of delaying or abandoning the
 8 commencement of the contract.

9 DIVISION II

10 SALE OF PUBLIC REAL PROPERTY

11 Sec. 3. Section 8A.321, subsection 8, Code 2020, is amended
 12 to read as follows:

13 8. With the authorization of a constitutional majority
 14 of each house of the general assembly and approval by the
 15 governor, dispose of real property belonging to the state and
 16 its state agencies upon terms, conditions, and consideration
 17 as the director may recommend. Disposition of real property
 18 under this subsection shall be made under a procedure whereby
 19 the real property shall be sold to the highest responsive,
 20 responsible bidder, unless the executive council, by at least
 21 a two-thirds vote, agrees to accept a different bidder for
 22 good cause, or agrees to proceed in a different manner. If
 23 real property subject to sale under this subsection has been
 24 purchased or acquired from appropriated funds, the proceeds
 25 of the sale shall be deposited with the treasurer of state
 26 and credited to the general fund of the state or other fund
 27 from which appropriated. There is appropriated from that same
 28 fund, with the prior approval of the executive council and in
 29 cooperation with the director, a sum equal to the proceeds
 30 so deposited and credited to the state agency to which the
 31 disposed real property belonged or by which it was used, for
 32 purposes of the state agency.

33 Sec. 4. Section 297.22, subsection 1, paragraph a, Code
 34 2020, is amended to read as follows:

35 *a.* The board of directors of a school district may sell,

PAGE 3

1 lease, or dispose of, in whole or in part, a schoolhouse,
 2 school site, or other property belonging to the district. The
 3 board shall sell real property to the highest responsive,
 4 responsible bidder unless the board, by at least a two-thirds
 5 vote, agrees to accept a different bidder for good cause,
 6 or agrees to proceed in a different manner. If the real
 7 property contains less than two acres, is located outside of a
 8 city, is not adjacent to a city, and was previously used as a
 9 schoolhouse site, the procedure contained in sections 297.15
 10 through 297.20 shall be followed in lieu of this section.

11 Sec. 5. Section 331.361, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 12 by adding the following new paragraph:

13 NEW PARAGRAPH. *0a.* The board shall dispose of real property
 14 under a procedure whereby real property shall be sold to the
 15 highest responsive, responsible bidder unless the board, by at

16 least a two-thirds vote, agrees to accept a different bidder
 17 for good cause, or agrees to proceed in a different manner.
 18 Sec. 6. Section 359.52, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 19 by adding the following new paragraph:
 20 NEW PARAGRAPH. *0a.* The board of trustees shall dispose of
 21 real property under a procedure whereby real property shall
 22 be sold to the highest responsive, responsible bidder unless
 23 the board, by at least a two-thirds vote, agrees to accept a
 24 different bidder for good cause, or agrees to proceed in a
 25 different manner.
 26 Sec. 7. Section 364.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 27 following new subsection:
 28 NEW SUBSECTION. 01. The council shall dispose of real
 29 property under a procedure whereby real property shall be
 30 sold to the highest responsive, responsible bidder unless the
 31 council, by at least a two-thirds vote, agrees to accept a
 32 different bidder for good cause, or agrees to proceed in a
 33 different manner.
 34 DIVISION III
 35 OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS

PAGE 4

1 Sec. 8. Section 349.2, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 2 follows:
 3 **349.2 Source of selection.**
 4 ~~Such selection~~ Selection of newspapers in which official
 5 proceedings shall be published shall be from newspapers
 6 published, and having the largest number of bona fide yearly
 7 subscribers, within the county. When counties are divided into
 8 two divisions for district court purposes, each division shall
 9 be regarded as a county. In the event there is no newspaper
 10 published within the county, selection shall be as provided in
 11 section 349.6.
 12 Sec. 9. Section 349.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 13 following new subsection:
 14 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. However, if there is no newspaper
 15 published within the county, the newspaper to be selected shall
 16 be determined as provided in this subsection. If one newspaper
 17 is to be selected, the board shall select a newspaper located
 18 within twenty-five miles of the border of the county that meets
 19 the requirements of section 618.5. If two newspapers are to be
 20 selected and the two newspapers with the largest number of bona
 21 fide yearly subscribers within the county are both located more
 22 than twenty-five miles from the border of the county, then the
 23 board may substitute one of the two newspapers with a newspaper
 24 that is located within twenty-five miles from the border of the
 25 county that meets the requirements of section 618.5. The board
 26 shall, in the presence of the contestants, determine the other
 27 official newspaper by lot between the previously determined two
 28 newspapers.
 29 Sec. 10. Section 618.14, Code 2020, is amended to read as

30 follows:

31 **618.14 Publication of matters of public importance.**

32 1. The governing body of any municipality or other political
 33 subdivision of the state may publish, as straight matter or
 34 display, any matter of general public importance, in one or
 35 more newspapers, as defined in section 618.3 published in and

PAGE 5

1 having general circulation in such municipality or political
 2 subdivision, at the legal or appropriate commercial rate,
 3 according to the character of the matter published.
 4 2. In the event there is no such newspaper published in
 5 such municipality or political subdivision or in the event
 6 publication in more than one such newspaper is desired,
 7 publication may be made in any such newspaper having general
 8 circulation in such municipality or political subdivision.
 9 However, if no newspaper having general circulation within
 10 a municipality or political subdivision is located within
 11 twenty-five miles from the border of the municipality or
 12 political subdivision, the applicable governing body may waive
 13 the requirements in section 618.3 and designate a newspaper
 14 that is located in the applicable municipality or political
 15 subdivision or is located within twenty-five miles from the
 16 border of the applicable municipality or political subdivision
 17 that meets the requirements of section 618.5.>
 18 2. Title page, by striking lines 1 through 3 and inserting
 19 <An Act concerning governmental real property and official
 20 publications.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8316

1 Amend House File 2485, as passed by the House, as follows:
 2 1. Page 1, line 8, after <weather> by inserting <, a public
 3 health emergency,>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8317

1 Amend House File 2643, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the House, as follows:
 3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:
 5 <DIVISION I
 6 CONTINUING APPROPRIATIONS
 7 Section 1. CONTINUING APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021.
 8 1. APPROPRIATIONS DETERMINED FROM FY 2019-2020 LINE ITEM
 9 AND LIMITED STANDING APPROPRIATIONS.
 10 a. For all line item appropriations, standing limited

11 appropriations, and standing unlimited appropriations otherwise
 12 limited by law, including appropriations from federal and
 13 nonstate funds, the department of management, in consultation
 14 with the legislative services agency, shall determine the
 15 amount of such line item appropriations, standing limited
 16 appropriations, and standing unlimited appropriations otherwise
 17 limited by law, including appropriations from federal and
 18 nonstate funds, made for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 19 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, by taking into consideration
 20 all of the following:
 21 (1) 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate Files 2144 and 2408, and other
 22 2020 Iowa Acts.
 23 (2) 2019 Iowa Acts.
 24 (3) All interdepartmental and intradepartmental transfers
 25 made pursuant to section 8.39 and other provisions of law.
 26 (4) Other provisions of law.
 27 b. The department of management, in consultation with the
 28 legislative services agency, shall also identify the entities
 29 to which such appropriations were made, or the entities'
 30 successors.
 31 2. CONTINUING APPROPRIATIONS. There is appropriated
 32 from the appropriate state fund or account to the entities
 33 identified pursuant to subsection 1, for the fiscal year
 34 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, amounts, or
 35 so much thereof as is necessary, equal to the amounts of all

PAGE 2

1 line item appropriations, standing limited appropriations, and
 2 standing unlimited appropriations otherwise limited by law,
 3 including federal and nonstate funds, made for the fiscal year
 4 beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, as determined
 5 pursuant to subsection 1, to be used for the same designated
 6 purposes.
 7 3. DUPLICATIVE STANDING APPROPRIATIONS SUPPLANTED. The
 8 amounts appropriated under subsection 2 shall supplant
 9 any duplicative standing appropriation for the fiscal year
 10 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.
 11 4. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO FY 2020–2021.
 12 Any powers, duties, limitations, or requirements, including
 13 reporting requirements, set forth in 2019 Iowa Acts, chapters
 14 85, 89, 131, 135, 136, 154, 155, and 163, for the fiscal
 15 year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, are
 16 applicable for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 17 ending June 30, 2021, and any specified date contained therein
 18 shall apply one year later than specified in such chapters.
 19 5. ALLOCATION AMOUNTS. For any line item appropriation,
 20 standing limited appropriation, or standing unlimited
 21 appropriation otherwise limited by law identified pursuant
 22 to subsection 1 which is subject to an allocation amount for
 23 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30,
 24 2020, the amount appropriated under subsection 2 based on such

25 appropriation shall be subject to the same allocation amount
26 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
27 2021.
28 6. NONREVERSION PROVISIONS. For any line item
29 appropriation, standing limited appropriation, or standing
30 unlimited appropriation otherwise limited by law identified
31 pursuant to subsection 1 that is subject to a specified
32 nonreversion provision, whether for a limited or unlimited
33 period, the amount appropriated under subsection 2 based on
34 such appropriation shall be subject to the same specified
35 nonreversion provision, and in the case of a specified

PAGE 3

1 nonreversion provision for a limited period, the period shall
2 be considered to be one fiscal year longer than specified for
3 the appropriation identified pursuant to subsection 1.
4 7. FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT POSITIONS. The amounts
5 appropriated under subsection 2 to an entity identified
6 pursuant to subsection 1 may be used by the entity for a number
7 of full-time equivalent positions for the fiscal year beginning
8 July 1, 2020, and ending June 20, 2021, equal to the number of
9 full-time equivalent positions authorized for the entity for
10 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30,
11 2020.
12 8. EXCLUSIONS. This section does not apply to any of the
13 following:
14 a. Appropriations made from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure
15 fund and the technology reinvestment fund pursuant to 2019 Iowa
16 Acts, chapter 137.
17 b. Appropriations made to the department of transportation
18 from the road use tax fund and the primary road fund pursuant
19 to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 52.
20 c. The appropriation made to the department of
21 administrative services from the general fund of the state for
22 establishing a listing of real property owned or leased by
23 the state pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 136, section 1,
24 subsection 1, paragraph "d".
25 d. The appropriation made to the department of cultural
26 affairs from the general fund of the state for payment of
27 rent for the state records center pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts,
28 chapter 154, section 1, subsection 1, paragraph "g".
29 e. The appropriation made to the Iowa law enforcement
30 academy from the general fund of the state for costs associated
31 with temporary relocation of the Iowa law enforcement academy
32 pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 163, section 10, subsection
33 1, paragraph "a", subparagraph (2), as amended in this Act.
34 f. The appropriation made to the department of homeland
35 security and emergency management from the general fund of the

PAGE 4

1 state for flood recovery pursuant to 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate
 2 File 2144, section 3.
 3 g. The appropriation made to the department of management
 4 for distribution of moneys to other governmental entities for
 5 the payment of rate adjustments established by the office of
 6 the chief information officer pursuant to 2019 Iowa Acts,
 7 chapter 136, section 16, subsection 2.
 8 h. The appropriation made to the department of revenue from
 9 the general fund of the state for technology upgrades pursuant
 10 to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 136, section 19, subsection 1,
 11 paragraph “b”.
 12 i. Any line item appropriation, standing limited
 13 appropriation, or standing unlimited appropriation otherwise
 14 limited by law that is otherwise provided for in this Act.
 15 Sec. 2. REPEAL. 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2408, sections
 16 7 and 8, are repealed.

17 DIVISION II
 18 GENERAL ASSEMBLY

19 Sec. 3. GENERAL ASSEMBLY.

20 1. The appropriations made pursuant to section 2.12 for the
 21 expenses of the general assembly and legislative agencies for
 22 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
 23 2021, are reduced by the following amount:

24 \$ 1,000,000

25 2. The budgeted amounts for the general assembly and
 26 legislative agencies for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 27 2020, may be adjusted to reflect the unexpended budgeted
 28 amounts from the previous fiscal year.

29 DIVISION III

30 ADMINISTRATION AND REGULATION APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

31 Sec. 4. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES. There
 32 is appropriated from the general fund of the state to the
 33 department of administrative services for the fiscal year
 34 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
 35 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the

PAGE 5

1 purposes designated:
 2 For the payment of utility costs, and for not more than the
 3 following full-time equivalent positions:

4 \$ 3,882,948
 5 FTEs 1.00

6 Notwithstanding section 8.33, any excess moneys appropriated
 7 for utility costs in this section shall not revert to the
 8 general fund of the state at the end of the fiscal year but
 9 shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 10 designated during the succeeding fiscal year.

11 Sec. 5. SECRETARY OF STATE — ADMINISTRATION AND
 12 ELECTIONS. There is appropriated from the general fund of the

13 state to the office of the secretary of state for the fiscal
14 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the
15 following amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be
16 used for the purposes designated:

17 For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
18 purposes, and for not more than the following full-time
19 equivalent positions:
20 \$ 1,874,870
21 FTEs 16.00

22 The state department or agency that provides data processing
23 services to support voter registration file maintenance and
24 storage shall provide those services without charge.

25 DIVISION IV

26 EDUCATION APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

27 Sec. 6. STATE BOARD OF REGENTS. There is appropriated from
28 the general fund of the state to the state board of regents
29 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
30 30, 2021, the following amounts, or so much thereof as is
31 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

32 1. STATE SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF

33 For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
34 purposes, and for not more than the following full-time
35 equivalent positions:

PAGE 6

1 \$ 10,536,171
2 FTEs 101.84
3 2. IOWA BRAILLE AND SIGHT SAVING SCHOOL
4 For salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
5 purposes, and for not more than the following full-time
6 equivalent positions:
7 \$ 4,434,459
8 FTEs 58.00

9 Sec. 7. BOARD OF REGENTS — REDUCTION. The appropriations
10 made to the state board of regents for the fiscal year
11 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, pursuant to
12 section 1 of this Act, shall be collectively reduced by the
13 following amount:

14 \$ 8,000,000

15 The reduction set forth in this section shall be distributed
16 among the appropriations made to the state board of regents for
17 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
18 2021, pursuant to section 1 of this Act as determined by the
19 state board of regents.

20 Sec. 8. Section 261.20, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
21 to read as follows:

22 2. The maximum balance of the scholarship and tuition
23 grant reserve fund is an amount equal to ~~one~~ two percent of
24 the funds appropriated to the scholarship and tuition grant
25 programs under section 261.25 during the preceding fiscal year.
26 The moneys in the fund shall be placed in separate accounts

27 within the fund, according to the source and purpose of the
 28 original appropriation. Moneys in the various accounts shall
 29 only be used to alleviate a current fiscal year shortfall in
 30 appropriations for scholarship or tuition grant programs that
 31 have the same nature as the programs for which the moneys
 32 were originally appropriated. At the conclusion of a fiscal
 33 year, any surplus appropriations made to the commission for
 34 scholarship or tuition grant programs are appropriated to the
 35 scholarship and grant reserve fund in an amount equal to the

PAGE 7

1 amount of the surplus or the amount necessary to achieve the
 2 maximum balance, whichever amount is less.

3 DIVISION V

4 JUDICIAL APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

5 Sec. 9. JUDICIAL BRANCH.

6 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the state
 7 to the judicial branch for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 8 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amounts, or so
 9 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
 10 designated:

11 a. For salaries of supreme court justices, appellate court
 12 judges, district court judges, district associate judges,
 13 associate juvenile judges, associate probate judges, judicial
 14 magistrates and staff, state court administrator, clerk of
 15 the supreme court, district court administrators, clerks of
 16 the district court, juvenile court officers, board of law
 17 examiners, board of examiners of shorthand reporters, and
 18 commission on judicial qualifications; receipt and disbursement
 19 of child support payments; reimbursement of the auditor
 20 of state for expenses incurred in completing audits of the
 21 offices of the clerks of the district court during the fiscal
 22 year beginning July 1, 2020; and maintenance, equipment, and
 23 miscellaneous purposes:

24 \$181,023,737

25 b. For deposit in the revolving fund created pursuant to
 26 section 602.1302, subsection 3, for jury and witness fees,
 27 mileage, costs related to summoning jurors, costs of fees for
 28 interpreters and translators, and reimbursement of attorney
 29 fees paid by the state public defender:

30 \$ 3,100,000

31 2. The judicial branch, except for purposes of internal
 32 processing, shall use the current state budget system, the
 33 state payroll system, and the Iowa finance and accounting
 34 system in administration of programs and payments for services,
 35 and shall not duplicate the state payroll, accounting, and

PAGE 8

1 budgeting systems.

2 3. The judicial branch shall submit monthly financial

3 statements to the legislative services agency and the
4 department of management containing all appropriated accounts
5 in the same manner as provided in the monthly financial status
6 reports and personal services usage reports of the department
7 of administrative services. The monthly financial statements
8 shall include a comparison of the dollars and percentage
9 spent of budgeted versus actual revenues and expenditures on
10 a cumulative basis for full-time equivalent positions and
11 dollars.

12 4. The judicial branch shall focus efforts on the collection
13 of delinquent fines, penalties, court costs, fees, surcharges,
14 or similar amounts.

15 5. It is the intent of the general assembly that the offices
16 of the clerks of the district court operate in all 99 counties
17 and be accessible to the public as much as is reasonably
18 possible in order to address the relative needs of the citizens
19 of each county. An office of the clerk of the district court
20 shall be open regular courthouse hours.

21 6. In addition to the requirements for transfers under
22 section 8.39, the judicial branch shall not change the
23 appropriations from the amounts appropriated to the judicial
24 branch in this Act, unless notice of the revisions is given to
25 the legislative services agency prior to the effective date.
26 The notice shall include information on the branch's rationale
27 for making the changes and details concerning the workload and
28 performance measures upon which the changes are based.

29 7. The judicial branch shall submit a semiannual update
30 to the legislative services agency specifying the amounts of
31 fines, surcharges, and court costs collected using the Iowa
32 court information system since the last report. The judicial
33 branch shall continue to facilitate the sharing of vital
34 sentencing and other information with other state departments
35 and governmental agencies involved in the criminal justice

PAGE 9

1 system through the Iowa court information system.
2 8. The judicial branch shall provide a report to the general
3 assembly by January 1, 2021, concerning the amounts received
4 and expended from the enhanced court collections fund created
5 in section 602.1304 and the court technology and modernization
6 fund created in section 602.8108, subsection 9, during the
7 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020,
8 and the plans for expenditures from each fund during the fiscal
9 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021. A copy
10 of the report shall be provided to the legislative services
11 agency.

12 Sec. 10. CIVIL TRIALS — LOCATION. Notwithstanding any
13 provision to the contrary, for the fiscal year beginning July
14 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, if all parties in a case
15 agree, a civil trial including a jury trial may take place in a
16 county contiguous to the county with proper jurisdiction, even

17 if the contiguous county is located in an adjacent judicial
18 district or judicial election district. If the trial is moved
19 pursuant to this section, court personnel shall treat the case
20 as if a change of venue occurred.

21 DIVISION VI

22 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

23 Sec. 11. TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES BLOCK

24 GRANT. There is appropriated from the fund created in section
25 8.41 to the department of human services for the fiscal year
26 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, from moneys
27 received under the federal temporary assistance for needy
28 families (TANF) block grant pursuant to the federal Personal
29 Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996,
30 Pub. L. No. 104-193, and successor legislation, the following
31 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
32 purposes designated:

33 To be credited to the family investment program account and
34 used for assistance under the family investment program under
35 chapter 239B:

PAGE 10

1 \$ 5,002,006
2 Sec. 12. MEDICAL ASSISTANCE. There is appropriated from the
3 general fund of the state to the department of human services
4 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
5 2021, the following amount, or so much thereof as is necessary,
6 to be used for the purpose designated:

7 For medical assistance program reimbursement and associated
8 costs as specifically provided in the reimbursement
9 methodologies in effect on June 30, 2020, except as otherwise
10 expressly authorized by law, consistent with options under
11 federal law and regulations, and contingent upon receipt of
12 approval from the office of the governor of reimbursement for
13 each abortion performed under the program:

14 \$ 1,459,599,409

15 The prohibitions, limitations, transfers, authorizations,
16 requirements applicable to state and private entities, and
17 requirements applicable to the use of appropriated moneys,
18 including allocation amounts, set forth in 2019 Iowa Acts,
19 chapter 85, section 13, subsections 1 through 20, apply to
20 the moneys appropriated in this section for the fiscal year
21 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021.

22 Sec. 13. STATE SUPPLEMENTARY ASSISTANCE.

23 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the
24 state to the department of human services for the fiscal year
25 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
26 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
27 purpose designated:

28 For the state supplementary assistance program:
29 \$ 7,349,002

30 2. The department shall increase the personal needs

31 allowance for residents of residential care facilities by the
 32 same percentage and at the same time as federal supplemental
 33 security income and federal social security benefits are
 34 increased due to a recognized increase in the cost of living.
 35 The department may adopt emergency rules to implement this

PAGE 11

1 subsection.
 2 3. If during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,
 3 the department projects that state supplementary assistance
 4 expenditures for a calendar year will not meet the federal
 5 pass-through requirement specified in Tit. XVI of the federal
 6 Social Security Act, section 1618, as codified in 42 U.S.C.
 7 §1382g, the department may take actions including but not
 8 limited to increasing the personal needs allowance for
 9 residential care facility residents and making programmatic
 10 adjustments or upward adjustments of the prescribed residential
 11 care facility or in-home health-related care reimbursement
 12 rates to ensure that federal requirements are met. In
 13 addition, the department may make other programmatic and rate
 14 adjustments necessary to remain within the amount appropriated
 15 in this section while ensuring compliance with federal
 16 requirements. The department may adopt emergency rules to
 17 implement the provisions of this subsection.
 18 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated
 19 in this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated
 20 at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert but
 21 shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 22 designated, including for liability amounts associated with the
 23 supplemental nutrition assistance program payment error rate,
 24 until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.
 25 Sec. 14. CHILDREN'S HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM.
 26 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the
 27 state to the department of human services for the fiscal year
 28 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
 29 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
 30 purpose designated:
 31 For maintenance of the healthy and well kids in Iowa (hawk-i)
 32 program pursuant to chapter 514I, including supplemental dental
 33 services, for receipt of federal financial participation under
 34 Tit. XXI of the federal Social Security Act, which creates the
 35 children's health insurance program:

PAGE 12

1 \$ 37,598,984
 2 2. Of the funds appropriated in this section, \$146,682 is
 3 allocated for continuation of the contract for outreach with
 4 the department of public health.
 5 3. A portion of the funds appropriated in this section may
 6 be transferred to the appropriations made for field operations

7 or medical contracts to be used for the integration of hawk-i
8 program eligibility, payment, and administrative functions
9 under the purview of the department of human services,
10 including for the Medicaid management information system
11 upgrade.

12 Sec. 15. STATE RESOURCE CENTERS.

13 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the
14 state to the department of human services for the fiscal year
15 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
16 amounts, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
17 purposes designated:

18 a. For the state resource center at Glenwood for salaries,
19 support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:

20 \$ 16,700,867

21 b. For the state resource center at Woodward for salaries,
22 support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:

23 \$ 10,913,360

24 2. The department may continue to bill for state resource
25 center services utilizing a scope of services approach used for
26 private providers of intermediate care facilities for persons
27 with an intellectual disability services, in a manner which
28 does not shift costs between the medical assistance program,
29 counties, or other sources of funding for the state resource
30 centers.

31 3. The state resource centers may expand the time-limited
32 assessment and respite services during the fiscal year.

33 4. If the department's administration and the department
34 of management concur with a finding by a state resource
35 center's superintendent that projected revenues can reasonably

PAGE 13

1 be expected to pay the salary and support costs for a new
2 employee position, or that such costs for adding a particular
3 number of new positions for the fiscal year would be less
4 than the overtime costs if new positions would not be added,
5 the superintendent may add the new position or positions. If
6 the vacant positions available to a resource center do not
7 include the position classification desired to be filled, the
8 state resource center's superintendent may reclassify any
9 vacant position as necessary to fill the desired position. The
10 superintendents of the state resource centers may, by mutual
11 agreement, pool vacant positions and position classifications
12 during the course of the fiscal year in order to assist one
13 another in filling necessary positions.

14 5. If existing capacity limitations are reached in
15 operating units, a waiting list is in effect for a service or
16 a special need for which a payment source or other funding
17 is available for the service or to address the special need,
18 and facilities for the service or to address the special need
19 can be provided within the available payment source or other
20 funding, the superintendent of a state resource center may

21 authorize opening not more than two units or other facilities
22 and begin implementing the service or addressing the special
23 need during fiscal year 2020-2021.

24 6. Notwithstanding section 8.33, and notwithstanding
25 the amount limitation specified in section 222.92, moneys
26 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
27 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
28 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
29 designated until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

30 Sec. 16. JUVENILE INSTITUTION. There is appropriated
31 from the general fund of the state to the department of human
32 services for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
33 June 30, 2021, the following amounts, or so much thereof as is
34 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

35 1. a. For operation of the state training school at Eldora

PAGE 14

1 and for salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
2 purposes, and for not more than the following full-time
3 equivalent positions:

4 \$ 16,029,488

5 FTEs 207.00

6 b. Of the funds appropriated in this subsection, \$91,000
7 shall be used for distribution to licensed classroom teachers
8 at this and other institutions under the control of the
9 department of human services based upon the average student
10 yearly enrollment at each institution as determined by the
11 department.

12 2. A portion of the moneys appropriated in this section
13 shall be used by the state training school at Eldora for
14 grants for adolescent pregnancy prevention activities at the
15 institution in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.

16 3. Of the funds appropriated in this subsection, \$212,000
17 shall be used by the state training school at Eldora for a
18 substance use disorder treatment program at the institution for
19 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.

20 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in
21 this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the
22 close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain
23 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the
24 close of the succeeding fiscal year.

25 Sec. 17. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH — ADDICTIVE
26 DISORDERS. There is appropriated from the general fund of the
27 state to the department of public health for the fiscal year
28 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
29 amount, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
30 purposes designated:

31 1. For reducing the prevalence of the use of tobacco,
32 alcohol, and other drugs, and treating individuals affected by
33 addictive behaviors, including gambling, and for not more than
34 the following full-time equivalent positions:

35 \$ 23,659,379

PAGE 15

1 FTEs 12.00

2 2. a. Of the funds appropriated in this section, \$4,021,000

3 shall be used for the tobacco use prevention and control

4 initiative, including efforts at the state and local levels,

5 as provided in chapter 142A. The commission on tobacco use

6 prevention and control established pursuant to section 142A.3

7 shall advise the director of public health in prioritizing

8 funding needs and the allocation of moneys appropriated for

9 the programs and initiatives. Activities of the programs

10 and initiatives shall be in alignment with the United States

11 centers for disease control and prevention best practices

12 for comprehensive tobacco control programs that include

13 the goals of preventing youth initiation of tobacco usage,

14 reducing exposure to secondhand smoke, and promotion of

15 tobacco cessation. To maximize resources, the department

16 shall determine if third-party sources are available to

17 instead provide nicotine replacement products to an applicant

18 prior to provision of such products to an applicant under

19 the initiative. The department shall track and report to

20 the individuals specified in this section, any reduction in

21 the provision of nicotine replacement products realized by

22 the initiative through implementation of the prerequisite

23 screening.

24 b. (1) The department shall collaborate with the

25 alcoholic beverages division of the department of commerce for

26 enforcement of tobacco laws, regulations, and ordinances and to

27 engage in tobacco control activities approved by the division

28 of tobacco use prevention and control of the department of

29 public health as specified in the memorandum of understanding

30 entered into between the divisions.

31 (2) For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending

32 June 30, 2021, the terms of the memorandum of understanding,

33 entered into between the division of tobacco use prevention

34 and control of the department of public health and the

35 alcoholic beverages division of the department of commerce,

PAGE 16

1 governing compliance checks conducted to ensure licensed retail

2 tobacco outlet conformity with tobacco laws, regulations, and

3 ordinances relating to persons under 18 years of age, shall

4 continue to restrict the number of such checks to one check per

5 retail outlet, and one additional check for any retail outlet

6 found to be in violation during the first check.

7 3. a. Of the funds appropriated in this section,

8 \$19,639,000 shall be used for problem gambling and

9 substance-related disorder prevention, treatment, and recovery

10 services, including a 24-hour helpline, public information

11 resources, professional training, youth prevention, and program
12 evaluation.

13 b. Of the amount allocated under this subsection, \$306,000
14 shall be utilized by the department of public health, in
15 collaboration with the department of human services, to support
16 establishment and maintenance of a single statewide 24-hour
17 crisis hotline for the Iowa children’s behavioral health system
18 that incorporates warmline services which may be provided
19 through expansion of existing capabilities maintained by the
20 department of public health as required pursuant to 2018 Iowa
21 Acts, chapter 1056, section 16.

22 4. The requirement of section 123.17, subsection 5, is met
23 by the appropriations and allocations made in this section
24 and section 1 of this Act for purposes of substance-related
25 disorder treatment and addictive disorders for the fiscal year
26 beginning July 1, 2020.

27 Sec. 18. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH — SPORTS WAGERING
28 RECEIPTS FUND. There is appropriated from the sports wagering
29 receipts fund created in section 8.57, subsection 6, to the
30 department of public health for the fiscal year beginning July
31 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or
32 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
33 designated:

34 For problem gambling and substance-related disorder
35 prevention, treatment, and recovery services, including a

PAGE 17

1 24-hour helpline, public information resources, professional
2 training, youth prevention, and program evaluation:

3 \$ 1,450,000

4 The appropriation made in this section shall not supplant
5 the appropriation made to the department of public health from
6 the sports wagering receipts fund pursuant to section 1 of this
7 Act, based on the appropriation made in 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter
8 133.

9 DIVISION VII

10 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — PRIOR APPROPRIATIONS AND OTHER
11 PROVISIONS

12 RURAL PSYCHIATRIC RESIDENCIES

13 Sec. 19. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection
14 4, paragraph j, is amended to read as follows:

15 j. Of the funds appropriated in this subsection, \$400,000
16 shall be used for rural psychiatric residencies to support the
17 annual creation and training of four psychiatric residents who
18 will provide mental health services in underserved areas of
19 the state. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys that remain
20 unencumbered or unobligated at the close of the fiscal year
21 shall not revert but shall remain available for expenditure for
22 the purposes designated for subsequent fiscal years.

23 FAMILY INVESTMENT PROGRAM ACCOUNT

24 Sec. 20. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, is amended

25 by adding the following new subsection:

26 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 7. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys
 27 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
 28 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
 29 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 30 designated, and may be transferred to the appropriations made
 31 in this division of this Act for general administration and
 32 field operations for technology needs including the eligibility
 33 integrated applications solutions (ELIAS) project, until the
 34 close of the succeeding fiscal year.

35 STATE SUPPLEMENTARY ASSISTANCE

PAGE 18

1 Sec. 21. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 15, subsection
 2 4, is amended to read as follows:

3 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated
 4 in this section that remain unencumbered or unobligated
 5 at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert but
 6 shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 7 designated, including for liability amounts associated with the
 8 supplemental nutrition assistance program payment error rate,
 9 until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

10 CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

11 Sec. 22. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, subsection
 12 18, is amended to read as follows:

13 18. Of the funds appropriated in this section, at least
 14 \$147,000 shall be used for the continuation of the child
 15 welfare provider training academy, a collaboration between the
 16 coalition for family and children's services in Iowa and the
 17 department. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys allocated
 18 under this subsection that remain unencumbered or unobligated
 19 at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall
 20 remain available for expenditure for the purposes designated
 21 until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

22 Sec. 23. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, is amended
 23 by adding the following new subsection:

24 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 24. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys
 25 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
 26 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
 27 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
 28 designated, and including services implemented to meet the
 29 requirements of the federal Family First Prevention Services
 30 Act, until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

31 MENTAL HEALTH INSTITUTES

32 Sec. 24. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection
 33 2, is amended to read as follows:

34 2. a. Notwithstanding sections 218.78 and 249A.11, any
 35 revenue received from the state mental health institute at

PAGE 19

1 Cherokee or the state mental health institute at Independence
2 pursuant to 42 C.F.R §438.6(e) may be retained and expended by
3 the mental health institute.

4 b. Notwithstanding sections 218.78 and 249A.11, any
5 COVID-19 related funding received through federal funding
6 sources by the state mental health institute at Cherokee or the
7 state mental health institute at Independence may be retained
8 and expended by the mental health institute.

9 FIELD OPERATIONS

10 Sec. 25. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 27, is amended
11 by adding the following new subsection:
12 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys
13 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
14 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
15 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
16 designated until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

17 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

18 Sec. 26. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 28, is amended
19 by adding the following new subsection:
20 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys
21 appropriated in this section that remain unencumbered or
22 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
23 but shall remain available for expenditure for the purposes
24 designated until the close of the succeeding fiscal year.

25 DECATEGORIZATION FY 2018 CARRYOVER FUNDING

26 Sec. 27. DECATEGORIZATION CARRYOVER FUNDING FY 2018 —
27 TRANSFER TO MEDICAID PROGRAM. Notwithstanding section 232.188,
28 subsection 5, paragraph “b”, any state-appropriated moneys in
29 the funding pool that remained unencumbered or unobligated
30 at the close of the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017, and
31 were deemed carryover funding to remain available for the two
32 succeeding fiscal years that still remain unencumbered or
33 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year beginning July 1,
34 2019, shall not revert but shall be transferred to the medical
35 assistance program for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.

PAGE 20

1 Sec. 28. PROVISIONS NOT APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. All
2 of the following amendments to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, are
3 not applicable to the associated appropriations made for the
4 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021,
5 notwithstanding section 1 of this Act:

- 6 1. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, as amended in this
7 division of this Act.
- 8 2. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, subsection 18, as
9 amended in this division of this Act.
- 10 3. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 19, subsection 24, if
11 enacted by this division of this Act.
- 12 4. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 27, as amended in

13 this division of this Act.

14 5. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 28, as amended in
15 this division of this Act.

16 Sec. 29. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. All of
17 the following amendments to 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, are
18 applicable to the associated appropriations made for the fiscal
19 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, pursuant
20 to section 1 of this Act:

21 1. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 4,
22 paragraph “j”.

23 2. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 15, subsection 4.

24 3. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection 2, as
25 amended in this division of this Act.

26 Sec. 30. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
27 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

28 Sec. 31. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
29 Act applies retroactively to July 1, 2019.

30 DIVISION VIII

31 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — FY 2019-2020 PROVISIONS NOT
32 APPLICABLE FOR FY 2020-2021

33 Sec. 32. HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PROVISIONS NOT
34 APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. The following provisions of 2019
35 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, are not applicable to the associated

PAGE 21

1 appropriations made for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,
2 and ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 1 of this
3 Act:

4 1. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 2,
5 paragraph “a”.

6 2. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 7,
7 paragraph “b”.

8 3. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 3, subsection 9,
9 paragraph “b”.

10 4. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 4, subsection 1.

11 5. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, subsection 4.

12 6. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 13, subsections 21,
13 22, 23, and 24.

14 7. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 18, subsection 1,
15 paragraph “c”.

16 8. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 22, subsection 2.

17 9. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection 1,
18 paragraph “a”, subparagraph (2).

19 10. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 24, subsection 1,
20 paragraph “b”, subparagraph (2).

21 11. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 26, subsection 1,
22 paragraph “b”.

23 12. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 27, subsection 2.

24 13. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 32, subsection 1.

25 14. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 33.

26 15. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, divisions VII, VIII, XI,

27 XII, XIV, XVI, XIX, and XXVII.

28 DIVISION IX

29 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — NEW PROVISIONS APPLICABLE FOR FY
30 2020-2021

31 STATE MEDICAL EXAMINER

32 Sec. 33. STATE MEDICAL EXAMINER — USE OF MONEYS. For
33 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
34 2021, a portion of the moneys appropriated from the general
35 fund of the state to the department of public health for

PAGE 22

1 public protection shall be used to support the office of the
2 state medical examiner and to address the growth in demand
3 for services. The office of the state medical examiner shall
4 enter into a memorandum of understanding with the university
5 of Iowa hospitals and clinics to coordinate the completion of
6 forensic autopsies to address increased caseloads and prolonged
7 backlogs, and to promote regional efficiencies.

8 HOPES — HFI

9 Sec. 34. HEALTHY OPPORTUNITIES FOR PARENTS TO EXPERIENCE
10 SUCCESS (HOPES) — HEALTHY FAMILIES IOWA (HFI) PROGRAM. For
11 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
12 2021, of the funds appropriated from the general fund of the
13 state to the department of public health for healthy children
14 and families, not more than \$734,000 shall be used for the
15 healthy opportunities for parents to experience success (HOPES)
16 — healthy families Iowa (HFI) program established pursuant to
17 section 135.106.

18 SEXUAL VIOLENCE PREVENTION PROGRAMMING

19 Sec. 35. SEXUAL VIOLENCE PREVENTION PROGRAMMING. For
20 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June
21 30, 2021, of the moneys appropriated from the general fund
22 of the state to the department of public health for public
23 protection, up to \$243,000 shall be used for sexual violence
24 prevention programming through a statewide organization
25 representing programs serving victims of sexual violence
26 through the department's sexual violence prevention program,
27 and for continuation of a training program for sexual assault
28 response team (SART) members, including representatives of
29 law enforcement, victim advocates, prosecutors, and certified
30 medical personnel. The amount allocated in this section shall
31 not be used to supplant funding administered for other sexual
32 violence prevention or victims assistance programs.

33 TAX PREPARATION ASSISTANCE

34 Sec. 36. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES — TAX PREPARATION
35 ASSISTANCE. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and

PAGE 23

1 ending June 30, 2021, of the moneys appropriated from the
2 general fund of the state to the department of human services

3 to be credited to the family investment program account and
 4 used for family investment assistance under chapter 239B,
 5 \$195,000 shall be used for a contract executed in accordance
 6 with 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, section 9, subsection 4,
 7 with an Iowa-based nonprofit organization with a history of
 8 providing tax preparation assistance to low-income Iowans in
 9 order to expand the usage of the earned income tax credit.
 10 The purpose of the contract is to supply this assistance to
 11 underserved areas of the state.

12 HEALTH PROGRAM OPERATIONS

13 Sec. 37. HEALTH PROGRAM OPERATIONS. There is appropriated
 14 from the general fund of the state to the department of human
 15 services for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 16 June 30, 2021, the following amount or so much thereof as is
 17 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

- 18 For health program operations:
 19 \$ 17,831,343
- 20 1. The department of inspections and appeals shall provide
 21 all state matching moneys for survey and certification
 22 activities performed by the department of inspections
 23 and appeals. The department of human services is solely
 24 responsible for distributing the federal matching moneys for
 25 such activities.
 - 26 2. Of the moneys appropriated in this section, \$50,000 shall
 27 be used for continuation of home and community-based services
 28 waiver quality assurance programs, including the review and
 29 streamlining of processes and policies related to oversight and
 30 quality management to meet state and federal requirements.
 - 31 3. Of the amount appropriated in this section, up to
 32 \$200,000 may be transferred to the appropriation for general
 33 administration to be used for additional full-time equivalent
 34 positions in the development of key health initiatives such
 35 as development and oversight of managed care programs and

- 1 development of health strategies targeted toward improved
 2 quality and reduced costs in the Medicaid program.
- 3 4. Of the moneys appropriated in this section, \$1,000,000
 4 shall be used for planning and development, in cooperation with
 5 the department of public health, of a phased-in program to
 6 provide a dental home for children.
- 7 5. a. Of the moneys appropriated in this section, \$573,000
 8 shall be credited to the autism support program fund created
 9 in section 225D.2 to be used for the autism support program
 10 created in chapter 225D, with the exception of the following
 11 amount of this allocation which shall be used as follows:
 12 b. Of the moneys allocated in this subsection, \$25,000 shall
 13 be used for the public purpose of continuation of a grant to a
 14 nonprofit provider of child welfare services that has been in
 15 existence for more than 115 years, is located in a county with
 16 a population between 200,000 and 220,000 according to the most

17 recent federal decennial census, is licensed as a psychiatric
18 medical institution for children, and provides school-based
19 programming, to be used for support services for children with
20 autism spectrum disorder and their families.

21 Sec. 38. REFERENCES TO MEDICAL CONTRACTS — REPLACED. For
22 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
23 2021, all references in 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 85, division V,
24 to “medical contracts” shall be replaced with the term “health
25 program operations” and all transfers of funds made to or from
26 the appropriation for medical contracts shall instead be made
27 to or from the appropriation for health program operations.

28 CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

29 Sec. 39. CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES — GROUP FOSTER
30 CARE. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
31 June 30, 2021, of the funds appropriated from the general fund
32 of the state to the department of human services for child and
33 family services, \$26,025,000 is allocated as the statewide
34 expenditure target under section 232.143 for group foster care
35 maintenance and services. If the department projects that such

PAGE 25

1 expenditures for the fiscal year will be less than the target
2 amount allocated in this paragraph “a”, the department may
3 reallocate the excess to provide additional funding for family
4 foster care, independent living, family-centered services,
5 shelter care, or the child welfare emergency services addressed
6 with the allocation for shelter care.

7 FAMILY SUPPORT SUBSIDY PROGRAM

8 Sec. 40. FAMILY SUPPORT SUBSIDY PROGRAM. For the fiscal
9 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, of the
10 moneys appropriated from the general fund of the state to the
11 department of human services for the family support subsidy
12 program, at least \$875,195 is transferred to the department
13 of public health for the family support center component of
14 the comprehensive family support program under chapter 225C,
15 subchapter V.

16 DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES PROVIDER REIMBURSEMENTS

17 Sec. 41. PROVIDERS REIMBURSED UNDER THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN
18 SERVICES.

19 1. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and
20 ending June 30, 2021, the following reimbursement rates and
21 methodologies shall apply:

22 a. (1) For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,
23 case-mix, non-case-mix, and special population nursing
24 facilities shall be reimbursed in accordance with the
25 methodology in effect on June 30, 2020.

26 (2) For managed care claims, the department of human
27 services shall adjust the payment rate floor for nursing
28 facilities, annually, to maintain a rate floor that is no
29 lower than the Medicaid fee-for-service case-mix adjusted
30 rate calculated in accordance with subparagraph (1) and

31 441 IAC 81.6. The department shall then calculate adjusted
32 reimbursement rates, including but not limited to add-on
33 payments, annually, and shall notify Medicaid managed care
34 organizations of the adjusted reimbursement rates within 30
35 days of determining the adjusted reimbursement rates. Any

PAGE 26

1 adjustment of reimbursement rates under this subparagraph shall
2 be budget neutral to the state budget.
3 (3) Medicaid managed care organizations shall adjust
4 facility-specific rates based upon payment rate listings issued
5 by the department. The rate adjustments shall be applied
6 prospectively from the effective date of the rate letter issued
7 by the department.
8 b. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, reimbursement
9 rates for outpatient hospital services shall be rebased
10 effective January 1, 2021, subject to Medicaid program upper
11 payment limit rules, and adjusted as necessary to maintain
12 expenditures within the amount appropriated to the department
13 for this purpose for the fiscal year.
14 c. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, under
15 both fee-for-service and managed care administration of
16 the Medicaid program, critical access hospitals shall be
17 reimbursed for inpatient and outpatient services based on the
18 hospital-specific critical access hospital cost adjustment
19 factor methodology utilizing the most recent and complete cost
20 reporting period as applied prospectively within the funds
21 appropriated for such purpose for the fiscal year.
22 d. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, assertive
23 community treatment per diem rates shall remain at the rates in
24 effect on June 30, 2020.
25 e. Notwithstanding section 234.38, for the fiscal
26 year beginning July 1, 2020, the foster family basic daily
27 maintenance rate and the maximum adoption subsidy rate for
28 children ages 0 through 5 years shall be \$16.78, the rate for
29 children ages 6 through 11 years shall be \$17.45, the rate for
30 children ages 12 through 15 years shall be \$19.10, and the
31 rate for children and young adults ages 16 and older shall be
32 \$19.35. For youth ages 18 up to 23 who have exited foster
33 care, the preparation for adult living program maintenance rate
34 shall be \$602.70 per month. The maximum payment for adoption
35 subsidy nonrecurring expenses shall be limited to \$500 and the

PAGE 27

1 disallowance of additional amounts for court costs and other
2 related legal expenses implemented pursuant to 2010 Iowa Acts,
3 chapter 1031, section 408, shall be continued.
4 f. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, the
5 reimbursement rate for family-centered services providers shall
6 be established by contract.

7 2. With the exception of the providers and services
8 specified in subsection 1, all other provider and service
9 reimbursement rates and methodologies specified in 2019 Iowa
10 Acts, chapter 85, section 31, shall continue to be applicable
11 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30,
12 2021.

13 EMERGENCY RULES

14 Sec. 42. EMERGENCY RULES.

15 1. If necessary to comply with federal requirements
16 including time frames, or if specifically authorized by a
17 provision of this division of this Act, the department of
18 human services or the mental health and disability services
19 commission may adopt administrative rules under section 17A.4,
20 subsection 3, and section 17A.5, subsection 2, paragraph "b",
21 to implement the provisions of this division of this Act and
22 the rules shall become effective immediately upon filing or
23 on a later effective date specified in the rules, unless the
24 effective date of the rules is delayed or the applicability
25 of the rules is suspended by the administrative rules review
26 committee. Any rules adopted in accordance with this section
27 shall not take effect before the rules are reviewed by the
28 administrative rules review committee. The delay authority
29 provided to the administrative rules review committee under
30 section 17A.4, subsection 7, and section 17A.8, subsection 9,
31 shall be applicable to a delay imposed under this section,
32 notwithstanding a provision in those sections making them
33 inapplicable to section 17A.5, subsection 2, paragraph "b".
34 Any rules adopted in accordance with the provisions of this
35 section shall also be published as a notice of intended action

PAGE 28

1 as provided in section 17A.4.
2 2. If during a fiscal year, the department of human
3 services is adopting rules in accordance with this section
4 or as otherwise directed or authorized by state law, and the
5 rules will result in an expenditure increase beyond the amount
6 anticipated in the budget process or if the expenditure was
7 not addressed in the budget process for the fiscal year, the
8 department shall notify the persons designated by this division
9 of this Act for submission of reports, the chairpersons and
10 ranking members of the committees on appropriations, and
11 the department of management concerning the rules and the
12 expenditure increase. The notification shall be provided at
13 least 30 calendar days prior to the date notice of the rules
14 is submitted to the administrative rules coordinator and the
15 administrative code editor.

16 REPORT ON NONREVERSION OF FUNDS

17 Sec. 43. REPORT ON NONREVERSION OF FUNDS. The department
18 of human services shall report the expenditure of any moneys
19 for which nonreversion authorization was provided for the
20 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020,

21 for the family investment program account, state supplementary
 22 assistance, child and family services, the mental health
 23 institutes, field operations, or general administration to the
 24 chairpersons and ranking members of the joint appropriations
 25 subcommittee on health and human services, the legislative
 26 services agency, and the four legislative caucus staffs on a
 27 quarterly basis beginning October 1, 2020.

28 CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

29 Sec. 44. CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES APPROPRIATION. For the
 30 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, a
 31 portion of the funds appropriated from the general fund of the
 32 state to the department of human services for child and family
 33 services may be used for family-centered services for purposes
 34 of complying with the federal Family First Prevention Services
 35 Act of 2018, Pub. L. No. 115-123, and successor legislation.

PAGE 29

1 DIVISION X

2 PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY PROVISIONS

3 COVID-19 REGULATIONS

4 Sec. 45. COVID-19 FEDERAL REGULATIONS. For the time
 5 period beginning on the effective date of this division of
 6 this Act, and ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding state
 7 administrative rules to the contrary, to the extent federal
 8 regulations relating to the COVID-19 pandemic differ from state
 9 administrative rules, including applicable federal waivers, the
 10 federal regulations are controlling during the pendency of the
 11 federally declared state of emergency.

12 COUNTY HOSPITAL FUNDING

13 Sec. 46. COUNTY HOSPITAL FUNDING — SUSTAINING OF HOSPITAL
 14 OPERATIONS. For the time period beginning on the effective
 15 date of this division of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021,
 16 notwithstanding any provision of section 347.14, subsection
 17 4, to the contrary, a board of trustees of a county hospital
 18 may borrow moneys secured solely by hospital revenues for the
 19 purpose of providing working capital or for general financing
 20 needs to sustain hospital operations.

21 Sec. 47. COUNTY HOSPITAL FUNDING — NONCURRENT DEBT
 22 ISSUANCE. For the time period beginning on the effective
 23 date of this division of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021,
 24 notwithstanding any provision of section 331.478, subsections
 25 2 and 3, to the contrary, a board of trustees of a county
 26 hospital may authorize noncurrent debt for the purpose of
 27 providing working capital or for general financing needs to
 28 sustain a county hospital's operations including in the form of
 29 natural disaster loans from the state or federal government.

30 Sec. 48. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 31 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

32 DIVISION XI

33 MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY SERVICES

34 Sec. 49. Section 331.389, subsection 4, paragraph c, Code

35 2020, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 30

1 c. The department shall work with any county that has not
 2 agreed to be part of a region in accordance with paragraph
 3 "a" and with the regions forming around the county to resolve
 4 issues preventing the county from joining a region. In
 5 addition to the regional governance agreement requirements
 6 in section 331.392, the department may compel the county and
 7 region to engage in mediation for resolution of a dispute.
 8 The costs incurred for mediation shall be paid by the county
 9 and the region in dispute according to their governance
 10 agreement. A county that has not agreed to be part of a
 11 region in accordance with paragraph "a" shall be assigned by
 12 the department to a region, unless exempted prior to July 1,
 13 2014. A county assigned by the department to a region shall
 14 be included in that region's amended governance agreement
 15 pursuant to this section as of an effective date designated by
 16 the department. The assigned county and region shall operate
 17 according to the region's existing governance agreement until
 18 the regional governance agreement is amended.

19 Sec. 50. Section 331.389, subsection 5, Code 2020, is
 20 amended to read as follows:

21 5. a. If the department determines that a region or an
 22 exempted county is not adequately fulfilling the requirements
 23 under this chapter for a regional service system, the
 24 department shall address the region or county in the following
 25 order:

- 26 ~~a.~~ (1) Require compliance with a corrective action plan.
 27 ~~b.~~ (2) Reduce the amount of the annual state funding
 28 provided for the regional service system, not to exceed fifteen
 29 percent of the amount.
 30 ~~e.~~ (3) Withdraw approval for the region or for the county
 31 exemption, as applicable.
 32 b. The department shall rely on all information available,
 33 including annual audits submitted under section 331.391,
 34 regional governance agreements submitted under section 331.392,
 35 and annual service and budget plans submitted under section

PAGE 31

1 331.393 in determining whether a region or an exempted county
 2 is adequately fulfilling the requirements for a regional
 3 service system. The department may request and review
 4 financial documents, contracts, and other audits, and may
 5 perform on-site reviews and interviews to gather information.

6 Sec. 51. Section 331.392, subsection 4, Code 2020, is
 7 amended to read as follows:

8 4. The financial provisions of the agreement shall include
 9 all of the following:

10 a. Methods for pooling, management, and expenditure of the

11 funding under the control of the regional administrator. If
 12 the agreement does not provide for pooling of the participating
 13 county moneys in a single fund, the agreement shall specify how
 14 the participating county moneys will be subject to the control
 15 of the regional administrator.
 16 b. (1) Methods for allocating administrative funding and
 17 resources.
 18 (2) Methods for allocating a region's cash flow amount in
 19 the event a county leaves the region. A region's cash flow
 20 amount shall be divided by the percentage of each county's
 21 population according to the region's population indicated
 22 in the region's annual service and budget plan and shall be
 23 allocated to the counties. This subparagraph shall apply to
 24 all agreements in existence or entered into on or after July
 25 1, 2020.
 26 c. Contributions and uses of initial funding or related
 27 contributions made by the counties participating in the
 28 region for purposes of commencing operations by the regional
 29 administrator.
 30 d. Methods for acquiring or disposing of real property.
 31 e. A process for determining the use of savings for
 32 reinvestment.
 33 f. A process for performance of an annual independent audit
 34 of the regional administrator. The annual independent audit
 35 prepared by the regional administrator shall be submitted to

PAGE 32

1 the department upon completion of the audit.
 2 Sec. 52. Section 331.392, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 3 the following new subsection:
 4 NEW SUBSECTION. 6. All agreements shall be submitted to the
 5 department. The department shall approve the agreement if the
 6 agreement complies with the requirements of this section.
 7 Sec. 53. MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY SERVICES —
 8 REGIONALIZATION AUTHORIZATION.
 9 1. The department of human services shall facilitate the
 10 county social services mental health and disability services
 11 region dividing into two separate regions. All member
 12 counties shall participate in the planning as required by the
 13 department. Counties in the western portion of the region may
 14 form a new region if the counties meet the requirements of
 15 this section. Counties in the eastern portion of the region
 16 shall retain the name county social services if a new region is
 17 formed by the counties in the western portion of the region.
 18 2. County formation of a proposed new mental health and
 19 disability services region pursuant to this section is subject
 20 to all of the following:
 21 a. The aggregate population of all counties forming
 22 the region is at least 50,000 and includes at least one
 23 incorporated city with a population of more than 24,000. For
 24 purposes of this subparagraph, "population" means the same as

25 defined in section 331.388, subsection 4, Code 2020.
26 b. Notwithstanding section 331.389, subsection 4, on or
27 before February 1, 2021, the counties forming the region have
28 complied with section 331.389, subsection 3, and all of the
29 following additional requirements:
30 (1) The board of supervisors of each county forming the
31 region has voted to approve a chapter 28E agreement.
32 (2) The duly authorized representatives of all the counties
33 forming the region have signed a chapter 28E agreement that is
34 in compliance with section 331.392 and 441 IAC 25.14.
35 (3) The county board of supervisors' or supervisors'

PAGE 33

1 designee members and other members of the region's governing
2 board are appointed in accordance with section 331.390.
3 (4) Executive staff for the region's regional administrator
4 are identified or engaged.
5 (5) The regional service management plan is developed in
6 accordance with section 331.393 and 441 IAC 25.18 and 441 IAC
7 25.21 and is submitted to the department.
8 (6) The initial regional service management plan shall
9 identify the service provider network for the region, identify
10 the information technology and data management capacity to be
11 employed to support regional functions, and establish business
12 functions, accounting procedures, and other administrative
13 processes.
14 c. Each county forming the region shall submit the
15 compliance information required in paragraph "b" to the
16 director of human services on or before February 1, 2021.
17 Within forty-five days of receipt of such information, the
18 director of human services shall determine if the region is in
19 full compliance and shall approve the region if the region has
20 met all of the requirements of this section.
21 d. The director of human services shall work with a county
22 making a request under this section that has not agreed or
23 is unable to join the proposed new region to resolve issues
24 preventing the county from joining the proposed new region.
25 e. By February 1, 2021, the director of human services
26 shall assign a county, making a request under this section
27 that has not reached an agreement to be part of the proposed
28 new region, to an existing region or to another new proposed
29 region, consistent with this section.
30 3. If approved by the department, the region shall commence
31 full operations no later than July 1, 2021.
32 Sec. 54. MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY SERVICES — TRANSFER
33 OF FUNDS. Notwithstanding section 331.432, a county with a
34 population of over 300,000 based on the most recent federal
35 decennial census may transfer funds from any other fund

PAGE 34

1 of the county to the mental health and disability regional
 2 services fund for the purposes of providing mental health and
 3 disability services for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 4 2020, and ending June 30, 2021. The county shall submit a
 5 report to the governor and the general assembly by September
 6 1, 2021, including the source of any funds transferred, the
 7 amount of the funds transferred, and the mental health and
 8 disability services provided with the transferred funds. The
 9 county shall work with the department to maximize the use of
 10 the medical assistance program and other third-party payment
 11 sources, including but not limited to identifying individuals
 12 enrolled with or eligible for Medicaid whose Medicaid-covered
 13 services are being paid by the county or could be converted to
 14 Medicaid-covered services.

15 Sec. 55. MENTAL HEALTH AND DISABILITY SERVICES REGIONS —
 16 FUNDING.

17 1. There is appropriated from the grow Iowa values fund
 18 created in section 15G.108, Code 2009, to the department of
 19 human services for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and
 20 ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so much thereof
 21 as is necessary, to be used for the purpose designated:

22 For a grant to a single-county mental health and disability
 23 services region with a population of over 350,000 as determined
 24 by the latest federal decennial census, for the provision of
 25 mental health and disability services within the region:

26 \$ 5,000,000

27 The department and the region shall enter into a memorandum
 28 of understanding regarding the use of the moneys and detailing
 29 the provisions of the plan prior to the region’s receipt of
 30 moneys under this subsection.

31 2. The department shall distribute moneys appropriated
 32 in this section within 60 days of the date of signing of the
 33 memorandum of understanding between the department and each
 34 region.

35 3. Moneys awarded under this section shall be used by the

PAGE 35

1 regions consistent with each region’s service system management
 2 plan as approved by the department.

3 DIVISION XII

4 FOSTER HOME INSURANCE FUND

5 Sec. 56. Section 237.13, Code 2020, is amended by striking
 6 the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

7 **237.13 Foster home insurance fund.**

8 1. For the purposes of this section, “*foster home*” means an
 9 individual, as defined in section 237.1, subsection 7, who is
 10 licensed to provide child foster care and shall also be known
 11 as a “*licensed foster home*”.

12 2. The foster home insurance fund shall be administered by

13 the department of human services. The fund shall consist of
14 all moneys appropriated by the general assembly for deposit
15 in the fund. The department shall use moneys in the fund to
16 reimburse foster parents for the cost of purchasing foster care
17 liability insurance and to perform the administrative functions
18 necessary to carry out this section.

19 3. The department of human services shall adopt rules,
20 pursuant to chapter 17A, to carry out the provisions of this
21 section.

22 DIVISION XIII
23 VETERANS HOME CARRYFORWARD

24 Sec. 57. Section 35D.18, subsection 5, Code 2020, is amended
25 to read as follows:

26 5. Notwithstanding section 8.33, ~~any~~ up to eight hundred
27 thousand dollars of the balance in the Iowa veterans home
28 annual appropriation or revenues that remains unencumbered or
29 unobligated at the close of the fiscal year shall not revert
30 but shall remain available for expenditure for specified
31 purposes of the Iowa veterans home until the close of the
32 succeeding fiscal year.

33 DIVISION XIV
34 PROPERTY TAX CREDITS

35 Sec. 58. PROPERTY TAX CREDITS.

PAGE 36

1 1. In lieu of the standing appropriations in the following
2 designated sections, for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
3 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, there is appropriated from
4 the general fund of the state the following amounts for the
5 following designated purposes:
6 a. For reimbursement for the homestead property tax credit
7 under section 425.1:
8 \$139,984,518
9 b. For implementing the elderly and disabled tax credit and
10 reimbursement pursuant to sections 425.16 through 425.40:
11 \$ 20,500,000
12 2. If the director of revenue determines that the amount of
13 claims for credit for property taxes due pursuant to paragraphs
14 "a" and "b", plus the amount of claims for reimbursement for
15 rent constituting property taxes paid which are to be paid
16 during a fiscal year may exceed the total amount appropriated
17 for that fiscal year, the director shall estimate the
18 percentage of the credits and reimbursements which will be
19 funded by the appropriation. The county treasurer shall notify
20 the director of the amount of property tax credits claimed by
21 June 26, 2020. The director shall estimate the percentage of
22 the property tax credits and rent reimbursement claims that
23 will be funded by the appropriation and notify the county
24 treasurer of the percentage estimate by June 30, 2020. The
25 estimated percentage shall be used in computing for each claim
26 the amount of property tax credit and reimbursement for rent

27 constituting property taxes paid for that fiscal year. If
 28 the director overestimates the percentage of funding, claims
 29 for reimbursement for rent constituting property taxes paid
 30 shall be paid until they can no longer be paid at the estimated
 31 percentage of funding. Rent reimbursement claims filed after
 32 that point in time shall receive priority and shall be paid in
 33 the following fiscal year.
 34 Sec. 59. TAXPAYER RELIEF FUND — APPROPRIATION. There
 35 is appropriated from the taxpayer relief fund created in

PAGE 37

1 section 8.57E to the department of revenue for the fiscal year
 2 beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following
 3 amounts, or so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the
 4 purposes designated:
 5 1. For reimbursement for the homestead property tax credit
 6 under section 425.1:
 7 \$ 2,799,690
 8 2. For implementing the elderly and disabled tax credit and
 9 reimbursement pursuant to sections 425.16 through 425.40:
 10 \$ 2,460,000
 11 Sec. 60. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 12 Act, if approved by the governor after June 26, 2020, applies
 13 retroactively to June 26, 2020.

DIVISION XV

CORRECTIVE PROVISIONS

16 Sec. 61. Section 100B.41, as enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts,
 17 Senate File 2259, section 1, is amended to read as follows:
 18 **100B.41 Donation of fire fighting, emergency medical**
 19 **response, and law enforcement equipment.**
 20 A fire department, emergency medical services provider, or
 21 law enforcement agency may donate used vehicles or equipment
 22 to an organization that provides fire response or emergency
 23 medical services, or to a law enforcement agency. An entity
 24 making a good faith donation of equipment pursuant to this
 25 ~~subsection~~ section shall be immune from civil liability from
 26 any claim arising from the performance, failure to perform,
 27 nature, age, condition, or packaging of any vehicle or
 28 equipment used in fire fighting, emergency medical response,
 29 or law enforcement.
 30 Sec. 62. Section 124E.9, subsection 15, if enacted by 2020
 31 Iowa Acts, House File 2589, section 20, is amended to read as
 32 follows:
 33 15. A medical cannabidiol dispensary may dispense more
 34 than a combined total of four and one-half grams of total
 35 tetrahydrocannabinol to a patient and the patient's primary

PAGE 38

1 caregiver in a ninety-day period if any of the following apply:
 2 a. The health care practitioner who certified the patient to

3 receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies that
 4 patient's debilitating medical condition is a terminal illness
 5 with a life expectancy of less than one year. A certification
 6 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total
 7 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
 8 health care practitioner.

9 *b.* The health care practitioner who certified the patient
 10 to receive a medical cannabidiol registration card certifies
 11 that the patient has participated in the medical cannabidiol
 12 program and that the health care practitioner has determined
 13 that four and one-half grams of total tetrahydrocannabinol
 14 in a ninety-day period is insufficient to treat the
 15 patient's debilitating medical condition. A certification
 16 issued pursuant to this paragraph shall include a total
 17 tetrahydrocannabinol cap deemed appropriate by the patient's
 18 health care practitioner.

19 Sec. 63. Section 218.70, Code 2020, as amended by 2020 Iowa
 20 Acts, House File 2536, section 78, if enacted, is amended to
 21 read as follows:

22 **218.70 Payment to party entitled.**

23 Moneys transmitted to the treasurer ~~or~~ of state under
 24 section 218.68 shall be paid, at any time within ten years
 25 from the death of the intestate, to any person who is shown
 26 to be entitled thereto. Payment shall be made from the state
 27 treasury out of the support fund of such institution in the
 28 manner provided for the payment of other claims from that fund.

29 Sec. 64. Section 260C.48, subsection 1, paragraph a,
 30 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, as enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts,
 31 House File 2454, section 1, is amended to read as follows:
 32 (2) For purposes of subparagraph (1), subparagraph
 33 divisions (b) and (c), if the instructor is a licensed
 34 practitioner who holds a career and technical endorsement under
 35 chapter 272, relevant work experience in the occupational area

PAGE 39

1 includes but is not limited to classroom instruction in a
 2 career and technical education subject area offered by a school
 3 district or accredited nonpublic school.

4 Sec. 65. Section 321.279, subsection 2, paragraph b, as
 5 enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2275, section 1, is
 6 amended to read as follows:

7 *b.* The driver of a motor vehicle who commits a violation
 8 under this ~~section~~ subsection and who has previously committed
 9 a violation under this ~~section~~ subsection or subsection 3 is,
 10 upon conviction, guilty of a class "D" felony.

11 Sec. 66. Section 514C.35, subsection 4, paragraph d,
 12 subparagraph (1), if enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File
 13 2261, section 5, is amended to read as follows:

14 (1) ~~Any~~ Any school, other than a public school, that is
 15 accredited pursuant to section 256.11 for any and all levels
 16 for grades one through twelve.

17 Sec. 67. Section 709.23, subsection 2, if enacted by 2020
 18 Iowa Acts, House File 2554, section 4, is amended to read as
 19 follows:

20 2. A person who commits continuous sexual abuse of a
 21 child is, upon conviction, guilty of a class “B” felony.
 22 Notwithstanding section 902.9, subsection 1, paragraph “b”,
 23 a person convicted of a violation of this ~~subsection~~ section
 24 involving any combination of three or more acts of sexual abuse
 25 that includes a violation of section 709.3 or 709.4 shall be
 26 confined for no more than fifty years.

27 Sec. 68. 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 9,
 28 subsection 2, paragraph b, subparagraph (1), subparagraph
 29 division (a), is amended to read as follows:

30 (a) Review of requirements. The supervising physician and
 31 the physician assistant shall review all of the requirements
 32 of physician assistant licensure, practice, supervision, and
 33 delegation of medical services as set forth in section 148.13
 34 and chapter 148C, the Iowa administrative code chapter chapters
 35 under 653 IAC, and 645 IAC chapters 326 to 329.

PAGE 40

1 Sec. 69. 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 10,
 2 subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph 1, is amended to read as
 3 follows:

4 The Notwithstanding section 148C.5, the board of physician
 5 assistants shall rescind all of the following:

6 Sec. 70. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 7 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

8 Sec. 71. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following apply
 9 retroactively to March 18, 2020:

10 1. The section of this division of this Act amending 2020
 11 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 9.

12 2. The section of this division of this Act amending 2020
 13 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2357, section 10.

14 DIVISION XVI

15 IOWA STATE FAIR BOARD — BOND AUTHORIZATION

16 Sec. 72. IOWA STATE FAIR BOARD — BOND AUTHORIZATION. If
 17 the Iowa state fair board decides not to hold the Iowa state
 18 fair for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 19 June 30, 2021, the Iowa state fair board is authorized to
 20 issue and sell negotiable revenue bonds of the Iowa state fair
 21 authority pursuant to section 173.14B during the fiscal year
 22 for purposes of providing sufficient funds for the advancement
 23 of any of its corporate purposes, including salaries, support,
 24 maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes.

25 DIVISION XVII

26 IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY — RELOCATION

27 Sec. 73. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 163, section 10, subsection
 28 1, paragraph a, subparagraph (2), is amended to read as
 29 follows:

30 (2) For the costs associated with temporary relocation of

31 the Iowa law enforcement academy:
 32 \$ 1,015,442
 33 Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in this
 34 subparagraph that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the
 35 close of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain

PAGE 41

1 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the
 2 close of the fiscal year that begins July 1, 2020.

3 Sec. 74. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 4 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

5 Sec. 75. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 6 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
 7 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.

8 DIVISION XVIII
 9 NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CONCURRENT ENROLLMENT

10 Sec. 76. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 135, section 5, subsection
 11 27, is amended to read as follows:

12 27. NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CONCURRENT ENROLLMENT PAYMENTS TO
 13 COMMUNITY COLLEGES

14 For payments to community colleges for the concurrent
 15 enrollment of accredited nonpublic students under section
 16 261E.8, subsection 2, paragraph “b”, if enacted by 2019 Iowa
 17 Acts, Senate File 603:

18 \$ 1,000,000

19 Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in this
 20 subsection that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close
 21 of the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available
 22 for expenditure for the purposes designated until the close of
 23 the fiscal year that begins July 1, 2020.

24 Sec. 77. NONREVERSION NOT APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. The
 25 specified nonreversion provision set forth in 2019 Iowa Acts,
 26 chapter 135, section 5, subsection 27, as amended in this
 27 division of this Act, is not applicable to the associated
 28 appropriation made for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020,
 29 and ending June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 1 of this
 30 Act.

31 Sec. 78. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 32 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

33 Sec. 79. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 34 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
 35 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.

PAGE 42

1 DIVISION XIX
 2 RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT AND PROTECTION

3 Sec. 80. Section 455A.18, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 4 2020, is amended to read as follows:

5 a. For each fiscal year of the fiscal period beginning
 6 July 1, 1997, and ending June 30, ~~2021~~ 2023, there is

7 appropriated from the general fund, to the Iowa resources
 8 enhancement and protection fund, the amount of twenty million
 9 dollars, to be used as provided in this chapter. However,
 10 in any fiscal year of the fiscal period, if moneys from the
 11 lottery are appropriated by the state to the fund, the amount
 12 appropriated under this subsection shall be reduced by the
 13 amount appropriated from the lottery.

14 DIVISION XX

15 CLERKS OF THE DISTRICT COURT

16 Sec. 81. Section 602.1215, subsection 1, Code 2020, is
 17 amended to read as follows:

18 1. Subject to the provisions of section 602.1209,
 19 subsection 3, the district judges of each judicial election
 20 district shall by majority vote appoint persons to serve as
 21 clerks of the district court within the judicial election
 22 district. The district judges of a judicial election district
 23 may appoint a person to serve as clerk of the district court
 24 for more than one ~~but not more than four contiguous counties~~
 25 county in the same judicial district. A person does not
 26 qualify for appointment to the office of clerk of the district
 27 court unless the person is at the time of application a
 28 resident of the state. A clerk of the district court may
 29 be removed from office for cause by the chief judge of the
 30 judicial district, after consultation with the district judges
 31 of the judicial election district. Prior to removal, the
 32 clerk of the district court shall be notified of the cause for
 33 removal.

34 DIVISION XXI

35 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY APPROPRIATION — FY 2019-2020

PAGE 43

1 Sec. 82. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. There is appropriated
 2 from the general fund of the state to the department of public
 3 safety for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 4 June 30, 2020, the following amount, or so much thereof as is
 5 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

6 For overtime expenses, including salaries, support,
 7 maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:
 8 \$ 2,400,000

9 Notwithstanding section 8.33, moneys appropriated in this
 10 section that remain unencumbered or unobligated at the close of
 11 the fiscal year shall not revert but shall remain available for
 12 expenditure for the purposes designated until the close of the
 13 fiscal year that begins July 1, 2020.

14 Sec. 83. APPROPRIATION NOT APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. The
 15 appropriation set forth in this division of this Act shall not
 16 be made for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 17 June 30, 2021, notwithstanding section 1 of this Act.

18 Sec. 84. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 19 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

20 Sec. 85. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this

21 Act, if approved by the governor on or after July 1, 2020,
22 applies retroactively to June 30, 2020.

23 DIVISION XXII

24 ALARM SYSTEM CONTRACTORS — FEES AND FINES
25 Sec. 86. Section 100C.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
26 following new subsection:

27 NEW SUBSECTION. 8A. “*False alarm*” means the activation of
28 an alarm system when a situation requiring emergency response
29 does not actually exist. For purposes of this chapter, “*false*
30 *alarm*” does not include the activation of an alarm system as a
31 result of weather conditions.

32 Sec. 87. Section 100C.6, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
33 to read as follows:

34 1. Relieve any person from payment of any local permit or
35 building fee, except as provided in section 100C.11.

PAGE 44

1 Sec. 88. NEW SECTION. 100C.11 Alarm systems — fees or
2 fees — limitations.

3 A political subdivision shall not adopt or enforce an
4 ordinance, resolution, rule, or other measure requiring an
5 alarm system contractor to pay a fee or fine associated with
6 any of the following:

- 7 1. False alarms.
- 8 2. Emergency response to false alarms.
- 9 3. Permits associated with placing or keeping an alarm
10 system in service, not including any installation permits
11 required by the political subdivision’s building code.

12 Sec. 89. NEW SECTION. 100C.12 Collection of fees.

13 1. If, prior to the effective date of this division of this
14 Act, an alarm system contractor charged its customers an amount
15 equal to the costs the political subdivision of the state
16 imposed on the alarm system contractor for permits associated
17 with placing or keeping an alarm in service, as shown on a
18 separate line item on the customer’s invoice, the alarm system
19 contractor may continue to collect from its customers such fees
20 until December 31, 2020. The alarm system contractor shall
21 pay to the political subdivision of the state or its designee
22 the fees collected under this section in accordance with the
23 instructions of the political subdivision or the political
24 subdivision’s designee.

25 2. Fees collected by an alarm system contractor under
26 this section shall not be subject to audit by a political
27 subdivision or the political subdivision’s designee.

28 Sec. 90. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
29 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

30 DIVISION XXIII

31 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

32 Sec. 91. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 3, subsection
33 1, paragraph b, is amended by adding the following new
34 subparagraph:

35 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH. (7) For technical assistance to

PAGE 45

1 communications service providers in completing applications for
2 federal funds, or any other funds from any public or private
3 sources, related to improving broadband infrastructure.
4 Sec. 92. POWERS APPLICABLE TO FY 2020-2021. The powers set
5 forth in 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 3, subsection
6 1, paragraph b, as amended in this division of this Act, are
7 applicable to the associated appropriation made for the fiscal
8 year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, pursuant
9 to section 1 of this Act.

10 Sec. 93. INSURANCE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. From the
11 moneys collected by the insurance division in excess of the
12 anticipated gross revenues under section 505.7, subsection
13 3, during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, \$100,000
14 shall be transferred to the economic development authority for
15 insurance economic development and international insurance
16 economic development.

17 Sec. 94. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION
18 PROGRAM. Notwithstanding section 96.9, subsection 4, paragraph
19 "a", moneys credited to the state by the secretary of the
20 treasury of the United States pursuant to section 903 of the
21 Social Security Act are appropriated to the department of
22 workforce development and shall be used by the department for
23 the administration of the unemployment compensation program
24 only. This appropriation shall not apply to any fiscal year
25 beginning after December 31, 2020.

26 Sec. 95. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
27 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

28 Sec. 96. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following applies
29 retroactively to July 1, 2019:

30 The section of this division of this Act enacting 2019
31 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 3, subsection 1, paragraph b,
32 subparagraph (7).

33 DIVISION XXIV

34 CONTINGENT APPROPRIATIONS — FY 2020-2021

35 Sec. 97. COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION. There is

PAGE 46

1 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the college
2 student aid commission for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
3 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so
4 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
5 designated:

6 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2629,
7 if enacted, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
8 miscellaneous purposes:
9 \$ 32,000

10 Sec. 98. COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION. There is

11 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the college
 12 student aid commission for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
 13 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so
 14 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
 15 designated:

16 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2398,
 17 if enacted, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
 18 miscellaneous purposes:

19 \$ 300,000

20 Sec. 99. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. There is appropriated
 21 from the general fund of the state to the department of public
 22 safety for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending
 23 June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so much thereof as is
 24 necessary, to be used for the purposes designated:

25 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2581, as
 26 amended in this Act, if enacted, including salaries, support,
 27 maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes:

28 \$ 411,000

29 Sec. 100. IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY. There is
 30 appropriated from the general fund of the state to the Iowa
 31 law enforcement academy for the fiscal year beginning July
 32 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or
 33 so much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
 34 designated:

35 For implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2647,

PAGE 47

1 if enacted, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
 2 miscellaneous purposes:

3 \$ 140,000

4 Sec. 101. CONTINGENT REPEAL. The section of this division
 5 of this Act appropriating moneys to the college student aid
 6 commission for implementation of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File
 7 2629, is repealed if 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2629, is not
 8 enacted.

9 Sec. 102. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes
 10 effect on the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File
 11 2398, if enacted:

12 The section of this division of this Act appropriating
 13 moneys to the college student aid commission for implementation
 14 of 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2398.

15 Sec. 103. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes
 16 effect on the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File
 17 2581, as amended in this Act, if enacted:

18 The section of this division of this Act appropriating
 19 moneys to the department of public safety.

20 Sec. 104. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. The following takes
 21 effect on the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, House File
 22 2647, if enacted:

23 The section of this division of this Act appropriating
 24 moneys to the Iowa law enforcement academy.

25 DIVISION XXV
 26 ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FOUNDATION AID
 27 Sec. 105. ADJUSTMENT TO STATE FOUNDATION AID FOR SCHOOL
 28 BUDGET YEAR 2020-2021.
 29 1. If a school district was required to repay property
 30 taxes paid or had a reduction in property taxes due for school
 31 taxes levied for the school budget year beginning July 1, 2019,
 32 on a property that received an assessed value reduction for
 33 the assessment year beginning January 1, 2018, by action of
 34 the board of review or property assessment appeal board, or
 35 by judicial action, and the amount of the reduction for the

PAGE 48

1 property exceeded \$47,000,000, the school district is eligible
 2 for an adjustment in state foundation aid for the budget year
 3 beginning July 1, 2020.
 4 2. To receive the adjustment in state foundation aid, the
 5 school district shall apply to the department of management
 6 within thirty days following the effective date of this
 7 division of this Act and section 257.12, subsection 3, shall
 8 not apply. The department of management shall determine the
 9 amount of adjustment in state foundation aid pursuant to
 10 subsection 3.
 11 3. The department of management shall determine the amount
 12 of state foundation aid which the school district would
 13 have received under section 257.1 for the school budget year
 14 beginning July 1, 2019, in the manner provided in section
 15 257.12, subsection 2. The adjustment in state foundation aid
 16 under this section shall be paid as provided in section 257.16.
 17 Sec. 106. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 18 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

19 DIVISION XXVI
 20 HEMP REGULATION
 21 Sec. 107. REPEAL. 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2581, section
 22 19, if enacted, is repealed.

23 Sec. 108. 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2581, if enacted, is
 24 amended by adding the following new section:
 25 NEW SECTION. 19A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed
 26 of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 27 Sec. 109. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following applies
 28 retroactively to the effective date of 2020 Iowa Acts, House
 29 File 2581, as amended in this division of this Act, if enacted:
 30 The section of this division of this Act repealing 2020 Iowa
 31 Acts, House File 2581, section 19.

32 DIVISION XXVII
 33 GRAIN REGULATION
 34 Sec. 110. APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated from the
 35 general fund of the state to the department of agriculture

PAGE 49

1 and land stewardship for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
2 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the following amount, or so
3 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
4 designated:

5 For the administration and enforcement of chapters 203
6 and 203C, including salaries, support, maintenance, and
7 miscellaneous purposes:
8 \$ 350,000

9 Sec. 111. SUSPENSION. Notwithstanding section 203D.5,
10 the fees described in that section shall not be assessable or
11 owing.

12 Sec. 112. REPEAL. The section of this division of this Act
13 suspending fees under section 203D.5 is repealed on March 1,
14 2021.

15 Sec. 113. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
16 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

17 DIVISION XXVIII

18 RETURNS ON SEARCH WARRANTS

19 Sec. 114. Section 808.8, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
20 to read as follows:

21 2. The officer must file, with the officer’s return, a
22 complete inventory of the property taken, ~~and state under oath~~
23 including a sworn statement that it is accurate to the best of
24 the officer’s knowledge. The magistrate must, if requested,
25 deliver a copy of the inventory of seized property to the
26 person from whose possession it was taken and to the applicant
27 for the warrant.

28 Sec. 115. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this
29 Act takes effect on the effective date of rules prescribed by
30 the supreme court and submitted to the legislative council
31 pursuant to section 602.4202, that establish processes and
32 procedures for the application and issuance of a search warrant
33 by electronic means to implement 2017 Iowa Acts, chapter 37.

34 DIVISION XXIX

35 COUNTY ZONING

PAGE 50

1 Sec. 116. Section 335.8, subsection 1, Code 2020, as amended
2 by 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2512, section 3, is amended to
3 read as follows:

4 1. In order to avail itself of the powers conferred by this
5 chapter, the board of supervisors shall appoint a commission
6 consisting of eligible electors, as defined in section 39.3,
7 who reside within the ~~area regulated by the county zoning~~
8 ordinance county, but outside the corporate limits of any city,
9 to be known as the county zoning commission. The commission
10 may recommend the boundaries of the various districts and
11 appropriate regulations and restrictions to be enforced in
12 the districts. The commission shall, with due diligence,
13 prepare a preliminary report and hold public hearings on the
14 preliminary report before submitting the commission’s final

15 report. The board of supervisors shall not hold its public
 16 hearings or take action until it has received the final report
 17 of the commission. After the adoption of the regulations,
 18 restrictions, and boundaries of districts, the zoning
 19 commission may, from time to time, recommend to the board of
 20 supervisors amendments, supplements, changes, or modifications.
 21 The commission's report and any recommendations may include a
 22 proposed ordinance or amendments to an ordinance.

23 Sec. 117. Section 335.11, Code 2020, as amended by 2020
 24 Iowa Acts, House File 2512, section 4, is amended to read as
 25 follows:

26 **335.11 Membership of board.**

27 The board of adjustment shall consist of five members who
 28 are eligible electors, as defined in section 39.3, and who
 29 reside within the ~~area regulated by the county zoning ordinance~~
 30 county, but outside the corporate limits of any city, each to
 31 be appointed for a term of five years, excepting that when the
 32 board shall first be created one member shall be appointed for
 33 a term of five years, one for a term of four years, one for a
 34 term of three years, one for a term of two years, and one for
 35 a term of one year. Members shall be removable for cause by

PAGE 51

1 the appointing authority upon written charges and after public
 2 hearing. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term of
 3 any member whose term becomes vacant.

4 Sec. 118. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 5 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

6 Sec. 119. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 7 Act applies retroactively to June 1, 2020, to members of county
 8 zoning commissions and county boards of adjustment holding
 9 office on or after that date.

10 DIVISION XXX

11 COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION

12 Sec. 120. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 154, section 17,
 13 subsection 1, paragraph d, is amended to read as follows:

14 d. COLLEGE STUDENT AID COMMISSION

15 For deposit in the future ready Iowa skilled workforce grant
 16 fund established pursuant to section 261.132, as enacted by
 17 2018 Iowa Acts, chapter 1067, section 13:

18 \$ 1,000,000

19 Of the moneys appropriated in this lettered paragraph,
 20 \$600,000 shall be transferred to the future ready Iowa skilled
 21 workforce last-dollar scholarship fund created in section
 22 261.131.

23 Sec. 121. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 24 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

25 Sec. 122. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 26 Act applies retroactively to July 1, 2019.

27 DIVISION XXXI

28 VOTING

29 Sec. 123. Section 53.2, subsection 4, paragraph a,
30 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as
31 follows:

32 ~~Each application shall contain the following information To~~
33 ~~request an absentee ballot, a registered voter shall provide:~~

34 Sec. 124. Section 53.2, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
35 2020, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 52

1 b. If insufficient information has been provided, including
2 the absence of a voter verification number, either on the
3 prescribed form or on an application created by the applicant,
4 the commissioner shall, ~~by the best means available, obtain~~
5 ~~the additional necessary information within twenty-four hours~~
6 ~~after the receipt of the absentee ballot request, contact the~~
7 ~~applicant by telephone and electronic mail, if such information~~
8 ~~has been provided by the applicant. If the commissioner is~~
9 ~~unable to contact the applicant by telephone or electronic~~
10 ~~mail, the commissioner shall send a notice to the applicant~~
11 ~~at the address where the applicant is registered to vote, or~~
12 ~~to the applicant's mailing address if it is different from~~
13 ~~the residential address. If the applicant has requested the~~
14 ~~ballot to be sent to an address that is not the applicant's~~
15 ~~residential or mailing address, the commissioner shall send an~~
16 ~~additional notice to the address where the applicant requested~~
17 ~~the ballot to be sent. A commissioner shall not use the voter~~
18 ~~registration system to obtain additional necessary information.~~
19 A voter requesting or casting a ballot pursuant to section
20 53.22 shall not be required to provide a voter verification
21 number.

22 Sec. 125. Section 53.2, subsection 4, Code 2020, is amended
23 by adding the following new paragraph:
24 NEW PARAGRAPH. d. If an applicant does not have current
25 access to the applicant's voter verification number, the
26 commissioner shall verify the applicant's identity prior to
27 supplying the voter verification number by asking the applicant
28 to provide at least two of the following facts about the
29 applicant:
30 (1) Date of birth.
31 (2) The last four digits of the applicant's social security
32 number, if applicable.
33 (3) Residential address.
34 (4) Mailing address.
35 (5) Middle name.

PAGE 53

1 (6) Voter verification number as defined in paragraph "c".
2 Sec. 126. Section 53.10, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
3 2020, is amended to read as follows:
4 a. Each person who wishes to vote by absentee ballot at

5 the commissioner's office shall first sign an application
 6 for a ballot including the following information: name,
 7 current address, voter verification number, and the election
 8 for which the ballot is requested. The person may report a
 9 change of address or other information on the person's voter
 10 registration record at that time. Prior to furnishing a
 11 ballot, the commissioner shall verify the person's identity
 12 as provided in section 49.78. The registered voter shall
 13 immediately mark the ballot; enclose the ballot in a secrecy
 14 envelope, if necessary, and seal it in the envelope marked
 15 with the affidavit; subscribe to the affidavit on the reverse
 16 side of the envelope; and return the absentee ballot to the
 17 commissioner. The commissioner shall record the numbers
 18 appearing on the application and affidavit envelope along with
 19 the name of the registered voter.

20 DIVISION XXXII

21 BOARD OF REGENTS — ATTORNEYS

22 Sec. 127. Section 262.9, subsection 16, Code 2020, is
 23 amended to read as follows:

24 16. In its discretion, employ or retain attorneys or
 25 counselors ~~when acting as a public employer for the purpose of~~
 26 ~~carrying out collective bargaining and related responsibilities~~
 27 ~~provided for under chapter 20. This subsection shall supersede~~
 28 ~~the provisions of section 13.7 to provide legal counsel or~~
 29 ~~legal advice, notwithstanding section 13.7, provided that~~
 30 ~~the provisions of section 13.7 shall govern the retention of~~
 31 ~~attorneys in any action or proceeding that is brought in any~~
 32 ~~court or tribunal.~~

33 DIVISION XXXIII

34 ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION LINES

35 Sec. 128. NEW SECTION. 478.16 Electric transmission lines

PAGE 54

1 — **federally registered planning authority transmission plans.**
 2 1. As used in this section, unless the context otherwise
 3 requires:
 4 *a. "Electric transmission line"* means a high-voltage
 5 electric transmission line with a capacity of one hundred
 6 kilovolts or more and any associated electric transmission
 7 facility, including any substation or other equipment.
 8 *b. "Electric transmission owner"* means an individual or
 9 entity who, as of the effective date of this Act, owns and
 10 maintains an electric transmission line that is required
 11 for rate-regulated electric utilities, municipal electric
 12 utilities, and rural electric cooperatives in this state to
 13 provide electric service to the public for compensation.
 14 *c. "Incumbent electric transmission owner"* means any of the
 15 following:
 16 (1) A public utility or a municipally owned utility that
 17 owns, operates, and maintains an electric transmission line in
 18 this state.

19 (2) An electric cooperative corporation or association or
20 municipally owned utility that owns an electric transmission
21 facility in this state and has turned over the functional
22 control of such facility to a federally approved authority.
23 (3) An “*electric transmission owner*” as defined in paragraph
24 “b”.
25 d. “*Landowner*” means the same as defined in section 478.2.
26 e. “*Municipally owned utility*” means a “*city utility*” as
27 defined in section 362.2, or an “*electric power agency*” as
28 defined in section 390.9 which is comprised solely of cities or
29 solely of cities and other political subdivisions.
30 2. An incumbent electric transmission owner has the right to
31 construct, own, and maintain an electric transmission line that
32 has been approved for construction in a federally registered
33 planning authority transmission plan and which connects to an
34 electric transmission facility owned by the incumbent electric
35 transmission owner. Where a proposed electric transmission

PAGE 55

1 line would connect to electric transmission facilities owned
2 by two or more incumbent electric transmission owners, each
3 incumbent electric transmission owner whose facility connects
4 to the electric transmission line has the right to construct,
5 own, and maintain the electric transmission line individually
6 and equally. If an incumbent electric transmission owner
7 declines to construct, own, and maintain its portion of an
8 electric transmission line that would connect to electric
9 transmission facilities owned by two or more incumbent
10 electric transmission owners, then the other incumbent electric
11 transmission owner or owners that own an electric transmission
12 facility to which the electric transmission line connects
13 has the right to construct, own, and maintain the electric
14 transmission line individually.
15 3. If an electric transmission line has been approved for
16 construction in a federally registered planning authority
17 transmission plan, and the electric transmission line is
18 not subject to a right of first refusal in accordance with
19 the tariff of a federally registered planning authority,
20 then within ninety days of approval for construction, an
21 incumbent electric transmission owner, or owners if there
22 is more than one owner, that owns a connecting electric
23 transmission facility shall give written notice to the board
24 regarding whether the incumbent electric transmission owner
25 or owners intend to construct, own, and maintain the electric
26 transmission line. If the incumbent electric transmission
27 owner or owners give notice of intent to construct the electric
28 transmission line, the incumbent electric transmission owner
29 or owners shall follow the applicable franchise requirements
30 pursuant to this chapter. If the incumbent electric
31 transmission owner or owners give notice declining to construct
32 the electric transmission line, the board may determine whether

33 another person may construct the electric transmission line.
 34 4. For projects where an election to construct an electric
 35 transmission line has been made under this section, all of the

PAGE 56

1 following cost accountability measures shall apply:
 2 a. Within thirty days after the issuance of a franchise
 3 pursuant to this chapter for the electric transmission line,
 4 the incumbent electric transmission owner or owners shall
 5 provide to the board an estimate of the cost to construct the
 6 electric transmission line.
 7 b. Until construction of the electric transmission line
 8 is complete, the incumbent electric transmission owner or
 9 owners shall provide a quarterly report to the board, which
 10 shall include an updated estimate of the cost to construct the
 11 electric transmission line and an explanation of changes in the
 12 cost estimate from the prior cost estimate.
 13 5. This section shall not modify the authority of the
 14 board under this chapter, the rights of landowners under this
 15 chapter, or the requirements, rights, and obligations relating
 16 to the construction, maintenance, and operation of electric
 17 transmission lines pursuant to this chapter.
 18 6. This section shall not apply to an electric transmission
 19 line to be placed underground that has not been approved for
 20 construction in a federally registered planning authority
 21 transmission plan.
 22 7. The board shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A to
 23 administer this section.

24 DIVISION XXXIV

25 CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE AND RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY

26 Sec. 129. EFFECTIVE UPON ENACTMENT. Unless otherwise
 27 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 28 July 1, 2020, takes effect upon enactment.

29 Sec. 130. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. Unless otherwise
 30 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 31 July 1, 2020, applies retroactively to July 1, 2020.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8318

1 Amend House File 2642, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the House, as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:

5 <DIVISION I

6 REBUILD IOWA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

7 Section 1. REBUILD IOWA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND —
 8 APPROPRIATIONS. There is appropriated from the rebuild Iowa
 9 infrastructure fund to the following departments and agencies
 10 for the following fiscal years, the following amounts, or so

11 much thereof as is necessary, to be used for the purposes
 12 designated:

13 1. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

14 For security cameras on the state capitol complex,
 15 notwithstanding section 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
 16 FY 2020-2021:

17 \$ 250,000

18 2. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND LAND STEWARDSHIP

19 a. (1) For deposit in the water quality initiative fund
 20 created in section 466B.45 for purposes of supporting the
 21 water quality initiative administered by the division of soil
 22 conservation and water quality as provided in section 466B.42,
 23 including salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
 24 purposes, notwithstanding section 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph
 25 “c”:

26 FY 2020-2021:
 27 \$ 5,200,000

28 (2) (a) The moneys appropriated in this lettered
 29 paragraph shall be used to support demonstration projects in
 30 subwatersheds as designated by the department that are part
 31 of high-priority watersheds identified by the water resources
 32 coordinating council.

33 (b) The moneys appropriated in this lettered paragraph
 34 shall be used to support demonstration projects in watersheds
 35 generally, including regional watersheds, as designated by the

PAGE 2

1 division and high-priority watersheds identified by the water
 2 resources coordinating council.

3 (3) In supporting projects in watersheds and subwatersheds
 4 as provided in subparagraph (2), subparagraph divisions (a) and
 5 (b), all of the following shall apply:

6 (a) The demonstration projects shall utilize water quality
 7 practices as described in the latest revision of the document
 8 entitled “Iowa Nutrient Reduction Strategy” initially presented
 9 in November 2012 by the department of agriculture and land
 10 stewardship, the department of natural resources, and Iowa
 11 state university of science and technology.

12 (b) The division shall implement demonstration projects
 13 as provided in subparagraph division (a) by providing
 14 for participation by persons who hold a legal interest in
 15 agricultural land used in farming. To every extent practical,
 16 the division shall provide for collaborative participation by
 17 such persons who hold a legal interest in agricultural land
 18 located within the same subwatershed.

19 (c) The division shall implement demonstration projects on
 20 a cost-share basis as determined by the division. Except for
 21 edge-of-field practices, the state’s share of the amount shall
 22 not exceed 50 percent of the estimated cost of establishing the
 23 practice as determined by the division or 50 percent of the
 24 actual cost of establishing the practice, whichever is less.

25 (d) The demonstration projects shall be used to educate
 26 other persons about the feasibility and value of establishing
 27 similar water quality practices. The division shall promote
 28 field day events for purposes of allowing interested persons to
 29 establish water quality practices on their agricultural land.
 30 (e) The division shall conduct water quality evaluations
 31 within supported subwatersheds. Within a reasonable period
 32 after accumulating information from such evaluations, the
 33 division shall create an aggregated database of water quality
 34 practices. Any information identifying a person holding a
 35 legal interest in agricultural land or specific agricultural

PAGE 3

1 land shall be a confidential record.
 2 (4) The moneys appropriated in this lettered paragraph
 3 shall be used to support education and outreach in a manner
 4 that encourages persons who hold a legal interest in
 5 agricultural land used for farming to implement water quality
 6 practices, including the establishment of such practices in
 7 watersheds generally, and not limited to subwatersheds or
 8 high-priority watersheds.
 9 (5) The moneys appropriated in this lettered paragraph
 10 may be used to contract with persons to coordinate the
 11 implementation of efforts provided in this paragraph.
 12 (6) The moneys appropriated in this lettered paragraph
 13 may be used by the department to support urban soil and water
 14 conservation efforts, which may include but are not limited
 15 to management practices related to bioretention, landscaping,
 16 the use of permeable or pervious pavement, and soil quality
 17 restoration. The moneys shall be allocated on a cost-share
 18 basis as provided in chapter 161A.
 19 (7) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
 20 contrary, the department may use moneys appropriated in
 21 this lettered paragraph to carry out the provisions of this
 22 paragraph on a cost-share basis in combination with other
 23 moneys available to the department from a state or federal
 24 source.
 25 (8) Not more than 10 percent of the moneys appropriated in
 26 this lettered paragraph may be used for costs of administration
 27 and implementation of the water quality initiative administered
 28 by the soil conservation division.
 29 b. For deposit in the renewable fuels infrastructure fund
 30 created in section 159A.16 for renewable fuel infrastructure
 31 programs:
 32 FY 2020-2021:
 33 \$ 3,000,000
 34 3. DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
 35 a. For deposit in the Iowa great places program fund created

PAGE 4

- 1 in section 303.3D for Iowa great places program projects that
- 2 meet the definition of “vertical infrastructure” in section
- 3 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
- 4 FY 2020-2021:
- 5 \$ 1,000,000
- 6 b. For grants to nonprofit organizations committed to
- 7 strengthening communities through youth development, healthy
- 8 living, and social responsibility for costs associated with
- 9 the renovation and maintenance of facility infrastructure at
- 10 facilities located in cities with a population of less than
- 11 28,000 as determined by the 2010 federal decennial census:
- 12 FY 2020-2021:
- 13 \$ 250,000
- 14 4. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
- 15 a. For deposit in the community attraction and tourism fund
- 16 created in section 15F.204:
- 17 FY 2020-2021:
- 18 \$ 5,000,000
- 19 b. For equal distribution to regional sports authority
- 20 districts certified by the department pursuant to section
- 21 15E.321, notwithstanding section 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph
- 22 “c”:
- 23 FY 2020-2021:
- 24 \$ 500,000
- 25 5. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
- 26 a. For critical infrastructure at state institutions,
- 27 including the state resource centers, the mental health
- 28 institutes, and the state training school at Eldora:
- 29 FY 2020-2021:
- 30 \$ 596,500
- 31 b. For the renovation and construction of certain nursing
- 32 facilities, consistent with the provisions of chapter 249K:
- 33 FY 2020-2021:
- 34 \$ 500,000
- 35 c. For a grant to a nonprofit agency that provides expert

PAGE 5

- 1 care for children with medical complexity to expand its
- 2 services to those children who reach adulthood in their care
- 3 by providing infrastructure funding for expanding a nursing
- 4 facility:
- 5 FY 2021-2022:
- 6 \$ 500,000
- 7 6. IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY
- 8 For costs associated with furniture, fixtures, and equipment
- 9 at the academy, notwithstanding section 8.57, subsection 5,
- 10 paragraph “c”:
- 11 FY 2020-2021:
- 12 \$ 280,000

- 13 7. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
- 14 a. For implementation of lake projects that have
- 15 established watershed improvement initiatives and community
- 16 support in accordance with the department’s annual lake
- 17 restoration plan and report, notwithstanding section 8.57,
- 18 subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
- 19 FY 2020-2021:
- 20 \$ 8,600,000
- 21 b. For state park infrastructure improvements:
- 22 FY 2020-2021:
- 23 \$ 1,000,000
- 24 c. For the administration of a water trails and low head
- 25 dam public hazard statewide plan, including salaries, support,
- 26 maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes, notwithstanding
- 27 section 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
- 28 FY 2020-2021:
- 29 \$ 250,000
- 30 8. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC DEFENSE
- 31 a. For major maintenance projects at national guard
- 32 armories and facilities:
- 33 FY 2020-2021:
- 34 \$ 1,000,000
- 35 b. For improvement projects for Iowa national guard

PAGE 6

- 1 installations and readiness centers to support operations and
- 2 training requirements:
- 3 FY 2020-2021:
- 4 \$ 1,000,000
- 5 c. For construction improvement projects at the Camp Dodge
- 6 facility:
- 7 FY 2020-2021:
- 8 \$ 250,000
- 9 d. The department of public defense shall report to the
- 10 general assembly by December 15, 2020, regarding the projects
- 11 the department has funded or intends to fund from moneys
- 12 appropriated to the department pursuant to this subsection for
- 13 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.
- 14 9. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
- 15 a. For payments and other costs due under a financing
- 16 agreement entered into by the treasurer of state for building
- 17 the statewide interoperable communications system pursuant to
- 18 section 29C.23, subsection 2, notwithstanding section 8.57,
- 19 subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
- 20 FY 2020-2021:
- 21 \$ 3,960,945
- 22 b. For the purchase of ballistic vests, notwithstanding
- 23 section 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
- 24 FY 2020-2021:
- 25 \$ 467,500
- 26 c. For the purchase of bomb suits, notwithstanding section

27 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
 28 FY 2020-2021:
 29 \$ 384,000
 30 d. For the purchase of an airplane, notwithstanding section
 31 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
 32 FY 2020-2021:
 33 \$ 1,713,170
 34 10. BOARD OF REGENTS
 35 a. For allocation by the state board of regents to the

PAGE 7

1 state university of Iowa, Iowa state university of science
 2 and technology, and the university of northern Iowa to
 3 reimburse the institutions for deficiencies in the operating
 4 funds resulting from the pledging of tuition, student fees
 5 and charges, and institutional income to finance the cost of
 6 providing academic and administrative buildings and facilities
 7 and utility services at the institutions:
 8 FY 2020-2021:
 9 \$ 28,268,466
 10 b. For the renovation and construction of an industrial
 11 technology center at the university of northern Iowa to
 12 include reimbursement of infrastructure costs incurred by the
 13 university for construction of the facility in the prior fiscal
 14 year:
 15 FY 2021-2022:
 16 \$ 13,000,000
 17 FY 2022-2023:
 18 \$ 18,000,000
 19 FY 2023-2024:
 20 \$ 8,500,000
 21 11. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
 22 a. For deposit in the public transit infrastructure grant
 23 fund created in section 324A.6A, for projects that meet
 24 the definition of vertical infrastructure in section 8.57,
 25 subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
 26 FY 2020-2021:
 27 \$ 500,000
 28 b. For acquiring, constructing, and improving recreational
 29 trails within the state:
 30 FY 2020-2021:
 31 \$ 1,000,000
 32 c. For deposit in the railroad revolving loan and grant
 33 fund created in section 327H.20A, notwithstanding section 8.57,
 34 subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
 35 FY 2020-2021:

PAGE 8

1 \$ 500,000
 2 d. For vertical infrastructure improvements at the

3 commercial service airports within the state:
 4 FY 2020-2021:
 5 \$ 1,000,000
 6 e. For vertical infrastructure improvements at general
 7 aviation airports within the state:
 8 FY 2020-2021:
 9 \$ 650,000
 10 12. TREASURER OF STATE
 11 For distribution in accordance with chapter 174 to qualified
 12 fairs that belong to the association of Iowa fairs for county
 13 fair vertical infrastructure improvements:
 14 FY 2020-2021:
 15 \$ 1,060,000
 16 13. DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS
 17 For resurfacing the roadway at the Iowa veteran’s cemetery:
 18 FY 2020-2021:
 19 \$ 50,000
 20 14. JUDICIAL BRANCH
 21 a. For major maintenance to the Iowa judicial building:
 22 FY 2020-2021:
 23 \$ 400,000
 24 b. For furniture and equipment for justice centers
 25 located in counties with a population of less than 400,000
 26 as determined by the 2010 federal decennial census,
 27 notwithstanding section 8.57, subsection 5, paragraph “c”:
 28 FY 2020-2021:
 29 \$ 211,455
 30 15. LEGISLATIVE BRANCH
 31 For repair of the gutters of the Iowa state capitol:
 32 FY 2020-2021:
 33 \$ 1,250,000
 34 FY 2021-2022:
 35 \$ 1,250,000

PAGE 9

1 Sec. 2. REVERSION. For purposes of section 8.33, unless
 2 specifically provided otherwise, unencumbered or unobligated
 3 moneys from an appropriation made in this division of this Act
 4 shall not revert but shall remain available for expenditure for
 5 the purposes designated until the close of the fiscal year that
 6 ends two years after the end of the fiscal year for which the
 7 appropriation is made. However, if the project or projects for
 8 which such appropriation was made are completed in an earlier
 9 fiscal year, unencumbered or unobligated moneys shall revert at
 10 the close of that same fiscal year.

11 DIVISION II
 12 TECHNOLOGY REINVESTMENT FUND

13 Sec. 3. TECHNOLOGY REINVESTMENT FUND. There is
 14 appropriated from the technology reinvestment fund created in
 15 section 8.57C to the following departments and agencies for the
 16 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021,

- 17 the following amounts, or so much thereof as is necessary, to
- 18 be used for the purposes designated:
- 19 1. IOWA ETHICS AND CAMPAIGN DISCLOSURE BOARD
- 20 For upgrading the web reporting system:
- 21 \$ 500,000
- 22 2. DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
- 23 For institutions building automation systems:
- 24 \$ 500,000
- 25 3. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
- 26 a. For the continued development and implementation of an
- 27 educational data warehouse to be utilized by teachers, parents,
- 28 school district administrators, area education agency staff,
- 29 department of education staff, and policymakers:
- 30 \$ 600,000
- 31 The department may allocate a portion of the moneys
- 32 appropriated in this lettered paragraph for an e-transcript
- 33 data system capable of tracking students throughout their
- 34 education via interconnectivity with multiple schools.
- 35 b. For maintenance and lease costs associated with

PAGE 10

- 1 connections for part III of the Iowa communications network:
- 2 \$ 2,727,000
- 3 c. To the public broadcasting division for the replacement
- 4 of equipment:
- 5 \$ 1,000,000
- 6 4. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
- 7 For the implementation of a statewide mass notification and
- 8 emergency messaging system:
- 9 \$ 400,000
- 10 5. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS
- 11 a. For the cost of equipment and computer software for the
- 12 continued development and implementation of Iowa's criminal
- 13 justice information system:
- 14 \$ 1,400,000
- 15 b. For the costs associated with the justice enterprise data
- 16 warehouse:
- 17 \$ 157,980
- 18 6. IOWA TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY COMMISSION
- 19 For firewall and distributed denial-of-service attack
- 20 protection for the Iowa communications network:
- 21 \$ 2,071,794
- 22 7. IOWA LAW ENFORCEMENT ACADEMY
- 23 For information technology for classrooms and conference
- 24 rooms at the academy building:
- 25 \$ 400,000
- 26 8. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
- 27 For technology costs associated with the state poison
- 28 control center:
- 29 \$ 34,000
- 30 9. DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT

- 31 a. For the continued development and implementation of
- 32 a searchable database that can be placed on the internet for
- 33 budget and financial information:
- 34 \$ 45,000
- 35 b. For the continued development and implementation of the

PAGE 11

- 1 comprehensive electronic grant management system:
- 2 \$ 70,000
- 3 c. For the upgrade of the local government budget and
- 4 property tax system:
- 5 \$ 624,000
- 6 10. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
- 7 For replacement of computer infrastructure and software at
- 8 the state medical examiner's office:
- 9 \$ 395,000
- 10 11. DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
- 11 For tax system modernization:
- 12 \$ 4,070,460
- 13 12. DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS
- 14 For security cameras at the Iowa veteran's cemetery:
- 15 \$ 21,000
- 16 13. JUDICIAL BRANCH
- 17 For voice-over internet protocol phone upgrades at county
- 18 courthouses:
- 19 \$ 163,000
- 20 Sec. 4. REVERSION. For purposes of section 8.33, unless
- 21 specifically provided otherwise, unencumbered or unobligated
- 22 moneys from an appropriation made in this division of this Act
- 23 shall not revert but shall remain available for expenditure for
- 24 the purposes designated until the close of the fiscal year that
- 25 ends two years after the end of the fiscal year for which the
- 26 appropriation is made. However, if the project or projects for
- 27 which such appropriation was made are completed in an earlier
- 28 fiscal year, unencumbered or unobligated moneys shall revert at
- 29 the close of that same fiscal year.

DIVISION III

CHANGES TO PRIOR APPROPRIATIONS

- 32 Sec. 5. 2015 Iowa Acts, chapter 139, section 1, subsection
- 33 10, paragraph b, as amended by 2017 Iowa Acts, chapter 173,
- 34 section 11, 2018 Iowa Acts, chapter 1162, section 9, and
- 35 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 137, section 6 is amended to read as

PAGE 12

- 1 follows:
- 2 b. For construction of a student innovation center at
- 3 Iowa state university of science and technology, to include
- 4 reimbursement of infrastructure costs incurred by the
- 5 university for construction of the facility in ~~the~~ prior fiscal
- 6 ~~year~~ years:

7	FY 2016-2017:	
8	\$ 1,000,000
9	FY 2017-2018:	
10	\$ 6,000,000
11	FY 2018-2019:	
12	\$ 6,000,000
13	FY 2019-2020:	
14	\$ 7,000,000
15	FY 2020-2021:	
16	\$ 10,000,000
17		<u>6,625,000</u>
18	FY 2021-2022:	
19	\$ 10,000,000
20		<u>13,375,000</u>

21 Sec. 6. 2016 Iowa Acts, chapter 1133, section 7, is amended
 22 to read as follows:

23 SEC. 7. REVERSION.

24 1. For Except as provided in subsection 2, for purposes
 25 of section 8.33, unless specifically provided otherwise,
 26 unencumbered or unobligated moneys made from an appropriation
 27 in this division of this Act shall not revert but shall remain
 28 available for expenditure for the purposes designated until the
 29 close of the fiscal year that ends three years after the end of
 30 the fiscal year for which the appropriation is made. However,
 31 if the project or projects for which such appropriation was
 32 made are completed in an earlier fiscal year, unencumbered
 33 or unobligated moneys shall revert at the close of that same
 34 fiscal year.

35 2. For purposes of section 8.33, unless specifically

PAGE 13

1 provided otherwise, unencumbered or unobligated moneys
 2 appropriated in section 6, subsection 2, of this division of
 3 this 2016 Act, shall not revert but shall remain available for
 4 the purpose designated until the close of the fiscal year that
 5 begins July 1, 2020.

6 Sec. 7. 2018 Iowa Acts, chapter 1162, section 1, is amended
 7 to read as follows:

8 1. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

9 For major maintenance projects:

10	FY 2018-2019:	
11	\$ 24,500,000

12 Of the moneys appropriated in this subsection for the fiscal
 13 year beginning July 1, 2018, the department shall give priority
 14 to projects for repair of the roof of the state historical
 15 building and is authorized to expend such amount not to exceed
 16 \$3,300,000 for the costs associated with projects for repair of
 17 the roof of the state historical building.

18	FY 2019-2020:	
19	\$ 20,000,000

20 Of the moneys appropriated in this subsection for the fiscal

21 year beginning July 1, 2019, the department shall give priority
 22 to projects for repair of the roof of the state historical
 23 building and is authorized to expend such amount not to exceed
 24 \$3,300,000 for the costs associated with projects for repair of
 25 the roof of the state historical building.

26	FY 2020-2021:	
27	\$ 20,000,000
28		<u>12,000,000</u>
29	FY 2021-2022:	
30	\$ 20,000,000
31	FY 2022-2023:	
32	\$ 20,000,000
33	<u>FY 2023-2024:</u>	
34	\$ 20,000,000
35	Sec. 8. 2018 Iowa Acts, chapter 1162, section 1, subsection	

PAGE 14

1 10, paragraph b, is amended to read as follows:
 2 b. For construction of a new veterinary diagnostic
 3 laboratory at Iowa state university of science and technology,
 4 to include reimbursement of infrastructure costs incurred by
 5 the university for construction of the laboratory in the prior
 6 fiscal year years:

7	FY 2018-2019:	
8	\$ 1,000,000
9	FY 2019-2020:	
10	\$ 12,500,000
11	FY 2020-2021:	
12	\$ 12,500,000
13		<u>8,900,000</u>
14	FY 2021-2022:	
15	\$ 12,500,000
16	FY 2022-2023:	
17	\$ 12,500,000
18	FY 2023-2024:	
19	\$ 12,500,000
20		<u>16,100,000</u>

21 Sec. 9. 2019 Iowa Acts, chapter 137, section 1, subsection
 22 4, paragraphs d and e, are amended to read as follows:

23 d. For deposit in the vacant state buildings demolition fund
 24 created in section 15.261:

25	FY 2019-2020:	
26	\$ 1,000,000
27	FY 2020-2021:	
28	\$ 1,000,000
29	FY 2021-2022:	
30	\$ 1,000,000

31 e. For deposit in the vacant state buildings rehabilitation
 32 fund created in section 15.262, notwithstanding section 8.57,
 33 subsection 5, paragraph "c":

34 FY 2019-2020:

35 \$ 1,000,000

PAGE 15

1 ~~FY 2020-2021:~~
 2 \$ 1,000,000
 3 FY 2021-2022:
 4 \$ 1,000,000

5 Sec. 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
6 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

7 DIVISION IV

8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9 Sec. 11. Section 2.12B, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
10 following new subsection:

11 NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. The facilities manager for facilities
12 under the control of the general assembly shall develop and
13 submit to the legislative council by December 15, 2020, a
14 five-year maintenance project schedule report, with annual
15 written updates thereafter, for the Iowa state capitol and the
16 Ola Babcock Miller building.

17 Sec. 12. Section 8.57C, subsection 3, paragraph a,
18 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
19 (2) The fiscal year beginning July 1, ~~2020~~ 2021, and for
20 each subsequent fiscal year thereafter.

21 Sec. 13. Section 8.57C, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
22 by adding the following new paragraph:
23 NEW PARAGRAPH. *i.* There is appropriated from the rebuild
24 Iowa infrastructure fund for the fiscal year beginning
25 July 1, 2020, and ending June 30, 2021, the sum of eighteen
26 million five hundred fifty thousand dollars to the technology
27 reinvestment fund, notwithstanding section 8.57, subsection 5,
28 paragraph "c".

29 Sec. 14. ROUTINE MAINTENANCE FUND. Notwithstanding the
30 standing appropriation in section 8A.330, there is appropriated
31 from the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund to the department of
32 administrative services for deposit in the routine maintenance
33 fund established in section 8A.330 for the fiscal year
34 beginning July 1, 2020, the sum of one million dollars.

35 DIVISION V

PAGE 16

1 REBUILD IOWA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND APPROPRIATION
 2 Sec. 15. IOWA ECONOMIC EMERGENCY FUND TRANSFERS.
 3 Notwithstanding any provision of section 8.55 to the contrary
 4 and for purposes of transfers from the Iowa economic emergency
 5 fund created in section 8.55 as provided in this section during
 6 the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, the maximum balance of
 7 the Iowa economic emergency fund is the amount equal to two
 8 and one-half percent of the adjusted revenue estimate for the
 9 fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020. If the amount of moneys
 10 in the Iowa economic emergency fund is equal to the maximum

11 balance, moneys in excess of this amount shall be distributed
 12 as follows during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020:

13 1. The first seventy million dollars shall be transferred to
 14 the general fund of the state.

15 2. Of the excess remaining after the transfer in subsection
 16 1, the difference, reduced by the transfer made in subsection
 17 1, between the actual net revenue for the general fund of the
 18 state for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending
 19 June 30, 2020, and the adjusted revenue estimate for the fiscal
 20 year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020, shall
 21 be transferred to the taxpayer relief fund created in section
 22 8.57E.

23 3. The remainder of the excess, if any, shall be transferred
 24 to the general fund of the state.

25 Sec. 16. REBUILD IOWA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND — GENERAL FUND
 26 APPROPRIATION. There is appropriated from the general fund
 27 of the state for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and
 28 ending June 30, 2020, to the rebuild Iowa infrastructure fund
 29 created in section 8.57, the sum of seventy million dollars.

30 Sec. 17. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 31 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

32 Sec. 18. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 33 Act applies retroactively to June 1, 2020.

34 DIVISION VI

35 CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE AND RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY

PAGE 17

1 Sec. 19. EFFECTIVE UPON ENACTMENT. Unless otherwise
 2 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 3 July 1, 2020, takes effect upon enactment.

4 Sec. 20. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. Unless otherwise
 5 provided, this Act, if approved by the governor on or after
 6 July 1, 2020, applies retroactively to July 1, 2020.>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8319

1 Amend House File 2641, as amended, passed, and reprinted by
 2 the House, as follows:

3 1. By striking everything after the enacting clause and
 4 inserting:

5 <DIVISION I

6 DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION AND PENALTY PROVISIONS

7 Section 1. Section 421.6, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 8 follows:

9 **421.6 Definition of return.**

10 For purposes of this title, unless the context otherwise
 11 requires, “return” means any tax or information return, amended
 12 return, declaration of estimated tax, or claim for refund
 13 that is required by, provided for, or permitted under, the

14 provisions of this title ~~or section 533.329~~, and which is filed
15 with the department by, on behalf of, or with respect to any
16 person. "Return" includes any amendment or supplement to these
17 items, including supporting schedules, attachments, or lists
18 which are supplemental to or part of the filed return.

19 Sec. 2. Section 421.17, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
20 following new subsection:

21 NEW SUBSECTION. 36. To enter into an agreement pursuant
22 to chapter 28E with the state fair organized under chapter 173
23 or with a fair defined in section 174.1, to collect and remit
24 taxes and fees from sellers making sales at retail on property
25 owned, controlled, or operated by a fair or through events
26 conducted by a fair.

27 Sec. 3. Section 421.27, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
28 to read as follows:

29 1. *Failure to timely file a return or deposit form.*

30 a. If a person fails to file with the department on or
31 before the due date a return or deposit form there shall be
32 added to the tax shown due or required to be shown due a penalty
33 of ten percent of the tax shown due or required to be shown due.

34 b. In the case of a specified business with no tax shown
35 due or required to be shown due that fails to timely file an

PAGE 2

1 income return, the specified business shall pay the greater of
2 the following penalty amounts:

3 (1) Two hundred dollars.

4 (2) An amount equal to ten percent of the imputed Iowa
5 liability of the specified business, not to exceed twenty-five
6 thousand dollars.

7 c. The penalty, if assessed pursuant to paragraph "a" or
8 "b," shall be waived by the department upon a showing of any of
9 the following conditions:

10 ~~a.~~ (1) At An amount of tax greater than zero is required to
11 be shown due and at least ninety percent of the tax required to
12 be shown due has been paid by the due date of the tax.

13 ~~b.~~ (2) Those taxpayers who are required to file quarterly
14 returns, or monthly or semimonthly deposit forms may have one
15 late return or deposit form within a three-year period. The
16 use of any other penalty exception will not count as a late
17 return or deposit form for purposes of this exception.

18 ~~c.~~ (3) The death of a taxpayer, death of a member of
19 the immediate family of the taxpayer, or death of the person
20 directly responsible for filing the return and paying the tax,
21 when the death interferes with timely filing.

22 ~~d.~~ (4) The onset of serious, long-term illness or
23 hospitalization of the taxpayer, of a member of the immediate
24 family of the taxpayer, or of the person directly responsible
25 for filing the return and paying the tax.

26 ~~e.~~ (5) Destruction of records by fire, flood, or other act
27 of God.

28 ~~f.~~ (6) The taxpayer presents proof that the taxpayer
 29 relied upon applicable, documented, written advice specifically
 30 made to the taxpayer, to the taxpayer's preparer, or to an
 31 association representative of the taxpayer from the department,
 32 state department of transportation, county treasurer, or
 33 federal internal revenue service, whichever is appropriate,
 34 that has not been superseded by a court decision, ruling by a
 35 quasi-judicial body, or the adoption, amendment, or repeal of

PAGE 3

1 a rule or law.
 2 ~~g.~~ (7) Reliance upon results in a previous audit was a
 3 direct cause for the failure to file where the previous audit
 4 expressly and clearly addressed the issue and the previous
 5 audit results have not been superseded by a court decision, or
 6 the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule or law.
 7 ~~h.~~ (8) Under rules prescribed by the director, the taxpayer
 8 presents documented proof of substantial authority to rely
 9 upon a particular position or upon proof that all facts and
 10 circumstances are disclosed on a return or deposit form.
 11 ~~i.~~ (9) The return, deposit form, or payment is timely,
 12 but erroneously, mailed with adequate postage to the internal
 13 revenue service, another state agency, or a local government
 14 agency and the taxpayer provides proof of timely mailing with
 15 adequate postage.
 16 ~~j.~~ (10) The tax has been paid by the wrong licensee and the
 17 payments were timely remitted to the department for one or more
 18 tax periods prior to notification by the department.
 19 ~~k.~~ (11) The failure to file was discovered through a
 20 sanctioned self-audit program conducted by the department.
 21 ~~l.~~ (12) If the availability of funds in payment of tax
 22 required to be made through electronic funds transfer is
 23 delayed and the delay of availability is due to reasons beyond
 24 the control of the taxpayer. "*Electronic funds transfer*" means
 25 any transfer of funds, other than a transaction originated
 26 by check, draft, or similar paper instrument, that is
 27 initiated through an electronic terminal telephone, computer,
 28 magnetic tape, or similar device for the purpose of ordering,
 29 instructing, or authorizing a financial institution to debit or
 30 credit an account.
 31 ~~m.~~ (13) The failure to file a timely inheritance tax return
 32 resulting solely from a disclaimer that required the personal
 33 representative to file an inheritance tax return. The penalty
 34 shall be waived if such return is filed and any tax due is paid
 35 within the later of nine months from the date of death or sixty

PAGE 4

1 days from the delivery or filing of the disclaimer pursuant to
 2 section 633E.12.
 3 ~~n.~~ (14) That an Iowa inheritance tax return is filed for

4 an estate within the later of nine months from the date of
 5 death or sixty days from the filing of a disclaimer by the
 6 beneficiary of the estate refusing to take the property or
 7 right or interest in the property.

8 Sec. 4. Section 421.27, subsections 4 and 6, Code 2020, are
 9 amended to read as follows:

10 4. *Willful failure to file or deposit.*

11 a. (1) In case of willful failure to file a return
 12 or deposit form with the intent to evade tax or a filing
 13 requirement, or in case of willfully filing a false return
 14 or deposit form with the intent to evade tax, in lieu of the
 15 penalties otherwise provided in this section, a penalty of
 16 seventy-five percent shall be added to the amount shown due or
 17 required to be shown as tax on the return or deposit form.

18 (2) In case of a willful failure by a specified business to
 19 file an income return with no tax shown due or required to be
 20 shown due with intent to evade a filing requirement, or in case
 21 of willfully filing a false income return with no tax shown due
 22 or required to be shown due with the intent to evade reporting
 23 of Iowa-source income, the penalty imposed shall be the greater
 24 of the following amounts:

25 (a) One thousand five hundred dollars.

26 (b) An amount equal to seventy-five percent of the imputed
 27 Iowa liability of the specified business.

28 (3) If penalties are applicable for failure to file a
 29 return or deposit form and failure to pay the tax shown due or
 30 required to be shown due on the return or deposit form, the
 31 penalty provision for failure to file shall be in lieu of the
 32 penalty provisions for failure to pay the tax shown due or
 33 required to be shown due on the return or deposit form, except
 34 in the case of willful failure to file a return or deposit form
 35 or willfully filing a false return or deposit form with intent

PAGE 5

1 to evade tax.

2 b. The penalties imposed under this subsection are not
 3 subject to waiver.

4 6. *Improper receipt of payments Liability — fraudulent*
 5 *practice.* A person who makes an erroneous application for
 6 refund, credit, reimbursement, rebate, or other payment shall
 7 be liable for any overpayment received or tax liability reduced
 8 plus interest at the rate in effect under section 421.7.

9 a. In addition, a person ~~who willfully commits a fraudulent~~
 10 practice and is liable for a penalty equal to seventy-five
 11 percent of the refund, credit, exemption, reimbursement,
 12 rebate, or other payment or benefit being claimed if the person
 13 does any of the following:

14 (1) Willfully makes a false or frivolous application for
 15 refund, credit, exemption, reimbursement, rebate, or other
 16 payment or benefit with intent to evade tax or with intent to
 17 receive a refund, credit, exemption, reimbursement, rebate,

18 or other payment or benefit, to which the person is not
 19 entitled is guilty of a fraudulent practice and is liable for a
 20 penalty equal to seventy five percent of the refund, credit,
 21 reimbursement, rebate, or other payment being claimed.
 22 (2) Willfully submits any false information, document,
 23 or document containing false information in support of an
 24 application for refund, credit, exemption, reimbursement,
 25 rebate, or other payment or benefit with the intent to evade
 26 tax.
 27 (3) Willfully submits with any false information, document,
 28 or document containing false information in support of an
 29 application for refund with the intent to receive a refund,
 30 credit, exemption, reimbursement, rebate, or other payment
 31 benefit, to which the person is not entitled.
 32 b. Payments, penalties, and interest due under this
 33 subsection may be collected and enforced in the same manner as
 34 the tax imposed.
 35 Sec. 5. Section 421.27, Code 2020, is amended by adding the

PAGE 6

1 following new subsections:
 2 **NEW SUBSECTION. 8. Definitions.** As used in this section:
 3 *a. "Imputed Iowa liability"* means any of the following:
 4 (1) In the case of corporations other than corporations
 5 described in section 422.34 or section 422.36, subsection 5,
 6 the corporation's Iowa net income after the application of the
 7 Iowa business activity ratio, if applicable, multiplied by the
 8 top income tax rate imposed under section 422.33 for the tax
 9 year.
 10 (2) In the case of financial institutions as defined in
 11 section 422.61, the financial institution's Iowa net income
 12 after the application of the Iowa business activity ratio, if
 13 applicable, multiplied by the franchise tax rate imposed under
 14 section 422.63 for the tax year.
 15 (3) In this case of all other entities, including
 16 corporations described in section 422.36, subsection 5, and all
 17 other entities required to file an information return under
 18 section 422.15, subsection 2, the entity's Iowa net income
 19 after the application of the Iowa business activity ratio, if
 20 applicable, multiplied by the top income tax rate imposed under
 21 section 422.5A for the tax year.
 22 *b. "Income return"* means an income tax return or information
 23 return required under section 422.15, subsection 2, or section
 24 422.36, 422.37, or 422.62.
 25 *c. "Specified business"* means a partnership or other entity
 26 required to file an information return under section 422.15,
 27 subsection 2, a corporation required to file a return under
 28 section 422.36 or 422.37, or a financial institution required
 29 to file a return under section 422.62.
 30 **NEW SUBSECTION. 9. Additional penalty.** In addition to the
 31 penalties imposed by this section, if a taxpayer fails to file

32 a return within ninety days of written notice by the department
33 that the taxpayer is required to do so, there shall be added to
34 the amount shown due or required to be shown due a penalty in
35 the amount of one thousand dollars.

PAGE 7

1 Sec. 6. NEW SECTION. 421.27A Perjury.
2 1. For purposes of this title, a form, application, or any
3 other documentation required or requested by the department
4 shall be required to be certified under penalty of perjury that
5 the information contained in the form, application, or other
6 documentation is true and correct.
7 2. A person commits a class "D" felony under any of the
8 following circumstances:
9 *a.* The person makes a form, application, or other document
10 containing false information in support of an application for
11 refund, credit, exemption, reimbursement, rebate, or other
12 payment or benefit with intent to evade tax.
13 *b.* The person makes a form, application, or other document
14 containing false information with intent to unlawfully receive
15 a refund, credit, exemption, reimbursement, rebate, or other
16 payment or benefit, to which the person is not entitled.
17 *c.* The person knowingly makes any false affidavit.
18 *d.* The person knowingly swears or affirms falsely to any
19 matter or thing required by the terms of this title to be sworn
20 to or affirmed.
21 Sec. 7. NEW SECTION. 421.59 Power of attorney — authority
22 to act on behalf of taxpayer.
23 1. *a.* A taxpayer may authorize an individual to act on
24 behalf of the taxpayer by filing a power of attorney with the
25 department, on a form prescribed by the department.
26 *b.* A taxpayer may at any time revoke a power of attorney
27 filed with the department pursuant to subsection 1. Upon
28 processing of the taxpayer's revocation of a power of attorney,
29 the department shall cease honoring the power of attorney.
30 2. The department may authorize the following persons to act
31 and receive information on behalf of and exercise all of the
32 rights of a taxpayer, regardless of whether a power of attorney
33 has been filed pursuant to subsection 1:
34 *a.* A guardian, conservator, or custodian appointed by a
35 court, if a taxpayer has been deemed legally incompetent by a

PAGE 8

1 court. The authority of the appointee to act on behalf of the
2 taxpayer shall be limited to the extent specifically stated in
3 the order of appointment.
4 (1) Upon request, a guardian, conservator, or custodian of
5 a taxpayer shall submit to the department a copy of the court
6 order appointing the guardian, conservator, or custodian.
7 (2) The department may petition the court that appointed the

8 guardian, conservator, or custodian to verify the appointment
9 or to determine the scope of the appointment.
10 *b.* A receiver appointed pursuant to chapter 680. An
11 appointed receiver shall be limited to act on behalf of the
12 taxpayer by the authority stated in the order of appointment.
13 (1) Upon the request of the department, a receiver shall
14 submit to the department a copy of the court order appointing
15 the receiver.
16 (2) The department may petition the court that appointed the
17 receiver to verify the appointment or to determine the scope
18 of the appointment.
19 *c.* An individual who has been named as an authorized
20 representative on a fiduciary return of income filed under
21 section 422.14 or a tax return filed under chapter 450.
22 *d.* (1) An individual holding the following title or
23 position within a corporation, association, partnership, or
24 other business entity:
25 (a) A president or chief executive officer, or any other
26 officer of the corporation or association if the president or
27 chief executive officer certifies that the officer has the
28 authority to legally bind the corporation or association.
29 (b) A designated partner duly authorized to act on behalf
30 of the partnership.
31 (c) A person authorized to act on behalf of a limited
32 liability company in tax matters pursuant to a valid statement
33 of authority.
34 (2) An individual seeking to act on behalf of a taxpayer
35 pursuant to this paragraph shall file an affidavit with the

PAGE 9

1 department attesting to the identity and qualifications of the
2 individual and any necessary certifications required under this
3 paragraph. The department may require any documents or other
4 evidence to demonstrate the individual has authority to act on
5 behalf of the taxpayer before the department.
6 *e.* A licensed attorney who has appeared on behalf of the
7 taxpayer or the taxpayer's estate in a court proceeding.
8 Authorization under this paragraph is limited to those matters
9 within the scope of the representation.
10 *f.* A parent or guardian of a taxpayer who has not reached
11 the age of majority where the parent or guardian has signed the
12 taxpayer's return on behalf of the taxpayer. Authorization
13 under this paragraph is limited to those matters relating to
14 the return signed by the parent or guardian. Authorization
15 under this paragraph automatically terminates when the taxpayer
16 reaches the age of majority pursuant to section 599.1.
17 3. *a.* In lieu of executing a power of attorney pursuant
18 to subsection 1, the department may enter into a memorandum of
19 understanding with the taxpayer for each employee, officer,
20 or member of a third-party entity engaged with or otherwise
21 hired by a taxpayer to manage the tax matters of the taxpayer,

22 to permit the disclosure of confidential tax information to
23 the third-party entity and the authority to act on behalf of
24 the taxpayer. The memorandum of understanding shall adhere to
25 requirements as established by the director.
26 b. The memorandum of understanding shall be signed by
27 the director, the taxpayer, and the third-party entity or an
28 authorized representative of the third-party entity.
29 c. At any time, a taxpayer may unilaterally revoke
30 a memorandum of understanding entered into pursuant to
31 this subsection by filing a notice of revocation with the
32 department. Upon the filing of such a revocation by the
33 taxpayer, the department shall cease honoring the memorandum
34 of understanding.
35 4. The department shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A

PAGE 10

1 to administer this section.
2 Sec. 8. Section 421.60, subsection 2, paragraph a,
3 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
4 (2) The statement prepared in accordance with this
5 paragraph shall be available on the department's internet site.
6 The internet site for this information shall be distributed by
7 the department to all taxpayers at the first contact by the
8 department with respect to the determination or collection of
9 any tax, except in the case of simply providing tax forms.
10 Sec. 9. Section 421.60, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
11 following new subsection:
12 NEW SUBSECTION. 11. *Electronic communication.*
13 Notwithstanding any provision of the law to the contrary, for
14 purposes of this title and sections 321.105A and 533.329, a
15 taxpayer may elect to receive any notices, correspondence,
16 or other communication electronically that the department is
17 required to send by regular mail. The director may establish
18 procedures and limitations for obtaining this election from the
19 taxpayer.
20 Sec. 10. Section 421.62, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
21 by adding the following new paragraph:
22 NEW PARAGRAPH. Ob. *"Income tax return or claim for refund"*
23 means any tax return or claim for refund under chapter 422,
24 excluding withholding returns under section 422.16.
25 Sec. 11. Section 421.62, subsection 1, paragraph c,
26 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
27 (1) "Tax return preparer" means any individual who, for
28 a fee or other consideration, prepares ten or more income
29 tax returns or claims for refund under chapter 422 during
30 a calendar year, or who assumes final responsibility for
31 completed work on such income tax returns or claims for refund
32 under chapter 422 on which preliminary work has been done by
33 another individual.
34 Sec. 12. Section 421.62, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
35 2020, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 11

1 *a.* On or after January 1, 2020, a tax return preparer
2 is required to include the tax return preparer's PTIN on
3 any income tax return or claim for refund prepared by the
4 tax return preparer and filed ~~under chapter 422~~ with the
5 department.

6 Sec. 13. Section 421.64, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
7 to read as follows:

8 1. For purposes of this section, "*tax return preparer*" means
9 the same as defined in section ~~421.61~~ 421.62.

10 Sec. 14. Section 422.20, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020, are
11 amended to read as follows:

12 1. It shall be unlawful for any present or former officer
13 or employee of the state to willfully or recklessly divulge or
14 to make known in any manner whatever not provided by law to
15 any person the amount or source of income, profits, losses,
16 expenditures, or any particular thereof, set forth or disclosed
17 in any income return, or to permit any income return or copy
18 thereof or any book containing any abstract or particulars
19 thereof to be seen or examined by any person except as provided
20 by law; and it shall be unlawful for any person to willfully or
21 recklessly print or publish in any manner whatever not provided
22 by law any income return, or any part thereof or source of
23 income, profits, losses, or expenditures appearing in any
24 income return; and any person committing an offense against the
25 foregoing provision shall be guilty of a serious misdemeanor.

26 If the offender is an officer or employee of the state, such
27 person shall also be dismissed from office or discharged from
28 employment. Nothing herein shall prohibit turning over to duly
29 authorized officers of the United States or tax officials of
30 other states state information and income returns pursuant
31 to agreement between the director and the secretary of the
32 treasury of the United States or the secretary's delegate or
33 pursuant to a reciprocal agreement with another state.

34 2. It is unlawful for an officer, employee, or agent, or
35 former officer, employee, or agent of the state to willfully

PAGE 12

1 or recklessly disclose to any person, except as authorized
2 in subsection 1 of this section, any federal tax return
3 or return information as defined in section 6103(b) of the
4 Internal Revenue Code. It is unlawful for a person to whom
5 any federal tax return or return information, as defined in
6 section 6103(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, is disclosed
7 in a manner unauthorized by subsection 1 of this section
8 to thereafter willfully or recklessly print or publish in
9 any manner not provided by law any such return or return
10 information. A person violating this provision is guilty of
11 a serious misdemeanor.

12 Sec. 15. Section 422.20, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code

13 2020, is amended to read as follows:

14 *a.* Unless otherwise expressly permitted by section 8A.504,
15 section 8G.4, section 11.41, section 96.11, subsection 6,
16 section 421.17, subsections 22, 23, and 26, section 421.17,
17 subsection 27, paragraph “*k*”, section 421.17, subsection 31,
18 section 252B.9, section 321.40, subsection 6, sections 321.120,
19 421.19, 421.28, 421.59, 422.72, and 452A.63, this section, or
20 another provision of law, a tax return, return information, or
21 investigative or audit information shall not be divulged to any
22 person or entity, other than the taxpayer, the department, or
23 internal revenue service for use in a matter unrelated to tax
24 administration.

25 Sec. 16. Section 422.20, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
26 following new subsections:

27 NEW SUBSECTION. 3A. The director may disclose the tax
28 return of a partnership, limited liability company, or S
29 corporation, any such return information, or any investigative
30 information related to the return, to any person who was a
31 partner, shareholder, or member of such an entity during any
32 part of the period covered by the return.

33 NEW SUBSECTION. 3B. *a.* Prior to being made available for
34 public inspection, the department shall redact from the record
35 in an appeal or contested case the following information from

PAGE 13

1 any pleading, exhibit, attachment, motion, written evidence,
2 final order, decision, or opinion:
3 (1) A financial account number.
4 (2) An account number generated by the department to
5 identify an audit or examination.
6 (3) A social security number.
7 (4) A federal employer identification number.
8 (5) The name of a minor.
9 (6) A medical record or other medical information.
10 *b.* Upon a motion filed by the taxpayer, the department
11 may redact from the record in an appeal or contested case any
12 other information from a pleading, exhibit, attachment, motion,
13 or written evidence, if the taxpayer proves by clear and
14 convincing evidence that the release of such information would
15 disclose a trade secret or be a clear, unwarranted invasion of
16 personal privacy.
17 *c.* Notwithstanding paragraph “*a*”, when making final orders,
18 decisions, or opinions available for public inspection, the
19 department may disclose the items in paragraph “*a*” if the
20 department determines such information is necessary to the
21 resolution or decision of the appeal or case.
22 *d.* Except as described in paragraphs “*a*” and “*b*”, all
23 information contained in a pleading, exhibit, attachment,
24 motion, written evidence, final order, decision, opinion,
25 and the record in an appeal or contested case is subject to
26 examination to the extent provided by chapter 22.

27 Sec. 17. Section 422.25, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 28 by adding the following new paragraph:
 29 NEW PARAGRAPH. c. The period of examination and
 30 determination is unlimited under this title in the case of
 31 any action by the department to recover or rescind any tax
 32 expenditure as defined by section 2.48, subsection 1, or any
 33 other incentive or assistance, due to a failure to meet or
 34 maintain the requirements of a program administered by the
 35 economic development authority.

PAGE 14

1 Sec. 18. Section 422.69, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 2 to read as follows:
 3 1. All fees, taxes, interest, and penalties imposed under
 4 this chapter shall be paid to the department in the form of
 5 remittances payable to the ~~state treasurer~~ department and the
 6 department shall transmit each payment daily to the state
 7 treasurer.

8 Sec. 19. Section 422.72, subsection 1, paragraph a,
 9 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 10 (1) It is unlawful for the director, or any person having
 11 an administrative duty under this chapter, or any present or
 12 former officer or other employee of the state authorized by the
 13 director to examine returns, to willfully or recklessly divulge
 14 in any manner whatever, the business affairs, operations, or
 15 information obtained by an investigation under this chapter of
 16 records and equipment of any person visited or examined in the
 17 discharge of official duty, or the amount or source of income,
 18 profits, losses, expenditures or any particular thereof, set
 19 forth or disclosed in any return, or to willfully or recklessly
 20 permit any return or copy of a return or any book containing
 21 any abstract or particulars thereof to be seen or examined by
 22 any person except as provided by law.

23 Sec. 20. Section 422.72, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 24 following new subsection:
 25 NEW SUBSECTION. 7A. a. Prior to being made available for
 26 public inspection, the department shall redact from the record
 27 in an appeal or contested case the following information from
 28 any pleading, exhibit, attachment, motion, written evidence,
 29 final order, decision, or opinion:
 30 (1) A financial account number.
 31 (2) An account number generated by the department to
 32 identify an audit or examination.
 33 (3) A social security number.
 34 (4) A federal employer identification number.
 35 (5) The name of a minor.

PAGE 15

1 (6) A medical record or other medical information.
 2 b. Upon a motion filed by the taxpayer, the department

3 may redact from the record in an appeal or contested case any
4 other information from a pleading, exhibit, attachment, motion,
5 or written evidence, if the taxpayer proves by clear and
6 convincing evidence that the release of such information would
7 disclose a trade secret or be a clear, unwarranted invasion of
8 personal privacy.

9 c. Notwithstanding paragraph “a”, when making final orders,
10 decisions, or opinions available for public inspection, the
11 department may disclose the items in paragraph “a” if the
12 department determines such information is necessary to the
13 resolution or decision of the appeal or case.

14 d. Except as described in paragraphs “a” and “b”, all
15 information contained in a pleading, exhibit, attachment,
16 motion, written evidence, final order, decision, opinion,
17 and the record in an appeal or contested case is subject to
18 examination to the extent provided by chapter 22.

19 Sec. 21. Section 423.37, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
20 following new subsection:

21 NEW SUBSECTION. 4. The period of limitation on examination
22 and determination is unlimited under this title in the case
23 of any action by the department to recover or rescind any tax
24 expenditure as defined by section 2.48, subsection 1, or any
25 other incentive or assistance, due to a failure to meet or
26 maintain the requirements of a program administered by the
27 economic development authority.

28 Sec. 22. Section 428A.1, subsection 3, Code 2020, is amended
29 to read as follows:

30 3. The declaration of value shall state the full
31 consideration paid for the real property transferred. If
32 agricultural land, as defined in section 9H.1, is purchased by
33 a corporation, limited partnership, trust, alien or nonresident
34 alien, the declaration of value shall include the name and
35 address of the buyer, the name and address of the seller, a

PAGE 16

1 legal description of the agricultural land, and identify the
2 buyer as a corporation, limited partnership, trust, alien, or
3 nonresident alien. The county recorder shall not record the
4 declaration of value, but shall enter on the declaration of
5 value information the director of revenue requires for the
6 production of the sales/assessment ratio study and transmit
7 all declarations of value to the city or county assessor in
8 whose jurisdiction the property is located. The city or county
9 assessor shall ~~enter on the declaration of value~~ provide the
10 information the director of revenue requires for the production
11 of the sales/assessment ratio study ~~and transmit one copy of~~
12 ~~each declaration of value to the director of revenue~~; at times
13 as directed by the director of revenue. The assessor shall
14 retain ~~one copy of each declaration of value~~ for three years
15 from December 31 of the year in which the transfer of realty
16 for which the declaration was filed took place. The director

17 of revenue shall, upon receipt of the information required to
 18 be filed under this chapter by the city or county assessor,
 19 send to the office of the secretary of state that part of the
 20 declaration of value which identifies a corporation, limited
 21 partnership, trust, alien, or nonresident alien as a purchaser
 22 of agricultural land as defined in section 9H.1.

23 Sec. 23. Section 441.48, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 24 follows:

25 **441.48 Notice of adjustment.**

26 1. Before the department of revenue shall adjust the
 27 valuation of any class of property any such percentage, the
 28 department shall first serve ten days' notice by mail, on the
 29 county auditor of the county whose valuation is proposed to be
 30 adjusted. ~~The department shall hold an adjourned meeting after~~
 31 ~~such~~

32 2. ~~If the county or assessing jurisdiction intends to~~
 33 ~~protest the proposed adjustment, the board of supervisors or~~
 34 ~~city council, as applicable, shall provide the department with~~
 35 ~~notice of intent to protest prior to expiration of the ten~~

PAGE 17

1 ~~days' notice.~~

2 3. ~~After expiration of the ten days' notice, at which time~~
 3 ~~the county or assessing jurisdiction may appear by its city~~
 4 ~~council or board of supervisors, city or county attorney, and~~
 5 ~~other assessing jurisdiction, or city or county officials, and~~
 6 ~~make written or oral protest against such proposed adjustment.~~

7 4. The protest shall consist simply of a statement of the
 8 error, or errors, complained of with such facts as may lead to
 9 their correction. ~~At the adjourned meeting~~

10 5. ~~After written protest is received, or an oral protest~~
 11 ~~is heard, the final action may be taken in reference to the~~
 12 ~~proposed adjustment.~~

13 Sec. 24. Section 489.706, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
 14 amended to read as follows:

15 2. The secretary of state shall refer the federal tax
 16 identification number contained in the application for
 17 reinstatement to the ~~departments~~ department of revenue and
 18 workforce development. ~~The departments~~ department of revenue
 19 ~~and~~ workforce development shall report to the secretary of
 20 state the tax status of the limited liability company. If
 21 ~~either the~~ department reports to the secretary of state that
 22 a filing delinquency or liability exists against the limited
 23 liability company, the secretary of state shall not cancel the
 24 declaration of dissolution until the filing delinquency or
 25 liability is satisfied.

26 Sec. 25. Section 490.1422, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
 27 2020, is amended to read as follows:

28 a. The secretary of state shall refer the federal tax
 29 identification number contained in the application for
 30 reinstatement to the ~~departments~~ department of revenue and

31 workforce development. The ~~departments~~ department of revenue
32 ~~and~~ workforce development shall report to the secretary
33 of state the tax status of the corporation. If ~~either the~~
34 ~~department~~ reports to the secretary of state that a filing
35 delinquency or liability exists against the corporation,

PAGE 18

1 the secretary of state shall not cancel the certificate of
2 dissolution until the filing delinquency or liability is
3 satisfied.
4 Sec. 26. Section 501.813, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
5 2020, is amended to read as follows:
6 a. The secretary of state shall refer the federal tax
7 identification number contained in the application for
8 reinstatement to the ~~departments~~ department of revenue ~~and~~
9 workforce development. The ~~departments~~ department of revenue
10 ~~and~~ workforce development shall report to the secretary
11 of state the tax status of the cooperative. If ~~either the~~
12 ~~department~~ reports to the secretary of state that a filing
13 delinquency or liability exists against the cooperative,
14 the secretary of state shall not cancel the certificate of
15 dissolution until the filing delinquency or liability is
16 satisfied.

17 Sec. 27. Section 504.1423, subsection 2, paragraph a, Code
18 2020, is amended to read as follows:
19 a. The secretary of state shall refer the federal tax
20 identification number contained in the application for
21 reinstatement to the ~~departments~~ department of revenue ~~and~~
22 workforce development. The ~~departments~~ department of revenue
23 ~~and~~ workforce development shall report to the secretary
24 of state the tax status of the corporation. If ~~either the~~
25 ~~department~~ reports to the secretary of state that a filing
26 delinquency or liability exists against the corporation,
27 the secretary of state shall not cancel the certificate of
28 dissolution until the filing delinquency or liability is
29 satisfied.

30 Sec. 28. Section 533.329, Code 2020, is amended by adding
31 the following new subsection:
32 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 03. Returns shall be in the form the
33 director of revenue prescribes, and shall be filed with the
34 department of revenue on or before the last day of the fourth
35 month after the expiration of the tax year. The moneys and

PAGE 19

1 credits tax is due and payable on the last day of the fourth
2 month after the expiration of the tax year.
3 Sec. 29. Section 533.329, subsection 3, Code 2020, is
4 amended to read as follows:
5 3. The department of revenue shall administer and enforce
6 the provisions of this section, and except as explicitly

7 provided in this section or another provision of law, shall
 8 apply all applicable penalty, interest, and administrative
 9 provisions of chapters 421 and 422 as nearly as possible in
 10 administering and enforcing the moneys and credits tax imposed
 11 by this section.

12 Sec. 30. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. It is the intent of the
 13 general assembly that the sections of this division amending
 14 Code sections 422.25 and 423.37 are conforming amendments
 15 consistent with current state law, and that the amendments
 16 do not change the application of current law but instead
 17 reflect current law both before and after the enactment of this
 18 division of this Act.

19 Sec. 31. EFFECTIVE DATE. The following, being deemed of
 20 immediate importance, take effect upon enactment:

21 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 22 422.25.

23 2. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 24 423.37.

25 Sec. 32. APPLICABILITY. The following applies to any
 26 return for which a written notice that the taxpayer is required
 27 to file such return is issued by the department on or after
 28 January 1, 2022:

29 The portion of the section of this division of this Act
 30 enacting section 421.27, subsection 9.

31 Sec. 33. APPLICABILITY. The following apply to tax years
 32 beginning on or after January 1, 2022:

33 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 34 421.27, subsection 1.

35 2. The portion of the section of this division of this Act

PAGE 20

1 amending section 421.27, subsection 4.

2 3. The portion of the section of this division of this Act

3 enacting section 421.27, subsection 8.

4 DIVISION II

5 SALES AND USE TAX

6 Sec. 34. Section 321G.4, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 7 to read as follows:

8 2. *a.* The owner of the snowmobile shall file an application
 9 for registration with the department through the county
 10 recorder of the county of residence in the manner established
 11 by the commission. The application shall be completed by the
 12 owner and shall be accompanied by a fee of fifteen dollars and
 13 a writing fee as provided in section 321G.27. A snowmobile
 14 shall not be registered by the county recorder until the
 15 county recorder is presented with receipts, bills of sale,
 16 or other satisfactory evidence that the sales or use tax has
 17 been paid for the purchase of the snowmobile or that the
 18 owner is exempt from paying the tax. A snowmobile that has
 19 an expired registration certificate from another state may be
 20 registered in this state upon proper application, payment of

21 all applicable registration and writing fees, and payment of a
22 penalty of five dollars.
23 b. If the owner of the snowmobile is unable to present
24 satisfactory evidence that the sales or use tax has been paid,
25 the county recorder shall collect the tax. On or before the
26 tenth day of each month, the county recorder shall remit to
27 the department of revenue the amount of the taxes collected
28 during the preceding month, together with an itemized statement
29 on forms furnished by the department of revenue showing the
30 name of each taxpayer, the make and purchase price of each
31 snowmobile, the amount of tax paid, and such other information
32 as the department of revenue requires.
33 Sec. 35. Section 321I.4, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
34 to read as follows:
35 2. a. The owner of the all-terrain vehicle shall file an

PAGE 21

1 application for registration with the department through the
2 county recorder of the county of residence, or in the case
3 of a nonresident owner, in the county of primary use, in the
4 manner established by the commission. The application shall
5 be completed by the owner and shall be accompanied by a fee
6 of fifteen dollars and a writing fee as provided in section
7 321I.29. An all-terrain vehicle shall not be registered by the
8 county recorder until the county recorder is presented with
9 receipts, bills of sale, or other satisfactory evidence that
10 the sales or use tax has been paid for the purchase of the
11 all-terrain vehicle or that the owner is exempt from paying the
12 tax. An all-terrain vehicle that has an expired registration
13 certificate from another state may be registered in this state
14 upon proper application, payment of all applicable registration
15 and writing fees, and payment of a penalty of five dollars.
16 b. If the owner of the all-terrain vehicle is unable to
17 present satisfactory evidence that the sales or use tax has
18 been paid, the county recorder shall collect the tax. On or
19 before the tenth day of each month, the county recorder shall
20 remit to the department of revenue the amount of the taxes
21 collected during the preceding month, together with an itemized
22 statement on forms furnished by the department of revenue
23 showing the name of each taxpayer, the make and purchase price
24 of each all-terrain vehicle, the amount of tax paid, and such
25 other information as the department of revenue requires.
26 Sec. 36. Section 423.2, subsection 6, paragraph bs, Code
27 2020, is amended to read as follows:
28 bs. Services arising from or related to installing,
29 maintaining, servicing, repairing, operating, upgrading, or
30 enhancing either specified digital products or software sold
31 as tangible personal property.
32 Sec. 37. Section 423.2, subsection 8, paragraph d,
33 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
34 (1) The retail sale of tangible personal property or

35 specified digital product and a service, where the tangible

PAGE 22

1 personal property or specified digital product is essential
2 to the use of the service, and is provided exclusively in
3 connection with the service, and the true object of the
4 transaction is the service.

5 Sec. 38. Section 423.3, subsection 3A, Code 2020, is amended
6 to read as follows:

7 3A. The sales price from the sale of a commercial recreation
8 service offering the opportunity to hunt a preserve whitetail
9 as defined in section 484C.1 if the sale occurred between July
10 1, 2005, and December 31, 2015.

11 Sec. 39. Section 423.3, subsection 31, unnumbered paragraph
12 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

13 The sales price of tangible personal property or specified
14 digital products sold to and of services furnished to a tribal
15 government as defined in 216A.161, or the sales price of
16 tangible personal property or specified digital products sold
17 to and of services furnished, and used for public purposes
18 sold to a tax-certifying or tax-levying body of the state or a
19 governmental subdivision of the state, including the following:
20 regional transit systems, as defined in section 324A.1; ;
21 the state board of regents; ; department of human services; ;
22 state department of transportation; ; any municipally owned
23 solid waste facility which sells all or part of its processed
24 waste as fuel to a municipally owned public utility; ; and all
25 divisions, boards, commissions, agencies, or instrumentalities
26 of state, federal, county, ~~or~~ municipal ~~government, or tribal~~
27 government which have no earnings going to the benefit of an
28 equity investor or stockholder, except any of the following:

29 Sec. 40. Section 423.3, subsection 80, paragraphs b and c,
30 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

31 b. Subject to the limitations in paragraph "c", if a
32 contractor, subcontractor, or builder is to use building
33 materials, supplies, ~~and~~ equipment, or services in the
34 performance of a written construction contract with a
35 designated exempt entity, the person shall purchase such

PAGE 23

1 items of tangible personal property or services without
2 liability for the tax if such property or services will be
3 used in the performance of the written construction contract
4 and a purchasing agent authorization letter and an exemption
5 certificate, issued by the designated exempt entity, are
6 presented to the retailer.

7 c. (1) With regard to a written construction contract
8 with a designated exempt entity described in paragraph "a",
9 subparagraph (1), the sales price of building materials,
10 supplies, ~~or~~ equipment, or services is exempt from tax by this

11 subsection only to the extent the building materials, supplies,
 12 ~~or equipment, or services~~ are completely consumed in the
 13 performance of the construction contract with the designated
 14 exempt entity, and only if the property that is the subject
 15 of the construction project becomes public property or the
 16 property of the designated exempt entity.

17 (2) With regard to a written construction contract with
 18 a designated exempt entity described in paragraph “a”,
 19 subparagraph (2), the sales price of building materials,
 20 supplies, ~~or equipment, or services~~ is exempt from tax by this
 21 subsection only to the extent the building materials, supplies,
 22 ~~or equipment, or services~~ are completely consumed in the
 23 performance of a construction contract to construct a project,
 24 as defined in section 15J.2, subsection 10, which project has
 25 been approved by the economic development authority board in
 26 accordance with chapter 15J.

27 Sec. 41. Section 423.4, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 28 to read as follows:

29 1. a. For purposes of this subsection, a “designated exempt
 30 entity” means any of the following:

31 (1) A private nonprofit educational institution in this
 32 state;

33 (2) A nonprofit Iowa affiliate of a nonprofit international
 34 organization whose primary activity is the promotion of the
 35 construction, remodeling, or rehabilitation of one-family or

PAGE 24

1 two-family dwellings for low-income families;

2 (3) A nonprofit private museum in this state;

3 (4) A tax-certifying or tax-levying body or governmental
 4 subdivision of the state, including the state board of regents,
 5 state department of human services, state department of
 6 transportation;

7 (5) A municipally owned solid waste facility which sells all
 8 or part of its processed waste as fuel to a municipally owned
 9 public utility;

10 (6) The state of Iowa.

11 (7) Any political subdivision of the state.

12 (8) All divisions, boards, commissions, agencies, or
 13 instrumentalities of state, federal, county, or municipal
 14 government which do not have earnings going to the benefit of
 15 an equity investor or stockholder;

16 (9) A tribal government as defined in section 216A.161,
 17 and any instrumentalities of the tribal government which do
 18 not have earnings going to the benefit of an equity investor
 19 or stockholder.

20 b. A designated exempt entity may make application apply
 21 to the department for the refund of the sales or use tax upon
 22 the sales price of all sales of goods, wares, or merchandise
 23 building materials, supplies, equipment, or from services
 24 furnished to a contractor, used in the fulfillment performance

25 of a written contract with the state of Iowa, any political
 26 subdivision of the state, or a division, board, commission,
 27 agency, or instrumentality of the state or a political
 28 subdivision, a private nonprofit educational institution in
 29 this state, a nonprofit Iowa affiliate described in this
 30 subsection, or a nonprofit private museum in this state if the
 31 property becomes an integral part of the project under contract
 32 and at the completion of the project becomes public property,
 33 is devoted to educational uses, becomes part of a low-income
 34 one-family or two-family dwelling in the state, or becomes a
 35 nonprofit private museum; except goods, wares, or merchandise,

PAGE 25

1 designated exempt entity if all of the following apply:
 2 (1) The building materials, supplies, equipment, or
 3 services are completely consumed in the performance of a
 4 construction project with the designated entity.
 5 (2) The property that is subject of the construction project
 6 becomes public property or the property of an exempt entity.
 7 (3) The building materials, supplies, equipment, or
 8 services furnished which are not used in the performance of
 9 any contract in connection with the operation of any municipal
 10 utility engaged in selling gas, electricity, or heat to
 11 the general public or in connection with the operation of a
 12 municipal pay television system; and ~~except goods, wares, and~~
 13 ~~merchandise are not~~ used in the performance of a contract for a
 14 “project” under chapter 419 as defined in that chapter other
 15 than goods, wares, or merchandise used in the performance of
 16 a contract for a “project” under chapter 419 for which a bond
 17 issue was approved by a municipality prior to July 1, 1968, or
 18 for which the goods, wares, or merchandise becomes an integral
 19 part of the project under contract and at the completion of the
 20 project becomes public property or is devoted to educational
 21 uses.
 22 ~~a. c.~~ Such A contractor shall state under oath, on forms
 23 provided by the department, the amount of such sales of goods,
 24 wares, or merchandise, or services furnished and used in the
 25 performance of such contract, and upon which sales or use tax
 26 has been paid, and shall file such forms with the ~~governmental~~
 27 ~~unit, private nonprofit educational institution, nonprofit Iowa~~
 28 ~~affiliate, or nonprofit private museum~~ designated exempt entity
 29 which has made any written contract for performance by the
 30 contractor. The forms shall be filed by the contractor with
 31 the ~~governmental unit, educational institution, nonprofit Iowa~~
 32 ~~affiliate, or nonprofit private museum~~ designated exempt entity
 33 before final settlement is made.
 34 ~~b. d.~~ Such governmental unit, educational institution,
 35 nonprofit Iowa affiliate, or nonprofit private museum A

PAGE 26

1 designated exempt entity shall, not more than one year after
 2 the final settlement has been made, ~~make application apply~~
 3 to the department for any refund of the amount of the sales
 4 or use tax which shall have been paid upon any ~~goods, wares,~~
 5 ~~or merchandise~~ building materials, supplies, equipment,
 6 or services furnished, the application to be made in the
 7 manner and upon forms to be provided by the department,
 8 and the department shall forthwith audit the claim and, if
 9 approved, issue a warrant to the ~~governmental unit, educational~~
 10 ~~institution, nonprofit Iowa affiliate, or nonprofit private~~
 11 ~~museum~~ designated exempt entity in the amount of the sales or
 12 use tax which has been paid to the state of Iowa under the
 13 contract.

14 ~~e. e.~~ Refunds authorized under this subsection shall accrue
 15 interest in accordance with section 421.60, subsection 2,
 16 paragraph "e".

17 ~~d. f.~~ Any contractor who willfully makes a false report of
 18 tax paid under the provisions of this subsection is guilty of
 19 a simple misdemeanor and in addition shall be liable for the
 20 payment of the tax and any applicable penalty and interest.

21 Sec. 42. Section 423.4, subsection 2, paragraphs a and b,
 22 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

23 a. A contractor awarded a contract for a transportation
 24 construction project is considered the consumer of all building
 25 materials, building supplies, ~~and equipment, and services~~ and
 26 shall pay sales tax to the supplier or remit consumer use tax
 27 directly to the department.

28 b. The contractor is not required to file information with
 29 the state department of transportation stating the amount of
 30 ~~goods, wares, or merchandise, or services rendered, furnished,~~
 31 ~~or performed and~~ building materials, supplies, equipment, or
 32 services used in the performance of the contract or the amount
 33 of sales or use tax paid.

34 Sec. 43. Section 423.4, subsection 6, paragraph a,
 35 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 27

1 (1) The owner of a collaborative educational facility
 2 in this state may make application to the department for the
 3 refund of the sales or use tax upon the sales price of all sales
 4 of ~~goods, wares, or merchandise~~ building materials, supplies,
 5 equipment, or from services furnished to a contractor, used
 6 in the fulfillment of a written construction contract with
 7 the owner of the collaborative educational facility for the
 8 original construction, or additions or modifications to, a
 9 building or structure to be used as part of the collaborative
 10 educational facility.

11 Sec. 44. Section 423.4, subsection 6, paragraphs b and c,
 12 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

13 ~~Such a~~ contractor shall state under oath, on forms
 14 provided by the department, the amount of such sales of ~~goods,~~
 15 ~~wares, or merchandise~~ building materials, supplies, equipment,
 16 or services furnished and used in the performance of such
 17 contract, and upon which sales or use tax has been paid, and
 18 shall file such forms with the owner of the collaborative
 19 educational facility which has made any written contract for
 20 performance by the contractor.

21 c. (1) The owner of the collaborative educational facility
 22 shall, not more than one year after the final settlement has
 23 been made, make application to the department for any refund
 24 of the amount of the sales or use tax which shall have been
 25 paid upon any ~~goods, wares, or merchandise~~ building materials,
 26 supplies, equipment, or services furnished, the application
 27 to be made in the manner and upon forms to be provided by
 28 the department, and the department shall forthwith audit the
 29 claim and, if approved, issue a warrant to the owner of the
 30 collaborative educational facility in the amount of the sales
 31 or use tax which has been paid to the state of Iowa under the
 32 contract.

33 (2) Refunds authorized under this subsection shall accrue
 34 interest in accordance with section 421.60, subsection 2,
 35 paragraph "e".

PAGE 28

1 Sec. 45. Section 423.5, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code
 2 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph.

3 Sec. 46. Section 423.29, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 4 to read as follows:

5 1. Every seller who is a retailer and who is making taxable
 6 sales of tangible personal property or specified digital
 7 products in Iowa ~~or who is a retailer maintaining a place~~
 8 ~~of business in this state making taxable sales of tangible~~
 9 ~~personal property or specified digital products~~ shall, at
 10 the time of making the sale, collect the sales tax. ~~Every~~
 11 ~~seller who is a retailer that is not otherwise required to~~
 12 ~~collect sales tax under the provisions of this chapter and who~~
 13 ~~is selling tangible personal property or specified digital~~
 14 ~~products for use in Iowa shall, at the time of making the sale,~~
 15 ~~whether within or without the state, collect the use tax.~~
 16 Sellers required to collect sales or use tax shall give to any
 17 purchaser a receipt for the tax collected in the manner and
 18 form prescribed by the director.

19 Sec. 47. Section 423.33, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 20 to read as follows:

21 1. *Liability of purchaser for sales tax and retailer.*
 22 *a.* If a purchaser fails to pay sales tax to the retailer
 23 required to collect the tax, then in addition to all of the
 24 rights, obligations, and remedies provided, ~~the a use tax~~
 25 is payable by the purchaser directly to the department, and
 26 sections 423.31, 423.32, 423.37, 423.38, 423.39, 423.40,

27 423.41, and 423.42 apply to the purchaser.
 28 b. For failure to pay the sales or use tax as described
 29 in paragraph "a", the retailer and purchaser are jointly
 30 liable, unless the circumstances described in section 29C.24,
 31 subsection 3, paragraph "a", subparagraph (2), section 421.60,
 32 subsection 2, paragraph "m", section 423.34A, or section
 33 423.45, subsection 4, paragraph "b" or "e", or subsection 5,
 34 paragraph "c" or "e", are applicable.
 35 c. If the retailer fails to collect sales tax at the time

PAGE 29

1 of the transaction, the retailer shall thereafter remit the
 2 applicable sales tax, or the purchaser thereafter shall remit
 3 the applicable use tax. If the purchaser remits all applicable
 4 use tax, the retailer remains liable for any local sales and
 5 services tax under chapter 423B that the retailer failed to
 6 collect.
 7 Sec. 48. REFUNDS RELATED TO PRESERVE WHITETAILED DEER
 8 HUNTING. Refunds of taxes, interest, or penalties that arise
 9 from claims resulting from the amendment of section 423.3,
 10 subsection 3A, for sales occurring between July 1, 2005,
 11 and the effective date of the amendment to section 423.3,
 12 subsection 3A, shall not be allowed, notwithstanding any other
 13 law to the contrary.
 14 Sec. 49. LEGISLATIVE INTENT.
 15 1. It is the intent of the general assembly that the section
 16 of this division of this Act amending section 423.29 is a
 17 conforming amendment consistent with current state law, and
 18 that the amendment does not change the application of current
 19 law but instead reflects current law both before and after the
 20 enactment of this division of this Act.
 21 2. It is the intent of the general assembly that the
 22 addition of "jointly" in the section of this division of
 23 this Act amending section 423.33 is a conforming amendment
 24 consistent with current state law, and that the amendment
 25 does not change the application of current law but instead
 26 reflects current law both before and after the enactment of
 27 this division of this Act.
 28 Sec. 50. EFFECTIVE DATE. The following, being deemed of
 29 immediate importance, take effect upon enactment:
 30 1. The section of this division of this Act amending section
 31 423.3, subsection 3A.
 32 2. The section of this division of this Act relating
 33 to refunds for commercial recreation services offering an
 34 opportunity to hunt preserve whitetail deer.
 35 Sec. 51. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. The following applies

PAGE 30

1 retroactively to July 1, 2005:
 2 The section of this division of this Act amending section

3 423.3, subsection 3A.

4 DIVISION III
5 INCOME TAX

6 Sec. 52. Section 422.9, subsection 3, paragraph c, Code
7 2020, is amended by striking the paragraph and inserting in
8 lieu thereof the following:

9 c. A taxpayer may elect to waive the entire carryback period
10 with respect to an Iowa net operating loss for any taxable year
11 beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The election shall be
12 made in the manner and form prescribed by the department, and
13 shall be made by the due date for filing the taxpayer's Iowa
14 return, including extensions of time. After the election is
15 made for any taxable year, the election shall be irrevocable
16 for such taxable year. When an election has been properly
17 made, the Iowa net operating loss shall be carried forward
18 twenty taxable years.

19 Sec. 53. Section 422.9, subsection 3, paragraph d, Code
20 2020, is amended to read as follows:

21 d. Notwithstanding paragraph "a", for a taxpayer who is
22 engaged in the trade or business of farming, which means the
23 same as a "farming business" as defined in section 263A(e)(4) of
24 the Internal Revenue Code, and has a farming loss from farming
25 as defined in section 172(b)(1)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code
26 including modifications prescribed by rule by the director,
27 the Iowa farming loss from the trade or business of farming is
28 a net operating loss which may, at the time of the election of
29 the taxpayer, be carried back five taxable years prior to the
30 taxable year of the loss. The election shall be made in the
31 manner and form prescribed by the department, and shall be made
32 by the due date for filing the taxpayer's return, including
33 extensions of time. After the election is made for any taxable
34 year, the election shall be irrevocable for such taxable year.

35 Sec. 54. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies

PAGE 31

1 to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

2 DIVISION IV
3 RESEARCH ACTIVITIES CREDIT

4 Sec. 55. Section 15.335, subsection 4, paragraph a, Code
5 2020, is amended to read as follows:

6 a. In lieu of the credit amount computed in subsection 2, an
7 eligible business may elect to compute the credit amount for
8 qualified research expenses incurred in this state in a manner
9 consistent with the alternative simplified credit described in
10 section ~~41(e)(5)~~ 41(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code. The
11 taxpayer may make this election regardless of the method used
12 for the taxpayer's federal income tax. The election made under
13 this paragraph is for the tax year and the taxpayer may use
14 another or the same method for any subsequent year.

15 Sec. 56. Section 15.335, subsection 4, paragraph b,
16 unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as

17 follows:

18 For purposes of the alternate credit computation method in
19 paragraph “a”, the credit percentages applicable to qualified
20 research expenses described in section ~~41(e)(5)(A)~~ 41(c)(4)(A)
21 and clause (ii) of section ~~41(e)(5)(B)~~ 41(c)(4)(B) of the
22 Internal Revenue Code are as follows:

23 Sec. 57. Section 422.10, subsection 1, paragraphs c and d,
24 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

25 c. In lieu of the credit amount computed in paragraph “b”,
26 subparagraph (1), subparagraph division (a), a taxpayer may
27 elect to compute the credit amount for qualified research
28 expenses incurred in this state in a manner consistent with the
29 alternative simplified credit described in section ~~41(e)(5)~~
30 41(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code. The taxpayer may make
31 this election regardless of the method used for the taxpayer’s
32 federal income tax. The election made under this paragraph is
33 for the tax year and the taxpayer may use another or the same
34 method for any subsequent year.

35 d. For purposes of the alternate credit computation

PAGE 32

1 method in paragraph “c”, the credit percentages applicable to
2 qualified research expenses described in section ~~41(e)(5)(A)~~
3 41(c)(4)(A) and clause (ii) of section ~~41(e)(5)(B)~~ 41(c)(4)(B)
4 of the Internal Revenue Code are four and fifty-five
5 hundredths percent and one and ninety-five hundredths percent,
6 respectively.

7 Sec. 58. Section 422.33, subsection 5, paragraphs c and d,
8 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

9 c. In lieu of the credit amount computed in paragraph
10 “a”, subparagraph (1), a corporation may elect to compute the
11 credit amount for qualified research expenses incurred in this
12 state in a manner consistent with the alternative simplified
13 credit described in section ~~41(e)(5)~~ 41(c)(4) of the Internal
14 Revenue Code. The taxpayer may make this election regardless
15 of the method used for the taxpayer’s federal income tax. The
16 election made under this paragraph is for the tax year and the
17 taxpayer may use another or the same method for any subsequent
18 year.

19 d. For purposes of the alternate credit computation
20 method in paragraph “c”, the credit percentages applicable to
21 qualified research expenses described in section ~~41(e)(5)(A)~~
22 41(c)(4)(A) and clause (ii) of section ~~41(e)(5)(B)~~ 41(c)(4)(B)
23 of the Internal Revenue Code are four and fifty-five
24 hundredths percent and one and ninety-five hundredths percent,
25 respectively.

26 Sec. 59. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
27 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

28 Sec. 60. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
29 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2019, for tax years
30 beginning on or after that date.

31 DIVISION V
 32 PARTNERSHIP AND PASS-THROUGH ENTITY AUDITS AND REPORTING OF
 33 FEDERAL ADJUSTMENTS
 34 Sec. 61. Section 421.27, subsection 2, paragraph c, Code
 35 2020, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 33

1 c. (1) ~~The Except in the case of a final federal~~
 2 ~~partnership adjustment governed by subparagraph (2), the~~
 3 ~~taxpayer provides written notification to the department of a~~
 4 ~~federal audit while it is in progress and voluntarily files an~~
 5 ~~amended return which includes a copy of the federal document~~
 6 ~~showing the final disposition or final federal adjustments~~
 7 ~~and pays any additional Iowa tax due within sixty one hundred~~
 8 ~~eighty days of the final disposition determination date of the~~
 9 ~~federal government's audit. For purposes of this subparagraph,~~
 10 ~~"final determination date" means the same as defined in section~~
 11 ~~422.25.~~
 12 (2) (a) In the case of a final federal partnership
 13 adjustment arising from a partnership level audit, with respect
 14 to the audited partnership or a direct partner or indirect
 15 partner of the audited partnership, the audited partnership,
 16 direct partner, or indirect partner voluntarily and timely
 17 complies with its reporting and payment requirements under
 18 section 422.25A, subsection 4 or 5.
 19 (b) As used in this subparagraph, all words and phrases
 20 defined in section 422.25A shall have the same meaning given
 21 them by that section.

22 Sec. 62. Section 422.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 23 following new subsection:
 24 NEW SUBSECTION. 59. Any income subtracted from federal
 25 taxable income for an adjustment year pursuant to section 6225
 26 of the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder
 27 shall be added back in computing net income for state tax
 28 purposes for the adjustment year.
 29 Sec. 63. Section 422.25, subsections 1 and 2, Code 2020,
 30 are amended by striking the subsections and inserting in lieu
 31 thereof the following:
 32 1. a. For purposes of this subsection:
 33 (1) *"Federal adjustment"* means a change to an item or amount
 34 required to be determined under the Internal Revenue Code and
 35 the regulations thereunder that is used by the taxpayer to

PAGE 34

1 compute state tax owed whether such change results from action
 2 by the internal revenue service, or the filing of a timely
 3 amended federal return or timely federal refund claim. A
 4 federal adjustment is positive to the extent that it increases
 5 Iowa taxable income as determined under this title and is
 6 negative to the extent that it decreases Iowa taxable income

7 as determined under this title.
8 (2) *"Federal adjustments report"* means the method or form
9 required by the department by rule to report final federal
10 adjustments or final federal partnership adjustments as defined
11 in section 422.25A, and in the case of any entity taxed as a
12 partnership or S corporation for federal income tax purposes,
13 identifies all owners that hold an interest directly in such
14 entity and provides the effect of the final federal adjustments
15 on such owner's Iowa income.
16 (3) *"Final determination date"* means the following:
17 (a) Except as provided in subparagraph divisions (b) and
18 (c), for federal adjustments arising from an internal revenue
19 service audit or other action by the internal revenue service,
20 the final determination date is the first day on which no
21 federal adjustments arising from that audit or other action
22 remain to be finally determined, whether by internal revenue
23 service decision with respect to which all rights of appeal
24 have been waived or exhausted, by agreement, or, if appealed
25 or contested, by a final decision with respect to which all
26 rights of appeal have been waived or exhausted. For agreements
27 required to be signed by the internal revenue service and the
28 taxpayer, the final determination date is the date on which the
29 last party signed the agreement.
30 (b) For federal adjustments arising from an internal
31 revenue service audit or other action by the internal revenue
32 service, if the taxpayer filed as a member of a consolidated
33 return under section 422.37, the final determination date
34 is the first day on which no related federal adjustments
35 arising from that audit or other action remain to be finally

PAGE 35

1 determined, as described in subparagraph division (a), for the
2 entire group.
3 (c) For federal adjustments arising from a timely filed
4 amended federal return or a timely filed federal refund
5 claim, or if it is a federal adjustment reported on a timely
6 amended federal return or other similar report filed pursuant
7 to section 6225(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, the final
8 determination date is the day on which the amended return,
9 refund claim, or other similar report was filed.
10 (4) *"Final federal adjustment"* means a federal adjustment
11 after the final determination date for that federal adjustment
12 has passed.
13 b. Within three years after the return is filed or within
14 three years after the return became due, including any
15 extensions of time for filing, whichever time is the later,
16 the department shall examine the return and determine the tax.
17 However, if the taxpayer omits from income an amount which
18 will, under the Internal Revenue Code, extend the statute of
19 limitations for assessment of federal tax to six years under
20 the federal law, the period for examination and determination

21 is six years.

22 c. The period for examination and determination of the
23 correct amount of tax is unlimited in the case of a false or
24 fraudulent return made with the intent to evade tax or in the
25 case of a failure to file a return.

26 d. In lieu of the period of limitation for any prior year
27 for which an overpayment of tax or an elimination or reduction
28 of an underpayment of tax due for that prior year results from
29 the carryback to that prior year of a net operating loss or
30 net capital loss, the period is the period of limitation for
31 the taxable year of the net operating loss or net capital loss
32 which results in the carryback.

33 e. (1) In addition to the applicable period of limitation
34 for examination and determination in paragraph "b", "c", or "d",
35 the department may make an examination and determination at any

PAGE 36

1 time within one year from the date of receipt by the department
2 of a federal adjustments report with respect to a final
3 federal adjustment or final federal partnership adjustment
4 as defined in section 422.25A for a particular tax year. In
5 order to begin the running of the one-year period, the federal
6 adjustments report related to the final federal adjustment or
7 final federal partnership adjustment shall be transmitted to
8 the department by the taxpayer in the form and manner specified
9 by the department by rule.

10 (2) The department in its discretion may adopt rules to
11 establish a de minimis amount for which subparagraph (1) shall
12 not apply and the taxpayer shall not be required to file a
13 federal adjustments report.

14 (3) The department may in its discretion and when
15 administratively feasible adopt a process through rule by
16 which a taxpayer may make estimated payments of tax expected
17 to result from a pending internal revenue service audit
18 prior to the filing of a federal adjustments report with the
19 department. The process shall provide that the estimated
20 tax payments shall be credited against any tax liability
21 ultimately found to be due to the state from the internal
22 revenue service audit and will limit the accrual of further
23 statutory interest on that liability. The process shall also
24 provide that if the estimated tax payments exceed the final
25 tax liability and statutory interest ultimately determined to
26 be due, the taxpayer is entitled to a refund or credit for
27 the excess, without interest, provided the taxpayer files a
28 federal adjustments report, or a claim for refund or credit of
29 tax under section 422.73, no later than one year following the
30 final determination date.

31 2. a. If the tax found due under subsection 1 is greater
32 than the amount paid, the department shall compute the amount
33 due, together with interest and penalties as provided in
34 paragraph "b", and shall mail a notice of assessment to the

35 taxpayer and, if applicable, to the taxpayer's authorized

PAGE 37

1 representative of the total, which shall be computed as a sum
2 certain, with interest computed to the last day of the month
3 in which the notice is dated.
4 *b.* In addition to the tax or additional tax determined
5 by the department under subsection 1, the taxpayer shall pay
6 interest on the tax or additional tax at the rate in effect
7 under section 421.7 for each month counting each fraction of
8 a month as an entire month, computed from the date the return
9 was required to be filed. In addition to the tax or additional
10 tax, the taxpayer shall pay a penalty as provided in section
11 421.27.

12 Sec. 64. NEW SECTION. **422.25A Reporting and treatment of**
13 **certain partnership adjustments.**

14 1. *Definitions.* As used in this section and sections
15 422.25B and 422.25C, unless the context otherwise requires:
16 *a.* "Administrative adjustment request" means the same as
17 provided in section 6227 of the Internal Revenue Code.
18 *b.* "Audited partnership" means a partnership subject
19 to a final federal partnership adjustment resulting from a
20 partnership level audit.
21 *c.* "C corporation" means an entity that elects or is
22 required to be taxed as a corporation under title 26, chapter
23 1, subchapter A, part 2, of the Internal Revenue Code.
24 *d.* "Corporate partner" means a C corporation partner that is
25 subject to tax pursuant to section 422.33.
26 *e.* "Direct partner" means a person that holds an interest
27 directly in a partnership or pass-through entity.
28 *f.* "Exempt partner" means a partner that is exempt from
29 taxation pursuant to section 422.34.
30 *g.* "Federal adjustments report" means the same as defined
31 in section 422.25.
32 *h.* "Federal partnership adjustment" means a change to an
33 item or amount required to be determined under the Internal
34 Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder that is used by a
35 partnership and its direct and indirect partners to compute

PAGE 38

1 state tax owed for the reviewed year where such change results
2 from a partnership level audit or an administrative adjustment
3 request. A federal partnership adjustment is positive to the
4 extent that it increases Iowa taxable income as determined
5 under this title and is negative to the extent that it
6 decreases Iowa taxable income as determined under this title.
7 A federal adjustment reported on an amended federal return
8 or other similar report filed pursuant to section 6225(c) of
9 the Internal Revenue Code shall not be considered a federal
10 partnership adjustment for purposes of this section.

- 11 *i. "Federal partnership representative"* means the person
12 the partnership designates for the taxable year as the
13 partnership's representative, or the person the internal
14 revenue service has appointed to act as the federal partnership
15 representative, pursuant to section 6223(a) of the Internal
16 Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder.
- 17 *j. "Fiduciary partner"* means a partner that is a fiduciary
18 that is subject to tax pursuant to sections 422.5 and 422.6.
- 19 *k. "Final determination date"* means any one of the following
20 dates:
21 (1) In the case of a federal partnership adjustment that
22 arises from a partnership level audit, the first day on which
23 no federal adjustments arising from that audit remain to be
24 finally determined, whether by agreement, or, if appealed
25 or contested, by a final decision with respect to which all
26 rights of appeal have been waived or exhausted. For agreements
27 required to be signed by the internal revenue service and the
28 audited partnership, the final determination date is the date
29 on which the last party signed the agreement.
30 (2) In the case of a federal partnership adjustment that
31 results from a timely filed administrative adjustment request,
32 the day on which the administrative adjustment request was
33 filed with the internal revenue service.
- 34 *l. "Final federal partnership adjustment"* means a federal
35 partnership adjustment after the final determination date for

PAGE 39

- 1 that federal partnership adjustment has passed.
- 2 *m. "Indirect partner"* means a partner in a partnership or
3 pass-through entity where such partnership or pass-through
4 entity itself holds an interest directly, or through another
5 indirect partner, in a partnership or pass-through entity.
- 6 *n. "Individual partner"* means a partner who is a natural
7 person that is subject to tax pursuant to section 422.5.
- 8 *o. "Nonresident partner"* means a partner that is not a
9 resident partner as defined in this subsection.
- 10 *p. "Partner"* means a person that holds an interest, directly
11 or indirectly, in a partnership or pass-through entity.
- 12 *q. "Partnership"* means an entity subject to taxation
13 under subchapter K of the Internal Revenue Code and the
14 regulations thereunder and includes but is not limited to a
15 syndicate, group, pool, joint venture, or other unincorporated
16 organization through or by means of which any business,
17 financial operation, or venture is carried on and which is
18 not, within the meaning of this chapter, a trust, estate, or
19 corporation.
- 20 *r. "Partnership level audit"* means an examination by the
21 internal revenue service at the partnership level pursuant to
22 subchapter C, title 26, subtitle F, chapter 63, of the Internal
23 Revenue Code, as enacted by the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015,
24 Pub. L. No. 114-74, and as amended, which results in final

25 federal partnership adjustments initiated and made by the
26 internal revenue service.
27 *s. "Pass-through entity"* means an entity, other than
28 a partnership, that is not subject to tax under section
29 422.33 for C corporations but excluding an exempt partner.
30 "*Pass-through entity*" includes but is not limited to S
31 corporations, estates, and trusts other than grantor trusts.
32 *t. "Reallocation adjustment"* means a final federal
33 partnership adjustment that changes the shares of items of
34 partnership income, gain, loss, expense, or credit allocated
35 to a partner that holds an interest directly in a partnership

PAGE 40

1 or pass-through entity. A positive reallocation adjustment
2 means the portion of a reallocation adjustment that would
3 increase Iowa taxable income for such partners, and a negative
4 reallocation adjustment means the portion of a reallocation
5 adjustment that would decrease Iowa taxable income for such
6 partners.
7 *u. "Resident partner"* means any of the following:
8 (1) For an individual partner, a "*resident*" as defined in
9 section 422.4.
10 (2) For a fiduciary partner, one with situs in Iowa.
11 (3) For all other partners, a partner whose headquarters or
12 principal place of business is located in Iowa.
13 *v. "Reviewed year"* means the taxable year of a partnership
14 that is subject to a partnership level audit from which final
15 federal partnership adjustments arise, or otherwise means the
16 taxable year of the partnership or pass-through entity that is
17 the subject of a state partnership audit.
18 *w. "State partnership audit"* means an examination by the
19 director at the partnership or pass-through entity level which
20 results in adjustments to partnership or pass-through entity
21 related items or reallocations of income, gains, losses,
22 expenses, credits, and other attributes among such partners for
23 the reviewed year.
24 *x. "Tiered partner"* means any partner that is a partnership
25 or pass-through entity.
26 *y. "Unrelated business income"* means the income which is
27 defined in section 512 of the Internal Revenue Code and the
28 regulations thereunder.
29 2. *Application.* Partnerships and their direct partners
30 and indirect partners shall report final federal partnership
31 adjustments as provided in this section.
32 3. *State partnership representative.* Notwithstanding any
33 other law to the contrary, the state partnership representative
34 for the reviewed year shall have the sole authority to act on
35 behalf of the partnership or pass-through entity with respect

PAGE 41

- 1 to an action required or permitted to be taken by a partnership
2 or pass-through entity under this section or section 422.28 or
3 422.29 with respect to final federal partnership adjustments
4 arising from a partnership level audit or an administrative
5 adjustment request, and its direct partners and indirect
6 partners shall be bound by those actions.
- 7 *4. Reporting and payment requirements for audited*
8 *partnerships and their partners subject to final federal*
9 *partnership adjustments.*
- 10 *a.* Unless an audited partnership makes the election in
11 subsection 5, the audited partnership shall do all of the
12 following for all final federal partnership adjustments no
13 later than ninety days after the final determination date of
14 the audited partnership:
- 15 (1) File a completed federal adjustments report.
16 (2) Notify each direct partner of such partner's
17 distributive share of the adjustments in the manner and form
18 prescribed by the department by rule.
19 (3) File an amended composite return under section 422.13
20 if one was originally filed, and if applicable for withholding
21 from partners, file an amended withholding report under
22 section 422.16, and pay the additional amount under this title
23 that would have been due had the final federal partnership
24 adjustments been reported properly as required, including any
25 applicable interest and penalties.
- 26 *b.* Unless an audited partnership paid an amount on behalf
27 of the direct partners of the audited partnership pursuant to
28 subsection 5, all direct partners of the audited partnership
29 shall do all of the following no later than one hundred
30 eighty days after the final determination date of the audited
31 partnership:
- 32 (1) File a completed federal adjustments report reporting
33 the direct partner's distributive share of the adjustments
34 required to be reported to such partners under paragraph "a".
35 (2) If the direct partner is a tiered partner, notify all

PAGE 42

- 1 partners that hold an interest directly in the tiered partner
2 of such partner's distributive share of the adjustments in the
3 manner and form prescribed by the department by rule.
- 4 (3) If the direct partner is a tiered partner and subject to
5 section 422.13, file an amended composite return under section
6 422.13 if such return was originally filed, and if applicable
7 for withholding from partners file an amended withholding
8 report under section 422.16 if one was originally required to
9 be filed.
- 10 (4) Pay any additional amount under this title that would
11 have been due had the final federal partnership adjustments
12 been reported properly as required, including any applicable

13 penalty and interest.

14 c. Unless a partnership or tiered partner paid an amount on
15 behalf of the partners pursuant to subsection 5, each indirect
16 partner shall do all of the following:

17 (1) Within ninety days after the time for filing and
18 furnishing statements to tiered partners and their partners
19 as established by section 6226 of the Internal Revenue Code
20 and the regulations thereunder, file a completed federal
21 adjustments report.

22 (2) If the indirect partner is a tiered partner, within
23 ninety days after the time for filing and furnishing statements
24 to tiered partners and their partners as established by
25 section 6226 of the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations
26 thereunder but within sufficient time for all indirect partners
27 to also complete the requirements of this subsection, notify
28 all of the partners that hold an interest directly in the
29 tiered partner of such partner's distributive share of the
30 adjustments in the manner and form prescribed by the department
31 by rule.

32 (3) Within ninety days after the time for filing and
33 furnishing statements to tiered partners and their partners
34 as established by section 6226 of the Internal Revenue Code
35 and the regulations thereunder, if the indirect partner

PAGE 43

1 is a tiered partner and subject to section 422.13, file an
2 amended composite return under section 422.13 if such return
3 was originally filed, and if applicable for withholding from
4 partners, file an amended withholding report under section
5 422.16 if one was originally required to be filed.

6 (4) Within ninety days after the time for filing and
7 furnishing statements to tiered partners and the partners of
8 the tiered partners as established by section 6226 of the
9 Internal Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder, pay any
10 additional amount due under this title, including any penalty
11 and interest that would have been due had the final federal
12 partnership adjustments been reported properly as required.

13 5. *Election for partnership or tiered partners to pay.*

14 a. An audited partnership, or a tiered partner that receives
15 a notification of a final federal partnership adjustment under
16 subsection 4, may make an election to pay as provided under
17 this subsection.

18 b. An audited partnership or tiered partner makes an
19 election to pay under this subsection by filing a completed
20 federal adjustments report, notifying the department in the
21 manner and form prescribed by the department that it is making
22 the election under this subsection, notifying each of the
23 direct partners of such partner's distributive share of the
24 adjustments, and paying on behalf of its partners an amount
25 calculated in paragraph "c", including any applicable penalty
26 and interest. These requirements shall all be fulfilled within

27 one of the following time periods:

- 28 (1) For the audited partnership, no later than ninety days
29 after the final determination date of the audited partnership.
30 (2) For a direct tiered partner, no later than one hundred
31 eighty days after the final determination date of the audited
32 partnership.
33 (3) For an indirect tiered partner, within ninety days
34 after the time for filing and furnishing statements to a
35 tiered partner and the partner of the tiered partner, as

PAGE 44

- 1 established by section 6226 of the Internal Revenue Code and
2 the regulations thereunder.
3 c. The amount due under this subsection from an audited
4 partnership or tiered partner shall be calculated as follows:
5 (1) Exclude from final federal partnership adjustments and
6 any positive reallocation adjustments the distributive share
7 of such adjustments reported to an exempt partner that holds
8 an interest directly in the audited partnership if the audited
9 partnership is making the election or that holds an interest
10 directly in the tiered partner if the tiered partner is making
11 the election, but only to the extent the distributive share is
12 not unrelated business income.
13 (2) Determine the total distributive share of all final
14 federal partnership adjustments and positive reallocation
15 adjustments as modified by this title that are reported to
16 corporate partners, and to exempt partners to the extent the
17 distributive share is unrelated business income, and allocate
18 and apportion such adjustments as provided in section 422.33
19 at the partnership or tiered partner level, and multiply the
20 resulting amount by the maximum state corporate income tax rate
21 pursuant to section 422.33 for the reviewed year.
22 (3) Determine the total distributive share of all final
23 federal partnership adjustments and positive reallocation
24 adjustments as modified by this title that are reported to
25 nonresident individual partners and nonresident fiduciary
26 partners and allocate and apportion such adjustments as
27 provided in section 422.33 at the partnership or tiered
28 partner level, and multiply the resulting amount by the maximum
29 individual income tax rate pursuant to section 422.5A for the
30 reviewed year.
31 (4) For the total distributive share of all final federal
32 partnership adjustments and positive reallocation adjustments
33 as modified by this title that are reported to tiered partners:
34 (a) Determine the amount of such adjustments which are of a
35 type that would be subject to sourcing to Iowa under section

PAGE 45

- 1 422.8, subsection 2, paragraph "a", as a nonresident, and then
2 determine the portion of this amount that would be sourced to

3 Iowa under those provisions as if the tiered partner were a
4 nonresident.

5 (b) Determine the amount of such adjustments which are of
6 a type that would not be subject to sourcing to Iowa under
7 section 422.8, subsection 2, paragraph “a”, as a nonresident.

8 (c) Determine the portion of the amount in subparagraph
9 division (b) that can be established, as prescribed by the
10 department by rule, to be properly allocable to indirect
11 partners that are nonresident partners or other partners not
12 subject to tax on the adjustments.

13 (d) Multiply the total of the amounts determined in
14 subparagraph divisions (a) and (b), reduced by any amount
15 determined in subparagraph division (c), by the highest
16 individual income tax rate pursuant to section 422.5A for the
17 reviewed year.

18 (5) For the total distributive share of all final federal
19 partnership adjustments and positive reallocation adjustments
20 as modified by this title that are reported to resident
21 individual partners and resident fiduciary partners, multiply
22 that amount by the highest individual income tax rate pursuant
23 to section 422.5A for the reviewed year.

24 (6) Total the amounts computed pursuant to subparagraphs
25 (2) through (5) and calculate any interest and penalty as
26 provided under this title. Notwithstanding any provision of
27 law to the contrary, interest and penalties on the amount due
28 by the audited partnership or tiered partner shall be computed
29 from the day after the due date of the reviewed year return
30 without extension, and shall be imposed as if the audited
31 partnership or tiered partner was required to pay tax or show
32 tax due on the original return for the reviewed year.

33 *d.* Adjustments subject to the election in this subsection
34 do not include any adjustments arising from an administrative
35 adjustment request.

PAGE 46

1 *e.* An audited partnership or tiered partner not otherwise
2 subject to any reporting or payment obligation to Iowa that
3 makes an election under this subsection consents to be subject
4 to the Iowa laws related to reporting, assessment, collection,
5 and payment of Iowa tax, interest, and penalties calculated
6 under the election.

7 6. *Modified reporting and payment method.* The department may
8 adopt procedures for an audited partnership or tiered partner
9 to enter into an agreement with the department to use an
10 alternative reporting and payment method, including applicable
11 time requirements or any other provision of this section. The
12 audited partnership or tiered partner must demonstrate that
13 the requested method will reasonably provide for the reporting
14 and payment of taxes, penalties, and interest due under the
15 provisions of this section. Application for approval of an
16 alternative reporting and payment method must be made by the

17 audited partnership or tiered partner within the time for
18 making an election to pay under subsection 5 and in the manner
19 prescribed by the department. Approval of such an alternative
20 reporting and payment method shall be at the discretion of the
21 department.
22 *7. Effect of election by partnership or tiered partner and*
23 *payment of amount due.*
24 *a.* The election made under subsection 5 is irrevocable,
25 unless in the discretion of the director, the director
26 determines otherwise.
27 *b.* The amount determined in subsection 5, when properly
28 reported and paid by the audited partnership or tiered partner,
29 shall be treated as paid on behalf of the partners of such
30 audited partnership or tiered partner on the same final federal
31 partnership adjustments, provided, however, that no partner may
32 take any deduction or credit for the amount, claim a refund of
33 the amount, or include the amount on such partner's Iowa return
34 in any manner.
35 *c.* In the event another state offers to an audited

PAGE 47

1 partnership or tiered partner a similar election to pay state
2 tax resulting from final federal partnership adjustments,
3 nothing in this subsection shall prohibit a resident who holds
4 an interest directly in that audited partnership or tiered
5 partner, as the case may be, from claiming a credit for taxes
6 paid by the resident to another state under section 422.8,
7 subsection 1, for any amounts paid by the audited partnership
8 or tiered partner on such resident partner's behalf to another
9 state, provided such payment otherwise meets the requirements
10 of section 422.8, subsection 1.
11 *d.* Nothing in this section shall prohibit the department
12 from assessing direct partners and indirect partners for taxes
13 they owe in the event that an audited partnership or tiered
14 partner fails to timely make any report or payment required by
15 this section for any reason.
16 *8. Assessments of additional Iowa income tax, interest, and*
17 *penalties, and claims for refund, arising from final federal*
18 *partnership adjustments.*
19 *a.* The department shall assess additional Iowa income
20 tax, interest, and penalties arising from final federal
21 partnership adjustments in the same manner as provided in
22 this title unless a different treatment is provided by this
23 subsection. Since final federal partnership adjustments are
24 determined at the audited partnership level, any assessment
25 issued to partners shall not be appealable by the partner.
26 The department may assess any taxes, including on-behalf-of
27 amounts, interest, and penalties arising from the final federal
28 partnership adjustments if it issues a notice of assessment to
29 the audited partnership, tiered partner, or other direct or
30 indirect partner on or before the expiration of the applicable

31 limitations period specified in section 422.25.
32 *b.* In addition to the period for claiming a refund or credit
33 provided in section 422.73, subsection 1, paragraph “a”, and
34 notwithstanding section 422.73, subsection 1, paragraph “b”,
35 a partnership, tiered partner, or other direct or indirect

PAGE 48

1 partner, as the case may be, may file a claim for refund of
2 Iowa income tax arising directly or indirectly from a final
3 federal partnership adjustment arising from a partnership level
4 audit on or before the date which is one year from the date the
5 federal adjustments report for that final federal partnership
6 adjustment was required to be filed by such person under this
7 section.

8 9. *Rules.* The department may adopt any rules pursuant to
9 chapter 17A to implement this section.

10 Sec. 65. NEW SECTION. 422.25B State partnership
11 representative.

12 1. As used in this section, all words and phrases defined
13 in section 422.25A shall have the same meaning given them by
14 that section.

15 2. The state partnership representative for the reviewed
16 year for a partnership shall be the partnership’s federal
17 partnership representative with respect to an action required
18 or permitted to be taken by a state partnership representative
19 under this chapter for a reviewed year, unless the partnership
20 designates in writing another person as the state partnership
21 representative as provided in subsection 3. The state
22 partnership representative for the reviewed year for a
23 pass-through entity is the person designated in subsection 3.

24 3. The department may establish reasonable qualifications
25 for a person to be a state partnership representative. If
26 a partnership desires to designate a person other than the
27 federal partnership representative, the partnership shall
28 designate such person in the manner and form prescribed by the
29 department. A pass-through entity shall designate a person as
30 the state partnership representative in the manner and form
31 prescribed by the department. A partnership or pass-through
32 entity shall be allowed to change such designation by notifying
33 the department at the time the change occurs in the manner and
34 form prescribed by the department.

35 4. The department may adopt any rules pursuant to chapter

PAGE 49

1 17A to implement this section.

2 Sec. 66. NEW SECTION. 422.25C Partnership and pass-through
3 entity audits and examinations — consistent treatment of
4 entity-level items — binding actions — amended returns.

5 1. As used in this section, all words and phrases defined
6 in section 422.25A shall have the same meaning given them by

7 that section.

8 2. For tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2020, any
9 adjustments to a partnership's or pass-through entity's items
10 of income, gain, loss, expense, or credit, or an adjustment
11 to such items allocated to a partner that holds an interest
12 in a partnership or pass-through entity for the reviewed year
13 by the department as a result of a state partnership audit,
14 shall be determined at the partnership level or pass-through
15 entity level in the same manner as provided by section 6221(a)
16 of the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder
17 unless a different treatment is specifically provided in this
18 title. The provisions of sections 6222, 6223, and 6227 of the
19 Internal Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder shall also
20 apply to a partnership or pass-through entity and its direct
21 or indirect partners in the same manner as provided in such
22 sections unless a different treatment is specifically provided
23 in this title. For purposes of applying such sections, due
24 account shall be made for differences in federal and Iowa
25 terminology. The adjustment provided by section 6221(a) of
26 the Internal Revenue Code shall be determined as provided in
27 such section but shall be based on Iowa taxable income or
28 other tax attributes of the partnership as determined pursuant
29 to this chapter for the reviewed year. The department shall
30 issue a notice of adjustment to the partnership or pass-through
31 entity. Such notice shall be treated as an assessment for
32 the purposes of section 422.25, and the notice shall be
33 appealable by the partnership or pass-through entity pursuant
34 to sections 422.28 and 422.29 and shall be issued within the
35 time period provided by section 422.25. Once the adjustments

PAGE 50

1 to partnership-related or pass-through entity-related items or
2 reallocations of income, gains, losses, expenses, credits, and
3 other attributes among such partners for the reviewed year are
4 finally determined, the partnership or pass-through entity and
5 any direct partners or indirect partners shall then be subject
6 to the provisions of section 422.25, subsection 1, paragraph
7 "e", and section 422.25A in the same manner as if the state
8 partnership audit were a federal partnership level audit, and
9 as if the final state partnership audit adjustment were a final
10 federal partnership adjustment. The penalty exceptions in
11 section 421.27, subsection 2, paragraphs "b" and "c", shall not
12 apply to a state partnership audit.

13 3. The state partnership representative for the reviewed
14 year as determined under section 422.25B shall have the sole
15 authority to act on behalf of the partnership or pass-through
16 entity with respect to an action required or permitted to
17 be taken by a partnership or pass-through entity under this
18 section, including proceedings under section 422.28 or 422.29,
19 and the partnership's or pass-through entity's direct partners
20 and indirect partners shall be bound by those actions.

21 4. If the department, the partnership or pass-through
22 entity, and the partnership or pass-through entity owners
23 agree, the provisions of this section may be applied to tax
24 years beginning before January 1, 2020.
25 5. The department may adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A to
26 implement this section.
27 Sec. 67. Section 422.35, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
28 following new subsection:
29 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 26. Any income subtracted from federal
30 taxable income for an adjustment year pursuant to section 6225
31 of the Internal Revenue Code and the regulations thereunder
32 shall be added back in computing net income for state tax
33 purposes for the adjustment year.
34 Sec. 68. Section 422.39, Code 2020, is amended by striking
35 the section and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

PAGE 51

1 **422.39 Statutes applicable to corporations and corporation**
2 **tax.**
3 All the provisions of sections 422.24 through 422.27
4 of division II, respecting payment, collection, reporting,
5 examination, and assessment, shall apply in respect to a
6 corporation subject to the provisions of this division and to
7 the tax due and payable by a corporation taxable under this
8 division. This includes but is not limited to a corporation
9 that is a pass-through entity as defined in section 422.25A.
10 Sec. 69. Section 422.73, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
11 following new subsection:
12 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 01. For purposes of this section, “*federal*
13 *adjustment*”, “*final determination date*”, and “*final federal*
14 *adjustment*” all mean the same as defined in section 422.25.
15 Sec. 70. Section 422.73, subsections 1 and 3, Code 2020, are
16 amended to read as follows:
17 1. a. If it appears that an amount of tax, penalty, or
18 interest has been paid which was not due under division II,
19 III or V of this chapter, then that amount shall be credited
20 against any tax due on the books of the department by the
21 person who made the excessive payment, or that amount shall be
22 refunded to the person or with the person’s approval, credited
23 to tax to become due. A claim for refund or credit that has
24 not been filed with the department within three years after
25 the return upon which a refund or credit claimed became due,
26 or within one year after the payment of the tax upon which a
27 refund or credit is claimed was made, whichever time is the
28 later, shall not be allowed by the director. If, as a result of
29 a carryback of a net operating loss or a net capital loss, the
30 amount of tax in a prior period is reduced and an overpayment
31 results, the claim for refund or credit of the overpayment
32 shall be filed with the department within the three years after
33 the return for the taxable year of the net operating loss or
34 net capital loss became due.

35 b. Notwithstanding the period of limitation specified in

PAGE 52

1 paragraph “a”, the taxpayer shall have ~~six months~~ one year from
 2 ~~the day of final disposition~~ final determination date of any
 3 ~~income tax matter between the taxpayer and the internal revenue~~
 4 ~~service~~ final federal adjustment arising from an internal
 5 revenue service audit or other similar action by the internal
 6 revenue service with respect to the particular tax year to
 7 claim an income tax refund or credit arising from that final
 8 federal adjustment.

9 3. The department shall enter into an agreement with the
 10 internal revenue service for the transmission of federal income
 11 tax reports on individuals required to file an Iowa income tax
 12 return who have been involved in an income tax matter with the
 13 internal revenue service. After ~~final disposition~~ the final
 14 determination date of the income tax matter that involves a
 15 final federal adjustment between the taxpayer and the internal
 16 revenue service, the department shall determine whether the
 17 individual is due a state income tax refund as a result of that
 18 ~~final disposition of federal adjustment from~~ such income tax
 19 matter. If the individual is due a state income tax refund,
 20 the department shall notify the individual within thirty days
 21 and request the individual to file a claim for refund or credit
 22 with the department.

23 Sec. 71. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 24 to federal adjustments and federal partnership adjustments that
 25 have a final determination date after the effective date of
 26 this division of this Act.

27 DIVISION VI

28 SETOFF PROCEDURES — RULEMAKING — EFFECTIVE DATE

29 Sec. 72. RULES. The following applies to 2020 Iowa Acts,
 30 House File 2565, if enacted:

31 The department of revenue shall adopt rules governing
 32 setoffs that occur during the transition from the department of
 33 administrative services to the department of revenue.

34 Sec. 73. 2020 Iowa Acts, House File 2565, section 28, if
 35 enacted, is amended to read as follows:

PAGE 53

1 SEC. 28. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act takes effect on the
 2 later of January 1, 2021, or the effective date of the rules
 3 adopted by the department of revenue pursuant to chapter 17A
 4 implementing this Act other than transitional rules.

5 Sec. 74. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 6 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

7 DIVISION VII

8 MARRIED TAXPAYERS — JOINT LIABILITY

9 Sec. 75. Section 422.21, subsection 7, Code 2020, is amended
 10 to read as follows:

11 7. If married taxpayers file a joint return or file
12 separately on a combined return in accordance with rules
13 prescribed by the director, both spouses are jointly and
14 severally liable for the total tax due on the return, except
15 when one spouse is ~~considered to be an innocent spouse~~ eligible
16 for relief under criteria established pursuant to section 6015
17 of the Internal Revenue Code. The department may notify the
18 nonrequesting spouse or former spouse and permit, by rule, the
19 intervention of a nonrequesting spouse or former spouse when
20 relief from joint and several liability is requested.

21 Sec. 76. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
22 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

23 DIVISION VIII

24 BUSINESS INTEREST EXPENSE DEDUCTION AND GLOBAL INTANGIBLE 25 LOW-TAXED INCOME

26 Sec. 77. Section 422.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
27 following new subsection:

28 NEW SUBSECTION. 59. *a.* Section 163(j) of the Internal
29 Revenue Code does not apply in computing net income for state
30 tax purposes. If the taxpayer's federal adjusted gross income
31 for the tax year was increased or decreased by reason of the
32 application of section 163(j) of the Internal Revenue Code,
33 the taxpayer shall recompute net income for state tax purposes
34 under rules prescribed by the director.

35 *b.* Paragraph "a" shall not apply during any tax year

PAGE 54

1 in which the additional first-year depreciation allowance
2 authorized in section 168(k) of the Internal Revenue Code
3 applies in computing net income for state tax purposes.
4 *c.* For any tax year in which paragraph "a" does not apply,
5 a taxpayer shall not be permitted to deduct any amount of
6 interest expense paid or accrued in a previous taxable year
7 that is allowed as a deduction in the current taxable year by
8 reason of the carryforward of disallowed business interest
9 provisions of section 163(j)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code,
10 if either of the following apply:

11 (1) The interest expense was originally paid or accrued
12 during a tax year in which paragraph "a" applied.
13 (2) The interest expense was originally paid or accrued
14 during a tax year in which the taxpayer was not required to
15 file an Iowa return.

16 Sec. 78. Section 422.35, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
17 following new subsections:

18 NEW SUBSECTION. 26. *a.* Section 163(j) of the Internal
19 Revenue Code does not apply in computing net income for state
20 tax purposes. If the taxpayer's federal taxable income for
21 the tax year was increased or decreased by reason of the
22 application of section 163(j) of the Internal Revenue Code,
23 the taxpayer shall recompute net income for state tax purposes
24 under rules prescribed by the director.

25 b. Paragraph “a” shall not apply during any tax year
 26 in which the additional first-year depreciation allowance
 27 authorized in section 168(k) of the Internal Revenue Code
 28 applies in computing net income for state tax purposes.
 29 c. For any tax year in which paragraph “a” does not apply,
 30 a taxpayer shall not be permitted to deduct any amount of
 31 interest expense paid or accrued in a previous taxable year
 32 that is allowed as a deduction in the current taxable year by
 33 reason of the carryforward of disallowed business interest
 34 provisions of section 163(j)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code,
 35 if either of the following apply:

PAGE 55

1 (1) The interest expense was originally paid or accrued
 2 during a tax year in which paragraph “a” applied.
 3 (2) The interest expense was originally paid or accrued
 4 during a tax year in which the taxpayer was not required to
 5 file an Iowa return.
 6 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 27. Subtract, to the extent included,
 7 global intangible low-taxed income under section 951A of the
 8 Internal Revenue Code.
 9 **Sec. 79. RESCISSION OF ADMINISTRATIVE RULES.**
 10 1. Contingent upon the enactment of the section of this
 11 Act amending section 422.35, subsection 27, the following Iowa
 12 administrative rules are rescinded:
 13 a. 701 Iowa administrative code, rule 54.2, subrule 3,
 14 paragraph “i”.
 15 b. 701 Iowa administrative code, rule 59.28, subrule 2,
 16 paragraph “p”.
 17 2. As soon as practicable, the Iowa administrative code
 18 editor shall remove the language of the Iowa administrative
 19 rules referenced in subsection 1 of this section from the Iowa
 20 administrative code.
 21 **Sec. 80. EFFECTIVE DATE.** This Act, being deemed of
 22 immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 23 **Sec. 81. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY.** The following applies
 24 retroactively to January 1, 2019, for tax years beginning on
 25 or after that date:
 26 The portion of the section of this division of this Act
 27 enacting section 422.35, subsection 27.
 28 **Sec. 82. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY.** The following apply
 29 retroactively to January 1, 2020 for tax years beginning on or
 30 after that date:
 31 1. The section of this division of this Act enacting section
 32 422.7, subsection 59.
 33 2. The portion of the section of this division of this Act
 34 enacting section 422.35, subsection 26.
 35 **DIVISION IX**

PAGE 56

1 IOWA REINVESTMENT ACT

2 Sec. 83. Section 15J.2, subsections 4, 7, 8, and 9, Code
3 2020, are amended to read as follows:

4 4. *“District”* means the area ~~within a municipality~~ that is
5 designated a reinvestment district pursuant to section 15J.4.

6 7. *“Municipality”* means ~~a county or an incorporated city.~~
7 any of the following:

8 a. A county.

9 b. An incorporated city.

10 c. A joint board or other legal entity established or
11 designated in an agreement between two or more contiguous
12 municipalities identified in paragraph “a” or “b” pursuant to
13 chapter 28E.

14 8. a. “New lessor” means a lessor, as defined in section
15 423A.2, operating a business in the district that was not in
16 operation in the area of the district before the effective
17 date of the ordinance or resolution establishing the district,
18 regardless of ownership.

19 b. “New lessor” also includes any lessor, defined in section
20 423A.2, operating a business in the district if the place of
21 business for that business is the subject of a project that was
22 approved by the board.

23 9. a. “New retail establishment” means a business operated
24 in the district by a retailer, as defined in section 423.1,
25 that was not in operation in the area of the district before
26 the effective date of the ordinance or resolution establishing
27 the district, regardless of ownership.

28 b. “New retail establishment” also includes any business
29 operated in the district by a retailer, as defined in section
30 423.1, if the place of business for that retail establishment
31 is the subject of a project that was approved by the board.

32 Sec. 84. Section 15J.4, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph
33 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

34 A municipality that has an area suitable for development
35 within the boundaries of the municipality or within the

PAGE 57

1 combined boundaries of a municipality under section 15J.2,
2 subsection 7, paragraph “c,” is eligible to seek approval from
3 the board to establish a reinvestment district under this
4 section consisting of the area suitable for development. To
5 be designated a reinvestment district, an area shall meet the
6 following requirements:

7 Sec. 85. Section 15J.4, subsection 1, paragraphs c and d,
8 Code 2020, are amended to read as follows:

9 c. The For districts approved before July 1, 2018, the area
10 consists of contiguous parcels and does not exceed twenty-five
11 acres in total. For districts approved on or after July 1,
12 2020, the area consists of contiguous parcels and does not

13 exceed seventy-five acres in total.

14 d. For a municipality that is a city or for a city that
 15 is party to an agreement under section 15J.2, subsection 7,
 16 paragraph “c”, the area does not include the entire incorporated
 17 area of the city.

18 Sec. 86. Section 15J.4, subsection 3, paragraph a, Code
 19 2020, is amended to read as follows:

20 a. The municipality shall submit a copy of the resolution,
 21 the proposed district plan, and all accompanying materials
 22 adopted pursuant to this section to the board for evaluation.
 23 The board shall not approve a proposed district plan on or
 24 after July 1, 2018 2025.

25 Sec. 87. Section 15J.4, subsection 3, paragraph b,
 26 subparagraph (6), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 27 (6) The amount of proposed capital investment within the
 28 proposed district related to retail businesses in the proposed
 29 district does not exceed fifty percent of the total capital
 30 investment for all proposed projects in the proposed district
 31 plan. For the purposes of this subparagraph, “retail business”
 32 means any business engaged in the business of selling tangible
 33 personal property or taxable services at retail in this state
 34 that is obligated to collect state sales or use tax under
 35 chapter 423. However, for the purposes of this subparagraph,

PAGE 58

1 “retail business” does not include a new lessor or a business
 2 engaged in an activity subject to tax under section 423.2,
 3 subsection 3.

4 Sec. 88. Section 15J.4, subsection 3, paragraph f, Code
 5 2020, is amended to read as follows:

6 f. (1) The total aggregate amount of state sales tax
 7 revenues and state hotel and motel tax revenues that may be
 8 approved by the board for remittance to all municipalities and
 9 that may be transferred to the state reinvestment district
 10 fund under section 423.2A or 423A.6, and remitted to all
 11 municipalities having a reinvestment district under this
 12 chapter for districts approved by the board before July 1,
 13 2018, shall not exceed one hundred million dollars.

14 (2) The total aggregate amount of state sales tax revenues
 15 and state hotel and motel tax revenues that may be approved by
 16 the board for remittance to all municipalities and that may
 17 be transferred to the state reinvestment district fund under
 18 section 423.2A or 423A.6, and remitted to all municipalities
 19 having a reinvestment district under this chapter for districts
 20 approved on or after July 1, 2020, but before July 1, 2025,
 21 shall not exceed one hundred million dollars.

22 Sec. 89. Section 15J.4, subsections 4 and 5, Code 2020, are
 23 amended to read as follows:

24 4. a. Upon receiving the approval of the board, the
 25 municipality may shall adopt an ordinance, or in the case of
 26 a municipality under section 15J.2, subsection 7, paragraph

27 “c”, a resolution, establishing the district and shall notify
 28 the director of revenue of the district’s commencement date
 29 established by the board and the information required under
 30 paragraph “b” no later than thirty days after adoption of the
 31 ordinance or resolution.
 32 b. For each district approved by the board on or after July
 33 1, 2020, the municipality shall include in the notification
 34 under paragraph “a” and in the statement required under
 35 paragraph “c” all of the following:

PAGE 59

1 (1) For each new retail establishment under section 15J.2,
 2 subsection 9, paragraph “b”, that was in operation before
 3 the establishment of the district, the monthly amount of
 4 sales subject to the state sales tax from the most recently
 5 available twelve-month period preceding the establishment of
 6 the district.
 7 (2) For each new lessor under section 15J.2, subsection 8,
 8 paragraph “b”, that was in operation before the establishment
 9 of the district, the monthly amount of sales subject to the
 10 state hotel and motel tax from the most recently available
 11 twelve-month period preceding the establishment of the
 12 district.
 13 c. The ordinance or resolution adopted by the municipality
 14 shall include the district’s commencement date and a detailed
 15 statement of the manner in which the approved projects to be
 16 undertaken in the district will be financed, including but not
 17 limited to the financial information included in the project
 18 plan under subsection 2, paragraph “d”.
 19 d. Following establishment of the district, a municipality
 20 may use the moneys deposited in the municipality’s reinvestment
 21 project fund created pursuant to section 15J.7 to fund the
 22 development of those projects included within the district
 23 plan.
 24 5. A municipality may amend the district plan to add
 25 or modify projects. However, a proposed modification to a
 26 project and each project proposed to be added shall first be
 27 approved by the board in the same manner as provided for the
 28 original plan. In no case, however, shall an amendment to the
 29 district plan result in the extension of the commencement date
 30 established by the board. If a district plan is amended to
 31 add or modify a project, the municipality shall, if necessary,
 32 amend the ordinance or resolution, as applicable, if necessary,
 33 to reflect any changes to the financial information required to
 34 be included under subsection 4.
 35 Sec. 90. Section 15J.5, subsection 1, paragraph b, Code

PAGE 60

1 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 2 b. (1) ~~The~~ For districts established before July 1,

3 2020, the amount of new state sales tax revenue for purposes
 4 of paragraph "a" shall be the product of the amount of sales
 5 subject to the state sales tax in the district during the
 6 quarter from new retail establishments times four percent.
 7 (2) For districts established on or after July 1, 2020, the
 8 amount of new state sales tax revenue for purposes of paragraph
 9 "a" shall be the product of four percent times the remainder of
 10 amount of sales subject to the state sales tax in the district
 11 during the quarter from new retail establishments minus the sum
 12 of the sales from the corresponding quarter of the twelve-month
 13 period determined under section 15J.4, subsection 4, paragraph
 14 "b", subparagraph (1), for new retail establishments identified
 15 under section 15J.4, subsection 4, paragraph "b", subparagraph
 16 (1), that were in operation at the end of the quarter.

17 Sec. 91. Section 15J.5, subsection 2, paragraph b, Code
 18 2020, is amended to read as follows:

19 b. (1) The For districts established before July 1,
 20 2020, the amount of new state hotel and motel tax revenue for
 21 purposes of paragraph "a" shall be the product of the amount of
 22 sales subject to the state hotel and motel tax in the district
 23 during the quarter from new lessors times the state hotel and
 24 motel tax rate imposed under section 423A.3.
 25 (2) For districts established on or after July 1, 2020, the
 26 amount of new state hotel and motel tax revenue for purposes of
 27 paragraph "a" shall be the product of the state hotel and motel
 28 tax rate imposed under section 423A.3 times the remainder of
 29 amount of sales subject to the state hotel and motel tax in the
 30 district during the quarter from new lessors minus the sum of
 31 the sales from the corresponding quarter of the twelve month
 32 period determined under section 15J.4, subsection 4, paragraph
 33 "b", subparagraph (2), for new lessors identified under section
 34 15J.4, subsection 4, paragraph "b", subparagraph (2), that were
 35 in operation at the end of the quarter.

PAGE 61

1 Sec. 92. Section 15J.7, subsection 4, paragraph b, Code
 2 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 3 b. For the purposes of this subsection, "relocation"
 4 means the closure or substantial reduction of an enterprise's
 5 existing operations in one area of the state and the
 6 initiation of substantially the same operation in the same
 7 county or a contiguous county in the state. However, if
 8 the initiation of operations includes an expanded scope
 9 or nature of the enterprise's existing operations, the new
 10 operation shall not be considered to be substantially the
 11 same operation. "Relocation" does not include an enterprise
 12 expanding its operations in another area of the state provided
 13 that existing operations of a similar nature are not closed or
 14 substantially reduced.
 15 Sec. 93. Section 15J.7, subsection 6, Code 2020, is amended
 16 to read as follows:

17 6. Upon dissolution of a district pursuant to section 15J.8,
 18 moneys remaining in the reinvestment project fund that were
 19 deposited pursuant to subsection 2 and all interest remaining
 20 in the fund that was earned on such amounts shall be deposited
 21 in the general fund of the municipality or, for a municipality
 22 under section 15J.2, subsection 7, paragraph “c”, the governing
 23 body shall allocate such amounts to the participating cities
 24 and counties for deposit in each city or county general fund
 25 according to the chapter 28E agreement.

26 Sec. 94. Section 15J.8, Code 2020, is amended to read as
 27 follows:

28 **15J.8 End of deposits — district dissolution.**

29 1. As of the date twenty years after the district’s
 30 commencement date, the department shall cease to deposit state
 31 sales tax revenues and state hotel and motel tax revenues into
 32 the district’s account within the fund, unless the municipality
 33 dissolves the district by ordinance or resolution prior to that
 34 date. Following the expiration of the twenty-year period, the
 35 district shall be dissolved by ordinance or resolution of the

PAGE 62

1 municipality adopted within twelve months of the conclusion of
 2 the twenty-year period.

3 2. If the municipality dissolves the district by ordinance
 4 or resolution prior to the expiration of the twenty-year
 5 period specified in subsection 1, the municipality shall
 6 notify the director of revenue of the dissolution as soon as
 7 practicable after adoption of the ordinance or resolution, and
 8 the department shall, as of the effective date of dissolution,
 9 cease to deposit state sales tax revenues and state hotel and
 10 motel tax revenues into the district’s account within the fund.

11 3. Upon request of the municipality prior to the dissolution
 12 of the district, and following a determination by the board
 13 that the amounts of new state sales tax revenue and new state
 14 hotel and motel tax revenue deposited in the municipality’s
 15 reinvestment project fund under section 15J.7 are substantially
 16 lower than the amounts established by the board under section
 17 15J.4, subsection 3, paragraph “e”, the board may extend
 18 the district’s twenty-year period of time for depositing and
 19 receiving revenues under this chapter by up to five additional
 20 years if such an extension is in the best interest of the
 21 public.

22 DIVISION X
 23 COMPUTER PERIPHERALS

24 Sec. 95. Section 423.1, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 25 following new subsection:

26 **NEW SUBSECTION. 10A.** *“Computer peripheral”* means an
 27 ancillary device connected to the computer digitally, by
 28 cable, or by other medium, used to put information into or get
 29 information out of a computer.

30 Sec. 96. Section 423.3, subsection 47, Code 2020, is amended

31 to read as follows:

32 47. a. The sales price from the sale or rental of
 33 computers, computer peripherals, machinery, equipment,
 34 replacement parts, supplies, and materials used to construct
 35 or self-construct computers, computer peripherals, machinery,

PAGE 63

1 equipment, replacement parts, and supplies, if such items are
 2 any of the following:
 3 (1) Directly and primarily used in processing by a
 4 manufacturer.
 5 (2) Directly and primarily used to maintain the integrity
 6 of the product or to maintain unique environmental conditions
 7 required for either the product or the computers, computer
 8 peripherals, machinery, and equipment used in processing by a
 9 manufacturer, including test equipment used to control quality
 10 and specifications of the product.
 11 (3) Directly and primarily used in research and development
 12 of new products or processes of processing.
 13 (4) Computers and computer peripherals used in processing
 14 or storage of data or information by an insurance company,
 15 financial institution, or commercial enterprise.
 16 (5) Directly and primarily used in recycling or
 17 reprocessing of waste products.
 18 (6) Pollution-control equipment used by a manufacturer,
 19 including but not limited to that required or certified by an
 20 agency of this state or of the United States government.
 21 b. The sales price from the sale of fuel used in creating
 22 heat, power, steam, or for generating electrical current, or
 23 from the sale of electricity, consumed by computers, computer
 24 peripherals, machinery, or equipment used in an exempt manner
 25 described in paragraph "a", subparagraph (1), (2), (3), (5), or
 26 (6).
 27 c. The sales price from the sale or rental of the following
 28 shall not be exempt from the tax imposed by this subchapter:
 29 (1) Hand tools.
 30 (2) Point-of-sale equipment, ~~and~~ computers, and computer
 31 peripherals.
 32 (3) The following within the scope of section 427A.1,
 33 subsection 1, paragraphs "h" and "i":
 34 (a) Computers.
 35 (b) Computer peripherals.

PAGE 64

1 ~~(b)~~ (c) Machinery.
 2 ~~(e)~~ (d) Equipment, including pollution control equipment.
 3 ~~(d)~~ (e) Replacement parts.
 4 ~~(e)~~ (f) Supplies.
 5 ~~(f)~~ (g) Materials used to construct or self-construct the
 6 following:

- 7 (i) Computers.
 8 (ii) Computer peripherals.
 9 ~~(ii)~~ (iii) Machinery.
 10 ~~(iii)~~ (iv) Equipment, including pollution control
 11 equipment.
 12 ~~(iv)~~ (v) Replacement parts.
 13 ~~(v)~~ (vi) Supplies.
 14 (4) Vehicles subject to registration, except vehicles
 15 subject to registration which are directly and primarily used
 16 in recycling or reprocessing of waste products.
 17 *d.* As used in this subsection:
 18 (1) “*Commercial enterprise*” means businesses and
 19 manufacturers conducted for profit, for-profit and nonprofit
 20 insurance companies, and for-profit and nonprofit financial
 21 institutions, but excludes other nonprofits and professions and
 22 occupations.
 23 (2) “*Financial institution*” means as defined in section
 24 527.2.
 25 (3) “*Insurance company*” means an insurer organized or
 26 operating under chapter 508, 514, 515, 518, 518A, 519, or
 27 520, or authorized to do business in Iowa as an insurer or an
 28 insurance producer under chapter 522B.
 29 (4) (a) “*Manufacturer*” means a business that primarily
 30 purchases, receives, or holds personal property of any
 31 description for the purpose of adding to its value by a process
 32 of manufacturing with a view to selling the property for gain
 33 or profit.
 34 (b) “*Manufacturer*” includes contract manufacturers. A
 35 contract manufacturer is a manufacturer that otherwise falls

PAGE 65

- 1 within the definition of manufacturer, except that a contract
 2 manufacturer does not sell the tangible personal property
 3 the contract manufacturer processes on behalf of other
 4 manufacturers.
 5 (c) “*Manufacturer*” does not include persons who are not
 6 commonly understood as manufacturers, including but not
 7 limited to persons primarily engaged in any of the following
 8 activities:
 9 (i) Construction contracting.
 10 (ii) Repairing tangible personal property or real property.
 11 (iii) Providing health care.
 12 (iv) Farming, including cultivating agricultural products
 13 and raising livestock.
 14 (v) Transporting for hire.
 15 (d) For purposes of this subparagraph:
 16 (i) “*Business*” means those businesses conducted for
 17 profit, but excludes professions and occupations and nonprofit
 18 organizations.
 19 (ii) “*Manufacturing*” means those activities commonly
 20 understood within the ordinary meaning of the term, and shall

- 21 include:
- 22 (A) Refining.
- 23 (B) Purifying.
- 24 (C) Combining of different materials.
- 25 (D) Packing of meats.
- 26 (E) Activities subsequent to the extractive process of
- 27 quarrying or mining, such as crushing, washing, sizing, or
- 28 blending of aggregate materials.
- 29 (iii) *"Manufacturing"* does not include activities occurring
- 30 on premises primarily used to make retail sales.
- 31 (5) *"Processing"* means a series of operations in which
- 32 materials are manufactured, refined, purified, created,
- 33 combined, or transformed by a manufacturer, ultimately
- 34 into tangible personal property. Processing encompasses
- 35 all activities commencing with the receipt or producing of

PAGE 66

- 1 raw materials by the manufacturer and ending at the point
- 2 products are delivered for shipment or transferred from the
- 3 manufacturer. Processing includes but is not limited to
- 4 refinement or purification of materials; treatment of materials
- 5 to change their form, context, or condition; maintenance
- 6 of the quality or integrity of materials, components, or
- 7 products; maintenance of environmental conditions necessary for
- 8 materials, components, or products; quality control activities;
- 9 and construction of packaging and shipping devices, placement
- 10 into shipping containers or any type of shipping devices or
- 11 medium, and the movement of materials, components, or products
- 12 until shipment from the processor.
- 13 (6) *"Receipt or producing of raw materials"* means activities
- 14 performed upon tangible personal property only. With respect
- 15 to raw materials produced from or upon real estate, the receipt
- 16 or producing of raw materials is deemed to occur immediately
- 17 following the severance of the raw materials from the real
- 18 estate.
- 19 (7) *"Replacement part"* means tangible personal property
- 20 other than computers, computer peripherals, machinery,
- 21 equipment, or supplies, regardless of the cost or useful life
- 22 of the tangible personal property, that meets all of the
- 23 following conditions:
- 24 (a) The tangible personal property replaces a component of
- 25 a computer, computer peripheral, machinery, or equipment, which
- 26 component is capable of being separated from the computer,
- 27 computer peripheral, machinery, or equipment.
- 28 (b) The tangible personal property performs the same or
- 29 similar function as the component it replaced.
- 30 (c) The tangible personal property restores the computer,
- 31 computer peripheral, machinery, or equipment to an operational
- 32 condition, or upgrades or improves the efficiency of the
- 33 computer, computer peripheral, machinery, or equipment.
- 34 (8) *"Supplies"* means tangible personal property, other

35 than computers, computer peripherals, machinery, equipment, or

PAGE 67

- 1 replacement parts, that meets one of the following conditions:
 2 (a) The tangible personal property is to be connected to
 3 a computer, computer peripheral, machinery, or equipment and
 4 requires regular replacement because the property is consumed
 5 or deteriorates during use, including but not limited to saw
 6 blades, drill bits, filters, and other similar items with a
 7 short useful life.
 8 (b) The tangible personal property is used in conjunction
 9 with a computer, computer peripheral, machinery, or equipment
 10 and is specially designed for use in manufacturing specific
 11 products and may be used interchangeably and intermittently on
 12 a particular computer, computer peripheral, machine, or piece
 13 of equipment, including but not limited to jigs, dies, tools,
 14 and other similar items.
 15 (c) The tangible personal property comes into physical
 16 contact with other tangible personal property used in
 17 processing and is used to assist with or maintain conditions
 18 necessary for processing, including but not limited to cutting
 19 fluids, oils, coolants, lubricants, and other similar items
 20 with a short useful life.
 21 (d) The tangible personal property is directly and
 22 primarily used in an activity described in paragraph “a”,
 23 subparagraphs (1) through (6), including but not limited to
 24 prototype materials and testing materials.
 25 Sec. 97. RESCISSION OF ADMINISTRATIVE RULES.
 26 1. The following Iowa administrative rules are rescinded as
 27 of July 1, 2020:
 28 a. 701 Iowa administrative code, rule 18.34, subrule 1,
 29 paragraph “b”, subparagraph (1).
 30 b. 701 Iowa administrative code, rule 18.45, subrule 1,
 31 definition of “computer”.
 32 c. 701 Iowa administrative code, rule 18.58, subrule 1,
 33 definition of “computer”.
 34 d. 701 Iowa administrative code, rule 230.14, subrule 2,
 35 paragraph “a”.

PAGE 68

- 1 2. As soon as practicable after July 1, 2020, the Iowa
 2 administrative code editor shall remove the language of the
 3 Iowa administrative rules referenced in subsection 1 of this
 4 section from the Iowa administrative code.
 5 DIVISION XI
 6 SCHOOL TUITION ORGANIZATION TAX CREDIT
 7 Sec. 98. Section 422.11S, subsection 8, paragraph a,
 8 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 9 (2) (a) “Total approved tax credits” means for the 2006
 10 calendar year, two million five hundred thousand dollars, for

11 the 2007 calendar year, five million dollars, for calendar
 12 years beginning on or after January 1, 2008, but before January
 13 1, 2012, seven million five hundred thousand dollars, for
 14 calendar years beginning on or after January 1, 2012, but
 15 before January 1, 2014, eight million seven hundred fifty
 16 thousand dollars, for calendar years beginning on or after
 17 January 1, 2014, but before January 1, 2019, twelve million
 18 dollars, and for calendar years beginning on or after January
 19 1, 2019, but before January 1, 2020, thirteen million dollars,
 20 and for calendar years beginning on or after January 1, 2020,
 21 fifteen million dollars.

22 (b) (i) During any calendar year beginning on or after
 23 January 1, 2022, if the amount of awarded tax credits from the
 24 preceding calendar year are equal to or greater than ninety
 25 percent of the total approved tax credits for the current
 26 calendar year, the total approved tax credits for the current
 27 calendar year shall equal the product of ten percent multiplied
 28 by the total approved tax credits for the current calendar year
 29 plus the total approved tax credits for the current calendar
 30 year.

31 (ii) If total approved tax credits are recomputed pursuant
 32 to subparagraph subdivision (i), the total approved tax credits
 33 shall equal the previous total approved tax credits recomputed
 34 pursuant to subparagraph subdivision (i) for purposes of future
 35 recomputations under subparagraph subdivision (i), provided

PAGE 69

1 that the maximum total approved tax credits recomputed pursuant
 2 to this subparagraph division (b) shall not exceed twenty
 3 million dollars in a calendar year.

4 Sec. 99. Section 422.33, subsection 28, Code 2020, is
 5 amended to read as follows:

6 28. The taxes imposed under this division shall be reduced
 7 by a school tuition organization tax credit allowed under
 8 section 422.11S. ~~The maximum amount of tax credits that~~
 9 ~~may be approved under this subsection for a tax year equals~~
 10 ~~twenty-five percent of the school tuition organization's tax~~
 11 ~~credits that may be approved pursuant to section 422.11S,~~
 12 ~~subsection 8, for a tax year.~~

13 DIVISION XII

14 BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE TAXATION

15 Sec. 100. Section 422.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 16 following new subsection:

17 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 18. *a.* Subtract, to the extent included,
 18 the amount of a federal, state, or local grant provided to
 19 a communications service provider, if the grant is used to
 20 install broadband infrastructure that facilitates broadband
 21 service in targeted service areas at or above the download and
 22 upload speeds.
 23 *b.* As used in this subsection, “broadband infrastructure”,
 24 “communications service provider”, and “targeted service area”

25 mean the same as defined in section 8B.1, respectively.
 26 Sec. 101. Section 422.35, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 27 the following new subsection:
 28 NEW SUBSECTION. 26. *a.* Subtract, to the extent included,
 29 the amount of a federal, state, or local grant provided to
 30 a communications service provider, if the grant is used to
 31 install broadband infrastructure that facilitates broadband
 32 service in targeted service areas at or above the download and
 33 upload speeds.
 34 *b.* As used in this subsection, “*broadband infrastructure*”,
 35 “*communications service provider*”, and “*targeted service area*”

PAGE 70

1 mean the same as defined in section 8B.1, respectively.
 2 Sec. 102. REFUNDS. Refunds of taxes, interest, or penalties
 3 that arise from claims resulting from the enactment of this
 4 division of this Act, in the tax year beginning January
 5 1, 2019, but before January 1, 2020, shall not be allowed
 6 unless refund claims are filed prior to October 1, 2020,
 7 notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary.
 8 Sec. 103. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 9 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 10 Sec. 104. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 11 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2019, and applies to
 12 tax years beginning on or after that date.
 13 DIVISION XIII
 14 LOCAL ASSESSORS
 15 Sec. 105. Section 441.6, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 16 to read as follows:
 17 2. Upon receipt of the report of the examining board, the
 18 chairperson of the conference board shall by written notice
 19 call a meeting of the conference board to appoint an assessor.
 20 The meeting shall be held not later than seven days after the
 21 receipt of the report of the examining board by the conference
 22 board. At the meeting, the conference board shall appoint an
 23 assessor from the register of eligible candidates. However,
 24 if a special examination has not been conducted previously for
 25 the same vacancy, the conference board may request the director
 26 of revenue to hold a special examination pursuant to section
 27 441.7. The chairperson of the conference board shall give
 28 written notice to the director of revenue of the appointment
 29 ~~and its effective date~~ within ten days of the decision of the
 30 board.
 31 Sec. 106. Section 441.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 32 following new subsection:
 33 NEW SUBSECTION. 3. The appointee selected by the conference
 34 board under subsection 2 shall not assume the office of city
 35 or county assessor until such appointment is confirmed by

PAGE 71

1 the director of revenue. If the director of revenue rejects
2 the appointment, the examining board shall conduct a new
3 examination and submit a new report to the conference board
4 under subsection 1. The director of revenue shall adopt rules
5 pursuant to chapter 17A to implement and administer this
6 subsection.

7 Sec. 107. Section 441.17, subsection 2, Code 2020, is
8 amended to read as follows:

9 2. Cause to be assessed, in accordance with section 441.21,
10 all the property in the assessor's county or city, except
11 property exempt from taxation, or the assessment of which is
12 otherwise provided for by law. However, an assessor or deputy
13 assessor shall not personally assess a property if the person
14 or a member of the person's immediate family owns the property,
15 has a financial interest in the property, or has a financial
16 interest in the entity that owns the property. The director of
17 revenue shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A to implement
18 and administer this subsection.

19 Sec. 108. Section 441.41, Code 2020, is amended to read as
20 follows:

21 **441.41 Legal counsel.**

22 In the case of cities having an assessor, the city legal
23 department shall represent the assessor and board of review
24 in all litigation dealing with assessments. In the case of
25 counties, the county attorney shall represent the assessor and
26 board of review in all litigation dealing with assessments.
27 Any taxing district interested in the taxes received from such
28 assessments may be represented by an attorney and shall be
29 required to appear by attorney upon written request of the
30 assessor to the presiding officer of any such taxing district.
31 The Subject to review and prior approval by either the city
32 legal department in the case of a city or the county attorney
33 in the case of a county, the conference board may employ
34 special counsel to assist the city legal department or county
35 attorney as the case may be.

PAGE 72

1 DIVISION XIV

2 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM (PPP)

3 Sec. 109. IOWA NET INCOME EXCLUSION FOR FEDERAL PAYCHECK
4 PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN FORGIVENESS FOR CERTAIN FISCAL-YEAR
5 FILERS IN TAX YEAR 2019. Notwithstanding any other provision
6 of law to the contrary, for any tax year beginning on or after
7 January 1, 2019, and ending after March 27, 2020, Pub. L. No.
8 116-136, §1106(i), applies in computing net income for state
9 tax purposes under section 422.7 or 422.35.

10 Sec. 110. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
11 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

12 DIVISION XV

13 IOWA INCOME TAX EXCLUSION — EMERGENCY STUDENT GRANT MONEY

14 Sec. 111. Section 422.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
15 following new subsection:

16 NEW SUBSECTION. 59. Notwithstanding any other provision of
17 law to the contrary, any funds received by a student through a
18 higher education institution to support the student's financial
19 needs as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic pursuant to §§3504,
20 18004, or 18008 of Pub. L. No. 116-136 shall not be included
21 in the student's Iowa net income for any tax year ending after
22 March 27, 2020.

23 Sec. 112. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
24 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

25 Sec. 113. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
26 Act applies retroactively to March 27, 2020, for tax years
27 ending on or after that date.

28 DIVISION XVI

29 IOWA INCOME TAX EXCLUSION — STIMULUS CHECKS

30 Sec. 114. IOWA INCOME TAX EXCLUSION FOR ECONOMIC IMPACT
31 PAYMENTS. In determining the amount of deduction for federal
32 income tax under section 422.9 for tax years beginning in
33 the 2020 calendar year, the amount of the deduction for the
34 tax year shall not be adjusted by the amount received during
35 the tax year of the income tax rebate provided pursuant to

PAGE 73

1 the federal Recovery Rebates and Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
2 and Economic Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, §2201, and
3 the amount of such income tax rebate shall not be subject to
4 taxation under chapter 422, division II.

5 DIVISION XVII

6 PRO RATA SHARE OF ENTITY-LEVEL INCOME TAX PAID BY SHAREHOLDERS
7 OR BENEFICIARIES

8 Sec. 115. Section 422.8, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
9 to read as follows:

10 1. a. The amount of income tax paid to another state or
11 foreign country by a resident taxpayer of this state on income
12 derived from sources outside of Iowa shall be allowed as a
13 credit against the tax computed under this chapter, except that
14 the credit shall not exceed what the amount of the Iowa tax
15 would have been on the same income which was taxed by the other
16 state or foreign country. The limitation on this credit shall
17 be computed according to the following formula: Income earned
18 outside of Iowa and taxed by another state or foreign country
19 shall be divided by the total income of the resident taxpayer
20 of Iowa. This quotient multiplied ~~times~~ by the net Iowa tax as
21 determined on the total income of the taxpayer as if entirely
22 earned in Iowa shall be the maximum tax credit against the Iowa
23 net tax.

24 b. (1) For purposes of paragraph "a", a resident partner
25 of an entity taxed as a partnership for federal tax purposes,
26 a resident shareholder of an S corporation, or a resident

27 beneficiary of an estate or trust shall be deemed to have paid
 28 the resident partner's, resident shareholder's, or resident
 29 beneficiary's pro rata share of entity-level income tax paid
 30 by the partnership, S corporation, estate, or trust to another
 31 state or foreign country on income that is also subject to
 32 tax under this division, but only if the entity provides the
 33 resident partner, resident shareholder, or resident beneficiary
 34 a statement that documents the resident partner's, resident
 35 shareholder's, or resident beneficiary's share of the income

PAGE 74

1 derived in the other state or foreign country, the income tax
 2 liability of the entity in that state or foreign country, and
 3 the income tax paid by the entity to that state or foreign
 4 country.
 5 (2) For purposes of paragraph "a", a resident shareholder of
 6 a regulated investment company shall be deemed to have paid the
 7 shareholder's pro rata share of entity-level income tax paid by
 8 the regulated investment company to another state or foreign
 9 country and treated as paid by its shareholders pursuant to
 10 section 853 of the Internal Revenue Code, but only if the
 11 regulated investment company provides the resident shareholder
 12 a statement that documents the resident shareholder's share of
 13 the income derived in the other state or foreign country, the
 14 income tax liability of the regulated investment company in
 15 that state or foreign country, and the income tax paid by the
 16 regulated investment company to that state or foreign country.

17 Sec. 116. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 18 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 19 Sec. 117. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 20 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020, for tax years
 21 beginning on or after that date.

DIVISION XVIII

IOWA SMALL BUSINESS RELIEF GRANT PROGRAM

24 Sec. 118. Section 422.7, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 25 following new subsection:

26 NEW SUBSECTION. 59. Subtract, to the extent included,
 27 the amount of any financial assistance grant provided to an
 28 eligible small business by the economic development authority
 29 under the Iowa small business relief grant program created
 30 during calendar year 2020 to provide financial assistance to
 31 eligible small businesses economically impacted by the COVID-19
 32 pandemic.

33 Sec. 119. Section 422.35, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 34 the following new subsection:

35 NEW SUBSECTION. 26. Subtract, to the extent included,

PAGE 75

1 the amount of any financial assistance grant provided to an
 2 eligible small business by the economic development authority

3 under the Iowa small business relief grant program created
4 during calendar year 2020 to provide financial assistance to
5 eligible small businesses economically impacted by the COVID-19
6 pandemic.

7 Sec. 120. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
8 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

9 Sec. 121. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
10 Act applies retroactively to March 23, 2020, for tax years
11 ending on or after that date.

12 DIVISION XIX

13 SECTION 179 EXPENSING

14 Sec. 122. Section 422.7, subsections 51 and 52, Code 2020,
15 are amended by striking the subsections.

16 Sec. 123. Section 422.9, subsection 2, paragraph h, Code
17 2020, is amended to read as follows:

18 *h.* For purposes of calculating the deductions in this
19 subsection that are authorized under the Internal Revenue Code,
20 and to the extent that any of such deductions is determined by
21 an individual's federal adjusted gross income, the individual's
22 federal adjusted gross income is computed in accordance with
23 section 422.7, subsections 39, 39A, 39B, ~~51, 52~~, and 53.

24 Sec. 124. Section 422.35, subsections 14 and 15, Code 2020,
25 are amended by striking the subsections.

26 Sec. 125. PRESERVATION OF EXISTING RIGHTS. The sections of
27 this division striking section 422.7, subsections 51 and 52,
28 and section 422.35, subsections 14 and 15, respectively, shall
29 not limit, modify, or otherwise adversely affect a taxpayer's
30 right to deduct for a tax year beginning on or after January 1,
31 2020, any amount determined under section 422.7, subsection 52,
32 paragraph "b", subparagraph (3), Code 2020, or under section
33 422.35, subsection 15, paragraph "b", subparagraph (3), Code
34 2020, for a tax year beginning prior to January 1, 2020.

35 Sec. 126. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this

PAGE 76

1 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020, for tax years
2 beginning on or after that date.

3 DIVISION XX

4 IOWA EDUCATIONAL SAVINGS PLAN TRUST (529 PLANS)

5 Sec. 127. Section 12D.1, subsection 2, paragraph k, Code
6 2020, is amended to read as follows:

7 *k.* "Qualified education expenses" means the same as
8 "qualified higher education expenses" as defined in section
9 529(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended by Pub. L.
10 No. 115-97, and shall include elementary and secondary school
11 expenses for tuition described in section 529(c)(7) of the
12 Internal Revenue Code, subject to the limitations imposed by
13 section 529(e)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code. "Qualified
14 education expenses" includes expenses for the participation
15 in an apprenticeship program registered and certified with
16 the United States secretary of labor under section 1 of the

17 National Apprenticeship Act, 29 U.S.C. §50, and amounts paid as
 18 principal or interest on any qualified education loan on behalf
 19 of a beneficiary or a sibling of the beneficiary, subject to
 20 the limitations imposed by section 529(c)(9)(B) and (C) of the
 21 Internal Revenue Code.

22 Sec. 128. Section 12D.1, subsection 2, Code 2020, is amended
 23 by adding the following new paragraphs:

24 NEW PARAGRAPH. 0l. “Qualified education loan” means the
 25 same as “qualified education loan” as defined in section 221(d)
 26 of the Internal Revenue Code.

27 NEW PARAGRAPH. 0m. “Sibling” means a brother, sister,
 28 stepbrother, or stepsister of the beneficiary.

29 Sec. 129. Section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph c,
 30 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 31 new subparagraph divisions:

32 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (d) The payment of expenses
 33 for fees, books, supplies, and equipment required for the
 34 participation of a beneficiary in an apprenticeship program.

35 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (e) The payment of qualified

PAGE 77

1 education loan repayments.

2 Sec. 130. Section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph c,
 3 subparagraph (2), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 4 new subparagraph divisions:

5 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (0a) “*Apprenticeship program*”
 6 means a program registered and certified with the United
 7 States secretary of labor under section 1 of the National
 8 Apprenticeship Act, 29 U.S.C. §50.

9 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (0c) “*Qualified education loan*”
 10 means the same as defined in section 12D.1, subsection 2.

11 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (00c) “*Qualified education loan*
 12 *repayments*” means amounts paid as principal or interest on any
 13 qualified education loan of the beneficiary or a sibling of
 14 the beneficiary. The repayment amounts shall not exceed ten
 15 thousand dollars in the aggregate for the beneficiary or the
 16 sibling, respectively.

17 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (d) “*Sibling*” means the same as
 18 defined in section 12D.1, subsection 2.

19 Sec. 131. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 20 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

21 Sec. 132. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 22 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2019, for tax years
 23 beginning on or after that date.

24 DIVISION XXI

25 IOWA EDUCATIONAL SAVINGS ACCOUNT AND FIRST-TIME HOMEBUYER
 26 ACCOUNT — EXTENSIONS

27 Sec. 133. EXTENSION OF IOWA EDUCATIONAL SAVINGS ACCOUNT
 28 CONTRIBUTION DEDUCTION FOR TAX YEAR 2019. Notwithstanding any
 29 provision of law to the contrary, in determining the deduction
 30 provided under section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph “a”,

31 for tax years beginning during the 2019 calendar year, a
 32 participant who makes a contribution to the Iowa educational
 33 savings plan trust pursuant to section 12D.3, subsection 1, on
 34 or after January 1, 2020, but on or before July 31, 2020, may
 35 elect to be deemed to have made the contribution on the last

PAGE 78

1 day of calendar year 2019.
 2 Sec. 134. EXTENSION OF IOWA FIRST-TIME HOMEBUYER ACCOUNT
 3 AND BENEFICIARY DESIGNATION FOR ACCOUNTS OPENED IN 2019.
 4 1. Notwithstanding section 541B.3, subsection 1, paragraph
 5 “a”, or any other provision of law to the contrary, an
 6 individual who opened a first-time homebuyer account during
 7 calendar year 2019 and who wishes to participate in the Iowa
 8 first-time homebuyer savings account program shall designate
 9 the account as a first-time homebuyer account on or before July
 10 31, 2020, on forms provided by the department of revenue.
 11 2. Notwithstanding section 541B.3, subsection 2, paragraph
 12 “a”, or any other provision of law to the contrary, an
 13 individual who opened a first-time homebuyer account during
 14 calendar year 2019 and who wishes to participate in the Iowa
 15 first-time homebuyer savings account program shall designate an
 16 individual as beneficiary of the first-time homebuyer savings
 17 account on or before July 31, 2020, on forms provided by the
 18 department of revenue.

19 Sec. 135. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 20 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

21 DIVISION XXII

22 IOWA EDUCATIONAL SAVINGS PLAN TRUST (529 PLANS) —
 23 RECONTRIBUTIONS

24 Sec. 136. Section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph c,
 25 subparagraph (1), Code 2020, is amended by adding the following
 26 new subparagraph division:

27 NEW SUBPARAGRAPH DIVISION. (d) (i) A retribution of
 28 a refund of any qualified higher education expenses from an
 29 eligible educational institution to the extent that such refund
 30 has been recontributed to the Iowa educational savings plan
 31 trust described in chapter 12D and meets all of the following
 32 criteria:

- 33 (A) The retribution is made to the same account from
- 34 which the original withdrawal was made.
- 35 (B) The retribution occurs within sixty days of the date

PAGE 79

- 1 of refund.
- 2 (C) The retribution amount does not exceed the amount
- 3 refunded by the eligible educational institution.
- 4 (ii) A deduction under paragraph “a” shall not be taken for
- 5 the amount of the retribution.
- 6 Sec. 137. Section 422.7, subsection 32, paragraph c,

7 subparagraph (2), subparagraph division (c), subparagraph
 8 subdivision (ii), Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:
 9 (ii) For purposes of this subparagraph division (c),
 10 “*Internal Revenue Code*” means the Internal Revenue Code of
 11 1954, prior to the date of its redesignation as the Internal
 12 Revenue Code of 1986 by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or means
 13 the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and in effect on
 14 January 1, ~~2018~~ 2020. This definition shall not be construed
 15 to include any amendment to the Internal Revenue Code enacted
 16 after the date specified in the preceding sentence, including
 17 any amendment with retroactive applicability or effectiveness.
 18 Sec. 138. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 19 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 20 Sec. 139. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 21 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2019, for tax years
 22 beginning on or after that date.

23 DIVISION XXIII

24 QUALIFYING PERSONAL PROTECTION EQUIPMENT — DONATION

25 Sec. 140. Section 423.6, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 26 following new subsection:
 27 NEW SUBSECTION. 18. Qualifying personal protective
 28 equipment and materials which are assembled to become
 29 qualifying personal protective equipment. For purposes of this
 30 subsection, “*qualifying personal protective equipment*” means
 31 personal protective equipment that is assembled and donated by
 32 a person during the period beginning with a state of disaster
 33 emergency proclamation by the governor under section 29C.6 and
 34 ending one hundred eighty days after the expiration of such
 35 proclamation.

PAGE 80

1 Sec. 141. REFUNDS. Refunds of taxes, interest, or penalties
 2 that arise from claims resulting from the enactment of this
 3 division of this Act, for donations occurring prior to the
 4 effective date of this division of this Act, shall not be
 5 allowed unless claims are filed prior to October 1, 2020,
 6 notwithstanding any other provision of the law to the contrary.
 7 Sec. 142. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 8 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 9 Sec. 143. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 10 Act applies retroactively to January 1, 2020, for qualifying
 11 personal protective equipment and materials assembled and
 12 donated on or after that date.

13 DIVISION XXIV

14 FOOD OPERATION TRESPASS

15 Sec. 144. Section 716.7A, subsection 1, paragraph d, as
 16 enacted by 2020 Iowa Acts, Senate File 2413, section 17, is
 17 amended to read as follows:
 18 d. (1) “*Food operation*” means any of the following:
 19 (1) (a) A location where a food animal is produced,
 20 maintained, or otherwise housed or kept, or processed in any

21 manner.

22 (2) (b) A location other than as described in subparagraph
 23 (1) division (a) where a food animal is kept, including an
 24 apiary, livestock market, vehicle or trailer attached to a
 25 vehicle, fair, exhibition, or a business operated by a person
 26 licensed to practice veterinary medicine pursuant to chapter
 27 169.

28 (3) (c) A location where a meat food product, poultry
 29 product, milk or milk product, eggs or an egg product, aquatic
 30 product, or honey is prepared for human consumption, including
 31 a food processing plant, a slaughtering establishment operating
 32 under the provisions of 21 U.S.C. §451 et seq. or 21 U.S.C.
 33 §601 et seq.; or a slaughtering establishment subject to state
 34 inspection as provided in chapter 189A.

35 (4) (2) A "Food operation" does not include a food

PAGE 81

1 establishment or farmers market ~~that sells or offers for sale a~~
 2 ~~meat food product, poultry product, milk or milk product, eggs~~
 3 ~~or an egg product, aquatic product, or honey.~~

4 Sec. 145. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 5 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

6 Sec. 146. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this
 7 Act applies retroactively to June 10, 2020.

8 DIVISION XXV

9 SHORT-TERM RENTAL PROPERTIES

10 Sec. 147. Section 331.301, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 11 the following new subsection:

12 NEW SUBSECTION. 18. *a.* For purposes of this subsection,
 13 "*short-term rental property*" means any individually or
 14 collectively owned single-family house or dwelling unit;
 15 any unit or group of units in a condominium, cooperative,
 16 or timeshare; or an owner-occupied residential home that is
 17 offered for a fee for thirty days or less. "*Short-term rental*
 18 *property*" does not include a unit that is used for any retail,
 19 restaurant, banquet space, event center, or other similar use.

20 *b.* A county shall not adopt or enforce any regulation,
 21 restriction, or other ordinance, including a conditional use
 22 permit requirement, relating to short-term rental properties
 23 within the county. A short-term rental property shall be
 24 classified as a residential land use for zoning purposes.
 25 *c.* Notwithstanding paragraph "*b*", a county may enact or
 26 enforce an ordinance that regulates, prohibits, or otherwise
 27 limits short-term rental properties for the following primary
 28 purposes if enforcement is performed in the same manner as
 29 enforcement applicable to similar properties that are not
 30 short-term rental properties:

31 (1) Protection of public health and safety related to fire
 32 and building safety, sanitation, or traffic control.

33 (2) Residential use and zoning purposes related to noise,
 34 property maintenance, or nuisance issues.

35 (3) Limitation or prohibition of use of property to house

PAGE 82

1 sex offenders; to manufacture, exhibit, distribute, or sell
 2 illegal drugs, liquor, pornography, or obscenity; or to operate
 3 an adult-oriented entertainment establishment as described in
 4 section 239B.5, subsection 4, paragraph “a”.
 5 (4) To provide the county with an emergency contact for a
 6 short-term rental property.
 7 *d.* A county shall not require a license or permit fee for a
 8 short-term rental property in the county.
 9 Sec. 148. Section 414.1, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended
 10 by adding the following new paragraph:
 11 NEW PARAGRAPH. *e.* (1) For purposes of this paragraph,
 12 “*short-term rental property*” means any individually or
 13 collectively owned single-family house or dwelling unit;
 14 any unit or group of units in a condominium, cooperative,
 15 or timeshare; or an owner-occupied residential home that is
 16 offered for a fee for thirty days or less. “*Short-term rental*
 17 *property*” does not include a unit that is used for any retail,
 18 restaurant, banquet space, event center, or other similar use.
 19 (2) A city shall not adopt or enforce any regulation,
 20 restriction, or other ordinance, including a conditional use
 21 permit requirement, relating to short-term rental properties
 22 within the city. A short-term rental property shall be
 23 classified as a residential land use for zoning purposes.
 24 (3) Notwithstanding subparagraph (2), a city may enact or
 25 enforce an ordinance that regulates, prohibits, or otherwise
 26 limits short-term rental properties for the following primary
 27 purposes if enforcement is performed in the same manner as
 28 enforcement applicable to similar properties that are not
 29 short-term rental properties:
 30 (a) Protection of public health and safety related to fire
 31 and building safety, sanitation, or traffic control.
 32 (b) Residential use and zoning purposes related to noise,
 33 property maintenance, or nuisance issues.
 34 (c) Limitation or prohibition of use of property to house
 35 sex offenders; to manufacture, exhibit, distribute, or sell

PAGE 83

1 illegal drugs, liquor, pornography, or obscenity; or to operate
 2 an adult-oriented entertainment establishment as described in
 3 section 239B.5, subsection 4, paragraph “a”.
 4 (d) To provide the city with an emergency contact for a
 5 short-term rental property.
 6 (4) A city shall not require a license or permit fee for a
 7 short-term rental property in the city.
 8 DIVISION XXVI
 9 RURAL IMPROVEMENT ZONES
 10 Sec. 149. Section 357H.1, subsection 1, Code 2020, is

11 amended to read as follows:

12 1. The board of supervisors of a county with less than
 13 twenty thousand residents, not counting persons admitted or
 14 committed to an institution enumerated in section 218.1 or
 15 904.102, based upon the most recent certified federal census,
 16 and with a private ~~lake~~ real estate development adjacent to or
 17 abutting in part a lake may designate an area surrounding the
 18 lake, if it is an unincorporated area of the county, a rural
 19 improvement zone upon receipt of a petition pursuant to section
 20 357H.2, and upon the board's determination that the area is in
 21 need of improvements.

22 Sec. 150. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 23 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

24 Sec. 151. APPLICABILITY. This division of this Act applies
 25 to rural improvement zones in existence on or established on or
 26 after the effective date of this division of this Act.

27 DIVISION XXVII

28 ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM

29 Sec. 152. 2014 Iowa Acts, chapter 1130, section 27, is
 30 amended to read as follows:

31 SEC. 27. INVESTMENT TAX CREDITS ISSUED TO ELIGIBLE
 32 HOUSING BUSINESSES UNDER THE ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM —
 33 TRANSFERABILITY. Notwithstanding the requirement in section
 34 15E.193B, subsection 8, Code 2014, that not more than three
 35 million dollars worth of tax credits for housing developments

PAGE 84

1 located in a brownfield site or a blighted area shall be
 2 eligible for transfer in a calendar year unless the eligible
 3 housing business is also eligible for low-income housing tax
 4 credits authorized under section 42 of the Internal Revenue
 5 Code, and notwithstanding the requirement in section 15E.193B,
 6 subsection 8, Code 2014, that the economic development
 7 authority shall not approve more than one million five hundred
 8 thousand dollars in tax credit certificates for transfer to
 9 any one eligible housing business located on a brownfield
 10 site or in a blighted area in a calendar year, all investment
 11 tax credits determined under section 15E.193B, subsection 6,
 12 paragraph "a", Code 2014, for housing developments located on
 13 a brownfield site or in a blighted area may be approved by
 14 the economic development authority for transfer in calendar
 15 year 2014, or any subsequent calendar year, provided the
 16 eligible housing business was awarded the investment tax
 17 credit before the effective date of this section of this
 18 division of this Act and notifies the economic development
 19 authority, in writing, before July 1, 2014, of its intent to
 20 transfer such tax credits, or provided the eligible housing
 21 business was awarded the investment tax credit before July 1,
 22 2015, for a housing development located in a blighted area
 23 and in a county with a total population of less than one
 24 hundred five thousand as determined by the most recent federal

25 decennial census, and submits a written request to the economic
 26 development authority before September 1, 2020, for approval
 27 to transfer such tax credits and provided the eligible housing
 28 business and the related housing development meet all other
 29 applicable requirements under section 15E.193B, Code 2014.
 30 Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, a
 31 tax credit transferred pursuant to this section shall not be
 32 claimed by a transferee prior to January 1, 2016.
 33 Sec. 153. EFFECTIVE DATE. This division of this Act, being
 34 deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.
 35 Sec. 154. RETROACTIVE APPLICABILITY. This division of this

PAGE 85

1 Act applies retroactively to May 30, 2014.
 2 DIVISION XXVIII
 3 FLYING OUR COLORS SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATES
 4 Sec. 155. Section 321.34, Code 2020, is amended by adding
 5 the following new subsection:
 6 NEW SUBSECTION. 11D. *Flying our colors plates.*
 7 *a.* Upon application and payment of the proper fees, the
 8 director may issue flying our colors plates to the owner of a
 9 motor vehicle subject to registration under section 321.109,
 10 subsection 1, autocycle, motor truck, motor home, multipurpose
 11 vehicle, motorcycle, trailer, or travel trailer.
 12 *b.* Flying our colors plates shall be designed by the
 13 department. Flying our colors plates shall be navy along the
 14 top and red along the bottom, and contain a white space in the
 15 middle of the plate which shall include the plate's letters and
 16 numbers in black and a gray image of a bald eagle behind the
 17 plate's letters and numbers.
 18 *c.* (1) The special flying our colors fee for letter-number
 19 designated flying our colors plates is thirty-five dollars.
 20 An applicant may obtain personalized flying our colors plates
 21 upon payment of the fee for personalized plates as provided in
 22 subsection 5, which is in addition to the special fee. The
 23 fees collected by the director under this subsection shall be
 24 paid monthly to the treasurer of state and deposited in the
 25 road use tax fund.
 26 (2) The treasurer of state shall credit monthly from the
 27 statutory allocations fund created under section 321.145,
 28 subsection 2, to the flood mitigation fund created under
 29 section 418.10, the amount of the special fees collected in the
 30 previous month for flying our colors plates. This subparagraph
 31 is repealed July 1, 2023.
 32 *d.* Upon receipt of the special registration plates, the
 33 applicant shall surrender the current registration plates to
 34 the county treasurer. The county treasurer shall validate
 35 the special registration plates in the same manner as regular

PAGE 86

1 registration plates are validated under this section. The
 2 annual special flying our colors fee for letter-number
 3 designated flying our colors plates is ten dollars which
 4 shall be paid in addition to the regular annual registration
 5 fee. The annual fee for personalized flying our colors
 6 plates is five dollars which shall be paid in addition to the
 7 annual special flying our colors fee and the regular annual
 8 registration fee. The annual special flying our colors fee
 9 shall be credited as provided under paragraph "c".

10 Sec. 156. Section 321.166, subsection 9, Code 2020, is
 11 amended to read as follows:

12 9. Special registration plates issued pursuant to section
 13 321.34, other than gold star, medal of honor, collegiate,
 14 fire fighter, natural resources, ~~and~~ blackout, and flying
 15 our colors registration plates, shall be consistent with the
 16 design and color of regular registration plates but shall
 17 provide a space on a portion of the plate for the purpose of
 18 allowing the placement of a distinguishing processed emblem or
 19 an organization decal. Special registration plates shall also
 20 comply with the requirements for regular registration plates
 21 as provided in this section to the extent the requirements are
 22 consistent with the section authorizing a particular special
 23 vehicle registration plate.>

24 2. Title page, line 8, by striking <port authorities> and
 25 inserting <short-term rentals, special registration plates>

SENATE AMENDMENT

H-8320

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-8317, to House File 2643, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the House, as follows:

3 1. Page 5, by striking lines 11 through 24.

4 2. By renumbering as necessary.

HUNTER of Polk

H-8321

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-8317, to House File 2643, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the House, as follows:

3 1. Page 10, after line 21 by inserting:

4 <A portion of the funds appropriated in this section shall
 5 be used to pay for both the federal and nonfederal shares of
 6 medical assistance for a person who is otherwise ineligible for
 7 medical care coverage, has established residence in this state
 8 in accordance with the Compacts of Free Association (COFA)
 9 between the government of the United States and the governments
 10 of the Federated States of Micronesia, the Republic of the
 11 Marshall Islands, and the Republic of Palau pursuant to 48

12 U.S.C. §1921, Tit. 1, Article IV, section 141, and who, as of
 13 a date referenced in the most recently published enumeration
 14 of qualified nonimmigrants, is a resident of an affected
 15 jurisdiction as specified in the Compact of Free Association
 16 Amendments Act of 2003, Pub. L. No. 108-188. The state shall
 17 cease payment of the federal share and shall only pay the state
 18 share of medical assistance under this unnumbered paragraph
 19 when persons described in this unnumbered paragraph become
 20 eligible for medical assistance pursuant to federal law.>

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8322

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-8317, to House File 2643, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the House, as follows:
 3 1. Page 29, after line 31, by inserting:
 4 <DIVISION ____
 5 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH COVID-19
 6 RESPONSE
 7 Sec. ____ CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
 8 HEALTH COVID-19 RESPONSE. Of the funds received by the state
 9 from the federal coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to
 10 the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act,
 11 Pub. L. No. 116-136, a sufficient amount shall be allocated
 12 to the department of public health to be used to hire, train,
 13 equip, pay, and provide for the expenses of case investigators
 14 and contact tracers during the public health emergency to meet
 15 the recommendations of the centers for disease control and
 16 prevention of the United States department of health and human
 17 services relating to case investigation and contact tracing
 18 for COVID-19. In recruiting and hiring case investigators
 19 and contact tracers the department shall ensure that those
 20 recruited and hired meet the needs of the culturally and
 21 linguistically diverse populations in the jurisdiction served.
 22 DIVISION ____
 23 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RIGHTS COVID-19
 24 RESPONSE
 25 Sec. ____ CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN
 26 RIGHTS COVID-19 RESPONSE. Of the funds received by the state
 27 from the federal coronavirus relief fund created pursuant to
 28 the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act,
 29 Pub. L. No. 116-136, a sufficient amount shall be allocated
 30 to the department of human rights to hire, train, equip, pay,
 31 and provide for the expenses of twenty health care advocates
 32 for persons with disabilities and for minority, migrant,
 33 non-English speaking, and other at-risk populations, to ensure
 34 that such persons receive all the assistance to which they are
 35 entitled during the public health emergency, including access

PAGE 2

1 to testing services and housing for diagnosed individuals
 2 to mitigate the spread of infection. Of the twenty health
 3 care advocates hired, one advocate shall be located at each
 4 community action agency in the state and three advocates shall
 5 be deployed to communities where major outbreaks occur. In
 6 hiring advocates, the department shall ensure that those hired
 7 meet the needs of the culturally and linguistically diverse
 8 populations in the jurisdiction served, and to the greatest
 9 extent possible advocates who are hired shall reside within or
 10 work with the population within the jurisdiction served.

11 DIVISION ____

12 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — OFFICE OF LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN
 13 COVID-19 RESPONSE

14 Sec. ____ CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND — OFFICE OF LONG-TERM
 15 CARE OMBUDSMAN COVID-19 RESPONSE. Of the funds received by
 16 the state from the federal coronavirus relief fund created
 17 pursuant to the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
 18 Security Act, Pub. L. No. 116-136, a sufficient amount shall
 19 be allocated to the office of long-term care ombudsman to
 20 hire, train, equip, pay, and provide for the expenses of
 21 sufficient personnel, through September 30, 2022, or until
 22 the officially-declared end of the public health emergency,
 23 whichever is later, to serve facilities under the jurisdiction
 24 of the office of long-term care ombudsman pursuant to chapter
 25 231 that are at risk for an infectious disease outbreak, and to
 26 ensure that such personnel provide on-site visits for each such
 27 facility on at least a quarterly basis and in response to any
 28 complaint necessitating an on-site visit to ensure appropriate
 29 fact-finding and evaluation of the complaint.>

30 2. By renumbering as necessary.

ISENHART of Dubuque

H-8323

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-8319, to House File 2641, as
 2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the House, as follows:

3 1. Page 86, after line 23 by inserting:

4 <DIVISION ____

5 FOOD BANKS — SALES TAX EXEMPTION

6 Sec. ____ Section 423.3, Code 2020, is amended by adding the
 7 following new subsection:

8 **NEW SUBSECTION.** 107. The sales price from the sale or
 9 rental of tangible personal property or specified digital
 10 products, or services furnished, to a nonprofit food bank,
 11 which tangible personal property, specified digital products,
 12 or services are to be used by the nonprofit food bank for a
 13 charitable purpose. For purposes of this subsection, "*nonprofit*
 14 *food bank*" means an organization organized under chapter 504
 15 and qualifying under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue

16 Code as an organization exempt from federal income tax under
17 section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code that maintains
18 an established operation involving the provision of food or
19 edible commodities or the products thereof on a regular basis
20 to persons in need or to food pantries, soup kitchens, hunger
21 relief centers, or other food or feeding centers that, as an
22 integral part of their normal activities, provide meals or food
23 on a regular basis to persons in need.>
24 2. By renumbering as necessary.

NIELSEN of Johnson

H-8324

1 Amend the Senate amendment, H-8319, to House File 2641, as
2 amended, passed, and reprinted by the House, as follows:
3 1. Page 23, after line 26 by inserting:
4 <Sec. ____ Section 423.3, Code 2020, is amended by adding
5 the following new subsection:
6 NEW SUBSECTION. 107. The sales price from the sale of
7 feminine hygiene products. For purposes of this subsection,
8 "*feminine hygiene products*" means sanitary napkins, tampons, or
9 other similar items used for feminine hygiene.>
10 2. By renumbering as necessary.

NIELSEN of Johnson

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT
REPORT OF THE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
ON HOUSE FILE 760

To the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the President of the Senate:

We, the undersigned members of the conference committee appointed to resolve the differences between the House of Representatives and the Senate on House File 760, a bill for an Act relating to the exemption from the hotel and motel taxes for the renting of lodging after a certain number of consecutive days, respectfully make the following report:

1. That the House recedes from its amendment, S-3261.
2. That the Senate recedes from its amendment, H-1316.
3. That House File 760, as amended, passed, and reprinted by the House, is amended to read as follows:

1. Page 1, by striking lines 1 through 13 and inserting:

<Section 1. Section 423A.5, subsection 1, Code 2020, is amended to read as follows:

1. a. The sales price from the renting of lodging ~~which is rented by the same person to a person where the lodging is rented by the same person~~ for a period of more than thirty-one consecutive days, except as provided in paragraph "b."

- b. The sales price from the renting of lodging to a person where the lodging is rented by the same person for the period beginning after ninety consecutive days of rental by such person, if the rental is a room, apartment, or sleeping quarter in a hotel, motel, inn, public lodging house, or rooming house, or in any place where sleeping accommodations are furnished to a transient guest.

Sec. 2. Section 423A.5, Code 2020, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 4. a. The sales price of lodging furnished to the guests of a nonprofit lodging provider and the purpose of renting is to provide a place for the friends and family of a hospital patient during a time of medical need of the patient and the length of stay is based upon the needs of the friends, family, or patient.

b. For purposes of this subsection, "nonprofit lodging provider" means a nonprofit entity which is exempt from federal income taxation pursuant to section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code that maintains an established facility that provides lodging to friends and family of a hospital patient during a time of medical need of the patient.>

2. Title page, lines 2 and 3, by striking <after a certain number of consecutive days>

ON THE PART OF THE HOUSE:
DUSTIN HITE, CHAIRPERSON
MONICA KURTH
NORLIN MOMMSEN
JOHN WILLS
MARY WOLFE

ON THE PART OF THE SENATE:
ROBY SMITH, CHAIRPERSON
JERRY BEHN
CHRIS COURNOYER
PAM JOCHUM
ZACH WAHLS

RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED
(Not otherwise printed in the House Journal)

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 108
BY GRASSLEY

1 A Concurrent Resolution amending joint rules of
2 the Senate and House of Representatives for the
3 Eighty-eighth General Assembly relating to the time
4 of committee passage and consideration of bills.
5 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, THE
6 SENATE CONCURRING, That Rule 20, subsection 2, of the
7 joint rules for the Eighty-eighth General Assembly, as
8 adopted during the 2019 Session in Senate Concurrent
9 Resolution 5, is amended as follows:
10 2. To be placed on the calendar in the house of
11 origin, a bill must be first reported out of a standing
12 committee by Friday of the 8th week of the first
13 session and the 6th week of the second session. To be
14 placed on the calendar in the other house, a bill must
15 be first reported out of a standing committee by Friday
16 of the 12th week of the first session and ~~the 10th week~~
17 of by June 6, 2020, during the second session.
18 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Rule 20, subsection
19 3, of the joint rules for the Eighty-eighth General
20 Assembly, as adopted during the 2019 Session in Senate
21 Concurrent Resolution 5, is amended by striking the
22 subsection and inserting in lieu thereof the following:
23 3. Commencing June 3, 2020, each house shall only
24 consider the following bills and resolutions:
25 a. Any bill that is exempt from subsection 2 of
26 this rule.
27 b. Any bill that has passed one house and at least

PAGE 2

1 one standing committee in the other house.
2 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That upon the convening
3 of the Eighty-ninth General Assembly, joint rules
4 shall revert to the joint rules previously adopted
5 by the Senate and House of Representatives in Senate
6 Concurrent Resolution 5 adopted during the 2019
7 Session.

H.C.R. 108 filed June 3, 2020; adopted June 3, 2020

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 109

BY GRASSLEY and PRICHARD

- 1 A Concurrent Resolution to provide for adjournment sine
 2 die.
 3 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
 4 THE SENATE CONCURRING, That when adjournment is
 5 had on Sunday, June 14, 2020, it shall be the final
 6 adjournment of the 2020 Regular Session of the
 7 Eighty-eighth General Assembly.

H.C.R. 109 filed June 14, 2020; adopted June 14, 2020

HOUSE RESOLUTION 102

BY WILLIAMS, GAINES, BENNETT, STECKMAN, KRESSIG, STAED, DERRY,
 JUDGE, GASKILL, BROWN-POWERS, ANDERSON, WILBURN, McCONKEY,
 MATSON, KURTH, M. SMITH, KACENA, THEDE, MASCHER,
 WESSEL-KROESCHELL, SUNDE, ISENHART, KONFRST, HUNTER, JAMES,
 COHOON, OLDSOON, JACOBY, EHLERT, OURTH, McKEAN, B. MEYER, LENSING,
 DONAHUE, HALL, WINCKLER, ABDUL-SAMAD, BEARINGER, R. SMITH,
 WOLFE, BRECKENRIDGE, RUNNING-MARQUARDT, NIELSEN, OLSON,
 FORBES, KURTZ, PRICHARD, DOLECHECK, HUSEMAN, BERGAN, SALMON,
 MAXWELL, BAXTER, OSMUNDSON, GASSMAN, MOHR, JONES, MOORE, HOLT,
 WHEELER, SIECK, SORENSEN, SHIPLEY, MOMMSEN, JENEARY, WORTHAN,
 A. MEYER, LOHSE, PAUSTIAN, BRINK, BACON, GRASSLEY, THOMPSON,
 BOSSMAN, WINDSCHITL, LANDON, HAGENOW, and HITE

- 1 A Resolution celebrating July 2, 2019, as the 100th
 2 anniversary of the State of Iowa ratifying
 3 the Nineteenth Amendment to the United States
 4 Constitution.
 5 WHEREAS, the fight for women's suffrage, from the
 6 first women's convention to enfranchisement, lasted 72
 7 years, with women from all walks of life, political
 8 views, and demographic backgrounds asking for the right
 9 to voice their opinions at the polls; and
 10 WHEREAS, the first women's rights convention
 11 was held in Seneca Falls, New York, in 1848, where
 12 Elizabeth Cady Stanton read "The Declaration of
 13 Sentiments", which set the agenda for women's
 14 activism; and

PAGE 2

- 1 WHEREAS, Sojourner Truth fought for African American
 2 women's right to vote at a women's rights convention
 3 in Akron, Ohio, in 1851, delivering her famous speech
 4 "Ain't I a Woman?"; and
 5 WHEREAS, Susan B. Anthony cast her ballot for United
 6 States presidential candidate Ulysses S. Grant and was
 7 arrested and tried in Rochester, New York, in 1872; and
 8 WHEREAS, in 1894, Iowa women gained the right to
 9 vote on ballot questions regarding bond or tax issues,

10 but continued to be denied the ability to vote on
11 candidates; and
12 WHEREAS, Iowa women's suffrage leader Mary Jane
13 Coggeshall was elected to serve on the board of the
14 National Woman Suffrage Association in 1895 and she
15 gave speeches at the organization's conventions in 1904
16 and 1907; and
17 WHEREAS, Council Bluffs, Iowa, was the site of a
18 women's suffrage march in 1908, one of the first in the
19 nation; and
20 WHEREAS, Carrie Chapman Catt, who grew up in Iowa,
21 led the National American Woman Suffrage Association
22 from 1900 to 1904 and 1915 to 1920 and developed and
23 implemented the "Winning Plan" to gain support from
24 legislators at the state and federal levels for women's
25 suffrage; and
26 WHEREAS, the United States Senate passed the
27 Nineteenth Amendment guaranteeing women the right to
28 vote in 1919 and states began ratification; and
29 WHEREAS, the Nineteenth Amendment was signed into
30 law by the United States Secretary of State on August

PAGE 3

1 26, 1920; and
2 WHEREAS, the Nineteenth Amendment guaranteed the
3 right to vote to African American women in Iowa and
4 other states outside the American south; and
5 WHEREAS, 2020 is also the 55th anniversary of the
6 Voting Rights Act, which fully enfranchised African
7 American women in the American south; and
8 WHEREAS, daughters, granddaughters, and
9 great-granddaughters of the women who fought so hard to
10 vote have been making their voices heard at the polls
11 for nearly 100 years; and
12 WHEREAS, women are running for office in
13 unprecedented numbers and many current politicians,
14 both male and female, remember that they follow in the
15 footsteps of these great suffragists; NOW THEREFORE,
16 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, That
17 more than 100 years of women's suffrage is recognized
18 in light of July 2, 2019, being the 100th anniversary
19 of the State of Iowa ratifying the Nineteenth Amendment
20 to the United States Constitution.

H.R. 102 filed February 12; adopted February 13, 2020.

HOUSE RESOLUTION 104
BY HANUSA and RUNNING-MARQUARDT

1 A Resolution to recognize the Iowa Small Business
2 Development Centers and honor 2020 award winners.
3 WHEREAS, since 1981, the Iowa Small Business
4 Development Centers have provided expert and
5 confidential business counseling services and training
6 workshops to entrepreneurs in all 99 Iowa counties; and
7 WHEREAS, the Iowa Small Business Development Centers
8 provide a wide variety of services to foster the growth
9 of Iowa business, including one-to-one professional
10 business counseling, learning opportunities,
11 workshops, courses and classes, and a variety of other
12 services; and
13 WHEREAS, the Iowa Small Business Development Centers
14 have announced the 2020 award winners for the centers'
15 two special entrepreneur awards; and
16 WHEREAS, Sue Tyrrell of Cedar Rapids, Iowa,
17 the chief executive officer and owner of Hands
18 Up Communications, is the 2020 Deb Dalziel Woman
19 Entrepreneur Achievement Award winner, an award which
20 honors an Iowa woman entrepreneur who has significantly
21 changed or improved her life and the lives of
22 others; and
23 WHEREAS, Dr. Martin Gross of Slater, Iowa, the
24 president and co-founder of Gross-Wen Technologies,
25 has received the 2020 Neal Smith Entrepreneur of the
26 Year Award, an award named in honor of the long-serving
27 Iowa congressman, given to an Iowa entrepreneur who
28 has been in business a minimum of three years and has

PAGE 2

1 been significantly assisted by an Iowa Small Business
2 Development Center; NOW THEREFORE,
3 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, That
4 the House of Representatives honors award winners Sue
5 Tyrrell and Dr. Martin Gross, congratulates them on
6 their success, and recognizes and expresses its thanks
7 to the Iowa Small Business Development Centers for
8 their ongoing work in making Iowa a better place to
9 live and work.

H.R. 104 filed February 27; adopted on March 3, 2020.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 102

BY WHITVER

1 A Concurrent Resolution to provide for the extended
2 adjournment of the 2020 regular session of the
3 Eighty-eighth General Assembly and for related
4 matters.
5 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SENATE, THE HOUSE OF
6 REPRESENTATIVES CONCURRING, That upon the adjournment
7 of the House of Representatives and the Senate on March
8 16, 2020, both houses will remain adjourned until 10:00
9 a.m. on April 15, 2020; and
10 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Legislative Council
11 may shorten or further extend the adjournment if deemed
12 necessary; and
13 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the joint rules are
14 suspended during the extended adjournment and until
15 action is taken upon the reconvening of the General
16 Assembly.

S.C.R. 102 filed March 16 (Senate); adopted March 17, 2020.

JOURNAL INDEX

ABDUL-SAMAD, AKO—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 488, 515

Amendments offered—510

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 24

Introduction of bills—104, 114, 115, 118, 136, 146, 156, 177, 184, 217, 219, 223, 225, 228, 247, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766

Subcommittee assignments—197, 198

ADDRESSED THE HOUSE/REMARKS BY—

Adjutant General of the Iowa National Guard—83

Acting Chief Justice of the Iowa Supreme Court—75

Governor—55

Majority Leader—14

Minority Leader—12, 784

Speaker of the House—4, 785

Speaker Pro Tempore—7

ADJOURNMENT SINE DIE—

783

AMENDMENTS—(See also individual committees and representatives)

Filed—(Printed in full—800-1514)

167, 213, 236, 254, 287, 300, 324, 351, 369, 395, 407, 417, 447, 487, 515, 517, 534, 569, 590, 596, 598, 605, 632, 645, 665, 671, 690, 711, 745, 766, 783

Germaneness—230, 496, 510, 511, 523, 528, 553, 554, 562, 616, 652, 656, 659, 660, 733, 734, 735, 737, 739, 758

Out of order—231, 525, 563, 578, 601, 619, 652, 699, 728

Senate amendments considered—357, 453, 612, 678, 706, 714, 747, 757, 769, 775

Senate amendments filed—447, 487, 488, 665, 690, 711, 745, 766, 783

Withdrawn—239, 240, 241, 357, 379, 475, 492, 507, 520, 521, 537, 539, 547, 552, 555, 556, 558, 581, 582, 583, 620, 637, 639, 683, 687, 699, 709, 715, 726, 728, 730, 736, 742, 750, 772

ANDERSON, MARTI—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 632, 646

Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 24

Explanation of vote—405, 532, 565, 592

Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 118, 136, 146, 169, 204, 217, 219, 223, 228, 239, 247, 268, 269, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399

Leave of absence—393, 416, 442, 484, 513, 586, 603

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 351, 766

Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 142, 200

Subcommittee assignments—109, 110, 189, 251, 262

APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEES

Appointments/revisions—9, 17, 18, 19, 23, 116

ASSISTANT MAJORITY LEADERS—

Sexton, Mike (Majority Whip)
 Brink, Holly
 Huseman, Daniel Adair
 Thorup, Jon
 Zumbach, Louis J.

ASSISTANT MINORITY LEADER—

Oldson, Jo (Minority Whip)
 Konfrst, Jennifer
 McConkey, Charlie
 Meyer, Brian
 Steckman, Sharon S.

BACON, ROBERT P.—Representative

Amendments filed—516
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 24
 Introduction of bills—106, 107, 114, 118, 224
 Leave of absence—393
 Reports—10
 Resolutions filed—212, 266, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 111, 112, 142, 172, 190, 199, 233, 252, 294
 Subcommittee assignments—79, 124, 140, 189, 287, 444, 486, 513, 567

BAXTER, TERRY C.—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—16, 20, 21, 22, 24
 Introduction of bills—106, 155, 168, 176, 177, 185, 186, 216, 224, 228, 268, 290
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 279, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—208, 252, 275
 Subcommittee assignments—98, 109, 160, 207, 533

BEARINGER, BRUCE—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 447, 515, 516
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 23, 25
 Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 156, 177, 184, 217, 225, 228, 247, 256, 268, 282, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Leave of absence—641, 664, 710, 744, 781
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 590, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—275, 670
 Subcommittee assignments—161, 444, 533

BENNETT, LIZ—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 488, 515, 690
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 23, 24, 25
 Introduction of bills—104, 156, 217, 219, 223, 228, 247, 314, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Leave of absence—764, 781
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 351, 446, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—141, 163, 165, 287, 670
 Subcommittee assignments—160, 261, 307, 395, 711

BERGAN, MICHAEL R.—Representative

Amendments filed—417

Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 24, 25

Introduction of bills—118, 129, 169, 224

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 533, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 112, 125, 142, 164, 172, 200, 233, 275, 287

Subcommittee assignments—79, 109, 152, 163, 189, 207, 250, 251, 274, 293, 294, 395, 588, 604, 711

BEST, BRIAN—Representative

Amendments filed—487, 516, 569

Amendments offered—582

Committee appointments/revisions—17, 18, 20, 21, 23, 25

Committee to notify/escort—10

Introduction of bills—106

Reports—10

Resolutions filed—278, 533, 590, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 153, 164, 275, 294, 670

Subcommittee assignments—80, 110, 123, 125, 274, 394

BILLS—(*See also RESOLUTIONS; for complete bill histories, see INDEX volume*)

Consideration of—229, 239, 339, 357, 374, 384, 400, 413, 421, 451, 492, 510, 520, 536, 575, 601, 613, 633, 651, 674, 687, 724, 750

Deferred/retained on calendar—242

Introduction of—66, 78, 92, 99, 103, 106, 113, 116, 127, 135, 144, 154, 168, 176, 183, 187, 193, 202, 216, 222, 228, 237, 238, 246, 247, 255, 267, 270, 280, 289, 302, 314, 325, 331, 338, 352, 355, 371, 374, 382, 397, 398, 404, 409, 419, 448, 489, 509, 571, 591, 600, 626, 643, 649, 667, 669, 672, 693, 694

Item veto messages—795

Motion to reconsider—485, 624

Placed on unfinished business calendar—243

Referred/rereferred—36, 79, 108, 129, 138, 147, 158, 187, 205, 232, 306, 326, 349, 368, 513, 565, 592, 669

Senate messages considered—219, 229, 237, 286, 356, 373, 374, 382, 397, 400, 410, 413, 418, 419, 450, 485, 491, 509, 519, 555, 572, 575, 586, 592, 597, 600, 611, 643, 649, 666

Sent to governor—588, 626, 744, 788

Signed by governor—272, 368, 567, 593, 626, 644, 689, 744, 788

Substitutions—229, 239, 242, 413, 423, 425, 426, 427, 429, 430, 435, 460, 462, 466, 468, 475, 498, 540, 543, 549, 551, 552, 575, 578, 582, 601, 614, 616, 620, 624, 636, 654, 677, 695, 699, 702, 703

Veto message—796

Withdrawn—232, 247, 348, 367, 393, 416, 442, 484, 513, 532, 565, 587, 604, 625, 642, 664, 666, 689, 711, 744

BLOOMINGDALE, JANE—Representative

Amendments filed—516, 766

Committee appointments/revisions—17, 20, 22, 23, 25

Introduction of bills—68, 106, 224, 228, 353

Resolutions filed—533, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 110, 111, 112, 142, 163, 164, 172, 173, 190, 199, 200, 208, 209, 252, 253, 318, 395, 487
 Subcommittee assignments—133, 151, 152, 161, 163, 199, 220, 250, 251, 293, 349, 368, 444, 588, 670

BOSSMAN, JACOB—Representative

Amendments filed—487, 516, 712, 745
 Amendments offered—500, 730, 731
 Committee appointments/revisions—16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22, 24, 25
 Committee to notify/escort—10
 Introduction of bills—66, 67, 99, 106, 107, 115, 145, 156, 224, 256
 Leadership revision—16
 Presided—485, 667
 Reports—14
 Resolutions filed—212, 266, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—110, 142, 163, 190, 200, 209, 253, 275, 318, 670
 Subcommittee assignments—141, 199, 251, 416, 443, 444, 588, 594

BRECKENRIDGE, WES—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 313, 515, 518, 534
 Amendments offered—558
 Committee appointments/revisions—18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 25, 138
 Explanation of vote—565
 Introduction of bills—67, 104, 113, 114, 115, 118, 184, 217, 218, 228, 256, 268, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491
 Leadership revision—100
 Reports—10
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 351, 446
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—134, 173, 208, 294
 Subcommittee assignments—109, 161, 162, 198, 199, 251, 260, 261, 293, 307

BRINK, HOLLY—Representative, Assistant Majority Leader

Amendments filed—766
 Amendments offered—687, 696
 Committee appointments/revisions—16, 17, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 25
 Committee to notify/escort—74
 Introduction of bills—92, 104, 106, 107, 135, 157
 Leadership revision—16
 Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 153, 165, 208, 262, 274, 275, 670
 Subcommittee assignments—110, 123, 124, 140, 160, 189, 207, 251, 260, 349, 394, 444, 445, 513, 588, 594, 630

BROWN-POWERS, TIMI—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 632, 645
 Committee appointments/revisions—19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26
 Introduction of bills—104, 114, 118, 136, 145, 156, 183, 184, 185, 194, 204, 217, 218, 223, 228, 247, 268, 282, 290, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 351, 446, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 134, 142, 165, 252, 253, 294
 Subcommittee assignments—110, 123, 124, 133, 140, 161, 287, 293, 368, 444, 670

CANVASS OF VOTES—

Certificate of Election—8

CARLSON, GARY L.—Representative

Amendments filed—447, 515, 646

Amendments offered—421, 556, 656, 658

Committee appointments/revisions—17, 20, 22, 23, 26

Introduction of bills—106, 224

Leave of absence—586

Point of order—656, 660

Resolutions filed—278, 533, 590, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 141, 164, 262, 395, 487

Subcommittee assignments—189, 274, 293, 444, 533, 594, 670

CHIEF CLERK OF THE HOUSE, Meghan Nelson

Elected Chief Clerk—2

Oath of office—2

Reports—744

COHOON, DENNIS M.—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515

Committee appointments/revisions—18, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26

Introduction of bills—104, 115, 118, 135, 146, 217, 219, 223, 228, 247, 268, 314, 315,
353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 447, 590, 766

Study bill subcommittee assignments—110, 111, 112, 142, 209, 294

Subcommittee assignments—125, 189, 416

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS—(See also individual representatives)

By committee—20

By member—24

Committee revisions—16, 116, 138, 291, 609

COMMITTEES—

Administration and Rules—

Appointments/revisions—16, 18, 19, 20, 138

Reports—68, 764

Agriculture—

Appointments/revisions—18, 20

Introduction of bills—268, 354, 355, 373, 374, 409

Recommendations—262, 308, 318

Study bill committee assignments—65, 108, 272, 273

Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 133, 275

Subcommittee assignments—220, 233, 261

Appropriations—

Amendments filed—596, 646

Appointments/revisions—16, 18, 20

Introduction of bills—187, 449, 509, 571, 591, 643, 649, 668, 672

Recommendations—190, 445, 567, 589, 594, 605, 644, 689

Study bill committee assignments—159, 669, 670

Study bill subcommittee assignments—164, 165
 Subcommittee assignments—124, 199, 260, 261, 349, 350, 394, 416, 443, 444, 445,
 588, 594, 630, 670

Commerce—

Amendments filed—213, 369, 632
 Appointments/revisions—16, 20, 609
 Introduction of bills—178, 204, 216, 255, 270, 271, 282, 284, 303, 304, 305, 333, 335, 354
 Recommendations—166, 201, 209, 234, 262, 294, 308, 369, 406, 630
 Study bill committee assignments—96, 119, 120, 149, 158, 170, 171, 248
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 133, 141, 164, 173, 196, 200, 252
 Subcommittee assignments—110, 140, 161, 293, 533, 588, 594

Economic Growth—

Appointments/revisions—16, 20, 317, 334
 Recommendations—295
 Study bill committee assignments—159, 205, 206, 273
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—165, 208, 275
 Subcommittee assignments—160, 161

Education—

Amendments filed—213, 632
 Appointments/revisions—21
 Introduction of bills—187, 219, 246, 258, 285, 303, 304, 305, 306, 326, 332, 335, 338, 352
 Recommendations—191, 201, 209, 234, 263, 296, 308, 406, 568, 630
 Study bill committee assignments—139, 149, 151, 159, 196, 197, 206, 248, 260
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 164, 165, 200, 201, 208, 252, 262
 Subcommittee assignments—140, 141, 162, 172, 207, 233, 260, 261, 287, 444, 445,
 486, 487

Environmental Protection—

Appointments/revisions—9, 16, 18, 21
 Introduction of bills—316, 331
 Recommendations—297, 319
 Study bill committee assignments—170, 196
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—173, 200

Ethics—

Appointments/revisions—17, 21, 291

Government Oversight—

Appointments/revisions—21, 291

Human Resources—

Amendments filed—632
 Appointments/revisions—9, 18, 21
 Introduction of bills—138, 169, 170, 179, 180, 204, 205, 216, 269, 271, 282, 283, 285,
 291, 317, 318, 325, 326, 332, 333, 335, 336, 353, 355, 372
 Recommendations—126, 153, 166, 191, 254, 264, 275, 309, 319, 631, 671
 Study bill committee assignments—65, 108, 109, 119, 150, 194, 233, 249, 259, 273,
 292, 293
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 80, 112, 125, 153, 199, 233, 253, 262,
 274, 275, 294
 Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 98, 109, 110, 123, 124, 125, 140, 141, 151, 152,
 163, 189, 207, 208, 250, 251, 252, 274, 287, 444, 445, 513, 567

Judiciary—

Amendments filed—369, 570, 590
 Appointments/revisions—9, 17, 18, 21

- Introduction of bills—179, 216, 217, 225, 246, 258, 259, 280, 282, 303, 304, 316, 332, 333, 334, 335, 336, 339, 352, 353, 354, 355, 371, 372, 399
- Recommendations—174, 210, 234, 264, 297, 320, 514, 568, 589, 594, 645, 711
- Study bill committee assignments—96, 97, 108, 119, 148, 149, 150, 159, 160, 171, 207, 233, 248, 260, 286
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 111, 112, 141, 152, 163, 164, 165, 173, 209, 233, 252, 262, 274, 287
- Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 98, 140, 161, 162, 207, 220, 233, 250, 260, 261, 274, 286, 287, 293, 307, 350, 395, 445, 514, 588, 604, 711
- Labor—
- Appointments/revisions—17, 22
- Introduction of bills—258, 306
- Recommendations—235, 298
- Study bill committee assignments—160
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—165
- Subcommittee assignments—120, 121
- Local Government—
- Appointments/revisions—17, 19, 22, 317, 318, 325, 334, 336, 382
- Recommendations—311, 323
- Study bill committee assignments—150, 249, 250, 273, 318
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—172, 253, 275, 318
- Subcommittee assignments—207, 250, 274, 287
- Natural Resources—
- Amendments filed—417, 596
- Appointments/revisions—19, 22
- Introduction of bills—246, 259, 282, 283, 305, 334
- Recommendations—235, 276, 298, 311, 417, 595
- Study bill committee assignments—148, 248, 249
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—152, 172, 252
- Subcommittee assignments—98, 109, 132, 133, 160, 161, 162, 163, 207, 486, 533
- Public Safety—
- Appointments/revisions—17, 19, 22
- Introduction of bills—185, 269, 284, 291, 326, 331, 332, 333, 336, 353, 354, 372, 374, 382, 399, 404, 405
- Recommendations—174, 181, 192, 265, 277, 299, 311, 323, 328
- Study bill committee assignments—148, 149, 171, 172, 188, 189, 205, 206, 292, 306
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—152, 164, 173, 190, 208, 294, 307
- Subcommittee assignments—109, 124, 125, 161, 197, 198, 199, 251, 260, 261, 273, 287, 293, 307, 513
- State Government—
- Appointments/revisions—17, 22
- Introduction of bills—170, 183, 185, 186, 224, 225, 226, 268, 269, 271, 283, 284, 290, 291, 315, 316, 326, 332, 333, 334, 335, 338, 352, 354, 355, 372, 382, 399, 400, 404, 409
- Recommendations—167, 182, 210, 253, 277, 299, 312, 323, 329
- Study bill committee assignments—94, 95, 96, 97, 131, 132, 148, 149, 150, 151, 171, 187, 188, 195, 205, 206, 207, 248, 272, 273, 292, 306
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 110, 111, 112, 141, 142, 163, 164, 172, 173, 189, 190, 200, 208, 209, 252, 275, 294, 307
- Subcommittee assignments—79, 124, 125, 141, 151, 162, 163, 189, 250, 251, 262, 287, 293, 486, 588

Transportation—

Amendments filed—487

Appointments/revisions—17, 19, 23

Introduction of bills—185, 225, 258, 268, 283, 316, 317

Recommendations—174, 192, 211, 221, 254, 265, 278, 313, 324, 487, 598

Study bill committee assignments—97, 119, 120, 148, 195, 196, 248

Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 125, 126, 133, 152, 199, 200, 252

Subcommittee assignments—123, 124, 125, 133, 151, 172, 189, 250, 251, 274, 416

Veterans Affairs—

Amendments filed—167

Appointments/revisions—17, 23

Introduction of bills—185, 223, 225, 269, 285, 338

Recommendations—167, 174, 211, 254, 278, 324

Study bill committee assignments—131, 139, 159, 196, 272, 292

Study bill subcommittee assignments—133, 134, 142, 165, 200, 274, 294

Subcommittee assignments—123, 151

Ways and Means—

Amendments filed—570, 671, 690

Appointments/revisions—17, 19, 23

Introduction of bills—217, 397, 410, 449, 509, 571, 572, 591, 592, 626, 668, 669

Recommendations—212, 350, 406, 446, 568, 589, 595, 631, 671, 690

Study bill committee assignments—139, 195, 207, 249, 260, 291, 292, 394, 486

Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 142, 199, 209, 252, 253, 262, 293, 294, 395, 487

Subcommittee assignments—109, 110, 121, 122, 123, 133, 151, 152, 161, 163, 198, 199, 250, 251, 252, 260, 261, 274, 293, 306, 307, 349, 368, 369, 394, 395, 444, 486, 594, 670

COMMUNICATIONS RECEIVED—

36, 100, 130, 180, 220, 272, 326, 405, 517, 597, 604, 628, 666, 797

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS/REPORTS—(Printed in full—1515)

Appointed—695

Report—723, 1515

CREDENTIALS, COMMITTEE ON—

Reports—8

DERRY, KARIN—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515

Committee appointments/revisions—19, 21, 22, 23, 26

Committee to notify/escort—74

Introduction of bills—107, 114, 115, 118, 156, 194, 217, 219, 228, 268, 302, 314, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 693

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766

Sponsor added—118, 259

Study bill subcommittee assignments—110, 163, 165, 190, 200, 208, 233, 287, 294

Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 110, 124, 125, 140, 151, 207, 251, 260, 395, 711

DEYOE, DAVE—Representative

Amendments filed—417, 646, 671

Amendments offered—475, 680

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 26, 609

Committee to notify/escort—54
Introduction of bills—178, 218, 224
Leave of absence—625
Resolutions filed—278, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 133, 141, 142, 164, 165, 173, 190, 200, 208, 670
Subcommittee assignments—79, 124, 189, 251, 261, 293, 349, 486, 588

DOLECHECK, CECIL—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 236, 407, 712
Amendments offered—239, 241, 242, 460, 681
Committee appointments/revisions—16, 20, 21, 22, 24, 26
Committee to notify/escort—83
Introduction of bills—66, 106, 136, 224
Leave of absence—348
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 279, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 142, 164, 165, 670
Subcommittee assignments—120, 121, 140, 162, 163, 349, 350, 394, 444, 445, 486, 588

DONAHUE, MOLLY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 665
Amendments offered—683
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 24, 26
Committee to notify/escort—81
Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 118, 135, 146, 168, 177, 184, 194, 204, 217, 218, 224, 225, 228, 237, 247, 268, 269, 290, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 142, 165, 189, 208
Subcommittee assignments—124, 125, 162, 189, 250

EHLERT, TRACY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 395, 407, 417, 515, 665
Amendments offered—521, 682
Committee appointments/revisions—18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 24, 26
Committee to notify/escort—10
Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 118, 135, 146, 156, 184, 217, 219, 228, 247, 256, 269, 289, 290, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 693
Leave of absence—781
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 125, 165
Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 124, 140, 141, 152, 163, 189, 274

FISHER, DEAN—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—17, 20, 21, 22, 23, 27
Introduction of bills—66, 93, 155, 176, 177, 185, 216, 224
Resolutions filed—278, 533, 590, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—141, 152, 173, 190, 294
Subcommittee assignments—109, 132, 160, 161, 197, 199, 207, 260, 273, 287, 293

FORBES, JOHN—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 534
Committee appointments/revisions—18, 19, 20, 21, 24, 27

Introduction of bills—104, 115, 118, 157, 217, 219, 228, 247, 256, 289, 314, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Leadership revision—2
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 153, 173, 275, 670
 Subcommittee assignments—124, 152, 220, 250, 251, 252, 294, 394, 444, 513

FRY, JOEL—Representative

Amendments filed—351, 369, 745
 Amendments offered—530, 737
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 24, 27
 Introduction of bills—66, 104, 105, 107, 115, 156, 179, 184, 203, 217, 224, 237
 Leave of absence—416, 484, 513
 Resolutions filed—278, 533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 152, 153, 164, 165, 253, 670
 Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 98, 110, 123, 124, 125, 140, 141, 172, 198, 199, 208, 251, 252, 260, 261, 394, 444

GAINES, RUTH ANN—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 27
 Introduction of bills—104, 114, 118, 136, 156, 184, 218, 223, 228, 237, 247, 256, 268, 269, 271, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490
 Leave of absence—393, 603, 625, 641, 664, 689, 710, 744, 764, 781
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 446
 Sponsor added—443
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—262, 318
 Subcommittee assignments—123, 140, 172, 261, 444

GASKILL, MARY A.—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 534, 569
 Amendments offered—559
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 27
 Introduction of bills—104, 114, 146, 156, 177, 184, 193, 194, 204, 217, 219, 225, 228, 247, 268, 269, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Leave of absence—603
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 351, 766
 Sponsor added—130, 139, 205
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—253, 262, 275, 318
 Subcommittee assignments—133, 151, 163, 368, 670

GASSMAN, TEDD—Representative

Amendments filed—236, 447, 516, 534, 596
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 24, 27
 Introduction of bills—114, 118, 127, 145, 146, 155, 168, 176, 177, 179, 185, 194, 216, 224, 228, 246, 290, 315
 Presided—633
 Reports—8
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—253, 262, 275, 318
 Subcommittee assignments—140, 141, 162, 172, 208, 261, 274, 487

GERHOLD, THOMAS D.—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 23, 27
Introduction of bills—66, 106, 114, 155, 168, 177, 185, 216, 224, 256
Resolutions filed—278, 533, 590, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—173
Subcommittee assignments—220

GOVERNOR Reynolds, Kim—

Bills signed—272, 368, 567, 593, 626, 644, 689, 744, 788
Condition of the State Address—55
Item veto messages—795
Joint Convention—54
Veto message—796

GRASSLEY, PAT—Representative, Speaker of the House

Administered oath—7
Committee appointments/revisions—16, 17, 19, 20, 27
Elected Speaker—3
Introduction of bills—224
Remarks—4, 782, 785
Resolutions filed—11, 12, 212, 266, 278, 533, 605, 782
Special presentation—House Pages—799

GUSTAFSON, STAN—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—21, 23, 27
Introduction of bills—106, 177, 224, 667
Resolutions filed—278, 351, 446, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 134, 141, 164, 200, 252, 262, 294
Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 98, 161, 293, 350, 604, 711

HAGENOW, CHRIS—Representative

Amendments filed—254
Amendments offered—359
Committee appointments/revisions—16, 17, 21, 23, 28
Committee to notify/escort—74
Introduction of bills—92, 93, 105, 114, 155, 224
Leadership revision—2
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 351, 446, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 134, 141, 163, 173, 199, 233
Subcommittee assignments—109, 110, 121, 122, 123, 133, 140, 161, 162, 163, 251, 252, 260, 261, 306, 349, 368, 369, 394, 395, 444, 445, 514, 588, 670, 711

HALL, CHRIS—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 605, 665, 712, 745
Amendments offered—660, 733, 734, 735
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 28
Introduction of bills—114, 115, 217, 219, 228, 256, 268, 281, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 509, 693
Point of order—737, 777
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 590
Study bill subcommittee assignments—164, 208
Subcommittee assignments—124, 261, 349, 394, 443, 630, 670

HANUSA, MARY ANN—Representative

Amendments filed—236, 447, 646
 Amendments offered—674
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 28
 Introduction of bills—114, 146, 257, 281
 Resolutions filed—278, 407, 533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—165, 200, 201, 253, 318
 Subcommittee assignments—140, 141, 162, 207, 261, 274, 444, 487

HEIN, LEE—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 23, 28
 Committee to notify/escort—55
 Introduction of bills—224
 Resolutions filed—279, 533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 209, 253, 275
 Subcommittee assignments—109, 110, 121, 122, 123, 133, 161, 163, 251, 252, 260, 261, 306, 307, 349, 369, 394, 670

HINSON, ASHLEY—Representative

Amendments filed—516, 766
 Committee appointments/revisions—16, 17, 21, 22, 23, 24, 28
 Committee to notify/escort—73
 Introduction of bills—114, 224, 283, 290, 667
 Leave of absence—744
 Presided—672
 Resolutions filed—533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 125, 318

HITE, DUSTIN D.—Representative

Amendments filed—324, 447, 488, 516, 534, 569, 590, 596, 632, 690, 712, 766
 Amendments offered—340, 360, 538, 543, 583, 584, 636, 637, 708, 709, 752
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 24, 28
 Committee to notify/escort—74
 Conference committee appointments and reports—695, 723
 Introduction of bills—68, 79, 92, 106, 107, 146, 224, 353
 Presided—418, 666
 Resolutions filed—212, 266, 279, 446, 533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 141, 152, 165, 172, 209, 233, 252, 253, 262, 287, 293, 294, 318, 487
 Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 123, 133, 140, 161, 207, 250, 252, 260, 274, 286, 287, 307, 350, 368, 395, 514, 594, 604, 670, 711

HOLT, STEVEN—Representative

Amendments filed—395, 447, 516, 534, 632, 646
 Amendments offered—400, 459, 499, 750
 Committee appointments/revisions—17, 21, 22, 23, 24, 28
 Committee to notify/escort—81
 Introduction of bills—93, 177, 224, 256, 667
 Point of order—511, 553, 554, 659
 Presided—215, 270, 517
 Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 533, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—141, 152, 165, 173, 208
Subcommittee assignments—124, 197, 198, 368, 369, 395, 444, 513, 514, 594, 604, 670, 711

HOUSE CONCURRED—

453, 612, 678, 706, 714, 715, 716, 718, 720, 747, 748, 749, 757, 758, 762, 770, 771, 775, 779

HOUSE INSISTS—

694

HOUSE REFUSED TO CONCUR—

357

HUNTER, BRUCE—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 417, 487, 515, 534, 569, 590, 598, 632, 646, 665, 691, 766

Amendments offered—616, 771, 783

Committee appointments/revisions—19, 22, 23, 28

Introduction of bills—78, 104, 107, 114, 115, 116, 118, 136, 137, 146, 156, 184, 193,
202, 217, 218, 223, 228, 247, 256, 268, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491,
668, 693

Leave of absence—603

Point of order—454, 618

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766

Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 141, 142, 164, 172, 190, 199, 200, 252,
253, 318

Subcommittee assignments—120, 121, 124, 141, 161, 162, 199, 444, 486, 670

HUSEMAN, DANIEL ADAIR—Representative, Assistant Majority Leader

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 29

Introduction of bills—106, 224

Presided—647

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 533, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 165, 200

Subcommittee assignments—123, 125, 133, 151, 250, 274, 416

IOWA NATIONAL GUARD—Adjutant General Benjamin J. Corell

Condition of the Iowa National Guard Message—83

Joint Convention—82

IOWA SUPREME COURT—Acting Chief Justice David S. Wiggins

Condition of the Judicial Branch Message—75

Joint Convention—73

ISENHART, CHARLES—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 236, 407, 417, 488, 515, 518, 534, 569, 590, 632, 665, 690, 711,
712, 783

Amendments offered—230, 475, 553, 560, 651

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 23, 29

Introduction of bills—99, 103, 104, 105, 106, 114, 115, 117, 127, 128, 129, 136, 155,
157, 177, 180, 183, 186, 202, 217, 218, 222, 223, 224, 228, 238, 247, 256, 268, 282,
302, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 667, 693

Leave of absence—781

Point of order—652

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 590, 766
 Sponsor added—158, 271, 588, 765
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—209, 275, 487
 Subcommittee assignments—122, 123, 189, 251, 369, 444, 486, 670

JACOBSEN, JON—Representative

Amendments filed—236, 447, 487
 Amendments offered—452, 477
 Committee appointments/revisions—17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24, 29
 Introduction of bills—114, 177, 185, 216, 224, 255, 256, 257, 259, 281
 Presided—597
 Resolutions filed—533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 110, 111, 133, 141, 164, 173, 200, 252, 287, 294
 Subcommittee assignments—124, 140, 250, 251, 262, 286, 287, 293, 395, 533, 711

JACOBY, DAVE—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 712
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 29
 Introduction of bills—118, 135, 136, 137, 146, 156, 177, 217, 218, 225, 228, 268, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 448, 693
 Leave of absence—416, 625
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 351, 407, 533, 590, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 152, 164, 208, 487
 Subcommittee assignments—109, 110, 121, 122, 123, 133, 161, 162, 163, 207, 251, 252, 260, 261, 274, 306, 349, 369, 394, 444, 670

JAMES, LINDSAY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 407, 515, 517, 518, 534, 646
 Amendments offered—523, 528, 675
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 23, 24, 29
 Introduction of bills—104, 114, 136, 146, 184, 217, 218, 224, 228, 247, 256, 268, 282, 314, 315, 353, 354, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 199, 209, 252, 262
 Subcommittee assignments—122, 141, 152, 161, 162, 199, 250, 445, 670

JENEARY, TOM—Representative

Amendments filed—447
 Amendments offered—458
 Committee appointments/revisions—17, 22, 23, 24, 29
 Introduction of bills—106, 114, 115, 118, 147, 155, 168, 176, 177, 185, 216, 353
 Leave of absence—625, 641
 Resolutions filed—212, 266, 279, 351, 446, 533, 782
 Special presentation—Ralph Klemme—373
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 164, 165, 173, 200, 253, 274, 318
 Subcommittee assignments—109, 125, 133, 161, 198, 207, 261, 274, 287, 293, 307

JOINT CONVENTIONS—

Condition of the Iowa National Guard Message—82
 Condition of the Judicial Branch Message—73
 Condition of the State Message—54

JONES, MEGAN—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 590
Amendments offered—455
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 29
Committee to notify/escort—10
Explanation of vote—443
Introduction of bills—66, 67, 78, 92, 105, 116, 145, 154, 179, 194, 223, 224, 353, 667
Leave of absence—348, 368, 393, 403
Petition filed—594
Presided—448
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 782
Special presentation—Clel Baudler—186, Senator Joan Freeman from Ireland—573
Study bill subcommittee assignments—141, 253, 275, 287, 318
Subcommittee assignments—80, 109, 161, 163, 198, 250, 260, 588, 670, 711

JUDGE, KENAN—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515
Committee appointments/revisions—18, 19, 20, 21, 23, 29
Committee to notify/escort—82
Introduction of bills—118, 217, 219, 228, 256, 268, 289, 290, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491
Resolutions filed—212, 265
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 141, 164, 208
Subcommittee assignments—123, 189, 233

KACENA, TIMOTHY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 407, 417, 515, 590, 766
Committee appointments/revisions—19, 22, 23, 30
Introduction of bills—103, 104, 113, 114, 115, 118, 145, 157, 177, 186, 204, 218, 223, 225, 228, 247, 268, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
Leave of absence—603, 764, 781
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 446
Study bill subcommittee assignments—165, 172, 318
Subcommittee assignments—109, 124, 197, 198, 274

KAUFMANN, BOBBY—Representative

Amendments filed—488, 632, 646, 691
Amendments offered—505, 640, 706
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 30
Committee to notify/escort—3
Introduction of bills—106, 114, 128, 147, 169, 193, 194, 224, 246, 256, 290, 302, 304, 353
Resolutions filed—533, 590, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 141, 142, 165, 172, 200, 208, 287, 294
Subcommittee assignments—109, 125, 151, 163, 198, 199, 207, 220, 233, 250, 251, 261, 274, 287, 293, 307, 349, 350, 369, 395, 444, 514, 588, 670, 711

KERR, DAVID—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 24, 30
Introduction of bills—93, 106, 114, 168, 176, 177, 185, 203, 216, 224, 353
Resolutions filed—279, 447, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—133, 142, 165, 190, 294, 670
Subcommittee assignments—140, 161, 162, 199, 261, 349, 350, 394, 444, 445, 486, 588

KLEIN, JARAD—Representative

Amendments filed—516, 534, 665, 711
Amendments offered—559, 651, 652, 708
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 30, 609
Committee to notify/escort—55
Introduction of bills—105, 106, 224
Resolutions filed—278, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 112, 133, 141, 165, 173, 208, 209, 274, 275
Subcommittee assignments—124, 140, 161, 197, 198, 261, 307, 350, 395, 513, 588, 711

KONFRST, JENNIFER—Representative, Assistant Minority Leader

Amendments filed—213, 515
Committee appointments/revisions—18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 30
Committee to notify/escort—54
Introduction of bills—67, 114, 115, 146, 156, 203, 218, 223, 228, 268, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 693
Leadership revision—2
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 112, 142, 164, 173, 200, 253, 262, 275, 287, 318
Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 98, 125, 133, 163, 207, 250, 251, 261, 274, 287, 711

KRESSIG, BOB—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 534, 569
Amendments offered—561
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 23, 30
Explanation of vote—788
Introduction of bills—99, 100, 104, 114, 118, 136, 156, 184, 218, 228, 247, 268, 269, 282, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 489, 490, 491
Leave of absence—764, 781
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 590, 766
Sponsor added—604
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 152, 173, 199, 208, 253, 318
Subcommittee assignments—123, 125, 172, 198, 199, 274

KURTH, MONICA—Representative

Amendments filed—213
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 30
Conference committee appointments and reports—695, 723
Explanation of vote—566
Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 118, 128, 136, 156, 177, 204, 218, 223, 225, 228, 247, 256, 268, 289, 290, 314, 353, 354, 398, 399, 693
Leave of absence—416, 442, 484, 513, 641, 664
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 351, 446, 590, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—134, 200, 201, 293, 294, 395
Subcommittee assignments—109, 122, 162, 180, 184, 198, 251, 260, 287, 368, 444, 487, 670

KURTZ, JEFF—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 534
Amendments offered—617
Committee appointments/revisions—22, 23, 24, 30
Committee to notify/escort—83

Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 145, 146, 184, 204, 228, 247, 268, 314, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 668, 693
Leave of absence—603
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 447, 590, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 133, 165, 173, 190, 199, 200, 252
Subcommittee assignments—123, 161, 197, 199, 250, 273, 293, 349, 368, 670

LONDON, JOHN—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 23, 31
Explanation of vote—416
Introduction of bills—138, 170, 176, 223, 224, 256, 281, 282
Leave of absence—744
Presided—176, 325
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 446, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—133, 152, 164, 252, 670
Subcommittee assignments—123, 124, 151, 189, 261, 394

LEADERSHIP REVISIONS—

2, 16, 100

LENSING, VICKI—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 447, 515, 712
Amendments offered—462
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 31, 291
Explanation of vote—486
Introduction of bills—104, 114, 115, 118, 135, 136, 147, 177, 218, 219, 223, 228, 247, 314, 353, 354, 398, 399, 693
Leave of absence—416
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—110, 111, 190, 208, 252, 275, 307, 318
Subcommittee assignments—151, 162

LOHSE, BRIAN K.—Representative

Amendments filed—351, 515, 516, 569, 745
Amendments offered—578, 579
Committee appointments/revisions—16, 20, 21, 22, 23, 31
Committee to notify/escort—74
Introduction of bills—92, 93, 115, 117, 118, 137, 154, 156, 177, 179, 224, 256, 353, 667
Point of order—510, 511
Presided—99
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 112, 163, 164, 165, 173, 200, 208, 209, 253, 275, 318
Subcommittee assignments—80, 110, 123, 125, 151, 161, 162, 172, 220, 233, 250, 260, 261, 274, 307, 350, 588, 711

LUNDGREN, SHANNON—Representative

Amendments filed—407, 447, 516, 569, 590, 690, 711, 745, 766
Amendments offered—478, 581, 725, 726, 758
Committee appointments/revisions—16, 17, 20, 21, 22, 24, 31
Committee to notify/escort—7, 82
Introduction of bills—107, 115, 118, 128, 145, 194, 256, 353

Point of order—366
 Presided—255
 Resolutions filed—533, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 111, 133, 142, 153, 163, 173, 200, 208, 253, 275
 Subcommittee assignments—123, 124, 125, 151, 162, 208, 220, 250, 287, 445, 486, 567

MAJORITY LEADER, Windschitl, Matt W.

MASCHER, MARY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 407, 515, 711
 Amendments offered—728
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 24, 31
 Introduction of bills—104, 106, 107, 114, 115, 117, 118, 135, 136, 146, 155, 156, 177, 194,
 218, 219, 223, 224, 225, 228, 247, 269, 289, 314, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Point of order—366, 654
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
 Special presentation—Jean Lloyd-Jones—79
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 172, 200, 208, 294, 670
 Subcommittee assignments—124, 140, 199, 349, 394, 416, 445, 487, 588

MATSON, HEATHER—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 598
 Amendments offered—695
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 23, 31
 Committee to notify/escort—55
 Introduction of bills—104, 114, 156, 185, 218, 228, 256, 267, 268, 269, 314, 315, 353,
 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491
 Point of order—695
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 164, 200
 Subcommittee assignments—125, 207, 208, 287, 445, 567

MAXWELL, DAVID E.—Representative

Amendments filed—417, 447
 Amendments offered—431, 481
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 23, 31
 Introduction of bills—106, 114, 224, 228
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 533, 590, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—125, 126, 133, 152, 199, 200, 253
 Subcommittee assignments—123, 133, 151, 162, 163, 199, 207, 233, 261, 274, 293, 349,
 368, 444, 486, 670

McCONKEY, CHARLIE—Representative, Assistant Minority Leader

Amendments filed—213, 236, 515, 711
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 31, 116, 138
 Explanation of vote—566
 Introduction of bills—104, 114, 118, 136, 145, 156, 177, 194, 218, 225, 228, 247, 268,
 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Leadership revision—100
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 590, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 164, 165, 173, 252
 Subcommittee assignments—250, 349, 444, 670

McKEAN, ANDY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 407, 447, 515, 516, 712
Amendments offered—730
Committee appointments/revisions—18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 32
Introduction of bills—104, 105, 107, 114, 118, 135, 146, 169, 177, 218, 224, 225, 228
247, 268, 269, 289, 290, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 693
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
Sponsor added—139, 170
Study bill subcommittee assignments—165, 318, 670
Subcommittee assignments—207, 250, 260, 274, 394, 444

MESSAGES—

From Senate—53, 215, 227, 267, 280, 337, 367, 370, 393, 396, 404, 408, 412, 442, 448,
449, 484, 485, 535, 565, 573, 586, 600, 609, 633, 642, 647, 673, 685, 692, 693, 710,
713, 722, 746, 755, 768
Immediate messages—12, 232, 247, 348, 367, 383, 393, 405, 415, 427, 433, 439, 442,
455, 461, 467, 473, 480, 484, 513, 532, 564, 587, 604, 609, 625, 642, 664, 688, 700,
702, 710, 722, 743, 754, 764, 781, 782
Item veto messages—795
Senate messages considered—219, 229, 237, 286, 356, 373, 374, 382, 397, 400, 410, 413,
418, 419, 450, 485, 491, 509, 519, 555, 572, 575, 586, 592, 597, 600, 611, 643, 649, 666
Veto messages—796

MEYER, ANN—Representative

Amendments filed—287, 300, 369, 447, 487, 515, 534, 570
Amendments offered—342, 523, 525, 528, 639
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 23, 24, 32
Committee to notify/escort—73
Introduction of bills—104, 106, 107, 114, 116, 117, 118, 129, 136, 144, 145, 155, 156,
177, 290, 353
Point of order—523, 528
Presided—302
Reports—73
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 533, 782
Sponsor added—147
Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 125, 164, 252, 262, 274, 275
Subcommittee assignments—79, 123, 124, 133, 140, 141, 151, 152, 162, 172, 189, 251,
274, 444, 445

MEYER, BRIAN—Representative, Assistant Minority Leader

Amendments filed—213, 515, 534, 569, 665
Amendments offered—550, 659
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 23, 32
Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 117, 118, 135, 136, 145, 146, 156, 177, 180,
184, 218, 223, 225, 228, 247, 268, 314, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491
Leave of absence—245, 403
Point of order—655, 758
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 590, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 126, 141, 165, 252
Subcommittee assignments—80, 123, 161, 274, 350, 533, 594, 711

MILEAGE, COMMITTEE ON—

Reports—10

MITCHELL, JOE—Representative

Amendments filed—516

Committee appointments/revisions—17, 20, 22, 23, 24, 32

Introduction of bills—67, 78, 106, 107, 117, 138, 154, 217, 256, 290, 353

Resolutions filed—447, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 141, 142, 163, 164, 172, 173, 208, 209, 252, 253, 262, 293, 294, 307

Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 110, 124, 133, 140, 141, 151, 152, 161, 199, 250, 251, 262, 293, 307, 349, 395, 444, 588, 670, 711

MINORITY LEADER, Prichard, Todd**MOHR, GARY M.—Representative**

Amendments filed—236, 516, 671, 712, 745

Amendments offered—699, 737, 738

Committee appointments/revisions—16, 18, 20, 22, 32

Committee to notify/escort—10

Introduction of bills—106, 128, 146, 147, 203, 204, 353, 667

Point of order—230, 733, 734, 735, 739

Reports—14

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 590, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 164, 670

Subcommittee assignments—140, 199, 251, 260, 349, 588, 630

MOMMSEN, NORLIN G.—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 32

Conference committee appointments and reports—695, 723

Introduction of bills—103, 117, 128, 137, 224, 257

Reports—8

Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 533, 590, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—164, 275, 670

Subcommittee assignments—162, 261, 349, 394, 444, 445, 487

MOORE, TOM—Representative

Amendments filed—516, 665, 690

Amendments offered—687

Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 24, 32

Introduction of bills—92, 106, 114, 116, 118, 224, 353

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 279, 533, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 110, 111, 112, 142, 153, 165, 189, 190, 199, 200, 201, 252

Subcommittee assignments—98, 109, 110, 123, 140, 151, 152, 189, 207, 252, 287, 487

NIELSEN, AMY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 515, 671, 691, 712, 783

Amendments offered—707, 775, 776

Committee appointments/revisions—19, 20, 22, 23, 32

Introduction of bills—104, 114, 118, 218, 219, 228, 247, 256, 268, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693

Reports—8

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766

Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 111, 133, 141, 142, 163, 164, 172, 190, 200

Subcommittee assignments—79, 123, 124, 140, 163, 251, 307, 349, 588, 670

OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES—

Employee/Administration and Rules Report—68-72, 764-765

Oath of office—2, 3, 7, 9

Pages—71

Resignations—71, 72

OLDSON, JO—Representative, Minority Whip

Amendments filed—214, 515, 534

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 33

Committee to notify/escort—7

Explanation of vote—416

Introduction of bills—114, 135, 218, 228, 259, 268, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693

Leave of absence—403

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590

Study bill subcommittee assignments—133, 141, 164, 670

Subcommittee assignments—162, 349, 588, 711

OLSON, RICK L.—Representative

Amendments filed—214, 515

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 33, 291

Introduction of bills—67, 78, 156, 218, 223, 228, 290, 314, 315, 353, 354, 489, 490, 491, 693

Leave of absence—348, 367, 393, 403

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 533, 590, 766

Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 112, 152, 165

Subcommittee assignments—109, 161, 198, 250, 261, 307, 350, 711

OSMUNDSON, ANNE—Representative

Amendments filed—488, 766

Amendments offered—503

Committee appointments/revisions—17, 21, 22, 23, 33

Introduction of bills—106, 114, 155, 168, 176, 177, 224, 290, 667

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 279, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 125, 153, 172, 233

Subcommittee assignments—80, 98, 109, 110, 140, 152, 161, 162, 163, 189, 199, 293, 368, 670

OURTH, SCOTT D.—Representative

Amendments filed—214, 515, 534, 665

Amendments offered—656

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 33

Introduction of bills—104, 114, 118, 132, 228, 247, 314, 353, 398, 399, 489, 693

Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 351, 446

Study bill subcommittee assignments—133, 172, 252, 275, 294

Subcommittee assignments—163, 207, 486

PAUSTIAN, ROSS C.—Representative

- Amendments filed—632, 712
- Amendments offered—557, 720
- Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 33
- Committee to notify/escort—54
- Introduction of bills—106, 128, 224
- Leave of absence—513
- Reports—54
- Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 533, 782
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 112, 141, 152, 163, 165, 173, 208, 307
- Subcommittee assignments—79, 98, 109, 125, 197, 199, 445, 711

PETITIONS FILED—

- 594, 765

PRICHARD, TODD—Representative, Minority Leader

- Amendments filed—214, 515
- Committee appointments/revisions—20, 33
- Committee to notify/escort—3
- Introduction of bills—114, 135, 178, 217, 218, 224, 228, 247, 268, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 399, 489, 490, 491, 694
- Leave of absence—393, 403
- Point of order—511, 562, 606
- Remarks—12, 784
- Resolutions filed—11, 12, 212, 265, 446
- Special presentation—House Pages—799

RESOLUTIONS—(*For complete bill histories, see INDEX volume*)

- Adopted—11, 12, 270, 418, 603, 609, 782
- Filed—112, 175, 212, 265, 278, 351, 407, 446, 533, 590, 605, 766, 782

RULES—

- Rule 2—(convening on Sunday)—764
- Rule 7—(amendment of rules)—607
- Rule 10—(decorum in debate)—366, 454, 498, 511, 550, 618, 654, 655, 695, 738, 772, 777
- Rule 25—(resolution laid over)—112, 175, 212, 266, 279, 351, 407, 446, 447, 533, 590, 605, 766, 782
- Rule 31.7—(commitment of bills)—192, 209, 406, 589
- Rule 31.8—(timely filing of amendments)—230, 231, 606
- Rule 39—(consideration of bills)—606
- Rule 42—(certification of engrossment)—744
- Rule 57—(committee notice and agenda)—16, 65, 599, 606
- Rule 61—(committee public meetings)—606
- Rule 67—(time certain closing debate on bill)—655, 769
- Rule 72—(unanimous consent)—701
- Rule 74—(manner of voting)—606
- Rule 75—(duty to vote)—599, 660, 733, 737, 756

RUNNING-MARQUARDT, KIRSTEN—Representative

- Amendments filed—214, 515, 534, 690
- Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 33
- Introduction of bills—104, 114, 224, 228, 314, 315, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491
- Leave of absence—625
- Resolutions filed—212, 265, 279, 351, 407, 590

Study bill subcommittee assignments—670
Subcommittee assignments—349, 394, 444, 588, 630

SALMON, SANDY—Representative

Amendments filed—447, 516, 632, 766
Amendments offered—451, 494, 546, 675
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 33
Committee to notify/escort—81
Introduction of bills—78, 94, 104, 105, 113, 118, 137, 144, 155, 168, 176, 177, 185, 216, 223, 224
Reports—82
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 351, 446, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—152, 173, 190, 208, 233, 262, 294
Subcommittee assignments—109, 110, 123, 125, 151, 152, 162, 189, 207, 251, 260, 445

SEATS—

Assignments/revisions—9, 100

SEXTON, MIKE—Representative, Majority Whip

Amendments filed—417, 516, 632
Amendments offered—634
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 24, 33
Introduction of bills—105, 106, 147, 224, 228
Leadership revision—16
Resolutions filed—278, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 110, 111, 141, 163, 173, 190, 200, 208, 252, 275, 307, 670
Subcommittee assignments—124, 125, 162, 251, 261, 349, 444

SHIPLEY, JEFF—Representative

Amendments filed—288, 745
Amendments offered—495, 496, 739
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 23, 34
Introduction of bills—106, 127, 128, 136, 144, 168, 176, 177, 178, 185, 216, 224, 225, 247, 268, 289, 290, 304, 314, 316, 693
Leave of absence—416
Petition filed—765
Resolutions filed—175, 212, 266, 351, 589, 782
Sponsor withdrawn—513
Study bill subcommittee assignments—200, 252, 253, 318
Subcommittee assignments—132, 140, 162, 172, 203, 233, 444

SIECK, DAVID, Representative

Amendments filed—236, 516
Amendments offered—230
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 23, 34
Introduction of bills—114, 229, 353
Leave of absence—603
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 533, 590, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 199, 252
Subcommittee assignments—123, 189, 199, 220, 250, 251, 274, 349, 416, 486, 533, 670

SMITH, MARK—Representative

- Amendments filed—214, 712
- Committee appointments/revisions—19, 21, 23, 34, 291
- Introduction of bills—67, 68, 92, 114, 115, 118, 155, 218, 228, 247, 268, 314, 315, 353, 354, 668, 693
- Leave of absence—513
- Resolutions filed—212, 265, 278, 351, 446, 590, 766
- Sponsor added—232
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 274
- Subcommittee assignments—151

SMITH, RASTAFARI I.—Representative

- Amendments filed—213, 236, 395, 515
- Amendments offered—242
- Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 23, 34
- Introduction of bills—104, 114, 115, 118, 183, 184, 217, 218, 219, 223, 228, 238, 247, 256, 282, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 693
- Point of order—772
- Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
- Special presentation—Wayne Ford—373
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 152, 164, 165
- Subcommittee assignments—123, 151, 261

SORENSEN, RAY—Representative

- Amendments filed—646, 711
- Amendments offered—635, 697
- Committee appointments/revisions—18, 20, 22, 23, 34
- Introduction of bills—68, 92, 106, 118, 127, 137
- Point of order—496
- Presided—571
- Resolutions filed—212, 224, 266, 278, 351, 446, 782
- Special presentation—Steve Olson—81
- Study bill subcommittee assignments—110, 111, 142, 164, 165, 190, 200, 208, 274, 294, 670
- Subcommittee assignments—151, 161, 162, 189, 251, 260, 293, 349, 394, 416, 588, 630

SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE—Grassley, Pat**SPEAKER PRO TEMPORE**—Wills, John H.**SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS**—

- Jean Lloyd-Jones—79
- Steve Olson—81
- Clel Baudler—186
- Rob Taylor—186
- Doris Kelley—270
- Wayne Ford—373
- Ralph Klemme—373
- Stephanie Mehan, St. Patrick's Association, Senator Joan Freeman from Ireland and Rianna Vivens, Miss Shamrock—573

SPONSOR—(See also *individual representatives*)

Added—118, 130, 139, 147, 158, 170, 205, 232, 259, 271, 443, 588, 604, 765
Withdrawn—513

STAED, ART—Representative

Amendments filed—214, 287, 351, 369, 407, 516, 712
Amendments offered—751
Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 34, 116
Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 118, 136, 146, 156, 157, 177, 180, 184, 185,
193, 194, 218, 225, 228, 237, 238, 247, 256, 268, 269, 281, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354,
398, 399, 419, 489, 490, 491, 693
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 351, 533, 590, 766
Sponsor added—271
Study bill subcommittee assignments—173, 252, 275, 318
Subcommittee assignments—98, 140, 172, 207, 256, 533

STECKMAN, SHARON S.—Representative, Assistant Minority Leader

Amendments filed—214, 351, 369, 516, 712
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 34
Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 118, 135, 136, 146, 156, 194, 218, 223, 224,
228, 247, 268, 269, 285, 289, 290, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
Reports—8
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 142, 200
Subcommittee assignments—133, 162, 233, 251, 287, 293, 486

SUNDE, KRISTIN—Representative

Amendments filed—214, 516
Committee appointments/revisions—18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 34
Committee to notify/escort—10
Introduction of bills—104, 114, 117, 118, 156, 177, 218, 228, 247, 259, 268, 289, 314,
315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 125, 152, 164, 173
Subcommittee assignments—98, 133, 140, 151, 161, 189, 197, 251, 307, 444

THEDE, PHYLLIS—Representative

Amendments filed—214, 516
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 35
Introduction of bills—104, 115, 128, 177, 218, 223, 228, 247, 268, 314, 315, 353, 354,
399, 489, 490, 491, 668, 693
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—190, 307, 318, 670
Subcommittee assignments—98, 160

THOMPSON, PHIL—Representative

Committee appointments/revisions—17, 22, 23, 24, 35
Committee to notify/escort—82
Introduction of bills—106, 118, 155, 177, 224, 269
Leave of absence—416
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 351, 446, 533, 782

Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 133, 134, 142, 165, 200, 318
 Subcommittee assignments—79, 123, 162, 163, 207, 274, 287, 293

THORUP, JON—Representative, Assistant Majority Leader

Amendments filed—324, 590
 Amendments offered—357
 Committee appointments/revisions—19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 35
 Introduction of bills—66, 68, 106, 186, 224, 226, 239, 304, 668
 Leadership revision—16
 Resolutions filed—278, 590, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 125, 126, 152, 172, 173, 199, 208, 294, 307
 Subcommittee assignments—109, 123, 133, 151, 161, 162, 172, 189, 251, 260, 261, 273, 274, 287, 307

UPMEYER, LINDA L.—Representative

Administered oath—2, 3
 Amendments filed—766
 Committee appointments/revisions—17, 19, 21, 22, 35
 Introduction of bills—222, 224, 271, 509
 Presided—1, 746
 Resignation—2
 Resolutions filed—533, 782
 Subcommittee assignments—120, 121

WESSEL-KROESCHELL, BETH—Representative

Administered oath—9
 Amendments filed—214, 516, 632, 645, 646
 Committee appointments/revisions—21, 22, 24, 35
 Introduction of bills—104, 118, 136, 156, 180, 184, 218, 223, 228, 247, 314, 315, 353, 354, 371, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 125, 152, 173, 233, 253, 274, 287
 Subcommittee assignments—123, 124, 151, 152, 197, 198, 350, 513, 711

WHEELER, SKYLER—Representative

Amendments filed—351, 369, 516
 Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 23, 35
 Introduction of bills—92, 114, 129, 155, 168, 177, 185, 203, 216, 218, 222
 Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 351, 446, 782
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—134, 142, 165, 200, 208, 275
 Subcommittee assignments—161, 162, 163, 233, 260, 274, 287, 290, 368, 445, 670

WILBURN, ROSS—Representative

Amendments filed—214, 407, 488, 516, 632, 645
 Amendments offered—503
 Committee appointments/revisions—9, 18, 19, 21, 22, 24, 35
 Committee to notify/escort—74
 Introduction of bills—104, 107, 114, 115, 118, 135, 136, 146, 156, 184, 218, 219, 223, 225, 228, 247, 268, 289, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
 Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
 Study bill subcommittee assignments—141, 153, 173, 200
 Subcommittee assignments—79, 80, 110, 123, 189, 233, 293, 395, 445, 588, 711

WILLIAMS, DAVE—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 516
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 23, 24, 35
Committee to notify/escort—73
Introduction of bills—104, 114, 118, 194, 204, 218, 228, 247, 268, 282, 289, 302, 314, 315, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 351, 766
Special presentation—Doris Kelley—270
Sponsor added—259
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 112, 133, 200, 670
Subcommittee assignments—110, 124, 151, 189, 261, 293, 349, 588, 594

WILLS, JOHN H.—Representative, Speaker Pro Tempore

Committee appointments/revisions—20, 23, 36
Conference committee appointments and reports—695, 723
Introduction of bills—92, 93, 94, 105, 106, 115, 154, 169, 224, 227, 304
Leadership revision—16
Presided—113, 135, 183, 202, 222, 289, 331, 352, 383, 401, 433, 489, 491, 502, 512, 519, 535, 555, 573, 600, 633, 643, 664, 669, 674, 685, 689, 693, 700, 707, 721, 722, 751, 754
Remarks—7
Reports—8
Resolutions filed—112, 278, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—111, 133, 134, 142, 164, 670
Subcommittee assignments—124, 233, 394, 444, 594

WINCKLER, CINDY—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 236, 351, 516, 518, 712
Amendments offered—740, 741
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 24, 36
Introduction of bills—104, 114, 118, 128, 136, 137, 146, 177, 184, 194, 204, 218, 219, 223, 224, 228, 238, 247, 281, 353, 354, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
Study bill subcommittee assignments—142, 670
Subcommittee assignments—140, 162, 260, 261, 349, 350, 394, 588

WINDSCHITL, MATT W.—Representative, Majority Leader

Amendments filed—407
Amendments offered—413
Committee appointments/revisions—17, 20, 36
Introduction of bills—224, 600, 694
Leadership revision—2
Motion to reconsider—485, 624
Point of order—498, 511, 550, 738
Remarks—14, 782
Resignation—6
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 278, 782
Special presentation—Rob Taylor—186, House Pages—799

WOLFE, MARY LYNN—Representative

Amendments filed—213, 516, 712
Amendments offered—725, 750

Committee appointments/revisions—18, 20, 21, 23, 36
Conference committee appointments and reports—695, 723
Introduction of bills—67, 68, 94, 104, 107, 114, 115, 137, 146, 157, 218, 219, 223, 228,
247, 268, 269, 281, 290, 314, 353, 354, 371, 398, 399, 489, 490, 491, 693
Leave of absence—531
Resolutions filed—212, 265, 590, 766
Sponsor added—130
Study bill subcommittee assignments—80, 125, 141, 152, 173, 209, 233, 274
Subcommittee assignments—133, 140, 162, 220, 250, 252, 260, 286, 287, 293, 307, 350,
368, 369, 395, 514, 588, 594, 604, 670, 711

WORTHAN, GARY—Representative

Amendments filed—516, 632
Amendments offered—619
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 22, 23, 24, 36
Committee to notify/escort—83
Introduction of bills—224
Leave of absence—664, 689, 710, 744, 764, 781
Point of order—616
Resolutions filed—212, 266, 279, 533
Study bill subcommittee assignments—112, 133, 164, 165, 173, 190, 208, 252, 670
Subcommittee assignments—109, 123, 124, 125, 161, 251, 274, 307, 349, 443, 444, 588

ZUMBACH, LOUIS J.—Representative, Assistant Majority Leader

Amendments filed—516, 646
Committee appointments/revisions—20, 21, 22, 23, 36
Introduction of bills—93, 224
Presided—673
Resolutions filed—278, 533, 782
Study bill subcommittee assignments—65, 142, 199
Subcommittee assignments—122, 133, 160, 163, 368, 444, 486, 533, 670